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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

House of Commons, 
Monday, February 7, 1966.

Resolved,—That the following members do compose the Standing Commit­
tee on Public Accounts:

Messrs.

Baldwin,
Ballard,
Bigg,
Cameron (High Park), 
Dionne,
Flemming,
Forbes,
Gendron,
Hales,

Leblanc (Laurier), 
Lefebvre,
Morison,
Muir (Lisgar), 
Prittie,
Racine,
Stafford,
Tardif,

Thomas (Maisonneuve- 
Rosemont) ,

Thomas (Middlesex West), 
Tremblay,
Tucker,
Winch,
Winkler,
Yanakis—(24).

Thursday, February 17, 1966.

Ordered,—That the names of Messrs. McLean (Charlotte) and Mandziuk be 
substituted for those of Messrs. Yanakis and Winkler, on the Standing Com­
mittee on Public Accounts.

Thursday, March 3, 1966.

Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Noble be substituted for that of Mr. 
Mandziuk on the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

Monday, March 28, 1966.
Ordered,—That the Public Accounts Volumes I, II and III for the fiscal 

years ended March 31, 1964 and March 31, 1965, and the Reports of the Auditor 
General thereon, tabled on February 16, 1965 and February 1, 1966, respective­
ly, together with the reports and financial statements of the Canada Council for 
the fiscal years ended March 31, 1964 and March 31, 1965, and the Reports of 
the Auditor General thereon tabled on July 14, 1964 and March 7, 1966, 
respectively be referred to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

Attest.
LÉON-J. RAYMOND,

The Clerk of the House.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Tuesday, March 1, 1966.

(1)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 10.50 a.m., for 
organization purposes.

Members present: Messrs. Ballard, Flemming, Forbes, Hales, Lefebvre, 
McLean (Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Prittie, Racine Stafford, Tardif, Thomas 
(Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Tremblay, Tucker (14).

The Clerk attending, and having called for nominations, Mr. Tucker 
moved, seconded by Mr. Tardif, that Mr. Hales be elected Chairman of the 
Committee.

There being no further nominations, Mr. Hales was declared elected as 
Chairman.

Mr. Hales thanked the Committee for the honour conferred on him.

Mr. Tremblay moved, seconded by Mr. Tardif, that Mr. Lefebvre be elected 
Vice-Chairman.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte) moved, seconded by Mr. Tucker, that Mr. Tardif 
be elected Vice-Chairman; Mr. Tardif declined the nomination.

There being no further nominations, Mr. Lefebvre was declared elected as 
Vice-Chairman and thanked the Committee for the honour.

On motion of Mr. Prittie, seconded by Mr. Muir (Lisgar),
Resolved,—That a Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure, comprised of 

the Chairman and four members to be named by him, be appointed.

At 11.00 a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

Tuesday, April 5, 1966.
(2)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.40 a.m. The 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presided.

t Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Dionne, Flemming, Forbes, Hales,
Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Thomas (Maisonneuve- 
Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), Tremblay, Tucker, Winch (15).

5



6 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS April 5, 1966

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; and 
Messrs. Long, Stokes, Smith, Douglas, Crowley, Gilhooly, Cooke and Laroche of 
the Auditor General’s office.

The Clerk read the Committee’s Order of Reference dated March 28, 1966.

On motion of Mr. Leblanc (Laurier), seconded by Mr. Thomas (Middlesex 
West),

Resolved,—That the Committee print 750 copies in English and 350 copies in 
French of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

The Chairman, after making an introductory statement, announced the 
composition of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure as follows: Messrs. 
Hales, Lefebvre, Baldwin, Tardif and Winch.

Mr. Henderson made a brief statement on the function and role of the 
Auditor General and then introduced his senior officers.

The Committee then reviewed the follow-up report by the Auditor Gen­
eral, dated February 28, 1966, on the action taken by departments and other 
agencies in response to recommendations made by this committee.

Mr. Henderson was examined on his follow-up report, assisted by Mr. 
Long.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. Baldwin,
Resolved,—That the follow-up report of the Auditor General be printed as 

an Appendix to the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of this day. (See 
Appendix 1 ).

At 11.25 a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

M. Slack,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE
Tuesday, April 5, 1966.

• (9:40 a.m.)
The Chairman: This is the first meeting of the Public Accounts Committee. 

There are one or two observations I should like to make. First of all, when you 
are speaking I hope that each one of you will speak directly into the micro­
phone in front of you. We want everybody to hear what is being said, and, 
secondly, if you would endeavour to sit in the same seats each meeting, it will 
help the translators and it will help your Chairman to spot the members who 
wish to speak. I would first of all ask our congenial clerk, Mr. Slack, who has 
been with the Public Accounts Committee on other occasions, to commence our 
meeting by reading the order of reference.

Clerk of the committee :
Monday, March 28, 1966. Ordered, that the Public Accounts volumes 

one, two and three for the fiscal years ended March 31, 1964 and March 
31, 1965, and the reports of the Auditor General thereon, tabled on 
February 16, 1965, and February 1, 1966, respectively, together with the 
report and financial statements of the Canada Council for the fiscal years 
ended March 31, 1964, and March 31, 1965, and reports to the Auditor 
General thereon, tabled on July 14, 1964, March 7, 1966, respectively, be 
referred to the standing committee on Public Accounts.

Léon-J. Raymond.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, that is the work lined up for us. Now, would 
someone care to move that the committee print 750 copies in English and 350 
copies in French of its Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

I might say that these numbers of 750 and 350 have been checked with the 
distribution people and they are in order.

Mr. Leblanc: I so move.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.
The Chairman: I have one or two introductory remarks, gentlemen. First 

of all, members of the committee will have noted the widespread publicity 
given again this year to the Auditor General’s report following its tabling in the 
House on February 1. I have read many of these editorials in English and in 
French newspapers and I believe our committee has a big service to perform 
again this year in keeping faith with the taxpayers of this country. As you 
yourselves will have read, little has been left unsaid in the press as to what the 
taxpayers expect from their members of parliament and the Public Accounts
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8 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS April 5, 1966

Committee, now that it is charged by parliament with examining the reports of 
the Auditor General for 1964 and 1965. I am sure we can all be most grateful to 
the press for their attendance at our meetings and their excellent coverage and 
cooperation.

I should like to pay tribute at this time to my predecessors in office since 
1958, first, Mr. Alan Macnaughton and then Mr. G. W. Baldwin, under whose 
guidance this committee has established an enviable record over the past eight 
years in terms of work done and recommendations made. However, the fact that 
so many of its recommendations have not been acted upon by the executive is 
something I believe we should tackle as our first item of business when dealing 
with the Auditor General’s follow-up report and this will be distributed to you 
this morning.

Before deciding on witnesses to be called, I suggest that we examine first 
the Auditor General’s follow-up report, and then move to his 1964 report. Items 
in these two reports, on which later information is available in the 1965 report, 
might be set aside until we are ready to discuss that report. Thus, after a few 
meetings, we can decide about witnesses and corporations to call and set up our 
dates accordingly.

It is necessary that each member of the committee devote as much time as 
he can to studying the reports and related material in advance of discussion in 
the committee, and in order to assist you in this I propose to, as much as 
possible, tell you at the close of each meeting what we will be taking up at the 
next meeting so it will give you a chance to do a little homework.

The reports of the Auditor General deal with the various items he has 
selected for criticism. As you know, they are items disclosed in the course of his 
work and investigated to the point where he believes the facts should be made 
known to parliament and to this committee. His reports are not efficiency ones. 
Rather do they aim at promoting efficiency by pointing to many transactions 
where there is evidence of waste, inefficiency or weakness of system. After 
discussion of each item, we must decide, among other things, whether the 
money voted by parliament has in fact been effectively and efficiently spent. We 
are free to question any of the officials of the departments, agencies and crown 
corporations on the facts disclosed by the Auditor General. After we have 
reported our conclusions and recommendations to the House we expect these 
departments, agencies and crown corporations to report back promptly and say 
what they have done to put matters right.

It is important for us to understand that the Auditor General functions as a 
permanent adviser to this committee and I know I speak for all of the members 
when I say that we intend to make good use of his advice.

He is an officer of parliament and this committee provides the only channel 
open to him where he can discuss and review his work.

The independence of the Auditor General is the source of his greatest 
strength. It is the responsibility of the members of the House and particularly 
members of this committee to render him every possible assistance aimed at 
safeguarding the independence of his position and the operations of his office. I 
might say in that connection that this committee in the past has made a number 
of recommendations aimed at revising Part VII of the Financial Administration
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Act for the express purpose of safeguarding his independence. However, as you 
will note from the follow-up report, no action has been taken yet by the 
executive. I know that all of the members will share my view that we should 
examine this situation particularly closely.

Well, now gentlemen, I would like at this time to name the members of the 
Steering Subcommittee whom I have spoken to and asked to work on the 
subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure. They are Mr. Baldwin, our past 
Chairman, Mr. Lefebvre, our Vice-chairman, Mr. Tardif, Mr. Winch, and your 
Chairman is the other member of that committee.

Now I would like to call on our Auditor General, Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Winch: Just before you do that, could I ask a question of you sir. In 
view of your outline of the procedure which we are going to follow and the 
order we are going to take the information, I would like to ask whether or not 
yourself as Chairman, upon occasion, will consider moving up certain matters of 
interest. I am not going into detail but I have in mind a particular matter. In 
our past meetings we were told that certain illegalities of the Revenue 
Department are being continued.

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, in the past we have done that and I see no 
reason why the committee would not do it again.

Now, Mr. Henderson, our Auditor General, will introduce to you his staff 
who have been kind enough to join us this morning and the meeting will 
continue under Mr. Henderson’s guidance.

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General): Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 
members of the committee. Before making these introductions I should like to 
say to you how pleased I am to appear before you again today at the 
commencement of the sittings of the committee. As your Chairman has pointed 
out, I do so in my official capacity as an officer of parliament in which I have 
been traditionally the adviser of this committee.

(Translation)

It gives me special pleasure to welcome this morning those members 
of the Committee who come from my own province. I have been a 
member of the “Institut des comptables agréés du Québec” for eighteen years. 
I must admit, however, that I am afraid I do not speak French as fluently as 
I would like. So because my business is strictly facts and figures I had better 
revert to my native tongue. As the old proverb goes: “discretion is the better 
part of valour”.

(English)

I might now perhaps say a word to you about the function and the role of 
the Auditor General. His functions and responsibilities are outlined in Part VII 
of the Financial Administration Act. By law he is entitled to free access at all 
convenient times to all files, documents and records relating to the accounts of 
every government department, crown corporation and agency, and he is also 
entitled to require and receive from members of the public service such 
information, reports and explanations as he may deem necessary for the proper 
performance of his duties.
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Section 67 of the Financial Administration Act requires the Auditor General 
to examine in such manner as he may deem necessary the accounts relating to 
the Consolidated Revenue Fund and to public property, and to ascertain 
whether in his opinion, among other things, money has been expended for the 
purposes for which it was appropriated by parliament and the expenditures 
have been made as authorized.

Section 70 of the Act requires the Auditor General to report to the House of 
Commons each year on the results of his examinations. Among the matters upon 
which he is specifically required to report in relation to expenditures is any case 
where any appropriation has been exceeded or was applied to a purpose or in a 
manner not authorized by parliament, and any case where an expenditure was 
not authorized or was not properly vouched or certified. In addition, he is 
required to report any other case that he considers should be brought to the 
notice of the House of Commons.

I should now like, Mr. Chairman, to take a moment to introduce to you the 
senior officers I have brought here today for this purpose. It is not intended that 
they should all attend each of the sittings together in this way. Generally 
speaking, I shall have present those of my Audit Directors who are responsible 
for the matters with which you are dealing at the time.

First I should like to introduce to you Mr. George Long C.A., who is on my 
right and who is the Assistant Auditor General. Mr. Long has had a long and 
distinguished career in the Audit office. He will be participating in all of the 
meetings with me.

I would now like to ask Mr. J. R. Douglas if he would rise. He is my Audit 
Director whose prime responsibilities are the accounts relating to National 
Defence operations, together with the Department of Industry, the Department 
of Defence Production and their related crown corporations.

I will now ask Mr. Crowley to rise. He is my Director in charge of the 
Revenue side of our work. With Mr. Crowley is Mr. Marcel Laroche, the 
Assistant Director. The work of these men has particular responsibilities 
involving as it does all of the Revenue side, that is to say Customs, Excise, 
Income Tax and related taxation, the Post Office, National Research Council, 
Royal Canadian Mint, the Exchange Fund and similar areas.

I would now introduce Mr. Edward Cooke, C.A. He is my Director who 
deals with the responsibilities we have here in the House of Commons, in the 
Department of Finance, including the Central Pay Office, and the Superan­
nuation Branch and the Department of Citizenship and Immigration. I might 
mention that Mr- Cooke, who has served 12 years in the Audit Office, was 
promoted to this position in January of this year replacing Mr. Stewart 
Chapman who retired after a career in the Audit Office extending over 32 years. 
I believe a number of the members present will recall M. Chapman’s appear­
ances before the committee.

I shall now ask Mr. Frank Gilhooly if he would rise. He is my Audit 
Director in charge of work on the Welfare side, involving the departments of 
National Health and Welfare, Veterans Affairs, Labour, Unemployment Insur­
ance Fund, Department of Justice, and so on.
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The next Director I want to introduce to you is Mr. Douglas Smith whom 
many of you know. He is my Director in charge of what I might loosely 
describe as the larger spending departments, for example Public Works, 
Transport, Mines and Technical Surveys, Northern Affairs, and National Re­
sources, and so on.

And lastly, Mr. A. B. Stokes, C.A., who is my Director in charge of such 
departments as External Affairs, Agriculture, Privy Council, Trade and Com­
merce and the majority of the crown corporations that we examine and which, 
as you know, include some large ones.

This completes my introductions, Mr. Chairman, and perhaps these few 
words may serve to give members a brief idea of the way in which our office is 
organized and how we assign and go about our work. I should explain to you 
that each of the men I have introduced to you is in charge of a branch 
and supporting staffs. The Audit Office is divided into six branches over which 
these Directors preside and we work very much together as a team. If there are 
any questions at all, Mr. Chairman, from any of the members, I should be most 
happy to answer them.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Henderson. We appreciate having your 
battery here. We assure you we have the firing squad out in front; but we will 
try and be as congenial as possible at all times. We are very pleased to have 
your staff with us.

Mr. Henderson: Thank you very much.

The Chairman: Now, we have the follow-up report.

Mr. Winch: May I ask a question?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Winch: Could I ask Mr. Henderson this question. In view of the 
number of the presentations made to this committee in the past, that one of 
your major problems was not sufficient staff to do more than a rough spot check 
and because of what you discovered in your spot checks, you felt it neces­
sary to be able to increase your spot checks, could I now ask whether or 
not you are in a position to do more of spot checking than in the past?

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, this is a good subject. It is in the follow-up 
report and will be discussed when we come to that. Now, Mr. Tremblay?

(Translation)

Mr. Tremblay: Mr. Henderson, you have mentioned that under the Fi­
nancial Administration Act the Auditor General has two main functions, one of 
which is to indicate first, whether expenses were incurred in accordance with 
the legislation enacted by the government, and, secondly, whether any changes 
were made in the use of funds from credits ear-marked by Parliament. The 
second function is quite general and allows the Auditor General to make any 
comment to the House concerning the use of funds. I should like to know on 
what criteria is based this second function permitting the Auditor General to 
make any remarks or comments to Parliament on the use of funds.
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(English)

The Chairman : Mr. Henderson, would you care to comment?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would refer you to the sections of the 
Financial Administration Act which are set forth in my report on the first page, 
paragraph 2, where it states that the Auditor General shall report annually to 
the House the results of his examination, and then it lists the things to which he 
should call attention and it concludes by saying “and to any other case that 
the Auditor General considers should be brought to the notice of the House of 
Commons”. I, of course, deal with all of the cases that are listed there, and my 
interpretation of the last clause has been to bring as much common sense and 
fairness as I possibly can to my judgment in reporting those things to the 
House which I believe the House should know and to give the reason. I think as 
we study my report, you will be in a better position perhaps to come back to 
this question. I shall welcome a discussion with you.

The Chairman: Mr. Tremblay, would you mind speaking into the mike?

(Translation)

Mr. Tremblay: Must this last clause be interpreted in relation to the items 
listed here in a, b, c, d, e, f? I ask this question because, and we shall probably 
refer again to this when studying the report, certain items indicated by you in 
your report are items or decisions made, let us say by the Treasury Board, 
where funds were allocated in pursuance of a vote and where you commented 
on a decision which had not been made in accordance with the regulations 
established by the Treasury Board. Therefore I ask, in this instance, under what 
section of the Act or under what vote established in the estimates such a 
remark may be made?

(English)

Mr. Henderson: I think the interpretation of this section, Mr. Tremblay, 
does, and I think you will agree, must rest with the Auditor General in such 
cases—This is borne out by the practice back to the inception of the Office in 
Westminster on which considerable has been written and said—dealing with 
matters and cases which the Auditor General believes should be brought to the 
notice of the House of Commons involving for example, waste and extravagance 
which he conceives it his responsibility to bring to the attention of the House. 
Again, there are many cases where the intent of parliament and the legislation 
has not been clear. It has always seemed to me proper that he ask parliament 
what the intent of that legislation is, and we shall be encountering a number of 
cases here in which that question is posed.

I make no apologies for the manner in which I have interpreted this section 
in so far as waste and extravagance of public money are concerned and where 
non-productive expenditures have resulted in a substantial loss of public funds. 
In fact, it is at the express direction of this committee that I bring forward each 
and every case of non-productive expenditure I encounter in my work. Possibly 
you have reference to some of these as not falling in this class, but I am acting 
here under the express direction of this committee.
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It may be at that time the committee will wish to alter this direction. I my­
self am on record as inviting and asking for a definition of non-productive ex­
penditure. It is generally conceded to be a case where value is not received for 
money and there are many borderline cases. It may be that a lot of experience 
was received, if you want to call that value. It calls for the exercise of judgment 
and I do not have to tell you that every paragraph in my report is shown in its 
final text form to the deputy ministers and to the officials of the department 
concerned and is checked by them before it goes into my report. So I should be 
more than happy if you could cite any specific cases under this heading which 
you would like to explore further. I would, in fact, welcome it in so far as I 
think it would help both of us.

Mr. Baldwin: Just as clarification and if I might, I would like to lead up to 
what is I think a case in point. Is it not correct, Mr. Henderson, that in the 
pursuit of your duties you interpret them, and particularly under this latter 
clause, you brought to the attention of this committee a number of recommen­
dations of the Glassco Committee which had not been implemented? This 
Committee backed you up in that and in its view suggested that it is part of 
your function and part of your duty to do this and to continue to bring to the 
attention of the committee all those areas in connection with the Glassco 
Commission where there had not been the implementation which you felt would 
result in savings and in lack of duplication and in no waste. Am I correct in 
that?

Mr. Henderson: Yes. I am obliged to you for bringing that matter up, Mr. 
Baldwin. I do not know whether Mr. Tremblay had that particular case in mind 
but I discussed the situation in this committee as I saw it about three years ago 
and it was a direct result of their instruction to me that I reported in my 1965 
report on the results of my check. I refrained from doing so in 1964, for what I 
considered a very sound reason, namely, that at that time the Treasury Board 
were engaged in a detailed and special study of this situation, and I felt that it 
was only proper that they should be given a chance to complete it, notwith­
standing the fact that several years had elapsed since the particular report had 
been published.

The Chairman: Mr. Tremblay, maybe when we come to this section 
“non-productive account” you might like to bring this matter up again under 
that heading.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I just have one question here for clarification. 
Your introductory remarks were excellent, sir. We have just now been handed 
the follow-up report by the Auditor General to the Standing Committee on 
Public Accounts on the action taken by departments and other agencies in 
response to recommendations made by the Committee. Do I understand correct­
ly that among the first order of business of this committee will be consideration 
of past recommendations of this committee that have not been followed 
through, and the calling of witnesses to give an explanation of why a parlia­
mentary committee’s recommendations have not been concurred in or acted 
upon.
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The Chairman : Mr. Winch, our report to the House will be based peri­
odically on the subjects we have discussed. This is our first order of business so 
our first report to the House will be on this, I would take it.

Mr. Winch: And the first witnesses we can call will be deputies or 
ministers who will be asked to explain why the recommendations have not been 
followed through.

The Chairman: At the call of the committee, if you so decide. I think if Mr. 
Henderson takes a quick run through this follow-up report—

Mr. Henderson: Would that be agreeable?
The Chairman: Would that be agreeable to this committee.
Agreed.
And it has been distributed.

• (10.10 a.m.)
Mr. Winch: One of the first things we should know is why the recommen­

dations of this committee have not been dealt with.
Mr. Henderson: Well, if we were to take a quick run through the report 

the present situation would be self-evident, and then in your judgment you 
could decide whether you want to stop there and consider this or whether you 
want to move into the 1964 report and then the 1965 report, as the Chairman 
said.

The comments I have made here are intended to be concise. There have 
been a few developments since and I will mention them as we go along because, 
as I say here, this is my report on the situation on February 28, 1966, and here 
we are on April 5.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I think it is rather ridiculous, if a committee of 
this importance, after consideration, makes recommendations and nothing is 
done about them.

Mr. Henderson: I might start out, Mr. Chairman, with page 1 by saying to 
you that I indicate how in accordance with your instructions I sent the previous 
reports to the Ministers responsible and I received replies from each of the 
Ministers, either in detail or followed up later by a letter in detail, as you will 
observe later, or else just a plain acknowledgment ; and in addition, Deputy 
Ministers of many of the departments have been most helpful in bringing the 
information up to date.

Now, the first one is a carry forward from your fourth report, 1963. The 
ones we are going to deal with are forty, that is to say the ones not fixed up yet. 
The ones that have been implemented are listed at the end. There are ten. We 
started with fifty. We have forty still outstanding.

Mr. Winch: There are forty which are still outstanding.
Mr. Henderson: That is correct. The first one from your fourth report 1963 

has to do with second class mail in which you requested me to keep the matter 
before parliament in my annual reports in order that subsequent committees may 
give consideration to it. I have done this both in my 1964 report and in my 1965 
report and I indicate the steps that the department has been taking in an 
endeavour to improve its cost ascertainment procedures.
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To start at page 2, I go on to indicate that the loss in 1963-64 had been 
estimated at $35 million. I do not at the present time have the 1964-1965 
figures. The department is still working with experts they have engaged on 
their cost ascertainment procedures and if I am correct I believe that a report 
will be forthcoming this spring giving the first full year’s results under the new 
cost ascertainment procedures.

The loss from second class mail, of course, remains at a substantial level 
and I would suggest to you that this is a point that you might care to defer until 
we move on to what I have to say in my 1965 report, by which time I would 
hope that we might have something more definite from the Post Office De­
partment.

Departmental Operating Activities; there has been a standing request made 
to me to continue to keep the development of this objective under close 
surveillance and to report thereon to the committee. We watch this in the 
course of our work. I can tell you that there has been steady improvement, but 
the development of accurate periodic comparative financial statements is, in 
many of our departments, dependent upon the progress of the Glassco recom­
mendations because this too was one of the Glassco commission’s recommenda­
tions.

I have a number of examples of steps that have been taken by the 
department to meet this objective. I have in mind particularly, a letter from 
Mr. Chagnon of the Department of Agriculture concerning the Agricultural 
Stabilization Board, the Board of Grain Commissioners, and the Canadian 
Government Elevators. We are continuing to press for this and much more has 
to be done. I give specific examples of this again in my 1964 and 1965 reports so 
that again I would suggest this is a subject you might want to leave until we 
reach that point.

Internal Financial Control. Again there has been a standing request for me 
to continue my examinations into this important area. I have the situation 
updated for you in my 1965 report but as I say here, and I am speaking from 
the bottom of page 2 :

In my opinion, greater progress could be made in recognizing the 
importance of internal audit. While a number of the larger departments 
and Crown corporations possess their own staffs, a number have not yet 
taken steps along these lines even though the circumstances justify it.

I regard the question of internal audit to be of considerable importance 
because it has a strong bearing on my work. Depending on the efficiency that 
the department can bring to doing its own internal auditing, I am able to rely 
on it in planning my own tests because my work is essentially a test audit. It 
has to be; I do not have the staff nor the means to do more than that. I place a 
very high priority on the importance of a department’s system of internal 
financial control, and if one of the management tools they have is an effective 
internal audit group, even if it is only one man going around carrying out a 
program which is satisfactory to us, then it is an added assurance and means 
that I can place reliance on it. I do not mean to suggest by that that I am 
seeking to avoid any responsibility; it is simply that, as in the case of all large
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businesses where you have an effective internal audit team working it not only 
provides greater assurance to the management, but it also enables the external 
auditor to do a better job.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Is it usual that all departments provide this internal 
audit?

Mr. Henderson: No, the crown corporations have led the way in this. Some 
of the larger departments have them, but this is a matter, Mr. Muir, which at 
the present time is caught up in the Treasury Board’s attempts to bring about a 
greater decentralization of authority to departments, as recommended by 
Glassco, and I have told them—and I find that Dr. Davidson, Secretary of the 
Treasury Board is in complete agreement with me—that I hope very much that 
decentralizing such greater responsibility to Deputy Ministers will be accom­
panied by either a strengthening of the present internal audit set-up they have 
or the introduction of one or two people to do that work in future.

The Chairman : It would appear to the committee, Mr. Henderson, that this 
is one of the more important observations of yours, and if the committee feels 
that they would like to leave it until we come to the 1964 and 1965 Reports we 
will go into it more thoroughly.

Mr. Henderson: We will cover it in these two reports because I keep it 
before you each year in my report.

Now, on the matter of Unemployment Assistance, we have been comment­
ing on this in the past reports, and as I say, we dealt with the matter both in 
1964 and again in 1965. The last development here was a series of discussions, as 
I mentioned, between federal and provincial government representatives in 
January 1966 and in addition to this reference was made to it in the Speech 
from the Throne. As I say, we have been informed that both the Department of 
National Health and Welfare and the Department of Justice are currently 
working on a draft of the Bill. Now Mr. Gilhooly, my director in charge of that 
area, is with me today and if there is anything further on this I am sure we are 
in a position to give it to you.

Number 5, Findings of the Royal Commission on Government Organization: 
As mentioned earlier, I reported on this in accordance with your directions in 
paragraph 7 of my 1965 report and I would suggest to you that this can 
probably be best discussed when we reach that paragraph.

Regarding the Form and Content of the Estimates, this was the subject of a 
study by a subcommittee of your previous committee and it brought down a 
series of recommendations. You will notice that (a), which I can explain later, 
was implemented and also a small item under (c) was implemented. But with 
respect to (b), there has not yet been any action, nor has there been with 
respect to the other point mentiond in (c).

At the top of page 5 I point this out to you; that is to say, that the 
recommendation that supporting financial information concerning the Crown 
corporations and other public instrumentalities be included in the details of 
services in the Blue Book of Estimates has not been done. At the same time in 
your report, you asked that explanations be placed in the Blue Book for major 
proposed increases in the establishments as between the previous year and the
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present year; That information has not been provided. But there has been 
provided an appendix in the Blue Book listing the total public service employ­
ment by departments.

In my 1965 report we will be coming to a paragraph in which I show you 
how the vote pattern actually used in the 1964-65 estimates differed in certain 
instances from the pattern which had been considered by your sub-committee, 
and I have no doubt that you will wish to ask some questions and possibly 
discuss the matter with representatives of the Treasury at that time.

The Chairman: Mr. Henderson, as we go through your report, I know there 
are observations of great interest to each member of the committee and I would 
ask members of the committee to write in the margin those with which they are 
particularly interested so that when this comes up under the 1964-65 report 
they will be prepared to put their questions to the officials or to Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Henderson: Number 7, “Living Allowance to Federally-Appointed 
judges”, this was the case where your committee supported the observations 
made by me and your recommendation is shown here. I can only advise you 
that no action has been taken toward remedying this matter, and in my 1965 
report, there are two additional circumstances which support my opinion that 
the amounts of the living allowances being paid to federally appointed judges 
are such that an element of remuneration is included therein and consequently 
they are contrary to existing legislation covering payments to judges. I think 
this is a matter you will wish to discuss.

Number 8, Governor General’s Special Warrants: It was as a result of my 
comments on the items which were included in the previous Governor General’s 
warrants that you recommended a study be made in this whole area. This was a 
result of recommendations made at the time that we discussed it in a lengthy 
meeting with the Secretary of the Treasury Board. However, I have not yet 
been informed of any study having been made along these lines. I quote for 
your information a reference made by the Minister of Finance on March 4, 1965 
to the chairman of the committee.

The Chairman: I wonder if I may interject in this one about Governor 
General’s warrants. The past Chairman, Mr. Baldwin, made a speech on this 
subject in the House. What was the date of the speech, Mr. Baldwin, do you 
remember?

Mr. Baldwin: It was on February 7th at page 810 in Hansard.

The Chairman: It might be well to read that speech. It deals with this 
subject at some length.

Mr. Winch: I would like to ask one question on Number 8. Number 8, of 
course, deals with recommendations that were made by the Public Accounts 
Committee, and yet, as I read the answer which was given to us, the govern­
ment said that whatever they will decide will be a matter to be presented to 
parliament in the usual way. Now to me this is a little bit of arrogance and an 
insult to this committee that we should be given an answer that anything that 
they come up with will be presented to parliament in the usual way. I think this 
committee is entitled to an answer yes or no on a matter of this kind, not to be 
told that “if we decide anything it will be introduced to parliament in the usual
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way.” I think it is a place where this committee should make it known that we 
are sitting as a Public Accounts Committee of the House of Commons and we do 
not expect this kind of answer on a matter that has previously been considered 
by the Public Accounts Committee and a recommendation made thereon.

The Chairman: Now, Mr. Winch, the committee has the right to call the 
Deputy Minister of Finance or the comptroller’s department, someone to come 
to the committee and make their explanation on this. You might care to make 
this later on—

Mr. Baldwin : Without asking Mr. Henderson to peer into the future, I 
would not be at all surprised that next year’s report, which will be presented 
next year, might have further comments on Governor General’s warrants. 
Probably that was an obiter, and I should not have said it.

Mr. Henderson: Number 9, Remission of Sales Tax on Oleomargarine: This 
was an objection taken by the committee to the way in which Section 22 of the 
Financial Administration Act was being used to remit this tax and I am not 
aware of any action having been taken to discontinue the practice; in other 
words the practice continues.

Number 10, Cost of Gasoline Used in Departmental Vehicles at Ottawa: 
This was a point which my officers brought to my attention and which I raised 
in an earlier report because we found that attractive discounts might be 
available and savings in the order of $158,000 might be obtained. I am happy to 
tell you that subsequent to the preparation of this report the Treasury Board 
advised Deputy Ministers on March 28 of an approval they had given on March 
17 to a national credit card system to be used by all government departments 
for the purchase of gasoline; and as a result of their negotiations with the 
gasoline companies, they are estimating savings over the next year of the order 
of $120,000. I believe the new system is to be effective April 1, 1966. It involves 
credit cards, and it also involves discounts or quantity rebates. So I think that 
we should remove this one and perhaps you would agree that your recommen­
dation has been achieved.

Number 11, Unemployment Insurance Fund and Its Administration: The 
best answer that I could provide here was to quote from a letter the Minister of 
Labour wrote to me a year ago in which he set down the position of the 
government. The immediate point with which I am interested, of course, and so 
are you, was the revision we would like to see in the Act whereby the 
Auditor-General would be required to certify the financial statement of the 
Unemployment Insurance Fund. In point of fact, I am doing this now, albeit 
under an informal arrangement, and I may say that it is working out to the 
complete satisfaction of the department and myself, and my certified accounts 
are available in the Public Accounts.

The Board of Grain Commissioners—

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Could the Auditor General tell us how does the fund 
stand at the present moment?

Mr. Henderson: I just asked Mr. Gilhooly but he said he does not have the 
present figures with him today.
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We show an up-to-date picture on this in my 1965 report, Mr. Muir. There 
is a paragraph on it which gives the figures through March 31, 1965, but if you 
want it right up to date, that would have to be obtained from the department.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : That is fine, thank you.

Mr. Henderson: The Board of Grain Commissioners: you will recall, the 
expenses of this operation were exceeding its revenue by more than a million 
dollars a year and the committee felt that something should be done about this 
and asked me to keep the matter under review. Well, the fees were raised, and 
as I indicate, whereas expenditures exceeded revenues in 1965 by $1,823,000, 
had the increase which was made effective August 1, 1965, been effective during 
that fiscal year, then the Board’s revenues would have been something less than 
that figure or $1,760,000 greater. I am in the hands of the committee as to 
whether they feel this represents disposal of this matter. It will, of course, 
remain under close scrutiny in the years to come, but at least action was taken.

Now, Number 13 deals with my office, the point which Mr. Winch men­
tioned earlier. My approved staff establishment has remained now for some 
time at 220. My actual staff on strength is 198 at the present time, so that I am 
22 people short.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, could I interrupt here, because I know that the 
Auditor General may want to and should make a statement here. I think it is 
time, at our first meeting here, to draw the attention of the new members and 
the attention of those of us who have been on this committee ever since it was 
first established to the fact that we have this problem of staffing of the 
Auditor General’s office every year. We recognize his responsibilities and his 
lack of staff, and finally I think it was absolutely on a unanimous decision that 
we made certain recommendations to get away from the difficulty of the 
Auditor General so that he could obtain—because he had told us that he could 
obtain them, if he had the authority—the required staff. Now we are told at the 
bottom of the page 8 that no action has been taken. This matter has been 
discussed over the years by the committee. Now once again we are told at our 
first meeting that he is still up against exactly the same problem; that no action 
has been taken whatsoever on the unanimous report of our committee in the 
past. This is a matter Mr. Chairman, to which I ask you to give immediate high 
Priority, and that we get an explanation as soon as possible of why this 
important officer who comes under the control of the House of Commons and is 
dealt with in this way. We want an answer why the unanimous report and the 
recommendation of this committee have not been acted upon as yet.

Mr. Henderson: The solution you mention, of course, rests with the 
government. It requires an amendment to the Financial Administi ation Act to 
give me the authority to engage my own staff. I worked out, with the help of 
the committee in 1963, an arrangement with the Civil Service Commission 
whereby one of their officers joined my staff as the secretary of the Audit 
Office, wearing two hats, so to speak, who would be able to facilitate recruit­
ment. This arrangement has met with a certain degree of success, not all that 
we would like because the figure of 220 is the estimate my officers and I have 
placed on the minimum establishment we should have to carry out an effective 
test audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and within 
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the framework of the present government organization. Nevertheless, we have 
more people on staff since the last time I appeared before you. I should like to 
go further and pay tribute to the work that my men have done and are doing. 
We have been able to diversify and to increase the scope of our work to a 
certain degree, not all that I would like to see, but within reasonable propor­
tions, and I feel it is essential and only fair to say this.

Now, in my 1965 report I tell you more about this, and at the same time I 
am able to tell you that for the first time in the history of the Office of the 
Auditor General of Canada, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Quebec 
has recognized this office for students, which is a tremendous help in bringing 
young men in because it means they can obtain their degrees serving in my 
service. This has never been recognized before and I am very hopeful that at a 
meeting in approximately a month’s time the Institute of Chartered Account­
ants of Ontario will extend me similar recognition.

This is important from the standpoint of recruiting young men and places 
me on a parity with the private firms. However, none of these things, in my 
opinion, provides a complete answer. I can only agree that I think the Audi­
tor General should have the right to recruit his own staff and such help as he 
needs. I would hope that an appropriate amendment to the Financial Ad­
ministration Act will continue to commend itself to you and be placed before 
you by the government.

Mr. Winch: I know we all recognize the responsibility, the work and the 
sincerity of all members of the Auditor General and his staff. But the fact that 
year after year you state that you are short of staff, the fact that right now you 
say you are 22 short means that you are not able to fulfill the job which you 
think is your responsibility as Auditor General. Now, if I am incorrect, then 
why are you 22 men short?

Mr. Henderson: Well, the governmental recruitment machinery is slower 
moving than is the case in private practice, as I am sure Mr. Leblanc would 
agree. What we are trying to do, Mr. Winch, is to get on with the job as best we 
can with the tools we have got. I tell you that we have made progress, but not 
all the progress I would like. Moreover I place a high degree of importance on 
our day-to-day working relationships with the people we audit, namely the 
Civil Service Commission and the Treasury Board. I think our relations 
generally are good and it seems to me that there is an obligation on me to make 
this thing work within that framework too. But I am not losing sight of my 
goal. The figure of 220 is the desirable minimum objective. It is my figure. 
Another man might say that it should be 250; somebody else might say it should 
be 215. I picked this and that is my goal and the Treasury Department were 
good enough to approve it as my approved establishment. I am just concerned 
with filling it.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): If your recruitment continues as it did last year, you 
will be possibly up to strength next year.

Mr. Henderson: I hope so. The Civil Service Commission are doing in my 
view the best job they can under the system they have.
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, might I ask the Auditor 
General if his powers and responsibilities are all outlined in the Financial 
Administration Act, or is there an overlapping of other legislation?

Mr. Henderson: They are all outlined in Part VII of the Financial 
Administration Act, Mr. Thomas. So far as staff is concerned, it states that 
although the Auditor General is himself a public servant, his staff shall be 
recruited in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Service Act. The 
recommendation of this committee has been that that should be changed and 
that the Auditor General should be empowered to recruit his staff in the same 
way as the National Film Board, a lot of crown corporations, other officers of 
parliament, and so on.

• (10.40 a.m.)

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): But at the present you are—

Mr. Henderson: Oh yes—

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : —working through the Civil Service?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, indeed, sir; that is the law. I am asking for nothing 
more here than the same sort of freedom that is given to all of our crown 
corporations, most of the agencies and to those officers with whom you are 
familiar in the House of Commons and in the Senate.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Henderson, might I ask you whether you would be able, 
at the time we are discussing your report, to bring to us some indication of 
what is the procedure followed in other jurisdictions, particularly in other 
Commonwealth countries, and I think in France, where there is an Auditor 
General charged with certain responsibility, and the extent to which there is a 
departure there and the Auditor General does not have to work through the 
facilities of another branch of government. I assume he has to audit the books 
of that other branch as well, so that the Auditor General in these other 
countries would have, as I assume you should have as well, a greater degree of 
independence to employ and engage the staff that you need for your job. If you 
will be able to do that for us—

Mr. Henderson: I will be glad to study that. The arrangement that the 
comptroller General of the United States has in Washington is very good with 
very desirable objectives. It varies from country to country but I would be 
most happy to examine that and to outline it to you at the time we discuss this 
in the 1964 and 1965 reports.

(Translation)

Mr. Tremblay: Mr. Henderson, may I ask you a question? What difficulties, 
if any, are there in recruiting your personnel through the Civil Service 
Commission? Your objective is 220 employees, is there a recruiting problem, a 
personnel selection problem, or are there any other objections to this number of 
employees and could you obtain your personnel more quickly by recruiting it 
directly?



22 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS April 5, 1966

(English)

Mr. Henderson: The principal problem with which wre are faced, and I 
think you would know that other departments in government are faced with it 
too, lies in the delay feature. The time lag between the putting of the 
advertisement in the papers and receiving the answers and interviewing the 
people and the time that they can be offered a job and can report for work. 
There is very keen competition for accountants today, particularly the bright 
young accountant who has just got his degree and is ready to go out in the 
world. Unless we are able to turn around and move fast, or unless we have a 
position available in our establishment in which to fit him, our efforts become 
fruitless; we have to wait and by the time we do contact him, he has got 
another job. We have had some unfortunate experiences with that.

Mr. Winch: You have lost good men.

Mr. Henderson: In our opinion they would have made good officers if we 
could have got them. We have great difficulty meeting our competitors due to 
this time lag. But this is not just common to me. You will find this, for 
example, in the Department of Justice in the recruitment of lawyers. My staff is 
always going to be small, I do not think it ever needs to be any large figure at 
all but the young man that we hire today is the senior man of tomorrow and we 
place a very high priority on quality and on competence and it would be of 
great assistance to us if we could move faster than we are able to do now.

Mr. Leblanc: I believe that the income tax department has the same 
problem as you have. They are looking for a new type of graduate accountant 
and so on, and they are going out and trying to induce them to come into the 
government service, but they are having difficulties because private industry is 
also after them, and there is still a shortage of chartered accountants in Canada.

Mr. Henderson: One of the features that I think will strongly commend 
itself to you is this: We should always have a strong office and be able to bring 
such young men in because we have many calls for trained people from other 
parts of the Canadian government, whether it is crown corporations or depart­
ments for men with particular expertise. They know them because they have 
worked on their books. A number of excellent opportunities come along for my 
men. I would never want to stand in anybody’s way. I think it is highly 
reasonable that we must be prepared to let people move on in this way to other 
departments. I have a problem on my plate this week which I should like very 
much to meet by offering a member of our staff but it is very hard to do it 
when you are shorthanded. So that if we ever do emerge with, shall we say, 
more people than we have, today then it will be a good thing for the Canadian 
government because there will be plenty of opportunities for them. I think that 
the training they get with us is a very good training. I am sure you will agree 
with that Mr. Leblanc.

Mr. Leblanc: Surely.

Mr. Henderson: And it is right and fitting that the government should 
look to us in this way. They have every right to ask us for staff. I would hope 
the day will come when we can make a greater contribution in this area.
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The Chairman: Mr. Thomas?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Does the Auditor General now have the 

authority to bring in students as apprentices?
Mr. Henderson: Yes. In the past year we have taken on students from the 

universities; they come to us in about May and they work until September. We 
operate on the basis that we hope that out of every dozen students that we can 
bring on in this way perhaps one or two of them will be attracted to our work 
and will come back when they get their degrees.

In the case of the articled students, that is, of course, fulltime all year 
round ones, we now have six in our Montreal office who are accredited as 
students-in-accounts by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Quebec. I 
hope they will stay with us and obtain their degrees with us. Then it will be up 
to us to keep them after that. But we are under an obligation to provide these 
students with the maximum experience and certain conditions laid down by the 
Institute which are only fair and proper in the training of these students. This is 
our first year of embarking on it. We do not have any yet in Ontario but I am 
hoping as a result of the action of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Ontario next month that they will see fit to pass the necessary by law and then 
we shall have the two large provinces side by side helping us.

Mr. Noble: Could I ask the Auditor General, what are the requirements of 
recruits to your department. Is it necessary that they all be university gradu­
ates or chartered accountants, or what is required?

Mr. Henderson: Well, we have all our positions graded under the Civil 
Service and Treasury Board system and it depends on the vacancies we have 
in the different grades as to how free we are to have new men move into them. 
Each grade calls for certain qualifications and that in turn is geared to the 
remuneration he will be paid. At the bottom of the scale we can take high 
school students. If they come to us with a degree, then they are eligible for 
consideration in a higher grade. It is the standard Civil Service Commission 
procedure for offering positions.

Mr. Forbes: Are the salaries that you pay in your department equal to 
what is paid in industry for the same qualifications?

Mr. Henderson: At the levels we are discussing, in my opinion, they are 
approximately equal.

Mr. Lefebvre: Would you like to bypass the Civil Service Commission and 
do your own hiring?

Mr. Henderson: It is not so much a question of bypassing them. I am happy 
to have them in the picture, but I would like the right to engage our own staff. 
Our relations with the accounting profession are very good, the largei firms are 
more than happy to keep our needs in mind when names come up. Young men 
come in to see us and I believe we could move much faster and much more 
economically if we could simply take these people on. So far as the Civil Service 
Commission and any other regulating body is concerned if they would like to 
have a monthly report from us of our experience, what we are doing, they are 
welcome to it. It would simplify the whole business as I see it.
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Mr. Lefebvre : You say the crown corporations do this now; they do their 
own hiring?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, indeed.
Mr. Lefebvre: Well, if your department was to do the same thing, would 

this lead eventually to other departments doing this also and the eventual 
abolishment of the Civil Service Commission? Each department could have its 
own employment manager or personnel manager, as such?

Mr. Henderson: I suppose that is possible. I cannot disagree that if such an 
exemption were made for me that others might feel they had the right to ask 
for it. But I have a full-time job filling my own needs and looking after my job 
as the saying goes: “Paddling my own canoe”.

Mr. Lefebvre: But could this be a further recommendation of yours in 
some future report that each department is well aware of their needs, therefore 
they should be the ones to do the hiring?

Mr. Henderson: The Civil Service Commission, in the words of its Chair­
man, at the present time, is busy on seeking to decentralize just as much hiring 
authority as possible to deputy ministers. This is part of this total decentraliza­
tion recommendation of Glassco, and the Commission has itself gone a long way 
toward delegating this, particularly in the area of promotions and things like 
that, promotional competitions. They themselves are trying to move in this 
direction. I do not think it is so much a question of simply exempting them and 
forgetting about the Commission, I think the Civil Service Commission has an 
important function to perform. One of the best outlines of that is contained in 
the Glassco Report. I might ask Mr. Long if he would like to add anything to 
this. He is more familiar perhaps with the details. Would you care to say 
something to that, Mr. Long?

Mr. Long: At present we have gone about as far as we can with recruiting 
through the Civil Service Commission. We have a representative of the Com­
mission in the office and he knows our problems. This is one difficulty we had 
before. If you have a man from the Commission coming in now and again, and 
it is a different man each time, he does not know our problems. There are 
certainly places where the Commission is in the best position to recruit, 
particularly where they need the same type of person for a number of 
departments. This, of course, makes it difficult for one department because the 
Commission is interested in the other department as well.

Mr. Lefebvre: If this holds true with the Auditor General’s department it 
must hold true in other departments who wish to hire engineers, doctors or 
dentists or anything else.

Mr. Henderson: There is one difference, if I may say so, and that is that 
our office is an office of parliament and the Civil Service Commission itself is 
one of the departments of the executive which we audit, so is the Treasury 
Board.

Mr. Long: I think we should keep in mind why the Commission is there. 
The Commission is there to try and stop departments competing with each 
other; and to eliminate patronage, and for this reason they have rules. We have
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a case now of a very good man who left us to go into a chartered accountant’s 
office with the hope of getting his degree. He left us with regret, he did not 
want to go; he enjoyed working with us. We were very sorry to see him go and 
we told him we would be glad to have him back. He has been out a year and he 
has decided he would like to come back. He has learned quite a lot and we 
would like to have him back. But we cannot just say: “Come in and start 
work on Monday.” We now have to have a competition. We have to invite 
applications from anybody with the necessary qualifications. This means adver­
tising. For a position in Ottawa it means a circular from coast to coast, and a 
newspaper advertisement. This all takes time. You have to screen out many 
applications that you couldn’t possibly consider. We are just not free to take 
this man whom we know and who is qualified.

(Translation)
Mr. Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont): Mr. Henderson, I should like to 

ask you a question about the hiring of students during the vacation period. Do 
you have students working for you, that is to say, employees who take evening 
courses?

(English)
Mr. Henderson: Yes, I should have perhaps made that clear. The summer is 

our busy period strangely enough, because the year ends March 31. We take 
students on for the six months, that is second and third year commerce students 
and that sort of thing. Under the arrangements with the Institute we now have, 
as I mentioned in answer to your earlier question, our first six students are 
registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Quebec. We hope they 
will stay with us for the next five years and obtain their degrees with us. They 
are entitled to get it. And that is the most desirable way of having your 
Permanent junior staff set up and I hope if the Ontario Institute passes its 
bylaw change in May that we can do the same here in Ottawa. They work 
by day. The only way you can get your degree—and I am speaking of chartered 
accountants—is by working in the office of a chartered accountant and studying 
at night. It is a long, hard course and they take their courses at night. But in 
addition to that a considerable number of my other men are taking courses both 
in chartered accountancy and for their C.G.A. degree and for their R.I.A. 
degree. It is extremely heartening I wish I could tell you of some of the details 
but it would take too long.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me, in listening to what has been 
said here this morning, that this is a continuing problem. Now, I am wondering, 
Mr. Henderson, what this committee could do to promote your philosophy and 
get you in a position where you are able to accomplish the work you want to do 
and get the proper authority, so that you will be in a position to pick the people 
you want to run this department properly.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Noble, I remain indebted to your committee for its 
interest and its unanimity on this subject over many years. You reached 
the point in previous meetings where you recommended that the 
Financial Administration Act be changed. I would only hope that you will see fit 
to reiterate this and to convey that to the government of the day. I suppose its
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priority on the government’s totem pole of priorities is fairly low. It is a difficult 
thing for me to keep pressing after because as I say, my day to day working 
relationship with such bodies as Treasury Board and the Civil Service Com­
mission, which I audit, are very important. They are perfectly well aware that 
this is a standing recommendation of this committee and by and large there 
does not seem to be too much disagreement with it, but unfortunately there is 
no action.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman; I do not think that Mr. Henderson should be 
put in the difficult position of having to press for this because this committee 
year after year has made this recommendation. I think it is the responsibility of 
the committee to ask the responsible minister or deputy to appear before us and 
tell us why this change which we have unanimously recommended year after 
year has not been put into effect. That is our responsibility as a committee.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I strongly support the 
ideas that much of the hiring of the civil service should be done through the 
Civil Service Commission, but there are areas where I believe problems arise. I 
would like to ask Mr. Henderson if he could make a guess if he is free to do 
so—as to what part percentagewise of the whole public service is hired through 
the Civil Service Commission, what part of the civil service is hired directly by 
the corporations and departments involved. I know all public servants are not 
hired through the Civil Service Commission. Can you make a rough guess?

Mr. Henderson: I am just looking at the staff appendix in my report, Mr. 
Thomas. In my 1965 report there is an exhibit at the back, “summary of the 
employees of the public service” a complete listing by departments—

The Chairman: The number?

Mr. Henderson: Page 225 of the 1965 report. You will observe that 
employees on strength in the total public service of Canada—

Mr. Leblanc: About the same number in French?

Mr. Henderson: No, pardon me; it is Appendix 2. You will see this is a 
summary of employees that I put in my report to give a sort of total picture and 
also the organization of the department. Have you found it all right?

(Translation)

Mr. Leblanc: Documentation No. 2?

(English)

Mr. Henderson: You will notice the total employees on strength, depart­
ments, crown corporations and other instrumentalities are 331,825. Of this figure 
the crown corporations are 127,983 and the departments are 200,798 and other 
instrumentalities, like the Bank of Canada, are 3,044. So you have about 131,000 
outside of the Civil Service Commission. They are doing their own engaging. 
This is the crown corporations and the other instrumentalities. Also some of the 
departments listed in that 200,000 figure are also outside the Civil Service 
Commission. We would have to go down the list and name them. For instance, 
in there are 1200 people in the Senate and the House of Commons. They are, of
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course, outside the Civil Service Commission, but we group them in as a 
department for the purpose of this presentation. Does that answer your question, 
Mr. Thomas. I suppose you might say it is rather less than half.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): About half, you say?

Mr. Henderson: Yes. That would be my estimate.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : That is all I want.

Mr. Henderson: That is just a guess, but by no means are all employees 
of the public service recruited under the Civil Service Act.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : And for various reasons.

Mr. Henderson: The Chief Electoral Officer, for example, is in here. He is 
Quite free to recruit his own people. I am asking, in effect, for the same right he 
has.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, is this right? By the provisions of the 
Financial Administration Act you are the agent of parliament and you have a 
statutory duty within the terms of the sections which Mr. Tremblay referred to, 
which says you shall report annually to the House of Commons with respect to 
the matter set out, in the rest of that section of the Financial Administration 
Act, and you told us on several occasions, and we have supported you, that 
because of the methods carried out you are not able to report as fully and 
completely—I should not put it that way, you are not able to report—but you are 
unable to carry out your duties as completely as you would like to in order to 
comply with the statutory responsibility because of the method of engagement 
of staff. Would that be a fair summary?

Mr. Henderson: That is a fair statement. I have stated that in my past 
reports. Perhaps we should continue with the reports and then, with your 
permission—

The Chairman: Before we continue, Mr. Henderson, are there any members 
of this committee that are obligated to another committee at eleven o’clock? 
What would be the wish of the committee? I was in hopes we would have gone 
over this whole thing this morning but we cannot detain you if that is the case, 
I guess.

Mr. Forbes: What is the quorum on the committee.

The Chairman: Thirteen.
In about 15 minutes we could clean this report up.

Mr. Henderson: I will move a little faster on the remaining sections.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, before you leave this, is there any possibility of 
this committee promoting a resolution that would put the Auditor General’s 
staff on the same basis as a crown corporation and give him the authority that a 
man in charge of a crown corporation would have.
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The Chairman: Mr. Noble, when we come to write our report to the House 
we will discuss that and likely the committee will decide to do that at that time. 
All right, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: The best example of that, if I may suggest to Mr. Noble, 
might be the Representation Commissioner. He has his own act and he is free 
to recruit his staff.

I will now move to number 14 on page 9. You made five recommendations 
on the C.B.C. Four of them have been implemented but there is one that has not 
been and that is the tabling of an official memorandum in the House on the 
views of the Corporation and its replies on the matters dealt with by the 
Glassco Commission. That has not yet been laid on the table and the comment 
on that speaks for itself.

Number 15 deals with National Defence Administrative Regulations and 
Practices. Again, I am setting those down in accordance with your instructions 
in my 1964-65 report which you will come to.

Number 16—Unauthorized use of Crown-owned Vehicles. We will continue 
to follow this up. You will notice the Minister of National Defence stated that 
the matter was with the Treasury Board. I wrote to the Secretary of the 
Treasury Board on February 24, 1966, to ask what steps were being taken but I 
have not yet had any reply.

Number 17—Financial Assistance to the town of Oromocto. Members of the 
committee will recall our discussions on that and I wrote to the Deputy Minister 
of Finance on this subject on February 24, 1966, but there has been no reply.

Number 18—Educational costs incurred by the Department of National 
Defence. We are making some progress on this and that is mentioned in my 
comment.

Number 19—Assistance to provinces by the armed forces in civil emergen­
cies. The provinces did not settle their outstanding accounts. The Minister of 
National Defence told me a year ago there had been no change in the situation. 
I wrote to the Deputy Minister of Finance to inquire as to the status on 
February 24, 1966, and I have no reply yet.

Number 20—Pension awards effective at early age. This is a continuing 
problem. It is dealt with in my 1965 report and no doubt most members are 
familiar with it. I think it was discussed in the House but we will be coming to 
this when we deal with both the 1964 and 1965 reports.

Number 21—Discretionary awards of service pensions, that is to say, the 
basis on which they are being considered by the Pension Board. As you will see, 
the Minister of National Defence, in his last advice to me, said no decision had 
been taken yet.

Number 22—Overlapping of pension benefits. Again, the Minister of Na­
tional Defence in his letter to me a year ago stated that no decision has been 
taken on possible amendments.

Number 23—Advances to the exchange fund account. This was a recommen­
dation by the committee which, at the moment, is not of any serious import 
today because as I mention here, the holdings of the account have not dropped 
in value and there remained a surplus of over $31 million at December 31, 1964.
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Number 24—Errors in public service superannuation account pension and 
contribution calculations. This had to do with the high incidence of errors being 
made in the Superannuation Branch of the Department of Finance. I go into 
this in some detail in my 1965 report to the House, so that we shall be coming to 
that.

Number 25—Pension increased by payment of two salaries. You will note 
here that the Minister of Finance stated that these recommendations had been 
noted and are being considered in relation to possible amendments to the Public 
Service Superannuation Act.

Number 26—Reciprocal Transfer Agreements for Superannuation Benefits. 
The Minister of Finance gave me a similar reply a year ago, or rather he gave 
me a copy of his letter to the Chairman of the committee.

Number 27—Interest charges on loans to the National Capital Commission. 
This is a continuing problem and it is dealt with in my 1965 report. As is stated 
here, the National Capital Commission understands this recommendation places 
the initiative for the review on the Department of Finance. There has been no 
action yet.

Number 28—Accounts receivable. This is to record your concern over the 
weaknesses that existed in internal control with respect to accounts receivable, 
and you ask that the Treasury Board have the matter studied. The Minister of 
Finance advised the Chairman of the Committee that a study was under way. 
We are hoping to see a Treasury Board directive shortly on this important 
point.

Number 29—Indirect Compensation to Chartered Banks. This has to do with 
the fact that the chartered banks have $100 million worth of government bank 
balances interest free. The Minister stated a year ago that consideration is being 
given to an appropriate recommendation to the Bank Act. In my 1965 report I 
point out that in a bill which was before the House last year, there was a 
paragraph inserted designed to permit the continuation of this practice of 
compensating the banks indirectly for services provided to the Crown by 
keeping non-interest bearing funds, which, as I say, are currently an aggregate 
of $100 million, on deposit with them.

Number 30—The Canada Council. This will come before you as and when 
you examine the Chairman and offices of the Canada Council and my long form 
report on this. I think you will probably be devoting a full day’s meeting to 
this.

Number 31—Surplus Assets Disposal. This covers 31, 32 and 33 at the top of 
page 15. Some progress has been made here but there have been no changes yet 
in the accounting and this is something that I think you will want to examine 
and which will come up as and when we discuss this matter.

Number 34—Hospital Construction Grants. I quote here a letter from the 
Deputy Minister of Health. That was about a year ago, and I am informed 
there is no change since.
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Number 35—Awards under the Pension Act. The committee made a num­
ber of recommendations designed to clarify this Act after it heard from the 
Chairman of the Pension Board. The Minister of Veterans Affairs replied at 
length to the Chairman of the Committee on this a year ago and the substance 
of the recommendations which follow, which you will want to study in more 
detail, is that in his view, no changes can really be made. He gives his 
explanations as to why the present practices should be continued and you may, 
therefore, wish to study them. It can come up for discussion because again I 
deal with this subject in my 1965 report.

Exactly the same situation prevails in item 36—War Veterans Allowances. 
Again the Minister advises the Chairman why the recommendations of your 
committee are either not practicable or could not be done or would have to 
stand. You will recall the committee held a lengthy meeting. The Chairman of 
the War Veterans Allowance Board was present and each of these points was 
discussed. This was the expression from the Minister in regard to the commit­
tee’s recommendations, and I felt I could do no more than to quote this in this 
fashion for your information.

Number 37—Amendment to the Customs Act and the Excise Tax Act—

Mr. Winch: On item 37, could I ask Mr. Henderson while he is commenting 
on that, if he could just spend a moment or two on (D) for that is the very 
point that I raised earlier in this meeting. In a previous committee we were 
unanimous, as I remember, in accepting the contention of Mr. Henderson that 
there was no statutory sanction whatsoever for certain actions being taken on 
this sales tax matter. It has come to my attention that without the statutory 
sanction, and we requested that it be obtained, the same procedures are still 
being followed and as recently as last month, I discovered, and I have the 
factual evidence, that not only is it being continued but they are illegally 
operating against their own regulations made illegally without statutory sanc­
tion. I have conclusive proof of that, sir, now so I hope that perhaps we may 
have a comment from Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Henderson: The latest information I have on this, Mr. Winch, is that 
there has been no change since the Minister of Finance advised the Chairman of 
the Committee on March 4, 1965, and what he says is quoted on the bottom of 
page 19.

Mr.Winch: Well, I hope we can give a high priority to number 37.

Mr. Henderson: This whole matter is awaiting, as the Minister said at that 
time, the report of the Royal Commission on Taxation before any change is to be 
made in the Excise Tax law and, of course, as you know, that is due to come 
down quite shortly. But in any event, may I say to you that we are going to 
deal with this in the 1965 report because I refer to the matter again there in 
connection with Customs and Excise tax.

Mr. Winch: Because it may be some time before we get that, perhaps I 
should submit some of my discoveries to Mr. Henderson. He may want to look 
into them some more.
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Mr. Henderson: I have no objection, sir, if you care to do that; I will be 
happy to receive them and to look into them. This might be of some assistance 
toward the discussion that will take place when the item is called in the 1965 
report.

*
Mr. Winch: Some of the steps being taken by the hierarchy under no 

statutory authority just pass all comprehension.

Mr. Henderson: Number 38—General Election Expenditures. This is a 
recommendation in which you supported the Chief Electoral Officer and hoped 
that an amendment would be considered by parliament. However, there has not 
been any change made yet.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): In regard to this, Mr. Chairman, I found it rather, I 
would not say amusing, but hard to understand that where a hall had been 
rented for the purposes of using two polls, they paid the full rent of the hall for 
both polls.

The Chairman: Both in the one building?

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I beg your pardon?

The Chairman: Both in the one building?

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): They were both in the one building and both in one 
room, as a matter of fact, and yet the full amount of the rent of the hall was 
paid for both polls. This, I understand, is usual practice.

Mr. Henderson: I cannot speak on that specific case but you will recall your 
recommendation here stems from my comment on the election expenses paid at 
the time of the two elections in 1963. We, of course, have examined the accounts 
in respect to the November 8, 1965, election and it is not inconceivable that we 
might be dealing later with the very point you mention.

(Translation)
Mr. Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, it is the same when an election occurs and the 

returning officer rents an entire school or the basement of a school and sets up 
six or seven polls in that basement. The school then receives payment for six, 
seven, or ten polls according to the number of polls rather than for rental of the 
hall itself.

(English)
Mr. Henderson: Thank you Mr. Leblanc. Number 39, concerns the commit­

tee’s recommendation that the Auditor General be appointed eithei the sole 
auditor or a joint auditor under the provisions of the Financial Administration 
Act, of each Crown corporation, agency or public instrumentality in respect to 

> which other auditors have been or may be appointed. As you know, there are 
seven crown corporations or instrumentalities of which the Auditor General is 
neither the auditor nor is he a joint auditor: it was as a iesult of a lengthy 
discussion of this that you made this recommendation that the Auditor General 
be appointed either the auditor or a joint auditor because several of these
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corporations do, in fact, have two firms auditing their accounts. I am speaking 
of Central Mortgage and Housing, Bank of Canada etc.—the names are listed in 
my reports. You probably have seen them in 1964 and in 1965.

Mr. Winch: The committee that brought in this recommendation—and again 
it was an unanimous recommendation—felt the matter was of very great 
importance. That is the reason they made the recommendation. Now, I note that 
all Mr. Henderson has received, according to what he says here, is that the 
Minister does not propose to initiate any action on these at the present time. 
Could I ask Mr. Henderson, is that all he is told? Is he given any reasons why 
they do not propose to initiate any action? .

Mr. Henderson: No, I have not been furnished with any reasons on this. I 
was advised of this by a copy of the letter which the Minister of Finance wrote 
to the Chairman.

Mr. Winch: You were never given any reason?

Mr. Henderson: No sir.

Mr. Winch: Thank you.
Mr. Leblanc: You will know when we get the witnesses here.
Mr. Winch: I hope we will call them.

Mr. Henderson: And finally number 40 has to do with the audit of my own 
office. Under the Financial Administration Act an officer of the public service 
nominated by the Treasury Board examines and certifies to the House, in 
accordance with the outcome of his examinations, the receipts and disburse­
ments of the Office of the Auditor General.

Your committee says that this committee should itself nominate a qualified 
person to examine my accounts and accordingly, this recommendation was 
conveyed to the Minister of Finance and his comment on it a year ago is, as you 
will see, similar to the previous one we just dealt with.

Mr. Winch: One more question; there was a recommendation that on 
certain requirements or needs you would be able to bring in outside firms to 
assist with certain work. Was that policy accepted?

Mr. Henderson: I just do not recollect that, Mr. Winch. You are speaking 
of legal advisers.

Mr. Winch: Yes.
Mr. Henderson: Yes. The question of legal advisers you will find mentioned 

in my 1964 report. Whereas in the past the Auditor General has had recourse to 
the Department of Justice, the matter was discussed before the committee with 
the Deputy Minister of Justice in attendance and the committee took the view 
that the Auditor General should have independent legal advice apart from the 
Department of Justice. Pursuant to your direction, and following discussions 
with the Minister of Finance, the Auditor General was given the necessary 
authority by the Governor in Council to engage outside solicitors and I duly 
reported back to the committee that I had made appropriate arrangements for 
two firms of solicitors. One is in Montreal and one is in Toronto.
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The Chairman: Gentlemen, we close on item No. 40, Audit of the Office of 
the Auditor General. Who audits the Auditor General? I think that would be a 
good place to stop. You might like to make a note on page 21 “Committee 
Recommendation on which Action has been Taken”. You might write opposite 
the fourth report, we made 12 recommendations, three acted on, nine no action. 
Fifth report we made five recommendations ; four completed and one no action. 
Sixth report, we made 15 recommendations; two completed and 13 no action. 
Eighth report, we made seven recommendations ; one completed, six no action as 
of yet.

Mr. Winch: This proves my contention that we had better make it very 
clear in this committee we are not going to stand for this kind of lack of 
attention.

The Chairman: You are quite right, Mr. Winch. But there are some cases 
where it is a matter of having an act amended and you know how long it takes 
to g t »»e acts amended. I think this is the holdup in many of the
cases* However, there are many other cases, as you say, that we must follow up.

Mr. Winch: The government must recognize that this is not a rubber stamp 
committee just sitting here for the sake of sitting.

Mr. Baldwin: For the benefit of the farmers present, Mr. Chairman, we 
could say 25 per cent germination.

The Chairman: Before we adjourn, may I ask for someone to move that 
the follow-up report of the Auditor General be printed as an appendix to the 
Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence.

Mr. Winch: I so move.
Mr. Baldwin: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

• (11.30 a.m.)
The Chairman: Thank you for coming and we will meet again after the 

Easter Recess.

Appendix 1
COMMITTEE ONTOBMC IcCOUNT^ON TH^ ACTION ^AKE^ ITy'dR0

™Tetnetes Sd —-

In naragraph 9 of its Fourth Report 1964 presented to the House on July 28, 
in paragrapn » , thp Minister of each department concerned to

19,64’ three months as to what action had been
advise the Auditor G Committee had made recommendations in this
taken on matters on which the von
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In order that th . ^ such Minister copies of the aforemen-ed the Auditor Genera Lto provide to su£ committee to the House of 
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In accordance with this directive, each Minister was provided with copies of 
the Committee’s reports as follows:

Date presented 
to House

Date copies thereof 
sent to Ministers

Fourth Report 1964 ........  July 28, 1964 August 5, 1964
Fifth Report 1964 ........... August 5, 1964 August 5, 1964
Sixth Report 1964 ........... October 20, 1964 October 20, 1964
Seventh Report 1964 .... December 7, 1964 December 10, 1964
Eighth Report 1964 ........  December 7, 1964 December 10, 1964
Ninth Report 1964 ........... March 15, 1965 March 17, 1965

Replies have been received from each of the Ministers concerning the 
Committee’s recommendations as they affect matters within each Minister’s area 
of responsibility. In addition, deputy ministers of several of the departments 
concerned have furnished helpful information in many cases.

This is my report on the situation as at February 28, 1966 respecting each 
of the recommendations made by the Committee in the foregoing reports and in 
its Fourth Report 1963 which had been presented to the House on December 19, 
1963, prior to the above arrangements.

The description of each of the recommendations made by the Committee is 
the one given in Appendix 1 of my Report to the House of Commons for 
the year ended March 31, 1965, listing “Recommendations and Observations by 
the Standing Committee on Public Accounts not yet implemented or dealt with 
by Executive action”.
Fourth Report 1963—presented to the House on December 19,1963

1. Second Class Mail. The Committee expressed its belief that early 
consideration should be given by Parliament to ways and means of 
covering the loss of the Post Office Department in handling second class 
mail and requested the Auditor General to keep the matter before 
Parliament in his annual Reports in order that subsequent committees 
may give consideration to it.

Comment by the Auditor General: I dealt with this matter in paragraph 79 of 
my 1964 Report to the House and again in paragraph 105 of my 1965 Report to 
the House, tabled in the House on February 1, 1966.

The costs of handling the various classes of mail have in the past been 
estimated by the Department by means of a cost ascertainment procedure in 
which time studies were used. The last departmental time study was in 1961-62.

In 1964 the Department engaged a firm of consultants to examine its cost 
ascertainment procedures with a view to establishing accurate costs with 
respect to the various clases of mail. The procedures recommended by the 
consultants were put into effect only in January 1965 and no figures are 
available to indicate the loss in handling second class mail for the year 1964-65. 
The loss in 1963-64 had been estimated at $35 million which included $1.5 
million attributable to a special second class rate on newspapers and magazines 
mailed by the public. This rate was discontinued effective April 1, 1964.
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During the year second class revenues increased by $250,000 to $8,433,000. 
The Department attributes the increase in part to the increase in postage rates 
on third class matter which was effective April 1, 1964 and which induced a 
large increase in applications for second class privileges for publications previ­
ously mailed as third class matter. With effect from April 1, 1964, there was also 
an increase in the postage rate on publications sent to foreign countries other 
than the Americas.

It will be recalled that three statutory rate revisions with respect to second 
class mail were proposed in a resolution presented to the House of Commons on 
March 4, 1964 which was debated on April 30, 1964. However, the resolution 
was not proceeded with. We were informed at the time that the three proposals 
were primarily intended to simplify the rate structure and they would probably 
reduce the revenue from publishers by approximately $135,000 annually.

2. Departmental operating activities. The Committee reiterated its 
belief that it would be desirable, in order that Members may have a clear 
understanding of the true financial results of departmental trading and 
servicing activities, were overall financial statements reflecting these 
activities to be included in the Public Accounts, provided this can be 
done without undue cost or staff increases. The Committee requested the 
Auditor General to continue to keep the development of this objective 
under close surveillance and to report thereon to the Committee in due 
course.

Comment by the Auditor General: The development of this objective, which 
has received consistent support from the Committee, was the subject of detailed 
comment in paragraph 161 of my 1964 Report to the House. It has again been 
dealt with in paragraph 211 of my 1965 Report.

As indicated in paragraphs 211 to 221 of my 1965 Report, a number of the 
larger departments and agencies involved in trading or servicing activities have 
reached or are progressing toward the development of financial statements 
along the lines recommended. It is hoped that this practice will continue to 
grow because wider use of accurate periodic comparative financial statements is 
essential if departments and agencies at all levels are to exercise an effective 
scrutiny and control of their costs.

It remains my intention to keep the development of this objective under 
close surveillance and to report thereon to the Committee.

3. Internal financial control. The Committee requested the Auditor 
General to continue his examinations into the important area of internal 
financial control and to report further to the House on steps taken or 
which should be taken to improve financial management in the various 
departments, Crown corporations and other instrumentalities.

Comment by the Auditor General: Further reference was made to the impor­
tance of this subject in paragraph 8 of my 1965 Report to the House. In my 
opinion, greater progress could be made in recognizing the importance of 
internal audit. While a number of the larger departments and Crown corpora­
tions possess their own staffs, a number have not yet taken steps along these 
lines even though the circumstances justify it. On the other hand, in the related 
field of pre-audit, staffs are larger and methods more elaborate than modern

23939—31
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practice Requires. I do not believe the solution to these problems lies in 
engaging more staff but rather in making more effective use of the staffs 
presently engaged in internal auditing, including pre-audit work, coupled with a 
freer exchange of ideas among the various departments, Crown corporations 
and other agencies.

It is my intention to continue my examinations into this important area and 
to report further to the House.

4. Unemployment assistance. The Committee shared the opinion of 
the Deputy Minister of Welfare and the Auditor General that considera­
tion should be given by Parliament to redrafting the Unemployment 
Assistance Act so as to state more clearly the objectives and methods of 
achieving them and to remove ambiguities in the present law which have 
resulted in varying interpretations. It believed that consideration should 
also be given to including with Unemployment Assistance other existing 
programs to assist the needy so as to provide better co-ordination of 
federal-provincial efforts in this field.

Comment by the Auditor General: The importance of this legislation being 
redrafted so as to state more clearly the objectives of the Act and methods of 
achieving them and to remove ambiguities in the present law which give rise to 
varying interpretations continues to receive the attention of the Minister of 
National Health and Welfare.

I dealt with this matter in paragraph 67 of my 1964 Report and again in 
paragraph 87 of my 1965 Report. The latter points out how, during 1965, 
discussions took place between the federal and provincial governments with a 
view to introducing a comprehensive assistance plan which would embody 
assistance to all persons in need including those presently eligible for social 
assistance in such forms as unemployment and old age assistance and blind and 
disabled persons’ allowances. Further discussions between representatives of the 
federal and provincial governments were held January 7 and 8, 1966. In 
addition, it will have been noted that reference was made in the Speech from 
the Throne to the effect that legislation covering the Canada Assistance Plan 
would be introduced at the present session of Parliament and we are informed 
that both the Department of National Health and Welfare and the Department 
of Justice are currently working on a draft of the Bill.

Fourth Report 1964—presented to the House on July 28, 1964
5. Findings of the royal commission on government organization. The 

Auditor General referred to the numerous and widespread findings made 
public in 1962 and 1963 by this Royal Commission as a result of its 
examination into the organization and methods of operation of depart­
ments and agencies of the government. He reminded the Committee that 
where administrative action has caused or contributed to waste of public 
money, it is his duty to report such cases as he considers should be 
brought to the notice of the House. He pointed out that while some 
instances come to his attention directly during the course of his audit 
work, others are indirectly brought to light by action on the part of the 
administration itself in the course of examining its own operations, as, 
for example, through the medium of internal auditing.
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By the same token, he considers it to be his duty to study reports 
prepared by or for the managements of departments and agencies, as are 
by law available to him, directed toward the saving of public money by 
the elimination of wasteful practices and unnecessary or uneconomical 
operations. To the extent such reports correctly indicate where and how 
savings could be made, the Auditor General considers he has a responsi­
bility to Parliament to follow through in all such cases and ascertain what 
action has been or will be taken toward achieving such savings, or if no 
action is to be taken, to inquire why. On the other hand, he does not 
conceive it to be his responsibility to assess the practicability of any 
specific recommendations made because, in his view, the decision with 
respect to the extent to which, or the ways in which, such recommenda­
tions can and will be implemented must always be the sole responsibility 
of management.

With regard to the findings of the Royal Commission on Government 
Organization, the Auditor General believes it to be of considerable 
importance that those relating to outdated procedures, uneconomical 
operations and wasteful practices be effectively dealt with, not only in 
the interests of improving efficiency but because of the substantial savings 
of public funds which could result. It is the opinion of the Committee 
that not only does this lie within the statutory responsibilities of the 
Auditor General but that the Auditor General’s concept of his respon­
sibilities in this matter is in accord with the intent and wishes of 
Parliament.

Comment by the Auditor General: In my 1964 Report to the House I pointed out 
in paragraph 7 that the state of studies under way at that time by the Secretary 
of the Treasury Board had led me to the conclusion that I should defer 
reporting to the House on the findings in question until the Executive had made 
its final decisions on the Commissioners’ basic or major recommendations, 
particularly in the area of financial management. Only then could a proper 
assessment be made as to whether or not the outdated procedures, uneconomical 
operations and wasteful practices disclosed by the Commissioners are to be 
effectively eliminated.

Although a number of final decisions on the Commissioners’ basic or major 
recommendations still remained to be taken by the Executive, a detailed study 
was made by the Audit Office during 1965 of each of the 24 Reports of the Royal 
Commission on Government Organization. The results of this study are set forth 
in paragraph 7 of my 1965 Report for the information of the House.

6. The form and content of the Estimates. In its Third Report 1963 
tabled in the House on December 19, 1963, the Committee had made the 
following immediate recommendations under paragraph 3:
(a) Implemented
(b) Inclusion of supporting financial information of Crown corporations 

and other public instrumentalities in the Details of Services for the 
purpose of providing better information to the Members and to the
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public with respect to the nature of the fiscal requirements of the 
Crown corporations and other agencies requiring financing by par­
liamentary appropriations.

(c) Presentation of additional information in the Estimates concerning 
the staff of all government departments and the Crown corporations 
and other public instrumentalities referred to under clause (b) 
above:
(i) Implemented
(ii) brief notes explaining proposed major increases in the size of 

establishments.
The Secretary of the Treasury Board explained to the Committee 

that he had not yet been able to discuss with any of the Crown 
corporations or public instrumentalities the practicability of including 
supporting financial information in the Estimates with respect to their 
operations. He undertook to do so and to advise the Auditor General for 
the information of the Committee.

The members of the Committee were glad to learn from the Secre­
tary of the Treasury Board that he supported the recommendations made 
under this heading by the Auditor General in his Reports to the House. 
The Committee believes that there is room for improvement in the 
Estimates presentation designed to provide more informative description 
and more complete disclosure of pertinent supporting detail—information 
which, in the opinion of the Committee, is essential if Parliament is to be 
in a position to give the Estimates the close study and consideration they 
deserve.

The Committee also recommended that consideration be given to 
referring the departmental Estimates in greater numbers to the Standing 
Committee on Estimates so that it might examine them in detail and 
report back thereon to the House. It believed such a procedure would not 
only accelerate the work of the House but would contribute materially to 
improving parliamentary control of public funds before those funds are 
committed or spent.

Comment by the Auditor General: While reference was made to the status of 
this matter in paragraph 8 of my 1964 Report to the House, further up-to-date 
information is now contained in paragraph 9 of my 1965 Report.

An examination of the 1966-67 Main Estimates, which were tabled on 
February 14, 1966, indicates that the recommendation of the Committee that 
supporting financial information concerning Crown corporations and other 
public instrumentalities be included in the Details of Services has not been 
followed.

While the appendix entitled “Public Service Employment” which appeared 
for the first time in the 1965-66 Main Estimates in response to the Committee’s 
recommendation (item (c) (i)) has been repeated in the 1966-67 Main Esti­
mates, the explanations for major proposed increases in the establishment, as 
recommended by the Committee, have not yet been provided.
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The Committee’s recommendation shown as implemented under (a) related 
to the adoption of the revised vote pattern proposed by the Treasury Board for 
introduction into the Main Estimates 1964-65, subject to certain improvements 
suggested by the Auditor General to the Committee. While this was implement­
ed, I pointed out to the House in paragraph 51 of my 1965 Report how the vote 
pattern actually used in the 1964-65 Estimates differed in certain instances from 
the pattern which had been considered by the Committee and this will 
presumably be discussed by the Committee as and when it studies my 1965 
Report.

7. Living Allowances to Federally-Appointed Judges. In its Fourth 
Report 1963 the Committee had noted that in cases where judges were 
appointed from time to time as conciliators or arbitrators on boards, they 
were paid living allowances of $60 a day in addition to actual out-of- 
pocket expenses for transportation, parlour and pullman car accommoda­
tion and taxicabs. The Committee was of the opinion that a daily rate at 
this level could be regarded as including an element of remuneration 
which would be contrary to subsection (1) of section 39 of the Judges 
Act. It had therefore recommended that if additional remuneration was 
to be paid to judges appointed for the purposes described above, the 
approval of Parliament for payment of such additional remuneration 
should be sought.

The Committee recorded that, despite this recommendation, a case 
had since been noted where a rate of $100 a day was approved on May 7, 
1964 by the Treasury Board and the Governor in Council on the 
recommendation of the Department of Labour.

The Committee reiterated the recommendation made in its Fourth 
Report 1963 that if additional remuneration was to be paid to judges 
appointed as conciliators or arbitrators on boards established to deal with 
disputes affecting employers and their employees, the approval of Par­
liament for payment of the additional remuneration should be sought.

Comment by the Auditor General: No action has been taken toward remedying 
this matter which was originally brought to attention in my 1962 Report to the 
House.

Paragraph 70 of my 1965 Report to the House, in referring to the 
Committee’s recommendation, cites two additional circumstances noted which 
support my opinion that the amounts of the living allowances being paid to 
federally-appointed judges are such that an element of remuneration is includ­
ed therein and consequently they are contrary to existing legislation covering 
payments to judges.

8. Governor General’s Special Warrants. The Committee recom­
mended that a study be made of Governor General’s special warrants.

Comment by the Auditor General: I have not been informed of any study 
having been made along the lines recommended by the Committee. In this 
connection it might be noted that on March 4, 1965 the Minister of Finance 
advised the Chairman of the Committee as follows:
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In the course of discussion in the Public Accounts Committee (June 
1964) on the subject of Special Warrants, the Secretary of the Treasury 
Board undertook to consider the desirability of enlarging on the special 
Governor General’s warrant provisions in the Financial Administration 
Act (in particular section 28), in order to clarify its application to 
situations arising when Parliament is dissolved without having appro­
priated the necessary expenses of the Public Service. Suggestions have 
been discussed for changes in this section of the Financial Administration 
Act, and these are now being studied. Should the Government decide 
that an amendment to the Act is desirable it will present its proposals to 
Parliament in the usual way.

9. Remission of sales tax on oleomargarine. The Committee was 
concerned to learn that the undertaking given in 1949 that the Govern­
ment would submit to Parliament legislation designed to exempt oleo­
margarine sold in Newfoundland from the federal sales tax in the same 
manner as basic foodstuffs in other parts of Canada had not been carried 
out. Instead, the authority provided to the Executive by section 22 of the 
Financial Administration Act had been used to render a tax, applicable 
elsewhere in Canada, completely inoperative in one province.

The Committee stated that it does not consider that section 22 of the 
Financial Administration Act should be used in this way.

Comment by the Auditor General: Section 22 of the Financial Administration 
Act continues to be used in this way and I am not aware of any action being 
taken to discontinue the practice.

10. Cost of gasoline used in departmental vehicles at Ottawa. The 
Committee learned from the Secretary of the Treasury Board that an 
alternative means of effecting savings in the purchase of gasoline was 
presently being considered. Having in mind the time which had elapsed 
since the matter was first taken under consideration, the Committee 
urged the Secretary of the Treasury Board to have the matter finalized at 
the earliest possible date. The Committee further requested that the 
Secretary of the Treasury Board provide it in due course with informa­
tion as to the final decision in this matter and also as to the various 
alternatives which were considered and, with respect to those which were 
rejected, the reasons for such rejection.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Treasury Board at its meeting on March 
31, 1965, approved implementation of a national credit card system for 
Crown-owned vehicles operated by civilian Government departments and for 
which gasoline is now purchased from service stations. Department of Public 
Works’ vehicles maintaining the Northwest Highway system were not included. 
In order to permit implementation of the scheme the Board authorized the 
Department of Defence Production to enter into formal agreements with certain 
suppliers who had offered attractive discounts which it was estimated would 
result in annual savings of $158,000.

We have been informed by the Department of Defence Production that 
agreements have been entered into with suppliers and the necessary adminis­
trative procedures for the implementation of a national credit card system for
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the purchase of gasoline for Crown-owned vehicles have been developed and 
were submitted to the Treasury Board on February 11, 1966 for approval. It is 
anticipated that the new procedures will become effective April 1, 1966. 
However, participation by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police is still under 
study.

It is gratifying to note that this matter, which was first drawn to attention 
in my 1961 Report to the House and on which it is estimated that annual savings 
of $158,000 can result, is about to be brought to fruition.

11. Unemployment Insurance Fund and its Administration. The 
Committee stated its opinion that it is in the public interest that the 
Government’s consideration of the report of the Committee of Inquiry be 
completed as soon as possible, and that the Government bring forward 
promptly such proposals as it may deem necessary to deal with the 
problems raised by the report.

The Committee also reiterated the additional recommendation made 
in its Fourth Report 1963 that preparation of the annual financial 
statements for the Unemployment Insurance Fund should be made a 
statutory responsibility of the Unemployment Insurance Commission and 
that the statements should be reported on by the Auditor General. 

Comment by the Auditor General: The Minister of Labour wrote to me in 
the following terms on this subject under date of Maich 10, 1965.

In reply to your letter of February 26th and more specifically to the 
observations made in the Fourth Report of the Public Accounts Com­
mittee dated July 28th, 1964 relating to the Unemployment Insurance 
Fund administration, the Prime Minister stated on February 20th, 1964 
in the House of Commons:

One of the many examples of pending measures it is one not 
only of importance but one which is very close to many members, 
indeed to all members—is the reform of unemployment insurance. 
The large reduction in unemployment which has been achieved in 
recent months has made this a less dramatically urgent problem than 
when the unemployment insurance fund had to be rescued from 
bankruptcy, but reforms certainly are required. The House was 
informed at the start of the last session that legislation was under 
consideration, and that consideration has been proceeding. If the 
parliamentary timetable permits, we will be ready with legislation 
later in the year.
This was the position of the Government at that date and continues 

to be the position today.
With respect to the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements 

of the Unemployment Insurance Fund, dealt with in paragraph 37 of the 
Fourth Report, this is a matter which you would appreciate will require a 
revision of the Unemployment Insurance Act. In the meantime, I might 
add that informal arrangements have been made, as you are aware, for 
the Auditor General to audit the Annual Financial Statements of the 
Unemployment Insurance Fund.
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12. Board of grain commissioners. In its Fifth Report 1961 the 
Committee had stated that it felt concerned that in each year since 
1953-54 the expenditure of this activity had exceeded its revenue by 
more than $1 million and it requested the Auditor General to keep this 
matter under review and report thereon to the Committee in due course.

Comment by the Auditor General: Expenditures of the Board, including the 
estimated cost of $294,000 for services provided without charge by other 
government departments, exceeded revenues by $1,823,000 for the year ended 
March 31, 1965.

Effective August 1, 1965 the fees charged by the Board for inspection and 
weighing services have been increased by 50%. Had the increased rates been in 
effect throughout the year ended March 31, 1965, the Board’s revenues would 
have been $1,760,000 greater.

Although it is doubtful that the increased fees will fully cover the 
continually increasing costs of the Board, the increase was nevertheless sub­
stantial and the Committee may feel disposed to observe the results of 
operations for the next two or three years without further special reports.

13. Office of the Auditor General. In the opinion of the Committee, it 
is fundamental that this independent auditing office be strong, capable, 
efficient and equipped to operate in accordance with the high standards 
of independence and objectivity expected of professional accountants, 
with respect to the legal duties.

The Committee believes that as an officer of Parliament the Auditor 
General should be free to recruit the staff he needs in the same 
independent manner as do other officers of Parliament and Crown 
corporations generally. The Auditor General informed the Committee 
that the recruitment outlook was currently satisfactory and that, barring 
any unforeseen developments, he believed that he could fill his presently 
approved staff establishment under existing arrangements by the end of 
the year. The Committee therefore asked him to render a further report 
on this situation in due course.

The Committee noted that amendments to the Financial Adminis­
tration Act were to be introduced in due course and believed appropriate 
amendments should be considered at that time designed to allow the 
Auditor General to appoint such officers and employees as are necessary 
for the proper conduct of his Office.

Comment by the Auditor General: As explained in paragraph 11 of my 1965 
Report to the House, the Audit Office’s working strength totalled 193 at 
November 30, 1965 compared with 173 approximately a year earlier. The 
approved staff establishment remains at 220 and, with its current working 
strength at 198, the Office is thus short 22 employees at the present time. 
Although this shortage continues to place a heavy burden on the Office in 
carrying out its responsibilities, it has been possible to increase and diversify 
the scope of its work to a certain degree. The extent to which this can be 
developed further must depend on the success that can be achieved by the Civil 
Service Commission in filling the existing establishment vacancies.
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No action has been taken with respect to the Committee’s recommendation 
that an appropriate amendment be made to the Financial Administration Act to 
allow the Auditor General to appoint such officers and employees as are 
necessary for the proper conduct of his Office.

Fifth Report 1964—presented to the House on August 5, 1964 

Canadian Broadcasting Corporation

14. Report of the Royal Commission on Government Organization. 
The Committee recommended that the Secretary of State table an official 
memorandum in the House presenting the views of the Canadian 
Broadcasting Corporation and its replies to each of the matters dealt with 
by this Royal Commission in its Report 19 and that this be done before 
the estimates of the Corporation are considered by the House.

Comment by the Auditor General: Reference is made to this recommendation of 
the Committee in paragraph 187 of my 1965 Report to the House. Although no 
action has been taken yet along the lines recommended by the Committee, it 
will be noted from the lengthy comments on the Royal Commission studies in 
chapter 8 of its report that the Advisory Committee on Broadcasting was 
furnished by the Corporation with a 118-page memorandum containing its 
views on Report 19 of the Royal Commission on Government Organization. 
Presumably this memorandum will be available for tabling in the House in 
response to the request made by the Committee and will provide the informa­
tion sought by the Committee.

Sixth Report 1964—presented to the House on October 20, 1964
15. National Defence Administrative Regulations and Practices. The 

Committee expressed the hope that the changes which have been made or 
are in the process of being made in the Armed Forces’ administrative 
regulations will bring about the desired results. It requested the Auditor 
General to inform the House of any case where the changes appear to be 
inadequate or where abuse and waste of public funds develop.

Comment by the Auditor General: In accordance with this request, four matters 
were dealt with in paragraph 56 of my 1964 Report to the House and two of 
these were further dealt with, and one new item was introduced, in paragraph 
73 of my 1965 Report to the House.

16. Unauthorized use of Crown-owned Vehicles. The Committee 
recommended the regulations be amended to provide for uniform penalties 
of sufficient magnitude, applicable to all personnel, to act as a real de­
terrent to the unauthorized use of Crown-owned vehicles.

Comment by the Auditor General: There has been no further change in the 
situation surrounding this recommendation since the Minister of National 
Defence advised me on March 5, 1965 as follows:
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Treasury Board has received statistics on this matter from all 
departments operating large fleets of vehicles. An examination of the 
statements, which cover a two-year period ending March 31, 1964, will 
determine if penalties are being applied in a consistent and uniform 
manner.

It is expected that following this examination steps will be taken to 
ensure uniformity throughout all departments.

We have asked the Secretary of the Treasury Board for advice as to what 
steps are being taken to implement this Committee recommendation.

17. Financial assistance to town of Oromocto. The Committee recom­
mended to the Department of Finance that consideration be given to 
writing off to expense certain loans made to the Town.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Minister of Finance advised the Chair­
man of the Committee about this matter on March 4, 1965, as follows:

A study is currently under way to determine how these loans and, 
indeed, all assets such as these should be reflected in the accounts of 
Canada. The study will include consideration of whether these loan items 
should be written off to expenditure, and if not, how they should be 
expressed and at what value. Also, consideration is being given to the 
possibility of creation of specific reserves associated with specific classes 
of assets.

We have asked the Deputy Minister of Finance for advice as to what steps 
are being taken to implement the Committee recommendation.

18. Educational costs incurred by the Department of National De­
fence. The Committee requested the Auditor General to follow this 
matter up to determine that amounts of grants underclaimed in the past 
are recovered and that practices adopted by the Department to avoid 
losses in the future are adequate.

Comment by the Auditor General: In this connection the Minister of National 
Defence advised me on March 5, 1965 as follows:

National Defence officials have met with officials of the Ontario 
Department of Education in order to clarify the preparation, audit and 
certification of annual financial reports.

The financial reports for 1964 are now being progressively audited 
by the Deputy Minister’s auditors and submitted to the Ontario De­
partment of Education. The school boards are being instructed, during 
the course of audit, on the proper completion of the reports.

Financial reports for the years 1961 to 1963 have been revised and 
submitted to the Department of Education which has agreed to accept 
these for payment of grants previously underclaimed.

We are informed that revised claims in respect of the grants underclaimed 
have now been accepted by the provincial authorities and are being processed 
for payment; departmental instructions have been issued designed to avoid 
future losses.
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19. Assistance to provinces by the armed forces in Civil emergencies. 
The Committee noted that certain provinces had not settled outstanding 
accounts with the Department of National Defence relating to assistance 
provided by the Armed Forces in civil emergencies in prior years. It also 
noted that as the Department had not been successful in collecting the 
accounts, they had been referred to the Executive for direction but such 
direction had not as yet been received. The Committee directed the 
Auditor General to inform it of the final outcome of these matters.

Comment by the Auditor General: No further advice is available on this 
situation since March 5, 1965 when the Minister of National Defence advised me 
that “there has been no change from the situation as reported to the Public 
Accounts Committee”. It might also be noted that on March 4, 1965 the Minister 
of Finance advised the Chairman of the Committee that no decision has yet 
been Reached wTth respect to this question. A satisfactory solution is still being

sought”.
I have asked the Deputy Minister of Finance to inform me where this 

matter stands
20 Pension awards effective at early age. The Committee noted that 

the Department of National Defence has been conducting a general 
review of the benefits payable under the Canadian Forces Superannua­
tion Act and has been considering the advisability of introducing de- erred pennons similar to those provided for under the Pubhc Service 
Superannuation Act and that this review is continuing. The Committee 
requested the Auditor General to keep it informed as to the progress 
being made in the introduction of deferred pension benefits for service­
men retiring at comparatively early ages.

Comment by the Auditor General: I was advised on March 5, 1965 by the

™„enofms™2es°undeer“ke„ following the decision to integrate the forces which 

will have a bearing on those decisions.
It will be noted that paragraph 84 of my 1965 Report deals with this 

matter The Department has been reviewing the existing provisions of the 
Canadian Forces Superannuation Act and has been considering the merits of

cyan * J t ortrmities similar to those available to civilian employees but providing deferred annuities similar m ^ a more detailed study
does not contempla P P Canada Pension Plan has been completed,
embracing the implications of the lanaaa

21 Discretionary awards of service pensions. The Committee noted 
that the Department of National Defence is making a study m an 
endeavour to achieve a system under which the entitlements to all 
nensfons would be specific which, if this were possible, would eliminate 
pensions Pension Board which is now responsible forthe considerations of the rension ouoiuTuV Z „ for release The Committee requested the Auditorestablishing reasons for « tease, i taken to revise the
General to advise it in due course oi any
present system.
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Comment by the Auditor General: Further reference to this problem is to be 
found in paragraph 65 of my 1964 Report and again in paragraph 85 of my 1965 
Report to the House.

As in the case of item 20, the Minister of National Defence advised me on 
March 5, 1965 that “no decision has been taken on possible amendments to the 
Canadian Forces Superannuation Act pending the completion of studies under­
taken following the decision to integrate the forces which will have a bearing 
on those decisions.”

22. Overlapping of pension benefits. The Committee was pleased to 
hear from the Deputy Minister of National Defence that it is his intention 
when the Canadian Forces Superannuation Act is to be amended to bring 
this matter to the attention of the Ministers with a view to preventing 
future incidents of this kind. The Committee requested the Auditor 
General to keep it informed as to progress made.

Comment by the Auditor General: No further information is available regarding 
this matter since the Minister of National Defence advised me on March 5, 1965 
that, as in the case of items 20 and 21 above, “no decision has been taken on 
possible amendments to the Canadian Forces Superannuation Act pending the 
completion of studies undertaken following the decision to integrate the forces 
which will have a bearing on those decisions.”

23. Advances to the Exchange Fund Account. The Committee recom­
mended that in the event the holdings of the Account drop in value by an 
amount sufficient to eliminate the surplus of $30.3 million at December 
31, 1963 and create a deficit in the Account, the Minister of Finance of 
the day give immediate consideration to the elimination of the deficit in 
order to maintain the full value of the advances made from the Con­
solidated Revenue Fund to the Exchange Fund Account.

Comment by the Auditor General: A summary of the Exchange Fund Account 
is contained in paragraph 177 of my 1964 Report and in paragraph 228 of my 
1965 Report to the House. It will be noted that the holdings of the Account have 
not dropped in value and there was a surplus of $31.7 million at December 31, 
1964.

24. Errors in Public Service Superannuation Account Pension and 
Contribution Calculations. The Committee expressed concern that this 
matter (first drawn to the attention of the Department of Finance by the 
Auditor General in 1959), which it regards as being very serious, is 
taking so long to be corrected- It requested the Auditor General to keep 
it fully informed.

Comment by the Auditor General: In my 1964 Report to the House I outlined in 
paragraph 51 how the responsibility for the operation of the Superannuation 
Branch had been placed under the direction of the Comptroller of the Treasury 
in December 1963.

The extent to which the high incidence of errors continues in the Super­
annuation Account pension and contribution calculations is described in para­
graph 64 of my 1965 Report to the House.
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25. Pension increased by payment of two salaries. The Committee 
stated it expects to see suitable amending legislation introduced in due 
course to protect the Public Service Superannuation Account from 
excessive annuity charges and requested the Auditor General to keep it 
fully informed.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Minister of Finance advised the Chair­
man of the Committee on March 4, 1965 as follows:

The recommendations contained in these sections (items 25 and 26) 
... have been noted and are being considered in relation to possible 
amendments of the Public Service Superannuation Act.

26. Reciprocal transfer agreements for Superannuation Benefits. The 
Committee suggested that when the Public Service Superannuation Act 
is next amended a suitable amendment be introduced which will provide 
for the disposition of any excess amounts of contributions in reciprocal 
transfer cases.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Minister of Finance advised the Chair­
man of the Committee on March 4, 1965 as follows:

The recommendations contained in these sections (items 25 and 26)
. . .have been noted and are being considered in relation to possible 
amendments of the Public Service Superannuation Act.

27. Interest charges on loans to the National Capital Commission. 
The Committee recorded how, in its Fourth Report 1963, it had expressed 
the view that since outlays on properties such as those held by the 
National Capital Commission are expenditures of the Crown rather than 
income-producing investments, it would be more realistic were Parlia­
ment asked to appropriate the funds in the years in which properties, 
which are not to be specifically held for resale, are to be acquired, instead 
of leaving the expenditure involved in the repayment of loans to be 
absorbed in future years.

After hearing further evidence, the Committee stated it continues to 
hold the view that outlays on properties such as these are expenditures 
of the Crown rather than income-producing investments, and that Par­
liament should be asked to appropriate the funds in the years in which the 
properties are to be acquired. It pointed out that if this were done it 
would eliminate the need for Parliament to appropriate funds to the 
Commission to service loans made under the present practice. The Com­
mittee repeated its request that the Department of Finance review the 
existing practice with the National Capital Commission with a view to 
placing the financing of the Commission on a more realistic basis.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Deputy Minister of Public Works 
advised on February 24, 1965 that the National Capital Commission is fully 
conversant with the various facets of this problem and is awaiting further 
directions from the Department of Finance in this regard. The Commission 
understands this recommendation places the initiative for the review on the 
Department of Finance.
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As is indicated in paragraph 202 of my 1965 report, the practice of charging 
interest continues unchanged. This practice in its wider implications is dealt 
with in my 1965 Report under paragraph 167.

28. Accounts receivable. The Committee expressed concern that 
weaknesses exist in the internal control with respect to accounts receiva­
ble and suggested that the Treasury Board have the matter studied with 
a view to ensuring that amounts due to the Crown are adequately 
recorded, that an accounts receivable control system is instituted and that 
collection procedures are tightened up and firmly enforced.

Comment by the Auditor General: I have been advised by several departments 
as to steps taken to improve their accounts receivable systems and tighten 
collection procedures.

On March 4, 1965 the Minister of Finance advised the Chairman of the 
Committee that a study was under way to ensure that amounts due to the Crown 
are adequately recorded and to institute an accounts receivable control system. 
A Treasury Board directive on this subject is expected momentarily.

The Committee had also recommended that a summary showing the overall 
total of accounts receivable be included in the Public Accounts each year. This 
recommendation has been inplemented and a summary by departments appears 
on page 9.25 of Volume I of the Public Accounts for 1964-65.

Reference is also made to paragraph 168 of my 1965 Report to the House.
29. Indirect compensation to chartered banks. The Committee recalled 

that, in its Fourth Report 1963, it had advised the House that it was 
in agreement with the view of the Auditor General that the arrangement 
existing between the chartered banks and the Government of Canada 
does constitute indirect compensation to the chartered banks and that 
this may be construed as being contrary to the intent of section 93(1) of 
the Bank Act.

The Committee reiterated its belief that, if the banks are to be com­
pensated for services provided to the Crown, consideration should be 
given to the most equitable manner in which this may be done, with 
statutory sanction being given by means of an appropriate amendment to 
the Bank Act, possibly at the time of the decennial revision in 1965.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Minister of Finance advised the Chair­
man of the Committee on March 4, 1965 that he had noted the above 
recommendation of the Committee and that consideration was being given to an 
appropriate amendment to the Bank Act.

Reference to this is made in paragraph 62 of my 1965 Report to the House 
wherein it is pointed out that subsection (2) of clause 93 of Bill C-102, which 
was given first and second readings and referred to the Standing Committee on 
Finance, Trade and Economic Affairs during the 1965 session of Parliament, was 
designed to permit the continuation of the practice of compensating the banks 
indirectly for services provided to the Crown by keeping non-interest bearing 
funds (currently an aggregate of $100 million) on deposit with them.
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30. The Canada Council. The Committee stated that, in its Fourth 
Report 1963, it had noted that the Council proposed to accept the 1956 
census as a basis for distribution of the profits realized and interest 
earned on the University Capital Grants Fund and also to accept the 
“hotch-pot” or trust fund approach to this distribution. Because of doubts 
expressed by other legal counsel and the Auditor General as to the 
propriety of applying these bases, the Committee had postponed further 
consideration of the matter.

The Committee was informed that in the interim the Council had 
proceeded to allocate and distribute funds resulting from profits realized 
and interest earned on the foregoing bases. The Committee regarded the 
approach as a reasonable one, but because of the conflicting views held as 
to whether the action taken is ultra vires of subsection (2) (b) of section 
17 of the Canada Council Act, recommended that steps be taken to seek 
amending legislation to provide clear authority for the Council to use 
the 1956 census and the “hotch-pot” approach in the distribution of 
interest and profits in respect of the University Capital Grants Fund.

Comment by the Auditor General: In a letter to the Chairman of the Committee 
dated March 8, 1965, the Secretary of State stated:

In dealing with the Sixth Report of the Committee concerning the 
Canada Council, this proposal suggests a clarification of the legislation in 
respect of the use of the 1956 census data. This, of course, is a good 
suggestion which the Government would like to keep open at this time 
since a number of other points relating to the Canada Council are under 
consideration, and these, also, could result in the need for legislative 
amendment. Until this study has been completed, it is not intended to 
propose that the House consider minor amendments.

Seventh Report 1964—presented to the House on December 7, 1964

Surplus Assets Disposal
31 The Committee expressed deep concern that while physical 

inventory quantities are maintained and are readily available in respect 
of all of the equipment and supply items maintained by the apartment 
of National Defence, the purchase cost of the materials, including sup- 
olies and equipment stores at supply depots and at repair and overhaul
contractors’ establishments, is not available. In accordance with sound 
business practice, it would be reasonable to ascertain, for the purposes of 
financial management control, the value of the inventory and what it 
costs to store and handle such an inventory.

32 While the Committee expressed its satisfaction with the supervi­
sory methods exercised by the Department of National Defence over its 
Dhvsical inventory quantities, it did not see how the Department can 
perform a really effective job of inventory management without know­
ing the value of the inventory and what it costs to carry ^. Furthermore, 
the lack of any cost or carrying values has rendered it difficult lor the 
Committee eUher to form any reasonable estimate of the value of the
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supplies on hand or to determine what would seem to be a reasonable 
inventory level for a department the size of the Department of National 
Defence to maintain for the requirements of the three Armed Forces. In 
this connection it should be borne in mind that appropriations approved 
for the Department of National Defence have aggregated an average of 
$1,646 million annually, of which $421 million related to equipment, 
materials and supplies, over the past five years so that it does not seem 
unreasonable for the Committee to expect that some maximum dollar 
figure of values should be established to govern the size of the inventory. 
It was explained to the Committee by the officials of the Department of 
National Defence that the Department has been studying this matter for 
some time and the hope is entertained that it will be possible in due 
course to record the dollar value of this stock subject to the extent to 
which the recommendations of the Royal Commission on Government 
Organization are implemented in the years ahead. The Committee found 
general agreement that the determination of this would contribute 
materially to an improvement in the management of an inventory of this 
size.

33. The Committee made the following recommendations :
( 1 ) that every effort be made by the executive to introduce at as early a 

date as possible an effective accounting change in the operations of 
the Department of National Defence whereby inventory quantities 
can be costed on acquisition and recorded in the quarterly or 
periodic inventory listings made by the Department;

(2) that effective with the fiscal year 1964-65 the Department of Na­
tional Defence issue a statement listing or summarizing all material 
declared surplus during the year showing, to the extent it can be 
determined, its original cost and the value obtained on disposal of 
this equipment by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation; also the value 
obtained for other surplus material, etc., declared without value to 
the Corporation, and that such a statement be placed in the Public 
Accounts of Canada;

(3) that the preparation of a statement similar to the foregoing be made 
a requirement for each department and agency of the Government 
declaring material surplus for the purpose of disposing of such 
material during each fiscal year and that such statements likewise be 
placed in the Public Accounts of Canada effective with the fiscal year 
1964-65.

(4) Implemented

Comment by the Auditor General: (1) No changes have been made in the 
accounting up to the present time.

(2) A Guide for Materiel Management which accompanied a Treasury 
Board Management Improvement Circular (T.B. 635423 of January 21, 1965) 
sets out the procedures and action to be taken to bring about “immediate 
implementation of the recommendation.”However, the Treasury Board Circular 
states that “for administrative reasons the Board indicated that this report 
should be prepared in the form shown (in the Materiel Management Guide) for
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the fiscal year 1965-66 rather than 1964-65 as recommended by the Public 
Accounts Committee.” As a consequence no statement has as yet been produced.

(3) The Minister of Finance has advised the Chairman of the Committee on 
March 4, 1965 that preparations are under way to gather the information 
required to produce the statements. He added that the Comptroller of the 
Treasury has undertaken to include such statements in Volume II of the Public 
Accounts for 1965-66 prepared from the information supplied to him by the 
various departments.

(4) This recommendation dealt with sales and inspection procedures of 
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. These have since been revised as suggested.

Eighth Report 1964—presented to the House on December 7,1964
34. Hospital Construction Grants. The Committee stated it shared the 

opinion of the Deputy Minister of National Health and the Auditor 
General that, since it is inherent in the Hospital Construction Program 
that commitments be entered into for future years as well as the current 
year, the financing of the program be placed on a period-of-years basis 
with parliamentary control being exercised over the total commitments 
that may be entered into.

Comment by the Auditor General: Under date of February 3, 1965 I was 
advised by the Deputy Minister of Health that repeated consideration has been 
given to the Committee’s recommendation in this regard. He added:

The suggestion that assistance to the provinces under the National 
Health Grants be placed on a period-of-years basis, particularly as 
related to the Hospital Construction Program, is being reviewed at the 
present time. In order to implement the recommendation of the Com­
mittee that Parliament should control monies under the Hospital Con­
struction Grant on a period-of-years basis, it is believed that it would be 
necessary to give statutory authority to the National Health Grants 
arrangement. This question of statutory authority, as I indicated earlier 
in this letter, is presently under review and the opinion of the Commit­
tee has been brought to the attention of my Minister.

35. Awards under the Pension Act. The Committee made the following 
recommendations designed to clarify the Act:

(a) that the extent of the powers delegated to the Commission under 
section 25 of the Act, “to grant a compassionate pension, allowance 
or supplementary award in any case that it considers to be specially 
meritorious” where the applicant is otherwise unqualified to receive 
such an award, be clarified by defining the term “specially meri­
torious;”

(b) that the ambiguity under the Act whereby section 40 (2) appears to 
contemplate that a pension in respect of death of a member of the 
forces be limited to a single class of recipient whereas other sections 
of the Act provide that payments in respect of a death may be made 
concurrently to a widow (section 37), children (section 26) and 
parents (section 38), be eliminated;
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(c) that the inconsistency apparent under section 38 of the Pension Act 
where pensions awarded to widowed mothers under subsection (3) 
thereof, which requires that the parent must be incapacitated by 
mental or physical infirmity from earning a livelihood, are by reason 
of subsection (7) being continued in payment even though the 
widowed mothers have subsequently been able to undertake full­
time employment, be removed;

(d) that consideration be given to adding a section to the Pension Act 
similar to section 18 of the War Veterans Allowance Act to deal with 
cases where it appears to the Commission that there had been a 
deliberate disposal of property for the purpose of qualifying for a 
dependent parent award;

(e) that, having regard for section 40 (1) of the Pension Act which 
provides that no person shall be awarded more than one pension in 
respect of death, the Commission reconsider the legality of its 
decision to permit an award to a dependent parent of a second 
pension in respect of the death of a child after the rights to a pension 
awarded in respect of the death of another child have been lost under 
the terms of section 45 (2) of the Act.

Comment by the Auditor General: This matter is referred to in paragraph 89 of 
my 1964 Report to the House and in paragraph 138 of my 1965 report to the 
House.

The Minister of Veterans Affairs advised the Chairman of the Committee 
on March 3, 1965 respecting each of the above recommendations as follows:

(a) “This section was designed to make it possible for the Canadian 
Pension Commission to grant a pension to persons where, as men­
tioned in the Pension Act, the applicant is otherwise unqualified to 
receive such an award. Before such an award is granted, the Com­
mission must decide that the claim is ‘specially meritorious’ as 
required by the legislation. This term ‘specially meritorious’ was 
deliberately left undefined in order that the Commission’s dis­
cretionary authority would in no way be limited. It goes without 
saying that any definition of this term would unquestionably have 
the effect of limiting such discretionary authority. If this phrase 
were carefully defined, I am satisfied that sooner or later claims 
would arise which because of the definition the Commission would 
be unable to grant, even though it might be obvious to all concerned 
that the claim merited favourable consideration.”

(b) “In my view the only way in which this recommendation could be 
put into effect would be to delete sections 37, 26 and 38 completely 
from the legislation. It would also appear to be necessary to repeal 
section 39 as well as one or two other sections of the Pension Act 
before the terms of this recommendation could be met. Therefore, 
it is a question of deciding whether these provisions should be with­
drawn, and this is a decision which can only be reached by Parlia­
ment. If the sections in question were withdrawn, it would mean 
that no pension would be paid to, or on behalf of children, and 
dependent parents, and brothers and sisters, would have no entitle­
ment.”
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(c) “Section 38(7) of the Pension Act was designed originally to encour­
age a widowed mother to seek employment, and hence the provision 
that pension will not be reduced on account of personal earnings. 
This places the widowed mother in a preferred class as compared 
to the dependent parent or parents, and again it is a question for 
Parliament to decide whether these widowed mothers should be 
given such preferential treatment.

It is worth noting that at the moment these widowed mothers are 
all well up in years because they must of necessity be the mothers of 
men who served in World War II. Barring future wars, therefore, 
these payments are not of a continuing nature.”

(d) “In deciding entitlement and the amount of the award granted, the 
Commission now takes into consideration all aspects of the claim. 
For instance, if the parent owns a home clear of encumbrance, the 
amount of pension paid would in most cases be less than if a parent 
were making substantial mortgage payments or renting. If the 
property is transferred to a son or other child, and the parent lives 
with the person to whom the property was transferred, a reduced 
amount is authorized. It is possible, nevertheless, that there may 
well be instances where the parent turns property over to a son or 
daughter for the sole purpose of qualifying for pension under section 
38 and under the present terms of the legislation the Commission 
has no authority to reject such claims so long as the applicant is in a 
dependent condition, and so long as it is estabished that the son or 
daughter whose life was lost did contribute, or would in the opinion 
of the Commission have contributed, substantially to the support and 
maintenance of the parent. Again, the question of whether or not the 
Commission should be given definite authority to reject such claims 
is one which must be decided by Parliament.”

(e) “The Commission has on several occasions and, as directed by your 
Committee, will again study it thoroughly.

It should be pointed out, however, that if section 40(1) is to be 
interpreted as suggested by the Committee in its recommendation, it 
would not be possible to pay a widow’s pension under the following 
circumstances: A widow loses her husband in World War I, and she 
is duly pensioned following his death. She later remarries, and the 
second husband is killed during World War II. The report of the 
Committee suggests that section 40(1) should be interpreted to mean 
that this widow would not be entitled to receive a pension for the 
loss of her second husband.

'j’he Commission is of the opinion that a dependent parent who 
has lost two sons is entitled to very special consideration. It is 
obvious that the intent of section 38 is to provide the maintenance 
which the dead son or daughter would have provided had he or she 
lived If there is evidence to indicate that the second son would have 
provided this maintenance had he lived, then it seems only just and
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equitable that the parent should, in the event that he or she falls 
into a dependent condition, be equally entitled on account of both 
sons.”

In September 1965 the Treasury Board approved the appointment of a 
committee of three persons not connected with the Department of Veterans 
Affairs or the Canadian Pension Commission, for a survey of the organization 
and work of the Canadian Pension Commission and for preparation of a report 
and recommendations thereon to the Minister of Veterans Affairs. Included in 
the field to be studied is the interpretation of such sections of the Pension Act 
which, in the judgment of this committee, should be considered.

36. War Veterans Allowances. The Committee made the following 
recommendations :
(a) the Committee, after taking note of the increasing number of 

overpayments arising mainly from veterans making false or mislead­
ing statements, and of the fact that, although 80 such cases had been 
referred to the Board by the Auditor General in 1962 and 1963, in 
none of these had legal action been instituted, recommends that all 
cases of deliberate deception which come to notice be vigorously 
prosecuted;

(b) that the Act should be amended to recognize mortgages receivable 
and agreements for sale as either personal property or an interest in 
real property. In the meantime, where it appears to the Board that 
the terms of a mortgage receivable or agreement for sale are 
unrealistic in relation to the life expectancy of the individual and the 
going market rates, the Board should deem the return from these 
assets to be at a reasonable monthly rate;

(c) that in cases where the presence of a child is the reason for an award 
at married rates, the income of the child, except income specifically 
exempted under the Act, be taken into account in determining the 
amount of the award.

Comment by the Auditor General: This matter is referred to in paragraph 91 of 
my 1964 Report to the House and in paragraph 139 of my 1965 Report to the 
House.

The Minister of Veterans Affairs advised the Chairman of the Committee 
on March 3, 1965 respecting each of the above recommendedations as follows:

(a) “In considering this suggestion I have reviewed the problem as out­
lined in the evidence given by the Director of Legal Services in 
Appendix B of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence, No. 24, 
dated November 3, 1964, of the Committee.

The action taken by the Courts, where legal steps have been 
instigated has almost invariably resulted in suspended sentences 
based, no doubt, on the facts that the wrongdoer is a veteran, that 
he is nearly always elderly and that his health would not bear up 
under imprisonment. I have noted, too, that recoveries are made by
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deductions from the allowance, by mortgages taken in the interests 
of the Crown and that judgments or executions are kept up to date 
in order to effect recovery of overpayments.

Nevertheless the comments of the Committee on taking a stiffer 
line on wrongdoers will receive full consideration during which all 
factors will be taken into account.”

(b) “This recommendation, dealing with the policy of not considering 
mortgages receivable from the sale of a residence as personal prop­
erty or as marketable securities, has also received my consideration. 
I have noted from the evidence given before your Committee that 
by treating mortgage receivable payments from the sale of a resi­
dence, as income, it is more economical in the long run. If a recipient 
or applicant were forced to discount his mortgage receivable, he 
would in time be able to come on the allowance at the full rate. 
Also, where the mortgage receivable payments are not large, the 
widow of a recipient would suffer financial distress until such time 
as she could discount her mortgage to get funds for maintenance. 
The War Veterans Allowance Board does assess a reasonable return 
when the terms of the mortgage are unrealistic.

I am also impressed by the fact that the Regulations under the 
three benefit Acts of the Department of National Health and Welfare 
deal with mortgage receivable payments in a manner similar to that 
followed by the Board at the present time. I refer to the regulations 
under the Old Age Assistance Act, the Blind Persons Act and the 
Disabled Persons Act.

In the light of the above comments I do not consider that the 
present Board policy should be changed as it has proven to be, over 
the years, an eminently satisfactory approach.”

(c) “If this proposal were complied with it would, in the opinion of the 
Director of Legal Services and the Department of Justice, require 
an amendment to the War Veterans Allowance Act.

Cases where a dependent child is in receipt of assessable income 
are very rare. Bequests to children are almost invariably payable 
only after age 21, and such income as a child is permitted by law 
to earn constitutes very limited personal funds. Even though it were 
possible to ascertain these amounts, they would be exempt as 
casual earnings.

A liberal exemption in the amount of $950 of the earnings of a 
dependent child, is exempted for a wage earner under the Income 
Tax Act. In the case of a war veterans allowance recipient, his 
income is limited to his ceiling.

Because of these reasons, I do not feel that any change should be 
made arising from this recommendation.”

The Minister concluded his letter as follows:
In considering these three recommendations made by the Committee,

I have given some weight to the fact that the War Veterans Allowance
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Act is welfare legislation dealing with otherwise eligible veterans, wid­
ows and orphans, who find themselves in need of financial aid for 
maintenance.

Consequently, as welfare legislation, I believe that the Act should be 
administered with a broad and liberal interpretation in the interests of 
those recipients who depend upon it for their livelihood.

I am pleased to have this opportunity to provide the Committee with 
my comments on all these recommendations on matters that fall under 
my jurisdiction.

37. Amendments to the Customs Act and the Excise Tax Act. The 
Committee made the following recommendations:
(a) Implemented
(b) Sales of goods unclaimed at Customs—

that the practice of the Department in waiving all or part of 
whatever storage charges are applicable in order that at least 
the duties may be recovered be given statutory sanction by 
means of an appropriate amendment to section 23 of the Cus­
toms Act.

(c) Implemented
(d) Determination of ‘sale price’ for sales tax purposes

that an amendment be made to the Excise Tax Act designed to 
give statutory sanction to the existing scheme of valuation fol­
lowed by the Department of National Revenue in authorizing 
manufacturers by regulation to compute the sales tax on less 
than the actual sale price.

Comment by the Auditor General: (a) This recommendation of the Committee 
had to do with release of goods under Customs Collector’s permission. In this 
connection the Customs Act was amended by Chapter 16, 1965, and the 
amendment reads: “The Governor in Council may make regulations prescribing 
the terms and conditions upon which goods may be entered into Canada free of 
any requirement that the importer shall, at the time of entry, pay or cause to be 
so paid all duties on the goods so entered inwards”.

(b) No amendment has yet been made to the Customs Act to authorize the 
deletion of warehouse charges when goods are sold at auction. Thus the practice 
of the Department in waiving such charges does not yet have statutory sanction.

(c) This recommendation relates to duties and taxes on surplus United 
States Government property sold in Canada. The Committee recommended that 
the Customs Act be amended to provide statutory authority for a composite rate 
to be applied to the proceeds of sales in Canada. This recommendation has been 
implemented by an amendment to the Customs Act by Chapter 16, 1965, which 
reads in part as follows: “Where goods, the property of the government of a 
country other than Canada, that were imported into Canada free of duty or at a 
rate lower than that to which they would otherwise be liable, are sold or
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otherwise disposed of on behalf of the government of such country in accord­
ance with an agreement between the governments of such country and Canada, 
such goods shall be charged with duties payable at such rate as may be 
determined by the Minister.”

(d) On March 4, 1965 the Minister of Finance advised the Chairman of the 
Committee as follows:

It is believed that section 38(1) of the Excise Tax Act gives the 
Minister of National Revenue authority to determine the sale price for 
tax purposes in instances where it is necessary to do so. This section 
reads as follows:

38. (1). The Minister of Finance or the Minister of National 
Revenue, as the case may be, may make such regulations as he 
deems necessary or advisable for carrying out the provisions of this 
Act.
Suggestions have been made from time to time that more specific 

rules be provided in the Excise Tax Act under which the Minister of 
National Revenue would have authority to establish amounts different 
from the actual selling price to be the basis for sales tax. However, it has 
not been found possible to devise a satisfactory series of definitions and 
rules for this purpose. It is now considered advisable to wait for the 
report of the Royal Commission on Taxation before making a change of 
this kind in the Excise Tax law.

38. General election expenditures. The Committee noted the practice 
followed over the years of making accountable advances to election 
officers for the payment of office rental and various other expenses 
incurred in connection with an election. It noted that the Chief Electoral 
Officer in his report to the Speaker of the House of Commons on the 1962 
general election had recommended that the Canada Elections Act be 
amended to provide for the payment of an accountable advance to an 
election officer, limited to an amount which might be necessary to defray 
such office and other incidental expenses as may be approved under the 
tariff of fees, costs, allowances and expenses.

The Committee recorded its support of this recommendation by the 
Chief Electoral Officer and expressed the hope that the amendment will 
be considered by Parliament at an early date.

Comment by the Auditor General: The Chief Electoral Officer recommended to 
the Speaker of the House of Commons following the 1962 general election that 
the Canada Elections Act be amended to provide for the payment of an 
accountable advance to an election officer, limited to an amount which might be 
necessary to defray such office and other incidental expenses as may be 
approved under the tariff of fees, costs, allowances and expenses. However, the 
Act has not yet been amended. Accountable advances have continued to be 
made to election officers as requested by the Chief Electoral Officer. These 
advances are being recovered as the several election officers submit their 
accounts to the Treasury.
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39. Accounts not examined by the Auditor General. The Committee 
noted that although this officer of Parliament is the auditor of the 
majority of the Crown corporations, it has not been the practice of 
successive governments to appoint the Auditor General the auditor of 
seven of the Crown corporations and other public instrumentalities and 
that therefore their accounts have not been examined and reported upon 
by him to the House. The Committee expressed its belief that it would be 
in the best interests of Parliament in its control of public funds were the 
Auditor General empowered to audit the accounts of all of the Crown 
corporations, agencies and public instrumentalities owned or controlled 
by the Crown, wherever they may be, and to report thereon to the 
House.

The Committee therefore recommended:
(a) that the Auditor General be appointed either the sole auditor or a 

joint auditor pursuant to subsection (2) of section 77 of the Finan­
cial Administration Act, of each Crown corporation, agency and 
other public instrumentality in respect of which other auditors have 
been or may be appointed;

(b) that in cases where such other auditors are appointed, they function 
as joint auditors with the Auditor General, and that such appoint­
ments be made by the government acting on the advice of the 
Auditor General.

Comment by the Auditor General: There has been no action taken with respect 
to this recommendation.

On March 4, 1965 the Minister of Finance advised the Chairman of the 
Committee as follows:

I have noted the recommendations contained in sections 12 and 13 of 
the Eighth Report of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts [i.e., 
items 39 and 40 herein] but do not propose to initiate any action on these 
at the present time.

40. Audit of the Office of the Auditor General. The Committee noted 
that pursuant to the provisions of section 75 of the Financial Adminis­
tration Act, an officer of the public service nominated by the Treasury 
Board examines and certifies to the House of Commons in accordance 
with the outcome of his examinations the receipts and disbursements of 
the Office of the Auditor General.

The Committee recommended that this section of the Financial 
Administration Act be amended to provide that the receipts and dis­
bursements of the Office of the Auditor General be examined by a 
qualified person nominated by Parliament through its Standing Com­
mittee on Public Accounts, and that such person should report thereon to 
the House of Commons.

Comment by the Auditor General: There has been no action taken with respect 
to this recommendation.
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On March 4, 1965 the Minister of Finance advised the Chairman of the 
Committee as follows:

I have noted the recommendations contained in sections 12 and 13 of 
the Eighth Report of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (i.e., 
items 39 and 40 herein) but do not propose to initiate any action on these 
at the present time.

* * *

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS ON WHICH 
ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN

Fourth Report 1964 
Advertising costs 
Educational leave costs 
Payment of maintenance expenses of Civil 

Service Recreational Association Centre

Fifth Report 1964—Canadian Broadcasting Corporation 
Annual report 
Statement of Operations 
Size of operating and capital requirements 
Authority of Comptroller over Regional Accountants

Sixth Report 1964
Lease termination payments 
Superannuation Accounts

Eighth Report 1964
Employment of part-time doctors by Department 

of Veterans Affairs
In addition, as is indicated under items 6, 28, 33 and 37 of this follow-up 

report, there was partial implementation of the Committee’s recommendations 
respecting the form and content of the Estimates (Fourth Report 1964), 
accounts receivable (Sixth Report 1964), surplus assets disposal (Seventh 
Report 1964) and amendments to the Customs Act and the Excise tax Act 
(Eighth Report 1964).

Ottawa, February 28, 1966.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Thursday, April 21, 1966.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts having been duly called to 
meet at 9:30 o’clock a.m., the following members were present: Messrs. Baldwin, 
Ballard, Cameron (High Park), Dionne, Forbes, Hales, Leblanc (Laurier), 
Lefebvre, Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Winch (10).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada: and 
Messrs. Long, Stokes and Sayers of the Auditor General’s office.

At 9:55 a.m. there being no quorum, the Chairman postponed the meeting 
to the call of the Chair.

M. Slack,
Clerk of the Committee.

Tuesday, April 26, 1966.
(3)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9:45 a.m. The 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales presided.

Members present: Messrs. Bigg, Cameron (High Park), Flemming, Hales, 
Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, Morison, McLean (Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), 
Noble, Stafford, Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), 
Tucker, Winch (15).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; and 
Messrs. Long, Stokes, Sayers and Laroche of the Auditor General’s office.

The Chairman spoke to the Committee on the importance of achieving a 
Quorum.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. McLean (Charlotte), 
Resolved,-That the Committee seek to have the quorum reduced from 

13 to 10 members, and the Committee authorized to sit while the House is sitting.

A discussion arising thereon, Mr. Winch’s motion (above) was withdrawn, 
by unanimous consent.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. Tucker,
Resolved,—That the Committee request that its quorum be reduced from 

!3 to 10 members.
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On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. McLean (Charlotte),
Resolved,—That the Committee seek authority to sit while the House is 

sitting.
Respecting the appearance of departmental and Crown Corporation officials 

before the Committee, on motion of Mr. Leblanc (Laurier), seconded by 
Mr. Lefebvre,

Resolved,—That officials of the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority and the 
Canada Council be invited to appear before the Committee.

Mr. Henderson, The Auditor General asked permission to be absent from 
the Committee to attend a convention of Auditors General in Europe.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. Tucker,
Resolved,—That Mr. Henderson be excused by the Committee to attend a 

convention in Europe May 9-18, 1966.
Mr. Leblanc received permission to read into the evidence a statement 

respecting the authority of the Auditor General (taken from the Glassco Report, 
Volume 1, page 67, French Edition).

The Chairman reviewed the line of questioning to be followed in the follow­
up report, and the Committee commenced consideration of the Auditor General’s 
report for the year ending March 31, 1964.

Questioning of Mr. Henderson continuing, the Committee adjourned to 
Thursday, April 28, 1966.

J. H. Bennett,
Clerk of the Committee.
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• (9:45 a.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. At the last meeting we 
were unable to secure a quorum. I suggested at that meeting that I write a 
letter to those that were absent, which I did. That letter stated the large 
amount of work that we have to do before this very important Committee. 
1 realize also that there are times when it is difficult for people to be present. 
They have very legitimate reasons for being absent. I also realize that we have 
a terrific amount of work that the House has asked us to do. If there are 
People on the Committee who are not particularly interested in public accounts, 
I would suggest that they get in touch with their whips and ask them to name 
somebody else in their place. But I am sure that everybody that is here and 
on this Committee is sincerely interested in the Public Accounts Committee, 
because it is a very interesting Committee; you will learn more about the 
operation of government through this Committee than any other way that 
I know of.

I would like the Committee to give consideration to this thought, and I 
open the meeting for discussion on it.

Would you think it advisable that we should reduce our quorum to ten, 
or ask permission to reduce our quorum to ten? Dou you think we should 
ask permission to sit while the House is in session? We would ask for such 
Permission because of the tremendous backlog of work that is in front of us, 
and also that we have occasion to call witnesses. In many cases these witnesses 
are very busy people. We have to carry on with the investigation and make 
it continuous. These are things to which I would like you to give consideration.

I also think that consideration should be given to the possibility of a 
member of a Committee being away on a tour, or representing the government 
on an international meeting of some type, which will cause him to be away 
for four or five weeks. I also know and I am sorry to report this that Mr. 
Tremblay, one of our members, is sick in the hospital and will be there for 
three or four weeks, and then he will have a period of recuperating which 
means he might be away for six or eight weeks. Would it not be possible for 
these people to ask their whips to nominate a successor in their place until 
their return? These are things, I think, to which the Committee should give 
consideration in order that we may get on with this big job.

And another thing, we have the Auditor General and his staff here. I 
feel embarrassed when we have to wait until a quarter to ten, or wait a half
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an hour, or whatever the case may be, in order to get a quorum so that we 
can proceed. These people are busy people, and we must not hold them up like 
this. I now throw the meeting open for—

Mr. Stafford: We are one short on the Broadcasting Committee. I am 
also on that Committee; that is one of the difficulties, I find.

The Chairman: Now, this brings up another matter. This whole matter 
of Committee meetings must be reviewed so that these things will not happen. 
It is not fair to ask you to be at two places at once; it is humanly impossible.

Mr. Stafford: Would we have a quorum here if I left?

The Chairman: Would we have a quorum if Mr. Stafford leaves? Well, 
we will excuse you, sir, and we hope we will have the honour of your presence 
next time and they will be without you.

Mr. Winch: I had the honour of being a member of a similar Committee 
for some twenty years when I was in the British Columbia legislature. I have 
had the privilege of being a member of this Committee ever since it was 
established here. To me the Public Accounts Committee is one of the most 
important committees, as important as all are in the House of Commons.

In the thirteen years, sir. I have been in Ottawa, I have always opposed 
a reduction of quorums; I have always opposed sitting while the House is in 
session. But the situation that we have now, with more committes, and our 
inability to obtain a quorum leads me to having to accept the responsibility—' 
and I am the one that should accept it, in the view of what I have just told 
you—of agreeing to the situation which you have outlined, because it is, without 
doubt, of the utmost importance that this Committee function even with a 
reduced membership.

Therefore, sir, having outlined my objections over the years to a small 
quorum, my objections over the years to sitting while the House is in session— 
because you cannot be a member in the House and in committee—it is with a 
great deal of regret, but because of an understanding which I had in this 
Committee, I will move, if I can get a seconder, that our quorum shall be 
reduced to ten and that we be allowed to sit while the House is in session- 
If I can get a seconder to that I will move it, but I want to follow up by 
saying that because my views on this are so well known, I would like to 
make the same statement in the House of Commons, as I am making here, 
as the reason why I am prepared to move this motion.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I second it. Your remarks make common sense-
The Chairman: Moved by Mr. Winch, and seconded by Mr. McLean. Now 

the motion is open for discussion. Mr. Leblanc?

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : I think we will have some difficulty in getting 
unanimous consent in the House to sit while the House is sitting, because such 
a motion was presented before by other committees and they received 
special permission for a few days, but I do not believe that we will get per­
mission to sit all the time while the House is sitting.
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Mr. Winch: If you cannot get that at the time that the Chairman makes 
the report, then it goes on the Order Paper and, on two days notice, a vote 
can be taken.

Mr. Lefebvre: I think the motion is a good one, but we will not get per­
manent permission to sit while the House is sitting. We might as well have an 
amendment to that motion, that we ask for three days, or four days, or a certain 
time limit, because otherwise we will not get permission, there is no use in 
kidding ourselves about this.

The Chairman: Just a minute, Mr. Muir.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar)• The thing, Mr. Chairman, is that we could probably 

have a better co-ordination in the meetings. Two of us here will be marked 
absent at another committee meeting this morning, which no member likes 
to have done If there could be some co-ordination among the chairman on 
when the committees would meet, it might help to solve one of our problems.
I would go along with presenting the motion as is, even if the House does turn 
h down, and then we could come back and ask for three or four days, or 
whatever it might be.

The Chairman: I might just mention that Mr. Grant Deachman is co-or- 
dinator of committees, and he is doing the best he can to co-ordinate them but 
there are too many committees, I guess, for him to handle it the way it should 
be handled.
u Mr. Tucker: Mr. Chairman, I would like to suggest that Mr Winch’s motion 
be sPlit, to make two motions: One, reduce the quorum to ten, theni take: a vo. e 

that, and two, we could take a vote on the other one. I think we must keep 
them apart.

The Chairman: We will have a discussion, and then come back to changing 
1 or amending it.
M Would anyone else like to speak before Mr. Winch rewords his motion? 

Mr- Winch, would you like to reword it?
Mr. Winch: If I have the consent of my seconder, I will withdraw the

Motion.
The Chairman: Is it agreed that it be withdrawn and reworded?

f Mr. Winch: I would like to move that we request the House of Commons 
for Permission to reduce our quorum from thirteen to ten.

Mr. Tucker: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.
Mr. Winch- I would like to move, if I can have a seconder that we report 

ana „■ L ' 1 wouiu Mniisp is in session. It does not requireand give notice of motion to sit while the House is in ses ^unanimous consent. A notice of motion can be discussed after 48 hours. L 
Put the whole story before the House of Commons.

, , . _ a rertain time when we may sitMr. Lefebvre: Will you be asking for a certain
"'bile the House is in session?
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Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I do not want to take up too much time, but I 
have been on this for years, provincial and federal. For almost 33 years I have 
been on Public Accounts Committees. I know the House of Commons. I know 
that we cannot ask for a period of three to four weeks. If this House sits until 
one week before December, we will still be meeting if we are going to handle 
all the accounts and recommendations. Therefore, it is nonsensical—I am sorry 
to put it that way—it is nonsensical to ask for a period of three or four weeks 
when we can sit. My suggestion is that the Chairman make two reports : In 
the first report, he asks for an adjustment of quorum, and unanimous consent. 
But, in view of your remarks and statements made in the House, he should 
then make a further report which is separate from the first one and does not 
require unanimous consent because it is a notice of motion and is dealt with— 
I think it is in two days, if I am correct on that.

The Chairman: Forty-eight hours.

Mr. Winch: Then it comes up for a decision in the House.

The Chairman: And it is debatable.

Mr. Winch: It is debatable.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: Now we are on the second one which is that we be 
allowed to sit while the House is in session. It has been moved and seconded. 
It is open for discussion.

Mr. Morison: Mr. Chairman, I feel that this is just another extension of 
wasting time. It seems to me since I have been here that every time we give 
ourselves more time we have to reconsider it. I would much sooner see this 
Committee reduced to ten and then hope that you would get ten eager men 
who want to work. We work as best we can in the time allotted to us, when 
the House is not sitting, and then if we find that we cannot get the work done, 
then go back to the House and maybe ask for time to sit during sitting hours 
of the House. But I think just to go back and bring in the motion again is 
just taking up more time in the House, and wasting time in committee.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : We are not going to sit in Committee if we do 
not have to.

Mr. Winch: Only if we have to sit while the House is sitting on account 
of our business or our witnesses. Then we have the right; and sitting while 
the House is in session will require a motion of the Committee, but only if 
we find that we are not making any progress when the House is not sitting- 
If we have witnesses that we have called in who cannot be here for another 
week or two weeks or a month, then we will decide, because we have the 
authority, to sit on that day while the House is sitting. It is not automatic that 
we are going to sit. I thought that was understood, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): What is the possibility of the committees 
being constituted as they are, but not having the members spread over several
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committees, say three or four, because some members of this Committee are 
members of at least two other committees. How can you do your homework 
how can you be prepared to come and carry on your functions on an important 
Committee like this, in the face of that situation? That is one of the things 
that I think we will have to consider. And another thing that I feel should be 
taken up in its proper place would be the habit of a good many members, 
when something important comes up before the Public Accounts Committee 
getting switched from one committee over to another committee, and as soon 
as that matter is disposed of, then they get switched back to another committee.

I think there should be more permanence in the membership of the com­
mittee so you can get more continuity in your work. That is another observa­
tion I would like to make.

The Chairman: Would you like to add to that, Mr. Winch?

Mr Winch- I certainly understand what you have in mind, but that is no 
longer required" under the rules which are now in effect. Any member of the 
House of Commons who is interested in a specific matter coming before any
Committee has the the" do noThav"
is the vo“e°B*athePy“have‘‘.he power now to appear before any Committee on 
a particular subject being considered by the Committee.

-Ayr ztt• i n 7„\. rPVi«a+ ic truG ]Vtr. Winch, «nid th.Gr6 certainlycnni^u CAMlRON - H?\wkhut What I am saying still stands. They become 
uld be no objection to that, b vote on it and then as soon as

a member of the Committee so that ^ey * committee. I would like to see
that matter is over they move t0 s°™e probably the members not on so 
more permanency in the committees and p
many committees.

• (10:00 a.m.)
T, „ T. woll Mr Cameron, this is the environment and the

frameworkHinRwh1ch we find ourselves having to operateî at^ 
and we will see if this environment or framework can be adjusted a Dit, 
following your suggestion. Following what "^J^^c^ration
before ôuTcommitteë'md then on’the 17th of May the Canada Council.

._will start in the morning, but wemay have Scarry" onTn tteafternoon, andperhapscontinue on^inthe evening

If there is no further discussion, we will carry on with the witness.

Mr Leblanc (Laurier): For those two special days if you ask permission on the 9th™ sU on me 10th, you will get »a« Perm™-tte,e ,s no .doubt 
about that—from the House. But if you ask 01 a that’ anv time you
S ?• y0U Can be SUre ,0f tbat tïhaiOth when you wUl hive speS witnesses 

for something special, as for the.^ h, whe y ^ ^ permission from the
or the entire day, then on that night you can
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House to sit for the entire day of the 10th. Then you will get it. The same 
thing applies to the 17th.

The Chairman: Well, the way the matter stands now, if there is a resolu­
tion with 48 hours’ notice it becomes debatable and the House is master of its 
own rules, and it will decide what we should do.

Mr. Winch: But, suppose we do not happen to have a meeting on the 
9th. It requires a motion of this Committee to ask for permission to sit in 
the afternoons. If we can get permission, after notice of motion, then I would 
presume, Mr. Chairman, that the authority will be in the hands of your steering 
committee to ask for a sitting, because of the circumstances. That is the reason 
we have a steering committee.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I think we have had a pretty good discussion 
on it, and we will proceed.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, will the clerk read the 
proposed resolution.

The Chairman: The Clerk will read the resolution.

The Clerk of the Committee: Moved by Mr. Winch that a notice of 
motion to sit while the House is sitting, be presented to the House.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I feel that that is complicating the matter. 
We should simply ask for permission to sit while the House is sitting, and 
leave it simple, and leave it general. We have no right to assume what the 
House is going to do about it. The House can refuse us this permission or it 
can grant us this permission. I say, leave it to the House, and put the motion 
in simpler terms, no suggestion of a notice of motion, or anything else.

Mr. Winch: I am sorry, but—

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): The House can grant the committee per­
mission to meet at any time, but we have the right to if we so desire it.

The Chairman: Now, wait, before we get confused here. Let us do this 
step by step. Mr. Winch moved, Mr. Tucker seconded the first motion, ' 
believe, that the Committee ask for permission to reduce its quorum to ten- 
Secondly, moved by Mr. Winch and seconded by Mr. McLean, that the Com' 
mittee, by means of a written resolution on the Order Paper ask—

Mr. Winch: This is a separate report made by yourself. You are not 
asking for a decision on that.

The Chairman: This is where there is confusion. If I rise in the House 
and do it orally, then it requires unanimous consent of the House.

Mr. Winch: For adoption that day. But if you make a separate report 
saying, “I am not asking for a vote today,” then 48 hours after, you then get 
up and move acceptance of the House.

The Chairman: I am following you. Do it orally first, in the hope that we 
get unanimous consent of the House.
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): And then when the report is made you 
can say, “By unanimous consent of the House, I propose to move later this 
day.” Now, if when you stand up to make the motion, unanimous consent is 
not forthcoming, nothing is lost. The report is still before the House and—

Mr. Winch: Forty-eight hours later—
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : —forty-eight hours later you can make 

the motion without unanimous consent.

The Chairman: All right, that is clear now. All those in favour?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Are we sure that we have the wording 

correct that we are voting on?

The Clerk of the Committee: Moved by Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. 
McLean, that a resolution be made to the House asking for a notice of motion 
to sit while the House is sitting, if necessary.

Mr. Tucker: But what happens if this motion were rejected?

The Chairman: This will be re-worded and re-drafted.
Mr. Tucker: That is not your suggestion, is it, Mr. Thomas?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Well, if it is reworded to suit the require­

ments.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): What Mr. Winch has in mind is that first of 

Ml you report asking for leave to reduce the quorum, and ask for unanimous 
consent, and then if that passes, you present the second report and you can 
ask for unanimous consent if you want to, or you can say that you are not 
going to ask that it be concurred in, and then, forty-eight hours latei it comes 
°n debate.

The Chairman: The mechanics will be worked out.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): I think that is the way the motion should be.
The Chairman: I think that is understood by everybody? All in favour?

Motion agreed to.
Now, our meetings will be lined up for April 28, May 3, 5, 10, 12, and 17. 

That is every Tuesday and Thursday until the middle of May. Now it is the 
wish of the Committee that we have the St. Lawrence Seaway on May 10 and 
that the Canada Council on May 17. I would like to have a mover and seconder 
to have these people appear before this Committee.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : I so move.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.
The Chairman: Now, on May 10 to 17 our Auditor General, Mr. Henderson, 

will be away. I would like to read to you a letter from Mr. Henderson stating
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why he would like to have permission from this Committee to be absent during 
that period. It reads:

I have a long standing date to attend important meetings in Vienna 
and London during the period May 9 to May 17. As this will necessitate 
my absence from Ottawa, may I ask the members of the Public Accounts 
Committee if I could be excused from attending its meetings during this 
time. Mr. George Long, C.A., the Assistant Auditor General, would take 
my place.

I should explain that a new world body was founded recently by 
the Auditors General of over seventy countries which goes by the 
title of Supreme Audit Institutions. Last summer an International 
Secretariat was formed and financed by the Austrian Government and 
a Board of Governors established to guide its work, which is composed 
of representatives of twelve countries. I have accepted an invitation on 
behalf of Canada to serve as a Governor on this board representing not 
only Canada but also the Auditors General of all of the British Common­
wealth countries. The board is also anxious for me to attend because of 
my position as Chariman on the Panel of External Auditors of the United 
Nations and specialized agencies.

Last fall I advised the Chairman of the Board of Governors that I 
would make every effort to attend its first meeting this May but only 
providing my absence at that time did not conflict with the work of the 
standing committee on Public Accounts of the Parliament of Canada 
whose approval I would wish to have before absenting myself from 
Ottawa.

I should appreciate receiving your advice and that of the members 
so that appropriate arrangements may be made for the convenience of 
all concerned.

Gentlemen, this is the letter from Mr. Henderson. It is self-explanatory, 
and I might say I thing a great honour to Canada and to himself.

Mr. Winch: If I could have a seconder, I would like to move that this 
Committee appreciates the great honour which has been extended to the 
Auditor General of Canada; that he be excused from attendance at the Public 
Accounts Committee from May 9 to May 17, and that this Committee wishes 
him all success at this most important meeting.

Mr. Tucker: I second the motion.

Motion agreed to.

Mr. Henderson, we shall excuse you for those meetings, and Mr. Long, 
we will look forward to having you with us.

Mr. Henderson: Thank you very much, sir. It is a meeting that actually 
the board had proposed to hold earlier than this, namely, last fall, but they 
postponed it because I was unable to go last fall, and then they proposed it 
this spring after your Committee had been formed.
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However, it seemed to us that perhaps you might care to have these crown 
agencies before you whose officers have a good deal to say working from our 
on8 form reports. Perhaps I should mention this, Mr. Chairman?

As you know, the Audit Office issues long form reports on those crown 
agencies, and it is proposed to make copies of these available in both languages 
f, week or 50 in advance in order that you may have an opportunity to study 
heir internal financial and accounting workings before you come to the meeting 
0 hear the witnesses. In that way, you will be able to put questions more 

Gnectively. We would follow the same procedure as was followed in 1964, 
when the C.B.C. appeared before this Committee, as I think several of the hon. 
Members will recall.

The Chairman: Now, gentlemen, we will proceed with our work.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): If you remember, at the first meeting that we 
had this year of the Public Accounts Committee, there was a discussion 
regarding the authority of the Auditor General. Now, I would like to put on 
record in French, if possible, what is put forth in the Glassco Report regarding 
the definitions of the Auditor General. I think it would be good to have this 
°n the record. The Glassco Report defines the Auditor General’s work as fol- 
lows, in French, on page 67 in Volume 1:

(Translation)
The other external safeguard rests with the Auditor General, in 

his responsibility for judging the efficacy of government accounting 
systems, internal control and audit procedures and other techniques 
°f financial management, and ensuring that public funds are adequately 
Protected against misuse and are legally spent. This function and his 
duty of disclosing to Parliament and the public any evidence of illeg­
ally, irresponsibility and dishonesty in the handling of money, serve 
as powerful deterrents.

(English)
Qana^hink that is very clear on what the Auditor General should do in

The Chairman: As it refers to the Auditor ^ene comments at
h is only right that we should ask the Auditor uene 
this time, if he so wishes.

that f1*- hfENDERsoN: Mr. Chairman, I am indebted to Mr. Leblanc for quoting 
c°Pime ^rence from the Glassco Report, it is a reference which, I might say, 

- - ed itself to my officers and to me as a very forward-looking one. It18 indeed in accordance with the approach that we seek to bring to these matters.

be
If anyone has any questions under this heading at any time, I should 

Pleased to answer them.

• M0:15a.m.) exact insight into matters
I doubt that discussion of this would give y°^a?^ditor General of the day. 

Wch are really in the final analysis left to the Audit



72 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS April 26, 1966

It is very helpful though, sir, to have this reference placed on the record of 
this Committee’s meeting, and I appreciate your doing so, Mr. Leblanc.

Mr. Winch: One question, Mr. Henderson: Since you became the Auditor 
General, have you not, in principle, followed, as your responsibility, the 
quotation we have just been given from the Glassco Commission?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, I have sought to do so, Mr. Winch, but I must at 
all times, also, as my first responsibility, have regard to the law and the 
definition of my responsibilities as contained in the Financial Administration 
Act.

Mr. Winch: This brings me then to the next question, which I hope is 
what you intend to do. Do you feel that there is any requirement in the 
Act which governs your responsibility to enlarge upon, or to clarify your 
authority? Is that, sir, what you have in mind?

The Chairman: Mr. Leblanc, I think, was the—

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : No, I did not have anything like that in mind. 
I just wanted to put on the record exactly the definition given by the Glassco 
Report which enlarges the definition that is in the Financial Act. I think it 
is a good thing for us who are going to be sitting on this Committee to know 
exactly what is the responsibility of the Auditor General. Some of us are 
new around here, and do not know exactly what his position should be and, 
if I remember well, at the first meeting, there were questions just to clarify 
the matter. I think that this quotation clarifies it entirely.

Mr. Winch: Do you think there would be, Mr. Henderson, any need for 
any enlargement of clarification in the Act of your responsibilities?

Mr. Henderson: No, I do not, Mr. Winch. I think the Act as it is presently 
written is phrased in a rather general manner, but at the same time it does 
leave the Auditor General free to bring to the notice of the House of Commons 
those cases, those things, those matters, which in his view should be brought 
to the attention of the House. Behind that lies a great tradition reaching back 
into Westminster, and which has been dealt with by Durell and other parlia­
mentary writers who from time to time are quoted as these matters are studied. 
Naturally, in the interpretation of this, you would expect that different Auditors 
General will bring different approaches to their interpretation. One I have 
sought to bring is the one Mr. Leblanc has quoted to you from the Royal Com­
mission on Government Organization. I might have perhaps phrased it rather 
more differently, but generally speaking that is the approach to which I 
subscribe. Does that answer your question?

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : No further discussion on this?

Mr. Lefebvre: I just wanted to ask Mr. Henderson one more question on 
this. Do you feel that your position in Canada is similar to, say, your counter­
part in the United States or in other Commonwealth countries? Do you have 
equal powers that they have, or do you feel that you need more, or are they 
equal?
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Mr. Henderson: As far as the British Commonwealth is concerned, because 
the various countries making up the Commonwealth have substantially the 
same constitution, the responsibilities and duties of the Auditors General stem 
from the same basic legislation, and therefore we are very similar. Several of 
them, notably the Comptroller and Auditor General in the United Kingdom, 
has some administrative functions to perform which I do not. On the other hand, 
the work of the Auditors General of Australia and of New Zealand, and some 
of the other countries, is more akin to mine. In the case of the United States, 
the Comptroller General has approximately the same freedom of action; he 
has certainly the same independence. But he also is charged with a number of 
administrative responsibilities, particularly in the field of arbitration. But then, 
the constitutional position in the United States is different from ours.

In answer to your second question, there are a few things which, I believe, 
°Ur Present legislation could define more accurately, having to do with the 
duties and responsibilities of the Auditor General in Canada, and this is a 
^bject of study at the present time, and when that study is completed, Mr. 
Chairman, I believe that it might be of interest to the Committee—it would 
certainly be helpful to me—if I might be permitted to outline them to you. But 
fhere is nothing immediate or urgent about it, and I see no reason to take up

y°ur time now on this.
The Chairman- Thank you. Now, gentlemen, at the last meeting we very 

hurriedly went over the follow-up report of the Auditor General. I would like 
to make a suggestion to you; it is rather long, but we have to clear this matter 
up and we will use the first part of this meeting to do it before we go into the
1964 report.

It will be recalled that this follow-up report, which was reviewed rather 
astily, indicated that no action had been taken up to February 28 1966, on 
9 of the 50 recommendations made by this Committee and outstanding fiom 

lts Past reports Of the 40 items remaining in this category, membeis will 
rec.all that action had been taken on two of them which we may regard as 
satisfactory, that two questions are as follows:

If you will turn to page 210 in your 1965 report, you will be able to follow 

mis more closely.
Item No 10 and Item No. 12 are the two that have been acted upon by 

the government Item 10 deals with the cost of gasoline as used in departmental 
Chicles in Ottawa and Item 12, the Board of Grain Commissioners increased 
their fees. Those two items have been acted upon. This leaves 38 items on which 
no action has been taken With respect to these 38, what should we do? I would 
suggest, for your consideration, on page 213, item Number 23, which deals 
Wlth advances to the exchange fund account, be allowed to stand for the 
Present, without further comment from this Committee, as the reason is that 
the holdings of the Exchange Fund have not dropped in value, and there was 
a surplus of over $31 million at December 31, 1964.
. .,1 suggest that the following five items in the follow-up report be stood 
*S1J, pending a possible appearance of witnesses in connection with other 

afters which are their responsibility, and which will be coming up in the
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1964 and 1965 reports of the Auditor General. At that time, they can be 
questioned on the five items which are as follows:

Page 212, Items 16, 17, 19, 22 and 34; those are matters, as you see, listed 
there, which we will discuss when we have witnesses before us.

Nine of the items in the follow-up report would appear to represent 
committee recommendations which should be reiterated with the request for 
early action in the first progress report of this Committee to the House. The 
nine items falling into this category are as follows: Page 210, Items Nos 9, 11—■ 
I had better read the title—No. 9, remission of Sales Tax on Oleomargarine. 
I shall not take time to read the whole paragraph, the heading, I think, is 
sufficient. Item No. 11, the Unemployment Insurance Fund and Its Administra­
tion. Those who have been on the Committee before will recall our studies on 
these matters and the reports that were made to the House. We are suggesting 
that we should bring them up in our next report to the House with a request 
for early action. Item No. 25, Pension Increased by Payment of Two Salaries; 
it is all explained there. Item No. 26, Reciprocal Transfer Agreements for 
Superannuation Benefits; item No. 30, the Canada Council; we will have an 
opportunity to discuss that again with the officials when they are here. Item 
No. 31, Surplus Assets Disposal. Item No. 32, Surplus Assets Disposal. Item 
No. 33, Surplus Assets Disposal and Item No. 38, General Election Expenditures.

If this disposition commends itself to the members of this Committee, 
there will be 23 items remaining. The subject matter of each of these is going 
to come up for discussion as we move through the 1964 and 1965 reports of 
the Auditor General. Will it, therefore, be satisfactory to the members if we 
see to it that each of these follow-up report items is brought forward individu­
ally into the discussion which takes place at the time on a related report para­
graph so that members will have all of the facts before them in deciding what 
further action is to be taken?

These 23 items are as follows: Page 208: Item 1, Second Class Mail; Item 
2, Departmental Operating Activities; Item 3, same page, Internal Financial 
Control; Item 4, Unemployment Assistance; Item 5, Findings of the Royal 
Commission on Government Organization. On page 209, we find Item 6, the 
Form and Content of the Estimates; on page 310, Item 7, Living Allowances to 
Federally-Appointed Judges; Item 8, Governor General’s Special Warrants. On 
page 211, Item 13, Office of the Auditor General; on page 212, Item 14, Canadian 
Broadcasting Corporation, Report of the Royal Commission on Government Or­
ganization. On the same page, Item 15, National Defence Administrative Regula­
tions and Practices; Item 18, Educational Costs Incurred by the Department of 
National Defence; Item 20, Pension Awards Effective at Early Age; Item 21, 
Discretionary Awards of Service Pensions. On page 213, Item 24, Errors in 
Public Service Superannuation Account Pension and Contribution Calculations; 
Item 27, Interest Charges on Loans to the National Capital Commission. On 
page 214, Item 28, Accounts Receivable. Every one of these is very important. 
On page 214, Item 29, Indirect Compensation to Chartered Banks; Item 35, 
Awards Under the Pension Act; Item 36, War Veterans Allowances; Item 37, 
Amendments to the Customs Act and the Excise Tax Act; Item 39, Accounts 
not examined by the Auditor General and Item No. 40, Audit of the Office 
of the Auditor General.
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• (10:30 a.m.)
So those are the 23 items that will be appearing in the 1964, and again in 

the 1965, Auditor General’s report. That is a breakdown of the follow-up 
report into groups of how they have been handled.

Now, if that meets with the approval of the Committee, I think we could 
dispose of the follow-up report and immediately go into the 1964 report of the 
Auditor General. Are there any comments?

Mr. Winch: Just one. Yes, I think you have done an excellent job, Mr. 
Chairman. I want to express my personal appreciation of the great job you 
have done. There is just one point: You mention in these 23, Item No. 37 on 
Page 216.

I expressed to you at our last meeting a particular interest in illegality of 
illegality on a matter raised at our meetings last year which comes under what 
is (d) in Item No. 37 on page 216. May I ask whether or not this may have 
Priority, or whether it may be months before we get down to dealing with 
this matter?

Mr. Henderson: May I answer that, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Henderson.

„ Mr. Henderson: As we move into the 1964 Report, followed by the 1965 
Report, there are a number of paragraphs on this subject. We deal with this 
°ne in the 1964 and 1965 Reports and also, the members, it seems to us, will 
wish to be updated on certain related changes not in respect of this one, 
but in respect of other recommendations made about the Customs Act and the
Excise Tax Act.

tax
Mr. Winch: Mr. Henderson, in (d), Determination of sale price for sales
purposes—

Tv, Henderson: That is right. That will come up in the 1964 Report,
here is a paragraph on it, so that it seemed more sensible to discuss it under 
nat heading when we hit that paragraph in order that you might be right up 

to date.
Paragraph 90 in the 1965 Report also deals with that subject, so that way 

you will have all of the facts including the follow-up ones before you as you 
consider these paragraphs. We shall see that they are brought forward.

The Chairman: I might say at that time, or at any other time, any member 
01 this Committee is at liberty to ask permission to have any of the officials 
aPPear before the Committee as witnesses to help answer the questions as they 
come up.

Mr. Winch: Just once, sir, I want to find out just why, when it was pointed 
ut by the Auditor General and by this Committee that illegal action has been 

«ken, illegal action was being taken on a legal action. I have just returned 
rom Vancouver, and I have three more companies that have got rebates, 

Alogal on an illegal action, so I want to see that one followed up.
The Chairman: Maybe we should give it priority while it is fresh in your 

mind, Mr. Winch. We will endeavour to co-operate, sir.
23941—2
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Mr. Henderson: We have pretty complete notes on these points and 
there are some very interesting ones; not just this precise one, but in regard 
to the Customs Act and the Excise Tax Act that we shall tackle fairly speedily 
in the 1964 Report. Perhaps we should take the 1964 paragraph and the 1965 j 
paragraph together and—

Mr. Winch: That is just what I was going to ask, if possible.

Mr. Henderson: —call witnesses from the Department of National Revenue.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : Mr. Chairman, could we do that in all matters 
that are going to be discussed if the same thing is said in the two reports, for 
1964 and 1965? Probably when we study the 1964 Report we could move to 
the 1965 Report at the same time, and then get away from that particular 
matter and then start another one.

The Chairman: Mr. Leblanc, that is exactly what we intend to do. We 
will go through it just as quickly as we can to clear those to the 1965 Report 
so that we can get this cleaned up.

Mr. Henderson: Or vice versa, depending on the nature of the matter. If 
it is a matter of updating something, you would probably prefer to deal with it 
in the 1965 Report, or else move it forward.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, may I—
The Chairman: Just before we leave the subject, Mr. Winch, I would 

just say that if he has any notion of the Committee going out to Vancouver 
to get the truth, this will be ruled out.

Mr. Winch: I have brought it from Vancouver to Ottawa.

Mr. Leblanc: If you will move that I will second.

The Chairman: Objection overruled.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, at the last meeting Mr. Baldwin asked me 
if I could advise the Committee concerning the position of the Auditor General 
in other countries, in connection with his independence from the executive 
recruiting the staff that he needs in order to do his work. I think perhaps hofl- 
members will recall it. Accordingly I have looked up my notes on this subject 
because there was a discussion about this matter at the last Conference oI 
Parliamentary Auditors General which was held in London in December, 1963, 
which I attended. At that conference the Auditor General of one of the smallef 
commonwealth countries outlined the circumstances whereby the executive 
government of his country was in a position to influence the course of audit- 
despite the provisions in the constitution that in the performance of his duties, 
the Auditor General shall not be subject to the direction or control of artf ^ 
authority other than parliament.

He said that this influence is rendered possible, and his audit is often 
frustrated by the refusal of the executive to provide the quantity or grade of 
staff he considers necessary to assist him in carrying out his duties, the recruit' 
ment, promotion and retention of staff being matters for the sole decision of 
his country’s civil service commission.



April 26, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 77

The discussion which ensued at the conference showed that the extent to 
which such difficulties had arisen in practice seemed to vary in the different 
countries.

To sum up, it was agreed that from the point of view of constitutional 
theory, the position of every auditor general is weakened in such cases because 
the executive could limit staff and so frustrate his independence. It was the 
general view that the audit office should always be ready to accept its share 
°f any over-all staff problems in its government service. The advice given to 
the Auditor General who had raised this problem was that he should report the 
full facts of his dilemma to the parliament of his country and to its Public 
Accounts Committee.

I thought this reference would be of interest to you, and I wish to place 
ft on the record in response to Mr. Baldwin’s question at the last meeting.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Henderson. Now we will proceed with 
the 1964 Report.

Mr. Henderson: If we could turn to page 1 of the 1964 Report, English 
edition, I will seek to go through the paragraphs as expeditiously as possible 
and hon. members, perhaps, could interrupt me on any points that are not clear.

The Chairman: I shall keep an eye out for anyone that has his hand up 
as Mr. Henderson goes through this, and, as I said before, we shall do the 1964 
Report as hurriedly as possible and will spend considerably more time on the 
1965 Report.

Mr. Henderson: Commencing with paragraph 2 on page 1, this section 
simply quotes the wording of Section No. 70 of the Financial Administration 
Act and, as is stated there, Part VII of this Act deals with the responsibilities 
and functions of the Auditor General.

Paragraph 3 which follows points out how copies of the all-important 
statement of expenditure and revenue for the year and the statement of asse s 
and liabilities at the close of the year, which have been certified by me, are 
reproduced and appended to this report of the Auditor General. I do this so as 
to provide the reader of this report with immediate and ready access to these 
basic financial statements which otherwise he would have to obtain by referring 
to the public accounts.

In addition, it will be noted that two other important statements included 
in the public accounts are likewise reproduced as exhibits to the Auditor
General’s Report.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Are these—you call them exhibits in 
Paragraph 3. Those are not the blue book; are these the exhibits from the back 
°f this 1964 Report?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, they are reproduced, Mr. Thomas, from the Public 
Accounts. They are merely reproduced here because they represent basic state­
ments and the reader may wish to refer to them as he looks over the manner 
in which some of the appropriations have been expended, and the explanations 
which we have given.

23941—21
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Paragraph 4 which follows deals with the Standing Committee on Public 
Accounts. This paragraph simply reviews the operations of the standing com­
mittee over the past year and I inserted it here as a convenience to the members 
of the House and to the members of the Committee.

While you are faced this year with having to examine both my 1964 Report 
and my 1965 one which was tabled on February 1st last, it did give me, as I 
say here, particular pleasure last year to be able to point out that with its 
Eighth Report, 1964, placed before the House on December 7, 1964, this Com­
mittee completed its total examination for the first time in recent years of 
all of the reports of the Auditor General to the House before its succeeding 
report had been tabled.

I must say to you that this was of tremendous help to me and my officers 
giving us as it did the benefit of your views on a considerable number of 
outstanding matters. It enabled us not only to eliminate repetitious comments 
but to bring this 1964 Report right up to date.

If I may, Mr. Chairman, I should like to pay tribute to the work done by 
the members of this Committee both in the closing months of 1963 and 
throughout 1964 under the distinguished chairmanship of your predecessor, 
Mr. Baldwin.

At the same time you will have noted that during that period the work of 
the Committee was assisted by two sub-committees ; one dealing with the 
surplus assets disposal problem, and the other dealing with the form and 
content of the public accounts on which the Committee actually reported in the 
spring of 1965. These recommendations, as you will have noted from my 
1965 Report, were promptly implemented in the 1964-65 Public Accounts tabled 
on February 1, 1966.

I think that is quite interesting. Your sub-committee and main committee 
brought down its recommendations in March 1965, and that year the public 
accounts reflected the Committee’s recommendation. This was very speedy 
implementation by comparison with some of the other recommendations that 
the Committee has made.

The work of this Committee at that time enabled us to compile a conveni­
ent reference for members in the form of Appendix 1, and the Chairman just 
referred to this, which showed the fifty recommendations and observations you 
had made during 1963 and 1964, that had not been implemented or otherwise 
dealt with by executive action when my 1964 Report was tabled.

I hope you find this type of appendix treatment or summary useful. 
intend to keep it up in subsequent reports. We ourselves find it very con­
venient in checking on the implementation of your recommendations.

Paragraph No. 5, Summary of Employees Authorized for the Public Serv­
ice: The cost of salaries and wages constitutes one of the largest items cd 
overhead in government organization. We have therefore been placing a sum­
marized listing by departments and agencies, including their various sub­
divisions, in my report as an appendix, showing the number of employee5 
authorized for the public service in all areas.
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APrü 26, 1966This Committee expressed much interest in this listing in past years and m 
1963, it discussed it in detail, and asked if the listing could be prepared m future 
t0 show a more detailed breakdown for various establishments by diyis^s,an<? 
subdivisions, together with the number of employees actually on strength at

the close of the year.This has been done and the information now appears on this detailed
comparative basis. If you study this listing you will see ^T^ite 
a useful guide to the government’s organization. We ourselves find it quite
useful for such reference purposes. We show divisions of each depart™e^ °n 
as ^formative a basis as possible. The same comparative listbu^’ °f cour^ 
m°re up to date, is included in the 1965 Report. I donot know^hether the
Ambers will have any questions on this; it is t think you referred
course, it would be the 1965 one that you would look to .I tb^k y°hU *u^er 
tof h, Mr. Thomas, at the last meeting when we were discussing the number 
of employees who were working for government departments as distinct

from those who were working for Crown corporations.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Who are under the Civil Service?

Mr. Henderson: That is right.

• (10:45 a.m.)t, Audit The scope of our work
is a Paf,agraph 6 deals with the Scope+ the closest attention. We cannot
lla Sublect to which we always must give. th® C ° encies which is why we 
carrvme 6Very transaction in a11 depa^n comprehensive and of sufficient 
dpny out test verifications. Provided these a tPfactory) and as such con- 
formh<and fre(luency> they can be r?.fard nractices We discussed this subject 

m to established and accepted auditing P ' when dealing with the
at some length at the last meeting,^Mr^Chairman^w^ ^ we
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depth and frequency, they can practices. We °iaLl^,°aung with
S SePm%s. be de,erred until

~ iru* - r sïæssïïs
House my concept of the respons , commission. t to the
-ith regard to the findings of this r* ^ * its fourth report to t^

In 1964 this Committee ^pr^ptnsibiliües of the f \ delayed carrying 
House that this concept of the ^ishes of Parliam • then in progress 
m accordance with the intent a research and p a;med at determining
°ut this work in 1964 because of Treasury Board ission could beunder the direction of the Secretary of thens this royal cj» at that time
the extent to which the recomm ^ should defer commission until
^plemented. In other words, the Endings o decisions on the
to the House on the action taken Hy to make lts ticUiarly in the area
the executive had had a fuller opp . Commissioners, P
basic or major recommendations o renorted
01 *"ancial ied this work S„« suggest th,.

However, as you know, we report. I w°
uPon its result to the House in my
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your consideration of this subject be held until we reach this section in the 
1965 Report.

Paragraph No. 8, The Form and Content of the Estimates. You will recall 
that in 1963 the Treasury Board submmitted a proposed consolidation of votes 
to your Committee, and the task of studying the Board’s proposals was given 
to a subcommittee in that year. In 1964 the Committee gave further attention to 
this matter, as you know from your study of my follow-up report, which 
resulted in detailed recommendations being made by the Committee in its 
fourth report in 1964, and what has transpired since.

I would suggest that, again, you might wish to defer your consideration of 
this subject until we reach my 1965 Report. I say that because I understand the 
Treasury Board expects to submit further proposals to this Committee during 
its present sittings designed to present the estimates of a number of departments 
on the proposed program and activity basis recommended by the Glassco Com­
mission, with a view to having this replace the present objects of expenditure 
basis over a period of time.

This is important, because the form of the estimates will not only require 
changes in the many of the accounting procedures but will necessitate changes 
in a number of the financial statements.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, am I right in concluding 
that, as we go over these various items 2, 3, 4 and so on—we have now finished 
8—these can all be taken up again under the 1965 Report?

Mr. Henderson: Substantially so, yes.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): And therefore we can cross these off if 
there are no questions as we go through them?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, that is right. We can refer back to them if anyone 
has any questions at a later date, but it is generally to give you the total picture 
beginning with 1964, but then to spend more time on 1965.

Having two reports before us makes it difficult, when we are trying to 
integrate them in this manner for you.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Did I understand you, Mr. Henderson, 
to say in regard to Item No. 5 that we might hear questions on this one, or is 
this substantially the same in the 1965 report?

Mr. Henderson: In looking at the summary of employees in the public 
service—you would probably want to look at the most up to date one which 
is the 1965 report. You might, in reading that over quietly, have some sugges­
tions to make as to how we could improve it. We had sought there to show 
the many boards and subsidiary set-ups of departments which are not always 
evident from just the casual listings of the—

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Could you indicate to us as you go along, 
for instance, if No. 8 here is covered in the 1965 report?

Mr. Henderson: Yes.



April 26, 19 66 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 81

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Then we could simply cross them off.
Mr. Henderson: You are perfectly safe in crossing them off, Mr. Thomas.
The Chairman: Mr. Henderson, in this regard, I am wondering if we could 

not save time if you simply said, “No. 8, this appears in the 1965 Report”, and 
leave your comments on this subject for 1965?

Mr. Henderson: I will be glad to do that, Mr. Chairman. You have a good 
example in the next one, No. 9, the Form and Content of the Public Accounts. 
As 1 have already mentioned to you, the recommendations made by this Com­
mittee were implemented within a few months, and that is described in detail 
in the 1965 paragraph, and I suggest that we do not spend any time on this, but 
deal with it in 1965.

Paragraph 10 is alone in 1964, so that perhaps you might like me to take a 
little time on that.

Mr. Winch: As you know, sir, it took us years in this Committee to establish 
this principle, and we got it through. I hope we shall have a report on how it is 
working out.

Mr. Henderson: I am happy to tell you that, Mr. Winch. It was during your 
jneetings in 1964 that you raised the question as to the sources of legal advice 
aken by the Auditor General in the course of his work.

Mr. Winch: The lawyers did not like to have pointed out that you should 
ave your own advice.

Mr. Henderson: That is right. The opinion was expressed and agreed to 
at the Auditor General should have recourse to legal advice in the form of 
ritten opinions independent of the crown and executive branch of the govern- 

ment. The Committee suggested to me that appropriate arrangements should 
be made.

These arrangements, which were discussed by the Chairman and the mem- 
ers of the Committee in 1964 were made by me with two firms of solicitors, 
ne in Montreal, and the other in Toronto. In both instances the firms were 
°|ely of my own choice. The arrangements have worked very smoothly. I 
homit to them what legal questions I have in the course of our work, and the 
^m submits, written opinions to me in their capacity as my legal advisers. 

0 date we have divided the questions more or less evenly between the two 
rms so as to keep the same type of questions with each firm. The cost of the 

^ervices of both firms for the year ended March 31, 1965 totalled $4,600. We 
e continuing on this basis, and I can tell you that it has proven to be a 
ry satisfactory operation.

r There are not opinions that I quote; they are written opinions to me in 
thr^GCt *be Position that I have taken, and you may see fit, as we move 
•n °u§h some of the paragraphs to ask me if I consulted my legal advisers 

, resPect of this question or that. I have not made a practice of disclosing 
areether I have done so or not. I am hoping that, as some of these paragraphs 

c discussed, particularly if we have witnesses, that there will be occasions 
en my legal advisers might be privileged to attend the Committee and
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listen to the discussion; whether you would wish them to participate in it or 
not is another question.

They are solely advisers to me; they are not expected to provide opinions 
which I should quote to the Committee unless as your servant you direct 
me to do so. Any comments you have on this point would be welcome.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : We understand, Mr. Henderson, that you 
now have the right to seek legal advice from any source, any independent 
source which you might choose.

Mr. Henderson : Yes, I have these two firms; I chose one in Montreal and 
one in Toronto.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : These firms are of your own choice, and 
if you wished to change them that would still be your prerogative.

Mr. Henderson: Yes, sir; that is right.

Mr. Winch: I have one question on a matter in which I was most interested 
over the years. With respect to all the legal advice which you require now, 
do you refer to these two firms, or do you get any type of advice from the legal 
department of the federal government?

Mr. Henderson: We have—and always have had—a very good relationship 
with the Department of Justice and with the law offices of the crown in the 
various departments. In discussing a number of matters we simply suggest 
that the department should seek the advice of its own legal officers and that 
they please furnish a copy to me. If we feel that, because we are not lawyers, 
we would like another interpretation, then I consult with my legal advisers and 
ask them for an opinion.

Mr. Winch: Did you give a figure as to how much it cost you in that first 
year?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, $4,600 for the two firms.

Mr. Winch: Do I then gather from that that, between the two firms, it only 
cost you $4,600 for the first year? You very rarely get challenged by depart­
ments or anything on the legality of what you are doing? You must be working 
magnificently if it only cost you $4,600?

Mr. Henderson: Well, sir, I estimated the cost ceilings for the opinions 
that I would require from the firms over a period of twelve months, and I 
think this was given to this Committee, or to the steering committee at the 
time. The estimate was $7,500. They charged me so much for an opinion, I 
approve the bills, and I am happy to say that the first year’s experience was 
$4,600.

Mr. Winch: The point I am trying to make is that with all your fantastic 
responsibilities, it cost you only $4,600 for outside legal advice?

Mr. Henderson: That is right. That is what it cost my office to obtain the 
opinions that I requested. We have sometimes asked a department to obtain
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opinions and give us copies. Some matters are easily resolved. There are a 
number of questions that we have had. But there are matters which come up 
in the course of our work on which legal judgment is required. I do not have 
any lawyers on my staff, and it is therefore a great convenience to call my 
advisers and to ask for their opinions which they then give.

Mr. Winch: That then leads me to my final question, Mr. Chairman. With 
respect to the advice that you have received from the two firms in Montreal 
and Toronto, you have obtained it only because you felt that essentially you 
should obtain this legal advice. After having received that legal advice, and,
1 Presume, followed through on it, have you then been challenged?

Mr. Henderson: No, sir.
Mr. Winch: They have accepted that?
Mr. Henderson: I hesitate to use the word accepted; they have taken 

n°te of the position that I have taken and
Mr. Winch: And have not challenged you?
Mr. Henderson: —have either adopted the changes that have been pro­

posed or done nothing. There will be a number of cases coming up in the 
1964 and 1965 reports where I have consulted my legal advisers on whether 
°r not I was correctly interpreting the legislation-not in every case-but 
ln the cases where my officers and I have had doubts as to the legal position.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, it is eleven o’clock. I do not want to keep 
y°u here longer than you expected to stay, but if you would be willing t sit 
until 11:30 we will continue, or if you have other committee meetings to 
§0 to, I would be glad to have your views.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): Mr. Chairman, I have a meeting on the Fisheries 
°mmittee at eleven.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I have a meeting in Fisheries at eleven too.
The Chairman: Well, gentlemen, we have made good progress, and we 

2“ adjourn at this point, and again we end up on No. 10 which_ is the
UlCG - -• • • i nltirovo QPPTTl tO 6lid UP thclt pOlIlt.tdjourn at this point, and again we e ^ end up at that point.
— of the Auditor General. We alway u be possible

M, Leblanc (Laurier, : Before « complete No. 10,
' h3Ve the names °f the tW° firmS ° ", gtQ kn0w if it is possible to have 
. The Chairman: Mr. Leblanc is wanting you like to report at
he names of the two firms. Mr. Henderson, w
** "ext meeting? of the two firms to this committee

. Mr. Henderson: I offered the names made Mr. Leblanc. The mem-
1 its last session, when the arrangemen .f j refrained from disclosing
’®rs said it was perfectly satisfactory wish of the Committee a
hem. There is no state secret about it, if « 

iselose their names.
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• (11:00 a.m.)
Mr. Winch: I was a member of the steering committee with Mr. Hales, 

and our decision at that time was that we wanted an absolute free hand; 
we wanted no direction given to the Auditor General nor were we interested. 
We left that responsibility to the Auditor General. I am just saying, as a 
member of the steering committee—and I was at that meeting when this 
was offered and we said, “No. This is your responsibility, you accept that. 
And therefore, you move on your sole responsibility. If anything happens 
that we get any ideas, then we will be down your neck. We want no inter­
ference with a responsibility of this nature.” That is the position that we 
took at that time, Mr. Leblanc.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): That is what I wanted to figure out.
The Chairman: I would suggest we leave the matter there and think 

it over before the next meeting.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Henderson, if the opinion of your legal advice is ques­

tioned, what would be the procedure from there?
Mr. Henderson: It seems to me it would be a matter for this Committee 

to decide, Mr. Noble. You conceivably would be faced with a confrontation 
between the law officers of the Crown and the advice which I have received. 
Presumably you would ask me in answer to one of the questions if I secured 
legal advice on it and I would say yes, and you would ask me if the legal 
advice supported the position I took, to which I would reply in the affirmative. 
Where the Committee would go from that point, I am without experience to 
say at the present time.

Mr. Winch: Then we would sit in judgment, I presume.
Mr. Henderson: Presumably you would be interested then in hearing both 

sides of the case. And it is at that point that I would have no hesitancy, if 
it were the wish of the Committee, to have my legal adviser with me at the 
meeting.

The Chairman: We would become judge and jury
Mr. Henderson: I have not had any experience on that point, quite frankly, 

and I am very much in your hands on it.
Mr. Noble: It could be a possibility though, could it not?
Mr. Henderson: Indeed, sir. That was all weighed up by this Committee 

at the time that this arrangement was made in 1964.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Henderson, under the order giving 

him the authority, apparently has the right to obtain legal advice from any 
source. There is no point in his naming the source from whom he has obtained 
legal advice because he can step out and obtain legal advice from some other 
firm.

Mr. Winch: Unless it is challenged, in which case he will report to the 
Committee that there has been a challenge and both sides will be heard. * 
presume then the Committee will reach its own conclusions as to what is right-
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The Chairman: All right, gentlemen. At the next meeting we will continue 
with the 1964 report, and I think we will be able to finish it; then we will 
“e into the 1965 report and we will be having witnesses.

Mr. Henderson: This Thursday, at 11 o’clock, I think.
The Chairman: Eleven o’clock on Thursday. You will be notified in due 

course. Thank you, gentlemen.

)
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REPORTS TO THE HOUSE
April 27, 1966.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts has the honour to present its

FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends that its quorum be reduced from 13 to 10 
members.

Respectfully submitted,
(Note—This Report was concurred in by the House on May 4, 1966.)

April 27, 1966.
The Standing Committee on Public Accounts has the honour to present its

SECOND REPORT

Your Committee recommends that it be authorized to sit while the House is 
sitting.

Respectfully submitted,
ALFRED D. HALES, 

Chairman.
(Note—This Report was concurred in by the House on May 4, 1966.)
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Thursday, April 28, 1966.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts having been duly called to 
meet at 11:00 o’clock a.m., the following members were present: Messrs. 
Cameron (High Park), Dionne, Flemming, Forbes, Hales, Lefebvre, Muir 
(Lisgar), Noble, Schreye’r, Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch (11).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; and 
■Messrs. Long, Crowley, Stokes, Douglas, Laroche, Rider, Sayers and Buzza o 
the Auditor General’s Office.

At 11:35 a.m., there being no quorum, the Chairman postponed the meeting 
to the call of the Chair.

Tuesday, May 3, 1966.
(4)

„ The Standing Committee on Public Accounts me, this day a, ,1.1. a.m., the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales presiding.

„ ,. . Ral1ar(1 Rigg, Cameron (High Park), 
Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Lefebvre, Noble, Schreyer, Tardif, 

ïhonne, Flemming, Hales, Leblanc (Lau™CT£ L °mddlesex West), Tucker,
rhomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas i
Winch (16). „ , .

a Ai+cr General of Canada; and 
In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, u Rider Sayers and Buzza of 

Messrs. Long, Crowley, Douglas, Stokes, Laroche, Rider,
he Auditor General’s office. , uonnrt for

tv,„ Auditor General’s Report torThe Committee resumed consideration
the year ended March 31,1964. . .

. h, h tn 61 inclusive and was questionedMr. Henderson reviewed paragraphs
ereon, assisted by his officials. Sub-Committee on

, 00«r. Henderson listed paragraphs -, "y^yt“a”'
P m. the Committee adjourned until Thursday y

J. H. Bennett,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Tuesday, May 3, 1966.
• (11:05 a.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we now have a quorum.
We are now discussing the Auditor General’s report, 1964, and we are on 

paSe 6, Item No. 11, and I will ask Mr. Henderson, the Auditor General, to 
Proceed unless there is some other thing to be discussed.

Mr. Baldwin: I must apologize for not being present at the last meeting. I 
Was in Peace River in attendance with the Lieutenant Governor there.

1 brought up a matter at the first meeting and I should have brought it to 
the =>“■—it----------the last meeting, which I missed. Now I think

I brought up a matter at the first meeting and l snouia nave uruug.u iu vu 
e attention of the committee at the last meeting, which I missed. Now I think 

t falls right in line with what the Auditor General was discussing with us 
!arlier and that is the difficulty in connection with the recruiting of staff 
generally. i asked him a question at our first meeting on the procedure followed 
n other Commonwealth countries and whether or not the Auditor General had 
ÎVer had an opportunity to discuss our particular problem, if it had been brought 
;o their attention and if it had ever been the subject of any discussion. Now it 
n‘8ht well be that some of these discussions could have been of a confidential 
Rature, but I would ask the Auditor General if he is able at this time to answer 
the question which I raised at the first meeting.
A Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : It was decided, I u^er®to°^’' ® Jj
^itor General would go through this 1964 report as rapidly as possible and 
^.e should pass any of these items which appear again in the 1965 report: a 
Pick them up when we consider the 1965 report. In that way we could finish the

4 report as quickly as possible.Now if this matter of staff appears again in the deîbërajv
?°f Pass right over it now? We could go more carefully and deliberate y
trough the 1965 report and deal with these matters then, rather than spend a freat deal of time on the 1964 report when we have to face these matters again 
ln the 1965 report.
• Mr. Baldwin: I think it is a good point, Mr. Chairman. I was not trying o 
;itlate a discussion. It is simply that I asked Mr. Henderson this question At 
Ie first meeting he did not have the answer. This was a delayed question and I 
J.°uld now ask for the answer. I did not intend, Mr. Chairman, to initiate a 

Scussion. I would just like the information now.
An hon. Member: Mr. Chairman, could I just say 
The Chairman: Mr. Winch was next.

tin. h°n. Member: Could I just add that there is no simultaneous transla- 
n taking place at the present time, unless the equipment is failing.

91



92 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 3, 1966

The Chairman : Is anybody else having trouble?
Thank you, Mr. Lefebvre.
Mr. Winch: I just want to add that during one of the meetings, when Mr. 

Baldwin was unavoidably and necessarily absent, this very question regarding 
staff was raised; not only here but as regards staffing overseas. Unfortunately 
we have not yet received our transcript, but the question was answered during 
your absence.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, maybe Mr. Henderson could tell you in a few 
words what he said at the last meeting.

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General): I furnished the committee with 
the information you requested and placed it on the record. It was unfortunately 
the first meeting from which you were absent.

I referred to my notes at the last conference of Commonwealth Auditors 
General and I outlined the circumstances existing in the other Commonwealth 
countries so it is now a matter of record and I think the minutes will no doubt 
be available within the next day or so.

Mr. Baldwin : My apologies to the committee, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
The Chairman: I would like to explain why the reports of committees are a 

little late in coming out. Translation of these reports presents a terrific job and 
it is making it a little difficult for them to come out as quickly as they used to.

Mr. Henderson: Now, Mr. Chairman, in answer to Mr. Thomas’ question 
may I say that he quite properly outlined the procedure we are going to follow 
and I was merely going to suggest that, as we go through the 1964 report, 
members might like to write 1965 against those paragraphs which, in effect, are 
updated and duplicated in 1965.

Office of the Auditor General

11. The circumstances surrounding the staff shortage referred to in my 
Reports to the House for 1962 and 1963 have been considered by the Public 
Accounts Committee during the past year. The Committee was disturbed to find 
that the actual working strength of the Office had only increased from 159 to 
161 in the period November 30, 1963 to April 30, 1964 with the result that the 
Office remained 18 auditors short of the total approved establishment of 17® 
originally agreed to with the Minister of Finance and the Treasury Board in 
July 1960, or over four years ago.

A detailed assessment has been made of the staff it is estimated will be 
required effective with the 1965-66 fiscal year, having regard not only to the 
importance of enlarging the scope of the audit work, but also taking int° 
account the increased size of the government organization since July 1960 h1 
terms of additional departments, Crown corporations and agencies. This assess' 
ment placed staff establishment needs for 1965-66 at a figure of 220 employees 
which, in my opinion, is the minimum strength necessary to carry out a basic 
external audit program within the framework of the existing government 
organization. In order to enable recruitment to be proceeded with as soon aS 
possible, the Treasury Board has approved this figure with effect from October 
1, 1964.
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The recommendations and observations made by the Public Accounts 
Committee on this subject are contained in its Fourth Report 1964 presented to 
the House on July 28 1964. It will be noted by reference to this in Appendix 1, 
item 16, that the Committee recorded its belief that as an officer of Parliament 
the Auditor General should be free to recruit the staff he needs in the same 
independent manner as do other officers of Parliament and the Crown corpora­
tions generally. It also noted that amendments to the Financial Administration 
Act are to be introduced in due course and stated that it believes appropriate 
amendments should be considered at that time designed to allow the Auditor 
General to appoint such officers and employees as are necessary for the proper 
c°nduct of his Office.

I think you will agree that we can withhold further discussion on this until 
We reach 1965, so I would suggest you just mark 1965 on that one.

Urnrnary of Expenditure and Revenue
^ 12- The Statement of Expenditure and Revenue for the fiscal year ended
p l . 31, 1964, prepared by the Department of Finance for inclusion in the 
of th Accounts and certified by the Auditor General as required by section 64 
-p, he financial Administration Act, is reproduced as Exhibit 1 to this Report. 
w 6 statement shows a deficit of $619 million for the year. By comparison, there 

re deficits of $692 million in the preceding year and $791 million in 1961-62. 
the ^°W Paragraph 12 refers to the statement of expenditure and revenue for 
in year ended March 31, 1964, prepared by the Department of Finance, for 
stat°n in the Public accounts, and certified by the Auditor General. This 

ement, as you already know, is reproduced in Exhibit 1 to this report.

Expenditure

„ »• The Summary of Appropriations.
•hces by Departments for the fiscal year end'd March 3h 19^ P 
he Public Accounts, is reproduced as Exlub t 3 to «us W expended 

expropriations of $7,101 million, expenditures of $«,«72 million
e'ences $229 million, ,or expenditure in the

from a continuing
2 63 a ati°n (Department of Lab°^ ° h r $2,805 million (41 per

cent! he $6’872 miUion °f eXPen ^ statutory authorities, with $4,067
millinWfS lncurred under the contini? gthc‘authority of the appropriations
gran 59 per cent) being spent Un

an0eM°r lhe year' balances at the end of the year, $174
mini® ! e $229 miUion of unexpended balances Administration Act
and $R,aP fd in comPliance wlth f^10n votes 32d and 34d remained available 
for ef55 milllon of Department of Laboui Vo f the appropriations
“' expenditure in 1964-65 because of the special wording ot me app 
"dhch read as follows:
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“Vote 32d—Payments in accordance with terms and conditions approved by 
the Government Governor in Council to Provinces and in respect of Indian 
Bands under the Municipal Winter Works Incentive Program during the 
1963-64 and 1964-65 fiscal years of amounts not exceeding fifty per cent of the 
cost of labour incurred in the period from November 1st, 1963 to such day in 
the fiscal year 1964-65 as may be determined by the Governor in Council, and 
in the case of projects in designated development areas and as authorized by 
the Minister of Labour in areas of heavy winter unemployment 60 per cent of 
such cost; and to authorize payments in those fiscal years to provinces in 
respect of previous Municipal Winter Works Incentive Programs in accordance 
with terms and conditions approved by the Governor in Council—$35,000,000.“

“Vote 34d—Payments in accordance with terms and conditions approved by 
the Governor in Council under the Winter House Building Program during the 
fiscal years 1963-64 and 1964-65 of $500 per dwelling unit substantially built 
during the period December 1st, 1963 to March 31st, 1964—$20,000,000.”

Paragraphs 13-33 inclusive, which start running from page 7 to the top of 
page 12, deal with the expenditure side for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1964. 
As you will see, appropriations in that year totalled $7,101 million, expenditures 
$6,872 million and unexpended balances equal to $229 million. Of the unexpend­
ed balances totalling $229 million, $174 million lapsed and $55 million remained 
available for expenditures in 1964-65.

15. The lapsed balances of $174 million represented 4.1% of the $4,269 
million of appropriations under Appropriation Acts. This compares with lapsed 
balances at the close of the preceding year representing 2.3% of the amounts 
appropriated in that year under interim supply Appropriation Acts and by 
Governor General’s special warrants and 6.1% of the appropriations in 1961-62. 
In the following cases, the lapsed balances represented more than 10% of 
the appropriations under Appropriation Acts:

Paragraph 15 deals with the lapsed portion of the $174 million and lists 
those amounts which represented more than 10 per cent of the appropriations 
under appropriation tax.

16. The following table summarizes the expenditure, by departments, for 
the fiscal year 1963-1964, in comparison with the corresponding amounts for 
the two previous years.

Comments are made in the following paragraphs regarding the significant 
increases or decreases in individual appropriations or groups of appropriations 
which mainly accounted for the variation between the departmental expend­
iture totals listed above for 1962-63 and 1963-64.

In paragraph 16 there is a table which summarizes expenditures in that 
year by departments comparing the figure with expenditures for the tw° 
previous fiscal years.

Beginning with paragraph 17, Agriculture, we describe the reasons for the 
major changes in each of the departments listed beginning with agriculture, as 
I say, and extending to other departments up to paragraph 33 at the close of the 
section.
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Department 1961-62 1962-63 1963-64

Agriculture............................ $
Canadian Broadcasting

219,752,000 $ 183,427,000 $ 225,681,000

Corporation .................. 78,161,000 80,816,000 87,576,000
Citizenship and Immigration 65,016,000 66,115,000 71,545,000
External Affairs .................. 95,571,000 85,197,000 97,023,000
Finance .................................. 1,511,953,000 1,354,780,000 1,406,435,000
Labour .................................. 168,885,000 348,292,000 280,384,000
Mines and Technical Surveys 67,599,000 71,130,000 67,759,000
National Defence ................ 1,626,104,000 1,571,044,000 1,683,471,000
National Health and Welfare 1,039,311,000 1,122,448,000 1,203,855,000
National Revenue ..............
Northern Affairs and

75,330,000 78,725,000 82,996,000

National Resources ... 78,369,000 86,377,000 77,334,000
Post Office ............................ 185,003,000 189,344,000 206,895,000
Public Works ......................
Royal Canadian Mounted

183,015,000 162,730,000 167,001,000

Police ............................ 60,497,000 65,424,000 ’ 66,899,000
Trade and Commerce ........ 91,866,000 65,768,000 73,584,000
Transport .............................. 410,391,000 416,019,000 423,258,000
Veterans Affairs .................. 333,223,000 335,602,000 333,740,000
Other departments ............ 230,600,000 287,104,000 316,965,000

$ 6,520,646,000 $ 6,570,342,000 $ 6,872,401,000

. 17. Agriculture. The increase of $42 million or 23 per cent m expenditure
V this department in 1963-64 in common wi"^e» as

accounted for by the increase of $50 million iron * , : ,
pillion-—in the amount appropriated for the net operating loss of the A^icul 
tura' Stabilization Board, which was mainly due to a revaluation of the 
^entories of commodities held at March 31, 1964 (see Paragraph ieS of this
^ePort). Other significant variations in the year were decreases of $6 millioii in
the deficit of the Prairie Farm Emergency Fund and $4 million in outlays on 
^habilitation and reclamation projects.

18- Canadian Broadcasting Corporation. The appi «oR^mfllion
5* operating and capital grants to this Corporation were charged $88 milhon 
fUring the year, an increase of $7 million or 8 per cent over 1962-63. The 
^ease was mainly due to the higher net operating
*nd television services which amounted to $78 million in 1963-64, an increase of 
Pproximately $6 million over the preceding year.

!9- Citizenship and Immigration. The increase of $5 million or 8 per cent in 
w penditure by this department in 1963-64 compared with the preceding year 
w9s mainly due to increased expenditure by the Indian Affairs Branch on 
Cge fare, $l.i million (10 per cent); economic development, $1 million (42 per 

n and education $2 million (10 per cent).
mill 2°‘ External Affairs. Expenditure by this department increased by $12 

i lion or 14 per cent in the year under review due mainly to an increase of $5 
h°n (34 per cent) in the cost 0f memberships in, and contributions to,
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international organizations and an increase of $4 million (85 per cent) in 
assistance to other countries.

21. Finance. The 1963-64 expenditure of $1,406 million by this department 
was $52 million or 4 per cent greater than the total spent in the preceding year. 
The most significant variations were an increase of $73 million (8 per cent) in 
interest on the public debt and a decrease of $23 million due to the termination 
in the preceding year of payments under the Federal-Provincial Tax-Sharing 
Arrangements Act, 1956, c. 29.

22. Labour. The decrease of $68 million or 19 per cent in expenditure by 
this department in 1963-64 in comparison with the preceding year was more 
than accounted for by a decrease of $71 million (34 per cent) in payments to 
the provinces to provide financial assistance for vocational and technical schools 
and training programs.

23. Mines and Technical Surveys. Expenditure by this department de­
creased by $3.4 million or 5 per cent during the year under review due to a 
decrease of $4 million (37 per cent) in the expenditures of the Marine Sciences 
Branch.

24. National Defence. The expenditure of $1,683 million in 1963-64 by this 
department was $112 million or 7 per cent more than in the preceding year. 
The increase was more than accounted for by a $76.5 million supplementary 
contribution by the Government to the Canadian Forces Superannuation Ac­
count to provide for additional liabilities resulting from an increase in the rates 
of pay of Armed Forces personnel $29 million (11 per cent) higher expenditure 
for the Royal Canadian Navy, a $5 million (12 per cent) increase in outlays of 
the Defence Research Board, and a $4 million (15 per cent) increase in Mutual 
Aid to NATO countries.

25. National Health and Welfare. The increase of $81 million or 7 per cent 
in expenditure by this Department in 1963-64 compared with the preceding 
year was largely accounted for by increases of $56 million (17 per cent) in the 
Government’s contributions under the Hospital Insurance and Diagnostic Serv­
ices Act, $11 million (11 per cent) in unemployment assistance, and $7 million 
(1.3 per cent) in family allowance payments.

26. National Revenue. Of the $4.3 million or 5 per cent increase in 
expenditure recorded for this Department in 1963-64, $1.7 million (4 per cent) 
was in the Customs and Excise Division and $2.5 million (7 per cent) in the 
Taxation Division. The increases were due to generally higher administrative 
costs in both Divisions.

27. Northern Affairs and National Resources. Expenditure by this Depart­
ment was down $9 million or 10 per cent in comparison with 1962-63. The most 
significant change was in expenditure of the Northern Administration Branch 
where there was no outlay comparable to the $7 million write-off in the 
preceding year of loans made to the Northern Canada Power Commission for 
the construction and installation of public utilities at Inuvik, N.W.T. Expendi­
ture by the National Parks Branch on the construction or acquisition °* 
buildings, works, land and equipment decreased by $4 million (24 per cent)- 
Contributions to provinces to assist in the development of roads leading t0
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resources were $2.2 million (22 per cent) less than in the preceding year 
whereas contributions to provinces to assist in the conservation and control of 
water resources increased to $7.6 million from $3.1 million.

28. Post Office. The expenditure of this Department increased by almost $18 
million or 9 per cent in the year under review, due to payment of a retroactive 
salary increase amounting to $5 million and to general increases in the cost of 
operations during the year.

29. Public Works. Although the expenditure of $167 million by this 
department in 1963-64 represented an increase of only $4 million or 2.6 per 
cent over the preceding year, there were two substantial changes in individual 
expenditure classifications. There was an increase of $8 million (25 per cent) in 
outlays connected with the construction of the Trans-Canada Highway and a 
decrease of $7 million (24 per cent) in expenditure on harbour and river works.

30. Trade and Commerce. Expenditure by this Department increased by $8 
Million or 12 per cent in comparison with 1962-63 due largely to an inciease of 
$4 million (12 per cent) in payments to the Canadian Wheat Board with respect 
to the carrying costs of temporary wheat reserves.

Transport. Although the expenditure of $423 million by this Department 
p ®6.3-64 represented an increase of only $7 million or 1.7% over the 
cla • ng year, there were significant changes in several individual expenditure 

cations. There were increases of $18 million—from $22 million to $40 
ves c?/1 *n caPital subsidies for the construction of commercial and fishing 
rai]SS*S’ ^*6 million—from $50 million to $68 million—in interim payments to 
to yS t0 maintain freight rates at reduced levels; $9 million—from $12 million 
serv m^ion—in railway construction subsidies; $6 million (11%) in marine 
Uiil]1068- icscthor with payments to the Canadian National Railways of $4 
Bri ,10n in respect of the termination of the collection of tolls on the Victoria 
div 8e> Montreal, and $3 million of interest on the cost of constructing the rail 
t^eers^°n °n the Bridge for which there were no comparable expenditures in 
<jef. Proceding year. Largely offsetting these increases were reductions in the 
$6 CltS 0f the Canadian National Railways and Trans-Canada Air Lines of 
$5 Pinion (12%) and $4 million (100%) respectively, and decreases of 
(l2o/\llion (94%) in payments to the National Harbours Board, $16 million 
°f n exPenditure by air services mainly with respect to construction
tion A°nal airP°rts> and $21 million in outlays under the Freight Rates Reduc- 
yea there being no disbursements under the provisions of this Act in the 

Under review.
32. Veterans Affairs. Expenditure by this Department of $334 million was ll Million or 0.6% less than in the preceding year, there being no s,gmficant 

atlges in any items of expenditure classification.

shown f departments. The increase of $30 million or 10% in the amount
PbRiber 01 P^er departments” in the table in paragraph 16 was due to a 

s*®niücant changes in the expenditures of the smaller departments, 
higher t*le Department of Defence Production was $11 million (34%)
$19 an i° the preceding year due largely to an increase, from $8 million to 

1Qn, in outlays to sustain technological capability in Canadian industry.
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Expenditure by the Department of Forestry was up $10 million (31%) mainly 
in respect of freight assistance and storage costs on western feed grains and 
payments under the Agricultural Rehabilitation and Development Act. There 
were also increases in expenditure by the National Research Council.

The Chairman: May I just interject here, Mr. Henderson? From here to 33 
will not appear in 1965, so if the members have any questions they should put 
them now as this is all to be dealt with in 1964

Mr. Henderson: If I may be permitted, Mr. Chairman, I would explain that 
it does, of course, appear in 1965 but it is the later year’s figures and 
conceivably you might be more interested in comparing 1965 with 1964 than 
perhaps taking time to compare 1964 with 1963. Unless you have any marked 
sections here or questions you would like to ask, I would suggest you might 
spend a little more time on this in your consideration of the 1965 report. 
However, I have full information here and my representatives are present to 
deal with any points that might have caught your eye and on which you would 
like further information. We generally highlight the major reasons for changes 
in the figures by way of providing explanations as to increases and in some 
cases decreases; very largely increases because expenditures continue to rise 
each year, as you are fully aware.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Have these reports all been approved by 
Parliament?

• (11:20 a.m.)
Mr. Henderson: Oh, yes sir, this is just commenting on the results for the 

year and endeavouring to explain to you the reasons for the increases.
Now on paragraph 34 and running through to paragraph 43 we have—
Mr. Winch: Are you cutting 18?
Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 18, Mr. Winch?
Mr. Winch: Yes, I would like to ask, Mr. Chairman, on paragraph 18, if * 

could recommend that you ask the steering committee to consider whether or 
not a recommendation should be made to the general committee on calling the 
Canadian Broadcasting Corporation officials before us relative to their expendi­
tures and changes as related to policy. I just ask that this be considered by the 
steering committee.

The Chairman: At the next meeting of the steering committee I will bring 
that to their attention and report back to the committee. I realize this is an 
important matter but this committee should consider it.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, again referring to Section 18 there have been 
suggestions from various places that the CBC be made into a crown corporation. 
Could Mr. Henderson tell me, first of all, whether it would be proper for this 
Committee to make such a suggestion and, secondly, what effect would it have 
on the presentation in public accounts if the CBC were made a crown 
corporation?

Mr. Henderson: Well, Mr. Ballard, the CBC is a crown corporation now and 
is categorized and provided for as such by the Financial Administration Act. Its 
annual accounts are prepared in the usual corporate form. I am the auditor of
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the Corporation, and its accounts are reproduced in the public accounts. I deal 
with the details of these accounts under the crown corporation section in my 
report each year. We shall come to a paragraph on that in 1964 and a more up 
to date paragraph in 1965.

Mr. Ballard: And other crown corporations such as Northern Transpor­
tation and—

Mr. Henderson: Exactly the same treatment.
Mr. Ballard: They are handled in the same way, is that right?
Mr. Henderson: Yes. In the crown corporation section of this report a 

Paragraph is devoted to each of the crown corporations I audit and fairly full 
details are given on their revenues, expenditures, and their balance sheet 
Position. Comments on matters that I have felt should be drawn to the attention 
°t the House—in other words to this committee are contained therein.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, may I say a word here? There is some doubt in 
Pay mind and I would like to ask about it. I feel, and that is the reason I am 
asking the question that this must be referred to the steering committee. 
Should the steering committee recommend a complete study of the business of 
financing reports of the Canadian Broadcastmg Corporation you yourse 
^°uld not feel embarrassed as Auditor General in vlfw 0^ tl"e fa^ that y0U 
Were previously a comptroller of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.

Mr. Henderson: No, I do not think I would feel Wlnch. In fact I would hope that I might thereby be Me to make a greate 
c°Ptribution to the discussions by reason of that experience.

I would mention, dealing with the method of financing the CBC, t 
?eth°d is the subject of a paragraph in my 1965 rePort’ an^ wereach

at> I think the committee will most certainly be very m ., . exDress
Up and considering it. That will afford a very real opportunity ^ express 
°Pmions on the method of financing. Of course the accounts are natu y 
c°vered by this committee, if it wishes to examine the Corporation.
t, 34. The Summary of Revenue by Main Classifications and Departments for 
he fiscal year ended March 31, 1964, prepared by the Department of Fma 
°r inclusion in the Public Accounts and certified by the Auditor General is 

produced as Exhibit 4 to this Report. The summary shows tax revenues 
Counting for $5,534 million of the total revenue of $6,253 million.

Paragraphs 34 to 43 deal with revenue and again cover the revenues in this
as® for the year ended March 31, 1964, which as you will see total $6 253

Pillion, made up of tax revenues of $5,534 million and non-tax revenues of $719 
Pillion.

th 35. The following table summarizes the revenue, by principal sources, for 
e Past three years.

Paragraph 35 includes the table summarizing these revenues by their 
WUhCiPal S0Urces for the year we are reviewing, and the figures are compared

like figures for the two previous years.
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1961-62 1962-63 1963-64

Tax revenues:
Personal income tax .......... $ 1,792,656,000 $ 1,744,626,000 $ 1,865,074,000
Corporation income tax ... 
Income tax on dividends,

1,202,054,000 1,182,837,000 1,258,957,000

interest, etc., going abroad 112,306,000 129,137,000 124,500,000
Sales tax .............................. 759,678,000 805,971,000 946,055,000
Other excise taxes.............. 262,526,000 260,378,000 273,415,000
Customs duties .................... 534,516,000 644,992,000 581,442,000
Excise duties ........................ 362,799,000 381,866,000 393,326,000
Estate tax ............................ 84,579,000 87,143,000 90,671,000
Other tax revenues ............ 51,000 27,000 92,000

5.111.165.000 5.236.977.000 5.533.532.000
Non-tax revenues:

Return on investments .... 307,502,000 311,861,000 366,413,000
Net postal revenue ............ 183,679,000 192,772,000 200,717,000
Other non-tax revenues .. 127,278,000 137,099,000 152,542,000

618.459.000 641.732.000 719.672.000

$ 5,729,624,000 $ 5,878,709,000 $ 6,253,204,000

37. Excise taxes. The following is a summary of the excise taxes, other than
sales tax, collected during the year ended March 31, 1964, with comparable
amounts for the two previous years:

1961-62 1962-63 1963-64

Cigarettes ................................ ....$ 185,176,000 $ 195,313,000 $ 200,211,000
Manufactured tobacco .......... 19,599,000 19,123,000 23,460,000
Phonographs, radios and tubes .. 8,853,000 9,875,000 11,432,000
Toilet articles and preparations .. 9,397,000 10,142,000 11,126,000
Television sets and tubes . ... 
Jewellery, clocks, watches,

9,570,000 10,059,000 10,578,000

chinaware, etc........................ .... 5,577,000 5,793,000 6,353,000
Wines ........................................ .... 3,350,000 3,727,000 3,814,000
Cigars ........................................ .... 2,775,000 3,372,000 3,267,000
Sundry excise taxes .............. .... 3,943,000 3,350,000 3,505,000
Automobiles.............................. 25,270,000 — —

Refunds and drawbacks .... .... -10,984,000 -376,000 -331,000

$ 262,526,000 $ 260,378,000 $ 273,415,000

The excise tax on automobile sales was repealed effective June 21, 1961. The 
repeal of this tax, which was accompanied by remission of the tax on autom0' 
biles in the hands of dealers, resulted in the large amount of refunds and 
drawbacks in 1961-62.

38. Customs duties. The decrease of $64 million in customs duties 111 
1963-64 in comparison with the preceding year was due to the removal ^ 
April 1, 1963 of the special rates imposed by the Surcharge on Imports Order 
of June 24, 1962.
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39. Km,, duties. A listing °£ ^"‘^‘^ndint atoïntsfomS 
ended March 31, 1964, in comparison with the correspon
two previous years, is given in the fo 62 ' 1962-63 1963-64

» r=i 034 000 $ 157,049,000 $ 157,054,000
Cigarettes .......................................... $ 114’088’oOO 122,099,000 129,406,000
Spirits ........................................... 92716000 98 147,000 102,907,000
Beer .................................................... 9 521 000 9,463,000 8,623,000
Other excise duties ........................ Aro’ooO -4,892,000 —4,664,000
Refunds and drawbacks ............. __________ ____________

$ 362,799,000 $ 381,866,000 $ 393,326,000

Changes in various of the tax “
Paragraphs 37, 38 and 39, along with a brief expiana

40. Return on investments. The ^^gh'the^omparaM^fi^ires for the 

the various investments in 1963-64, s
two previous fiscal years: 1961-62 1962-63 1963-64

■p, , $ 1^000 $ WOO $ 116,386,000

Cn,„, Mortgage and Housmg „ 79,925,000
Corporation .............................. 32 606,000 35’227’U„„ oe sm nnn

Exchange Fund Account 30 825 000 29,272,000 no’7n9 nnn
Loans to National Governments .. g’394000 14,395,000 13'nig’ooo
Deposits with chartered banks .. 6,394,^ 3,324,000 2^,000
Canadian National Railways • • • • ’ g2 Q00 8,482,000 7’373’ooOFarm Credit Corporation ............. Ifgs OOO 6,549,000 7 373,000
Veterans’ Land Act loans is’oeS OOO 12,351,000 3’coo OOO
Securities Investment Account . • 3'noO OOO 3,000,000 Vrm OOOPolymer Corporation Limited . • ■ 3,943 000 3,631,000 3,475,000
National Harbours Board ........ •• ’ ’ . ,QRnnn
Canadian Overseas Telecommum- ^ g^g qqq 1,971,000

cation Corporation .................... ’ ca nnn
The St. Lawrence Seaway __ — 0’910’nnn

Authority .................. ; • ;............. 1 505,000 1,776,000 . -
National Capital Commission ••••
Eldorado Mining and Refining 5)000,000 3,000,000 2,000,009

Northern Canada Power 871,000 1,696,000 1,648,000
Commission ............................... „

Northern Ontario Pipe Line Q Q00 4,087,000 1,583,000
JCrown Corporation .................... 5,995,000 6,907,000
^ther loans and investments.......  * ' __---------------- -----------

$ 307,502,000 $_311.861.000 $ 366,413,000

Q frnm the investment in the Bank of 
r, 4l- The amounts shown for revenu Bank and surrendered to the

hada represent the annual profits ear ne Bank of Canada Act, R.S., c.
^ceiver General as required by section 28 ol tne

23943—2
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The Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation amount for 1963-64 com­
prised $80,297,000 ($74,337,000 in 1962-63) of interest on advances under 
section 22 of the Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation Act, R.S., c. 46, and 
$5,228,000 ($5,588,000 in 1962-63) representing the profit for the Corporation’s 
financial year ended December 31, 1963 which was transferred to the Receiver 
General as required by section 30 of the Act.

The substantial increase of $27 million in earnings of the Exchange Fund 
Account for the calendar year 1963 resulted from increases in investment 
holdings and investment portfolio changes.

The reduction of approximately $3 million in interest on loans to National 
Governments is due to principal repayments of $129 million during the previous 
year.

The increase of $9,194,000 in interest from the Canadian National Railways 
is due to the payment of a full year’s interest on an amount of $250 million 
advanced to the Canadian National Railways in February and March 1963 under 
authority of the Refunding Act of 1955.

The decrease of $8,292,000 in revenue from the Securities investment 
Account is due to there having been no acquisition of securities of Canada for 
the subsidiary Purchase Fund during the year.

The amount of $2,568,000 represents interest on loans made to The St. 
Lawrence Seaway Authority of which $68,000 is interest on temporary loans 
and $2,500,000 is in respect of interest for the year 1961.

The revenue from the investment in the Northern Ontario Pipe Line Crown 
Corporation, representing interest on loans made to the Corporation by the 
Government of Canada, decreased by $2,504,000 by reason of the fact that 
Trans-Canada Pipe Lines Limited exercised its option to purchase the Northern 
Ontario section on May 29, 1963, whereupon the Corporation discharged its 
liability for loans then outstanding.

In paragraph 40 a listing is given of the major items constituting the 
non-tax revenue item entitled Return on Investments which, as you will see, for 
the year, amounted to $366 million. The larger changes shown in this listing are 
then explained in paragraph 41. For example the dividends received from the 
Bank of Canada, interest from Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation, 
earnings from the exchange fund account and interest from other sources such 
as loans to national governments, Canadian National Railways and the St- 
Lawrence Seaway Authority.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, may I ask one question here? Can I ask through 
you, Mr. Henderson, if in the 1965 report we can deal with a question which 1 
feel is of importance, and that is the report on investment policies of such 
corporations as Polymer, Eldorado and Northern Canada Power Commission, et 
cetera.

Mr. Henderson: Indeed you can, Mr. Winch, because the same information 
is shown for the 1965 year in like manner and it would be a very appropriate 
place to—

Mr. Winch: I presume, Mr. Chairman that at that time then you will give 
consideration to the calling of officers of these corporations on investment 
policy?
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The Chairman: That is correct.
Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 42 covers net postal revenue which, as you will 

ee, is $201 million and which is the second largest non-tax revenue item.
, 42. Net postal revenue. The following table shows the gross postal revenue,

,fSs disbursements therefrom, and the resulting net postal revenue for the past 
three fiscal years:

1961-62 1962-63 1963-64

Gross postal revenue ................... $ 213,518,000
Disbursements—

Remuneration of postmasters 
and staffs at certain classes
of smaller post offices .......... 25,171,000

Other disbursements ................. 4,668,000
29,839,000

$ 222,300,000

25,239,000
4,289,000

29,528,000

$ 235,808,000

29,936,000
5,155,000

35,091,000

Net postal revenue $ 183,679,000 $ 192,772,000 $ 200,717,000

The amounts shown for “Other disbursements” mainly comprise charges on 
Parcels mailed in Canada for delivery in foreign countries and transit charges 
°n Canadian mail forwarded through foreign countries, together with compen- 
sation paid to messengers for special delivery of letters and parcels.

In paragraph 168 of this Report a summary is given of the Post Office 
transactions for the year under review, in comparison with the corresponding 
hgures for the preceding fiscal year, together with comments on the recorded 
excess of expenditure over revenue.

Mr Chairman. This is a matter Mr. Winch: Again may I ask a quest1™’ ... accounts committee made 
Which we have considered over the years. The public accou 
various recommendations.

I presume, Mr. Henderson, through you, Mr. Chairman that^m the 1965 
ePort we will be able to consider this matter because .... ...

committee has reached a stage where we have to have some finalization wi 
the Post Office Department on the various recommendations made on this 
Nation. Am I correct, then, that we can do this in the 1965 report.

,, . Mr. Henderson: Yes. The question of second class mail comes up both in 
hls report and in 1965 and it is under the 1965 report that you will deal with 

second class mail, at which time you might also like to take m the other aspects 
0 the Post Office Department.

I mentioned the other non-tax revenues which are shown in paragraph 43.

j 43. Other non-tax revenues. An analysis of the amounts shown in the table 
Paragraph 35 for “Other non-tax revenues” for 1963-64 with comparable 

Ures I°r the two previous fiscal years is given in the following table.
23943__2j
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1961-62 1962-63 1963-64

Services and service fees .............. $ 42,453,000 $ 46,186,000 $ 51,321,000
Proceeds from sales ...................... 25,902,000 26,531,000 28,445,000
Privileges, licences and permits .. 23,271,000 25,008,000 27,172,000
Refunds of previous years’

expenditure .................................. 18,163,000 22,392,000 26,839,000
Bullion and coinage ...................... 7,965,000 9,404,000 9,717,000
Miscellaneous .................................. 9,524,000 7,578,000 9,048,000

$ 127,278,000 $ 137,099,000 $ 152,542,000

We now come to comments on expenditure and revenue transactions begin­
ning with paragraph 44.

44. Reference has already been made to the statutory responsibility of the 
Auditor General, under section 70 of the Financial Administration Act, to call 
attention to specific classes of transactions observed during his examinations 
and to any other case that he considers should be brought to the notice of the 
House of Commons.

Pursuant to this direction, the following matters relating to the expenditure 
and revenue transactions examined during the fiscal year under review are 
brought to the attention of the House in this Report.

Paragraph 45 is contained only in the 1964 report. It does not appear 
1965 because no special warrants, I believe, if my memory serves me correctly» 
were exercised during the intervening year, so that you might wish to dispose 
of paragraph 45 now.

45. Governor General’s special warrants. The dissolution of Parliament op 
February 6, 1963 before full supply for the year 1962-63 had been granted 
necessitated recourse to Governor General’s special warrants in order to provide 
the necessary funds for the carrying on of government services during the 
months of February and March 1963. These special warrants were reported and 
commented upon in paragraph 45 of my 1963 Report.

As the new Parliament did not assemble until May 16, 1963, Governor 
General’s special warrants were required during the months of April and May 
as follows:

(a) one for $260,979,774 on April 1, 1963 which provided the fund® 
which it was estimated would be required during the month of Aprl 
1963; and

(t>) one for $354,416,247 on May 2, 1963 which provided the funds whicd 
it was estimated would be required during the month of May 1963 01 
until Parliament was able to appropriate interim supply.

These two warrants were based on, and were approximately one-sixth of» 
the Main Estimates for 1963-64 and the amounts were subsequently included lP 
the amounts authorized by Appropriation Act No. 1, 1963, c. 1.

The special warrants issued in the fiscal year ended March 31, 1963 had 
included a number of items which did not meet the test of being “urgently 
required for the public good”, as required by section 28 of the Financé 
Administration Act. After considering this matter in its examination of the I96‘j 
Report, the Public Accounts Committee in its Fourth Report 1964 recommended
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that a study be made of Governor General’s 
hem 8). special warrants (see Appendix 1,

it ^be two warrants issued during the year under review each included three 
ems which did not meet the test of being “urgently required for the public 

good’’. These are:
(1) An item “to supplement other votes, subject to the approval of the 

Treasury Board, for the payment of salaries, wages and other paylist 
charges”. Obviously the payment of the amounts was not urgently 
required when the special warrants were issued and the Governor in 
Council in effect delegated to the Treasury Board his authority 
under section 28 of the Financial Administration Act although there 
is no provision for such delegation.

(2) An item “miscellaneous minor or unforeseen expenses, subject to 
the approval of the Treasury Board, and awards under the Public 
Servants Inventions Act”. As in (1) above, these items were not 
urgently required when the special warrants were issued and repre­
sented an unauthorized delegation of authority to the Treasury 
Board.

(3) Amounts totalling $123,900 to cover the administrative expenses of 
the National Gallery of Canada without taking into consideration 
approximately $53,000 available for this purpose in the Gallery’s 
special operating account.

_ Treasury Board that, in We have been advised by the Secretary Committee, a study
accordance with the recommendation problems which result mentai
ls currently being made of the fin for the carrying on o g
"aent has been unable to make provisio 
services between sessions.
.„ A spec,», issued i„ ,he 1962-63 «seal year-.ha. is

as 8 . nd 1 am quoting from the Ac Ar,ministration Act. After considering
,Cr°d bl' SeCÜOn “ ‘I IrS ™ t-Îhis Committee, in its fourth 
ren cases—its examination of the 1963 p rnvprnor General’s special
V, °rt’ 1964> recommended that a study be ma e ^ the subject 0f item 8 
in orantS' N°w this recommendation, you may ‘ ’ report Iited tl966 ,0I1°W-UP rePOrL In CdmT,™T «udy tins made along the lines 
rp '■hat I had not been informed of a . r ttpr addressed by the
Miwmended by the Committee, butld.d quo Qf the Committee in
Whichhe°ftFinanCe °n MarCh 4’ of’discussion on this subject in the public
founts p ed th3t inethe TUrS% he Treasury Board undertook to consider 
the dp Committee the Secretary of the Tr®f J General’s warrant provi­sion^ i'lrabUlty of enlarging on the specie ticular Section 28, in order
to cl n the Financial Administration Act an P parliament is dissolved
Witn lfy its application to situations arising oublie service The

havmg appropriated the —-
Changes iW?ut °n t0 S3y in hlS " i AHmiStration Act and that these were 8es ln this section of the Financial Administrât
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then being studied. He added that should the government decide that an 
amendment to the Act is desirable, it will present its proposals to Parliament in 
the usual way.

Now in the 1964 note that you have before you in paragraph 45, we refer of 
course to the two warrants issued during April and May of the 1963-64 year, 
and we explain how they included three items which, in our view, did not meet 
the test of being urgently required for the public good, and these items are 
described in this note. In other words the practice I criticized in 1963 still 
obtained in 1964.

I would hope that this Committee might see fit to make a further 
recommendation to the government specifically recommending that appropriate 
amendments to Section 28 of the Financial Administration Act be drafted for 
the purposes of specifying precisely what type of expenditures may be made 
when Parliament has been unable to make provisions for the carrying on of 
governmental services between sessions.

I do not know, Mr. Chairman, the extent to which the Committee might 
want to be involved in working out or drafting up appropriate amendments- 
Perhaps you might like to invite the Secretary of the Treasury Board to com6 
back to the Committee and to discuss this matter. You see, the only recommen' 
dation you made last time was that a study should be made, which has been 6 
subject of my comment in the 1963 report and enlightens the situation 
described to you. I am in your hands as to just where we should go from here- 
Now, Governor General’s warrants, as you know, were operative during 196 
and it is too early for me to say the extent to which I may have comments 
about these in my 1966 report, but the fact of the matter is the situation is no 
changed and is continuing, and it does seem a proper thing to raise the question 
of whether you would be prepared to recommend that more specific steps be 
taken now towards actually amending Section 28.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, I was just going to make that same suggeS' 
tion. I think the Committee should, at the appropriate time, ask Dr. Davids6^ 
and possibly even, in due course, the Deputy Minister of Finance and, 1 
necessary, the Minister of Finance, to appear before us so that we can cover tne 
situation fully. Those of us who recall the discussions which took place during 
the passing of the estimates for last year will maybe remember that this waS 
brought up, this was discussed. There is no doubt that when the Audit°r 
General comes to make his report on the year 1965 he is bound to call attentif 
to the fact that there were Governor General’s warrants for that year. I do n° 
think there is any doubt that there will be a repetition of the same situati0^ 
which has been the subject of discussion and, to some degree, of complaint-"' 
think of justifiable complaint—by this Committee.

So I would hope that you, Mr. Chairman, at the time when the steeri11*’ 
committee is considering agenda for the future and the witnesses who will ^ 
called, will arrange very early for Dr. Davidson to come and, if necessary, 
think we should possibly hear from both the Deputy Minister of Finance 
the Minister of Finance. I would like to see this Committee, before it complete 
its deliberations, give very serious consideration to substantial amendments
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the Financial Administration Act and to deal with it basically and with other 
things as well. That is as far as I will go now because we will have an 
opportunity later on, but as this paragraph is not repeated in the 1965 report of 
the Auditor General I would like to make these comments and hope the 
Committee will not desist this year until we have made some very definite and 
Very strong recommendations.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Baldwin.
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, on doing my homework on the report of the 

Auditor General for the fiscal year ending March 31, 1964, I made a special note 
of the last paragraph of No. 45 which appears on page 17, in which it is said:

We have been advised by the Secretary of the Treasury Board that, 
in accordance with the recommendation of the Public Accounts Com­
mittee, a study is currently being made of financing problems which 
result when Parliament has been unable to make provision for the 
carrying on of governmental services between sessions.

This is a direct question. In May of 
you been advised directly, in any way whatsoever, of any special

*ms is now May of 1966 and I would 
1966 have you been advised directh. in 
study having been made and-

(11:35 a.m.)
Mr. Henderson: 

‘his was
bi

I was advised by the Secretary of the Treasury Board that 
going to be done. I have not, as I say, been advised directly that it has 

>®en done and that a study has been completed but in the periodical talks which 
1 had with the Secretary of the Treasury Board he has been good enough to tell 

indirectly that the matter is still engaging their attention and he had 
^othing to add at the present time. This is, of course, confirmed m the 
tatements made by the Minister of Finance when he wrote over a year ago to 

^Chairman of the committee in response to the committee s own recommen-

1963^" ^INCH: You have no report of the study which you were advised in 
Was currently being undertaken?

<W^r' Henderson: No, I have not heard any advice beyond that which I 
Cribedto you.

Ca The Chairman: Mr. Winch and Mr. Baldwin, these are questions that you 
be nask when we have the officials before us in the Committee—and it might 
thes°SSlble t0 have them at the next meeting—or you might prefer to leave 
ask- questions until we have some other matters that would accumulate and 

thei* all at once.

As it Jr' Baldwin: One other suggestion, Mr. Chairman, before we leave that. 
Adm,n7t°lves the question of interpretation of this particular Act—the Financial 
and i\/r_ -?tion Act—and as there have been different interpretations given, youand ---------
adviSe " nenderson might give some consideration to having one of the legal 
dis - to the Auditor General present on the occasion of one of these 
°n the dwr *n Case we would like to benefit from the opinion of the legal adviser 

different interpretations of that part of the Financial Administration Act
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under which the special warrants of the Governor General have been issued and 
moneys paid.

Mr. Henderson: Well I might mention, Mr. Baldwin, that I have not felt 
that it was necessary to consult my legal advisers on the points that I have 
made in this paragraph because for the reasons I state it seems to me to be 
self-evident they scarcely met the requirement of being urgently required for 
the public good. Conceivably it might have been of some assistance to bring my 
legal advisers in but I only refer to them—and I mentioned this in some detail at 
the last meeting—where I want a written legal opinion on a specific case. If the 
Committee felt they would like to have this studied by my legal advisers they 
have only to say so, but I have not engaged them unless I felt it was completely 
necessary.

Mr. Baldwin: You do not think there has been any real challenge of this 
particular section?

Mr. Henderson: I do not find any challenge there at all, sir. I think it was 
in my knowledge that the Secretary of the Treasury Board and his associates 
found the interpretation they are required to bring to the wording of Section 28 
a difficult one, and the matter is left on the basis that I think it would help 
everyone if it could be clarified on a specific basis.

46. Prairie Farm Emergency Fund. The deficit in the operations of this 
Fund during the year was $1,073,000, compared with deficits of $7,295,000 and 
$47,733,000 in the two preceding fiscal years.

The Fund operates as a special account within the Consolidated Revenue 
Fund to record transactions under the Prairie Farm Assistance Act, R.S., c. 213- 
Under the Act, a levy of 1% is imposed on the purchase price of grain purchased 
by licensees under the Canada Grain Act, and the moneys collected, which 
totalled $9,141,000 during the past year, were credited to the account. Awards 
are made to eligible farmers in areas affected by crop failure in the provinces of 
Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Alberta and the Peace River District of British 
Columbia. During the year awards amounted to $10,214,000 and the $1,073,000 
by which these exceeded the revenue from the 1% levy was charged to 
Department of Agriculture Vote 175e.

On December 13, 1963 the parliamentary Committee on Privileges and 
Elections recommended the appointment of a Commission to inquire into 
payments made under the Prairie Farm Assistance Act relative to the 1962 crop 
year. Accordingly, a Commission of Inquiry was established by Order in Council 
P.C. 1963-1896 of December 21, 1963 and reported its findings on June 10, 1964.

The Public Accounts Committee at its meeting on June 4, 1964 was 
informed of the limited audit performed by the Audit Office of the expenditures 
of the Fund in recent years and was assured that, with an improvement in the 
staff situation, an annual examination would be undertaken in future. Ac' 
cordingly, a test examination of the accounts was made for the year ended 
March 31, 1964. In our opinion the following matters which have financial 
consequences arising from the application of the provisions of the Act requir6 
serious consideration.

A Board of Review is established by the Act to examine all information and 
data regarding the average yield of wheat in any township and to determine the
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eligibility of any area for an award. The Board is also required to decide 
questions concerning the eligibility of any farmer or class of farmers for awards 
under the Act. No minutes are maintained by the Board recording its policies 
and reasons for certain of its decisions with respect to applications for awards 
and other relevant matters. As a result, difficulty was experienced in the 
verification of the eligibility of townships and farmers for awards under the 
Act.

Inspections are made of areas suffering a crop failure and it is the duty of
the inspectors to obtain information from farmers concerned and to determine
(ke actual yield on each parcel of land. The information is recorded on a 
Cultivated Acreage Report”, which is required to be signed by the farmer and 

.y the inspector. These reports form the basis of the awards and, if the 
Inspectors fail to carry out their duties properly or if there is collusion, it would 

e difficult, if not impossible, for irregular payments to be detected. The Audit 
nice is therefore in agreement with the recommendations of the Commission of 

nquiry that greater care be taken in investigating and checking the accuracy of 
Reports, that consideration be given to placing the permanent staff of the Prairie 

arm Assistance Administration under the Civil Service of Canada, and that 
spot checks be made throughout municipalities by investigators from P.F.A.A. 
headquarters.

Our examination revealed that one township had been eligible for an award 
ln ^3 out of the 25 crop years between 1939, when the program of crop failure 
Assistance was inaugurated, and 1963. Thirty surrounding townships were 

!gible on an average of 20 out of the 25 crop years. Therefore we also concur 
the recommendation of the Commission of Inquiry that consideration be 

glVen to the elimination from eligibility for payment of awards of marginal land 
hh which crop failures continuously occur from year to year and which 
Pparently only remain in production by reason of the benefits available under 
6 P-F.A.A. program.

, Section 6(a) of the Act provides that a section of land or blocks of sections, 
aavinS a side along the boundary of an eligible township, may be eligible for 

Ssistance as long as the average yield of wheat within such area is eight 
^tishels or less per acre. For 1962 a policy was introduced whereby a section or 
^ block of sections need touch eligible townships only corner-to-corner. While 

ls difficult to estimate the total amount paid in respect of areas receiving 
. ards due to this policy in 1962, a test involving only a small number of 

Wnships revealed payments of approximately $10,000. The policy was not 
°Ptinued in 1963.

the t^le *963-64 crop year there were 288 townships eligible for assistance in 
jn AIberta Division on the basis of the predominant crop being a coarse grain. 
fa ... d inspections, great emphasis is placed on measurement of wheat storage 

dies in order to verify the quantity of wheat on hand and the current year’s 
st ^ Production. We were, however, informed that, as a general rule, the 
gr . s °t coarse grain on hand were not measured nor were the sales of coarse 
bo0]f to date of inspection established by reference to Wheat Board permit 
cas S ^ne °* the reasons advanced for this course of action was that in many 
■tyags c°nsiderable quantities of coarse grain had been used as feed so that it

n°t Possible for an inspector to verify the yield with any degree of 
curacy.
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Existence areas of southern Alberta are irrigated and many farmers grow 
wheat on both irrigated and non-irrigated portions of their farms. In accordance 
with the Act, the irrigated areas are excluded for purposes of determination of 
average yields if the yield of the irrigated portions exceeds 12 bushels per acre. 
In reviewing the Cultivated Acreage Reports, it was observed that often little 
or no yield was reported on large acreages of non-irrigated land so that the 
relative township or townships became eligible for awards. It is not possible to 
verify information supplied by farmers with respect to the yield of wheat on 
the non-irrigated portion of those farms where crops from both irrigated and 
non-irrigated areas are stored in the same bins. A similar situation prevails 
where farmers operate farms situated in two or more townships.

Section 7 of the Act requires every award under the Act to be paid in the 
month of December. In northern areas of Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Alberta 
and the Peace River District of British Columbia, harvesting is seldom complet­
ed before mid-October and sometimes November. As a consequence, it is 
difficult for inspectors to complete Cultivated Acreage Reports within the time 
available. Since the information compiled from these reports must be examined 
by the Board of Review before eligibility is determined and cheques processed, 
only a portion of the awards can be paid during December. It was observed that 
most of the awards are usually paid during the month of January and Febru­
ary and the balance in the following three months. It being impossible to 
comply with this section of the Act, consideration should be given to its repeal-

Paragraph 46 can be marked forward to 1965 because it appears in that 
report, but just before you leave it may I say to you that this paragraph 
involves a number of points which require remedial action and particularly 
when you consider it in 1965, you might feel that you would wish to have a 
witness present, possibly somebody from Regina, which is the headquarters of 
the operations of P.F.A.A., because I believe he could make a useful explanation 
on what action you can expect from the points that are made. In 1965 we bring 
most of these points forward again, and others also. I do not know whether that 
would commend itself but I just mention it in passing in case you wanted to 
arrange it. I think someone from Regina would probably have to be summoned 
in this case rather than the Deputy Minister of Agriculture.

The Chairman: I would ask the western members of our committee to pay 
particular attention to this paragraph, study it and be prepared to ask questions 
when it comes up under the 1965 report. Now maybe Mr. Bigg should—

Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, I would like to make that a motion to cover what 
Mr. Henderson has said, if that is necessary, because I think that is a very 
important paragraph.

The Chairman: Your steering committee will study that. Thank you Mr- 
Bigg.

Mr. Winch: To add to that perhaps Mr. Henderson might be a bit more 
specific. I was very much concerned in going over the 1964 report—

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, this is going to be brought up in the 1965 
report so if you do not—

Mr. Henderson: This is in the 1965 category, so if you just want to mark # 
off—
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Mr. Winch: I would just take note of the last two sentences in the last 
Paragraph on page 17 that no minutes are kept of policies or—

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, this is carried forward to the 1965 report so 
just save those remarks, if you do not mind, and we will do it then.

Mr. Henderson: 47. Misapplication of public funds at Indian Agency. In 
1963 the Department of Citizenship and Immigration discovered sizeable misap­
plications of public funds at one of the Indian Agencies. Investigations estab­
lished that during the period June 1, 1960 to December 31, 1962 an estimated 
v70,000 was diverted by the superintendent of the Agency from welfare 
assistance to Indians in the form of cash relief, fuel wood and a community 
employment program to projects and activities not authorized by the Départ­
ant. In addition, approved limits of expenditure on various authorized activi­
ties were deliberately exceeded.

The superintendent did not always agree with the Department’s decisions 
elating to expenditures for the benefit of Indians and he disregarded depart­
mental regulations and directions and financed unauthorized activities by 
diverting funds from authorized programs. He and his assistant admitted they 
Pad forged endorsements on cheques in order to use them, but they maintained 
r13! all expenditures were for the benefit of the Indians and denied that they 
Pad converted any funds to their personal use. In the absence of proof that 
unds were used by the superintendent or his assistant personally, the De­

partment was unable to establish that any amount was owing to the Crown.
. The superintendent was suspended from duty on May 15, 1963 and the 

assistant superintendent on September 1, 1963. It is understood that legal action 
18 to be taken under section 92 (d) of the Financial Administration Act and 
PPder section 311 of the Criminal Code of Canada.

Paragraph 47, misapplication of public funds at Indian Agency applies 
delusively in 1964. This case deals with misapplication of public funds by one 

the Indian agencies which led to the suspension of the superintendent and the 
pistant superintendent from duty in 1963. Although legal action was, I believe, 
aken under Section 92(d) of the Financial Administration Act, and also under 
ection 311 of the Criminal Code of Canada, members of the committee may 

recall that the actions of the government in prosecuting these men was widely 
Pt-Picized in the press and on television last year. It was claimed, among other 

ln§s, that the latitude given to the superintendent to assist the Indian 
ornrnunity was not realistic and he should not have been dealt with so severely 

°r using his own initiative in the interests of the Indians instead of following
ltlstructions.

I do not know, Mr. Chairman, what views the Committee might have on 
I 1S" ^ is one of those cases which I am required to bring to your attention, and 

suppose it is a matter now being concluded so there is not a great deal that 
ls Committee can do about it.

^r- Bigg: It was settled by the courts.

Chairman: Mr. Henderson has brought this matter before the Com- 
the q6 anc* * would say that I sat on that special committee on Indian Affairs of 

enate and the House of Commons during three sessions of Parliament and
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I would agree with the information given us by Mr. Henderson that lacking 
specific instructions the conduct of this particular official of the Indian Affairs 
branch, or of any official of the Indian Affairs branch, should be reviewed with 
the greatest sympathy, because if there is any group of people who are called 
upon to use their own judgment and to fit the regulations into the problems of 
each separate Indian reservation these Indian officials are the people who really 
are up against it. I think the greatest care should be taken in condemning them 
and making sure that there was actual wrongdoing rather than a matter of 
maybe wrong judgment being used, which is entirely different from criminal 
action.

Mr. Henderson:
48. Payment for loss of salary pending appointment to a position in the civil 

service. It is provided in section 71 (3) of the Civil Service Act that a person 
who, for at least three years, has held the position of Executive Assistant to a 
Minister of the position of Private Secretary to a Minister, is entitled to be 
appointed to a position in the civil service for which the person is qualified, not 
being lower than the position of head clerk. The Act is silent as to the person’s 
entitlement if no position is available.

A case was noted where the former private secretary of an ex-Minister 
became available for such a position on July 1, 1963 but the Civil Service 
Commission was unable to provide employment until February 20, 1964. The 
Civil Service Commission requested Treasury Board to recommend an ex gratia 
payment in the amount of one-half of the salary the former private secretary 
would have received had she been employed from July 1st until the resumption 
of her employment in the public service at the maximum rate of head clerk- 
Payment on an ex gratia basis was authorized by Order in Council P.C. 
1963-8-1730 of November 28, 1963 and the expenditure of $1,979 was charged to 
Civil Service Commission Vote 1, 1963-64.

In order to provide for the benefits pursuant to continuity of employment, 
the Civil Service Commission drafted a regulation under section 68 of the Civil 
Service Act covering the period July 1, 1963 to February 19, 1964 during which 
the former secretary was out of employment. This regulation was approved by 
Order in Council P.C. 1964-6/490 of April 10, 1964.

Paragraph 48 covers payment for loss of salary pending appointment to 
a position in the civil service. This again is exclusively a 1964 matter.

This is the case of a person who, as you see, for at least three years had 
filled a position of private secretary to a minister and who, under Section 71(3) 
of the Civil Service Act, was entitled to be appointed to a position in the civil 
service for which the person is qualified, such position not being more than that 
of head clerk. In view of the fact that the Commission was unable to provide 
employment in the manner contemplated by this section during the period July 
1, 1963, to February 20, 1964, this former private secretary received an ex gratia 
payment in the amount of one half of the salary she would have received had 
she been employed in the public service during that period at the maximum 
rate of head clerk.

Now you will note here, as I point out, that the Civil Service Act is silent as 
to such a person’s entitlement if no position is available, and this was the 
situation in the case described here.
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You may feel that as and when the Civil Service Act is changed, steps 
should be taken to provide that such an appointment may be made only if a 
Position is in fact available at the time the person is eligible for re-employment.

The Chairman: Are there no questions?
Mr. Henderson:
49. Defalcation by locally-engaged employee in Canberra, Australia. A 

defalcation by a locally-engaged accountant employed by the Canadian Mission 
in Canberra, Australia, first came to light in January 1963 when a supplier 
requested from the High Commissioner payment of a long outstanding account 
for gasoline. Investigation by officers of the Mission and by a local auditor 
engaged for the purpose, together with a confession by the employee involved, 
disclosed not only misappropriation of payments made to the employee for 
gasoline purchased by Canadian personnel, but also other defalcations involving 
rnany aspects of the accounting activities, both as regards revenues and 
exPenditures.

The Chief Treasury Officer in the Department of External Affairs was 
lsPatched to Canberra to complete the investigation and he reported a total 
6 Nation of $13,589 over a period of four years. As well as misappropriating 
ayrnents for gasoline amounting to $1,533, the employee had stolen $9,636 

q Ccived from prospective immigrants to cover costs of air mailing documents to 
1 n®da for examination, $888 representing income tax deducted from salaries of 
$l3s empl°yees- and $1,532 by means of various other frauds. Of the total of 
to h ^ rePorted stolen, $7,053 was recovered from the employee and $6,536 is 
jnv e charged to the Public Officers Guarantee Account. The direct cost of 
gating this defalcation was approximately $6,000 to which might be 

Qed indirect costs of $6,000.
th 0ur review of the various reports received by the Department dealing with 
lar c*rcumstances of this defalcation shows that it went undetected so long 
Migely because of inadequate supervision of the accountant’s work in the 
OtfSS1°n couPied with a lack of attention by Mission officers to queries from 

awa on its accounts and to routine financial matters. Weaknesses in the 
jQpartmental system of internal financial control and neglect in Ottawa to
fa °w UP observations raised by Treasury officers were also contributing
actors.

Department dispatches inspection teams periodically to embassies and 
fe S10ns- The last visit to this Mission was in October 1961 when it was 
adirf 6C* ^at there appeared to be no major problems regarding financial 
that 1Plstration. At that time the Mission accountant advised the inspection team 
"’her epartmental and Treasury observations on his monthly accounts were few 

eas iu fact they were numerous and serious. 
prise^he scope of work of the Audit Officers in the past has not embraced sur- 
rece- audits of embassies and missions abroad for the reason that paid cheques, 
Iwlpted vouchers and related supporting material are dispatched to the 
With Tent in Ottawa for checking and audit. We are discussing this procedure 
ititem i Sciais concerned and are reviewing the Department’s system of 

at financial control.
suggest we put forward paragraph 49 to 1965, where we deal with the 
subject.
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50. Government contributions not made to the Public Service Superan­
nuation Account. As was the case in the three previous years, no special credits 
were made to the Public Service Superannuation Account in 1963-64 in respect 
of salary increases granted to civil service classes as the result of cyclical salary 
reviews, although subsection (2) of section 32 of the Public Service Superan­
nuation Act, 1952-53, c. 47, reads:

There shall be credited to the Superannuation Account, as soon as 
possible following the authorization of any salary increase of general 
application to the Public Service, such amount as, in the opinion of the 
Minister, is necessary to provide for the increase in the cost to Her 
Majesty in right of Canada of the benefits payable under this Act, as a 
result of such salary increase.

We were informed that the reason no such special credits were made to the 
Account as required by section 32 was that the salary increases granted in 
1963-64 were not regarded as increases “of general application”.

On March 6, 1964 the Minister of Finance outlined in the House of 
Commons a general policy for dealing with deficiencies in the various superan­
nuation accounts. The Minister stated that the deficiencies existing prior to the 
commencement of the 1963-64 fiscal year would be written off to net debt, 
deficiencies created by general pay increases made in that year which the law 
requires to be charged to that year’s expenditure would be so charged, and that 
deficiencies arising from pay increases during the year which were not general 
in scope would be charged to expenditures over a five-year period commencing 
in 1964-65. The Minister further stated that in future the deficiencies arising 
from pay increases, whether of a general or cyclical character or otherwise, 
would be charged against expenditures over a five-year period commencing in 
the year in which the increases are authorized.

When announcing the implementation of this policy on November 12, 1964 
the Minister stated that authority would be sought from Parliament during the 
year to write off to net debt a deficiency in the Public Service Superannuation 
Account as at December 31, 1962 of $110,536,000 plus interest and to charge the 
deficiencies arising from pay increases authorized during the fiscal years 
1963-64 and 1964-65 against expenditures over a five-year period commencing 
with 1964-65 (see paragraph 123 of this Report).

It has been calculated by the Department of Insurance that the deficiency 
in the Account as at December 31, 1962 plus interest to December 31, 1964 will 
amount to $119,556,000 and that the additional deficiency arising from pay 
increases authorized in 1963-64, with interest to December 31, 1964, will amount 
to $30,506,000.

Paragraph 50,1 would suggest, might be put forward to 1965.

51. Errors in Public Service Superannuation Account pension and contri' 
bution calculations. Comments under this heading have appeared in our Reports 
to the House for the past three fiscal years. The Public Accounts Committee in 
its Fourth Report 1963 noted with concern the high incidence of error in the 
superannuation accounts, and in its Sixth Report 1964 (see Appendix 1, item 
33) expressed concern that this matter is taking so long to be corrected and 
requested the Auditor General to keep the Committee fully informed.
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The responsibility for the operation of the Superannuation Branch was 
transferred in December 1963 from the general direction of the Secretary of the 
Treasury Board to the Comptroller of the Treasury, the Director of Pensions 
and Social Insurance of the Department of Finance retaining responsibility for 
dealing with cases requiring legal opinions and decisions regarding superannua­
tion policy.

On assuming this responsibility, the Comptroller of the Treasury appointed 
a task force to study the organizational structure of the Branch and review its 
listing system and procedures in depth to determine what steps should be 
taken toward eliminating the errors occurring in the pension and contribution 
calculations. He advises that following receipt of the task force’s report, a series 
°f staff meetings were held to discuss its recommendations and that a number of 
significant measures designed to remedy this situation have been or are in the 
course of being introduced.

bri There has been some reduction in the number of errors we have had to

should be in an administrative operation of this type.
v . A reference was made in paragraph 53 of last year’s Report to the lack of 

rification of the correctness of contributions remitted to the Central Pay 
ivision in respect of employees of Crown corporations. We have been advised 
at action is being taken to correct this situation.

Paragraph No. 511 would suggest might be put forward to 1965.

dis 52 ^eiet*on °f debt without collection effort. In August 1963 it was 
covered that pension payments at a rate in excess of the limit fixed by the 

r he Service Pension Adjustment Act were being made to a pensioner. The 
to Ulting debt was deleted from the accounts by Executive order made pursuant 

Section 23(1) of the Financial Administration Act.
Although the amount involved was small, the action was taken without the 

rn„.Sl0ner being informed of the overpayment or any effort being made to 
the debt. In the interest of effective internal financial control, we 

that in no case should a debt due to the Crown be recommended for 
unless every effort has been made to collect.

Prill Paragraph 52 applies exclusively in 1964—that is deletion of a debt without 
Action effort.

believe
deletion

Our concern in this case stems partly from the fact that no attempt was 
kr e by the superannuation branch to recover the overpayment of pension. The 
g ,anch has admitted that the mistake has been entirely theirs, stating that the 
c ry from the pensioner who was over 82 years of age would probably 
her filtute financial hardship to her. The branch advised they were not aware of 
rece. nancial circumstances apart from the fact they presumed she would be in 
viJ* °f the old age pension as well as superannuation allowance. However, in 
R0 of her age they expressed reluctance to make inquiries unless the Treasury 

r needed such information.
the (">Ur v*ew here is that regardless of the circumstances of individual cases or 

banner in which inquiries are undertaken to satisfy the collection effort, the
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Committee might perhaps share our view that in no case should a debt due to 
the Crown be recommended to the Treasury Board and to the Governor in 
Council for deletion unless the person is aware of the debt and every effort is 
made to collect it. The Committee might care, it seems to me in this case, to 
note its concern that an account could so easily be written off under the 
circumstances that are described here.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question on that? There are 
circumstances in this case, of course, where it might be obvious that the 
government would not like to proceed, but would Mr. Henderson feel that 
something could be done in the line of a certificate to be attached by the 
appropriate official of the government to the effect—or is this already required 
—that there has been an effort made to collect and that the official certifies under 
all the circumstances involved a decision has been made not to proceed for 
certain reasons? In other words the onus should lie upon the government, 
before it abandons any debt of any kind, to attach a certificate, and under that 
certificate the government then takes the responsibility for its forgiveness of the 
debt. Now is this required under Section 23 of the Financial Administration Act 
at the present time?

Mr. Henderson: No, I do not think it is actually required, Mr. Baldwin, but 
I could not agree with you more, that if such a statement were put into the files 
and were seen by us that it would remove any doubt in our minds that 
adequate steps have not been taken to look into the matter before action was 
taken to write it off. It seems to me it is an elemental principle of internal 
financial control.

Mr. Bigg: Sometimes the cost of straightening this thing out in a cumber­
some legal manner might be a great deal more of a burden on the Crown than 
the small debt involved. I think in terms, say, of an old age pension where there 
is a typographical error in the cheque the old person thinks that if they got it m 
time they may get $10 more on their cheque. Now they can barely live on this 
$75—this money is spent maybe at Christmas time and then you write to them 
and ask them to refund this, which means that some time during the year they 
have to try to live on $65 a month. I think that here there should be some 
ministerial discretion and as long as the thing is covered by a proper declaration 
by the department or something to show that it is not arbitrary—

Mr. Henderson: Well I agree with you completely, Mr. Bigg. If somethin^ 
like that had been placed in the file with a memorandum from the person m 
charge indicating that they are fully aware of the circumstances, but in view 
these circumstances they had decided not to press it and accordingly to proceed, 
that would have met our point.

• (11:50 a.m.)
Mr. Winch: I would like to know from Mr. Henderson why it disturbs hih1 

in any way whatsoever in view of the fact that: “The resulting debt was deleted 
from the accounts by Executive order made pursuant to Section 23(1) of the 
Financial Administration Act.” As the action was taken pursuant to regular 
authority to be followed through by executive order what is the particul3 
reason for writing down this case as it was done pursuant to authority?
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th ^r' Long: That is a g°od question to ask here. There is no question about 
authority being adequate. What worries us here is that this was a mistake 

wade ln the superannuation branch. The lady who benefited from the mistake 
ttl ® never told that a mistake had been made. She does not know to this day 
arat she has been overpaid—at least officially she does not. But how as auditors 
tu° We !° kn°w that in fact somebody did not collect that from her and did not 
aJ\n |t in? The file was completely silent. No approach had been made to her 
0 a she knows nothing about what Treasury Board did on her behalf, and this 
Pens the whole thing up. Some unscrupulous clerk could write her a letter—if 
e is the type of person who does not want to be overpaid, who wants to be 
rÇ that anything that she owes is paid—collect the money and put it in his 

P°cket. Nobody would know.

Mr. Winch: But how could an unscrupulous clerk, you said—I am using 
atUr words—send that letter in view of the fact that by executive order certain 
ctlon was taken to ensure that she did not owe any money?

Mr. Long: Well, of course, he should not send such a letter but, then, 
ything a person of that sort does, along that Une, is wrong.

Mr. Carter: If it is established by executive order that the debt could be a 
‘stake and could be wiped out, would that not lead to some abuse? I know of a 

a®6> f°r instance> of a veteran who collected $9,000. Nobody collects $9,000 
att °Ut knowing that there is some error, and he did not draw it to anybody’s 

tention. Eventually, he tried to have it wiped out and it was wiped out by 
to ecutive order. I am just afraid that if this is established like that, it will lead 
j s°me abuse because some employee could, as you say, be using a dead file, 

SUe Qn executive order that this is wiped out. Who knows who got the money?
Lefebvre: I think Mr. Carter has brought up a very good point, 
the sum is $50, $5 or $9,000, the duty of the Auditor General, as I see 

make sure that the accounts are in order. We all feel the same way 
j^°ut the aged people. They need every cent they can get their hands on to live 
Qe that does not take any responsibility away from the office of the Auditor 
prierai. His job is to see that the books are kept the way they should be and 
rei°ther department will look after whether the money should be allowed to 
it Mm in the hands of those who are receiving it or not. This is the way I see 

aybe, Mr. Henderson could add to that.
ex Mr- Winch: That is my very point. The books must be in order because by 

ecutive order under section 23, clause 1, this is wiped out.

Mr. 
Whether 
:t> is to j

Mr. Henderson: As Mr. Long explained we went back, behind the circum- 
atid Ce' This originated as a mistake on the part of the Superannuation Branch 
ord ’ in checking the case through, it became apparent to us that if the executive 
a C‘ could be issued with the ease with which this one was issued, that is to 
Qutj.^hhout any memorandum being on file, attesting to, as I think Mr. Bigg 
bee ln<M’ the circumstances, then, in fact, a person like this might, perhaps, have 
sqa 1:1:16 aware of it and could possibly have tendered a cheque in her desire to 
Scr(1 re the books, and that cheque could have been manipulated by an un­
is ^^cus person. This has happened before in these cases. That is why I say it 

„_e ernental facet of internal financial control.
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Mr. Winch: Just one further question. With this executive order which 
wipes this mistake out, is it then conveyed and shown on the books to you, as 
an auditor, that this is wiped out by an executive order, therefore, there is no 
balance charged against that person?

Mr. Henderson: That is right. This wipes out the debt.
Mr. Winch: It wipes it out and it is shown on the books that you see?
Mr. Henderson: Oh, yes.
Mr. Winch: So, what you are going after is behind that, to see whether or 

not the executive order, should have been issued on the basis of information 
which you have on file, is that what you are after?

Mr. Lefebvre: Together with the information you received on why this 
executive order was given. Is this correct?

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
The Chairman: May I ask Mr. Long or Mr. Henderson, whether this 

Department has an accounts receivable ledger where this sort of thing would 
appear?

Mr. G. R. Long (.4/Assistant Auditor General, Auditor General’s Office)' 
It would just be in the file. They do establish accounts receivable lists. This 
would no longer be on the list now but the file would be there among the 
dormant files. As a matter of fact, she is still receiving an annuity so the fUe 
would be continuing.

The Chairman: Is there an accounts receivable file with the department?
Mr. Long: The notation of the over payment would be on the file. It is not 

included in a balance of accounts receivable owing to the Government of 
Canada.

Mr. Winch: That is the very point, sir, that I was trying to get at. After the 
executive order was issued, am I right in coming to the conclusion that there 
would be nothing on her account as an account receivable because it had been 
wiped out by the executive order?

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Winch: It would no longer show as an accounts receivable?
Mr. Long: The file would still contain information that an overpayment had 

been made.

Mr. Winch: But it would not show as an accounts receivable?
Mr. Long: No.
Mr. Baldwin: Am I correct, Mr. Henderson, in assuming that Parliament 

does have some measure of ultimate control because, under the Financial 
Administration Act, if these accounts, which are wiped out when a deletion i5 
made, are above a certain amount, they must be reported in the public accounts- 
of course, and can always be the subject of discussion when the estimates of the 
Department come out. If, for example, there were a sum of half a million dolla1"5 
of income tax or something similar where there had been a discharge or wipi°^ 
out of part of that, the members of the House have an opportunity of discussing
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lt in committee. However, if you have an amount less than the amount 
stipulated under the Financial Administration Act—and this is not necessarily 
the case-the details are not available, the only way in which the House can 
exercise its financial control over the government is for you to call attention to 
it and refer to it in your report, Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Henderson: There is information furnished in the public accounts on 
this. I think Mr. Long is looking for the reference.

The Chairman: While Mr. Long is looking for the reference may I point 
°ut we have two chartered accountants on our Committee, I think, Mr. Leb 
and Mr. Ballard This is very interesting for you people, I am sure.

Mr. Henderson- May I point out to Mr. Ballard and to Mr. Leblanc that 
there are no accounts receivable ledgers, as such, here. You are dealing with 

.he absence
W-SJSSS :»nt ™ è7=d wnïVe are dealing here essentia,,, 

Mth Mes sou und™scor=t as I see it. the importance of closmg up ever, ave- 

nue °f internal control.
b Mr. Long: The Financial Administration Act "^Thow up'because h was 

reP°rted by department. This particular accoun authority of the
e only one for the Department of Finance tha was t deleted under

52“ » Councih On the other' hand «tore
tt»t^rSng^oXBaS,u,6Sor about an, individual account.

The Chairman: If there had been more than one in that Departmen 
°uld not have shown up?

Mr. Long : No, you would not have seen the individual amount.

AuÏJr GP:r,,eand1he — order he^Someone

^ > Properl, sa, to Mr. Henderson: -You « —“ “ “ has bL 

Wiped ° ^uthority t0 trespass upon because y ^ to me that if you
adont °Ut and y°u should not be going into • * some synopsis of the
evidena Certificate> then the certificate shou was made so
thauhCeA0n Which the exeCUtive °rder’ ^ThLe checked the certificate-the
basis h Audltor’ in investigating, can say. there is
som a? Which ^ is made-and I found it to.be in order . * ^
Ckehhlng that g°es bey°nd what’ h^th;nn I am wrong in my summing up of 
the • hls cemments on the report. Perhaps I am g

sltuation but that is the way it appears to me.
*■—: I would express s:

thatl g t0 Mr- Cameron’s question that the mmended to the Treasury
Boa a n° case should a debt due to the Crown n is aware of?Cdand to the Governor in Council for deletion unless the person is aware

ebt and every effort has been made to collect it.
23943—34



120 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 3, 1966

Mr. Cameron (High Park): I do not think we are giving it to you. I 
understand that is what you want and I do not see that we are giving it to you.

The Chairman: Mr. Cameron, I think when we write our report, we will 
have this before the Committee. The Committee approves of it and in our report 
we will recommend that this very thing you suggest be given to Mr. Henderson.

Mr. Leblanc: Will that mean that you will be obliged to amend section 23 
(1) to make it more concise?

Mr. Long: There is no problem with the authority and there is no problem 
with what the Treasury Board and the Governor in Council did. This is quite 
in order.

Mr. Leblanc: I understand that. They did exactly what they could do in 
accordance with that section. So, legally, they are on the right side. But then, if 
you go further and say that no account should be deleted unless that amount is 
recovered—which, in that case, they did not do—or if section 23 authorizes them 
to delete the account, it may authorize them to delete it after having tried to 
recover the amount, then that would mean an amendment to the Act, would it 
not?

Mr. Henderson: I think it is important for the Auditor, in these circum- 
stances, to examine the files to be satisfied that proper steps were taken toward 
a collection effort before this executive action took place. We do that in all the 
cases where we can. Here is a case where we found debt had been written off 
very easily for perfectly sensible reasons.

• (12:05 p.m.)
The Chairman: I think, gentlemen, we will be able to discuss this more 

fully when we are under the chapter on “accounts receivable”. Am I right, Mr- 
Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: Indeed. That, to me, is quite important because of the 
point I made earlier.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, before we go on from there. 
I think we should be a little bit careful about it for this reason: there is 3 
special circumstance, it has been said, surrounding some elderly person w»° 
does not know the law and whom it might be very harsh to even acquaint with 
the fact that there has been an over payment. I am a little afraid of this effo1 
to collect. If there is some way by which the interests of the government and 0
the public can be protected without hurting the sensibilities of some people, if.
in the interests of the Governor in Council, it is felt that they should not be s° 
interfered with, then I think we should be careful to give that due considers' 
tion.

Mr. Henderson: I think you will appreciate it is only the principle that 
am concerned with here and, under no circumstances, the particular case, 
think it is a valid one and a proper one to be raised.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I agree with Mr. Henderson on that. Ther 
is a matter of principle involved. I was throwing out a word of caution. As ff 
as I am concerned, it appears to me there might be a danger of harshness 1 
dealing with some cases.
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The Chairman: Paragraph 53, Mr. Henderson.
^ENDERS0N: The subsidization of Fishermen’s Indemnity Plan, I would 

8gest that be put forward to 1965 as we deal with the same subject there.
rev- 53- Subsidization of Fishermen’s Indemnity Plan. During the year under 
CcnlfV197.000 was aPPr°Priated t0 meet the 1963-64 deficits arising in 
$29 onn °n With the °Perations of the Fishermen’s Indemnity Plan, of which 
the’pU u WaS required by the Lobster Trap Indemnity Account and $168,000 by 

!shing Vessel Indemnity Account.
p0r,.^e Flan, which was introduced in 1953-54 and is intended to be self-sup- 
Sca,Ing except for its administrative costs, provides insurance to assist small- 
Ves 6 | llermen in meeting losses incurred in respect of lobster traps and fishing 
theS j In the case of the lobster traps, premiums are assessed on the basis of 
fall Value category into which the established average appraised value per trap 
Ind ’ °r at a i°wer prescribed premium rate at the option of the fisherman. 
dammnity *S ^mited to those traps which cannot be recovered, or have been 
Wh- aged beyond repair, in excess of percentages of the total number of traps on 
""Wh u premium has been paid—depending on the fishing districts involved 
app lcd the indemnity per trap being substantially less than the established 
Vess aiSed value per trap used for the determination of premium. For a fishing 
a jy, ’.the Premium basis is one per cent of the appraised value of the vessel, to 
or p Xlmum of $12,500, and indemnity is regulated by formulae covering total 
seab0^ toss and whether the vessel is operated on the eastern or western

Payin'116 legislation provides that the Accounts may be charged with indemnity 
exce and credited with premium income with the debit balance not to 
C0u6d «50,000 at any time in accordance with regulations of the Governor in 
the p, Administrative expenses amounting to $2,251,000 since the inception of 
and lan to March 31, 1964 have been met through parliamentary appropriations 
Kot ar* therefore not taken into account in determining premium rates, 
deficit tanding this, both of the Accounts within the Plan have recorded net 
AcCouS from their introduction to March 31, 1964. The Lobster Trap Indemnity 
havjn nt has consistently been in a deficit position, the accumulated deficits 
Pr0duS-aggregated $662,000. The Fishing Vessel Indemnity Account, although 
net defiln^ surPluses during four fiscal years, most recently in 1960-61, showed a 

cit of $300,000 to the close of the year under review, 
the r^6 have discussed the circumstances surrounding the financial results of 
case P.eration °f the Plan with officials of the Department of Fisheries. In the 
of the Lobster Trap Indemnity Account, they have explained that deficits 
bicre °00 and $!53,000 in 1961-62 and 1962-63 respectively were due to an 
area 3Slng concentration of policyholders operating in a winter lobster fishing 
fact th N°Va Scotia where heavy seas are almost a daily occurrence, and the 
vUlner at insured fishermen tended to extend their operations into the most 
nient t 6 Iocations, with the result that it had been difficult for the Depar- 
situat ’ ° Plovide adequate surveillance. Steps have been taken to meet the 
an g^°n through the adoption of improved administrative procedures and by 
ificreasendment to the regulations early in 1964, in line with loss experience, to 

e the amount deducted for “normal” loss in the calculation of indemnity.



122 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 3, 1966

With respect to the Fishing Vessel Indemnity Account, abnormal weather 
conditions in most of the fishing areas have been reflected by heavy deficits over 
the past two years as compared with a satisfactory experience in prior years- 
The Department is presently engaged in a detailed study to ascertain the extent 
to which factors other than weather may have been operative during this period 
so as to determine what further changes in the regulations are practical or to 
what extent the premium rates should be revised.

Paragraph 54 deals with the winter house building program. Here is a case 
where the Minister of Labour announced, in the House, on March 26, 1964, that 
because the success of this program had led to shortages in labour and 
materials. As the substantial volume of housing construction reached the fina 
stages, the incentive payment would be denied to some builders whose dwell' 
ings would otherwise have been substantially completed by March 31, and 
therefore the date of final inspection under this program, as I say here, was 
extended from March 31 to April 15, 1964. This, however, was contrary t0 
Department of Labour Vote 34d which was quite specific in limiting it 
March 31.

Now I can point out to the Committee that the Minister of Labour, on 
March 23, 1965, announced in the House that the period for completion of the 
1964/65 winter program was again being extended to April 15, 1965, and the 
Minister added that it is the government’s intention to place before the House 
an item in the supplementary estimates for the fiscal year 1965/66 to authorize 
the extension of the program. This is what happened and, therefore, I would 
say, the action of the Minister in taking the following year in this way wouldj 
doubtless, commend itself to members of the Committee. That is the point 
raised by putting the extension in supplementary estimates for the House.

54. Winter house building program. Department of Labour Vote 34d in th® 
amount of $20 million authorized payments, in accordance with terms and 
conditions approved by the Governor in Council under the winter hous® 
building program, of $500 per dwelling unit substantially built during tbe 
period December 1, 1963 to March 31, 1964.

To establish that a dwelling unit was one on which the incentive could b® 
paid and which was substantially built within the period specified in lb® 
legislation required that it be subject to inspection, first, at or near its initia 
stage of construction on or after December 1, 1963, and finally prior to or aboU 
March 31, 1964. These inspections were made on behalf of the Department b? 
the Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation.

On March 26, 1964 the Minister announced in the House of Commons that 
because the success of the program had led to shortages in labour and materia
as the substantial volume of housing construction reached the final stages, th®
incentive payment would be denied to some builders whose dwellings wonId
otherwise have been substantially completed by March 31, and therefore 
date of final inspection under this program was being extended from March 
to April 15, 1964.

th®
31

qtThe effect of this would seem to be that some dwelling units that were n1 
substantially built on or before March 31, 1964 would be regarded as qualify111.
for an incentive bonus and therefore the extension of the time for 
inspection required the approval of Parliament.

fina1
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Mr. Winch: May I suggest that the steering committee take under advise- 
ent this matter of the calling of a representative from Central Mortgage and 
ousing Corporation. There are certain aspects of this matter which pass my 
niprehension. What are contractors doing in writing contracts saying they will 

^ °,w the winter works program after the winter works is through? I would like 
have a clear explanation. Perhaps the steering committee might consider

a lng such a representative?
The Chairman: A note is made of that.

Mr. Henderson:y 55- Questionable charge to Vote 70 of the Department of Mines and 
°hnical Surveys. During the first three months of 1964 a hydrographic vessel 

derated by the Department of Mines and Technical Surveys assisted the Royal 
cavy hi charting safer shipping channels in the Caribbean Sea. The costs of 
oyhada’s operation, which were estimated to be $75,000 in excess of what 

erhead costs would have been if the vessel had remained in her normal 
for tv,r lay-uP condition, were charged to the appropriation (Vote 70) provided 
o the administration, operation and maintenance of the Department’s Marine

fences Branch.Va] 11 is understood that Canada’s participation in this project provided 
retiUable Staff training for departmental personnel and also an opportunity to 
crv, service in kind to the Royal Navy which originally charted Canadian

°astal waters.
hi our view, however, it is questionable whether such an undertaking falls 

De ‘n ambit of the Department’s responsibilities as laid down by the
artment of Mines and Technical Surveys Act, R.S., c. 73.MintParagraPh 55. Questionable charge to Vote 70 of the Department of 

honnkiand Technical Surveys. This is exclusively a 1964 item. It is ques- 
the J31®’. in our view, whether the undertaking described here fell within 
surv blt of the responsibilities of the Department of Mines and Technical 
t0 vys as laid down in its Act. The cost of $75,000, as I say here, was charged 
Dor,° e providing for the administration, operation and maintenance of the 
ihelu, ment’s Marine Sciences Branch without any reference to the possible 
out ^ therein of these particular expenses. A similar program was cairied 
tal a 965-66 and parliament approved of charging the costs to the departmen-

Propriation by passing a dollar item, vote 15d.Piuan -*s one of the specific duties of the Auditor General, as set out in the 
aPplW 31 ^ministration Act, to call attention in his report to any appropriation 
Chaj a purpose not authorized by parliament. All I have to say here, Mr. 
exPrJ/an- is that it would be helpful if the Committee were prepared to 
aPpr0n ■US concern that expenditures should be incurred as charges to an

riati°n to which they are not normally related.Chairman: Any questions on that? It will not appear again in 1965.
eonc^r- Henderson: It is a rather basic point, as far as our operations are 
are cha^61^’ bu^ we always have to watch for this; that is to say, see that 1

rged to the right appropriation.
6 Chairman: Number 56.

are
they
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Mr. Henderson:
56. National Defence administrative regulations and practices. The Public 

Accounts Committee in its Sixth Report 1964 expressed its pleasure that 
appropriate changes had been or were in the process of being made in each of 
the Armed Forces administrative regulations which had been commented on in 
our 1963 Report. The Committee requested the Auditor General to inform the 
House of Commons of any case where the changes appear to be inadequate or 
where abuse and waste of public funds develop (see Appendix 1, item 22). The 
following paragraphs give brief outlines of the matters which remained uncor­
rected during the year under review and of several similar matters coming to 
our attention during the year.

1. release from service through purchase—In the 1963 Report 
(paragraph 64 (2)) it was noted that while the Air Force and the 
Navy required the payment of money for “other ranks’’ to obtain 
release on request, the Army had not done so since 1950. While the 
Department expected that the practice would be reinstituted with 
respect to the Army, orders giving effect to this have not yet been 
promulgated.

2. removal expenses—mobile homes.—In the 1963 Report (paragraph 
64(3) ) it was observed that although new instructions were being 
issued to deal with the situation, it would seem appropriate that the 
regulations also be amended to include specific directions with 
respect to the movement of mobile homes and their contents. The 
new instructions referred to were issued in the fall of 1963 and the 
Department decided that a year’s experience would be required to 
assess their effectiveness. Based on experience gained in the tria1 
period, new regulations are now being prepared.

3. excessive payments for travel on transfer.—Servicemen are per' 
mitted by the regulations to use their personally-owned automobile 
to transport themselves and their dependents to new places of duty 
and are entitled to claim mileage allowances to cover transportation» 
meals and accommodation expenses based on direct road mileage a 
various rates, formulated on the basis of a Service member travel' 
ling 300 miles per day. The regulations also provide reimbursemeh 
of the cost of meals and accommodation at destination during th® 
period the serviceman is awaiting the arrival of his furniture an 
effects or while arranging permanent accommodation. In the coui*5® 
of audit it was noted that Service Orders presently permit th 
payment of both allowances in cases where moves of less than 3° 
miles are completed in one day. As a result, the entitlement f° 
meals and accommodation is in effect duplicated and the c0 
becomes excessive. A restrictive instruction is now under consider3 
tion by the Department.

4. uneconomical mode of transportation.—Under present regulation 
members on duty travel may at the discretion of the Command!1! 
Officers use their motor cars for their own convenience. In the aud1 ’ 
instances were observed where two or more members of the sah1 
unit travelled to the same destination for the same purpose, eaC 
member being allowed to use his own car and receive the applied
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mileage allowance. For example, five Army members travelled 
singly from Calgary, Alberta, to Meaford, Ontario, and return, each 
using his motor car and claiming the mileage allowances provided 
for by the regulations. Had they travelled as a group by rail, a 
saving of some $400 would have been effected. When this matter was 
brought to the attention of the Department, instructions were issued 
to assist Commanding Officers to determine whether approval should 
be granted servicemen to use personally-owned motor cars for their 
own convenience on duty travel.

go j ati°nal Defence administrative regulations and practices. This note can 
four°rWarC* to *965 but I would like to place on the record that two of the 
The filtGms included in this note have since been satisfactorily cleared up. 
lg6e f rst one is item one: Release from service through purchase. In April, 
rein Vth6 acting chief of personnel directed that release by purchase be 
the S ltuted in the Canadian army and the practice is now uniform throughout 

e service.Prorn^m tllree: Excessive payments for travel on transfer. By an order 
°Usl Ufgated in December, 1964, the entitlement to two allowances simultane- 
hotey f°r meals and accommodation under the circumstances described in the 
in th ^aS removed. We will, of course, be discussing, as I say, this total subject

ne 1965 report.
The Chairman: Paragraph 57.
Mr- Henderson:r6com7' Lease termination payments. The Public Accounts Committee has been 

inent I?endin§ since 1960 that the maximum term for lease termination pay- 
t0 thS t0 servicemen be reduced from three months’ rent as presently permitted 
in it 6 equivalent of one month’s rent. Following the recommendation contained 
f0r <j- Flfth Report 1961, the Department amended the regulations to provide 
dij n1Scretionary powers to be exercised in dealing with individual cases, but it 
month aS ^ar as f° reduce the maximum period from three months to one

0Phfio itS Sixth ReP°rt 1964 the Public Accounts Committee expressed the 
too Sl,n ^a.l the present regulation permitting payment of three months’ rent is 
again ScePtible to abuse and results in a waste of public funds. The Committee 
beri0cjrtecommended that the regulations be changed to reduce the maximum 
furthe l° one month, but as it does not wish to see servicemen penalized, it 
hiay br rec°mmended that there be a proviso that payment up to three months 
Depots M-a<^e in cases of hardship, provided such cases are approved by the 
blatter- lnister (see Appendix 1, item 23). We have been informed that the 

^ 18 CUrrently under review by the Department. 
mitteeeahSe termination payments. This is a matter on which your Com- 
Sijjtb rj as been making recommendations since 1960. As stated here in its 
to redu °rt 1964’ the Committee recommended that the regulation be changed 
but as Ce the maximum period of lease termination payment to one month, 
I‘ec°mm ^ does not wish to see servicemen penalized, it made the further 
be mad ”dati°n that there be a proviso that payment up to three months may 
lister t11 Cases of hardship, providing such cases are approved by the Deputy 

11 am pleased to advise the Committee that this matter, although it has
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been under review by the Department of National Defence for a long time, is 
now being settled.

Mr. Winch: Is it being settled satisfactorily?
Mr. Henderson: The board has approved a recommendation that reim­

bursement of one month’s rent or lease liability should be the maximum 
allowed except that up to three months may be authorized by the Minister to 
avoid individual cases of hardship. The Treasury Board decided to approve this 
recommendation on condition that the Department submit for approval a 
definite set of guidelines within six months against which individual cases for 
reimbursement of more than one month’s liability would be judged. The board 
was also asked for a report at the end of the first two years on the number and 
cost of claims accepted and rejected which cover a liability period of more than 
one month. This change was promulgated in the regulations with effect from 
May 20, 1965. I can advise the Committee that careful records have been 
maintained at the Department of National Defence of the extent to which cases 
have been approved and I am further advised that while the reduction in the 
armed forces renders it difficult to pinpoint the exact savings stemming from 
the new regulations, the reduction in costs as the result thereof for the period 
from May, 1965, to February 28, 1966, has amounted to $125,000. I am sure the 
outcome of this matter will recommend itself to you.

The Chairman: This is one matter that your Public Accounts Committee 
has studied for two or three reports. It is nice to hear such fine results as 
Mr. Henderson has just stated.

Mr. Bigg: I think, in this, general section 56 is wrong, is it not?
The Chairman: Paragraph 57.
Mr. Bigg: I would like to go back to paragraph 56, just for a moment. On 

this question of when the members of the armed forces and the Mounted Police, 
which come under the same regulations regarding leave the service or are 
transferred, it is my understanding they are arbitrarily assigned to some 
moving company. Sometimes these people have transportation of their own and 
they would be very pleased to take, shall we say, 75 per cent of the cost of 
moving themselves. Sometimes it is more economical to sell their furniture and 
repurchase it at the new location. It is my understanding they are no longer 
allowed to do this. I think this would be a considerable saving to the publie 
purse as well as convenience to the members of the armed forces and the 
Mounted Police if they were allowed to take the 75 per cent cash settlement- 
Let the government go ahead and take a tender, but I think that these members 
should be allowed to take advantage of this opportunity in their moving, which 
they are not allowed to do. It would save a considerable amount of money f°r 
the government as well.

The Chairman: That is an interesting observation, Mr. Bigg.
Mr. Henderson: May we look into that, Mr. Bigg, and then speak to i* 

when we discuss the 1965 report? This item will come up again there?
Mr. Bigg: It was brought to my attention by members of the armed forces-
Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 58.
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58. Educational costs incurred by the Department of National Defence In 
the 1963 Report (paragraph 65) it was noted that audit examinations at selected 
departmental schools in Ontario indicated that there had been unsatisfactory 
control over the computation of grants receivable from the provincial Depart­
ment of Education in some cases claims not having been made in respect of 
outlays eligible for grants. In its sixth Report 1964 the Public Accounts 
Committee requested the Auditor General to follow this matter up to determine 
that amounts of grants underclaimed in the past are recovered and that 
Practices adopted by the Department avoid losses in the future are adequate 
(see Appendix 1, item 26). . ...

At the close of the fiscal year action was being taken to ensure that 
aPplications for grants are properly made in future and, following coriespond- 
ence with the Department of Education of Ontario with a view to obtaining 
grants underclaimed in prior years, the Department is preparing revised claims 
°r submission to the Province. . , ,

1L This is exclusively 1964. You may recall the Committee asked me to follow 
this matter up and determine that amounts of grants underclaimed m the past 
are recovered and that practices adopted by the Department to avoid losses in 
the future are adequate. In the 1966 follow-up report I quoted from a letter I 
had received from the Minister of National Defence on March 5, 1965, which was 
^°st helpful. I can tell the Committee that recoveries from 13 school boards up 
1° April 15, 1966, approximated $116,000 and it is estimated that an additional $H000 to $44,000 will be recovered from seven other school boards. The 
Committee might be disposed to consider that their recommendation made in 
their Sixth Report which is item 18 of the follow-up report has, therefoie, been 
^Plemented. It would be my feeling that that is what you would wish to say.

The Chairman: Paragraph 59.
Mr. Henderson:

parj. Construction of destroyer escort vessels. In 1950 and 1951 the De- 
p-ont of Defence Production awarded 13 contracts on a cost plus 5 per cent 
Ho basis to 7 shipyards for the construction of destroyer escort vessels for the 

p Canadian Navy, the last of which was commissioned in November 1959. 
c0ftl art °f the construction work involved incorporating into the ships certain 
man °fnents supplied by the Crown. As the actual cost of the components 
estim .acturec* by other contractors had not been determined, a billing price was 
The d eC*’ *3ut nevertheless the shipyards were charged on a firm price basis, 
the 5 °unts of the billings thus became part of the shipyards’ cost on which 
Were »? cent Profit was calculated. While the final costs for all components 
excgg.0 available at the fiscal year-end, it is estimated that the billing prices 

(V actual cost by some $1,483,000.
of som nSJI UC^on destroyer escort vessels. This note shows how excess profits 
this t0 *‘4,000 has been paid by the crown and shipyard contracts. We drew 
Woujçj0 attention of the department and we were advised that steps 
follow 6 taken to effect recovery from the contractors. We have been 
m Marcif ^is .matter up with the Department of Defence Production, and 
CoilcluSi °f ^is year they made certain observations to us, with the following 

°n> and I am quoting from their letter:
The possibilities of obtaining a refund from the shipbuilders have 

een discussed with them. They note that they simply received five per
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cent of total cost billed to them by the department and in their opinion 
there is no reason why subsequent differences between the total price 
paid by the Department of Defence Production for main components and 
the price billed to them should give rise to further negotiations. In fact, 
the original settlement was made for the precise purpose of eliminating 
the need for further adjustments.

There are seven shipyards involved and this issue has attracted the 
attention of the Shipbuilders’ Association. Had the approval of Treasury 
Board been obtained in 1959, the department’s position would have been 
technically sound. The department’s objective was good and it did issue 
final amendments to amendments to these contracts. The question now is 
being reviewed by the Minister who has decided that no further recovery 
action shall be taken and that the contract shall remain undisturbed.

I think your concern here will probably be that delays in establishing final 
costs of material supplied the contractors should, in this way, result in added 
profits to the contractors. There has been considerable discussion of this matter, 
as I say, since the point was raised and—

An hon. Member: It goes beyond that, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Winch: It goes to a very vital principle, in my estimation, and that is 

the position of a shipyard, and that we have no right to say that there should be 
re-negotiation on their profit structure. I take it, that is what your quotation 
means; that the government, the Department of National Defence, the Depart­
ment of Defence Production or anything else, has no right to query them whatso­
ever if we think there has been an over-payment. There is a most vital principle- 
If the shipyards take that position, I think they should be stepped on and stepped 
on mighty hard especially when we read that the billing exceeded the actual cost 
by $1,483,000. To try to tell the government, a department or this Committee 
that it is none of our business is a little bit of impudence that we should not 
accept. It is our business. We are the guardians of the people’s money.

• (12:20 p.m.)
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): May I ask, does the department acknowl' 

edge this excess profit of $74,000?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, they do, Mr. Thomas. We drew the necessary atten­

tion to it and it is, as a result of this, that they have attempted, ever sincd, to 
effect recovery. The advice I have recieved here, which I quoted to you, is tha 
they feel no further action can now be taken. They have explored all channel5 
and they feel the matter will have to stand.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Will they be any wiser for it?
Mr. Henderson: I might ask Mr. Douglas. Are you familiar with where tW5 

stands, Mr. Douglas?
Mr. J. R. Douglas (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office): Mr. Chair' 

man, I think the decision of the department stems from the fact that in order 
eliminate the continual adjustment in the price of the components supplied 
the contractors, it was decided that they would estimate the probable final c° 
as carefully as possible and advise the shipbuilders of the amount and the 
settle the five per cent fee on that basis. Therefore, the shipbuilders had th
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understanding that there would be no further settlement after this final 
estimated cost upon which the five per cent profit would be taken.

Mr. Chairman: I must confess that I do not understand this. I would like 
an example of how this comes about from start to finish. Are there other 
members in the Committee interested in this?

Mr. Lefebvre: I would like to know, Mr. Chairman, would the contractor 
aware, when he receives a contract, that certain components would be 

supplied by the crown, as stated here in item 59, or would he be under the 
impression, when he received a contract, that he would be supplying all the
components.

Mr. Henderson: No. I think he knew that the components were coming 
r°m the department. Is that right, Mr. Douglas?

Mr. Douglas: Yes, that is correct.
Mr. Lefebvre: He knew all the time. Therefore, he should not be eligible 

for five per cent profit on something in which he has no investment of any kind.
Mr. Henderson: It is my recollection of the circumstances, from my study 

°t the case—
Mr. Winch: That is the point I was trying to raise.
Mr. Bigg: I think I missed something here. In the last paragraph it states 

“we have drawn this to the attention of the department and they have taken 
steps to recover it”. This has been superseded, has it?

Mr. Henderson: The Minister has decided that no further recovery action is 
P°ssible, after exploring the matter. I was quoting from a letter that

Mr. Bigg: Did he give any reason why he did not think 
, Mr. Henderson: Only the reason that I put on the record, M. Bigg. There 
ave been very strong objections, of course, from the shipbuilders. This matter 
as been going on for a long time and these contracts

Mr. Bigg: If we collect from an old age pension $10.00 overpayment on an 
0 ^ a8e pension cheque, surely we can collect from Armsti ong
, Mr. Henderson: I do not know whether the Committee would consider 

a witness from the Department but I have an alternate suggestion to 
°ffer. Mr. Chairman, and that would be that, with your permission, we will 
^cuss this with the department and ask if they will give us a memorandum 

read at the next meeting answering the very points you have brought out.
de Mr. Lefebvre: Is it strictly in shipbuilding that this occurs or is it in all

ePartrnents °f the government?
^ Mr. Henderson: No, this is just in connection with these 13 contracts. They

6re awarded back in 1950 and 1951, so it has been a long time.
y. ^r- Lefebvre- It is not the general course in government contracts, other

an shipbuilding, that this is done, where the government supplies part of the 
material.

Mr. Henderson: No.
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Mr. Winch: The important thing to you, Mr. Henderson as Auditor General 
is, in your examination, which is your responsibility, you want to draw the 
attention of the House of Commons and this Committee to the fact that you 
think something is wrong, and I quote “it is estimated that the billing prices 
exceed actual cost by some $1,483,000”. You oppose a billing and, therefore, a 
payment which in your estimation as Auditor General, exceeded cost by some 
$1,483,000?

Mr. Henderson: May I ask Mr. Long to speak on that. He has looked into 
this more recently than I.

Mr. Long: I think the difficulty here is, you must remember that the 
Department of Defence Production has a revolving fund. Ships are pretty big 
items. They are going to supply certain components. These are not a simple 
matter of materials; they are something that has to be fabricated so costs are 
coming from different plants all over the place. These costs take a while to come 
in; they are subject to cost audit, in some cases, and adjustments but, in the 
meantime, the shipbuilder needs to have the billing for these materials. He gets 
his profit all right on the materials supplied to him, because he pays for that 
material.

Mr. Lefebvre: How would this $1,483,000 compare to the total amount paid 
for the building of the 13 ships? What percentage are we talking about?

Mr. Henderson: Have you got that information here?
Mr. Winch: In the same way, what relationship has it got? It is $1,483,000 

we should not have spent, according to this.
Mr. Long: It is only the $74,000 profit on that $1,483,000 that we are talking 

about.
Mr. Lefebvre: It says here, “while the final costs for all components were 

not available at the fiscal year-end, it is estimated that the billing prices exceed 
actual cost by some $1,483,000”. Would this be the cost to the contractor?

Mr. Long: Your problem is, how was this excess adjusted? The answer to 
that is, it was adjusted between Defence Production and National Defence, 
leaving the shipbuilder out of it. In other words, going direct. This may have 
been a reduction of profits on some of the purchases of these materials. The 
credit went to National Defence direct rather than going through the shipbuild­
er, but the shipbuilder, in the meantime, had the profit on that figure. He 
retained it.

Mr. Henderson: The five per cent is on the $1,483,000, that is how the 
$74,000 is arrived at. Do you see that?

Mr. Flemming: What is the relationship of the $1,483,000 to the total cost 
of the 13 vessels?

Mr. Long: The cost is $69.6 million.
Mr. Flemming: For the total cost of the 13 ships?
Mr. Long: That was your question.
Mr. Flemming: Yes.
Mr. Bigg: The $74,000 is five per cent of this $1,483,000?

>
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Mr. Henderson: Yes, that is why the figure is shown.
Mr. Bigg: What they are saying here is that they have overcharged. 

Because they did not pay out this on this government supplied equipment, they 
are getting $74,000, as a five per cent bonus, which they should not be getting 
and I do not think they should be getting it either.

Mr. Henderson: That is why we think it should be collected and when we 
drew it to their attention, they agreed.

Mr. Lefebvre: The contractor actually did work for this $1,483,000?
Mr. Henderson: No, as Mr. Long explained, that was between two depart­

ments, I think, Mr. Long, it was between the Department of Defence Production 
and the Department of National Defence.

Mr Winch- The shipyards want their five per cent on the departmental 
exchange. They want their $74,000 although they had nothing to do with it. It is 
a Pretty serious principle.

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Flemming: My question is this. What was the understanding with the 

contractors with respect to these items. Was it that as soon as they determined 
Wiat the actual price should be the accounts should be adjusted, or was it that 
j-he Department said “we are going to supply these. We will set a price on them. 
Diis will be the final price and that is it”? Now I am just wondering if there 
*as an understanding between the contractor and the Department with refer- 
ehce to what proved to be an understatement of cost?

Mr. Winch: I am also very interested. Would you please add to your 
Question, if I may suggest it, should a shipbuilding firm get a profit percentage 
°n what is strictly a bookkeeping adjustment between two federal depart­
ments?

Mr. Flemming: Yes, of course I will be glad to add it but my point is, if the 
^Partaient said, “look, we are going to finalize this by saying the price will be 
g and so and that ends it”, then it seems to me that the transaction is ended.

if they say, “we will put this in at a certain figure” and then the figure 
ofI*l°Ps as $1,400,000 less, then surely they are not entitled to the five per cent 

the $1,400,000.
see ^r' Henderson: That was the point that we turned up, Mr. Flemming. You 
QM ’ as the note states, as the actual cost of the components manufactured by 
v Cr contractors had not been determined, the billing price was estimated, 
the nthel6SS’t*16 shipyards were charged on a firm price basis. The Minister or 

department wrote in March this year. They said that the shipbuilders note 
they simply received five per cent of total cost billed to them by the 

and, in their opinion, there is no reason why subsequent differences 
total price paid by the Department of Defence Production for main 
and the price billed to them should give rise to further negotiations. 
ieir five per cent on the estimated price and they intend to keep it.

§°ip^r ®IGG: Ho we think it is a serious point of principle? If this has been 
aFe 8 °n> let us, for the future, stop it now by saying that when these contracts 

Negotiated with the government, we make it abundantly clear as to where

, «uent
eolWeen the
>Ponents 

heY have tl
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the five per cent should be attached and where not. To reduce it to absurdity, if 
you build a stone boat in a foundry and you load it with radar equipment and 
the government supplied the radar equipment, it might be worth a million 
dollars and the stone boat might be worth $10,000. You are certainly not going 
to pay the foundry five per cent of the government supplied radar equipment 
just because they built a stone boat. If we are doing that, then I just suggest 
that we put a stop to it because it is obviously wrong.

If, perhaps, for some reason, we do not want to recover the $74,000, we 
could set down a principle now that we are not going to carry on this way in 
the future.

The Chairman: Could we ask the department officials if this is what is 
being done or have they changed their policy?

Mr. Henderson: I think it would be very helpful if they might be given a 
chance to read these exchanges and be invited to either make a statement or to 
appear in answer to it. Possibly a statement would suffice. Would that be 
satisfactory to the Committee?

The Chairman: The Committee agrees that the officials make a statement.
Mr. Lefevbre: Could I ask exactly what the contract stated? I think that is 

important.
Mr. Henderson: We will see that it is an all-inclusive statement and bear 

Mr. Bigg’s final summing up in mind and see if the department could not reply’ 
It might save the time of the Committee by following that course.

The Chairman: Mr. Cameron, did you have something else on this?
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Yes, I have something that is really sup' 

plemental to Mr. Flemming’s thinking and other comments that have been 
made. Was the Minister’s decision not to try and collect the $74,000 based on a 
legal opinion furnished to him by either his departmental solicitors or by the 
Department of Justice, or was it simply his own decision? What is hi5 
interpretation of the contract?

Mr. Henderson: We might invite the department to answer that question lP 
their reply. Would that be satisfactory, Mr. Cameron?

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Yes, certainly.
The Chairman: Paragraph 60.
Mr. Henderson:
60. Equipment disposed of in error. In April 1963 a unit of electron1^ 

aircraft navigational equipment, originally costing more than $9,000 and havi^ 
an estimated replacement cost of $15,000, was returned for repairs to an ^ 
Force supply section. Due to an error, the equipment, instead of being repair6 ' 
was declared as surplus to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation and was sold to 
customer, together with other surplus materiel, at a scrap price of $20. T*1 
purchaser in turn sold the equipment for a nominal sum to an individual w*6’ 
being aware of the actual value of the unit, refused to return it and D 
reasonably compensated.

A Board of Inquiry concluded that faulty procedures respecting the deter 
mination as to whether materiel should be declared surplus to Crown Asse ^ 
Disposal Corporation contributed to the improper disposal and expressed apPre
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hension that similar instances might have occurred. The Department has since 
revised its procedures.

Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 60. Equipment disposed of in error. The case 
described here represents, of course, a straight mistake. I understand it has not 
been possible to remedy it by securing the equipment from the purchaser ana 
that now the equipment may, in fact, be largely obsolete. All I can say ere is 
that you may wish to express concern that a mistake like this should occur, 
understand no disciplinary action was taken by the department I mention that 
because some members of the Committee invariably ask me that question.

Mr. Flemming: Mr. Chairman, is the first item in the sale by the Crown 
Assets a declaration that the Crown Assets are not required to deliver anything 
tf they find a mistake has been made?

If it is after delivery, I do not see how they are going to get it back but that 
Probably is the case at this time.

Mr. Henderson: This has been exhaustively examined and it is \er> much
be exception, I am happy to say. .

The next paragraph, item 61, is also a 1964 item. Medical fees improperly
retained by a Service medical officer.

61. Medical fees improperly retained by a Service medical officer Contrai y
0 Service regulations and orders, an Air Force medical o cer i medicalreceived from the Group Surgical Medical Insurance Kan for medical
eatment provided to dependents of Service personnel in a . ^1963 the officer was found guilty of conduct to the p £
der and discipline and was reprimanded and fined $ ■
en taken to recover the amount improperly retained by uni. 

r In October 1963 the officer was released from the b
In^A6St’ without restitution having been requested io justice which has£ August 1964 the matter was referred to the Department of Justice which has
landed payment of $4,053 from the former officer.

Qf This case describes how an Air Force medical officer retamed amounts 
°f *4-053. In March, 1963 this officer was found guilty of to th
^ludice of good order and discipline and was reprimanded and fined ^uu. six 
>ths late in October 1963 he was released from the service at his own 
reqUpst „ ln Uct0Der- iaDi5\ w , . *4 053 having been requested fromhiii 6St’ aSam, without any restitution of the $4,u matter wasÏÏ1 °r offered by him. It was not until ten months later ^ the matter was

an a!!ncy in public funds should be settled for in the amount °f $2 500 although 
amount of only $1,000 has been offered by the ex-officers solicite •
In a , . Tl.,tipp advised that the settlement»<ter ‘he “Â chelue w« fomïded to the Department

Of vr K500 had been accepted. A cheque was not* National Defence Mv concern here is that recovery of this money was not

“-rmfdifh^rwt sr=s
servi

s ^ ihe initial instance when me omra —— „ ice rtSr’ when he asked for his discharge, and was released from the
23943^C’here was such an extensive time lag that it seemed to me to work



134 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 3, 1966

against the best interests of the Department in their efforts to collect. To sum it 
up, I feel it demonstrates the lack of effective administrative action.

Mr. Lefebvre: Do you know if, when a sentence such as this is imposed, 
recommendations are made that restitution be made also as part of the sentence 
for the crime?

Mr. Henderson: I do not think I quite understood your question.
Mr. Lefebvre: When the judgment is given and a fine of $200 was imposed 

on this gentlemen, was a recommendation made by the judge or the officer in 
charge of the inquiry that he give back the money.

Mr. Henderson: No, sir; my understanding is definitely not. Mr. Douglas, 
could I ask if you would check me on this.

Mr. Lefebvre: Is this usually the case?
Mr. Henderson: I would hope not.
Mr. Bigg: Was this deficiency known at the time. Perhaps it was not until 

the yearly checkup of the station’s books that the full size of his misconduct 
came to light. They may not have known—

Mr. Henderson: It was known at the time but no effort was made—
Mr. Leblanc: He was working then, was he, when action was taken. If the 

action was just mentioned misconduct and nothing was said about the refund of 
the money, well the judge could not say that the money should be refunded.

Mr. Henderson: That is right. It was found that he had taken the money.
Mr. Leblanc: It depends on the way the action was taken, of course.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Who is entitled to the money?
Mr. Henderson: The Crown* the Department of National Defence.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): They over-paid?
Mr. Henderson: Yes. The Department of National Defence, I think now, 

having received the compromised settlement, are in the process of determining 
how much should be refunded to the plan.

Mr. Lefebvre: I was under the impression that no charges at all were to be 
made to the dependents, whether to the Crown or to an individual?

Mr. Henderson: That involves the working of this particular plan and 
perhaps Mr. Douglas could answer a question on that, could you? Can you add 
anything further to that, Mr. Douglas?

Mr. Douglas: The dependents, in this particular location, were entitled W 
free medical attention but they were insured under the group medical plan and 
claims were made. The cheques were made payable to the officer concerned wh° 
cashed them. However, the money should rightly have belonged to the Crown 
rather than the medical officer but he retained the funds.

Mr. Lefebvre: Would this be a group plan with an independent compand’ 
you mean?

Mr. Douglas: Yes, it was the government group medical plan.
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Mr. Baldwin : Might I ask Mr. Douglas over what length of period this 
system of defalcation took place and was the plan one which did not provide for 
some investigation? In other words, was this continued over a long period of 
time; was there no opportunity, no method, to check on the fact that this 
Particular officer was retaining these funds in his possession? Is it the practice 
that officers do retain or can retain in their possession sums of money like this 
Without there being any check on it? Is this the common practice?

Mr. Douglas: This extended over a period of about two years, 1961 and 
1962.

Mr. Bigg: Did they rule that the doctor actually knew this was going on or 
Was there an error in his accounting system?

Mr. Henderson: I think the file indicates that he was aware of what he was 
doing.

Mr. Lefebvre: Yes, I know, but you say it existed for two years.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): It would appear that he was collecting for 

Medical services from this group plan for people who were already covered 
under the armed services. Therefore, he must have known that what he was 
doing was a straight case of fraud.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me there must have been some laxity 
°n the part of the counsel that represented the government when this case was 
heard. Would this be —

Mr. Henderson: I do not know that. I did not find myself blaming the 
counsel so much, Mr. Noble, as the fact that having knowledge of this there did 
Uot seem to be any concern to go after it. If they had got after it early, they 
Might have salvaged more. That is why I said that I feel there is a lack ol 
effective administration here. The chap came along six months later and asked 
M be released from the service. Again, the matter was not raised. That would 
nave afforded them a second chance. It was only ten months after that that they 
g°t around to asking the Department of Justice if they would please go and
collect. If they started earlier, knowing about it, they might have followed it 
Up—

Mr. Noble: It seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that this is a pretty small 
penalty for a man who has been able to get away with this amount of money,
and not have to refund the money that he has taken illegally. It must have been 
illegal.

Mr. Bigg: I have one of these plans myself. Once I got a cheque sent to me 
Personally by the insurance company for $192. They sent it to me because they 
c°uld not read the doctor’s signature. It is quite possible the doctor did not pay, 
what I would caU, direct personal attention to these things. He did not sign 
deques. They can go through to the bank and be deposited to his account I 
*n°w as j said) it would take a Philadelphia lawyer to understand my surgical
Medi
vwheth,

lcal plan. The way they pay is very hazy indeed. Sometimes I do not know
j ,'“er I owe the doctor or whether I do not owe him deductible insurance. As 

> they sent me the cheque and it should have gone to the doctor. I signedthe Papers saying “please pay my physician”. Unless the doctor himself was
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personally knowledgable that he was doing this thing intentionally and cheating 
the people, I can see why he was not severely dealt with.

About collecting the money, again it seems to be in accordance with other 
ministerial departments to say, “well, is this a case where we should go beyond 
the offence on the face of it, and collect the money back from the doctor or 
not”? Somebody made a decision, I suppose.

The Chairman: There is one difference, Mr. Bigg. In your case the amount 
was $192 and this is over $4000.

Mr. Bigg: That is right but there were four doctors in this particular case 
and none of them, to my knowledge, handled the accounts, the payment of money 
at any time. The girls do it behind the desk and deposit my cheque or my cash 
to his account in the bank. It certainly is quite possible that he did not know 
that this was going on to the extent that it was. There must be some reason for 
the laxity.

Mr. Long: Mr. Bigg, this was a service doctor who was in receipt of a 
salary from the Crown. Therefore, any money he collected should have been 
revenue—

Mr. Bigg: He was not running any other private practice?
Mr. Long: I do not think so.
Mr. Henderson: He was on the payroll.
Mr. Bigg: Yes, I know.
Mr. Baldwin: What you are saying is, it is a fact that no action was taken 

and this lack of action might have originated because of the laxity in failing t0 
see that this practice continued for a period of two years and this service officer 
was allowed to carry on a practice which permitted him to retain this $4,000: 
They, very likely, may be the same people who failed to initiate the action that 
might have resulted in the money being returned to where it belongs before the 
officer left the service. This is what I think is important.

Mr. Bigg: Where doctors are on stations, like Cold Lake Airport, in the Ah 
Force, I do not believe they are prevented from practicing their profession 
when they are not, shall we say, required at the station. I believe there are not 
only army personnel and air force personnel at that station, but there are as 
many civilians, as, and in some cases more than there are service personnel. ItlS 
my understanding these men are allowed to practice their profession as long 
they do their duty in the Air Force. I am just saying, let us not be too hasty 
and say this man is a confirmed criminal when he may be carrying on 3 
doctoring practice. Carelessness in bookkeeping is not necessarily criminal in 
intent.

The Chairman: Would the Committee like to have the official to explain 
some of these questions?

Mr. Flemming: Do I understand that this was settled for $2500, or is that-'
Mr. Henderson: That is correct. It has been settled for $2500. He engaged 3 

lawyer and that settlement was made by the Department of Justice.
Mr. Flemming : That is what I wanted to clear up.
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The Chairman: It has been settled. It is just a question of whether this can 
happen again or not. What do you think, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: If we have officials of the Department of National Defence 
here, it would be a very simple matter just to revert to it and ask them. I 
imagine you may wish to have them here in connection with some of the 1965 
hems. I was thinking of the Bomb Toss computer and some of those in which 
event you will have the people here who could be asked to speak to it. Would 
that seem sensible?

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : When you brought the matter up did they tell 
y°u why they did not do it earlier? What answer did you get?

Mr. Henderson: I do not know. Did we have any answer, Mr. Douglas, 
r°m the Department on the point that Mr. Cameron has made? Did they say o 

Us why they did not do it earlier? Was that question asked of the Department.
Mr. Douglas: There was no explanation whatsoever.
Mr. Henderson: Did we ask the question?
Mr. Douglas: Yes.
Mr. Henderson: There was no explanation available?
Mr. Douglas: No explanation, no.
The Chairman: We will refer this to the officials when they are here.

, I am wondering, Mr. Henderson, in order that the Committee might o a 
He homework before coming to the next meeting we wi e a j 

etl minutes—if we could mark the next few pages “1965 and then those t 
‘1964” only. I would ask the Committee members to read those^ 1964: items 

d study them so that when we come back, we will e lea y
testions.
th Mr. Henderson: I will give you the numbers now if you would like to tick

64 ,tNo- 62. Town of Oromocto, N.B. I would like to discuss that one. There are 
items.

Paragraph 63; I will deal with that.
in 19^; Flemming: Mr. Henderson, would Town of Oromocto not be coming up

t Mr. Henderson: No, I will deal with it in 1964. Paragraph 63; I would like 
Tru 6al with that one, miliary assistance to the United Nations and Indo-China

Uce Commissions.
to .^ragraph 64; Pension awards effective at early age. That will go forward 
iwi65- That is another one you might have the Department of National 

nce here on.
l965ParagraPh 65; Discretionary awards of Service pensions. That would go to

Paragraph 66 will go to 1965. 
Paragraph 67 will go to 1965. 
Paragraph 68 will go to 1965.
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Paragraph 69; I would suggest we deal with that; that is 1964. We may 
want to have a witness present on that one, Mr. Chairman, because there is a 
whole host of Customs and Excise matters.

Paragraph 70; I will deal with that now; that is 1964.
Paragraph 71, 1965; refund of sales tax.
Paragraph 72 will go to 1965—no we will deal with paragraph 72 now, in 

1964.
Paragraph 73, 1965. No, I am sorry, we will deal with paragraph 73 now. 
Paragraph 74, we will deal with now.
Paragraph 75, we will deal with now. I beg your pardon.
Paragraph 75 will be in 1965, about the houses.
Paragraph 76 will be in 1965.
Paragraph 77 will be dealt with now, in 1964.
Paragraph 78, we will deal with in 1964.
Paragraph 79, second class mail, will be for 1965.
Paragraph 80 will be an 1964 item for discussion.
Paragraph 81 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 82 we will deal with now, in 1964.
Paragraph 83 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 84 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 85 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 86 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 87 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 88 we will deal with now.
Paragraphs 89 and 90 and 91 will be 1965.
Paragraph 92 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 93 we will deal with now.
Paragraph 94 we will deal with now for these will be the 1964 non-pi-0' 

ductive payments which are on appendix two and you might like to look thosc 
over because the Committee is usually exercised as to the underlying reason5 
for those. I think there are about 35 of them. They are on a separate append* 
that is back in 1964.

Then, Mr. Chairman, having completed that, we would come on to pa1"3' 
graphs which could be gone through fairly rapidly because the following 
paragraphs are all updated again in 1965. I can just give you the highlights 0 
the 1964 ones and then I think we will be in shape for the 1965 discussion-

The Chairman: Gentlemen, you have all those paragraphs marked now f° 
1964, and I would like you to read them over and be prepared with y°u, 
questions for the next meeting. We will see what officials you may want to hav
here for 
adjourn?

any of them in between time. Are there any questions before We

The next meeting will be on Thursday, May 5, I cannot tell you about & 
next week. The co-ordinator of Committees works this all out and you will ê 
your notice. On May 10 we are going to have the St. Lawrence Seaway Pe°P
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here. At the next meeting, we may have another witness here in addition to 
what we have discussed this morning.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I would like you to talk to the Co-ordinator and 
See if he could not arrange to have the Public Accounts Committee meet at a 
different time from the Agriculture. I am on both those Committees and they 
have been both meeting at the same time for about three meetings.

The Chairman: I will do that. We appreciate your presence at Public 
Accounts instead of Agriculture.

Mr. Noble: I am trying to help you out.
The Chairman: Thank you very much.
The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Thursday, May 5, 1966.
(5)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.40 a.m., the 
hairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), 
^onne, Flemming, Forbes, Gendron, Hales, Lefebvre, McLean (Charlotte), 
"luir {Lisgar)t Noble, Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas {Middlesex West), Winch (17).

. In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; and 
5fessrs. Long, Crowley, Douglas, Laroche, Smith, Rider and Buzza of the 

U(litor General’s staff.
The Committee resumed consideration of the Auditor Genet al s Report for 

e year ended March 31, 1964.
ther^P ^en<^erson reviewed paragraphs 62 to 80 inclusive and was questioned

Paragraph 62 was allowed to stand. Messrs. Baldwin,
Paragraph 69 was referred to a ^'^^^Jr^detailed study and report ^88, Flemming and McLean (Charlotte) for more a

° the Committee- ^ mnsidered when the departmental

Paragraphs 72, 73, 74 and 75 are to be re 
ePresentatives are available. , esults of the

. The Auditor Genera, is ,0 pmv.de further inlomat.on on the
lnvestigation under way with respect to paragrap • the meeting

ad. A, a.m., the questioning o, Mr. Henderson eontmumg.burned until Tuesday, May 10, 1966. Edouard Thomas,

Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday, May 5, 1966.
* (9.30 a.m.)
HouSe co ^Hairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. You will recall that the 
of a q ncurred in this Committee’s report to the House asking for a reduction 
House js Um 'rom ^ to 10, and, secondly, that we be authorized to sit while the 
HouSe 'f1 session. Both of these recommendations were concurred in by the 
House is S GI 3ay'. can now start with a quorum of 10. We can sit while the 
Proceed - ^ sess^on' We have no excuse whatsoever now, gentlemen, but to 
1 Would ar>i, ^ 3 ®00c* i0b and cover the field, which is a large one to cover. So 
sitting udf-i y°ur C0~°Peration all along the line. We will not take advantage of 
Pessary * 6 House is in session, we will do it only when it is absolutely 
We Wjjj ’ esPecially when we have witnesses here from out of town, and so on. 
^arnincr k'V -t0 stay with the two meetings a week and have them in the 

’ ut H necessary we will use the privilege which has been given to us.
Meeting ^YINCH: 1 was in contact with you yesterday about the fact that the first 
I Would h defence Committee is being held this morning. I told you, sir, that 
While no G *16re *or the quorum. Do I have your permission, at least for a little 

w, to leave to attend the Defence Committee?
<“°tnmitt <~'Hairman: Yes, Mr. Winch, you may leave to attend the Defence 
and get ee you wish. I think they are going to do everything possible to try 
know Mr*M3y fr°m this overlapping which has been a continuous problem. I 

• McLean is on Fisheries which is meeting across the hall too.
^eevP,^' ^INCH; Since this is the first meeting of the Defence Committee I may 

cused for a few minutes?
Chairman: Yes, Mr. Winch.Section ro6 proceeding with the Auditor General’s Report of 1964, page 27, 

1964 and we are going to discuss only those items which appear in the

eport- Mr. Henderson?
62 7»npr°Posa] h n Gromocto, N.B. In 1955 the Governor in Council approved a 

^r°nioct °y ttle Department of National Defence to establish the Town of 
"’as iuCo°’ adjacent to Camp Gagetown. Subsequently in 1956 the Town 
live b0a rporat;ed by an Act of the Province which provided for an administra- 
ahd threr K°f seven commissioners, four appointed by the federal government 
Wunici 6i by l^e Province. The object in establishing the Town was to provide 
^aSetow /^cilities to serve not only military personnel stationed at Camp 
Purelv rJ1,- ut a civilian population as well, in order to avoid the growth of a

ymiIltary community.
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To implement the proposal, the department turned over to the Town 
without charge roads and services already installed in the housing area together 
with a fringe area of land. This assistance was augmented by capital grants 
totalling $1,500,000 to enable the Town to further develop its roads and services 
for the purpose of attracting private sponsors for the various shopping, civic 
institutional and industrial areas. To complete the physical development of 
municipal works, the Crown provided capital assistance loans to the Town 
amounting in all to $4,450,000 over the years from 1957 to 1961.

In the beginning it was expected that the operating expenses of the Town 
would be financed mainly from grants in lieu of taxes on federal property and 
that this burden would shift gradually as civilian interests in the Town 
developed. The shift has not materialized with the result that annual operating 
grants provided by the Crown continue at a high level and it is now expected 
this condition will exist for many years to come.

The following table summarizes the capital grants, capital assistance loans 
and operating grants paid to the Town since its inception:

Capital
Capital assistance Operating 

Year grants loans grants

1955- 56 ........................................... $ 750,000 — $ 50,000
1956- 57 ........................................... 750,000 — 50,000
1957- 58 ........................................... — $ 1,500,000 350,000
1958- 59 ........................................... — 1,500,000 960,000
1959- 60 ........................................... — 1,000,000 1,656,000
1960- 61 ........................................... — 450,000 1,600,000
1961- 62 ........................................... — — 1,529,000
1962- 63 ........................................... — — 1,489,000
1963- 64 ........................................... — — 1,800,000

$ 1,500,000 $ 4,450,000 $ 9,484,000

Repayments of the above capital assistance loans have totalled $735,000 
March 31, 1964 while interest amounting to $1,110,000 has been received to », 
same date. Funds for these payments have been provided out of the anno 
operating grants provided by the Department of National Defence.

The Town’s operating costs for the calendar year 1963 amounted 
$2,030,000 while its revenues totalled only $209,000. The Department of 
tional Defence owns 1,900 housing units representing about 90 per cent of 
value of all property in the Town.

A substantial part (over 50 per cent) of the annual operating costs relates 
expenditure for the operation of seven schools attended by dependents
servicemen occupying married quarters in the Town. The cost of operating 
schools has been a matter of concern to the department and Treasury Board 
some time. A study of this matter by Treasury Board staff disclosed that 
cost per pupil for 1962 in the Fredericton, N.B., school system was

of 
0e 
for
0e

$20*
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t^^ared with $304 per pupil at Oromocto. The Treasury Board has requested 

®Partment to advise it as to the action proposed to reduce the excessive

Qucation costs.
clas n-1 6 caPital assistance loans referred to above have from year to year been 
both ti?d 38 assets in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Exhibit 2). In 
Uj 1959 and the 1962 reports the Audit Office suggested that in view of 
f0 very small amount of revenue accruing to the Town (currently and in the 
Tow-8663*3*6 ^u*ure) ü seemed unrealistic to continue to treat the loans to the 
The P3S an asset item for purposes of the Statement of Assets and Liabilities, 
its s- Accounts Committee, after reviewing this matter, recommended in 
Writ'” Report 1964 that the Department of Finance give consideration to

lng these loans to expense (see Appendix 1, item 25). 
re] Mr- Henderson: Mr. Chairman, this item relating to the Town of Oromocto, 
you- onJy to the 1964 report. In this note it is pointed out at its conclusion, as 
he 1 WlR see’ that the capital assistance loans which is shown in the tabulation 
as e as.having totalled $4,450,000 up to the end of 1963-64, have been treated as 
Sll s m the statement of assets and liabilities. Now, since 1939, we have 
Tow Sted that> in view of the very small amount of revenue accruing to the 
Urir 0r°mocto, currently and in the foreseeable future, it seemed to us 
Wav 3dStic t° continue to treat these loans to the town as an asset item in this 
Nat' *n *®®4 your committee heard evidence from the Deputy Minister of 

lonal Defence and also the Deputy Minister of Finance, on this subject. It 
Pi °ll°wing that that you made your recommendation that the Depaitment of 
ask 3,?Ce g*ven consideration to writing these loans off to expense. In February I 
tak the Deputy Minister of Finance for advice as to what steps had been 
rnap1 *mplement this recommendation. I spoke to Mr. Bryce about this 
l^r ^ yesterday and we have a date to discuss it. If the committee is agreeable, 
c°mm ,airman’ * suggest we might stand this item and I will report back to the

mittee at a later meeting. Would that be satisfactory?

^he Chairman: Does the committee agree?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.63. Military assistance to the United Nations and Indo-China Truce Com- 
o ssions. Canadian defence forces are presently engaged in peace-keeping 
p) eraN°ns for the United Nations in five countries. In this connection, the 

apartment of National Defence has absorbed the initial cost of transporting 
exn ment and Personnel to the Middle East and the Congo, travel and removal

Penses in Canada normal pay and allowances, clothing and personal equip­
ts t 6tc-’ which at March 31, 1964 totalled approximately $39 million. In turn, 
fore- Hed Nations accepted the responsibility of reimbursing Canada for 
6q .lgn and special allowances of serving personnel, abnormal depreciation of 
oj ipment supplied by Canada and used by Canadian forces, the cost of 
ite^atlng fecial Air Force flights at the request of the United Nations, and 
ord S SUch as vehicles ordnance stores, and medical supplies specifically 
eXnered from Canada for the use of the United Nations forces. Total recoverable 
Wqç editures over the years have amounted to $23 million, of which $2,100,000

°utstanding at the fiscal year-end.
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Canada also has military personnel serving with the Indo-China Truce 
Commissions in Vietnam and Laos. Expenditures relating to these operations 
are on a cost-sharing basis and by March 31, 1964 amounted to some $10,200,- 
000, of which $8 million was absorbed by Canada and $2,200,000 classed as 
recoverable. Outstanding recoverable expenditures at the fiscal year-end 
amounted to $415,000.

Mr. Henderson: No. 63 is again a 1964 item having to do with Military 
Assistance to the United Nations and the Indo-China Truce Commissions. This 
note can be said to be an information one indicating how Canada recovers a 
portion of its costs on peace-keeping operations for the United Nations and 
various countries. It will be noted that the total recoverable expenditures over 
the years has amounted to $23 million of which $2,700,000 was outstanding and 
unpaid at March 31, 1964. This amounted, at December 31, 1965, to a total of 
$5,750,000. In the case of expenditures relating to military personnel serving in 
the Indo-China Truce Commissions in Vietnam and Laos, outstanding recover­
able expenditures at March 31, 1964 will be noted to have been $415,000. The 
figure unpaid at December 31, 1965, amounted to $775,000. Excepting for the 
Yemen operation which is within the United Nations figure, no payments were 
received from either of the sources indicated here during the period of one year 
and nine months mentioned.

With regard to the Yemen operation which is, as I mentioned, within the 
United Nations figure, the balance here was $265,000 at March 31, 1964 and this 
was reduced by payments to $70,600 at March 31, 1965 and this balance was 
paid off on March 22, 1966. This, therefore, leaves the major balance owing 
from the United Nations at the present time, and it stems largely, according to 
my information, from the Congo operation and from the United Nations 
expeditionary force operations on the Gaza Strip. I do not know whether 
members have any questions on this.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Is it expected that this will ever be recovered in total-
Mr. Henderson: I understand that it is hoped that a large portion of it will 

be recovered, Mr. Muir, particularly if—as a result of the discussions now going 
on between the 14 ad hoc committee and the U.N. regarding delinquent 
contributors—their efforts meet with success.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): For the sake of bookkeeping if it is not recovered is ^ 
treated as a write-off?

Mr. Henderson: I think the department would want to see the outcome 
all these various negotiations and it would take some time before they had 
reached the point where they would write it off.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): What is the point in putting it in here, 
Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: The note was put in here to show the size of the debts that 
were mounting up, Mr. Thomas. As I mentioned, it was an information not6 
only in order to bring to the attention of the House the size of Canada s 
contribution and the length of time in which we have to carry it before we can 
obtain reimbursement. We have no criticisms other than that. You might say H lS 
a substantial overdue accounts receivable really.
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• 0.45 a.m.)
69. Payment of duty on coasting trade vessel deferred. The owner of a 

oreign-built British vessel applied for a licence to engage in the coasting trade 
co Canada- Section 670 of the Canada Shipping Act, R.S., c. 29, states that a 

asting licence shall be issued to foreign-built British ships upon payment of 
e duty which the Customs Act and related regulations require to be paid in 

44 • ^e owner was accordingly assessed duty on the vessel under tariff item 
at the rate specified, viz., 25% ad valorem on the fair market value of hull, 

achinery, furniture and appurtenances. On August 6, 1963 the Department 
ructed its collector at the port of entry to issue the licence but, because the 

ner could not pay the duty of $10,078 in full, arranged to accept a down 
t,yrnent °f $3,000 on August 12, 1963 and post-dated cheques payable monthly 

r°ugh September 30, 1964 to cover the balance. No interest was charged.
The Customs Act is not only specific under section 22 in requiring that 

uhes must be paid in full at the time goods enter Canada but also provides 
Under section 79 that:

No person shall make, nor shall any officer accept any bond, note or 
other document for the purpose of avoiding or deferring the actual 
Payment of duties legally accruing on goods imported into Canada, or 
arrange for deferring payment of such duties in any way, unless such 
goods are entered for warehouse, and duly deposited therein according to 
the laws and regulations governing the warehousing of such goods.

To further protect the revenue, the Act provides penalties under section 235(1) 
,° °e assessed against a collector or other officer who allows payment of duty to 

e avoided or deferred:
Every collector or other officer who allows the payment of duties of 

Customs to be avoided or deferred for any cause or consideration 
whatsoever, except by regular entry for warehouse, is liable to a penalty 
equal to the full value of such goods, and the duty accruing thereon, 
which shall be recoverable in any court of competent jurisdiction, from 
him or his sureties or either of them.

tl^ When the department instructed its collector at the port of entry to issue 
s e c°asting licence to the owner of the ship, the collector was advised that 
dufCiaI arrangements had been made in the department regarding payment of 
pa y- As a consequence of carrying out this instruction, involving as it did 

Anient of duty on an instalment basis, the collector immediately rendered 
$50 ^ahle to the penalty imposed by section 235(1) which amounted to 
an ’r91- On September 26, 1963 the full amount of this penalty was remitted by 
tr . der in Council under authority of section 22 of the Financial Adminis- 
fisn \°n The remission is shown on page 43.13 of the Public Accounts for the 

al year 1963-64.
cje drawing the irregularity of these steps to the attention of officers of the 
dut rtment, we were informed that they are of the opinion that payment of the 
agai ln the manner described was legalized by remission of the penalty assessed 
of tJls| the collector and that the procedure used is proper within the meaning 

^ legislation involved.
Sectio ls the opinion of the Audit Office that the penalty provision contained in 

n 235(1) of the Customs Act exists for the protection of the revenue



150 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 5, 1966

against collectors or other officers who may allow payment duties to be 
avoided or deferred, and that the action of the department in penalizing the 
collector for its own failure to collect the duty in full and then causing the 
penalty to be remitted is irregular and undesirable. If it is not, then it would 
appear that any section of any Act with respect to which there is a penalty 
within the meaning of section 22 of the Financial Administration Act could be 
circumvented simply by using the device of having a public officer deliberately 
contravene any such section and then remitting the penalty incurred by his 
unlawful act.

Section 670 is one of the sections in Part XIII of the Canada Shipping Act 
and, as already stated, specifically provides that a coasting licence may be 
issued to a foreign-built British ship only if the duty has been paid. Section 673 
in Part XIII gives the Governor in Council the following power:

The Governor in Council may, from time to time, by order in council 
declare that the foregoing provisions of this Part shall not, for the period 
specified in such order in council, apply, either throughout Canada or in 
any specified waters of Canada, to the ships or vessels, or to any 
specified, ascertained or ascertainable class or number of the ships or 
vessels, of any foreign country.

It was noted that the Order in Council referred to above also exempted the 
vessel in question from the provisions of Part XIII of the Act. Since the power 
of the Governor in Council in section 673 is restricted to ships of “any foreign 
country”, it seems to us that the exemption could not apply to the vessel in 
question which is a foreign-built British ship. In reply to our inquiry concern­
ing this, departmental officers stated they were treating the ship as though she 
were a foreign ship because the duties were being deferred and not paid at the 
time the coasting licence was granted.

The Chairman: Page 33, No. 69,1 believe, is the next one.
Mr. Henderson: That is right, paragraph 64 went to 1965 and paragraph 65 

and 66. Paragraph 67, Unemployment Assistance and paragraph 68, have been 
put forward to 1965. Paragraph 69 details the action taken by the Departmen 
of National Revenue having to do with the licensing and taxing of a coasta 
vessel and it indicates the three steps taken which, in my opinion, were 
irregular. This is purely a 1964 note. If you have had a chance to look at this 
note, perhaps I could just summarize the three steps that I have mentioned- 
The first one is, the department instructed its collector at port of entry °n 
August 6, 1963, to issue the license. Because the owner could not pay the duty» 
which amounted to $10,078, in full, as provided by law, the departmen 
accepted a down payment of $3,000 on August 12, 1963, and postdated chequeS 
payable monthly to cover the balance. No interest was charged. Such action *s 
contrary to section 22 of the Customs Tariff, which I quote here, and which lS 
quite specific in requiring that all such duties must be paid in full. I also qu°te 
section 79 of the act.

The second step was caused by the fact that the action of the department 
immediately rendered its own collector at the port of entry liable to a penalty 
equal to the full value of the goods. This penalty is provided, as I say, in secti°n 
235(1) of the Customs Act. The amount of the penalty was $50,391. However'
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ss i^rsri ms sbe remitted, is irregular and undesirable.
The third step, the vessel, which was a foreign built British ship, was 

exempted from the’ provisions of Part VIII of the Canada Shipping Act. This 
exemption is limited only to ships of any foreign country, as is explained here. 
The department told us they treated this ship as if she were a foreign ship 
because the duties were being deferred, and not paid at the time the coasting 
license was granted In agreeing to the correctness of all of the facts contained 
in this note the department justified their action principally on the hardship of 
the circumstances in which the purchaser of the vessel had found himself when 
he became aware that it was, in fact, subject to customs charges.

I can only say to the Committee that, in my view, the three steps taken by 
the department are contrary at each step to the applicable legislation. I feel a 
serious view should be taken of the department’s actions in this case. As I say 
here in my note, with regard to the second step, the action of the department in 
Penalizing its collector for its own failure to collect duty in full, and then 
fusing the penalty to be remitted, is irregular and undesirable. If it is not, then 
11 would appear that any section of any act with respect to which there is a 
Penalty within the meaning of section 22 of the Financial Administration Act 
<=°uld be circumvented simply by using the device of having a public officer 
deliberately contravene any such section and then remitting the penalty 
cUrred by his unlawful act.
, I do not know, Mr. Chairman, whether it would be your disposition to wish 
0 discuss this with witnesses from the Department of National Revenue. There 

are a number of other paragraphs coming up relating to that department but 
Possibly the Committee would like to ask some questions concerning this one.
Vt The Chairman: Mr. Henderson, I think there will be a few questions or a 
>ttle groundwork at this time before proceeding with your suggestion.

Mr. Tardif- Who is responsible for making recommendations that this 
atnount be remitted?

Mr. Henderson: The department.
Mr. Tardif: Who is the department?

r Mr. Henderson: The Department of National Revenue would make their 
ec°mmendation for the remission to the Governor in Council an

Mr. Tardif: A committee, or an individual?
M. Mr. Henderson: It would be the Deputy Minister who would brief the 

lnister and the Minister would make the recommendation to the Governor in
Council.

Mr. Tardif: It seems like a lot of power in the hands of one man.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask the Auditor General who the 

ner of the ship was? Is it a British ship. Was it a Canadian owner.
Mr. Henderson: I believe it was a Canadian owner.
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Mr. Noble: Was he ignorant of the fact that this was not taken into 
Canadian registry?

Mr. Henderson: I believe, according to the department, he did nor realize it 
would be subject to customs charges and he was placed in a difficult spot, having 
to pay those charges. As you know, all customs duties are payable in cash.

Mr. Noble: My other question is, was this fine sizeable? Was it $50,000?
Mr. Henderson: The law requires that it be the full duty, including the 

value of the vessel. The collector, if he does this, renders himself liable for the 
value of the goods plus the duty. That is how the $50,000 was arrived at.

Mr. Noble: I would take it then, Mr. Chairman, that this amount of money 
was paid and then remitted? Is that the way the transaction took place?

Mr. Henderson: No, I understand the penalty was levied but before the 
collector was asked to pay, it was remitted. Am I not correct in that?

Mr. Tardif: Was that ship built under Canadian subsidy?
Mr. Henderson: No, sir, I do not think so. It was an American built ship.
Mr. Tardif : I was wondering whether he got it both ways.
Mr. Baldwin: This practice does not happen very often in regard to income 

tax, does it?
Mr. Henderson: I do not have any cases along these lines.
Mr. Flemming: I would like to ask in what part of Canada did this take 

place?
Mr. Henderson: In the province of Newfoundland.
Mr. Ballard: I assume from the wording here that the collector is an 

employee of the Department of National Revenue. Is that right?
Mr. Henderson: Yes. He is the collector at the port of entry.
Mr. Ballard: Secondly, you say that the penalty includes the amount of 

unpaid customs plus, in this case, the value of the boat?
Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Ballard: Can we assume, then, that this was a pleasure boat as opposed 

to a cargo boat?
Mr. Henderson: No, I think it was a vessel suitable for, or designed for, oi 

intended to be used in the coastal trade up and down the Newfoundland coast.
Mr. Ballard: As a passenger boat or a cargo boat?
Mr. Henderson: I suppose passengers and cargo and so forth going between 

the various outports.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, this seems to be a very 

important matter and there is a great deal involved here. I would suggest that a 
small subcommittee of, shall we say three, be set up to study this matter. It 15 
certain that if we take time to discuss it in the Committee of the whole, we are 
going to use up a great deal of time. I would suggest that a committee of Mr- 
Baldwin, Mr. Flemming and Mr. Bigg give this matter consideration. They have
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all had the advantage of legal training and might be able to offer some valuable 
advice on how we should proceed in this matter.

The Chairman: Thank you for your suggestion, Mr. Thomas. I think it 
w°uld be in order that these three gentlemen—Mr. Baldwin, Mr. Flemming and 
Mr- Bigg—make a complete study of this and be prepared to cross-question the 
witnesses when we have them before the Committee. We will detail those three 
to have this well in hand. Before we leave it, I think Mr. McLean has a question, 
then Mr. Noble and then Mr. Muir.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : It seems to me it all revolves around responsibili­
ty. Was it the collector’s responsibility to enter the vessel and take it on his own
responsibility?

Mr. Henderson: The responsibility was assumed, from the outset, by the 
headquarters of the Department of National Revenue, with the collector being 
instructed to issue the permit. The collector issued the permit only to find that 
as a result of having carried out instructions, he subjected himself to the 
Penalty provided by section 235(1) of the act and exposed himself to a penalty 
of $50,391.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Then the responsibility lies with the department, 
Pnt with the collector?

, Mr. Henderson: Yes. I would not think there was any question of that at 
all.
^ Mr. Noble: The collector exposed himself to a penalty for what head office 

Mr. Henderson: Yes; for what head office did.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, would it be fair for the Committee to ask who 

e °wner of the ship is?
Mr. Henderson: I cannot see any objections to that. Mr. Long will have it 

ln the file here. Mr. H. W. C. Gillett.
Mr. Forbes: How big a boat is this and what form of trade was it carrying 

n’ Passenger, freight, express?
p, Mr. Henderson: I do not believe we have the precise specifications, Mr.

0!'bes. it was a small boat destined for the coastal trade up and down the 
vUtP°rts of Newfoundland and involving, I assume, passengers and gear of 
ari°us descriptions.

Mr. Forbes: Then it is not a fishing vessel?
IHr. Henderson: No, sir. It is described as a coastal trading vessel.
^■r- Forbes: I did not understand that.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I would just like to ask the Auditor General if we can 

UlTle that the duty has now been paid?
ar„, ^r- Henderson: Yes, I believe the post-dated cheques have all been cashed 
and Paid by the state.
iftst ^r' ^UIR (Lisgar): The other question is, the collector, having been 
jen_ Ucted to allow this discrepancy to happen, had he refused, would he have

Pardized his job?
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Mr. Henderson: I think that is a question which would have to be directed 
to the department. I do not know what the answer would be on that.

The Chairman : I would suggest we leave it until we have the witnesses 
before us. Agreed?

Mr. Bigg: Regarding this three man board, “everybody’s responsibility is 
nobody’s responsibility”. I think if we are going to appoint this board, somebody 
should be appointed chairman immediately or else there will be no convening of 
the group.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): As you are having a legal committee set up t0 
investigate this, it might be just as well to include a Liberal member on the 
Committee instead of having all three members Conservatives.

• (10.00 a.m.)
The Chairman: I agree with you, Mr. Cameron. I do not put any labels on 

these gentlemen at all. I just call out their names. But that is a good suggestion.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Why do we not ask Mr. Cameron? He has had 

legal training.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : I would not be able to function. I have more 

than I can do now. It does not have to be a lawyer. Mr. McLean is an excellent 
business man and this is a business transaction. Why would Mr. McLean not be 
a good member to have on the Committee?

The Chairman: We have Mr. Baldwin, Mr. Flemming and Mr. Bigg. Mr' 
Cameron, are you sure you would like to decline?

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Yes, I am sorry.
The Chairman: How would it be if the Vice-Chairman of the Committee' 

Mr. Lefebvre, were nominated?
Mr. Lefebvre: If Mr. McLean is willing, sir, I am quite willing to stand 

aside for him.
The Chairman: Fine. Mr. McLean.
Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, would the terms of reference be wide enough 

to permit us to get in touch with the department officials, not to conduct 
examination of them but, at least, to make sufficient inquiries of them so tha 
we can make an adequate report?

The Chairman: I am sure that would be in order.
Mr. Baldwin: This would be considered as being included. Fine.

wa5
The Chairman: Agreed.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): What I had in mind, Mr. Chairman, 

that this Committee or subcommittee could look over the matter and recoc®' 
mend whether or not we should call the departmental officials. If it 1 
recommended and the officials are called, I think they should appear before tb 
whole Committee.

The Chairman: Paragraph 70, next item.
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70. Remission of duties on certain motor vehicles and parts. Sections 22 (1) 
and 79 of the Customs Act, R.S., c. 58, as amended, read as follows:

22. (1) Unless the goods are to be warehoused in the manner by 
this Act provided, the importer shall, at the time of entry pay down, or 
cause to be so paid, all duties upon all goods entered inwards; and the 
collector or other proper officer shall, immediately thereupon, grant his 
warrant for the unlading of such goods, and grant a permit for the 
conveyance of such goods further into Canada, if so required by the 
importer.

79. No person shall make, nor shall any officer accept, any bond, 
note or other document for the purpose of avoiding or deferring the 
actual payment of duties legally accruing on goods imported into Canada, 
or arrange for deferring payment of such duties in any way, unless such 
goods are entered for warehouse, and duly deposited therein according to 
the laws and regulations governing the warehousing of such goods.

Order in Council P.C. 1963-1/1544 of October 22, 1963, passed pursuant to 
^ection 22 of the Financial Administration Act, remits all customs duties 

yable with respect to certain motor vehicles and motor vehicle parts to the 
th which the Canadian content value of vehicles and parts exported by

e importer in three designated periods exceeds the Canadian content value 
xP°rted during the base year November 1, 1961 to October 31, 1962.

In actual practice the department generally refrains from exacting pay- 
ent of duties at the time of importation and waits for a period of several 
»ths to one year or more until the extent to which the importer is able to 

det with the export conditions as set out in the remission order is
61 mined. To the extent that the importer cannot comply, he must pay the

uuties.
the *n e^ect> the department is deferring payment of duty until such time as 
ai^ arn°unt, if any, which the Governor in Council has remitted is determined, 
he n is the Audit Office view that the Department lacks authority to do this 

Cause of the requirements of sections 22 (1) and 79 of the Customs Act.

tPoto:
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, No. 70. Remission of duties on certain

stat Vehicles and parts. I am pleased to be able to tell you that, following my 
p ement in this note, we considered the department lacked authority to defer 
An1Inent 0f duty in these cases because of the requirements of the Customs Act. 
^dments were introduced in the House to the Customs Act in 1965, 
deDere^y statutory approval has since been given to this practice and the 

oil!ment now has the authority to follow the procedure that I have outlined, 
aine er words, they took note of my observation and introduced an appropriate 
ahyrm6nt to the Customs Act. Therefore, I do not suppose we need to take
qUp lme in discussing this particular one unless any members have any 

étions.
oq it* *°uid like to interject paragraph 71 although I know you marked 1965 
in jjj’ VIr- Chairman. I can make a similar report on this one. It was my mistake 

24oi7 h at the last meeting as being a 1965 item.
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71. Refund of sales tax on materials used in construction of certain 
buildings. Section 47A of the Excise Tax Act, 1963, c. 12, reads as follows:

Where materials have been purchased by or on behalf of
(a) a school, university or other similar educational institution for use 

exclusively in the construction of a building for that institution, or
(b) any organization for use exclusively in the construction of a building 

for that organization that is to be used exclusively or mainly as a 
public library operated by or on behalf of that organization on a 
non-commercial basis,

and the tax imposed by Part VI has been paid in respect of those 
materials, the Minister may, upon application by such institution or 
organization in such form as the Minister prescribes made to the Minister 
within two years from the time the materisls were purchased, pay to 
such institution or oganization an amount equal to that tax.

Because an actual tabulation of the sales tax paid on the many items 
entering into the construction of a building is extremely difficult, it was the 
opinion of the department that the arrangements by which educational institu­
tions could obtain a refund of sales tax must be simplified.

Accordingly Order in Council P.C. 1964-1/692 of May 12, 1964 approved a 
formula for determining sales tax refundable on materials used exclusively in 
the construction of buildings for schools, universities or other similar educa­
tional institutions or public libraries, to be used by persons entitled to a refund 
of sales tax pursuant to the provisions of section 47A as an alternative to the 
present standard refund claims procedure. The formula is designed to determin6 
the approximate value of taxable material in a building and to estimate the 
amount of the refund that may be claimed.

Section 47A directs the Minister to pay an amount equal to the tax that ha^ 
been paid and there does not appear to be any authority in the Excise Tax Ac 
to pay a refund based on an estimated taxable value of materials incorporate 
into a building.

71. Refund of sales tax on materials used in construction of certaUj 
buildings. Again, you will note the basis on which I questioned the propriety 0 
the government’s action here. This situation, I can advise, is the subject 0 
budget resolution 15 with respect to the Excise Tax Act, which is outlined 011 
page 3399 of Hansard of March 29, 1966. In other words, the budget résolutif 
has been introduced which, if approved, will provide proper authority for th 
department to follow the procedure which I criticized in this section. I thin 1 
again, we can pass that one over, sir.

Paragraph 72, Refunds of duties and taxes on estimated basis.
72. Refunds of duties and taxes on estimated basis. In order that Canady 

airlines may be in a tax position comparable to foreign airlines, the Governor 1 
Council, under authority of section 22 of the Financial Administration Acj 
grants remission of duty, sales and excise taxes paid on parts, equipment an 
consumable maintenance stores for aircraft operating in international service-

The Department of National Revenue finds it administratively impracti6 
in some cases to determine actual quantities to which remissions should apPj 
and so relies on considered estimates in calculating the remissions to be grant6
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A similar situation exists with respect to refunds to provincial governments 
°f taxes paid indirectly. These too are estimated carefully for refund purposes in 
order to avoid excessive clerical costs.

If these practices, which are not now recognized by the taxing statutes, are 
continue they should receive legislative sanction.

Again, my observation here, namely, that the practices should receive 
legislative sanction, has been recognized and provided for in the budget 
resolution 15 to which I referred earlier. I am happy to be able to tell you that 
-hat observation has been also adopted by the government.

Item 73 is a 1964 item only.

13- Refund, of duty paid on goods diverted to use other than that for which 
eV were imported. In a number of cases the customs tariff provides alterna­

it rates of duty on certain goods, depending on the use to which they are to 
6 Put when imported.

No specific authority is contained in the Customs Act under which the 
it Paitment may grant refunds in cases where goods were entered under an 
anfi1 ^le upon payment of duty at the rate applicable to such goods,
U subsequently diverted to a use which would have entitled them to entry 
de e‘ a different tariff item had they then been imported. Nevertheless, the 

Piment as a matter of equity has adopted a policy of making refunds in 
C cases> treating the original payment as “duty paid in error”. 

s, H is the view of the Audit Office that if this policy is to be continued it 
have legislative sanction. Refund of duty paid on goods diverted to use 

er than that for which they were imported.
As stated here, the department, as a matter of equity, has adopted a policy 

t Asking refunds in cases like this, treating the original payment as duty paid 
do err°r- Section 43 of the Customs Act does confer quite wide authority on a 

minion customs appraiser and on the Deputy Minister to re-determine tariff 
assifications and for refunds to be made on the basis of such re-deter- 

* mations. However, my officers and I do not believe such authority can be 
mcised in respect of the deliberate diversion of imported goods to a use other

of
in

than that declared at time of their entry on the ground that such diversion
p °uld be regarded as a kind of error. This is why we say here that if this 
n0 1Cy.is to be continued, it should receive legislative sanction. There has been 

action taken on this observation thus far by the government.

th Chairman: If I may interject here, does the department take note of 
op6Se suggestions made by the Audit Office? Do they ask you for your legal 
y °n such matters? What stand does the department take on this when 

rmg it to their attention?
ver ^r' Henderson: The Department of National Revenue, Mr. Chairman, is 

co-operative. We have some very useful discussions with them on these
WOluts rp,
obtai " iney bave their own legal advisers in the department from whom they 
a<jv- °Pinions and, to the extent that I deem desirable, I consult my own legal 
Whlc;ers' H may interest you to know that with respect to the last three points, 
legai j&Ve since been adopted by the government, in each case I consulted my 

visers who supported my position. On this particular one that you have
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now, paragraph 73, I also consulted my legal advisers who confirmed the 
correctness of my position to me.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, I recollect that we had the benefit of the 
views of Mr. Sim, I think it was, last year or the year before. He came before us 
and was very frank in a discussion of this matter and a number of other 
matters, including the sales tax and excise tax. I think he quite frankly 
admitted that the department had, in its opinion, to deviate from the different 
statutes, in many instances, because the department thought this was the only 
practical way. I think he went as far as to say that for a number of years he felt 
the statutory changes should have been made and this had been suggested to 
the various governments but nothing had been done. This is my recollection 
now of what Mr. Sim said at, I think, his last appearance shortly before he 
retired. He made no bones about it. He said, “Well, we are not following the 
statutes in many instances but we found, through practice and experience, the 
only way to achieve the results are to do it this way. We would like the 
governments to make the statutory changes but they do not do it.” This is my 
view. I do not know whether other members of the Committee were here at 
that time but that was exactly the impression Mr. Sim created.

Mr. Henderson: There are some recommendations outstanding in the 
follow-up report on just this point. I believe the sales tax basis is the one Mr- 
Winch is particularly interested in. This will come up in the 1965 report. They 
have not been able to arrange for that to be given statutory sanction yet, but we 
shall be returning to that subject when we hit the 1965 report.

Mr. Baldwin: I just wanted to say this because, quite often, criticism is 
heaped on the civil servants—sometimes correctly. However, I think in many of 
these cases the civil servants know what the problem is but the government 
simply refuses to enact the necessary legislation. I believe this is one of the 
problems this Committee must face.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that we 
should have control of these things as we go along and not let them hang fire. If 
a problem should be deferred for consideration, can we not make a note to that 
effect and have the matter brought before us again when we draw up our 
report?

The Chairman: We will make a note of this and when we have the 
witnesses from that department here, we will ask them about it and refer to i 
again. There will be a note made to include it in our follow-up report.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Then we can just defer it for further 
consideration at a future date.

The Chairman: That is right. We are not overlooking it.
Mr. Henderson: The next one is paragraph 74 and has to do with f^e 

possible loss of revenue when goods lose tax-exempt status.
74. Possible loss of revenue when goods lose tax-exempt status. Equipm611*" 

is sometimes imported to be leased to an institution which is exempt from duty 
and sales tax, with ownership remaining with the importer.

In such cases the department requires that the importer be in possession 
a lease commitment from a tax-exempt institution and that a copy of this d
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filed with the relative customs import entry. Entry is also contingent on the 
equipment being exported under customs supervision on expiration of the lease 
or duty being paid on an appraised value with allowance for depreciation. The 
department permits the transfer of the equipment from one tax-exempt institu­
tion to another but if the equipment is warehoused it loses its exempt status and 
fiuty must be paid.

Similar situations exist where there is entitlement to make domestic 
Purchases free of sales tax. Should any article so purchased be later transferred 
t° an end use that is not exempt from tax, either the new purchaser or the 
vendor must report and pay the proper tax.

Having laid down the rules governing goods which lose their tax-exempt 
status, the department placed on the owners the onus for reporting any duty or 
tax payable and no departmental control of non-tax paid equipment or goods 
Was maintained. Consequently it is possible for equipment or goods to lose 
tax-exempt status without this coming to the attention of the department, in 
vdiich case there would be a loss of revenue to the Crown.

This is purely a 1964 item. This question was raised by us as a result of 
having noted refunds of sales tax on equipment imported to be leased to public 
Pastitutions where ownership remains with the importer. Such equipment is 
exempt from duty and sales tax, as you probably know. We inquired why taxes 
are being paid on the articles when the importer or his customs broker, 
according to the department’s own arrangement and direction, is always 
SuPposed to be in possession of proper lease commitments or documents 
tempting the import from any duty and sales tax. In advising us on these 
Particular cases, the department explained, the refunds we had questioned were 
jae to the imports having been incorrectly classified, in the first instance. We 

en inquired into the manner in which the department maintained supervision 
°Ver this equipment in order to determine its end use and thereby protect 
avenue to the Crown. The department explained to us how the importer 
ndertakes, within the terms of section 104 of the Customs Act, to report to 
Ustorns any change in the circumstances which would disqualify the goods for 
aatnaent under the item. In addition to this responsibility of the importer, the 
apartment added, that any person who diverts the goods for use other than 
at for which imported is also held responsible for reporting such diversion to 

offi nearest Collector of Customs and Excise. They said that the local port 
UseCers are in the best position to know the importer’s circumstances and the 
Poi °f t*16 goods entered under duty-free classification. I felt, therefore, I must

°ut that it is possible for equipment or goods of this type to lose their tax
^.fiapt status without this even coming to the attention of the department, in 

lch case there would be a loss of revenue to the Crown.
view his is something on which the department could well be invited to express 
fiisa S W^en they appear before the Committee. I understand there is no 
^ears ement ky them with our approach. It has just been found, over the 
there this was the best way to tackle it. They do not disagree with us that 

c°uld, in fact be loss of revenue to the Crown.
bet he Chairman: May I ask a question here? Could there not be a breakdown 
°ffic 6611 the local tax collector and head office here in Ottawa? Does the local 
tgjj ar n°t have to report each and every case where he exempts any goods from

XemPtion? Is there not a tie-in between the local port office and Ottawa? 
24017_3
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Mr. Henderson: I will ask Mr. Crowley, my director in charge of revenue if 
he could answer that.

Mr. H. G. Crowley (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office): Yes, Mr. 
Chairman, when these goods come in, and they are under a tax exempt item of 
the tariff, then automatically the investigations division is supposed to, in time, 
follow up the disposition of these articles and if the end use becomes taxable, 
then they try to follow it up and obtain the tax. In general, the department 
finds it very difficult to follow up all these articles and, as the Auditor General 
has mentioned, he has brought it up in order to draw the attention of the 
Committee to the fact that there is a possible short fall of revenue there.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Is there a possibility that it will cost more to collect 
this delinquent tax than it is worth?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, that would be possible and can often be the case, but I 
do not think that that necessarily precludes me from bringing the matter to 
attention, Mr. Muir.

Mr. Tardif: Then the law should be changed. If the law states it has to be 
collected, it has to be collected, regardless of how much it costs.

Mr. Henderson: I agree with that, Mr. Tardif.
The Chairman: It is a very important matter, I would say. It could, 

sometimes, be a big item.
Mr. Henderson: It could be. You might wish to question the witness from 

the department on this point. It does not call for any action other than an 
observation by the Committee, but you might wish to wait until you hear what 
they say from the department.

Paragraph 75. Loss on buildings abandoned.

75. Loss on buildings abandoned. In paragraph 86 (11) of our 1961 Report, 
reference was made to the construction of two houses at the customs port of 
Pigeon River, Ontario, in 1957 at a cost of $45,000. At that time one of the 
houses had not been occupied and the department was paying the cost of fuel 
oil and electricity in addition to the regular expenses of upkeep. Two other 
houses had been built for Customs-Excise officers at this port, one in 1950 at a 
cost of $16,000 and one in 1954 at a cost of $21,000. Two houses had also been 
built by the Department of Citizenship and Immigration in 1955 and 1956 at a 
cost of $50,000. A dormitory and a warehouse erected in 1947 and 1951 
respectively, cost $11,000. The cost of these departmental buildings at the site 
the customs port thus amounted to $143,000, exclusive of the cost of land. In the 
period when the houses were available for occupancy, one had been vacant f°r 
seven months, one for twelve months, while the one mentioned in the 1961- 
Report was occupied for only nine months in its six years of existence.

In September 1963 a new bridge was constructed over the Pigeon River 
and the customs port was moved to the new location eleven miles to the east- 
The question of moving the six houses was considered but because of the 
excessive cost of such an operation it was decided to abandon the houses and 
their related buildings. Departmental officers now live in or near Fort WilHal11 
or Port Arthur and each receives a daily mileage allowance for commuting 
between his home and the port—a distance of approximately 40 miles.
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The houses were declared surplus in November 1963 and turned over to 
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation which has since disposed of them for $8,145 
°n the condition that they be removed from the site. The department has 
furnished us with the following reasons for this stipulation:

(1) to have sold the buildings without such a requirement might have 
led to their occupancy, thereby aggravating the problem of uncon­
trolled border crossing while the old bridge remained in place;

(2) the Ontario Department of Highways was unable to give any 
assurance that the dead-end road leading to the old bridge site 
would be maintained;

(3) the possibility existed that the provincial government might include 
the area in question in the development of a provincial park.

The land on which the buildings had stood was declared surplus to Crown 
■Assets Disposal Corporation in October 1964.

The Chairman: This is paragraph 65, I have marked.
Mr. Henderson: That is my fault again, gentlemen.
Paragraph 75. Loss on buildings abandoned.

* (10.15 a.m.)
We did mention that as going forward in 1965, because we got a note on the 

subject, but they are different buildings, different places, different treat- 
ent. With your permission I suggest that you might like to dispose of this one 
w- The note describes how in November, 1963, 6 houses and three double 

arages, including two houses belonging to the Department of Citizenship and 
migration at Pigeon River, Ontario, along with a dormitory, warehouse and 

tq ^ house, all of which originally cost $143,000, exclusive of land, were 
r rtle^ over to Crown Assets Disposal for disposal on condition that they be 
$8tl|l0VeC* *rom the site. The buildings, as you will see, were then sold for 
s ’ 45 ■ When we discussed this situation with the Department, we stated that it 

** obvious to us that the houses, together with the land on which they 
j. °d’ might have commanded a much greater price if it had not been for the 
(jjhh^ments that they be removed from the site. I should tell you that the 
0Jleartment took issue with us over this statement, saying that if that were so, 
Un, must infer that the department’s handling of the situation resulted in some 
it etermined loss to the crown. In my opinion, the facts clearly indicated that 
thig The department’s explanation, as stated on page 38, is that the reason 
requ'StipUlation was ™P0Se(f was to have sold the buildings without such 
ing ement, might have led to their occupancy thereby, as they say, aggravat- 
in Problem of uncontrolled border crossing while the old bridge remained

^r- Tardif: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, when the new bridge was planned. A 
bridge is normally planned some years ahead of time. I am wondering 

h°UsJr the new bridge was proposed or planned before they built these

rig^^r- Henderson: I think the provincial government comes into the problem 
Wider Nr P°int> Mr. Tardif. The department of highways, as you will see 

2 w°- 2. is not able to give any assurance that they will maintain the roads.
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Mr. Tardif: Yes, but previous to that decision being made by the provincial 
government, there must have been some planning for that bridge ahead of time, 
unless it is a very small bridge.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Crowley, do you have any information on that? We 
can find that out, Mr. Tardif.

Mr. Crowley: Mr. Chairman, the files do not indicate anything in that 
regard, at least to the question Mr. Tardif asked. In other words, these houses 
were built but there was no question, at the time, as far as we can tell, of the 
proposed bridge at the new site.

Mr. Lefebvre: Mr. Chairman, owing to the fact that we also have an item 
back on page 27, which involved the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, where 
we have a piece of equipment which sold for $20, the original cost being $15,000, 
and here we have some houses and dormitories which cost $143,000, being sold 
for $8,000, maybe it would be a good idea—there may be other items in this book 
affecting this particular Crown company—to have a day devoted to having 
witnesses here from the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation? Either they are 
not advertising their goods for sale in the right way or some error is being 
committed. We seem to be selling government items at a very small price.

The Chairman: I think that is an excellent idea, Mr. Lefebvre. I am 
wondering if the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation handled these houses in 
this case?

Mr. Henderson: I am not too sure.
Mr. Tardif: It was turned over to Crown Assets.
Mr. Lefebvre: It was declared surplus in November, 1963, and turned over 

to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation which has disposed of them for $8,145.
The Chairman: That was borne out.
Mr. Schreyer: That sum of $8,000 does not include the warehouses, 

dormitories, et cetera, does it?
Mr. Henderson: I believe it included all of the buildings, Mr. Schreyer, 

but it did not include the land. The land was declared surplus in October, 1964, 
and has since been sold separately. All the properties on the land were sold, as * 
understand it, for $8,145.

The Chairman: It was a real bargain.
Mr. Tardif: It might be a cause for smuggling. Then they sold the land t° 

whom? To people who promised not to do any smuggling?
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Crowley states that the Province of Ontario bought the 

land.
Mr. Forbes: How much did they receive for the land? We might as vveh 

have the whole answer.
Mr. Henderson: We can obtain that information, Mr. Forbes. It is not i° 

our working papers at the moment. That would be in the 1965 year, you see, 
but we will obtain it.
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Mr. Forbes: I would like to suggest something. The last time we had the 
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation representatives before us, they indicated to 
us, if my memory serves me right, that they do not sell anything. They accept it 
°n bids on the basis of tender. If you want something, you just bid so much. This 
clears up the suggestion that they sell something. I understand they do not sell 
unything. They just accept bids on it.

Mr. Lefebvre: They auction them or they accept bids. Perhaps there are 
^ays in which they can attract better bids, sometimes?

Mr. Forbes: I would say they have not got much sense of values.
The Chairman : These are questions that can be put before them.
Mr. Henderson: There was a subcommittee, Mr. Chairman, in 1964, which 

looked into the disposal of surplus defence equipment. You will recall that the 
realization from that was considerably less than the cost and the Committee was 
concerned about it. In fact, it is all mentioned in the followup report so that if 
the officials do come before the Committee, it would be useful, perhaps, to 
undress some questions to them with respect to that situation. They have taken 
some remedial steps which I have mentioned.

Mr. Lefebvre: Could we set aside all the items in this book that pertain to 
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, perhaps, and wait for the day that we can 
ave them here?

The Chairman: It will take two days to do it.
Mr. Bigg: I might just suggest, on that general subject, that I think the 

^hole idea would be of benefit to the crown if we put the Crown Assets 
Imposai Corporation on a percentage basis, the same as any other auctioneer. If 
taey were to get even a generous portion such as 25 per cent of the total 
attiount of sales, they would be encouraged to sell at the highest price and 
Xv°uld get very fair coverage for what they had done. I am sure the crown 
Xv°uld benefit in the extreme.
». Mr. Muir (Lisgar): If you are going to pay 25 per cent to the Crown Assets 

isposal Corporation salesman, I would like to be the first applicant for the job.
Mr. Bigg: At the present time they are making, in some cases, 98 per cent, 

hey Will buy an airplane for $1.00 and sell it for about $3,000.
s . The Chairman: We are just leaving item No. 75. I have put a note beside it 
ayiiig the situation is very bad and certainly needs looking into.

■Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 76 has been put forward to 1965.
Paragraph 77 has to do with the Post Office.

tv, . 'M- Waiving of postage charges. Section 22 (1) of the Financial Adminis- 
a*ion Act reads:

The Governor in Council, on the recommendation of the Treasury 
Board, whenever he considers it in the public interest, may remit any 
tax, fee or penalty.

Ijw Post Office Department has at no time made use of this section. 
pat.arices occur from time to time where for one reason or another, but

lcularly because the second class mail regulations are extremely complex,
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errors in the application of postal rates have resulted in under-collections of 
postage revenue. When such an error is detected the practice has generally been 
to impose the correct rate from the time the error was noted and to forgive the 
past.

The Post Office Department considered the waiving of charges for postage 
to be an administrative discretion, but in our opinion it is not within the 
department’s power to exercise discretion in waiving a charge for postage that 
is properly payable. Any relief to be given is the prerogative of the Governor in 
Council under section 22 of the Financial Administration Act.

It is explained here how the Post Office Department has considered the 
waiving of charges for postage to be an administrative discretion. In our view, 
however, it is not within the department’s power to exercise discretion in 
waiving a charge for postage that is properly payable. Any relief to be given 
here would seem to us to be the prerogative of the Governor in Council under 
section 22 of the Financial Administration Act. I can advise the Committee that 
I now understand that the department has since regularized this situation- 
During the past fiscal year, we have noted several Orders in Council passed 
under section 22 of the Financial Administration Act authorizing remissions of 
postage charges. These usually represent the difference in postage between 
the third class and second class rates on issues of various publications so that 
that matter has been taken note of and remedied by the Post Office.

The Chairman: May I ask, did this waiving of charges appear very often 1° 
the Post Office Department?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Crowley, could you answer that question, please?
Mr. Crowley: What would happen? We would be unable to answer 

specifically to that, Mr. Chairman. What happens quite often, all through the 
country, is that a newspaper or a publication is assessed at a lower rate than 
they should be. The amounts may be small in some circumstances. In other 
cases the amounts would be rather large. Generally these cases would not com6 
to our attention unless we were visiting a post office and then we would note 
them. That is how this note originated. Wherever these situations occur no^> 
and it is an error on the part of the department, we have noticed lately that 1 
they cannot collect or they find there is a hardship or that they should n° 
collect for some reason, the department goes to the Governor in Council an 
obtains a remission under section 22 of the Financial Administration Act. Tha 
regularizes the situation. As Mr. Henderson has mentioned, we have noted qu*te 
a number of these coming through lately. This solution satisfies us.

The Chairman: The error first occurs in the Post Office Department?
Mr. Crowley: It would occur in the local post office because the post o&ce 

rates are very involved and complicated. The postmasters find it, at times, ver3, 
difficult to apply the regulations. At times, these errors will occur. That is ^ 
usual case.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, if I interpret this properly, it means that if
postmaster makes a mistake in levying the 
customer is the one who suffers. Is this right?

right amount of postage, the
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Mr. Crowley: If he makes a mistake on the side of the publisher, or 
whoever owns the newspaper, of course, the publisher gains. Usually, the 
Publisher has been assessed a rate lower than is called for by the regulation.

Mr. Noble: That is not the point I am trying to make. I am trying to make 
the point that the man who uses the mail is penalized. Is that right? Is he 
Penalized for the mistake the postmasters make?

Mr. Crowley: No, because the department recognizes what has really 
happened. So, rather than penalize the publisher, they will go to the Governor 
ln Council and obtain a remission. In other words, it is remitted. For instance, 

will say that there has been a mistake of $125. The rates, over a period of 
thne, have been applied at a lower rate than they should have been or that was 
called for by the regulation. Then, if they feel it is not the fault of the publisher 
and circumstances mitigate the case, then they will apply to the Governor in 
Council, obtain a remission and the debt is wiped out. They will, at the same 
lrhe though, apply the proper rate to the case in point.

Mr. Bigg : Is it not so that in some cases there are different rates for the size 
°f the piece of paper? If it is seven inches by ten, it is a certain rate and if it is 
Seven inches by eleven, it is another? In a busy week the postmaster might be 
Putting through seven by eight at a certain rate and the inspector comes around 
and inquires how much is being charged for that folded piece of paper and finds 
°ut it is wrong?

Mr. Crowley: As Mr. Bigg has mentioned, everything depends on the size, 
quantity, volume, advertising and all that sort of thing.

Mr. Ballard: It has been mentioned that certificates of remission have been 
lssued lately in this connection.

Mr. Henderson: Under section 22 of the Financial Administration Act.
Mr. Ballard : I am trying to establish the amount involved in this sort of 

(“0UM you give me an idea of the largest remission that has been made 
bin the last period under your review, the largest amount in dollars?

0 Mr. Henderson: I think what I saw in my last review of this was in the 
er of the figure Mr. Crowley mentioned, $125-$150 to the publishers of 
a*ogues and special mailings which had been overcharged.

* (10.30 a.m.)
p Mr. Crowley: I would imagine that in the last year we have noticed 
Sü^aPs up to around twenty remissions. They would not be over $5,000, I am 

e °f that. Most of them are small, but the odd one would run very high.
..Mr. Henderson: Mr. Long has just been looking at the public accounts 

6 you spoke, Mr. Ballard. He can give you some information.
°Vç Mr. Long: Mr. Ballard, the law requires that all remissions of $1,000 or 
do », °e Published in the Public Accounts each year, and looking through this, I 
abyth' See anything for Post Office in 1964. No, I do not think there would be 
then ln® over $1,000 in that year. But there are pages of them for customs and 

1116 tax of the departments.
circM, Ballard: One other question: Do you find a recurrence of this 
thn stance in particular post offices, or is the occurrence general throughout

e country?
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Mr. Crowley: I would not say it is in any particular one, and I would not 
say it is general. It is just like any type of error that might occur; it happens 
here. It might not happen in this area for another few years, it happens perhaps 
in Vancouver, Halifax. It is just the casualness of this type of error. But now 
the post office has been alerted to this and to the fact that they should settle this 
situation as far as the arrears are concerned immediately. That is the situation 
with which we are concerned and they are alive to that now and are correcting 
it.

As I say, if they cannot recover it, and they feel that there has been some 
error or misunderstanding, it has usually been a misunderstanding between the 
publisher and the Post Office. Under those circumstances, the post office will 
apply to the governor in council for remission, or collect it.

Mr. Ballard: There is no pattern of negligence that can be attributed to a 
particular post office?

Mr. Crowley: We have not noticed any pattern.
The Chairman: Mr. Ballard, might I suggest, and I am sure Mr. Crowley 

would be pleased to do it, that he make a list of those twenty remissions the 
amount of each and the location of each.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask the Auditor General if these 
errors are usually carried on until they are picked up by your department, or 
are they sometimes noticed by the postmaster himself after a period of time?

Mr. Henderson: We will pick them up in the course of our auditing of the 
larger post offices, or at headquarters, but also the department itself, we find, lS 
pretty alert in cross-checking, too; they have their own internal inspection- 
They are usually caught by either one of those two ways.

Mr. Noble: I am thinking, if the postmaster inspector is alert, he should be 
able to pick them up ; otherwise, it could be a tremendous loss to some person ot 
some publishers doing a lot of mailing who may get on to this at the beginning 
of the year and carry on until pretty near the end of the year. It could amount 
to quite a sum of money.

Mr. Henderson: Yes, indeed it can. Have you any comments you want to 
add to that, Mr. Crowley?

Mr. Crowley: The only thing I would say, Mr. Chairman, is that whe0 
these cases are noted, we usually ask the department to alert all their 
postmasters because they have weekly bulletins that they send out, and in tha1 
way they bring to the attention of the postmasters from one end of the country 
to the other these little failures to collect. In that way, the postmasters will 1°°^ 
over their accounts, or look over their latest publication figures, and correct 
them.

Mr. Bigg: Is this trend getting better? Do you have any comparative figureS 
over the last ten years of this matter dropping, or anything like that?

Mr. Crowley: We can only say that as a result of our note they have bee11 
careful to at least adjust the situation. So I would say that the situation lS 
getting better. It is improving.
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The Chairman: If I may, I would like to ask Mr. Crowley about these 
20-odd remissions that you found in the last year. Did your department find 
them, or did the post office audit department find some of them?

Mr. Crowley: No. Could I correct that, Mr. Chairman? The 20-odd 
remissions to which I have referred are cases where the post office themselves 
have come across these and have applied remedial measures. Prior to that we 
would notice the odd case in our audits. We would draw it to their attention. As 
a result of this audit note, now the post office would naturally come across these 
before we did, and quite often they know them before we strike them. As a 
result, they have got these 20-odd remissions.

The Chairman: Are you satisfied that the post office audit department are 
doing a good job on this?

Mr. Crowley: Yes, I would say that they are.
The Chairman: We now come to Item No. 78.

78. Departmental decision not to dismiss an employee. Section 57 of the 
(“1vil Service Act provides authority for the suspension of an employee during 
an investigation of alleged misconduct or incompetence. The procedure upon 
c°Ripletion of the inquiry is prescribed in section 59 of the Act which states:

59. (3) Upon completion of the investigation or proceedings, as the 
case may be, the deputy head shall
(a) if as the result of the investigation or proceedings he is satisfied that 

the employee has been guilty of misconduct or incompetence
(i) recommend the dismissal or demotion of the employee, or

(ii) suspend the employee for a further period not exceeding six 
months; or

(b) if as the result of the investigation or proceedings he is not satisfied 
that the employee has been guilty of misconduct or incompetence, 
rescind the suspension retroactively to the time it was first imposed.

The officer in charge of a postal station was suspended under section 57 of 
e Civil Service Act pending investigation of a fire and alleged robbery. When 

audit revealed extensive falsification of the accounts, the suspended officer 
fitted falsifying the cash accounts and accepted responsibility for a shortage 

oq The department rescinded the suspension and retired the employee
e tbe basis of his having reached 60 years of age (with the consequent 
§ ltlement to an immediate annuity under the provisions of the Public Service 
îoMh annUa^on on the understanding that he would reimburse the Crown 

be deficiency. Collection was made from the annuity.
Su the employee had been dismissed for misconduct, his entitlement to a 
Co ,^annuati°n benefit, other than a return of contributions, would have been 
sect- 10nal upon a decision of the Treasury Board. In view of the provisions of 
bave°K ^ W (a) of the Civil Service Act, quoted above, this would appear to 

been the proper course of action.
I'GsPoIr' **ENDERS0N: This is a 1964 item and deals with the case of an employee 
disj^i^tble for public funds who admitted to falsifying his accounts and his

was recommended by his superior officer. There was a total shortage
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of approximately $4,808 which was reduced by reason of a fire which destroyed 
the records to an amount of $2,156 and the employee accepted responsibility for 
this shortage in that amount. It was decided however, as explained in the note, 
not to dismiss this employee, since this would eliminate his pension, on 
condition that he made good the loss.

As stated in the note, collection of the loss was made from the annuity 
subsequently paid to the employee. This case was noted here because it 
indicates how the effective section of the Civil Service Act should, in our 
opinion, have been applied.

It seemed to us that there should not be any compromise in invoking proper 
disciplinary action as provided for in the public service where responsibility 
for the handling of public funds is concerned.

The Chairman: I am sure there will be some questions on this.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, in view of the fact that the 

deficiency was collected from the man’s annuity, it seems to me that possibly 
the officials of the department concerned used reasonable discretion. Had they 
put the man in jail, the amount he got away with would never have been 
recovered and, as far as straight punishment is concerned, I do not know 
whether I could agree with Mr. Henderson’s attitude that the full penalty 
should be invoked without mercy.

It seems to me that departmental officials should be left with some 
discretion. They recovered the money, the man is now on pension; he made a 
mistake and, as far as I am concerned, I would not be prepared to be too tough 
about it.

Mr. Henderson: I think perhaps I have not made my point very clear to 
you, Mr. Thomas, in this case. I am going to ask Mr. Long if he would amplify 
what I said.

Mr. Long: Mr. Thomas, the point here was not that we were suggesting the 
man should have been put in jail or anything like that. The whole crux of it lS 
in the last paragraph on page 40:

If the employee had been dismissed for misconduct, his entitlement 
to a superannuation benefit, other than a return of contributions, would 
have been conditional upon a decision of the Treasury Board.

Now what has happened is that the department has, in fact, taken ® 
decision which, in view of the circumstances, we felt the Treasury Board 
should have taken. This is the point here. He would always get his contribution5 
back, but the Treasury Board might not have let him have his pension.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, was this the first occasion. It says, “revealed 
extensive falsification”. Does that mean that it happened several times, or vvas 
he caught the first time?

Mr. Long: Maybe it had been going on for some time at the time they 
found him.

Mr. Bigg: The point that struck me as policeman is this. It suggests to me 
that this was a case of arson, as well, if he burned down the post office, 01 
something, in order to cover up his tracks. It seems to me that the offence lS 
much more serious than if he said, “This is an opportunity for me to get oU
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from under. I have been falsifying petty accounts for years because I am an 
underpaid civil servant, and now here is a chance to get in the clear”, and so he 
said, “Well, the records were burned” he threw them into the fire once it got 
going, but if he lit the fire, I would certainly take a much more serious view of 
lt;- This was endangering life, public property, and everything involved, and it 
uught be a case where a much more serious action was called for, apart from his 
Pension.

The Chairman: Mr. Long, what are the facts?
Mr. Long: Well, I can read here from the paragraph we have. This was at 

ne time of the investigation. It appeared that someone with keys had entered 
ne office, opened the safe, which had a combination, emptied its contents of 

Postal values into waste paper baskets, carried the baskets to the rear of the 
office and ignited the paper. The intruders had locked the door to the building 
wnen leaving.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I was just wondering if, under the act, the deputy 
minister has the final authority to dismiss such an employee without an appeal 
0 the Civil Service Commission?

Mr. Long: He was not dismissed; he resigned. It is a case of, “You cannot 
hre me; I quit.”

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Well, in the case I have in mind, the chap was 
ismissed. He was given an appeal by the Civil Service Commission, but it was 
fie Deputy Minister who took the final authority to dismiss him, and I was just 

Pondering if this was the usual procedure.
Mr. Baldwin : There is a royal commission inquiring into the question of 

s?sfaf employees being dismissed without pensions. We might get some light 
ed when that commission has finished, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, I think we should not get 
s from the principle involved here. I am not going to take back anything I 
Du • ak°uf mercy at all. We just finished a debate on the abolition of capital 
^.mshment. But the point at issue here is, as I understand it now from what 
p ' . °ng has said, that the department should not have dealt with this man’s 

nsi°n without the consent of the Treasury Board.
Now, it is not a matter of mercy; it is a matter of law. And on those 

th°Unds, f think the objection is well taken. If it is the law that it should go 
q r°ugh the Treasury Board before the pension is granted, I think this 

°mmittee should stand behind the law.

j Mr. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, I am an ardent believer in the deterrent, and I 
w.,fi°t think that the government should establish a precedent by being lenient 
j. fi this man. If it did, all the employees would be taking money and going out 
r he Rideau Carleton and investing it in race tracks, and when they had 
kee°Vere<* enough money they would pay it back. If they did not, they would 
Mth money. I think that it should be a well known fact that if you abscond 
ever, g0Vernment funds you are going to be fired, lose your pension rights, and 

n something beyond that.
rir,u.^e Chairman: Would the former R.C.M.P. officer like to say anything? All 

ght, Mr. Bigg.
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Mr. Flemming : Well, Mr. Chairman, my question is this. In the last 
sentence that you read, you, Mr. Henderson, would agree that the course of 
action taken was the proper one? This would appear to have been the proper 
course of action.

Mr. Henderson: Yes, for the department to have taken it to the Treasury 
Board, because that is the machinery that is set up for it. That is the burden of 
my criticism here, and I hope that Mr. Thomas, perhaps, shares that now and 
would attribute a small modicum of the milk of human kindness to me.

Mr. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, everything that goes to the Treasury Board is 
being commuted anyway.

80. Defalcations in the Malartic area of Quebec. In 1960 former employees 
of the Department of Public Works in the Malartic area complained that the 
wages they had received from the department were less than had been reported 
for income tax purposes. A preliminary investigation of this circumstance 
indicated the probability that various types of irregularities had occurred in the 
years 1955 to 1960 in connection with a substantial number of minor river 
cleaning, wharf repair and construction projects carried out in the area. 
Subsequent investigations by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police have estab­
lished that fraud was perpetrated in a number of ways involving both depart­
mental employees and suppliers in connection with over 70 projects, and 
including payroll padding, fictitious and inflated suppliers’ invoices, etc.

Since these defalcations first came to light, recoveries have been effected as 
a result of legal actions taken against employees and suppliers concerned. These 
recoveries, amounting to $13,803 to date and involving 26 individuals and firms, 
are being reported for the first time during the year under review in the 
Statement of Losses (Public Accounts, page 43.29).

As the department turned over the investigations with respect to these 
losses to the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, it has not maintained records of 
the amounts for which each of the numerous individuals concerned was 
considered responsible. Consequently it does not have a calculation of the total 
loss involved or of the amount which, because of failure to recover, must in due 
course be charged to the Public Officers Guarantee Account.

We have pointed out to the department the information that will be 
required in order to finally dispose of these losses and understand that this is 
now being compiled.

• (10-45 a.m.)
Mr. Henderson : Item No. 79 on second class mail goes to 1965. Item No. 80 

is 1964 only. The defalcations here have been of concern to us because, as I state 
here, no details were available showing the amounts to which each of the 
numerous individuals concerned was responsible. If an approach such as this 
were followed in cases of this kind, it would mean that parliament would 
receive the information at a very much later date than, we believe, the 
legislation contemplated. This is what has happened here.

It has been the practice of both the Treasury Board and the Audit Office to 
have such losses reported in the public accounts, when they occur, regardless of 
how inaccurate the amount, initially reported, might eventually prove to be-
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The departmental officials acknowledged the correctness of this position and 
they took steps to conduct a closer examination into these cases, at our request, 
so as to establish, as accurately as possible, the amounts involved. In February, 
1965, they advised us that on the basis of information then available, the best 
estimate that could be made of the total loss suffered by the Crown, in these 
cases, totalled $77,243, and that of this amount recoveries to date total $15,981. 
Ip accordance with our usual practice, therefore, a current status report on 
these cases was made at the Treasury Board at the close of the 1965 fiscal year. 
1 believe that the Department of Public Works is still seeking to obtain recovery 
from these items. Is that not the case, Mr. Smith?

The Chairman : I am sure there are questions on this. I presume it was 
reported on T4 slips and they did not tally up with their actual wages.

Mr. Henderson: I do not think it was altogether that, Mr. Chairman. 
Perhaps Mr. Smith could outline very quickly the nature of this.

Mr. D. A. Smith (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office): Yes, that was 
fre circumstance which led to the investigation of these cases in the original 
instance; that is, the matching up of the reports of earnings with what certain 
employees knew they had actually received.

The Chairman: On the T4 slips?
Mr. Smith: Yes, sir.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I was just wondering if the Auditor General would tell 

ns if any punishment was meted out to these people other than just to recover 
e money that they stole?

p Mr. Henderson: I have a report here submitted to the Department of 
nblic Works by the R.C.M.P. outlining the results of their investigation. As of 
e date of this report, which was in February, 1965, 96 charges had been laid, 
convictions obtained, 13 had been dismissed, four had been withdrawn, one 

as Pending judgment and three were awaiting trial. So there are a fairly large 
Pmber of people involved in this.

, Mr. Lefebvre: In the bottom paragraph there, Mr. Henderson it says the 
^Partaient turned over the investigations with respect to these losses to the 
R°yal Canadian Mounted Police”. They have no records of what the amounts 
Counted to or to what people, because the R.C.M.P. have this information. In 
pther words, the R.C.M.P. does not provide the Department with the mforma- 
lQn. Or did the Department request it?

p Mr. Henderson: You are putting your finger right on it, Mr. Lefebvre. The 
ch reP°rt, and report very well, to all departments on the result of the
tio r^GS are laid and the results they have obtained. The actual computa- 
Se ’ *he actual maintenance of records as to these losses at their inception, it 
Th S to me> was the basic responsibility of the department responsible. 
Vv-h^ef0re’ they should have had these records rather than just waiting to see 

results the R.C.M.P. brought back.
task you can appreciate, with some 96 individuals involved, it was a bit of a 
t0ok 0 S° back and to reconstitute those records. However, the deputy minister 
how v l)ersonal interest in it and caused it to be done, with the result that we 

n°w the size of the potential loss and are applying recoveries against it. It
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has been properly reported to Parliament in the manner that the Financial 
Administration Act contemplates. I am saying to you that it has been remedied, 
but I was concerned over the fact that the department, having turned it over to 
the R.C.M.P., had not established records at the time that we examined the 
books.

Mr. Lefebvre: This should not take place in the same fashion, in another 
case, which would be similar?

Mr. Henderson: I would hope not, sir. I would think it the responsibility of 
a department to establish what the losses have been and to follow it up; 
otherwise, you have no leadership brought to the solution of the problem.

The Chairman: I wonder if we could have Mr. Smith explain this part at 
the end of the first paragraph, including payroll padding? What did you 
discover under this heading?

Mr. Smith: We did not discover this, Mr. Chairman. These facts were 
uncovered by the RCMP in the course of its investigations.

The Chairman: If it had not been for the RCMP, the Audit Department 
would not have caught it?

Mr. Smith: That is possible, sir. I think the note refers to 70 projects. 
Actually, there were 64 projects and an aggregate amount of something less 
than $220,000 was involved, so that the average amount involved in each 
project was something in the neighbourhood of $3,000. Due to the comparative 
remoteness, it would not be feasible, of course, for members of the Audit Office 
staff to visit these sites and to spend time checking such small projects. The 
examinations are made in the course of our test examinations at the headquar­
ters of the Department of Public Works in Ottawa. In the absence of suspicious 
circumstances, it might be somewhat unlikely that we would uncover these 
facts.

The Chairman: I realize the Chairman should not be asking questions, but 
what about the internal audit of the Department of Public Works? Where do 
they fit into this picture? They did not uncover any of this?

Mr. Smith: No, these facts were not uncovered by checking prior to the 
time that the supporting vouchers were made available to our examiners.

Mr. Bigg: As we are checking the public purse, it also seems to me that 
there is a slip here somewhere. Money has been paid out, apparently, for which 
no work was done, and so there should be a recovery of wages there by 
somebody and, if not, at least the income tax should be paid. I would like to 
know if we cannot check up on that to see if these people are just being 
reprimanded or fined. Are the fines coming back to the federal government’ 
Are the amounts of money paid back in unpaid wages and also in unpaid 
income tax? It seems to me that there is a possibility of a double loss here to the 
Department of National Revenue and, I think, something should be done.

Mr. Henderson: It might be a good idea if we were to furnish the 
Committee with an up to date picture on just where it stands at the present 
time. I think it would be a very useful exercise, Mr. Chairman, if we might be 
permitted to file that at a following meeting.
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The Chairman : We will now take a question from Mr. Noble and from Mr. 
Flemming. If there are no further questions, we will conclude our meeting.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, owing to the great number of people involved in 
this, it does look like organized conspiracy. I am wondering if the man, or party, 
who is responsible to the Department of Public Works, was involved in this 
Natter. Was it something he had nothing to do with? Where do we start from 
with respect to the Department?

Mr. Henderson: We might, with your permission, invite the department to 
answer that very point as part of the statement that I propose we prepare, in 
answer to Mr. Bigg’s question, so that you see exactly what his status is today.

Mr. Flemming: My question concerns the fraud they say was perpetrated 
111 a number of ways by employees. Is there any record of departmental 
eniployees, involved in fraud, having been disciplined in any way?

Mr. Henderson: That is a further question on which I should like to obtain 
J16 answer from the Department and have it put into this statement, Mr.
* lemming.

Mr. Schreyer: When the post office is faulted, in effect, for not maintaining 
records of the amount involved, it seems we are really expecting them to 
^aintain records of estimates of what is considered to be involved. Is it not 

Ifficult for the post office to know?

Mr. Henderson: It is not the Post Office Department, Mr. Schreyer, it is the 
ePartment of Public Works.

Mr. Schreyer: I am sorry, the Department of Public Works.
Mr. Henderson: They were unable to give us any figures as to the total 

dm°unt of these defalcations and we were not able to compile any. That 
sturbed me because it is a very basic responsibility of the department, it 
ems to me, to make at least the best and closest estimate they can and then to 

°w through on the collections, and be able to check on what is outstanding at 
: times. They came along later, as I explained, and were able to compile this 
a Ormation. That has been our starting point and that is why I think it would be 

good exercise to produce a statement, not only in answer to these questions, 
Mso of the up to date figures.

Tu ^he Chairman: Gentlemen, we are ready to adjourn. Our next meeting is 
y’ May at which time we will have the St. Lawrence Seaway 

fro °rity before us. You will have these reports and the long form reports 
^udit°r General delivered to your rooms. I hope you will study them 

c°me prepared to meet the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority. 
avv Regarding the following meeting on May 12, I know Mr. Henderson will be 
Us cy" ^°UM it be wise for us to have the Department of Public Works before 
Win ?Cernmg item 80, or would you like to be present for that, Mr. Henderson? 

Mr. Smith handle it?

to Menderson: I think Mr. Smith or Mr. Long could handle it, if you wish 
Un u Ve ttlem present. There are a number of other public works items coming

however.
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The Chairman : I think, while this is fresh in our minds, we ought to handle 
it.

Mr. Henderson: You might like to ask them about some of the further 
questions that are coming up right after paragraph No. 80.

The Chairman: If there is time.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I think we should have the Auditor General 

here when dealing with Public Works.
Mr. Henderson: We could set up a date for that on my return.
The Chairman: All right.
If there is nothing further, will someone move the meeting be adjourned?
Mr. Flemming: I so move.
The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned. Thank you, gentlemen.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Tuesday, May 10, 1966.

(6)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.05 a.m., the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), Dionne, 
lemming, Forbes, Hales, Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, McLean (Charlotte), 

Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch (16).

In attendance: Dr. Pierre Camu, President, The St. Lawrence Seaway 
uthority; Messrs. P. E. R. Malcolm, Taylor, Beland, Carvell and Martin of the 
eaway Authority; Mr. G. Long, Assistant Auditor General; and Messrs, 
illeneuve, McMillan and Laroche of the Auditor General’s staff.

The Chairman introduced Dr. Camu, president of the St. Lawrence Seaway 
uthority and members of that organization. Dr. Camu made a statement to the 

^remittee on the structure of the Seaway Authority and was questioned
ltlereon.

The Chairman tabled the following items which were entered as exhibits:

Exhibit I—The St. Lawrence Seaway Authority Annual Report 1963

Exhibit II—Auditor General’s Report to the President and Members on the 
duration of the accounts and financial statements for the year ended 

e°ember 31, 1963 (Referred to as Auditor General Long Form)

Exhibit III—The St. Lawrence Seaway Authority Annual Report 1964

e Exhibit IV—Auditor General’s Report to the President and Members on the 
"Unation of the accounts and financial statements for the year ended 

Cernber 31, 1964. (Also referred to as Auditor General Long Form).

were; Mr. Long and accompanying staff of the Auditor General’s office 
r°duced to the Committee.

1963 reports were considered by the Committee including paragraphs 
ln the Auditor General’s Report to the House of Commons for 1964 and 

ragraPh 209 in the 1965 Report.

Se E00 p.m., the questioning of the representatives of the St. Lawrence 
y Authority and the Auditor General continuing, the meeting was 

°urned to 3.30 p.m. this day.

24°19-1J 175
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AFTERNOON SITTING
(7)

The Committee resumed at 3.55 p.m., the Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales 
presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Flemming, Hales, Leblanc 
(Laurier), Lefebvre, Noble, Schreyer, Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch (10).

In attendance: (same as at morning sitting)

Ensuing from remarks of the President of the St. Lawrence Seaway 
Authority in his statement to the Committee at the morning sitting, the 
Chairman tabled a Summary of Future Traffic Estimates and Toll Requirements 
as Exhibit V.

The questioning on the 1963 Seaway reports concluded, the Committee then 
turned to those for 1964.

The Sub-Committee is to obtain from the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority 
further details covering the encroachment of crown land by the owner of 3 
private oil pipeline as well as information from the Department of Transport on 
the original expropriation price of the individual’s property.

The Committee took under consideration a suggestion to attempt the 
arrangement of an early agreement between the Canadian National Railway5 
and the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority with respect to paragraph (a) under 
GENERAL page 19 of the Auditor General’s report to the President and 
Members for the year ended December 31, 1964.

The questioning of the witnesses concluded, the Chairman adjourned the 
meeting to May 12, 1966.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE
(Recorded, by Electronic Apparatus)

(11.05 a.m.)
Tuesday, May 10, 1966.

The Chairman : Gentleman, we have an excellent quorum this morning, 
^ght on time and ready to start. I sometimes have trouble getting started on 
lrne but our trouble is to get the room on time.

As you know, we have with us this morning the St. Lawrence Seaway 
uthority representatives. Possibly the best way, in order to have some 

ontinuity in our meeting, would be to first of all introduce the members of the 
uthority to you and I think they, in turn, should know the members of our 

^°mrnittee. After that, I will ask Dr. Camu to give a brief outline of the St. 
^ awrence Seaway Authority. Following that, we would proceed with the long 
orm report and have Mr. Long, the Assistant Auditor General, run through 
at briefly with us and you can decide whether you wish to ask questions as we 
°ceed or to save your questions till the end and then we can direct the 
swers to members of the Authority.

p First of all, I would like to introduce to the Public Accounts Committee the 
tondent of the St. Lawrence Seaway, Dr. Camu, who, we are very happy 

advise you, as recently as April was made a Fellow of the Royal Society of 
to which is one of Canada’s most distinguished learned societies. It is nice 

n°w that such people are heading Authorities of Government. 
ha N°w, Dr. Camu, if you would introduce the members of your Authority you 
to y°u this morning, I will ask each of the members of our Committee

1Se and introduce himself.
Mr. p. Camu (President, St. Lawrence Seaway Authority ) : Thank you, Mr. 

oj^an. This morning we are a group of six here and the Authority is 
tylaiP0Sec* three members, a President, the Vice-President, Mr. P. E. R. 
^alC°!m kere’ and a member, Mr. D. E. Taylor, who is sitting right there. Mr. 
Auth° • *S ttie Vice-President and Mr. Taylor is the other member of the 

0rity. So this is the complete Authority of three Board members. 
fy[ar^ye also have with us the Director of Finance and Accounting, Mr. J. M. 
for t/n’ and the Counsel for the Authority, Mr. J. T. Carvell, and the Secretary 
Pleas ® Authority, Mr. L. E. Beland. That is our group of six and we will be very 
alloix to answer any questions you ask, after I make a few points, if you will 

naa to do so now.
'^orvfr' Lefebvre: On a point of order, the public address system is not 

kln§ again.
rTh o&Ublic 6ri Chairman : Mr. Clerk, would you attend to that matter and have the 

address system working so that it will be in both languages.

177
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Mr. Flemming, would you just start by naming yourself, followed by other 
members of the Committee.

Thank you, gentlemen. You can see we have a good cross section here of 
members from all parts of Canada and they are all vitally interested in the 
work of this Committee.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I was wondering whether perhaps, in order to 
expedite business, it would be agreeable that Mr. Long, as the Assistant Auditor 
General, draw to our attention, now, the factors under his branch that vve 
should be making enquiries upon.

Mr. Long: Mr. Winch, I do not think there is any particular criticism oi 
matter that the Committee should take action on so far as we are concerned. 1 
thought I might try to take you rather quickly through the long form reports, 
showing you the information that is given in them about the operation in each 
of those years. There are things of interest but I do not think there is really an} 
particular criticism which is, I think, perhaps what you had in mind.

Mr. Winch: Yes.
The Chairman: Dr. Camu, would you proceed, then, with an outline of the 

Authority’s function?
Mr. Camu: I wish to thank you and, for the benefit of this Public Accounts 

Committee, I would like to make a very few points.
The Authority is a Crown Corporation and, at the end of December last, vce 

completed our seventh season of navigation. The Seaway was opened in 195 _ 
We opened our eighth season on the 1st April, 1966. Geographically, we exten 
from Montreal to Lake Erie and we have two major divisions or sections. T*1 
first one is the Montreal-Lake Ontario stretch of the river and we call that the 
Eastern Region. The second one is the Welland Canal itself, which is called th® 
Western Region. The Western Region also includes one lock located sevei3 
hundred miles away,—the Canadian lock at the Sault. This is also part of °u 
region.

We also are responsible for a few non-toll canals which are a part of 
old system that was discarded, so to speak, in 1959. One of them is the Lachid 
Canal in Montreal, another one is the Cornwall Canal in the Cornwall area 
the entrance to the old third Welland Canal at Port Dalhousie, as well as t 
Sault. j

The toll sections of the Seaway are the Montreal-Lake Ontario section ^ 
the Welland Canal itself. These are the two and this is the main section und 
our own administration.

We have five locks on the Montreal-Lake Ontario section and the AmeI^ 
cans have two, in up-State New York, neat Massena. The Welland Canal, 
course, has eleven locks, eight in line and three twin, near the Niaga 
escarpment. To operate these facilities, we have working for us approximate 
1500-1600 people. Twelve hundred are operation and maintenance because 0 
system is open night and day seven days a week for about 260 days a yea.’ 
more or less, which is our season of navigation. The rest of the working f°rcC-0, 
located in three different points. Our headquarters is in Cornwall, OntaP^ 
where we have a staff of about 150 people and most of our services are there- 
Ottawa we have the head office for the three members of the Board and
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§i°up you have here, plus a small clerical staff to administer to regions. We 
nave headquarters at St. Lambert and at St. Catharines, Ontario.

• (11.15 a.m.)
Internationally, the set-up is as follows : the operations of the Montreal- 

ake Ontario section are on a business-like partnership with the entity called 
he United States Saint Lawrence Seaway Development Corporation. It is an 
rneriean entity, all by itself, with headquarters in Massena. They have about 
60 people and they operate two locks on their side.

Our relationship is mostly business. We decide together when we open and 
hen we close the season of navigation and we issue together the Seaway 
anual to every vessel transiting the Seaway which contains all the circulars 

nd regulations necessary for the safe transit of any vessel, large or small. We 
so combine in issuing press releases from time to time regarding traffic, which 

Aerially every two months. We also publish together the annual traffic report, 
hich was published about a month and a half ago.

st * w*h now give you an idea of the traffic on the Seaway. I will use the 
andard cargo tonnage which is the easiest one. The traffic in 1959 was about 20 
1 lion tons and, seven years later, the year we have just completed in 1965, 
e cargo tonnage reached a high of about 43 and almost 44 million tons in the 
ontreal-Lake Ontario section and in the Welland Canal about 54 million tons. 

^ e traffic is composed of almost the same percentages year after year. That is 
pj, ?ay> about 90 per cent are bulky commodities and 10 per cent general cargo, 

is varies a bit from one year to the next.

theseTwo leading commodities are, let us say, the backbone of our traffic and
are grain and iron ore. These two together represent roughly 50-60 per

ent of our overall traffic by cargo, 
y Unlike the Canadian National Railway, which is another Crown Corpora- 
Ra'i same status, we do not operate the ships. The Canadian National
are Wa^ °Perates trains on tracks but we just operate the waterway. The ships 
tra °Wnec* by private companies—all kinds of them—and we just assure the safe 
tratlS-t sbiPs through our system. There are usually close to 7,500 or 8,000 

nsits in this season of navigation.
la^ ^here are two groups of ships which make up our main customers—the big 
tati^rs’ which are the carriers of bulky commodities, and the ocean ships. The 
Stïl , 18 about two-fifths ocean ships and three-fifths lake carriers. We also have 

er vessels in the system and pleasure craft as well.
bee tolls we charge on the Seaway were approved in 1959 and we have 
care 0perating under that system since. It is a dual toll; there is one toll on the 
a^ ’ which is usually 4 cents per ton of what we call gross registered tonnage, 
cçjrt^ Ull on the cargo which is also a dual toll, 40 cents per ton of bulk and 90 
any jper ton of general cargo. This is the way we get our revenue through tolls 
op s Would say 95 per cent of our revenues, the other 5 per cent being based 
Warpk16 °* the land we have on either side of the Seaway which is leased to 

°uses and industrial facilities and so forth.
We tobs are now under review, together with those of the Americans, and 
apy ’ have public hearings in Ottawa and Chicago at the end of the month 

e beginning of June. We are looking for a 10 per cent increase on the
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Montreal-Lake Ontario section. On the Welland Canal, by government decision 
way back in 1962, the tolls were suspended. We are now looking for, not a 
re-installation of the toll, but a per lockage fee, which is slightly different but 
would give us enough money to recoup at one time, around 1971, our cost of 
operation and maintenance of that canal.

The tolls we are looking for with the Americans is for a five-year period 
from 1967 until 1971, the new tolls which are part of our existing tariff.

In order to give you an idea of the magnitude of the Seaway, I will 
compare that with the Suez and Panama canals, which will give you an idea of 
how big or small the St. Lawrence Seaway is in proportion to the others. Suez 
is doing a business of about 175-180 million tons a year so it is really th® 
biggest in the world. Suez has no locks. It is a straight channel where the 
maintenance and the dredging is the most expensive part and it allows ships to 
move from the Mediterranean Sea to the Red Sea. They have a very heavy 
outbound traffic of petroleum, of course, coming from the Persian Gulf to the 
European market.

The Panama Canal has locks and allows ships to move from one ocean 
the other—from the Pacific to the Atlantic. The tonnage there is about 75- 
million tons a year.

to
80

Ours is also a system with locks. We have two sections. I mentioned to you 3 
moment ago about the Welland Canal, whose tonnage is around 55 million tons, 
so it gives you an idea of the magnitude of these three canals, all of which are 
toll canals with comparable systems—not quite, but comparable.

To give you another idea of the international character of our operation, 
not only do we operate with the Americans but we have representatives from 
about 30 different shipping communities. In other words, about 30 different 
are the usual customers of the Seaway and commodities are coming from al 
over the world. Unlike the other two canals, however, the Great Lakes is like 3 
reservoir, a group of five great lakes, and any ship going up the Seaway jS 
trapped unless it gets out through the same way. It is not like Panama or Suez, 
where a ship can go through and then use it on the way back five years laten 
Ours is quite different in that respect.

There is another characteristic which, I think, is unique to the Seaway 
system and this is the fleet of the big lakers. These were and are and will be’ 
because there are going to be more, specially built ships for that kind of rout®- 
Until 1959 these big lakers were trapped in the Great Lakes and they wer® 
dealing mostly with iron ore, coal and grain traffic between major ports of tk6 
Great Lakes. But when the Seaway opened in 1959, the bottleneck was remov® 
and these big lakers were then able to come down direct to Montreal, Sor® ’ 
Trois-Rivières, Quebec and the other lower St. Lawrence ports. Finally, l*16 
were able to go as far as Sept-îles, Baie-Comeau and Pointe-Noire, and no 
they have established what we consider one of the most profitable run5’ 
carrying the iron ore from the lower St. Lawrence straight to the Great Lak 
and coming down with the grain to these elevators. This is, what I would ®ay’ 
one of the most interesting lines of traffic now on the Great Lakes-St. Lawren 
Waterway system.
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I do not think it would be of any use for me to go further than that. I think 
Members of the Committee may have very precise questions and members of 
my group are here to help me answer them.

The Chairman : Which members of the Committee have any questions to 
direct to Dr. Camu at this time?

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I just have one; could Dr. Camu give us 
the tonnage passing through the Sault Ste. Marie. It used to be rated that there 
^as more tonnage passing through the Sault Ste. Marie canal than any canal in 
the world.

Mr. Camu: I think it is correct. When I compare the St. Lawrence Seaway 
^ith the Suez and Panama Canals I compare that with two other international 
sections which are also toll canals, but you are quite right.

The traffic at the Sault on the American side is around 100-150 million tons 
a year. They have only one lock in line but they have parallel locks like fingers 
because there is so much traffic. At this point the traffic, of course, is the second 
m the world, after Suez, if you wish to compare that in straight tonnage. It is 
Part of our system. A lot of the traffic going through the Sault is the kind of 
traffic that remains in the Great Lakes, like the movement of iron ore pellets 
from the Minnesota-Mesabi Range straight to Lake Erie ports and back. We 
aever see that kind of traffic.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I have four questions and I think it might 
exPedite business if you would permit me to put the four questions at once. Is 
that agreeable to you?

The Chairman: I think they would be better one at a time. It gives better 
PPortunity to the man answering them, to follow.

Mr. Winch: Well, I can follow through with four questions?
The Chairman: Four questions.

a Mr. Winch: My first question then, Mr. Chairman, is who has the final 
hority on the operation of the Seaway as between Canada and the United 
es? Or is every decision by agreement?

q Mr. Camu: On the operation and maintenance of the system on the 
dena^an side of the river, that is our own jurisdiction and we make all the 

Clsions ourselves without any interference whatsoever.
if it ^°W’ on the other hand, when we accept a ship, for instance, to determine 
to» k Seaworthy, such as a ship arriving in Montreal, the two agencies publish 
kinriil6r regulations or circulars in order to arrive at an agreement on what 
eq . °f ships to accept or whether a ship is seaworthy or has all the seaway 

Parent needed. We have committees of our own officers working together 
sametlle Americans to decide the kind of equipment needed and so forth. The 

e thing with radio frequencies and so forth.
bet\v^°W’ to move on another topic, on the tolls question. By an agreement 
CoUee.en two agencies in 1959, it was decided that we would do the 
the c lon °1 the tolls. So all the tolls collected on every one of those ships using 
basjs eaway come to Cornwall and, at the end of every month, on a pro rata 

’ We redistribute the money given to the Americans for their two locks.
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The tolls on the St. Lawrence are on the division of 71 per cent to Canada 
and 29 per cent to the United States. This is also part of an agreement.

Mr. Winch: Is there any part of the Seaway operation which goes through 
the control of the United States?

Mr. Camu: On which we go through the United States?
Mr. Winch: Yes.
Mr. Camu: Every ship has to go through the two locks on the U.S. side.
Mr. Winch: That is my point. Who has the final decision, one or the other? 

Or must it be by mutual agreement?
Mr. Camu: It is by mutual agreement.
Mr. Winch: Well then, that leads to my second question, which you have 

partially answered. What is the deficit as related to the tolls collected and 
Seaway costs? And does it require joint agreement between the United States 
and Canada to make toll changes?

Mr. Camu: The answer is yes. Mr. Malcolm will answer on that point.
Mr. P. E. R. Malcolm (Vice President, St. Lawrence Seaway Authority) ■ ^ 

is by joint agreement.
Mr. Winch: May I then ask my third question, Mr. Chairman? What is the 

effect upon the Seaway operations and what concern or action is being taken 
relative to the reduction of the water level in the Great Lakes of which we have 
been told?

Mr. Camu: This question of water level is one to which we always give the 
same answer. But I will have to explain that too. The answer, very simply. lS 
this. We operate with the water given to us. In other words, our concern is with 
navigation only and all the major controlled dams on the river, which really 
control the water levels, are under the two main power entities of Quebec and 
Ontario.

I will give you a concrete example. In Quebec we use jointly with 
Hydro-Quebec the Beauharnois Canal, which is about ten miles long. At th? 
head of the canal there is a huge hydro-electric station, which controls the lev6 
right there, and the Beauharnois Canal. So we operate with the level that the 
regulating agency—the power entity in this case—give us.

Now, there are agreements between them and us on peaking, so in order to 
avoid taking a lot of water over the week-end or on a Friday evening 01 
Monday morning and so forth, they have a minimum and maximum which the. 
have to follow, which is indispensable for our purposes. Otherwise, we worn 
have fluctuations that would be too great.

On the St. Lawrence above Cornwall it is the same thing. The water lS 
controlled by two dams, one is the big hydro-electric station at CornW3 ' 
Massena, and at the other one above, at Iroquois, there is also just a strain 
dam with gates. This one controls the water level in almost the whole of La t
Ontario. These are under the direct control of the two power entities; in 
there are three, because at the international water power dam at Cornwall, 
of it is on the American side. But that is under their control and we

fact
half
are

represented through an agency of the River Control Board, which is part of 311



May 10, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 183

International Joint Commission. Our representative there is not someone from 
the Authority but is an officer of the Department of Transport, who represents 
US there.

Mr. Winch: Can I ask a supplementary question on this? Now, the 
President has given us a good picture on the control of water on the actual 
Seaway operation itself.

• (11.30 a.m.)
The Seaway Authority is most interested in getting as many ships as 

Possible through. Now, if I have it correctly, from the information given this 
Past two years in the House of Commons, a serious matter is developing on 
harbour facilities because of the lowering of water. Because of the concern of 
ho Seaway Authority, have you made any representations about, not the water 

yhich you are receiving for the actual lock system on the Seaway, but the 
harbour situation?

Mr. Camu: Not for the harbours, no. We have no jurisdiction whatsoever 
°Ver the harbours above the system in the Great Lakes. They are not under our
jurisdiction.

Mr. Winch: No, I know they are not but, because of your concern of getting 
the maximum number of ships through, which requires the use of harbour 
facilities, have you been in any discussions at all on the situation concerning the 
water level of the Great Lakes harbours.

Mr. Camu: No, not that I know of. But, if you will allow me, Mr. 
airman, an explanation is this; what we need to operate the Seaway safely is 
that 6 inches. This is the permissible draft but the total draft is 27 feet. We 

, erate with a very very narrow margin of about 2 feet between the keel of a 
P> for instance, and the bed of the river itself. But we were able, through the 
r 1964, for instance, which was the most critical one, to operate the whole 
hier, even during the critical days of August and the low water period. We 

uble to have the 25 feet 6 inches needed for navigation and we have not 
1° impose on ships a restriction of 6 inches or a foot at any one time, so far.
Mr. Winch: Can I ask a further supplementary on this one question? A 

advher supplementary. In view of reports to the House of Commons, can you 
fa 1Se this Committee of your decision or recommendations about a by-pass at 

and, so that you have two instead of one?
Mr. Camu: Two canals instead of one?
Mr. Winch: Is not that the representation that has been made?
Mr. Tardif: You mean the twinning of the canal at Welland.
Mr. Winch: All right, the twinning of the canal, yes, I will put it that way.

Q,.„ Chairman: That question will come later on in the report. Your fourth qU6stl°n, Mr. Winch?

is j Winch: The fourth question is; why is it that the Engineering Division 
in l Montreal, which is the commencement of the Seaway, and not somewhere

°etween?
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Mr. Camu: The Engineering Division was opened in Montreal before the 
opening of the Seaway. This is where they started to make the original plans in 
the years before 1954, 1955, 1956. They were originally located there because of 
the construction of the Montreal-Lake Ontario section, with the heaviest 
concentration of works in the Montreal-Beauharnois area. That is why they 
were located there at first. In 1960, after the opening of the Seaway, the 
Engineering staff was down to almost a group of about 30 people, of which we 
had only 12 engineers. At that time, our idea was to close down the Montreal 
office completely and take the rest of the engineering staff into Cornwall. We 
were about to make that decision in 1961-62 when the difficulties of operations 
on the Welland Canal forced us to look again at our engineering plans and we 
knew we would be in trouble one of these days, with some major modifications 
there. So we slowly re-built the engineering branch in connection with twin­
ning, and so forth, and we left the branch right there in Montreal. And we have 
expanded since, on the spot.

Mr. Winch: I am certain the Chairman understands my question, from an 
efficiency point of view. Why is not your engineering section in Cornwall now- 
Or do you contemplate moving it to Cornwall?

Mr. Camu: One of the main difficulties we have is in the recruiting of 
engineers. Everybody is competing for engineers nowadays. We need about 
seven or eight different kinds of engineers, of which the most difficult to get are 
the hydraulic engineers. In all cases, when we try to get some personnel, let us 
say, of $10,000 a year salary or more, it is impossible to get these people located 
in Cornwall. They just do not come.

Mr. Winch: Do you mean that you can get engineers if they are stationed 
in Montreal, but you cannot get engineers if they are stationed in Cornwall?

Mr. Camu: That is right.
Mr. Winch: Why is this?
Mr. Camu: Well, many reasons are given usually, and they are always the 

same. They do not like to live in a medium or small-size town, there is n° 
university in town for their children, they prefer the cultural life of a big city- 
and so forth. And we have run into this problem time after time.

The Chairman: Mr. Flemming and then Mr. Forbes.
Mr. Flemming: My question, Dr. Camu, is related to your remarks about 

your official season. I think you mentioned April 1st and a duration of 260 day5. 
Ordinarily, you would consider your official season to be April 1st to when?

Mr. Camu: To December 1st. The official dates are, the official opening 
April 15th and official closing date November 30th. We changed that last year t° 
December 3rd. This is for the Montreal-Lake Ontario section where climatic 
conditions are more difficult. The Welland Canal is open 15 days longer every 
year, from April 1st to December 15th. These are the official closing dates but­
in the past three seasons, we have been able to open earlier in Montreal. 
opened on the 8th April in 1964-65 and this year, 1966, we were able to open 011 
April 1st.
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The Welland Canal this year was opened later and, because of major 
construction works, we opened on the 4th. The closing date last year was 
around December 15th for both sections.

Mr. Flemming : Do you have any responsibility for ships which take a 
chance on coming later than the official season and then get caught in the ice. 
h*o you have any responsibility for helping them to get out?

Mr. Camu: We feel we do not have any responsibility at all. If you recall, 
Mr. Flemming, four ships were trapped one winter. We started advising them 
ahout a month before. Every three days we started to give them weather, 
temperature, ice conditions, climatic information and warnings and we repeated 
that consistently. Some of them defied our advice because they were looking for 
^ore cargo and they tried to take a calculated risk in making one more port of 
CaU and coming back on time, but it was not possible.

Mr. Flemming : My concern, of course, is the Atlantic ports, actually. I 
^ight say that is the reason for these questions.

One more question, Dr. Camu, when you are looking for a 10 per cent 
^crease, do you anticipate this will provide interest and some sinking fund on 
y°Ur initial cost or what do you think it will provide if it goes through?

Mr. Malcolm: We believe that the 10 per cent increase, with the anticipat- 
traffic growth would meet the requirements of the Authority’s financial 

°hligations.
Mr. Flemming: Would it provide something against the original cost of theSeaway? I am thinking about sinking funds at the moment. Would it provide

anything by way of a reserve or is it just going to simply pay interest on the 
cost?

Mr. Camu: Mr. Martin, our Director of Finance, will give you a better 
answer, I think, than we can. We can give you the over-all comments but I 
ltlJnk it would be better if Mr. Martin commented on this.
Th ^r" M- Martin (Director of Finance, St. Lawrence Seaway Authority): 
sect' ° Per cent increase, of course, relates only to the Montreal-Lake Ontario 
stu,10n of the Seaway. For this section, we have had a very intensive economic 
for y Carried out by independent consultants who have provided us with traffic 
We Casts which encourage us very much regarding the future of the Seaway. 
WaSfinticipate much heavier traffic than originally foreseen when the Seaway 
1q hrst Put into operation in 1959. With the increased traffic, coupled with the 
aM n,Cent tolls increase, we hope that we will manage to pay both our interest 
tj1°u Principal of our obligations. This, of course, is predicated on the traffic,

Mr. Flemming: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
» The Chairman- Mr. Forbes and then Mr. Muir and Mr. Leblanc. Mr. 

°rbes.
gr .Mr. Forbes: Dr. Camu, what is the present rate which is being charged on 

ain going through the Ontario-Montreal section?
Mr. Camu: It is 40 cents per ton.
Mr. Forbes: Forty cents per ton?
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Mr. Camu: Short ton, of 2,000 lbs.
Mr. Forbes: Well, do you realise that if you put a 10 per cent increase on 

this, you are going to reduce the cost of grain to the producer by another third 
of a cent per bushel. This will now amount to 40 cents a ton which is about 
two-thirds of a cent a bushel now.

And do you also realise that farmers are caught in a cost price squeeze at 
the present time? The price of grain has been going down. Do you realise that 
grain is a very important exportable product and certainly I would hope that 
you would reconsider increasing the amount on grain tolls. If I understood you 
correctly, on the tonnage that goes through the locks, grain would amount to 
about 40 per cent. Is that approximately correct?

Mr. Camu: Grain, yes, less than that—around 30 per cent.
Mr. Forbes: All right. Now, then, one more question and I will be very 

brief. We are getting away from a principle here that has been established since 
way back in 1904 and I would just like to draw it to your attention. The reason 
the tolls were removed from inland waterways by Sir Wilfred Laurier in 1904 
was that they imposed an additional burden upon the grain growers of the west. 
This was interpreted to mean favouritism to the west, although it really was an 
effort to lessen the charges on movement of wheat from Fort William to Port 
Arthur to Montreal and destined for markets in the world.

When George Graham was Minister of Railways and Canals he stated in 
the Commons:

It cannot be denied that every dollar you impose on tolls must come 
out of the produce or the cargo. There is no other way to pay for it.

Now, I would like to put one more thing on the record for your informa­
tion. This comes out of the MacPherson Royal Commission Report. He said:

We would not wish, in other words, to encourage the Canadian 
public to believe that a country such as ours can expect to attain the kin 
of transport facilities designed to fulfill national policy objectives an 
transcend commercial considerations without a continuing outlay 0 
public funds of a considerable order of magnitude.

Now, surely, this clearly indicates to you the importance of keeping this 
Seaway free to assist our export of our main product, which is grain.

The Chairman: Dr. Camu, you can readily see that we have members 
the Committee who do homework, and who come well prepared, and I am g*3 
to see this, Mr. Forbes.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, can I ask a supplementary question?
The Chairman: Wait until Dr. Camu answers the question.
Mr. Winch: I am sorry. It is strictly supplementary.
The Chairman: Allow Dr. Camu to answer the question first. Dr. Camu.
Mr. Camu: It is difficult for me to make comments at this time because th1^ 

question of tolls and the recommended increases is coming before the public 
way of public hearings and it is only after the public hearings that we * 
make our final recommendations.
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But I think, to answer the question without losing the time of the 
Committee, we have prepared recently for anyone—organizations, societies, 
individuals—going to appear in Ottawa here on May 25, 26 and 27, a 15-page 
statement or notes, so to speak, which is available upon request. It is a 
summary of the work of our own consultants, who studied such questions as 
what would be the effect on iron ore; what would be the effect on wheat, on 
°ther grains, on general cargo and so forth. We have tables in this document 
Which, I think, partly answer your question. I wonder if it would be possible for 
nie to—I do not know whether I can use the expression—‘table’ that? But I think 
h would be useful as it gives a pretty good idea of why we are looking for an 
increase of 10 per cent.

, The Chairman: Dr. Camu, we would be very happy to have that. There are 
24 members on this Committee and if each membei 
SUre it would be appreciated.

Anything further, Mr. Forbes?
Mr. Forbes: I just have one further question and that is, do you make a 

comparison between iron ore and grain? I would suggest to you t a e 
Processors of iron ore are in a position where they can add any additional cost 
j-° the product. The farmer is not in this position. He cannot add on his costs. I 

°Pe you will give that consideration.

* (11.45 a.m.)
Mr. Winch: Can I ask a supplementary on the question? Can I ask the 

hairman of the Seaway Authority or his Financial Director if they could give 
Ï5 the relationship between the cost of shipping grain from Port Arthur to 

°ntreal, including tolls, as related to shipping it by rail from or r iur o 
Montreal? I am certain that this must be a matter of interest and I know I 

°UM be interested in knowing what the relationship is.
Q The Chairman: While Dr. Camu is looking that up, I think we could move 
n *° Mr. Muir’s question.

am ^r' Muir (Lisgar) : Coming from a grain-exporting province, of course, I 
eer laterested also in any increase that would come to the producer of our 
the j- ®ra’ns' I was interested in the comment made by Dr. Camu, pointing out 
of tk ^erence between the Canadian National Railway responsibilities and that 

the Authority.
Hot J^°w> there may be a reason for this but the Canadian National Railway is 
With •t^u*red 1° balance its books, in other words, balance its assets, its revenue 
4Uth lts disbursements. Apparently the government is going to require the 
eXpoTlty to do this. This would seem to me, if we were going to assist in our 
to th^ trade> and Mr. Forbes pointed this out, the cheaper we can get this grain 
ip a SeaPort the better it is for our producers who are, as he also pointed out, 

j ry tight cost price squeeze.
Seavv tbink it boils down to the fact of whether it is more important for the 
63cPortVt0 meet its commitments than it is to assist the farmer in being able to 

j ls Srain at comparable prices with other countries.
Cost ofthink you Pointed out that something like a cent a bushel would cover the 

a bushel of grain? Would that be right? To the Seaway?
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Mr. Camu: I do not think I have these exact figures but we have had 
prepared by our consultants a special report on grain, with a lot of figures in it. 
But you have raised one point that gives me a chance to use three minutes of 
your time and I think it will partly answer Mr. Winch too.

It is this: because we do not operate the ships we do not know exactly how 
much they charge to the shippers. We know only the part of the transport costs 
which is the toll on it. And our problem which is always the same and has been 
since 1959, is how high can we go without killing the traffic and what is the 
minimum, in order to get enough money to pay for the operation and mainte­
nance of the Seaway. And, at the same time, on the Montreal-Lake Ontario 
section, to amortize the project in 50 years This is part of our obligation. So it is 
caught between the two and it is very difficult.

I can say, too, that on two occasions between 1959 and today, the costs 
were lower. One occasion, of course, was when the government decided to 
suspend the tolls on the Welland Canal. That substantially reduced the cost of 
goods moving from, for example, any port on Lake Erie and above, to pas* 
Montreal and below. Secondly, when the Canadian dollar was devaluated in 
1961-62. So there was another 8 per cent there that was saved by the shippers. 
If compared to what they were paying in 1959, 1960, 1961 and part of 1962, it is 
not a very large increase. Fortunately for us, the traffic started to move m 
1961-62 and, in a spectacular way, in 1964, with almost a one third per cent and 
in 1965 another 10 per cent increase. This, of course, has compensated quite a 
lot for the kind of revenue we have to collect in order to operate, maintain and 
pay our own costs.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Thank you for that answer, Doctor. Could you tell me 
whether the fact that ocean going vessels are now able to get up to Port Arthur 
and Fort William connects with whether there has been any decrease in the 
charge on cereal grain from Port Arthur to Montreal, with the added competi' 
tion. Could you supply us with that information?

Mr. Camu: I think I could to you. I do not have the figures now.
Mr. Muir: I wish you would do that.
Mr. Camu: I think we can do this from one of our other reports. I think 

we can give you a few figures on that.
The Chairman: Are you finished, Mr. Muir?
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Yes, until we get the figures, I think. 
Mr. Winch: Can I ask another supplementary question?
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Winch.
Mr. Winch: I was a little bit amazed, Mr. Chairman, at the statement juS* 

made by Dr. Camu. If I heard correctly, you said that you do not know 
charges made by the freighters which are shipping. If so, how do you then, f 
figuring things out in your department, do so without knowing, on a compétitif 
basis, how to operate unless you know your charges as tolls and the fr&é 
charges? I just cannot understand your statement that you do not know ^re^he 
charges. Surely, sir, you must know freight charges in order to figure out t 
freight charge, for example, from Port Arthur to Montreal on wheat, and y°u 
toll, in order to figure out what you are going to charge on tolls.
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Mr. Camu: We do not know for this reason, Mr. Winch, that we collect the 
tolls based on a cargo declaration of the ship and it is only the tonnage that is 
given to us. We check back the tonnage, that is all. We do not know how much 
they charge from the point of origin to the point of destination.

Mr. Winch: Then how do you figure out, when you are asking an increase 
°t 10 per cent on tolls, your competitive position?

Mr. Camu: That is why we had to go to consultants. We ourselves did not 
have the means to find that out. We hired consultants to find out what the 
competitive prices were, through other routes and so forth, in oi der to 
determine what would be the minimum increase we could charge without losing 
a ton of traffic.

Mr. Winch: Well, can you now tell this Committee the information you 
eeived from your consultants on the cost of shipping wheat by boat and rail? 
°uld I ask that question now?

Mr. Camu: Yes, I think I can give you that now. The Seaway rate for a 
ton from the lakehead to Montreal, including the toll, is $3.82 and 

toll Uding *s $3.40. Iron ore, including the toll, is $2.3. and, excluding the
$7 s *S ^ General cargo is $8.81 including the toll and, excluding the toll, is 

'°3- This gives you an idea.
Mr. Winch: What is the comparative rate by rail? I am most interested in

wheat.

Mr. Camu: I do not have the rail figures. 
Mr. Winch: You do not have them?
Mr. Camu: Not for this.
The Chairman : Mr. Winch, this information, I think, will be on the sheet 

dat has been distributed. Is that right?

Mr. Camu: I think we can give Mr. Winch and some of the other gentlemen 
of the these competitive rates by water and by rail let us say between 

°ntreal and Port Arthur.
ta Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, may I follow this up with a supplemen- 
com ^esti°n. The reason I asked that question, Doctor, was that if by 
the Pe^i°n you did reduce the rate on grain from Port Arthur to Montreal, 
thçwan increase in the rates on the Seaway could be justified in the minds of 
their arrners- This, I think, is important because if the Seaway did not reduce 
for 1 rMes and they are going to increase the tolls, there might be some reason 
get little disquiet among the farmers. I think it would be very important to 

thls information.

Mr The
Tebl Chairman : Now we have Mr. Leblanc 

anc.
Mr. Noble and Mr. Baldwin.

^Tanslati on)

drGss h Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, my question should most probably be ad- 
of Mr. Camu. The debt, I understand must be amortized within a period

240i9 years" D° the Seaway authorities have a strict obligation to meet that
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amortization date? Or if they cannot meet that date, can they go and procure 
the funds elsewhere to compensate?

Mr. Camu: The answer to that question is as follows. In actual fact, we 
were obliged to have up to 50 years to amortize the capital investment plus 
carrying charges, when we built the Seaway. We have no choice, so in order to 
achieve this—since we have traffic which is, shall we say, slightly lower in 
figures than we had hope of, at least at present we thought it was a good idea to 
increase our tolls, which would enable us to collect sufficient money to meet 
these financial obligations. That is the present objective of their toll review- 
Now, as regards the extension of the period, it has already been imposed on us 
by the two governments of the time in 1959, and all we do now is to try to meet 
the obligations which we have to meet.

Mr. Leblanc: Which means that your deficit, including, of course, the 
interest and amortization charges, must be met by the Seaway authorities 
themselves, and the only way in which they can meet them is by collecting tolls 
or other revenues, as required.

Mr. Camu: Our other revenues are very small amounts. Tolls are our main 
source of income, and that is the only source of income which enables us to 
meet our obligations. At the present time, it is impossible for us and the Auditor 
General every year points that out—to pay off any amount on our debt. OÎ 
course, our interests are capitalized year after year and are accumulated.

Mr. Leblanc: Well, the Auditor General, if I may say so, I think the 
representative of the Auditor General will have to give me the answer. On paSe 
3 of the report for 1964, you see that it says $1,505,671 for other revenue- 
Could we have information concerning the source of these other revenues 
which come in addition to tolls?

Mr. Camu: Yes, I can give you a breakdown of this amount. The amount i® 
broken down as follows: one part of this revenue are rights which are collected 
at certain harbour facilities. For instance, a boat which ties up at our faciliti6® 
pays—the English term is top wharfage. So, top wharfage is one of our sources ° 
revenue. Our second source of revenue is based on land rentals, land which lS 
rented to enterprises all along the Seaway. This is our second source of revenue- 
And these two sources of revenue represent the amount of $1,505,000 for tin5 
year, the year that you mentioned.

Mr. Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, may I ask another question? You told ds 
earlier that the revenue was split up between Canada and the United States id 
the proportion of 71 and 29. Now, the revenue that is given here on page 3 0 
the Auditor General’s report, is that revenue collected by Canada or is 
overall revenue?

Mr. Camu: It is Canada alone.
Mr. Leblanc: After the United States have received their 29%.
Mr. Camu: Yes, that is right. The Auditor General’s report is based on °ur 

revenue, the Canadian part alone.
Mr. Leblanc: Thank you, Mr. Camu.
Mr. Camu: To give you a further idea of the overall revenue in 1965, ^ 

says something like $20,000,000, and out of that $20,000,000, $15,000,000
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Canada and $5,000,000, for the United States. But I have rounded out the 
figures, of course.
English)

The Chairman: Is that all, Mr. Leblanc?
Mr. Leblanc: Yes, thank you.
The Chairman: Mr. Noble and then Mr. Baldwin.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, most of the information I was seeking has been 

^Pplied through the brief and from the answers which have been given here. 
Pt I would like to ask Dr. Camu this question; would the Authority be opposed 

o the erection of an electrical barrier at a convenient point at the lower end of 
fie Seaway for the prevention of lamprey migration into the Great Lakes?
. Mr. Camu: Do you mean at the Sault Ste. Marie area; at the Canadian lock 

atthe Sault?
Mr. Noble: I mean at the lower end, down near Montreal, as near Montieal 

as we could get it. The reason I am asking this question, Dr. Camu, is this; this 
government, along with the United States government, has spent millions of 
dollars trying to control the lamprey, yet they have not done anything to keep 
them from migrating into the Lakes. I do not know whether or not youi 
^uthority has been approached by the Department of Fisheries in respect of
this matter. But I have suggested before that something should be done to stopj 1 ----- -- • M nuvo V, tllU l ouille OI1UUJLU wv. uvin- O

e lamprey from coming in, and I thought your Authority had some opposition 
t0 ^is kind of project.

Mr. Camu: I do not think we would have any opposition to that. But I can 
k ^ this, that in the Montreal area the restricted channel is a very narrow strip 

® Ween the dyke and the mainland. It is, at the most, 800 feet, and the rest of 
0 river is pretty wide, it is three-quarters of a mile. We control only the 800 

6et wide strip.
Mr. Noble: This would be a strategic spot to put this barrier, at the 

lowest place you could find in that canal.

the
can

Mr. Camu: Besides the lock, we have a tail race there, where we control 
cubic feet per second, and so forth. I think if you allow our engineers, they

r> Perhaps look at it and, if it is possible, we could contact the Fisheries 
^search Board.
stat'^e C0~°Perate with them at the Sault because they have their own 

ion—the lamprey station—right at our lock at Sault Ste. Marie.
(12.00 noon)

aHd ^r" ^0BLE: There is one other question I would like to ask, Mr. Chairman, 
0v kat is, on page 16 of the brief I notice that the City of Cornwall had been 

rPaid by $129,540.
rpv

rePort ('Hairman: Mr. Noble, I think we will come to that when we get to the

4L£oble: au right-
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Mr. Baldwin : Mr. Chairman, I want to bring up a matter in which I was 
interested and which, normally, I would not have dealt with until we came to 
the Auditor General’s long form report. But as it has been touched on and 
largely dealt with, I think it would be better to pursue it. This is the question of 
the tolls.

Now, as I understand the difficulty of the Authority, you have cast upon 
you a duty by statute with respect to the tolls. You have not got the freedom 
which you might otherwise like to have. You are directed to collect an amount 
which is fixed by the statute and there are statutory compensatory rates which 
you are obliged to charge. Am I basically correct in that?

Mr. Camu: The tolls have been the same since 1959, exactly the same.
Mr. Baldwin: There are tolls which must be fixed to meet the requirements 

of Section 16 of the Act which, as I understand it, says:
The tolls that may be charged by the Authority shall be fair and 

reasonable and designed to provide a revenue sufficient to defray the cost 
to the Authority of its operations.

Then it goes on to define what those costs are:
(a) payments in respect of interest;
(b) amounts sufficient

as Mr. Leblanc brought out
to amortize the principal and

(c) the cost of operating and maintaining.

Now, first, may I ask you, and probably Mr. Carvell might answer this, ha® 
payment in respect of interest on amounts been interpreted to mean the fmj 
amount of interest or just any payment on account of interest that would 
constitute substantial compliance with the statute?

Mr. J. T. Carvell (Counsel St. Lawrence Seaway Authority): The fu^ 
amount of interest is the interpretation of the burden cast by those words.

Mr. Baldwin: That is what I thought. Now, we then come to the question 
of the fixing of these tolls and, as I understand the situation, a Tolls Commit!®6 
was established which considered the situation up until 1958, making a repor ' 
Its report and recommendations were based on estimates and I assume th®s® 
would be estimates of the potential revenue, based on the amount of traffic, an 
estimates on the question of the cost of operation.

Looking at that on page 4 of the 1964 long form report of the Audit®*: 
General, it immediately occurs to me that in the operation from 1959-1" 
inclusive, there had been a short fall between the estimated amounts to D 
realised from the tolls and the amount actually realised of some $32,000,000 ® 
which possibly $4,000,000 would be covered by the suspension of the tolls on t 
Welland Canal. So that, leaving this to one side, there would be a short fall 0 
about $28,000,000.

I notice, for example, the estimate of the Tolls Committee in 1958 had b®®^ 
that the revenue in 1964 would be $16,369,000 whereas it was actually 
544,000. This was in a period of considerable expansion in the economy of 4 g 
country. Is there any reason that you can assign for this at this time, becau 
this has some bearing, of course, on what will be done in the future. I do n



May 10, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 193

want a long answer, Dr. Camu, but there is a point there which I think might 
well be brought up.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, I think you might correct there the difference 
between estimate and actual. I think it is $22,000,000 not $32,000,000.

Mr. Baldwin: I was taking the entire over-all period, Mr. Chairman, 
959-1964 inclusive, which showed the estimates.

The Chairman: You are taking both.
Mr. Baldwin : Yes. It showed the estimated revenue as being $77,000,000 

and the actual revenue as $55,000,000. That is on the Eastern Section. Then you 
s° on to the Welland Section where you have a similar deficit.

Mr. Camu: The answer is that the real traffic was less than the potential 
raffic estimated at the time, before the Seaway opened, by the previous 

committee of experts in 1957-58.
I will give you just a brief outline of how it went. The forecast for the first 

tb3r Was 45,000,000 tons in 1959. We had only 20,000,000. The following year 
6 forecast was for 30,000,000. In 1960 we did not even increase, we had 

pother 20,000,000 tons of cargo. It is only since 1962 that we started to increase 
close the gap but we have not closed the gap yet between the original 

ecast and the actual traffic, year after year. We are still behind.
Mr. Winch: What kind of experts do you have, if you are this far out? 
The Chairman: Let Mr. Baldwin finish.

. Mr. Baldwin: With regard to operating costs, was there a substantial 
\„urease *n the amount of operating costs over this period as contrasted with 

estimates had been at the time the Tolls Committee established its 
rates?

"“at the
Proposed

Mr. Camu: Yes, you are correct. At the same time, our operation and 
mtenance costs increased above the estimated cost of the experts.

■ty. Mr. Baldwin: I would like to follow that with a question I am sure Mr. 
nch was just about to ask.

Mr. Winch: Who are the experts?

Mr. Baldwin: Well, no, I was going to say have you any reason to believe 
the it*16 assistance which is now being or has been received by the Authority in 
^ted States and in Canada, and I assume the government, is likely to be 

e accurate than that made by the Tolls Committee prior to 1958.

than^AMU: The answer is yes. We are more conservative in our forecasts 
d0 n he group that studied the same aspects seven, eight or nine years ago. We 
that°t Mok at our operation and maintenance costs and determine in advance 
ificr W*H remain constant for 50 years. We take into consideration an 
giv ease m operation and maintenance costs year and year. In fact, we have 

n a Percentage to that.
^r- Martin: We assume 2£ per cent a year.

Camu: Two and a half per cent a year increase in operation and 
Penance costs.
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Mr. Winch: I wonder if Mr. Baldwin would ask you now, do you employ 
the experts or does the government employ the experts?

Mr. Camu: No, the consultants who worked out our traffic forecasts were 
employed by us.

Mr. Baldwin: I will ask this one on Mr. Winch, now. I assume, then, you 
hope that the experts will be more liberal in their estimate of revenues and 
more conservative in their estimate of costs than they were before 1958. I left 
the N.D.P. out of that one.

Now, one more question, and I think this is basic and gets back to the 
problem of all transportation facilities now. I understand that the Auditor 
General has, from time to time, done his duty in calling attention to what he 
suggests might be infractions of the Statute over which, for reasons you have 
pointed out, you have not had much to do with. Now, we then come to the 
question of whether this Statute is the sort of Statute which, so far as Section 
16 is concerned, is going to be continued. The question is, if there is going to be 
a continued short fall, whether this deficit should be borne by the government, 
as a whole, on behalf of all the taxpayers, or whether a toll should be fixed 
which would be compensatory so far as the Authority is concerned, and the 
amounts to be paid to cover the cost of operation, to be borne specifically by the 
people who use the Seaway. This is the issue, is it not?

Mr. Camu: One of the main points, of course, is whether the cost of 
operation, maintenance and other costs, be imposed upon the users or upon the 
Canadian taxpayer at large.

Mr. Baldwin: At the moment you are bound by the Statute, is that cor­
rect?

Mr. Camu: Yes.
Mr. Baldwin: Thank you.
Mr. Muir ( Lisgar) : May I ask a supplementary question on that? I would 

just like to ask Dr. Camu what percentage of the Seaway potential is now bein§ 
used, providing the locks are not twinned?

Mr. Camu: This is a difficult question to answer. If you ask me to give y0^ 
an answer based on the tonnage, I will say this to you, that the potent! 
capacity of our system, Montreal-Lake Ontario, is about 65,000,000 tons and tb 
1965 traffic was 44,000,000 tons. So you can see the difference.

If we increase at a rate of about 3,000,000 tons a year, you can see 
would be approaching the potential capacity within a decade or less. That 
the Montreal-Lake Ontario Section.

On the Welland Canal we would put the 10,000,000 tons over and abo^® 
that. The capacity is the same on the Welland Canal—65,000,000 tons—-becab 
we have single locks and that is the determining factor. But the traffic there 
about 55,000,000 tons right now.

Dr-Mr. Forbes: I have a supplementary question on that, Mr. Chairman. j 
Camu indicated that the tonnage gradually increased from 1959 onwards- 
would say to you, further to my previous argument, that the increase in V0 
tonnage through the lock was associated with the increase of sales of wheat 
export. Is that correct?
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Mr. Camu: The large sale of wheat, of course, was beneficial indeed. We 
c°uld see the difference ourselves. Previous to 1963, wheat and other grains 
Were about 7, 8 or 9,000,000 tons a year. Since 1964, it has been close to 12, 13 
0r 14,000,000 tons a year.

The Chairman: Mr. Lefebvre and then Mr. Bigg and Mr. McLean.
Mr. Lefebvre: I think most of my questions have been answered, Mr. 

hairman, especially regarding the percentage of capacity that we now have in 
he Seaway. But there is just one little question on which I wanted to get clear. 
egarding the ships that enter the Seaway too late in the fall and remain 

Caught in the ice, and that we hear about every fall, is this because they are let 
h too close to the closing date or is it due to breakdowns in these ships or 
rikes? What is the main reason?

Mr. Camu: We have no upbound closing date. In other words, the closing 
ate is for both upbound and downbound traffic. Steamship companies have to 

govern themselves according to that date. In other words, we do not close on 
■t ? 25th November for ships going up, we have only one official closing date and 

ls the 3rd December. That is important to ocean ships as they have to get out 
1 the system.

. It does not affect the lakers. Usually they winter almost anywhere and, if 
t, ey can get in one more trip, it is to the good of the company themselves and 

e shippers, as such.
Mr. Lefebvre: Are there many ocean ships that remain in the Seaway?
Mr. Camu: It happened only one year and there were four of them. This 

as hi the winter of 1964.
Mr. Lefebvre: I do not quite understand why the Welland Canal should be
of tolls and other sections of the canal should have tolls. There are two 

ts to this question. Perhaps you can give us a word on that.
Mr. Camu: The tolls on the Welland Canal were suspended in 1962. That 

s a government decision.
Mr. Lefebvre: You do not know why? It was not on your recommendation?
Mr. Camu: It was suspended by the government.
The Chairman: It is a policy matter, I think.
Mr. Bigg: There does not seem to be any reason for that.

the ^r' Lefebvre: I want to know whether it was on the recommendation of 
Pro • 3-Way which thought that perhaps this would encourage greater inter- 
s0rt 1JJcial traffic within Canada, to keep down manufacturing costs, and that 
that r tkbig, in the Toronto-Hamilton area. I want to know the policy behind

■ l suppose I should do my homework on the other side of the House.
taXpa second question is, have you any figures to show how much the 

°f Canada saved by the building of the Seaway, the money for which 
Ileaw have gone into excess costs by subsidies to the railroads, for instance, 
if they,tonnage being moved by water may have saved the taxpayer money and, 
chail °°ks were balanced in a different manner, it might not be necessary to 
treasur structure but merely to show the saving in one section of the

y> applied to the Seaway, in order to meet the obligations there.
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m (12.15 p.m.)
Mr. Camu: It is very difficult to determine. We have no way of finding this 

out. I think I understand your question well, but I have no answer to it. In other 
words, it might have been more profitable to put more money on other modes of 
transportation than water transportation. Perhaps, in the long run, it would 
have been more beneficial, but this is a very difficult assessment.

Mr. Lefebvre: No, the opposite. The Seaway has been a good investment in 
encouraging Canadian trade. But we might take a look at the proper place for 
paying the bill and I would suggest that if you raise the tolls it might mean that 
business might go elsewhere than to the Seaway. Therefore, the very reason for 
building the Seaway might be thwarted because we are not looking at the 
overall picture of the Canadian economy. I am surprised that you do not have, 
somewhere in the Authority, economists working with you people. It might, at 
times, go against your immediate desires, in the way of building or something 
like that, but if it was fitted into a long-term plan of developing the Canadian 
economy, then it might well be that we put more money into the Seaway, at 
least on paper. As I say, I thought perhaps you might have had an economist or 
two working right in the Seaway Authority itself.

Mr. Camu: Yes, we have one senior economist. We have only one man m 
our organization who looks after that. He was appointed not too long ago.

But I think I have partly an answer to that. In this report from these 
outside consultants on traffic forecasts, they gave us a figure and they said too 1 
we moved with an increase of more than 20 per cent we would start losing 
traffic. They said that the most sensitive traffic would be that of iron ore. So, in 
our proposals, we had to discuss, of course, with the Americans and so forth' 
The Americans also had a report made by their own traffic consultants, wh° 
conducted an independent survey too. Finally, we agreed on agreed forecast5 
and so forth and tried to remain lower than that ceiling, so to speak.

Mr. Bigg: Might I suggest that perhaps your economist staff is not grea? 
enough. Have you got a strong enough staff handling this particular subject- 
I know I am asking a leading question.

Mr. Camu: We have one economist and a junior information officer an 
economist who helps him, and that is all we have. On the other hand, th1 
review usually comes every five years or so and it is the first time we haV 
reviewed the toll. We never did that before.

Mr. Bigg: Well, it might be interesting to have this economist before the 
Committee some time and he may have some very interesting comments.

Mr. Camu: You mean, in order to have his opinion? He is located 111 
Ottawa and it would be easy for me, later today, to have him come here.

Mr. Bigg: Thank you.
The Chairman : Have you another question, Mr. Bigg?
Mr. Bigg: I think I would like to hear the economist on this broad PlC

ture.
The Chairman: I will keep that in mind.

Mr. Camu: I am sorry, he is in Toronto today.
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Mr. McLean: Mr. Chairman, I would like to know if this 10 per cent 
mcrease is across the board or is it on individual items. Is this a straight 10 per 
cent across the board on everything or are particular items going to be picked 
out?

Mr. Camu: No, it is a ten per cent across the board.
Mr. McLean: Now, I note that your interest charge is $16,803,405, and you 

cannot meet the interest charges. Are those interest charges you cannot meet 
a^ded on to capital and then interest on interest?

Mr. Martin: They are added on to debts, sir, and we pay interest on them.
Mr. McLean: It looks as though you are going up and up all the time. Now, 

ln the reduction in the Welland Canal, did the United States lose on that 29 per 
cent? Or did they get the same amount?

Mr. Camu: I think if you will allow me, I will bring the Committee up to 
ate on that because we have been able, very recently, to conclude a new 

agreement on the sharing ratio. Starting with the season of navigation of 1967 
Until 1971, Canada will collect 72 per cent and the United States 28 per cent, 

ois will start next year.
Mr. McLean: But that does not answer my question, really. You lost on the 

ctiand Canal. Now, the United States was receiving 29 per cent, I presume, of 
aat you took in on the Welland Canal.

^ Mr. Camu: The 29 per cent applies only to the tolls collected on the 
°ntreal-Lake Ontario section.

Mr. McLean: Not on the Welland?
Mr. Camu: No, sir.
Mr. McLean: Does the American Seaway insist that the income will take 

-Vf tiieir interest charges? Does that have an influence on the Canadian

. Mr. Martin: Yes, it has and they expect that within about two years their 
th9re t'ae will take care of the interest charges and that, subsequently, 

ey will be able to effect reductions of their actual debt.
■y Mr. McLean: At the present time, if you increase or decrease your tolls, the 

ed States would have some interest in that, because of their getting the 29 
per cent.
bv n^1"' Martin: They are associated with us in this proposal to increase tolls 

y 10 per cent.
ye Mr. Winch: They require this 10 per cent increase in order that, in two 

s. they can balance their charges. Their requirement is 10 per cent?
Mr. Martin: Yes.
The Chairman: Mr. McLean, I do not think you were finished there, 

if Mr. McLean: Your toll is added onto the shipping companies’ rates. Now, 
rgfege toti is added onto their rates, is there any way in which to ensure their 
ihcli WouM not be increased more than what your tolls are? Are not they 
Sarv,„ f. ■» when an increase is made, to increase their charges a little more at the 

ue time?
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Mr. Camu: Yes, it is a possibility and in fact they do that almost every two 
years. Like major ports on the Great Lakes, all of them have announced 
increases of all kinds recently. Before the season started, in March and in 
February, we could see that in the clippings we were receiving. Everybody was 
increasing.

Mr. McLean: The increase by the shipping companies would have more 
bearing on the returns of the farmers than the increase in tolls.

Mr. Camu: I would say yes but, of course, we do not know how much.
Mr. McLean: Is there any Board regulating the charges on the Lakes?
Mr. Camu: No, they do not come under the Board of Transport jurisdic­

tion.
Mr. McLean: The railways do.
Mr. Camu: But not the ships.
The Chairman: I just wanted to ask a question. Has there been any 

thought of placing this under the Board of Transport Commissioners. Has any 
thought ever been given to that?

Mr. Camu: Not that I know of except perhaps one recommendation of the 
MacPherson Commission. But I do not know, myself.

The Chairman: Did the MacPherson Commission Report have any mention 
on this?

Mr. Camu: I do not know, unless someone knows about that.
Mr. Forbes: Mr. Camu, is it not a fact that the rates for tonnage on the 

Great Lakes is competitive. That is, it is let on a tender basis among the 
shipping companies?

Mr. Camu: Oh yes, they are competing. That would help, yes. We know of 
the case of a young shipping company, so to speak, because they have been ih 
the business only seven or eight years, which has no overhead, like an old 
company. They have no old ships. They have only five or six big lakers. These 
people are charging rates that are more or less cutting their competitors on 
some of the routes. That exists. In fact, they are all members of various 
associations such as the Dominion Marine or the Lake Carriers and so forth. Bu 
we know how strongly they compete among themselves, when they are askinë 
for entry or are leaving one of our canals in order to be at a port and a° 
elevator before one of their competitors. It goes on all the time.

The Chairman: Mr. McLean and then Mr. Winch.
Mr. McLean: Before the Seaway was established there was a lot 

development on the St. Lawrence waterway. Was that capitalized when 
United States came in? The previous development, that was not capitalized?

of
the

Mr. Martin: No, nothing has been capitalized by any other organization 
other than the Seaway itself.

•nqtMr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I was most intrigued by the statement 3US 
made by the Chairman of the Seaway Authority. Perhaps I should have kn 
but, as I did not know, I should like to clarify it. The freight rates in Canad 
are completely controlled by Canadian law. Let us take a ship that is goiue
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through the Seaway and that is moving completely within Canadian jurisdic­
tion shall we say, or from Labrador and going through; do I understand that 
there is no government control on their rates?

Mr. Camu : I do not think there is any government control on their rates.
Mr. Winch: I did not know that before.
The Chairman: Competition keeps them pretty well in line, I guess.
Mr. Winch: I am not speaking about ocean ships, I mean strictly within 

Canada. There is no control on rates?
Mr. Camu: No.
Mr. Winch: On railways, complete control but on ships within Canada—no. 
Mr. Camu: No.
Mr. Winch: Thank you, that is most interesting.
The Chairman: There has been a very good line of questions addressed to 

hhr. Camu. I think if you have exhausted your questions of a general natuie, 
Parhaps we should turn to the long form report 1963.

Mr. Long, who is Assistant Auditor General, will go through this report. As 
you know, our Auditor General, Mr. Henderson, is at a meeting of the 
Governing’Board of the Permanent International Secretariat of Supreme Audit 
Institutions and that is why he is not with us today. We are very pleased to 
have his righthand man, Mr. Long, to carry on. Mr. Long, would you proceed?

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, on a point of order here, we 
nave been following this study of the Auditor General’s report, not covering in 

1963 report, any items which are repeated in the 1964 report or the 1964-65. 
N°w, could Mr. Long tell us whether there is anything in the 1963 report which 
ls not dealt with later in the 1964 report? And, if that should be the case, why 
n°t deal only with the 1964 report, since the 1963 report is incorporated therein, 
and cut down our time of consideration.

The Chairman: A good question, Mr. Thomas.
the G- R- Long, (Assistant Auditor General): Well, Mr. Thomas, I think 
are „^erence here is that these reports are dealing with financial results. They

not Audit comments, as are the reports to the House of Commons. They are 
diffeüg with financial results and, of course, the figures, in some cases, are quite

Ierent in the two years.
The Chairman: What is the wish of the Committee?

®IGG: Could not they be compared, generally, in the three columns, the 
19K and so on?

^r- Long: For the most part, there is a comparison, yes.
***>. ®igg: So, in general, the figures would be there in the 1964 report, 
WoniJ We are going to deal with here, so there would be no need for repetition, 

Uic* there?
perjJ^r- Winch: Could I make the suggestion that as Mr. Long knows what 
attenr S shouId be drawn to the attention of this Committee, he draw to our 

10n what he thinks should be drawn to our attention, while the officers of
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the Seaway Authority are before us. I trust Mr. Long that far, and I suggest we 
do that.

The Chairman: He proposes to do that, Mr. Winch. Mr. Long, what do you 
think about the 1963 and 1964 report? Could we not go to the 1964 report and 
set aside the 1963 long form report?

Mr. Long: I am in the hands of the Committee, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman : What is the wish of the Committee?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): I would like Mr. Long’s recommendation. 

He knows what is in the reports to better advantage than we do. If he thinks we 
should study both, I am quite prepared to do it.

Mr. Long: I have been guided by the procedure that was followed on 
previous occasions when the other corporations were before the Committee and, 
in those cases, there was a quick run-through of the two years’ reports, if there 
were reports covering two years before the Committee at the time. I have made 
some notes doing it this way.

If I revert to the 1964 report, I will have to go much slower because I wil’ 
have to try and pick up the things in the other report. In other words, what I 
was going to do was give you more detail in 1963, to answer questions that 
might be in your mind.

Mr. Winch: I suggest we leave the Committee in the hands of Mr. Long, t0 
make the report as he considers necessary to this Committee.

The Chairman: All right, we will proceed with the 1963 long form report 
and Mr. Long will take over.

Mr. Long: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before I start, if I may, I would 
to introduce two of the members of our staff who are appearing here for the 
first time today. I would ask them to stand.

The first is Mr. W. A. Villeneuve, who is the Assistant Director of the 
branch responsible for the audit of the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority. Next to 
him is Mr. D. H. McMillan, who is in charge of the section that does the actua 
audit of the Authority which is carried out, for the most part, at the headqua1"' 
ters in Cornwall.

The Chairman: Could I ask a question here? Has the Authority an auditor 
or audit staff of their own?

Mr. Martin: We have an internal audit staff.

• (12.30 p.m.)
Mr. Long: Starting with the report of 1963, copies of this report and of th® 

report for the year ended December 31st, 1964, have, I believe, been distribute 
to the members of this Committee. Turning to the 1963 report, I will re j 
briefly to the main points. If members of the Committee have any questions 
hope they will not hesitate to interrupt me and they can be dealt with whi 
members of the Authority are here.

The first page, of course, is the introduction to the report, which outlin®^ 
the scope of the examination and refers to copies of the financial statemen 
which are appended to the original report. I might explain here that copies of t
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statements were not appended to the reports that were given to members of the 
Committee because, at the same time, they received copies of the Seaway’s own 
report, which includes copies of the financial statements. We point out here that 
the Minister of Transport, of course, receives a copy of this report.

On page 2, reference is made to the statutory report, which has to be made 
under Section 87 of the Financial Administration Act and to a revision which 
took place in the Authority’s financing arrangements whereby interest to 
December 31, 1964 was deferred and commencement of payment of instalments 
°t Principal and interest was deferred a further period of one year, to December 
Mst, 1965.

Mr. Baldwin: Could I ask a question on that? That was done by Order in 
Council was it not, Mr. Long?

Mr. Long: Yes.
Mr. Baldwin: And that was pursuant to the Financial Administration Act. I 

ussume that authority granted it.

Mr. Long: Yes, it is still keeping in mind that the indebtedness, including 
Interest, will be paid within 50 years. What it is doing is shortening up the num- 
her of years in which the actual payments are going to have to be made.

Mr. Winch: Could I ask what rate of interest is charged by the government 
°n luck of payment of interest?

Mr. Martin: What interest rate is charged on?
. Mr. Winch: What rate of interest is charged by the government on your 
ack of payment of interest.

Mr. Martin: It varies from year to year, depending on the rate at which 
government can borrow money at the time. In other words, if the govern- 

jj^ut is borrowing money on December 31st or in that quarter at about five and 
ree-eighths per cent, that is the rate we will have to pay on the unpaid

interest.

We ^v.' Bigg: Did the Canadian government put up the whole capital and are 
Paying interest on the whole capital expenditure of the Seaway?

Put ^ARTIN: The cost of the American locks was $140,000,000 and that was 
UP by the American government. We put up the rest.
Mr. Long: On page 2 we also refer to a change in accounting policy which 

® introduced in that year with respect to the replacement of worn out assets. 
stat6r beading of “Operations For The Year” it is pointed out that the 
eXr>ernents rebe°t the accounting changes introduced during the year whereby 
ejj eUs®s of operation and maintenance were combined and shown by objects of 
accoenditnre rather than by physical features such as locks, bridges, etc. These 

unting changes were introduced to streamline the clerical work of the 
h0p ?rUy and to produce simplified monthly expense reports which it was 
com WouM be more meaningful to management and provide a better basis for 

tolling costs.
wait^ Winch: Could I ask one question there, Mr. Chairman? I think it is a 
y0l 6 to ask it. On your financial statement how much do you depreciate yearly

situation?
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Mr. Martin: During the period under review it was about $800,000 a year, 
split evenly between the Montreal-Lake Ontario section and the Welland Canal. 
However, since the beginning of 1965, we have not taken depreciation on the 
Welland Canal because it is now being financed entirely by the government.

Mr- Winch: I am sorry; because it has now been taken over, strictly 
financially, you allow no depreciation?

Mr. Martin: That is right.
Mr. Winch: Could I ask, before this was done, because of it being one of 

our original locks, had you wiped out on depreciation the capital cost of that?
Mr. Martin: We do not depreciate the entire capital cost, Mr. Winch. We 

only depreciate those relatively insignificant assets which have a life of less 
than 50 years. Such things as motor cars, electric machinery and so on. We do not 
attempt to depreciate a concrete structure like a lock or a channel, which is 
really just a hole in the ground.

Mr. Winch: So you make no depreciation for the actual lock or Seaway 
itself at all?

Mr. Martin: That is correct.
Mr. Camu: For anything made of concrete, anything that is not movable, 

we do not.
Mr. Bigg: It is a question of re-saleability is not it?
Mr. Camu: Yes, this is a unique feature in that it is like a permanent 

feature in the physical landscape. But anything that is movable is depreciated.
Mr. Winch: Basically, then, on that position, you are responsible for the 

repayment of the principal cost but not through the method of depreciation.
Mr. Martin: When we do repay principal, we will incorporate an amortiz3' 

tion charge into our costs.
Mr. Winch: So basically, it is depreciation, is it?
Mr. Martin: Well, we have argued that to take depreciation and amortiz3' 

tion would be duplication and unfair to the users.
Mr. Winch: Now you have got me lost.
The Chairman: Carry on, Mr. Long.
Mr. Long: Perhaps I can explain, Mr. Winch, amortization includes muc*1 

more than depreciation. There was a very large cost involved in changing We 
Jacques Cartier bridge in Montreal. This is not a Seaway asset but it cost a 1° 
of money to bring the Seaway under it. Regarding the Victoria Bridge, ther 
was a tremendous cost there. Now all these costs have to be amortized h* 
repaying the debt but there would not be any depreciation involved, becaus 
they are not Seaway assets.

Mr. Winch: I am even more lost, now. All right, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Long: Turning to page 3, it is shown that the income of the Authority 

for the year amounted to $12,000,000 and expenses of operation, maintenait ^ 
engineering and administration were $8,000,000 leaving a net operating inco& 
of $4,000,000. However, this net operating income was insufficient to provide
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interest of almost $17,000,000 on loans and for the replacement of machinery 
and equipment of something under $1,000,000. The net result was a loss of 
$13,700,000 compared with a loss of $13,100,000 in the previous year.

It is pointed out that as the tolls for the transit of the Welland Canal were 
suspended by the government in July 1962, there was no toll revenue from this 
source throughout 1963 and the estimated loss of revenue due to the suspension 
°I tolls was $1,800,000 for the year.

The figures that I have just mentioned are summarized in the table at the 
°ttom of the page, showing the amounts applicable to the St. Lawrence River 

section, the Welland Ship Canal and the North Channel Bridge, which is the 
ri(Ige over the north channel of the St. Lawrence River at Cornwall.

Mr. McLean: Is there any way of telling how many foreign ships would use 
ue canal and of what benefit it is to Canadians by suspending the tolls on the 

£aual? How much are foreigners getting out of it and how much are Canadians 
setting out of it?

Mr. Camu: We have the exact number of foreign ships that are using both 
chons of the canal year after year after year and how much they carry. But to 

diffi °U* ^ ** wou^ he more profitable or less profitable to Canada, this is very

th ,^r' McLean : Was there any reduction in grain rates when they suspended 
e e°lls on the canal?
,^r- Camu: It is hard to relate the suspension of the Welland Canal tolls to 

6 lrtcrease of traffic in the following three years. It is very hard to do that.
Mr. McLean: How many ships of foreign registry use the canal?

sect Camu: There are thirty different flags that are now seen on the two 
°r th°nS ^eaway—the flags of thirty different countries. Of course, in two
Cori ree cases, which represents a large number of them, we call them a “flag of 
theVen*ence” such as the Panama and Liberia flags where the interest behind 
JjutSG are usually United States shipping or that of major European countries. 

auyway, the number is about 30 altogether.
, he total number of ocean ship transits in the year 1963 was 1,858 out of a 

tal of 7,005.

°ne

^r- Winch: These were of foreign registry?
^r- Camu: Yes, because ocean ships are all of foreign registry, except for 
°r two.

the î^r' F°rbes: Mr. Chairman, partly in answer to Mr- McLean’s question, at 
illcr lnae of the opening of the St. Lawrence Seaway, the price of grain was 
0nes^d, due to the saving of having to unload from the small boats to the big 

and I think it amounted to about 5 cents a bushel.
\ elii^- ' ^AMU: That is correct, or maybe more than that, because they 

like the trans-shipment centres or points such as the small size elevators
leSs , rescott and Kingston and Port Colborne. They still do business today, but 

°cause the lakers were able to come straight down from the Lakehead to 
trahs-G>v anc* 50 forth. So they eliminated what we call transfer costs and 
the Shipments all the way, at two or three points. That was quite a saving in 

erall cost of wheat f.o.b. overseas.



204 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 10, 1966

Mr. Forbes: I only suggested that because you might take advantage of it 
with this increase of tolls.

The Chairman: Mr. McLean’s question here, is of interest to me and I 
wonder if Mr. Malcolm could give us those figures again, regarding the total 
number of ships going through the Welland Canal in 1963, and then we will 
subtract from that the number of foreign ships.

Mr. Malcolm: Mr. Chairman, the information I have before me related to 
the number of transits by country of registry.

Mr. Winch: One way or two ways?
Mr. Malcolm: Both ways, sir, through the Welland Canal. The figure is 

7,597.
The Chairman: And, of that number, how many were foreign—1,858 was 

not it?
Mr. Malcolm: If I may, sir, I will give you the information with respect to 

Canada. The country of registry Canada, was 4,330.
The Chairman: Four thousand three hundred and thirty were Canadian 

ships.
Mr. Malcolm: The country of registry was Canada and the balance 

represented other countries.
The Chairman: I think that answers your question, Mr. McLean.
Mr. McLean: When the tolls were dropped on the canal, was there any 

rebate made to the shippers by the steamship companies?
Mr. Camu: Not that I know of.
Mr. McLean: They just took the toll and put it in their pocket?
Mr. Camu: I think so. What I do know, and what I was told but could not 

check, was that some of the shippers were able to pocket the advantage alonë 
the way.

Mr. McLean: So it only benefitted the steamship companies, then?
Mr. Camu: Mostly.
Mr. Lefebvre: Mr. Long, I have a question here. Mr. Winch said a fe^ 

minutes ago that he was getting lost and I think I am getting a little lost mys® . ' 
On these white sheets do the figures here compare with what we have in tn 
blue book, the Annual Report? In the column for 1963 on page 3 we hav 
Income.

The Chairman : No, it is a white one, Mr. Lefebvre.
Mr. Lefebvre: But there is a column here for 1963, in the 1963 report Pa^e 

3. Financial Review.
The Chairman: Now, your question, Mr. Lefebvre?
Mr. Lefebvre: On the white sheet at the top of page 3 we see here 

income for the year amounted to $12,045,224 and in the blue book, page No- ' 
income in column 1963 is $11,265,749.

Mr. Long: Mr. Lefebvre, there are two sections to the Seaway. On page J 
you are looking at the St. Lawrence River section; below that is the WeHaI1
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figure and, at the very bottom of the page, is the combined total, and you will 
See that they agree.

Mr. Lefebvre: All right, that is fine.
The Chairman: I am glad to have an auditor in our midst.
Mr. Winch: I have one statement here, in view of the statement made by 

r*r- Long. Perhaps the best way I can put my question is this: in the centre 
filock we have a restaurant and a coffee shop; in the west block we have a 
Cafeteria. The restaurant loses a lot of money but the coffee shop and the 
cafeteria make money. If you put them all together, we are not in the red. Now, 
Jjuth that explanation, will you now tell me what are the operations of the 
paway Authority? Do you go strictly section by section or is it the over-all 

Picture that counts?

* (12:45 p.m.)
. Mr. Camu: I will just make one brief comment on this and I can go deeper 
1 you wish.

Mr. Winch: You understand what I am after?

Mr. Camu: Yes, I think I understand. We are interested in the over-all 
Roture and the over-all picture, of course, is bad. But if we isolate the

that
°ntreal-Lake Ontario section, the financial picture is not that bad. We operate

section with a net surplus every year but it is not enough to pay the
loterest charges.

On the Welland Canal, the picture is very black. Prior to 1962, we did not 
c en get enough money to cover the operation and maintenance costs of that 

riah But the over-all picture is bad.
Mr. Winch: This is the point I am driving at. As you do break it down by 

p»*»ts, why do you take the position that one shall pay and one shall not 
y ■ On what basis do you arrive at this conclusion?

ti>. hlr. Martin: Are you referring to how do we arrive at our figures, Mr. 
,vUich?

sh n^r' Winch: No, how do you arrive at your policy whereby one segment 
ty, Pay and one segment shall operate at a loss? Is there some kind of a policy 
porereby in one area you are prepared to accept the loss? If so, what is the 
srwCy basis whereby you accept the loss here but make money or break evenSo*ewhere else?

La ^r- Martin: I think it is necessary to go into history. The tolls on the St. 
as retlce River were set by the governments of Canada and the United States, 
g0va ^sult of an exchange of notes. We are merely the instruments of 

ernrnent policy in recovering those tolls.
bas v* ease of the Welland Canal, which is an entirely Canadian facility, as 
deCi .een mentioned before this Committee already, it was a government 

Sl°n t° suspend the tolls in the year 1962.
agre °W’ as to the reason why we cannot put them all into the one pot, our
logent with the American Seaway Corporation provides that the tolls on the

Seaway will recover only those costs related to the lower Seaway and it 
**019—3
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is therefore impossible for us to charge a higher toll on the lower Seaway in 
order to make more money to reduce the Welland deficit.

Mr. Bigg: Are there any statistics on where these foreign ships go? It seems 
to me that perhaps these foreign ships are largely in Canadian trade, is that so?

Mr. Martin: Do you mean a breakdown in their destination once they Se* 
up into the Seaway?

Mr. Camu: Yes, we have that in our annual Traffic Report published every 
year. It includes about 70 tables and the breakdown of everything is in there.

One of the most useful tables, which will answer your question, is one 
where the traffic is broken down into upbound and downbound traffic and 
broken down further into Canadian, foreign, Canada to U.S.A., U.S.A. t0 
Canada, and so forth.

Mr. Flemming: My question, Mr. Chairman, is this. Would it be possible f°r 
a foreign ship to bring in a cargo, say, going to Port Arthur and then, on the 
return voyage carry a cargo from the Lakehead, say, down to Montreal? Is that 
permissible under our laws?

Mr. Camu: It is not permissible for a foreign ship to do that, no. Only 
Canadian ships can carry cargo between two Canadian ports.

Mr. Flemming: That was my point, thank you.
The Chairman: Then that would mean that a foreign ship loading at the 

head of the Lakes and going through the Welland Canal and on to a foreig11 
country, with no tolls in the Welland Canal, is definitely at an advantage, lS 
that correct?

Mr. Camu : It is an advantage to the exports or imports, whichever 
the ship is going—up or down.

The Chairman: I wonder if consideration was given to free tolls to Cana' 
dian ships but not free tolls to foreign ships through the Welland Canal? Con 
that be executed?

Mr. Camu: No.

(Translation)
Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): If the government in 1962 decided to remove 

toll from the Welland Canal, it nevertheless left to the Seaway authorities * 
obligation of making up for a loss in 1963 of $6,500,000. Consequently, would * 
not have been fairer, in order not to force you to increase tolls too much; vvou 
it not have been fairer if the government, in removing the toll on the Wella^e 
Canal, would it not have been more logical if the government had assumed t 
deficit itself without saddling it on the Seaway authorities?

Mr. Camu: Yes, we have an answer to your question, Mr. Leblanc, and 
is as follows: The government finally reimbursed us for operation and main 
nance costs of the Welland Canal which we were incapable of assuming since 
time of suspension of the toll and we received that amount in 1965 I think, - 1 
the years 1963, 1964 and 1965 and part 1962 and if the amount is correct, d 
something like 20 million dollars.
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(English)

Mr. Martin: They gave us back a deficit of $27,000,000.

(Translation)
Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : The reason why we do not see the income under 

1963 or 1964 is that we see it only as a loss for the Welland Canal. Is that the 
reason that you gave?

(English)

. The Chairman: Now, gentlemen, it is two minutes to 1 o’clock and I think 
*t is a good point at which to break off. With the agreement of the Committee, 
We would like to sit at 3.30 or right after Orders of the Day so that we can 
c°mPlete the report on the Seaway Authority. Does the Committee agree to sit 
^mediately after Orders of the Day?

Mr. Lefebvre: The Agriculture Committee is sitting also at 3.30 Mr. 
^«airman.

The Chairman: Well, could we have a quorum of 10? All those who can be 
here at 3.30.

Mr. Noble: There is a meeting of the Agriculture Committee at 3.30.

The Chairman: Well, perhaps we had better re-convene on Thursday 
Corning. Dr. Camu, your people are all in Ottawa, are they?

Mr. Camu: No. We have some in Cornwall. If it is your wish, we will come
back.

Mr. Winch: Might I suggest, sir, that we meet at 3.30 and you see a
quorum?

The Chairman: Well, I think that would be permissible in view of the fact 
at We started with one.
. Mr. Baldwin: We might borrow three bodies from the Agriculture Com­

mittee, lust to get under way.

The Chairman: We will meet at 3.30 after Orders of the Day.
Mr. Leblanc: We will have to call the other members who are not here, so 

at ^ey will know we are sitting at 3.30.

,'Mr- Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, before we adjourn, I wanted to ask the 
Auditor General to file some information. It is quite irrelevant to this 

a 1,; is a matter I wanted to deal with later, when we come to it, at the 
r°Priate time. As it might take some time to gather, I simply want to ask 
hong if he would prepare a table to be filed, showing the comparative 

£) 1GS °* the Auditor General and certain departmental officials such as 
for ty •Ministers the Chief Justice and others which are payable under statutes, 

f^Poses of comparison. ......................... }
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I brought up in the House and also in the Committee, questions dealing 
with the status and authority of the Auditor General. I would ask if Mr. Long 
could prepare a statement, going back, say, to 1924, for which I have a specific 
reason, so that this could be available and which I could use at the appropriate 
time in our further deliberations. Can you do that, Mr. Long?

Mr. Long: You want, Mr. Baldwin, a comparison of those salaries and any 
changes that took place since 1924?

Mr. Baldwin: Yes, that is correct.

Mr. Long: I will be pleased to do what I can on that.
The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned until 3.30 or after Orders of the

Day.

AFTERNOON SITTING

Tuesday, May 10, 1966

• (3:45 p.m.)
The Chairman: Gentlemen, I see a quorum. An official register is to be kept 

when the other three members come in from the Agriculture meeting.
When we adjourned at one o’clock, gentlemen, we were about to have Mr- 

Long go through the 1963 long form report as quickly and as briefly as he could- 
and then maybe he could spend a little more time on the 1964 report. We would 
like to complete our study of the St. Lawrence Seaway by 5:30 or thereabouts- 
Would you commence, Mr. Long.

Mr. G. R. Long (Assistant Auditor General) : Thank you Mr. Chairman. I 
the members would turn to page 5 of the 1963 long form report, I would poûj 
out one small item at the bottom of the page which is peculiar to this year. 1 
refers to the employing of security guards to protect the Authority’s facilita 
and structures following bomb explosion damage to the railway bridge a 
Caughnawaga which cost the Authority $29,000 to repair. These security guar 
were costing the Authority about $37,000 a year. This was something that WaS 
mentioned in the 1963 report as being a new type of expenditure.

Mr. Winch: May I ask you through the Chairman, to explain why this ne^ 
expenditure was required.

Mr. Camu: Yes, Mr. Winch, this was related to 1963 incidents that occurred 
in the Province of Quebec that at the time related to some bomb explosions an 
threats from some of the members of the separatist movement and so forth- 
Threats were made at three of our bridges and a bomb exploded at that bridg6’ 
later on, it happened again at Victoria bridge. We had to arrange quickly f°r 
some security guards because we did not have any security guards before tha ' 
Such facilities as our bridges and so forth were open and we had no fencing- n° 
lights, nothing. So, we asked the R.C.M.P. to help us and they did. They made a 
complete survey of all our facilities from one end to the other, and in doing s° 
they made a report.
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Their report indicated that we needed more facilities, such as fences, lights, 
other devices and so forth. At the end they recommended, because they could 
not do it themselves with their shortage of staff, that we hire an agency to 
Patrol around the clock. So we hired these guards, and we have kept them since 
because they were under threats the following year. That explains this item.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Long, is there any way at all that we can charge this to the 
■Province of Quebec?

The Chairman: Carry on, Mr. Long.
Mr. Long: The next item which I think you will find of interest is on page 7 

referring to the non-toll canals. In addition to the operation of the Seaway, 
Wch includes the Welland canal, the Authority is responsible for operating a 
number of what are known as non-toll canals. The cost of operating these 
canals, which amounted to $3.9 million, is met by Parliamentary appropriation. 
The income from the operation of these canals is quite small, being something 
just over $500,000 in 1963. The resulting deficit of $3.4 million in 1963 was 
considerably larger than the deficit of $2.2 million in 1962, largely because of 
Payments made to local authorities in consideration for their assuming responsi- 
bility for future maintenance of certain lands and structures which were no 
longer required by the Authority. It is also shown that a considerable expense 
faulted from the necessity to rehabilitate two bridges over the Lachine canal in
1963.

Mr. Winch: I am sorry to interrupt you, but I think that Mr. Long has now 
Raised a matter on which, indirectly, perhaps I can base a question. We have 
beard from Mr. Long this morning and this afternoon on expenditures which 
are charged to the Seaway Authority with regard to construction, maintenance 
cr some assistance on bridges. My first question is this. Why, on a matter of 
ridges, is this considered a charge on the Seaway Authority?

Mr. Camu: The following distinction has been made. These two bridges 
°Ver the Lachine canal are non-toll bridges. In connection with this canal, we 
Receive the money from appropriations through the Department of Transport, 
bfough our own minister. This is in a completely separate budget. But bridges 

? °Ug our own system, the bridges on the south shore of the river in the same 
°utreal area, are part of our regular operation and maintenance costs.

Mr. Winch: The bridges are?
Mr. Camu: Oh yes.
Mr. Bigg: Why?

are ^r' <-'AMU: I will give you an example on the operation of a bridge. Bridges 
to raised or lowered according to the traffic of ships because priority is given 
r navigation. So, some of these bridges are only railway bridges; others are 
ky U ar bridges, and others both. So all the way along the bridges are controlled 
aPd°Ur °Wn Pe°Ple 50 we have bridgemasters on duty right around the clock, 

ab the traffic lights related to navigation are right on either side of 
aPpr soon as an approaching ship reaches what we call the bridge

°ach or the approach to the bridge, then there is a whistle or a signal and
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the bridge operator has so many minutes to raise the bridge so that the ship will 
not slow down at all. So it is indispensable from our own operations point of 
view to have complete control over all the bridges that cross the Seaway.

Mr. Winch: I can understand you having control over the bridges but why 
should any capital costs be charged to the Seaway?

Mr. Camu: Well, these bridges were constructed by the Seaway Authority.
The Chairman: And, those that were not constructed by you, you get a 

grant from the Department of Transport.
Mr. Camu: Well, for bridges outside of the Seaway, in some cases, yes. But 

in some cases like, I think, on the Beauharnois canal, we get something from the 
railway operations of these bridges. We get a grant back from Quebec Hydro in 
the case of one bridge that I know on the Beauharnois canal.

Mr. Winch: At the same time, Mr. Long, in your last remarks, you spoke 
about non-toll operations, I believe; is that right?

Mr. Long: Non-toll canals.
Mr. Winch: Non-toll canals?
Mr. Long: These are sundry small canals, such as the old Lachine canal, the 

Sault Ste. Marie canal, and the old Cornwall canal which have nothing 
particularly to do with the Seaway but the Seaway Authority is probably the 
best government authority to look after them.

Mr. Winch: What are they used for?
Mr. Camu: These canals were part of the former, let us say the third St- 

Lawrence seaway system. They were in operation and they were the only series 
of canals used between 1904 and 1959. These canals were transferred to the 
Authority. They were part of the former St. Lawrence system, so to speak, anh 
the jurisdiction of these canals was transferred en bloc to us in 1959. I will giv® 
you the example of the Lachine Canal. Until recently this canal could be use» 
by small vessels as a bypass to avoid paying lock charges and tolls on two locks 
across on the other side.
• (4:00 p.m.)

In order to avoid that and give us complete control over the cost of 
through transit by a vessel we have to control the Lachine Canal which lS 
located on the other side.

Mr. Winch: In view of the fact that you have control on a non-toll basis, d° 
you have to accept the cost, or do you get a grant—

Mr. Camu: We get a grant every year.
Mr. Winch: —to cover the entire cost?
Mr. Camu: Exactly.
Mr. Winch: It meets your entire expense, does it?
Mr. Long: I was going on to say that at the top of page 8 reference 

made to the portion of the seaway administration and engineering expense 0
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the authority which is charged to non-toll canals, and also to certain capital 
eXpenditures which were incurred in putting a swampy area into suitable 
condition so that a local authority would be willing to assume full responsibility 
tor it in the future.

Mr. Baldwin : In your opinion, Mr. Long, and in the opinion of the Auditor 
General, does this amount referred to at the top of page 8 represent a fair pro 
rata distribution, having in mind the various amounts involved?

Mr. Long: Yes, I think we have had no problem with that. A little farther 
down on page 8, reference is made to the balance sheet of the authority, and the 
drst item is an amount of $5 million invested in Treasury Bills of Canada. This 
rePresents the investment of surplus funds; it earned $172,000 in interest during 
the year, but we point out that this was more than offset by higher interest 
exPense on borrowings obtained in advance of need.

The Chairman: Could we have Mr. Martin, the financier of the authority, 
6xPlain to the Committee why you do this?

Mr. Winch: At the same time Mr. Martin is doing that, could he please 
^xPlain why you can invest surplus funds when you cannot meet your interest 
Piments to the Government of Canada?

Mr. Martin: Well, I think the answer is that during the closed season, 
“ich is from mid-December until mid-April of each year, during which time 
e carry out very heavy maintenance—all our maintenance is done when the 

arial is closed—we have to keep funds on hand to pay these bills because we 
ave no income coming in. In the year 1963 we had to keep funds on hand to 
Ver not only the Montreal-Lake Ontario section, but in those days we were 
anting the Welland Canal too, so we had to keep funds on hand to cover the 

in" r°^S an<^ ottier operating costs up there. This is described as surplus cash but, 
actual fact—and this is a little technical—this represents the cash generated by 
r Provision for replacements and is not available for debt service.

, In other words, you make a provision for replacement as a book entry and 
acge it in as an expense; you do not actually spend the cash at the time you 

r ke the provision. You retain the cash and then you use it when you have to 
eplace the assets.

The Chairman: I wonder, Mr. Martin, if you could go further here with 
j, Pect to the recommendation that you explore with the Department of 

atlCe the possibility of taking advantage of the provisions of Section 27?
jv ^r- Martin: We did explore that, Mr. Chairman, and the answer is that the 
]0. rtnient of Finance can give us an interest rate which is one half per cent

r than we can get by investing the money in treasury bills, so it is to our 
b^tage to handle it ourselves. Now, in actual fact, if the money is in treasury 

s h is back in the hands of the government.
^r- Winch: You get one half per cent more by doing it that way?

Ido ■^■ARTIN: That is right. This is referred to in the 1964 long form report.
n°t know whether or not I can find the page.
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The Chairman: We will come to it, Mr. Martin. 
Mr. Martin: I have it here, page 14.
Mr. Bigg: I am not an accountant nor a banker, but it seems strange to me 

that you can earn $172,000 on money which you have drawn which is in excess 
of what you need when there is actually no money in existence; it is only 
emptying a bank account, is it not? I do not see why you should need any more 
money than you actually put out to pay your bills.

Mr. Martin: Well, there is always the difficulty of getting your hands on 
money when you need it.

Mr. Baldwin: He’s not talking to you, Mr. Bigg. I am sorry, Mr. Martin.

Mr. Bigg: If it was bad then, what is it like today.
But surely, with your bank account, could you not have a floating credit 

according to the amount appropriated by parliament, which is in the nature of a 
guaranteed loan without any necessity for actual cash stacked up some place?

Mr. Martin: I do not think that we could arrange to borrow from a bank- 
sir.

Mr. Winch: Why? This is interesting. I mean, this is the seaway authority- 
and everything is guaranteed by the Government of Canada. Why do you no 
borrow from the bank? I believe you could borrow it at per cent, could y°u 
not?

Mr. Martin: I would be very surprised if you could do any better than 
interest rate which we get from the government, sir, which is the rate 
government is paying. I have never heard—and Mr. Long could correct me 
this—of a crown corporation borrowing money from a bank.

the
the
on

Mr. Bigg: I am not suggesting that you borrow from a chartered bank, but 
I was thinking of borrowing from the Bank of Canada.

Mr. Martin: Well, the Comptroller of the Treasury is, let us say, °ur 
banker.

Mr. Winch: There is one more question. Anyone can get money on treas 
bills. Can you cash your treasury bills immediately when you require 
money?

ury
the

Mr. Martin: Yes, at any time when we need the money.
f theMr. Baldwin: One question on this, Mr. Chairman. I suppose one oi 

conditions of the loan is that it is earmarked for a specific purpose?
Mr. Martin: The money that we borrow is earmarked for capital expen<^ 

tures.
Mr. Baldwin: That is the point I make and, consequently, you are ]i^e 

to that; you cannot use it for service and debt charges.
Mr. Martin: Oh, no.
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Mr. Long: Might I add, perhaps the most significant thing about this 
comment is the date that is involved. This is a balance sheet at March 31. The 
statement is made that in March $6 million was borrowed. At March 31, there is 
°n hand $5,173,000. At March 31, of course, parliamentary appropriations lapse. 
1 do not recall whether that had anything to do with this at the time, but 
there could be a connection.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Is this considered by the Auditor Cen­
tal’s department or office to be working under a poor principle, or adoption of 
a Poor principle in bookkeeping?

Mr. Long: I think we feel that if there is authority to loan money and that 
authority is to lapse it is not cricket to borrow that money to have it just before 

authority lapses.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Wherein does the authority lapse? Does the 
seaway authority have that authority? Can they borrow money?

Mr. Long: Perhaps Mr. Martin could tell us the circumstances at this 
Particular time. Was this a loan appropriation that was lapsing on March 31?

Mr. Martin: It would have lapsed on March 31. These gentlemen will all 
Uow much better than I do—my memory is a little shaky about this—but I 
so believe that at the time there was an election coming on. In other words, 
I had not got my hands on that money, we might have been without it for 

0rne considerable period of time.

Mr. Bigg: I seem to detect a feeling with you people that there might be a 
^®tter way of doing it, I gather than you run out of money or financial stability 
a tl:ie end of every year; could we not do it on some kind of three-year basis or 
Revolving credit of some sort, so that this particular trouble would not occur?

as not to he caught on March 31 every year either short or too far ahead—I 
s Cede you might need a lea way of 5 or 10 per cent for your expenditures, but 
th should not have to cost us on paper, anyway, thousands of dollars at

6 end of every year.

to tv^r’ ^ARTIN: It does not really cost us anything; the money goes right back 
iL he government. It just means that I can get hold of it when I need it to pay 

e seaway’s bills.

, The Chairman: I would think, Mr. Martin, that it might be worthwhile to 
into the probability of your authority having a bank credit up to x number 

dollars so that it is there when you need it. I believe Polymer of Sarnia, 
r'hich is a Crown corporation, operates on this principle, but I am not sure; but 
Danks are there for the purpose of taking care of peak loads, and I would think 
nis would be the answer if it is within government jurisdiction to do it.

beca^'r' Winch: Mr. Chairman, I am very glad that you asked that question, 
here SS * ^ink it is rather important. Mr. Martin happened to mention in 1963th.

by tb^aS t*16 Problem of an election, and if he had not had $5 million on hand
e0n . e end of March, he would have been sunk. Now have you given any 
«*- er&tion to making any recommendation, considering extenuating circum- 

Ces, that there should be a revolving fund—I think that is what you and Mr.
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Bigg had in mind—so that no matter what happens you are able to obtain the 
money—of course, under authority and audit—to carry on. Has any thought been 
given to that?

Mr. Martin: No, sir. And if I may—

Mr. Winch: Do you need it?
Mr. Martin: I do not think so, really. Would you be good enough to look at 

exhibit 5 in the long form report, which is the balance sheet of the Authority.

Mr. Long: This is not in the long form report; you have to look at the 
report of the Authority. It is page 17 of the 1963 report.

• (4:15 p.m.)
Mr. Martin: Under Current Assets, you will observe this $5.1 million item 

of treasury bills. On the other side, under liabilities, you will note the reserve 
for replacement of machinery and equipment, $4.2 million. I stated earlier that 
$4.2 million was charged to the Authority’s expenses but did not represent a 
cash expenditure. This is saving money in effect to replace assets that may need 
to be replaced next year.

Mr. Winch: Do you hold $4.2 million to your account?

Mr. Martin: It is in the $5 million, sir.

Mr. Winch: But do you hold it to your account. Can you write a cheque 
against that?

Mr. Martin: Yes.
Mr. Winch: The entire portion.
The Chairman: Mr. Thomas, will you proceed.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Since the Auditor General has raised a 
questionable practice does Mr. Long have any suggestions or recommendations 
to make on behalf of the Auditor General?

Mr. Long: There are always two sides to these questions. We were faced 
with a loan being made at a time when it was not actually needed. It resulted 
investments. Mr. Martin is quite right when he says they do have this reserve 
for replacement of assets that wear out. It is a moot point whether you shorn 
invest money that you have as the result of such a reserve to bring income in °r 
whether it should be applied on your debts in advance, thereby reducing 
interest costs. As I say, there are two sides to questions like this. There is 
Martin’s view, and I can see his point of view, that by investing the money 
does have it available when he needs it.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : If it is questionable then I would think that 
the Auditor General, having brought it to the attention of this Commit!6^ 
should at least have some suggestions as to how the practice can be regularize 
or what should be done about it. It is not right. It is questionable and I think 1
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should be brought into line. That is why I asked are there any recommendations 
°r suggestions how this matter can be remedied.

Mr. Long: Actually I do not think this situation will arise again. As Mr. 
Martin says, the $4 million is included in the $5 million. Up to this point the 
Seaway had not been holding the money made available, by this reserve for 
^Placement, as cash. They had been running, shall I say, close to the wire, 
^hey had been borrowing money for their capital expenditure as they needed it.

this particular time a change was made. Money was borrowed before they 
actually needed it but, as Mr. Martin points out, there were operating funds 
^hich they had been temporarily using for capital purposes in previous years, 

here were operating funds available at this time and, therefore, their point is 
Gat it is not wrong for them to have an investment of this nature.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I am new on the Committee so maybe I am 
asking foolish questions. Could we take it then that this is just for the 
formation of the Committee?

Mr. Long: Yes; I believe this is a one-time operation.

Mr. Baldwin: You are filing a caveat.

Mr. Long: It was a change in practice. We will always point out changes 
aich take place, particularly under the circumstances which existed at this

Particular time.

a Mr. Bigg: It seems to me to be a strange thing that the Seaway are sort of 
ln§ as a finance company. To whom do they lend this money?
Mr. Long: They invest it in treasury bills.
Mr. Bigg: And then earn this $172,000 profit from dickering around with 

reasury bills, is that it?

Mr. Long: Well, that is the—

Mr. Bigg: It is not from lending it out on mortgages or something like that 
collecting it that way.

ça Mr. Martin: These treasury bills were actually purchased from the Bank of 
Ga- They are a government :; issue.

that it? ®IGG: S°> you are really just hedging on your over-all interest rate. Is

Mr. Martin: It is hedging on the cash really.
*l?at Bigg: Instead of profit here the investment of surplus funds earned you 
Out iu' ^°U are sort getting back the $172,000 that might have been paid 

mterest somewhere else to the government.
Mr. Martin : To the government.

The A^r ^lemming : I have no special question. My observation is simply this, 
the q U<Ptor General said it is suggested that the Authority should explore with 

ePartment of Finance the possibility of taking advantage of the provision
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of section 27 of the Seaway’s Authority Act in order to place funds more closely 
with the actual cash requirements. It seems to me that this is good financing- 
They had to pay $5 million for four or five months hence, and so they buy a 
treasury bill. Buying a treasury bill is ordinary financing. It is done day after 
day and day after day. So, they provide for it for two reasons; one is the end of 
the fiscal period and the other is that there is an election coming on and they 
feel that they need this money and they just want to protect themselves against 
any eventuality which possibly might delay getting funds of a substantial 
amount, which I presume is what was done. So, personally, I see nothing wrong 
with this except that the Auditor General suggests that they explore this 
particular section. I wonder what Mr. Martin’s comment is in connection with 
that.

Mr. Martin: My comment is that we did explore it and were informed that 
the rate of interest that the Comptroller of the Treasury could give us would be 
a half of one per cent lower than we could get on treasury bills. It was to our 
advantage to keep the money in treasury bills.

Mr. Flemming: You made money for the Seaway, so what is wrong with 
that? I think you deserve to be congratulated.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, may I ask one question now, and I am still 
looking at page 17. I cannot remember the Seaway Authority appearing before 
the Public Accounts Committee before, so I find this most interesting. But as the 
Chairman of the Seaway Authority, and Mr. Martin undoubtedly know it is the 
responsibility of this Committee to report to the House of Commons. I would 
like to ask, this being the first time you have ever appeared before the Public 
Accounts Committee—and I am raising the question now because we are asking 
questions on page 17—if you have any suggestions or recommendations to mabe 
to this Committee in respect of financing that we should consider.

The Chairman: Mr. Martin, if you have, now is the opportune moment.
Mr. Martin: I have no complaints whatsoever with the way that we have 

been treated by Treasury and find no difficulty in making sure that the Seaway 
can pay its bills and, other than paying back its debt, meet its financi® 
obligations. I would, at this stage, have given no thought to any alternatif 
method.

Mr. Winch: In other words, you are satisfied with the financing.

Mr. Long: If you will turn now to the bottom of page 10, reference is 
to inventories of $599,000. This is after allowing for a reserve for obsolescenc 
of $152,000. During the year 1963 the Authority continued what was referred ^ 
as a “stores clean-up campaign” in the course of which obsolete materials we 
disposed of and certain materials which had accumulated at different p°id 
throughout the system during the period of construction were brought und 
accounting control. The reserve for obsolescence of $152,000 represented 1 
value of materials which were brought into the account and which had not be 
disposed of in the course of the stores clean-up. Details are given on page H ^ 
certain further adjustments which were required following our examination ^ 
the stores adjusting entries. These were taken in hand and further reference
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made to them in our report for the year ending December 31st, 1964. I mention 
this under the 1963 report because it will give you some idea of the way in 
which the Authority was seeking to have everything in their accounts the way 
it should be and how we were seeking to assist them by making whatever 
examination we were able to of their work in this regard.

The Chairman: I am sure there will be some questions here.
Mr. Winch: I have one question. When you are disposing of something do 

you turn it over to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation?

Mr. Camu: Yes, sir.
Mr. Winch: Are you given a credit for what is sold?
Mr. Camu: Yes. Let us say there are several bidders. They take the highest 

°ue and we get the credit out of that, and the proceeds usually of the sale.
Mr. Winch: Crown Assets give you the proceeds of the sale.

Mr. Camu: We never dispose of anything ourselves.
Mr. Winch: Crown Assets Disposal Corporation looks after it?

Mr. Camu: Yes.
Mr. Winch: But they give you credit for what they receive for it?

Mr. Camu: Yes, I think so.
Mr. Winch: And that appears in your books?
Mr. Martin: Yes, sir. Once a year. Would you look at page 17 of the 

balance sheet.

Mr. Winch: No, I am sorry, it is not on 17.1 have been trying to find it.
Mr. Martin: I am sorry. It is included in there in accounts receivable, sir.

6 c°ilect it back once at each year’s end.
Mr. Bigg: Do you mind if I ask if you sell them this in lots at some kind of 

b arbitrary figure or do you get a percentage back of what they sell it for?
Mr. Martin: We get 90 per cent of the proceeds.

Mr. Bigg: How much?
Mr. Martin: We get 90 per cent and they keep ten.
Mr. Bigg: So it is to your advantage to sell it at the highest possible price.
Mr. Martin: Yes.

Mr. Winch: What item is this?
Mr. Martin: It is the accounts receivable there.
Mr. Winch: On the left hand side?
Mr. Camu: Yes, the third figure from the top of the 1963 columns.
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Mr. Winch: How much approximately of that $356,000 would be what you 
turned over to Crown Assets?

Mr. Martin: I will tell you in just a minute sir.
Mr. Long: Mr. Winch, if you would turn to page 9 of the long form 

report—this is one of the items I did not touch on because it is in the next 1964 
report—you will see there is $61,256 due to the Seaway.

Mr. Winch: From Crown Assets?
Mr. Long: From Crown Assets for the sale of surplus assets.
The Chairman: Mr. Martin, could you give the Committee any one exampl® 

of some obsolete equipment that the Authority bought and paid for, then found 
they had to term it obsolete and sold it to Crown Assets, and what was your 
loss? Give us your worst example.

Mr. Martin : I cannot give you any specific examples, sir, but a great bulk 
of the material was inherited when we were entrusted with the canals- 
Other materials were things that I would say were left lying around after the 
construction. I think that you would appreciate that in a major project like this 
there is always a certain amount of clean-up to be done.

The Chairman: They were legacies, most of them.

Mr. Martin: Quite a number.

Mr. Winch: Did you turn over any new equipment that had not been used?
Mr. Martin: To my knowledge, no.
Mr. Bigg: Have you any idea at all if there would be used timbers and that 

sort of thing?
Mr. Martin: There would be that and scrap iron. There were a certaih 

amount of parts for the old wooden lock gates in the old canals, just 9 
conglomeration of junk.

The Chairman: Are you satisfied with the way in which Crown Assets 
Disposal Corporation handles it?

• (4:30 p.m.)
Mr. Martin: So far as I am concerned, yes. I sometimes think we might get 

more for it ourselves but the law says we have to sell it through Crown Assets.
Mr. Winch: I have had the same opinion more than once.
Mr. Long: Turning to page 13 reference is made to the capital expenditure 

of $15.6 million in 1963; at the top of the page a comparison is given of thes® 
expenditures with the approved budget. By far the greater portion of thl 
represented a payment of $11.7 million to the Canadian National Railway 
Company in connection with the Victoria bridge diversion. This payment w9 
made on the instructions of the Governor in Council following consideration 0 
the dispute between the Authority and the Railway as to which organizatio11
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should bear this cost. The Governor in Council at the same time directed the 
Payment of $2.8 million of interest on the claim to the Railways, and this 
amount was paid by the Department of Transport as a charge against 1963-64 
vote 108E.

The Chairman: I take it, Mr. Carvell, as counsellor, you lost your case. You 
Were fighting another big corporation, the C.N.R. Have you anything to 
comment on this?

Mr. J. T. Carvell (Counsel for the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority) : No. I 
Will try to identify what the charge principally related to, which might be of 
niterest. A movable span had to be put into the Victoria bridge for the purpose 
°f passing vessels because the bridge was at too low a level to allow vessels to 
Pass under it without a movable span. The Seaway Authority built the movable 
sPan and paid the cost. That was not involved in this issue at all. The railway 
also built a diversion spur and another movable span downstream from Victoria 
Pridge on the basis that they would need this when the main bridge was 
interrupted because vessels were going under, they would need a diversion 
Vdiich they could use instead of the main bridge. This $12 million was the cost 

this diversion. The Seaway Authority took the position that it should not be 
me obligation of the Seaway Authority to provide the railway with a diver­
sionary bridge which it could use during interruptions from the main span. The 
railway’s position was that they were entitled to be put in exactly the same 
Position as they were in before the movable span was inserted in the main 

ri(3ge. After consideration the Governor in Council directed the payment of the 
c°st of this diversion.

The Chairman : Has the spur line been used considerably.

Mr. Carvell: Yes, it has.

Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, that completes the more important points of the 
report.

The Chairman: Will you turn to your 1964 long form report.

Mr. Long: Turning to the 1964 long form report, page one includes the 
- introductory paragraph. At the top of page two reference is made to the1964 revision of the Authority’s financing arrangement, whereby interest pay-y. ■ V— ll/J U VAX -L HI *Y LOI/ JkVCAJ'

. nts to December 31, 1966, were deferred and commencement of payments of 
of a*ments of principle and deferred interest was deferred for a further period 

w° years to December 31, 1967.
Reference is also made to the Authority’s accounting policy with respect to 

«Q rePlacement of worn out assets. Also on page two under the heading of 
forPerat*ons for t*16 year—Deep Waterway System”, it is pointed out that the 
and*131' statement of income and expense has been changed in this year
Lak f°r time shows separately the operating results of the Montreal-

6 Ontario section and the Welland canal section of the Seaway. Income for 
So year amounted to $15 million while expenses of operation, maintenance and 
aper* Were $9-6 million, leaving a net operating income of $5.4 million. This net 
Pro income was insufficient to meet interest charges of $18 million and

Vlsion of $864,000 for replacement of machinery and equipment. Thus, the
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loss for the year was $13.4 million compared with a loss of $13.6 million in the 
previous year.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, is it proper that I ask a question? I know you do 
not know the question yet. This is the only spot where I think it can be asked. I 
think that all members of this Committee are interested and I know that Mr. 
Baldwin and myself are particularly interested.

In view of this entire situation now and statement of income and loss in the 
operation of the Seaway—I know that the Board itself cannot discuss, shall I say 
strictly governmental policy matters—could the Chairman give us any indication 
at all whether or not there have been any representations—I am referring now 
to page three from which you have just been quoting—to the effect that on 
railroads we pay a subsidy, and whether or not in the public interest we should 
not pay a subsidy on water transportation. Now, is that a question, sir, that I 
can ask.

The Chairman: I think a general observation from the Chairman of the 
Authority would be in order, bearing in mind that we know the Authority is a 
servant of the government and we do not expect you to deal with policy.

Mr. Winch: Also, because of the fact that we have responsibility on this 
Committee under our Chairman to make a report to the House of Commons- 
Now, as far as you can go, any advice or any thoughts you could give us, I know 
Mr. Chairman, you and the rest of us would like to receive.

Mr. Camu: On the Seaway right now we do not have any subsidies of any 
kind.

Mr. Winch: Of no kind at all?

Mr. Camu: No, we operate through the collection of tolls and other income, 
from rentals and wharfage and so forth. That is the only source of money we 
have really to operate and maintain the system.

Mr. Winch: You always operate on a deficit?

Mr. Camu: Yes, at the end of the year it is a deficit and these deficits are 
capitalized at the end of the year. They are piling up and, as we said, one year 
in our annual report, we are getting deeper and deeper in debt. We used tha 
expression; it is not new.

We have looked at some of the financial answers for tomorrow, what would 
be the answer and so forth. We have looked into it. But we have no answer 3 
the moment as what to do. Is it better to stop capitalizing the interest 01 
refinancing of one kind or another. We have not examined that for the tim® 
being. We started, at one point, to talk with the Department of Finance about l 
and, if I recall, it was a few years back, and they said to us that at the time ft 
your first revision of tolls we will re-examine this. The first time of the revision 
of tolls happened in 1964. In 1964, by mutual agreement with the Americans, v/e 
decided then to postpone the review for two years as it was necessary to se® 
how the Seaway would materialize and what kinds of shipping trends we would 
have and so forth. That was one of the main reasons; we postponed that to th^ 
moment, this year 1966. In 1966, we have given you, I think, today at one point
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°r another, an idea that if the traffic materializes in the way it is anticipated, if 
we are able to have an increase of about 10 per cent on the Montreal-Lake 
Ontario section, then there might be hopes of a repayment of the capital debt 
and the operation and maintenance costs as well on that section. As for the 
Welland canal, that is another problem by itself.

Mr. Bigg: You have pretty well answered the question I was going to ask. I 
Notice that the interest costs have gone up $1,200,000 and I see the reason why. I 
think just to refer back to a suggestion made on the previous sitting this 
Corning, it seems all the more reason why we should have an economic survey 
°f the whole problem, so that re-capitalization or some method of reducing this 
debt could be well looked into.

Mr. Flemming : But you have had the economic survey by consultants. 
They have recommended that you ask for the 10 per cent. With your problems 
ho you think you would be in a reasonably good position, from your point of 
view, if the 10 per cent increase in tolls was granted?

Mr. Camu: I could answer, Mr. Flemming.
Mr. Bigg: Would that make the interest go down rather than up? Do you 

think it would be $15 million next year instead of $16 million and so on?
Mr. Camu: I will ask Mr. Martin to deal with that aspect of it. But before 

e does I would like to complete my answer to Mr. Flemming which is this. 
w° years ago, when we decided to postpone our review of tolls, the two 

aSencies together, said—and it is written in the agreement—that the next time 
have a chance to do it after two more seasons of navigation, we would be 

aPPy to do it because 1964 and 1965 indicated really new trends in shipping 
attd so forth; and we said that the next time we should re-examine the question 
. tolls as realistically as possible in relation to our financial requirements. This 

what we tried to do. So, our consultants were asked to look into this and they 
ld look into it. They recommended, in our case, that we could go as far as 20 

l r cent without losing a ton of traffic but past that point we would. We looked 
at it and, realistically, we interpreted that as being that if we go too far we 

hpit lose on other fronts, and so forth. We are not there to lose a ton of traffic 
h, consequently, a dollar of revenue. So, this is our feeling at this time. It is 
e best contribution we can make towards that objective.

Mr. Winch: Perhaps the Chairman will rule out this next question. The 
vernment has their problems, let us say, with the Canadian National Railways, 

k Cy always have a deficit because of the past debt and capitalization. It has 
t* suggested that we wipe out all the past and say, “now you are on your own 

Sanction". With regard to the St. Lawrence Seaway, would it be your 
°ut eSSi°n’ ^ we said, “because of the situation, everything in the past is wiped 

and you are on your own”, that you could function in the black?
Xv Mr. Martin: I think there is a fair chance that we could, sir. However, I 

^ out that the Seaway is not like the CNR in that it does not have a 
bee^ year accumulation of debt piled up. The Seaway is a new facility which has 
j m operation for only seven years. While we have accumulated a somewhat 

r deficit than we counted on during this period, it was always expected
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that in the early years of the Seaway it would run at a deficit, which we would 
make up later on. At this stage of the game, if I may express an opinion, I 
would say it would not be correct to eliminate this deficit.

Mr. Winch: Do you mean then that, under the existing policy and law 
regulations, you hope to be able to repay that debt?

Mr. Martin : I hope so, sir. If we get the traffic that we expect the proposed 
tolls increase should go at least a very long way in doing it; and we will start, 
not only paying off the interest but reducing our debt in due course.

The Chairman: Mr. Martin, I think it would be of interest to the Com­
mittee if we knew the financial position, just by way of comparison, of your 
Authority and your counterpart, the American Authority, on the same section of 
the St. Lawrence.

Mr. Martin: I can give you exact figures for our own. I will have to do a 
little guessing for the American Authority’s because I do not have the figures 
with me. I will give the most up to date figures which are as at the end of 1965 
for the St. Lawrence River section. Our debt including interest is $370.8 milli°n‘ 
The American debt is $141 million, which is roughly in the ratio of about 70 to 
28.

The Chairman: But taking, for instance, the year 1964, there is a net loss of 
$13,481,000 for the Canadian operation. What would the American figure be?

Mr. Martin: Where did you find that?
The Chairman: On page two of the long form, 1964, at the bottom °* 

the page.

• (4.45 p.m.)
Mr. Martin: Yes, sir, let me make a quick calculation here. What we caP 

compare with the United States is the Montreal-Lake Ontario section only 0lj 
which we lost $4.8 million. Their loss was approximately $700,000. I believe 
can give you the exact figure on that.

The Chairman: I think maybe that will take a little time. We will proceedt 
Mr. Long. We will come back to that, Mr. Martin.

Mr. Martin: The $700,000 is just about right, sir.
The Chairman: This is an interesting observation, and there are soh>e 

questions on that. Was your question, Mr. Baldwin, along those lines?

Mr. Baldwin: Well, it is along those lines. I assume that the firm ^ 
consultants did a projection for you in advance, of tolls, operating costs, and 5 
on. Are you free to tell us in general terms how many years ahead that w ^ 
Was there a time in that projection when the estimated tolls would come c ■ 
to equalling the operating costs and the interest; if so, what would be 
amount of the tolls as of that year. And, did the projection take you to a P01 
when the tolls would equal the operating costs and the interest?
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Mr. Martin: I am sorry, I do not have the material with me, sir, but the 
tolls on the St. Lawrence river section will equal operating costs and interests 
Within four or five years from now, if the traffic forecasts are materalized.

Mr. Baldwin: And are you able to say in round figures what the toll figures 
Would be in that year?

Mr. Martin: We cannot say what they are going to be, sir.

Mr. Baldwin: Just what the projection is.

Mr. Martin: You mean in terms of income?
Mr. Baldwin: Yes, in terms of income.

Mr. Martin: I am sorry, it is very difficult; I have not the figure here. But, 
will be about $26.5 million of which we will get 72 per cent. We will get 

ab°ut $19 million.

Mr. Winch: For what year?

Mr. Martin: By about 1970,1 think.
Mr. Flemming : Mr. Chairman, is that taking into consideration any in­

case in the rates of tolls?

Mr. Martin: Yes, this is on the assumption that the tariffs will be
^creased.

Mr. Camu: This is an assumption; they have not yet gone through. I think 
We have given to the secretary of the Committee a copy of what we call a 
SUrnrnary of future traffic estimates and toll requirements which is available to 
atlyone who will appear before the public hearing. There are enough copies for 
6Very member of the Committee. This includes the traffic forecast range for the 
years 1965, 1970, 1975 and 1980.

^ The Chairman: Thank you, doctor. I wonder, Mr. Martin, if you could give 
some reasons why the U.S. authority on the St. Lawrence shows an 

^Peration deficit of $700,000, and our operation is $4.8 million in the same year. 
ere must be some reason.

Mr. Martin: A very simple reason, sir. They have to pay for the cost of 
fiv rat*ng only two locks in the lower St. Lawrence section, whereas we operate

c locks plus the South Shore canal, the Beauharnois canal, and the Iroquois 
Lahal.

Mr. Winch: Are we not paid by the federal government for those canals?

Mr. Martin: Not our own canals, sir.
Mr. Winch: Oh, we are not?

Mr. Martin: No.

Chairman : Have they a debt charge similar to ours?
24019_45
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Mr. Martin: Their debt is in proportion to ours; they have a slightly lower 
interest rate because, as everyone is aware, interest rates in the United States 
are lower.

The Chairman : It would take more than seven locks to make up a 
difference like that, $4.8 million compared to $700,000. Surely there must be 
some reason, such as a greater volume of traffic and so on.

Mr. Camu: Yes, Mr. Chairman, but there are other factors like the distance, 
for instance. It is not comparable. They have a pool between their two locks and 
approaches on either side, which is a total distance of about five or six miles. One 
of our canals, the South Shore canal in Montreal, is twelve miles long with 
many bridges, and so forth. So, with all these assets together there is quite a 
difference.

Beauharnois is nine miles long; we have two locks there, three more 
bridges, and so on. So, when we start adding up one section after another, that 
is the picture. Their share is about 20 or 25 per cent, and ours represents the 
rest.

The Chairman: Are there any further questions?
Mr. Bigg: When you are showing this net operating loss on the Welland 

section, and suppose you twin one of the locks, would you charge that up as 3 
capital expenditure against the net loss for the year, just because you built it in 
1964?

Mr. Martin: No; any such items are capitalized as assets.

Mr. Bigg: They are not included in this column?

Mr. Martin: No, they are not, sir.
Mr. Baldwin: Was the reason you left your borrowing power in 1963 at 

$180 million to cover that—

Mr. Martin: To cover the capital expenditure, yes.

Mr. Long: On page 3, the estimates of the loss resulting from 
suspension of tolls on the Welland canal in July 1962 is given as $2.2 million f°r 
the year.

A table is given showing how the revenues in 1964 fell short of meetir1^ 
expenses in the two sections of the Seaway and in the case of the north channe 
bridge. It is mentioned that these figures do not include a provision *°r 
repayment of the capital indebtedness of $326.7 million in respect of l^e 
Montreal-Lake Ontario section of the Seaway which present legislation requi1" 
be paid out of earning by December 31 in the year 2009.

Reference is made on page 4 to the division of toll revenue derived fr°/^ 
the operation of the St. Lawrence River section of the Seaway between t 
authority and the St. Lawrence Seaway Development Corporation of the Unite^ 
States. It is pointed out the initial division was 71 per cent to the authority 
29 per cent to the corporation. These percentages were subject to adjustm6 ^ 
from time to time so that the authority and the corporation would receive
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Proportion of the tolls in the ratio of their respective annual charges for 
°Peration, maintenance, interest and retirement of debt.

As pointed out at the top of page 5, calculations by the authority showed 
that on the basis of these annual charges the division should be 73 per cent for 
the authority and 27 per cent for the corporation; and it is stated that if these 
Percentages had been in effect the authority would have enjoyed an additional 
$328,000 revenue in 1964.

As mentioned by Dr. Camu this morning, the initial division was maintained 
hroughout the year 1965, and it applies also to 1966, but quite recently an 

a§reement has been reached whereby the percentage has been changed to 72 
Pçr cent to the authority and 28 per cent to the corporation, which rates are to 
j'srnain in effect for a period of five years beginning in 1967. This division 
°es not, of course, give the authority a percentage quite equal to the 

Percentage of its annual charges, but persumably represents the best arrange­
ant the authority was able to negotiate.

The Chairman: Now do you negotiate these percentages? What is the 
Procedure, doctor?

Mr. Camu: These, Mr. Chairman, were negotiated between the United 
totes Seaway Development Corporation and the Canadian St. Lawrence Sea­

way Authority. They were very long and difficult negotiations, and it took a 
^ery long time. We started early in 1963; we had difficulties, and so forth, but 
finally succeeded recently. This agreement is for a five year term. Once an 
agreement has been reached, this is always followed by an exchange of notes 
etween the two countries, and it becomes official.

a Mr- Long: Turning to page 5, reference is made to the relief given to the 
s nority in 1964 with regard to its difficulties resulting in part from the 
$2iPGtlS*0n to^s on Welland canal. This relief consists of the conversion of 

million of the Authority’s indebtedness to an interest-free loan; the 
.yment to the authority of an amount of $27 million to cover the accumulated 
of tand canal deficit, and the understanding that future annual operating losses 

Pe Welland canal are to be met with parliamentary appropriations.
th ^e^erence is made on page 6 to the statement of income and expense for 
r e year 1964 which provides an analysis of the operation, maintenance and 

®l0nal administration expenses for each section of the seaway, and to an 
itional statement given this year which provides an analysis of the head- 
rters administration and engineering expenses for the year.

cat ^6ar bottom of the page an analysis is given of the expenses by major 
ace ^°r*es from which it can be seen that employee costs including benefits 
per fitted for 65 per cent of all Seaway expenditures. These increased by 10.8 
C6l^Cent in the year, which is explained as resulting from pay increases of 8 
prQ.s an hour, the staffing of the Welland canal modernization and twinning 

'Iect and increases in the engineering staff in Montreal.
the ^r' Winch: Am I correct that the increased cost on the Welland Canal and 
pa c°sf °f twinning is no charge to the authority and the federal government 

s everything on that?
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Mr. Martin: This is correct.

Mr. Winch: So there is no extra charge to you on that?

Mr. Martin: That is right.

Mr. Flemming: It has been mentioned that future operating losses in the 
Welland section are to be met by parliamentary appropriation. Is there any 
appropriation in the estimates for the current year to cover this?

Mr. Martin: This is done, Mr. Flemming, in the same way as the CNR 
deficit is dealt with annually. In other words, in the final supplementary 
estimates in March of this year there was an amount of $8.2 million in respect 
of the loss we sustained in 1965.

Mr. Flemming: You handle it at the end of the period rather than at the 
beginning?

Mr. Martin: That is right.

Mr. Winch: Do you have to carry that loss for a year?
Mr. Martin: No, because the Comptroller of the Treasury gives us what 

you might call interest-free temporary loans.

Mr. Winch: Interest free?

Mr. Martin: Yes.

Mr. Winch: I am going to ask an ex-cabinet minister how that works!

Mr. Martin: This is provided for in Section 23 of our Act.
The Chairman: When the next supplementary estimates come before the 

House we will be better versed when we see this item appearing, Mr. Martin.
Doctor, 65 per cent of your total operating costs are under the heading 

employee costs including benefits, and so on. Is your staff increasing all th- 
time, and are you confronted with negotiations with unions, and so on?

Mr. Camu: Yes, Mr. Chairman, our operation and maintenance employ^6 
are unionized; they are represented by the CBRT, and we have been success! ^ 
in negotiating with them, first, on a 3-year contract, then a 2-year contract, 
we have had no contract since January 1, although we are in the middle 
negotiations. In fact, they broke these negotiations recently. We went throug 
all the steps: the conciliation officer, then the board of three men, and so f°r j 
If you have read the statement in this morning’s papers, you will know t*1 
negotiations are off.

They are asking basically for a 35 per cent increase and a 2-year contra0^ 
there are a few other clauses and so forth. This covers about 1,200 of 0 
employees. We also have a group of about 100 office workers represented by i 
same union, most of them in Cornwall. This is our second group. We have i*13 
them an offer. Mr. Cardin was a member of our negotiating committee. If V° 
wish to have more information on this perhaps we could supply it.

The Chairman: I do not suppose that is necessary.
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• (5.00 p.m.)

Have you a personnel section?

Mr. Camu: Yes, we have our own personnel section in Cornwall and the 
administration branch. We follow very closely the Civil Service Act in most 
cases. We have our own health insurance plans and we have also fringe benefits, 
and so on.

The Chairman: You hire your staff outside of the Civil Service, you are
not__

Mr. Camu: Yes, directly with advertisements in the paper, and so forth, all 
°Ver the place.

Mr. Winch: Could I ask if you have an understanding with your organized 
employees so that there would be no disruption of services?

Mr. Camu: After the—
Mr. Winch: Well, they are in negotiation now. In view of the importance to 
economy of Canada do you have any unofficial understanding with the 

employees that there will not be any disruption of service?
Mr. Camu: I do not think we have that do we, John?

Mr. Carvell: There will be when the conciliation proceedings are complet- 
eh- There is none at the moment as a collective agreement between the union 
aad the Seaway Authority is required to ensure that. They are seeking a new 
^Sceement and conciliation is proceeding. At the moment we are still protected 
^ labour law from any disruption but we can anticipate that they might go 

®y°nd the period during which we would have protection against disruption, if 
e conciliation proceedings do not succeed. As I say, they are going on.

Mr. Winch: 
employees?

Is there a fairly good relationship between you and the

Mr. Carvell: Yes, I think we have quite a good relationship with our
Employees.

effic
The Chairman: Do you have periodic studies made of job evaluation or 
lency surveys or something like that.

job ^r' Marvell: Yes, and done jointly with the union. We have completed a 
°Ur eva*uation in certain categories very recently. It was done jointly between 

Personnel section and the union national office.
Mr. Camu: Mr. Chairman, perhaps I can answer your question. The 

be er °f our working force is pretty stable from year to year. It has always
ar°und 1,500, with up to about 1,600 at times. It never fluctuates more ltlao that.

^eathr ^INCH: What happens when you have to close down because of the 
er- Is your general staff still able to carry on in other work?
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Mr. Camu: Oh, yes, our employees are on a year round basis with us. It is 
not part time, it is year round. We have a very interesting cycle so to speak. 
As soon as the season is over then we have a program of major maintenance 
over all, inspection and so forth. Through the winter we have inventories of 
stores and supplies, and so forth. We have courses in the winter for our own 
technical personnel where we try to improve their knowledge of the operation, 
and so forth and, by the beginning of March, everybody is back in action to oil, 
gear the material and be ready for the opening of the season. This is the cycle.

Mr. Long: Reference is made at the top of page 7 to savings which resulted 
from amalgamation of the former central region administration with that of the 
eastern region and by transferring to the Department of Transport some of the 
employees who were previously engaged in channel sweeping for the depart­
ment on a recoverable basis.

Reference is also made to the practice of paying grants in lieu of taxes on 
submerged land which I would like particularly to draw to the attention of the 
members of the Committee. Should lands which are flooded permanently be 
subject to grants in lieu of taxes indefinitely? You will see that the Authority 
pays approximately $30,000 in annual grants in lieu of taxes on land covered by 
water at the Lake Ontario and Lake Erie entrances to the Welland Canal and at 
the St. Mary’s River entrance to the Sault Ste. Marie canal. This is a very big 
question and is not confined to the Authority which is following the practice 
established by the municipal grants division of the Department of Finance and 
the Department of Transport. We hope to be able to look further into this 
problem but we would be very interested in any comments that members of the 
Committee might care to make concerning it.

Mr. Baldwin: In other words, you take over the role of the government 
departments which pay to various municipalities grants under the legislation 
and these grants are fixed. There is an understanding, I think, on the same basis 
as if the government, for example, was a taxpayer, in that the government does 
pay an amount which would be comparable to that paid by a private individual 
or a corporation. This point was raised by the Auditor General. The amounts ot 
evaluation which I see here have been fixed at $354,496, including $292,000 
46.7 acres, over half of which it is suggested was naturally submerged no 
artificially as a result of your operation.

Now, does the government pay on a comparable basis with respect to other 
lands under this legislation? Are you simply following the same practice as the 
government?

Mr. Carvell: As Mr. Long indicated, we are merely perpetuating the 
practice which is government practice. This was the practice of the municip3* 
grants division of the Department of Finance and of the Department 0 
Transport in respect of these specific lands before they became charged to the 
Seaway Authority.

Mr. Baldwin: This practice was drawn up under the development of thlS 
municipal branch legislation?

I must say that I find it difficult to understand the basis on which grants 
are paid in respect of naturally submerged lands and which would not be of uS 
or value under normal circumstances.
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Mr. Winch: It also intrigues me, Mr. Chairman. As all the members may 
know, I come from Vancouver and, in Vancouver if the water is on low level, 
then it is within federal authority and federal ownership because only on low 
level is land completely submerged. If it hits high level—between low level and 
high level—then there is a question whether the municipality has authority. On 
low level it is completely federal and no municipality in British Columbia can 
charge or pay in lieu of taxes on that which at all times is completely covered 
by water. You have a point here where you say it is completely covered by 
Water, so is it federal or should you pay in lieu of taxes? I think it is a point 
that requires legal authority but it is rather an intriguing one because if you 
can get away with this the city of Vancouver would love to get that!

Mr. Bigg: Is not submerged land very valuable for dockage and such 
facilities? Perhaps the canal authority want to keep turning places, and so forth 
far their ships and if they do not own the land under the old right of way of the 
river may be in difficulty. They expropriated this originally, and now we 
are making concessions to these municipal authorities to take off any financial 
burden which they may have had by not being able to sell the land under the 
Canal or under the approaches.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Bigg has asked a very important question. Is this com­
pletely submerged land of such value or use to the Seaway Authority that you 
paV the $30,000 in order to have it. If you are paying in lieu of taxes, then you 
°Wn that property. Now, is that land of such value to you that it is worth while 
Putting it in the hands of legal counsel to ascertain whether or not you have to 
Puy taxes.

Mr. Camu: There is a point there, Mr. Chairman, but really I have no 
Y SWer to that question. I, myself, find it complicated but if I go back to the 
^ancouver problem you have raised, I can see a distinction between the two.

°U have tide there so part of the land is uncovered at low tide. Is there a 
tiri 6nce between submerged land at high tide and low tide or where there are 
Unv *nffuences? In the Seaway we do not have tides from Montreal up. This is 
re n °Wn us' We have two kinds of land; artificially submerged land which is 
6|1(j v Part of the canal and naturally submerged, the entrance to it at either 
the 3nc* fbis is part of the difficulty. It is really the entrance to the canal where 

e are dikes in the lake about a mile or two, dikes with a lighthouse on 
rin 01 an(f 50 forth. So that is part of the system. But to go beyond that, I have

comments.
Mr. Winch: I take it then that you prefer to pay the $30,000? It gives you, 

h°ut question, the control of the area you just mentioned.
Mr. Camu: That is what we have said. We continue to pay grants.

gr ^r- Flemming: But, Mr. Chairman, is not the basis for the municipal 
rev S fuct that with the coming into being of the St. Lawrence Seaway a 

item was lost to the municipality, by virtue of its being 
the basis of it? Regardless of how it came about, I presume, 
lost a revenue producing item? So, consequently, in the 
the St. Lawrence Seaway and that municipality they make 

grants. Am I right about this?

fWj Produci
the°sdeed? IS that : 
ad: Municipal: 

ffistment bet™
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Mr. Martin: That is generally true, Mr. Flemming. There is a big distinc­
tion. Mr. Winch spoke about land on the coast covered by water. The question 
there is, in whose jurisdiction is it? But in our instance it is all inland areas, 
there is no question of ownership. We own land in some instances which is 
naturally submerged and it was acquired from the province who owned it 
before the federal government established title to it. It was acquired one way or 
another. With respect to other land, the federal government moved in; it was 
dry land, and they dug a ditch and brought water in. It is a canal and it is 
artificially submerged. Both the statutes in Quebec and Ontario say that land 
covered by water is subject to taxation. Having said that, it becomes a question 
of valuing the land covered by water and establishing a rate for it. With respect 
to the valuation of land which is covered by water where it has been ditched 
and converted into a canal, the government’s practice, which we follow, is to 
give it a value in relation to the land adjoining it, and say that if it had not 
been ditched and was not submerged, it would have a value comparable to this 
adjoining land and to pay grants on that basis, which we apply exactly.

Where land is naturally covered with water, it was at all times, in memory, 
the bed of a stream or the bed of a lake. The question is whether a value can be 
ascribed to that for taxation purposes. Whether that land has a potential use is 
something which is easy to see. Hon. gentlemen have expressed their difficulty 
in understanding how it could have a value. At any rate, we feel that we have 
to follow the precedent which was set before this land came in to our charge 
and we have to continue to pay grants, in lieu of taxes on this land that was 
artificially submerged, to the municipalities where it was paid previously, P°rt 
Colborne, et cetera. We have put one little gloss on it and that is that we say 
that the valuation of this land is no longer subject to fluctuation. The valuation 
of land artificially submerged is subject to fluctuation when the value 
adjoining land fluctuates. But we say that land naturally covered with water lS 
not liable to fluctuate as the adjoining land value has no relationship with this- 
It never was land.

Mr. Winch: Why do you take that position? If the adjoining land goes UP 
and it is known that you have to have this land almost in perpetuity, wbV 
should you be subject to any increase in taxes on that?

Mr. Bigg: I think I can answer that one, if I might. If you build a seawa^ 
and you bring in a million people into a place where there was no town before 
it does not seem right that the Seaway should have to pay exhorbitant rents °r 
payments in lieu of taxes when you created the city out of the wilderness.

Mr. Winch: That is my very point. It is because of the Seaway that it S°eS 
ahead. Why should it be subject to increased taxes?

Mr. Martin: They are not, they are stinted down at a—
Mr. Winch: Oh, I understood you to say that it does fluctuate according t0 

the increase in the land adjoining it which was artificially flooded.

Mr. Baldwin: If it is artificially flooded it is subject to fluctuation.
Mr. Winch: Why should it?
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Mr. Martin : Again, we apply the federal practice. Mr. Biggs’ observation 
was that if the Seaway were responsible for the development in the area they 
should not be burdened with this. There is another viewpoint on it, namely, 
that, whether the Seaway is responsible or not, the community has the burden 
°f providing services—

Mr. Winch: Not on the flooded land.

• (5.15 p.m.)

Mr. Martin: —on the land which we use. The artificially submerged land or 
anything that we refer to relates to the municipalities which existed at the time, 
at least, of the building of the present facilities.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I do not like to interrupt. This is a huge 
subject and we have a lot to cover here, so we will have to move rather 
fluickly.

Mr. Long: On page eight there is a continuation of the comments on the 
increases in expenditure in 1964 over 1963. The table on page six indicates that 
ue largest increase is one of 119.5 per cent in major maintenance matterials 

and services. It is explained here that these expenditures were all on the 
Welland Canal, $253,000 being expended on modification of the canal lock 
Control system, $159,000 on replacement of valve operating machinery at the 
°Wer end of lock No. 2 and $108,000 on repairs to a bridge. A new item of 
exPense in 1964 was an amount of $256,000 spent on a traffic survey to relieve 

congestion in the Welland Canal. This survey was expected to cost a 
$800,000 and with changes in operation, traffic control and lock 

PProach procedures, it was expected to increase the capacity of the canal by 40 
er cent by the opening of the 1967 season.

At the bottom of page eight, reference is made to an expenditure of $41,000 
°r the transfer of employees during the year and to the four types of costs 
uich the Authority pays as a matter of policy. These are head of household 
lowance of $500 to cover sundry expenses; homeowners allowance of up to 
’200 in respect of upkeep and carrying charges for a period of six months that 
house remains unsold; real estate agent’s commission and legal fees in 
Unection with a sale of a house, and tenants cost in terminating a lease. It is 

jj.j 0 Pointed out that one employee who received a homeowner’s allowance of 
ho'^00 Was also paid $1,000 in connection with a loss sustained in the sale of his 

Use, and another employee received a $1,800 contribution toward the loss 
.^ined and in lieu of other allowances which might have been payable had he

accepted the purchase offer.
The Chairman: Doctor you might like to give a reason for those two items.

Mr. Camu: Mr. Martin could make some comments on that, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Martin: First, gentlemen, if I might elaborate on the figure given in 
e Auditor General’s report, the total of removal expenses was $20,900. This

of money was paid to 35 individuals as follows: there were 10 individuals 
div° Were rel°cated as a consequence of the disbandonment of the former central

1Sl°n which was located at Cornwall. Most of these employees were moved to

flipping 
l°tal of
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St. Lambert. The cost of moving the ten was $12,495. There were eight neW 
employees who were taken on in connection with the twinning project. I 
remember that one came from Alberta, another came from Newfoundland; I 
cannot remember precisely where the others came from but we contributed to 
their moving expenses to the extent of $2,816. Then there were other transfers 
within the authority. Seventeen people were moved which cost us $25,652. To 
break that down, the expense of moving the 35 employees’ furniture, paying 
their train fares, a certain amount to hotel accommodation while they were 
finding a new place to live and so on, accounted for a total of $16,217. These were 
all transfers. There were 21 people who received allowances to cover miscel­
laneous household expenses of removal and relocation—I think that is what 
Mr. Long referred to as the householders’ allowance—and that cost us $9,363- 
Nine people received allowances for carrying charges on unsold residences, and 
that cost us $7,262.

The Chairman: Would you please explain why that is necessary, Mr- 
Martin?

Mr. Martin: Fundamentally, it is the problem in Cornwall, which is a 
depressed area. If an employee is transferred, it is very difficult for him to sell 
his house. Very few employees can afford to carry an empty house in one 
location and another one in their new place of employment. The difficulty was 
that, in many cases, there was no change in the employee’s salary involved °r 
else it was a relatively insignificant increase he was receiving, and to induce 
these employees to accept the transfer it was necessary to relieve them of some 
of these burdens.

Mr. Chairman: Is this general practice?
Mr. Bigg: If this were part of their terms of employment, it would be more 

understandable.
The Chairman: If there are no further questions, we will move along.
Mr. Winch: You mentioned bringing in new employees from Alberta and 

Newfoundland. Were they new employees?

Mr. Martin: Yes.
Mr. Winch: When you require additional employees on the St. Lawrenc® 

Seaway I presume you bring in new employees who, I presume, want the 3°
Is it your policy in this connection to move them and pay for their expenses?

Mr. Martin: The difficulty is it has become necessary to make sue*1
AUI , XT.1.X2.1V A 111 • X llv UlillvUllJ IP XL 1 1 CIO k/CCOlliC 111.V.CÜIJUX J ^

arrangements with employees in order to induce them to leave their prese 
job.

Mr. Winch: What type of employees would these two be, engineers °r 
something of that nature?

The Chairman: Engineers.

Mr. Camu: Highly specialized people.
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Mr. Bigg: Might I suggest that we raise their general pay rather than 
induce them by fringe benefits. It seems to me that it would be far better to 
give a highly needed professional man $15,000 a year rather than $12,000 and 
then, through paternal actions build up an empire within every crown corpora­
tion in Canada. If you are going to pay allowances for housing, keeping the wife 
happy, getting a divorce and so on, goodness knows, where it is going to end.

Mr. Martin: I have a newspaper clipping here from the Globe and Mail of 
October 13, 1965, reporting upon a survey conducted on this very thing. I will 
lust read one paragraph. First, the survey included 110 firms employing about 
°ne million people. Payrolls ranged in size from fewer than 500 to more than 
25,000 employees. With particular reference to paying the moving expenses of 
hewly hired employees, I will read the following paragraph:

About two thirds of the surveyed firms pay moving expenses for 
newly hired persons, particularly in the case of management and profes­
sional personnel. Intense competition for good recruits was given as the 
reason for offering this assistance.

Mr. Bigg: Might I ask for guidance then? Would it pay the crown to raise 
the general standard of professional services? It must be a great expense to the 
Minister’s office to have clerks checking the moves, seeking homes for them, 
Assessing the rental possibilities in Cornwall and this sort of thing. How much 
hoes this sort of service cost?

Mr. Martin: It costs very little, sir. I think the point is, if you give an 
eMpi0yee an increase, it is going to go on for the rest of his career, amounting 
to thousands and thousands of dollars, whereas, if you pay moving expenses, it 
ls a one shot affair.

Mr. Camu: Mr. Chairman, there is another reason behind it too. We are 
■Cable to get these specially trained engineers—because it applies mostly to 
ein—from Quebec and Ontario as the competition is too stiff, so they are 

^ Ming from other provinces. Mr. Martin has given you the case of one from 
ewfoundland and another from Saskatchewan. We were able to hire them but 
ey said one of the conditions is that their removal expenses be paid.

The Chairman: I think we have covered the field.

t Mr. Winch: There is one more question. In the operation of the St. 
™rence Seaway what specialized engineers do you require?

Mr. Camu: Hydraulics, mechanical, electrical, structures, concrete and soils.

oD Mr. Long: On page ten of the report reference is made to the toll bridge 
tojj^jons. I am not sure if members of the Committee are familiar with the 
the brM§e at Cornwall. I was going to give you a description of the setup and

°Peration but I can skip that if members are already familiar with it.

Mpr,(->n Page 12 reference is made to capital expenditures of $293,000. This
°h tLSen*s mainly expenditure of $281,000 to purchase property with a frontage 
L 116 Cornwall Canal land. This property was originally expropriated by the 
C rtMent of Transport in 1955 in anticipation of the building of an all 

Man seaway. The expropriation was abandoned in 1956 because of de-
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mands for compensation made by the owner which resulted in the department 
deciding that the purchase of the property should be deferred until the land was 
actually needed for canal purposes. The property was surrounded by crown- 
owned lands and it seemed evident that it would have to be expropriated 
eventually but, nevertheless, in 1956 the owner constructed a 96,000 barrel fuel 
oil storage tank on the property and installed an oil pipeline across the 
crown-owned lands to the dock on the canal. For several years the owners tried 
to sell the property to the Department of Transport and later to the Authority 
and in 1961 offered it at the price of $280,000, and further offered to lease it 
back from the Authority at an annual rental of $16,000 for a period of 15 years, 
subject to cancellation at the option of either party on six months’ notice. The 
property was purchased on this basis but it was divided into two parcels for 
leasing purposes, and four days after the signing of the lease the owner gave six 
months’ notice of cancellation of the lease on the parcel which was not 
required for the oil storage tank. The rental on this property would have 
amounted to $90,000 over a 15 year term of the lease. The purchase price of the 
property was $132,000 greater at the time of purchase than it would have been 
when the original expropriation took place because of the installation thereon of 
the oil storage tank in the meantime.

The Chairman: This is one that we could spend a long time on, I am sure, 
but there is just one question I would like to ask. Why did the Authority allo^ 
that man to put a pipeline across crown-owned land without obtaining a° 
easement?

• (5.30 p.m.)
Mr. Carvell: It was a trespass because it did not come to the attention of 

the custodian of the lands, which was the then central regional district, unti 
sometime after it had been done. When it was discovered, it was regularized to 
having them enter into a lease for their easement and pay a rent on it.

Mr. Winch: Why did you not sue for trespass? Would not a logical thing t0 
do be to sue for trespass, in view of this situation?

Mr. Carvell: I do not know, Mr. Winch, that the amount of damages to 3 
trespass action would have been any more favourable to the Authority.

Mr. Winch: That is not my point. There was trespass?

Mr. Carvell: There was trespass.
Mr. Winch: Right, sue for trespass. He spent $132,000 on his oil tank, whic^ 

he could not use. Why did you have to go ahead and pay for it then when he 
could not use his tank. He had to get that pipeline across crown property, I 3 
no lawyer, but I would like your comment on that.

Mr. Carvell: He would have been unable to—

Mr. Winch: Yes, he would have been unable to use his $132,000 tank.
Mr. Carvell: I suppose he could have used it but if he did, he may haV 

had to make other arrangements for filling or emptying them.
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Mr. Winch: How could he? He was completely surrounded by crown 
Property?

Mr. Baldwin: What offer had been made for the lands before the expro­
priation proceedings were commenced? I assume there had been negotiations 
entered into by the Authority or whoever was then representing the Authority.

you know the price offered for the land before expropriation proceedings 
t°ok place?

Mr. Carvell: Mr. Long has indicated the amount which it was agreed to 
Pay.

Mr. Long: I do not think I mentioned the original expropriation price.

Mr. Carvell: It is here on page 13.1 thought you were referring to the price 
at which the Authority acquired it. The previous acquisition had been conducted 
y the Department of Transport.

Mr.Bigg: Do you have the figures?

Mr. Carvell: We do not have records of that. The Department acquired it, 
he department abandoned it, and the reason they abandoned it was because of 
«acuities in negotiations for settlement. I do not know how much the offer was 
hat was refused or what the demand of the previous owner was at the time of 

6 1955 expropriation.

The Chairman: I guess this happened before the Authority took over. 

Mr. Camu: It was started before, and the file was transferred to us. 

The Chairman: We cannot blame you for it.
Mr. Camu: We will solve the case one way or another.

k . Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): May I ask Mr. Long the reason for this 
lng drawn to the attention of the Committee by the auditors?

p Mr. Long: This was made a matter of record to the Authority and also to 
rhament in our annual report because of the extra amount of money that was 
h out because of the way the matter was handled.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Can anything be done about it at this time? 

Mr. Long: I do not suppose so.

The Chairman: Could it have been brought to the attention of the House 
s°onerv

ip ^r- Long: No, I do not think it could. This is a case of management acting 
h^accordance with its responsibilities. When you see something with a history 
hav ^ *n(hcates there has been more money laid out than probably would 
th ^ been necessary had the matter been approached in a different manner in 

6 first place.

ijlquIvIr' Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, could the Committee make 
lries whether or not an inquiry should be instituted into this transaction?
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The Chairman: Was this easement across this land given by the Depart­
ment of Transport?

Mr. Carvell: The easement was subsequently given by the Authority.

The Chairman: I should say without obtaining an easement. This gentle­
man put the pipeline across crown land. Who was in control of things when 
they allowed that to happen?

Mr. Carvell: I think probably that was when the Authority was in control 
of the land.

The Chairman: The Authority that is here before us now?

Mr. Carvell: Yes. Lally-Munro Fuels Ltd. had been tenants of the area for 
a long time during the tenure by the Department of Transport. They had 
always loaded and unloaded from the dock at that site. They had a lease of a 
dock. They put this pipeline across Authority-owned land and it was a trespass 
at the time they did it.

The Chairman: This is the part we are interested in. Why did you allo^ 
this to happen?

Mr. Winch: Why did you then give them an easement? Why did the 
Authority allow this man to run a pipe across land that the government owned 
without his obtaining an easement? Why did you allow this to happen?

Mr. Carvell: It was undetected at the time he did it.
The Chairman: Yes, I know it was undetected but why did you allow itt0 

go without being detected?

Mr. Winch: And, after it was detected, why did you agree to it?
Mr. Bigg: It seems to me that it has always been the prerogative of people 

in business that they do what they can with crown land. If you are running f 
logging firm, you go across crown land. This is a trespass, in a sense. If you do 1 
for 20 years, you have a right-of-way. If this pipe had been undetected for * 
years—I stand to be corrected by the lawyers—I believe they would have aP 
easement by proscription, and they could pipe that oil across there if t*16^ 
wanted. If a man is out to try to make an honest dollar, builds a pipeline aD 
nobody says anything about it, and he uses it for 20 years, he gets it free. It jS 
not a criminal offense.

The Chairman: I think we want something more from the Authority °n 
this matter, perhaps some reasons this came about. The Committee will Wa 
something more specific than they have so far.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, the other day we appointe<| 
a subcommittee of three of our members who have had the advantage of Ie® 
training to make inquiries into a similar situation and to advise the Commit ^ 
what action might be taken or what recommendation the Committee shoo 
make. Possibly, this is another case where similar action could be taken.
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Mr. Winch: I do not think so. I do not know whether the importance of this 
has struck the Seaway Authority.

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, I think we know the seriousness of it. I would 
n°t take time on that.

Mr. Winch: I was going to say, Mr. Chairman, because of the importance of 
this, you should now ask for a complete explanation from beginning to end.

The Chairman: Were you the Chairman at that time, Mr. Camu?

Mr. Camu: Yes, I was a member of the Board then, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: But, you were not the Chairman.

Mr. Camu: No, I was not. I was a member of the Authority. 
The Chairman: You are familiar with it then?
Mr. Camu: Partly. You see, this all started before 1956, and the 96,000 

barrel fuel oil storage tank and so forth was transferred to us in 1959. And I 
cannot understand why this property was not expropriated then. Normally it 
should have been expropriated like anything else related to an all Canadian 
seaway and its needs in the future at one point. This was left out as an enclave 
and was not completely settled.

Was
Mr. Winch: I understood you to say sir, when the pipeline was put over it 
under your Authority.

Mr. Camu: Yes, but the pipeline came later on.
Mr. Winch: It was under your Authority then? 

Mr. Camu: Yes.

*

, Mr. Baldwin: We could ask for this information to be furnished in detail, 
0U* * think there are the two problems. First, I think Dr. Camu put his finger on 

ne> which is very definitely, wrong; if the property was, in fact, expropriated 
n°Jle of this need have come about if, in 1956, the Department of Transport had 
° > at that time, abandoned the expropriation. I think we first want to find out 

y this was abandoned, and probably Dr. Camu could get this information 
0ln the Department of Transport. If not, we could. Also, we should know the 
°unt for which the expropriation had been made so we know what the price 
s then. Then we come to the second point. Why was the pipeline laid, and 

Were these people allowed to lay it? Why was it not detected? When 
ected, why was the easement then given? These are the two things I think 

6 sb°uld have clarified.

shbco:
/fhe Chairman: How would the Committee like to do it? Could the same

'Runittee handle this matter?
6*Phfr' .®aldwin: I was going to suggest that probably we could get an 
ahrq nation and have it filed with the secretary of our main Committee a full

statement and then we could decide whether or not we want to
240l9-5
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Mr. Winch: That is exactly what I had in mind.

The Chairman: Is this agreeable to you, Mr. Thomas? You raised this 
originally.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Yes.

Mr. Long: Turning to page 15,1 would draw your attention to an amount of 
$250,000 owing to the Authority by three municipalities as their share of the 
cost of extending a collector sewer constructed as the main part of the 
Authority’s South Shore remedial works. Two of these municipalities are, 
apparently, in financial difficulty which accounts for the fact that this amount 
has remained unpaid for some time.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, I must go. I will be here in spirit but I have 
an appointment at 5:45.

The Chairman: We will let your spirit sit in the same seat.

Mr. Baldwin: I will disclaim responsibility for any questions my spirit 
asks.

The Chairman: All right. Thank you Mr. Baldwin.
Mr. Long: I think this is a point in which the members will be interested. 

At the bottom of page 15 it is pointed out that of a combined Canadian and 
American toll assessment of $19 million in 1964, only $24,000 remained unpaid- 
This amount was owing by a bankrupt shipper that was more than covered by 
securities held by the Authority. At the top of page 16, reference is made to 
tolls amounting to $110,000 which still remained unpaid from the 1959 season 
because of the bankruptcy of a shipping firm. It was an unfortunate weakness 
in the system during the first year of operation of the Seaway that permitted 
two firms to get into arrears with their tolls. We are happy to be able to say 
that procedures were tightened up and there has been no recurrence of this in 
subsequent years of operation. The unpaid amounts are covered by the reserve 
for doubtful accounts and undoubtedly a substantial portion will have to be 
written off eventually.

Mr. Winch: What is the procedure on a collection of tolls?
Mr. Camu: Mr. Chairman, very briefly it is this. When a ship intends 

make a transit into the Seaway they file a pre-clearance form and on tha 
pre-clearance form they indicate the name of the vessel, the tonnage, what it lS 
going to carry and so forth; at the same time, there is also a space on the f°rrtl 
where they describe the conditions of the vessel, and then another space wher® 
they indicate how they are going to pay, if there is a security, the amount o 
money and everything else. Once the ship has made one full transit, then tn 
company has two periods of 14 days. In the first period, they file a declaration 0 
the exact tonnage, carriage and so forth. It is like a self assessment. They 
indicate how much, and then they send two cheques, one for the American Par 
of it, the 29 per cent, and a cheque for 71 per cent in Canadian dollars. Our oW 
toll assessment section checks every one of those forms coming in against tn 
cargo declaration. This is what we do with the 8,000 of them throughout t*1 
season.
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Mr. Winch: Suppose the captain of a ship makes a declaration and tells you 
from whom you are to collect ; if you do not get the money do you then allow 
any other ship of the same company to go through until you have received 
Payment on the first one?

Mr. Camu: No, we do not on that basis.
Mr. Winch: I mean no other ship of that company can go through if they 

nave not paid on the first ship?

Mr. Martin: Mr. Winch, the situation is that every time a ship enters the 
seaway, it must be covered by a guarantee in our hands before it gets in.

Mr. Winch: How can it have a guarantee if we have a loss of $110,000?

Mr. Martin: I am talking of the system as it exists today, sir. 

Mr. Camu: The system was not quite fool proof, so to speak.

Mr. Winch: When it has been in effect you have $24,000 owing? 
Mr. Camu: Yes, but it was fully covered that year.
Mr. Martin: We have the security to cover it.
Mr. Bigg: What do you take, some kind of a bond?
Mr. Martin: A banker’s guarantee or a government bond.

* (5.45 p.m.)
, Mr. Long: The next item I want to refer you to is on page 16, under the 

eadmg of overpaid municipal grants where a reference was made to an 
£ °Unt of $129,000 which was overpaid to the city of Cornwall over a period of 

e years owing to a parcel of land being included twice in calculating the 
ants payable in lieu of taxes. The amount was set up as an accounts 
ceivable by the Authority and negotiations with the city of Cornwall for 
Payment were commenced.

(ittl ^r" ■Bigg: Does this duplication over a period of five years not suggest a 
6 slackness in the accounting somewhere?

^ , ^he Chairman: I would like to ask, if I may, why did the auditor of the 
So 0rity not find it? Also, why did the Auditor General’s office not find it 

er? I think we have one on the Auditors now.

Point^r" k°NG: Might I remind you Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Henderson has 
at p tec^ 0U1 many occasions that we can only do a test audit, we cannot look 
Ca erything all the time. This may sound like an excuse but it is a fact that we 

°1 examine all of the transactions each year.
\vag ^SRin, this started because of divided responsibility. This parcel of land 
in , lncluded in land on which the Department of Transport was paying grants 
AvithU ■ taxes along with other land, but it was also a parcel that the 

0rity picked up independent of that. I believe I am right in that?
^■r- Martin: Yes. That is the origin of how it started.
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The Chairman: Who found it first?

Mr. Martin: Our land agent in Cornwall.

The Chairman: Your land agent? You are taking the credit for finding it
first.

Mr. Martin: No, the land agent has nothing to do with me.

Mr. Camu: It is in the administration branch. It is not in finance and 
accounting.

The Chairman: So we cannot give the credit to the Auditor General’s office 
in this case?

Mr. Long: We have that on the program for next year.

Mr. Camu: It is a perfectly good debt, is it not? They will set a time on it.

The Chairman: They will pay it?

Mr. Bigg : It will shove the thing up too high.

Mr. Winch: It is admitted that there is an over-payment of $129,000 over a 
period of five years. What arrangement has been made with Cornwall, either for 
the collecting of this debt or not paying your own? What have you done with it?

Mr. Martin: Firstly, as a consequence of discussion with the city of 
Cornwall, the amount of overpayment has been reduced from $129,000 to 
$108,000. I am not really too familiar with the details of the adjustment. They 
found things upon which we should have paid taxes and had not. Then there 
was a change in some valuations and a change in areas.

Mr. Winch: What was the situation on the $108,000?
Mr. Martin: The matter is under negotiation with the city. The latest thing 

that we have is a letter from the city’s tax assessor in which he claims that the 
overpayment was not, in fact, as great as $109,000. This is a letter from the city 
dated April 7, 1966, and the assessment commissioner states, “I am trying to 
locate in the grant schedule the 62.9 acres along the north side of the canal and 
west of lock 14. I find that the total area for which you show a grant paid, lS 
32.4 acres.” He then suggests that we take another look at it. The matter is noW 
back in the hands of our lands agents who are checking their area measure' 
ments and the maps and plans of the areas involved.

The Chairman: Is that the same gentleman who accepted the overpayment 
each year?

Mr. Martin: This commissioner?
The Chairman: Yes. He did not raise any objections to getting the 

overpayment?
Mr. Martin: As to the recovery, once the exact amount is determined, 'fje 

propose to recover it by deducting it in five equal instalments from futur® 
grants in lieu of taxes.
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Mr. Winch: How did you decide that the amount of overpayment was 
$129,000?

Mr. Long: I do not think that we decided that, Mr. Winch. I think that was 
the Authority’s calculation.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, what is the legal position on interest on accounts 
like this which are overpaid? These people have had the money for almost five 
years.

Mr. Martin: I understand that legally we cannot charge them interest back 
to the time the overpayment started but we have proposed to the city that, 
during the repayment period, interest will run at five per cent.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, there is no difficulty in 
connection with this. It will straighten itself out and I propose we go on.

The Chairman: Yes; it will straighten itself out but we hope it will not 
happen again.

Mr. Winch: It is a strange situation.
Mr. Long, is it not unusual to have a payment continue on double taxation 

for five years and not be turned up by your own auditor? Perhaps I should ask 
this of the chairman?

Mr. Camu: By our own internal auditors?

Mr. Winch: Yes, a double payment for five years and not noticed by your
°wn audit?

Mr. Martin: These calculations, Mr. Winch, are quite involved and, as I 
the piece of land did not appear twice in the same record. It appeared once 

n fhe records of the Department of Transport and once in our own records.

Mr. Winch: I am sorry, sir, but there must be a transfer of ownership from 
fhe Department of Transport to the Seaway Authority. Are you telling me that 
fhe city of Cornwall sent a tax bill to the Department of Transport and to the 
Seaway Authority on the same piece of land?

Mr. Martin: No municipality sent the tax bill. As I understand it, these 
grants are arranged by negotiation between the crown corporation concerned 

fhe city official.
Mr. Winch: So you own the land; the Department of Transport thought 

fhey owned the land, and both of you were paying for it. Is that right?

Mr. Martin: We were paying them both.
Mr. Winch: You were paying them both?
Mr. Martin : Yes.
Mr. Winch: I am not an auditor but it seems rather strange to me.
Mr. Camu: In this area in Cornwall there are three types or pieces of land 

n which we have to pay something. The old Cornwall Canal is one. We are
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right on the waterfront for a distance of a few miles. Secondly, we have this 
land expropriated for an all Canadian seaway one day, and that is another piece 
of land which we have and on which we pay grants. Thirdly, we have our 
headquarters right at the corner of the most important intersection, this is a 
seven-story building on which we pay taxes. We have a parking lot about a 
block from there for our own employees on which we also pay taxes. So we 
have these four pieces of land. The total amount of the grants and the taxes are 
based on that.

Mr. Bigg: Is it possible there is an overlapping of maps or blueprints? 
You are arguing about whether it is 32 acres or 64 acres. Surely, with a proper 
survey, you could step in and say it is so many yards long and so many yards 
wide. Either it is 64 acres or it is not. But I could see that if there is an error in 
the maps, you could very well pay taxes on a green patch on a city map and 
then pay taxes on a red patch—

The Chairman: May we close this matter by having the assurance of the 
Authority that a survey has been made and there are no other cases that could 
be in the same category?

Mr. Camu: That is correct.

The Chairman: Let us carry on.
Mr. Long: I think the remaining items that the Committee will be 

interested in will be found on page 19 under the term “General”. There are four 
items here which are in dispute. The first, in the amount of $55,146 represents 
the Victoria Bridge roadways and lift bridge maintenance costs for the period 
1960 to 1962. This amount has been billed to the Authority by the Canadian 
National Railways and has not been paid because of uncertainty as to who was 
responsible for the operating costs of the railway diversion during those years.

The Chairman: Is that similar to the other one, Mr. Carvell?
Mr. Carvell: No, I do not think so, sir. This simply relates to the making of 

a formal agreement with regard to the division of past responsibility on 
maintaining approaches to the diversion bridge and so on. We proposed, three 
or four years ago, to the Canadian National Railways that we formalize the 
agreement and suggested the basis for the formal agreement. They said that 
their operational people would be looking at it and we would get together soon- 
Every six months or year since then their general solicitor writes and apologizeS 
for not having gotten together with us but says that something has happened to 
their regional people and they cannot get to it. The last time this happened was 
about two months ago. I do not think there is any issue between us where the 
responsibility will fall but it is not formalized.

Mr. Winch: Where are the bills?
Mr. Carvell: Certain of their costing people wanted to send those out on 

the basis of an agreement which does not yet exist.
Mr. Winch: How do they send out bills on an agreement that does not 

exist. I am sorry, but I just have to ask this now. How do they do it? There i 
no answer to that one.
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Mr. Carvell: I cannot answer it, Mr. Winch.
The Chairman: You will likely have a settlement of this before the next 

Auditor General’s report?
Mr. Carvell: I certainly hope so.
Mr. Bigg: Would it help if we made a formal request that this matter be

expedited?
Mr. Carvell: Yes.
Mr. Winch: I would think so, Mr. Chairman, because it is most unusual that 

We have a report to us on a bill unpaid and now we are told, by the legal 
counsel, that a bill is sent on an agreement that does not exist. To me, that is an 
unpossible situation.

The Chairman : It is for a period from 1960 to 1962 which is four years old.
Right?

Mr. Bigg: I would like to move that some action be taken on this.

The Chairman: I accept your suggestion but not a motion, at the moment, 
or legal reasons. We have not a quorum.

Mr. Long: The second item concerns the responsibility for certain operating 
aud maintenance expenses in connection with the Beauharnois Canal. It is 
Pointed out on page 20 that the canal, which was constructed by the Beauhar- 
Uois Light, Heat and Power Company, was transferred to the crown in 1932. 

uder the terms of the 1932 agreement the Company, which has since been 
aken over by Quebec Hydro-Electric Commission, is responsible for certain 
Perating and maintenance expenses of the canal. In 1959 the canal became part 

the St. Lawrence Seaway and maintenance costs incurred by the Authority 
ç?r the years 1959, 1960 and 1961, have been repaid to the Authority by the 

Uebec Hydro-Electric Commission. That Commission, however, states that it 
es not consider that it is responsible for these costs for 1962 and subsequent 

j ars because of provincial legislation passed in 1962. The legislation referred to 
g ai} a°t to dissolve Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and pertinent 

bons of that act are quoted. The difference of opinion continues and 
jjj s^mably will have to be the subject of an agreement between the Govern- 

ut of Canada and the Government of the Province of Quebec.

The Chairman: I accept that as read. Are there any questions?
s . ^r- Long: Two other items are referred to but both of these have been 
- lec* on a negotiated basis. Therefore, you can regard them as having beentie,ared.

Com'^6 Chairman: Why did you settle with the Ontario Hydro Electric 
that?11*88*011 ^or $18,000 when the bill was $40,000? Is there some reason for

Martin: It is a little difficult for me to answer but I think I am 
^hieli y aS ak*e as anyone, sir. These were charges, if I understand correctly, 

arose during the construction period. If you will recall, Hydro was
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engaged in a large construction program along with the Seaway and there were 
certain things which, on an oral basis, more or less, were agreed. One was, that 
Hydro would pay certain costs. There was never any record, to my knowledge, 
of a precise agreement. It dragged on because the engineers of Hydro and the 
Authority, who were the only people really familiar with the situation, were too 
busy to get together. When they did get together and discussed the matter, this 
is what they say they agreed would be an acceptable settlement.

Mr. Winch: I have one question to ask, Mr. Chairman. I guess I should 
address this to the Chairman. Is it customary for you, on matters which involves 
thousands of dollars, to have oral agreements? I am told now this is an oral 
agreement. On an oral agreement, where you thought the amount was $40,000, 
you settled for $18,000. On matters of this magnitude, do you make a practice of 
oral agreement?

Mr. Camu: No, we do not.
Mr. Winch: This is an exceptional circumstance?
Mr. Camu: Yes, and a very difficult one because channel sweeping is a very 

difficult item to assess. That was a follow up of the construction period.
Mr. Winch: But even then was it recognized that it would be an oral 

understanding? This is evidence that an oral understanding does not work out.

The Chairman: I think that is understood, Mr. Winch. It is a good question, 
and we will finish on this note.

Mr. Winch: You say it is a good note to finish on. Because it is the fii"st 
time I have been on a Committee with representatives of the Seaway Authority, 
may I say I have a far better understanding of the Seaway Authority and its 
operations now than I ever had before. Mr. Chairman, I would like to express 
my grateful thanks for the way they answered the questions to give uS 
information.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Winch. I am happy to relay that on to 
members of the Authority. It has been a real education to have you with us.

Outside of the one question, which our subcommittee is going to study, I 
not suppose we will have you back again until then.

Mr. Camu: I wish to thank you, Mr. Chairman, and the members of the 
Committee as well. It was our first appearance and I think you were very fair 
and kind to us.

The Chairman: Thank you. On Thursday morning at 9:30 a.m. we wi^ 
have the 1964 Auditor General’s report.

The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Thursday, May 12, 1966.

(8)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 9.40 a.m., the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), Dionne, 
gemming, Forbes, Gendron, Hales, Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, McLean 
(Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas (Middlesex-West), 
winch (17).

In attendance: Mr. G. R. Long, Assistant Auditor General of Canada; and 
Messrs. Smith, Douglas, Rider, Laroche and Buzza of the Auditor General’s

At the request of Mr. Baldwin, the Committee agreed to print a Compari- 
°f the Salaries of Certain Senior Officials as an appendix to the Minutes of 

r°ceedings and Evidence of this day. (See Appendix 2)
The Committee resumed consideration of the Auditor General’s Report for 

ne year ended March 31, 1964.
Mr. Long reviewed paragraphs 81 to 94 inclusive and was questioned

'-hereon.

hep Paragraphs 81, 84, 85, 86 and 87 were reserved for consideration when the 
artmental representatives are present.

C>n a motion of Mr. Baldwin, seconded by Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West),
82 J^es°lved,—That the recommendation of the Auditor General in paragraph 
9(jvbe endorsed as a recommendation of the Committee, viz. that charges for 
a ance planning of construction projects should not be divided between the 

°uhts of two departments.
Ç- Phe Committee also accepted a recommendation from the Assistant Auditor 
par,?ra(. in reference to paragraph 92, that information for members of 
by ,lament and the general public in the Public Accounts of Canada should list 
for epartment and appropriation all amounts remaining unpaid at the year end 

ariy reason whatever.
c°rn ^ a.m., the review of the Auditor General’s Report for 1964

Pleted, the Chairman adjourned the meeting until Tuesday, May 17, 1966.

Edouard Thomas, 
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday, May 12, 1966.

• (9.30 a.m.)
The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. At the close of the last 

Meeting, Mr. Baldwin asked for certain information.
Mr. G. R. Long (Assistant Auditor General): Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have 

Prepared what I think Mr. Baldwin was looking for in so far as salaries of 
Certain senior officials is concerned. I have it here and would be glad to pass it 
over.

Mr. Baldwin: Well, I would move, Mr. Chairman, that we print it as an 
aPPendix to the day’s proceedings, rather than take up the time of the 
Committee now. I give notice that I intend to bring it up at the appropriate 
jPrte and discuss this whole issue. But I think that if it is appended to today’s 
transcript we would all have a chance to look at it.

Chairman: Do we all agree that it should form part of the appendix?

, Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order before you start general- 
/’ * want to bring up the question in connection with exhibit number 5 as 
^rnished by the St. Lawrence Seaway Authority and made available to us. 
jmerally, I want to say that I was well satisfied with the Authority officials; 
o eir responsiveness to questions and the way they handled the questions and 
^ e matters brought up, but it seems to me that an exhibit of this kind should 

filed at the beginning of the proceedings. I asked some questions dealing with 
^ls question of toll structure and having in mind what the recommendations 
^6re of the Auditor General. I think it is very important. I would suggest that 
je might call it to their attention and when in future an authority or 
ç, Partment is filing these exhibits they would, I hope, be available so that the 

mmittee might have the benefit of reading them before they carry on with 
q eir examination. This is a very important document and involves this whole 
lha?''°n t°ll structures to be dealt with. I just wanted to bring that up so 

it might be called to the attention of the Authority.
The Chairman: I think your point is well taken. I will try to follow that 

r°cedure.
had ^°W’ our next meeting with the Canada Council is on May 17 and you have 
frQ^elVered to your rooms the long form report for the years 1965 and 1964 
En the Auditor General’s office, and you will receive in the mail French or 

lsh copies of the Canada Council’s 1964 and 1965 report. These will all be in 
dlllc^p0ssession before the next meeting, May 17, so I trust you will spend as 

time on them as you can and come prepared to question the witnesses

247
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next Thursday. Is there anything further anyone would like to bring up before 
we proceed with Mr. Long and the Auditor General’s report for 1964?

Mr. Long, page 42 in the 1964 report, we will proceed and I trust we will 
be able to be as brief as we can and get through this report today. I have page 
42, Mr. Muir. That is where we stopped. We will be commencing on the next 
item 81. So I would ask Mr. Long to be as brief as he can and we will get along 
with the 1964 report. Mr. Long, item 81.

81. Cost of plans for administration building for Department of Agricultu^e' 
In 1955 an architect was engaged by the Department of Public Works to 
prepare plans and specifications for and to supervise the construction of a 
headquarters building in Ottawa for the Department of Agriculture. From 195? 
to 1960 payments totalling $190,500 were made to the architect for the design 
phase of his undertaking, representing three-fifths of the full fee of 5 per cen 
on the originally agreed cost estimate of $6,350,000. In 1961 the architect was 
instructed to carry out certain revisions to the existing building plans to mee 
new requirements. Because extensive revisions were required—which resulted m 
a new cost estimate of $10,408,000—it was agreed that the amount to be paid t° 
him could be fairly assessed only on a time and cost basis. Provisionally it was 
estimated that this might involve an additional amount of $250,000. By Feb' 
ruary 1964, however, the architect had claimed costs of $428,013 with respeC 
to the 1961 revisions of which he was paid $262,087 prior to March 31, 1964. In 
August 1964 the Treasury Board approved payment of the balance bringing t0 
$618,513 the architects remuneration for the design work on the building.

Had no revisions of building plans been involved, the design portion of the 
full fee relating to the actual contract price of $9,266,500 as at March 31, 19® 
would have amounted to only $278,000. Construction of the building commence 
in October 1963 and is scheduled for completion in April 1966.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 81 covers the cost of plans for an administratif 
building for the Department of Agriculture. This is a case of architectur 
design work, expected in the first instance to cost $278,000, having ultimate 1 
cost $618,513 or $340,500 more than would have been the case if the archite^ 
had not been required to make extensive revisions to his original plans to me 
new requirements.

The Chairman: Any questions?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): How are these architect’s fees calculate 

and on what basis are they paid? By the day, percentage, by the job, how?
Mr. Long: Well it is percentage, Mr. Thomas, but I will ask Mr. Smith 

give you the details.
Mr. D. A. Smith (Audit Director) : Normally the amount payable to tf 

architect is based on a percentage of the actual cost of the building. For 
building of this nature the current rate is 54 per cent of the actual cost. f ^ 
three fifths of that fee relates to the design work up to the point where ten 
are called. Two fifths of the fee relates to the supervisory work underta ^ 
after the contract is let. That is a general statement, sir. In some cases w^e^;s. 
large project is involved the percentage may taper downward at certain P01
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Now, in the case where the planners 
change their mind, as in this case, and call for extensive revision, then what 
happens?

Mr. Smith: In this case the decision was reached that due to the nature of 
the revisions, the work should be carried out on a cost and material basis. Now, 
this cost was based on hourly rates in respect of various classes of professional 
and other employees of the architect. The materials had to do with the small 
stuff relating to the paper for plans and so on. There were also incidental 
exPenses for travelling, telephone calls and so on.

• (9.45 a.m.)
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Are we to understand that the $600,000 is just for the 

design work and there still is an amount owing in regard to the actual 
construction of the building?

Mr. Long: Yes, sir.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Where actually that should pay the architect’s full fees 

*or building, design and everything, should it not?

Mr. Smith: If there had not been revisions the amount to which the 
architect would have been entitled would, in the final analysis, have been 5 per 
Cent of the actual final cost of the building.

Mr. Baldwin: I thought is was 6£ per cent?
Mr. Smith: It varies, sir, according to the—
Mr. Tardif: Size of the building?

• Mr. Smith: No, not necessarily. It varies according to the complexity of the 
o. Some buildings are more specialized than others, in which event a higher 

ate may apply.
. Mr. Baldwin: Are you able to say, having in mind your experience and 

°Wledge, that if the person who had engaged the architect for the con- 
t/^tion of this building has been private industry rather than government, 

at individual would have been quite as generous as the government appears 
nave been in this case?

Mr. Smith: I am afraid I am not in a position to answer that.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, can you advise the Com- 

the 6 ^ there is any way in which the Committee can have a check made as to 
,j 6 fairness of these additional fees, that is, in the case of over charge by a 
by °r you could appeal to the medical association; in the case of an overcharge 
Wh'9 lawyer y°u could always appeal to the law society. Is there any way in 
p . cil this Committee can check on the fairness of these fees when they are 

1 to an architect?
iftst ^ ®MITH: All I can say in that respect, sir, is that in this particular 
of Jnce the hourly rates paid in respect of the various categories of employees 
betwe architect were the subject of, I understand, quite detailed negotiations 
Tb ®en the department and the architect, before they undertook the revisions, 

nal costs were examined in detail by a unit of the Comptroller of the
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Treasury’s office. In other words, a cost audit was placed on the architect’s 
claims in this regard.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Can you tell us what percentage of 
architectural work is done by government architects and what percentage is 
contracted out?

Mr. Smith: No, I cannot answer that question. I do know that when the 
estimated cost of a project exceeds a certain amount, and I know that has crept 
up a bit in recent years and I do not know what it is, that usually the 
architectural work is carried out by practising architects rather than by 
architects from the Department of Public Works.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Would this include any engineering fees? Some­
times the architect has his own engineers.

Mr. Smith: There were, I think, three firms engaged by what I will call the 
prime architect in this case, to do work for him but I am not familiar with the 
names of these subfirms and I do not know whether engineering work was 
carried out or not.

Mr. Tardif: Before a building of this type is designed, or before it lS 
decided upon, I guess a study is made as to what amount of space you are going 
to need and how it is going to be laid out. What happens to a fellow who makes 
a $4 million mistake? Does he get a raise in salary or does he get a promotion or 
what happens? Or does he get fired as he would in private industry?

Mr. Long: It is not so much a mistake or overcharges or anything like that- 
Mr. Smith will correct me if I am wrong, but I think this stems froin 
government policy, government plans changing. As I recall it, the planning 0 
this building started quite some time ago in 1954 or 1955 and this architec 
started planning this building—

Mr. Tardif: But the people who decide policy on this, when they are told 
by the officials that the building will cost $6.5 million, if they were told at tha 
time that it would cost $10.5 million they may not have it. They may go in t°r 
rental which would be cheaper.

Mr. Smith: Where extensive changes are made, sir, the decision to mak® 
these extensive changes was made at the ministerial level involving thr 
ministers of the crown.

Mr. Tardif: Yes, but three ministers of the crown did not make these 
changes without some recommendation from the officials, I am sure.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, as I understand it, that $600,00® 
represents three fifths of what the architect is going to receive. Is that right?

Mr. Smith: Normally the architect would have received three fifths of h1®’ 
in this case, 5 per cent commission. I should say that at the time the contract 
entered into with this architect, the standard rate was 5 per cent and thai^ 
prevailing throughout this contract, although in 1960 the standard rate 
raised to 5£ per cent. So normally the architect for his design work would ^ 
received 3 per cent of the final cost of the building but due to these revision5’ 
the note points out, he is receiving a great deal more.
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Mr. Muir (Lisgar): The point that I am trying to make is that this final 
Payment will amount to $1 million because he still has to get two fifths of his 5 
Per cent. He has received over $600,000 for the design part; now, he has to get 
the construction part.

Mr. Smith: Yes, he will be receiving 2 per cent of the final cost of the 
building for his supervisory work.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): In that case he is getting $1 million in architect’s fees 
°n a $10 million building. I would suggest that that is a little high.

Mr. Smith: I do not think it will come up to $1 million. It will be 
something short of that.

Mr. Bigg: It seems to me a dangerous thing to pay people, I do not know if 
there is any way around it, architects or anybody else, on a percentage basis. It 
Seems to me it would encourage them to build expensive buildings. I think it 
w°uld be more sensible to perhaps give them a project and give them a bonus 
if they kept the thing within the prescribed limits instead of encouraging them 
to go beyond the budget. I see here that possibly this building was intentionally 
Underestimated to start with in order to get the contract. It could be. It is 
c°sting $16 million instead of $10 million or instead of $6 million, is it not? It 
Parted at $6,350,000 and the revisions are going to cost $10 million; or is that 
au over-all total?

Mr. Smith: Up to this point the cost of the building, based on the original 
c°ntract plus the extras, amounts to $9,586,000. It is due for completion in the 
early autumn of this year, I believe.

Mr. Bigg: The principal thing on this cost-plus business is it seems to 
^courage government departments or the contractors to escalate, as they did 

!th the Arrow aeroplane. It got beyond handling by the Treasury. Is there no 
ay of putting the architects, up for tenders as well? They know how many 
9uare feet they can work on in so many hours. It seems to me we could 
mmunicate with the contractors and say, “How much will you do the 

animating job and blue-printing, and so forth, for a building of this type”. That 
°uld be more economical, as I see it, instead of saying the more the building 

g°ats the more you get. Another thing is that to pay the builders themselves on 
c °Urly basis; the more hours they work, the better. If they had a large crew, 

they not extend the work with bad supervision and keep them working 
year round when possibly there were delays when they should have laid 

ac n °ff, and so on. If you are going to pay them out of the government payroll 
^ 0rding to the number of hours they put on the job, we have no guarantee 

ey are going to be efficient.
The Chairman : Your point is well taken, Mr. Bigg.

n ^r- Cameron (High Park): Mr. Chairman, the report of the Auditor 
r etleral which we are discussing, states that because extensive revisions were 
that^re(* w^°h resulted in a new cost estimate of $10,408,000, it was agreed 
CQst amount to be paid to him could only be fairly assessed on a time and 
fair! kas*s' Is the witness in a position to tell us whether that judgment was 
ahd y exercised or not, or should we not have the officials before us to find out 

to the bottom of it. I think we are just skimming the surface the way
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we are doing it now. We do not know what these revisions were; we do not 
know why that judgment was arrived at. I would question very much whether 
the Auditor General would go behind the judgment. He is just pointing out the 
fact that this had happened and it has cost the government that much more 
money.

The Chairman: I think, Mr. Cameron, you have made a good suggestion 
there. There are three others who want to ask questions on this but I wrote on 
the border of the page “the old story”, and I think we will run into similar cases 
as we go through the 1965 report. I think your suggestion to have the officials 
from the Department of Public Works appear before the Committee to answer 
these questions is a good one. If the Committee so wishes, then we will arrange 
to have the Public Works officials here to answer some of these questions to 
which, I am sure, you want an answer. Agreed?

Would the other three members be willing to leave their questions until the 
witness—

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, is the figure of $618,000 the total fee that was 
paid to the architect or was there still some owing beyond that? I thought it was 
the final figure but then your answer to Mr. Muir seems to indicate that there 
was more to be paid.

Mr. Smith; This figure of $618,000 only relates to the design portion of the 
architect’s work. He still has to receive 2 per cent of the actual cost of the 
building for his supervisory services.

The Chairman: Mr. Tardif and then Mr. Forbes.
Mr. Tardif: You estimate this at $9,266,500 and you say it will not be 

finished until the fall. Will it be higher than this? Is that a generous estimate or 
will it cost $11 million?

Mr. Smith: This is a definite figure at this point, sir, based on the initi3 
contract price plus certain extras, the need for which came up after the contrac 
was placed. The probability is that there will be further additional extras befor 
the contract is completed.

Mr. Tardif: So this is only an estimate. It can be higher than that.
Mr. Smith: Yes, it will be higher undoubtedly, but I doubt whether it 

be a great deal higher.
Mr. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, in what year was the construction of *1 

building commenced?
Mr. Smith: In 1963.
Mr. Forbes: Would part of the problem that we have run into here be due 

to the change in Ministers of Agriculture? This building represents f°uJ 
ministers. It started in 1954, if I understood you correctly, and continu6 
through 1957, 1958 and 1962 and 1963. So you had four different Ministers 0 
Agriculture involved in the construction of this building. You can readi 
understand why there should be some changes over the years.

Mr. Smith: The statement was made that we did not have the details of 
revisions here. Actually I have the details of the major changes in somewh3
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capsule form. I do not know whether they would be of interest to this 
Committee or not.

The Chairman: I think that possibly it would be of interest if we are going 
to question the witnesses when they come. I think we should have a little 
groundwork and do a little homework on it first and if they are in capsule form, 
I think maybe we should hear them. What is the wish of the Committee? 
Agreed.

Mr. Smith: First, an agricultural library was to be incorporated in the 
building plans. Second, an additional floor to the centre block to accommodate 
agricultural offices and compensate in part for the library addition. Third, a 
data processing section. To provide for this the east wing was to be expanded to 
Provide requirements for this unit. Fourth, an underground garage and Emer­
gency Measures Organization fall-out shelter was to be added as a separate unit 
external to the building. And finally, fenestration treatment. That is the 
buildings were to be re-designed to provide for effective sun shading.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Do you have the final figure on the cost of the building?
Mr. Smith: Up to this point, sir. It will not be finished until early autumn 

this year.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I see. What is your figure up to now? About $12 million?
Mr. Smith: No, $9,586,000.
Mr. Muir: They should be able to get away under another $3 million, I 

^ould imagine.
Mr. Smith: No, it will not approach that figure, sir.

* (10.00 a.m.)
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, those things that were mentioned by you are 

bings that should not have been forgotten. A library for a building of that type 
'Vould be the normal thing; and a garage is not something that comes up all of a 
sUdden either. There have been automobiles around for quite a while now. If 
Private industry ever did a thing like this somebody would get fired for sure.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I was just making a rough estimate. The way I 
this thing is that the architect has already been paid $618,000. Is that right? 

be building is now going to cost approximately $9 million. So allowing 2 per 
ebt of $9 million, it is going to be over $800,000. Is this the approximate figure?

Mr. Smith: The architect will be in receipt of an amount between $800,000 
and $900,000.

^ The Chairman: Well, gentlemen, we will have the Public Works officials 
sere- We will make note of Section 81 and we will add to that any other 
^ °tions that are pertinent to Public Works administration and when they are 
ere we will try and cover them all at the same time.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, may I make one suggestion so that we might 
Y^the whole story before us. Do you think it would be advisable to ask the 

Sett- denies to give us a letter that could be made available beforehand 
lrig out their picture; otherwise we will only get it in small instalments. Our 

arr|ination would be much more fitted to the facts if we had their story first.
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The Chairman: Pertaining to this particular matter?
Mr. Baldwin: The whole deal, yes. They will no doubt read what was said 

today. They will know what we are interested in.
Mr. Long : We will be glad to draw that to their attention.
The Chairman: Item 82. That is in the 1964 report. It does not appear in 

1965.
82. Accounting for advance planning of construction projects. In 1954 the 

Department of Public Works initiated an appropriation in its Estimates, “To 
provide for advance planning of projects including acquisition of sites”. The 
purpose was to avoid the necessity of listing items in the Estimates before 
planning had commenced or land had been acquired. Like provision was made 
in the Estimates of succeeding years, including the year under review. Although 
the revised form of the Estimates for the 1964-65 fiscal year has resulted in the 
elimination of a separate appropriation for the purpose, provision for advance 
planning appears in the Details relating to several of the Department’s con­
struction votes.

In 1957 the Treasury Board agreed that the Advance Planning vote could 
be used for the planning of construction projects which were to be charged to 
the appropriations of other departments. The Board emphasized, however, that 
in such circumstances charges to the Advance Planning vote were to be 
regarded as advances, to be recovered from the other departments as soon as 
convenient in the same fiscal year; otherwise, construction costs for which other 
departments were responsible would be divided between their accounts and 
those of the Department of Public Works. The Board reiterated this position in 
subsequent years.

In 1963 the Department of Public Works recommended to the Treasury 
Board that any charges to the Advance Planning vote in connection with other 
departments’ construction projects be permitted to remain as final charges t0 
that vote, thus eliminating the reimbursement features required by the Treas­
ury Board. Although no relaxation of the requirement has come to our 
attention, the Advance Planning vote for 1963-64 remained charged wit 
architects’ fees, legal costs, etc., of $15,844 in connection with the planning f°r a 
building, the construction of which will be the financial responsibility of *e 
Department of Forestry. No reimbursement was sought from that DepartmeUj 
The situation is drawn to attention because, in our opinion, it remains undesira 
ble for the costs of a project to be divided between the accounts of tw 
departments.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 82, Accounting for advance planning of construction 
projects. This note gives details of how architects’ fees, legal expenses et cetera; 
in connection with a new building for which the Department of Forestry wa^ 
financially responsible, were allowed to remain charged to the Department 
Public Works. We believe the Committee will concur in our view that it is most 
desirable that all of the cost of each building project should be charged in the 
right place; not divided between the accounts of two departments. Such 
accuracy is imperative if final cost records are to be regarded as accurately 
reflecting the total cost. Perhaps the Committee would formally record its
agreement with this view.
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The Chairman: Any comments?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Is now the time to go on record as approving 

this suggestion? I would move, Mr. Chairman, that the Committee go on record 
as endorsing the recommendations of the Auditor General in this regard to Item 
82.

The Chairman : Mr. Baldwin? All agreed?
Motion carried.
The Chairman: Item 83.
83. Damage to Coast Guard vessel. On August 8, 1963, in what was 

described as “fine clear weather with excellent visibility”, a Canadian Coast 
Guard ship of the Department of Transport ran aground in the St. Lawrence 
River while en route from Trois Rivières to Quebec. Damages which cost 
$147,671 to repair were sustained. The departmental investigation that followed 
indicated that there were no extenuating circumstances and that the officer in 
charge of the vessel at the time of the accident was solely responsible.

The case was submitted to the Department of Justice and the opinion was 
given that the accident was mainly attributable to the negligence, major in 
character, of the officer in charge. He was assessed the maximum penalty of 
*250 pursuant to the Claims Regulations and transferred to another position.

The foregoing is an example of losses borne by the Crown under its policy 
°t acting as its own insurer. In order that Parliament may be more completely 
uiformed, such losses should be summarized or otherwise recorded in the Public
Accounts.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 83, Damage to Coast Guard vessel. This note describes 
de damage to public property which cost $147,000 to repair. The officer in 
barge and responsible for the accident was assessed the maximum penalty of 

*‘50 pursuant to the claims regulations and transferred to another position.
Mr. Tardif: At the same salary?
Mr. Long: I do not believe so, Mr. Tardif.

• As the members will appreciate, this is a type of loss faced by the crown in 
Policy of acting as its own insurer. As it seemed to the Auditor General 
Portant to keep track of all costs of this type borne by the crown, he 
ggested to the subcommittee on the form and contents of the public accounts 

j0 lch had been convened by this Committee in 1964, that particulars of all such 
suk6S ^encef°rth might usefully be shown each year in the public accounts. The 
vvh C°mmittee made a recommendation along these lines to the main Committee 
Rer> adopted it among the recommendations contained in its Ninth
abd°rt’ ^65, to the House. The Comptroller of the Treasury implemented this 

ln a directive issued on June 24 he stated, and I quote:
It has been agreed that only individual losses in excess of $1,000 

need be listed, grouped as to category or type of asset. Losses incurred in 
the defence of Canada, peace-keeping duties and war exercises or 
training need not be reported.

this "^at is the end of the quotation. The losses in 1964 and 1965 determined in 
oRWay as resulting from the crown acting as its own insurer, amounted to 

■*.508, as is shown on page 45.3, volume II of the 1964-65 public accounts.
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The Chairman: The Auditor General is recommending that in order that 
Parliament may be more completely informed, such losses should be summa­
rized or otherwise recorded in the public accounts.

Mr. Long: This recommendation was made by the Committee, has been 
accepted and, in fact, the schedule appears in the 1965 public accounts.

The Chairman: A good suggestion. Mr. Flemming.
Mr. Long: The recommendation with regard to the reporting of losses has 

been implemented.
Mr. Flemming: Could we have the number of the page?
The Chairman: Page 45.3, public accounts, volume II. Turn it up to the 

page and we will show you where it is.
Mr. Long: Unless members are interested in the particular case involved 

here there is no other point, of course.
The Chairman: Item 84.
84. Financial consequence of faulty ship design. In 1961 a firm of naval 

architects was engaged by the Department of Transport to prepare plans and 
specifications required for the construction of a weather ship for the Pacific 
coast.

After a contract for the construction of the vessel had been awarded in 
August 1963 at an estimated cost of $9,915,000, the contractor informed the 
Department that his checking of the weight estimates inherent in the design 
indicated a miscalculation by the architects of about 750 tons, which would have 
an adverse effect on stability and displacement to the extent that structural 
changes would be necessary. The Department confirmed that serious errors m 
calculation had been made and considered ways and means of overcoming 
differential in stability. As a result a number of structural changes were 
provided for, including the comparatively costly use of aluminum in lieu of stee 
in the superstructure.

The firm of naval architects has received $117,000 representing full Pa^' 
ment in accordance with the terms of the engagement entered into with to 
Department in 1961. Although construction of the weather ship will not b 
completed until 1966, the Department expects that the structural chang® 
involved will increase the cost of the vessel by at least $500,000.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 84, Financial consequence of faulty ship design- I® 
connection with this non-productive cost the Auditor General asked 
payment had been made to the naval architects responsible for making thes® 
serious errors in calculation, and whether the department did not have le& 
recourse against them. In March 1965, the circumstances were submitted to t 
Department of Justice by the department and the Department of Justice advis® 
that on the basis of the material studied there is evidence to indicate that 
naval architect responsible for the design of the vessel, failed to exercise 
skill and competence of an ordinary competent practitioner in naval archil®^ 
ture in that (a) he erred in calculating the light weight of the vessel; (b) 
failed to consider, during the designing of the vessel, the effective changes 
amendments in the specifications and drawings made by the department on
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basic design and stability of the vessel, and (c) he failed to advise the 
department of the effect of the modifications and amendments referred to.

No further action has been taken by the department towards seeking any 
redress from the naval architects concerned.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, what must an architect do so that the govern­
ment will not pay him for a job that he has not done properly?

Mr. Long: I think perhaps he would have to incur the government in some 
loss and then he would perhaps actually be taken to—

Mr. Tardif: This fellow did pretty well in trying to incur the government 
m some loss if the changes were up to the tune of $500,000.

Mr. Long: There is some other information that is rather complicated on 
this. There is a feeling, I believe, in the department that had they had proper 
design, the ship that would have resulted would have cost more than this ship 
cost plus the changes due to the architect’s mistake. But this, of course, leaves 
the question which perhaps is unanswerable, would they not have a less 
Satisfactory ship under those circunstances?

Mr. Tardif: As a matter of fact it proves that what they said was right; if 
they had followed the original plan the ship would have cost more. It is all right 
to say that now, but was $117,000 the total amount paid this fellow?

Mr. Long: Yes.
Mr. Tardif: He should be building buildings for the Department of 

Agriculture, it would pay him better.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): There is only one thing that can be said about this that 
ad they entered into a suit with the man, they would probably have paid it out 
° the lawyers anyway, so they are just as well to settle the thing and forget 

about it.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): I was just thinking about what Mr. Muir was 
aying and wondering if Mr. Baldwin was going to let it pass unchallenged.

The Chairman: I would like to ask one or two questions here if I may. 
hey engaged a firm of naval architects. I would like to know who they were 
h had they had previous jobs with the department.

; , Mr. Tardif: When you have the answer to that, Mr. Chairman, how'many 
s have they had since?

e Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, on this point I can say that there are not many 
bef S naval architects. This firm has had work since and, I believe, work 
the°re'. have never felt that it was up to us to disclose names. We have 
n A»; if the Committee wants them to be disclosed we are at the service of the 
reg^ittee but I do not think the Auditor General would like to take the 
ertP0îlsibility of making the names of people public which might cause them

arrassment. If the Committee wishes them, we have them and I am spared to-

Paip^r' '*’ARDIF: I* might be a good idea, Mr. Chairman, to get to know the
6S anc* recommend to the government that in future they hire people that 

°w h°w (j0 their jobs. You say that they have had jobs since.
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opened up for examination, what the extent of repair costs is likely to be, the 
problem of estimating on a reasonably accurate basis and securing the necessary 
Treasury Board approval before the work is undertaken has been a continuing 
one.

A case observed during the year under review serves to illustrate the 
problem. In April 1963 the Treasury Board approved of entry into a contract for 
the annual refit repairs of a vessel at the lowest tender price of $43,346 and at 
the same time authorized further expenditure of up to $35,500 to cover any 
additional repairs which might be found necessary subsequent to the com­
mencement of the work. Additional work of the type for which the $35,500 was 
intended to provide was carried out at a cost of $57,994 and the opportunity was 
taken to have certain alterations and additions to accommodation carried out at 
a cost of $29,511. Consequently, although the ship repairer had commenced 
operations under a contract involving a consideration of $43,346, the total cost 
of the work performed before the ship returned to service in June 1963 was 
$130,851. As the original Treasury Board authority, including the contingency 
allowance of $35,500, had been exceeded by $52,005, it was necessary for the 
Department to make a further submission to the Board covering this amount so 
that the contractor could be paid. The submission was not made until November 
1963. The ex post facto approval of the Board was received in the following 
month and the contractor was paid the amount of $87,505 by which total costs 
exceeded the contract price.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 85—Repairs and alterations to Canadian Coast Guard 
ships. This note points out a problem which has existed for many years ia 
connection with strict compliance with the requirements of the governmen 
contract regulations in respect of repairs to Canadian coast guard ships. The 
procedure that has been followed has been to invite tenders for known 
requirements and subsequently to negotiate prices with the successful tenders1 

for additional repairs later found necessary.
In seeking Treasury Board authority to enter into a ship repair contract, tbe 

Department usually includes an amount for contingencies on the basis of PaS* 
experience. However, not infrequently it happens that the amount estimated f°r 
contingencies is not sufficient to cover the additional cost. This situate0 
becomes apparent only after the ship is in the shipyard and has been opened up
for inspection with some of the repair work actually under way or perhaP5
already completed. At this stage it is not regarded as feasible to call for tender® 
for additional repairs because in the event that another firm is the low tende1 
it will be necessary to close up the ship and make it seaworthy for removal 
the yards of the other firm. the

Consequently, to avoid undue delay in getting vessels back into service, 
procedure is followed of authorizing the contractor to proceed with the ad^g 
tional work with price negotiation to follow. The result is that in some cases ^ 
work has been substantially completed before agreement has been reached ^ 
the cost and a submission can be made to the Treasury Board for additi°^g 
authority. By the time this has been received the ship may be back in ser ^ 
and the firm involved is demanding payment. This problem is a continuing 
and there is always the danger that a shipyard might deliberately submit
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low a bid on the work originally specified in order to obtain the contract, with 
the expectation that any loss suffered as a result can be recouped in the profit 
°n extras.

Might we suggest that the Committee give consideration to recommending 
that, in addition to all other methods which the Department might be able to 
employ in controlling the cost of extras, such contracts provide that when 
extras are involved they shall be undertaken on a cost plus or a modified cost 
Plus basis, the profit to be limited to the percentage of profit realized on the 
original contract price, with the entire contract subject to cost audit by govern­
ment auditors. I might say this is a suggestion which we have not explored with 
the Department; we feel that they may have reasons why they think it would not 
Work, but obviously there is a problem here and it is well to explore any way 
that this problem might be overcome.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, I tfiink this is a real problem too and I do not 
doubt that your solution might help considerably. I do not know that the 
contractors would agree to a formula such as you submit. But one thing is sure 
and that is that an employee of the Department, if he wanted to favour one 
drm, knowing that there is considerably more to be repaired than appears on 
the specification, would say to him “Well, if you bid lower you will get it 
anyhow.” Then if they bid on extras on the repairing of a ship when it is open 
m their own shipyard I presume the price is considerably higher than it was 
0riginally.

I do not think your formula would be accepted but it would be a great 
miprovement, I am sure.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, would not the same officials 
Whom we will be examining in connection with Item No. 84 be involved also in 
Item No. 85?

The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Well, then could we just defer this until we 

ave a chance to examine the officials? I would so move.
^ Mr. Lefebvre: I have been adding up a few of these figures in Item No. 85. 
”'e have an amount of $43,346 plus $35,500, which amounts to $78,846; they 
°Und further necessary repairs for $23,494, and unauthorized alterations for the 

aiïl°unt of $29,511 making a total of $130,851. I think what we should be 
concerned with here would be the amount of $29,511, which were not repairs

alterations. What we have to find out is who authorized these alterations.
he repairs, I believe, were necessary; these are things that you run into no
atter what you are repairing, whether it be a motor car, a truck, a tractor,
ything. it is the alterations I think we should look into here, that amount 

°hly.

^ Mr. Long: Even on the repairs, Mr. Lefebvre, you do not have the benefit of 
6 lender system, you are a captive customer at that stage.

Mr. Lefebvre: That is a little bit different do you not think, Mr. Long, from 
. ecting a building or anything else. When you take something apart you never 

°w what you are going to run into.
^r- Long: This is quite true.
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Mr. Lefebvre: That is why I say it is something similar to bringing your 
car into a garage and asking for advice; you never know how it is going to end 
up, because until you take the motor apart you do not know what the heck is 
wrong with it. I think this would probably bear out this $22,000, but not the 
$29,000, for the alterations.

The Chairman: I think when the officials are here they will give a report.
Mr. Lefebvre : Yes.
The Chairman: Item No. 86—Contracts for cleaning of public premises.
86. Contracts for cleaning of public premises. During the past decade there 

has been a marked increase in the number of contracts entered into for the 
cleaning and caretaking of Crown-owned or leased premises and in the number 
of firms competing for such contracts. The business has become highly competi­
tive and recent experience of the Department of Public Works, which adminis­
ters many such contracts, has been that when tenders are called prices quoted 
in the majority of cases have been lower than under expiring contracts. 
Departmental policy has been to contract for a period of two years.

The Department of Transport also is a party to a number of like contracts 
and its practice has been to invite tenders for the cleaning of airport terminal 
buildings at two or three year intervals. This Department has also experienced 
lower prices in recent years which have been attributed in part to adjustments 
of specifications.

An exception to the general policy of the Department of Transport was 
observed during the year under review. In November 1963 the Department 
informed the Treasury Board that the contract for the cleaning of the terminal 
building at the airport at Windsor, Ontario, which had been for a term of three 
years, was due to expire. The Department recommended that the existing 
contract be extended for a further two year period at an annual cost of $26,675 
compared with the previous rate of $27,000 per annum. However, the Board, 
which had earlier commented on the competition prevalent in the building 
cleaning industry, initially declined to approve of the recommendation and 
directed that tenders be called. In the interim another firm experienced in 
airport cleaning requirements expressed interest in the Windsor undertaking 
and informed the Department that if there were an opportunity to tender, its 
bid would likely be at the rate of about $21,600 per annum. Despite this, the 
Treasury Board was again approached to authorize an extension to the existing 
contract at the amended rate of $26,675 per annum and in January 1964 the 
Board assented. There will be the same officials I guess, Public Works, but there 
may be some questions you would like to ask beforehand. Excuse me, Transp°rt 
officials.

Mr. Long: This is a straight case of an existing contract being renewed f°r 
$26,675 per annum, when the departmental records disclose that another 
experienced firm advised that if given the opportunity to tender its bid won 
probably be at the rate of about $21,600 per annum, a saving of $5,000 Pel 
annum.

Mr. Tardif: Is the other firm that would quote us a lower price recognizeC* 
as being as efficient? Because there is cleaning and cleaning, as you know.
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Mr. Long: I believe so.
The Chairman: Would the question here not be why were tenders not 

called?
Mr. Long: That is true; that is the question. The contract was renewed 

without calling tenders.
Mr. Tardif: Are these tenders, Mr. Chairman, normally for two years?
Mr. Smith: With the Department of Transport it varies; it may be either 

two or three years.

The Chairman : In this case had they not expired?
Mr. Smith: At this point a three-year contract had expired and the 

contract was placed for an additional two years, which expired late in 1965.
Mr. Bigg: In some cases some of these cleaning outfits are very expensive. 

There are special garbage disposal units, and so on, which come to quite a 
considerable expense, and I think there must be some discretion used here not to 
force a man to go out of business and get rid of all this expensive equipment 
^hen he has been doing an efficient job. Perhaps the two-year contract is not 
tong enough in the first place, especially on a renewal. If a man has done a good 
Job for a department for two years I think he should be allowed to perhaps 
c°ntract again. As I said, some of this equipment is expensive and I think they 
should have a contract for a longer period of time, perhaps on a renewal 
contract, say for five years. Some of this stuff is expensive and I know the cost 
°f the garbage disposal trucks at Cold Lake airport, for instance runs into 
thousands of dollars. I refer to the equipment to put on a truck, and it is 
absolutely useless for any other purpose of the entrepreneur.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): As I understand it, sir, the Treasury Board is not 
Squired to approve anything under $25,000; is that right? Only items of $25,000 
ahd over are approved by Treasury, the rest the department would not have to 
Submit to the Treasury.

Mr. Smith: It depends, sir, on whether tenders had been called and at least 
, 0 tenders have been received ; otherwise the Treasury Board have to be 
r°ught into the picture at the $15,000 level.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): The reason I asked that is that if the other company 
^ btnitted a figure of $21,600 there would have to be two tenders; otherwise 
leasury would have to approve it anyway; is that right?

^ Mr. Smith: This $21,600 was not a tender; it was just a letter to the 
Tartinent. In the event that this firm had an opportunity to tender its price 
UM be in the neighbourhood of $21,600 per annum.

Mr. Tardif : Well was that not after the contract had been let?

Mr. Smith: No.
Mr. Tardif: Did the letter come before the contract had been let or before? 

Mr. Smith: It was prior to the renewal of the contract.
2«21_3
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Mr. Tardif: Mr. Bigg spoke of special equipment for garbage removal in 
building cleaning. It is not a normal thing for building cleaning and garbage 
removal to be under the same heading; they are two different things altogether.

Mr. Bigg: We were talking about building—
Mr. Tardif : Building cleaning.
Mr. Schreyer: Well, Mr. Chairman, this resolves itself into the question 

why were tenders not called? I do not see how anyone here could attempt to 
answer that. It would seem that in this case too we should be asking some of 
the officials of the Department about this.

The Chairman: When officials from the Department of Transport are here 
we will ask them why tenders were not called.

Mr. Tardif: I would suggest that in the future they do.

The Chairman: Item No. 87.
87. Federal contribution to cost of ferry vessel. After studies had been 

made of the need for extended water transportation services between the south 
and north shores of the St. Lawrence river in the Rimouski and Baie Comean 
area, a recommendation was made to the Treasury Board in February 1961 f°r 
approval in principle of financial assistance for construction and operation of 3 
ferry between Rimouski and Baie Comeau. The construction cost was estimated 
at $4,500,000 of which 40 per cent, or $1,800,000, would have been paid by way 
of a construction subsidy together with an operating subsidy of $600,000 in the 
first year, to be reduced to nil by the end of ten years.

Before a decision was reached on this recommendation, a ten-year1 -old
ofUnited States-owned ferry boat which had become redundant on completion 

a bridge over the Straits of Mackinac was offered for sale. Subsequently th® 
Department of Transport received a request for a capital subsidy from 3 
company which proposed to acquire this vessel for the purpose of operating 3 
ferry service between Baie Comeau and Point-au-Père. In August 1961 t& 
Treasury Board gave approval in principle to the granting of a subsidy, but 13 
doing so emphasized that it considered a service of this nature to be primarily f 
provincial responsibility. The Board was prepared to make an exception ^ 
this particular case, however, because it was “in hand and under active consider 
ation before the Board recommended to Cabinet a report on federal assistan 
to ferry and coastal services under the principles of which intra-provincial fer 
services that are essentially highway links—chiefly services involving roj

ta1
of

on/roll-off ferries—are considered to be a matter of provincial responsibility 
In October 1961 the Treasury Board granted formal approval of a cap1 

subsidy in a lump sum to a maximum of $1.5 million, based on the aggregate 
the actual cost of purchase, an amount to cover necessary repairs and alte1^ 
tions, certain furnishings and possibly customs and related charges. The comP3^ 
ny proceeded to purchase the vessel and to renovate it, at a total cost 
$2,429,800, including $863,650 for customs duties and sales tax. An additi°0^
special duty assessment of $1,727,300, representing 50 per cent of the valuati
of $3,454,600 established by the Department of National Revenue for custo-,lH5

purposes, was levied but remitted by the Governor in Council in December
1961
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Under authority of section 22 of the Financial Administration Act. By January 
^962, when an agreement relating to the subsidy was entered into by the 
Canadian Maritime Commission and the company, the Treasury Board had 
decided that the subsidy of $1.5 million should be on the basis of five equal 
annual instalments of $300,000 without interest rather than a lump sum, and 
nis condition was embodied in the agreement. This course of action was 

decided upon by the Board “so that the federal contribution would match the 
Provincial undertaking to pay an operating subsidy during the first five years of 
ne operation of this vessel.” We have been informed that the provincial 
assistance takes the form of a subsidy which covers the previous year’s 
0Perating deficit up to a maximum of $50,000.

Because payment of the capital subsidy was to be spread over a five year 
Period, and since the equity of the owners in the enterprise was comparatively 
Slriall (a balance sheet of the company at September 30, 1963 showed paid-up 
^apital of $180,100), the company was obliged to borrow heavily and in 
°nsequence incurred interest charges which led to a difficult financial situation. 
Allowing representations by the company, the Treasury Board agreed to a total 

^ Payment $600,000 during the fiscal year 1962-63, the additional 
”0,000 to be in lieu of the final payment otherwise payable in January 1966.

Representations continued to be made by the company and in December!963 it announced its intention to suspend operations of the vessel early in 1964
it ^ the uneconomic winter season, claiming that its financial position prevented 
fufr°m maintaining an uninterrupted service. This proposed step precipitated 
jy/ther consideration of the company’s requests and the outcome was that in 
, areh 1964, by which time $1,200,000 of the total subsidy of $1.5 million had 

pa^’ Executive approval of a full subsidy of $2,363,650 was given, the 
in ç?nce $1,163,650 to be paid from funds provided specifically for the purpose 
g uPplementary Estimates for 1963-64 for Steamship Subventions for Coastal 
$lfiV*Ces' f'he amount was clearly based on the final subsidy instalment of 
,.e ^>000 otherwise due in January 1965 plus the amount of $863,650 paid in 
4s^eCt customs duties and sales tax at the time that the ship was acquired.

customs duty and sales tax had already been paid by the company, the 
inst;lti0nal Payment °f $863,650 was in reality a refund of the duties paid 
Slll._ead of a remission. If it had been treated as a remission it would have been 

SCt to tlie requirements of section 22 of the Financial Administration Act 
t-6c ln consequence the nature of this element of the subsidy would have been 

°rded in the Public Accounts in accordance with subsection (8) of section 22. 
i^g Payment of the subsidy was made conditional on the company retain- 
serv°Wnership of the vessel and operating it in the performance of the ferry 

1CS for a five year period commencing on January 2, 1962 and not making 
'Vj applicati°n for transfer of registry of the vessel out of Canadian registry 
C% g R16 same period, unless with the prior consent of the Canadian Maritime 
itit6 1SSlon- Otherwise, the company is obligated to repay the full subsidy with 

' When the agreement relating to the subsidy was entered into by the 
te9Ui1116 C°mmission and the company in January 1962, the company was 
iti ^ to provide security for the performance of all its terms and conditions 

24o? f°rrn of a second mortgage on the ship, which was subject to a first
-31



266 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 12, 1966

mortgage in the amount of $900,000. The secondary nature of the security is 
recorded in the agreement relating to the subsidy and mention of such 
agreement is made in the mortgage instrument. With the $300,000 balance 
remaining out of the original subsidy of $1.5 million, together with the 
additional subsidy of $863,650, the company refinanced its mortgage indeb­
tedness whereupon the Crown mortgage was rated as a first mortgage. How­
ever, in order that a new first mortgage for $350,000 could be registered a-> 
such, the Crown mortgage was discharged and replaced by a new second 
mortgage which was registered on August 14, 1964. The security held by the 
Crown covering its total capital subsidy of $2,363,650 is therefore still subject 
to a first mortgage, now in the amount of $350,000, given with respect to other 
indebtedness of the company.

This is a 1964 item and it is quite a long one.
Mr. Long: Paragraph 87—Federal contribution to cost of ferry vessel. The 

circumstances described in this rather lengthy note show how a company with a 
paid-up capital of only $180,100, according to its balance sheet of September 
30, 1963, was supplied with various forms of federal assistance exceeding * 
million for the purpose of establishing a roll-on/roll-off car and passenger îeïrt 
service between Point-au-Père and Baie Comeau. It should be noted that the 
company threatened to suspend operations of the vessel because of its financia
position, and the government then agreed to pay an additional subsidy- 
should also be noted that although the amount advanced by way of subsidy 'va 
substantial the government on two occasions accepted a second mortgage a 
security, thus permitting the company to give a first mortgage as security 
outside loans. This may be another note where the Committee will wish 
question witnesses from the Department of Transport.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I so move.
The Chairman: All right. Item No. 88.
88. Defalcation at Gander International Airport. During the year unde^ 

review the closing out of a bank imprest account which had been maintained ^ 
the Department of Transport at Gander International Airport for the purpose 
making local disbursements led to the discovery that revenues accruing to 
Crown had been misappropriated during the period March 1951 to June 
the extent of $42,800. The defalcation was concealed in the earlier years 
altering duplicate deposit slips and utilizing subsequent collections to co ^ 
amounts previously misappropriated. Such methods eventually became 
wieldy and the bank imprest account was resorted to as a source from g 
funds to cover the shortage were obtained. This was possible only because 0 
breakdown in the normal procedures for the operation of a governmental b
account.

evf&A
The internal audit procedures of the Department have since been revie 

and supplemented to include additional tests of bank transactions which i° 
opinion should result in the early detection of any misappropriation of this • 
The Audit Office work programs in respect of activities of a like nature to t ^ 
at Gander have also been appraised to ensure that they are reasonable 
adequate in the circumstances.
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A charge has been laid against the departmental employee involved in the 
case. The amount of the loss which has been charged to the Public Officers 
Guarantee Account appears in the Statement of Losses (Public Accounts, page 
43.29).

Mr. Long: Paragraph 88—Defalcation at Gander International Airport—
Mr. Bigg: This is coming up for review.
The Chairman: It must be in 1965. Well, we just had 87 and we are going 

to have the Department of Transport people here. Now No. 88.
Mr. Long: This note describes the manner in which a defalcation involving 

® misappropriation of $42,800 was perpetrated at Gander International Airport. 
We understand that the criminal charge laid against the departmental employee 
Evolved was dismissed in December, 1964.
* (10.30 a.m.)

We also understand that the Department is now considering civil court 
action. I think you will have some questions on this one.

Mr. Tardif : This chap you say was dismissed?
Mr. Long: Yes, he was dismissed.
Mr. Tardif: From the way they treat other people who make mistakes he 

^as very roughly treated, was he not?
The Chairman: Are there any other questions? 

would like to ask a question here. It was 12 years from 1951 to 1963 
this was noticed and my first question would be why did it take so long 
it and, secondly, are these books audited by the Auditor General?

before 
to find

. Mr. Long: Well, Mr. Chairman, this was the type of defalcation which 
olved collusion. Our office does not and cannot visit these outlying offices 

m;ry frequently. I believe we did have in this period one visit to this office andthis matter did not come to our attention. Departmental auditors similarly were
°°led by this system—I would mention one sentence here—“this was possible 

y because of a breakdown in the normal procedures for the operation of the 
a°^ernment bank account.” In other words, people in the bank were involved 
todI believe people in the bank were fired over this; but this assisted the man 

c°ver up what he was doing.
Mr. Tardif: What was this $42,000 defaulted from—what kind of an account was it?

hot „Mr- ^ong: Well there were revenues coming in which he was kiting—he did 
deposit them promptly.
bfr. Tardif: What kind of revenues, may I ask, Mr. Chairman?

Said ®MITH: At an airport there are various types of revenue. As has been 
retlt anding fees would be prominent; there would be rentals of hangar space, 
on a S of accommodation in the terminal building to various air lines, and so

i Mr. Tardif- Well, would most of the accounts not be paid by cheque. If so. 
Would an employee be able to cash these cheques, or get the difference if 

ehtered only half of the value?
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Mr. Smith: I do not think that cheques were taken, sir. My understanding 
is that round sums in cash were taken, fairly frequently.

Mr. Tardif: Is it the practice of some of these large air lines to pay some of 
these bills in cash?

Mr. Smith: No, but there are itinerant aircraft which do pay in cash.
Mr. Long: There are also other cash funds around that a smart person can 

manipulate sometimes.
Mr. Tardif : Well $42,000 is quite a manipulation.
Mr. Long: Well this is an accumulation over the years; it was not all one 

amount.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, was any attempt made to get restitution from 

this party?
Mr. Long: Yes, a criminal charge was laid and dismissed.
Mr. Noble: You did not collect any money. He apparently had a defence.
Mr. Long: The Department is now considering a civil action; they told toe 

man “Show us where the money went or we will take action”. So far as 
know, he has not yet shown them what happened to it. He contends he did no 
take any money; nevertheless the money is missing.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : He must, obviously, have been splitting it with some of 
the bank employees to get away with this sort of thing so he would no 
probably end up with so much. If he was splitting it with a couple of ban 
employees they would probably end up with about $12,000 or $15,000 each.

Mr. Long: I do not think there is any evidence of that, Mr. Muir.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Well I wondered how there was collusion with the bank 

employees if he was not giving them some money.
Mr. Long: Collusion by perhaps giving him drafts to send to his headqu31 

ters with his revenue report before he actually deposited the money; he won 
cover the drafts out of subsequent revenue.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I wonder if Mr. Long c°u^ 
explain how this public officers guarantee account works.

Mr. Long: The public officers guarantee account is there to save approp1 
tions from loss of funds and also revenues from loss of funds. In its ea . 
stages—it really operated in place of a fidelity bond on people hand ^ 
money—the departments had to formally put their people under bond and 
percentage of their salary, into the account. However, this involved a 1° *
work. A number of years ago the account was established with a bulk arn0gre 
of money and recovery is now made from the account when losses 
established. The Financial Administration Act requires that all losses be re^°see 
ed in the public accounts, and if you study those reports each year you wm 
that the loss occurs, recoveries are made, and then you see the baia 
eventually charged to the public officers guarantee account. ^

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): What officers are included under this fu 
and how are their premiums paid?
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Mr. Long: As I was saying, there are now no premiums. The account was 
Put in money and it stands there. Everyone is included—every public servant 
who might defect with any money would be covered by the account.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): That is the same thing, then, as the 
government carrying its own fire insurance.

Mr. Long: Precisely. It does enable the full revenue to be reported 
eventually. Theoretically, it enables charges to appropriations for defalcations to 
be eliminated but in practice, of course, the charge to the fund often falls a year 
0r two years after it happens, so the year that the defalcation took place does—

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Actually, then, there are no premiums 
Paid; this is really a bookkeeping matter? The federal government pays its own 
tosses through defalcation and they are charged against general revenue, but 
there are actually no premiums paid into this account.

Mr. Long: That is right. The advantage of this is that the losses are all 
bought to one point. You can see them.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): You can say, then, that all these would be 
balanced by simply appropriating some general revenue to cover the losses.

Mr. Long: There has been just one appropriation in recent years and when 
he fund runs down—I am not sure of the amount in it now, but it would be in 

Public accounts—and more funds are needed Parliament will be asked to provide 
atl additional amount of money for it.

Mr. Bigg: Have any steps been taken to stop these cash deals? Say a man 
Paid a landing fee in cash and this never got into the right channels. Have any 
^ Ps been taken to stop this happening? I might make a suggestion—if it has not 
,een done—that the traffic and the collecting be divorced. In other words, the 

tow who books the plane in and out again does not have to collect the fee 
°ui the owner of the plane, he gives them some kind of a ticket and this goes 
°ugh another office where they keep a separate account and then they have 
tolly at the end of a very short space of time.

t- Mr. Long: I do not think there is any question but that the Department 
ghtened up its procedures in so far as they could in that regard.

Cq Mr. Schreyer: I have two questions. First, does the guarantee account 
er Ml crown corporation employees such as departmental people?

(j0 Mr. Long: It does not cover all crown corporations. I think I could say it 
68 not cover crown corporations; it covers departmental people.

Mr. Schreyer: It does not cover any of the crown corporations?
Wro ^r' tooNG: I do not think so. I had better check that to make sure—I may be 

I had better get that information for you.

is ^ e Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Long. I think our position as a Committee 
aadit,at Can we do to see that these things do not happen again. The internal 
a vo toust have been lax in this case. What sort of a set-up would they have at 
the v,^e, Gander for an internal audit; would they have a local auditor dobooks- would the Department have their own auditor, or what?
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Mr. Smith: Well, I will have to distinguish between internal checks on the 
job, that is, a division of labour, to provide against the possibility of this sort of 
thing happening, it obviously was weak. The internal audit is something else, 
departmental auditors go out from Ottawa and, in the past at this particular 
location, the people from the comptroller’s audit services branch have been in 
the picture. These were slip-ups all along the line.

Mr. Schreyer: Well I believe I heard you say, sir, that charges were laid 
and then subsequently dropped or dismissed. Can you tell us the gist of the 
grounds for dismissal—was it failure of proof?

Mr. Smith: No; I do know that in advance of the trial doubts were 
entertained on whether a conviction would be obtained. First of all, it had to be 
proved that the money had been stolen and, secondly, that this particular 
individual had stolen it.

Mr. Long: This is a very confused case of kiting. You might say “well we 
did not get this particular payment” but he might show where that particular 
cheque had in fact been deposited at another time in place of another one.

Mr. Flemming: I have just one brief question. I take it that the local 
magistrate dismissed the criminal charge. It was not dismissed just by the 
Department?

Mr. Smith: If I understand you, sir, are you asking whether any considera­
tion was given—

Mr. Flemming: The man in question naturally would go before the 
magistrate, would he not? And I assume that the magistrate dismissed the 
charge; that was my point.

Mr. Smith: Well, the case went before a judge and jury and the jufy 
found the individual charged not guilty.

Mr. Flemming: Oh, I see; thank you.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): This involves situations where cash is handled, * 

imagine. This is the only place where you would run into a situation like thlS> 
where an employee is paid in cash by whomever the user is. Even in a situati°n 
as Mr. Bigg suggested, where he gets a ticket and pays someone else, theie 
could be collusion, but there would be less chance of collusion.

Mr. Long: Undoubtedly the existence of cash was a contributory fact°^ 
here, but it is almost impossible, particularly in a place like Gander, 
eliminate all cash. They have to have cash for making certain cash paymen 
themselves. I am not sure, I have never been there, but I would guess they 
perhaps have eating facilities there which would have to handle cash.

Mr. Bigg: The party who lands there obviously cannot deal in cheques ^ 
the time. If somebody flies in and lands he has to pay and if you do not take 
cheque, well, he is gone; so they insist on cash in many of these places.

The Chairman: May we close this item off with perhaps a word from 
Long, or the Department, that they are satisfied that this has brought to the 
attention possibilities that can exist throughout all the airports of the cro ’ 
and has their audit system been revised or improvements made so that this ^ 
not happen again. I think this is what we are interested in.
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Mr. Long: I do not think there is any question, Mr. Chairman, that the 
department has tightened up, and certainly we are always very embarrassed 
when a thing like this happens and we try to foresee these things. Our 
Programs are always under review.

The Chairman: We have just a couple of items more and when we finish 
those we will be through for tonight.

Item No. 92 on page 50.
92. Unpaid accounts carried forward to new fiscal year. Four instances 

Were noted in which appropriations for 1963-64 were insufficient to meet 
Recounts coming in course of payment in that year. In each instance Parliament 
had been asked for supplementary appropriations and these were granted by 
hieans of Supplementary Estimates (E)—the final supplementary estimates of 
the year. However, the appropriations, requested were substantially less than 
he amounts required for payment of the accounts coming in course of payment 

at the end of the year. The departments concerned are:

1. department of national defence.—Included in the 1963-64 Supple­
mentary Estimates (E) was an amount of $13,653,000 (Vote 35e) for 
Operation and Maintenance, Royal Canadian Air Force. This amount 
was substantially short of the amount actually required and accounts 
amounting to more than $12 million had to be carried forward and 
paid out of funds appropriated for the year 1964-65.

2. department of mines and technical surveys (Dominion Coal Board).
—Although the 1963-64 Supplementary Estimates (E) included an 
additional amount of $3,914,600 (Vote 140e) for payments in connec­
tion with movements of coal, this proved to be substantially short of 
the amount required to meet claims that came in course of payment 
to the close of the fiscal year. The result was that claims amounting 
to $2,380,000 had to be carried forward to the fiscal year 1964-65.

3. department of finance.—The 1963-64 Supplementary Estimates (E)
included an additional amount of $2,800,000 (Vote 45e) for payment 
of municipal grants. This amount was insufficient to cover the 
remaining grants which were approved for payment in the fiscal 
year 1963-64 and grants totalling $806,503 had to be carried forward 
for payment in 1964-65.

4- department of national health and welfare.—Included in the 1963- 
64 Supplementary Estimates (E) was an amount of $2,000,000 (Vote 
25e) for the payment of hospital construction grants to the Provinces 
and Territories. This amount was insufficient to meet the remaining 
claims in the year under review, and claims totalling $458,000 had to 
be carried forward and paid out of funds appropriated for the year 
1964-65.

. Mother charge properly applicable to the fiscal year under review but
which
Rentalhas been carried forward as part of the current assets item “Depart- 
000'7* Working capital advances and revolving funds” is a balance of $2,555,- 
$gg’ lnchided in “Agricultural Commodities Stabilization Account” balance of 

’ 54,000 (see paragraph 97). This is the amount by which the $122,235,000
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provided by Appropriation Act, No. 2, 1964, Department of Agriculture Vote 
172e, the final supplementary estimates of the year, fell short of meeting the 
loss of $124,790,000 (exclusive of administrative costs and the estimated cost of 
major services provided without charge by government departments) ex­
perienced by the Agricultural Stabilization Board during the year under review 
(see also paragraph 163).

Mr. Long: Paragraph 92 deals with unpaid accounts carried forward to the 
new fiscal year. This note lists four instances where appropriations for 1963-64 
were insufficient to meet accounts coming in course of payment in that year. The 
payment of such bills cannot be made if it would result in expenditures being 
made in excess of available appropriations. However, difficulties in estimating 
requirements could well be a factor in these cases. Nevertheless the incurring of 
such obligations are tantamount to the overspending of appropriations and 
therefore cannot be dismissed lightly.

Would it not be informative to members of Parliament and to the public if 
the public accounts of Canada were to include a listing by department and 
appropriation of all amounts remaining unpaid at the year end for any reason 
whatever. The Committee might wish to consider this with a view to making a 
recommendation if they feel this would be helpful.

• (10.45 a.m.)
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, I think the Committee should recom­

mend that this be done.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Should we not have some idea of wha*- 

work would be involved; should it not be discussed with some of the depart' 
ments or could Mr. Long give us an idea?

Mr. Long: Well the way in which such information would be obtain6^ 
would be by watching payments by the paying officers in the early months ° 
the next year, say in the first two or three months of the year, the payin^ 
officers would have to watch and record these items. This is where we are able 
to pick up the items we report. As with everything else we cannot do 
everything in detail; we do not have enough staff.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : But your staff would be required to do thlS’ 
covering all the departments of government.

Mr. Long: I would not think that in the individual departments it would 
amount to any more than a fraction of a person’s time. I do not think it would 
impossible.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): If it can be done as readily as that 
certainly would endorse the suggestion.

The Chairman: Your point is well taken, Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Long: I do not know whether members of the Committee have eveI

Itwondered how it is that you never see an overpayment in an appropriation- 1 ^ 
something to operate an organization the size of the government of Canada an.^ 
always be able to keep the expenditure within the appropriation. This is hoW 
is done, the accounts simply are not paid.
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Mr. Tardif: When you say appropriation do you mean expenditure?
Mr. Long: Parliamentary appropriations.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Well is there not a certain amount—what 

you are suggesting, Mr. Long, is that at the end of the fiscal year there is a 
certain amount of juggling of dates of payments in order to keep within the 
appropriation.

Mr. Long: Well the account just cannot be paid if there is not money 
available in the appropriation, apart from any juggling.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Is it not the practice that before they come 
to the 30th of April they go out and spend the money that they have left so that 
they will not be cut the next year and they can demand a 10 per cent increase, 
ts that not the practice?

Mr. Long: Any spending like that would have to be before the 31st of 
Starch? They cannot pay anything in April, whether it be goods or services, that 
'vas not delivered in March.

Mr. Tardif: That is the practice, I can assure you.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): What you are proposing is the same as a 

company, to have accrued charges and prepaid charges? You have accrued 
charges there at the end of the year.

Mr. Long: Yes, except that I have not suggested here that this be put on 
me balance sheet. I suppose the next step would be that you could put it on the 
alance sheet.

cha
Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : It is standard practice in a company for accrued 

rges and prepaid charges to be on the balance sheet.

the
Mr. Bigg: It is extremely difficult to estimate the costs of maintenance on
airports in Canada. In a winter of heavy snow alone the costs of snow 

crnoval would be enormous. You could not guess it within two millions I do not
mink.

Vear.
Mr. Long: There are supplementary estimates, of course, quite late in the

Mr. Bigg: Yes, I know.
,j Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Could we not, Mr. Chairman, defer a 

cision on this matter, or defer this for consideration at the time we are 
rhing our report?

^ The Chairman: Yes. The same matter will be discussed in 1965. I think 
6re will be other cases.

No. 93.
Losses reported in the Public Accounts. Section 98 of the Financial 

çj^^istration Act directs that “every payment out of the Public Officers 
reastantee Account and the amount of every loss suffered by Her Majesty by 
t0 °n °f defalcations or other fraudulent acts or omissions of a pubblic officer,

Public Accounts”.
the r-**?1 with a statement of the circumstances, shall be reported annually in
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The statements of losses included in the Public Accounts for 1963-64 were 
examined and it was ascertained that every loss during the year, which had 
been observed in the audit as being of a nature requiring to be reported in the 
Public Accounts in accordance with the foregoing direction, had been included 
in the listings. Losses in departments other than the Post Office numbered 21 
and amounted to $81,364. Of these, 8 involving $3,448 were recovered in full 
during the year, and partial recoveries of $23,330 were obtained in other cases.

During the year the attention of the Treasury Board was directed to the fact 
that the total of $168,263 shown as outstanding at March 31, 1963 in the 
“Summary” of losses (1962-63 Public Accounts, page 37.14) contained 38 
balances dating back as far as 1952-53 on which final action by way of 
adjustment, recovery, or charge to the PublicOfficers Guarantee Account had 
not been reported. Of these, 14 balances have been reviewed and further 
action is being reported in the 1963-64 Public Accounts involving a net 
reduction of $11,691 in the amount outstanding.

Losses suffered by the Post Office Department in 1963-64 numbered 138 
and amounted to $91,735. Of these, 101 to a total of $53,526 were recovered in 
full and partial recoveries totalled $14,021.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 93, losses reported in the public accounts. This 
paragraph makes reference to the statement of losses included in the public 
accounts for 1963-64, and is set forth in this manner in accordance with the 
requirements of the Financial Administration Act. A similar reference is made 
in paragraph 141 of our 1965 report.

There is really nothing that the members of the Committee can do with this 
particular paragraph, unless we wanted to give attention to the statement o 
losses which appears in the public accounts.

The Chairman: We may do that in the 1965 report.
No. 94.
94. Non-productive payments. In its Fifth Report 1961 the Public Account® 

Committee requested the Auditor General to include in his future annua 
Reports to the House of Commons a listing of the non-productive paymen 
which might have come to his notice in the course of his audit.

After considering the listings of these non-productive payments whi* 
were included in the 1962 Report and in Appendix 1 of the 1963 Report, 1 
Committee expressed concern at the increasing number which were bein 
noted. It requested that the Auditor General continue to include listings in hlS 
annual Reports of all non-productive payments coming to his notice in 
course of his audit.

In accordance with this request, a listing is given as Appendix 2 to th1® 
Report of the payments that, in the absence of a precise definition, might ^ 
regarded as non-productive in character which were observed in the course 
the audit of expenditures for the fiscal year 1963-64. It will be noted that ther 
are 35 items listed in this appendix which compares with 37 items listed in 
previous year’s Report.

The listing given in Appendix 2 does not detail non-productive paymen
noted in the course of our examination of the accounts of Crown corporationS'
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Details of these will be found in the individual paragraphs in the Crown 
corporations’ section of this Report.

Mr. Long: Paragraph 94, non-productive payments. In accordance with the 
request of the public accounts Committee a lifting was given in appendix 2 of 
the 1964 report of the payments which, in the absence of a precise definition, 
might be regarded as non-productive in character which were observed in the 
course of the audit for the fiscal year 1963-64.

There are 35 of these items and members will be interested to note that 
they pertain to the several departments as follows: Department of Public 
Works, 19, involving $509,000; Department of National Defence, 8, involving 
$484,000; Department of Veterans Affairs, 2, involving $133,000; Department of 
Transport, 2, involving $85,000; Department of Northern Affairs and National 
Resources, 2, involving $30,000; Unemployment Insurance Commission, 1, in­
volving $4,500, and National Gallery of Canada, 1, involving $1,900.

Now, I am in the hands of the Committee here; if it is your wish I will be 
Slad to run through these 35 items quickly, giving a brief description of what is 
mvolved in each case.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, on page 168 at the back of your 1964 report 
Vdiich you are using, you will see the list of the non-productive payments. Now 
We have about seven minutes left; perhaps we could run through these briefly.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I wonder if Mr. Long could 
enlarge a bit on the definition of non-productive payments. This is a new one on 
^e and since I am a new member of the Committee perhaps he would overlook

ignorance.
Mr. Long: Mr. Thomas, I wish I could define for you what a non-productive 

Payment is. I do not think the Committee has a clear definition in mind. The 
Committee was trying to get at payments for which we did not seem to receive 
ny value; that is, any useful value. In trying to select these things it is an 

awful job and we argue back and forth among ourselves whether this should 
really be called non-productive or is there a reason for it.

Now these are payments that we feel were of no benefit to Canada. But 
at is not to say that in all cases a service was not rendered.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Is it also called money down the drain?
Mr. Long: Yes, I think that is a good expression for it.
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman—

. The Chairman: Just a minute, will you Mr. Tardif? Mr. Lefebvre and then Mr- Tardif.

„ Mr. Lefebvre: Mr. Long, speaking about these losses, has anybody ever 
b r<M out the percentage of the total amount of money in Canada which is 
^andled by government of Canada employees? I think if we look at it in this

y We would find it is very, very small.
Mr. Long: I agree.
Mr. Lefebvre: I would say smaller than in any business.
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Mr. Long: I do not know whether I would go along completely with that, 
because I do not think we—

Mr. Lefebvre: Is there a figure on this?
Mr. Long: There never has been a figure developed on it. We could strike a 

percentage for you of the total of these in the year; they amounted to 
$2,089,000, but you would have a very very small percentage figure if you set 
that up against the total government expenditures.

Mr. Lefebvre: That is what I mean. I would say that generally speaking the 
employees of various government departments are either very honest or the 
checks are very good. We are not losing that much money when we compare 
it with the total amount of money handled. Would that be correct?

Mr. Long: Comparing it that way it is not a large amount. I do not think 
that this necessarily means that all of these are payments which you might call 
a necessary evil that must take place.

Mr. Tardif: Well, as a matter of fact, I do not think any of them should 
take place. It is not based on a percentage; it is based on the fact of whether the 
material delivered to the government is right or not right. For instance, I am 
looking at one now—magnetron cables—item 4. There were 432 units delivered 
and 430 units failed. They had an original contract for 630 units. Because 430 
units failed without exception, apparently, they decided they were not going t0 
take the rest and they paid for them. Nobody pays for things that do not work, 
normally, if it is not according to specification. I do not know what the excuse Is 
for paying for this when the units that were delivered failed.

Mr. Long: Well, apparently the specifications provided to the manufacturer 
had something to do with it.

Mr. Tardif: That could be if the specifications were not right. What 
happened to the fellow that wrote the specifications?

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Well, non-productive payments—you take a con' 
tractor who has a penalty clause and it may run into hundreds of thousands ° 
dollars, that would be a non-productive payment. Still, it is regarded in 
business as being all right. If he does not finish his contract he has a penalty 
clause and every day he goes over he has to pay so much; it is non-productive 
but that is good business.

Mr. Tardif : Of course you can enforce the penalty clause only if you als° 
have a bonus clause. You cannot have one without the other.

The Chairman: Well gentlemen, we will have an opportunity to come back 
to the discussion. We have completed the 1964 report. We have been fortuna 
enough to have all our meetings in this room and they will all continue to 
held at eleven o’clock in the morning; they will be on Tuesdays and Thursday > 
excepting the holiday week end of May 24, when we have scheduled one t 
Wednesday of that week at 9.30 instead of the Tuesday meeting of that week.

Is there anything further?
We will now adjourn.



A COMPARISON OF THE SALARIES OF CERTAIN SENIOR OFFICIALS
APPENDIX 2

Salaries set by Statute Salaries set by Order in Council Civil Service Salaries

Director, 
Bureau of 

Government

Date Authority

The Chief 
Justice 

of Canada

The
President

Exchequer 
Court of 
Canada

Auditor 
General 

of Canada

Clerk of 
the Privy 

Council and 
Secretary

Cabinet

Deputy 
Minister 

of Finance

Secretary 
of State 

for
External
Affairs

Organiza­
tion and 
Secretary

Treasury

President
Canadian

Broadcasting
Corporation

Assistant
Auditor
General Director

Jan. 18, 1924 15,000
Mar. 31, 1924 15,000 10,000 6,000 10,000 8,000 5,100 4,200
Mar. 31, 1944 15,000 10,000 9,000 12,000 10,000 6,300 6,000 4,320
Nov. 15, 1945 15,000
Jan. 1, 1947 1946 c. 56 20,000 13,333
Mar. 31, 1947 15,000 17,500 15,000 7,500 6,300 4.680
Dec. 10, 1949 1949 c. 27 25,000
June 30, 1951 1950-51 c. 52 16,000
July 1, 1952 17,500
July 1, 1954 1955 c. 3 20,000 x
July 1, 1954 22,000
Mar. 31, 1955 17,500 20,000 17,500 15,000 10,000 7,900
July 11, 1955 1955 c. 48 27,500 18,500
Mar. 31, 1957 18,500 18,500 11,000 9,000
Mar. 31, 1958 23,000 20,000 14,000 10,140
Mar. 31, 1959 21,000 21,000 16,000
Mar. 31, 1961 16,600 16,500 12,500
Mar. 31, 1962 22,000 24,000 22,000 18,300
July 1, 1963 19,000
Aug. 1, 1963 1963 c. 8 35,000 25,000 17,000
Dec. 1, 1963 1963 c. 41 25,000
July 1, 1965 27,000 27,000 27,000 23,000 40,000
Dec. 1, 1965 22,000 19,000
July 1, 1966 29,160 29,160 29,160 29,160 22,750 19,500

Notes
1. Titles are those currently in use no attempt having been made to indicate changes in titles or duties.
2. Salaries shown as at March 31 in any year are as recorded in the Public Accounts. Other dates are the effective date of the salary.
3. Civil Service salaries are shown at the maximum of the salary range.
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Mr. Gendron,

(Quorum 10)
Edouard Thomas, 

Clerk of the Committee.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Tuesday, May 17, 1966.

(9)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.07 a.m., the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs, Baldwin, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), Dionne, 
Uemming, Forbes, Gendron, Hales, Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, Muir (Lisgar), 
*^°ble, Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex 
West), Tucker, Winch (18).

In attendance: Mr. G. R. Long, Assistant Auditor General; Messrs. Smith 
a°d Laroche of the Auditor Generals’ staff; Mr. Jean Martineau, President, The 
Canada Council; and Messrs. Mackenzie, LeBlanc, Bartlett, Boucher, Dwyer, 
* ortier, Fullerton, Pelletier, and Miss Breen of the Canada Council.

On a motion of Mr. Tucker, seconded by Mr. Noble, the Committee agreed 
0 table the following exhibits:

Exhibit VI—Auditor General’s Report to the Chairman and Members 
on the examination of the accounts and financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 1964. (Referred to as Auditor General Long Form).

Exhibit VII—Auditor General’s Report to the Chairman and Mem­
bers on the examination of the accounts and financial statement for the 
year ended March 31, 1965. (Also referred to as Auditor General Long 
Form).

Exhibit VIII—The Canada Council Annual Report 1963-64.
Exhibit IX—The Canada Council Eighth Annual Report 1964-65.

The Chairman introduced Mr. Martineau, President of the Canada Council, 
0 introduced the other representatives of the Council in turn.

act' ?°^owing the questioning of Mr. Martineau on his initial statement on the 
l9fto^es Canada Council, the Committee turned its attention to the

~64 and 1964-65 Auditor General’s Long Forms.
re At LOO p.m., the questioning of Mr. Long and the Canada Council 
sitpeSentat*ves completed, the Chairman cancelled the scheduled afternoon 

lnS and adjourned the meeting to the call of the Chair.

EDOUARD THOMAS, 
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Tuesday, May 17, 1966.
• (11.05 a.m.)

The Chairman: We have a quorum, gentlemen. Thank you for being so 
Prompt. This morning, before we proceed with the Canada Council, I would like 
a member of the Committee to move that the following be tabled as exhibits: 
the Canada Council Auditor General’s long form report for 1964 and the same 
report for 1965; the Canada Council Annual Report for 1963-64 and the Annual 
Report for 1964-65. Would someone so move?

Mr. Tucker: I so move.

Mr. Noble: I second the motion.
Motion agreed to.
The Chairman: The procedure this morning, gentlemen, would, I think, 

Jy°rk to perfection if we follow this routine. We will ask Mr. M. J. Martineau, 
e Chairman of Canada Council, first of all to introduce the members of the 
°uncil he has with him this morning, and other people as well. And then we 
°uld ask him, if he would, to give us a brief outline of the Council and its 

oi°tv ’ then we will accept questions from the Committee on the general 
th i G t*ie worR °f the Council. Then we would call on Mr. Long to go over 

6 *964 Auditor General’s report and the 1965 Auditor General’s report.
to ®ef°re calling on Mr. Martineau, I would ask the members of the Council 
th to°Ve forward and take the seats along the edge of the table so that, when 
p ^ are speaking, they will be in front of a microphone. We would ask each 

Son to talk into the microphone as it assists those doing the translation.
]jv f° our own members, I might remind you that all these microphones are 
Wo\anc* you carry on a conversation it does two things—it interrupts the 
*hav °f Committee and it also records what you are saying. Some of it you 

y not wish to be heard, so beware.
■Mr. Martineau, will you introduce the people you have brought with you?

translation)

Bef0^r' M- J- Martineau (Chairman, Canada Council): Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
We *e that, may I say, gentlemen, how very pleased we are to be here to-day. 
half 6re 80 we*l received last year that the questions you asked a year and a 
Wereag0 helped us to understand the part we had to play so very well that we 
q^estio^lly anxious to come, and we hope to be able to answer all your

htiss^T°W’ may * introduce those who are with me. To my immediate right is 
t>Wye ’ Rreen, our Secretary-Treasurer ; Mr. J. Boucher, our Director; Mr. P. 

r> our Associate Director; Mr. N. LeBlanc, Dean of the Faculty of Social

281
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Sciences at Laval University, and Dr. C. J. MacKenzie, whom everybody knows, 
as he is a great Canadian. In addition, we have Mr. Pelletier, who looks after 
the scholarships; Mr. Fortier, who is our finance man and then Mr. Fullerton, 
who is our financial adviser. They will be ready to answer anything you wish to 
ask them.

May I add also, that the members of the Council are most grateful to you 
for what you did for the Council at the last Parliament. You voted a large sum 
of money to us and, while doing so, you unanimously expressed some very kind 
words towards us. We are very thankful to you and you may be sure that we 
will do our very best to satisfy you this year and in the years to come.

Now, I have been asked to explain to you the work of the Council. I think 
that Mr. Boucher, who is Director-General, can do it in fewer words than I and 
I would ask him to just express his views.

Mr. J. Boucher (Director-General, Canada Council) : Mr. Chairman, I have 
been with the Council only a year, but I think, in a very brief statement, 
perhaps I should say that the Council has two main areas of concern. On the 
one arm, the creative and performing arts—the Council fosters the growth of the 
arts in this country—and, on the other, the encouragement of the scholarly work 
being done in Canada, the humanities and the social sciences.

It pursues these objectives through, on the one hand scholarships and 
fellowships given to individuals and, on the other, through grants given either 
to art organizations or to groups of scholars or individual scholars engaged i 
research.

I think this is really the broad delineation of the functions of the Council-

The Chairman: Are there any questions on the general outline of work 
the Council?

Mr. Forbes : The Dauphin district is putting on a Ukrainian Festival. This
developing the arts in many lines, even to the art of colouring Easter eggs- We
have made application to the Canada Council for some assistance in this bu ^ 
apparently, we were not eligible. I would like to know what category you Pu 
us into, since we are not eligible for some assistance from the Canada Council-

Mr. P. Dwyer (Associate Director, Canada Council): May I ask the h°n‘ 
member if this was a project for the Centennial?

Mr. Forbes: It is to be used as such. They are putting it on this year as a 
preliminary and it is to be carried on through to the Centennial next year.

Mr. Dwyer: I think perhaps the simplest explanation would be that we f 
primarily concerned in the field of the arts, in festivals and so on, in maintai 
ing what is already here, and that the Centennial commissioners undertake 
responsibility for what is being done in that year. In the following year it &■ 
be that we would be able to help you but we do not have the funds, at 
moment, to take part directly in this Centennial.

Mr. Forbes: Why not give us some funds this year so that we could get 1 
some practice for next year?

The Chairman: Are there any other questions?
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Mr. Muir: What assistance do you give people in the sports field, such as 
the Olympics? Do you donate anything to our hockey team or our other athletes 
who take part in the Olympics?

Mr. Dwyer: No, we do not.
Mr. Muir: Have you ever been asked for that sort of thing?
Mr. Martineau: Well, I think this would be outside our jurisdiction 

because it would hardly come under the heading of social sciences or the 
humanities.

Mr. Muir: But do you not consider that that type of thing is part of our 
arts, even though not part of the social sciences?

Mr. Martineau: Well, it is certainly part of education as a whole, but I do 
ttot think you can say that it is part of the humanities. We have never been 
asked and we have received no requests of any kind. I believe that, in law, if 
we did receive one, we would have to turn it down, according to our charter.

The Chairman: Mr. Muir, I think your assistance would come from the 
Amateur Sports and Physical Fitness Committee, and the Department of Health 
and Welfare would make loans for what you mention.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if, as a broad picture, someone on the 
°uncil could give us the general criteria on which they base who gets what 

ami how much, in scholarships and grants? Because I have often wondered, 
when I see who gets certain scholarships and the amount they get, how you 
Xv°rk this out. The same thing also applies to your grants.

Mr. Boucher: Perhaps I should start by saying that, at the beginning of 
fry year, we would set aside a certain amount for a certain competition with 
ttgard to our anticipations of the claims that would be put on our total funds, 
tte competition would be announced, applications would be filed and the 
ttdanaental principle is that adjudication is based on the recommendation of 

°mmittees which are made up of the peers of the applicants. 
t, . In the field of the arts, the applications are assessed by established artists in 

is country; in the humanities and social sciences they are being assessed by 
ablished colleges. These committees are generally composed of five people, 

th re some representation is being taken into account of the broad regions of 
r e c°untry and the various disciplines involved. And it is on the basis of these 

commendations that awards are made. So that, eventually, the assessment is 
e a<~e by the peers of the applicants, taking into account generally, and almost 
y^Msively, I would say, the merit of the application, in their own view. And 

Council follows, as closely as it can, the recommendations of those experts 
0 are its consultants.

;s, Mr. Winch: For example, let us take Vancouver. Now Vancouver, I think, 
ijj ,,ying to do a good job, which is reflected in their symphony orchestra and, 
Soin 6 SUrnmertime, in drama. On what basis would you decide the help you are 
hav g 1° give and whose recommendations would you take? Do applications 
Soirf *° k® made for a certain amount and then you decide how much they are 

to get? Just how do you operate it as, for example, in Vancouver, which 
drai^rtakes some very expensive operations in the field of art, culture and
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Mr. Dwyer: Every year, well before the beginning of the season, in the case 
of performing arts organizations, the organization will make an application to 
us as, for instance, the Vancouver symphony orchestra has just done. We assess 
its requirements; we examine at the same time the requirements of other 
orchestras in the country and we allot the money, if possible, which the 
orchestra requires. If it has to be less, then we allot as much as can possibly be 
given.

This is done in Vancouver. For instance to the Vancouver symphony 
orchestra, to the Vancouver playhouse, to the Vancouver international festival, 
to the Vancouver art gallery and also to the orchestra in Victoria, across the 
straits.

In every case the amount of money is based upon the general level of 
performance and operation, the public which it reaches and, where possible, its 
need.

Mr. Winch: Can I just ask one more question on that now? In considering 
what your decision is going to be, do you study their past financial statement, 
do you study their estimate for the year, do you consider their financial 
standing? Is that all done before you reach your decision?

Mr. Dwyer: Each orchestra sends in a complete financial statements of hs 
past year’s operations. If its financial year comes a little late, it will estimate its 
financial statement. It sets out a complete budget for its operations; it describes 
to us what it is going to do and this is examined in our offices very carefully 
see that the audience is being maintained, that, where possible, the province and 
the municipality are helping, and that the fund raising is staying at a reasona­
ble level.

• (11.20 a.m.)
All these are taken into account. At the same time we, from time to time, 

send out experts in the field of music to listen to the orchestra, to see how it 15 
developing. They talk to the conductor, and so on.

Mr. Winch: Do you also consider starting something new or bringing 
something back? For example, I think that the outdoor theatre in the Malcolm 
bowl in Vancouver was becoming almost—at least in North America—famous, 
yet it had to die because of lack of funds. Is that the sort of thing that you could 
perhaps consider if there was a reconsideration if the re-opening of such 3 
theatre?

Mr. Dwyer: This is the Theatre Under the Stars?
Mr. Winch: Yes.
Mr. Dwyer: Yes certainly, we would consider that. The only question there> 

is whether or not the kind of productions which it has been doing in the Pa® 
could be self-supporting on a commercial basis. But I gather that, owing to th 
vagaries of the weather, this has not been possible.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I note that in the Canada Council scholarship 
and fellowship program, application approval runs at only 30 to 40 per cent 
the total applications received. Would this be because of availability of funds 
because of failure to meet criteria laid down or a combination of both?
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Mr. Martineau: Solely unavailability of funds.
Mr. Schreyer: Also, Mr. Chairman, I note that when applications for 

§rants, let us say in the social sciences study programme, are submitted to the 
s°cial science research council, that the Council itself does not adjudicate these 
aPplications or process them. This is passed on to whom?

Mr. Martineau: We do that ourselves, now. But they made their own 
recommendations before. Now we have our own judges who make that 
^commendation. After that, it goes to a panel of experts to look over the 
decision of the judges to see whether some mistake could have been made. And 
oen it comes to the Council and we examine each one.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, let me put it this way. Let us say that 30 or 
0 applications for a post-doctorate fellowship are received by the Canada 
°uncil and these applications are for post-graduate assistance in the social 

Sciences, what happens to those 40 applications? Where do they go first and 
^here do they go afterwards?

Mr. Martineau: In social sciences?
Mr. Schreyer: Yes.
Mr. Martineau: Well they go to us, where they are processed and then 

they are sent before five judges, chosen from right across the country, in those 
Particular disciplines. They study each and they mark them. Supposing there 

100 applications; they just start from 1, 2, 3, right down to 100, according to 
their own assessment. They all vote and they decide that such a one is the best 
an<i so they put it on top.
it we made our budget, we had just so much money and we had to divide 

; Suppose we had divided it and, in that particular class, there was $100,000 to 
suffi • "f^at meant so many post-doctorate grants so that, if it meant there was 

mcient money for 20 grants, then the first 20 chosen applicants would be 
°mmended. These recommendations would be studied by the panel of 

, Perts—i think there are 12 or 15—and after that, the recommendations would
submitted to us.

^■r- Winch: Would they just study the 20 or would they study the 100?
ty, ,^r- Martineau : No, they study the whole thing, they study them all, to see 

«1er a mistake has been made by the judges.
ip> ^r- Schreyer: So, the judges are, in every case, a five-man panel, I take

■^r- Martineau: Yes.
acaa^r'. Schreyer: It would be, in almost every case, made up of ranking 

uemic people?
^r- Martineau : Absolutely, taken across the land.
■^r- Schreyer: And this is an ad hoc group, is it?
IvIr- Martineau: Yes.

ttPght'r ®ALDWIN: I think probably I will defer my question, Mr. Chairman. It 
WeU come under the ambit of remarks later on.
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Mr. Bigg: I am wondering what is the broad policy? Are you trying to 
develop a Canadian culture, as such? Is there preference given to Canadians 
doing creative Canadian work or is that wrong? Are you doing just world 
culture?

Mr. Martineau: We try at times. What we are trying to do is work towards 
excellence. We are trying to develop excellence in all the arts—because I suppose 
we are thinking of the arts now. We are trying to do that. This does not 
necessarily mean national art. But we have given prizes and have given grants 
for, let us say, Canadian plays or plays by Canadian authors or music written 
by Canadian musicians; we have done that. But, as a general rule, we do not. 
We think that art is international and we want our artists to be the best, if v/e 
can.

Mr. Bigg: I was just thinking that one of your bottlenecks is apparently 
your budget. You cannot do everything. For instance, you could spend y out 
whole budget on ballet, if you wanted to.

Mr. Martineau : Yes.

Mr. Bigg: I am just wondering what the terms of reference are. If 'f6 
spread ourselves all over the map, I would suggest that we would accomplis*1 

very little at all—only a very small 2 per cent raise in the cultural level 
Canada—whereas I think that a good percentage of it should be directed to the 
future of Canadian art and Canadian artists, whether you call them national or 
not. Other nations are perhaps way ahead of us, such as the Italians in singing 
and so forth. If Canada is going to have a culture, somebody is going to have 
spend some money and I think it has to be directed this way, is it not?

to

Mr. Martineau: There have been discussions in the Council from th® 
beginning, concerning the way this money should be spent. Some say we shoul 
give only to the very finest artists and strive for excellence and nothing e*56' 
Others say it should be spread more towards the regions where there can be na 
excellence. So that we are doing this while, at the same time, trying to f°ste 
excellence where it already exists. We do not neglect the others for this but ^ 
give less, because we think that if we spread it equally everywhere, it will be 
thin that it will hardly help the situation.

Mr. Bigg: The reason I asked the question is because I fear that what ^ 
might end up with is a Council helping the excellence from other countries, an 
our own young Canadian artists might well remain forever in the background.

Mr. Martineau: It is just to the contrary, sir. If you look at the fellowship® 
and scholarships, you will see that they are given to Canadian artists and . 
are very proud of the success we have had. We have had a few lemons, 
course, but everyone has them and one never knows when they will turn " 
But, generally, the average has been excellent.

Mr. Flemming: I am returning to the question of symphony and ^ 
question has to do with the grant of the Council to the New BrunsWi 
symphony orchestra. The last book I have here is for the period 1964-65 and 
question is, is that grant still continuing?

Mr. Martineau: Yes, it is.



May 17, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 287

Mr. Flemming: You spoke, Mr. Martineau, about excellence. I can speak 
with first-hand knowledge about the excellence of the New Brunswick sympho­
ny orchestra. I believe the conductor is a most outstanding musician, to the 
extent of my knowledge of excellence.

I do know that, in our province, that symphony orchestra is considered to 
he a most excellent one and I am sure it makes a terrific contribution to the 
general cultural life of people who have a special interest in music. Knowing 
that that is true, I am pleased to hear you say that the grant is continuing. I 
Presume the grant for the current period has not been determined, as yet?

Mr. Martineau : No, it is going to be dealt with at our next meeting.
Mr. Flemming: I do hope, sir, that you will consider that this is very 

deserving of your continued support.
Mr. Martineau: We realize that, but the trouble you see, with, let us say, 

Fredericton and the eastern provinces—and maybe the western but particularly 
the eastern—is that there is less scope for an artist in a small city than there is 
M a big city. So there is a tendency for the best musicians to leave the small 
Places and go to the large places where they can earn more money, the 
°Pportunities being more numerous. And that is what you have been fighting all 
along, with success, I will admit. This has been your difficulty, I think.

des
Mr. Flemming: But Mr. Cameron has not left and, for that reason, I think 

erves continued support.
Mr. Martineau: Oh, yes.
Mr. Flemming : I understand he has had many offers that would be much 

diore lucrative, as far as he is concerned, but he is dedicated to the general idea 
that he is there and that he is going to remain there. So I do hope your Council 
keeP that in mind.

Mr. Martineau: Oh, definitely.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Mr. Martineau if the 

Wiif^OTd Festival has a high rating in the estimation of the Canada Council and 
flaore financial assistance for this enterprise be forthcoming?
Mr. Martineau: I will say it has the highest rating, sir.
Mr. Noble: It has the highest?
Mr. Martineau: It has the highest rating in the arts, as far as we are 

^dcerned. I think that we are quite generous with it. We are trying to be as 
. derous, if not more, than with any other theatre in Canada, because we think 

ls the best.
Mr. Winch: That is discrimination against Vancouver.
Mr. Noble: Is there any possibility of increased support?
Mr. Martineau: We increased the support, I think last year.
Mr. Dwyer: It went to $140,000 which is an increase of $90,000.
Hhe Chairman: When did they get that $90,000 increase?
Mr. Dwyer: 1965-66.



288 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 17, 1966

Mr. Boucher : So it is not reflected.
Mr. Noble: One more question, Mr. Chairman. Is it true that a large 

amount of money was spent in producing a film on ballet dancing?

Mr. Dwyer: Not to my knowledge, not by the Council.
Mr. Noble: This has not happened within the past two years?
Mr. Dywer: The only knowledge I have of anything of this kind at all is 

that a certain amount of film was taken, I believe, by one of our scholars while 
he was abroad. I believe it was in Poland or the Soviet Union. But it was not 
subsidised by the Council.

Mr. Noble: It did not cost the Canada Council any money?
Mr. Dwyer: No.

• (11.30 a.m.)
Mr. Schreyer: One complaint I have heard voiced by applicants at the 

post-doctorate level, is that there is really no criteria by which they can judge 
just what it is that the panels and the adjudicating boards are looking for, i° 
processing applications for social sciences post-doctorate fellowships et cetera. 
Do you think that this complaint is well-founded? Is there such a thing as a 
White Paper setting out the criteria?

Mr. Martineau: They are given the information they need to answer 
properly and to make a demand which will be acceptable. The trouble is that 
they come into competition with students from the whole of Canada and it lS 
quite a difficult competition. Because we cannot, of course, make a grant to 
every good demand. We refuse a great number of excellent demands, due to 
lack of money. We have to choose, we are the judges and we have to choose the 
best.

As I said before, competition is very stiff because it covers the whole of 
Canada. That is why a candidate can say, “How is it that I did not get it?” Wei > 
he would have to look at the other demands.

Mr. Boucher: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if I could add something. I think 
understand the worry of some scholars. Some are good at making a case 
themselves, some are not that good. It is a problem to what extent the Canao 
Council should hold the hand of those who are not terribly good at making 
applications.

There is another aspect to this also. These are not examinations, they a** 
competitions. Not all the good applicants get awards. By the very nature of t 
exercise, they are limited by this and, because one has not won an award, 
does not mean he is not one who should get an award. It simply means that 
is one who does not rank among those who are getting awards, with the amon 
of money we have in that given year. I think one would have to say that if y 
went over any competition, any reasonable person would be satisfied that 
order of listing is probably the right one.

I do not know what we would be able to do if we had a great deal 
money. Eventually it may be that the ideal situation would be to deal wi
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these problems in a non-competitive way, But, because of limited funds, we 
have got to have senior artists, as well as senior scholars, entering competitions. 
They are not terribly fond of doing this because there is something invidious in 
hot being granted one’s request but this is the condition under which we have to 
operate because of our limited funds. We are not terribly happy about it and we 
ho appreciate that some people are somewhat frustrated by this exercise but, at 
the moment, there is not much we can do about it.

Mr. Martineau: May I add something? At times, a young man will miss an 
award one year and he will go back the next year and he will get it, because the 
competition was not the same. He is just as good as he was, but maybe the 
others are not as good as the ones the previous year. Therefore he gets in 
among the first 20, considering there are 20.

Mr. Baldwin: I will go back to the point I was going to deal with because it 
has been brought up now. I was taken by the statement which appears on page 
tl of the Annual Report of 1963-64 that:

Contemplating the arts in Canada at the moment is like listening to 
Mozart while suffering from a toothache.

I would assume, Mr. Chairman, that the $10,000,000 has provided some 
Measure of alleviation from the pain which is referred to there.

, As far as he can, I wonder if Mr. Martineau would be able to indicate if 
his $10,000,000 was to be taken as being a capital payment for a definite 
mount rather than in the terms of what the Council had mentioned at page 8 

t '■he same report where they had suggested that a sum of $10,000,000 be added 
the endowments funds and that the government consider the addition, 

hnually, of $10,000,000 for a further period of years.
oj, I bring this up, Mr. Chairman, because I think this seems to go to the root 

the problem which has exercised the minds of members here regarding the 
rdstick and priorities used in connection with the awarding of these endow- 
ehts. I think this is a very serious matter about which we should all be 

; *}Cerned and I would like to ask Mr. Martineau if he felt free to give us any 
ication whether, as a result of his discussions at the time the $10 million was 
vided, he had arrived at the conclusion that this was to be the final 

'A'it7nent? Or was the hope held out that there would be further payments 
hin the terms of what the Council had asked for?

^r- Martineau: I am sure that it is a sum of money to be spent within a
W years—or within a short period of time. It was our understanding that, 
u 0re long, another amount would be voted to us—and an increased amount 

Use °f the increased needs.
6Xt *n our business the more you grant the more demand you create. It is 
^ordinary. If you give only so much, you have not so many demands but, if 
y0u ®1Ve more, the demands increase and they keep on increasing. With what

have voted to us, the increase is marvellous and we can give you the
has h S s*hl we wish more, because of the increased demand on our funds. It 
îfotu a but we have not yet reached all those who deserve grants. Far
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Mr. Baldwin: I suppose I would be right in suggesting that if this was even 
ultimately fixed on a statutory basis of a specific sum each year, it would 
certainly permit the Council to arrange its affairs in a far better manner than if 
it was simply receiving the ad hoc payments from time to time, welcome as they 
may be.

Mr. Martineau : Provided, sir, that it would be understood that the 
demands are increasing and that those statutory grants would be increased by 
so much per year.

Mr. Baldwin: Now, with regard to other endowments, I have noticed that 
there have been other endowments but that the two substantial endowments 
have been earmarked. Is there any likelihood that you may expect to receive, 
from private sources outside of the government, payments or endowments 
which are or are not earmarked, as the case may be?

Mr. Martineau: We will receive a certain amount, but we do not know 
what it is, for Social Sciences and the Humanities. We do not know how long it 
will take to receive it. It will take a great number of years. But it is going t° 
take perhaps 10 or 15 years before it is liquidated. Each year we receive a littl6 
and, of course, we have to invest it as revenue of this sum which we will be 
able to use.

We expect that, in the future, Canadians will get into the good habit of 
leaving some money to the Council so that it can have an increased endowmen 
just like the universities have.

Mr. Baldwin: Might I suggest as in Alberta, where we seem to be well on 
our way to dispensing with succession duties, Mr. Martineau.

Now, I ask these questions, Mr. Chairman, simply because, in my view, if 
most desirable, having in mind the mandate which is thrown upon the Counc^ 
under the terms of section 8 of the Act, to foster and promote the study 
enjoyment of the production of works in the Arts, Humanities and Sod3^ 
Sciences. Where you have a body, apart from government, which has built up 
fund of knowledge and a liaison in the areas where they can do the most good, 
ask those questions to indicate my view of how this can be better handled.

The Chairman: Mr. Martineau, are you making any effort to advise fk® 
Canadian public that you would welcome with open arms any amounts 
money they would like to bequeath to your Council?

Mr. Boucher: Yes, a booklet has been produced and circulated 
persons who are presumed to have some influence on how wills are 
written, and to various places in the country where financial advisers c 
benefit from reading such literature.

The Chairman: Can you circulate that booklet to the members now? WbeI1 
did you last circulate it?

Mr. Boucher: It was sent out, I understand- some two years ago to a veJ^ 
long list of people: all the members of the law profession, Trust ComPanI 
Banks.

The Chairman: Well now, we will take one more general question then 
will ask Mr. Long to proceed.

to al1 
being
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Mr. Bigg: Are you set up to administer Trusts? For instance, if somebody 
Mft a sizeable Trust would, this be quite simple to handle, in your financial 
Set-up? Say, if you were left $1 million for ballet? Could you earmark a special 
gift?

Mr. Martineau: We have a very strong investment committee, composed of 
Mr. Hungerford, who is the President of the National Trust; of the President 
°f the Bank of Montreal, and of the Trust General du Canada and myself and 
■Mr. Moore of Imperial Oil. We look after all the investments and that is what 
We do—we just watch. We act as trustees.

Mr. Bigg: That is not quite what I want. I asked whether you were set up 
to take specific bequests and see that they were earmarked.

Mr. Martineau: Oh, yes, the law permits that.
The Chairman : Mr. Long, would you proceed with the long form report for 

l964, but just hitting on those parts that do not appear in the 1965 report.

Mr. G. R. Long (Assistant Auditor General) : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Anticipating a suggestion that we only pick highlights in the 1964 report, I 
ftlade quite a close comparison of the two reports and, assuming that the 
^embers do not want to get into particular figures for the year, I think we can 
Safely pass over the 1964 report. Anything that is specific to that year is of a 
J^ry minor nature aside, of course, from the figures themselves. But you do see 
the more important of those figures in the comparisons in the 1965 report. So I 
w°uld suggest if it meets with your approval, that we concentrate on the 1965
report.

The Chairman: Agreed. Proceed.
Mr. Long: First, I might mention that the Canada Council is the subject of

Paragraph 174.

^ The Chairman: Excuse me, Mr. Long. I think this is what we are dealing 
is it not? Gentlemen, this is the copy we are dealing with, exhibit No. 7.

a Mr. Long: The Canada Council is the subject of paragraphs 174 of the 
e*nl °r General's 1964 report to Parliament and 225 of his 1965 report. I might 
cat ain. ^at rhe accounts of the Canada Council are divided into three broad 
Tiir)H°r*es‘ ^rst> the Endowment Fund, then the University Capital Grants 
the ^ arM then the Special Funds and there are separate statements for each of 

Se categories.
, *Mge 1 of the report is self-explanatory and on page 2, references to the 
°wment Fund commence, showing at the top of the page that the Fund had 

thj„1I1Corne of $3.1 million in the year and expenditures of slightly more than 
amount, leaving a surplus in the Fund of $50,000 at March 31, 1965.

in a Members of the Committee will remember that this Fund was established 
iSj amount of $50 million by section 14 of the Canada Council Act. This Fund 
of ^ c°Urse, kept intact, with the income of the Fund being used for purposes 
br0 f Act. At the bottom of the page the source of the income is shown, this 
the r y being income on investments and, beneath the table, it is shown that 
and t}y bicorne is 5.4 per cent of the book value of the investment portfolio 

ls amounts to 6.3 per cent of the original fund of $50 million.
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(Translation)
Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): Could we be told what is the Act governing the 

Canada Council, and whether this Act gives them the proportion of investments 
they have to make, just as insurance companies have to follow certain criteria 
regarding investments? They cannot invest more than 10 or more in common 
shares. Can the Canada Council, under the Act, have to invest its money in one 
way or another, in a definite way?

Mr. Martineau : One of the two funds must be invested in a certain way. 
the University fund in the event. I am sorry, Mr. Leblanc... Section 17-2 says 
this:

(2) Grants made by the Council under section 9 may be paid out of 
the University Capital Grants Fund, but shall not exceed...

(3) Investments out of money standing to the credit of the Univer­
sity Capital Grants Fund may be made only in bonds or other securities 
of or guaranteed by the Government of Canada.

In that respect we are restricted.

Mr. Leblanc : As far as the University fund is concerned?
Mr. Martineau: As far as the University Fund is concerned. We are not 

under any restriction as far as the other is involved.
Mr. Leblanc: You are not restricted as far as the other one is concerned?

Mr. Martineau: No.
Mr. Leblanc: What kind of mortgages do you take out? You have $800,00® 

here which, as you indicate, is invested in mortgages. Is this commerti3 
property, industrial property, private homes?

Mr. Martineau: We deal through Central Mortgage. Mr. Fullerton will be 
able to tell you exactly.

(English)
Mr. D. H. Fullerton (Investment Consultant, Canada Council): Well abo^ 

three quarters of our mortgages are National Housing Act mortgages. >■ 
balance are commercial mortages of office buildings and institutions. But th 
are mainly N.H.A. mortgages and small houses.

Mr. Leblanc: So you have about 25 per cent other than the Nation 
Housing Corporation, that you invest in mortgages.

Mr. Long: Section 16 of the Canada Council Act provides that expenditu1^ 
made for the purposes of the Act, other than capital assistance grants 
institutions of higher learning, may be paid out of the income earned 
Endowment Fund investments.

On page 3 a summary is shown of the expenditures of $3.1 million of w p 
$2.6 million was for grants and awards, $88,000 on direct expenses in connec 1 
with the Canadian National Commission for UNESCO and $436,000 on adm1^3 
trative and other expenses. The grants and awards authorized by the C°u 
are listed in the Annual Report of the Council.
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The Chairman: Some questions with respect to expenditures. They show an 
increase of almost $100,000. Has any member any questions to ask there? 
Granted, $75,000 is an increase in grants. The other is made up of internal 
operation, I would think. Mr. Martineau, your administrative costs are up 
$17,000 and your share of UNESCO of $6,000. Have you any comments to make 
there?

Mr. Boucher: I do not know that I have a detailed explanation for these ; I 
yas not on the Council at the time. But I would assume that the $17,000 
increase in administrative costs, which is a relatively small amount, would 
Probably correspond to re-adjustment in salaries. The $5,000 for the UNESCO 
Commission would probably correspond also to the same.

I understand, also, that this was the year when the national conference of 
Ihe Commission was held.

The Chairman: I notice that on page 4 the $88,000 is broken down and you 
show an increase of $5,600 in the cost of your Commission’s meetings. Can you 
Sive us some explanation? Did you have more meetings or were they held at a 
greater distance away or something?
. Mr. D. W. Bartlett (Secretary, Canadian National Commission for 

NESCO: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, there are limited places at the table. I 
>-lnk the explanation for that extra $5,000 is that it was customary in the 

ational Commission every other year to have a major bi-annual conference, 
.addition to the regular annual meeting of the National Commission. And 

ls would account for the additional expenditure in that year.

ftieet
The Chairman: Do I follow correctly that you are having more Commission
mgs than you used to have? Is this the explanation?
Mr. Martineau: No, every second year there is an international one and, at 

hat time, I think it took place in Paris.

Miss L. Breen (Secretary-Treasurer, Canada Council) : No.
Mr. Martineau: No? Where did it take place?

>, Miss Breen : You mean the national conference which took place in
Montreal.

Mr. Martineau : Then I have it wrongly.
j- Mr. Bartlett: The $5,659 was due mainly to the holding of the Fourth 

lQnal Conference in Montreal in 1965. So there we have the explanation.
Mr. Martineau: I thought it was the one in Paris.

travChairman: Just one other question on that same page, regarding 
*Por ^ere was a round the world trip taken by the Secretary. Was there 

man one person on this trip?
W Mr- Bartlett: Mr. Chairman, it was my predecessor who took that trip. I 
is j, 11 °nly make two points, one is that a certain amount of international travel 
trjp Cessary in connection with an international organization. That particular 
ÜnivWa? in connection with the first establishment of CUSO, the Canadian 

24lrsity Service Overseas, of which my predecessor was the temporary
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Organizing Secretary and to which the National Commission gave financial and 
other support during the organizational phase. The actual purpose of that trip 
was to investigate possible placements of CUSO personnel in overseas countries.

The Chairman: Is your predecessor with CUSO now?
Mr. Bartlett: He resigned about a year and a half ago and is now with the 

staff of the World Bank in Washington.
The Chairman: His trip was not of too much use to you, I would say, when 

he resigned or left the organization shortly afterwards.
Mr. Bartlett: Mr. Chairman, the real purpose of the trip was to get CUSO 

started and, in this sense, it was very successful indeed, as members of the 
Committee will know.

Mr. Long: It was by Order in Council passed in 1957, under authority 
section 8, subsection (2) of the Canada Council Act, that the Council is require 
to provide these expenses of the Secretariat of the Canadian National Com- 
mission for UNESCO. Reference has been made to the expenses of $88,00 
These are, by the way, the direct costs incurred. It includes nothing f°r 
overhead.

The administrative and other expenses amounting to $436,000, are shown & 
comparative form in the Statement of Income and Expenditure and Surplus o 
the Endowment Fund. As is pointed out at the top of page 5, these inclu 
expenses relating to the administration of the University Capital Grants Fun 
and indirect expenses relating to the operation of the Canadian Nations 
Commission for UNESCO and administration of the Special Funds and tn 
Programme of Cultural Relations and Academic Exchanges with countries 0 
French expression.

The Council recovered in this year $4,000 from the Special Funds to cover 
costs of administration and $3,500 from the government of Canada for admin15' 
tering the cultural programme.

Mr. Baldwin: May I ask a question here? I do not mean to interrupt y°a 
but, regarding the work in connection with the UNESCO National Commiss10.. 
by which, under section 8, subsection (2) of the Act the Governor in Counc 
may assign to the Council certain functions and duties, has the Council glV 
consideration to the possibility, where there is a special assignment of wkaVy 
certainly a related government duty, whether this would not be better met 
an outright direct government grant? Has this ever been considered or d1 
cussed? Rather than the moneys coming out of the earnings and the funds of 
Canada Council, which probably might be better directed to other causes.

Mr. Martineau: We would much prefer it that way but this was foisted 
us and we take care of it the best way we can. But if Foreign Affairs wan 
take it over, we would have no objection to their taking the cost over, anyway-

Mr. Baldwin: Our Committee might give some thought to there bein$^ 
direct relationship between the duties assigned to you under section 8 subs 
tion (2) and a special grant from the government to cover that.

The Chairman: Mr. Martineau, I suppose this is all laid down under sect|jje 
8, to which Mr. Baldwin refers. But I would think the original idea of



May 17, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 295

Council being administrator for UNESCO was to more or less get it off the 
ground and get it established. This is the organization that sells the Christmas 
cards, is it not?

Mr. Martineau: No, that is UNICEF.
The Chairman: I am sorry, I withdraw.

• (12.00 a.m.)
Mr. Boucher: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if I could add something there. I 

jhink if one were to reconstruct the reasoning behind this at the outset, it will 
cc found that it is connected also with the necessity of maintaining a certain 
autonomy for the UNESCO Commission and this association with the Canada 
Council, which is an autonomous body, not really under direct instruction from 
the government. I think it is because of the independent nature of the UNESCO 
Commission, which is not an agency of the government, but a body that is there 

encourage activities among non-governmental organizations in this country, 
^at the two were associated. It still leaves open the question of whether it 
£°uld be financed by another device. But I think that the intimate relationship 
between the two should not necessarily be broken if another form of financing 

adopted.
Mr. Baldwin: I understand that, yes.
Mr. Long: Continuing on page 5 of the long form report, there follows an 

e*Planation of the more significant increases and decreases in the expense 
^ategories. It will be noted that the fee paid to Fullerton, Mackenzie and 
V^sociates Ltd. for managing the Council’s investment portfolio increased by 

>500 during the year. The fee paid to this firm of investment consultants is 
°w at the rate of $20,000 per year.

The Chairman: May I ask a question while you are still on the same item? 
Mr. Long: Certainly.
The Chairman: The consultants’ fees used to be $15,000 plus telephone 

Senses, is that right?

Mr. Martineau: Yes.
The Chairman: Now it is $20,000 over-all?
Mr. Martineau: Over-all.
The Chairman: What were the telephone expenses previously? They were 
$15,000 a year plus telephone expenses.

fiok^'ss Breen: It never was paid. It never amounted to $5,000, is that not 
8tlt> Mr. Fullerton?

can ^r' Fullerton: I was able to lower most of them and a small amount of 
abnu Were charged to the Council; I think they totalled around 7 or $800 per 
an > Itl' But they form part of the Canada Council’s telephone budget and are 

deluded in that budget.

$2n Chairman: So your fee was $15,000 plus $800 roughly, and now it is a 
,uo° fee over-all?
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Mr. Fullerton: Yes.
The Chairman: And who pays the $800?
Mr. Fullerton: The Council.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : What percentage of the investment income would this 

amount to have you any idea? It could be worked out, I suppose, from the 
figures we have.

Mr. Martineau: The investment income was roughly $3| million at that 
time.

Mr. Fullerton: There are the three funds. It is the total income from the 
three funds and they are above $4 million so it is .005 and 1 per cent, I think 
Something like that.

Mr. Muir: (Lisgar): Do you pay them the $20,000 plus a percentage 
when they buy the stock for you?

The Chairman: Oh, no, over-all, that is not fair.
Mr. Martineau: It is a flat fee.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : This is what I wanted to know.
Mr. Boucher: It is all he gets.
Mr. Baldwin: Out of this, may I ask is it correct that because of the 

investment policies there was a sum of some $15 million which was distributed, 
was it last year? At least a total of $15 million was derived from the investment 
of the University Capital Grants.

Mr. Martineau: These were the accumulated interests.
Mr. Baldwin: Yes, accumulated interests and investment.
Mr. Martineau: Through the wise investment of Mr. Fullerton, the Council 

has made about $6 million in capital gains.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Even with the New York Dow Jones going down as it 

today?
Mr. Martineau: Well, we will say that we have lost a little, but very littl® 

compared with the gains we made.
Mr. Schreyer: Regarding this firm of consultants, Fullerton, Mackenzi6 

and Associates Ltd., I take it that they manage the investment more fully on a 
day to day basis, subject to the direction laid down by the trustees?

Mr. Martineau: By the Finance Committee?
Mr. Schreyer: Yes.
Mr. Martineau: We have regular reports and we make regular remarks.
The Chairman: I think Mr. Long is going to cover that more fully later oV> 

Mr. Schreyer.
Mr. Schreyer: Right. Thank you.
Mr. Long: One other item mentioned on this page is that there was a 

reduction of $2,500 in the amount paid to the Canada Foundation for t
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adjudication of applications of Art Scholarships. It will also be noted that 
Printing and duplicating costs increased by $6,500 due to the publishing, for the 
first time, of the Canada Council News and also an awards booklet.

The Chairman: May we ask to have this Canada Council News shown to 
Committee? Have you a copy of it? Have you one with you?
Mr. Martineau: We send it regularly all across Canada. We can either have 

copies this afternoon for members of the Committee or send them to you, 
Mr. Chairman, for distribution.

The Chairman: As I understand it, this is a new endeavour; the first time 
y°u have done this?

Mr. Martineau: Yes, to let people know exactly what the Council is doing. 
Mr. Boucher: It replaced the bulletin previously circulated by the Council. 
Mr. Leblanc: Do you send it to Members of Parliament?
Miss Breen: We send it to anyone who asks for it.
Mr. Leblanc: Are we on your mailing list?

,, The Chairman: Members of Parliament are not on the mailing list, unless 
ey request to be.

Mr. Baldwin: The Committee should be aware that Members of Parliament 
§age in the Dramatic Arts from time to time.

Mr. Boucher: Do you want us to report on this?
, The Chairman: I think it would be good public relations, Mr. Martineau, to 

6 your Canada Council give it to Members of Parliament. There may be 
Pr°Priations coming up and you might like us to pass judgment on them.

^Mr. Martineau: Mr. Chairman, an excellent suggestion.
the ^r" Long: Turning to page 6, reference is made to expenditures incurred in 
Î^Peratmn of Stanley House. Stanley House, which is located at New 
ijjg 01011 d, Quebec, on the South Gaspe shore, together with household furnish- 

,atld effects, was accepted as a gift by the Council in November 1961, to be 
disp only as a place where artists may work, but also as the locale for 

Pssions on policy with experts in various fields.
ojj tJhese expenses were $13,000, or slightly more than half of the expenditures 
j>ro taitley House in the previous year. This is mainly because an extensive 

gramme of renovations had been carried out in the previous year.
C Page 7, particulars are given concerning the administration of the 
ïotC}1ars*11P plan under the Programme of Cultural Relations and Academic 
°fi beK1865 Wlth countries of French expression. A total of $170,000 was paid out 
forjv,6 a*f °f the Department of External Affairs of which $128,000 was in the 

of awards.
the S0Olrnencing at the bottom of page 7 are comments on the various assets of 
teceiv R°Wment Fund and reference is made to cash of $479,000. Amounts 
^°Unt *or securlties sold but not delivered total $2.3 million and there is an 
Vs °f $1,600 due from the government of Canada in respect of expendi- 

0n behalf of the Commonwealth Arts Festival.
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The Endowment Fund investments of the Council amounted to $57.9 
million at March 31st, 1965. On page 9 a further reference is made to the firm of 
Fullerton, Mackenzie and Associates Ltd., who managed the investments and an 
outline is given of the investment policy of the Council.

Briefly, the policy is that the Council lays down the classes of securities to 
be acquired and the limits of holdings of any class. Within this framework, 
securities are acquired, managed and disposed of, with the advice of the 
Investment Committee.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Is there an outline anywhere in the 
report of these classes of securities and investments?

The Chairman: Yes, on the back.
Mr. Long: Not in our report, Mr. Thomas, but in the Annual Report of the 

Council.
The Chairman: There is a list of securities on page 84.
Mr. Martineau : On page 84 and following, of the 1964-65 report.
Mr. Long: The investment portfolio is planned to provide the maximum* 

return consistent with the necessity of maintaining the principle of the fund 
intact. Therefore, there are numerous sales and purchases throughout the year.

On page 10 details are given showing that securities amounting to $58-8 
million worth were purchased during the year and security sales amounted t° 
$56.9 million. Reference is also made to the accumulated net profits on security 
sales which, at March 31st, totalled $6 million and this is held as a reserv6 
against possible future losses.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Pardon me, has this been called the capital gain? ThlS 
is the capital gain of $6 million you mentioned?

Mr. Martineau: Yes.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Do you add that to your capital account?
Mr. Martineau : We put it as a reserve against possible future losses.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I see.
Mr. Martineau: We do not distribute it. It is invested and used in money-
The Chairman: Mr. Schreyer, maybe that question you had would fit 111 

here.
Mr. Schreyer: Yes, it is answered there, except that I would like to Put a 

supplementary question.
It seems to me that, with the Finance Committee of the Council being u19 

up of men who are so experienced in investment, the firm retained he ’ 
Fullerton, Mackenzie and Associates Ltd., do not actually provide any inve 
ment counselling service; they just look after the mechanics?

The Chairman: I imagine you would like to know how often they consU* 
the Finance Committee before they proceed to act?

Mr. Martineau : I think Mr. Fullerton will satisfy you.
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Mr. Fullerton: If I can describe our operation, we are technically an 
investment council; that is our principal function. But there are daily operations 
involved, discretionary powers to buy and sell, and it means applying judgment 
all the time. We are making decisions on the purchases and sales almost on a 
niinute to minute basis.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Just charging 2 per cent, I think that is a pretty good 
investment for the Council to make.

The Chairman: May I ask, has the same company of Mr. Fullerton and 
associates handled your investments since the inception of the Council?

Mr. Fullerton: Well, I started out as the Treasurer of the Council and I 
resigned in 1962 to establish my own firm. But my function at the Council has 
S°ne on almost unchanged, I would say, in terms of the purchases and sales of
securities.

Mr. Martineau: If you will permit me, Mr. Chairman, there are a great 
dumber of transactions every day, because the idea is to take advantage of any 

*Se in buying prices or any decrease in stock prices, so as to be able to switch, 
^ake a profit, and wait for another. That is the way those $6 million have been 
^cumulated. But this needs watching every day and all day, just to take 
vantage of that faction, and that is what Mr. Fullerton does. We can say that 

, e are the Committee and that he is going to deal in such a kind of security, 
Ut We do not tell him when to do it. He chooses the time.

The Chairman: Is Mr. Fullerton’s office in the same building as yours?
Mr. Martineau: Yes, it is.

p The Chairman: You are operating in the same building as the Canada
L°uncil?
acj- ^r' Fullerton: I operate in a separate office. I have my own office 

the Canada Council in order to make it easier to carry on the 
tlanics of the contracts arriving in and so on.

ifiv ^r" FiONG: I think, if the Members of the Committee note that this 
the6S . ent portfolio turns over completely in the year, they will realise that 

e ls a considerable amount of work involved there.
cate ^ Siye at the bottom of page 10 a listing of the investments by 
Vaiu8^- At the top of page 11 information is given regarding the basis of 

10n of the various investments and, in the middle of the page, reference is 
carrf i° tIle fact that Stanley House, which was received as a gift in 1961, is 

ea on the books at the nominal value of $1.
USe* Chairman: May I ask a question on Stanley House? Is it fulfilling a 

unction? How many people used it last year, for instance?
the hnr‘ Voucher: Well, there are seminars being held to the full capacity of 
^ans^u? throughout the summer months. It is closed the rest of the year but it 
15 pe aat, for some eight or ten weeks during the summer, every week some 
They .fh’ grouped around a common problem, have the house to themselves. 
these pre being taken there and fed and accommodated for the period. And 

24190!°UPs c°uld deal with a variety of problems. It could be painters who are
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discussing the economic problems of what it is to be a painter today; it could be 
economists who are discussing together what sort of use they can make of 
computers. It is given to various groups who apply for it and who are taken to 
the house and who are really on their own.

Usually there would be a convener, who is an outsider to the Council, who 
gathers these people together to thrash out some particular problem. And the 
total cost, at the moment, of Stanley House, is more in the nature of $8,000 than 
the figure that we have for those years. That is about all it costs the Canada 
Council. And that includes taking the people there and feeding them, which is 
rather inexpensive.

Mr. Martineau: May I add this, that if you look at page 28 of the report 
for 1964-65, you will see what meetings were held there—a symposium on 
international legal questions; a musicians’ meeting to discuss relations between 
academic institutions of music; a poets’ meeting; a symposium on the forces 
affecting the quality of community life in Canada, and other such questions.

We have debated, ourselves, whether it is worth the money and we came to 
the conclusion that it was worth it.

Mr. Bigg: This would be cheaper than renting other accommodation such as 
a hotel room?

Mr. Martineau: Oh, yes.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, may I ask if the Committee are to be 

supplied with this book called “The Private Benefactors in the Canada Coun­
cil”? It is being passed around now, and I am just wondering if it could be 
supplied.

Mr. Martineau : We will do so.
The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Muir. That will be included with the 

Canada Council News, I presume, when copies are sent to the members.
Further to Stanley House, the Council is quite satisfied that it is serving 3 

very useful purpose? Do you not think it could be used to a greater extent thaBi 
say, 15 people for a period of ten weeks. That is only 150 people.

Mr. Martineau: It is a highly selective operation, both with regard to th® 
Arts and our academic programme. It cannot easily accommodate more than 1 
people and, generally, these sort of meetings are not very successful if they &° 
beyond a group of 15 people. It is an ideal size of group to discuss a problem 111 
some depth.

It might be run over the year, but it would be quite an operation to fin^’ 
every year, some 8 or 10 groups who really have a significant problem 
discuss in some depth. I think that, at that pace, it means that over a period of 
few years there will be a number of people who will have had an opportunity 1 
discuss, in a rather unstructured way, some rather deep problems. We thm 
that, on the whole, it is a very profitable operation.

The Chairman: When you close it up in the winter do you keep som®°ne 
there to look after it?

Mr. Martineau: It is heated. There is a caretaker who lives just a sh°r 
distance away.
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(Translation)

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman: Yes Mr. Leblanc.
Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): Do you not feel that the Public Accounts Com­

mittee, which does not have too many opportunities to travel, should go there, 
to find out if the house is well kept, as we would like it to be?

Mr. Martineau: May I add to your suggestion, Mr. Leblanc. We might 
extend that particular sitting over a whole year.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : I would feel that way.
The Chairman: Mr. Leblanc, I think we will make you a committee of one, 

arrange a week-end conference for the Committee.
Mr. Leblanc: The suggestion came from Mr. Cameron.
The Chairman: Well, put him on your committee, then.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I may ask a question 

ho^ing this bonus stock that you have? When you carry it at no book value, 
- w would you show the increase, if there has been an increase, in the value of 
thls stock?

Mr. Martineau: Mr. Fullerton can answer that.
Mr. Fullerton: That bonus stock was part of a package of a bond plus 

.7 attached. When the stock was sold, it was taken as a profit and noted as

to

Part of our profit reserve. But the stock was actually sold later on.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Was that money re-invested? 

foil ^r" Fullerton: The money is always ploughed back into the total port­

ly Mr. Long: The last item mentioned on page 11 is the liabilities of the 
for °Wlnent Fund which include accounts payable of $40,000. Amounts payable 
tn purities purchased but not received is $3.4 million, that being shown at the 

P of page 12.
Co Grants and awards approved but not yet paid amounted to $1.8 million and 
ye marative figures are given, showing authorizations of $2.6 million during the 

and Payments of $2.5 million.
Profit^ bottom of page 12 it is pointed out that the reserve arising from net 
pr0fjt °n disposal of securities increased by $1.4 million during the year, due to 
jRerits on securities sold and, at the year end, amounted to $6 million. As 
in^d previously, this was held to provide for possible future losses 

ed on the disposal of Endowment Fund investments.
Secur>rn*8*lt add here, Mr. Muir, if you have a problem with this, these 
only Ves are not dealt with in any different way from the other securities. The 
for Terence is that this money is not put with the Council’s money available 

ants °r expenses. It is held there in case there should be a future loss. 
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I see.

Piore /' Leblanc: But it is re-invested to bear more interest and to provide 
Unds for the Council?
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Mr. Long: This is the reason, as I pointed out in one of the earlier pages, 
that the return on the $50 million originally given to the Council, is something 
over 6 per cent. It is after taking into consideration the earnings on these profits.

Reference to the University Capital Grants Fund commences on page 13- 
Members of the Committee will recall that this is a $50 million fund provided to 
the Canada Council to enable it to make grants to universities and similar 
institutions of higher learning, by way of capital assistance in respect of 
building construction projects, to promote the study of Arts, Humanities and 
Social Sciences.

Reference is made to the statutory report made to the Canada Council and 
to the Secretary of State under date of June 1st, 1964, and which was qualified 
to the effect that the use of the 1956 census as the latest census and the hotchpot 
or trust fund approach adopted by the Council as the basis of allocation of the 
accumulated interest and profits of the University Capital Grants Fund was 
not, in our opinion, in accordance with section 17 (2) (b) of the Canada Council 
Act.

Members of the Committee will recall that this qualification was the 
subject of a recommendation of the Committee that amending legislation be 
sought to provide clear authority for the policy which the Council has followed- 
This recommendation appears as item 30 of the Auditor General’s last folloW-uP 
report. It was necessary for the Auditor General to repeat this qualification 
his statutory report because no action had been taken towards seeking the 
necessary legislation.

Assets of the University Capital Grants Fund included $5 million receivable 
for securities sold but not yet delivered and investments of $15.8 million aboU 
which certain details are given on page 15. It will be noted in the middle of the 
page that purchases of investments during the year amounted to $27.5 mill!011 
while sales amounted to $55.9 million.

The Chairman: I wonder could I ask a question here? It states here tha > 
during the financial year ended March 31st, 1964, the Council allocated roughs 
$15 million to eligible institutions. Is there a list in the Annual Report, or sort1*3 
other place, of which institutions received these grants?

Miss Breen: Yes, there is.
The Chairman: What page?
Miss Breen: Pages 25 and 26. The list is at the first half of the page.
The Chairman: Oh, yes. Thank you.
Mr. Baldwin: May I ask a question here? I have in mind a point which 

Long raised and which, I think, came up for a thorough discussion at the 
meeting. Were there any complaints about the use of the 1956 census and t 
hotchpot method of distribution? No complaints?

Mr. Martineau : No.
Mr. Baldwin: I means, outside of the complaint of the Auditor Genei"9* 

That is what I meant.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Will the 1956 census continue to be used or will V° 

bring it up to date?
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Mr. Martineau: We intend to just keep on doing what we have done in the 
Past because we think, with all due respect to the Auditor General, that we are 
interpreting the law as it should be. And I think that, last year, after we had 
explained to the Committee how it had been done, the Committee seemed to be 
in accord with us.

Mr. Baldwin: We thought the onus was on the government to make a 
change in the legislation at the first available opportunity.

Mr. Schreyer: The $15 million in investments held by the University 
Capital Grants Fund is, of course, limited to government of Canada securities, 
knt who looks after the day to day management of that?

Mr. Martineau : Our Finance Committee.
Mr. Schreyer: I see, this is all part of the arrangement? 
Mr. Martineau: Yes.
Mr. Long: I wonder if I might ask Mr. Martineau if the Council therefore 

hoes not intend to seek a change in the legislation at a convenient time, in 
accordance with the recommendation of the Committee?

Mr. Martineau: I think that we would be very badly placed to go to the 
government and say they should amend when we think that no amendment is 
needed. We think that we are right, that we are just following the law and that 

could not logically go to the government—even though we insist we are right, 
we are sure of it—and ask them to still amend the law to say that we are.

But there is another and more fundamental reason than this one. It is up to 
F°u gentlemen in this Committee to do what you did last year and make a 
^commendation. After that, it is out of our hands and it is for Parliament and
the government to decide, not us.
K Mr. Bigg: What is the problem? Is the system inequitable? Why should it
De changed?

Mr. Martineau: We do not see that it should be changed. We follow a 
Retain formula and the Auditor General thinks we should have followed 
i other formula concerning interest gained for funds which were not used 

Mediately. There was the $50 million given, then there was a division by 
evince and by institution. Some of these drew immediately and others did 

int ’ S° there was interest accumulated. So we have been giving the credit of the 
erest to those who have not drawn, not to those who have already drawn.

For instance, let us say that a province or institution has withdrawn years 
ac ’ everything that came to it and that some others have not, and interest has 

^Mated on these amounts which have not been used. We say to the 
benituti°n which did not draw at the beginning, that they should have the 

e t °f the interest, and that is what we do.
draJ^r- Muir (Lisgar) : In other words, the institution which has already 

n has lost the equity.
have^1"' ^■ARTINEAu: It has had the use of the money for years and the others 
origi When we give them the money we say that they are entitled to their 

M amount plus interest to date on those amounts.
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Mr. Bigg: But surely the principal grant is to supply funds for need? 
Supposing one province lost all its population, you would not expect them to get 
a prorata amount of money if they had no institution to keep up?

• (12.30 p.m.)
Mr. Martineau: You are talking of the census now?
Mr. Bigg : Yes.
Mr. Martineau: Well then, let us suppose something else. Let us suppose 

that, let us say, Saskatchewan has drawn the first year everything that was 
coming to it. Well now, are we, the next year, going to take another census and 
say that, according to the latest census, Saskatchewan was not entitled to what 
it got? And are we going to ask Saskatchewan to return some of the money we 
gave it? Then, in another year, the proportion would again be changed, 
according to the population.

We thought that the logical way was to fix it once and for all and then 
follow it through to its logical end. Mind you, it is debatable because, if it was 
not, the Auditor General would not take the opposite view.

Mr. Bigg: Well, it seems that we have a census in order to bring everything 
us to date. I am talking as a legislator, now, and not as t banker. But we 
intended to give equitable artistic help to all the population and if there is a 
shift in population, then we should try to adjust as near as possible, without 
turning down any institutions or asking for refunds, to keep the new population 
abreast of the times.

Mr. Martineau That was only for institutions; that was for University 
grants, you see. Let us say that $10 million went to Saskatchewan and it was 
divided among so many colleges, of which we have the names, together with the 
amounts. Some immediately withdrew their amount. They were ready for it and 
had plans to build. Others had no plans or they were not ready to pay the 5° 
per cent in addition, which they had to pay, so they delayed a few years. Some 
still have some money to come. We thought that those to had not withdrawn 
were entitled to the interest and that others, who had had the use of tha 
money, were not entitled to the interest. That is the question in a nutshell.

Mr. Long: I wonder if I might just put the Auditor General’s point of vieVf 
here in a slightly different light? It is not that the Auditor General thought tha 
the Council should have used a different formula. The Auditor General though1’ 
and still thinks, that the Act requires the Council to use a formula differed 
from the one they used. The Auditor General does not question the merit 0 
what the Council did, and I do not think members of this Committee questi°p 
that. That was why the members of the Committee suggested that, to rem°v® 
any question of this, a slight change in the Act be made at some conveniez 
time.

Now, this is one of the outstanding recommendations of this Committee 
the Committee will be wanting to know why it is not being followed. Or, if th6" 
are going to accept the fact that it is not going to be followed, the Commit*66 
will have to decide to withdraw that recommendation.
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Mr. Baldwin: This is one of the 80 per cent that the government has 
ignored, so far.

Mr. Bigg: Again, as a lawmaker, I would suggest that we were encouraging 
the provinces and the institutions to partake of this rather forward looking 
ftiove and, if they neglected to take advantage of it, as of the date of 1956 or 
whenever they had the chance, that is a risk one always takes by not taking 
advantage of a move. I do not see why they should be protected from their negli­
gence and I would call it negligence in this case.

Mr. Martineau: I do not think it has been negligence because it was on a 
50 per cent basis. We could only offer 50 per cent, on all these amounts, 
Provided the universities would pay the other 50 per cent. Some were financial- 

unable to take advantage of that, so it was not a question of neglect. In some 
Cases, their programme had not reached that particular stage. They were all 
anxious to have it, mind you—all of them. It was a question of timing.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, can Mr. Martineau give us 
Samples of several institutions that were so unable to take advantage of this?

Mr. Martineau : Here are those who still have capital coming to them, from 
getting the interest. There is St. Michael’s University at Toronto; St. Peter’s 
College in London, Ontario; McGill University, Montreal; The University of 
Montreal; Luther College in Saskatchewan and the College Sacré Coeur in 
Saskatchewan. These are the only six which still have some capital coming to 
them.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Well now, are you suggesting to the 
Committee, Mr. Martineau, that the reason these institutions did not use what 
Was considered their share of the capital grants was because of their inability to 
Put up the other 50 per cent?

Mr. Martineau: Or get the land. Or, in the bigger institutions, that it was 
P°t according to the schedule of their development.

Mr. Bigg: Or that they were not interested in the Arts?

suh'Mr" Martineau: No, it is not a question of the Arts, because there are three 
js locts, in all here. There are also the Social Sciences and the Humanities, so it 

hot only a question of the Arts.
the tt^6’ for instance, Montreal. They have had a big building program and 

University of Montreal and McGill University have done a lot of building, 
th there is a limit to their capacity for building and I take for granted that 
sanf ^ n°t have the money to add, or they would have taken this money. The 
thei.e ^0r St. Peter’s College in London. Take Luther College in Saskatchewan, 
they6}/8 on*y $17,000 allocated to them but I am sure they could use this. But 

ave to put up $1,700,000 in order to build something.
Proche Chairman: Mr. Martineau, it is also the case that those others in the 
timR ?Ce °t Quebec were not allowed, by the Premier of the province at that 

to build.
as f^r' Martineau : In the beginning, yes. But still Laval has taken everything, 

as I can see. Montreal still has $2 million coming.



306 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 17, 1966

For a while, these funds accumulated, because Mr. Duplessis was threaten­
ing that if the universities accepted this money, he would cut them off from his 
own subsidies. They were struck between the two and the money accumulated.

Mr. Boucher: I wonder if I could add something, Mr. Chairman. I think 
there may be several reasons why the timing was not anticipated and I think 
this is really the fundamental question. This measure was adopted on the heels 
of the Massey Report and I do not think it was regarded, even at that time, as a 
measure which would fully look after the problem of the capital needs of 
Canadian universities. It was a contribution towards that problem and I think it 
was anticipated that the money would be expended over a relatively short 
period of time because of the case that had been made on the part of the 
universities for the great need for capital funds.

It is only with the passing of time that it was discovered that it had to fit 
into the calendar of priorities of the various universities. Some of them wanted 
to have their Medical school built first and then to have perhaps their School of 
Dentistry next and, eventually, a Law building. So it is this problem °f 
priorities in their own building programme, plus at times , we understand, the 
problem of securing the exact piece of land which they had in mind and which 
is the case, I understand, with Toronto, before they could build.

The situation, therefore, seems to have changed and that is why the Canada 
Council has always taken into account the timing factor. The deciding factor 
was the year 1957-58 when it started. That is why the distribution was made 
and, if some people did not take up the offer at that time, it was just because 
they were prevented from doing so and it was really a decision which was a 
one-time decision.

This is really the fundamental position that the Council has taken, that d 
was never the intention of the government or of the Parliament of those days to 
establish a sort of permanent fund which would be replenished, because I thin* 
everybody is agreed that if more money were again voted by the House for thlS 
same purpose, it probably would not go to this Fund. It would be a qulte 
separate exercise and would probably be expended by another agency of tlie 
Canada Council.

The Chairman: I think this is a very debatable subject and perhaps 1 
would be best to leave it at this point in the hope that we can finish this rep°r 
by 1 o’clock so that it will not be necessary to have the Council back t*1 
afternoon.

Mr. Long: The liabilities of the University Capital Grants fund are refer1 
to, commencing on page 16 and include $5 million owing for securities Pul^ 
chased but not yet paid and $5.7 million for grants which have been approve 
but not yet paid out. Towards the bottom of the page, the amounts of grfn.g 
authorized and paid in each of the years since the inception of the Council - 
given. Reference is made to the Principal of the Fund amounting to $1^ 
million on page 17. Of this amount, $8.8 million has been allocated and $ ' 
million is unallocated. This latter amount represents interests and Pr° 
accumulated since September 30th, 1963.

The Special Funds are also referred to on page 17. These include the speC1® 
Scholarship Fund on which a further instalment of $130,000 was receive

I

»

I
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Which represents moneys received in respect of an anonymous gift of approxi­
mately $4£ million, bringing the amount of the fund to $1.2 million.

The two sections of the balance sheet of the Special Funds are explained on 
Page 18, the first section recording an amount of $2,500 held to be used for 
Purposes specified when it was given to the Council. A reference to this section 
°f the balance sheet will indicate that donations of this type amounting to 
$12,500 were received during the year and an amount of $13,500 was expended 
lor the purposes for which it was received by the Council.

The assets of the second section of this balance sheet, which relate to the 
Special Scholarship Fund and the Molson Prize Fund of $600,000 which was 
received from the Molson Foundation in September 1963, include cash at 
$27,000 and investments of $1.9 million. A listing of the categories of invest­
ments held is given on page 19, followed by the basis of valuation.

Grants and awards from the Special Scholarship Fund, approved but not 
Paid out at March 31, 1965, amounted to $74,000 and, at the top of page 20, it is 
shown that such authorizations amounted to $66,000 during the year and 
Payments amounted to $48,000.

The reserve arising from net profit on disposal of securities increased by 
almost $13,000 during the year and, at the year end, amounted to $39,000. This 
reserve is held to provide for possible future losses on disposal of Special Fund
lnvestments.

The principal of the Funds amounted to $1.8 million at the year end, 
c°mprising $1.2 million for the Special Scholarship Fund established by the 
anonymous gift, and $600,000 for the Molson Prize Fund established by the gift 
fr°m the Molson Foundation.

There was also at the year end a surplus of $25,000 available for expendi- 
‘ure. Figures showing how this surplus is arrived at and showing the amoun 
aPplicable to each of the two Funds is given at the top of page 21 of the report.

Below these figures, it is explained that income earned during the year was 
^Portioned in the ratio that the principal and surplus of each Fund as at April 

’ *964, was of the total principal and surplus of the Funds.
jo B is also pointed out that the Council approved of assessing a $2,000 fee for 

4-65 against the income of each of these Special Funds, to cover the indirect 
Penses of administering them. No such assessment had been made during the

Previousyear.

re That, Mr. Chairman, completes a rather quick review of the 1965 long form 
°rt There are a few minutes to go. After the questions are exhausted, I 

tk . hke to pursue this recommendation of the Committee a little further, if 
6 is time.

Uj The Chairman: Are there any more questions from any of the members of 
'Committee? Just before we leave this point, I think we should explain the 
Slti°n of the Public Accounts Committee.

* Ihink our purpose is to study your financial statement and to be assured 
ther looeys that are entrusted to you are well and carefully spent and that

18 no waste or extravagance, et cetera. For every dollar that is unwisely
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spent, it simply means that there will be one dollar less to be spent or to be 
given for the purpose for which the Council was set up. I think that is the 
fundamental purpose of your Public Accounts Committee.

Also, it is to see that you are working and acting within the Act, as it was 
set up by Parliament. It would appear that this is being done, with the 
exception of this very point and recommendation that we have made on 
previous occasions, and to which Mr. Long would like to say a few further 
words.

Before Mr. Long proceeds, Mr. Bigg, do you have a question?

Mr. Bigg: On this question of these Colleges which have not taken up their 
grants, would it be possible to have some letter sent to them and ask them to 
make a presentation to us regarding how much further time they would like 
before they take it up, so that we could have a cut-off date and maybe a change 
in legislation to suit everybody?

The Chairman: Has this been done?
Mr. Boucher: No, it has not.
Mr. Bigg: I do not think we intend to carry it on for a hundred years.
Mr. Boucher: The institutions who are still entitled to payments were 

canvassed a little over a year ago and it has been drawn to their attention that 
it was the hope that this whole Fund would be exhausted at least within the 
10-year period, that is, by 1967. And they have been urged to present their 
applications as soon as they could possibly do so.

It now looks as if almost all of it will be claimed by some time in 1967 but 
there then might be a few remaining amounts which are difficult to claiu1 
because institutions reach the point where they cannot fetch certain amounts 
that are really so small that they do not really fit into any programme. These 
have to be lumped together and re-distributed, so there may be a little cleaning 
up exercise towards the end of the operation. But it is now our hope that by 
some time next calendar year, this programme will be, to all intents and Pur' 
poses, pretty well completed.

Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that this is one recommendation 
many, made by the Committee, which has not been followed and members 0 
the Committee do ask why, each time they see this.

Now here, I think, you have a case where the Canada Council is 
independent of the government. I do not think it can be regarded as a case 0 
which the government just would not act, because I think if any action is goiu» 
to be taken, it is going to have to be initiated by the Canada Council.

Now, this means that the thinking of the Committee and the thinking of f^e 
Canada Council are quite different as of now, and I wonder, when both are her > 
if perhaps this should not be sorted out, if possible?

Might I read what the recommendation is, as it appears in our report?
Mr. Bigg: What is the date of this report?
Mr. Long: Well this is item No. 30 and it is in the appendix of our 

report. And it also appears under the same number in the follow-up report,
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Which it is stated that nothing has been done to implement it. But you will find 
lt on page 214 of our 1965 report. I quote:

The Committee was informed that in the interim the Council had 
proceeded to allocate and distribute funds resulting from profits realized 
and interest earned on the foregoing basis. The Committee regarded the 
approach as a reasonable one but, because of the conflicting views held as 
to whether the action taken is ultra vires of subsection 2(b) of section 17 
of the Canada Council Act, recommended that steps be taken to seek 
amending legislation to provide clear authority for the Council to use the 
1956 census and the hotchpot approach in the distribution of interest and 
profits in respect of the University Capital Grants Fund.

■^hat is the end of the quotation.

Mr. Bigg Can I have a word on the hotchpot approach? I am afraid I do 
ft°t understand it.

Mr. Long: I can explain it as I know it, unless a member of the Council 
Would care to?

Mr. Martineau: You go ahead and I will check.
Mr. Long: I think perhaps this problem was not anticipated when the $50 

Million was provided. It was probably assumed that this money would go out 
Quickly and nobody gave any thought to it earning any interest. And, as I 
^derstand the hotchpot approach, it is that, in your accounting, you charge 

Merest to those who have drawn the money, bringing that in as revenue of the 
^d to be distributed, so that all people are brought to a common time, which 

1 f be the time when the fund is finally all distributed. Am I right in that?

Mr. Martineau: You are right.
l Mr. Long: This, I think, is it. But the clearest place where the Act seems to 

Ve been departed from is the reference to the latest census. Now, how canyou :ls refer to 1956 as the latest census after another census has taken place? This 
Probably the clearest point. There are really two points involved.

M*r. Bigg: Maybe I can get clear on the fact that these people who have 
sho , aWn a certain amount of money should either be charged interest or 
t>av ^ any benefit from it. It seems to me that the Council, if they have to 

y UP any losses, have a right to any interest which may accrue due to delay.
Out not it simplify matters if the Council was allowed to make any profit
bunt and not be responsible to anybody? If you have got a university
s°m V* do not see why you should expect any added profits just because 
Cj-qu, °dy else did not pick up their allotment. This is not a debt owed by the 
Soju ,to anybody, this is in the nature of any other grant. You are giving them 
abd UnS; they have nothing to claim. You could not come to the government 

e Us for amounts to your credit, and that sort of thing, I am sure.
“Mi ^r" Long I think the Council has tried to be very fair. They tried to say,
tti0n ’ We know, for reasons beyond your control, you could not take this 
iticonf UP r^gdt away. We feel that you should be the one to benefit from any 
With Pu has come in in the meantime.” I think they have tried to be fair1 aL the institutions.
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Mr. Bigg : I am sure that if the University of Toronto, for instance, took up 
all their grant ten years ago, they would not be expecting their accrued interest 
from the Fund now, would they?

Mr. Martineau: That is the point.
Mr. Boucher: That is our position.
Mr. Long: We think the law says, that they would be entitled to it. We are 

not saying that that is right. And the Committee recommendation was that the 
law be amended to remove any question about it.

Mr. Baldwin: I remember this has been the subject of four meetings 
between the Council and the members of the Committee, at which the Chair­
man of the Committee and Mr. Henderson confronted each other in a very 
friendly way and agreed to disagree on this.

As I recall it, originally Mr. Marcel Faribault presented in a very forceful 
and eloquent way here, the views of the Council. He said that there had been 
two legal opinions given to the Council, one of which corresponded with the 
views of the Auditor General, and the other of which was entirely different and 
that the Council, having in mind that they thought their duty was to make a 
fair and equitable distribution, chose the one legal opinion.

But this is what we often run up against in connection with our examina­
tion of the departmental expending and accounts. We find that, occasionally- 
departmental officials, in interpreting statutes, do not interpret them strictly bu 
interpret them fairly. And there is a difference, from time to time. Conse­
quently, Mr. Henderson has repeated on several occasions his exception to this.

Now, the Public Accounts committee on two occasions saw fit to agree with 
Mr. Henderson’s view and finally, at the last meeting, this recommendation was 
made, which we felt was the fair way out. As I understand it, Mr. Martineau5 
views, as Chairman, is that the Council, having proceeded to distribute the 
money on one interpretation of the law, which I think is equitable, are not very 
happy about approaching the government and saying, “Now we want you to 
change the law so that the way in which we distribute this shall be considéré 
as the proper legal way.”

However, it may well be, when the time comes, as I personally hope ^ 
will, for the government to consider amending the Act by providing for 
annual payment to the Endowment Fund of X millions of dollars, that they 
might, at that time, remove the word ‘latest’ from section 17 and put in 
figures ‘1956’, which will probably settle it all.

Mr. Schreyer: Another aspect of the trust fund approach is, I gather, tha 
not only is the fund earning interest on the amount not yet taken up by the fe 
eligible institutions, but it is also charging interest to those institutions wluc 
have already taken up their funds.

Now, this latter part is very intriguing and it seems to me to be somewhat 
objectionable. Why should there be interest charged to those institutions?

Mr. Martineau: This is just to balance the books. They are not charge
interest, they are not asked for it at all. But in the books, according to thi5

VUVJ HiVJ uxv. XXUb ROXXUU XVX -X V CA V Uii. J—» LI V ill l/X XV. MWXXÜ) UVWXUIXXJJ - VlO

method, they are charged interest, while interest is accumulating for those vf 
have not drawn. So that the same is happening on both sides.
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Mr. Bigg: So you are freezing their portion as at 1956? 
Mr. Martineau: Yes.
Mr. Bigg: So that Mr. Baldwin’s suggestion is that we go back to that date 

and say that for all intents and purposes respecting this amount, 1956 will be 
*he division date and you will have an expiry date. We could even add a clause 
Saying there will be an expiry on this fund in 1969 when, if you have not taken 
UP your part, the accruing interest, plus principal, will go into the consolidated
fund.

The Chairman: Mr. Schreyer’s point was that that X university, that was 
F1Ven their funds, is not asked to send a cheque for X number of dollars of 
interest. It is just a book account.

Mr. Bigg: They just do not get any more.
Mr. Martineau: It is just a book entry.
The Chairman: You would be in real trouble if you asked them to send you 

he cold cash.

. Mr. Martineau: The ways of accountants are sometimes rather difficult for 
aymen to understand.

Mr. Baldwin: And the ways of lawyers.

Mr. Long: Mr. Baldwin, you may recall that there have been references 
ade, I think to two Prime Ministers, about this. Now, what I am trying to pin 

CWri here is that if a change like this is to be made in the Act, will it not be 
ade only if the Canada Council take action to ask the government to do it?

s . Mr. Bigg: Well, they have done it already, surely, by inference. They have 
lcl they are not happy with the way things have been going, they are not sure 
t they have been given clear instructions and I, for one, do not feel bound by 

y other committee.
u Nothing has been done, up till now, and we are stuck with the decision. Let 
. .Wake it and say we want something done and, if it has not been done before, 

ls too bad.
p Mr. Long: I think if you will review the replies that were given by the 

iftie Ministers, you will find that they rather pushed it back to the Council, 
*hey not? I do not have them before me, but that is my understanding.

y Mr. Martineau: I have them. We asked the two Prime Ministers about that 
(Jo fhoy both said, “Well, take advice and decide.” So, that is what we have 

e‘ And may I read one of the replies from one of the Prime Ministers?
It seems to me, therefore, that the Council should obtain whatever 

legal or other advice it regards as necessary or desirable and then should 
Wake its own determination of the course it should pursue.

Mr. Baldwin Words of Solomon.
the Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Is the Committee examining the report of 
iti0Vp „ tor General? I do not think we should dodge this issue and I would 
Coftie

j.i

x- Lr*at we defer this matter for further consideration until the Committee
es to wake up its report.
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The Chairman: Mr. Thomas, I would like to accept your motion but, in 
view of the time and the number of our members who have had to leave, we 
have not a quorum here to pass a motion.

Mr. Baldwin: Am I correct in this, Mr. Chairman? Many of the things in 
which we do not come to a final adjudication now, will be brought up when we 
come to consider in camera what our decision is.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): This is not left?
The Chairman: No, it will not be left, Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : As long as I have that understanding.
Mr. Leblanc We will pick it up when we study the Auditor General’s 1965 

report, where it is at page 214. We had this marked at the beginning of this 
session as a matter that we must reconsider at this time.

The Chairman: It certainly will not be dropped and it will be followed, Mr- 
Thomas.

Well, gentlemen, we have been glad to have you with us this morning and 
you may be hearing from us later on, regarding this one point that we have left.

The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Thursday, May 19, 1966.

(10)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.10 a.m., the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Bigg, Dionne, Forbes, Gen- 
"r°n, Hales, Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, Noble, Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas 
(Middlesex West), Tucker, Winch (15).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; and Messrs. 
rfPg, Crowley, Douglas, Smith, Rider, Laroche, Buzza and Hayes of the Auditor 
General’s staff.

The Chairman invited Mr. Henderson to make a statement on his visit to
Supreme Audit Institution.

On a motion of Mr. Bigg, seconded by Mr. Baldwin the Committee agreed 
^ Print a List of Remissions of Postage Charges under Section 22 of the 
^Piancial Administration Act (See Appendix 3) and list of government agencies 

covered by the Public Officers Guarantee Account (See

following questioning of Messrs. Henderson and Long on the remnants of 
e 1964 Auditor General Report, the Committee discussed the scheduling of 

fitnesses for future meetings when the 1965 Report will be considered. The 
th instructed the Clerk to arrange the presence of representatives from

Cost Office Department for Wednesday, May 25, 1966 and the Public Works 
ePartment for Thursday May 26.

The Chairman adjourned the meeting at 12.55 p.m. to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.

. departments 
appendix 4).
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday, May 19, 1966.
• (11.09 a.m.)

The Chairman : Gentlemen, we have a quorum.
We welcome back with us this morning, Mr. Henderson, who has just 

^turned from a very interesting and, no doubt, productive trip and meeting at 
j e Governing Board of the International Secretariat of the Supreme Audit 
Ostitutions which he attended as Canada’s auditor and where he was associated 
rth auditors from all parts of the world. I think it would be nice to have a 
°rd first from Mr. Henderson on his return, 

v Then we will have Mr. Long proceed with a few items from the 1964 report 
ofore we go into the 1965 Auditor General’s report.

Mr. Winch: We welcome Mr. Henderson back. You have asked him to say a 
Q,w words. I would be pleased if he would also say whether or not, as a result 

this most important meeting of auditors general—perhaps not beyond a few 
0lMs now—but he may be able to advise our Committee, at a special meeting 
rhaps, on how the procedures followed by other auditors general might apply 
°Ur own procedures?

jjj ^r- A. M. Henderson (Auditor General) : Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 
rnbors. It is indeed true that I arrived back about midnight last night after 
Usual hurly-burly of aeroplanes.

Go * kad an extremely interesting series of meetings at this first meeting of the 
heiaer.n^ng Hoard of the International Secretariat of Supreme Audit Institutions, 
iw ln Vienna, which, with the 12 countries, form the Governing Board, 

Renting an organization of about 80 countries around the world.
Wfi; ’bllere were the 12 auditors general there, and we discussed the basis on 
by_j SUch an organization as this could work and what its constitution and 
the t*Ws.sh°uld be. I had been invited to serve, as I told you, acting on behalf of 
i^g ritish Commonwealth. I was, therefore, in effect, the only English-speak- 
°Ur Person present; the meeting was run in about five languages and we held 
^hièh ’n the board room of the International Atomic Energy Agency

18 °ne of the specialized agencies of the United Nations—
^r- Winch: Did you meet underneath the atomic energy room?

hroJia Henderson: They are the only people there who have the facilities to 
e the translation—

®eherai ^INCH: I was just thinking it is strange—atomic energy and auditors

ahd »> r' Henderson: There were some very interesting exchanges on practices 
oedures and items of common interest, and we are by way of holding a

315
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watching brief on it to determine if it is worthwhile to Canada and also what 
we can contribute particularly in the area of helping less fortunate countries.

I have a responsibility to advise the other members of the Commonwealth 
on what our attitude should be because we in the Commonwealth, as you know, 
all operate from the same basic constitution.

After the Vienna meeting I spent the first two days of this week with Sir 
Edmund Compton, the Comptroller and Auditor General of the United Kingdom 
in Westminster, who is preparing for a meeting of the Commonwealth auditors 
general in September. I had this meeting in order that we might determine on 
what basis we could discuss participation and what recommendations we could 
make to them.

Unfortunately I did not have an opportunity to see Mr. Arnold Smith, of 
the Commonwealth Secretariat. He is equally interested in this, because an 
organization of this size is really very much a miniature United Nations. They 
meet every three years, and this Board of Governors is the governing body. The 
Austrian Government provides the secretariat and this is the reason we meet m 
Vienna. They have voted funds to provide a permanent institution. Then" 
parliament has appropriated something like $70 thousand or $80 thousand f°r 
the purpose of carrying out research and functioning as a headquarters. This 
is the second meeting they have called in Vienna.

It was altogether very productive. I may say that in Westminster I wa® 
privileged to be taken, Mr. Chairman, into the Public Accounts Committee 0 
the British House of Commons—which is, of course, held in camera—just for a 
brief look at the method of functioning; I had an opportunity to listen to quite 3 
lengthy debate in the House of Commons when various matters like th 
shipping dispute were under discussion; and also to visit with a number 0 
people in the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General in London.

It was an excellent trip and I would like to thank you again for permitting 
me to absent myself for the three meetings which were involved, Mr. Chairman 
I hope that everything went along to your satisfaction. Mr. Long has told 111 
that you—

Mr. Winch: Just one question. Was there anything decided which, at 
future meeting, you think should be conveyed to this Committee, on decisi0 
made that may assist us in our work in this Committee?

Mr. Henderson: Toward improving the way in which we do our work? 
that what you have in mind?

Mr. Winch: Yes.
i TheMr. Henderson: Not a great deal, Mr. Winch, to be perfectly frank. ^ 

British Committee operates in camera; we do not. I must say that I m* 
perhaps we make greater progress by our method of operation. They, of cou ^ 
print all their testimony, but it comes out later and perhaps, if I may ^ 

pardoned for saying so, it makes rather dry reading when you go back 0 
months and months of discussion. On the other hand, we seem to work * .

meeting to meeting. It represents an interesting comparison. They bring in 10 ry 
departmental witnesses to their committee hearings than we do; almost ev^ ^ 
meeting consists of three or four departmental people present. They move ^ 
slower pace and they hold more meetings. Of course, perhaps they are ame 
have a greater exchange because their sittings are in camera.
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• (11.15 a.m.)
The Chairman: Do they sit while the House is sitting?
Mr. Henderson: I understand not; at least that point was not evident when 

I was there. They seem to meet about four days a week at the present time.
Mr. Lefebvre: I am very glad that you were able to have this trip Mr. 

Henderson, and as this is the Public Accounts Committee and you are the 
Auditor General, I hope that your expense account was well made out so that 
we will not run across it in next year’s report.

Mr. Henderson: I hope so, too.
Mr. Baldwin: I recall that we had some discussion at the last session as to 

who audits the Auditor General.
I have a number of comments to make which touch on this subject, but I 

arn going to leave them until we get into the beginning of the 1965 report which 
‘ think is the appropriate place. I am glad Mr. Winch brought this up because it 
torms a foundation for the comments I want to make, Mr. Chairman. So I 
Slmply want to file a caveat with respect to matters that I do want to bring up 
which result from the questions I asked earlier.

The Chairman: All right, Mr. Baldwin. Mr. Henderson, you spoke about 
heir testimony being published later on. I do not think it can be any later than 

°Urs at the present time and at this point I would like to explain to the 
J°mmittee why we are six meetings behind in the printed copies of our sessions, 

really have no explanation other than our good clerk, Mr. Thomas, has told me 
hat they have been proof read and they are at the printers and we should have 

ein before this week is out at least some of them anyway.
Mr. Lefebvre: Does that apply also to the French copies, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman: I am afraid those will be a bit behind, Mr. Lefebvre, 

jJ0rn what Mr. Thomas tells me. I do not know where the break down has 
een. We used to get our written copies almost for the next meeting. We 
re hoping that this will be corrected.

Now, Mr. Long, I think you have possibly one or two things to answer 
lch were brought about by questions at a previous meeting, 

j Mr. G. R. Long (Assistant Auditor General) : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
ave two answers here that were requested at previous meetings.

retn
At the meeting of May 5 we were asked to provide a list of the twenty 

c^lssi°ns made by the Governor in Council in connection with postage 
to fif68' There are actually 18 and I have a list of them here which I will pass 
h e Chairman. You may wish to have this printed and attached to today’s 

°Ceedings.
9d The Chairman: Would someone like to move that this be printed as an 
tjjj n<hx to our proceedings? Before we pass on, I would draw your attention to 
tho W^en you receive a copy of it, that there is a remission on here for $10 
MlJ1Sand and some odd dollars, which is a very large amount. I am sure you 
$2 gg8 ant to do a little further investigating of that. The next highest one is
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Mr. Winch: May I ask, Mr. Chairman, whether you will make the necessary 
inquiries to have somebody appear and explain that $10 thousand item?

The Chairman: I think we will follow up with this just as soon as we table 
the other list, or would you like to do it now?

Mr. Long: Probably it would be just as well to give a brief explanation 
now.

The Chairman: Right. Well, it is not in our report at any place, is it? This 
has been tabled. I am sorry that we do not have copies for everybody this 
morning, but I think we can ask Mr. Crowley to explain this one remission, 
Meredith Publishing Company of Des Moines, Iowa, for $10,040,66. That is the 
largest one.

Mr. H. G. Crowley (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office) : This organ­
ization gets out the publication known as Better Homes and Gardens and, as I 
mentioned at the meeting when this matter came up, it is a matter of the 
publication not complying with the rules and regulations of the Post Office 
Department regarding publications. To be specific in this case, the October and 
November 1964 issues contained advertising inserts which were not allowed f°r 
in the paging sequence in conformity with the requirements of the postal 
regulations. Mr. Biggs mentioned, too, that it is the custom of some of these 
publishers to place inserts in the publication. However, rules of the Post Office 
Department at that time required that they be page numbered, that they carry 
the name of the publication and that they be inserted in proper sequence.

This particular publication, Better Homes and Gardens, for these two 
months, apparently failed to meet this requirement. That meant that they 
would have to pay a much higher rate and the higher rate resulted in an extra 
assessment of something like $10,040.66. The Post Office Department, for 3 
number of reasons, felt that they should not penalize this particular company at 
the time so they asked for the remission.

The Chairman: Are there any questions of Mr. Crowley?
Mr. Winch: I have one question. This is a very well known publication; & 

has been published to my knowledge for a great many years. Can you expia111 
why they would make that kind of mistake? In view of the fact that they hav 
been publishing for years with our advertising, why, after all those years, 0 
knowledge, should they be recompensed?

Mr. Crowley: It is an American publication, but apparently for the first 
time this type of insert was being placed in the Canadian edition. There was 
another reason, too, for the department being rather lenient. This happened 1 
October and November 1964; in December 1964 they relaxed a number of these 
sections of the regulations and, I think, because of the mistake made by 
company and because the Post Office Department were relaxing their régula 
tions, they felt that the company should be dealt with leniently.

Mr. Winch: If my knowledge is correct, and I hope it is, our Canadian la^® 
and regulations are such that everything must be in the magazine itself. 1 
not know of anything on an insert basis. An insert basis is not the same as 
actual publication. Am I correct in that?

J
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Mr. Crowley: Mr. Winch, the regulations in force at the time the infraction 
took place contain these clauses: The advertising inserts had to be, first, 
permanently attached when enclosed in bound publications; 2. bear the date of 
issue and name of the publication on each page when enclosed in unbound 
Publications, 3. the page must be numbered in regular sequence with the rest of 
the publication or allowance made for the insert in the regular paging sequence, 
and 4. they must not constitute a sample of the advertised product.

Therefore, it practically meant that the insert had to be part and parcel of 
the publication. They have now relaxed this provision and the regulations are 
n°t so stringent.

Mr. Winch: Might I ask one final question on this because I think it has an 
important bearing? It is an American publication and for a long time it was 
distributed and sold in Canada. They know our rules and regulations and our 
laws. What was the basic reason, with a long established publication such as this, 
f°r deciding that we should reimburse them in the amount of over $10 
thousand?

Mr. Crowley: I think, Mr. Chairman, what really happened here is that 
this matter of inserts is something of recent origin. In other words, I believe it 
is only within the last two or three years that newspapers and publications have 
taken advantage or have sort of become accustomed to this matter of inserts. As 
a matter of fact, I think, if we look at our magazines lately we will see that they 
aro filled with them, but this was not the case two or three years ago. I do not 
know, why, but for some reason this publication was not acquainted with our 
Canadian postal regulations with respect to this matter.

Mr. Winch: May I ask Mr. Henderson or Mr. Long to give his view on this 
Patter because it has been brought to our attention by your report?

Mr. Henderson: Perhaps Mr. Long could speak with a special knowledge of 
'Ms, Mr. Winch, if I might ask him to.

that
Mr. Long: I think Mr. Crowley has given most of the specific information

1 we have. I would point out, however, that American publications mailed in 
p 6 United States to Canadian subscribers have to be handled by the Canadian 

Office. I am not positive that this is the case here, but it could be that this 
hcation only started trucking to Canada to mail and thereby came under our 

^ M laws. I do not think we know whether that is the case, but most 
Sq erican publications are put in the post office in the United States. However, 

e of them found it advantageous to truck their publications to Toronto or to 
e other centre on this side of the border in which case we get the postage. 

e ho not receive any postage in the case of mailings in the United States.
att ^r' Winch: Mr. Long, can I ask you then why you brought this to our 

option through the report? What did you want us to correct?
Long: We did not bring this up in the report, Mr. Winch. There was a 

'his 6St the remissions be reported to this Committee. We did not single 
^mission out for any comment.

°Ut r*’ARDIF : Is it not the responsibility of the people using our mail to find 
W M the regulations are?
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Mr. Winch: That is my point. Why should we pay $10 thousand if, in the 
United States, they do not know our regulations and then we rebate $10 
thousand? Why should we be responsible for paying out $10 thousand because a 
publication in the United States did not know or did not follow our Canadian 
regulations?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, if I may just interject here. These are the 
18 cases in this year which you requested to have listed. In this particular case, 
as in the others which you will see listed—and some are fairly large, although 
the next one is $2,698 to Time in Chicago—the Governor in Council is permitted 
by law to grant such remissions and the department, presumably after a great 
deal of discussion with the publishers and a review of the circumstances—we do 
not have their files here and are not able to speak from an intimate knowledg6 
of that—would make a request to the Governor in Council for these remissions to 
be granted.

Mr. Tardif : You have not answered the question I asked. I asked are they 
not responsible for finding out what the regulations are?

Mr. Henderson: My answer to your question is that the post office official5 
should be invited to come here and answer that from their files.

Mr. Tardif: I have another question. You have listed 18 cases like that- 
How many more cases are there, and what is the total amount?

Mr. Crowley: The total amount is $20,128.46.
Mr. Bigg: Is this not a case where we are not giving them back money, but 

we are not collecting penalties? Do they actually pay the money in and then we 
give it back to them?

Mr. Henderson: That is right. We did get some postage, Mr. Bigg, which 
might not have received at all. If they had mailed in the United States 
would not have received any postage.

Mr. Tardif: No, but that is a third class matter, no doubt? The more they 
mail at second or third class rates, the more we lose. So this is no advantage.

Mr. Long: But we would have to deliver them anyway. If they are maile^ 
in the United States they come in under the postal convention and a 
delivered; we would do all the work.

Mr. Tardif : So with this method we lose less?

Mr. Long: Yes.

• (11.30 p.m.)
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to ask who 

responsible actually for authorizing these remissions?
Mr. Henderson: It would be the Governor in Council on the recommend3 

tion of the Post Office Department.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : This is quite within the law?
Mr. Henderson: Oh, yes; we would have no criticism of that, Mr. Th00^ 

The underlying reasons would, and should be given, I think, by officials of 
Post Office Department. We do not have their files here.
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Mr. Winch: If we want to follow through on your suggestion and ask the 
Post Office officials to explain.

The Chairman: We will let Mr. Thomas finish his question.
Mr. Winch: I am sorry, I thought he was.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Then, really any action or criticism that we 

£ould offer would be criticism of the policy being followed by the Post Office 
department, and under those circumstances we should offer them an opportuni­
ty to give us an explanation.

Mr. Hendeson: That is right.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : They must have had good sound reasons for 

d°ing it.
The Chairman: Would that be the wish of the Committee?
Mr. Henderson: They could be invited to appear as a witness and to 

answer to this, or alternatively they could be invited to file a statement with the 
ommittee on this specific case giving their reasons, if you wish to have it 

handled that way.
Mr. Winch: I am not concerned with the $10 thousand but I am concerned 

'"nth the principle involved.
The Chairman : If that would be the wish of the Committee, I would say 

at we have a witness here at the earliest opportunity to explain these remis- 
°ns in general and particularly this large one that we mentioned. But just so 
at we might be a little better versed and able to ask questions of the witness, 

ah at a*30u1' a company in Canada that gets a remission?? We have been talking 
g °ut an American. The next largest one in Canada is the Quebec Pension 
in'p'd—a remission of $1,300 odd dollars, and another one is the Sun Publishing 

Edmonton, Alberta. These are Canadian companies.
Puhi-^r" CR0WLEY: What happened, Mr. Chairman, with regard to the Sun 
th Company was that when the department amended its regulations,
tio *Un Publishing Company failed to comply even with the amended regula- 
c ns- lu other words, ignorance of the law again. So they were able to put up a 
lr(Se 1° t*le Post Office Department and they obtained a remission accordingly. 

0 her words, they pleaded ignorance of the regulations. Why they did that or 
y they did not know the regulations, well, I do not know.

Wj., *n the case of the Quebec board, apparently this was a matter in connection 
fre pensi°ns and they were under the assumption that they had the right to 
hot ^staSe- They apparently sent copies of this particular circular out and did 
douhi X Pr°Per postage, so that the result was that they were subject to 
case e the postage for each circular delivered. What the department did in this 
rem>TaS to remlt the extra assessment. We collected the proper postage but we

1 ec* the double rate due to the penalty.
h0 ^r- Winch: Mr. Chairman, I can understand this situation in Quebec, but, 
are er> you and I, sir, have been in Parliament long enough to know that we 
Publ ■ u • S° °Pen that ignorance of the law is no excuse. Now, when you have a 
We Sh ing comPany—I understand it is the Sun from Alberta, is it not—I think 
ho ex °Ul(^ have an explanation of it. Ignorance of the law, we have been told, is 

CUse> with a company like that.
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The Chairman : You save your questions for the witness who will be before 
us shortly.

Mr. Long: The second bit of information, Mr. Chairman; at the meeting on 
May 12, Mr. Schreyer made an inquiry about the public officers guarantee 
account as to whether it covered employees of crown corporations. The answer 
is that the public officers guarantee account covers all departments except 
the Post Office Department which has its own guarantee fund and the annuity 
representatives of the Department of Labour who are covered by fidelity bonds. 
The public officers guarantee account also covers employees of the custodian of 
enemy property and all crown corporations except the Canadian National 
Railways, the Canadian National West Indies Steamships Limited, the Central 
Mortgage and Housing Corporation, Air-Canada and the Canadian Broadcasting 
Corporation.

The Chairman: Will this be printed as an appendix? Agreed? You will 
have stencilled copies of both of these sent to your offices this afternoon so that 
you can study them further.

Now, Mr. Long, you can proceed with the Non-Productive Payments 
Section on page 168 of the 1964 Auditor General’s Report.

NON-PRODUCTIVE PAYMENTS NOTED IN THE AUDIT 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1964

(See paragraph 94)
1. Settlement arising out of the dismissal of employee without the 

authority of the governor in council.—In 1956 an auditor employed by the 
Unemployment Insurance Commission was notified of his dismissal be­
cause of irregularities in his travelling expense accounts. His appeal 
against dismissal was unsuccessful.

It was a provision of section 52 of the Civil Service Act, R-®' 
1952 (since repealed) that no deputy head, officer, clerk or employ6® 
“whose appointment is of a permanent nature, shall be removed froh1 
office except by authority of the Governor in Council”. In this case the 
Unemployment Insurance Commission neglected to obtain this authoriza 
tion. Counsel for the dismissed auditor made representations to the 
Commission claiming damages for illegal dismissal but the claim 
rejected.

In May 1962 the dismissed employee submitted a Petition 0 
Right in the Exchequer Court of Canada requesting an order declaring 
him to be still an employee of Her Majesty and entitled to such pay an 
allowances as had accrued since July 5, 1956 (the effective date of hi® 
dismissal), reimbursement for loss of income of $22,675, damages 
$25,000 for unlawful interference with his employment with R®^ 
Majesty, reimbursement of his costs of and incidental to the petition, an 
such further and other relief as the Court deemed just.

After duly considering the merits of the claim, the Departmea 
of Justice recommended that it would be in the Commission’s interes 
to effect an out of court settlement with the petitioner. With the concu1"^ 
rence of the Commission and upon the dismissed employee submitting
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formal release and discharge, payments of $4,000 to him and $500 to 
his solicitors were made in final settlement in February 1964.

Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, the members will recall that at the May 12th 
Meeting I gave a summary of the non-productive payments listed in this 
appendix for 1964 by departments, showing the number in each case and the 
amount involved. I have made brief notes on each one of these and if it meets 
with your approval I will run through them quickly and you could discuss any 
that you have questions on.

The first one is the Unemployment Insurance Commission which dismissed 
an employee in 1956, but neglected to obtain the necessary approval of the 
Governor in Council as required by law. Six years later, in May, 1962, the 
dismissed employee took action in the Exchequer Court seeking to collect 
something in excess of $47,000.

On the recommendation of the Department of Justice an out of court 
settlement was effected with payments totalling $4,500 being made by the 
commission.

Mr. Tardif: That means that this fellow got paid because he was fired in an 
Regular manner for having been dishonest.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, a number of us are a bit lost here. Which one is 
that?

The Chairman: The 1964 Auditor General’s Report, on page 168, number 1.
Mr. Winch: Oh, page 168.1 thought you said page 160. A number of us here 

Were trying to follow page 160.
The Chairman: All set, now, everybody? It is Item number 1, the Unem­

ployment Insurance Commission.
Mr. Bigg: Can we have any detail on the irregularities of his expense

account?

, Mr. Long: We do not have this here. I would imagine they were expenses 
6 had not actually incurred.

Mr. Lefebvre: That is what you might call a padded expense account?
s, Mr. Long: It was serious enough that the commission considered that he 

°uld be fired, but they neglected to take that final step of obtaining approval.
Mr. Bigg: It was just the technical point that they did not do.

ar The Chairman: I wonder how we should handle these as we go along. What 
oy6 y°ur recommendations here, Mr. Henderson? You have brought these to 
. r attention; we are getting the high spots here now; do we just take it and 
6ave it or—

r Henderson: No, it is important, Mr. Chairman, that the members
1Ze that each year these non-productive payments are listed in the report. 

Ca 6 total cost of these has, I think, been given to you by Mr. Long. There are 35 
rePfS ^ere ant* there is $1,247,400 worth of public money involved. They 
acc esent cases in which no value was received for money, and it is in 
ar6°f^ance with the instructions of this Committee over the years that details 

Urnished in the report in this manner.
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In 1964, there was a good discussion in this Committee about the cases, and 
I would remind you that in your sixth report, 1964, to the House you referred to 
the fact that you had questioned deputy ministers of three of the largest 
departments, Public Works, National Defence and Transport, firstly as to the 
causes and reasons for many of the larger losses, and you also pointed out that a 
number of the losses arose from circumstances beyond the control of the 
department concerned; for example, the role of the Department of Public Works 
as a service department. You gave the opinion that the majority of these losses 
could be attributed either to failure to exercise normal commercial prudence in 
entering into contractual obligations in the first place, or to lack of effective 
departmental specifications, organization or co-ordination. You also stated that 
you believed that failure by departments to pinpoint blame for many such 
losses and to take corrective action accordingly was a contributing factor.

In my opinion in your diagnosis at that time, you put your finger right on 
the root cause. This is still with us, and when you reach my 1965 report you 
will have probably noticed the size of these non-productive expenditures which, 
as I said, for the previous year totalled 35 cases amounting to rather more than 
$1.2 million. In 1965 I listed 37 cases and the cost of these was $22,737,000. We 
take them as they come—the year in which we find them—they are the cases 
we come across. How many others there are, I cannot say. We do a test audit 
only, but these are the ones we encounter in the course of our work and after 
sifting them through, are the ones, which in my opinion, should be brought to 
the attention of the House.

Mr. Tardif : Mr. Chairman, this item number 1 is a little different, because 
this is a premium on dishonesty.

The Chairman: That is a good way to put it.
Mr. Tardif: It may be carelessness or may be people who do not know their 

business, and are not intentional but this is actually a premium on dishonesty.
Mr. Bigg : I think he should have received one dollar.
Mr. Tardif: I think he should have been fired.
Mr. Bigg: And tried again for embezzlement.
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I am very happy that Mr. Henderson has spoken 

the way he has on this matter. I remember we had a really full discussion in 
Public Accounts Committee in 1964 on this very matter; it was also discussed W 
1965, but not to the same fulsome extent. However in view of the fact the 
there was such a lengthy and concerned discussion in our Committee in 19° ’ 
and no corrective action has been taken on either the 1964 report or 1965 rep°r 
without going into detail on all of the reports made to us now by the Audit01" 
General, I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if because of the importance of this matter, t0 
which apparently no attention is being paid, even although this Committee haS 
reported, whether or not you, sir, will take under consideration on both the 
1964 and 1965 reports on this matter, calling before us the head man in 
Treasury Board, because I believe that everything must go through the Trea^ 
ury Board, so that we can get a down to earth discussion on this matter as 
what is going to happen.
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Now Mr. Henderson is the right man to call the head of the Treasury 
Board.

Mr. Henderson: If I may say so, I think that while the Secretary of the 
Treasury Board, Dr. Davidson, is himself very concerned about the occurrence of 
such losses, they take place in departments under circumstances over which he 
has little if any actual control. They are incurred at source and, therefore, the 
deputy ministers, for the most part, are the people who must take the 
responsibility. You will remember your discussion here with the Deputy 
Minister of Public Works. It would be my suggestion that, if you are agreeable, 
Mr. Long has some brief notes here on each of these and he might be invited to 
give them to the Committee and you might care to jot down those on which you 
would like to hear a witness, and when we are through let us see how many 
Witnesses you would want to call. You will be having some of these deputy 
Ministers present on other matters. You will see the type. Mr. Tardif has 
categorizeci this first one. They are not all like this—projects abandoned, plans 
Uever used; they arise from a variety of causes. Would it not be helpful if he 
gave you a quick run-down of what was in the 1964 report? We will be doing 
11 again in the 1965 report.

Mr. Winch: This is the point I am after. I remember 1964 and 1965; now I 
g° over this and go all through them and there are additional costs owing to 
l a change of plans and even buying things and then not using property in 
hidings.

The 
Bebla:

Chairman: I have a suggestion to make but before I do that Mr. 
nc has a question.

■translation)
Qr Mr. Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, errors of judgment or errors of preparation, 
oth lanSCriPti°n errors do not necessarily occur repeatedly from one year to the 
in lT' are n°t necessarily dealing with the same mistakes in 1964 and again 
pri . ' These are cases which happen once and are not repeated later on. The 
Lrnc*.PM is the same, especially for contracts where errors have been made, 
the errors can be made the next year, but they do not apply necessarily to 

same department, the same building or the same project.
111.47 a.m.) 
n9lish)

for '^r‘ Tardif: Mr. Chairman, in connection with what Mr. Leblanc just said, 
foil lnstance> in clause 3 there is a contract where the specifications were 
ew Wed by the contractor but the finished project did not do the work it was 
this Ctec* to do. Who was responsible in the department to give the go-ahead on 
hever atter ^e-t°re finding out that this was an American specification which had 
s°in k '3een used in the United States? I would imagine the first question that 
be. who is responsible for this type of decision, would ask himself would
Utm as this ever used?”, or, “is there a finished product that was made in the 
on States?” However, $54,000 plus $28,000 of experimenting were expended 

Pr°duct, on specifications and designs that came from the United States 
thou never been manufactured in the United States and nobody ever

°f making inquiries. Did he get a promotion? I guess he did.
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The Chairman: Mr. Tardif, I appreciate your remarks. With regard to Mr. 
Henderson’s report that under the British system they have witnesses with 
them at practically every meeting, I would think that in going through these 
non-productive items we should have it scheduled so that we have witnesses 
frorn the Department before us on the day we discuss all the items concerning 
the Department of Public Works. Then we will be in a position to have the 
questions that you have asked answered by the officials. When we are finished 
with that department we can line up another department, and so on, and have a 
witness cit prscticslly every meeting

Now, in order for us to be the cross-examiners we are going to have to do 
some homework so that we can ask intelligent questions of the witnesses. To 
ma e ourselves more conversant with the matter I would suggest that we run 

rough these items now with Mr. Long. I would also suggest that you make 
notes bearing in mind that we are going to have the witnesses of these 

me"t® before us, and ask a few questions of Mr. Long as he goes along 
wmch will help to formulate your questions for the witnesses who will be here 
later on.

Mr Winch Mr Chairman, you have made an excellent suggestion, but I 
would also like to add that I hope at some time we will call Dr. Davidson of the 

reasury Board before us. In the last analysis the Treasury Board has to pass 
on these items, and if we have him here we can get the broad picture and ask 

_6;ary u■ the.Treasury Board how these things happen and if there is 
y way, rom is point of view, that we can prevent them from happening.

. ̂ r" TARDm. I am glad you suggested, Mr. Chairman, that we get prepared
,° as,,in c,/®fn gestions. I am sure the members of the Committee are goiné
nrnhlp^I h tt V6ry religiously. However, in looking at some of the 
problems submitted here by the Auditor General, I do not think that is a major

nnpQtfnn Baldwin. Mr. Chairman, if this is the policy then may I ask Mr. Long a
pLh Wp the^mt/tTm’ which mi§ht have some effect on who we are going t0 

~s', a see about the first item is that there were two errors
mî=dJnnT Was the neSlect of the Unemployment Insurance Com­
mission to obtain the authorization required under section 52 of the Civi1
Service Act. That certainly requires an explanation but you go beyond this and 
say after the action has been commenced under the Petition of Rights, then the 
Department of Justice recommended—and here I point out, Mr. Chairman, the 
si m cancc o is statement that it would be in the commission’s interest- 
Now it did not say that there was any legal liability according to the report- 
Mr. Long may be able to fill me in on that. Did the Department of Justice 
biUty?men 3 settlement because there was some doubt as to legal responsi'

I point this out because it is a general principle that any employee of a 
permanent nature, whether in the Public Service covered by the Civil Servie6 

c or in private business, cannot be improperly dismissed without giving risf, 
o cause of action. However, he is dismissed for cause, and certainly “cause 
includes irregularities in regard to travelling expenses, he is not entitled to ah? 
claim for wages that he would have lost because of the termination of *6
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employment. I am sure the intention of the Civil Service Act was to give effect 
to the same principles in the Public Service as apply in industry.

Therefore, you have two errors here, namely a failure to obtain the 
necessary authorization and an apparent opinion by the Department of Justice 
which, as far as I can see, was certainly not justified by the facts. There is an 
official in each department whom I would like to question, unless either Mr. 
Henderson or Mr. Long has something to indicate that the Department of 
Justice recommended that it would be not only in the commission’s interest to 
settle—and I can see it would be in their interest to settle because they made an 
error—but it would be a sound decision on behalf of the government to make a 
settlement because there might be some legal responsibility. No lawyer should 
advise a settlement unless he feels there is a fair chance the case is going to be 
lost.

Mr. Long: I think, Mr. Baldwin, this man would contend that he was not 
dismissed. The law requires that the Governor in Council do the dismissing. The 
governor in Council did not act. Therefore, he is claiming for all the salary that 
ue would have received in this period. I suspect that Justice thought that rather 
ban spend money fighting this case in court, in which event the man may have 

bod a point because he had not legally been dismissed, it was better to give him 
a certain amount.

Mr. Baldwin: That is a very interesting point because if the Civil Service 
.cl is now in such a state that an employee, no matter how grievous his 
b't'egulatiry may be and no matter if he stole half a million dollars, cannot be 
ismissed without getting an authorization, then there is something wrong with 

lue law.

Mr. Long: He can be suspended; the deputy minister can suspend him and 
e ultimate decision with regard to that suspension determines whether he is 

or not.

safe.
Mr. Tardif: I hope when they do that they keep the combination of the

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I think before we are in a position to 
Question the advice given by the Department of Justice, we would have to get 
ijuite a bit more information on this matter. After all, one could question the 

6gree of the irregularity involved, the blatancy of it, what was the magnitude 
?! the irregularity, had the man attempted this before and was he warned by 
,3s superiors in the commission. All these things add up to the basis upon which 
ttle legal advisers of the Department of Justice made their recommendation.

, Mr. Long: Mr. Schreyer, your are now looking behing the dismissal; that 
a ^ Ml been decided. He had done something which he should not have done 

Hie penalty was dismissal.
^r- Tardif: Besides, can there be a degree of dishonesty?

to ^r' Bigg: H seems to me that if he did anything which was serious enough 
lulk°Se permanent employment there could have been charges laid. We are 
Set,. ln§ here about locking the door. Well, surely if he has committed a crime 
Sehi°U^ enough to lose permanent employment, with all the attendant loss of

°rity and everything, else then charges should be laid and the Crown would 
2h9z_2
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be protected from this type of blackmail; that is all I can call this. They said, 
“You made a slight error in the regulations”, and he asked for $47,675. If he 
thought that his very minor fault was only requiring a reprimand, then this 
should have been cleaned up right from the start and we would not have had all 
this difficulty. I would say that in future we should, in some way, tighten up on 
the policies to say that this matter, where a man loses his employment over 
dishonesty, should be cleared up right at the sart. A more lenient judge might 
have given him half of what he asked for.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Bigg has raised the very point I was coming to. It says 
here “because of irregularities in his travelling expense account”. I gather this 
means that he falsified his expense account and received money to which he was 
not entitled. I want to ask, in support of Mr. Bigg, that if this means that he 
falsified his expense account and received money to which he was not entitled, 
why was no charge laid? He stole money from the taxpayer’s account.

Mr. Bigg: I am not accusing this man of theft. I am saying that we should 
have cleaned it up.

Mr. Winch: No, I am asking if this is what it means.
Mr. Bigg: Because in an expense account he might have thought, for 

instance, that he was entitled to $8 per night regardless of whether he stayed at 
a hotel or not, and so forth just a blanket account. Through a misunderstanding 
in regulations, he may have put in a blanket expense account and perhaps the 
local auditor found out that he had been over paid $1,200 over a period of years. 
He said, “Well, I took that because I thought it was all right”. Now, these 
mistakes can be made. That is the kind of thing I would like to see cleaned up.

Mr. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, is Mr. Bigg indicating that these government 
employees do not have to provide a voucher for their expense acounts?

Mr. Bigg: Not for everything, no.
Mr. Henderson: I would point out to Mr. Bigg that when we use the word 

“irregularity” it means just that. It is not lack of comprehension with regard to 
how to make an expense account out; it is padding an expense account or doing 
something which is contrary to what a man should submit. I cannot say that as 
a definite statement without looking at the file, but when we use the word 
“irregularities” here, that is what they are. Regardless of whether it is padding 
or some other type of failure to comply, or a deception of some kind, that is 
what has crept in here. The department dismissed him and that explains it-

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, this looks to me like a case 
that we could have well passed up; I do not see where we can do anythin^ 
about it. The Civil Service Act was apparently disregarded by the officials 
concerned. It was possibly done through an oversight. The Justice Departmen 
used their best judgment in recommending a settlement and the chances ar 
that the case was so involved that it could not be settled without long extensive 
litigation. Now that the thing is done, it seems to me that we could probably 
well pass up this item number 1, except that it was information in passing.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, does section 52 of the act give this protecti0lj 
to employees who have been charged and convicted of defalcation, or does 1 
just apply to a case where dismissal is attempted without charges being laid?
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Mr. Long: Mr. Schreyer, this section has since been repealed and replaced 
by another section. I think I am right in saying that you still require the 
approval of the Governor in Council for any dismissal.

An Hon. Member: Leading to a conviction?
Mr. Long: I think this would have to be dealt with before you obtained a 

conviction. You have a big time lag in such cases. I might suggest to members 
that you now have a bill before you in the House, namely the Public Service 
Commission Act, and I believe there is a section in it with respect to dismissal. 
This will be the current thing. The act which we referred to has been changed 
and the section which changed it is in turn now in the process of being changed.

Mr. Schreyer: I will not pursue it at this time because it is not completely 
germane.

The Chairman: In order to have a little continuity here I would suggest 
that at the next meeting we have the witnesses of the Post Office Department 
before us and we have the remissions part to discuss first. Would it be agreeable 
h Mr. Long just picks out the non-productive items that have to do with the 
P°st Office only and then we will be prepared for the Post Office people at our 
bext meeting?

Mr. Long: The only trouble there, Mr. Chairman, is that there are none 
concerning the Post Office in 1964.

The Chairman: Are there some in 1965?
Mr. Long: I do not think so.
Mr. Henderson: The Post Office is a revenue department, not a spending 

hopartment.

, The Chairman: In that case we can pick another department. We do not 
, ave to have the Post Office Department at the next meeting. I just picked that 

ecause of the statement on remissions.
Mr. Long: The next eight remissions in order are all National Defence.
Mr. Henderson: You have a number of problems, Mr. Chairman, under the 

on-productive heading that are going to come up and also under the 1965 re- 
£°rt paragraphs involving the departments. The largest involved are the 
/^Partment of Public Works and the Department of National Defence to give 
°u two. Of the 35 cases that you have before you in the 1964 report, 19 alone 

Z6 from the Department of Public Works. We had Mr. Lalonde, the Deputy 
•nister, before us in 1964 and I think in that year a very large proportion of 

3ge group you were looking at were his and they are here again with 19 out of 
• That would dispose of 19 of these with one witness. At the same time there 

quite a number of paragraphs in the 1965 report to which, presumably, you 
°UM wish to have him speak.

The Chairman: How would it be, Mr. Henderson, if we have the Post Office 
r ople here on remissions? I notice that Public Works and Post Office are 

ted in some of these non-productive items.
(jjs ^r. Henderson: I believe that during my absence one of the items 

CUssed was the Agriculture building.
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The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Henderson: That is in the Department of Public Works. Mr. Lalonde 

would be your principal witness on that, so you might include that one too. It 
might be more productive to set one aside meeting, at your earliest convenience, 
and we will see to it that all the cases of the Department of Public Works are 
brought forward. It would be a full meeting.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, we could pool all the items 
from the 1964 and the 1965 report. Now, I would suggest that perhaps Mr. 
Henderson and Mr. Long could group these under department.

Mr. Long: They are already grouped, Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): For instance, if all the items we have under 

the Post Office Department concern those remissions, it might be possible to 
deal with those in one meeting along with some other smaller group. We could 
have the officials of two or three departments here to deal with the smaller 
groups. It might take one or two meetings in the case of Public Works.

Mr. Henderson: If you deal with the Post Office Department you can also 
take up second class mail and the whole question of the postal revenues which 
is a subject of continuing comment, as you know, and it started with your 
follow-up report. It is just a matter of deciding on the days and the people to 
be called.

The Chairman : We will have the Post Office officials at the next meeting) 
and the first item will be remissions; then you have second class mail. This is 
not under a non-productive item?

Mr. Henderson: No; that is a larger subject.
The Chairman : What was the other item, Mr. Henderson?
Mr. Henderson: Public Works.
The Chairman: No. Was there anything else under Post Office?
Mr. Henderson: The Post Office revenues generally and the position in th® 

Post Office are set out in various paragraphs of the report; we can tie them 
in together.

The Chairman: All right, that is the Post Office Department. Then we can 
go on with Public Works at the next meeting and we will pick out the 
non-productive items here that deal with that department.

Mr. Henderson: While we are on the question of witnesses you may want 
senior witnesses from the Department of National Revenue. You will need to s® 
aside one meeting for that because there are a lot of questions there. There 
the one with which your subcommittee was dealing, and there are a number 0 
others.

The Chairman : Can we now pick out the non-productive items in the 19® 
report that deal with Public Works, and we will go on with those with the 
witness at our next meeting, as soon as we are through with the Post Offic£ 
Department.

Mr. Winch: I completely agree with your procedure, Mr. Chairman, but 
I understand correctly that in the meetings which you are going to arrange n°
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that Mr. Henderson will let the officials know that we are going to ask them 
questions on both the 1964 and the 1965 reports on a consolidated basis?

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Winch: You will notify them on both reports what this Committee 

wants to know?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, you will have them on all items in both reports.
Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, I could give the members the paragraphs that 

hi be involved. If you want to deal with the Post Office and everything 
°ncerning the Post Office, I could give you the paragraph numbers in the two 

rePorts right now.
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I suggest, and it is only a suggestion, and I 

accept your plan, that instead of us having to go through the 1964 and 1965 
J^Ports, now that Mr. Henderson and Mr. Long, in approaching the various 
Apartments, outline them and then supply us with the material outlined.

The Chairman: I am sorry to take the time of the Committee, but I think it 
1 save us a lot of time and we will be better equipped to handle ourselves 
en the officials come before us.

j Mr. Long, would you now give us those items that deal with the Post Office. 
'°uld suggest, gentlemen, that you write these down.

9 Mr. Long: In the 1964 report, you will be interested in paragraphs 77, 78, 79 
*68. These are the paragraphs dealing with the Post Office and you will be 

earing from a witness on them.
1(1q *n **le 1965 report you will want to look at paragraphs 105, 106, 107, 108, 

’ HO. 111 and 218.
js Chairman : That will take a whole meeting with the Post Office people.

. a§reeable that at our next meeting we will have the Post Office officials?
9 3q ®ntally> the next meeting will be on Wednesday morning of next week at
tk_, because Monday is a holiday and we felt we had better put it over until 

at time.

Henderson: Perhaps we can give you similar references at the next
ty *n§ with respect to the paragraphs dealing with the Department of Public 

s as well as the non-productive items.
^ Winch: Could we have the ones on Public Works now or at the next

°Ur i . Chairman: You should be sure to keep these before you, and I think
clerk
Mr.

will furnish us with the material.
C(w Cong: I would ask Mr. Smith to check me on these as I give them. In 
Ad 82ti0n Public Works in the 1964 report, there will be paragraphs 80, 81 
All n *n appendix two, that is the non-productive payments in 1964, you

j ee<l Hem 13 to item 31 inclusive, as well as items 34 and 35. 
don Ae 1965 report you will want paragraphs 112 to 123 inclusive. The 
Id cductive payments come under paragraph 142 in this case, they are not 

54]g^Ten(lix. You will also need items 8 to 15, under paragraph 142.
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Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, may I ask one question here. When we have the 
officials from the Department of Public Works on the 1964 and 1965 reports, 
will we be permitted to ask questions about the fantastic situation with respect 
to increases from $9 million to $23 or $35 million on costs?

The Chairman: Oh yes.
Mr. Winch: We can ask these questions at the same time?
The Chairman: Yes. That is the purpose of having these witnesses here.
Mr. Winch: Could we also ask for a subcommittee, if required, to go over 

the plans and original orders? I only raise that, sir, because once, I think, three 
of us went over to the Department of Public Works and went over all their 
blueprints and plans. Will this matter be kept in mind if it will be of assistance?

The Chairman: Yes, if it is the wish of the Committee.
Now, let us examine our procedure from here. We know that we are goin£ 

to have the Post Office people with us; we have gone over items 77, 78, 79 an 
168.

Mr. Lefebvre: Mr. Chairman, what is the situation with regard to the 
Crown Assets Corporation? We were told that we would be hearing from 
witnesses in this respect in the near future.

The Chairman: Yes, we will.
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, is the head man in Crown Assets being advise^ 

that we would like to know about the policy discussions being tied in wit 
another department? Do you remember, Mr. Henderson, that that was aI1 
important matter?

Mr. Henderson: Yes. That should be brought to his attention. I think 
should decide on the dates when you will have these witnesses. As I understate 
it, you will hear from the Post Office Department next Wednesday, and Pubhc 
Works the meeting after, which I think will be Thursday, and then ^ 
following Tuesday, which will be May 31, you could hear from Crown Assets- 
you can set the dates then we can arrange the matters accordingly.

Mr. Winch: You will remember, Mr. Henderson, the discussion we had 
last time we had witnesses from Crown Assets with us; the discussion dealt 
with the amalgamation of some of the departments. Mr. Chairman, would 
be a question that we can now ask Crown Assets with respect to what 
developing?

Mr. Ballard: Along the same line of thinking, could Mr. Henderson tell 
when we might expect his auditor’s report on the Bank of Canada?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Ballard, I am not the auditor of the Bank of Canada-
The Chairman: They have an outside audit?
Mr. Henderson: They have an outside auditing firm. That is one oi 

Crown Corporations that I do not examine.
, the

Mr. Ballard: Is this the only Crown corporation that you are not 
auditor for?
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Mr. Henderson: No, there are seven, and you will find them listed in my 
rcport at the beginning of the section on Crown corporations.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, you have a list of the sections on which you 
Can do some previous studying and be ready for the Post Office people next 
Week. We will now continue through these non-productive items.

Mr. Baldwin: Despite the fact that it has been suggested that all of these 
1,;ems are over and done with; it is not a question of the money involved, it is a 
question of the principle involved. I see that when we come to the 1965 report 
P^re is a very interesting discussion dealing with the Winter Works Incentive 
program which should deal with the Department of Labour. I would imagine 
bat when we discuss this subject we might want a representative of the 
ePartment of Labour with us at which time we can ask him about this item 1 

u We want to.
Mr. Winch: I am very interested in what Mr. Baldwin has just said. At the 

saine time can we bring forth somebody from Central Mortgage and Housing? I 
am rather intrigued with regard to this because I happen to know very closely 
'■hat the contract for the construction of a house, which just started last week 
aud is to be completed in two months, says that it will get the winter housing 
$500 grant. I would like to know how this can happen.

he: Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, I really cannot be of much assistance to you
re because I am not the auditor of Central Mortgage and Housing. They are 

, e of these exceptions that we were just mentioning; that is one of the seven 
at I do not do. You would have to call their private auditing firm, as witnesses 

that. There is nothing to prevent you from calling them as far as that is
concerned.

The Chairman: That would be an innovation.
ref ^r' Winch: I understood that we cannot call before us that which is not 

erred to us under the authority of the Auditor General.
* (12.14 p.m.)
a Mr. Henderson: No. The Public Accounts of Canada are referred to you 
s: the accounts of Central Mortgage and Housing along with the other six

en by the other auditors are in the Public Accounts of Canada.
^Ud'^r ®ALLARD: I am just a little confused about this breakdown between the 
reasltor General and public accountants. Would the Auditor General give any 
the <a1 why certain of these should be handled by outside auditors and some by 
ha frUhitor General. How does the government determine which should be 
audit ^ ky the Auditor General and which should be handled by outside

be • Henderson: For the most part the decision as to who the auditors shall 
C0l*ade by Parliament in the legislation governing the different Crown 
tfie rations. If it is not, then it is left to the Governor in Council. He has, in 
hrift ^St’ e""hGr appointed the Auditor General or he has appointed a private 
tary' Most of the jobs done by the Auditor General stem from the parliamen- 
Pr°Vi ,egislation. In the case of the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation it is 
it js ed by law that he shall be the auditor. In the case of Expo ’67 in Montreal 

r°vided that he shall be the auditor and so on.
24l92-3i
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In the case, however, of these seven separate crown corporations or 
instrumentalities, as some of them are called, the legislation, I believe, has 
provided that the Governor in Council shall appoint the auditor. It has been the 
practice over a number of years for the government to appoint an outside firm- 
The Financial Administration Act provides that the Auditor General may be 
appointed an auditor of a crown corporation or a joint auditor of a crown 
corporation, and this was the problem that this Committee addressed itself to in 
1964, and you have its recommendation in the follow-up report.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, are we really free to call these independent 
auditors before this Committee?

Mr. Henderson: Yes, sir, I would think so.
Mr. Ballard: Do they, in effect, report to Parliament and not exclusively to 

the Governor in Council?
Mr. Henderson: In answer to Mr. Ballard’s question, I would consider that 

they do report to Parliament. They are in the same position as myself. They 
address their reports to the ministers responsible but nevertheless they are 
functioning in the same way as I function in respect of the crown corporations I 
audit.

Mr. Ballard: Do you have the facilities and the staff in your office to do all 
these audits, if you were asked to do so? Is that right?

Mr. Henderson: With certain reservations as to size of staff, the answer ig 
“yes”.

Mr. Lefebvre: I would be interested to know the difference in cost to the 
government in hiring these outside firms and the difference in cost if you had to 
make additions to your staff.

Mr. Henderson: The cost of hiring these outside firms was the subject of a 
question on the order paper which the government answered, I think, about si* 
weeks ago, and it is now a matter of record. I do not recollect the figure but it 
went back to the inception of the firms and one of the questions called for the 
names of the auditors each year and they were all listed. That information 1 
readily available.

Mr. Lefebvre: You do not happen to recall the number of the question?
Mr. Henderson: No. We could obtain that, Mr. Lefebvre.
Mr. Lefebvre: You could give us the figure then on what your extra c°st 

would be if you were making this audit.
Mr. Tardif: Projected over a five year period?
Mr. Lefebvre: In other words, are we spending too much money hiri^ 

outside people, or would we be spending more if your department was doing 1
Mr. Henderson: You would not be spending more if my department 

doing it, because you would, in the first place, not be paying a profit on 
operation, to which everybody is quite properly entitled; I am not suggestl 
they are not. But in the case of my staff it could call for the addition of s° ^ 
extra people at various levels, naturally, in order to handle the larger audits-
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therefore, becomes a matter of simple arithmetic to determine what the salary 
c°st would be to Canada versus the per diem rates customarily paid to private 
firms.

Mr. Lefebvre: Maybe at our next meeting you could give us an idea of 
what the difference would be.

Mr. Henderson: I would do it with considerable hesitation, Mr. Lefebvre, 
because, quite frankly, I do not know how much time or work would be 
involved if I were to estimate what it would cost. I can safely say to you that it 
^ould cost less, but how much less depends, naturally, on the size of the job, 
ibe time, the amount of work these people are doing. I am without knowledge 
°t the accounts of any of these corporations, or their auditing programs.

The Chairman: Mr. Lefebvre, you could put a question on the order paper 
asking for the cost of the audit of the following firms.

Mr. Lefebvre: It has already been done, according to Mr. Henderson. The 
answer has already been given.

Mr. Henderson: That is a matter of public information now.
Mr. Lefebvre: So we will have to check back in our Hansards, I guess.
Mr. Long: This was an order for return.
Mr. Lefebvre: We still do not know what your cost would be so we cannot 

eh how much money would be saved.

, Mr. Henderson: There is no question, and I do not think anybody would 
eny, that the crown would save money; but you would be asking me to make a 

,®ry difficult estimate because I do not know the basis on which I would carry
that audit out, how much time it would take, the calibre of people I would putV Vt. V) UC* V» VAJLO.JLV, lb YV UUIVI buav.j 1/11V— VUUW1V> VJL JO J.'— JL VVUU1U pub

the audit, the deadline dates and all the other factors involved. This 
mmittee, in the recommendation it made in 1964, stated with respect to the 

a corporations, you will recall it—it is in the follow-up report—that the 
clltor General be either appointed the auditor of, or a joint auditor of 

^contemplating, I think, that if he were not the sole auditor of these that the 
reJn*6 ^rms could still function, but that one of the two firms would be, as a 
attr 3r aPP°intment> the Auditor General. That is an arrangement that has 
st Jetions to my office and also it seems to be a sensible one from the 
t>a>.aP0int of giving better service to some of these large corporations and to
lament.

div-?°r me to determine how much that would cost, depends on how I would 
&ev 6 work with them, and that involves discussions which to date have 
j)rofer taken place. Do you follow? Like all professions, there are ethics in my 
aUd>SS*°n’ and I naturally would not wish to be asked to make estimates on an 
t*,1 which i® carried out by a private firm unless it were a direct request of

'“Ommittee.

fiafi ■ " ®ALLARD: Mr. Chairman, we have wandered away from the question I
an nln mtnd. I was not thinking in terms of the economics of the appointment of 
itl0re Sl(ie auditor as opposed to the use of the Auditor General. I was thinking 
fr0tri °t the lines of communication from the auditor to this Committee and 

this Committee to Parliament. What I was really asking the Auditor
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General was, whether, in his opinion, there is a better, a more direct, line of 
communication between the Auditor General and Parliament than there is 
between outside auditors. I think there is. Would you agree with this?

Mr. Henderson: I enjoy a very happy line of communication with 
Parliament through this Committee. I do not think I should speak for other 
people’s lines of communication.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Ballard brought up the very question I wanted to ask; h 
was in my mind at the time. Through the use of the long form reports which we 
had before us when we dealt with the C.B.C., when we dealt just the other day 
with the St. Lawrence Seaway, there is an opportunity for this Committee, aS 
the agent of Parliament, to exercise some measure of vigilance in calling before 
us from time to time these crown corporations and their officials, and with the 
aid of the Auditor General’s office who have examined the books and made their 
statements and comments, I think only then can it be said that Parliament is 
doing its proper job with regard to these vast sprawling crown corporations.

Now, there is another issue and I think it is practical. Men in public life’ 
and I say this instead of politicians, all know that from time to time auditors 
are changed. I am not complaining about this; this is one of the facts of 1#® 
which happens but I think, even though Parliament and the government, and 
this Committee did recommend it in certain instances, a form of joint audi 
would be better. If we had the Auditor General as always as one of the join 
auditors there is a continuity about the examination of the affairs of tha 
company which is very much to be desired; whereas if you find that occasional' 
ly auditors are changed over a period of five or six years, you lose tha 
continuity and no matter how excellent the private firms may be something jS 
not apparent which should be. I want to make that suggestion and ask Mr- 
Henderson, after that long statement, if he would be prepared to agree vvn 
that comment.

Mr. Henderson: Yes, I do not think there is any question about that, 
think that the continual changing of auditors is costly to the client. The audit0^ 
has to be educated in his approach to the work; whereas if one of them at lea- 
is on a continuing basis, then that is saved, because you have some of Y0^ 
senior people trained in the approaches to these large jobs and a great deal 0 
time can be saved.

Mr. Tardif: Fully qualified auditors should not take too long to becom® 
acquainted with work even if it is in a different field than what he has be 
doing.

Mr. Henderson: No, that is right, Mr. Tardif.
Mr. Tardif: I have the utmost respect for qualified auditors and tbeir 

ability to perform.
Mr. Henderson: I am very pleased to hear it. However, on the large j°^J 

involving a great many ramifications, and some of our crown corporations ah 
agencies are very large, it is a tremendous help to have the same continu1 ° 
people at the helm of the programming work.

Mr. Lefebvre: How are these auditors hired, sir, for the crown comparée 
Do you know? Is it the company itself or the minister responsible for 
company who—
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Mr. Henderson: As I have said, they are appointed for the most part by the 
Governor in Council for a term certain depending on the governing legislation 
involved. In the case of the Bank of Canada, there is a provision in the Bank of 
Canada Act empowering the Governor in Council to make such appointments 
and an Order in Council is issued making the appointments in due course. In 

case of Air-Canada, I am only speaking from recollection, and the Canadian 
National Railway, too, provision is made in the act, I believe the auditors are 
aPpointed for one year under the act which comes before Parliament, annually.

Mr. Leblanc: I an inclined to agree that wherever we have outside auditors 
We should, at the same time, have joint auditing by our Auditor General. If my 
Memory is correct, I think that last year we strongly recommended, in our 
rePort, such a move from the government; did we not, Mr. Baldwin? We had 
s°ttie correspondence between yourself and myself, Mr. Henderson; I remember 

Well —
Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Leblanc: While Mr. Gordon was the Minister of Finance, regarding 

,ais same matter. Now, if that was not carried out we can still go on and put 
0rth our recommendation maybe using stronger terms than we used the first

Mr. Baldwin : We might ask the Deputy Minister of Finance or the 
reasury Board or if it is a matter of government policy, one of the cabinet 
blisters. I think that a fair, informal discussion here would be very useful. 
rtere may be some reasons which the government has to advance.

Mr. Winch: That is a good point.
Mr. Henderson: The reasons were given in answer to the question I 

1 t6/1.^0ned earlier. The return to which was tabled. The answers are given and 
mnk, by deputy Ministers. I do not recollect just what they said, but it is all

drt of the return that was tabled. If you saw that you would see as much as I 
KtlOw.

jp ^he Chairman: I think, if I may interject here, that we, as legislators or 
Prem°ers Pai'liarnen't> are responsible to some degree in this regard. At the 
y SePt time there is a bill coming before the House, entitled the Company of 
cho Canadians, and the last section in there says that the auditor shall be 
aUfiSen at direction of the Governor in Council. That does not say that the 
thislt0r ke the Auditor General of Canada, it may be anybody. We, when 
the an(t °ther acts are going through, should watch this portion of the act and if 
that Want t° have an outside auditor we should stipulate that it be put in there 
rrlG). the Auditor General should be a joint auditor. Maybe we are at fault as 

bers °f Parliament in having allowed acts to be passed without this part 
ln§ Nearly stated.
^r- Tardif: That would have the effect of an auditor checking an auditor.

Pot rf'1' Henderson: May I say to you that if such action were taken this would 
arra e Piy interpretation of it. If I were made joint auditor under such an 
divjj it would be joint in fact and in practice; the work would be
Way jd in whatever manner seemed to us most practical and desirable; just the 

oo it with Mr. Tremblay the Provincial Auditor of Quebec on Expo ’67.
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Our staffs are working together on the audit programming and it has proven to 
be a very satisfactory arrangement.

Mr. Tardif: Duplication.
Mr. Henderson: No, sir, indeed not, because between us we try to give 

greater coverage. He takes certain facets and I take others. We take a joint and 
several liability on the correctness of the accounts. I am hoping that if y°u 
should call Expo ’67 before you in this Committee to examine its accounts. Mr- 
Tremblay will be here with me as joint auditor. Such an invitation has already 
been extended to me to appear before the Quebec public accounts committee ag 
and when they wish to examine it and I think that is precisely as it should be­
lt is by no means an auditor checking another auditor. Have I made my point- 
sir?

Mr. Winch: All I can say is I have not changed my mind since the Iong 
discussion we had in the Committee in 1964. It was the unanimous decision i® 
1964 that in the view of the Public Accounts Committee the Auditor General 
should have the position of being Auditor General of all ramifications 01 
government service, whether it be crown corporations or others. We now have a 
situation with all the ramifications of the federal government but there are stn 
seven outside his over-all survey jurisdiction. I would hope that, if there is 
change in the point of view from 1964, perhaps, we might spend a day agalD 
discussing this matter, because in my own personal opinion, I cannot for the 1»® 
of me see any reason why certain bodies should be outside the audit!11» 
jurisdiction of Auditor General of Canada. I think it is far better for us to 
able to deal with the report from the Auditor General on everything 0 
government business than being in the position which we are now in of havih» 
authority to call in the private auditor of a crown corporation, a company or 0 
whatever term you want to use. I hope, sir, that we will have some time, ® 
your discretion, to discuss this matter again and I sincerely hope that we vh 
reinforce, as was mentioned by my hon. friend a few months ago, 
stronger terms our recommendation made in 1964 which has been complete i 
ignored by the government.

Mr. Bigg: I have only been on this Committee a very short time but 1 
seems,—and I do not know the reason for it—that our recommendations a 
apparently completely ignored; perhaps I should not say “completely” but oft® 
ignored. I do not understand why. Why do we sit if in 1964 we passed ^ 
unanimous decision and it seems we are going to pass exactly the same thing ^ 
the end of these sittings, if some of these streamlinings are not going t° 
taken into consideration? Is there no way that we can put pressure on som®0^ 
and on whom do you work? Why is there not an official of the governm® 
here?

Mr. Tardif : Frustrating, is it not?
Mr. Bigg: It could be. I am not easily frustrated.

, e {0
The Chairman: This is one of the things with which this committee na= 

come to grips.
Mr. Bigg: Would it be a suggestion that some time before the Comm1 ^ 

rises, at the end of the session, we have members of the Privy Council her®
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members of the establishment, whoever they are, who make the decisions in the 
end, and impress on them that we do not intend to sit here year after year—

The Chairman: Well, Mr. Bigg, I think—
Mr. Tardif : I think before doing that we should read the terms of reference 

again and find out—
The Chairman: This is something we have to get—
Mr. Bigg: That is all very well. Maybe we can make a recommendation and 

have the terms of reference changed.
The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, you are our legal expert.
Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, I say without pay when Mr. Forbes is not 

here. When we come to the beginning of the 1965 report, we will find that the 
Preliminary functions and responsibilities of the Auditor General are outlined, 
'hhe report is now being made and we will go into the Financial Administration 
■^■et and we go into the Standing Committee on Public Accounts. When we get 
into the beginning of the 1965 report, after the preliminaries, this is the useful 
time and it falls in line under the terms of reference. As a matter of fact, the 
terms of reference under the order which is made by the House, is that the 1964 
and the 1965 Auditor General’s report are referred to us. I would hazard the 
°Pinion that anything which is covered in the 1964 and 1965 reports is accept­
ée of examination by us and the report is discussed.

I would think that when we come to the beginning of the 1965 report we 
c°uld have, I would hope, a very useful discussion and if necessary spend part 

a meeting on this. No matter how effective we are in our recommendations, 
°r how useful are our recommendations, some effort should be made by us to 
See why they are not being followed and the reasons assigned. I have made 
s°me study on this and I have some comments with regard to the procedure in 
other Commonwealth countries and I am very interested in it.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I have had the privilege, and it is a privilege 
an honour, to be a member of this Committee ever since it was established 

te this House. This Committee actually, in its terms of reference, has the most 
uthority of any committee of the House of Commons, if we want to use it.

. Mr. Tardif: Yes, I am not questioning the authority of the Committee. I 
st merely suggested that it might be a good thing if we read the terms of 

eterence over again.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I just want to raise the 

9 estion of what else have we to finish in the 1964? We have disposed, I 
nuerstand, of the non-productive payments for this particular year.

. Mr. Henderson: You will have disposed of them when you have the 
Wltnesses.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Now, is there anything else in this 1964 
^Port that we need to go over before closing it off and going on to the 1965 
ePort.

Mr. Winch: As a matter of fact, it is the last item.
should • Henderson: If I may answer that, Mr. Chairman, I do not think you 

spend any more time now on the 1964 report. I would suggest that,
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although you are scheduling a witness for Tuesday and for Thursday, it will 
mean that you will be several meetings away before you get into the 1965 
report. We are all ready to start going through that 1965 report and I had hoped 
we might have started it this morning.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Might I say, Mr. Chairman, that when we 
call these witnesses we will be dealing with—

Mr. Henderson: You will be knocking off a number of items. That is right.
The Chairman: I know that some gentlemen have to leave but I would like 

to go through to one o’clock. Mr. Thomas, following what you said, all the 
Committee members will receive from our clerk, a list of those items that will 
be coming before us at the next meeting and the witness who will be appearing 
before us, so that you will come knowing that the Post Office or Public Works 
officials will be here and you will know what items are going to be handled. We 
will arrange to have a witness here at every meeting we have.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, have you taken into consid­
eration possibly the desirability of a general discussion on the 1965 report 
before we take up too many—

The Chairman: Yes, I thought if we could spend 20 minutes and let Mr. 
Baldwin bring his thoughts to the attention of the Committee on this matter, we 
would open it right now.

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, I will not take 20 minutes but there are some 
things I would like to leave with the Committee so that by the time we come 
back they might be able to give some thought to them and have some discussion 
now. I asked a question in the House—I assure the Committee it was a purely 
non-partisan question—of the Prime Minister about two months ago on what 
consideration was being given with regard to increasing the independence, the 
authority and the status of the office of the Auditor General. I may say that I do 
not have in mind the question of any individual; it is not Mr. Henderson I am 
thinking of, it is the office. Mr. Henderson succeeded Mr. Sellar, who rendered 
very considerable service to this country and in due course Mr. Henderson will 
be succeeded by some other person. We can hope that whoever will come into 
this job will bring to it the same degree of independence, integrity and 
usefulness as has Mr. Henderson and his precedessor. It is one of our jobs to 
make sure that this is the case and that this will happen. It was for this reason 
that I asked Mr. Long three meetings ago to produce, which he did, and file 3 
statement showing the comparative salaries of the Auditor General and other 
officials such as the Deputy Minister of Finance, the Clerk of the Privy Council, 
the Chief Justice, the President of the Exchequer Court and also officials of Mr- 
Henderson’s own department.

My belief of what was the case was confirmed by this statement, which 
unfortunately is not before the Committee yet because it is appended to the 
transcript of the proceedings. This statement shows that in 1924 the Audits 
General’s salary was somewhat in excess of those of the officials I have 
mentioned. Since then, while his salary has gone up, the salaries of other 
officials, particularly those of the premier deputy ministers, have gone up very 
substantially, to a higher rate and are now very much in excess of his. It is n° 
a question of the money; it is a question of the status of the position.
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Secondly, we have dealt with another point I wanted to bring up, the 
authority of the Auditor General with regard to the auditing of these crown 
corporations. I have given my views on that.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, before you leave your first point, would you 
object to stating the salaries for some of those officials?

Mr. Baldwin: For example, my recollection is that in 1924 and Mr. Long 
can check me on this because I thought the transcript might be available, the 
Auditor General’s salary was $15,000. Some of those of the senior officials, I 
think the Deputy Minister of Finance and the President Privy Council were 
somewhat less than that. The Chief Justice of Canada—I do not think there was 
a President of the Exchequer Court at that time—possibly Mr. Long you might 
lust read to the Committee the essence, the gist, showing the distinction 
between 1924 and the present time.

The Chairman: Maybe I should give this list to you, Mr. Baldwin, and you 
can complete your statement on it.

Mr. Baldwin: All right. In 1924 the Auditor General’s salary stood at 
$15,000.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, might the other members of 
the Committee have a copy of this?

The Chairman: Unfortunately, not at the moment, Mr. Thomas, but it is in
°Ur report and we will have it as soon as the report is printed and delivered to 
Us.

Mr. Tardif : I hate to break quorum but I have a 12.30 appointment and I 
0 not know under what clause this is being discussed anyhow. I think it could 

j ® Probably be kept until the next meeting, if it is necessary for me to be here. 
u° not object to people making a living wage.

Mr. Chairman: We will excuse you, Mr. Tardif.

* (12.44 p.m.)
Mr. Baldwin : In 1924, the Chief Justice of Canada’s salary was the 

paiTle; the President of the Exchequer Court was $10,000; the Clerk of the 
rivy Council was $6,000. This is at the time when the Auditor General’s salary

$15,000; the deputy minister of finance was $10,000, the Undersecretary of 
Me for External Affairs $8,000, the director of the bureau of government 

^ Sanization was $6,300. The Assistant Auditor General at that time was $5,100;
e Audit Director was $4,200. At the present time the salaries of the Clerk of 

q6 Privy Council are $29,160; the Chief Justice of Canada $35,000; the Auditor 
eneral $25,000; the deputy minister or finance $29,160; the Undersecretary of 
ate for External Affairs, $29,160; the Director of the Bureau of Government

°rgan:$l9~*11Zati°n $29,160, the Assistant Auditor General $22,750, the Audit Director 
>500. My point is, I do not object to the salaries being given to these other 

g PI6- My view always has been that in order to attract good people into 
ob>ernrnent service and keep them there we have to pay it. However, this is 
thp Gr" Put I do suggest there is an obvious distinction there. As the salaries of 
fbeS a other very important and very essential functioners has gone up, that of 
r6c Auditor General has not gone up in the same proportion. This will be on 

°rd and it will be quite obvious, I think it has some effect and it is bound to
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have some further effect when some time in the future some consideration is 
going to be given whenever—and I hope this may not be for some time—Mr. 
Henderson’s term of office is gone and someone else is going to step into his 
shoes.

I said something about the crown corporations. This has been discussed. I 
feel that this certainly is a matter that should be brought into the ambit of the 
Auditor General’s office. Then, I come to the question of the ability of the 
Auditor General with regard to recruitment of staff. This comes right under the 
first item in the 1965 Report which we have discussed in this committee over 
and over and over again. I hope before we leave, before we make our final 
report, that we will have reinforced in no uncertain terms a very strong view 
which I hold, and I know other members of the Committee hold, that in an 
effort to increase, or to retain the status, the strength and the authority of the 
office, there should be an independence which the Auditor General should ex­
ercise in the engaging in the obtaining and hiring of staff.

Now, finally, I want to call to the attention—I am being very brief in this, 
Mr. Chairman, because I know there will be other people wanting to discuss 
it—of the committee a very interesting arrangement in Australia. I am dealing 
here with the question of public accounts. There the public accounts committee 
which is related to the Auditor General is appointed, not under terms of 
reference by the House of Commons, but under an act of parliament. The Public 
Accounts Committee Act, 1951, defines the duties of the committee which is 
composed there of several senators and a certain number of members of the 
House of Representatives. It provides almost a statutory term of reference, and 
permits the committee to function not under the lead of the House but undei 
the terms of the act of parliament. True enough, additional terms of reference 
can be conveyed by parliament, but basically the function of the committee 
comes under an act of parliament. I think we should have something like this 
here. I think also that the office of the Auditor General should be undei 
separate legislation and not combined with that of the provisions of the 
Financial Administration Act. All of his characteristics, his duties, his functions 
should be set out in an audit act or an act of the Auditor General and, therefore, 
his position is derived directly from statute rather than from a statute of which 
he is only a subsidiary in his duties as far as legislation is concerned.

I end on this note, Mr. Chairman. We are now getting into large govern­
ment spending programs. Ours is not a question of talking of policy of these 
matters; I do not intend to. But, with the pension plan, with the proposals f°r 
medicare, with a war on poverty, with the Canada assistance plan, it is obvions 
the government is going to be involved either directly or jointly with the 
provinces in expenditures of increasingly large amounts of money. The sole 
of defence, is the Auditor General apart from the officials of departments, and 
am not being critical of them, but there is an impersonality to government as 
see it where sometimes they lose sight of the trees by this survey of the for6 
as a whole.

The main line of defence on behalf of the taxpayer is the office of the 
Auditor General and Parliament working through this Committee, I offer the56 
views as a result of my experience in sitting in the Committee for some yeaI^ 
and observing what has gone on. I do hope that before we are finished we mté
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have an opportunity of having the views of the Committee expressed and 
Possibly dealt with in the form of a recommendation.

I am going to pass this report of the Joint Committee of Public Accounts of 
the Commonwealth of Australia to you, Mr. Chairman. It shows the terms of the 
act of parliament; it also indicates a very interesting procedure where, by 
arrangement between the Treasury Board and the Public Accounts Committee 
twice a year there is published a report where side by side the recommenda­
tions of the committee are placed with the views of the Treasury Board. Here, 
t°r example, you will see, if it is passed around a summary of the committee’s 
conclusion on one particular matter right opposite the Treasury Board minute 
^hich deals with the issue. There you see twice a year displayed the recommen­
dations of the committee, the extent to which the government departments and 
Treasury Board have dealt with them; if they have refused to deal with them, if 
«ley are reserving them, fine. But it is set out, it is apparent, and the committee 
Knows what is going on and through the committee parliament knows what is 
§°ing on. I will pass that up, Mr. Chairman, for consideration. That is all I have 
0 say on this issue.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Baldwin, for your views. It 
rePresents a great deal of thought and research and I know it is something that

be of great value to this Committee, and from it will evolve some changes 
111 °ur set-up. You mentioned an act of parliament. If we had that it would have 
°vorcome one problem that we experienced this year in the Public Accounts 

°nunittee, namely, that of waiting for our orders from the House. We waited 
J}e month before we were given our orders to proceed and what to deal with. 
With this arrangement, we could have started the second day after the House 
ctivened. So, it is wonderful to have these views. Let us hope that they can be 
corporated in our system. This suggestion of having the recommendations of 

t 6 Committee and beside it those of Treasury Board is just the same thing as 
® debit and credit columns in the ledger, and it is there before you to see 
tlat has been done.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, could we have that docu- 
ent reproduced as an appendix to the proceedings for today, or have it 
Produced and distributed?

The Chairman: The clerk says he could have a photocopy made for each 
ember of the Committee to study.

Mr. Winch: I now move that we adjourn.
The Chairman: All right. Moved that we adjourn by Mr. Winch.

all l ?orry for a little lack of continuity today but from here on we will have it
aid before us. Thank you.
Cn motion of Mr. Winch the Committee adjourned.
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APPENDIX 3

Public Accounts Committee

Remissions of postage charges under section 22 of 
the Financial Administration Act

As requested at the May 5 meeting, there is listed below the 18 remissions 
of postage charges which have been granted by the Governor in Council.

There were no such remissions by the Governor in Council in 1963-64 as 
the first request for such remission was made by the Post Office Department 
early in 1965 following the tabling of the Auditor General’s 1964 Report.

P.C. 1965-44/379 March 5, 1965
1. Southam Printing Co. Ltd., Toronto, Ont..................................$
2. Blackwood, J. O., London, Ont.....................................................
3. Tomar Publications Ltd., Montreal, P.Q....................................
4. Clark, Miss M., Toronto, Ont.........................................................
5. McCall Corporation, New York .................................................
6. The Conde Nast Publications Incorporated, Greenwich,

Conn................................................................................................
7. Time Incorporated, Chicago ........................................................
8. MacLean Hunter Publishing Co. Ltd., Toronto ...................
9. Meredith Publishing Co., Des Moines, Iowa ..........................

10. Charters Publishing Co. Ltd., Brampton, Ont.......................
P.C. 1965-52/862 May 13, 1965

11. Sun Publishing Co. Ltd., Edmonton, Alta................................
P.C. 1965-36/2076 November 24, 1965

12. Mission to Lepers, Toronto, Ont. ...............................................
P.C. 1965-35/2076 November 24, 1965

13. Montrealer Nachrichten Publishers Ltd., Montreal .............

561.01
240.00
501.70
129.47
943.12

461.44
2,698.U

709.39
10,040.66

86.39

1,276.02

163.29

195.00

P.C. 1965-28/2175 December 8, 1965
14. Toronto Daily Star, Toronto, Ont...........................

P.C. 1965-27/2175 December 8, 1965
15. J. A. Young, Agincourt, Ont......................................

P.C. 1966-14/47 January 12, 1966
16. Quebec Pension Board, Quebec, P.Q.....................

P.C. 1966-35/487 March 17, 1966
17. Christian Press Ltd., Winnipeg, Man.....................

P.C. 1966-30/588 March 31, 1966
18. New Brunswick Publishing Co. Ltd., Saint John

99.86

158-21

1,313.18

204.24

347.37
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APPENDIX 4

At the meeting of the Committee on May 12th Mr. Schreyer asked if the 
Public Officers Guarantee Account covered employees of Crown corporations.

The answer is that the Public Officers Guarantee Account covers all de­
partments except the Post Office Department which has its own Guarantee 
Pund and the annuity representatives of the Department of Labour who are 
covered by fidelity bonds. The Public Officers Guarantee Account also covers 
employees of the Custodian of Enemy Property and all Crown corporations
except:

(a) Canadian National Railways
(b) Canadian National (West Indies) Steamships Limited
(c) Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation
(d) Air Canada
(e) Canadian Broadcasting Corporation.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Wednesday, May 25, 1966.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts having been called to meet at 
•30 a.m. this day, the following members were present : Messrs. Hales, 

Greyer, Winch (3).

j In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Messrs. 
Q°ngj Crowley, Laroche and Murphy of the Auditor General’s staff; Mr. C. 
_,azé, Acting Deputy Postmaster General; Messrs. MacDonald, Jay, McLachlan, 

ai*nt and Cousens of the Post Office Department.

At 9.40 a.m., there being no quorum, the Chairman adjourned the meeting 
0 3.30 this same day.

AFTERNOON SITTING

(11)
p The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 3.45 p.m. this day, the 
^airman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

p Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Dionne, Flemming, Forbes, 
^endron, Hales, Lefebvre, Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas 

alsonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), Tucker, Winch (16).

Also present: Mr. Cowan.

Offi la attendance: Same as at morning sitting, and Mr. Pageau of the Post 
Ce department.

\

,^r- Baldwin, Chairman of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure 
Ihe following report:

Public Accounts Committee 
Report of Sub-Committee appointed 
to enquire into circumstances out­

lined in paragraph 69 of the 
Auditor General’s 1964 Report

Payment of duty on coasting trade vessel deferred
Your Committee met with members of the Auditor General’s office 

and obtained additional information concerning the case outlined in 
Paragraph 69 of the Auditor General’s Report including a written 
statement made by the department to the Auditor General.

Your Committee agrees with the Auditor General when he states 
that the action by the department in penalizing one of its collectors for 
its own failure to collect the duties in full, as provided by law, and then 
causing the penalities to be remitted is irregular and undesirable and is

24l94-u 347
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contrary to the provisions of sections 22 and 79 of the Customs Act and 
part 13 of the Canada Shipping Act.

Your Committee considers that this action, requiring one of its 
collectors to become liable to a penalty provided by law and then to , 
recommend to the Governor in Council that the penalty be remitted 
cannot be condoned and it expresses the hope that the department will 
not again resort to such an expedient.

However, the Committee is pleased to note that the post-dated 
cheques tendered in payment of the Customs duty were all honoured on 
due date and therefore the transaction resulted in no loss to the Crown 
other than any loss of interest it may have suffered by not having 
received the full amount of the duties at the time of the issue of the 
coasting license.

Your Committee feels that there were extenuating circumstances in 
this case and was surprised to learn that the covering legislation does not 
provide any discretion when such unusual and extenuating facts are 
found to exist. It understands that the department is giving consideration 
to changes which might be recommended to bring the Customs legislation 
into line with modern needs and conditions.

(signed) G. W. Baldwin 
(signed) Jack Bigg 
(signed) A. M. A. McLean 
(signed) Hugh John Flemming.

There was no discussion on the report.

Following the introduction of Mr. Dazé and his staff, the Committe6 
questioned both the Auditor General and Post Office representatives on:

(1) Item 1—Auditor General’s Long Form 1964;
(2) Table 2—Post Office Department—Summary of Receipts afl^ 

Disbursements—Fiscal year ending March 31, 1959 (Page 325, Vol- 
Royal Commission on Government Organization) ;

(3) 1964 Auditor General’s Report to the House of Commons:
(i) Paragraph 77—Waiving of postage charges;

(ii) Paragraph 78—Departmental decision not to dismiss an employee;
(iii) Paragraph 79—Second class mail;
(iv) Paragraph 168—Post Office activities;

(4) 1965 Auditor General’s Report to the House of Commons:
(i) Paragraph 105—Second class mail;

(ii) Paragraph 106—Second class mail—free mailing privileges;
(iii) Paragraph 107—City transportation services;
(iv) Paragraph 108—Postage stamps destroyed;
(v) Paragraph 109—Write-off of obsolete stores;
(vi) Paragraph 110—Charges for Post Office lock boxes and bag servic®
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(vii) Paragraph 111—Post Office Savings Bank;
(viii) Paragraph 218—Post Office activities.
At 6.05 p.m., the questioning of the witnesses concluded, the Chairman 

adjourned the meeting to 11.00 a.m. Thursday, May 26, 1966.

Édouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded, by electronic apparatus)

Wednesday, May 25, 1966.
• (3.30 p.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. We have with us this 
afternoon officials from the Post Office Department and before proceeding I 
^ould refer you to the Auditor General’s report of 1964, and turn to page 133, 
Action 168.

168. Post Office activities. The following is a summary of the Post 
Office transactions as recorded in the Post Office section of Volume II of 
the Public Accounts for the year ended March 31, 1964 in comparison 
with the corresponding amounts for the preceding fiscal year:

Year ended March 31

1964 1963

Gross postal revenue ..................................
Less: Expenses paid from revenue .......

...$ 235,808,000 
35,091,000

$ 222,300,000 
29,528,000

Net postal revenue ......................................
Miscellaneous revenue ................................

. . . 200,717,000
57,000

192,772,000
59,000

200,774,000 192,831,000

Deduct: Expenditures from parliamentary 
propriations—

Operations ...............................................
Transportation ........................................
Administrative, financial services, etc. .

ap-

.. . . 135,609,000
65,952,000 
5,334,000

119,992,000
63,935,000
5,417,000

206,895,000 189,344,000

Expenses of expenditure over revenue v... ...$ 6,121,000 $ (3,487,000)

This recorded excess of expenditure over revenue of $6,121,000 did 
not, however, take into consideration estimated costs of services provided
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by other departments, including accommodation provided by the De­
partment of Public Works estimated at $25,859,000, contributions to the 
Public Service Superannuation Account and to employee surgical- 
medical insurance premiums by the Department of Finance estimated at 
$8,570,000, accounting and cheque issue services provided by the Comp* 
troller of the Treasury, $587,000, and employee compensation payments 
by the Department of Labour, $231,000, a grand total of $35,247,000. 
Neither were credits for mail franked by and sent to government 
departments and Members of Parliament, estimated at $3,860,000, in* 
eluded. Taking these into account the operating deficit would be $37,- 
508,000 rather than $6,121,000 as shown.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Mr. Chairman, do you have an extra copy-

The Chairman: The Clerk will give you a copy.
Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, some time before the proceedings are closed, 1 

would like to be able to file, without making a motion in respect to it at this 
time, the report of the subcommittee which looked into this question dealing 
with paragraph 69 in the Auditor General’s report. The subcommittee ha5 
reached a consensus on that; we have a report signed by us and I would like t0 
file it and read it sometime appropriate to the proceedings. As I say, I do not 
want to make any motion, but simply leave it for the consideration of the Cort1' 
mittee and it can be discussed later.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, do you propose to file it now?

Mr. Baldwin: There is only a page to read and I propose to file it and leave 
it with you.

The Chairman: Would you like to do it now or wait until the end of tIie 
meeting?

Mr. Baldwin: I will do it now if I might.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin will now file the report to the subcommittee'

Mr. Baldwin: This, Mr. Chairman, deals with paragraph 69 in the 
report which the subcommittee was set up to decide. The report is as follows- 

Your Committee met with members of the staff of the Audit0^ 
General’s office and obtained additional information concerning the ca 
outlined in paragraph 69 of the Auditor General’s report, including 
written statement made by the department to the Auditor General. ^ 

Your Committee agrees with the Auditor General when he sta^ 
that the action by the department on penalizing one of its colectors 
its own failure to collect the duties in full as provided by law, and t 
causing the penalties to be remitted is irregular and undesirable 
contrary to the provisions of sections 22 and 79 of the Customs Act 
Part 13 of the Canada Shipping Act. Your Committee considers that 
action requiring one of its collectors to become liable to a pena
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provided by law and then to recommend to the Governor in Council that 
the penalty be remitted cannot be condoned expresses the hope that the 
department will not again resort to such an expedient.

However, the Committee is pleased to note that the post-dated 
cheques tendered in payment of the customs duty were all honoured on 
due date and therefore the transaction resulted in no loss to the Crown 
other than any loss of interest it may have suffered by not having 
received the full amount of the duties at the time of the issue of the 
coasting licence.

Your Committee feels that there were extenuating circumstances in 
this case and was surprised to learn that the covering legislation does not 
provide any discretion when such unusual and extenuating facts are 
found to exist. It understands that the department is giving consideration 
to changes which might be recommended to bring the Customs legislation 
into line with modern needs and conditions.

It is a unanimous report and I will file it at this time, if I may.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Baldwin, and members of the subcomm.it- 
°e- Mr- Daze, assistant Deputy Postmaster General, would you like to introduce 
he members of your staff?

Mr. C. Daze (Assistant Deputy Postmaster General) : Thank you, Mr. 
hairman. On my immediate left is Mr. J. A. MacDonald, Comptroller. On his 

.eft is Mr. E. W. Jay, Director of Budgets. Behind me and to my immediate left 
Mr. J. b. Gaunt, acting Director of Postal Service. Next to him is Mr. G. S. 
eLachlan, Assistant Director of Postal Rates and Classifications, and last but 

°t least, Mr. Fred Pageau, Director of Postal Rates and Classifications.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Daze. We are happy to have members of 
°Ur staff with us. Please feel at home. Mr. Henderson, would you commence by 
VlnS us a brief introduction of the Post Office Department workings and then 
6 wiU go into each paragraph.

, Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General of Canada): Mr. Chairman, I 
~ leve t*16 best, way to commence any discussion of the operations of the Post 

11106 would be first to review briefly its revenues and expenditures as they are 
°rded in the public accounts, so that members of the Committee may have a 
ar Picture of how the Post Office keeps its accounts as a department of

g0V6rnment.
y M is not a crown corporation, although suggestions have been made from 
j e time that perhaps it should be established as one. In doing this, we can 
^ sdiately dispose of paragraph 168 of my 1964 report and paragraph 218 of 

1965 report where I bring these figures together each year under depart- 
the °Perating activities. I would suggest that members might like to open 
p^5 report at page 180 in the English edition and to note paragraph 218 on 
1965 activities which shows the position for the year ended March 31,

°°mpared with the previous year:
218. Post Office activities. The following is a summary of Post Office 

transactions recorded in the Post Office section of Volume II of the Public
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Accounts for the year ended March 31, 1965 in comparison with the 
corresponding amounts for the preceding year:

Year ended March 31

Gross postal revenue ..........................
Less: Expenses paid from revenue

Net postal revenue ..............................
Miscellaneous ........................................

Expenditures from parliamentary appropria­
tions—

Operations ............................................................
Transportation ....................................................
Administration, financial services, etc...........

Excess of revenue over expenditure .............. $

1965

$ 263,704,000 
33,268,000

230,436,000
53,000

230,489,000

135,375,000
69,056,000

6,028,000

210,459,000

20,030,000

1964

$ 235,808,000 
35,091,000

200,717,000
57,000

200,774,000

135,609,000
65,952,000
5,334,000

206,895,000

$ (6,121,000)

The Department estimates that, of the $27.9 million increase in gross 
postal revenue, approximately $8.8 million was due to increases in 
registration and special delivery fees effective November 1, 1963 and in 
C.O.D. fees and third class matter rates effective April 1, 1964.

The recorded excess of revenue over expenditure of $20,030,000 did 
not take into consideration the cost of services provided without charge 
by other government departments. These costs were estimated at $35-' 
825,000 and comprised the following: accommodation, $25,298,000; contri' 
butions to the Public Service Superannuation Account and to employ66 
surgical-medical insurance premiums, $9,681,000; accounting and cheC^e 
issue services, $584,000; and employee compensation payments, $262,00 • 
Credits for carrying mail franked by and sent to other governmen 
departments and Members of Parliament estimated at $4,210,000 wer 
also excluded. Had this unrecorded expenditure and revenue been take^ 
into account, there would have been an operating deficit for the year ^ 
$11,585,000 instead of an excess of revenue over expenditure 0 
$20,030,000.

I will be making these remarks as short as I can, Mr. Chairman, becau56
last Thursday, May 19th, the Postmaster General, in his opening statement’ 
gave the members of the House in committee of Supply a good picture of

the
by

tb6

financial operations of the Post Office. The figures he used are the same as 
ones I am going to use. The revenue accruing to the Post Office has increased 
$46 million over the past four years, the largest single increase being



May 25, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 355

improvement of $30 million shown in 1965 in the tabulation which you will see 
under paragraph 218. You will note that the Department estimated that of the 
$27.9 million increase in gross postal revenues shown here, approximately $8.8 
million is due to increases in registration and special delivery fees which 
became effective November 1, 1963, and in C.O.D. fees and third-class matter 
rates effective April 1, 1964. Expenditures from parliamentary appropriations 
have increased by $25 million dollars, from $185 million in 1961-62 to the figure 
°f $210 million shown in paragraph 218 for the 1965 year. The largest single 
increase in expenditures during the last four years took place in 1963-64 over 
the previous year when $18 million, approximately a 9% increase, was incurred 
hue to retroactive salary increases in that year. The $4 million increase shown 
Ui paragraph 218 is due largely to increased costs of transporting mail by land 
and air.

It can, therefore, be seen that for the first time in many years the revenue 
°f the Post Office showed an excessive revenue over expenditures in 1965 which 
amounted to $20 million. However, this recorded excess of revenue over 
expenditures did not take into consideration the cost of services provided 
without charge to the Post Office Department by other Government depart­
ments. As stated in paragraph 218, and you will find it at the top of page 181, 
the cost of these services was estimated at $35 million. At the same time, the 
post Office, without charge, carried mail franked by and sent to other govern­
ment departments and Members of Parliament, of which it is estimated postage 
at normal rates would have amounted to $4.3 million. Consequently, if this 
unrecorded expenditure and revenue had been taken into the accounts of the 
P°st Office, either as a department or as a Crown Corporation, then there 
Would have been an operating deficit for the year of $11.5 million instead of 
a surplus shown of $20 million.

The question as to the manner in which these additional costs of services 
r°vided without charge by other government departments are to be recorded 

the expenditures of the Department using the services, continues to be under 
. y by the Treasury Board in its efforts to achieve more accurate costs in line
uh the recommendations I have made over the past several years in my
Port, and which you, as a committee, have consistently supported. As you 
°W, the same situation obtains in a number of other government departments. 
e only progress made to date on this subject has been the showing of these

in the estimates blue book where, in the case of each governmentcosts
hepa
them

rtment, they are described in the details of services, as you know, in
the: orandum form as “Approximate value of major services not included in

Se estimates”.

Jh the
The problem, therefore, is how these expenses can be paid by and included

hett, accounts of the department who are responsible for them so as to achieve

hep,er cost control. This problem, of course, would not exist if the post office
srtment were to operate as a Crown corporation, 

of * think now, Mr. Chairman, if I might be permitted, I should like to dispose 
h W° more paragraphs here and introduce the question of second-class mail, 
se Use tf the loss that is being incurred by the Post Office Department from 
* ad-dass mail could be recaptured by the Post Office Department, it would 

re than cover the operating deficit of $11.5 million for 1965, which I have
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mentioned and which the Postmaster General himself referred to in his remarks 
to the House in Committee of Supply last Thursday. We do not know yet how 
much this amounted to in 1964-65, but it was estimated at $35 million for 
1963-64.

The question of how to deal with the loss arising from second-class mail 
has been the subject of comment by my predecessor and myself in our reports 
to the House for the past ten years, and this committee has discussed this 
problem in its various aspects on four occasions, namely 1958, 1960, 1961, and 
1963 with our friends from the Post Office Department. As you know, this was 
again Item 1 in the 1966 follow-up report that I gave this committee when we 
commenced our sessions. The committee had stated that it believed early 
consideration should be given by Parliament to ways and means of covering the 
loss of the Post Office Department in handling second-class mail, and requested 
me to keep the matter before Parliament in my annual reports in order that 
subsequent committees may give consideration to it. I did this in my 1964 report 
under paragraph 79, and in my 1965 one, under paragraph 105.

It may interest members here to know that in 1956-57 postal revenues from 
mailings of newspapers and periodicals were $6 million annually. At that time 
the Post Office estimated the cost of handling these was about $24 million 3 
year. It has never been legislative policy to fix rates to result in a self-support­
ing service. Apparently the aim has been to encourage the dissemination of 
news, with some categories of newspapers and periodicals being charged lowei 
rates than others; whether the excess of costs over revenue estimated benefits 
publisher, advertiser or subscriber, was described by my predecessor ten years 
ago, as an imponderable.

By 1963-64, the second-class mail revenues had increased to slightly ovei 
$8 million, that is to say from six, but the cost of handling this second-class 
mail was estimated at something in excess of $43 million. So that as I said, 
the loss in handling this class of mail in that year was in the order of 
million.

In the ten year period which I have mentioned, I believe it is correct to say 
that although there have been a number of changes with respect to second-class 
mail, only two of these changes were really designed to improve the revenu6 
from this source. The first such change was an increase from varying rates t° 
five cents a pound on foreign publications mailed in Canada. This resulted m 
increased revenues of about $1,250,000 a year.

The second was the withdrawal of the favourable second-class rate °n 
newspapers and magazines mailed by the general public. Such mailings are no^ 
subject to postage at the third-class rate of three cents for the first ounce ; whi 
the newspaper or periodical thus mailed may have been carried, when origin3 ' 
ly mailed by the publisher, for as little as a cent and a half a pound. Tlus 
change is estimated to have increased postal revenues by something °ver 
$500,000 a year.

In addition, a government resolution designed to implement recommend3 
tions of the Royal Commission on Publications was introduced into the House on 
March 9th, 1964 which, if it had been adopted, would have extended to t ® 
cultural or little magazines a reduced rate of a cent and a half a pound, 311 
repealed the higher local delivery rate of periodicals published weekly or Ie
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frequently. The resulting reduction in revenue is estimated at $585,000. The 
same resolution would also have established a minimum charge of half a cent 
Per item, designed to increase revenues by $450,000 per annum. However, the 
resolution died when Parliament prorogued on April 3, 1965.

A change which has favoured both foreign and Canadian publishers and 
Which has reduced the revenue from second-class postage by an indeterminable 
amount was the relaxation of the requirements concerning inserts. Inserts 
Which formerly may have been subjected to the higher third-class rate of 
Postage are now permitted, while the entire mailing is accepted at the second- 
class rate. In this connection, Mr. Long and I have an example which we would 
hke to show you to demonstrate precisely what is happening under this 
heading. I will not take the time now, but in the question period that follows 
you might be interested in seeing it.

I believe the reproductions from the Glassco report are being distributed to 
y°u in which the 1959 figures are set out. I would ask you to disregard them for 
fhe moment, but the report shows the different classes of mail, the receipts, 
disbursements, and whether a surplus or deficit is derived by the Post Office 
j^opartment. It is because of the interest in the presentation of this information 
lhat I thought you would like to have it since it demonstrates very clearly the 
effort the Post Office Department makes to separate its different products, so to 
sPeak, and in determining the cost of handling each type of mail.

Now, the cost of handling second-class mail is, as you will see from this 
beet, determined in the same manner and it is determined by means of what is 
b°wn as cost ascertainment methods. In 1964, the department engaged a firm 
1 consultants to review these procedures to see if they could establish more 

Accurate costs with respect to the various classes of mail. However, as the 
rocedures recommended by the consultants were only put into effect in 

/jnuary 1965, no figures were available to determine the loss for handling it in 
65. I do not believe we have it yet, but the Postmaster General told the House 

toK Thursday> if I understood him correctly, that he hopes by July of this year 
have data on this subject covering the whole year. Perhaps Mr. Daze and his 

s°ciates here today can furnish some additional information on this.
This sums up the background information, Mr. Chairman, and members 

, 'ght like to tick off four of the paragraphs on their guide sheets which we 
ave disposed of.

The Chairman: Mr. Daze, would you like to comment?
be Mr. Daze: I would suggest that Mr. MacDonald and/or Mr. Jay comment 

ause they are more fully aware of all the details that took place than I am.
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I hope we will be dealing with the presentation. 

a 6 kusic information is on this sheet now. In your presentation, will you make 
, c°ttiment on the fact that on the basis of this first-class mail is required to 
^°od 9 SUrp^us °f $3® million in order to subsidize, somewhat in the neighbour- 

°f $25 million, the losses in other classes?
(4-00 p.m.)

J- A. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, I might carry on with the subjects 
the Auditor-General has spoken about, namely the studies which were
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undertaken in cooperation with the Departmental consultants. As the Post­
master General informed the House, we expect to have an up-to-date report on 
a revised basis using the best methods of apportionment of costs and revenues 
up to July of this year. You may know that our Department has been chosen, as 
one of the six or seven departments of government, to experiment with new 
methods of presenting the departmental estimates and revenues and costs to 
parliament, and we expect and we are recommending that this new updated 
cost ascertainment system become the basis of that presentation. In other words, 
I think you are all familiar with the proposals under the new system of 
presenting estimates of programmes and activities. We are proposing that the 
programme of the Post Office Department be only one, expressed in terms of 
the various classes of mails and services. So that we would present our 
estimates in a way that it would show the revenues and expenditures of each 
class of mail and services each year, and this would give you more information 
about the operation of the Post Office Department than you have ever had. We 
think this is the best way to explain the Post Office programme. Those figures 
are not available yet; we will have them by July and they will be available to 
the Auditor General and I presume that he can make them available to your 
committee.

In regard to Mr. Winch’s question concerning the surplus of $35 million he 
referred to in first-class mail being used to offset a loss on second-class mail, 
Mr. Nicholson, when he was Postmaster General, explained some of these 
difficulties of understanding the Post Office accounting because of the dual 
system of expenditures, payments from appropriations and payments from 
revenue. The money voted for the Department in appropriations is not a deficit 
of the Department as some people have often thought; it is merely that portion 
of our expenditures that happened to be voted. The other expenditures are 
authorized as expenditures out of revenue in accordance with the Post Office 
Act. These will be combined in the presentation under our proposed system of 
presenting our accounts, so that they will be shown together. In this way y°u 
will see a proper commercial statement of the Post Office Department, including 
expenditures from revenue and expenditures from appropriation.

Mr. Winch: Could I ask a question just for clarification? Do I understand 
then that this presentation is not factual with regard to the surplus °n 
first-class mail? I am not talking about any subsidies or payment from the 
government in estimates. Is it a fact that the $35 million is the actual surplus on 
first-class mail and the $24 million dollars approximately is a loss on other 
mail? I mean that is an actual figure, is it not?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: It is in our own accounts, Mr. Winch. However, this 
is part of the confusion because it does not include those inter-departmenta 
charges of $35 million dollars which should be apportioned to all classes of ma11 
First-class mail would bear part of that $35 million dollars, that is building5’ 
accommodation and charges by the Comptroller of the Treasury and superan' 
nuation. These items are not in that figure, and in the presentation that 
propose to make in the new form of estimates we will include those inter' 
departmental charges. Therefore, part of this $35 million will be charged t® 
first-class mail and will decrease that surplus actually, and will also be charge 
to second-class mail and increase that deficit. The surplus and deficit.
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Mr. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, are we dealing with this item right now?
Mr. Chairman: We are dealing pretty well with this page here as circulat­

ed.
Mr. Forbes: My question has to do with transportation, and I will ask it 

when an opportunity comes.
Mr. Thomas: I would like to ask how the Post Office department arrives at 

these costs. For instance, under first-class (letters) ordinary, you have receipts 
*100 million plus; disbursements $65 million plus, giving a surplus of $35 
Million, plus. How do you arrive at these costs?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Sir, we use a statistical sampling system, We sample 
the revenue of the various mails going through the mail; we select typical 
°ffices throughout the country and we sample them with regard to what classes 
°f mail there are and what the postage is on them. In this way we apportion the 
‘evenue between various classes of mail. As you will appreciate, when some- 
°dy buys a postage stamp or sets a postage meter, we do not know what class 

°f mail they are going to use it on. The only exception to that is your 
Second-class mail which is paid on an individual basis, so we do know exactly 
what the revenue is on second-class mail. But outside of that, when you buy a 
Postage stamp, you can use it on any class of mail. Therefore, we have to use a 

otistical system to apportion this revenue, and this is where we use the 
Osultants as advisors on mathematical statistical methods and, with our own 

oowledge of the operation, we analyze the revenue.
■ We also analyze the expenditures. As an example take the salaries of clerks 

Post offices; they may handle every class of mail, but we have to use some 
othod of apportioning their salaries between the classes of mail. In connection 
m the transportation system, a mail contract between two cities will handle 

^actically every class of mail, but we have to apportion that in some manner. 
at use a sampling method to apportion those costs, and in this way we arrive 
^the revenue and costs of each class of mail. The statisticians and ourselves 

Ve determined that the accuracy of this is within plus or minus five per cent, 
lui SOmething similar to operating a sawmill where you will be turning out 
In k r grades. When you run a sawmill you do not know what class of
v^ber you are going to get out of it, and you have to apportion your costs to the 

lQus classes of lumber; the principle is essentially the same.
ty:,, ^r- Bigg: Is there no way of creditiing the postal department, for instance, 

h free mail?
Uj ■ i^r- J. A. MacDonald: Yes. We estimate this revenue by sampling the free 
syste ®oes through the Ottawa Post Office, that is a regular sampling

the ^r" Bîgg: I know you can do it, but is the department in fact credited with
Se^^ount of service which they have done? For instance, the Post Office can
9Ppr °Ut 3 thousand dollars worth of mail to our constituencies. Is there any

. °xirnate credit to the postal department for this free service they are 
virig?

q^0,^r- J- A. MacDonald: Well, Mr. Henderson referred to this item and 
sbow hgure. On page 2 of the Postmaster General’s report for 1965, he has 

u the actual amount as $4.3 million, and at another estimate it is $4.9
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million, but that was the estimate. So if you ever come across the difference in 
these figures, it is an estimate that we make of that amount of postage.

Mr. Flemming: My question, Mr. Chairman, is in connection with the 
second-class receipts and disbursements and has to do with the second item 
under the heading of “publishers”. Is this the rate which the Post Office 
Department charges the newspaper publishers for distribution of their publica­
tions?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: This revenue figure is the amount of postage we 
collect from the publishers.

Mr. Flemming : That is really the largest item of deficit, is it not?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I think that is our largest deficit on second-class 

mail.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I wonder if we can have a list of the types of mail that 

are included in second-class mail.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I suggest that you ask Mr. Pageau or Mr. McLachlan 

to answer that question.
Mr. Pageau: Mr. Chairman, in the second class publications, we include the 

daily newspapers, the weekly publications, and monthly publications. Those 
covered by rates listed in the Post Office Act are covered by statutory 
legislation and others are covered by regulations. Now when I refer to those 
covered by the statutory regulations, I mean those that meet the conditions lald 
out in the Post Office Act and which are entitled to the reduced statutory rate- 
In addition to this, you have reduced rates of postage covered by regulation5 
which the Postmaster General has the power to regulate.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Will this include second-class mail sent out by the 
public as well.

Mr. Pageau: No. I think the Auditor General mentioned that over a yea^ 
ago we abolished this reduced rate of postage for the odd publication maU^ 
by the public at the Post Office or in a box. Today the public has to pay 
regular printed matter rate on transient publications which we call third-cl3. 
rate. Now I would like to explain that with the newspapers we include Perl 
odicals, magazines and the like which are accepted under the same conditi° 
as regular newspapers.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): This leads to another question. Then why do y°u 
include magazines?

Mr. Pageau: Because the legislation actually provides for certain conditi°dg 
for recognition as a newspaper or periodical. The publication has to , 
published regularly, it has to have a proportion of advertising and editorial, a 
it must be published at least quarterly. For instance, I heard a gentleman a^g 
whether this covers Time and Reader’s Digest. The answer is yes. These 
covered because Time, Reader’s Digest and Selection, the French edit* g 
actually do fall within this legislation. To go a step further, also covered lbgt 
special rate for publications from the United States mailed in Canada. This 
a rate covered by regulations, not by legislation. This is included in the ovel 
deficit shown for the second-class mail.
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Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I notice that remissions were made to certain 
Publications by the Governor-in-Council, and I think Time was included in 
there. Why were these remissions made?

Mr. Pageau: Mr. Chairman, I think the Auditor-General might wish to 
c°ver the subject of remissions separately.

Mr. Henderson: We will come to that Item next, under paragraph 77, Mr. 
Muir. The list is being circulated in advance in readiness for the discussion, 
fihat is where you expressed the wish to question the witnesses on some of 
these remissions, and that is why we circulated copies.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I overheard Mr. Pageau say that a newspaper 
°r Periodical must meet certain conditions before it is eligible for the reduced 
rMe. One of the things mentioned was advertising content. Is there a certain 
standard of advertising, including quantity?

Mr. Pageau: Yes. The Act provides that at least a reasonable portion of the 
Ajoutent shall be of a nature that deals with political matters or related topics. 

Pis means, for instance, that in order to receive a reduced rate of postage, at 
®ast 30 per cent of the contents of recognized newspapers must be of an 
Uitorial nature or non-advertising.

Mr. Schreyer: Yes, I understand that. But I thought you said there must be 
Certain amount of advertising.

Mr. Pageau: No. I meant to say what I just said a moment ago, sir.
Mr. Bigg: It seems to me that the cost of a paper today to the consumer is 

°minal only, and I am wondering whether it is right to allow first-class mail to 
ay for free advertising. That is what it amounts to now. Let us take the average 

Jpy paper that comes out, which weighs about half a pound, it is all 
Vertising; it is receiving a special rate here that is costing us $21 million

am referring to people who write letters and send parcels to their 
a j hers and this sort of thing. It seems to me that our affluent society can stand 
c ar§er percentage of the cost of the postal department, and I wonder how we 
thf ^ ng this about. Is it a matter of making recommendations by us, or should 

s he dealt with in some other way?
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Bigg, the committee will likely recommend the same as 

hid before, namely, that second-class mail—
Mr. Bigg: —be jacked up a little bit.

per Flemming : My question, Mr. Chairman, was only this. By what 
‘Centage amount would the second-classs mail rate have to be increased to 

°Ver the deficit?

Mr. Chairman: Can you answer that, Mr. MacDonald?
Plat ^r' "h A. MacDonald: The revenue shown on your statement is approxi- 
itic 6 ^ million compared to $29 million or $30 million, so you would have to 

Fease the rates by 400 per cent to equal the revenue.
^r- Flemming: Is it a matter of policy that this is not being done?
^r- J- A. MacDonald: Yes.

ah e^r' Daze: Well, as Mr. MacDonald explained, we are just about concluding 
tensive study which, I agree with the Auditor General, is taking quite a 

^194-^2
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long time; he has been bringing this in his report for years. Mr. MacDonald has 
given you an explanation concerning our cost ascertainment programme and the 
extensive study which has been conducted, and we hope to come up with 
certain recommendations sometime in July. These will be made to the Post­
master General and what happens to them is a matter for the Postmaster 
General and the Government. We just show the result of our study; we do not 
make decisions.

• (4.15 p.m.)
Mr. Winch: That is the very question I would like to ask. You have a 

situation where you have a revenue of $6,189,000 on second class mail 
publishers an expenditure of $27,900,000.00 which is a ratio of about four-to- 
one, as you pointed out. Is the decision to maintain this ratio of loss by giving 
service at four-to-one on your cost over revenue a matter of postal service, or a 
matter of government policy, as far as you are concerned?

Mr. Daze: It is a matter of the Post Office Act; the act would have to be 
changed.

Mr. Winch: Do you mean the exact amount as set forth in the Post Office
Act?

Mr. Daze: This is referring to the rates, that is a cent and a half a pound, 
a cent and three-quarters, three cents a pound, depending upon whether it is a 
daily, weekly, or monthly and so on.

Mr. Winch: We are governed then by government policy and not by y°ur 
office.

Mr. Daze: Yes sir. We call these policies statutory privileges, and we hav 
to abide by them until they have been changed by Parliament.

Mr. Flemming: My question is this: Does the deficit on second-class ma^ 
become progressively greater with the years, or is it being reduced?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Proportionately. Mr. Henderson just gave you tbe 
figures for 1956-57.1 did not have them with me and I am glad he quoted the#1- 
It shows 6 million to twenty-four million, which is 25 per cent. Whereas in 
63-64, I think the $43 million has the inter-departmental charges in it, does 1 
not?

Mr. Henderson: No, I think not. There was a loss of $35 million 
second-class mail in 1964; you had revenues of $8 million, so the cost 
handling must be the sum of the two.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I do not recall that it has the inter-departmen^ 
charges. But, whether it does nor not, the ratio is one to five instead of one 
four. So I think the ratio is getting, let us say, worse.

Mr. Henderson: With the increase in costs, you would expect that, won 
you not?

itMr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes, because costs go up and rates are fixed, so i 
bound to get worse.

Mr. Henderson: All government costs have gone up.
Mr. Schreyer: I just wanted to have it clarified whether second-class rate 

are fixed by statute or by regulations?
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Mr. Daze: Both. Most of them are fixed by statute. We have made certain 
changes in those fixed by regulations. For instance, with regard to the public 
who mail individual newspapers or magazines to friends or relatives, we charge 
them the third-class rate. This could be done by a regulation enacted by the 
Postmaster General, and that was done. I do not recall other cases where we 
changed the rates by regulations.

Mr. Winch: The corporation is protected by law, but the individual is not.
Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, has the proportion of receipts and disburse­

ments in connection with first-class mail generally been maintained the same as 
h appears in the statement which we have from the Glassco Report? I notice 
lhat in 1959, for example, it shows receipts of $100 million and disbursements of 
$65 million, with a surplus of $35 million. Is this a pretty fair reflection of how 
^he ration between the disbursements and receipts has been maintained over a 
mirnber of years?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: If I may answer that. I do not have the exact figures 
^ith me, but I think the proportion does remain approximately the same 
because, periodically, you will recall, we have increased first-class rates in order 
0 keep this relationship.

Mr. Baldwin: In other words, I suppose roughly what is happening is that 
®n the deficit from second-class mail increases we have to raise first-classmail

hot. ln order to carry the burden. This is the result, whether it is intended or

cha A" MacDonald: You look at all classes of mail, sir. There have been
thi ag6S over past 15 years in various classes of mail; parcel post and 
thirmclass rates have been increased. On April 1, 1964 we increased the 
revd'class rate from two to three cents which resulted in an increase in 
K mue in one year of $12 million. We increased the registration rate in 
(jg^mber, 1963 which, on a yearly basis brought in $1,800,000. The special 

IVery rate went up and increased revenue by $409,000. Householder mail 
fe Ugbt in $2 million, that is the unaddressed third class matter. Money order 
hia i Were increased slightly, C.O.D. fees, and also this second-class transient 
mp we referred to. The parcel post rates have not been increased for some 

e. When was the last increase in parcel post, Mr. Pageau?
tion ^r‘ ^AGEAU: That was before my time as director of postal rate classifica-

par ^r- J- A. MacDonald: There was a slight increase in the international 
s6c cm Post rates. We can increase all rates except first-class and statutory 
in t°knd'class by regulation. The first-class and statutory second-class rates are 

me act.
Mr. Baldwin: What I am getting at is that actually in the result the 

mvidual continues to pay the increase in charges in order to carry the burden 
e*lch is imposed by statute in connection with second-class mail. This n> 

mt what is happening?
r6s ^r- J. A. MacDonald: I think you could say that is the effect of the 

S Action on second-class rates.

tates^r' ®aldwin: You pointed out quite properly, of course, that the fixing of 
!s a matter of statute which, in effect, is a matter of government policy.^194—2j
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What about the classification of second-class mail, that is to determine what is 
and what is not second-class mail. Do you have to go back to Parliament to get 
that changed or can it be done by regulation?

Mr. Pageau: Yes, Mr. Chairman. The Post Office Act defines exactly what is 
a Canadian newspaper or periodical for the purpose of the reduced rate of 
postage listed in the act. It says that the rates for those publications or 
periodicals which are not listed in the act, will be governed by the Postmaster 
General. For instance, as I mentioned before, there are certain conditions to be 
met. A copy of a statutory publication has to be addressed to a bona fid® 
subscriber. In the regulatory rates you can send a publication at reduced rates 
of postage set by the Postmaster General which are lower than the rates on 
printed matter. Therefore, you have one rate provided by this legislation which 
we cannot change, but those rates set by regulation can be changed by the 
Postmaster General. For instance, the rate for publications which are published 
regularly, but which do not have bona fide subscribers, that is people who pay- 
for these publications, would be governed by regulations set by the Postmaster 
General.

Mr. Baldwin: At this stage does your information permit you to decide 01 
to distinguish this disbursement with respect to second-class mail; that is ho^ 
do you divide it between newspapers and periodicals?

Mr. Pageau: The current study which has been undertaken and 15 
nearing completion will actually determine exactly where the deficit on second' 
class is incurred, namely the type of publication, whether it is a daily mailed i 
Canada or publications such as Time and Reader’s Digest. We will be able 
determine this as a result of our studies.

Mr. Baldwin: Without prejudice to what that may be, are you now i° 
position to indicate what that division has been in respect of editions in t*1 
past?

Mr. Pageau: Mr. Chairman, I do not think we are in a position to indica|a 
that division. The reason why we undertook such a study was to be able ^ 
determine exactly the contribution of each category of second-class mail 
the deficit.

Mr. Bigg: Very briefly, I know that in 1939 the rate of first-class mail 
an ordinary letter was 3 cents and it is now 5 cents. That is a raise of roug 
66 per cent. I was just wondering whether second-class mail has come up 
the same way or anything like it?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I think we will deal with this later in the report.
Mr. Flemming: My question, Mr. Chairman, concerns these figures vvhi^ 

were quoted for the year ending March 31, 1959 when the Post Office just ab0^ 
broke even. There was a surplus on a certain type of service and a defici 
another type of service and handling. Has the relationship in the last fiscal y 
for which you have figures been about the same, that is, one offsetting 
other?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. MacDonald can correct me, but I believe they 
surplus, if we are using comparable figures for your most recent year, 
which was $20 million. Am I right?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald : Yes, sir.
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Mr. Henderson: These figures do not include the $35 million of accommo­
dation expenses and the major services provided free; these have not yet been 
integrated into their accounting system. So, these figures are without those 
denis and so is the $20 million.

Mr. Winch: However, I understand they are going to be, are they not?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, that is right, that is their intention.
Mr. Flemming : But they never have been?
Mr. Henderson: No. We bring them forward because they properly belong 

0 the Post Office, the same as the Post Office is entitled to credit for the 
franked mail.

Mr Flemming: Would it be fair to assume that since you raised the rates 
°n registration and special delivery, that the account is about balanced under 
the heading of those two items?

ha Mr. J. A. MacDonald: No sir- Even with the increased rates we will still
Ve a loss in registration and special delivery. These are situations in a postal 

ervice where postal services sort of look upon registration and special delivery 
s a loss leader part of first-class mail. You group them with your first-class 

vJhl and charge your loss on special delivery and registration to first-class mail, 
hether it is right or not, this has been the practice in postal administrations.

effi, Mr. Flemming: It was only a comment. I have great respect for the 
ciency of the special delivery; I think they really do a tremendous job. When 

, h post a special delivery letter from the Centre Block, I have had them 
ivered within 12 or 14 hours to the eastern part of the country. I think the 

^'hal attention they get is tremendous; the way they are picked out at the 
stination and then someone comes around and puts them on your desk. I 

r lrik Post Office Department are deserving of compliments in many 
pects, but this is one feature of their service which, I think, is tremendous.

ha Chairman: I am sure the Committee will want to endorse what you 
(ji e said, Mr. Flemming. We want to give all members ample opportunity to 

Uss this, but we have a lot to go over today while the officials are with us. 
qu®ref°re, I would ask you to be as brief, concise and as sharp as you can on all 

stions and answers, and then we will be able to move along.
y0u Forbes is next, then Mr. Winch, and Mr. Cowan is here as a visitor. As 
t)art hnow, in our new Committee system anyone is free to come in and take 

ln our discussions; they can do everything but vote in the Committee, 
re we leave this sheet, Mr. Cowan, we will give you an opportunity to ask 

Gestion or two if you wish.
Forbes: Mr. Chairman, my question has to do with transportation and I 

s0m fr will be in order at this time because I heard Mr. MacDonald say 
the n reference to it. Naturally, transportation costs will enter into
°btaPr°^ that a post office department will show. The information I wish to 
hajjj , 18 this: At the present time there are three sources of mail transportation, 
Servi y ra^> truck and carrier service which is let by contract, and you have air 
is 0lJ, e- How do you let the contract for mail transportation by rail when there 

^ne comin§ into a town? How do you let the contract for air service 
here is only one air line going into a town?
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Mr. Daze: Mr. Chairman, at this time I would like to introduce Mr. R- J- 
Cousens, assistant director of transportation. Mr. Cousens was late in coming 
here through no fault of his own; it was my fault.

Mr. R. J. Cousens (Assistant Director, Transportation Branch): Well) 
actually the arrangements we have with the railway companies and the air line 
companies are arrangements which are permitted by order-in-council. In this 
respect we have dealt with both the major railways and the major air lineS’ 
The Postmaster General has special privileges in the area of granting contracts 
with common carriers, and it is through these arrangements that we negotiate 
with the railway companies and the air lines.

Mr. Forbes: Do the air lines carry second-class mail?
Mr. Cousens: No, generally speaking they do not. There may be some case» 

where the only means of serving a particular settlement is by air and in those 
instances naturally we have to move all classes by air.

Mr. Forbes : Do you arrive at this rate which is to be paid on the basis 
what you pay to other air lines?

Mr. Cousens: Well, usually we try to negotiate what we call a ton mile toll 
rate with air lines. The rate that we pay to the railway companies is set by 
order-in-council and we have to work within the framework of this order-in' 
council.

Mr. Forbes: You refer to a ton mile. Suppose they carry a half a ton, theI1 
what is the situation?

Mr. Cousens: Well, you can still relate it to a dollar value.
Mr. Forbes: Thank you very much.
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, my question does not relate to publication, buj 

refers strictly to the sheet. As a matter of fact, I have two questions with respeC 
to this sheet, one relates to lock box rentals because this is by regulation.

The Chairman: We have a section dealing with lock box, so we will co^ 
to that in due course.

Mr. Winch: I also want to ask a question on the postal savings bank- ^ 
that also come up later?

The Chairman: We have a section on that too. Mr. Henderson, I think y° 
have a sample of second-class mail which you might like to show us.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, I mentioned earlier that a change had be 
made by the post office which had favoured both foreign and Cana ^ 
publishers in which it reduced the revenue for second-class postage by , 
indeterminate amount. This was the relaxation of the requirements concern ^ 
inserts which formerly may have been subjected to a higher third-class rat® j, 
postage and are permitted while the entire mailing is accepted at the seC° ne. 
class rate. The best example I have is something that came out of a magaz^j 
You are familiar with the coupons that are inserted in magazines, and I ^ jj 
ask Mr. Daze and his associates to check me, but the way we interpret the 
this: If this coupon had been mailed in an open addressed envelope to 3 e 
home the postage would have been 3 cents. If it had been mailed to
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householder—as they are often stuffed in the mailbox—it would have been 2 
cents. However, by putting it inside a magazine, the magazine rate is one and 
three quarter cents a pound and if the magazine from which this was extracted, 
yeighing 10 ounces, the postage that therefore follows on the entire magazine is 
just slightly over one cent. That is an illustration of how the thing works in 
Practice.

Mr. Pageau: Mr. Chairman, with respect to this question of inserts in 
Publications, for years we have allowed the inclusion in publications of, let us 
Say, forms for subscriptions. However, the insert in a publication must either be 
bound in the publication, if the publication is bound, or in another publication, 
uke a newspaper, it may be in loose form. We used to require that an allowance 
be made for pagination of these inserts. We are trying to follow the progress in 
'■be publishing industry and go along with it. It does not make any difference 
Whether it is page numbered or not. We say this is the practice in the whole 
Publishing industry, and we feel that the Post Office Department should follow 
their technical evolution. This is why these types of inserts, if they are bound in 
a Publication as an advertising page, or in such a way that you can tear them 
°ut, are accepted. This is what the Auditor General pointed out. If these were 
failed separately, the publishers would pay at the rate of 2£ cents, 2 cents for 
householder, 2£ cents in bulk or 3 cents individually. Now, Mr. Chairman, I do 
hot know if the issue raised by the Auditor General is with respect to whether 
his was good policy by the Post Office Department.

Mr. Henderson: I would not seek to express an opinion on policy. I simply 
/bought this example would be a useful one in understanding what is involved, 

his came out of a magazine that weigher 10 ounces and the postage on the 
htire magazine, from the standpoint of the Post Office Department’s revenue, 
as a little over one cent.

Mr. Baldwin: What does the insert say, Mr. Henderson?
Mr. Henderson: It is how to save 15 cents by purchasing a certain brand of

Merchandise.

v

t, . Mr. Winch: What would happen to the magazine itself? Does it have some- 
hig to do with advertising, and not with the magazine itself?

Mr. Henderson: This has been torn out of a 10 ounce magazine. It reaches 
e home in the magazine.

Mr. Winch: It is strictly advertising.
pr The Chairman: I think it brings to the attention of the Committee a 

°blem that the Post Office Department has.

Mr. Henderson: My sole purpose in mentioning it here was so that you 
§ht appreciate what is going on.

arr ^r. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, is it a case where some companies would 
Mildly’6 with a magazine to include this advertising and it would not cost them

The Chairman: You mean they got something for nothing? 
Mr. Forbes: Yes. Is that the idea?
Mr. Henderson: I would imagine so.
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An hon. Member: I understand that newspapers and magazines, in order to 
comply with the regulations for second-class mail, must be addressed to some 
individual. How do you fix the rate on newspapers and magazines that are sold 
on the news stands?

Mr. Pageau: Mr. Chairman, we have nothing to do with publications sold 
on the news stands. We only deal with the rates for copies of magazines and 
periodicals sent by mail. These are either sent to bona fide subscribers and are 
covered by the statutory rates, or they are sent otherwise and covered by the 
regulatory rates set by the Postmaster General. But, we have nothing to do with 
copies sold on news stands.

Mr. Bigg: But you can still roll them up and send them at a special rate to 
your friends.

Mr. Pageau: Individually?
Mr. Bigg: Yes.
Mr. Pageau: You would have to pay the printed matter rates.
Mr. Baldwin: Do you mean magazines that are sent from one city t0 

another do not go through the post office.
Mr. Pageau: Well, you have news agencies that have nothing to do with the 

post office. They have their own distribution system. It is the same thing as the 
dailies in a city.

Mr. Daze: Mr. Chairman, I think there are copies addressed to news dealer5 
that go by mail.

Mr. Pageau: Mr. Chairman, I would like to clarify that. Copies of public3' 
tions covered by statute that are addressed to bona fide news dealers 3re 
considered on the same basis as bona fide subscribers.

The Chairman: I have a couple of questions with regard to this sheet. * 
notice the Unemployment Insurance Commission has a deficit of $125,000 013(1 ' 
What would that be for?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: That is the difference between our costs and wh3| 
we charge the Unemployment Insurance Commission for selling unemployi°e 
insurance stamps and, based on the cost ascertainment studies over the yea^ 
we have adjusted this rate with the Unemployment Insurance Commission- 
one year you might find a slight deficit and in another year a slight surplus.

The Chairman: The Unemployment Insurance Commission pay y°u ^ 
selling their stamps?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes, sir.
The Chairman: And you have not charged them enough?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: In that year we did not.
The Chairman: Why would you not charge them enough? I would °vel 

charge them.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Well, perhaps we have charged them a little ^ 

much on next year’s report. We do not adjust this rate every year; we try 110 
to. Incidentally, I think this brings up a very interesting point with regar
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rate setting which you will probably get involved in over the years. Costs go up 
everily year by year, but I do not think you would want to see first-class rates, 
second-class rates and third-class rates adjusted every year, simply because 
you could not adjust the first-class rate from 5 cents to 5.25 cents. Therefore, 
you are going to have a situation where, for a few years, your revenue will be 
even and then suddenly it will go up like stair steps but your costs will go up in 
a straight line.

Mr. Forbes: What are the arrangements between second and third-class 
rates?

Mr. Pageau: Again, Mr. Chairman, I would like to explain that in order to 
°e considered second-class, you must meet the conditions set out in the act with 
respect to what is recognized as newspapers and periodicals.

A publication mailed by you to your friend would be at the printed matter 
r&te, and anything else, such as the circulars you get, householder mail, books, 
samples and printed literature, would be third-class. Second-class is confined to 
Newspapers and periodicals.

Mr. Forbes: What is the differential in rates?
Mr. Pageau: In the second-class, sir, you have the per pound rate provided 

p)r by Parliament. Whereas the rate for third-class is governed by the 
estnaaster General and it is usually on a per item and per weight basis. Instead 
i the rate being one cent per pound or 1J cents per pound, it would be 3 cents 
°r the first two ounces and one cent for two additional ounces.

Mr. Winch: Now I know we got stuck during the last election; it was 
y regulation.

The Chairman: The other question I had related to the fact that the 
Auditor General said no figures are available to indicate the loss in handling
Second-class mail for the year 1964-65. Do you have that information on hand 
how?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: The year 1964-65 was an experimental year. We 
, y had three cycles of our normal 13 cycle sampling within the year; we only 
„ad January, February and March, and we do not like to believe our own 
Shies. We set it up as an experimental figure, but now that we have the full 13 

^yrles in the fiscal year 1965-66, which will be available in July, we prefer that 
°h did not ask us to tell you what the figures were. We will have the 1965-66 
Shres that we will be able to rely on in July next.

, The Chairman: What would be the cost of the services of the consultants 
hat you hire?

: Mr. J. a. MacDonald: Well, altogether on the whole study—and they got
I °lved in this second-class study last year—I think our costs right up date, 
a,0rn January 1964 until the present time, run around $75,000; it will come to 

°ut $80,000 and then they will be finished.
, The Chairman: Mr. Cowan, would you like to ask some questions on this 

sheet?

Mr. Cowan: Yes, thank you, Mr Chairman.
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On this sheet you show free mail under disbursements of $4,620,958. How 
much of that free mail would you assign to the second classification where you 
are carrying country weekly newspapers free up to 2,500 circulation within 40 
miles of the office of publication?

• (4.45 p.m.)
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: There is none in that, sir. That free mail is under the 

franking privileges of the Post Office Act, and the free mail that goes on 
publications is not included in that. I do not think we can estimate for you the 
costs of free zoned publications that come under the statutory privilege of free 
zoned publications.

Mr. Cowan: I only asked the question because of the number of small town 
weeklies that come in everlastingly on the cost of the free mail to members of 
Parliament, but overlook, for some reason or other, the cost of the free mail of 
carrying their publications, 2,500 copies a week, up to 40 miles from the office ot 
publication. Another question I would like to ask you under this item ot 
second-class news and periodicals is this: Has any study been made by the Post 
Office Department or the Auditor General with respect to how many tons we 
move and how many thousands of miles every year these periodicals travel 
when coming in from outside of Canada as second-class mail for which w’e 
receive not a cent of revenue? I have in mind such mail as subscriptions starting 
in Denmark and going to a Danish family living in Grande Prairie, Alberta who 
have come out here as settlers, or a paper coming up from Rome, Italy to an 
Italian family who has settled in Calgary and they subscribe to a periodical. Hhs 
any study been made on the tons of this free stuff?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes sir. Under the new system, when the rep°r 
comes out in July, we will be able to tell you the cost of handling foreign 
publications that come into Canada that are charged as second-class mail. When 
I say that, I must emphasize that the only foreign publications that come in*0 
Canada charged as second-class mail are those from the United States. Under 
international postal regulations all publications from other countries, other than 
the United States, come in as third-class matter. So, they are not charged Jl* 
these costs on second-class rates. However, we will be able to tell you the c° 
of second-class publications from the United States and the cost of Canada 
publications going to the United States. It is a two-way traffic.

Mr. Cowan: Yes, about the balance of one horse and one rabbit in a rabb^ 
pie, you know. Do you mean to say that a newspaper coming in from Parl ' 
France, is not classified as a newspaper by the Canadian Post Office Depar 
ment?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: That is right sir.
Mr. Daze: In our regulations and in France this is called printed matter 

which, in our knowledge, is third-class.
Mr. Cowan: What about a daily newspaper coming in from Great Britain-
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: The same thing applies.
Mr. Cowan: What do you mean by the “same thing”?

Is it foreign?
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Mr. J. A. MacDonald: It is charged to printed matter. In our printed 
matter the costs in the sheet which you have would include the cost of those 
newspapers and magazines from all countries except the United States.

Mr. Cowan: How many tons of printed matter are coming into Canada 
from other countries, other than the United States, for which we receive no 
revenue for services rendered?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I do not know offhand. Will we have that informa­
tion in the July figures, Mr. Pageau?

Mr. Pageau: No, Mr. MacDonald, because we have the total weight which 
we transport. For example, international letter post includes samples, literature 
for the blind, printed matter and books, and this is the basis of the international 
Postal convention. This is included in the over-all letter post. We do not keep 
separate records. The letter post which includes all these articles is included in 
the reciprocity principle. This means that whatever you receive you effect 
delivery without terminal charges.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald : However, Mr. Cowan, we will be able to give you 
this information eventually. We have a few of what we call sub-samplings to do 
°n things like you have mentioned, which will be figuring out the international 
balance on incoming and outgoing of every class of mail. We have not had time 
f° get around to it yet, but as we develop this new system we will break those 
ltems down and show how much is international in and out.

Mr. Cowan: How long have you been with the Post Office Department, sir?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Since 1949, sir.
Mr. Cowan: I have been asking this same question for 30 years and I am 

§lad to know that we are going to get around to it in 1966.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: We are getting closer.
Mr. Cowan: I am trying to draw the attention of the Auditor General to 

be fact that the Canadians carry a tremendous amount of printed material, if 
at is what you want to call it, or newspapers or magazines, from the United 
ates without any compensation whatever. Take Denmark again as an exam- 

P e> the Danish publisher gets the revenue for the subscription and he pays the 
anish post office which, I presume, has to pay for the cost of transporting the 
aterial. Perhaps they pay the subvention to the boats crossing the Atlantic, 

ht once it hits Halifax and goes to Calgary we do not get a cent. It is more 
an disgusting to think that Canadian publishers have to compete with foreign 
Dodicals in this way on which the Canadian publisher is asked to pay the 
stage charge from say Halifax to Calgary, and then he has to compete with

that Periodical for the person’s time in Calgary. I did not know until now that*   A.Vi. Wit ^tlOUU o UXX1XV- XIX vwxgaxj. A Uiu XXV U xvxxu VV UXIHX 11KJW nidi/

y°u call Other publications, other than the United States, printed matter. I 
Understood they were considered newspapers, the same as newspapers or 
Magazines in the United States.

There is one further question I wanted to ask you. Someone here today said 
ere was a study being made with respect to the creation of these deficits. Isthi 

any 
travel

consideration being given to the distances that these mail subscriptions 
in your investigation into the source of the deficits?
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Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes sir. In our cost study on second-class mail, 
which we will be reporting on to the government, we have taken this into 
consideration.

Mr. Cowan: What distances are you working on, 200 miles, 400 miles or 600 
miles?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald : We are not getting into a zone basis. It is more in the 
nature of a grouping of publications by character, and one rate for all their 
copies is the basis of our cost study.

Mr. Cowan: Some years ago, and I have been associated with the post office 
fairly well for 36 years, I sat in on discussions when they started air mail 
postage in Canada. Can you answer this question for me: In those days the Post 
Office was pretty hot under the collar—and I did not blame them—because the 
Trans-Canada Air Lines—some French Canadian can correct me, if he wishes, to 
say Air Canada, but it was Trans-Canada Air Lines in the days I am talking 
about—under Symington, said to the Post Office Department, “We want so much 
money to carry this mail.” I heard him say it myself. “I am going to have a 
profit on the Trans-Canada Air Lines; I am not going to have a deficit, so I 
need so much.” The Post Office was stating that the rates by air mail were too 
high.

Can you tell me whether the rates you pay the air lines today are 
negotiated, or are they imposed on you by the air lines without any negotiation 
by the Post Office Department? I have a high regard for the Post Office 
Department, but I have seen them shoved around before today.

Mr. Cousens: Mr. Chairman, in answer to this question, I should mention 
that we have had a contract negotiated with Air Canada which has been 
adjusted from time to time. It is the type of contract that as the volume 
increases the rate per ton mile decreases. Do you follow me?

Mr. Cowan: You say it has been adjusted. Adjusted by whom, the P°st 
Office or by the air line operators?

Mr. Cousens : Well, again, initially this came by order in council and when 
we wish to renew our arrangements we make a submission through the 
Postmaster General to Treasury Board for a renewal or a continuation or an 
adjustment to take a heavier volume of mail.

Mr. Cowan: Is it fair for me to ask the question: Are the officials of the 
Post Office Department satisfied with the rates you are paying the air lines °r 
do you still feel imposed upon as you were for many years?

Mr. Cousens: Well, let me put it this way: Some people think we are never 
satisfied and certainly if we could get it for less, we would.

Mr. Cowan: That is a very good answer.
The Chairman: On a line where Canadian Pacific operate, do you g° t0 

them for a competitive price?
Mr. Cousens: We do have contracts with the Canadian Pacific as well in 

trans-pacific, trans-atlantic, north atlantic and—
The Chairman: My question is this: If there is a line where Air Canady 

runs and Canadian Pacific runs, do you ask both those air lines to quote 
delivery of mail?
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Mr. Cousens: No, we do not because at the present time the contract we 
have with Air Canada permits us to carry the mail at a lesser cost than the 
opposition or the opposing air line would be prepared to accept.

Mr. Forbes: Well, how do you know that?
Mr. Daze: The more volume we give Air Canada the lower our rate 

becomes because of this arrangement per ton mile.
Mr. Cowan: The rate was high to start with.
The Chairman: My question is this: Have you asked for tenders, between 

Toronto and Vancouver, from Air Canada and C.P.A.?
Mr. Cousens: No sir, we have not.
The Chairman: How do you know then that you are getting the best 

Possible price?
Mr. Cousens: Let me put it this way: The construction of the method of 

Payment comes within certain groups or units of volume and, depending on the 
Volume for 1,000 or 10,00 ton miles, the rate to Air Canada would not reduce 
Materially; whereas the rate to Canadian Pacific Air Lines would certainly be 
atl increase, it would cost us more.

Mr. Cowan: I would like to make the observation that I would sooner see 
the Post Office employees get an increase in wages, rather than see Air Canada 
Produce a profit just because we have to pay too high a rate to the air lines to 
Carry the mail that they are now carrying for the Post Office Department.

I have just one other question. I believe it was Mr. Winch who was talking 
ah°ut the $35 million surplus in first-class mail where the receipts were $100 
Million and the disbursements $65 million. Well, surely you must realize that 
V’e have to get profit somewhere to subsidize the likes of the McConnells, the 

iftons, Lord Thompson of Fleet, the Bassetts and the Eatons.
Have any recommendations been made by the Post Office Department for 

Mcreasing second-class mail, or does it depend entirely on the members of 
arliament to dream up an increase in second-class mail rates?

Mr. Daze: Well, as we said, the study is almost concluded; it will be 
Submitted to the Postmaster General. What happens beyond that is not for us to 
$ay.
. Mr. Baldwin: This Committee has made recommendations along those lines 
M- some years. Arising out of that, Mr. Chairman, may I ask this question, 
hich is more in the nature of a suggestion. Could you, as Chairman, together 
hh the steering committee, give some thought to inviting the representatives 
ho cover the periodicals and the newspaper associations to appear before the 
Mmittee. They might be able to explain to the committee in more detail some
the benefits which obviously must flow to the public, and which at the 

k esent time escape me, in order to provide for this particular rate. We have 
discussing this with the post office people for some time. It might well be 

at we might be persuaded. There are a great many benefits which could 
thCrUe to the Puhhc from these lower rates. Possibly the representatives of 

ese People might like to appear before us and tell us about them.
i^r' Winch: I would agree with that, Mr. Chairman, if they would also 

Plain the benefits which would accrue to them.
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The Chairman: All right, Mr. Baldwin, we will take that suggestion to the 
steering committee.

Mr. Bigg: Does Air Canada have, shall we say, a capital expenditure with 
respect to the handling of this mail which is a factor? In other words, has the 
postal department invested money in facilities and so on, as our airports, which 
might be a loss if we changed the contract?

Mr. Daze: I do not think so, Mr. Chairman. Coming back to the question of 
salaries, I would dare say, sir, that the question of rates or deficits in the post 
office has had no bearing on salary increases with employees. This is entirely a 
different matter, handled by the pay research bureau of the Commission.

Mr. Bigg: Are salaries not checked in your over-all balance sheet?
Mr. Daze: Salaries, of course, yes. We did not set the pay raises and the 

like. I am saying that I do not believe that the extremely low salary increases 
given to postal employees in the first place were due to either a deficit or a 
surplus in the post office.

Mr. Bigg: But, as was said, if the post office operated at a profit, higher 
wages would make that profit look less, at least, on the balance sheet?

The Chairman : Mr. Cowan, can you conclude your questioning.
Mr. Cowan: I want to ask one other question. Have you any figures to show 

the comparative cost of handling printed advertising going out to the homes 
individually as compared with the cost of carrying that advertising in newspa­
pers and magazines? For instance, in daily newspapers with over 10,000 
circulation, I think your rate is 4 cents a pound on the advertising content. If ^ 
is 4 cents a pound on the advertising content, what is it when it is sent directly 
by an advertiser to the householder?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Our cost is approximately the same as our rate, 
about 2 cents per item unaddressed and 3 cents addressed.

Mr. Cowan: That means, from what Mr. Henderson produced today with 
that little coupon which is part of an advertisement in the paper or magazine, 
presume, that there is a tremendous subsidy to the advertising department of 3 
newspaper or a magazine compared to the rates they are asked to pay when 
they mail direct to the household. The reason I bring the matter forward is, tha 
I hear many printers complain that when they go to a manufacturing firm ox a 
retail store and ask if they would not be interested in putting out 100,00 
circulars such as this, advertising their wares, the chap will say, “Well, the cos 
of distribution by mail is so high, I can put the same kind of an ad in tn 
newspapers and get distribution practically for free.”

I was just trying to emphasize that I do believe, Mr. Henderson, that the 
cost of carrying advertising through the mails should be the same no matt6 
how that advertising comes, whether it comes as a newspaper advertising pa£6^ 
or a magazine advertising page, or a piece of direct mail, as you and I know it- 
think you have put your finger on a very vital point, particularly if we are 
going to try to make the Post Office Department pay its own way. j

I have one more question to present. How do you lose on fourth class PaI c _ 
post? You have foreign receipts of $4,675,000 and disbursements of $5,393,
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Which results in a loss of $718,000. Are the rates not high enough to cover the 
service rendered in foreign fourth class parcel post?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: A year ago, sir, we increased the international parcel 
Post rates so that we would more than cover our costs.

Mr. Cowan: I realize these figures are six or seven years out. That is all, 
Mr. Chairman-

The Chairman: All right, Mr. Cowan. Thank you for your contributions.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): May I ask one further question? In regard to the 

second class mail, am I given to understand that the weekly newspapers are 
confined to a distance of forty miles on this rate?

Mr. Daze: Yes. Weekly newspapers published in towns with less than 
10,000 population may send up to 2,500 copies free within a radius of forty 
miles of the office of publication, as the law stands now.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I think this particular thing could make sense because 
you are talking, in many cases, about just a one-man newspaper, but I cannot 
See where we should be subsidizing the larger newspapers for sending their 
advertising in this way.

Mr. Daze: Mind you, this only applies where the population is less than ten 
thousand, so you do not have a very large centre. We have one example to 
consider here.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, paragraph 106, which will be coming up 
presently, covers the very point you have raised, Mr. Muir, and is a very 
interesting example.

The Chairman: Now, gentlemen, page 39 of the Report of the Auditor 
General for 1964, section 77, which has to do with remissions, provides:

77. Waiving of postage charges. Section 22(1) of the Financial 
Administration Act reads:

The governor in council, on the recommendation of the Treasury 
Board, whenever he considers it in the public interest, may remit any 
tax, fee or penalty.”

The Post Office Department has at no time made use of this section. 
Instances occur from time to time where for one reason or another, but 
particularly because the second class mail regulations are extremely 
complex, errors in the application of postal rates have resulted in 
under-collections of postage revenue. When such an error is detected the 
practice has generally been to impose the correct rate from the time the 
error was noted and to forgive the past.

The Post Office Department considered the waiving of charges for 
postage to be an administrative discretion, but in our opinion it is not 
within the Department’s power to exercise discretion in waiving a charge 
for postage that is properly payable. Any relief to be given is the 
Prerogative of the governor in council under Section 22 of the Financial 
Administration Act.
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The Chairman: You will recall that we spent quite a bit of time talking 
about this the other day, and we directed some questions to Mr. Crowley of the 
Auditor General’s Department, and perhaps, now that you have before you a 
stencilled sheet of these remissions, you might want to have one or two 
questions directed to Mr. Crowley, or to the Post Office officials, and then we 
will move on to the next section.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Are these remissions that were made to these publica­
tions under this section?

Mr. Henderson: You may remember that the Post Office Department had 
been waiving charges for postage which it viewed as being within its powers of 
administrative discretion. However, we gave it as our opinion that section 22 of 
the Financial Administration Act should be brought into play here because it 
was not within the power of the Post Office to exercise discretion itself- I 
advised the committee that the Post Office had accepted our view, and during 
the past year, as far as we are aware, such remissions had, in fact, been made 
the subject of orders in council, issued under section 22 of the Financial 
Administration Act. Consequently, we can regard this matter as having been 
satisfactorily disposed of.

Nevertheless, in the discussion you asked if you could have a listing of the 
remissions that had been made and this was tabled at a later meeting. However, 
due to the delay in getting the transcript, we passed around today a list of 
these remissions in order that you might have them before you while you have 
the witnesses present, because you had some questions regarding two or three 
of them.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Well, while I can agree that it is within the power 0 
the governor in council to remit these charges, I do not see why they should no 
be billed for them if there has been an error. If the error were the other way.1 
am certain the Post Office Department would be requested to make a refund.

Mr. Henderson: That is a question which I think should be addressed 10 
Mr. Daze and his associates today because it is on the recommendation of 
Postmaster General to the Treasury Board that the governor in council issue 
these remissions.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Let me put the question this way, then: An error 
been made and the publisher has been undercharged, so rather than send the 
a bill for the amount that he has been undercharged, it is turned over to 
governor in council in order that it can be taken as a remission of his charges-
that right?

Mr. Daze: I do not think these cases which we are talking about a>^ 
undercharged, because then I would say we would collect, and I think we wo ^ 
be successful in collecting. However, perhaps I should ask Mr. McLachlan 
elaborate on these remissions.

The Chairman: Let us pick out one example, Mr. Muir, that you want
report on.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Well, just before I do that, in Section 77 of the Au^ 
tor General’s report, it says, Instances occur from time to time where f°r ^ 
reason or another, but particularly because the second class mail regulatl0
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are extremely complex, errors in the application of postal rates have resulted 
in under-collection of postage revenue.

It also says:
When such an error is detected the practice has generally been to 

impose the correct rate from the time the error was noted and to forgive 
the past.

Well, why would you forgive the past? If the man owes you money, why do 
you not collect it?

Mr. Daze: I must apologize and call on Mr. McLachlan to explain this. I 
thought we always collected.

Mr. McLachlan: Perhaps the best way to tackle this would be to take any 
°ne of these cases that are listed here as an example.

The Chairman: Well, take No. 11, the Sun Publishing, as a Canadian 
example, the remission was $1,276.

Mr. McLachlan: The two issues in February, 1965, of the various newspa­
pers published by the Sun Company had supplements which were not permissi­
ble enclosures under our regulations because they were not identified as 
SuPplements with the newspapers with which they were enclosed. At that time 
there was no question that they had to bear the title of the paper in which 
they were enclosed. The Sun Company were, therefore, required to pay postage 
°n the supplements at the third class rate and the difference between the 
Postage they paid and that which they would normally pay on these particular 
lssues was the $1,276.

They represented to us that the reason they failed to comply with the 
Postal requirements was due to an oversight on their part. In other words, it 
V/as in good faith that they published the issues without meeting the definite 
Requirements of the postal regulations. Bearing this in mind, and also the fact 
hat our postal handling was not affected one way or another, we made 
Commendations to the governor in council that the postage which had been 

^ d in these instances should be refunded or remitted in view of the difference 
et ween the second class normal rate and the postage that was paid at the third 

class rate.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : That is a case of overpayment. Let us have an example 
t underpayment where they have not paid you enough postage. They paid you 

0 much postage at that time, is that right?

Mr. McLachlan: They paid us what was due under a strict interpretation 
v '•he postal regulations. This is true in the case of all these remissions that are 

s*ed here. In each case postage was collected at the rate which was applicable 
under strict interpretation of the postal regulations. However, there were other 

ses where the postal regulations were not met for some reason or another; in 
ls case there was an oversight on the part of the publishers; in other instances 

c Was claimed they did not know our regulations. This happened to be so in the 
itlSe.of a number of American publications who sent mail here under the mail- 

g 'n Canada Regulations and they did not know our requirements.
m -Mf- Bigg: I have personal knowledge of this. This paper includes the

uyville Tribune and the Lac-la-Biche Herald which is a weekly paper, and 
24194—3
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the offending part is the weekly magazine section which they give you with a 
daily paper. This complaint could easily be fixed by merely having a little 
stamp saying, “Published on behalf of the Sun Publishing Company”, and this 
would take care of the breach of the regulations. I think that this would bring 
the matter well within the Act; and it is quite reasonable that it was an 
innocent error. It is just a matter of putting a little rubber stamp on the article, 
saying, “Published for the Sun Publishing Company” and then it probably 
comes under part of their weekly distribution system.

Mr. Chairman: The next section is 78, the Department decision not to 
dismiss an employee, which reads as follows:

78. Departmental decision not to dismiss an employee. Section 57 of 
the Civil Service Act provides authority for the suspension of an 
employee during an investigation of alleged misconduct or incompetence. 
The procedure upon completion of the inquiry is prescribed in section 59 
of the Act which states:

“59. (3) Upon completion of the investigation or proceedings,
as the case may be, the deputy head shall
(a) if as the result of the investigation or proceedings he is satisfied 

that the employee has been guilty of misconduct or incomp6' 
tence

(i) recommend the dismissal or demotion of the employee, or
(ii) suspend the employee for a further period not exceeding si* 

months; or
(b) if as the result of the investigation or proceedings he is not 

satisfied that the employee has been guilty of misconduct o1 
incompetence, rescind the suspension retroactively to the time i 
was first imposed.”

The officer in charge of a postal station was suspended under section 
57 of the Civil Service Act pending investigation of a fire and allegeCl 
robbery. When an audit revealed extensive falsification of the accounts, 
the suspended officer admitted falsifying the cash accounts and accepte 
responsibility for a shortage of $2,156. The Department rescinded the 
suspension and retired the employee on the basis of his having reache 
60 years of age (with the consequent entitlement to an immedia 
annuity under the provisions of the Public Service Superannuation Ac'■ > 
on the understanding that he would reimburse the Crown for th 
deficiency. Collection was made from the annuity-

If the employee has been dismissed for misconduct, his entitlem6 
to a superannuation benefit, other than a return of contributions, W°u^ 
have been conditional upon a decision of the Treasury Board. In view ^ 
the provisions of section 59 (3) (a) of the Civil Service Act, quote 
above, this would appear to have been the proper course of action.

Now, Mr. Bigg, you had questions with regard to this matter the other da ’ 
and we asked you to withhold further questions until the Departmental officia 
were here. Would you like to pursue the matter, or ask any other questions?

Mr. Henderson: I recall that we did discuss this at some length, ^ 
Chairman. You will remember the case of an officer who was in charge of a



May 25, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 379

Postal station and was suspended pending investigation of a fire and robbery. It 
was not that I criticized the employee’s treatment so much as the fact that the 
due process of the law, as provided by the Treasury Board and the Civil Service 
Commission, had not been followed. You indicated you might wish to question 
the witnesses. I think we rather covered it as a matter of fact.

Mr. Bigg: I believe we did concerning the question asked about the 
toiplication of arson, except I thought perhaps the officials had been extremely 
lenient.

The Chairman: Would the department like to add anything further?

• (5.15 p.m.)
Mr. Daze: I would be glad to. In the first place, we plead guilty to not 

having followed regulations, but the Civil Service Act had just recently been 
changed at the time and I must admit that it took two or three months to get all 
the implications, and this is how we took action without going to the proper 
authorities. I do not think this has happened since. This man in question had 
forty years of service and had an unblemished record. There was both a fire and 
a robbery, but our legal department advised that we did not have enough 
cyidence to prosecute- The man agreed to make restitution, and so we carried 
him on pension after four years.

The man had high blood pressure and angina, he was quite a sick man; he 
had been operated on. We could not question him for some time and the doctor 
w°uld not let us approach him. He was operated on for a growth on the liver 
?nd, as I say, he had an excellent record for 40 years and it was rather 
^efficiency or stupidity on his part that he became involved.

Mr. Bigg: I am glad that departmental discretion was used, but I would not 
"’ant to see this happen again.

Mr. Daze: Well, no; I do not think it will happen again.
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, there are only a few more paragraphs to 

aeal with. Perhaps we might turn to paragraph 106 now.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we are through with the 1964 report.
Mr. Henderson: If you will turn to page 68 of the 1965 Auditor General’s 

^ePort you will see paragraph 106, which is headed “Second Class Mail”, and it 
^eals with the free mailing privileges. I think this is the point Mr. Muir brought 
UP- The paragraph reads as follows:

106. Second class mail—free mailing privileges. Section 11 of the Post 
Office Act, R.S. c. 212, permits newspapers and periodicals that are 
published less frequently than daily but not less than once a month, to 
mail a maximum of 2,500 copies per issue free of postage, subject to the 
following conditions:
(1) addressees must be bona fide subscribers or newsdealers;
(2) addressees must reside or do business within a 40-mile radius of the 

office of publication;
(3) the office of publication must be located in a city, town or village 

with a population of not more than 10,000 persons.
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The 1961 census indicated that there were 598,000 people in the 
province of New Brunswick and that the town of Campbellton had a 
population of 9,873. In 1963 the Dominion Bureau of Statistics estimated 
the province of New Brunswick to have a population of 614,000 persons.

The Centennial Commission, which is authorized to make grants on a 
per capita basis to provinces for local projects of a lasting nature, 
accepted the published intercensal estimates of the Dominion Bureau of 
Statistics for the year ended December 31, 1963 which show the popula­
tion for New Brunswick at 614,000. Accordingly the province using the 
614,000 total, revised the population figures of the towns and cities, 
giving Campbellton a population of 10,130.

In administering section 11 of the Post Office Act, the Post Office 
Department, upon learning the basis upon which centennial grants were 
to made, cancelled the free mailing privileges previously enjoyed by 
three newspapers in the area. However, the publishers protested, main­
taining that the 1961 census figure of 9,873 should stand and the 
department re-instated the free mailing privilege.

In this note the circumstances are described under which newspapers and 
periodicals that are published less frequently than daily, but not less frequently 
than once a month in centres of not more than 10,000 population, may mail a 
maximum of 2,500 copies per issue free of postage provided certain conditions 
are met.

It came to our attention, in the course of the audit, that for the purposes of 
distributing grants made by the Centennial Commission, the province of NeW 
Brunswick considered the town of Campbellton to have a population in excess 
of 10,000-—actually 10,130. We drew this to the attention of the post office, and 
the purpose of this note is to draw attention to the manner in which the 
department cancelled the free mailing privilege previously enjoyed by three 
newspapers in the province of New Brunswick. And how, when the publishers 
protested, the department reinstated the free mailing privilege.

Mr. Bigg: I think in this case they are interpreting the census figures 
liberally and I believe that is the spirit of the statute. We would not hold down 
the publications here to 10,000 residents, plus or minus—I know it is 130 here­
with people coming and going, you would have the postal regulations and so on 
changing every time a family left town.

Mr. Daze: Mr. Chairman, the city of Campbellton argued that their 
population was under 10,000; I think Mr. McLachlan will have the exact figures-

Mr. Pageau: The census figure was below 10,000 in 1961 but we heard 
from the town clerk that the population had gone beyond 10,000. So when We 
abolished the free area privilege the member of parliament represented to the 
department that this was not true. We learned afterwards that the provincial 
and municipal authorities of Campbellton had said that the population waS 
beyond that because this had some reflection on the amount of the grants the) 
could get for the centennial celebrations. But, actually, for our purposes, thera 
were no figures on which to base the official statistics of the population 0 
Campbellton. So we went back and said, “The only official figures we have are 
those published by the Dominion Bureau of Statistics”.
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Now, as I said the figure of over 10,000, which was arrived at, may have 
been reasonable according to the provincial government because they have to 
distribute their populations in some cities to satisfy certain grant requirements, 
as we understand it. However, there was no factual basis on which we could say 
the population was beyond 10,000 in Campbellton.

Mr. Winch: In other words, we now have the evidence that a municipality 
0r a city adjusts its population according to the grants that become available, 
UP or down?

Mr. Pageau: Excuse me. I would not say this, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Winch: I said it.
Mr. Pageau: Yes. We were trying to see if the figures met the requirements 

hi the Post Office Act which say 10,000. Above 10,000, they are not entitled to 
Certain privileges. As soon as we found out this information we set higher rates, 
and right away we received some protests. Then in view of the facts, which the 
Auditor General mentioned, that had no basis, we felt that we must use the 
°fficial statistics that we had at our disposal. Now, we still do not know whether 
*he population is more than 10,000.

The Chairman: What census figures are you going to use from here on 
in?

Mr. Pageau: The census figures were 9,873.
The Chairman: I know, but are you going to use the 1961 census figures in
cases, or are you going to use estimates of the Dominion Bureau of 

Statistics?

Mr. Pageau: We will use the 1966 census which is being done now.
The Chairman: You will use that figure throughout.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I do not know what hap- 

5eHs in the other provinces, but in the province of Ontario each municipality 
flakes a census every year. It goes along on their assessment roll and they 
4re added up. Possibly that would be available in New Brunswick.

,, Mr. Daze: Well, it did not look like it. They said their figures were lower 
an 10,000. Maybe they do have the same thing, I do not know.

Mr. Winch: You said when we came to the centennial grants.
Mr. Daze: I did not say that either.
The Chairman: Paragraph 107, dealing with city transportation services,

$ays:
107. City transportation services. In an examination of payments by 

the Post Office Department for street letter box clearance in one large 
city, we observed certain factors of time, trips, etc., as set out in the 
contract specifications that did not correspond with the actual perfor­
mance. It appeared that running time plus time allowances as scheduled 
in the contract and on which payment is based was substantially in 
excess of the actual hours worked. Our test, projected on an annual basis 
for that city, indicated that idle time totalled some 19,000 hours, costing 
an estimated $68,000.

24194—4
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Time allowances are designed to compensate the contractor for 
unavoidable delays due to traffic congestion, adverse weather conditions, 
detours, etc., as well as minor extensions or changes in routes. The 
department conceded there might be a tendency for such allowances to 
be extended beyond reasonable limits and undertook to have a check 
made of the various routes with a view to adjusting the schedules as 
required.

The department has since informed us that this survey revealed 
certain anomalies in the service provided, in addition to inconsistencies 
in time allowances. The entire collection service in that city has been re­
designed to eliminate these anomalies and to permit an integrated work 
flow. A saving of approximately $38,000 per annum has resulted.

Mr. Henderson: This paragraph, Mr. Chairman, describes several factors 
noted by my officers during an examination of payments made for street letter 
box clearance in one large city. We discussed the results of our findings with the 
post office which then proceeded to carry out its survey to see how the losses we 
had noted might be reduced.

As this note states, the entire collection service in the city in question has 
been redesigned to eliminate the anomalies and to permit an integrated work 
flow, all of which is saving approximately $38,000 a year.

Do the members have any questions on this?
The Chairman : I am sure they will have questions on it. I was under the 

impression that the letter box collections in a city were done on a mileage basis- 
I think they are in a city of the size that I come from.

Mr. Daze: I admit, some are, Mr. Chairman, but it is a matter of details.
Mr. Cousens: Mr. Chairman, in regard to the question that has been asked, 

at one time we did contract on a per mile basis. In 1957 we found, because the 
cities were growing on the outskirts, the unproductive mileage that was bein& 
travelled to reach some of these boxes made it a poor basis for payment to the 
contractor, and at this time we developed a system for payments on an hourly 
basis. The schedules were set by actual running time and a small allowance wa 
allowed for the purpose of taking care of delays due to traffic, detours, one way 
streets, weather conditions and so on. Since that time we have been—until very 
recently, let me explain—awarding contracts on a per hour basis. This, of coursa, 
relates closely to payment of individuals for performance of work. I a __ 
thinking now in terms of the couriers who work for the contractors. Pe
cently we have developed a new type of service which we think perhaps is the
best yet in that it combines the delivery of parcel post, special delivery, and t 
clearance of street letter boxes on a per item basis. On this basis there a 
certain advantages to be gained in the way that a single contractor can 8 
higher utilization of his vehicles and he can also move his men around from 0 
type of service to another without incurring periods for which he must P 
them for not actually working, which is called waiting time. From our stan ^ 
point, naturally, it is less costly because in this way the schedules are arrange 
to fit in so there is continuous work for the men and we are not paying noW 
waiting time of less than one hour or periods where the type of situation 
occurred in Toronto came about.
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The Chairman : Will this overcome what is drawn to our attention here, 
where the fellow made more money out of his idle time than the actual time he 
Worked?

Mr. Cousens: Oh, yes, it will overcome this.
The Chairman : Well, how do you account for this estimated figure of 

$68,000 getting by your department and your attention?

Mr. Cousens: This figure includes time allowance which it built into the 
contract, that is the time allowance I spoke of for delays due to traffic jams, 
Poor weather conditions and so on. Now, under the per item basis, of course, 
there is no time allowance at all because it is up to the contractor to do the job 
as quickly as he can. The more efficient his couriers are and the quicker they 
Can get their job done, then the less it costs us.

The Chairman: Now, coming back to my question, in my city the postmas­
ter told me just two weeks ago—I was talking to him about moving collection 
Poxes—that it does not matter where you put them or where they are, the 
collector is paid on a per mile basis.

Mr. Cousens : Well, it will depend on—
The Chairman: Is this right or wrong?
Mr. Cousens : It will depend on where you live. There are some of the old 

yPe contracts around. But if we are talking about, for instance—
The Chairman: Guelph is a city of 45,000 people.
Mr. Cousens: Well, this will be changed over when the contracts expire. 

^ 6 cannot change it over in the middle of a contract because this is tantamount 
0 faking a contract away from a man.

a Mr. Daze: To sum up, we still have some on mileage, we still have some on 
P hourly basis, but we are going to the per item system which we think will be

thebest.

s Mr. Cousens: I would suggest that this contract has been in effect with the 
e Person for quite some time.
The Chairman: Oh, yes, I imagine it has.

Use ^r' Winch: Mr. Chairman, are you able to make a city to city survey, or to 
s°rne sort of criterion for arriving at whether a man is wasting his time?

y Mr. Cousens: Well, we have to do a survey of all the routes; we have to 
6 every single one. At that time we reschedule where we find there is 

Cou;Pg time, and bearing in mind that this might only be done once during the 
r6(| Se °f a contract. There will be changes that will take place which may 
de the actual running time, and in this respect then the situation that

°Ped in Toronto may come about.
str ^r- Winch: What do you do about winter conditions where a city might be 

* with a long period of bad weather? Does the contractor lose out on that?
Mr. Cousens: Not completely. There are ways and means of paying for

eXtr,
performed, if it requires extra hours to do the job.
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Mr. Winch: He would have to apply over and above his contract for this 
sort of thing?

Mr. Cousens: This is true.
Mr. Bigg: Does he have any way to get efficiency experts out, or does he j 

just get so much money for so many hours of energy? I would like to see some 
adjustment, if he did in fact have to put himself out.

Mr. Cousens: Well, there would be provision for this.
The Chairman: The Committee has the assurance that under your neW 

system we will not find similar items in the next report of the auditor general.
Mr. Cousens: Well, as I say, I would not be prepared to say you will not 

because we cannot put them all in at once.
The Chairman: We now come to section 108, postage stamps destroyed:

108. Postage stamps destroyed. During the year the Post Office 
Department purchased postage stamps to a total face value of $109,' 
470,000 at a cost of $1,323,000. In the same period, stamps having a face 
value of $5,272,000 and an estimated cost of $64,000 were destroyed or 
held for destruction at the year-end because they were spoiled in 
handling, unsaleable or returned from postmasters in lots too small f°r 
economical re-issue.

Included among the stamps destroyed or held for destruction were 
approximately 53 million stamps, costing $16,000, of a special 19® 
Christmas issue of 412 million stamps purchased at a cost of $125,000. 
The Department over-estimated the demand for these stamps and was 
precluded from using the issue in another year because the stamps were 
dated “Christmas 1964”.

Mr. Henderson: In this note, Mr. Chairman, we indicate a non-productif 
loss of $16,000 resulting from the destruction of stamps dated “Christmas 1964 
which could not be sold.

The Chairman: There will surely be some questions on this item.
Mr. Bigg: As a stamp collector, I might say that this particular issue of 

Christmas stamps is now in short supply to collectors, and I wonder whethe1" 
they could not have been put in a philatelic branch at a considerable savings f° 
the department. I do not know what went on here, but, as I say, this particule 
issue is hard to get, as I understand it. It might have been that the philateh 
branch could have cut this loss—it is only $16,000—and some of these stamp 
might have been useable or saleable.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: The department would like to explain to f*16 
Committee what has happened here, because on a reading and the surface of1 ’ 
it would take some explaining.

Mr. Daze: Mr. MacDonald will be glad to explain what happened and what 
we propose to do in the future.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: In regard to your question, Mr. Bigg, we s°^ 
$139,000 worth of these stamps in the philatelic section.

Mr. Bigg: That does not mean that they are not fit for resale?
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Mr. J. A. MacDonald : Well, I think we still have them. I did not check this, 
I am sorry, but I think we still have them in the philatelic section, if you want 
them.

Mr. Bigg: That was not my complaint. I was not complaining as a stamp 
collector; I was complaining of the possible loss of revenue to the government. I 
thought perhaps there had been an oversight and that they could have cut the 
$16,000 loss. By the way, of course, stamps sold this way are a direct gain.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: If we sell four or five million stamps to philatelists, 
that is a big sale, but we produce three or four hundred million of these stamps 

that you cannot dispose of the entire excess. I might explain that 1964 was 
me first year that the policy of a Christmas stamp was introduced, I think there 
always will be some Christmas stamps left over. We have started a considerable 
Eduction for 1965. I can give you the results of the 1965 Christmas stamps; we 
^educed the quantities printed from 258 million to 216 million on the three cents 
^nomination and 102 million to 97 million on the five cent denomination. We 
lricreased the quantities in the cello paqs, that is the 50 stamps in a cellophane 
Package, from a million to about a million and one half. Now, our returns have 

6en better in 1965 than they were on this figure that the Auditor General has
quoted.

With respect to the cello paqs, in spite of the 50 per cent increase in the 
, Umber printed, we decreased from 12.1 per cent to 10.8 per cent, and on the
thr.
fivi ee cent sheets we decreased from 10.5 per cent to 6.2 per cent return; on the

e Cent denomination we decreased from 8.8 per cent to 5.3 per cent.
Now, in future we are going to take some other steps which we think will 

^inate the loss entirely on the five cent denomination. We are going to try 
y hog the five cent denomination on right through January. From observa-

thn we believe that the public will take the five cent denomination right on
°ugh January. However, we believe the public will not take the three cent 

Uomination in January because the average person does not buy a three cent 
except at Christmas. The big advertisers who use three cent stamps do 

is to use them, they prefer the small stamps. So what we are going to do 
ake any excess of three cent stamps that we might have, after reducing the 
amity, and hold them until next year. Then if any post office runs out we will 
u them the old three cent stamps and see if they can sell them.

tjj ■'■he Chairman: Mr. MacDonald, it would appear that this loss of $16,000 to

6stitn;
starn-

; taxpayers of Canada could have been avoided in two ways. First, closer
ates of the number purchased and, secondly, why put “1964” on the 

ygIIlps; why not just put “Christmas stamp” so you could use the stamp next 
< *n 1965? If you did not sell them all in 1965, you could sell them in 1966. 

’ what was the thinking in the department to make these two errors?
a Q^r- J- A. MacDonald: Well, as I say, this was the first time we ever put out 
if y ristoias stamp and we just made a mistake by putting a date on it. I doubt 
Hejct reaIly can think of holding over a Christmas stamp from one year to the 

anh offering it at the beginning of the year. You have publicity on a new 
iga ,rri'nati°n, and I think there would be a great deal of unfavourable public

to presenting them with an old Christmas stamp when all the posters 
a vertised a new one.
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The Chairman: I do not know what the Committee thinks, but I do not 
believe the people would worry too much about whether it was the Christmas 
before or the Christmas after, except the stamp collectors.

Mr. Bigg: I might say that I think this is a very good revenue branch. It is 
just a question of estimating it a little closer and then perhaps letting it be 
known to the people, who buy this particular type of thing that they are on sale 
for a limited time and that they will be destroyed if they are not picked up. 
then you will be sure of clearing your stock.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, this is interesting, at least to me it is. I buy a lot 
of stamps; I have a normal life; I have stood in line, and I have yet to hear 
somebody ask for a particular stamp. They want 100 stamps, so many five’s, so 
many three’s and so many two’s. You know, I have never yet heard anybody 
ask for a Christmas stamp.

Mr. Bigg: Surely you can see that the philatelic branch has made nearly a 
million dollars.

Mr. Winch: Oh, that is the philatelic branch. I am talking about a person 
going to the post office to buy stamps.

Mr. Bigg: No; but they go from the post office branch into the philatelic 
section as soon as they are withdrawn from an album.

The Chairman: It has cost $16,000 to learn a lesson and that is a lot of 
money. It is the responsibility of this Committee on Public Accounts to look int° 
this sort of thing. I think the first time the department did it, they should have 
been on the careful side and had a way less than over. The mistake of putting 
1964 on the Christmas stamps was unfortunate.

Mr. Daze: In 1964 the mistake, if you can call it a mistake, was unfortU' 
nate. I think Mr. MacDonald will confirm that the first year we were afraid 
would run out before the public were satisfied. It was a hard thing to estimate.

The Chairman: Whose responsibility is it to estimate the number 
stamps.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: We do it in the philatelic section of the account!11” 
branch, we estimate the quantities to order and recommend it to the deputy.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): I assume you make a profit on these n6^ 
issues of stamps, they have a philatelic value. Now, what would be 1 
estimated profit on any new issues?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: We sold $139,000 worth in the philatelic section 
respect to this one, and then there are a few who buy them at post office wick6 
throughout the country for philatelic purposes. The total printing costs on a 
special stamp are always exceeded by the amount we sell in the philat6 
section, so we always make a profit on a special issue.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : And in this case you made a profit?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Well, we sold $139,000 worth in the philatelic secti° 

and the waste sheet was $16,000.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Could you say that a profit has been ma 

on this particular issue of stamps?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Oh, definitely.
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Then how does the Auditor General arrive 
at a loss of $16,000 if a profit was made?

Mr. Henderson: It represents the value on cost of what they paid for the 
stamps which were destroyed. If they had kept them it would not have 
occurred.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : That is the cost of the destroyed stamps?
Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Daze: We might have been able to sell them, but this is quite correct.
Mr. Bigg: There was actually an enormous profit on the whole transaction 

though because the sale value of these stamps far exceeded the cost of the
Printing?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I am inclined to agree with the Auditor General 
hough—I will be the devil’s advocate here—we probably still could have sold 
'139,000 worth and not lost $16,000 on excess quantity.

The Chairman: Well, in this same paragraph there is another sentence 
Irich I think we should pay attention to namely:

—stamps having a face value of $5,272,000 and an estimated cost of 
$64,000 were destroyed or held for destruction at the year-end because 
they were spoiled in handling, unsaleable or returned from postmasters 
in lots too small for economical re-issue.

* ^ink we should have that explained.

, Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Well, sir, when a post office is closed out, and during 
V16 year there is quite a number of post offices closed, the stamps in the wicket 

6 broken up into parts of sheets and parts of sections. We find it is more 
°nomical to send them into the postage stamp division in Ottawa and destroy 
ern than it is to try to audit them, repackage them and send them out to a 

P°st office.
^ The ordinary small size stamp costs us around 21 cents or 22 cents a 
c °Usand to print. So if you start doing much auditing of them at today’s labour 

sts you are losing money. Therefore, we find it more profitable to destroy 
ese small quantities.

^Ur postage bill, a year, would run around a million dollars, and if this is
Printing cost, then we had to destroy excess quantities in small offices of

The Chairman: Mr. MacDonald, you would have to have some sort of a 
entry. Those stamps were charged out at their face value to the post office.°ook

ahfi
hlr. J. A. MacDonald: He returns them with his cash account at face value 

Post We credit him for the face value of the stamps. They are treated by a 
faster as money.

Utls The Chairman: Well, how do you account for those spoiled in handling and 
a eable? What happens in this category, because it all adds up to $64,000.
^r- MacDonald: Well, out of our 11,000 post offices, as I have said, there is

'ÎUite
^eboaa number closed each year and some stamps always get damaged. If 

y goes in to audit a post office and they see stamps that are soiled, they
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instruct the postmaster to send them in for destruction. In continuous handling 
of a few sheets of stamps at a wicket, they get soiled and damaged. We do not 
like to offer the public stamps that are soiled.

Mr. Bigg: They are unsanitary. They get dirty so people will not lick them; 
they will not buy them.

The Chairman: Well, is this $64,000 loss the actual cost of printing those 
stamps, or is it the face value?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: It is the cost of printing.
The Chairman: The $64,000 is the cost of printing.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes.
Mr. Bigg: But there is $110 million worth of stamps involved.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: I know, but wait a minute. The printing cost was one 

million dollars a year for our postage bill, spoiled in handling, unsaleable, et 
cetera. Is the committee satisfied with that?

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : It sounds a bit high.
Mr. Bigg: How many post offices do we have?
Mr. Daze: We have 11,200 post offices—
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: —many in little stores and 9,000 of all sizes—
Mr. Bigg: That is a loss of a dollar and a half a year in all the handling 

stamps and returns.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald : Five dollars for each post office.
Mr. Bigg: Oh, I am sorry, five dollars per post office.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: And this includes stores and sub-post offices.
Mr. Daze: And that includes fires and water damage.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Water damage, fires and anything like that.
The Chairman: Well, it would be a good advertisement for meter machines 

then.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes; we do not lose on those.
The Chairman: All right. Is that all?
Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 109 deals with the “Write-off of obsolete 

stores”. . ,
109. Write-off of obsolete stores. Section 60(2) of the Finand3 

Administration Act provides as follows:
Where a board of survey constituted under subsection 

recommends the deletion from inventory of any obsolete or unserv 
iceable stores or materials or any stores or materials lost o 
destroyed, the appropriate Minister with the approval of 1 
Treasury Board, may direct the deletion of all or any part of su<^ 
stores or materials from the inventory, but the value of stores ^ 
materials so deleted shall not be credited to a revolving fund exceP 
with the authority of Parliament.
The Treasury Board, under the provisions of this section, appi-0^ 

the deletion of stores which had cost $19,667 from the inventory of
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Post Office Department and approved the inclusion of an item in the 
supplementary estimates in order to reimburse the Post Office Revolving 
Fund for the cost of these stores items which had become obsolete in 
inventory.

The amount appeared in Supplementary Estimates (D), Vote Id, 
1964-65, under “Postal Services, $328,700”, as an allotment for “Mail 
Bags and Letter Carrier Satchels, $19,700”, rather than as a separate 
supplementary item in such a manner as to indicate that the amount was 
to recoup the Post Office Revolving Fund for losses due to obsolescence. 
The wording of this estimates item does not convey to Parliament its real 
purpose.

Now, as members of the Committee know, we pay particular attention to 
the description attached to estimates. It is most important, in my view, when 
estimates are laid before the House, that they convey their meaning to the 
Members who are asked to pass upon the figures. The purpose of this note is to 
show how the wording of the item in question in Supplementary Estimates (D) 
°f 1964-65 did not convey to Parliament its real purpose.

However, I can tell you that on April 2, 1965 the Minister handling the 
Supplementary Estimates for Treasury Board did explain the nature of this 
Proposed expenditure in the House. I believe one of the members put the 
question and he furnished a complete explanation. However, it only came up 
ecause of the question that was asked at that time. This occurred subsequently 
? this note, Mr. Chairman, but I do not think you will want to take too much 
Uhe discussing it; it is something that we keep careful track of.
. The Chairman: The department might explain very briefly the item 
ealing with the deletion of stores at a cost of $19,667.

„ Mr. J. A. MacDonald: This was entirely an excess stock of what we call 
grommet” locks used on parcel post bags. We had decided not to put locks on 
sreei p0Sj. bags We had an excess supply and we thought it would be in excess 

(j what we would use in the next few years. Incidently, we have not actually 
^troyed them. We kept them because we are reconverting our grommet bags 

letter bags with a special coloured string in them, so we may never actually 
str°y them.

The Chairman: They would go to Crown Assets if you disposed of them.
Mr. J. a. MacDonald: If we did.
Mr. Daze: But we still have them.

*(5-45 p.m.)

red ^r' ^AY: Ip that connection sir, I might point out that they would be 
harirf6^ *° scraP because of the security feature of the lock. They would not be 
dp,.* ^ °ver to Crown Assets as an operating lock. The mechanism would be 

str°yed first.
Mr. Bigg: Are they not just about useless for anything else?
Mr. Jay: Yes, I think so.

bov Ml Henderson: Paragraph 110 deals with charges for Post Office lock 
es an<3 bag service:

110. Charges for Post Office lock boxes and bag service. Post Office 
Patrons who receive incoming mail in lock boxes are charged an annual
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rental varying from $2 to $18 depending on the size of the box and on 
whether the patron lives outside or inside of the letter carrier area.

Some patrons who have a very large volume of incoming mail do not 
rent a lock box but are provided by the Post Office with what is known 
as “bag service” for which they are charged an amount of $10 or $18 per 
annum depending on whether they reside outside or inside of the letter 
carrier area.

There are other patrons with a heavy volume of incoming mail who 
rent a lock box (usually but not necessarily one of the largest) although 
the box cannot handle the mail volume so that bag service has to be 
provided. In some cases the box remains unused, all the mail being put 
up in bags for the patron. In such cases the lock box is generally retained 
because the patron wishes to have a post office box number as an address, 
but although he has the use of the box and is also receiving bag service, 
he pays only the annual lock box rental, no charge being made for the 
bag service.

We have pointed out to the Department that the provision of a lock 
box as well as bag service for the one annual fee not only provides the 
patron with a free service not available to other patrons, but may be 
tying up lock boxes required for other patrons.

The Department has advised us that the situation has been under 
study but a solution has not yet been found because of “the complexity 
of the problem and possible effect any change would have on our box 
assemblies and post offices”.

This, as you see, is a situation which the post office has under study. I d° 
not know whether Mr. Daze and his associates want to add anything further t° 
this, but we raise the question about no charge being made in these circuit' 
stances.

Mr. Daze: I must admit, Mr. Chairman, that we have not come to a solution- 
It is quite a complicated thing. Mr. Gaunt can give details. Let us say a firm has 
a box and it becomes too small; we have to put this mail into general delivery 
and put a card in the box saying, “Call at general delivery to get y°ur 
superfluous mail.” So, eventually we can use a bag and it is much simpler. If we 
did close this box, which the firm may have had for 10, 20 or 30 years, they 
would raise Cain. We could change the number of that particular box, give i 
another number and reclaim the box number for the bag service. However, thlS 
would confuse our screen line; you would have to find 518 among the 1,500 °r 
so. Is there anything you want to add, Mr. Gaunt?

Mr. Gaunt: That covers it fairly well, Mr. Daze. The solution sounds very 
simple, that we simply remove the box.

Mr. Bigg: Would this be for something like these radio addresses where 
they have a ton of mail coming in?

Mr. Daze: Well, these would have a bag service, the large newspapers, 
railways, banks and many big firms too.

Mr. Gaunt: But in most of these cases they rent these as separate ha=> 
services.
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Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I have a question that perhaps is on a different 
aspect. There may be an explanation and, if so, I know we will get it.

Looking at this statement we received, I do not know how it strikes the 
other members, but to me there is something a little bit unethical to have a 
disbursement cost of $59,531 and a receipt for revenue of $1,798,092 on lock box 
rentals. In my opinion a surplus return of $1,738,561 on a $59,000 cost is 
Unethical and immoral unless there is some explanation which I do not get from 
the way it appears on the statement.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: In the cost that is shown there, it is only the cost of 
s°me bookkeeping in the department. There is no charge there for the sorting of 
the mail to the box.

Mr. Winch: Oh, but that is dumped onto your postage, is it not?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald : Yes.
Mr. Winch: Otherwise you have to get your postal delivery man to take it.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: It is a delivery cost. It is an alternative to letter 

carrier delivery.
Mr. Winch: No, no. If it goes out on letter carrier delivery, that 5 cent 

stamp on first-class mail will be sorted and then it will be packed around for 
he mile that he has to walk for delivery. Whereas here, it is sorted and goes 

right into a box. I do not see how you can bring that in as an additional cost.
, Mr. J. A. MacDonald: There is also another charge that should be made 

ere, which is the interdepartmental charge by public works for the cost of the 
°xes. Public works pay for these boxes and that is not charged here.

The Chairman : Mr. MacDonald, it would seem that your department 
°uld make a decision with regard to this matter without delay. I think this 

as been going on for years, but you have not come to a solution. I do not think 
ere is a city in Canada where the post office is not short of boxes. I had 
Perience in this in my own community and when I looked into it, I found this 

ery thing happening. A fellow had a box number, we will say 100, he never 
the box; he left it so he would have a number, and yet the post office put 

i * the mail in a bag. That box 100 remained empty and could have been used 
x a citizen of my community.

^ Now, it would seem to me that a fellow could still keep the same number, 
j x t00, but there should be a charge for the mail bag that all his mail is put 
be° when he comes to collect it. There must be some way that that box could 

c°me available and rented to someone else because there are a lot of firms 
uing for boxes and they are told there are none available.

Q Mr. J. A. MacDonald: This is part of the problem that Mr. Gaunt and Mr. 
Ze are trying to figure out.

Mr. Bigg: I feel one of the reasons why they do charge is because it is a 
ege to have a box. I can get my mail at any hour of the day or night 

is i°.ut Postal service. The competition for boxes, as you said, is such that there 
Co limit to the number of boxes you can put into a normal post office. So we 
Pot Pvfte’ *n a sense> f°r the privilege of having that lock box, because you do 
rev have to wait for your mail and so forth. It is just another justifiable

eriUe item for the post office; they are selling a commodity.
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Mr. Daze: Those who have a bag service can only get their mail when the 
post office is open, when there is someone on duty.

Mr. Winch: Is it my understanding, from what you have just said, that the 
$1,798,000 is a true report on receipts, but the cost of $59,531 is not a true 
statement?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: That is correct.
Mr. Winch: Then do I take it that in the future we will have a true 

statement before us with respect to the costs of various departments, including 
a post office box.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes. Under this new system, which we say will be 
available in July, the true full costs, including the interdepartmental charges, 
will be there. However, we will not have covered this question that Mr. BigS 
brought up about the demand for the service and the actual sortation costs to 
this service; that is, as a service it will not be costed. Now, your argument is a 
good one because if we did not do it that way we would have to deliver it by 
letter carrier, but, on the other hand, it is a service.

Mr. Winch: Do you not agree that it just looks wrong when you say that 
you make $1,738,000 on a costing figure of $59,000?

Mr. Daze : I do not have the information here, but there is something wrong 
there. This may be the cost of boxes installed this year, taking into account 
millions of them.

Mr. Winch: No, this is not the bookkeeping.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Mr. Chairman, I think it would be reasonable to charge 

a man for receiving a supplementary service, which is the case when he has a 
bag. He has tied up the box, he is getting the bag as well which is cluttering UP 
the post office—and most of them do not have too much room to start with—and 1 
do not think there is anything unreasonable about charging him for that bag.

The Chairman: Let him keep that box, number 100, let him re-letter that 
box 100A and rent it to someone else.

Mr. Daze: Or use some other number.
Mr. Bigg: Well, if it is first-class mail, you are making a tidy profit on it.
Mr. Gaunt: I might just mention that this is one of the complicated 

problems, Mr. Chairman. It sounds very easy to extract that box and Pu* 
another number on it. However, the unfortunate thing is that our system 0 
numbering boxes across the country is such that any clerk, when you say box 
135, he can put his finger on it with his eyes closed. The moment we stai 
extracting numbers from this, then our sorting costs are going to rise because 
this will destroy the sorting pattern.

Mr. Muir {Lisgar): I do not think there is anything wrong with him payin§ 
for the box. If he wants to keep it empty that is his own business, but if he ha 
to have a bag to put his mail in, he should pay for it and then everyone lS 
happy.

Mr. Daze: But he could say, “All right, I will keep my box, put the mail PJ 
there and when there is too much put it in general delivery and I will pick 1 
up.” We would have to comply because that is our regulation.

The Chairman: Well, we will leave the problem with you to settle- 
entered into the discussion, but I am a greenhorn.
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We will now deal with section 111, gentlemen:
111. Post Office Savings Bank. At March 31, 1965 the balance on 

deposit in approximatively 300,000 accounts in the Post Office Savings 
Bank was $23,255,000, including approximately 200,000 accounts with an 
aggregate balance of $2,801,000 classified as dormant and unclaimed. In 
many of these latter accounts the balance of principal has remained 
unchanged for many years.

Section 52 (4) of the Post Office Act, R.S., c. 212, provides that:
Interest on deposits in the Post Office Savings Bank shall be 

added to and become part of the principal as of the 31st day of 
March in each year.

However, in order to keep costs down, interest earned by these dor­
mant and unclaimed accounts, which is a charge to annual expendi­
ture, is not being credited to the individual accounts but is calculated on 
the balances of the control acounts only and credited to a relatively few 
interest accounts. Interest accumulated in this manner to March 31, 1965 
totalled almost $1 million and is increasing at the rate of $69,000 
annually.

The Department is now giving consideration to the manner in which 
the Post Office Act could be amended in order that it might deal with 
unclaimed balances in accounts of the Post Office Savings Bank in a 
manner similar to that in which unclaimed balances in chartered banks 
are handled.

Mr. Henderson: The last item we will be discussing here deals with the 
ost office savings bank. You will note that the balance on deposit in approxi- 

• atel>’ 300,000 accounts in the post office savings bank was $23,255,000, 
ceding 200,000 accounts with an aggregate balance of $2,801,000 which were 

^ssified as dormant and unclaimed. During the year we brought this situation 
the attention of the post office which states it is giving consideration to the 

atuier in which the Post Office Act might be amended in order to deal with 
claimed balances in accounts of the savings bank, and do it in a manner 

milar to that in which unclaimed balances in chartered banks are handled. 
.ls seemed to us to offer a reasonable solution to the problem, but perhaps our 
1 nesses present may have something to add to this. I do not know the present 

Status today.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Before you answer that, is this an employees’ bank?
Mr. Henderson: No, it is public.

be Mr. Bigg: I am afraid there is not a very good way of simplifying this 
ac ause you do not have to do very much to identify yourself to open this 
tk °Unt- People do it and then forget about it; they do not even have to use 

lr °wn name.
0 Mr 

anada
Henderson: I think under the proposal, this would be published in the 
Gazette.

Mr. Daze: Mr. MacDonald can bring you up to date on this.
rtie ^r- J- A. MacDonald: We have been investigating this with the Départ­
is of Finance and the Department of Justice. I think the nub of the question 

save paying interest on this dormant amount of money which, as Mr.
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Henderson has pointed out, runs to about $69,000 a year and is increasing. To do 
that, we have been told by the Department of Justice that it is not necessary to 
amend the Post Office Act. You see, the Post Office Act says that we shall not 
pay more than a certain rate of interest, but they tell us that under certain 
conditions and by regulation this could be set at zero interest. So we could do 
this then by amending our regulations. If we do this, it is just a matter of 
working out some details about what to do with these accounts, do we transfer 
them over to the Comptroller of the Treasury, or preferably to the Bank- of 
Canada and then they can look after them or we look after them. Then, to 
follow the procedure of the chartered banks, after 30 years they do not pay 
interest on dormant and unclaimed accounts. That is where this zero interest 
would come in. This is a good suggestion which I think we have well in hand, 
and I believe we will have it straightened out within a few months.

Mr. Winch: I have one question on that. This may be just an accounting 
practice which I do not understand and I would like to get it. According t° 
paragraph 111, there was on this date $23,255,000 on deposit. This is a public 
deposit in the postal savings for which they get interest, but the post office 
savings receives a greater interest on its investment than what they pay out. 
Therefore, I cannot quite understand what is meant by this statement where it 
shows disbursements of $318,753 and a deficit of $318,753.

Mr. Henderson: That is a very good question.
Mr. Winch: Can I have an explanation with regard to a savings bao^ 

deposit of over $23 milion, interest paid, but you loan it at greater interest; Y°^ 
must be getting money coming in, and yet you only show a disbursement an 
therefore you show a deficit. I cannot figure out how, in the name of God, Y0^ 
arrived at a deficit on this. It must be bookeeping, I really do not know. Wha 
is the explanation for this?

Mr. Henderson: That is a good question and I think I know what *e 
answer is, but I would like to ask Mr. MacDonald to answer it.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Thank you, Mr. Winch, you are a friend of nain • 
This was part of the government’s present accounting system whereby h 
activities are not associated.

Mr. Winch: Like activities are not associated?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: That is right. All parts of an activity are no 

associated in the government’s accounting system.
Mr. Bigg: Money is not always an asset then?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: There should be a credit for interest on this ? 

million at, I would say, approximately the savings bond rate.
Mr. Winch: Should it not appear on this statement?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: It should appear on this statement. I have beeI! 

beating my head against the wall with regard to this myself for a long time- 
that were put in there, you would have 5 per cent, 5| per cent or six per cen > 

whatever the going rate is, on this $23 million as a credit.
Mr. Winch: You actually have that revenue?
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Well, if the government did not have this money ^ 

deposit, they would be borrowing that much more money at whatever inteie 
rate it is, 5£ per cent.
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Mr. Bigg: No, theoretically you have not because this belongs to an 
Unknown group of persons; you really do not have that money at all.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: The government has paid them 2£ per cent, and I do 
not think even that payment of 2£ per cent is in this cost either, incidentally.

Mr. Bigg: That is a profit to the whole operation.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: That 2£ per cent should be charged here, but the 5 

Per cent should be credited, so you have a profit of 2£ or 3 per cent on the $23 
niillion.

Mr. Winch: Just how is it credited? It is not here. Why then do you say, as 
y°u do here, that you have a deficit of $318,000?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Because these are just post office accounts and the 
department of Finance pays that interest, but they do not give us credit for the 
nroney they save by not borrowing from the public for this equivalent $23 
Million. If this were a private business, or we were in the banking business—

Mr. Henderson: Or a crown corporation.
Mr. J. A. MacDonald: —we would invest this money at 5 or 6 per cent, just 

*e any private bank does, and we would make money. This is the way banks 
jPake money, namely on float, and this is what we would make money on, the 
0at on this $23 million.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, although the hour is late, I do think the 
cornmittee should bear in mind a recommendation that we want a true 

atement, a complete statement and not what I term to be an incomplete and 
^leading statement on the postal savings branch.

Mr. Henderson: They can use every revenue dollar they can get, that is for
sure.

. Mr. Winch: But we should have a complete statement as to the operation of 
e Postal savings.

Mr. Henderson: They are entitled to credit for this just as much as for the 
banking.

if Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): I have a question, Mr. Chairman. I wonder 
CouM have these gentlemen explain very briefly the workings of this post 

a Ce savings bank. Who makes the deposits, what are done with the deposits 
a how are they paid out?

p0 Mr. J. a. MacDonald: You can go into any one of about 1,500 accounting 
°De 0f^ces across Canada, and this includes all of our larger post offices, and 
y0un a savings bank account any day you like. They give you a little pass book, 
UP a receipt f°r your deposit and then you can deposit any amount you like 
$l00° MO,000 in total on balance in the account, and you can withdraw up to 
Port k ^ay at any of these 1,500 post offices anywhere in Canada. It is a very 
Poli ab*e an<f a very convenient sort of thing, but it just has not been considered 

y f° advertise it or publicize it.

r^H0MAS (Middlesex West): The rate of interest is going down all the
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Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Well, it has been fixed at 2£ per cent. I believe the 
interest rate is limited to 4 or 4£ per cent in the act, but it is set now at 2è 
per cent.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : And the individual can draw out up to $100 
a day.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: In any of these 1,500 offices, yes.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : And there are about 200,000 of these 

accounts that are dormant and unclaimed. So that means there are about 
100,000 active claims now in the Post Office Department?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Yes.
The Chairman: Would this not be an indication, Mr. Thomas, that perhaps 

consideration should be given by the Post Office Department to closing out this 
operation because of lack of use, or are there some parts of Canada where they 
would really miss this service? I suppose the post office would like to get rid of 
this service.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): The only places where it would really be of 
service would be in the very far distant areas where all the post offices are an» 
there are no banks. It is only the large post offices that give the service anyway- 
It looks as if the service is unnecessary.

Mr. Winch: I think the government would love getting money at 2£ Pel 
cent. When you put it in a savings bank you get 3 and a quarter per cent.

The Chairman: Yes, the post office would have no objections if we 
recommended that this service be discontinued.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): These 200,000 dormant accounts only have 
$2 million in them, so that amounts to about $14 each on an average.

Mr. Bigg: Might I ask how much money is in this thing that is claimed• 
How much business is the post office doing apart from this lost account?

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: Do you mean how much are the receipts 311 
deposits each year? They run around $7 or $8 million on deposits a year, an 
the withdrawals are slightly more. It is going down, and this is down to $ 
million now.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I think, Mr. Chairman, there must be several hundred5 
of towns and villages where there are no banks and this could be a service.

Mr. J. A. MacDonald: There are approximately 4,000 accounting Post 
offices in Canada where there is no branch of a chartered bank.

the

1

Mr. Bigg: Therefore I would not hurry to withdraw this service to 
public; it is very necessary in rural areas.

The Chairman: Well, gentlemen, that concludes the post office section 
would like to thank the officials of the department for appearing before 
committee.

Tomorrow we will have the officials from the Public Works Departm6 
There will be 17 witnesses here so please convey this to all members of ^ 
committe, and have them here in good number tomorrow morning at 
o’clock. Thank you.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Thursday, May 26, 1966.

(12)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.07 a.m., the 
Chairman, Mr. A.D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), Flemming, 
t^rbes, Hales, Lefebvre, McLean (Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Schreyer, 
Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), Tucker, Winch 
(15).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Messrs. 
C°ng, Smith, Dixon and Laroche of the Auditor General’s staff; Mr. L. Lalonde, 
deputy Minister of Public Works; Messrs. Williams, Jackson, Langford, Richard, 
:®lls, Ings, G. Millar, Stothart, Ryan, Clarke, H. Millar, Boyle, Cameron, 

Ulnsday and Sorokan of the Department of Public Works.
, The Chairman obtained concurrence in the schedule of meetings prepared 

T the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure. The schedule will be made 
Callable to the members by the Clerk of the Committee.

On a request from Mr. Lefebvre, a corrigendum is to be made in the 
Evidence in issue No. 5 of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence of the 

anding Committee on Public Accounts.
. The Chairman put forth a recommendation from the Subcommittee on 

t §enda and Procedure that questions to the witnesses be as concise as possible 
p Militate the scheduling of future departmental representatives before the
Committee.

The Chairman introduced Mr. Lalonde, Deputy Minister of Public Works, 
0 in turn introduced the officials present from his Department.

v. The Committee questioned both the Auditor General and Public Works 
Presentatives on:

(1) Auditor General’s Report to the House of Commons for 1964. 
Paragraph 80-—Defalcations in the Malartic area of Quebec.
Paragraph 81—Cost of plans for administration building for De­

partment of Agriculture.
Paragraph 82—Accounting for advance planning of construction 

Projects.
Appendix 2—Non-productive payments:
Item 13—Additional costs due to construction delay, Hamilton, Ont. 
Item 14—Additional costs due to construction delay, Lewisporte, Nfld.

12:45 p.m., the questioning of the witnesses continuing, the Chairman 
Urned the meeting to 3.30 p.m. this same day.

24287—1 i
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AFTERNOON SITTING 
(13)

The Committee resumed at 3.36 p.m., the Chairman, Mr. A.D. Hales, 
presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Hales, Tardif, Thomas (Mai- 
sonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch.

Also present: Mr. Howe (Wellington-Huron).
In attendance: Same as at morning sitting, and Mr. Freeze of the Depart­

ment or Public Works.
Discussion took place on a point of order raised by Mr. Winch. Following a 

ruling by the Chairman, the Committee turned to the Auditor General’s Reports.
Mr. Lalonde provided additional information on two points which had been 

requested at the morning sitting re defalcations at Malartic and achitectural 
fees for the Agriculture building.

The Committee questioned the witnesses on the following items of Ap" 
pendix 2 to the Auditor General’s Report for 1964:

Item 15—Additional costs due primarily to construction delay, St. 
John’s, Nfld.;

Item 16—Additional costs due to construction delay, Ottawa;
Item 17—Additional costs due to construction delay, Halifax, N.S.; 
Item 18—Additional costs due to construction delay, Hamilton, Ont.; 
Item 19—Cost of delay in construction of building for the Post Office 

Department, Ottawa;
Item 20—Costs resulting from construction delays, Income TaX 

Computer Centre, Ottawa;
Item 21—Costs of delay in construction of extension to heating plant’ 

Montreal, Que. ;
Item 22—Cost of temporary suspension of construction contract, St- 

Nicolas, Que.;
Item 23—Consultants’ fees in respect of abandoned work, Frobisher’ 

N.W.T.;
Item 24—Consultants’ fees in respect of abandoned work, Edmonton 

Alta.;
Item 25—Consultants’ fees in respect of abandoned work, Toronto- 

Ont.;
Item 26—Costs resulting from abandoned expropriations, Hull, Que‘ 

The Chairman adjourned the meeting at 5.30 p.m. to the call of the Chair-

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE
(Recorded, by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday May 26, 1966.

• (11.00 a.m.)
The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. I am glad to see you all 

«ere. We have with us this morning the Department of Public Works, and we 
shall deal with those paragraphs of the Auditor General’s report which have to 
h° with the Department of Public Works. Each of you has been supplied with a 
hst and the reports from which they come and will follow this as outlined, 
before proceeding I would like to ask the Committee’s willingness to sit this 
afternoon following Orders of the Day, in view of the fact that we have these 
fitnesses with us. Would you be agreeable to sit, say, at 3.30 this afternoon? 
Mr' McLean?

Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : I have another Committee this afternoon.
, The Chairman: Is there anybody else on a Committee? Mr. Tardif is not 
ere> but he said he would be able to come this afternoon. Is there agreement?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.
The Chairman: We will sit following Orders of the Day this afternoon. You 

HI also be receiving from the secretary, Mr. Thomas, a list of all our meetings 
sr°m May 31 right to the end of June, outlining the day of the meeting and the 

biect which will be discussed at that meeting, who the witnesses will be and 
• lst of the paragraphs dealing with those departments. When you receive this I 

ope you will keep it right on your desk and readily available. We have a heavy 
°gram and we are making good progress now and I hope it continues. I 
Predate your attendance and your support.

w N°w, we have Mr. Lucien Lalonde, the Deputy Minister of Public Works. 
. • Lalonde, if you will introduce those members of your staff whom you wish

'htroduce.
« Mr. Lucien Lalonde (Deputy Minister of Public Works): Mr. Chairman, at 
Qfe outset I very candidly admit that with the size and volume of the operation 
ab■I-)ePartment of Public Works there is no one man who knows everything 

°ut every project and so I have asked a number of officials of our Départ­
ie nt be available so that they could answer some of the questions you wish 
°f tRUt them. Each of them has been given specific assignments on the basis 
^ he items reported in the Auditor General’s Report. On my left is Mr. Boyle, 
WirrWaS the Financial Adviser to the Department in 1964 and 1965, and Mr. 

larns the Senior Assistant Deputy Minister in charge of Operations.
't'h6 Chairman: Would you mind standing, gentlemen, when you are 

0<tuced? Thank you.

399
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Mr. Lalande: Mr. Jackson, Assistant Deputy Minister, Administration; Mr- 
Miller, Chief Engineer, Harbours and Rivers; Mr. Mills, Acting Chief Architect; 
Mr. Clarke, Chief Engineer for Development Engineering.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Lalonde.
Mr. Lefebvre: I would like to have a correction made in the Minutes of 

Proceedings and Evidence No. 5, Tuesday, May 10, 1966. On page 195 there are 
questions there which are given under my name. They are very good questions- 
Unfortunately I was not the gentleman who asked the questions so I would like 
to have them given to the right member of this Committee. These are the third, 
fourth and fifth questions on page 195 and the first question on page 196.

The Chairman: Do you know who asked these questions.
Mr. Lefebvre: Well, I believe it was Mr. Bigg but I am not sure because his 

name is in between a couple of mine.
The Chairman: Thank you.
Now the Auditor General’s Report, 1964, page 41, paragraph 80. Whde 

you are finding that I would again like to remind the Committee that 
must be brief and to the point, those asking questions and those giving th® 
answers to them. If we do not follow a clean, crisp presentation of questions an 
answers we will never get through this work. I hope I will not have to cal 
anybody to order for taking too much time in this regard; also I would like a 
Committee members to take an active part and ask as many questions as they 
would like and not any one person asking all the questions or more question5 
than another. I will distribute them around and I will try and be as fair as I ca|?

wih
Mr-

in calling on those who have questions to ask. Put your hands up and we 
take the names in order and if there are supplementaries I will accept those 
Henderson would you proceed with paragraph 80?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, the subject matter of paragraph 8®’ 
defalcations in the Malartic area of Quebec, was discussed in this committee, a 
you will recall on the 5th of May. At that time I believe Mr. Muir, Mr. Lefebv^ 
and Mr. Bigg asked a number of questions concerning the present status 
recoveries from these defalcations and I suggest that the committee might 
furnished with an up to date picture on just where the situation stands at 
present item. Mr. Noble and I believe Mr. Flemming suggested that the ca ^ 
looked like organized conspiracy and asked if the man or party who 
responsible to the Department had been disciplined. I said these were *urt^e 
questions on which we should have to obtain answers from the Department. ^ 
have had this under discussion with the Department and perhaps this lS 
subject on which the Deputy Minister might have something to say 
morning.

Mr. Lalonde: I am not too sure, Mr. Chairman, what are the results of ^ 
discussions which Mr. Henderson has had with the officials of the Departm6 
To what question do we address ourselves now?

Mr. Henderson: In answer to that, Mr. Chairman, I think the rnemb® 
wish to know the present status of the recoveries. In my report it was s ^ 
that some $13,803 had been collected to date; that it involved 26 individuals a
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firms; that you are continuing to press for further collections and it was really 
to up to date report on how successful you have been, which the members 
Were seeking when they discussed it on the 5th of May.

Mr. Winch: At the same time we should like any information there is on 
how the situation could possibly develop to a point where it involves so many 
mdividuals and firms.

Mr. Lalonde : Well, Mr. Boyle will answer the first question namely, where 
the matter stands at the moment.
• (11.15 a.m.)

Mr. L. P. Boyle (Financial Adviser) : I will give the current status. This, of 
course, has been a series of incidents occurring from 1957-58, and the investiga­
tions of the R.C.M.P. were completed only in 1964. There were 73 individual 
Projects involved in which three permanent employees, 58 casual employees 
tod 14 contractor-suppliers were charged with various offences relating to 
fraud. The sum of money identified in the charges was $77,343. To this date the 
coses in 51 of the projects have been heard; there are still some outstanding, 
tod the results are as follows: There have been 12 cases dismissed; four were 
Withdrawn; 35 jail sentences were meted out ranging from one day to two 
^ears; 31 defendants were given suspended sentences; fines were levied in nine 
to the cases and reimbursement was ordered in a number of cases. I do not have 
to actual number.

At this date we have recovered $700 in fines, and the figure that I have 
r°m our accounts on reimbursement is $17,800. One test case relating to eight 

SeParate projects has recently been concluded by the courts and the charges 
Were dismissed; two others of these eight are therefore considered to be 
included because one related to the other. There remain six where the 

-C.M.P. consider that they should continue to press charges in spite of the 
tocome of the test case.

Now, as for the disposition of the persons, apart from the legal action that 
^as taken; as I indicated, there were three permanent members of the 
^cpartmental staff who had a degree of involvement in the incidents, either 
jjtotly or in their supervisory capacities responsible for permitting it to 
, Ppen. Of these, the district engineer involved resigned on the 1st of Novem- 
Vyr’ i960, to take employment elsewhere. The area engineer was suspended and 
^as charged in the courts; three charges were laid against him, two of them 
fir f6 'frtofrssed and the third one was withdrawn in the light of the result of the 
t0 7" two. The assistant territorial engineer whose involvement was considered 
one G s°mewhat more minor was disciplined by the department. He was given 
(j Week’s suspension and put on probation for a period of time sufficient to 

?totrate that he was in fact a responsible employee. The remainder of the 
tfiev °yees were casuals. They were either foremen or student assistants and 

y Were disposed of among the list of the charges which I have read.
br0 ^r- Lefebvre: Mr. Chairman, it says here that in 1960 this was first 
1950’’ *° fr16 attention of the department and this dates back to the early 
Vv0 s and we are here in 1966 and this is still not cleared up. What I 
tfijs d Lke to know is has the Department tightened up on its investigations so 

C.ann°t happen in the future, and why has it taken so long to complete this 
tostigation?
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Mr. Lalonde : Well, the investigation is complete Mr. Lefebvre. It is the 
court cases that are not complete, and over that we have absolutely no control. 
Now this happened on the basis of a day labour arrangement, and I must say 
that we now use this method rather sparingly. In most cases we go to a specific 
contract with an outside firm. It still could happen where there is a conspiracy 
involving supervisory staff as well as the working level.

Mr. Lefebvre : Well, would you say some of this could be due to the fact 
that you do not have sufficient supervisory staff. Could this be one of the 
reasons that—

Mr. Lalonde: I do not know because at the time this did happen none of uS 
was there, and whether they had enough staff or not I cannot say. The only 
thing I know is that in any given organization you do not hire supervisors to 
supervise the supervisors all along the line; otherwise it would be a very costly 
operation.

Mr. Lefebvre: Depending on the amount of money involved you may save 
money sometimes.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, at the bottom of page 41 we are told in the 
report that the Department has no idea as to the total loss. Is this still the case 
and—well I will put that first.

Mr. Lalonde : That is correct, and this is due simply to the fact that unti 
the cases have been heard in court, and the court has decided that there ha 
been a loss, we have no way of knowing exactly how much money v^a 
improperly charged to the government as a result of the fraudulent action 0 
these people. It is only when the court decides that there was a loss and tha 
there is a case, that we can put in our books a specific amount ; otherwise we ar 
only guessing and this is why we have had this difficulty with the Audit0 
General asking us to produce firm figures of the amount of the defalcatio 
before the court cases are all completed. This is impossible.

Mr. Schreyer: Well, we know now that the Department has recovei0^ 
$17,000 plus. The Department does not know yet how much more there may 
to recover, or how much it hopes to recover.

Mr. Boyle: The best evidence we have is that there is an additional 
remaining outstanding; that is from one convicted defendant who has not y 
paid his full reimbursement. We do not expect any significant further rei 
bursement.

Mr. Flemming: Well, my only comment, Mr. Chairman, was in connecti0^ 
with supervisory staff. As 1 understand it, the supervisory staff, the m 
supervisory officials that were referred to by the Deputy Minister, are no loT1JLg 
in the employ of the Department and the question that brought about 
comment is the supervision of the supervisors. I mean the supervisors vv 
involved, were they not?

Mr. Lalonde: You could take it all the way back to the Deputy Minis g 
because he has the responsibility for the whole Department but he is not 
any more either. t

Mr. Muir(Lisgar) : I would like to ask if the Deputy Minister thinks 
the disciplinary action taken was severe enough to deter anyone from dipP 
his fingers into something he should not have his hands in in the first place.
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Mr. Lalonde : For the people who have been convicted I think it was a good 
deterrent.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : But I am talking about the people that you disciplined.
I am not talking about the count action. I am talking about the people that you 
had taken discipline on.

Mr. Boyle : They certainly will not take any more from the Department of 
Public Works.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): No, but what about other people. Was the discipline 
strong enough toward these people so that other people could be deterred from 
doing the same thing?

Mr. Lalonde: This is a matter of opinion. The people in the Department 
who assessed, suspensions or allowed resignations, evidently must have felt it 
was sufficient.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Suspension. I notice you gave a week’s suspension to 
°ue man.

Mr. Lalonde: Who was not necessarily involved in the conspiracy, as I 
Understand it.

Mr. Boyle : Yes, perhaps I could comment on that. The arrangement here 
yas that there were actually three continuing permanent departmental people 
involved. The practive was to hire a foreman for a certain job and hire day 
labour for that job. Now, instructions were issued, of course, that none of these 
Persons would ever be hired as foremen again on our jobs. Of the three 
continuing people the key man in it was the person holding the job of 
erritorial engineer, who had the territory under his jurisdiction; he is the man 
''’ho was charged. He was suspended from the Department immediately and he 
*as charged with three offences: acceptance of a bribe; breach of trust and I do 
n°t know what the third one was—I am sorry—just right now. The two charges 
hat were tried in court were dismissed and the Department had no alternative 
Ut to bring this man up to date in terms of his outstanding salaries and so on 
hrough his suspension period.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : The third man.
Mr. Boyle: The key continuing employee, really there was one continuing 

®haployee who we thought was intimately involved although the courts did not 
apport the charges that were laid against him; but he was suspended and 
Uiihg the period of his suspension he officially resigned. So he was no longer 

ehiployed by the Department from the time the charges were laid.

Mr. Noble: I think the answer that Mr. Schreyer got pretty well takes care 
cny question, but we are told here that the loss to the Department was 

of t ^ and that you were able to recover $17,800. Now, that leaves a balance 
$59,633. Does that mean that this is down the drain, this $59,000?

Mr. Boyle: Well, sir, it is very difficult to answer that question. I suppose it 
11 ke said to be down the drain, in the sense that it will now have to be 

(|JirSed to another account in the government accounts to reimburse. This is the 
(jo]!Culty that we have had from the accounting point of view in identifying the 
the i) vMues. The $77,000 is the sum total of the alleged fraud prosecuted by

“ C.M.P. Now, the type of fraud involved varied greatly, just to give an
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example, one of the foreman admitted that he had bought gravel at $100 and 
sold it to the Department for $300. Now, that is a misuse of his responsibility. 
Whether that is a $200 loss to the crown or whether we have paid more for 
gravel than we should have paid is a moot point. From the accounting point of 
view it is difficult to set up this kind of an account. So I have some difficulty 
from the financial office in identifying in dollar terms exactly what we have got 
here. I feel that there will be some objective loss of public money as a result of 
not being able to recover fully.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask what happened to the firms 
alleged to have taken part in this fraud. Have they received any government 
contracts or work since and, if so, why?

Mr. Boyle : I have the firms’ names. I am not able readily to identify them 
as convicted or otherwise. I could take the time to look it up and report it this 
afternoon.

Mr. Winch: Could you answer the second part of my question. In view of 
the allegation that firms were involved in this fraud, have they received any 
further work or contracts and, if so, why?

Mr. Boyle: I will have to get the answer to that, too, sir.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : My questions have been pretty well answered 

but I would like to ask the witness, has this $77,433 odd been allocated to 
specific firms, persons or individuals? Do they owe that money to the govern­
ment?

Mr. Boyle: No, sir. They were charged with fraud involving that sum total- 
The sum total can be identified in charges laid by—

Mr. Cameron (High Park): Does the money belong to the Department of 
Public Works or to the Dominion of Canada?

Mr. Boyle : I am not able to answer that because, let us assume that the 
alleged fraud is $2,400—

Mr. Cameron (High Park): Take the illustration of the man who bought 
gravel at $100 and sold it at $300. He made a profit of $200 on each—

Mr. Boyle: That man may well have been charged and the judgment of the 
court was that he would reimburse us $100. Now, the second hundred dollars is 
in a bit of a limbo. The court has judged that he should reimburse us $1° ’ 
thereby in a sense determining that our loss was $100.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): What I am trying to get at is, have you made 
any distinction between civil liability and criminal liability? It may be m°r 
difficult to prove a man criminally liable than it is to prove him civilly liable-

Mr. Boyle: We have not pursued it civilly, sir.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Have you handed it to a solliciter to try an^ 

collect any of these amounts. Are they considered collectible amounts?
Mr. Boyle: In the Department the judgment was made that for those ,

were convicted in court we would permit that judgment to stand and we wou 
not pursue them any further.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : What I am trying to get at is: Have y°^ 
distinguished between civil liability? A man is civilly liable to repay a certaJ
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amount of money. He may be criminally liable for a breach of trust, or 
something of that kind. The two are absolutely distinct. I would like to find out 
what is the amount of the civil liability due to the Department of Public 
Works?
• (11.30 a.m.)

Mr. Boyle: That will take a considerable amount of research into the 
individual—

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Which you can prove by your accountants.
Mr. Boyle: We might have some difficulty proving it in a court, sir, because 

the criminal proceedings have identified another sum.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : I am not interested in the difficulty in court. I 

a*n asking you if you have broken it down that way?
Mr. Boyle: We have not.
Mr. Cameron (Hight Park) : Why not?
Mr. Boyle: Because the judgment was made that, once having been tried 

nnder criminal proceedings, justice had been served.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Whose judgment was that?
Mr. Boyle: The judgment of the Departmental officials.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : In other words, you have written them off? 
Mr. Boyle: We do intend, in part, to write off these accounts, yes.
The Chairman: Mr. McLean; then Mr. Bigg and then Mr. Forbes.

: It seems to me a horrible thought that this is the only one 
come to light. How are we going to stop this occurring in a

, Mr. Baldwin 
hat happened to 

hundred districts?
I would like to make a suggestion—I do not know whether it is sound or 

hot—that where labourers or anybody else are paid from public funds for, 
Wesumably, service to Canada, they should be paid with crossed cheques. This 
Way sound a little bit like red tape but let them be deposited to their bank 
accounts and then they do not go through these third parties who are able to 
falsify their cheques and get away with $77,000, or perhaps $777,000.

If you paid these people with crossed cheques that have to be deposited to 
^Wir accounts, then we save doubly. We get it back in income tax, for one 
Wing—.about 20 per cent of it—and, presumably, more work would be done for 

6 Department of Public Works.
pric Y°u would get the gravel delivered by somebody. It might be at a reduced 
Pavtu Ut you W0UM get something delivered, or presumably they would not 

he money down to the fellow who actually did the shovelling.
cannot understand how this type of fraud can be perpetrated so often on 
broad scale.

jjj . ^-r- Boyle: It is the departmental practice to send pay cheques directly by 
stan to the payee, and this practice was departed from in this set of circum- 
t0 l Ces- The foreman asked the district office involved to send the pay cheques 

111 l°r distribution to his workers.
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That was not a practice that the department tolerated and it was one of the 
ways in which the territorial engineer was, in fact, breaking departmental 
regulations.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : The cheques which were sent to the payee may 
have gone through the official you mention, but the cheques themselves were 
made payable to the payee, were they not?

Mr. Boyle : They were forged by the foreman who paid the persons less 
than they were estitled to, with his personal cheque.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : And then gave them so much under them; 15 
that it?

Mr. Boyle : He gave them less than they were entitled to, yes.
The Chairman: I would like to ask a supplementary question here. Has the 

Department and internal audit system, and was your auditor on this particular 
job?

Mr. Boyle: We do not have an organized internal audit system, and in this 
particular case we obviously did not have an auditor who was checking this. We 
depend here on the Treasury Office, in the first instance, and the Auditor 
General in the second.

The Chairman: Have you now an internal audit?
Mr. Boyle : Not at this moment, but plans are being made to incorporate 

this into the departmental organization.
Mr. Forbes: Mr. Chairman, is it not generally the practice of the Depart' 

ment of Pub he Works to require a contractor to put up a performance bond? ln 
this case, would not the bond people be liable for any defalcation such as y°u 
report here?

Mr. Boyle: That would be the case, sir, if the jobs had been carried out by 
contract, but these were not. These were on a time and material basis. These 
were day labour people hired as casual employees. There were no contractors 
involved.

Mr. Forbes: You have a supervisor, or a foreman, and you do not requir® 
him to be responsible for any defalcations in connection with the Department?

Mr. Boyle: We do not take any particular steps to see that he shall 
personally bond himself, but there is in existence, of course—and this is what ha 
drawn attention to this, in part—there is the public officer’s guarantee accoun 
which is a blanket bond for all employees and these gentlemen come under that-

Mr. Forbes: Can you recover from that account?
Mr. Boyle: A good portion of this amount is recoverable from the pubhc 

officer’s guarantee account.
Mr. Forbes: Would any part of this money you refer to here be recovers 

from that account?
Mr. Boyle: Yes, quite a part of it. The part that is not related ^ 

contractors or suppliers. All that can be attributed to debts due as a result 
defalcation of employees can be recovered from the public officer’s guaran 
account.
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Mr. Baldwin: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if I could be advised how these 
defalcations and irregularities were finally caught. Was it a detection from 
within the department or was it only when the Auditor General made certain 
surveys that it was discovered?

Mr. Boyle: The original reference to the Department came from a number 
of the students who had worked in the summer of 1959, and had been paid a 
certain amount by their foreman. When they received their income tax slips in 
the spring of 1960, they found that the income tax officials meant that they 
should have been paid more than they were paid and they reported this to the 
department. That was in a particular case.

The Department put it in the hands of the R.C.M.P. and, in the course of 
lrvvestigating that one case, the R.C.M.P. turned over this whole net of the 
conspiracy which involved a number of jobs in the area.

Mr. Baldwin: It demonstrates the virtues of a university education!
Were these irregularities confined, in area, to a limited district, or to one or 

w° municipalities, or could you call this a community enterprise, or were they 
Mattered over a fairly large district?

Mr. Boyle: They were in an identifiable area.

ties?
Mr. Baldwin: Was it an area limited in size? Was it one or two municipali-

Mr. Boyle: There were probably eight or ten small municipalities involved. 
T,aiW of these jobs were clearing of rivers, for example for dredging purposes, 

he river would cover three or four municipalities.
Mr. Baldwin: All the people involved—the contractors and those concerned- 

~~~hved in that area?
Mr. Boyle: In an identifiable set of communities, yes.

« Baldwin: One more question: What about pension rights in respect of
so who were normally entitled to them. We have already had a case where, 

, ause of some error, the pension rights were recovered and they should not 
e ® been. What is the situation here with respect to the permanent officers or 
ativtv 6es w^° were dismissed? What has happened to their pension rights, if 

ything? You mentioned one engineer.
y0 bit". Boyle: Yes; the engineer who was charged—I am not sure I can answer 
Wh r+ Question fully—but when he was found not guilty, the question arose as to 
t0 ^bis rights were, and the matter was referred through the Treasury Board 

t department of Justice. They did establish that he was entitled to 
eVer rights he had up until the time of his separation, 
blr. Baldwin: He has since resigned?

si0ft^r- Boyle: He resigned from the Department during his period of suspen-

^r- Baldwin: Thank you.

Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, would the Department 
or s e to initiate civil suits for recompense against some of 
quest/116 tlle individuals perhaps? Was this considered?

have considered it 
the supplying firms, 
That would be the
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Mr. Boyle: I am sorry; all I can say, sir, is that regarding those firms and 
individuals against whom criminal proceedings were taken, we made the 
judgment that we would not pursue civilly. I am not able to say this morning 
whether all the firms involved were, in fact, charged criminally.

Again, I could try to get that information for this afternoon. I just do not 
have it with me.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, could I just revise that question a bit. Would 
it be considered a normal practice, or a feasible practice, to contemplate 
launching this civil suit?

Mr. Boyle : It is possible where the evidence is such that we can make a 
case in the civil court—you cannot use the evidence that you have used in the 
criminal court for that purpose—and also where there is a better than even 
chance of collecting the judgment that you might secure from the civil court. I 
think that in this case, and in most instances, the chances of collecting are very 
small.

The Chairman: That completes the questions on this section.
I would think that the Department should have an internal audit in the 

danger of a cost plus contract and—the other part—that the Department does not 
know just how much was taken or how much the total loss was. This appears to 
be a serious point. We might never have found it out if it had not been for the 
students.

I would think that the Department should have an internal audit in the 
Department.

These, no doubt, will be some of the recommendations in our report.
81. Cost of plans for administration building for Department of AgricultuTe■ 

In 1955 an architect was engaged by the Department of Public Works t0 
prepare plans and specifications for and to supervise the construction of ® 
headquarters building in Ottawa for the Department of Agriculture. From l?5 
to 1960 payments totalling $190,500 were made to the architect for the design 
phase of his undertaking, representing three-fifths of the full fee of 5 per cen 
on the originally agreed cost estimate of $6,350,000. In 1961 the architect 
instructed to carry out certain revisions to the existing building plans to rnee__ 
new requirements. Because extensive revisions were required—which resulted i 
a new cost estimate of $10,408,000—it was agreed that the amount to be paid ^ 
him could be fairly assessed only on a time and cost basis. Provisionally it 
estimated that this might involve an additional amount of $250,000. By *e 
bruary 1964, however, the architect had claimed costs of $428,013 with resPeTn 
to the 1961 revisions of which he was paid $262,087 prior to March 31, 1964- 
August 1964 the Treasury Board approved payment of the balance bringing 
$618,513 the architect’s remuneration for the design work on the building.

Had no revisions of building plans been involved, the design portion of 
full fee relating to the actual contract price of $9,266,500 as at March 31, 1 ^ 
would have amounted to only $278,000. Construction of the building commenc 
in October 1963 and is scheduled for completion in April 1966.

Mr. Henderson: This case was discussed by the Committee on May 12.
c 2^*

Briefly, as you will recall, the architect had been engaged eleven years 
September, 1955, to prepare plans for a new headquarters building f°r
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Department of Agriculture, which was later estimated to cost $6,350,000. His fee 
was set at the then rate of five per cent and in due course three-fifths of this 
amount for the design phase was paid to him, in the amount of $190,500.

Before tenders had been called, it was decided, in October, 1961, to increase 
me size of the building to meet new requirements which, in turn, increased its 
estimated cost to rather more than $10 million. We were informed that it was 
n°t feasible to base the fee for these upward revisions on a percentage of cost, 
ar*d it was therefore agreed by the Department, with the architect, to compute 
his fee for this extra work on a time and cost basis, and a figure of $250,000 
additional was estimated.

However, by February, 1964, the architect claimed additional costs, as the 
^°te indicates of $428,013 for the revisions which, as you will see in the note, 
has since been paid to him.

Consequently, he has received $618,513 for the design phase instead of $278 
thousand which is what it would have cost on the basis of the cost of the 
building up to March 31, 1964, which, at that date, amounted to $9,200,000.

This building will not be ready for occupancy, we understand, until next 
ah. In the meantime, the architect has been paid a total of $763,270 for this 
uilding to date, including both the design phase and, of course, his supervisory 

^ork—the design phase being three-fifths and the supervisory work being 
,w°~fifths. His total entitlement, when the building is completed, is likely to be 
0 the order of $810 thousand.
.. In the meeting on May 12, I believe Mr. Cameron suggested that further 
lscussion on this matter might be withheld until we had the officials with us 
oday, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Cameron, would you like to proceed at the moment, or 
°uld you like to wait? Mr. Muir has a question.

. Mr. Cameron (High Park) : I would like the witness to tell us his version of
u first.
, Mr. Lalonde: It is the Department’s contention that the architect who 
q8s designed that building has done work for that amount and that the 

ePartment has received value for the amount of architectural and engineering 
Work done.

b The only way I can explain that, I guess, is to go right back to the 
tod1Ilning of planning for this building and follow it all the way through to 

ay- This is a fairly substantial story.
tv,., ^he Chairman: I think, Mr. Lalonde, this will come out in the questions 

will be asked.
ftot ^r" Henderson: I would like, Mr. Chairman, to interrupt and say that I am 
rec 5Uestioning here the fact that the Department may or may not have 
iti any value for this. It is the size of the escalation of the architect’s fee 
va^e ation to the cost of the building that concerns me. I am quite certain that 

e Was received in this case.

Muir; I am just wondering, the five per cent of the building which the 
is entitled to would probably have amounted to something like $450

^itect
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thousand had he taken five per cent of the end cost, whereas you have already 
paid him $760 thousand and it is going up to $800 thousand and probably 
instead of $810 thousand it could be perhaps closer to $900 thousand. That is 
almost giving him ten per cent of the cost of the building and I think that most 
architects—

e (11.45 a.m.)
Mr. Mills: Had he merely had to design the building that is going up now 

he would have received five per cent as his normal fee; but he was asked to 
design two other buildings and he has to be paid for that. There were two 
redesigns of that building, because of changes in policy and changes in possible 
location.

Mr. Muir: Do you feel that the building design was changed so completely 
that he should be paid—

Mr. Lalonde: I will ask the acting chief architect to reply to that.
Mr. Mills: The plans and specifications were completed for a nine storey 

building and they were shelved. Consequently, when it was decided to proceed, 
an additional floor was added. The computer centre, which was to have been a 
separate building entirely, and the departmental library were all incorporated J® 
the one building.

In addition, the then Minister was agreeable to going on the farm providing 
sun screens were provided on the windows. This involved a complete redraw 
with I think, in the neighbourhood of 100 drawings, and about 90 of these ha 
to be revised. This is why the cost rose as it did; but, as Mr. Lalonde has 
pointed out, we have paid for two complete sets of drawings.

Mr. Muir: I would just like to ask one further question: In the origin3* 
design of this building I understand there was no provision made for parking- 
Can you tell me why any architect—and I am blaming the Department f°r 
this—would not make some provision for parking in a building of that size?

Mr. Mills: We made provision for outside parking; but in this case we did 
make provision for inside parking for a limited number of cars. If my memory 
serves me right, it is about 35.

Mr. Lalonde: That was another condition for going on the farm; thaj 
instead of having outside parking around the farm, you would have under 
ground parking.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I think that should have been brought out in the fhst 
place. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Forbes: Is it permissible to ask who the architect was? This might ha^ 
some bearing on the questions asked. You never know, it might be a relati

Mr. Lalonde : Mr. Hart Massey was the architect.
Mr. Forbes: Mr. Hart Massey? Is he related to the ex-Governor General?

Mr. Lalonde: He is his son.
The Chairman: Do you want to pursue your question now, Mr. Forbes?
Mr. Forbes: No, thank you.
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The Chairman: We will return to you later, Mr. Forbes. Mr. Winch and 
then Mr. Schreyer.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, the first part of my question is the exact 
question which has been asked by Mr. Forbes, therefore I do not need to ask 
that one relative to the fee to the architect.

The second part of my question is: I would like to know, Mr. Chairman, if I 
can get it from you, as to whether it is possible for this Committee now to find 
°ut just who was responsible and how is it permissible that a decision is made 
°n a type of building, its requirement and its location and it is changed with the 
result that we have to have a change of location and three different designs, 
resulting in this fantastic increase in costs. I think this is the real crux of the 
question to which this Committee should have an answer. There is such a 
history of lack of planning, inefficiency, maladministration at expensive cost to 
the taxpayers that there is a crucial principle involved here. I am asking you, Mr. 
Chairman, where can I direct that question and how can this Committee get an 
answer?

The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde is just waiting to answer that.
Mr. Lalonde: I must confess that it is difficult to answer Mr. Winch in the 

ernas that he has used—
Mr. Winch: How else can I put it in view of the situation?

. Mr. Lalonde : Because I do not consider that the policy decisions made are
6 responsibility of the administrative side. That is why I do not feel that I 

ave the right, or the authority, to answer you when you say, “How can you 
°P changes in policy or changes in specifications or requirements”?

that
The only thing I can point out to you is that, independently of the changes
were made, when this thing was planned in the first place the requirements 

the Department of Agriculture at that time were about 150 thousand square 
et; but the Department of Agriculture has greatly increased since then as 
erything else has increased in this country and the requirements are now 438 
°usand square feet. Therefore, it is a little difficult to compare the building 

was originally planned for that kind of space and for those requirements 
h the building that is being put up now.

^ Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I think that the logical question which follows, 
hu'i>~~and it is in order, I hope—is that surely in planning and designing a 
^fiding which is going to cost millions and is going to stand for 40 or 50 years, 
Sp not only look ahead one, two, or three years? Surely when you are 

nding all these millions on a long term usage building, there is some 
P anning ahead?

anvth-r' tjAL0NDE: I could not agree with you more, Mr. Winch, that in planning 
Vye V*ng we should plan for a number of years ahead. My own feeling is that 
reo . °uld always plan for at least ten years ahead in trying to compute 

HUlrements.
^■r- Winch: But lack of planning is not your responsibility?

*acto^r" Lalonde: Wait a minute. In planning then years ahead there are two 
hext tS which enter into the picture. One is the basis on which you plan for the 

242sen years, assuming that there is not going to be any change in policy. How
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often has it happened in any ten year period that you have not had basic 
changes in policy?

Mr. Winch: Do not use that as an argument for not changing governments.
Mr. Lalonde: That is certainly not something on which I can comment. The 

other factor is that in trying to plan ten years ahead, if you say your 
requirements now for any department are 200 thousand square feet, and you 
can see that within a period of ten years this will increase by between 20 and 30 
per cent, you evidently must put up more space than you need right at the 
moment. This costs money. You then run right smack against the other 
consideration, in any one year, which is: How much money do we put in the 
budget for this particular year? There is a conflict there, and a real conflict.

Mr. Winch: Mr.Chairman, I understand the position of the Deputy Minister 
on this but I still think the matter is of such vital importance and is so 
absolutely crucial that I hope you, sir, may be able to find a way whereby we 
can get somebody before us on this matter.

The Chairman: I think, perhaps, Mr. Lalonde could give us this: this 
building was originally planned in what year, and where was its location; then 
the second plan was to move it to the farm, and so on. It was mentioned, the 
other day there were three or four ministers of agriculture during this 
period of time. I think the Committee would like to have a little backgroun 
information there, briefly.

Mr. Lalonde: Mr. Chairman, the planning for this building started in 19^- 
At that time this was tied somewhat to the Greber Plan and there was a certain 
amount of long-range planning in so far as the development of the nations 
capital area was concerned.

At that time the Department recommended that the new administration 
building be built on a suitable site at the farm as part of that Greber Plan.

This was endorsed by Cabinet in March 1955, and Mr. Massey was hired |o 
start preparing the plan. In 1955, the only thing that the department had 
work on was a requirement for 150 thousand square feet for agricultur^ 
excluding some of the items that Mr. Mills has mentioned, which were adde 
later. The architect started to prepare preliminary sketches and drawings.

By February, 1957, which was two years later, the estimate was close to ^ 
million, based on the detailed plans valued at their proper cost. The origin 
estimate had been based on an estimate of $15 a foot for 200 thousand squa 
feet of gross space. But when they made the plans the estimate in 1957 w 
changed to $5,765,000.

Between February, 1957 and February, 1959, the Department under^f^ 
some quite radical changes, I am told, and these included major changes aris^g 
from their reorganization, and affecting the requirements. Immediately; 
consultant was told to start changing his plans. We made an arrangement ^ ^ 
him, owing to his having to pay some of his people, to pay him on accoun 
what would be the eventual cost.

In 1959—and you must remember that the plans that he had been w°r^ps 
on were for the Farm—the Minister said he would not go to the Farm. The P 
were scrapped.
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In 1961, two years later, another Minister agreed to go to the Farm under 
certain conditions which were outlined by Mr. Mills, and the plans were 
redrawn. There was an additional factor. The borings—I remember I went 
through this two years ago with respect to the value of taking borings for either 
construction of building or wharves—the borings that had been taken in 1954 
and 1955 had failed to show a fault in the rock, where the original plan 
intended to place the building, and we had to move 170 feet. This required a 
new foundation to go on the new site. This was an additional change. We 
changed the location in 1962. In January, 1963, the complete plans were 
discussed with Treasury Board again and we agreed to make some modification 
t° keep the cost down a little.

The plans and specifications were ready in March, 1963, and tenders were 
called in August, 1963. Our estimate, at that time, was $10,668,000 and the low 
tender was $9,687,000. That is the story of the building.

The Chairman: May I ask you, Mr. Lalonde: In 1955 were the plans drawn 
t°r the down town location, or the Farm?

Mr. Lalonde: The Farm.

answe

fr, The Chairman: Mr. Schreyer, then Mr. Thomas and then Mr. McLean
Charlotte).
th i^r" Schreyer: I just want to offer the comment that it appears obvious 

at the department cannot be held at fault in this particular case. It is rather a 
if tu a chan§e of mind at the ministerial or cabinet level. I am wondering 

nere is any useful purpose in pursuing it much longer.
The Chairman: We will follow along with further questions. Could we 
/er yours, Mr. Thomas?

k Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Most of my questions, Mr. Chairman, have 
thrn answere<d as we have gone along. I understand the building contains about 

ee times the floor space that the original plan called for?
Mr. Lalonde: That is right, Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): The first plan was authorized about 1954, 

chalc* is 12 years ago. A lot can happen in 12 years. We have heard about 
n®es in ministerial desires with regard to this building.

bu question, though, has not been answered. I understand that the new 
1^ lnS called for some inside parking and I heard the figures of 35 to 38 cars. 

ask: Why this inside parking for so few cars? I imagine there will be 
reds of cars involved there. Why inside parking for a few cars?

aHd tv,r' Mills: At the time we were also making provisions for fallout shelters 
about;hlS Was to be used as a combined fallout shelter and garage. This was 
W6re a11 the space we could provide, having in mind that the column centres 
had c3irly close together, which precluded putting more cars in the area we

Set aside for a fallout shelter.
shelt^r" Thomas (Middlesex West): This was as much designed as a fallout 

5'as it was-
2*287_ ■21
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Mr. Mills: Yes, that is right. Originally it was outside the main part of the 
building.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : The parking would simply be secondary.
Mr. Lalonde: This is another good example, Mr. Thomas, of changes 

occurring in policy. When we started the planning, the policy of the government 
was to promote individual shelters. You will remember that?

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): I remember that.
Mr. Lalonde: Then it changed to group shelters provided through federal 

buildings. This is what we are working on now.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): In the $810 thousand going to the architect are 

there any engineering fees involved?
Mr. Mills: Yes. The mechanical, electrical and structural.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : They are included in the $810 thousand?
Mr. Mills: Yes; and there is the fact that we added one storey. He had to 

redesign about 75 per cent of his design, as all those columns would have to be 
taken down and all the footings would have to be redone.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, most of my questions have been answered but # 
occurred to me that I would like to have this information: How much would o 
a reasonably good salary for an architect for a year?

Mr. Lalonde: I suppose the answer to that is that there is no limit. If he lS 
an outside consultant he can make up to $200 thousand or $300 thousand a year-

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask this question : Could we n<^ 
save the Canadian people a lot of money if we had our own competent architec 
take care of all the government building? Since I have been in Ottawa, we ha 
been continually building and there has been a continual report of l3^ 
architectural fees coming in here. We must be able to avoid this somehow au^ 
employ competent people to do a good job for us, thereby saving the country 
lot of money.

Mr. Mills: As long as you do not pay $200 thousand a year for a comPete 
architect.

Mr. Noble: A reasonable salary should be around $35 thousand. ^ 
architect would be well paid at $35 thousand, would he not?

Mr. Mills: If he is making $200 thousand, he is not going to work f°r * 
thousand. ^

Mr. Noble : We have lots of students coming out of universities, who w,ou 
be glad to take on this work.

An hon. Member: It is a suggestion worth thinking about.
I

ctMr. Cameron (High Park): I would like to find out whether the archite' 
has been overpaid or not. I agree with Mr. Schreyer about the change in P°llC.yn 
You are not responsible for that. Have you gone through all the changes » 
plan? I can understand that when you are going to build a building in one plffn 
•and you build it in another, you would not really require any change of P 
because it is just a change of location. Then you make changes in the P*aI1'
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would like to know if it is the opinion of the Department of Public Works that 
the amount paid to the architect was fair and reasonable and not excessive for 
the services he performed?

Mr. Mills: Mr. Cameron, it was agreed, when he had to change these plans, 
that they would be done on a time basis.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): I am not asking what the Auditor General said, 
t am asking your opinion. Is there any criticism of the amount of money that 
Was paid to the architect?

Mr. Mills: They were checked and recommended for approval.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): This had nothing at all to do with change in 

Policy. He was paid a proper and reasonable fee for what he did and he was not 
Paid anything more than that?

Mr. Mills: No. This was in accordance with the fee schedule of the 
r°vince of Ontario.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): So that if it cost the Dominion of Canada any 
^°ye money than it otherwise might have done, it was due to the changes in 
Policy that occurred from time to time?

Mr. Mills: I would say so.
Mr. Winch: May I ask a supplementary on that? In view of the question 

tli ^ answer> am I then jumping to a right or a wrong conclusion when I say 
at the apparent increase, from five per cent for an architect’s fee, which is 

k rfiial, to that which is going to work out to about nine or ten per cent per- 
Ps> is because of a decision of your Department to employ him on a major 

th°+eC^ on a time basis? If that is correct, then why do you pay on a time basis 
t which is far in excess of the normal five per cent which is paid to an

architect?
t0 ^r- Mills: It was not the intention to complete the new building. He was 
fora the plans of the one that he had completed in 1958 or 1959. His estimate 
ap hanging these plans was $250 thousand, and on the basis of this we sought 

r°val of Treasury Board to give him the work.
Wh t^r' Winch: I do not want it in complete detail but I am just wondering 

a do you consider is the payment for an architect on a time basis?
kuilrL116 (-'HAIRMAN: What you are saying, Mr. Winch, is that the more the 
makeln^ costs the better the architect likes it, because the more money he

It js^r' ^lemming: Mr. Chairman, my question is not confined entirely to this. 
Piilliln general terms. I am expressing an opinion now. An amount of over $6 
or s°n Was originally voted, presumably for this building. Then, within a year 
forty ’ Ganges were made by which new cost estimate of $10,400,000 came 
quest. As a Committee, I think it is pertinent that we should ask this 
alter 1f°n bef°re the work is undertaken and, perhaps, even before extensive 
bot tb10ns are approved. Is it not necessary to have the money voted? Does 
loti(je 6 a<fditional money have to be voted before your department, Mr. La- 

’ says, “All right, we will go ahead with the amended plan?” It is so
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much more than the original, would you not have to go and get that money 
voted before you proceeded?

Mr. Boyle : The practice, of course, is to vote an amount of money which is 
required for the fiscal year. Therefore, there would have been an item in the 
estimates to cover whatever building was to be proceeded with; and the change 
in estimated cost would be a matter for executive decision within.

Mr. Flemming: Then you do not vote the full amount as the cost of the 
building. You simply vote what is going to be spent.

Mr. Boyle: That is right. You simply vote the amount to be spent in the 
one fiscal year.

Mr. Flemming: Actually, the money allotted to you for the year is the 
amount that you require?

Mr. Boyle: That is right.
Mr. Flemming : Nothing is said in the estimates about the total cost?
Mr. Boyle : Yes; it is said during the process of the review of the estimates, 

that this particular building has changed substantially; and that judgment i= 
made by the government in presenting the estimates. They are presenting 
estimates against the revised building.

Mr. Flemming: Then my question is: Before you proceeded with the 
amended plan, calling for the $10 million, would you get someone’s authority 
for the cash?

Mr. Boyle: Yes, there is a group—a Treasury Board Advisory Committ66 
on Accommodation—through whom it was cleared.

Mr. Flemming : That is my point.
Mr. Bigg: In estimating these costs for architects do you hire a firm with a 

the draftsmen and everything as part of a package deal or are these costs 1° 
the architect himself for his genius?

Mr. Mills: No; the overall fee covers all the necessary staff, including 
engineering and architectural, required to complete the plans and specifications-

Mr. Bigg: Are there any rules other than five per cent generally such as s° 
much per cubic foot? I would suggest, for example, that for an office build1 
twenty stories high, the architect’s fees should not be twenty times as mu 
when each floor is a repetition of the floor below.

Mr. Mills: We have a basic fee. Where the cost exceeds $2 million, We
Wereduce the fee by one half of one per cent. Where it exceeds $5 million’ , 

reduce it by a further one and a half per cent; so that if the basic fee star 
out at five per cent, for anything over $5 million you would be getting only 1 
per cent.

thi5
rieS

The Chairman: Mr. Thomas, do you have another question.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I just want to raise 

general point which may be more a comment than a question. These inqU1 t^e 
such as we have had, regarding the costs of this agricultuial building, ma^5here 
whole government service look inefficient, fumbling, bumbling and so on. 1 ^ 
has been a great deal of criticism in the press in recent months and recent y
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°n this matter. I would hope that in the course of these inquiries we could also 
bring out the reasons for these additional costs. I think we have done that this 
Corning.

The costs cover a period of changes authorized over twelve years. It is 
touch better for these mistakes to be found before the building is begun than 
after the building is begun. We have a building three times the size that it was 
°riginally intended to build; we have probably a much better building than it 
Was intended to build; and I find the explanations quite adequate and quite
reasonable.

I think the press and the publicity people should be willing to note this and 
give the government, the Department of Public Works and all others concerned 
credit for using reasonable judgment. We should not let these disastrous reports 
and comments be circulated all across the country, making the government and 
aH of their people appear to be a pack of inefficient fools. We have heard these 
basons this morning and I think they should be noted by the press.

Mr. Baldwin: I have one question. It is a supplementary question to Mr. 
Henderson. I think we had some discussion last year or the year before about 
toe virtues of changing the form of the estimates. I think there was a 
recommendation by the Glassco Commission which was dealt with, to the effect 
toat not only the government but the committee of supply, when voting money, 
should be in a position to know, in a situation like this, that there is on record, 
to the estimates, not only an item voted for the actual cost that year, but that 
toe committee of supply should have information which indicaes there have 
ceen changes in design, which indicate what the total amount would be, so that 
here will be these two figures. In other words, the Committee of Supply, before 

h votes, will know or should know, in any one year that there has been a total 
atoount involving $10 million instead of $6 million for a building. I think we 

,ah some discussion on this. Does this have any bearing on that sort of a 
Sltuation?

Da t^1"" Henderson: It would have been more informative to the members of 
inf ament had the estimates contained even a few more words giving better 

°rtoation in cases like this.
rj , * think an ounce of prevention is worth a pound of cure. I have maintained 
genti £h°nS that I think the estimates could be more informative to you 
inn feinen- I would hope, following the changes that have been made and the 
+u p ernentation of some of the Glassco suggestions, that that will prove to be 

16 case.
it f ^r- Forbes: Mr. Chairman, I have just one further comment. I would take 
that001- information we have obtained this morning that it is quite feasible 
6tl ^is architect may have paid out 70 per cent or 75 per cent of his fees for 
'jj^toeering services, electrical services and advice and this type of thing, 

before he did not put it all in his pocket.
Part^r' Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I have a supplementary question in two 
by s" We were told just a few minutes ago that the architect’s fees are reduced 
level06 °t one percent after passing beyond the $2 million and $5 million 

s- This was not done in this case, I take it? This was not done at all.
hlr. Lalonde: No. It was a straight five per cent.
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Mr. Schreyer: Yes. The second question is: you told us that because of the 
addition to the building the design of the columns and footings had to be 
re-drawn. I find this almost incredible, because if it had been adequately 
designed—I am not suggesting that it should be over-designed—but if it had been 
adequately designed in the first place the addition of merely one storey would 
surely not necessitate redrawing it.

• (12.15 p.m.)
Mr. Mills: It is vital to design in accordance with the National Building 

Code.
What you have done is that you have added one-tenth of the load to the 

footings, and you have therefore increased the load on each floor of columns.
In addition to that, the exterior wall was changed, and the loading on the 

wall columns and the wall beams was at least doubled.
Mr. Schreyer: Is it not the growing practice to design a building so that 

it can take an additional storey or two?
Mr. Mills: No; not buildings of that height. It might be done on a build­

ing of two or three floors, but it is not general practice to do this.
The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Mills.
I think the Committee are concerned with whether or not the architect was 

overpaid. I think it seems to boil down to that and I do not know whether Y01* 
have convinced the Commttee of that or not. Personally, I am still n0t 
convinced. I think the architect was overpaid.

Is it not a fact that the building was designed with a large amount of glaSS 
and was going to be built right out in the open, with no trees around it?—It was 
to all glass walls—and then one of the new Ministers moved in before it was 
completed and said, “Here, we cannot have people working in a hothouse wit 
glass all around,” and that there had to be shades built on. I would like to have 
an explanation of this and what this cost the government to change, and wM 
did we accept such a plan in the first place, with all-glass walls?

Mr. Mills: I could not give you the answer at once in respect to the 
increased cost of the revised walls, with sunshades.

The Chairman: First of all, is it a fact that it was first designed with 3 
large percentage of glass?

Mr. Ewen: There would be about twenty-five per cent of the floor space h1 
glass.

The Chairman: That is large, is it not?
Mr. Ewen: The minimum according to the Department of National Heahh 

and Welfare is fifteen, so it is not all that extensive.
The Chairman: So, it is ten percent over.
Mr. Ewen: Yes. ^
The Chairman: And then what did it cost to redraft the plans and to P 

these sunshades on?
Mr. Ewen: That is something I would have to get for you.
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The Chairman: I think the Committee would like to know. Could you 
Provide that this afternoon?

Mr. Winch: I think it was a part of your question—I want to make 
sure.—why the Department itself would accept that type of construction in that 
type of location.

The Chairman: I am not sure that I understand your question.

Mr. Winch: I am following this up because I did not think tthat you got an 
answer on his understanding that it was being built in an area where it was 
°Pen to the sun and where there was no shade whatsoever; therefore, he knew 
that the sun might come directly into this building which was twenty-five per 
cent glass, according to floor space.

Mr. Lalonde: The only answer I can give to this—and you must realizee 
hat I am not an architect nor an expert—is that, as you will recall, the method 

°t constructing office buildings until very recently was to have glass windows 
ah around. This was the modern thinking. Then some architect thought up 
hese sunshades—precast concrete units—that you now see in so very many of 
he new buildings.

All I can say in explanation is that it is a new concept of architecture, and 
u was asked for, and it is a good one. It has been used in other places, and it 
ls being used in other buildings that the Department is erecting.

The Chairman: Are there any more questions?
Mr. Muir: One final one. Is the building air-conditioned ?
The Chairman: It is like the schools we built a few years ago, when we 

ade them all glass, and then spent millions of dollars to hang drapes and 
Mains to keep the sun out. I guess that is the same idea.

The Chairman: Well, No. 82. We will have the answers this afternoon on 
°se other questions.

q, .hÆr. Henderson: I do not think we need to spend any time on 82, Mr. 
tirrflrinan‘ This was discussed on May 12th, and the Committee indicated at that 
bu f ^ sbared our view that it was highly desirable that all of the costs on each 
of ^ hing project be charged in the right place, not divided between the accounts 

tWo departments.
We now come to the non-productive payments in the 1964 report, page 168, 

, Pendix 2. Altogether in this Appendix there are 35 examples of payments, 
ç u8ht to attention in accordance with the requests made of me by this 
cj^’Wttee in past years, which might be regarded as non-productive in 
q. racter. The cases under this heading were observed in the course of audit of 

6 acc°unts for the 1963-64 year.
Vj 5^ these 35 items, involving $1,247,000, 21 represent construction super­
in 6 °r bandied by the Department of Public Works, and they involve $642,000, 
°f j?^er Words, slightly half of the value of the total items shown in this listing 

°n_productive items.

l7j Department of Public Works items begin at No. 13 which is on page 
6 have already discussed two or three of the others.
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I do not know to what extent the Members have read these individual 
paragraphs, Mr. Chairman, but if you wish me to do so I could give you a very 
short rundown on each one, if you would like to do it that way, or would you 
care to take a few minutes and have questions on the individual ones?

Mr. Winch: I would like to start on No. 13.
The Chairman: With a brief rundown by Mr. Henderson, do you mean, or 

questions?
Mr. Winch: I was going to ask about No. 13 because it involves a matter of 

$72,000, which is considered non-productive, and that is a rather large amount, 
I would think, for one item, or to one contractor.

The Chairman: Well, Mr. Henderson, I think if you gave a brief outline, 
and then the questions.

Mr. Henderson: On each of the paragraphs, Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman: What would be the wish of the Committee?
Mr. Henderson: We could just run through them quickly. Some migh* 

attract attention more than others.
No. 13, the one Mr. Winch refers to, was where the Department entered 

into a contract for the construction of a length of wall, specifying the use ° 
Canadian steel, and the Canadian supplier could not supply the required stee 
and foreign steel had to be used. Consequently the work was delayed, wit 
resulting additional costs of $77,000 of which $72,824 is regarded as beinf? 
non-productive.

Item 14...
The Chairman: I guess we will take each one—
Mr. Henderson: Do you wish to have each one discussed?
The Chairman: Yes. Mr. Winch, I think you had a question on No. 13.
Mr. Winch: Yes. I would just like to know whether this could have bee** 

avoided, because when you get a non-productive item in one contract, just 0 
one award, for $72,000, or almost $73,000, it seems to be rather heavy to me.

The Chairman: The question would appear to be that it was the contra 
tor’s responsibility, and why was the Crown caught with this amount of money •

Mr. Winch: I mean, he knew when he tendered that he had to use certa/g 
Canadian material, and I would have thought it was his responsibility, when 
put in the tender, to know whether or not he was able to get it.

The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, would you like to—
Mr. Lalonde : I would like Mr. Williams to answer.
Mr. Williams: The tender did not specifically require Canadian material-
The standard practice, or the provision in the contract, is that Canad|®a 

materials will be used to the extent they are available and economic. In 
particular case, the contractor, who was awarded the contract, when 
submitted his tender he submitted it on a basis of using a European sheet PJ1*
At the time of tender a second bidder quoted on the use of a portion of
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Piling being produced in Canada, that is, Canadian piling, but at a premium 
Ç°st. The Department realized and knew that this piling was not then produced 
111 Canada, but it was in the process of being rolled by Algoma Steel.

The Chairman: May I interrupt here, Mr. Williams. I think the Auditor 
General has stated that the contractor was to use Canadian steel, and you say it 
Was not in the contract. Am I right?

Mr. Williams : That is correct. It is not a requirement that he use Canadian 
®teel. What we do say in the contract is that he will quote on the use of 
Piaterials, and if he uses other than Canadian materials he will so specify in his 
contract, and if Canadian materials are available he has to indicate any 
Premium price for Canadian, if that is the case; because obviously, if Canadian 
Were cheaper, he would use it.

Mr. Henderson: The call to tender did not apparently require Canadian 
s*eel, but the contractor resolved to use it.

Mr. Williams: If I could carry on. We had a quotation using foreign steel; 
there was an alternate quotation using some Canadian steel but at a higher 
Price. The Department went back to the low bidder and asked him to quote on 
what his price would be using the Canadian steel that would be available.

The price that was quoted was an increase of about seventeen per cent, and 
he Department recommended that we go ahead with the use of foreign steel. 
ut in accordance with the Government policy we drew to the attention of the 
reasury Board that we did have a quote at seventeen per cent increase on the 
nrount of the steel that was available. We had a price for this—an increase in 

Price; it was about $10,000; but the Department did not recommend it.
Treasury Board, in recognition of the fact that this job was being done in 

arnilton, and since they were anxious to develop the production and use of 
■^eet Piling in Canada, and the plant producing the sheet piling was in 

amilton where the job was, directed us to enter into a contract to use the 
aPadian sheet piling. We went back to the contractor who had bid on foreign 
bpg and said, “we will enter into a contract with you; you will use Canadian

Pilin
hicn

S which will be available and on the basis of this we will pay you an
eaged price.” That was the basis of the contract.

be ^r*or t° doing this we checked with the suppliers to ensure that they would 
Vv°ulde t0 pro<^uce t*16 piling, and we had an assurance from them that they

^he contract was awarded in June, with the idea that he would complete it 
atl(^re winter works. Later, they found it impossible to produce the sheet piling, 
sUch 6 llac^ revert to foreign piling. By that time his order for delivery was 

that he had to carry out the work during the winter months.
in ^e $77,000 is the loss in his production because of carrying out the work 

lriter months, and also in the period in which there was high water.
Une ? Was an effort to use Canadian steel which, as it so happened, proved 

atisfactory.
ty; ^he Chairman: Just a minute. Mr. Bigg had a question and then Mr. 

ch> and then I think Mr. Henderson may have something to say.
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Mr. Bigg: I am all for using Canadian steel, providing that two things are 
done: First of all, we should make sure that, with this sort of preferred 
treatment, they give the government at least the same deal as they give to 
private industry on the price; and I think checks should be made in that regard. 
Secondly, I think we should not be put to this extra expense of having to do it 
in the winter-time, or perhaps in a winter works program. In other words, 1 
think that the Canadians, if they are going to get this kind of treatment, should 
make a greater effort to fulfil their contract without an added cost to the 
Crown. I hope that some steps will be taken to safeguard us in the future.

Mr. Muir: Just before the Auditor General, Mr. Chairman, was this 
Canadian steel finally delivered and used for winter construction?

Mr. Williams : No. They never have been able to produce it.
Mr. Muir: They never did it.
Mr. Williams: No.
Mr. Cameron: I just want to follow that up by asking: It was not the fault 

of the contractor, then, that the steel was not delivered?
Mr. Williams : That is right.
Mr. Cameron: And reasonable steps were taken to assure that it could have 

been delivered?
Mr. Williams: That is correct. The company producing it spent a very 

large amount of money.
Mr. Cameron: To go one step further, could you tell us why they failed to 

be able to deliver it.
Mr. Williams: I do not know all of the problems that they had in trying t0 

produce it. They were just unable, with the prototype that they had set up t0 
do this, to produce the steel to the required specifications.

Mr. Cameron: Did they accept a firm order to deliver the steel?
Mr. Williams: Pardon.
Mr. Cameron: Did they ever accept a firm order to deliver the steel?
Mr. Williams: The order was placed with the contractor, and any of thes® 

companies which are dealing in steel—in a product, in this case—had a rider tha 
they were not bound on.

The Chairman: No. 14.
Mr. Winch: Could I ask how long we are going to sit, in view of what lS 

happening this afternoon?
The Chairman: Mr. Winch, could we sit until ten to one?
Mr. Winch: Some of us have been on Committee since nine thirty, and 

personally would like to shorten it.
The Chairman: All right; a quarter to one. Would that be agreeable to t^e 

Committee? Agreed. No. 14.
Mr. Henderson: In the case of No. 14 you have an incidence of sU^s°rf 

conditions experienced in connection with the construction of a railway wha
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at Lewisporte, Newfoundland, which was much more difficult than had been 
anticipated as a result of an investigation commissioned by the Department. The 
contractor again was delayed and had to revise his method of pile-driving, and 
a claim of $41,000, as indicated here, in respect of the rental of equipment 
which remained idle because of the delay, was submitted and paid by the
department.

Mr. Williams : This was a harbour job at Lewisporte, Newfoundland. We 
Were doing the work for the Department of Transport. It is a rail terminal 
which connects with the coastal shipping for that part of Newfoundland.

The concept of building this terminal yard and wharf was developed by 
consultants, and they did a thorough soils investigation and of the site. Soil 
conditions are commented on so often I would like to make the general com­
ment that it is a very difficult thing to take tests on the surface of the ground 
^d accurately predict all of the inconsistencies which may develop beneath.

In this particular case, there were a large number of borings and soundings, 
and because it was determined it would be a pile structure, penetration 
tests—that is, the driving of rods to determine the difficulties of pile driving 
''"Were taken, and on the basis of this a design and a tender call was made in 
'ynich the contractor was provided with the same information we had used in 
ae design; that is, with regard to the difficulties in driving the piling.

As the work progressed it turned out that, because of the very dense 
Mature, the driving was much more difficult than could have been anticipated by 
,he test borings and the driving tests. It was a silt material containing a lot of 
°ulders, and the contractor, notwithstanding his efforts with a lot of different 

Procedures on driving piling, was unable to make progress.
The project was re-examined, and finally the only solution was to use 

etting, which is leading the piling down by means of pump water jets to wash
out some of the material and dislodge some of the boulders. This proved
satisfactory.
sol ?owever> due to the fact that he had so much difficulty in developing a 

ution, the work that he had anticipated doing in about three and a half 
intvu15 to°k about eight months. As he had his equipment on the site he was 

rbited from going ahead with a great deal of the work that he had contem­
ned. It upset his schedule.

ii, , The $44,000 is a payment to the contractor for his loss of production in 
^at period.

Again it is a case of where the Department accepts the responsibility to 
in Vlc*e the best information we can, and if the information we provide is 
fa ,Ccurate based on reasonable assumptions we can make on this unkown 

°r> then we are responsible for reimbursing him.
- The Chairman: Mr. Tucker, you are from Newfoundland. Perhaps you have 
Question.

hlr. Tucker: I would like to know the name of the contractor involved.
■MT. Williams : Universal Constructors and Engineers Limited, St. John’s.

Bigg: I have just two short questions on this. I would like to know 
this contractor has done this type of work before under similar

Mr.
Aether
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conditions. What I am getting at is that I do not like this underbidding on 
contracts and then coming to the government afterwards. We have had a great 
many cases of this. If he is an experienced contractor then I think he should 
have anticipated this difficulty.

The question is: is it the case that your people did the exploration work 
and they were merely called into drive the piles?

Mr. Williams: The contractor was an experienced contractor.
Mr. Bigg: He was.
Mr. Williams: Yes. His actual bid—the low tender—was $1,120,000; the 

next bid was $1,179,000; against the departmental estimate of $1,197,000. The 
bids were all close. We examined this, and it was our view, from the informa­
tion at the time we investigated tenders, that it would have been unreasonable 
for him to have anticipated as much trouble with the driving.

Mr. Bigg: Nevertheless, your estimate was very realistic compared to the 
contractor’s, and this is why I am a little suspicious sometimes of the lowest bid, 
because they know that a kind Treasury Board will often reimburse them. I am 
thinking of one exceptional case, when they deepened the Welland canal, and 
we got a bill for some $32 million more than the original contract. Engineers 
should be able to bid a bid much closer than $32 million. I think I could do that 
myself, and I have had no training.

The Chairman: Mr. Williams, did I understand you to say that the 
Department did the subsoil investigations.

Mr. Williams: I am sorry. The subsoil information was provided to the 
contractor by the Department. However, it was not done by the Department of 
Public Works. The actual work was done by our consultant on the site.

The Chairman: The Department of Public Works subsoil testing, °r 
investigating, did not turn out to be too good. Is that the answer?

Mr. Williams: I have to confess that the conditions turned out to be more 
difficult than we anticipated; that is correct.

The Chairman: One further question: Would you not be better advised f° 
contract the subsoil testing work out than attempting to do it yourself?

Mr. Williams : This was not done by us. We provided the information t0 
the contractor; but the actual subsoil testing was done by the consultant whom 
we hired.

An hon. Member: Who was the consultant?
Mr. Williams : The consultants were Goode, Binnie and Preece and they 

used Geocon Limited for the subsoil work.
Mr. Lefebvre: In other words, from what you say, the contractor, with the 

information that was available to him and the information that had been giye 
to the department, had no way of knowing before that he would run into thes 
conditions, and the department was satisfied that the money that he got extr 
was due to him? The department was satisfied?

Mr. Williams: That is correct.
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Mr. Lefebvre: Would it not appear to be justice that if the subsoil testing 
company, or the consultants, made a mistake then they are the ones who should 
have paid the $41,000, not the crown.

Mr. Williams : On the question of whether there was a mistake, they gave 
‘heir opinion, or the best judgment they could form, from the information 
Available. In our opinion they did a reasonable and satisfactory testing and 
“oring procedure in determining the information.

Mr. Lefebvre: Why would not you split that three ways—the crown, the 
contractor and the man who did the subsoil testing—rather than asking the 
axpayer to pay the whole shot?

Mr. Williams: Well, it would be a matter that the contractor has certain 
egal rights, the department has some, and so has the consultant.

Mr. Lefebvre: What were the consultant’s fees for this?
Mr. Williams: They would be on the standard rate of fees. I could not say 

Precisely. I would assume they would be between 5 per cent and 6 per cent on 
‘hat type of job.

Mr. Lefebvre: And what is that?
Mr. Williams: In the order of $75,000.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Do many of these soil tests prove to be as 

Suable, or invaluable, as this one was?
Mr. Williams : We do probably 3,000 contracts a year, and of the 3,000 

attracts I would say that there are probably 1,200 of them that are subject to, 
hd dependent on, soils information provided; and we are looking at I do not 
n°w how many in this group.

w Mr. Cameron (High Park) : This one did not divulge the information that 
infS recluired. Are there many in that category, that do not divulge the 

ormation which is required?
Mr. Williams: I am looking at it, and I am saying that it is something less 

an 5 per cent. That is a judgment.
Mr. Lalonde : Mr. Chairman, if you will recall, we went over this very 

]ect two years ago in the Committee.
Soj, This is a question of how much money you spend to make sure that every 
risk *s an absolute certainty, or do you take a certain amount of calculated

we felt it was going to cost much more to take the calculated risk, then it 
- M change the picture; but in view of what Mr. Williams has said about the
Ppinbtl6g '*°er of tests that we have to conduct in any one year, we feel that it costs 

0 take the calculated risk.
sp6fiMr- Williams: The other alternative, of course, would be that when we 
t0 - y '■his job we would automatically assume that the conditions were going 

^he worst they could possibly be, in which case we would have called 
the tk'S *or jetted piles throughout, and we would have taken into account all 
ipst lngs that could possibly have developed and we would have, in the first
job - ce’ Paid for an increased cost which we might not have needed on every 

we do.
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• (12.45 p.m.)
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : That is what prompted my question, because it 

seems to me that a good contractor takes in most eventualities, and I am afraid 
that sometimes the best contractor loses the contract because the other fellow is 
only looking at price. I would just like to be sure that we do all we can—and 1 
know it is very difficult—to make sure that we have a competent contractor, not 
one who is just getting on the payroll and then coming to us with his hat in his 
hand.

Mr. Williams: This is something that concerns the Department and we do 
all we can, of course, to make sure he is competent; and I can assure you that 
the claims are not lightly paid. We have to justify them every bit of the way- 
They have to justify them to us, and we will not support something to Treasury 
Board that we do not justify.

Mr. Winch: Are we coming back this afternoon, so that we can leave our 
documents in the same room?

The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Just before we leave this question. Did the 

Department of Public Works and the contractor see eye-to-eye on the sub-sod 
testing consultants. Were you in agreement? Did the contractor think that the 
sub-soil investigation and the consultants did a good job? Did you and the 
contractor agree that there was a good job done?

Mr. Williams: Yes, we felt it was a reasonable assumption.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): And the contractor too?
Mr. Williams: Correct; that is why we paid the extra, because we agreed.
The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned until approximately 3.30.
Thank you, gentlemen.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(Discussion on a point of order raised by Mr. Winch)

• (3.30 p.m.)
The Chairman: I will be like the Speaker of the House. He finds it difficU^ 

at times to count the number of members present. Lkewise I find it difficult a 
this time, may I say we proceed.

First of all, there are some answers that Mr. Lalonde has to give in replyt0 
some questions which the committee asked.

Mr. Lalonde: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before I do that, when I intr°j 
duced the officials of the Department one of them was away on other duties- ^ 
would like to ask him to stand now and be identified—Mr. Freeze, the Director 
Property and Building Management.

The first question which was asked this morning had to do with the nuh1^ 
of outside firms who were investigated in the Malartic area. I now have a rep0^ 
which is based on all the files available, as some of our files dating back 
1959-60 are in the Archives Building. There were 14 firms investigated. AU
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'■hem were suppliers. There was no contractor in this group. They were all 
SuPpliers. Eight firms were charged and convicted.

Mr. Winch: And convicted?
Mr. Lalonde: Yes. No, I am sorry. Eight firms were charged and seven 

V£ere convicted. One firm was a one-man firm. He died before his trial, and the 
charge was withdrawn.

Seven were convicted and fined and made restitution. Two who had been 
Investigated were found to be not connected with the conspiracy, and therefore 
a° charge was laid. There are five firms whose cases are still before the court 
°r decision by the judge.

One of the two firms against whom no charge was laid supplied material to 
y Department in 1963-64 for $108; 1964-65 for $703; 1965-66 for $2,642; but 
au Hiust realize that there was no evidence against this firm, and therefore it 
as thought that they had the right to be considered as other suppliers.

i Of all the others—they received no further business, except one—who had 
charged on an item of fraud of $70; that was the only case, and they were 

ked to make restitution and they did. This firm has received small orders—not 
°ntracts—of, in 1963-64, $8.95; 1964-65, $187; and 1965-66, $32.

Mr. Bigg: This was a matter of convenience for the Department.
Mr. Lalonde: Yes, it is because they are local suppliers.

jv Mr. Winch: I appreciate the information, but I would like to ask the 
th' l ^ Minister what I think is a very important question: Is it now, or do you 
to * ^ wiU be, the policy of your Department to give contracts to, or to agree 

auPPbes being supplied by, firms which have been found guilty of fraudu- 
acti°n against the federal government.

tj, Mr. Lalonde: No, we have not done so in the case of those six other firms 
c0 Were convicted, and if any of the five whose cases are now pending are 

lcted it is not our intention to give them any more business.
giv ^r‘ Winch: If they commit fraud against the government then you will not 

6 ^em any further business.
^ Lalonde: I will not say forever, because that might be too much of an 
staking; but for the time being, no.

litti ^r- Bigg: I think for the convenience of the Department we should allow a 
6 Ministerial discretion.
The Chairman: That completes the answers to you, Mr. Winch.

agri ^r" Lalonde: The other answer had to do with the change in plans for the 
tyasCfU^ture building. From the time—I think it was in 1959—when the design 
the °r what they call a curtain wall with open windows with aluminum sidings, 
deS}6stirnate for the wall was $950,000. In 1963 the architect was asked to re- 

n to precast concrete shading units, and the estimate for that was $1,110,000. 
^’Uo ^ C3n '3e arSue(f one way or the other; $950,000 in 1959 against a 
atiçi in 1963: I would say the two prices are pretty close to one another 

jia87 re is not very much difference between the two types of construction.
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Mr. Tardif: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the original cost; that can be argued. But if 
asked for the original cost and then you change it and it costs over a million 
dollars more, that can be argued. Who makes those decisions? You have just said 
that it cost a million dollars more to change the curtain wall.

Mr. Lalonde: No, I did not. If we had gone ahead with the curtain wall it i 
would have cost $950,000 in 1959. We did not go ahead with that so we did not 
spend the money. Instead of that we are going to spend approximately 
$1,110,000 for the precast unit that replaced the curtain wall. There is really no 
difference between the two.

Mr. Tardif: No difference between $900,000 and a million, too?
Mr. Lalonde : Well, $950,000 on the basis of prices in 1959 is pretty close to 

$1,110,000 on 1963 prices; so I consider there is no difference.
Mr. Tardif: And the architect’s fees.
Mr. Lalonde: That is something else altogether.
Mr. Tardif: Who makes those decisions, Mr. Chairman, that there should be 

changes after the original plan has been accepted?
Actually, while you say there is not a great deal of difference between the 

wall that was originally planned and the wall that has replaced it, there is z 
difference of about $4 million in the cost of that building from the origina 
estimate.

Mr. Lalonde: I explained all that this morning, Mr. Tardif.
Mr. Tardif: Well as long as everybody is satisfied.
The Chairman : The architect would receive his 5 per cent on both thos® 

amounts—the $950,000 and—
Mr. Lalonde : Three per cent.
The Chairman: And 3 per cent on the $1,110,000 as well. Each time it waS 

changed the architect got 3 per cent?
Mr. Lalonde: That is right. It did make a difference but this was due to tbe 

decision, to put the building in that location.
Mr. Bigg: It was not the architect’s fault that he was asked to submit n^ 

plans. He was doing another job at the same rate for the same type of servie®
Is that correct? i

Mr. Lalonde: That is right.
Mr. Tardif : Well, there is a question which apparently was not answer® 

this morning, because the people who are here are still asking the questi® !
What I would like to know is: who is responsible for making these decisions-

• (4.00 p.m.)

The Chairman: I think you are a little behind in your reading, Mr. Tar
Mr. Tardif : I will read the evidence in three weeks, when you hav'e 

printed.

dif-
it
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The Chairman: There were the different ministers and the change of 
location from downtown to the farm and so on. This brought about a lot of 
tiiese changes.

Mr. Tardif: Four million dollars worth.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): I think for Mr. Tardifs benefit it might be 

Pointed out that there was the equivalent of three sets of plans drawn for this 
building before finally it was acceptable and used for the purposes of erecting it.

Mr. Tardif: From the appearance of the building to me you should have 
accepted one of the first plans because it is an absolute abortion.

this The Chairman: Would the Public Works Department not be responsible in
regard: The architect was asked to submit plans to you and you did or did 

°t tell him you wanted a curtain wall construction. You left that to the 
chitect I suppose?

Mr. Lalonde: He submits his own drawings with his own ideas. That is 
j he is hired as a consulting architect. Otherwise, we would do all the 

Sl§ning ourselves. I think we went over that this morning, 
but ehher accept or change his design if it is not satisfactory, not only to us, 
aj l° our client; because, in effect, we only built one building for ourselves. We 
de ays build for someone else, and we have to take into account our clients’ 
Su,ires and their requirements. Therefore, if they do not like something, we 

mit it to them and they have the authority to request changes, provided they
6 reasonable.
^r' Tardif: I do not know if my next question is one that has been 

hanWere(* already but, if it is, you can tell me. Once the plan is accepted and it 
hi Pens that the client changes his mind in the meantime, do you submit the 

nto him again?
^r- Lalonde : Oh, yes.

aëain?r ^ARDIF; And if the client changes his mind again you submit it to him

6Xec^r" Lalonde: That is right, Mr. Tardif. Whenever the government, or the 
kun, tlVe authority in any department changes, he or they have the right to 

what is going on.
to ^r- Tardif: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if it might be a good idea to suggest 
foli0 ® department of Public Works that they adopt the practices that are 
a ja . ed in private industry. If they change a president in private industry and 
agaiy ry has been designed and accepted, they do not normally submit it to him 

s° he can change it at his whim and increase the cost.
to Vv^r' Lalonde: I submit to you, Mr. Tardif, that that is the wrong approach 
thr6e hie Department of Public Works does. I am quite convinced now, after 
hoarcj years, that the control role in this field should be with the Treasury 
dcipa’ n°t with the Department of Public Works. I think we should be a service 

enh and that is the way we intend to operate as soon as we re-organize. 
to set i? are not truly the owner of the whole government. Each Department has 
the Co p their own requirements and we are there to service them as experts in 

Auction field. I think the control should be exercised by the Treasury
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Mr. Baldwin: The problem is, Mr. Lalonde, that your clients are often 
temperamental.

Mr. Lalonde: They have the right to be.
The Chairman: Are there any questions on this.
Mr. Tardif : Mr. Chairman, I have to disagree with Mr. Lalonde when he i 

says that the client has the right to be temperamental at the cost of the 
taxpayers of Canada.

Mr. Winch: It would have to be a Cabinet Minister that is the client—
Mr. Tardif: I do not care what his name is.
Mr. Winch: —as far as public works is concerned. That is the problem and 

am I correct there?
Mr. Lalonde : I do not disagree with the principle expressed by Mr. Tardif; 

that the client department should not be allowed to spend public funds 
unnecessarily. But I say to you that that function, to make sure that pubhc 
funds are spent the right way, belongs to the Treasury Board. It does f°r 
everything else so why should it not for construction.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, if it belongs to the Treasury Board I do no1 
disagree with that. Would they not in turn require the advice of the experts 111 
the Department of Public Works so that the expenditures are wisely made?

Mr. Lalonde : That is quite correct, and that is the way we are asking t0 
operate now.

Mr. Tardif: I hope you succeed.
Mr. Lalonde: So do I, Mr. Tardif.
The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, you spoke of a new system or schedule 

re-organization. Have you anything to tell the Committee on this at the momen 
or will we get that later?

Mr. Lalonde: It is a very complex undertaking, Mr. Chairman. We ha^ 
been working at it now for a year. We know where we want to go and we kno 
the principles that we would like to apply. We want to decentralize authority- 

As I said this morning, there is no one man in this department who c 
claim to know everything. There is too much going on and it is going on 
across Canada. We want to decentralize the functions and the authority— 
only the functions, but the authority as well. haS

We know where we are going; we have an implementation team that 
already started to work on this under Mr. Williams’ direction. But you 10 ^ 
realize that with the same number of people we are going to have to run 
new organization, to set it up, not only on paper but physically and at 
same time do our daily work. This has to be done without a dual organiza 
and, that is going to be complicated and complex for the next 12 to 16 months- ^ 

When we reach the stage where we can set up our regions and get thernt^e 
operate, we hope to decentralize not only the administration in detail, but 
design, the construction, supervision and everything to our regions.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg is next and then Mr. Winch.
Mr. Bigg: Is it possible to get some member of the Treasury Board t>ef°ra 

us some time. It seems to me that the Treasury Board is the bottleneck 1
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great many instances. I would like to have some member of the Treasury Board 
exPlain to us why it is so difficult. I know it is difficult, with the detailed 
decisions they are expected to make in so many widespread departments, and 
the tremendous building programs and so forth.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, on June 23 we are having Treasury Board before 
the Committee, and they will be able to answer that.

Mr. Winch: I know the section we are on, but in view of the way the 
Questions and answers have gone I wonder if I could ask this question now. 
Could the deputy minister advise this Committee what is the line of demarca­
tion between the Department of Public Works using its staff for architecture 
and engineering planning and the use of outside architects? Who makes this 
decision?

Mr. Lalonde: We work on the basis of the policy that we have a basic 
.. blishment of a number of architects and engineers to do the liaison with our 
'«it departments, to do the design of smaller projects where it would not be 

oonomical to go to a consultant every time. This would apply, for instance, to 
. ® design of post offices up to a certain level. We hire outside consultants, 

her jn (-he field of architecture or engineering, on our bridges and rivers 
°]ects, for instance, because the volume varies from place to place and from 

to time.
at If we were to attempt to set up an establishment to take care of our needs 
k times you would have to have an establishment based on our peak load, 
scause otherwise we could not take care of those times when we do have a 

p6ak load.
Instead of that, we use outside consultants, not only because it gives us 

ca re Hexibility, but because you must remember that these people in many 
p tS d° a greater variety of design than we would do. They are in business, 
sal llaI)s 1° a different way than an architect or an engineer who is strictly on 
c ary- I think there is a certain amount of competition that goes on amongst 

gîtants that would not go on if we were to do all of our designing. I still
°ur people to do some professional work, but not all of it.

111 the
This is exactly the same principle that we operated on after World War II 

an • 6 Veterans hospitals where we used outside doctors so that they would have 
thalncentive to keep up to date and they would have more varied experience 

n ^he civil servant.
the ]^r' Winch: Mr. Chairman, I am not quite happy with the answer. What is 
is___ lae of demarcation between what you do and—the next part of my question 
ow ho tells you what outside architect to employ if you are going outside your 

branch? How do you decide what architect it is going to be.
J'oUr^1ast Friday I was at the opening of the new medium security. Where is 
in. £>lltle °f demarcation and who decides what architect is going to be called 

°6s that come under your department? Who makes the decision?

^baivh" Up to a point, Mr. Winch. I am not quite sure as to what you
by “line of demarcation”. If you mean a money line—

6n§in^r T^Inch: No, I mean where do you stop using department architects and 
o<ers °n the drafting of the plans and the engineering. When does it go 

an<3, if it goes outside, who makes the decision as to what architect is
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going to be employed on this outside planning? I would truly like to have that 
information.

Mr. Lalonde : I will have to divide my answer in two parts then, because 
there is somewhat of a difference in the field of architecture for building 
construction and engineering design for marine works or for roads and bridges- ] 
They are not handled quite the same way.

We do more of our own engineering design—although we use consultants 
from time to time—for bridges and highways and marine works than we do f°r 
building construction. Of course, there is more building construction than 
anything else.

Mr. Winch: But on buildings how do you do it?
Mr. Lalonde: On buildings, where the design is one that we can use mor® , 

than once—for instance, a design for post offices, which can be used in various 
places with minor adjustments—we do that ourselves. When it is a federa 
building, or a larger project requiring a specific individual design, we go for a 
consultant.

Mr. Winch: Who decides on that consultant?
Mr. Lalonde: What we do when we want to hire a consultant is to look at a 

list of consultants practising in the area—if it is not a national project, or if i* 
a national project all across Canada—and we list the number of persons that've 
consider capable of doing the job. We submit that to our Minister.

Mr. Winch: Who makes the selection?
Mr. Lalonde : We are told by our Minister to choose so-and-so amon£st 

those we have recommended.
Mr. Winch: You recommend to your Minister those whom you think are ^ 

this field, and the Minister makes a selection and you are told whom to empl°^ '
Mr. Lalonde : That is right.
Mr. Winch: How would a Minister know who is the right man, for instan®®’ 

on the live medium securities we are building across Canada right now?

wü1
Mr. Lalonde: Not being a minister, I would not know.
Mr. Tardif: I want to get back to your decision that your department 

have the administration in different districts, and I am wondering whet 
precautions have been taken so that all these different districts will not beco 
empires that have a tendency to grow constantly.

}

• (4.15 p.m.)
ai®Mr. Lalonde: We have at the moment 18 districts in Canada, and all we 

going to do is group them into regions. -oIJ
The reason for that is quite simple. Under the regional system of opera a 

we are going to be able to place men in charge of the region and give thei ^ 
great deal more authority than the 18 men across Canada would have ha t 
district directors. That stands to reason. This is the type of organization gt 
you find, I think, in any industry where certain people have certain author1 j 

head office. But their regional offices also have a great deal of authority to °P g 
ate in what I would call a more autonomous way than we have been oper
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Ufltil now because really all of our decisions above what I consider peanuts by 
today’s values—$5,000—have been made at head office. I think this takes a great 
deal more time and a great deal more correspondence. If we cannot trust a man 
t° be able to administer within a regional project, let us say, up to the value of 
*200,000, by today’s standards, then he should not be where he is. I think we 

* oave to trust these people, not to build an empire but to do a good job.
Mr. Winch: There will be amendments?
Mr. Lalonde: Oh, very definitely.
Mr. Winch: Could I ask a straight supplementary question? Are you 

^rePared, as Deputy Minister—because we have to put some onus of responsibili- 
y on you, sir, in answering questions—are you prepared to tell this committee 
.at there should be a change in either regulations or in legislation because of 
^creasing costs? That is, that in the allowable amount which shall be operated 
°n regionally—say, your own headquarter’s position and cabinet—there shall be 

ast increase in the allowable permission for the granting of contracts?
Mr. Lalonde: That is what I am requesting from the Treasury Board rightnow.

Q, Mr. Winch: Will you make that a little more detailed now for the 
aairman and this committee, because it is an important matter to us.

, Mr. Lalonde: At the moment the Deputy Minister’s authority is restricted 
any project up to $50,000.

Mr. Winch: What is the regional?
think^r‘ ^,AL0NDE: None. There is no region now. The district is about $5,000, I

-j, My recommendation—and this is perhaps somewhat revolutionary—is that 
®nsury Board give me up to $200,000.

Mr. Winch: Without going to Treasury Board?
j. Mr. Lalonde : Without going to Treasury Board. I am prepared to take the 

Ponsibihty for delegating the same amount to my regional directors, and I 
the' • resP°nsible for what they do. If they do not do well either they will lose 
njri°b or I will lose mine. I think that is the only way to operate a business 

size of ours.
Mr. Winch: Well, how do you operate now with your limitation of $50,000? 
Mr. Lalonde: Well—
Mr. Winch: Beyond that you have to go to Treasury Board?

ahd ^r' Lalonde : We do a great deal of paperwork that I feel we should not do 
ThevWe Use professional people in a way that I do not think we should use them.

y are letter-pushers in many cases, and that is not good.
Y0uMr. Winch: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman. As you know, this is very important. 
VUa^Ve said you use the professional men on paperwork because of this

°n. What would be the greater efficiency if you could have this—
bon. Member: Delays, for one thing.

bave^r" Lalonde: I cannot explain this to you without telling you what we 
ln ttbnd. Instead of working by branch, at head office and in the field, with
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a sort of compartment between each branch and a smaller component in each j 
district, what we propose to do is to put all our planning together for 
everything we plan. To this end, we have appointed an assistant deputy 
minister of program planning. His job is going to be to co-ordinate all of the 
planning done in all of the regions, and to liaise with the client departments at , ; 
head office to prepare something we discussed this morning, I believe—the long ^ 
range plans not only for our department but for other departments as well.

Once the program has been approved by the Treasury Board—by the 
executive I should say—and by Parliament, because it will be in our forecast 
when we submit our estimates each year—there will be a ten year forecast in 
there; at least five years to start with—once the program has been approved, the 
design of all projects will become the responsibility of another assistant call6" 
the assistant deputy minister of design. We will have all of the planning 
co-ordinated by one man, all of the design co-ordinated by another and then 
the operations including the construction will be under the senior assistant 
deputy minister of operations.

These are the three functional heads working with the deputy minister, an»
I am leaving aside the finance, the personnel and the administrative services.

The region will operate directly through the senior assistant deputy 
minister in charge of operations. There will only be one line of authority. Eac 
of the six regional directors will be personally responsible to Mr. Williams, an 
they will deal directly with each other.

Once a plan has been approved by the executive and by parliament, for ten 
years, this will go back through the senior assistant deputy minister to eac 
region and there, unless it is a special project such as the museum, or the P°^ 
office in Toronto—some of those huge projects—$25 million and over—unless it15 
one of those, we want the design to be done in the region.

I think this touches the very point you were making when you were talking 
about your medium security institution on the west coast. We would like to se t 
that designed and built under the supervision of people who live in that 
and know the special conditions. This applies even more to the marine wor 
program because those who design the marine works have got to be on the sp° '
It is pretty hard to design an engineering project from 2,000 miles away. Th 
is really the only basic change in the whole thing.

Mr. Winch: Where is your block; where is your blockage.
Mr. Lalonde: What blockage.
Mr. Winch: You have not got the authority, is that it?
Mr. Lalonde: Oh, no; we are in the process of getting it. There is 

blockage; it is just time now. We started the work on the implementation thr 
months ago, and we have to redesign a complete organization. This is what ^ )
Williams has been working on. But, you see, while Mr. Williams is working 
this, Mr. Jackson has to take on, in addition to his duties, Mr. Williams’ dub ’ 
and all of us together have to do double duty until we are set to go with 
new organization. This is the difficult part of it. ^ |

I know where we want to go and I think the Treasury Board will gjve ^ 
the authority but this sort of thing takes time. We could change this thing ^ 
short order if we could declare a moratorium on all public works for the ne 
six months. I would guarantee to have the thing going; but we cannot do that.
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Lalonde, this is a master reorganiza­
tion. Did you bring the civil service organization services in on it?

Mr. Lalonde: No; we hired an outside consultant. He worked with us for 
ten months.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : You hired an outside consultant?
Mr. Lalonde: That is right.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Was it a costly venture? Do you think it 

will pay off?
Mr. Lalonde: Well, if we do not do this we will be in such a strait jacket 

Wlthin the next five years that it is not going to be funny.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : What would be the fees for a consultant? 
Mr. Lalonde: I think it cost us about $175,000.
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, is this plan of the Public Works Department in 

Accordance, or nearly in accordance, with the recommendation made in the 
^lassco report?

Mr. Lalonde: That is in accordance with it, Mr. Tardif. That was the basis 
n which we started this development.

The Chairman: Well, I think we have strayed a little bit, but it has been 
ery educational and—

tL hon. Member: I think this would help us on June 23 with the figure

. The Chairman : It should provide better control and we may find fewer 
eRls in this book after we get this system working.

Mr. Lalonde: I do not want to give the impression that Treasury Board is 
£ot co-operating with us, because they have accepted positions and we have 

een running competitions, as you probably read in the papers, and we have 
eSun to appoint people to fill the new jobs. They are at work.

But when I say “they are at work”—I mean they are at work on the new 
Or6anization, not on the day-to-day operation.

An hon. Member: I was suggesting that Treasury Board is ham-stiung by 
eir own regulations and that Parliament can help them loosen up.

you h°n- Member: One final question: In other words, in the past has not 
“„ r dePartment been ham-strung, let us say, by too gosh damn much—I say 

damn”!—red tape which results in complete inefficiency and lack of

aii Mr. Lalonde: Well, we have had so much volume—and I do not claim to be
^thority because I have only been here three years—but we have had so

ch volume that I think we have spun some of that red tape ourselves in the 
process.

An hon. Member : There is no red tape in government administration.
Mr. Lalonde: Well, let us say there is tape.
^he Chairman: Now, No. 15.
Mr. Lalonde: I think I will let Mr. Mills answer that one, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Henderson: Number 15 is on the non-productive expenditures on page 
172 of the Auditor General’s Report.

15. Additional costs due primarily to construction delay, St. John’s, Nfld.—A 
contract for the construction of a post office building at St. John’s was entered 
into in 1957. Excavation for the basement revealed an underground spring. 1° 
order to overcome its hydrostatic pressure it was necessary to redesign the 
boiler room floor slab. Work on the project was halted for six weeks while the 
revised design was prepared, and the final payment to the contractor during the 
year under review included $18,724 for costs attributed to the delay.

Owing to the increased thickness of the hydrostatic floor slab referred to 
above, the contractor was ordered to increase the elevation of the first floor slab. 
After basement walls had been poured to the increased elevation, it became 
evident that the elevation created problems in suiting the entrances to street 
grades. When an analysis of the minimum height requirements of the boilers 
and ancillary equipment indicated that the equipment could be accommodated 
without increasing the ceiling height to compensate for the hydrostatic floor 
slab, the contractor was directed to reduce the ceiling height to that provided 
by the original design. An additional cost of $4,646 was incurred in connection 
with this reduction.

This is about how an underground spring, encountered in the excavation 
for a post office building in St. John’s, Newfoundland, made it necessary to 
redesign the boiler room floor slab and an additional cost of $18,724 resulted.

Additional costs of $4,646 were incurred when other innovations to the 
building were changed, but it was subsequently found that the change was no 
workable and actually not necessary.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, the other items, the non-productive payments 
up to this number, I quess they were looked after this morning were they?

Mr. A. K. Mills (Assistant Chief Architect, Department of Public Works)- 

Mr. Chairman, in respect of this job it should be borne in mind that this sit® 
was completely covered by buildings and it was impossible to get a grid of tes 
borings over the entire site, and therefore this spring was not discovered.

In addition to the spring, the survey indicated that a lane which adjoin^ 
the old post office, and which formed a part of this particular site, was t*1® 
property of the crown. In the preparation of the plan we envisaged changing 
the grade of this lane so that we could have more easy access to our loading 
platform.

It transpired that we did not have clear title to this; that there w®1® 
businesses who used this lane to take in goods through their back entrances, a0a 
we eventually were compelled to abandon our original idea. We could only d® 
very minor bit of grading, with the result that in addition to the redesign t 
hydrostatic pressure we had to redesign all the loading bays for the mail lob 
The time taken was required for the plans to be prepared and for the ®° 
tractor to price the variouse items.

The Chairman: Are there any questions on that?
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, all these appear to be about the same thing 

probably the same questions could be asked of every one of them. I am worn1 
about what happens to the people who are responsible for faulty specifica*1
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and drawings, or what happens to the people who are responsible for causing 
delay in construction? What happens to these people?

An hon. Member: And also that we did not have clear title?
Mr. Tardif: Yes. It is only an amateur who would build something on a 

Piece of land without first having the assurance that he had title. If an officer of 
the department is responsible for things like that what happens to him?

Mr. Mills: It was not an officer of the department. This was a survey 
Prepared by a firm of consultants, and it indicated that this property—crown 
°wned—if you had any experience in Newfoundland you would know that titles 
are extremely obscure anywhere in Newfoundland—

Mr. Winch: But the point there is, of course, that although it may be 
obscure, can we have an answer to why, irrespective of what the title situation 
15 in any province, the federal government should proceed with any work 
whatsoever until the title is cleared. That is the point which I think the 
Members would like to raise—why, until the title is cleared?

Mr. Mills: When we get a survey we assume that they have checked the 
needs, and that what they state in this survey and the accompanying documents 
ls Actual.

Mr. Winch: You have partly answered my question. You said, you assume, 
when the federal government is going to spend money on construction, or any 
lPd of work whatsoever, is it right that you should assume that the title is

beared?
Mr. Mills: We hire these people for their professional competence and we 

Pect that the answers given to us are factual.
Mr. Lalonde: Well, perhaps I can clarify this although I cannot justify this 

Particular one.
Since these experiences have occurred it is now our policy—sometimes it is 

ct too popular—that when we are not sure of the title we do not wait; we 
Propriate and check afterwards.

Mr. Winch: In the case of No. 15 the matter is now taken care of under the 
ew operation.

■Mr. Lalonde : Yes; but it does not resolve that problem.
The Chairman: This is another instance of hiring consultants who gave you 

suh+ng ^formation. The same as in number 14 you hired consultants about the 
an of the soil, and you got a bum steer from them, and now here is

oor consultant who gives you another bum steer.
r«f ^r" Lalonde: Yes, Mr. Chairman; but both these consultants that you are 

erring to got their full fee.
The Chairman: I understand they got their fee—they were paid.
■hfc- Mills: They get the fee whether they do the job well or not.

that^r' Lalonde: I have not got the wording of it in front of me, but I think 
Perf Unc*er the contract they are only responsible for negligence in the 
app°rrnaîice of their duties. To be good or bad does not entail paying for it

rently. You have to prove that there was negligence and this—
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Mr. Tardif: I was looking back, Mr. Chairman, on every one of these, but 
on Clause No. 3 I added a little note there the other day to the effect that the 
extra cost of $28,868 was due to faulty specifications and drawings. Was that 
done by somebody in our department, and, if it was done by somebody in our 
department, what action was taken by the department to see that these things 
do not recur? As a matter of fact, what has happened to this employee? I fully 
realize, Mr. Chairman, that you cannot run a department as large as the 
Department of Public Works without some mistakes, but these appear to repeat 
themselves often.

Mr. Henderson: If you pardon my saying so, Mr. Tardif, this happens to be 
a national defence item which we have not considered yet. We are just dealing 
with the public works ones.

Mr. Tardif : I will keep it in mind.
I did not get an answer, Mr. Chairman, to my question about what happens 

to these people who are responsible for causing construction delays in many ot 
these items in the list of unproductive payments.

Mr. Lalonde : I am not sure of what you mean, Mr. Tardif, what happens to 
whom? Do you mean that all of us should be fired?

Mr. Tardif : I would not say that all of you should be fired, because I do not 
think that anybody should think that the deputy minister is responsible f01’ 
every small accident that happens in his department, particularly a departmen 
as large as yours. But in many of these unproductive payments there are 8 
great many charges which are caused by delay in construction, where the 
specifications were reviewed or changed, and sombody must be responsible f°^ 
one of these projects? If the man responsible for one of these projects does tha 
often enough what happens to him?

Mr. Lalonde: I do not think, Mr. Tardif, that that is the way that we can 
operate, nor is it the way business can operate. Can you imagine what woul 
happen if a firm of lawyers were to fire all those who mishandle a case and l°se

Mr. Tardif: Yes; but I do not think this is a good example, because 
lawyers are paid for their mistakes. You do not have to worry about them. They 
get paid whether they lose or win.

The Chairman: Well, Mr. Bigg has a question, and then Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Bigg: I do not want to be the devil’s advocate, but it seems to me that 

with the thousands of cases in every category we are having here, is it n 
alarming that God interferes with the weather in one and somebody slips on 
plan in another?

Again, I will get back to my old theme, that I would just like to make su 
that the door is closed as often as possible on this in the future; that a note 
made, and that the department—and I know they do—puts a star alongside *6^ 
items and says, “This will not happen again in my department, and we will 
what we can.”

Mr. Lalonde: When you consider the thousands and thousands of contract^ 
that go on every year, and you consider the number that you have repor 
—some of which I do not agree are bad administration-—I think the percentag6 
rather small; and certainly I have seen business firms where it is much higher-
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Mr. Bigg: I do not want to detract from your statement, but do not forget 
that the Auditor General can only make a spot check—only a spot check, and out 
°f this we get 21 in your department; and this is only a spot check. This is the 
concern of this Committee—this only being a spot check. How prevalent would it 
he if a full check was made? Do you understand my statement there?

I am going to ask him now Mr. Chairman. How often would you say that a 
spot check is made on the Department of Public Works, on matters which you 
have now drawn to our attention.

Mr. Henderson: I did not quite get the first part of your question, sir.
Mr. Bigg: It is my understanding that on matters which we now have 

oefore us that you only make a spot check, or am I wrong?
Mr. Henderson: I would suggest that Mr. Smith speak to that because he is 

director in charge of the public works department.
Mr. D. A. Smith (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office): Because of the 

hhgation placed on the Auditor General to focus attention on instances of 
^on-productive expenditure items, and because items of this nature are more 

hely to occur in the Department of Public Works than elsewhere, we concen- 
lc<te, in our audit of that department, to a greater extent on this particular 
sature. Our examination goes beyond a spot check, in the usual meaning of the 

term..

this
I think it is safe to say that what we do report covers the major items of 
nature which would come up in the department from year to year.
Mr. Bigg: Are there many small items which we are not considering here, 

hich are below a thousand dollars, or something like that?
Mr. Smith: That is right, sir.
Mr. Henderson: We make a practice of putting in only the larger ones and 

offi ^scuss each of these paragraphs, as Mr. Lalonde knows, with him and his 
sers, as to the correctness of our information and discard a number of them 

« ere the point is perhaps a duplication, or the amount absorbed is not large, or 
re is some question as to whether in fact it is non-productive.

I You must bear in mind, as I said earlier, that we have no firm definition 
re0na this Committee of what “non-productive” means. I interpret it, and would 

Peat it again, as being instances where money is paid and no values received. 
r * would like to say that in considering the public works items you must 
fo Grnher that it is essentially a servicing department and that the root cause 

a number of these, as has already been brought out, does not rest with that 
j^Partment. They are dependent on the planning of other departments, and it is 

caqSe this point was brought out by you in your discussions in 1964 that in 
Poq report we have gone to some pains in reciting some of the larger 
^'Productive expenditures—and we will be coming to those paragraphs—to 
inCr y°u the circumstances leading up to them and what caused the large 
tiCu,eases or non-productive payments to be incurred. We have gone to par­
tly ar Pains to do it in the 1965 report, which we are coming to right after 

e 1964 non-productive items.
I tyjYn Winch: Mr. Chairman, this is not a question to the deputy minister, but 
In ® like to ask a question of you, sir, and perhaps even of Mr. Henderson: 

exv °f the information we have received, and in view of your statement



440 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS May 26, 1966

now, that the Department of Public Works basically is not responsible for the 
non-productive items which appear in your report under that heading, do you 
feel that consideration might be given, as an instruction, perhaps, from this 
Committee through the Chairman, in the next year to some method of reporting 
whereby we not only get, in our report from you as Auditor General, what we 
have now, but also an indication of where the ultimate responsibility lies? Or is 
that asking too much?

Mr. Henderson: If we could return to this point Mr. Winch after you have 
considered the cases that we bring forward on the 1965 report, all of us will be 
better informed on this, because I have done just that in showing what has 
caused them.

We do not have an appendix for the non-productive items in 1965, we just 
have a short listing under a paragraph. We have cut down on the number, and 
we have set down the story about the major ones in what I believe to be a 
fairer method.

I should like to know if the Committee agrees with that approach when 
they have discussed the 1965 one. That, I think, will answer your question.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Well, I do not want to take too much time 
of the Committee, Mr. Chairman, but Mr. Lalonde spoke of “confused” °r 
non-clear titles and he said that where these occur—in various areas of the 
country—it is the policy of the Department of Public Works to expropriate the 
property without waiting to clear the title. My question is: How could exprO' 
priation help in this regard?

Mr. Lalonde : In some cases it is the only way to get the title cleared 
because of some quirk in the registration of the property; and you get it cleared 
through expropriation.

An hon. Member: You usually find that where there is no will and so on 
you may have to wait three years for a cleared title in the normal process.

Mr. Lalonde: Perhaps Mr. Freeze might explain that to you.
Mr. D. Freeze (Director, Property and Building Management Branch’ 

Department of Public Works): The act of expropriation, in fact, does vest a 
interests in land in the expropriating party—in this case, the federal govern' 
ment—and it does extinguish all rights of everybody else in that particular piece 
of property as of the date of expropriation.

Those who had rights in the property then translate their right into a elm 
for compensation and are paid the value of their right. I hope I am making 
myself clear.

An hon. Member: Who decides what their right is? Is that done by ttie 
Courts?

Mr. Freeze: If it is not clear as between the legal officers of the crown aI1^ 
the expropriated party, or his representative, it goes to the Exchequer Court 
Canada and is cleared there.

An hon. Member: It is a device to force these matters into court.
Mr. Freeze: Well, it is a device to get the title into the hands of the crown- 

Yes; it is to save time—so that we can get on with our job. -s
I wonder if I might just say a word about that right of way, and t 

business of finding as time goes on rights of which we were not aware before.
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What we used to do in the department—and this has been corrected, as Mr. 
Lalonde explained—was to take parallel action, quite often, of selecting our 
Property, possibly expropriating it, and having the plans and specifications 
Prepared parallel to cleaning up the legal details of the site. This did get us into 
trouble in the past on occasion and I think that is the point you made. But that 
Particular procedure has been pushed back in some respect.

In many instances the rights are only discovered by a search of the title by 
lawyers appointed by the crown, who go to much greater lengths than could the 
real estate people of the department, or the dominion land surveyors who do 

survey, because the chain of title, in some cases, goes away back, particular­
ly in Newfoundland; I think it is well to remember that prior to 1949 they were 
n°t a part of the federal government, and some of the laws that applied there 
'Vere not the laws that apply now.

The Chairman: All right. We now come to No. 16.
Mr. Henderson: That was the completion of the work on the Sir Charles 

lupper building on Confederation Heights, which was delayed while considera- 
l0n was given to revised plans which ultimately were not used.
, An additional $22,960 was paid to the contractor as compensation for the 
delay.

* (4.45 p.m.)

Mr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, may I make a suggestion here? I have read 
rough these, and there is a lot of similarity in them. I would suggest that Mr. 

t>,Gn^erson Siye us, as he is doing, a very brief and succinct explanation and 
unless the members of the Committee ask for something further, we do 

rep necessarily need to call on the Department of Public Works for the 1964

Mr. Henderson: Shall I proceed and then you can raise the question?
Tardif: The same question applies to practically every one of these 
iVhat happens to the fellow who is responsible for this? He gets plans 
t are not even considered when it is all over.

tQ ^r- Lalonde : Nobody was responsible for this in Public Works. If you want 
i start asking that question I am going to have to give you the explanation 

ause there is a simple explanation in each case, 
p *n this particular instance, not only do I not consider this a non-productive 
this 6nt’ kut I consider that we saved a lot of money by doing what we did in 

case. I would ask Mr. Jackson to explain it, if you do not believe me.
^r- Tardif: I did not say that I did not believe you, sir.

5>0u ^he Chairman: Could you give us a brief explanation, Mr. Jackson, of how 
WejjSaved us some money. We are entitled to hear where you saved us some as 

as how you cost us some.
iiist ^r\ Jacks°n: Mr. Chairman, just to make it brief, I would like to give you 
AU(j a tittle bit of back history because it applies to two other cases that the 

T°r General has referred to in his 1965 report.
a committee of senior government officials was set up to develop 

plan, and this involved the establishment of a number of depart-is

. Mr. 
clauses. ^ 
madetha
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merits to be housed out at Confederation Heights. There was an indication, at 
that time, that the Department of Public Works would probably become the con­
struction agency for all of the government service. Therefore, when the 
planning was made as to the amount of space required for the department it 
took into consideration the fact that there would probably be construction 
branches from other departments coming to us, and the areas were developed 
on that basis.

In 1957, at about the time that the tenders were being called, there was 
some consideration being given—and had been given a year or two before that 
and continued into 1957—to provide better housing for the honourable members 
of the House of Commons, and this building in which we are now sitting was 
the building that was being considered. There were a number of government 
departments housed in this building. In order to move those departments, the 
Department of Public Works was asked to look at other locations for the various 
departments, and to re-examine their own requirements in the Sir Charles 
Tupper building for which the tenders had just been called.

We had, in the meantime, developed some better standards of accommoda­
tion than we had in the past, and, coupled with the desire to provide for one of 
the departments and a recognition that all of the construction business was not 
going to come to us, we re-examined the whole field and decided by shorten­
ing up or tightening up the amount of space that the departmental officials were 
going to be provided with, we could house the Department of Fisheries in tw° 
wings of the department.

The contract had been awarded. We had to work out the details with the 
Department of Fisheries as to the amount of space required. This created 
some delay, and about the time we moved in 1959 and the Department 
Fisheries moved in 1960, there were a number of changes that had to be made 
for the test kitchen for Fisheries, and a number of other requirements; this 
involved additional expenditure over and above the original contract but it als° 
involved some delay in working out the details.

This is the basis on which this additional amount was paid. The contracts 
originally asked for payment for seven months’ delay and we settled for five.

The Chairman: Number 17.
Mr. Henderson: In this case, consultants were employed to prepare plaIlS 

and specifications and to supervise construction of additions and alterations to a 
public building in Halifax. It transpired that the firm was not capable o 
designing mail handling equipment satisfactorily and another firm was engage° 
for the purpose.

The delay caused the building contract to be delayed and, in turn, 
additional cost of approximately $21,000 had to be paid to the buildin® 
contractor.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I have one question. If you look at the bottom 
of the page you will notice the words “—delay in completing plans for rna 
handling equipment—” et cetera, resulting in a payment of $21,000. The questio 
I would like to ask is this. In view of the fact that, according to what tn 
Auditor General had to say, this loss was incurred because of a certain facto ^ 
could I have an answer to why it was that in March of 1960 the departing 
requested certain people to handle a certain phase of work, but it was not un
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1?4 months later that the department said that they were not qualified. I 
Presume that it is because of the fact that it took 12 months for the department 
0 decide that certain consultants were not qualified that this payment had to be

made.
Why did it take you 12 months to find out that these consultants were not

Qualified?
Mr. Mills : In the first place, these consultants approached us to do the 

t^d-handling equipment, and said that they had had previous experience in 
tils type of work.

We investigated them and were not entirely satisfied that they were 
mpetent to do this particular job, but we finally agreed to let them produce a 
miminary scheme in order to prove their statements. I cannot say, at the 
°ment, how long it took them but I do know that it took quite a little while.

Mr. Winch: It took 12 months.
a Mr. Mills: No; excuse me. We then sent the thing over to the Post Office 

. they examined the thing and came back and said that it was not in any way 
'table to them. We sent the thing back to the consultants and they made 
rther changes, and this was also rejected. We then took steps to engage

anotber consultant to do the mail-handling order.

as
f'tuat:

Mr. Winch: I think you missed the purport of my question. We are faced, 
rePresentatives of the taxpayers on the Public Accounts Committee, with a

back
Was

ion whereby—I do not know what term to use—but back and forth and
and forth they go, and after 12 months they decide that the consultant firm 

not qualified. Because of a delay of 12 months then we are faced with this 
e*Penditure.
°r n Surely something is wrong where it requires 12 months to decide whether 

°t somebody can do a job.
ty: 'b'*1 e Chairman: Maybe I could ask a question supplementary to yours, Mr. 
Co cb? The Department of Public Works agreed that these consultants were not 

Patent in the first place, and then—
^r- Winch: And 12 months later they decided they were not qualified.

c0ll Chairman: Wait a minute. Then they weakened and took them on as 
b>eo tants- I would like to ask if outside pressure was brought to bear on the 
tkp„artrnent of Public Works that made them change their mind and take on 

6 c°nsultants.
bf-Pu^r ^ILLS: The only thing I can say in reply to that is that it was the 

y minister who requested that they be given an opportunity.
f°rtJahte Chairman: We cannot exactly blame the Department of Public Works

*SW
Mh'- Winch: Can I get this please. It was the deputy minister of what who

that they be given a chance?
^ Mills: Public Works.

'Winch: The Deputy Minister of Public Works requested that they be 
SUak^he opportunity although you knew, or thought, that they were not

a4287__4
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Mr. Mills: When we said that from what we knew of them— 
Mr. Winch:—that they were not qualified?
Mr. Mills: That is right.
Mr. Winch: And are you saying that after knowing, in your opinion, that 

they were not qualified, the Deputy Minister of Public Works asked for them to 
be given an opportunity, and it took you 12 months to decide they were n° 
qualified?

Mr. Mills: I do not know at what time the deputy said that we should let 
them try. I can check these dates and let you know later.

Mr. Winch: Therefore, you held up this matter for 12 months because the 
deputy minister said that although they were not qualified they should be giveIj 
an opportunity to try? Then you turn them down as not being qualified, and a 
the end of 12 months you get somebody else and now we have to pay for tlus 
expenditure? Is that what you are telling us?

Mr. Lalonde: I do not think that is quite right, Mr. Winch. I do not thie^ 
that is what Mr. Mills has said, I think that what Mr. Mills said was that at tb® 
beginning when the choice of the firm of consultants to do the mail handliu» 
equipment was considered, our people, or at least the people who were in tb 
Department of public Works at that time, had doubts about the ability of th 
firm because, as I understand it—and I am not going to say it is an absolu 
truth—

Mr. Winch: Were not qualified.
Mr. Lalonde: Let me finish—as I understand it there were very f®^ 

Canadian consultants with experience in engineering conveyor-belt systems i 
mailhandling equipment at that time. It is quite possible that when Mr. M1 
says that the deputy minister at that time said, “Well, we will give them { 
chance” that there were not very many people around whose capacity to do th 
was determined by previous experience. ^

The only way they could find out if these people really could do the J ^ 
was to let them try. It took a period of 12 months, during which two sets 
plans were submitted to the Post Office Department, to determine that bo 
plans were unsatisfactory to the client department. . e

You cannot infer that this was done in the face of the demonstration of 
complete inefficiency of the consultants and the decision of the deputy minlS t 
to use them in spite of the proven inability of the firm to do the job. It was11
proven at that time.

Mr. Winch: It did not take you 12 months to decide on the conveyor be 
for the post office at Vancouver, which is a fantastic belt system.

:lt

Mr. Lalonde: I did not get that. ^
Mr. Winch: It did not take you 12 months to decide who could handle ^ 

conveyor-belt system in the Vancouver Post Office which is a fantastic convey 
belt.

Mr. Lalonde: What year was that in?
Mr. Mills : In the case of the Vancouver Post Office we gave it t° ^ 

architects, and we were satisfied that the staff that they were employing ^ 
competent to do the job.
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Mr. Winch: Instead of waiting 12 months here, why did you not, get the 
same people on this job?

Mr. Mills : In the first place, I am not even sure that this man is in Canada 
n°w. He came out from England.

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, I think the answer is that the deputy minister 
mid them to hire these consultants that they were to be taken on strength.

Mr. Winch: But it took them 12 months to find out that they could not do 
ae job, and now we have to face this situation.

I am not going to carry this any further, sir, but I think you will agree that 
something is wrong when you give 12 months to a firm to find out whether or 
not they can do a job, and then at the end of 12 months you find they cannot do 
“e job, and the taxpayers of Canada have to stand an extra expense on the 

Seneral contractor. That is the point, sir, that I am trying to get at.

Mr. Bigg: Would it be fair to say that these plans were again going ahead 
Parallel and that you expected that you would get a proper answer in time to
Put m the conveyor belt after the building reached a certain level; and that
Perhaps we erred in trying to get a Canadian consultant to do it, with which I 
Roughly agree; and that it was one of those things that perhaps did not pan

Mr. Lalonde : A third dimension was thrown into this, Mr. Bigg, and I am 
Periencing it right now. This mail-handling equipment is changed in its 

. cuities approximately as often as they change facilities in X-ray equipment, 
ha \0t*ay’s standards. What was good a year ago is now obsolete, and it is pretty 

a to keep up to date with the very latest of equipment.
■Mr. Bigg: You are quite right.

<} ^r- Henderson: Number 18 deals with delays in the preparation of final
awings and layout for an experimental conveyor for the postal terminal at 

adrL- n’ which resulted in delays in the contract for the construction of 
ha ,1^°ns and alterations to the postal terminal and an additional cost of $9,931 

to be paid to the contractor as a result.
thi ^r' Tardif: I was wondering, Mr. Chairman, whether the people who sell 
he^,tyPe of equipment also have the specification for it, and, if they do, are they 

responsible if the specification is not correct?
y0u ^r- Mills: They have the specifications. This is a piece of equipment which 

buy juSt the same as you would go out and buy a certain type of 
Piobile. They do the engineering, the manufacturing and the installation.

^ay u,r" Tardif: Are they responsible for the delay, Mr. Chairman? Is there any 
hat we can hold them responsible for the extra cost?

^■r- Mills: We did not, in this case.
aPpl^r *^ARDIF: There is another clause, clause 20, to which the same thing 
ahd l6S‘ ^ *s a very similar type of clause, where a computer system was bought 
w* Was found that the cooling load for the equipment was not accurate. I 
of ^ lrnagine that the specification for a computer system is the responsibility 

j^J^aoufacturer of the computer system.
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If they are responsible for causing a delay, I was wondering if there was 
any way that the department could get the cost of the delay back from them.

Mr. Mills: I could speak on that later.
Mr. Henderson: Just before we come to that, we have number 19, a request , 

by the Post Office Department for a modification of plans to permit the f 
installation of a sawdust extractor in its laboratory and workshop building’ 
which resulted in delay to the contractor, for which additional compensation of 
$6,628 was paid to him.

If we can take number 20 along with that, it, as Mr. Tardif has said, relates 
to delays in the construction of the income tax computer centre in Ottawa 
which occurred because of a delay in obtaining accurate information, plans an“ 
equipment for the computer room and because of a decision to make provision 
for canteen facilities in the building. This resulted in the contractor being Pa*® 
an additional $6,166 to cover additional costs he had incurred due to the delay.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I note that so far today, in two sittings, 
ave covered nine of these so-called non-productive payments. I have juS 

counted them, and there are 34, which leaves us 18 more to do. If we are goi^ë 
to have to have another sitting anyway, I do not see too much point in delayin^ 
these gentlemen who usually end their day around 5 o’clock.

Mr. Winch: As far as I am concerned, I have questions on three of f^e 
remaining items.

Mr. Bigg: Perhaps we could clear them all now.
The Chairman: I am glad we have a sympathetic member on our Co#1 

mittee!
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I am willing to sit right here as long aS 

anybody else.
Mr. Tardif: I think your information is wrong, Mr. Chairman, if you thin^ 

they quit at 5 o’clock.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): There are eight more to do and we have 

done nine—
The Chairman: Would you be agreeable to the Committee and the othe 

officials if we adjourned at 5.30? Would that be reasonable, Mr. Lalonde?
Mr. Lalonde: That would be early for us, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Is that all right?
Mr. Henderson: There are 13 more. You are including some that are nflt 

this department.
Mr. Winch: Perhaps we could conclude this section? I have only t11■ ate 

which I would like to ask one question; if the other members would co-op 
I think, perhaps, we might be able to get through them all, Mr. Thomas?

Mr. Thomas: If we can cut it short.
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, I think Mr. Mills was ready to ansW ^ 

•questions that I put to him to the effect that they are more based 
principle than they are on the amount. If people who supply this y 
material to the department—

i

A
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The Chairman: The meeting will stop at 5.30 sharp.
Mr. Mills have you an answer for Mr. Tardif?
Mr. Mills: On the computer centre?
Mr. Tardif: Yes; the computer centre, or the other equipment that we 

“°ught that is in the same class.
Mr. Mills : As far as the computer centre is concerned, this was our first 

6xPerience with this type of equipment.
We called in the officials of the I.B.M., along with our consulting engineers, 

get the engineering factors for this equipment. They gave us a load of 30 tons 
refrigerant, and on the basis of this we designed the equipment.

Some time later, one of the other companies notified us that the load 
Pecified would be insufficient. We contacted the I.B.M. people again and they 

^ °te confirming that 30 tons would be sufficient for their equipment. We made 
0 change and we proceeded.

When Income Tax received the tenders, I.B.M. were low and they promptly 
°te in and said that this would be sufficient for the equipment only, but it 

°uld not take care of the body heat nor would it take care of the lighting. 
r .We had another meeting and we eventually ended up with 40 tons of 

rigerant and we put them in—
Mr. Tardif: The extra 10 tons to look after body heat and light?
Mr. Mills: Yes, this is what they said. We put in the 40 tons in order that 

e V/ould be protected.
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, there is, in addition, the cost of changing the 

iPment from a 30 ton capacity to a 40 ton capacity. Does anybody know how 
Uch that cost?

Mr. Mills: I do not have it available.
tg^Mr. Tardif: It is very easy for any company, including I.B.M., to be low
the erers on equipment if they do not give you the right specifications; and 

are not respons 
°nS specifications.

are not responsible for the additional cost incurred, having given you the

stip;
Mr. Mills: On the other hand, one of the other companies—whose name

Hist ^ niind at the moment—notified us previous to tenders being received, 
tons was not sufficient. This is what started us going back at I.B.M. to 

°ut if the information they had originally given us was sufficient.
lett ^r" Tardif: Would it not be logical, Mr. Chairman, that if I.B.M. sent a 
cau6r saying that this was the specification, and it was not correct, and this 
°the 3 delay’ that we should try to recoup the $6,000 from them—if for no 

reason than to give them a lesson?
the f^e Chairman: Mr. Tardif, you are absolutely right. I say that in view of 
of act that the I.B.M. people are getting a tremendous amount of business out 
cW e S°vernment in this day and age of computers, and I do not know why thé 
ïef,. 1 Wient would not hold their ground on this and protect the taxpayer and 

6 to pay it.

hie Mr
the Winch: Mr. Chairman, I am very glad to hear you say that because, to 

information that has just now been given is absolutely fantastic that all
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you receive from the I.B.M. is the actual weight of their own equipment and 
they do not include information to a department of the federal government that 
this is so, but you require the temperatures of the body and all that. I think this 
is an amazing disclosure that has just been made to us, and it is a matter which 
I know Mr. Chairman, you are going to take into account when we make a 
report.

Mr. Bigg: Could I suggest that perhaps our contracts be reviewed to see 
whether or not the small print could not be “blown up” into big print so tha 
these people know that if they tender on a government contract we will in fac 
hold them responsible for untoward expenditures due to lack of information, 
so that if they tender they know what they are facing.

The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, did your department recommend to Treasury 
Board that you pay this $6,166, and it has been paid to the computer people?

Mr. Lalonde : No, to the contractor. That is a different contract altogether
I am just thinking out loud now. I am not sure whether we have a legal

and
torecourse against a company which says in a letter “It will take you 30 tons 

then comes back and says. “Sorry, we made a mistake”. I would hate to have 
go to court to try to hold them to the damages, following receipt of that letter- 
However, I am quite willing to look into it again, subject to the legal opini°n 
which we will get.

Mr. Tardif: I do not have any legal experience either, but I think that if 
you enquire and say “Are you sure that 30 tons is sufficient?” And they confirm 
the fact that 30 tons is suffiicent, and then they say that an additional ten tons 
of capacity is necessary because there is going to be body heat—they should ask 
about. How many people are employed in a place like that, whether there are 
two or three people, and how many lights they have got?

Mr. Winch: That is a most important question.
Mr. Lalonde: This would be different if it were in a tender, and it the^ 

said, “We will provide you 40 tons of refrigerant” for so many dollars, and th 
came along and said, “No; for 40 tons it will cost you that much more”. T 
would be different. There I think we could hold them responsible. But wne 
they say in a letter, “It will take 30 tons”, and we accept their work, I am n 
sure that we can legally hold them to it.

Mr. Bigg: I think so. This is the way it strikes me.
Mr. Henderson: I must confess I have every sympathy with Mr. Lalond^ 

difficulty in trying to recoup this from computer manufacturers. We have 
come to the vote yet, but may I just mention in passing, No. 72 in the 1 
report. I do not suggest you bother to turn it up, but it has to do with electro^ 
data processing system abandoned. This was a project in Winnipeg where 
Unemployment Insurance Commission, with the idea of saving, I think, s° , 
thing like a hundred thousand dollars a year on its operation, lost two hun 
thousand dollars as a result of faulty planning on the installation of a comPu^g

We looked into this at some length. The failure of this equipment m 
Winnipeg case was due to faulty planning by the Commission and by 
manufacturer. We asked the question as to what recourse might be had 
the manufacturer, because of the substantial part played in its installation.
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After reviewing it with the Department—that is to say, the Unemployment 
wisurance Commission—very closely, my note indicates the importance of manu­
facturers being required to indicate in very precise terms the nature of their 
Guarantees, and the wording of the guarantees they offer against failure of their 
69uipment to meet specified performance.

V When we come to this note I am going to invite the Committee to support 
‘his and to express the hope that this can be exacted from the manufacturers 
who are responsible, in such large part, for the installation of this complicated 
etectronic data equipment.

It is a very technical field, as Members know. I think it would be of 
Material help to all departments of the Government if the committee were to 
famine this case in some detail.

That would probably be the reason why Mr. Lalonde and his associates 
^°uld have had difficulty in putting this bill at the doorstep of these firms.

Mr. Tardif : I wonder, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Lalonde can answer this: This 
®Tfipment of IBM is normally on rental. If IBM suggested that you put in a 
Mrty ton capacity cooling system and you put in a thirty ton capacity cooling 
Astern and the IBM equipment did not work, who then would be responsible?

Mr. Lalonde : Legally, I think, we would be, because we have taken their 
Uvice to put that amount in our specifications, and the contractor will hold us to 
Ur specifications.

Mr. Winch: Ah, but you had taken their advice on that, and their advice 
as wrong. They had not included certain aspects and you were not given the

formation.

j.L Mr. Lalonde: The only recourse that I think we would have is to say to 
em, “Well, alright, gentlemen the next time we require an electronic process- 
8 Machine we will by-pass you”. I think that is the only recourse we have.

p.. Mr. Tardif : I am not referring now to the six thousand dollars that was 
to the contractor, but I am referring to the rental that is being paid to 

V[. They recommended to you by letter that 30 ton capacity was what was
it for that equipment, and you installed it exactly the way they said; then 

°es not work because there is not a sufficient cooling system. Do you thenMill Pay the rental on that?
3q . Mr. Lalonde: It works for their machine, and that is their only interest. The 
staffls sufficient for the machine, but it does not take into account the rest of the

Mou !Mr. Winch: Who was responsible for the fact that it required 40 tons and 
1 Put in only 30 tons? Who is responsible for that?

Mr. Lalonde: I do not know.
Mr. Winch: You must know, sir. Was it your department? 

taken*1"" Lalonde: Partly; because we took advice which we should not have

tyas ^r- Bigg: Might I suggest that it is because this machine, on specification, 
Perfectly correctly advertised. Without people in the room and without
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light and so forth it would work allright. You did not ask them what it would 
do if there were fifty people circulating around, with body heat up to unusual 
heights.

Mr. Lalonde : Perhaps I could look at this again when I can read the 
transcript and follow it up, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Winch: Will you follow it up on the basis of the question I have ju5 
asked? If you set the base at 30 tons and you say that they are completely irj 
the clear, the Committee would like to know who is responsible for the fact tha 
you should have had 10 tons more?

Mr. Lalonde: I do not think I will be able to pin-point any individual °n 
that one.

Mr. Winch: Somebody must have been responsible.

The Chairman: I think we must proceed.
Mr. Tardif, you asked a question concerning the I.B.M. installation in 

letter that they supplied. Would you like to see that letter? I think I would 
to see it, if it is available. Would that be permissible, Mr. Lalonde? That is In 
letter from I.B.M., which set out the 30 ton proposition?

Mr. Tardif: That is a public document; it is not confidential.

The Chairman: It might help us when we come to the next section.

Mr. Lalonde: I will look in the file.

The Chairman: We will proceed while you are looking.

• (5.15 p.m.)
Mr. Henderson: Number 21; time allowed for the placing of boilers ^ 

operation in a heating plant in Montreal was unrealistic in this case 
resulted in another contractor who was constructing an addition to the heati 
plant, being delayed and incurring additional costs of $1,975 which were paid.

Number 22; this is a case where objections by a nearby property owner ^ 
the construction of a protection wall at St. Nicolas, P.Q., resulted in ^ 
temporary suspension of construction with the resulting additional cost 
$2,480 which had to be paid to the contractor.

Number 23; plans were underway in this case for the development oi 
townsite and the construction of various buildings at Frobisher in the Nor 
west Territories.

The first phase of development went ahead as planned but before 
second phase was commenced the United States government decided to v'rl 
draw its operations at Frobisher. q

Under the terms of the Canada-United States Agreement respecting ^ 0f 
operations, the United States facilities at Frobisher, which included a number 
buildings, became available to the government of Canada. As a consequence, } 
second phase of the development program was abandoned. Pay1116 ]( 
totalling $194,982 had, in the meantime, been paid to the consultants ^or a 
done on this phase by them and this amount must, therefore, be considered 
non-productive payment.
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Mr. Tardif : Mr. Chairman, in this case this would be a non-productive 
Payment that we were saving.

Mr. Winch: I have only one question and I would like to get it clear. I 
think it is clear, but I want to be sure. Do I understand that the rather heavy 
loss here on the second phase is wholly and solely because after having 
pranged to go ahead on two phases, it was not until after you had started the 
hrst phase that a change in United States policy resulted in the dropping of the 
second phase?

Mr. Lalonde: That is correct.
Mr. Winch: Therefore, there is no question on that. It was not until after 

y°u let that that a change in U.S. policy resulted in your having to drop the 
second phase?

Mr. Lalonde: That is right, Mr. Winch.
Mr. Henderson: Number 24; here a firm of architects was engaged to 

Prepare plans and specifications and to supervise construction of a postal 
terminal at Edmonton. This plan was subsequently abandoned in favour of the 
construction of an addition to the existing terminal building and certain 
derations to the existing building. The architects were paid $18,000 for services 
rendered in preparing plans and specifications which were not used.

d'tn ^r' Lalonde: Mr. Chairman, I think this is a classical example of the 
•nculty in defining what a non-productive payment is.

The background of this case is simply this: We had a building with some 
^ars °f service in Edmonton, and they needed to enlarge the postal terminal, 

e were not sure whether we should attempt to use the old building and tie a 
n§ to it and connect the whole thing—and again you must remember the 

“«ranical mail-handling processes—so we simply went to an architect and said, 
Qri alte a study of the two alternatives. Is it better to attempt to tie a new wing 
^ t° the old wing or to attempt to build a completely separate building in 
a lch all of the mechanical handling equipment will be included?” He produced 
y^eP0rt saying: “I do not recommend that you try to tie the new building on to 

old wing because the levels are not the same and it will not work.” As a 
J". °f that we secured authority to build a new building, another architect 
aired, who designed the new building and it is now being finished, 

ty ^his is exactly the same thing as when we have a model study on another 
begf of work; as, for instance, a harbour, in order to determine what is the 

aiethod of doing something. We received value for this.
^r- Tardif: That actually is the cost of a report.
^r' Lalonde: That is right.

yo^^e Chairman: The only question here is: Could your own department or 
the, °Wn architects not have given you that advice without spending $18

uusand?
Lalonde: No, I do not think that in Edmonton we were geared to do 

l°b in addition to all of the other work.
rpi

deSi ne Chairman: What about your staff here in Ottawa? Could they not have 
nec* this without going to an outside firm?
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Mr. Lalonde: No, not without working on the ground.
Perhaps when we have our regional setup, and we have the kind of design 

units we want to have in the region, this is the sort of thing they will be able to 
do.

The Chairman: You have your own architects in the department and your 
own engineers in the department...

Mr. Lalonde: We have a minimum of them in each district.
The Chairman: Why could you not send them out there from here?
Mr. Lalonde: Not to do a long range job like this. I think it is cheaper to 

hire a consultant than to pad up your establishment; because your establish­
ment is always built on a minimum number of people.

The Chairman: Well, all right. Will you go ahead with number 25, Mr- 
Henderson.

Mr. Henderson: In this case consultants were engaged to prepare plans for 
and supervise construction of a new postal station at Toronto. Two years later 
the department decided to defer further action indefinitely, and the consultants 
were paid $1,704 for services rendered in connection with plans which were no 
used.

Number 26; an expropriation of certain properties in Hull, P.Q., in 1952, 
subsequently abandoned. The owner of a substantial portion of the area claim6 
damages and was successful in a court action to the extent of $44,257, all but a 
very small amount of which must be regarded as a non-productive payment.

Mr. Winch: I would like to ask a question on this. I do so because I aIrt 
quite certain my memory is correct. I believe that upon two, if not three, 
occasions the Public Accounts Committee in the past were a bit concerned ab°u 
the expropriation of property by the federal government, which was not used- 
know it must be at least twice and I think maybe three times Mr. Henderson 
might remember—but we did discuss this problem. Here, again, we have t^6 
same problem.

It strikes me that something must be wrong when certain properties ar® 
expropriated—in this case it is in Hull—in 1952 because of planning decisions 0 
the government. In 1954, two years later, it is decided that certain expropriât!011 
should be abandoned. Then, ten years later, in 1962, one of the properties 1 
expropriated and then two years later it has been abandoned, and the ovyn 
takes Canada into the Exchequer Court et cetera, and we have to make 
payment.

The Chairman : Maybe they have an explanation for this. Mr. Freeze, c°u^ 
you answer this one?

Mr. D. Freeze (Director, Property and Building Management Branc > 
Department of Public Works): As a matter of fact the expropriation here w 
made in 1953, in anticipation of the completion of the Greber plan, °n 
advice of Mr. Greber at that time. It involved two things; we were looking f°r 
site for a federal building which subsequently was built on a portion of the 5 
and, also, the Greber aspect of it was for some road modifications in the vicinl 
of the site.
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Subsequently the traffic studies indicated the road modifications would not 
be required, and the additional property was then not required.

Checking with the planning consultants of the day, the Federal District 
Commission, they advised us that their plans had, therefore, changed, and the 
expropriation was abandoned.

Mr. Winch: That is my very point. This morning we had a long discussion 
about the agricultural building which, in the original planning was on the 
C-reber recommendation. The plans were changed three times.

Here we have something different based originally on the Greber report. If 
* have the information correct from our friend a moment ago, it was not until 
two years after they had expropriated that they made the study on the traffic 
Sltuation -—Two years after they had accepted the Greber report with regards 
'•his Hull property, and expropriated, a study is made on the traffic situation, 
^ith the result that in 1954, outside of one section, the expropriation is no 
longer an expropriation; and then, ten years later, the taxpayers, through the 
government, are sued.

It is not the fact that we are sued ten years later. I am coming back, Mr. 
Chairman, to our discussion this morning on this. On the Greber report you 
Expropriate, and two years later a study is made on the traffic situation and you 
decide that you should not proceed. This, Mr. Chairman, is just adding and 
adding to decisions being made without planning.

Mr. Tardif : Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, but was that traffic study the official 
Eoeral-provincial study that was made?

, Mr. Freeze: I cannot answer you, Mr. Tardif, I am sorry. It was not made 
y the Department of Public Works.

Mr.Winch: But it was two years after the expropriation.
Mr. Tardif : There was the study that was made for Ottawa and Hull and 

6 surrounding district. Was this a result of that study? I know that I was on 
6 City Council at that time, and that was decided quite fast.

Mr. Freeze: We are talking about 1952, 1953 and 1954.
Mr. Tardif: I think it was in 1954 that that study was started.
Mr. Freeze: Yes, it was about that time.

th r^r' Winch: I do not want to hold up the proceedings. Can I ask whether 
6 department of Public Works does the actual expropriation?

Mr. Freeze: We did at that time. We do not do it now.
Mr. Winch: Not now?
Mr. Freeze: No.

ye Mr. Winch: Can I ask then why you expropriate and it is not until two 
rs later that you have a traffic study?

pja Mr. Freeze: Bear in mind, Mr. Winch, we expropriated on the advice of the 
ner and as an agent of the government.
Mr. Winch: Who was the planner at that time?
Mr. Freeze: The planner was Mr. Greber, at that time.
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Mr. Bigg: Would it not have been more efficient to have expropriated and 
be done with it? It seems to me that this fellow would ever have got into this if 
we had not given him the land back. Perhaps if we had paid him a reasonable 
price for the land and been done with it, he would have been satisfied.

Mr. Freeze: I think it is fair to say that there was another factor involved 
here, although I am a little hesitant to say how much it conditioned the thinking 
of the day, but there was a fire on this piece of property. A good deal of the 
buildings were destroyed by fire. The expropriation occurred shortly after that. 
It could very well be that it was considered better to expropriate at that time a 
piece of property which was, according to the plan of that day, clearly needed, 
when the property would be cheaper, than to do so later. I am speculating! 
because I was not here and our records do not completely show this.

Mr. Tardif: If you expropriate a property, you have to have a reason.
Mr. Freeze: Yes.
Mr. Tardif: If the reason is nonexistant then your expropriation is not 

valid.
Mr. Freeze: Excuse me, Mr. Tardif. The reason was that, in the opinion of 

the planner of the day, there was a need for road modifications which later 
planners decided were not necessary.

Mr. Winch: Can I ask just one more question? You say you have changed 
the policy in your department now, but do you actually think that the operator 
of this hotel lost money in this location in Hull between 1952 and 1962 because 
officially he was being expropriated? Do you think he should be compensated?

Mr. Freeze: He proved it in court. The compensation was awarded by f^e 
court.

The Chairman: I think, gentlemen, we will stop at this point. We vdp 
meet Tuesday morning at 11 o’clock and conclude with the Department of Pubhc 
Works at that meeting.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Tuesday, May 31, 1966 
(14)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met this day at 11.13 a.m., 
he Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Bigg, Dionne, Flemming, 
endron, Hales, Lefebvre, Muir (Lisgar), Schreyer, Tardif, Thomas (Maison- 

Ueuve-Rosemont), Tucker, Winch (14).

Also present: Mr. Nielsen.
^ In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Messrs. 
Q°ng. Smith, Dixon and Laroche of the Auditor General’s staff; Mr. L. Lalonde, 
j ePuty Minister of Public Works; Messrs. Williams, Jackson, Langford, Richard, 
anSs, G. Millar, Stothart, Ryan, Clarke, H. Millar, Boyle, Cameron, Dumsday 

^ Sorokan of the Department of Public Works.
^ The Committee noted with favour that the Auditor General’s office has 

en accepted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario as a 
c°gnized agency for apprenticeship in accounting.

Members of the Committee were pleased also to hear of the honour bestowed 
Q£ °n Mr. A. B. Stokes, Audit Director, through his appointment to the Council 

^e Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario.
The Committee then proceeded with the examination of the balance of the 

Th 4 ^Uc^t°r General’s Report, as it affects the Department of Public Works. 
6 following items were covered:

Paragraph 27—Cost of unused office space, Halifax, N.S.
28— Cost of vacated Post Office space, North Edmonton, Alta.
29— Cost of delay in approval of structural plans, Kentville, N.S.
30— Cost of delay in demolition of building, St. John’s, Nfld.
31— Cost of terminating contract for construction of Post Office 

building, St. Isidore de Dorchester, Que.
34— Architect’s fee in respect of abandoned work, Montreal, 

Que.
35— Cost of unused plans for hospital alterations, London, Ont.

Uj Questioning of the Auditor General and Public Works representatives then 
u to the 1965 Auditor General’s Report. The items reviewed were:p
aragraph 112—Construction of headquarters building, Department of 

National Health and Welfare.
113—Cost of construction of the National Gallery.
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Paragraph 114—Cost of revised and abandoned plans for buildings in 
Ottawa.

115— Cost of abandoned plans for headquarters building, De­
partment of Transport.

116— Cost of modifying heating plant in new building, Toronto. 
At 12.58 p.m., the Chairman adjourned the meeting to 3.30 p.m. this same

day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(15)

The Committee resumed at 3.45 p.m., the Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, 
presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Ballard, Bigg, Gendron, Hales, Lefebvre, Noble. 
Winch.

In attendance: (Same as at morning sitting).
The questioning of the Auditor General and Public Works representatives 

resumed on the following items of the 1965 Auditor General’s Report:
Paragraph 117—Relationship of site cost to building cost, Woodstock, Ont- 

” 118—Cost of little-used railway spur line, Pointe-au-Père, Que'
” 119—Failure to provide for subsidy review.

120— Cost of activating water supply system, Churchill, Man-
121— Additional costs due to inaccurate specifications.

” 122—Continuing federal assistance to intra-provincial fer“
services.

” 123—Contribution due for ice control structure, Montreal.
” 142—Non-productive payments:

(8) Additional cost due to delay in awarding contrac . 
Banff-Jasper Highway.

(9) Additional costs due to construction delay, Point®' 
au-Père, Que.

(10) Additional cost due to construction delay, Claren'
ville, Nfld. . ,

(11) Cost of remedial work during construction peri0 ’ 
Ottawa.

(12) Additional cost due to construction delay, Calgar^’ 
Alta.

(13) Cost resulting from discrepancy in specification5’ 
Matapedia, Que.

(14) Additional cost due to construction delay, Ottawa-
(15) Court award to architect in respect of abandon® 

work, St. John’s, Nfld.
The Deputy Minister of Public Works undertook to provide replies 

letter to outstanding questions raised during the meetings of May 26 and tb1 
day.

At 5.30 p.m., the Chairman adjourned the meeting to the call of the Cha1

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.
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* (11.02 a.m.)
The Chairman: Gentlemen, I see a quorum.
I have one or two announcements before we proceed. I hope that we will be 

Me to finish this morning with the Department of Public Works’ witnesses, but, 
not, we will have to continue this afternoon at 3.30. On Thursday we will 

ave the Department of National Revenue for Customs and Excise witnesses 
ere, and you will receive in due time a list of the paragraphs we will be 
lscussing with that department.

Mr. Henderson, our Auditor General, has an interesting announcement 
nich he would like to make.

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General): Mr. Chairman, on various occa- 
l ns> and as recently as April 5, when we were discussing my staff problems, I 
ave referred to the recognition, two years ago, of my Office by the Institute of 

^ artered Accountants of Quebec and to the fact that the Institute of Chartered 
y Countants of Ontario has had such recognition under consideration for some 
yQ e’ because it involved a bylaw change by that Institute. I am happy to tell 
HpU ^at, at their annual meeting yesterday, the membership agreed to the 
forCeSSary change in their bylaw. The Office of the Auditor General of Canada 
the ^st time is now recognized as the office of a practising member, with 
^Privilege of employing students on the staff as article clerks working toward 

lr degree through a full apprenticeship period, 
jjj * need hardly tell you that this is very much welcome by my Office, and 
that°k*Cers and I shall be doing our very best to discharge the responsibility 
thi aas been placed upon us. I thought you would like to know this, because

Matter has been outstanding for quite some time.
Me }• a*S0 bave another happy announcement to make arising out of that 
ej6e Mg, and that is that, for the first time, the members in their balloting 
bist'frï one tbe directors of my Office as a member of the council of the 
fiUrnh 6 Chartered Accountants of Ontario. He is Mr. Arthur B. Stokes. A 
’Tly ,er °f you know Mr. Stokes who has accompanied me to these meetings.

ls also, I feel, a compliment to our Office.
The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Henderson.

elect^r' Ballard: I would like to offer congratulations to Mr. Stokes on his 
also t°n *° lbe council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, and 
Mact ° .COn§ratulate the Ontario Institute for recognizing the Auditor General as

jlsMg chartered accountant.
the 6 ^Sht tell you that in Alberta, the Alberta provincial institute recognizes 
*u r°vincial auditor as a practising accountant, and also allows the provincial 
real to engage the services of and to train, students within his office. This is a 

lsteP forward.

457
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Mr. Baldwin: I would like to add my congratulations to those of 
Mr. Ballard, and, as a postscript, to hope that some day the government will giye 
as much recognition to our recommendations as the institute has to Mr- 
Henderson’s staff!

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I am sure the Committee is very happy with 
this recognition that has been shown to both parties.

We will commence with item No. 27 on page 175—Cost of unused office 
space, Halifax, Nova Scotia.

27. cost of unused office space, Halifax, n.s.—The Department of 
Public Works entered into a lease for a term of three years, effective 
October 1, 1961, to provide accommodation for the Department 0 
Finance at Halifax. In December 1962 the premises were vacated as ® 
result of a consolidation of services in another building. Althoug 
immediate steps were taken towards a cancellation of the lease, it wa 
not terminated until September 30, 1963, when the lessor accepted $4,5® 
in full and final settlement. This amount, together with the rent of $7,2' 
paid for the period prior to that date during which the premises wer 
unoccupied, resulted in a total payment of $11,863 in respect of th 
unused accommodation.

• (11.15 a.m.)
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, we have, as you know, seven items 

non-productive expenditure remaining in the 1964 report which you have, & 
at the last meeting, when we adjourned, I was giving you a brief rundown 
the contents of each. With your permission, I will open up along the same Hne 
with respect to item 27.

This as you see, has to do with office space in Halifax, which was unde^ 
lease to the department. It was vacant for some time and the lease W' ^ 
eventually terminated at a cost of $4,592. This amount, together with the re , 
paid of $7,271 during the time the space was vacant, resulted in a to 
non-productive payment of $11,863.

The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, would you like to comment?
Mr. Lucien Lalonde (Deputy Minister, Department of Public Works) 

Freeze will supply that information.
Mr. D. A. Freeze (Director, Property and Management Branch, Departme 

of Public Works): The facts are as stated. The lease was arranged for space 
the Department of Finance in 1961 on a three year lease. In July, 1962, 
Department of Finance advised the department that they had taken the decis 
to consolidate their various offices in Halifax in one location. This resulted ^ 
consolidation in a federal government building and the vacating of numb61 
artillery place which is the premise in question. ,

k, 1 
theWe were unsuccessful in arranging a sublet. We advertised; we took,

1 ; W- 

id

think, every step that was possible; but it was not until very close to 
termination of the lease that we were successful in arranging a quit lease.

I think it is interesting to note that we brought this to the attention ofe 
Department of Finance at the very beginnning. They assured us at that 
that there would be substantial savings in staff, and subsequently, aftei^
lease had been terminated, by correspondence they indicated that they had,
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fact, saved some $34,292 in salaries during the period that the premises were 
vacant.

Meanwhile, we had brought into more productive use some 2,500 square 
feet of space in the federal building which had a value, and we felt that all told 
there were savings accrued by this of probably $45,000 more or less.

The net saving would therefore have been, something in the range of 
$32,000, Mr. Chairman, although it is undeniable that there was a loss of $11,863 
Wlth respect to the vacated premises.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, was that saving that is referred to by Mr. 
freeze a saving caused by not employing additional staff, or by transferring 
staff that they already had to other departments?

Mr. Freeze: I will have to look up the letter. The letter from the 
Comptroller of the Treasury reads, in part, as follows:

As a direct result of this integration ( 1 ) position T.O. grade 1 yearly 
salary $7,140 becomes surplus to requirement and the incumbent was 
later transferred to another office.

(2) The enlarged regional office did absorb additional work without 
additional staff being supplied. While it is difficult to assess the exact 
number of additional staff which would have been required had these 
two treasury units not been integrated, it is estimated that at least three 
employees would have been involved at a yearly recurring cost of some 
$12,000.

Mr. Tardif: They actually saved money by not hiring people whom they 
Vmuld otherwise have hired?

or

Mr. Freeze: That seems to be it.
Mr. Tardif: It is probably a very satisfactory explanation, but it is not one 

at sits well with me.
The Chairman: Mr. Muir is next, then Mr. Flemming and Mr. Winch.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Were these premises rented from a private individual 

lust another department of government?
Mr. Freeze: They were rented from a private individual.
Mr. Flemming: Were these savings contingent on keeping this unused 

Pace? i can appreciate that there has been a saving, but I do not understand 
it was contingent with keeping this unused space in another building? Was 

^ere any connection between the two? Would we not have had the saving even 
°ugh steps had been taken to do something about the unused space?

Mr. Freeze: I think that the position of the Comptroller of the Treasury is 
the integration of his staffs from three locations into one allowed him to

savings.
that
eflu . " “*^6 ffectthe staff
p Mr. Winch: Is it possible for us to have any information on what the
j lem was which created the situation that it took two years to obtain a quit
tease?
for ^r" Freeze: Mr. Chairman, I can only say that a tenant did not come 

ard, who was satisfactory—in fact, no tenant at all came forward. We did
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advertise the space; we made it available; we were not trying to keep it out of 
use; we were trying to get it back into use. No one came forward—

Mr. Winch: That is not quite my question, Mr. Chairman. You may have 
advertised it, but why did you take two years trying to get a tenant? When y°u 
first knew that you were not going to require this, and since you had signed a 
three year lease, why did you not arrange a quit lease for a period of two 
years?

Mr. Freeze: The owner of the premises was not prepared to grant a qu^ 
lease until he saw the prospect of another tenant.

Mr. Tardif: I am a little surprised, Mr. Chairman, that the person 
responsible for the integrating of this staff thought of it only after this lease ha 
been signed.

In the report, where they talk of a saving of $32,000, they do not enter the 
cost of the space that was used in putting the three departments under one root, 
for instance. They left 2,500 feet here, therefore they must have taken 2,500 fee 
in another building. They should add the cost of the 2,500 feet that they rented 
in the new building. That does not make a saving of $32,000 because they 
certainly did not get that for nothing.

I would like to know the cost of the 2,500 feet that were taken in a new 
building in place of the lease they already had?

Mr. Freeze: Mr. Tardif, they were integrated, or brought together, in one of 
the federal buildings in Halifax.

One of the branches of the Department of Finance was in the Ralston 
building. This particular group was brought to the Ralston building and 
were able to make space available to them by some compression of other 
tenants in the building. There was no additional space taken outside of ti16 
federal government resources.

Mr. Tardif: All these employees that were there took some space in t*16 
Ralston building, did they not?

Mr. Freeze: That is right.
Mr. Tardif : There must be a value for the square footage that is used 1 

the Ralston building—$3 a foot, $4 a foot, or how much? When you say there wa 
a saving of $32,000 you do not consider the cost of having this staff located 1 
the Ralston building?

Mr. Freeze: Mr. Chairman, I have the exact amount of space that 
occupied in the Ralston building. I could provide you with the exact amou 
and the value that we hold that space at, or the cost of it to us, and giye 
complete analysis of that kind. Regrettably, I have not the information with me-

Mr. Baldwin: What was the monthly rent, Mr. Freeze, in the building 1 
respect of which there was a vacancy.

Mr. Freeze: I do not have the monthly rate calculated. The annual rent ^aS 
$9,184.50 for 2,355 square feet of space at 3 Artillery Place in Halifax.

Mr. Baldwin: That would be approximately $2 per foot.
Mr. Freeze: It is $3.40 a foot.
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Mr. Baldwin: When was it that the people in Treasury first let you know 
^at it was their intention to arrange this consolidation. Could you tell me that?

Mr. Freeze: Yes; on July 11, 1962.
Mr. Baldwin: On July 11, 1962; and at that time did you make known to 

them, as I assume you would, that there was still this unexpired portion of this 
lease.

Mr. Freeze: Yes.
Mr. Baldwin: They knew that. You advised them; but despite your advice 

they persisted in demanding that there be this integration. Of course, you being 
the rental agents—I suppose this is what you are, in effect—it was your job to 
S!Ve effect to their wishes.

Mr. Freeze: Yes; I think that is a fair statement.
Mr. Baldwin: In the face of the knowledge that there was this vacant space 

inning at a $9,000 per annum rent, the Treasury people said that they wanted 
. s consolidation, and you were compelled to make the best you could out of it; 
ls that correct?

Mr. Freeze: Yes.
. The Chairman: I have two observations to make here. In view of the fact 
hat the Department of Public Works are the rental agents, did you put it in the 
atids of a real estate person to rent it for you?

lik Mr. Freeze: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman; my memory says yes, but I would 
e to check our records and I do not have them with me.

The Chairman: The second question I have is: You gave us certain figures 
there about the savings. They do not appear in this item that the Auditor 
General puts before us. Perhaps I should direct this to the Auditor General—I do 
n°t know—but it would appear that the Committee has not got the full picture 
ln the Auditor General’s report under item 27. You say there was a saving, but 
V/e do not read it that way here.

Mr. Henderson: The reason you do not find any reference to that in my 
?°te, Mr. Chairman, is because I did not know of these circumstances. I was not 
>^hished with a copy of the letter that went to the Department of Public 
, 0rks from the Comptroller of the Treasury. If I had been, I should have been 
!ery happy to have looked into it and in that way to have been able to furnish 

with more information.
Sa-, hlr. Freeze: Mr. Chairman, in support of what the Auditor General has 
dat better from the Comptroller of the Treasury, to which I referred, is 

April, 1965 and, we did not obtain this letter until after the fact. Although 
0j. 6 Were conversations prior to the fact we did not obtain the confirmation 

Until after the fact.
A,pr ^r- Henderson: Even if I had been furnished with a copy of the letter in 
the ’ 1965, I would have been very happy, Mr. Chairman, to have investigated 
j)0s and to have placed them in a better perspective had that proved 

le following that examination.
that ^r' Tardif: That letter, Mr. Chairman, was an answer in 1965 to an inquiry 

1 was made in 1962?
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• (11.30 a.m.)
Mr. Freeze: No; the item came to our attention through the Auditor 

General’s observations in 1965, and we then went to the Department of Finance 
and asked them for confirmation of the savings that they had told us would 
occur, which they gave us.

Mr. Winch: This is most unusual, to get a letter in 1965—
The Chairman: Just a moment. Mr. Tardif wants to follow up—
Mr. Tardif: I wish to ask a supplementary question, Mr. Chairman. In the 

report you say that this happened in 1961 in the original lease, and then the) 
decided to consolidate their departments in 1962, and no inquiry was made 
about the saving, or the conditions, until 1965, or do you mean that no rep V 
was available to you until 1965?

Mr. Freeze: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman; I thought I had indicated earlier 
that we had made a verbal inquiry of the Department of Finance at that time- 
pointing out to them that there would be a loss unless we were able to subie 
the premises. But we had not correspondence with them at that time.

Mr. Tardif: This was all done verbally?
Mr. Freeze: In 1962, yes.
The Chairman: It was done verbally? Would it not be customary to have a 

letter on a thing like this.
Mr. Freeze: I can assure you, Mr. Chairman, it will be customary, and ^ 

has been for the last couple of years, but it was not at that time. I cann° 
explain this.

Mr. Baldwin: When would your report for the year ending March 31, 
come out and be published?

Mr. Henderson: It would be completed by December 31, 1964, so that thj 
paragraph would have been shown to, and discussed with, the officials of t1 
Department of Public Works in October-November, 1964.

Mr. Baldwin: Going a step beyond that, Mr. Henderson, it would actual 
be published, or the information would come to the attention of the Departm6 
of Finance, sometime in January.

Mr. Henderson: In January, 1965; and they doubtless picked it up ^ 
reading my report and decided to write a letter to Mr. Freeze. I am only s°r 
they did not give me a copy.

Mr. Baldwin: You finished the thought that I had there. It was only 
this report was published that the Department of Finance decided that it 11 
better write a letter in connection with it?

Mr. Henderson: That would seem to be the assumption, Mr. Baldwin.
Mr. Bigg: I think my question has been pretty well answered. I was try 

to stop the leak again.
It appears that this matter has been taken into account now. I did not ^ g 

a recurrence of this sort of thing. There should be better liaison between 
different departments and they should not rely on verbal conversations on ^ 
phone. Perhaps a memo on the rental file might have done a lot more good a 
sooner.
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Mr. Henderson: Indeed.
The Chairman: Are there any further comments? I think it has been 

discussed pretty thoroughly.
Mr. Tardif: This has nothing to do with this, but I wondered, Mr. 

Chairman, whether, in the future, if a department is eventually going to 
consolidate its employees under one roof, they should not plan ahead of time so 
'•hat a thing like this would not reoccur?

There was a very short period of the lease when the building was occupied 
by the department, and then they decided they did not want it any longer and 
they were going to consolidate under one roof. Where they say that it is a 
saving, actually if you go into a federal building it is no saving per square foot, 
because the taxpayers of Canada pay for that anyhow. It is probably more 
costly, as a matter of fact.

The Chairman: You are going to advise the Committee whether or not you 
Put h in the hands of a real estate agent?

Mr. Freeze: Mr. Chairman, you may recall that I said it was undeniable 
hat there had been a loss in rent.

Mr. Tardif: There is that, Mr. Chairman, and the cost per foot in the 
Mston building, and how many square feet were occupied by that section of 
e department that moved from this location to the Ralston building.

The Chairman: We will now move to No. 28.
28. Cost of vacated post office space, North Edmonton, Alta.—The 

Department of Public Works leased space in a building at North Ed­
monton for the use of the Post Office Department for a ten-year term 
commencing June 1, 1954 at the rate of $2,200 per annum. The premises 
Were vacated on January 15, 1962. Because the amount requested by the 
lessor to terminate the lease at the time would have represented little 
saving over continuing to pay rent to the completion of the term, the 
Department elected to attempt to sub-let the space. Its efforts were 
unsuccessful until February 1, 1964, when an offer of $50 per month was 
received and accepted. Payment of rent to January 31, 1964 and a quit 
lease payment of $467 for the final four months of the term resulted in a 
total of $4,959 being paid for the period during which the space was not 
occupied by the Crown.

jq Mr. Henderson: No. 28 shows how space in Edmonton, leased for a term of 
years, was vacated with about 2 years still to go on the lease. The property 
a sublet for a short period at considerably less than half the rent payable 

t er the lease, and subsequently there was a payment of $467 to the owner for 
tiv lriati°n °f the lease before expiry date. This brought the total non-produc- 

e Payment to $4,959.
Mr

biove? • Tardif: Mr. Chairman, may I ask how much saving was effected by this

0j> •Mr- Freeze: The Post Office Department informed us that they had savings 
approximately $2,316.1 am sorry, but I do not have that information.

(j6p ^r- Winch: Mr. Chairman, in view of the fact that for 2J years the 
brtment sublet at half the rental for which they had signed a lease, does this
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not indicate that the department was paying twice the rental which was 
required? How, otherwise, do you explain the fact that the only way that y»u 
can get a tenant is to sublet at half the price that you signed to pay yourself? 1° 
other words, were we not paying twice what we should have been paying on 
rental? I think that is a logical question.

Mr. Freeze: Yes. I think the question is a very good one. Certainly at the 
time that we tried to sublet, which was some 8 years after the original lease 
was signed, it was the situation.

Mr. Winch: Well, may I just point out, sir, in order to elaborate a little, 
that, if my knowledge of real estate is correct, a rental rate 8£ years after n 
lease is signed is very much higher than it was 8£ years before. Therefore o$ 
years later, when rentals are up two and three times higher, how is it that yoU 
have to sublet at half the price? It just does not make sense to me.

Mr. Freeze: The situation that was occurring in Edmonton at that time—I d° 
not know if you are familiar with this—but the location of the postal station on 
Fort Road and 63rd Street is about 2J miles northwest of the location where 
the post office required their new postal station “C”. During the period 1954 to 
1960, there was very rapid development in Edmonton, as there was in m°s 
cities across the country, and a great deal of that development occurred abou 
2£- miles closer to the centre of the city. It left the area just around old Nor 
Edmonton a rather depressed section of the city during that period. It complet6' 
ly changed its complexion, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Could I ask if you rented this through a real estate ageu* 
or, did you rent it yourself?

Mr. Freeze: We took both actions. We advertised in the newspapers and ^6 
displayed “for rent” signs. There were other vacant stores right in the vicim j 
that had also moved away, and it was as a result of our sign in the window tha 
we finally got a tenant.

The Chairman: You rented it yourself.
Mr. Tardif: Before we drop that, Mr. Chairman, I wonder if the Auditor 

General, in the process of checking these things, found one place where ^ 
cancelled a lease and we ended up by losing money? In all the previous ones w 
have made a saving. I wonder if he found one where we actually lost money-

Mr. Henderson: I would like to ask Mr. Freeze if he received a letter lP 
this case from the Post Office Department, setting out the savings.

Mr. Freeze: Yes, we did. We brought to the attention of the Post Offi6® 
Department that there would be some loss of use of the premises for which 
would be paying. We were concerned with the fact that it would be difficult 
rent. We asked them to consider whether they might not operate a sp ^ 
operation; that is, have a portion of their postal station in the new location , 
a portion in the other. They wrote back in February, 1961, and if I may re 
from their letter they said, in part:

I must point out that a split operation would be undesirable froiu 
postal service standpoint and that it would be entirely unsatisfactory 1 
involves the use of the North Edmonton post office building. A SP 
operation would offer the following disadvantages ( 1 ) Increased c° ^ 
would result from the transportation of mail the additional distance
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North Edmonton post office and this would amount to $1,158.30 per 
annum. The additional transportation time required would necessitate an 
earlier closing of the mails—

This is quite a long paragraph and I can read it all, Mr. Chairman, but it 
anally devolves that there would be some delay in delivery of the mail.

The third item is:
There would be considerable difficulty in maintaining adequate 

supervision of the split operation and this would result in the need for 
additional supervisory staff which would be a costly item; and (4) the 
North Edmonton post office is located in the northern portion of the letter 
carrier delivery area—

This is confirmation to some extent of my previous statement that the 
cleVelopment of the city in that area took place in the south end and west of this.

Most of the carriers stationed there would be required to travel 
considerably further to their walks and this would result in a need to 
change the layout of some walks with a possibility of additional cost—

The Chairman: Is there anything further? No. 29 is next.
29. COST OF DELAY IN APPROVAL OF STRUCTURAL PLANS, KENTVILLE, N.S. 

■—In September, 1961, the Department of Public Works awarded a con­
tract for the construction of a federal building at Kentville which was 
accepted by the Department in October 1962. During the year under 
review the structural steel subcontractor was paid $8,498 as compensa­
tion for a construction delay caused by late approval of shop drawings 
relating to an element of the steel work. Although the Department felt 
that the situation had stemmed from an error in judgment on the part of 
the consultant architect, no assessment was made against him because of 
his otherwise satisfactory performance.

Mr. Henderson: This deals with the payment of $8,498 made to a structural 
^ subcontractor in connection with the construction of a federal building 

^-entville, Nova Scotia. This was in compensation for construction delay 
sed by late approval of shop drawings.
As you will see, although the department felt the situation had stemmed 

tQ0ln an error in judgment by the consulting architect, no attempt was made 
rec°ver any portion of this payment from him. 

a Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, this is not a question. I am rather surprised— 
this often happens—that an architect who is paid a recognized tariff fee 

a *es an error in judgment that costs the taxpayers of Canada a considerable 
jj- °Unt of money in some cases, and he gets paid and no action is taken against 

because the rest of his performance was satisfactory.
^he Chairman: Is there no clause written into agreements with architects, 

Cerning these errors?
p , ^r- G. B. Williams (Senior Assistant Deputy Minister, Department oj 
» lc Works) : There is not a clause of recovery in that context. You have 
to „°fessional contract with an architect, or a engineer, which requires him

advi;se you and prepare plans and specifications to the best of his ability.
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In this particular case, the architect was not negligent; if anything, he was 
a little over-enthusiastic, because he did his best to avoid what he felt would be 
a problem in the construction of the building by co-ordinating the stone work 
details and the steel details. This was his job, but in so doing he kept revising 
the steel details and sending them back to the subcontractor to try and match 
up with stone details he was getting at the same time.

He was not negligent in our view—which he does not agree with, of 
course—he would have been better to have gone ahead and approved the steel 
details so there would have been no delay in the shipping and erection and the 
stone man would have had to make his fit, which would have been a problem of 
the general contractor. The architect was not negligent. He did the best he 
could. He lived up to the performance of his contract. He designed a very good 
building which has been accepted by the clients.

The total amount of extras involved in the building were about li Per 
cent which is a reasonable figure and there was no basis on which the 
department could go back for a recovery.

Mr. Tardif: You had to go by something that was not according to the sets 
of sketches.

Mr. Williams: The consultant did.
Mr. Tardif : Perhaps I did not read this properly.
Mr. Williams : The contractor got the payment, sir.
Mr. Tardif : Yes, but it was the fault of the consultant, who sent the 

drawings back, and yet no assessment was made against him because the rest o 
his job was very satisfactory.

Mr. Williams: Yes; there was no basis on which we could recover from the 
consultant. He had not in any way been negligent.

Mr. Tardif : Mr. Chairman, I know of a firm of consultants who made 
error in a sewage treatment plant that cost $100,000 and they paid for it. Tha 
was not done by the federal government. It was done by another agency.

The Chairman: Your point, Mr. Tardif, is that the consulting architect 
should have paid the $8,498?

Mr. Tardif: If he was responsible for the mistake, yes, I would say so.
Mr. Bigg: I am not satisfied from what I read that the architect 

responsible for any mistake. Perhaps it was inexperience on the part of 
contractor in co-ordinating the architect’s plans with the stone on the ste 
work, and I do not think that the individual draftsman or architect is necessar1

ly at fault.
As someone said he was probably over-anxious to make a good job of 

building and held up the work rather than have a bad job done. No one cou 
construe this as negligence.

The Chairman: I think the department and you agree on that point.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I was just wondering if the consulting architect 

not responsible for the design of the steel and the stone so they would 
together. What was his job?

W3S
get
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Mr. Williams: The consulting architect is responsible for the design. The 
^tailing that is done has to be provided, in many cases, by the sub-contractor, 

ecause the detailing will be dependent on the type of windows he is supplying, 
U within the specifications, but they are not all identical; and when the 

contractor receives from his subs their proposals for such things as windows, 
j °ne finish and this sort of thing, they provide the details to match the 

ructural design and the general design provided by the consultant. He has to 
Pprove these as being compatible and satisfactory with his design.

. In this particular case, the submissions from the steel subcontractor were, 
J1 retrospect, satisfactory and were provided. He made his adjustments in them 
nce> but, having done so, he should have given approval to go ahead. What the 
chitect did was to make the adjustment, and in the meantime he got stone 

siH* Is’ anc* be tried to bring the two together and sent them back to the steel 
Pcontractor for further revisions. This is what constituted the delay.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Was this a small building?
Mr. Williams: It was worth about $370,000. It was a public building.
Mr. Tardif : This is the first time that I have heard that an architect, or a 

Psultant, gets from the subcontractor the detail of the material that is going 
be used on the building. I have never heard of that before.

As far as I know—and I probably do not have the same amount of
his>6rience as you have had—the consultant, or the architect, also stipulates in 
Mi S.Pec^bcation what type of materials are going to be used. If you are right in 
bec you say’ I bo not know how a subcontractor can calculate on a job, 
ty ause he has to figure on what type of windows are going to be used, what 
ty e °I stone is going to be used on the outside, how much steel and what 
Cori t steeI and what strength of steel. This is the responsibility of the 
ee^S. ant as far as I know, and should be part of the plans or specifications. He 
is n ainly never, that I know of, waits for the subcontractor to tell him what he 

g0lng to use.
Ihe ^r' Williams: Mr. Chairman, in general terms Mr. Tardif is quite right, 
“y °nly thing is that in our specifications, we do not use a trade name and say, 
^ith use this type of window.” We use an open performance specification 
SU a. description. That is to provide competition in the subtrades who are 

Plying these things.
the subtrades will supply samples of their windows and they will quote on 
9s t^^buis manufactured windows which will meet the specifications in so far

-I am using: berformance is concerned. But the details of those windows-Win . *mance is
ffam °Ws as an example—are not all the same. One has a little different width of 
the jnS> they have a little different make-up, all of which involves details in 
the eeI—in this particular case, the steel supports for the stone work—and it is 
\vij1^°sP°nsibility of the subcontractor, when he is quoting and supplying his 
With. °Ws> to Provide to the consultant the detailing of his window compatible 

detailing of the steel; and the consultant must approve these to see 
Jbey are correct.

kpilcT 1S even more difficult in the case of supplying equipment in these 
beatj1Ilgs> because we will quote for a certain type of motor, or a certain type of 

ng Plant, for production and capacity and efficiency; but the various
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manufacturers are by no means standard. The connections are in different 
places, the sizes are a little different, and when the subcontractor quotes on 
these he provides the detailed information which will make them fit the plans 
and specifications provided by the consultant.

Mr. Tardif: If that is the case, Mr. Chairman, I think there should be 
eliminated from the clause the fact that the department felt that the situation 
had stemmed from an error in judgment. If you are right—and I do not say tha 
you are not—then there has been no error in judgment so far as I am concerned.

The Chairman: This is before the Committee and there is evidence on both 
sides. The Auditor General’s department states in this section that an error in 
judgment did occur on the part of the consulting architect and Mr. William5 
and his department have given us some evidence that it does not.

The Committee are now free to ask questions.
While you are thinking it over, I would just like to ask if this consulting 

architect had been hired before by the Department of Public Works. Had 
had previous experience with his work? Secondly, have you an area architec > 
or area engineer, in the Maritime region that could have helped co-ordinate this 
operation?

Mr. Williams: We have an area architect, and the consultant was reporting 
to him on the progress of the building; but our area architect was no 
immediately aware of this problem arising between the steel subcontractor an 
the consultant. He was dealing with the prime contractor.

Mr. Tardif: Just to keep the record straight, I said that if Mr. Williams j5 
right there has been no error in judgment, but, actually, I think there has bee 
an error in judgment.

Mr. Henderson: The statement made in my report, Mr. Tardif, is 
department’s, not mine. The text of this was shown to them and it is t 
department, I say, which felt that the situation had stemmed from an error 
judgment.

The Chairman: Before we have another question, Mr. Williams, you 1 
not answer the one I asked you: Had you hired him before?

Mr. Williams: I think we have, sir. I am not positive. I will look that up 
you wish and will advise you later.

The Chairman: Have you given him jobs since? You can look that up 
the same time.

Mr. Williams: I will advise the Committee in both cases.
The Chairman: You made one statement that your area architect was 

aware of this situation. That would appear to me to be a very grave error.
Mr. Williams: I would agree, again in retrospect, that he perhaps s^°y1e 

have notified the delay. Mind you, there were many delays on the job and ^ 
prime contractor was behind schedule and actually we assessed the Pr a 
contractor a matter of $2,300 for delays on his part. I think probably our a ^ 
architect was pushing in other areas and did not realize that this was going 
between the steel subcontractor and and the consultant.

The Chairman: Where is that area architect today. Is he in that 53 
position?
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Mr. Williams: I could not say, sir. I would have to—
The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, could you say.
Mr. Lalonde: I do not know, Mr. Chairman. I do not know who was the 

area architect at the time.
Mr. Williams: I would doubt very much that he would still be there. 

Whether he is still with the department or not, I could not say.
Mr. Tardif: He is probably the supervisor of four or five other areas.
The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, you are next.
Mr. Bigg: I think the timing is very important here, and I would like to 

now when the architect was called in to revise the plans. If he was called in 
l1;er they found out that the subcontractor was fitting windows which would 
°t suit the original plans and the architect thought he could save the départ­
it and everyone money and time by re-drafting certain specifications in the 
mdow openings or something like that, then I insist that he was not negligent 
ut perhaps was going beyond the call of duty. He could not be blamed if, in 
6 original terms of reference, he was asked to supply a building and leave the 
indows blank for a subcontractor to fit in. I do not see how he could foresee 
hlch subcontractor would be supplying metal windows or lift windows or 
iting windows. I use that as an example. What was it, Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: It was prior to construction that he was doing this examina- 
0tl and re-examination. The situation was that the steel subcontractor had 

^luired the materials and fabricated all the main steel for the building and 
as| ready to ship, but he did not want to ship, or put in an erection crew, until 
e had fabricated the spandrel beams to support, in this particular case, the 
one work over the windows. This happened before construction; but it delayed 
6 s1;eel subcontractor in getting the steel to the site and doing the erection.

Bigg: How much more would it have cost if they had gone ahead and 
put up the steel and then had to refabricate?

hlr. Williams: This is where the department felt, along with Mr. Tardif, 
there was the possibility of an error in judgment, because we felt that had 

^ ftiade his initial revision of the steel subcontractor’s detailing, to what he 
°ught was satisfactory and approved at that stage and allowed the man to 
P’ the subcontractor would have gone to the site and would have erected all 

th “e nia™ steel; and in that period, while he was erecting the main part of the 
e steel work up and then he would only be working on details of the stone 

^ and the detail of the steel work. If it was not done, at least he would have 
ty6 steel work up and then he could only be working on details of the stone 

r*> and the delay possibly would not have occurred. This is where the 
?e^artment felt that while he had not been negligent—in fact he had been over 

°Us"—it was an error of judgment.
I’he Chairman: Next is No. 30.

30. COST OF DELAY IN DEMOLITION OF BUILDING, ST. JOHN’S, NFLD.--- In
September 1959 the Department of Public Works awarded a contract in 
the amount of $6,990—subsequently increased to $7,743—for the demoli-

. tion of a building in the St. John’s harbour area. The site was required for 
*4289_2

. Mr. 
f°°lishly
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the construction of a marine agency depot for the Department of 
Transport.
Although demolition was required by late November 1959, it was not 
completed until the following October due to a delay for which the 
contractor was not responsible. As the delay resulted in the cancellation 
of a sale of salvaged material which he had negotiated prior to tendering 
and led to a substantial loss on his undertaking, the contractor sought 
redress. In May 1963 he was paid an additional amount of $12,000 h1 
settlement of approximately 50% of his claim.
Prior to demolition the building was being used by the Province 
Newfoundland, on a “care and maintenance” basis, as a vocational 
training school. Although the Province was notified in January 1959 that 
vacant possession would be required by the following July, it continued 
to use the premises until late April 1960. The Province was advised b> 
the Department of Public Works in November 1959 that financia 
responsibility for the delay was regarded as a provincial matter, but no 
further action was taken in this regard.

Mr. Henderson: This refers to a non-productive payment of $12,000 arising 
out of failure of the Province of Newfoundland to vacate a federal building a 
St. John’s, which it was occupying on a care and maintenance basis, vvhen 
requested to do so. As a result, the contractor carrying out the demolition was 
paid an additional $12,000.

You will notice that the province was advised that it was regarded as 
responsible for the cost of this delay, but no further action was taken to recove 
any part of it.

Mr. Baldwin: I see in that, Mr. Chairman, that the last paragraph states 
that the reason for the delay was that the provincial government of NeW 
foundland refused to give possession as had been required, and consequent y 
this led to the delay and led to the inability of the contractor to secui-6 
possession of the material so that he could make his sale.

Would this be a fairly accurate assessment, Mr. Lalonde.
Mr. Lalonde: Mr. Chairman, that is a correct statement. mayMr. Baldwin: Mr. Chairman, is it not a fact—and Mr. Henderson n*» 

correct me—that we had some difficulty with Mr. Smallwood not so many yeaIT 
ago about two houses that his government continued to occupy? Was there n° 
some problem there in public accounts?

Mr. Henderson: Yes; I think in the 1964 Committee meetings there was a 
case where the provincial officers were occupying a house which was consider*- 
to be the property of the federal government and which was required by * 
federal officers.

Mr. Baldwin: I was just wondering, in view of these two claims, wheth®* 
the government might be willing to consider some payment out of the * 
million a year.

The Chairman: That is a thought, Mr. Baldwin.

• (11.59 a.m.) theMr. Bigg: Surely there is something incongruous about the crown suing 
crown. I can see nothing but gain for lawyers in this business.
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There must be a point where we can assume that governments are acting 
°°na fide in all cases. I mean surely there is no recovery on the part of—

The Chairman: I think Mr. Baldwin gave you the answer. You deduct the 
amount off the $8 million. That simplifies it.

Mr. Flemming : After all, there are grants paid every month—it is not 
necessarily $6 or $8 million; there are grants paid every month. There is no 
trouble getting the money if the finance department wants to get it.

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Flemming: There is no trouble to get it; you just take it off.
The Chairman: Well, whose responsibility would it be to—
Mr. Fleming: Well, that is a good question; perhaps we could ask the 

uditor General.

attachi
Mr. Henderson: Well, I think in this case there was a responsibility

^ight 
did.

mg to the Department of Public Works to follow it up. Perhaps they 
give the reason why no further action was taken, or what efforts they 

m fact, take.
G. T. Jackson (Assistant Deputy Minister, Department of Public 

°rJes); I think in fairness to the province, Mr. Chairman, it must be said that 
a,.ey were trying to find other accommodation for the 600 people who were 
as pdinS t*16 school- They were trying to negotiate for space in what is known 

Buckmaster’s Field. It took longer to get the accommodation than they 
Pected and this is the reason for the delay.

t0 I have no explanation, Mr. Chairman, why we took no action to endeavour 
recover the $12,000 that we paid out.

ProKi r‘ Winch: Why should the federal treasury have to pay because of a 
pr .m experienced by a province? Is that not the responsibility of the 

vmce and not the federal government?

thinv 6 Chairman: This brings up a very important matter, I would say I 
cha* °Ur Committee should make a recommendation that when there are 
t0 ‘ges such as these the responsibility should be on the department concerned 

°tify Treasury that this money is owing by a province and that Treasury 
u d follow it up and deduct it from the grants that are paid to these 

0 Vinces.
IfHob V°u are running a business this is the way you do it. Apparently it is 

V’s business around here who collects this money.
fartV^r- Bigg: Mr. Chairman, we are not running a business, we are running a 
savy y-1 cannot add my recommendation to that at all. I think there should be a 

where the crown is acting bona fide.
dat:o^e Chairman: We will discuss it when we are drawing up our recommen-

t6f|^rhave just one question before we leave this: Why did you ask for a 
r to demolish this building before the building was empty?

VaCa^r- Jackson: Mr. Chairman, we asked the province in January of 1959 to 
24289~1* by July. They were unable to do this, but in discussion with
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them—incidentally this was in writing—they said they expected to move out in 
September. On the basis of their advising us that they hoped to move out in 
September we called tenders and the low bidder, whose price was $6,990 
against our estimate of $35,000, had a market and he bid at that price believing 
that he would have access to the building in October.

The Chairman : Have you experienced problems like this before, where y°u 
have it in writing that they will vacate and they do not vacate and you get 
caught like this? Would it not be better to wait for the actual vacating in 
demolition work?

Mr. Jackson: This is a rather unusual case. I do not think this hapPenS 
very often.

Another factor here was that we really wanted the building down because 
we were in the process of carrying out major reconstruction in St. Johns 
harbour, and the contractor who was doing some other building for us in the 
area wanted the building down and out of the way. We were trying to save time 
on it.

The Chairman: All right. No 31?
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): It looks to me, in No. 31, as though the regional officers 

of the post office department in the province decided that this village needed 
new post office. After the sale of the building, the land acquired and th 
contract let the municipal council decided, because someone else who may hav
been influential in the district was getting rent from that building, that they did
not want the post office to build at that particular time. This is the °n^ 
explanation that I can find for this.

It cost $9,000 and the department still holds the site which they wiU
probably put a post office on when the other contract is no longer useful to the 
council. It would seem to me that this is a terriffic waste of money.

The Chairman: We might have the department explain something here and 
then take Mr. Tardifs question. Is there any explanation?

Mr. Lalonde: Mr. Chairman, there is not much explaining that I can dn 
This is the kind of situation which we run into sometimes when we are try1 
to determine whether a post office should be built in a small place, or whethei 
should not be built; and also where it should be built within that sin 
municipality. There are always conflicting interests. We receive conffic 1 
directives; decisions are changed from time to time—

Mr. Winch: Does a directive have any bearing in a change of direction-
Mr. Lalonde : I do not know, Mr. Winch. All I know is that we are told ^ 

do this, and then we are told to cancel that; and then we are told to put 1 
again and then to cancel it again.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, this is actually a question that should ^ 
asked of the post office department. If the post office department decides tnn^ 
post office is necessary in this location they must have made reasonable g 
serious studies before this decision was reached. How does it happen th 
local council decides that there is going to be no post office? I would ii*18® 
that the need must have been arrived at by the post office department. ^ 
does it happen that the local council decides that they do not want a post office '
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The Chairman: I guess public works can hardly answer that question.
Mr. Tardif : I actually think, Mr. Chairman, that the post office department 

should answer this particular question.
Mr. Flemming : My question, Mr. Chairman, is: Who made the decision not 

to Proceed with the original plan to build the building? From whom did the 
deputy minister get his direction not to proceed after the decision had been 
'hade to proceed, the land purchased, and all this? Is it a ministerial decision or 
Where did it come from?

Mr. Lalonde : It is a ministerial decision.
The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, would you like to give us, step by step, the 

date on which you were asked to build a post office and the next date you were 
°ld not to, and so on.

Mr. Lalonde: I will, Mr. Chairman, if that is your wish.
In June, 1961, the member of parliament for this constituency requested 

he Minister to provide a new post office at this location.
The then Minister of Public Works replied that the space was satisfactory 

hr the time being, and that the lease did not expire until November, 1962. TheM:

mister indicated that he would consider erecting a new building at the end of
1962.

dist:
The department was requested to look for a site, and in September 1962 the

net manager submitted a report on a site which met with the approval of 
e Post office authorities and the municipal authorities.

This site was acquired in October 1962 at a cost of $5,000.
In November, 1962—this project was to be part of the winter works 

°Sram for that year—local public tenders were invited with a closing date of 
Member 5, 1962.

p Before the tenders had closed a petition was directed to the Minister of 
lie Works, requesting that the post office remain in its present premises. The 

mister then advised the municipality that in view of the petition the building 
je uld not be proceeded with and that in the meantime we would continue to

bHett

l*1 the meantime the department had 
iht er that I have just mentioned. On Dec

tor. Flemming: Excuse me, what was the date of that direction? Was that 
er?

tor. Lalonde: That was by a letter of November 28.
received six quotations on the public 

^ -* "leu i nave just mentioned. On December 19, 1962, the low tenderer was 
rmed that no action would be taken on the tenders that had been received, 

typ Ip February, 1963, representations appear to have been made to the 
ty. ,lster of Public Works—because this is all part of ministerial correspondence 
toiv rï°es not stay with us—to request that the post office be built after all. The 
fa 1Ster decided to accept this request, and, since the low bid was very 
tUe^Urable—the one that had been received in December—instructed the depart- 
ly to award the contract to that low bidder at the same price. He immediate- 
aitp0lnrnenced work—no, not immediately. He started his excavation in April 
t0 °uSh he had the contract in his pocket. I think he was waiting for the snow 

et °ff the ground.
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In April, after the contractor had started, a special meeting of the counci 
was called by the mayor, and they asked that the post office building be stopped 
and that we go back to leasing the post office premises and this was accepted.

The Chairman: Now, just a minute, gentlemen; there will be a lot of 
questions here.

Mr. Tardif : Did anyone ascertain, in that particular case, whether the 
mayor owned the building that was leased to the post office?

Mr. Winch: I think we should know who owned those premises.
Mr. Lalonde: All right. It was not the mayor who owned the building; h 

was the post mistress who was leasing to the Post Office Department.
Mr. Tardif: She was not the mayor’s wife?
Mr. Lalonde: No.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): What is the population of this village? The reason I aIïl 

asking that is that I think for $5,000 you could have bought the whole works.
Mr. Lalonde: The cost of the building would have been $14,690.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : That was the low bid. That is exclusive of the larl(*' 

though?
Mr. Lalonde: Exclusive of the land.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): What I am trying to get at is: Why did they have to 

pay $5,000 for a site in a small village when you could probably buy the who 
town for the same price.

Mr. Tardif: The mayor will have another petition if you repeat that.
The Chairman: Just a moment, gentlemen.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): For a small town it seems to be an excessive price t0 

pay for a site.
The Chairman: Mr. Freeze is looking over the property here—
Mr. Lalonde : Although I have not got this in my notes it is quite probabl® 

that this was a site located on the main street of the municipality, and 
you get a choice site this is about the price range you have to pay. It is 80 1 
by 100 feet.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : For a $14,000 building?
The relationship between the cost of the land and the building seems rat 

extraordinary.
Mr. Lalonde: Oh, I do not think so; not for that kind of—
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Five thousand dollars to $14,000?
Mr. Tardif: About a third in difference.
The Chairman: Have you any further questions? It is quite an involv® 

situation and it brings up the fact that the Department of Public Works, 
agents, find themselves in some pretty difficult situations from time to time. ^

Mr. Winch: The important point here is: Is it possible for us to find J0d 
how political or other pressure can be put on a government to stop construe
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°nce the decision to construct has been made both by the post office department 
and the Department of Public Works? It is proceeding, and then pressure is 
brought to bear. Where does the pressure come from?

I think this is the kind of thing that we should investigate, to find out just 
what that pressure is and why the Department of Public Works and the post 
office have to give way to it once they have a contract.

The Chairman: I think the answer is that the member of parliament 
approached the Minister at the time, and I suppose this is where some of the 
Pressure came from. I am not saying that it is proper.

Mr. Winch: The information that we received, sir, is that the member of 
Parliament was the one who first approached the Minister to have a new post 
office building constructed.

Mr. Bigg: You know, people have been known to change their minds.
The Chairman: We have found that out right along, Mr. Bigg.
Mr. Winch: Why should a taxpayer have to pay because of the whims of 

Politics or outside pressure?
Mr. Flemming: Do they not do that in Vancouver East?
Mr. Winch: Thank heavens, I have not got any federal buildings!
The Chairman: I think the crux of this matter is that in September 1962 

be site was approved by the post office and the municipality. Is that right, Mr. 
Lalonde? Is that what you said? In September of 1962 the site was approved 

y the post office and the municipality.
Mr. Lalonde: That is correct.

^ Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, I do not think that is the problem anyhow, 
--use if you buy a site on the main street of any village the price is not 
h°rbitant. The problem is who decides that there is going to be a post office 

th 6r ProPer study, and then who decides that the council has the power to say 
ajr re shall be no post office and they continue renting a building where they are

or ?.^her the post office was not needed when the study was originally made, 
th + Was needed, then the council certainly had no authority to send a petition 

^°uld affect the decision that was originally taken.
Mr. Lalonde : I must say, Mr. Chairman, that this is part of the context in 

ch I see the operation of the Department of Public Works, 
q ^hen I came to this department at the end of 1963 it was the custom for all 
. lions about all kinds of buildings, including post offices, to be asked of the 
ffin 1Ster Public Works. I suggested to Mr. Deschatelets that it was not his 
jjj 10n to reply to questions about post offices; that the decisions should be 

e by the Postmaster General.
Mr. Tardif: That is why I said, Mr. Chairman, that this question does not 

apply to the Department of Public Works. It should be asked of the 
°ffice department.

***• Lalonde: At the time the Minister of Public Works was involved—it 
he policy—in making decision about post offices.
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The Chairman: All right. Mr. Baldwin.
Mr. Baldwin: I just wanted to emphasize that point—and perhaps we can 

deal with it later.—It does not seem that the Department of Public Works has 
enough sins of its own to answer for from time to time, without having to be 
dragged here—because it is the only tag we have—to answer for the sins of other 
departments and other people, where they have had to bear the responsibility.

I think somehow, perhaps through this Committee and the suggestion of 
Mr. Lalonde and his department, some procedure might be worked out whereby 
it is quite apparent, when some of these decisions are made, exactly who makes 
them, and that the responsibility and the initiation of the decisions come from 
some place outside the Department of Public Works. We have seen too much 0 
this.

The Chairman: A very good suggestion. Mr. Henderson, No. 32?
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, 34 and 35 remain, do they not?
The Chairman: Oh, no; that is not public works; I am sorry.
Mr. Henderson: Nos 34 and 35 are the last two in the 1964 report.

34. ARCHITECTS’ FEE IN RESPECT OF ABANDONED WORK, MONTREAL 
que—In 1961 architects were engaged to prepare plans and specification 
for, and supervise construction of, an addition and alterations to t 
Queen Mary Veterans Hospital at Montreal. After the architects ha 
completed the sketch plans and preliminary drawings they were instruc ^ 
ed to take no further action on the project. Based on an estimated cost 
construction of $9,142,190 and in accordance with their terms of enga£e 
ment, the architects were paid $110,047 ($99,000 in 1962-63) for servie^ 
in connection with the project. Whether the project will be undertake 
at some future time and use made of the plans and specifications is n 
known. ^

In No. 34, you have a case where architects were paid an amount ^ 
$110,047 for plans and specifications for construction of an addition a 
alterations to the Queen Mary Veterans Hospital in Montreal. The plans ha 
never been used.

Perhaps Mr. Lalonde can say whether there has been any change in 
situation since.

Mr. Lalonde : I must confess, Mr. Chairman, that I am at a little bit 
loss because these two items were not listed in the notice I received from 
secretary. I thought they were going to be dealt with on Veterans Affairs.

However, we have some information which Mr. Boyle can provide to 
Committee at this time. ^

Mr. Lefebvre: Perhaps Mr. Lalonde could tell us if he has the backgroUl^o 
on this—why the decision was taken by the Department of Veterans AffairS 
cancel this addition?

Mr. Lalonde: I would have to put on my former hat now.
Mr. Bigg: I question that the Department of Public Works should exp 

why the Department of Veterans Affairs has a change in policy. It seem5 
unfair question.
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Mr. Lefebvre: No; but perhaps he has been given the information by the 
department of Veterans Affairs. That is what he is checking right now.

The Chairman: Well, I think perhaps I should rule on it. It is hardly fair, 
Jn this particular case. Mr. Lalonde was deputy minister of veterans affairs and 
“e is now deputy minister of public works. We might be embarrassing him in 
this regard, but I will leave it with him. If he wants to wear two hats he can go
ahead.

Mr. Tardif : Mr. Chairman, I realize that some information concerning this 
Particular item should be asked of the Department of Veterans Affairs, but is it 
h°t an unusual thing, and a surprising thing, on the part of whoever was 
responsible, that there was a decision that a $9 million addition to a hospital 
Was absolutely necessary, and then, after reconsideration and after some of the 
Preliminary work has been done on plans, they should decide that it is not 
necessary anymore? There was not a great deal of time elapsed between 
Pe decision that this was necessary and the decision that it was not needed 

ahymore.
Mr. Bigg: Take the “Arrow” airplane $1,200 million contract.
Mr. Lalonde: No; the explanation is much more simple than that, and I 
have to give it to you from memory.

t> As early as 1959, when, as those of you who have visited Queen Mary 
°spital will recall, it was a converted school and the number of active cases 
as Quite high, it was felt that the hospital facilities at Ste. Anne de Bellevue, 
hich had been built in 1914, needed to be replaced, and a number of 
^eussions were held with the doctors who were operating the two hospitals. 
e best judgment at that time was that because of the closer proximity to 

°ntreal of the Queen Mary Hospital as compared to Ste. Anne’s the extension 
in°t' g0 on D16 grounds of Queen Mary next to the more active treatment 

sutution. They started to prepare plans for it.
t0 Later on, the government policy—and most of you are aware of it—veered 
ir}War^s the abandonment of active treatment hospitals because the work load 
r active cases was going down and there were more and more older veterans 
bai ring an°ther type of hospitalization. At the time, the decision was made to 
jjj V* ut Ste. Anne’s, rather than at Queen Mary’s, and to see if they could not 
jyke a deai w^h the University to take over the active treatment at Queen 

ry Hospital. This is why there was a change in the policy.
to ^r" Tardif : And was there, at that time, Mr. Chairman, an addition made 

te- Anne de Bellevue?

Lalonde: It is being built now.
■*Hr. Tardif : Oh, I see; and do you remember the cost?
■Mi- Lalonde: No, I do not.

(jQ Tardif: Was not the same architect used to do the Ste. Anne job? You 
not remember?

■'Hr. Lalonde : No; I am not sure.

Ballard : I wonder if Mr. Lalonde would comment on the appropria­
te». Ss Paying more or less a “quit claim” fee to the architect when the plans

re not used.
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Mr. Lalonde: The architect had done some work, and there was definitely 
some money owed to him. He had to pay some of his draughtsmen and people 
whom he employs. Whether we like it or not we have to pay him for services 
rendered.

Now that you mention it, Mr. Tardif, I do not think they were the same 
architects. I now remember that the firm of architects who did this job were 
not given the contract for Ste. Anne.

Mr. Tardif: With that explanation, Mr. Chairman, it is easier to under­
stand. As the soldiers get a little older they need different types of treatment 
and that takes—

Mr. Lalonde: I think that there is another long-range consideration which 
will eventually recoup a lot more than what was paid to the architect—

Mr. Tardif: In that case, the Department of Veterans Affairs will n°* 
operate hospitals anymore.

Mr. Lalonde: Not only that, but the site of Queen Mary is perhaps one of 
the most valuable sites in Montreal now. If the government ever decides 
dispose of it they are going to collect a lot more money.

The Chairman: We will have Mr. Lefebvre and then Mr. Ballard.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Lalonde, you wandered away from my question withou*j 

completing the answer. I would like to interject it here: Do you feel, or do y0^ 
know, if the amount paid to the architect was in line with the scale of fees 
laid down by the Provincial Association of Architects?

Mr. Lalonde: It was, Mr. Chairman. It was in accordance with that seal® 
and in accordance with his contract. When he gets to the production of what 
call sketches, or sketch drawings, he is entitled to one-fifth of his total fee. T 
is what was paid to him.

Mr. Lefebvre: This $110,000, Mr. Lalonde, would be less than if * 
addition had been built, in which case he would have been paid supervise 
duties as well; is that correct?

Mr. Lalonde: That is one-fifth of what he would have received if we ha
gone ahead with the addition.

The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, are these plans which were drawn and Pa’^ 
for now scrapped, or has the government got possession of those if we decide f° 
proceed?

Mr. Lalonde: We still have possession of these. If they do not make a de3j 

for the Queen Mary they may have to make some alterations to it, because 
recall that portions of the Queen Mary Hospital were getting fairly old; and 1 
they are going to continue to operate the Queen Mary Hospital for activ® 
treatment there are some areas that will have to be rebuilt and those plans uu 
serve partly—not completely, but partly.

The Chairman: The plans are not scrapped?
Mr. Lalonde: No.
The Chairman: Thank you.
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Paragraph No. 35; a similar situation.
35. COST OF UNUSED PLANS FOR HOSPITAL ALTERATIONS, LONDON, ONT. 

—In 1957 consultants were engaged to prepare plans and specifica­
tions and to supervise the construction of a new wing and alterations to 
the surgical and X-ray departments at a London hospital for the 
Department of Veterans Affairs. When the plans and specifications were 
nearing completion the Department decided to eliminate alterations to 
the surgical and X-ray departments because it was felt that to carry out 
these alterations while the construction of the new wing was in progress 
would cause too much disruption of the functions of the hospital. After 
the new wing had been substantially completed, the consultants were 
re-engaged in connection with alterations to the X-ray department but 
the new concept envisaged substantial reductions both in scope and cost 
from what had been earlier contemplated. The original design was 
therefore abandoned and in August 1963 the consultants were paid 
$23,465, on a quantum meruit basis, for services rendered in the prepara­
tion of the unused plans.

, Mr. Henderson: This has to do with the London hospital for Veterans 
sn -rs’ W^ere y°u will see that consultants were engaged to prepare plans and 
Pacifications and to supervise the construction of a new wing and certain 

Nations. It was subsequently decided that to proceed with the alterations 
Rile construction of the new wing was in progress would cause too much 

1Sruption of the functions of the hospital and these alterations were, therefore, 
lrninated from the plan.
, The consultants were paid $23,465 for services rendered in the preparation 

the unused plans.
„ The Chairman: Are there any questions? If there are no questions from the 

°r my question would be on this point that it would cause too much disrup- 
j n °f the functions of the hospital. That is there and would be there, even be- 

re they decided to build the wing. I do not think that is a very good excuse for 
Continuing. That is not the Department of Public Works’ responsibility, but it 
Pis to be the crux of the problem.

Someone had a question?
, Mr. Ballard: A new term here to me is this “quantum meruit” basis. What 

es that mean?
* Mr. Henderson: Well, perhaps the department would care to explain that 
, t>1s. It is on the basis of work done I think, on the volume of work done in t6ri*s of the-

An hon. Member: Rather than on a contract—
Mr. Henderson: Yes; that is right.
Mr. Baldwin: This is a day to day work basis, is it?
Mr. Henderson: Would you care to explain this “quantum meruit” basis?

that r Boyle : I might just say that the term I think is taken to mean just 
arn°unt of the work which was done that is warranted to be paid. That is 
the term “quantum meruit” means. It is a legal term.

Mr. Bigg: Not with reference to a contract?
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Mr. Boyle: That is right; in the absence of some other method of 
determining what should be paid. In fact, this was built up on the basis of the 
time expended by the principals of the firm, to which was added the burden for 
payroll and general overhead.

Mr. Bigg: A gentlemen’s agreement.
Mr. Boyle: It is a Latin phrase to cover up—
The Chairman: Now, gentlemen, would you please turn to your 1965 

Auditor General’s report, page 71, paragraph 112.
112. Construction of headquarters building, Department of National 

Health and Welfare. The lowest tender received in 1961 by the Depart­
ment of Public Works for the construction of a new headquarters 
building for the Department of National Health and Welfare was $<>' 
225,000. The Treasury Board considered this amount to be too high an 
instructed the Department of Public Works to reduce it by negotiation 
with the low bidder.

It was decided that a substantial reduction could be effected by a 
number of changes in the specifications and by relocating the departmen­
tal cafeteria in the basement instead of following the original design 
which proposed its construction as a separate adjacent building. A ne 
reduction of $512,000 for these changes was offered by the successfu 
tenderer after adding $26,000 for the work involved in installing I*1® 
cafeteria in what was previously to have been an unfinished basemen 
area. The alterations in the plans resulted in a negotiated contract PrlC 
of $6,713,000.

The Department of National Health and Welfare was not sat^s^f 
with the new basement plan and called for a number of alterations, in 
Department of Public Works also required some changes. When \ 
contractor quoted a price of approximately $260,000 for the work 1 
volved, the Department of National Health and Welfare was inform6 
that the extra cost was unacceptable to the Treasury Board and that a 
changes would have to be kept within the limit of $26,000 previous 
approved. This resulted in further plan changes.

The plan changes involved in the initial price reduction would ha'’® 
been made by the consulting architects without charge but subsequ6 
changes were so numerous and extensive that they asked for and w ^ 
paid $56,825 as an additional fee for what was described as “abandon 
work and re-design attributable to major changes”. ,

Payments for the construction of the building to date have tota 
$7,264,000, consisting of $6,865,000 paid to the contractor and $399,000 
the consulting architects. The increase in the construction cost over ^ 
price negotiated earlier is due to additional items of work, primarily 
respect of the foundation and the podium area.

f theMr. Henderson: Paragraph 112 has to do with the construction or 
headquarters building of the Department of National Health and Welfare.

This note contains particulars of the various steps involved in construe 
the new headquarters building. The point of criticism, however, attaches on 
the fact that because of the numerous and extensive changes made m
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Construction the consulting architects were paid $56,825 as an additional fee for 
what was described as abandoned work and redesign attributable to major 
changes; in other words, a non-productive payment.

I would repeat, again, that my purpose in setting out these details is to 
Point out how so many of the circumstances in cases such as these are, in fact, 
heyond the control of the department named; in this case, of course, the 
-Department of Public Works in its role as a service department.

This is a point which is being brought up again at these meetings of the 
Committee, Mr. Chairman, as it was in 1964, when you dealt with the principle 
Evolved in this subject in your sixth report, 1964, with which you are familiar.

* (12.30 p.m.)
We follow a similar practice in the next few notes to come up. They 

lndicate the chain of circumstances causing the non-productive payment.
The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, that is very much along the line that you 

Su8gested.
q Mr. Baldwin: Yes. I think I used the words at the last meeting, “where the 

ePartment of Public Works has a temperamental client which changes its 
md.” Perhaps the changes are essential; we do not know; but we see the 

utcome which means these expenditures to which the Auditor General has 
eference. It is difficult for us to assess whether or not they are all completely 
ecessary, and the Department of Public Works is called upon to answer for 

them.
Obviously, I doubt that the Department of Public Works is anxious to have 

l these changes, but somehow there is a lack of liaison there.
r Mr. Tardif: Where these decisions on changes are made—by whoever is 

sPonsible, or whoever has the authority for doing so—is this done by corre­
spondence?

Mr. Henderson: Yes; the department’s files are complete on their exchanges 
, correspondence with the department for whom they are erecting the 
th l c^n8> an-d this note indicates how both the Department of Public Works and 

6 Treasury Board sought to hold the line on costs, but, notwithstanding this, 
e Work was being pushed ahead.

of

this The Chairman: I am wondering, Mr. Lalonde, if it would not get around
the ^r°h>lem and save the taxpayer a lot of money if your chief architect and 
a insulting architect and the Minister responsible would sit down together 
att these plans all ironed out on paper before you start to build? Has any 

eiïlPt been made to do this?
Mr. Lalonde: This would be the ideal situation, Mr. Chairman; but just as 

7hen a man builds a house and all the plans are complete and the house starts 
to So up his wife decides that he is going to put the closet here instead of
there— ’

Mr. Tardif: Of course, if he is smart, he will never let his wife be around a 
tle'v house that is being built.

,(jç ^r- Lalonde: I must say we have no choice. We have to let our client 
artments live with us.
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The Chairman: But is an attempt made to do it? Do the husband and wife 
get together in this case?

Mr. Lalonde : Well, we certainly do. In our new organization we intend to 
do even more of this.

There has to be a line drawn somewhere by a control agency, and to me 
that has to be by the Treasury Board, because the Treasury Board is a group of 
Ministers; whereas our Minister is only one individual and he deals with 3 
number of his colleagues. I think it is unfair to say that the Minister of Publie 
Works should be the control agency for all construction in the government. We 
are attempting now to re-organize in such a way that we will provide the 
service, with the Treasury Board providing the control.

Mr. Winch: Do you think that the offspring of this marriage of yours will 
be a little more acceptable in the future than some of the offspring have looked 
like in the past?

Mr. Lalonde : I would hope so. We certainly intend to have an even closer 
liaison than we have had with all the departments, all the time, including 
taking part in their long range planning. This is what we want and I hope the 
departments will agree with us on that principle.

We should be able to plan farther ahead for adjustment in the require' 
ments of departments, let us say, over the next five or ten years; but this wi 
not take away the factor, which I mentioned the other day, of the budgeting by 
year. This is exactly what happened here. The Treasury Board decided we ha 
too much money in that building for that particular time and they wanted us t° 
change the plans so that it would cost less. Whether it was shortsighted or no > 
only time will tell.

The Chairman: On paragraph 113.
113. Cost of construction of the National Gallery. In May 195? 3 

contract was awarded by the Department of Public Works for the 
construction of a building in Ottawa for the National Gallery of Canada- 
The contract specified a fixed price of $4,986,000 with delivery of the 
building in August 1959.

At the request of the Department of Public Works, this fixed price 
contract was amended by the Treasury Board six times. The building 
which cost $5,218,000, was finally accepted by the Department on Feb' 
ruary 3, 1960. The additional costs of $232,000 were caused mainly b>' 
circumstances which had not been foreseen when the contract ^aS 
entered into.

Site excavation work was delayed by the discovery of clay seams ip 
the rock, which required further core drilling to determine the adéquat 
of the foundation design. A further delay occurred while underpinm11^ 
was placed to support electrical ducts located beneath an adjacent side' 
walk. In addition, National Gallery officials requested that changes be 
made in the partitioning and luminous ceilings, etc. These changes neceS' 
sarily interrupted the contractor’s timetable and added materially to the 
final cost.

Following delivery of the building, the contractor submitted a dela^ 
claim covering his site administration costs, loss of productive equipmeP
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time and increased heating and other costs. The claim was paid in the 
amount of $35,632 in August 1964.

Mr. Henderson: This is another case along not dissimilar lines. The contract 
the construction of the National Gallery was let in May, 1957 and the 

gliding was finally accepted by the department three years later in February, 
i960. In August, 1964, a claim was paid for $35,632 representing a delay claim 
°r administration costs, loss of productive equipment time, increased heating 

aild so on, made by the contractor because of the circumstances which are 
^Plained in the third paragraph. In other words, discovery of clay seams in the 
r°ck, requests by the National Gallery officials for changes in the planning and 
s° on, all of which interrupted the contractor’s time table and consequently, 
caused the extra expense to be claimed.

In this case, also, I think the contractor’s claim was considerably larger and 
Was as a result of the negotiation carried out by the department that they 

Were able to reduce the claim to the amount they paid, $35,632.
The Chairman: Are there any questions?
Is this clay seam that they ran into a similar soil testing problem?
Mr. Williams : Actually, there were 19 test holes on the site before the 

Work started, although it was not an easy site on Elgin Street. They established 
’■ock again below the level of the overburden. In the drilling—from the evi- 
, buoe—it appeared that the rock was satisfactory for the foundations, or, at least, 
oere was nothing to say that it would not be. When the excavation of the 
verburden was subsequently taken off by the contractor it was possible to see 
nd detect the clay seams which had to be re-proven to establish the rock 
Editions for each individual footing.

The Chairman: Were you satisfied with the work that your drilling 
°Pipany did?

Una ^T- Williams: We are never satisfied. I think it was the best they could do 
<ler the circumstances.

l , Mr. Bigg: I understand that this is a problem of not knowing that it is not 
edrock; is that right?

Mr. Williams : Not precisely sir. It is a case of being into bedrock, but the 
logical formation in Ottawa—the rock formation adjacent to the Ottawa 

haVer—*s on a faulted area. You cannot predict to what extent the faults will 
Ve shattered the rock.

tj, The drilling takes place and you recover your core; and do not forget that 
sUrfG are by water jettings and a diamond drill working 30 or 40 feet below the 
c0 acc"—the core does not always come up, particularly in this area, as a solid 
5ocjC'’ T comes up fractured. Water jetting takes out the clay that is in the core 

Vrm cannot really tell whether it is seams or layers or a sandwich of clay 
or whether it is just shattered rock. You can only really discover this 
when you have dug the hole.

ak0 Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Williams. It appears that we have faults 
e the ground as well as underground!
°n Paragraph 114.

114. Cost of revised and abandoned plans for buildings in Ottawa. In 
March 1961 two firms of consulting architects were engaged to prepare

rock
Edition
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plans and specifications and to supervise construction of a headquarters 
administration building in the Confederation Heights area for the De­
partment of Northern Affairs and National Resources, together with an 
adjoining headquarters building for the Department of Forestry. The 
complex was also to include accommodation for the Canadian Govern­
ment Travel Bureau and a unit of the Department of Public Printing and 
Stationery. The estimated cost of construction was $9,987,000 with ar­
chitects’ fees amounting to $484,000.

The architects completed the plans and specifications for the project 
by early 1963. Subsequently it was decided not to locate the Department 
of Forestry and the Canadian Government Travel Bureau in the complet 
The architects thereupon redesigned the plans for the remaining known 
occupants. It later developed that the space planned for the unit of the 
Department of Public Printing and Stationery was not required.

In November 1963 strenuous objection to the Confederation Height 
location was lodged by the Minister of Northern Affairs and Nations 
Resources on the grounds that the Department should be located in t, 
central part of the city “with ready access to the House of Commons ■ 
This objection led to cancellation of the proposal to locate the Depai 
ment at Confederation Heights and it has since been accommodated m 
new downtown building, 219,000 square feet of space having been leas6 
for a period of ten years at an annual rental of $688,000. The Departme11 
had previously occupied 120,000 square feet in a number of down-to"7 
buildings with an annual rental value of approximately $351,000.

In May 1964 the Treasury Board approved in principle modificati° 
of the Confederation Heights building plans to adapt them for & ^ 
administration building for the Taxation Division of the Department 
National Revenue. In order to salvage as much as possible of the P . 
already completed, the Department of Public Works proposes to reta 
the building in its original design except that it will be reduced fr° 
seven to five storeys with the cost of construction estimated at $6 miH*0^ 
It also proposes to construct a building in the same area to house a da 
computer centre for the Department of National Revenue and a cafeter ^ 
building to be linked to the administration building, the estimated cost
these being placed at $9 million.

As a result of this re-planning of the whole project, it is estimate^ 
that the fees which will finally be paid to the two firms of architects 
approximate $936,000, including an expense of about $220,000 result^ 
from the revisions to and the abandonment of plans in respect of
original concept.

Mr. Henderson: This note describes a project which had to be substantia117
the
bereplanned and as a result it is estimated the final fee settlement made with 

two firms of architects involved will include about $220,000 which can 
attributed to the revisions and abandonment of plans made in respect of 
original concept. Again this note recites the circumstances which led up t0 
incurring of this non-productive expenditure, and it shows the other depa 
ments involved.
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Mr. Baldwin : The reason assigned for one change was that the department 
should have ready access to the House of Commons. I think that should be 
ready access to the Public Accounts Committee!

The Chairman: Well, this is a very costly change. There is a lot of money 
Evolved in this one.

Mr. Winch: Could I ask why there is the unusual situation on one building 
having two firms of architects on plans and specifications? Were they both 

Paid 5 per cent. How does it work?
Mr. Jackson: Mr. Chairman, it is not unusual on large buildings to have 
firms engaged on preparing the plans and specifications. It is a partnership, 

and they collect only the percentage that is allowed, whether it is one firm or 
firms.
The Chairman: Are there any further questions. Mr. Schreyer.
Mr. Schreyer: What reasons were given by the Department of Forestry 

and by the officials of the Travel Bureau for their decision to opt out of 
accommodation built at Confederation Heights? We know why the Department 

Northern Affairs wanted to be left out of this building, but we are not told of 
tlle reasons given by the initial two departments.

£ Mr. Jackson: Mr. Chairman, it was only shortly before that time that the 
apartment of Forestry was established as a separate department. It was the 
lrn°n of the Minister and officials of the Department od Forestry that they 
°uld be better located on the Montreal Road beside the Forest Products 
Moratory which has been located out there for some time on property 
3scent to the Central Mortgage and Housing property.

£ The Canadian Travel Bureau was transferred from the responsibility of the 
^Partaient of Northern Affairs to the responsibility of the Department of 
çjQade and Commerce, and it was their desire, therefore, to be located more 

Sely to the departmental headquarters of Trade and Commerce.
s. The Chairman: If we could only get all these decisions made before we 

T to draw up the plans, it would help a lot.
Mr. Baldwin: This is particularly interesting, Mr. Chairman, in view of the 

^ Vernrnent re-organization bill. I wonder how many changes and how many 
a w buildings are going to arise as a result of this particular re-organization? I 

tare the Department of Public Works is giving a lot of consideration to it

Ntr. Lalonde: No, Mr. Chairman; this time we are going to do it all in 
ased accommodation.

hfr. Baldwin: I see.
9çc ^tr. Bigg: I wonder if I might suggest that this government planning of 
Iw^taodation might be done in some centrally located office, and not have 
UQt tangs abandoned and plans changed at the whim of a Cabinet Minister. I do 
but jtant to do away with the prerogatives of the Cabinet Ministers, in general, 
ca ^ink on the question of housing and planning of the Ottawa area, that we 
^ °t have people wanting the Forestry Department up in the Gatineau Hills 

tameone else wanting the Agriculture Department somewhere else.
^289—3
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Surely this could be co-ordinated without big changes like that, and could 
be done with some continuity.

I would like to have that on the record.
Mr. Flemming: Mr. Chairman, my question has to do with the accommoda­

tion for the unit for the Department of Public Printing and Stationery. In 
first paragraph it states that the complex was to include . .accommodation fQI. 
the Canadian Government Travel Bureau and a unit of the Department 0 
Public Printing and Stationery. . .” In the latter part of the next paragraph 1 
says: “It later developed that the space planned for the unit of the Departmen 
of Public Printing and Stationery was not required.” My question is: Who state 
that it was required in the first place. Who made the mistake? This seems to me 
to be quite a glaring mistake. A unit is required for a certain purpose and then, 
before they even proceed for a month or perhaps a couple of months, someone 
decides it is not required.

My brief experience was that discussion took place between the Depad' 
ment of Public Works officials and the department concerned, and from tha 
came the request that space be provided on the basis of requirement.

Here is a case where, apparently, it was thought to be required, and then 
later—and not too much later, either—it was decided that it would not 
required. I am just wondering what the explanation is.

Mr. Jackson: Mr. Chairman, in 1958, when the requirements were devel 
oped, the Department of Public Printing and Stationery at that time requests 
space to service that area of Confederation Heights. They knew at that tiih^ 
that the Post Office, Northern Affairs, the Travel Bureau—which uses

this

the
iiicii me r'usiu winue, inuruiei 11 rxiicuia, uit iicivci ouicdu—wniun i
Printing Bureau to a considerable extent—and the Department of Transport aA 
other departments, were being located there and they felt that, in the light 
that large number of departments and the services required for them, they 
should have a unit located there.

It was not until 1963 that, because of the changes that developed for th® 
area and the changes that have taken place in connection with the operation ^ 
the printing bureau and its services, they decided to withdraw that request an 
provide the services from some other location.

The Chairman: Mr. Winch, before you leave, we will have to continue 
afternoon at 3.30 or after orders of the day.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I have been in Committees since 9.30 ^lS 
morning and I would like to go to my office.

The Chairman: We quite appreciate that, Mr. Winch, and we will 
deavour to finish the Department of Public Works this afternoon. We will J 
continue for a short period and then we will adjourn.

Paragraph 115 is next. ^
115. Cost of abandoned plans for headquarters building, Departme^ 

of Transport. In 1957 the Department of Transport requested a n -c 
headquarters building in Ottawa and in 1960 the Department of Pu 
Works agreed that provision should be made for a suitable building 
the Confederation Heights area. Preliminary plans were for a bud 
expected in October 1961 to cost between $10 million and $12 million-
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Two firms of consulting architects were appointed in November 1961 
to prepare plans and specifications and to supervise construction. 
However, following consideration of a master plan prepared for the 
National Capital Commission for the future development of federally- 
owned property in the Confederation Square area, the decision was 
taken in September 1963 that the proposed Department of Transport 
building should be located in this area.

It was decided in June 1964 to discontinue the services of the 
consulting architects and the contract was cancelled, with the consultants, 
who had done considerable work on the plans for the proposed building 
being paid $80,580 for their services.

Mr. Henderson: This note recites how in 1957 the Department of Transport 
ssked for a new headquarters building. Three years later the Department of 

ublic Works agreed that provision should be made for it in the Confederation 
eights area. Two firms of consulting architects were appointed to prepare 

Ptins and specifications and supervise construction. However, the decision was 
aken in September, 1963 that the new building should be located in the 
°nfederation Square area. The following June the services of the consulting 
rchitects were dispensed with and they were paid $80,580 for their services.

The Chairman: This is the same thing all over again.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, this seems to be a succession of frivolous 

aiming and subsequent cancellation of plans, which so far has cost us about 
W50,000.

The Chairman: You have been adding them up as we go along?
Mr. Ballard: The last three.
An hon. Member: It is much greater than that.

j, Mr. Ballard: It is much greater than that on the whole, but these three 
of?ls amount to $350,000, and it is a result of frivolous planning on the part 

Ministers.
tjj just points up the fact, as somebody mentioned a moment ago, that 
com6 s^ou^ be a central planning authority for future development and 

inuity in development.
tjjis?T'he Chairman: Is there anything that the department wishes to say on

Mr. Baldwin: And a little more backbone in the Treasury Board.
^he Chairman: Something definitely has to be done, because it is costing 

^taxPayer altogether too much money, with everyone changing their minds. 
Mever the answer is, I do not know.

tyjjj Mr. Lalonde: I might say, Mr. Chairman, that no matter what you do, it 
never be cut and dried in every case.
^■en years ago the policy was to locate government buildings on the 

now it is to develop the downtown area. This is where all of these
^tskirts

c0lJl n§s are going to be, in the Union Station area and in the LeBreton Flats 
bgc ^ ex- Perhaps 10 or 15 years from now a new policy will come into effect 

lUse °f traffic problems.
*«*89-31
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Therefore, I do not think that we can say it will always be this particular 
policy. We will always be subject to that as we are subject to legislative 
changes.

Mr. Ballard : The point remains, Mr. Chairman, that the present outlook is 
for the development of the downtown area. This is quite acceptable, but my 
argument is, that while this is acceptable at the present time, we do not want to 
look forward to next year and find that the government of the day has decided 
to move the whole city out to the Gatineau Hills. This would be as frivolous as 
what has been happening.

I hope there is some long term, or long range, plan for development, which 
will be acceptable over a long period of time and will not be subject to 
continuous changes.

Mr. Flemming: I wanted to ask Mr. Lalonde about his remark in connection 
with leasing, which, I think, has a good deal of merit. He remarked a momen 
ago that in the future he felt that a good deal more leasing would be carried on 
by the department. Presumably the buildings would be built by private 
enterprise. Is that right?

Mr. Lalonde: I did not say that, Mr. Flemming. I said that the changes nj 
the departments, which are occurring as a result of the bill which is at presen 
before the House, will be taken care of through leased accommodation.

I think that the question of Crown-owned versus leased accommodation lS 
one that is a great deal more complex than appears on the surface.

There are a number of factors. First of all, there is the very important fact 
that if you do more of one than of the other you are going to break a balanc 
that, in the long run, will catch you in a very precarious situation. For instance» 
if we say we are going to provide accommodation only through leased premise » 
sooner or later we will find ourselves at the mercy of those who hold the leas 
when we come to renew them. We have to have a balance between the two, an 
I think that we should strive, both in the national capital area and in the larê 
cities, to maintain that balance.

The Chairman: One more item and then we will adjourn. Paragraph 116-
116. Cost of modifying heating plant in new building, Toronto. Th® 

Mackenzie Building was built to house government departments 
Toronto and was accepted from the contractors in stages between Is1 
vember 1959 and April 1960. Its final cost was $13,087,000.

At the request of the Department of Public Works, the consult'0^ 
architects provided for the use of coal in heating and specified underfc®^ 
ram type stokers. Over the period of a year during construction 
contractor operated the boiler plant for temporary heating using the Wv 
of coal recommended by the stoker manufacturer.

Difficulties in operating the heating plant were encountered by 
Department shortly after it took delivery of the building. The archil6 
denied responsibility, pointing out that they had advised the Departm6^ 
of the importance of purchasing coal based on the recommendation^^ 
the manufacturer of the installed equipment but that their advice 
not been taken.
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In 1964 the Department converted the heating plant from coal to 
natural gas, with oil as a stand-by, at a cost of $27,389.

Mr. Henderson: This note has to do with a non-productive payment made 
in connection with the Mackenzie building in Toronto. As is explained here, 
difficulties were encountered in operating the heating plant shortly after the 
department took delivery of the building. However, the architects denied 
responsibility saying they had advised the department of the importance of 
Purchasing the coal recommended by the manufacturer of the installed equip­
ment, but that their advice had not been taken; and as is indicated here, a 
Pen-productive payment was incurred when the department converted the 
heating plant from coal to natural gas at a cost of $27,389.

The Chairman: I think this one is right on the doorstep of the Department 
of Public Works. I do not think it is a change of mind outside the department 
this time.

Mr. Freeze: What you say is quite true, Mr. Chairman. Nevertheless, 
think it is important to say that the alternative of gas was not available to the 

u^partment when the decision was initially taken to use coal. There were 
changed circumstances during the period between the beginning of the design 
aPd the actual operation of the building.

In simple language, the situation here is that in spite of considerable care 
°P the part of the Department of Public Works’ workmen the heating plant 
m the building was incapable of producing, with the fuel that we were buying, 
Proper heating of the building. Therefore, some remedial action was necessary. 
. We had to change from one type of fuel to another, and our investigation 
Indicated that changing from the type of coal we were buying, which was 

anadian coal, to American coal, would not produce the amount of BTU’s that 
®re necessary to heat the building, and we felt that we had to change to 
different kind of fuel.

Wv,- 6 exammed the economics of using coal, of using oil and of using gas. 
hue it was possible to show that the best picture would be provided by the 
e of heavy oil, we were also conscious of the fact that the use of heavy oil in 
wntown Toronto would create problems unless we put in expensive scrubbing 

^jWipment to keep oil vapours out of the air, and in the circumstances we 
°Se to go to gas.

^ I am sure that the department was conditioned, to some extent, in its 
j clsion to use gas rather than coal, or to convert to another kind of coal, by the 
Sa ■ annual using cost of gas, as opposed to coal, would result in a
0r lng of about $12,000 per year, because you do not need quite as much labour 

fuel handling equipment, and that the savings would, therefore, pay out the 
tioSt installation of gas burners. The cost of $27,000 was for the installa­
it! n eQuipment that was not then in the building, and this would be paid out 
25 tw° or three years. We would increase the efficiency of the boilers by some 
fQr per cent by using the gaseous fuel, and this would obviate the necessity 

Putting in additional boiler capacity.
The Chairman: Excuse me, Mr.Schreyer I would like to follow here.
^ho made the decision to burn coal in the first place?
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Mr. Freeze: The government policy at the time the building was designed 
was to use Canadian coal where it could be delivered.

The Chairman : Therefore you had the architect put in heating equipment 
to burn coal. He put in the type of equipment that would heat the building, s° 
he states, and would burn Canadian coal. Was this not the fact?

Mr. Freeze: No; I am sorry. The type of equipment he put in for fue* 
handling would not operate with the kind of Canadian coal; it was American 
coal.

The Chairman: Did you not clear with him that your policy was to burn 
Canadian coal?

Mr. Freeze: Yes.
The Chairman: Well, you accepted equipment that would not burn 

Canadian coal?
Mr. Freeze: Equipment was accepted that would not burn Canadian coal.
The Chairman: The Department of Public Works installed equipment that 

was not capable of burning Canadian coal.
Mr. Freeze: That is right.
The Chairman: And, your policy was to heat with Canadian coal.
Mr. Freeze: That is correct.
The Chairman: That is the answer to this whole section as I see it.
Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to say that it seems quit® 

impressive that the cost of conversion could have been recouped in less th 
three years. The only question that remains is this: Is this $27,000 the net c°^ 
of conversion after the sale of the coal-burning apparatus? As a matter 
interest, what happened to it? Was it sold?

Mr. Freeze: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, I do not know what happened to ti1® 
stokers. I can find out. .

If it was sold, it would be sold through Crown Assets Disposal Corpora» 
and the funds would not be charged against this particular installation.

Mr. Schreyer: Do you believe the cost to the taxpayer might have beerl 
reduced even further.

Mr. Freeze: It could be.
The Chairman: Apparently the contractor could heat the building, and 

burned the coal recommended by the stoker manufacturer. t
Mr. Freeze: Yes; I think you must recognize that the contractor was ^ 

heating the building to the same extent that is necessary in an occup1 

building.
The Chairman: It is unfortunate that you did not specify that you 

going to burn Canadian coal. You could have had equipment put in w 
would have handled Canadian coal.

This is why it is on your doorstep.
Mr. Lalonde: This is one of those sins which we were talking about earlier-
The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned until after orders of the day-
Thank you, gentlemen.
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AFTERNOON SITTING
* (3.46 p.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, I think we will proceed. I know there are some 
other members on the way. If you will turn to your 1965 Auditor General’s 
Report, we will commence on page 74, paragraph 117.

117. Relationship of site cost to building cost, Woodstock, Ontario. In 
considering proposals for the construction of federal buildings the 
Treasury Board follows a general rule that the costs of the site should 
range between 15 per cent and 25 per cent of building costs. If a greater 
percentage of cost appears, the department concerned is required to 
explain in detail the special circumstances necessitating the higher cost.

In the case of a new federal building in Woodstock, the site cost 
exceeded 52 per cent of the building cost when the proposals of the 
Department of Public Works were set aside in favour of those made by 
municipal officials and others.

In September 1960 the Department received the concurrence of the 
Treasury Board’s Advisory Committee on Accommodation Standards to a 
proposal for erection of a federal building to house government depart­
ments at Woodstock at an estimated cost of $425,000. The site approved 
by the Committee was a Crown-owned armoury property and an adjoin­
ing property, which it was expected could be acquired for approximately 
$60,000. Its location, less than two blocks from the main street and 
adjacent to the provincial buildings was reported to be acceptable to the 
municipality.

Shortly after taking this decision the Department was asked by the 
Mayor and others to consider another site which it was claimed would 
prove more beneficial to the municipality in its overall planning and 
would help to rehabilitate a depressed section of the city. While the 
location of this site compared favourably with the original one, the 
Department viewed with concern the increased cost of acquiring it.

However, in February, 1962 it decided to proceed with the site 
favoured by the local officials and expropriated six properties required 
for siting and parking facilities.

During 1962 and 1963 the Department submitted proposals for 
settlements to the Treasury Board for approval. In September 1962 the 
Board stated that although the land costs appeared unnecessarily high, 
“abandonment of the properties would result in very serious claims 
being submitted against the Crown which in turn would tend to outweigh 
any savings to be realized by reverting to the Armoury or some other 
less costly site”.

The total cost of the site including payments to the formers owners, 
to certain tenants in respect of leasehold interests, legal services, demoli­
tion of the buildings, etc., amounted to $283,000. The final cost of the 
building erected on the site, with associated costs including consultants’ 
fees, will approximate $537,000.

^r- A. M. Henderson (Auditor General of Canada): This is a case where 
°fflcers noted the substantial percentage of the total cost expended on the
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building site. It is a practice in the audit office to follow the expressions of 
opinion and the criteria laid down by the Treasury Board, which is frequently 
very helpful to us, in exercising our own judgment on matters coming to our 
attention.

This is a clear case where proposals of the Department of Public Works 
were set aside in favour of those made by municipal officials and others. It will 
be seen that the department believed that a federal building could have been 
erected at Woodstock at an estimated cost of $425,000, a figure which was later 
revised to $550,000, with approximately $60,000 spent on the site.

The final total costs of the site, including payments which had to be made 
to the former owners, to tenants in respect of leaseholds interests, legal services, 
demolition of the buildings et cetera, as you will see, amounted to $283,000. The 
final cost of the building is expected to approximate $537,000.

Mr. D. A. Freeze (Director, Property and Building Management Branch 
Department of Public Works): Mr. Chairman, I do not have much to add other 
than to say the facts are as stated. I do not know if Mr. Henderson made it clear 
that it was a different site that cost $282,000 to the one that was estimated at 
$60,000. Other than that, I cannot add any more. I would be glad to comment on 
any questions.

Mr. Bigg: Was any representation made to the city in this slum clearance 
program? It seems to me that we were engaged in a slum clearance program®’ 
the demolition and so forth; did the municipality contribute at all to this■

The Chairman: I think, Mr. Bigg, by your question you mean why did 
they not build the post office on crown owned land.

Mr. Bigg: Yes, and if there was a good reason for not building it ther > 
were any overtures made to the city that they should contribute to t 
greatly increased cost?

Mr. Freeze: Yes and no. I might make it clear in the first instance f^a* 
the proposal of the Department of Public Works was not to build on 
Department of National Defence land but on land adjacent to it; but becau 
of the contiguous D.N.D. land, which was more than they needed, we we 
going to be able to acquire a portion of their site which they did not ha^ 
in use for off-street parking, for rear yard facilities, and it allowed us to 8 
by with a much smaller expenditure for land than elsewhere in the ci 
Our attention, however, was directed to a piece of property in the core of 
city and in directing our attention to it, the city indicated to us that 
would be re-developing that area. It abutted on the market square ^ 
Woodstock, if you know that particular part of the city. They were 801 
to have a re-development of that area and that our building being placed tn® 
would co-operate. However, they made no contribution to the purchase of 
land that we subsequently bought.

The Chairman: I would gather, Mr. Freeze, from what you said—I 
to know the city of Woodstock—that where the post office is now l°ca y 
is a much better location than if it had been built adjacent to the arm0 , 
property, and the city were successful in clearing up a slum area aPgt 
re-developing, as you say—It has turned out to be more convenient for the P° 
office to be located where it is.
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Mr. Freeze: The Post Office Department stated that they favoured the 
down town site to the other which is not that far away from the down town 
area. It is about four blocks distant. The Post Office definitely favoured the 
^ore expensive site.

Mr. Ballard : Are the factories all located much closer to this central site?
Mr. Freeze: Yes, I would think so.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, from whom was this property purchased?
The Chairman: I suppose a number of owners?
Mr. Freeze: Yes. There were six owners and two tenants, who were paid:

■ B. Bicker ton; Charles R. MacCormack; Daniel and John Murray; G. O.; 
atham; Douglas Cleaners Limited who were a tenant of Tatham; Mr. B. R. 
honapson; the Brewers Warehousing Company Limited, a tenant on the 
hompson property and Woodland Beverages Limited.

* (3.50 p.m.)
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, how large a plot of land is involved ?
Mr. Freeze: The property has a frontage of approximately 173 feet on 

Market Square and a depth of approximately 165 on Reid Street and slightly 
^ore than that on Metcalfe Street.

The Chairman: If there are no further questions we will proceed, bu i 
w°uld appear that the Post Office people are satisfied with the location, the city 

Woodstock are pleased with the location and it cost $112,000 more The 
finished cost was $537,000 and it would have been $425,000 so the difference 
w°Uld be $112,000 extra.

Mr. Freeze: That is the building you are talking about.
The Chairman: This is just the building.
Mr. Freeze: The first piece of land was estimated at $60,000 and the other

COst about $282,000.
The Chairman: So you have to add that.
Mr. Freeze: Yes, $120,000 odd.
Mr. Bigg: The crown still owns the land not used I should think?

0f..Mi'. Freeze: Yes, the Department of National Defence are still in occupancy 
neir site. The crown did dispose of its old post office, however, to the city.

is Mr. Henderson: This is not a non-productive item, as you can appreciate. It 
S<Wiething that could have been put up at a considerable saving of money, 

(j is the reason I have it in my report. You have a situation where the 
cement was proceeding in the perfectly normal course. It received the 
stJ^rence of the Treasury Board’s advisory committee on accommodation 
ttlutv&rcis an(! were proceeding to go about its undertaking here when the 

IclPal officials moved in and caused it to go to all this additional expense.
The Chairman: The municipality did not pay any of the added cost?

re^JMr- Henderson: They made no contribution. It did have the merit of 
that Stating a depressed section of the city, but they did not contribute toward
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Mr. Bigg: I would have thought there would have been an overture, at 
least, in that regard. It seems there was a considerable expense in demolition 
and so on. In view of the fact that they were co-operating with the city, I would 
have thought that it would have been in their interest to have co-operated to a 
certain extent, in the demolition at least, that is, preparing the property f°r 
resale.

The Chairman : Was any overture made, Mr. Freeze, to the municipality f°r 
them to pay some of this cost?

Mr. Freeze: Not directly, but it was pointed out to the city that we ieh 
they should give us some assurance that there would indeed be a re-develop' 
ment of the area and that off-street parking facilities would be provided- 
Subsequently, the city has put in a parking lot. I cannot say anything about the 
cost of it or the usefulness of it. I only know that one was put in.

Mr. Bigg : Have you been given some parking rights off property.
Mr. Freeze: The government finally convinced the city that they should not 

be expected to provide off-street customer parking in this particular location in 
view of the city’s plans. The city finally agreed to this and then they, in turn, 
understand, have provided parking in an off-street parking area.

The Chairman: Section 118.
118. Cost of little-used, railway spar line, P ointe-au-P ère, Que. 

1958 the Department of Public Works decided to proceed with t 
construction of a deep water winter port at Pointe-au-Père costin 
approximately $3 million. Included in this development was to be a spn 
line, 3J miles long, from the Canadian National Railways main line to t 
proposed port. The Department estimated the cost of such a spur line 
$600,000 and invited the Railways to give favourable consideration to t 
investment as their share of the overall project.

The Railways declined, stating that their assessment of the situating 
was that the possible new rail traffic which might be expected to resu^ 
from the building of the line would not justify their assuming “ah 0 
part of the capital cost and/or the related annual maintenence cost •

In 1960 the Department obtained authority from the Treasury Boar 
to enter into a standard industrial siding agreement with the RailWa 
which provided that the Department would accept financial responsibi 1 
for the acquisition of the site, the construction of the right of w ’ 
maintenance and snow removal. The Railways agreed to install the ra
and associated equipment for which an annual rental would be requined-

of
theConstruction of the spur line was completed in 1961 at a cos 

$401,000 to the Department, whereupon it transferred the facilities t° T" 
Department of Transport for control and management, with the la j 
Department becoming responsible for the payment of the annual re° 
of $4,169 for the trackage. However, no annual rental has been paid ye 

The Department of Transport was concerned that responsibility 
this spur line should be thrust upon it in this way and asked f°r , 
clarification of policy. As a result, the Treasury Board in 1963 appr° ^ 
of a new policy to be followed in future with respect to the installât!011^ 
railway tracks on government wharves. This policy provides that tra
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at new wharves are to be installed only at the request and expense of a 
railway, with the railway determining whether the traffic involved would 
justify such consideration.

The wisdom of this policy is illustrated by the use made of the spur 
line since its construction at Pointe-au-Père. Only four carloads were 
handled on the spur in 1962 and none in 1963. The primary use of the 
track has evidently been to bring railway cars to the wharf in winter to 
serve as a windbreak for ferry traffic.

Mr. Henderson: There is little I can add to the facts given in this section,
Chairman. Perhaps Mr. Lalonde may have something to add. As you see, 

he railway spur line has not exactly been a busy spot. The primary use of the 
rack has evidently been to bring railway cars to the wharf in winter to serve 

as a windbreak for ferry traffic.
Mr. G. Millar (Chief Engineer, Harbours and Rivers Branch, Department 

I Public Works) : Mr. Chairman, in the first place, I want to say that the 
'•aternent of the Auditor General is a true statement. The railway was built; 
ae CNR did not want to pay for it; Treasury Board approved that the federal 

s°vernment would pay for it through our estimates, and it has never been used.
The story starts this way. At Rimouski, six miles upstream from Pointe- 

^U-Père, for the last 25 years previous to that time there was a subsidized ferry 
°at running across from Rimouski to Baie Comeau in the summer and from 
°inte au Pic on the north shore of the St. Lawrence to Baie Comeau in the 

Winter.
In 1957-1958, there was pressure on the government to provide year round 

°dern ferry boat service across the St. Lawrence and it could not be put at 
^'ttiouski for engineering reasons. The Department of Transport had abandoned 

^harf at Pointe-au-Père, the former site of a piloting station, and this was 
(6r°Wn 1° be a better location for a winter port. A $3 million project for this 
of, ry was proposed and built on this site. During the planning and the building 
a the wharf, the Department of Transport, the Department of Public Works 
. a the Canadian Maritime Commission, who were providing the subsidy, were 
Wk^0Se contact- In fact we had a committee in 1959 that was fairly active.

etl the operator of the ferry was trying to negotiate a new subsidy for a new 
ofrry boat with the Canadian Maritime Commission we had to know what type 

boat was going to be used and the approximate size. Previously, the ferry 
i; ated from a rail head at Pointe au Pic and at Rimouski from a main railtitle

, It was never questioned that there would not be any freight going over the 
6rry. In fact, Clarke Steamship, the original subsidized ferry operator, 

Pr°Posed in their scheme to bring freight by rail piggy-back to Pointe-au-Père 
to offload it there, put it on the ferry and attach a tow motor at Baie 

Lotheau for delivery to the owners, without any breaking up of the freight.

tieV( At that time it was realized that the freight would not be substantial but it 
to tiT came UP that the rail would not be required. Originally we had proposed 
p., _ Treasury Board that the federal government, through the Department of 

lc Works, pay for the rail but they advised us to try to get the CNR to pay
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for it. There was considerable correspondence and eventually Treasury Board 
agreed that the Department of Public Works would pay for the rail line under a 
standard siding clause.

The main wharf was built and negotiations broke down between the 
Canadian Maritime Commission and the original subsidized operator. In De­
cember 1960 they subsidized a new company, made up of people from Rimouski 
who had not been in this business before, to purchase a large ferry that became 
available in the United States. It had been operating in the Straits of Mackinac 
and when the bridge was built there it became available. The Canadian 
Maritime Commission subsidized this company, I believe in the amount of $D° 
million to purchase this ferry and to operate it from Pointe-au-Père to Baie 
Comeau. This company was not interested in the freight business. They were 
interested only in getting cars and trucks in the ferry and this is what they 
handled. There was no loose freight,—it was all vehicles, so, therefore, there has 
been no need for the rail so far.

• (4.00 p.m.)
Mr. Bigg: I see there is an item of annual rental of $4,000 for trackage- D 

appears that this railroad line is absolutely useless except for a windbreak. Ar 
we going to keep on paying $4,000 a year for the next 20 years for the lease of 
piece of track, or are they going to sell it back to the railway or pull it up 0 
what?

Mr. Millar : Unfortunately, or fortunately, for this department, the De 
partment of Public Works only constructs. When we build such a wharf 
facility we pass it on to the Department of Transport for administration und 
the harbours and piers act. This is normal practice. So now it is the Departm6 
of Transport that has to pay this $4,000 a year and they have no revenue at a 
from it. It has not been paid, by the way.

Mr. Bigg: It has not been paid?
Mr. Millar: No.
Mr. Bigg: You have not been paying this $4,000?
Mr. Millar: They are in arrears to the CNR; they are still negotiating 

the CNR to try and resolve it.
Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, I would just like to make a note here that ^ 

check with the Department of Transport on this item and see if we can cut 0 
future losses in this regard.

The Chairman: We must not pass lightly over this one. It is a ridicul0^ 
situation. We have spent over $3 million; four carloads have been over the sP 
line and I presume that today there is none passing over it.

Mr. Millar: Very little.
The Chairman: Who built the spur line?
Mr. Millar: The CNR and we paid for it under a siding agreement. Ther 

was some cost to the CNR but we paid $400,000.
. of

The Chairman: Did the CNR state that they were not interested m 
that it was not a good proposition?
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Mr. Millar: Yes, originally we tried to get the CNR to build it at their own 
c°st; they refused.

The Chairman: They refused? Then who went ahead and built it?
Mr. Millar: Our department.
The Chairman: The Department of Public Works?
Mr. Millar: By the CNR under the agreement.
The Chairman: This is the story: the CNR advised against building the 

sPur line but the Department of Public Works overruled the CNR’s thinking 
and went ahead and built the spur line. Am I right? Correct me if I am wrong.

Mr. Millar: Generally, yes, sir.
Mr. Lalonde: No, we did not build it; the CNR built the spur line.
The Chairman: They built it but you paid for it.
Mr. Millar: They did the actual work but we paid for it.
Mr. Ballard: I would like to be very clear, Mr. Chairman, on this 

Particular point. The CNR did not want to pay for the Une but the Department 
1 Public Works recommended that it be built, or was it the Department of 

■^ansport?

Mr. Millar: It was the Department of Public Works.
Mr. Ballard: The Department of Public Works recommended that it be

Mr. Millar : Yes.
The Chairman : I say that we should not pass lightly over $3 million spent.
Mr. Bigg: EspeciaUy when it entails future costs.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, might I ask then what studies did the 

apartment of Public Works carry out or what investigations did they make 
at brought them to the conclusion that this line should be built in view of the 
ct that the CNR said that it was not an economic venture.

Q Mr. Millar: There were economic studies made in co-operation with the 
^apartment of Transport, and it did not show that there would be too much 
Q^Sht at the beginning. But they stated that eventually it might come into its 

It was not economic at the beginning according to the report.
ban ^r' Mallard : It was built on the supposition of something that might 

Ppen, that there might be an increase in traffic some time in the future?
Mr. Millar: Yes.
Mr. Ballard: But this, of course, did not come about.
Mr. Millar: It has, but not through freight. It has, through trucks.

U Mr. Lalonde: You might make a distinction, Mr. Chairman, between the 
the $3 million which is for the construction of the harbour and the item for 
hot S^Ur Une which is $401,000. The argument is really about the spur line and 

about the harbour.
blr. Ballard: The harbour is being used?
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Mr. Millar : Oh, yes.
Mr. Ballard: It is being used to accommodate truck traffic?
Mr. Millar: Yes, and the ferry has not missed one day since it started 

operating in 1962.
Mr. Ballard: So really we are discussing a matter of $400,000, not $3 

million?
The Chairman: $401,000, the cost of the spur line.
Mr. Henderson: May I say, Mr. Chairman, with reference to the ferry 

which was mentioned, the Committee may recall this was discussed when 
considering the paragraphs in my 1964 report, where in paragraph 87 I dea 
with the federal contribution to the cost of the particular ferry vessel which 
uses this port. This was the ferry vessel, as Mr. Millar said, which had been 
used in the straits of Mackinac. The balance sheet of the company which was 
incorporated for the purpose of operating the ferry showed a paid up capital o 
$180,000, but it was able to purchase the ferry and put it into service because i 
received a subsidy of something like $2.3 million.

Mr. Bigg: And built a port to accommodate it.
Mr. Henderson: And then on top of that this port has been built j° 

accommodate the ferry. The reference to this case in the 1964 report was t 
show the very small equity that the operators had in the operation. You have 
already discussed this.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, one other question. I realize that we are not 
talking about as large an amount as you had indicated originally, but Is 
possible to cancel the agreement with the CNR whereby we pay them $4,000^ 
year? I know that nothing has been paid but could that agreement be cancelled •

Mr. Millar: This is what the Department of Transport is endeavouring t0 
do now with the CNR.

Mr. Lalonde: I think this is one of those cases which may be hard i0 
explain but when the planning was done, it was done for a kind of ferry t*1 
included the transport of freight. That is why the spur was built. Later 0 ’ 
when the new type of ferry came along, it did not use the freight line any m°r ' 
it was a roll on, roll off type of service they were providing. That is when t 
spur line, which was intended to be used, became useless.

Mr. Bigg: I presume they intended to load box-cars right on to the 
itself. Is that correct?

Mr. Mill ar : No, they were piggy-back trucks. The trucks would be l°a<^ 
on flatcars in Montreal, for example, and railroaded to Pointe-au-Père, taken 
by the road truck, put on the ferry and then taken off again at Baie Com6 
and driven to the destination.

The Chairman: I am thinking of your department, Mr. Lalonde. You v'^e 
not the deputy then, but the Department of Public Works spent $401,000 on 
spur line out of your appropriation.

Mr. Lalonde: That is correct, Mr. Chairman. ^
The Chairman: The Department of Transport are to pay a rental of $4, 

a year for the trackage.
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Mr. Lalonde: Yes. For the trackage part for which we did not pay.
The Chairman : You are stuck with spending $401,000 in building the track 

0r another department which is not using it, so you should really get a credit 
j?ack to your department for a non-productive account. Really it is the 
apartment of Transport’s responsibility.

Mr. Lalonde: Well, actually, since the money came out of our estimates 
°riginally you would have to go back and put an item in the Department of 
transport’s estimates. But since we always pay for the wharfage facilities which 
We build and then turn them over to them, this payment was made out of our 
Wn estimates in the regular way. You may say that it has become a payment 
aich did not produce what we thought it would produce for the Department of 
ransport. That is quite right.

The Chairman: Are there any further questions?
119. Failure to provide for subsidy review. In October 1962 a 

company which proposed to construct a new floating dry dock at 
Montreal approached the Department of Public Works to obtain financial 
assistance under the Dry Docks Subsidies Act, R.S., c. 91. The Act 
provides that the Governor in Council may authorize the payment of a 
subsidy in respect of dry docks in the category contemplated, not 
exceeding 4£ per cent per annum of the cost of the work, to a maximum 
of $4 million, during a period not in excess of 35 years. On this basis the 
Department sought approval in principle from the Treasury Board to 
enter into an agreement to pay a subsidy of $180,000 per annum if the 
private capital outlay was at least $4 million.

The Board concurred with the Department’s proposal on condition 
that the agreement provide that the subsidy be the subject of review at 
reasonable intervals, three to five years being mentioned. If these period­
ic reviews established that the net operating revenue, together with the 
subsidy, had resulted in a return in excess of 12% on the private capital 
investment, provision was to be made for a downward adjustment of the 
subsidy for the ensuing period.

The proposed dry dock could not qualify as a floating dry dock of the 
first class, as defined by the Dry Docks Subsidies Act, because it would 
not be capable of receiving and repairing therein “with ease and safety 
the largest ships or vessels of the British Navy existing at the time the 
contract is entered into”. This impediment was, however, removed by 
Public Works Vote 132e, Appropriation Act No. 4, 1964, assented to on 
April 13, 1964, the text of which was:

Payment to Canadian Vickers Limited of a subsidy in respect of 
a dry dock in Montreal, Quebec, in accordance with the Dry Docks 
Subsidies Act, Chapter 91, R.S., as though it were a dry dock of the 
first class described by section 7 (a) of the Act $1.
On April 28, 1964 the Department of Public Works reported to the 

Governor in Council that the Canadian Maritime Commission had been 
authorized to pay a subsidy of $2,198,000 towards the cost of the dock 
under the Ship Construction Assistance Regulations and that this, when 
aPplied in reduction of the cost of the dry dock estimated by the
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company at $6,299,000, would reduce the company’s investment to $4,' 
101,000. Accordingly authority was sought and obtained to enter into an 
agreement for the payment of an operating subsidy under the Dry Docks 
Subsidies Act of $180,000 per annum for a period of 35 years.

The Department, however, failed to advise the Governor in Council 
of the condition imposed by the Treasury Board in 1962 whereby the 
subsidy should be reviewed at periodic intervals to determine whether 
net operating revenue, together with the subsidy, was resulting in a 
return in excess of 12% on the company’s own investment, and this 
proviso was not included in the agreement signed by the Departmen 
with the company in June 1964.

The Department was asked for an explanation and we were in' 
formed that the Board’s requirement had been inadvertently overlooke ■ 
In November 1965 the Department informed the company that, in th 
circumstances, there was no alternative but to amend the agreement by 
the inclusion of the necessary proviso.

Mr. Henderson: This note recites the circumstances under which a ne" 
floating dry dock received financial assistance under the Dry Dock Subside
Act. This assistance will be continuing for a period of 35 years. It will be no 
that through an oversight the department did not advise the Governor

■ted
in

Council of a condition imposed by the Treasury Board in 1962, whereby th® 
subsidy would be reviewed at periodic intervals when it would be determine
whether net operating revenue together with the subsidy was resulting in
return in excess of 12 per cent on the company’s own investment. Conseque: 
this proviso was not included in the agreement signed with the company

ntly > 

two

with
years ago.

It is our understanding that the department has taken this matter up 
the company since we dréw it to their attention, and that a supplements 
agreement has either been signed or is about to be signed by the company.

Mr. Lalonde: That is right, Mr. Chairman, I plead guilty on that one. It ** 
an error of omission; we forgot about the 12 per cent, but I have now negotiate 
with the Canadian Vickers Company a new agreement which I have signed 
which they are in the process of sending me back. We have both agreed on 
terms of the agreement incorporating this 12 per cent.

f \he
Mr. Ballard: The new agreement, then, does carry out the intent ox 

present act?

,al

Mr. Lalonde : It does, Mr. Ballard.
Mr. Ballard: It is 12 per cent?
Mr. Lalonde: It is exactly the same as if we had put it in the origin‘^ 

agreement. The company has accepted the fact that the department mao 
mistake.

Mr. Ballard: Is this agreement retroactive to the payment of the 
subsidy?

Mr. Lalonde : That is right.
The Chairman: The next paragraph is 120.
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120. Cost of activating water supply system., Churchill, Man. In 1960 
a contract was placed by the Department of Public Works for the 
construction of an access road, an intake structure and supply lines to 
provide a water supply system at Churchill, which was completed in 1961 
at a cost of $932,000.

The construction of an intake pumphouse had been planned so that 
the supply lines could be activated shortly after their completion without 
lying dormant during the winter season. However, the contract for the 
pumphouse was not awarded until April 1962. It was scheduled for 
completion in October 1962 which date was eventually extended to 
November 1963 because of difficult excavation problems. It was complet­
ed by August 1963 at a cost of $257,000.

The delay in proceeding with the construction of the pumphouse 
meant that the water supply system could not be placed in operation 
before the 1961 freeze-up. The lines were de-watered to prevent frost 
damage and a resident engineer from the firm of consultants retained for 
the project was authorized to remain at the site during the winter to 
ensure that air pressure was maintained to guard against water infiltra­
tion. Notwithstanding this precaution, a partial blockage caused by ice 
was encountered when the lines were tested in October 1962. Although 
the pumphouse contractor made preliminary efforts to clear the lines, the 
situation became more critical and in December 1962 the Department 
instructed the consulting engineers to take emergency action. It was not 
until the following November that all lines were activated.

In addition to their charges for consulting services in the construc­
tion of the water supply system, the consulting engineers claimed an 
additional $141,000 for their services in freeing the lines and activating 
the system, and these claims for the most part were paid prior to March 
31, 1965. The Department has taken the position that insufficient care was 
taken by the consultants to ensure that the lines remained water-free 
during the freezing period. The consulting engineers maintain that the 
basic cause of the mishap was that the supply lines were built considera­
bly in advance of the pumphouse.

The consulting engineers have assumed $10,000 of the cost without 
prejudice to their position.

Mr. Henderson: The circumstances of this case show how water infiltrated 
e supply lines of this system. The consulting engineers claimed an additional 
M,000 for their services in freeing the lines and activating it. The department 
°k the position that insufficient care was taken by the consultants to ensure 

the lines remained water-free during the freezing period. The engineers 
, aintained that the basic cause of the mishap was that the supply lines were 
^ considerably in advance of the pumphouse.

The outcome of this confrontation was that the department paid the 
n§ineers $131,000.

t,. The Chairman: There is room for thought here. Are there any questions? I 
*nk the department should give us their reasons why this was allowed to 

haPpen.
24289—4
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Mr. G. B. Williams (Senior Assistant Deputy Minister, Department of 
Public Works): Mr. Chairman, the particular water supply line is located at 
Churchill; it is about a six mile line running from the Churchill River down to 
the port and it runs through permafrost on the whole length. As we initially 
planned it, we entered into a contract to build an access road and a pipe line- 
This contract was awarded in 1960 and completed in November of 1961. The 
pipe line was planned on the basis that concurrent with it or shortly afterwards 
we would award a contract for the construction of a pumphouse. The intake line 
and the pumphouse are required to operate the pipe line because being 
permafrost it is necessary to introduce a small amount of heated water through 
the pumphouse into the circulation in the pipe line. Our planning went awry h1 
that we could not go ahead with the pumphouse as fast as we had anticipated! 
and so we were not able to introduce heated water into the pipe line for the 
winter of 1961-1962 when it was in the frozen ground.

At that stage, being in permafrost, it was necessary to protect the pipe hn®_ 
If it became full of water and froze solid it would split. We made arrangemen 
with the consultants who were on the job. They were not responsible for th 
delay in planning. There were two solutions: we could either fill it wn 
antifreeze or else we could de-water and keep it under pressure. The sec0” 
solution was taken and this action was followed. However, when we did get t*1 
pumphouse finished in 1963 and put it on line, we found the water line W® 
blocked. We could not get circulation and we had to activate the pipeline, w 
engaged the consultants and the $141,000 was the actual amount they spent oo 
rentals, labour force and engineering force on the site activating that system.

In respect to this, while they were not responsible for the planning dela^ 
we did put that pipeline in their charge during the period in which they were 
have it de-watered and pressurized. Water did get into it. While it was 
difficult task, they gave us the solution; they tried to protect it but we felt they 
were in that case negligent and so we assessed them $10,000 against their fee.

The Chairman: So the resident engineer, who was an employee of th® 
consultants, failed to keep the water out of the pipe line in the winter time an 
this caused damage to the pipe line to the extent of how much money.

Mr. Williams: The activation of it cost $141,000. We are not able to sa^ 
precisely how water did get in the pipe. The consultants said there were 
number of ways it could have happened. They suggested that the contra® 
building the pumphouse, in his operations of hooking up and connecting u 
equipment, could have, by error, put a shot of water in the line in his test ru 
by the wrong valve being opened. It could have been infiltration during 
period in which they had it under their control to keep water out of it; it ®°^ 
have been a sag in the line which occurred through settlement in one particu^ 
part of permafrost which thawed during the construction or as a result of 
construction of the access road. There were many factors which could na 
created this difficulty. We were not able to say it was any one of them but, 
the other hand, we did feel they had some responsibility and they had b 
negligent, at least to some extent.

iMe
The Chairman: Why did you continue to deal with that firm to free 

lines and activate the system when, apparently, they had let you down 
keeping it clear in the winter time?
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Mr. Williams: They were on the site; they knew more about it than 
anyone else and to bring someone else in at that stage, we thought it would be 
an even more costly operation.

Mr. Bigg: Was there something urgent about this pipe line; were they 
trying to meet a deadline? It seems to me that if the pipe line froze up and they 
were not going to use it, they should have left it alone until spring.

Mr. Williams: It would never thaw, sir. It was in permafrost. It never does 
thaw.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, could I ask what would be the diameter of 
hls Pipe line?

Mr. Williams: The delivery line, I believe, was a ten inch.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that these people acknowl- 

ged guilt when they were agreeable to having a $10,000 fine imposed on them, 
seems to me that for a $130,000 deal that $10,000 is getting away pretty easy, 

o ey must have acknowledged guilt when they allowed the fine of $10,000 and I 
lnk the department let them off a little easy by only assessing them $10,000 

n this kind of a job.
r Mr. Williams: It was never a question of their acknowledging guilt; we 
^ Used to pay that much of the assessment; they are still objecting to it but 

Ve not taken any legal action against us.
Mr. Bigg: Is there no insurance for this kind of thing?

u Mr. Williams: It is possible for consulting engineers and architects, as I 
tip v stanc* ifr to obtain, not disaster insurance, but they may insure against 
iud S6nce on tfre Part °f their employees. They are not insurable against their 

Snient, but they are against negligence on the part of their employees.
The Chairman: Was this water line put in to supply water to a camp?

e0 M, Williams: It was put in to supply Fort Churchill which is under the 
(X rM °f the federal government, the National Harbours Board installation at 
ahi rcMh and also to the Canadian National Railways. There is a certain 
ks,°Un-t of the water which is available by stand pipes to the Indian village, the 

lDl° village and some of it goes into the townsite at Churchill.
Mr. Bigg: And National Defence too?
Mr. Williams: Fort Churchill is now under the Department of Public 

rhs, but at that time it was under National Defence.
The Chairman: That is closed now?

ahd f^r: Williams: No, it is being operated by Public Works for Eskimo schools 
acilities in the north.

sati ^r' Noble: Mr. Chairman, could I ask one question? Is this system working 
lsfactorily now?

Mr. Williams: Yes, sir.
çithe^e Chairman: Well, you paid $141,000 to that firm after you had not had 

r §°od relationship or good business with them.
it js^fr- Williams: The $141,000, sir, was the disbursement they made; most of 

2428çu^e up of eQuiPment rentals which they had to use to thaw the line.

W,
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welding units and this sort of thing. It was labour engaged on it as well as their 
on-site engineering crews, plumbers, steamfitters and everything else.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, does that figure of $141,000 include any 
additional fees charged by the consultants?

Mr. Williams: No percentage fees to the engineers were charged.
The Chairman : Would the department, in future, look into and consider 

bond or insurance as Mr. Bigg mentioned in such a delicate operation as this?
Mr. Williams: We do have bonds, but it is a difficult thing to bond 3 

consultant against professional judgment. We have had and we are looking im0 
a new standard agreement; we have drafts and we have discussed them bot 
architecturally and engineeringwise with the societies because they are covere 
by provincial legislation. We have looked into what sort of protection we can 
take. At this stage, by provincial act, the engineer-architect relationship is m3 
they are responsible for negligence but not beyond this. As a matter of faC ' 
continuing on the discussions of this Committee, we discussed it again at n°° 
today, if we made it a contractual obligation that the consultant entered in 0’ 
some kind of definite responsibility, protected by bond or insurance, but we 3j" 
not sure that this would be permissible by the provincial acts. We certain y 
recognize the problem and intend to look further into it.

The Chairman: As we go along it certainly appears that the onus is S0*0 
to have to be put on somebody other than the crown. In a lot of the 
undertakings it seems as though it is very easy to get money out of the cro 
and they take every opportunity to do so I think this Committee will like 
recommend accordingly. ^

Mr. Bigg: I think there is negligence here. Because on this point 
permafrost the consultants knew that any water entering the line would caU 
damage. It was not a question of the weather as at first I thought it might ha 
been. It was their job to see that the lines remained water-free during 1 
freezing period. Well, the freezing period is 24 hours a day, 365 days a Ve 
Therefore, somebody must have left a valve open or else it was, as suggested, 
act of God, a disaster or an earthquake which cracked the line and let W3 j 
into the pipe. If it was one of these, that is why I suggested disaster insuranc < 
meant something apart from negligence, and if this is negligence then tn 
should be insurance to protect the crown.

The Chairman: Next is 121.
121. Additional costs due to inaccurate specifications. In May 

the Department of Public Works awarded a contract in the amoun 
$118,000 for dredging in the harbour at Sault Ste. Marie, Ont. j

The pre-dredging boring program carried out by department 
engineers had shown no bedrock above grade, although it was stated ^ 
some occurred between grade and sub-grade. The contractor reî,°hard 
that he had encountered either very large boulders or extremely p0 
shelves of flat sandstone and as a consequence was obtaining little °r 
production and suffering more than average wear and tear °n 
equipment. Shortly afterwards the departmental district engineer 
formed the Department that contrary to the information provided 
pre-dredging borings, sweeping, sounding and inspection by divers 
revealed substantial areas of bedrock above grade.
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The contractor was paid an additional $28,000 to cover loss of time 
and the additional wear and tear to which his equipment had been 
exposed while working in the bedrock area.

Mr. Henderson: In this case the pre-dredging, boring program was carried 
^ by government engineers and showed no bedrock above grade. However, 

e contractor encountered either large boulders or extremely hard shelves of 
at sandstone and suffered more than average wear and tear on his equipment. 

a consequence, he was paid an additional $28,000 to compensate him for this 
and for his loss of time.
rp, The Chairman : Would the department like to offer some explanation here? 

oe department’s engineers are involved and it is a case of the pre-dredging 
oring program by the department.

k . Mr. Millar: Mr. Chairman, in the first place I would like to say that the 
tarings were not taken by consultants; they were taken by our own boring 

* sfate this because we have the same trouble in our own borings as we 
With consultants.
The area to be dredged was approximately 3,500 feet long and 700 feet 

sd 6 ^is huge area there were bumps which could be located and were 
y e^hed either as class B or class A. Class A are boulders above two cubic 

rds. These had to be taken out in certain manner. There was also in this 
bor3 an°ther area about 2,400 feet long and 400 feet wide, in which we took 
bor'ngS °n dnes every 100 feet, on grades, every 100 feet either way there was a 
SlTlriS- On all these borings there was only one that showed rock in the 

hgrade- The sub-grade is a foot below the grade where the contractor is paid 
bç6 takes it out and he is not paid if he does not, and it does not matter 
shCaUSe we have the grade; that is the leeway. So out of 125 borings not one 

°Wed rock above the grade, and as it turned out, there was considerable rock.
Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, could our contract not read that it would be 

0rriatic for the man to get paid and not to have to come begging; if in fact 
e stuff taken out of the bed is according to the tests, that he gets paid at a 

j 'Tain rate, and with our inspectors on the job it would surely be simple to 
ermine whether he is moving four feet of bedrock instead of clay. He can see 

® stuff coming up with the dredge and mark a chart as it is found, and 
l0rUatically pay the contractor a 25 per cent bonus accordingly.

Mr. Millar: Some contracts are called that way—to rock—and we give 
°ther contract. That is not done often but it has been done.

the "^e Chairman: May I ask why you did this boring yourself and in a lot of 
Se other cases you have hired professionals or outside boring firms to do it?

Mr. Millar: The department maintains a boring branch and I would say 
is a ^ does about one third of the borings required on these jobs, and the rest 

0ne by consultants.
The Chairman: Where do you keep this boring staff and equipment?
Mr. Millar: It is administered through headquarters in Ottawa.

Oh ^e Chairman: Is your equipment scattered around the country or is it in
uawa?

&Ut Millar: It is never here. It goes from place to place with the crews, 
u is based in Ottawa. In the districts we have smaller equipment, what we
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call x-ray borings, but in a major job like this it is either by the test boring 
branch of the department or by the consultatns equipped to do the job.

Mr. Bigg: I would like to say also that it would not take a very large 
amount of rock actually to cause this $28,000 increase. It seems to me it is a 
fairly expensive thing, when they run into bedrock under water, to move it.

Mr. Millar: The rock is very much more expensive but this extra payment 
is not to take out the rock. This is for the trouble that the contractor had m 
getting the other material out. He had to scrape over bedrock, broken rock, f°r 
about two months before we were satisfied that it was rock. I believe, in th1® 
case, it is not rock as in Class A. Soft material is not delineated by a clear-cu 
line. Over the solid rock there is a layer of weathered rock which may or may 
not be taken out by the contractor’s equipment but our borings do not show \ • 
The bore hole goes through it and everything that comes out is broken up. ü h 
only later when we get into the solid rock that we get a core. So we show soli 
rock at a certain elevation and the dredge may not be able to take it out tw 
feet above that elevation.

Mr. Bigg: The point I was trying to make was that in my opinion it would 
not have to be a very extensive area to cause considerable added expense if V0 
ran into trouble. In other words, it was not a half a square mile they 
digging in, it may be in a very limited area, but there was a great deal of dels, 
because of a feature they did not see in the drilling. Is that right?

Mr. Millar: That is right.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, as I understand it this dredging was f°r a 

distance of 3,500 feet. Is that right?
Mr. Millar: It covered an area about 3,500 feet long and about 700 feet 

wide.

• (4.31 p.m.)
125Mr. Noble: The point I am getting at, Mr. Chairman, is that there were 

borings made. Is that right?
Mr. Millar: I gave this figure, but I do not know the exact number. I 

the plan and they are on a hundred foot grid and the last line is on a 50 i 
grid—every 50 feet for two lines—so there must be about 5 per line. There wa 
considerable amount of boring.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that the department were a ji^e 
negligent here because if they did this much boring I think they could n® 
come up with pretty well what was down there and the man would have kn° 
before he started the job what he was up against. I do not know how y°u 
about these borings. You said you run two lines down this channel, two lmeS

inëborings. The dredging area is lengthwise.
Mr. Millar: No. The dredging area is lengthwise. There were lines runn re 

across the dredging area every 100 feet and on these lines every 100 feet t 
was a boring. The contractor, A. B. MacLean, is from Sault Ste. Marie, and 
have been working there at this type of work for at least 35 years.

, T
Mr. Noble: Of course, I do not understand about your boring but 1 $

making an estimate of 125 borings in 3,500 feet. Every 28 feet you would ha 
hole. That is, if you went the length.
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Mr. Millar: There were two areas. One was contained within the other 
°ne- The 3,500 feet was the whole area where there were some little bumps here 
an<f there; but within this area there was another area which was about 2,400 
feet, in fact there were two areas, but I put them as 2,400 by 400.

The Chairman: Are there any more questions? I would like to have Mr. 
^alonde’s idea on why the department bothers with keeping a boring depart­
ment to do their own testings and borings. Why do you not hire it all out and be 
money in pocket and save all this trouble?

Mr. Lalonde: That is just the point, Mr. Chairman. I do not think we 
w°uld be money in pocket because we have to do a number of small jobs 
c°nstantly, not the whole year round on the east coast, but there are areas 
"'here you can work throughout the year. These people are available. If we 
"'ere to go out to contract every time we need some borings taken it would be a 
°t more costly. Of course, there are times when we use this unit on larger 

Projects because they are there and they are available and they are not 
otherwise busy. We try to get full value out of them without building the unit 
m much that we do not use outside arms either. It is a question of balance. I 
mnk that it would not have made one iota of difference if we had used an 

outside firm to take these borings, because the technique would have been 
eXactly the same.

The Chairman: Then you feel that you can operate your own boring 
aePartment as cheaply as if you contracted it out?

Mr. Lalonde : Within that balance that I am talking about of having to 
°Usider small projects as well as large ones. If we did not have any small 
r°jects probably we would not need to have our own unit. But we will always 
ave some of those.

The Chairman: What staff would you have in the boring department?
Mr. Lalonde: About 30, including all the operators.
The Chairman: The next paragraph is 122.

122. Continuing federal assistance to intra-provincial ferry services. 
In our 1963 Report attention was drawn to the continuing federal 
subsidization of ferry landing facilities for provincial governments de­
spite the general policy of the Department of Public Works and the 
Treasury Board over many years to regard such facilities at either end of 
a ferry service linking an intra-provincial highway as the exclusive 
responsibility of the province concerned.

The cases described at that time dealt with major wharf improve­
ments in the lower St. Lawrence area, namely at Les Éboulements for 
the ferry service to îles aux Coudres and the construction of terminal 
facilities at Matane for the ferry service to Godbout. In the latter case 
the Treasury Board withheld its approval of the contract because it was 
felt exception should not be made to the general policy regarding 
facilities for intra-provincial ferry operations. Eventually, however, 
“since some commitment had been given to the private interests, on 
which basis they undertook substantial commitments related to the 
acquisition of a vessel and the construction of the Godbout terminal”, the 
Board reluctantly approved proceeding with the Matane project which 
was completed at a cost of $172,000.
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Construction of the Matane terminal and dredging at Godbout were 
undertaken at that time on the understanding that the ferry operator 
would construct the Godbout terminal and acquire and operate the ferry 
without further federal assistance. Notwithstanding this, Executive au­
thority was granted in August 1963 for entry into a three-year subsidy 
agreement.

In 1963 the Department of Public Works was requested by the 
private owners to purchase the Godbout terminal on the grounds that the 
facilities at both ends of other ferry services in the lower St. Lawrence 
River area had been provided at federal expense. Specific provision was 
made for the purchase in Vote 30 of the Department’s 1964-65 Main 
Estimates and the purchase was approved by the Treasury Board in July 
1964 at a cost of $268,000.

This acquisition has now brought to six the number of locations 
where the federal Government has provided terminals at both ends of 
cross-river ferry services in the lower St. Lawrence River. The total 
expenditure over the years for these terminals, which in some cases form 
part of shipping wharves, had exceeded $7 million at March 31, 1965.

Mr. Henderson: This has to do with continuing federal assistance to
intra-provincial ferry services. The problem dealt with here is one on which 
this Committee could make perhaps a considered recommendation to the House 
which might conceivably be of help to the government department concerned.

Now, three years ago, I referred in my report to the House to the 
continuing federal subsidization of ferry landing facilities for provincial govern­
ments, despite the general policy of the Department of Public Works and the 
Treasury Board over many years to regard such facilities at either end of a 
ferry service linking an intra-provincial highway as the exclusive responsibility 
of the province concerned.

It will be seen here, how in 1963 the Department of Public Works 
asked by the private owners to purchase the Godbout Terminal on the ground 
that facilities at both ends of other ferry services in the lower St. Lawrenc 
River area had been provided at federal expense. In due course this purcha8 
was approved by the Treasury Board.

This particular acquisition has brought to six the number of locatio 
where the federal government has provided terminals at both ends of cross-nv 
er ferry services in this area. It will interest you to know that the to ^ 
expenditure over the years for these terminals which in some cases form part 
shipping wharves, has exceeded $7 million at the close of 1965.

I imagine Mr. Lalonde will have something to add to this situation for 1 
information of the members.

Mr. Williams: Mr. Chairman, within the department and arising in Par\aj 
least, from the recommendations of this Committee, an interdepartmen 
committee was set up between the Department of Transport, Finance, Canadi ^ 
Maritime Commission and Public Works and they prepared a report to cabidi 
again stressing the point that these intra-provincial ferries should be consider 
as part of the highway system and that the government should avoid bel 
involved in them. s

We were pushed into the situation at Godbout, as Mr. Henderson ^ 
reported, on the basis of the previous five arrangements which had been h*a
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where both sides of the ferry terminals had been paid for by the federal 
government. The interdepartmental committee report referred to the fact that 
here were six in existence and the report was submitted to cabinet and the 

Policy statement has been given to all departments that where it is an 
Pitra-provincial ferry, where there is a revenue and where it is not totally 
Self-supporting the province would be expected to contribute to both the 
derations of the ferry and the terminal facilities, and in most cases entirely 
Pay for them.

No department will act independently in one of these. They will all be 
r°ferred to this interdepartmental committee.

The Chairman: It sounds as if it is under better control.
123. Contribution due for ice control structure, Montreal. Ice jams 

have always been a serious problem in the St. Lawrence River between 
Lake St. Peter and the Montreal harbour. It was forseen that creation of 
the site for Expo ’67 in this area would intensify this problem. Since 
icebreaking capacity sufficient to guarantee an open river throughout the 
winter could not be assured, an interdepartmental committee decided in 
1963 that an additional safeguard should be provided in the form of an 
ice control structure to provide protection to the Exhibition site and to 
assist in controlling the ice conditions in the area. It was announced early 
in 1964 that the estimated cost of the structure would be $12.5 million. It 
is now expected to cost approximately $15.5 million.

Following a meeting held with the City of Montreal in July 1963, a 
document was signed by the three federal Ministers concerned and the 
Mayor of Montreal, which among other things recorded the City’s 
agreement to make a contribution of $2.5 million toward the cost of the 
Project.

It was May 1964 before legal officers of the Department of Public 
Works and the City of Montreal met to work out the details of an 
agreement to provide for this contribution by the City. The departmental 
legal officers, however, expressed doubts as to the legal capacity of the 
City to enter into the project without provincial legislation. As a 
consequence it was not until June 1965 that an opinion was obtained to 
the effect that the City would be so empowered, subject to the passing of 
an enabling by-law by the City Council.

The agreement has not yet been signed. Meanwhile, construction has 
proceeded and the project is due for completion by July 1966. Federal 
government progress payments to the contractors and engineers up to 
March 31, 1965 totalled $5,983,000 and have been advanced without any 
contribution so far by the City of Montreal under its 1963 undertaking.

The Department advised us in November 1965 that the resolution of 
the problem is imminent.

Or- Henderson: This has to do with contributions used for the ice control 
sig^C*Ure at Montreal. While the agreement referred to here had not been 
Iggg n°r had any payment been made by the city of Montreal by the time my 
Cojjt r®P°rt went to the printer, I understand that the city of Montreal paid its 
ÿearri“ution of $2.5 million toward the cost of this project on January 11 of this
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It will be noted from the first paragraph that it was announced early m 
1964 that the estimated cost of this structure would be $12.5 million. We now 
understand that the revised estimated cost is to the order of $16.3 million.

Perhaps Mr. Lalonde or Mr. Williams will have something to add to this.
Mr. Ballard : I may have missed some of the conversation or some of the 

instruction given but I was wondering if this is an isolated case of a continuing 
subsidy. We are studying the 1965 report. To the knowledge of the Pubhc 
Works Department, have there been any more isolated cases since that time, 
even in the current year?

Mr. Williams: There have not been any that we have contributed to; there 
have been requests but there have been none that we have contributed to since 
that Godbout situation.

Mr. Henderson: I would like to ask Mr. Smith if he has heard of ^ 
further developments on this.

Mr. Smith: No, I have not sir.
Mr. Henderson: I must say, from the statement made by Mr. Williams, that 

it does look as though every effort is being made to hold the line and perhap 
the investment of $7 million to March 31, 1965, will be the same when I come 
report next year.

Mr. Bigg: With respect to intra-provincial and inter-provincial, is there a 
different policy where the ferries operate between two different provinces?

Mr. Williams: There are situations where the federal government doe5 
make contributions to inter-provincial ferries.

Mr. Bigg: Between two different provinces?
Mr. Williams: That is correct. The P.E.I. ferry service, for example. 
Mr. Bigg: How about international, between here and the states?
Mr. Williams: Yes, there have been—
An hon. Member: How about Sault Ste. Marie?
Mr. Williams: No, they are self-sustaining; as far as I know there has been 

no contribution there.
There is a federal interest but not necessarily a contribution. That is 

control function and an approval function.
Mr. Henderson: We had a situation on the Pelee Island ferry which apPea^t 

in my report and I do not think it comes under the heading of the Departm6 
of Public Works. I may be wrong but I know that the member of the 
from that part of the country telephoned me to make the point that this wa5 e 
international ferry and, therefore, fully justified to have federal support- ^ 
federal government had been seeking to get that support from the province 
Ontario. Each year when the subsidy comes up it is said to be the last paymen ■

Mr. Bigg: How about the ferry between Nova Scotia and Newfoundland?
Mr. Henderson: That would be strictly inter-provincial. g
Mr. Williams: There is subsidy on that as I understand it, but it lS 

matter for the Department of Transport rather than ourselves.
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Mr. Henderson: We will come to that note, I think, further on in the
report.

Mr. Williams: I would like to mention though sir, that there are other 
lsolated cases where there is a subsidy just as there are isolated cases where the 
federal government has participated in an interprovincial bridge. I cannot recall 
to° many of them but I do know that there are several interprovincial bridges 
here but not ferries. There is a case at Kingston where we do provide a dock 
which is used by the ferry service that goes international at Kingston.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, does the Tobermory South Bay ferry come 
Under this jurisdiction?

Mr. Williams: It is provincial, I believe. There are cases where, and some 
uf the six that we have dealt with on the St. Lawrence, initially became ferry 
terminals because they were shipping wharf terminals and they gradually 
developed into a ferry boat terminal rather than a freight shipment terminal, 
that is the historic context in which the government was involved.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I assume that in this particular case that the 
ePartment of Public Works recommended that they not contribute to this 

®rry terminal but they were overruled eventually by the Treasury Board. Is 
mis correct?

Mr. Williams: I do not think you should say that we were overruled by 
he Treasury Board. Matters are presented to the Treasury Board for decision, 
ut they usually are the result of representations outside the board.

Mr. Ballard: You do not have to say that you were overruled, but I would 
that you were overruled. The question I am coming to is this. I suppose, in 

lew of the fact that this has happened in this particular case, if there were 
bother submission made which you would not agree to, you could again be 
verruled by the Treasury Board?

Mr. Williams: The government are the executives and can decide to do 
hat they wish, as I see it, in matters of government policy and spending. The 
°mt I made previously in referring to it is the fact that the matter was 
/erred to cabinet, and they have directed that in each case the matter must be 

y rected to an interdepartmental committee in the terms of their recommenda- 
h Which was that the federal government should not or should try and stay 
i of this intraprovincial ferry operation. So Treasury Board will be guided by 

ç e. recommendations of this committee and what they will permit to stand in 
1 Urates or not stand in estimates.

can Mr. Ballard: I would like to direct a question to the Auditor General. How 
C°X1 We, as a Committee, prevent this sort of thing from happening again? How 

n this Committee prevent it?
aM, Henderson: I think, Mr. Ballard, by doing what you are doing now, by 
tyL ln§ questions and if you do not get satisfactory answers send for the people 
Wit?,can answer them. It says right here that the Treasury Board did, in fact, 
be tl*r°ld its approval of the contract because it felt that an exception should not 
'I't,(irnahe to this general policy. Eventually, however, and here we quote the 

asure Board’s own statement:
Since some commitment had been given to the private interests on 

which basis they undertook substantial commitments related to the
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acquisition of a vessel and the construction of the Godbout terminal the 
Board reluctantly approved proceeding with the Matane project which 
was completed at a cost of $172,000.

Mr. Tardif : Can you tell me, sir, what “commitment had been given to the 
private interests”?

Mr. Henderson: I do not know if that information is available in the files of 
the Department of Public Works. Would you be aware of that, Mr. Williams?

Mr. Williams: I do not know what commitment had been given.
Mr. Tardif: Could we find out what commitment, in fact, had been given to 

the private interests?
Mr. L. P. Boyle (Former Financial Adviser, Department of Public Works)- 

I think the submission from which you cite was related to the Matane 
contribution in the earlier year in which the Treasury Board reluctantly 
approved the contribution to Matane on the basis that the private entrepreneurs 
had made commitments in Matane-Godbout. The reluctant approval was related 
to the earlier case at Matane, I think.

Mr. Henderson: In that case, Mr. Ballard, we will have to find out what the 
facts are and report at the next meeting, if we may. We will ascertain that f°r 
you.

Mr. Ballard: I wish you would.
Mr. Bigg: I think I can understand the reluctance of the federal department 

to pay for intra-provincial works because we would be accused of interfering 1 
we started deciding what type of facilities they are going to have on an 
intra-provincial highway. I strongly urge that we do not interfere in these 
matters where we have no control over what happens when we spend money °n 
these facilities. We would be accused of interference.

The Chairman: When Mr. Ballard gets that information and when Trees 
ury Board is before us, we will keep this one in mind.

Are we ready for paragraph 123.
Mr. Henderson: We were dealing with the ice control structure in Montie 

and I had indicated that the city of Montreal had paid its contribution since nm 
report was issued. I understand the revised estimated cost at the present time 
to the order of $16.3 million rather than $12.5 million as referred to heie' 
Would that be correct?

Mr. Lalonde: That is correct, Mr. Henderson.
Mr. Millar: The only thing I can add to explain the increased cost is, aPa-n 

from the increased costs that have occurred in the past two years, especially ^ 
Montreal that we had to compete for steel and had a tight schedule, the 3 
had to be done all by floating plant. It is the first ice dam ever built in 
world, as far as I know.

Mr. Henderson: May I ask a question of the witness?
The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Henderson: Is this ice control structure primarily for Expo ’67?
Mr. Lalonde: No. It does protect the Expo ’67 site but at the same time^ 

protects the national harbour and harbour works in Montreal and parts
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Montreal that would be flooded at the same time if ice jammed in certain 
Places.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if you could tell me the nature of 
the control. Is it a type of coffer dam, or something like that?

Mr. Millar: It is like a stone gate dam except that the gates are very 
shallow; they are only six feet high and they float on the water. They float four 
teet in and two feet out, and they hold the ice.

Mr. Ballard: One other question: I notice the last paragraph says the 
department advises that settlement of this thing is imminent.

Mr. Lalonde: The money has been paid.
Mr. Henderson: I thought I mentioned that. It was paid on January 11, 

1966.
Mr. Lalonde: What happened about the payment was that there was quite 

a bit of controversy as to what was the legal approach to the agreement to be 
Slgned with the city of Montreal; whether it came within the purview of their 
authority to make a special bylaw or whether they should have a legislative 
authority specifically for that purpose. Finally, after arguing about this for 
a°out a year, the lawyers agreed that the city could make its own bylaw; they 
did and we received the cheque and it has been banked.

The Chairman: There is one part which says: “The agreement has not yet 
een signed; meanwhile construction has proceeded”. This is not customary 

Procedure for the department, I suppose. It is an unusual situation?

, Mr. Lalonde: That was partly because we wanted to have this available 
efore Expo ’67. We were very confident that once the question of procedure 
ad been resolved, the city would not renege on its letters. Because there was 

ari exchange of letters, forming the basis of the legal agreement.
Mr. Millar: Although the works are not quite completed, the dam was 

grated last winter quite successfully and has, I believe, done some good, but 
uh the water being so low, the conditions were not as bad as they could have

oeen
The Chairman: We are confronted with a $16 million expenditure and I 

k Pe&t, $16 million expenditure, for an ice control structure for the Expo ’67 site 
Pcause it is in that particular location. We must keep this in mind as cost of the 
e °f Expo. If it were inland, this $16 million would not have been necessary.

Mr. Lalonde: Well, that is debatable. What value will come from that 
Picture for the operation of the Montreal harbour is something that has been 

t Ppermost in the mind of the planners right from the beginning. I think the 
r§et date was incidental in that it happened to come at the time when Expo 
as being held there. Certainly the greatest value will be for future operations 
*be harbour, not for Expo.

Mr. Millar: Already this year the Montreal National Harbour Board have 
the upper harbour this winter for winter navigation; prior to this past 

nter, they only used the downstream harbour.
The Chairman: Well, the fact that the city of Montreal are paying that 

cb money indicates there must be some value to the city.
AH right, the next one.
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142. Non-productive payments. Since 1961 there has been included 
in the Auditor General’s annual Report to Parliament at the request of 
the Public Accounts Committee a listing of the non-productive payments 
which came to our notice in the course of our audit.

After considering the listings of the non-productive payments that 
were included in the 1962 and 1963 Reports, the Committee in its Sixth 
Report 1964, tabled in the House on October 20, 1964, expressing concern 
at the increasing number which were being noted and went on to state:

Since the majority of these cases involved expenditure by three 
departments, namely Public Works, National Defence and Transport, 
members of the Committee questioned the deputy ministers of these 
three departments closely as to the causes and reasons of many ot 
the larger losses. A number of these losses arose from circumstances 
beyond the control of the department named, for example Public 
Works in its role as a service department.

The Committee is of the opinion that the majority of these 
losses must be attributed either to failure to exercise normal com' 
mercial prudence in entering into contractual obligations or to lack 
of effective departmental specifications, organization or co-ordina- 
tion. It also believes that failure by departments to pinpoint blame 
for many such losses and to take corrective action accordingly is a 
contributing factor.

The Committee reiterates the request it made to the Audit°r 
General in 1961 concerning this type of loss, namely that in his 
future annual reports to the House of Commons the Auditor Genera 
continue to include listings of all non-productive payments coming 
to his notice in the course of his audit.
In our 1964 Report which, as stated in paragraph 4 of this Rep01 ’ 

has not yet been referred to the Public Accounts Committee, 35 cases 0 
non-productive expenditures were listed in Appendix 2. These, togeth61 
with 2 other examples of non-productive expenditures noted and com' 
mented upon under Comments on Expenditure and Revenue TransaC' 
tions, involved an estimated $2,089,000.

In view of the comments of the Public Accounts Committee quoted 
above, the Audit Office has endeavoured this year to pinpoint m°re 
closely the underlying reasons for this type of cost, particularly where 
the circumstances of the non-productive payment appeared to have beep 
beyond the control of the department or agency against whose appl0 
priation it was charged. We believe this should enable closer study to 
given to the individual cases both by those responsible and by the 
members of the House and the Public Accounts Committee.

The non-productive payments listed by the Audit Office each Yea 
are those payments coming to the notice of the Auditor General in 
course of his audit. It is important to understand that many of them ha 
their origin in transactions commenced in prior years and that they c° 
to notice only when final settlement is made during the year under audit-
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In this Report we have dealt with 37 cases of non-productive 
payments estimated at $22,737,000. Of these, 21 are included in the 
foregoing paragraphs while the remaining 16 cases are as follows:
8. Additional cost due to delay in awarding contract, Banff-Jasper 

highway.—In 1961 the Department of Public Works obtained tenders 
for the construction of a bridge on the Banff-Jasper Highway for the 
Department of Northern Affairs and National Resources. Although 
the tenders were opened on September 19th there was a delay of two 
months before a contract was awarded to the lowest tenderer, whose 
bid of $254,000 was $30,000 less than that of the second low bidder. 
In addition to the delay caused by the normal procedure of checking 
the successful tenderer’s design and communicating with him in that 
regard, there was a further delay while contracts generally were 
reviewed to see which ones could be deferred. Subsequently the 
contractor, who lost money on the project, presented a claim for 
extra expenses incurred because of the delay in the placing of the 
contract. His contention was that wet autumn weather, followed by 
an extremely cold period, had forced him to produce concrete 
aggregates from frozen material under much more costly conditions 
than would have been the case if the work had been performed in 
early autumn. During the year he was paid $20,000 in partial 
compensation for additional costs which he attributed to the delay. 
In authorizing payment of this claim, the Treasury Board made an 
exception to its policy of not accepting claims based on the delay in 
the award of a contract.

9. Additional costs due to construction delay, Pointe-au-Père, Que. 
—In March 1964 the Department of Public Works awarded con­
tracts for the improvement of facilities at Pointe-au-Père and 
Baie Comeau in connection with the operation of a ferry service 
between the two communities. Shortly afterwards the operators of 
the ferry expressed concern that both terminals were to be recon­
structed during the season of heaviest traffic because this would 
interfere seriously with the maintenance of their schedule. The 
conclusion was reached that the only acceptable procedure that 
would ensure the continued operation of the ferry would be to delay 
the Pointe-au-Père project for approximately three months. The 
contractor agreed on condition that he be reimbursed for additional 
costs incurred as a result of the delay. During the year he was paid 
$14,938 in settlement of his claim.

10. Additional cost due to construction delay in Clarenville, Nfld.— 
The Department of Public Works awarded a contract in 1963 
for the construction of the main haulout section for a marine dry 
dock facility at Clarenville required by the Department of Transport. 
One phase of the contract involved the dredging of an area to 
accommodate the underwater track, including the excavation of 
some bedrock. Borings had previously been taken at the site of the 
work but not at its outer end because a projection of the dip of the 
rock, as indicated by the borings in the inner area, showed the top 
surface of the rock passing below the maximum dredged depth
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required. As excavation proceeded, however, bedrock was encoun­
tered at the outer end which necessitated a change in the contrac­
tor’s method of operation and delayed progress of the work. This 
resulted in a decision to close down the undertaking for the winter 
months of 1963-64 because of the effect of the delay on other phases- 
During the year the contractor was paid $12,909 to compensate him 
for additional costs incurred due to the delay and the closing down 
and reopening of the work.

11. Cost of remedial work during construction period, Ottawa.—The 
contractor for the construction of the Trade and Commerce Buildups 
went into bankruptcy in 1957 and a contract for completion of th^ 
work was awarded to another company. Where possible, new agre ' 
ments were negotiated with the sub-contractors of the bankrup 
company. The original electrical sub-contractor undertook to procee^ 
and the Department of Public Works agreed that if it was f°un^ 
necessary to replace or rehabilitate material or equipment “beyon;, 
that normally experienced on a project of this size and duration < 
such work would be carried out under the direction of the genef 
contractor on a job work order basis. In 1958 the sub-contract 
presented a claim for extra costs, including an amount for t 
rehabilitation of elements of his work after the post-bankrupt^ 
shutdown. Until 1964 the Department resisted the claim, taking t s 
view that the commitment with regard to rehabilitation costs 'f 
intended to apply only to a case where the sub-contractor had tak 
all reasonable precautions to protect his work and, despite tn ’ 
corrective measures were required. In that year, however, 
conclusion was reached that certain remedial costs stemming fr 0. 
condensation and other moisture conditions in the building dun 
the shut-down period, at which stage it was not weatherproof, c°u 
be recognized and $12,190 was paid to the sub-contractor.

-IP 
the 

• a theconstruction of a postal terminal building at Calgary. During t 
year a settlement of $8,150 was made with the contractor—in resp 
of a much larger claim—for reimbursement of additional costs res ^ 
ing from a number of delays. The major part of the claim centehad 
around the fact that the details of the mail handling equipment 
not been finalized prior to the commencement of building c°nstr t 
tion. The late award of the separate equipment contract did 
permit the building contractor to complete his work in certain a^gts 
as expeditiously as planned, with the result that site overhead c 
were abnormal.

12. Additional cost due to construction delay, Calgary, Alta-" 
1958 the Department of Public Works awarded a contract for

13. Cost resulting from discrepancy in specifications, Matapedia, Que'0f 
In October 1963 a contract was awarded by the Department 
Public Works for repairs to a bridge at Matapedia. Because of 
age of the bridge special bearing pads were required to reduce ^ 
residual stresses on the bridge members. The Department’s specify^ 
tions for the work required that pads of a certain grade be used> ^ 
also required that the pads comply with the requirements for sU
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pads appearing in a publication which contained standard specifica­
tions for highway bridges. As the departmental requirement was at 
variance with that contained in the publication, a situation developed 
which led to a delay of several weeks in the procurement of the 
proper pads. The delay forced a temporary shut-down of the work 
and extension into colder weather at extra cost to the contractor. In 
December 1964 he accepted a payment of $7,622 in settlement of a 
larger claim for costs arising from the discrepancy in the specifica­
tions.

14. Additional cost due to construction delay Ottawa—During the 
construction of the foundation work for an administration building 
for the Department of Agriculture, difficulties were encountered in 
the initial pile driving operations. The investigation and redesign 
which were required resulted in a succession of notices of change to 
the contractor over a period of several weeks. His planned schedule 
was disrupted and delayed by this circumstance as well as by the 
testing of the piles previously driven. During the year he was 
allowed $5,324 in recognition of the fact that his supervisory staff 
and key operating personnel had been unable to work at full 
capacity during the redesign period.

15. Court award to architect in respect of abandoned works, St. 
John’s, Nfld.—In 1954 an architect was engaged by the Department 
of Public Works in connection with a proposed postal terminal 
building at St. John’s. After he had submitted preliminary plans for 
approval and had proceeded with the preparation of working draw­
ings, it was decided that he should work in association with another 
architect. Subsequently he presented a claim to the Department for 
work done to that point, stating that changes in requirements and 
ideas were so extensive that it had been necessary to abandon the 
early results of his undertaking. The Department resisted the claim 
but in 1964 he was awarded $4,147, with costs, in the Exchequer 
Court of Canada in respect of the abandoned work.

hon-.
relat

■Mr. Henderson: Now we jump to paragraph 142 where some remaining
Productive cases are shown, and we will deal with the few remaining 
Mg to the Department of Public Works.

Cq The first of these is No. 8, additional cost due to delay in awarding 
.acts on the Banff-Jasper highway. It is the practice of the department to 

t0 VlSe successful bidders within 60 days of the opening of the tenders and then
clerienter into the contract with the successful tenderer. In this case 
suç tment did extend the 60 day period slightly and in due course the 
theC^fui tenderer claimed for extra expenses because of the delay in placing 
çw c°ntract. He did this because of wet autumn weather followed by an 
Ir0remely c°ld period which forced him to produce concrete aggregates from 
th 611 cooterial under more costly conditions than otherwise would have been 

case. The department acknowledged his claim and the successful bidder was

the

^ $20
Hy. >000 in partial compensation for the additional costs he attributed to his

Chairman: Are there any questions?
^289—5
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Mr. Ballard : Who was the contractor, Mr. Chairman?
Mr. Lalonde : Crawley and Mohr Limited.
Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, this seems to me to be an instance where 

improvements could be made in drafting government contracts. Instead ox 
paying one fellow and turning down another, it seems to me that a clause could 
well be inserted covering delays caused by delays in awarding the contract and 
an adjustment made accordingly. The contractor could then come to us with a 
legitimate case against the crown instead of begging. I am sure that they keep 
these delays down to a minimum but I am in sympathy with the contractor 
here, in this case.

The Chairman: I notice that it states that the Treasury Board made 
exception to its policy in this case. Are there any comments on that from 
department?

an
the

• (4.56 p.m.)
Mr. Lalonde: I beg your pardon?
The Chairman: The Treasury Board made an exception to its policy of not 

accepting claims based on the delay in the award of a contract.
Mr. Lalonde: We, rightly or wrongly, have worked on a period of 60 day8 

in which to accept contracts. Many contractors claim this is too long a period W 
today’s standards to keep a bid alive. We have to check the bid very thoroughly’ 
especially on the larger contracts. Because we have to go to Treasury Boar > 
where quite often there are protracted discussions and negotiations between m 
Treasury Board and ourselves. We would find it difficult to stay within a 30 day 
period which is the normal period of acceptance of bids in construction industry 
outside the government. When you go beyond the 60 day period, it is because 
there are certain specific difficulties and this was the case here. The bid wa 
submitted on an alternative. There were two alternatives, it could be done th1 
way or that way. This had to be weighed because the prices varied between th® 
two alternatives, and then there was the recommendation made to the Treasury 
Board on one alternative and it took longer than we had expected to award t 
contract and we fell outside the 60 day period. The contractor could hav 
refused the contract by saying: “You are outside my period of bidding” or 
period of tender so I will not take it at that price” and then negotiate arl 
adjusted price, but he accepted the contract at that price. Admittedly 
suffered a damage because it took him through another period of construction-

Mr. Bigg: Yes; I agree that when a man has to get his work force for, sa^’ 

putting in piles on ice and he knows he can do it 20 per cent cheaper by gettl 
the men on when the ice is still in the river, if the government is responsible 
the delay it puts him off until the ice leaves the river and then he has to do 
by boat or a more expensive way. I say that where the government is obviou  ̂

responsible we should pick up the tab. If you can write this into the contract, 
much the better.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, in this case, the contractor accepted the contr8^ 
knowing that he would be delayed and then the department turned around aI1 
paid him $20,000.
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Mr. Bigg: Then it is the other way around. I think that he knows what he is 
UP against—

The Chairman: That is why it is a non-productive account.
Mr. Bigg: I do not like the idea of a contractor taking on the contract and 

hen saying the benevolent government will bail me out later.

The Chairman: Why did you pay this fellow $20,000? Is money that easy to 
Set in your department?

Mr. Lalonde: No. Usually when there is a difference of opinion you know 
Wio wins. There was a difference of opinion between the Minister and the 

eputy Minister in this case. I felt that he had accepted the contract; the 
Minister felt otherwise; that we had caused him an injustice and caused him 
s°nie damage. He put it up to the Treasury Board and the Treasury Board
aPproved it.

The Chairman: I think we had better call the Minister.
* Mr. Bigg: The difficulty here is that the contractor might have accepted 

0,000 deaner and finished the contract without another claim. We would then 
e $10,000 ahead.

The Chairman: No. The point is, Mr. Bigg, that the contractor accepted the 
Ohtract knowing it was late; knowing all about the circumstances and he said: 

c do the work, I will proceed and carry out the contract” and then he 
0lhes back and asks for $20,000 and they pay him.

Mr. Bigg: I am inclined to make him hold to his contract.
The Chairman : Why, certainly, a contract is a contract.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that this fellow took advantage of 

r 6 Met that he knew what the next contract price was, so he was going to 
Ca?.°uP a little and he says: “Well, all right, I will take $20,000 more and we will 

It square”. That is what it looks like.
Mr. Bigg: I am not going behind the motives, but I think that if we spelled 

b ae things out, the government would not be in a position where they had to 
1st erLev°lent. We should make it abundantly clear that the cut-off date is the 
h6 ,°t November and whether or not he gets in there a few days ahead or not if
t0 ls °n the job by the 1st of November he knows exactly how much he is going 
u get.

The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, I understood you to say that you recommend- 
Mthat the $20,000 not be paid?

Mr. Lalonde: That is right.
The Chairman: That clears you, sir.
Mr. Lalonde: In writing,
The Chairman: In writing. I would like to pursue it fiom theie.

q Mr. Ballard- Mr Chairman, could I ask the department then if there was a 
mPletion date specified in the contract? If so, what was that date?

$2q ^r- Henderson: This is the recommendation to the Treasury Board for the 
’ 0 to be paid, signed by the department.

-5V4
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The Chairman: Would that be signed by the Minister?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, in this case it was signed by the Minister, Mr- 

Chairman.
Mr. Bigg: Is there any logical reason given or does it say they accept 

responsibility for the delay?
Mr. Henderson: It describes the contract. It says:

“To provide funds for payment of a claim submitted by the contrac­
tor for extra expenses as detailed below’’ and under the “remarks 
heading it says: “The contractors have presented a claim in which they 
state that the performance of the work under this contract has cost them 
more than $54,000 over the tender price. They have indicated that in the 
preparation of their tender an error of calculation was made amounting 
to $20,000. They have, therefore, requested payment for their addition3 
expenditure of $34,000 resulting from the increased cost caused by delay 
in the award of the contract. Under the conditions of the contract entere 
into with Crawley and More, the department is not obliged to honou 
the claim although there was a delay of two months in awarding n\ 
contract. The tenders were opened September 19 and the contra 
awarded November 22. This was at the time when all contracts were 
being reviewed to see which ones could be deferred. Part of the delay in 
recommending acceptance of the contractors tender to the board 0 
October 14, 1961, was taken up in the normal procedure of checking tb® 
contractor’s design and writing to them to obtain confirmation. Despn 
the delay the contractors entered into the contract without formal proteS 
although in a subsequent letter they stated quote: On the subject 0 
withdrawal we were not aware that we would be permitted to do tm 
without forfeiting our security.

It should be emphasized, however, that the delay occurred at 
most crucial time in the construction season. In order to complete t 
substructure on schedule the contractors were forced by the wet fa 
weather, followed by an extremely cold period, to produce concre 
aggregates from frozen materials under much more costly conditions m 
might have been anticipated had this work been performed in early fall-

Because of the delay in the award of the contract, the contracta 
would have been within their rights had they refused to enter into 
contract in which event the department would have been obliged 
recommend the award of this contract to the second lowest bidder for 
tender price of $284,189. Because Crawley and More agreed to enter & 
the contract, the department was able to have the work performed 
$30,434 less than the tender price of the second low bidder.

As the work under this contract has been completed satisfactori ^ 
the department request that the board consider for approval the pay111® r 
of an additional $20,000 as a matter of partial relief to the contractors 
losses suffered in undertaking the work.”

The authority is Treasury Board Minute 588241, dated November 9, 1961-
Mr. Bigg: I would like to know whether it was the delay in the contract^ 

or the bad weather. We are getting this double talk again, it seems to me. ™ 
they are talking about bad weather which threw them off schedule.
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Mr. Henderson: The tenders were opened on September 19 and the 
contract was awarded on November 22, which, as you can see, is only slightly 
over the 60 day period.

Mr. Bigg: But is not the 60 days normal?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, that is the standard practice of the department. That 

Was known to the contractor.
Mr. Bigg: They were not delayed another two months beyond that.
Mr. Henderson: That threw him into the bad weather and consequently 

extra expense. So he came back for—
Mr. Bigg: No. What I am trying to get at is this. Was the delay beyond the 

n°rmal 60 days which they usually expect? Did it take them four months to 
award the contract, or did it take the normal 60 days which every contractor 
knows he has to wait for government contracts?

Mr. Boyle: In fact it was 64 calendar days, including the close of tender 
and the award of the contract.

The Chairman: Four days over.
Mr. Bigg: What is the average time?

. Mr. Boyle: Usually they are awarded in a much shorter period than that. It 
s Usually within 30 days.

Mr. Bigg: That is what I am trying to get at; if there was an actual delay 
Ver the normal time of 30 days, then I think he has a claim.

Mr. Boyle: In this case there was this proviso, as Mr. Lalonde pointed out, 
an alternative submitted, possibly by the tenderer. This tenderer chose to 

ubrnit an alternative and it was, therefore, necessary for his design to be 
^viewed before the contract could be awarded. It was only 26 calendar days 

i *;er that design review had been carried out that the contract was awarded, 
ut that consumed a longer period between the tender call and award. That 
eview of the alternative design was the contributing factor toward running it 

t0 64 days.

the The Chairman: It still does not alter the fact, Mr. Bigg, that he accepted 
contract and agreed to perform the work at a stated price.

i2e ^r- Bigg: I just thought that in government contracts we might standard- 
sUh'SOrne kind of a form and say you will note that after 30 days we will be 
gjj^ct to a variation of price if we delay you, and so on. Then he will know 

ct]Y where he stands, and when he can get out of the contract without loss.
Tj, The Chairman: Who signed this letter to Treasury Board suggesting the 

asury Board pay the $20,000?
by ,^r- Henderson: This is an authority to amend the contract recommended 

Apartment and, in this case, is addressed to the Treasury Board and 
ed by the Minister.
The Chairman: And who was the minister?
^T- Henderson: Mr. Deschatelets.
^T- Bigg: To amend the contract?
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Mr. Henderson: Yes.
The Chairman: Is this the way all these things are handled?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, this is a standard submission as made by all depart­

ments to the Treasury Board. They have a format on which they require their 
information submitted and the recommendation is required to be signed by the 
department requestiong the money.

Mr. Bigg : What I was suggesting was that if the form was well made out i# 
the first place, there would be no such thing as an appeal, because once they 
had signed it they would know that delay or no delay they had accepted it 
under these terms and then the departments would not have to argue with 
them.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, I am going to write the word “note” beside 
section 8 here. We will proceed with no. 9.

Mr. Lalonde : You wanted to know the target date dor completion? It was 
August 31, 1962 and the work was completed in October, 1962.

Mr. Ballard: I did not quite hear the dates you gave.
Mr. Lalonde: The target date was August 31, 1962, and the work waS 

completed in October, 1962. That is about two months afterwards.
Mr. Henderson: Number 9 deals with additional costs that were due to

torsconstruction delay at Pointe-au-Père. This is the case of ferry opera, 
objecting to reconstruction of both ferry service terminals during the season 0 
heaviest traffic because this would have interfered with the maintenance 0 
their schedule. The department met this objection by delaying the plann6 
reconstruction in one of the terminals for a period of approximately thro® 
months and in due course reimbursed the contractor for $14,938 additional costs 
as a result of the delay.

The Chairman : Are there any questions? If not we will go on to No. 1®

Mr. Henderson: This is another case of bedrock, not disclosed by 
original borings, being encountered on the job which necessitated a change 
the contractor’s method of operation and delayed progress of the wr

the
in

ork-
Consequently the undertaking had to be closed down for the winter monthS 

■a thebecause of the effect of the delay on other phases. The department pai° 
contractor $12,909 to compensate him for his additional costs caused by th 
factors.

The Chairman: Who did the boring in this case?
Mr. Millar: It was done by a consultant. ^
The Chairman: We do not seem to be able to get a good job done in borl 

no matter who does it. Is there anybody who wants to start a business 
boring?

Mr. Bigg: Somebody is doing a pretty good job right now.
Mr. Noble: I would judge that this boring business is an excuse to get 

little more money.
The Chairman : I think they are boring the till.
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Can we not get around this problem? It keeps popping up all the time. Are 
y°u making extra effort to get good consultants on the job? Are there many to 
choose from?

Mr. Lalonde: I have said it many time, Mr. Chairman, and I will say it 
again. I am prepared to take the calculated risk that we are taking now because 
* think we are saving a great deal of money the way we are doing it now.

Mr. Bigg: Do you think the 100 foot grid is sufficient in view of the number 
of time they have missed, rather than tighten up and use four times the number 
of drill holes?

Mr. Lalonde: That is right.
The Chairman: Mr. Lalonde, have you ever given any thought to ap­

proaching it this way: you are going to call for a contract, and let the one 
Emitting the contract be responsible for doing his own boring. If he gets a bad 
^°h, well then that is his responsibility.

Mr. Lalonde: That is not possible. In our old contract form although we 
°°k borings, we stated that it was up to the contractor to take his own. 

however, nobody did.

The Chairman: I was thinking along those lines, let the contractor be 
rcsponsible for the boring, and we would get away from this.

Mr. Lalonde: You would certainly complicate matters a great deal because, 
^ould all contractors take borings before they put in a bid? If they did, they 
w°uld put it in their bid and you would pay for it. You would have six, seven 
°r eight men taking borings before they could put in their tender. In the long 
rpn it would still be more expensive.

The Chairman: We are paying for it in a lot of these cases.
Mr. Lalonde: Only in very few cases.

, Mr. Bigg: I think there is a danger here that if we have independent 
°rings you might, on the average, get a better idea of the type of stuff they 
ave to go through, and so on.

The Chairman : All right. We will now go to No. 11.
Mr. Henderson: I think we might describe this case as rather a borderline 

c^e although the amount of $12,190 paid to this subcontractor can properly be 
sUbSS<^ as a non-productive expenditure. The payment was made to the 
bj c°ntractor for rehabilitation work which had previously been carried out by 

arM which had suffered due to condensation and other moisture conditions 
b- z16 building during a shut-down period which had been caused by the 
th kruptcT °t the original prime contractor. It was during the construction of 

hew Trade and Commerce Building.
The Chairman: We will proceed to number 12.
Mr. Henderson: This non-productive payment of $8,150 was made to the

^tractor because of the late award of the contract for mail handling équip­
ée 1 which did not permit him to complete his work in certain areas as 

hitiously as he had planned with the result that his overhead increased.
The Chairman: Calgary, Mr. Ballard.
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Mr. Ballard: I would say that if it happened in Calgary the claim lS 
probably quite legitimate.

The Chairman: All right. We will go on to No. 13.
Mr. Henderson: This is a case where ambiguity existed in the department s 

specifications. As a consequence, a delay developed which, in turn, forced a 
temporary shutdown of the work and extention into colder weather at extra 
cost to the contractor. As indicated, he accepted a payment of $7,622 in 
settlement of a larger claim for costs arising from the discrepancy in tn® 
specifications.

The Chairman: Who wrote the specifications?
Mr. Lalonde: The department.
The Chairman: The Department of Public Works?
Mr. Lalonde: Yes.
The Chairman: The Department of Public Works wrote the specification5 

and it was faulty specifications that caused the trouble?
Mr. G. Clarke (Chief Engineer, Development Engineering Branch, De 

partment of Public Works): This bridge, 1,100 feet long, originally was built i 
1875, a five span steel railway bridge which in 1908 was reconstructed as 
highway bridge. It is a very old bridge and we were renewing the deck. At tn 
time we had to renew the bearings. To prevent residual stresses from t ^ 
movement in the bearings, we used new neoprene pads. We used a special Pa 
of 50 durometer; the normal pad is a 60 and 70; a 70 durometer is about t 
hardness of a rubber heel, a 60, a tire, a 50, an inner tube. We wanted t 
minimum residual stress when the bridge moved.

The specification inadvertently read:
“Neoprene pads shall be 50 durometer grade complying with requi^ 

ments for elastomeric bearing pads in the latest edition of the A.A.S.B- 
Standard Specification for Highway Bridges”.

There is no specification for a 50. It is 60 and 70, and this is where the 
conflict arose. It would have been better had it read:

“50 durometer and in all other respects will meet the A.A.S.B- 
specification which are for 60 and 70.”

An engineer going over this specification would assume it was ri£ ^ 
through his knowledge of the pads and what he was using. These are 
specially made and the contractor in going to a supplier would be looking f°r^ 
new specification which had never been issued. It took a while to get this P01 
clarified between the contractor, the supplier and ourselves. This was hoW 
delay occurred. '

The Chairman: Of course, if you could have solved it sooner you v^011 
have saved $7,622.

Mr. Clarke: If the problem had been recognized.—The contractor wrote 
a copy of the specification. The lab. sent it to him. The supplier said that it ^ 
not fit. There must be a mistake in their specification. They are talking 
This is 60 and 70. Eventually it reached the point where we realized what ^ 
conflict of understanding was and it was cleared up immediately. But this
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throw the contractor into winter work. He could not touch the bridge. He had
his deck up and he could not put the deck down until he had raised the 

bridge to put the pads under it.
The Chairman: Are there any questions on this one? We will now take No. 

14.
Mr. Henderson: In this case the prime program of the contractor was 

interrupted when difficulties were encountered in the pile driving operations on 
Ihe foundation work for the new Department of Agriculture building. The 
contractor claimed for this and the department allowed $5,324 in recognition of 
*he fact that his supervisory staff and key operating personnel had been unable 
to work at full capacity during the re-design period. This relates to the new 
department of Agriculture building.

Mr. Bigg: I hope they are not being too kind here. It seems to me that all 
contractors can expect a 5 per cent leeway or something like that in his full 
°Perating capacity. It would be strange if he went right through a major 
construction program and had everybody working at full tilt all the time. I 
Xv°uld like a little more explanation on this item than that.

Mr. Williams: The $5,000 is the portion of delay in the completion of the 
Piling contract because the piles did not act the way we had predicted they 
would do from the soils information we had. There was an uplift on the piles. 
They were driven in clusters. They were Franki piles. After two or three were 
d°wn in a cluster of eight, on the next pile down the first two or three started 
to lift and we had to go into a testing procedure in driving and testing these 
Piles to assure that we would have sufficient bearing. The contractor’s total 
derations were actually affected by it but we took the view that there were 
°ther parts of the work on which his crew were working and they did continue 
1° Work, so we made a settlement with him on a percentage of his supervisory 
slaff owing to the fact that the pilings took a longer period than was anticipated 
111 his planned scheduling of the work.

The Chairman: What was his original claim? You settled for $5,324, and 
^hat did he ask?

Mr. Williams : This is actually the amount he asked in this particular case. 
The Chairman: You gave him what he asked.
Mr. Bigg: I am not a construction man but it seems to me that if I was 

estimating the over-all contract in building anything I would not expect 100 per 
efficiency all the time. This would be part of my estimated cost; the loss of

‘Utli

and
e> bad weather, acts of God, human errors, broken arms on special operators 

so on. I just do not see why they should come to us at the end of a fairly
^aior contract and say: “Everything has not gone the way we wanted it and 

you please give me some more money.”
Mr. Williams : All of those things would be his responsibility but those 

rçln§s where he is delayed by the actions of the department in the case of a 
r 'design or a re-testing program, then, under the new contract, we accept the 

sPonsibility for this. We imposed something on him which was not the 
Nation when he bid. We accept the responsibility for it and we pay it.
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Mr. Ballard: In other words, you are saying that the piling was not 
included in the original contract.

Mr. Williams: The piling was included but it did not perform in the way 
we had anticipated it would perform. Our design had to be modified.

Mr. Bigg: He was held up in an unanticipated manner?
Mr. Williams : That is correct, because of a change in design.
Mr. Bigg: That makes sense. He was held up in a completely unanticipated 

manner. Something happened over which he had not control and which he could 
not be expected to allow for in his general tender—

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Williams, it was an ex gratia payment. Would that be 
correct?

Mr. Williams: It would not be ex gratia. It was included in an extra to the 
contract.

Mr. Bigg: I do not care if you raised the contract if it was, in fact, as y°u 
have said, a completely unforeseeable circumstance. The difficulty in piling lS 
something that I would certainly foresee if I was a pile driver.

Mr. Williams: It was his non-productive payment in delay because of the 
additional testing we had to do in evaluating a new design. This is the Par 
that is non-productive.

Mr. Bigg: He had all his staff on the job?
Mr. Williams: He had his staff on the job; in this particular case he 

entirely reasonable because we assessed only certain supervisory staff n° 
otherwise employed.

Mr. Bigg: Was this a large job again?
Mr. Williams: Yes, this was the agriculture building which runs 

million.
Mr. Henderson: The Chairman has just been called out, for a minu j 

Would you wish to carry on with No. 15? We only have two more to finish, b*0’ 
think this is the last one.

This No. 15 is an unusual case. An architect was engaged by the depatre 
ment in connection with a proposed postal terminal building at St. John’s. 
submitted his preliminary plans for approval and proceeded with the prepa1"3 
tion of working drawings when it was decided that he should henceforth W0 
in association with another architect. He presented a claim to the departm6 
for the work he had done to that point saying that the changes in requirem611^ 
and ideas were so extensive that the early results of his undertaking had to 
abandoned. As a consequence, you will note here, that the department did re3 
his claim but in 1964 the architect was awarded $4,147, with costs, in j 
Exchequer Court of Canada, for the abandoned work. There is not a great de 
that can be done about that, I presume.

Mr. Ballard: I do not think we can argue with the judgment or 
Exchequer Court but I think it would be better just to accept it.

Mr. Henderson: We have just dealt with the last one, Mr. Chairman, ^ 
your absence. There is not very much that can be done, as Mr. Ballard said,
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*he last one, because the department resisted the claim but he took the 
department to court and he won. He received $4,147. It is a non-productive 
Payment, as you will appreciate, nonetheless.

The Chairman : Just to complete the record with the Department of Public 
Works, there were two questions asked this morning. Maybe you have the 
answers, Mr. Lalonde. I think Mr. Tardif asked one.

• (5.26 p.m.)
Mr. Lalonde: Mr. Chairman, what I was proposing to do was to review the 

transcript as soon as it is available. I think there are a number of questions that 
We have undertaken to answer or to give information to the Committee. I was 
Poping that we could do this in a letter which I would write to you, as soon as 
tne transcript is available. Would this be satisfactory or would it take too long?

The Chairman: Is the Committee agreeable? Fine, that is quite agreeable.
I think that completes our meeting for today.
Mr. Lalonde: Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank the Committee for the 

^ery fair analysis which you have made of our problem children. As I have said, 
1 Propose to study the transcript very carefully, as well as the Committee’s 
Import, and to follow up on some of the things which cause us a great deal of 
rouble and concern. If I may make one wish that would be to express the hope

we will get full backing from the Committee on the work that we are 
/tempting to do to provide better long range planning for us as well as for our 
lents. I think this is very important in the long run.

Thank you very much.
The Chairman: Thank you. I think we will be very happy to co-operate 

«h you and we will ask you, in return, to co-operate with us in this respect,
that you cease to become an easy target for contractors who are delayed and
°ther claims that they put in. Just be tough.

Mr. Lalonde: We will try, sir.
The Chairman: The meeting is adjourned.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Thursday, June 2, 1966.
(16)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11.10 a.m. this day, the 
hairman Mr. A. D. Hales presiding.

j.. Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), 
ionne, Hales, Lefebvre, McLean (Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Schreyer, 
ardif, Thomas (Middlesex West), Tucker, Winch—(15).

Also present: Mr. Southam.

» In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Mr. G. R. 
°ng, Assistant Auditor General; Messrs. Crowley and Laroche of the Auditor 
eheral’s staff; Mr. R. C. Labarge, Deputy Minister of National Revenue; 

^essrs. J. G. Howell, A. R. Hind and G. L. Bennett, Assistant Deputy Ministers;
Messrs. Langford, Gorman, Mills and Last of the Department of National

Avenue.
ç The Committee questioned representatives of the Auditor General of 
çanada and the Department of National Revenue on items dealing with 
çUstorns and Excise in the 1964 Auditor General’s Report to the House of 
Unions. The following paragraphs were covered:

Paragraph 69—Payment of duty on coasting trade vessel deferred. 
(Taken in conjunction with the report of the Subcommittee tabled May 
25, 1966.)

Paragraph 70—Remission of duties on certain motor vehicles and 
parts.

Paragraph 71—Refund of sales tax on materials used in construction 
of certain buildings.

Paragraph 72—Refunds of duties and taxes on estimated basis. 
Paragraph 73—Refund of duty paid on goods diverted to use other 

than that for which they were imported.
Paragraph 74—Possible loss of revenue when goods lose tax-exempt 

status.
At 12.15 p.m., the questioning of the witnesses continuing, the Chairman 

°Urned the meeting to 3.30 p.m. this same day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(17)

Committee reconvened at 3.45 p.m. this day, the Vice-Chairman Mr. T. 6febvre presiding.
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Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Bigg, Cameron (High Park), Lefebvre, 
Thomas (Middlesex West), Tucker, Winch—(7).

In attendance: (Same as at morning sitting).
The Vice-Chairman welcomed the delegation from the Department of { 

National Revenue. Mr. R. C. Labarge, Deputy Minister of National Revenue, 
thanked the Committee for being given the opportunity to attend.

The Committee resumed consideration of the 1964 Auditor General’s Report 
to the House of Commons, in particular:

Paragraph 75—Loss on buildings abandoned.
Paragraph 76—Drawback paid on goods destroyed after release fro®0 

Customs.
Paragraph 120—Accounts receivable—Department of National Reve­

nue. (Deferred for consideration with same item in 1965 Auditor Gen­
eral’s Report.)

The Committee then proceeded to the review of the 1965 Auditor General s 
Report to the House of Commons, as follows:

Paragraph 90—Departmental practices which lack statutory sanction- 
—With respect to this item, the Clerk of the Committee has a copy of t*1® 
Department of National Revenue Excise circular ET 81 as cited by ™r' 
Winch.

Paragraph 91—Settlement of sales tax on percentages of total sales-
Paragraph 94—Drawback paid on goods destroyed after release f®0111 

Customs. (Considered at same time as item 76 above).

At 5.30 p.m., the Vice-Chairman adjourned the meeting to the call of 
Chair.

Edouard Thomas, 
Clerk of the Committee■
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The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum.
We find ourselves in more confined quarters this morning. However, they 
air conditioned and we are happy for that. As you know, we have before us
morning the officials of the Department of National Revenue, Customs andthis

Xcise, and if you will turn to the 1964 Auditor General’s Report, on page 33, 
Paragraph 69, we will commence at that point and proceed by the usual system 

1 having Mr. Henderson, briefly as possible, bring to the attention of the 
°mmittee what has been brought to our attention in these particular para- 

'jt'aphs. Then we will ask a member of the department for any observations he 
ishes to make and then the members to ask their questions. Again I ask that 

Pe verbal part be made as short as possible and to the point, crisp questions 
Ph answers because we have an awful lot of work to do. So Mr. Henderson 
°uld you proceed?

69. Payment of duty on coasting trade vessel deferred. The owner of 
a foreign-built British vessel applied for a licence to engage in the 
coasting trade of Canada. Section 670 of the Canada Shipping Act, R.S., c. 
29, states that a coasting licence shall be issued to foreign-built British 
ships upon payment of the duty which the Customs Act and related 
regulations require to be paid in full. The owner was accordingly 
assessed duty on the vessel under tariff item 440 at the rate specified, 
viz., 25% ad valorem on the fair market value of hull, machinery, 
furniture and appurtenances. On August 6, 1963 the Department in­
structed its collector at the port of entry to issue the licence but, because 
the owner could not pay the duty of $10,078 in full, arranged to accept a 
down payment of $3,000 on August 12, 1963 and post-dated cheques 
Payable monthly through September 30, 1964 to cover the balance. No 
interest was charged.

The Customs Act is not only specific under section 22 in requiring 
that duties must be paid in full at the time goods enter Canada but also 
Provides under section 79 that:

“No person shall make, nor shall any officer accept any bond, 
note or other document for the purpose of avoiding or deferring the 
actual payment of duties legally accruing on goods imported into 
Canada, or arrange for deferring payment of such duties in any way, 
unless such goods are entered for warehouse, and duly deposited 
therein according to the laws and regulations governing the ware­
housing of such goods.”

531
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To further protect the revenue, the Act provides penalties under section 
235(1) to be assessed against a collector or other officer who allots 
payment of duty to be avoided or deferred:

“Every collector or other officer who allows the payment of 
duties of Customs to be avoided or deferred for any cause or 
consideration whatsoever, except by regular entry for warehouse, is 
liable to a penalty equal to the full value of such goods, and the duty 
accruing thereon, which shall be recoverable in any court of comp6' 
tent jurisdiction, from him or his sureties or either of them.”
When the Department instructed its collector at the port of entry t0 

issue the coasting licence to the owner of the ship the collector 
advised that special arrangements had been made in the Departm611 
regarding payment of duty. As a consequence of carrying out thlS 
instruction, involving as it did payment of duty on an instalment basi^ 
the collector immediately rendered himself liable to the penalty imp°s° 
by section 235(1) which amounted to $50,391. On September 26, 1963 me 
full amount of this penalty was remitted by an Order in Council unde 
authority of section 22 of the Financial Administration Act. The remlS 
sion is shown on page 43 ■ 13 of the Public Accounts for the fiscal yea 
1963-64.

On drawing the irregularity of these steps to the attention of offi°er® 
of the Department, we were informed that they are of the opinion tna 
payment of the duty in the manner described was legalized by remiss10 
of the penalty assessed against the collector and that the procedure use 
is proper within the meaning of the legislation involved.

It is the opinion of the Audit Office that the penalty provisi0^ 
contained in section 235(1) of the Customs Act exists for the protecti0 
of the revenue against collectors or other officers who may an 
payment of duties to be avoided or deferred, and that the action of 
Department in penalizing the collector for its own failure to collect 
duty in full and then causing the penalty to be remitted is irregular a

22
by

undesirable. If it is not, then it would appear that any section of any 
with respect to which there is a penalty within the meaning of section 
of the Financial Administration Act could be circumvented simply 
using the device of having a public officer deliberately contravene a 
such section and then remitting the penalty incurred by his unlawful ac ■ 

Section 670 is one of the sections of Part XIII of the Canada ShipP*n^ 
Act and, as already stated, specifically provides that a coasting Uce 
may be issued to a foreign-built British ship only if the duty has 
paid. Section 673 in Part XIII gives the Governor in Council the follow1

power:
r 10‘The Governor in Council may, from time to time, by ordei 

council declare that the foregoing provisions of this Part shall 
for the period specified in such order in council, apply, cl^.pS 
throughout Canada or in any specified waters of Canada, to the s 
or vessels, or to any specified, ascertained or ascertainable clas 
number of the ships or vessels, of any foreign country.”
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It was noted that the Order in Council referred to above also 
exempted the vessel in question from the provisions of Part XIII of the 
Act. Since the power of the Governor in Council in section 673 is 
restricted to ships of “any foreign country”, it seems to us that the 
exemption could not apply to the vessel in question which is a foreign- 
built British ship. In reply to our inquiry concerning this, departmental 
officers stated they were treating the ship as though she were a foreign 
ship because the duties were being deferred and not paid at the time the 
coasting licence was granted.

Mr. A. M. Henderson ( Auditor General) : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The 
committee has already considered the nine paragraphs listed under the matters 
°f consideration today in the presence of our witnesses. Now, I assume the 
Members will not wish to dwell at any length on these except perhaps to ask 
°ur witnesses questions on a number of the items. Therefore, as the Chairman 
has said I will refer briefly to each paragraph by way of introduction so as to 
romind those members present of the subject matter of each. The first of these, 
as the Chairman has stated, is paragraph 69. This paragraph recited the action 
faken by the Department of National Revenue in connection with the licensing 
and taxing of a coastal vessel and indicates the three steps taken by the 
department which in my opinion were both irregular and undesirable. This 
matter was discussed with you on May 5, when it will be recalled that a four 
member ad hoc committee was convened consisting of Mr. Baldwin, Mr. Bigg, 
Mr. Flemming and Mr. McLean (Charlotte). The committee met with my 
officers on May 13, and their report was submitted to the main Committee on 
“fay 16. i believe the clerk has copies of this report for the use of the members 
Present this morning. I do not know to what extent members may wish to 
ffhestion the witnesses on this item, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, as chairman of that committee would you like 
to speak first?

Mr. Baldwin: Very briefly, Mr. Chairman. When we met with the officers 
the Auditor General’s staff they were good enough to make available to us all 

ae information and material which included a document in the form of a 
j~°namunication from the department which in fact verified the statements made 

the Auditor General. As a result of that the committee made its report; it 
as unanimous, and we did make one recommendation. Now on the facts that 
?re submitted to us we felt this was the proper recommendation to make. We 
1Sht, as sometimes happens in a capital case, have felt that there were 
tenuating circumstances which guided us in making a recommendation for 
6rcy so that the capital sentence would not be carried out completely, but this 
as °ur view and it has been turned into a report Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Mr. Labarge, would you like to elaborate on that?
Mr. Raymond C. Labarge (Deputy Minister Customs and Excise, Customs 
Excise Division, Department of National Revenue): Thank you, Mr. 

Airman.
g. The Chairman: Just one moment. There seems to be some sort of confu- 
q n' You have all got copies of the report. We are on page 32 of the Auditor 

er>eral’s 1964 Report. Thank you, Mr. Labarge.
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Mr. Labarge : Mr. Chairman, not knowing the recommendation I have to 
sort of wander into it, but knowing the file I think perhaps I should add a few 
comments to this.

Mr. Baldwin: The recommendation was that under circumstances such as 
this it might well have been that covering legislation might be enacted in due 
course to permit steps such as were taken, if they had to be taken, to be taken 
under sanctions of the statute.

Mr. Labarge : Yes this is exactly the point. I think that this does exist and 
really I am not sure that the action taken was fully evidenced in the proper 
way. The fact is that we have a ship which from our point of view is a foreign 
ship. Under section 673 the Governor in Council can allow such a person such a 
foreign vessel to operate for a period of time without any payment of duty.

Now under this you would have perhaps said to us “why did you not let 
him operate without payment of duty?” Well this provision is used frequently 
for short term periods in which a vessel can operate in a given area for the 
specified period. This is the equivalent of a duty free temporary permit. By 
using this section what we were doing in this case because the man had 
presented us with post dated cheques was in fact to allow him as provided m 
the section, temporary periods which were determined by the due date of hij 
cheques is post dated cheques. If at any time any of those cheques had bounced 
this temporary permission would have ceased. It was because in this case 'W® 
had cheques which as revenue at the end would total the amount of duty an 
put him on a permanent basis that we could have either given him the 
conditions we did or we could have given him a period of one year in which t° 
operate under this section, we could have gone by Order in Council waiving the 
total amount of revenue.

Mr. Tardif : Is this a specific practice to accept post dated cheques in cases 
like that? Is it the practice to do that?

Mr. Labarge: I must say it is not the practice but it is not the practice 
ours either to refuse duty when we have it given to us even though the term 
may not be on the same basis as if you said to the man “look you can opera 
for a month on a temporary basis. And then at the end of that you have to par 
full duty or you can operate for two months and pay full duty.” We could hav 
given him a year and then taken full duty and it would have been perfectly a 
right.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, I understand that but what I do not understand 
is why the man got fired for apparently following the regulations that were lal 
down by your department.

Mr. Labarge: Sorry the man was not fired Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Tardif: Penalized let us say.
Mr. Labarge: No this I do not think really was necessary. I think this xvaS 

just protection in the event that this point should be raised.
The Chairman: Mr. Labarge what would happen if the cheques vyer 

returned N.S.F.?
e tfa6

Mr. Labarge: Then the boat would have been taken right out oi 
coasting trade immediately.
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The Chairman: Any further questions? I just have one.
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Labarge said that this man was not 

Penalized and this is what it says: “The committee agreed with the Auditor 
yeneral when he states that the action by the department in penalizing one of 
its collectors for its own failure to collect the duty in full as provided by law.” 
6,0 Was he or was he not penalized?

Mr. Labarge: No sir. I think the point that is made is that by the very fact 
'Ve obtained this remission of the penalty in order to protect him we have as it 
^ere admitted or felt that perhaps he could be penalized. I think that is what 
lt; amounts to. It was an extra measure of security but the man was not
Penalized.

In the first place what we were acting under was what we believed to be a 
Proper interpretation of the law that we have the authority to do this. But when 

came time to put this down in quoting the authorities someone said “well it is 
°ssible that this section may be raised and you had better make sure that you 
r°tect the officer in this case” Now the officer we talk about personally would 
ever have been in danger since the matter was handled by a superior officer in 
eadquarters and he operated under instruction so the responsibility was 
Ssumed by a senior official.

Mr. Tardif: Then, Mr. Chairman, I think there should be a qualification 
u e both in the original statement made by the Auditor General and by the 

Ubcommittee.
The Chairman: Would you like to speak to the word penalizing in your

Mr. Baldwin: Have you a copy of the order in council that provided for the 
Mission?

Mr. Labarge: Would you like me to read it or would you like to see it?
Mr. Baldwin : Well, would you read the relevant parts?
Mr. Labarge:

His Excellency the Governor General in Council, pursuant to section 
673 of the Canada Shipping Act is pleased hereby to waive the provisions 
of part XIII of that Act in respect of a foreign vessel in the coasting trade 
and, pursuant to Section 22 of the Financial Administration Act, to remit 
Penalty, in accordance with the following minute of the Tresury Board.

it, Mr. Baldwin: It was on that basis as I understand it Mr. Chairman we took 
at there would have to be a penalty in order for there to be a remission, 

°fti Wkile we quite understood that there was never any suggestion that the 
alriCer in question or the official in charge would have to bear personally this 
oth Urit, nevertheless, it was our view, as I take it, in discussing it with the 

Members that there was an order in council under the Financial Ad- 
w Ration Act remitting the penalty. Before it could remit the penalty there 
4^. be a penalty to be remitted. It was on that basis that we followed the 

ltor General’s Report and incorporated that provision in our report.
Mr. Labarge: Mr. Chairman, I think based on this you were quite right.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): That is the point that I was making.
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Mr. Bigg: I would just like to know if there is any logic in keeping this 
regulation in force. Are there occasions when customs officials should be 
penalized; is this to prevent him from allowing some ship to come in and 
operate a short time without paying the proper dues and then get away, but we 
cannot recover from him, or should this statute be changed so there is no 
necessity for an unnecessary penalty to be on the books?

Mr. Labarge: We are speaking of two sections in this. We have the section 
which places a penalty on an officer for not collecting the duty and taxes. Is this 
the one you are referring to?

Mr. Bigg: Yes.
Mr. Labarge: Yes. Well, this offers certain safeguards to the revenue. It lS 

something that stands in front of a man’s eyes all the time; that I must maK 
sure that I collect the duty, and so forth, because otherwise I will be he 
responsible.

Mr. Bigg: You feel it is a safeguard?
Mr. Labarge: Yes, it is a pretty rugged one, you must admit.
Mr. Baldwin: Has this course of action ever been repeated since then?
Mr. Labarge: No.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Where the permission to operate may be revoked 0 

non-payment, such as you experienced with these cheques that he was giyl ^ 
you, would it not be desirable to have that regulation changed so that it c°u 
be made lawful? You can always revoke the permission if the cheque do 
bounce?

theMr. Labarge: The general circumstance in this is that we waive 
requirement of duty for foreign vessels, under this section. So when you wa1^ 
it there is no duty to be collected. But in this case we have the duty at hand^g 
be payable at certain periods, so by a stretch of imagination we permitted 
duty free operation of this vessel during these periods, collecting the duty 
pieces at the end of each one of these duty free periods until the total came up- 

The other alternative, as I say, would have been to allow the man 
operate this foreign vessel which we can do under this section for a whole * ^ 
while he accumulated the amount, and then he would have cleared it thro 
customs and been free.

the
orMr. Tardif: Are you saying the department has the right to say t0 

shipowners, for instance, that the position is that you pay your total dut7aŸe 
excise duty or you cannot operate in our waters, or does the same person h t 
the authority instead of saying that to say, “well, you can give us a 
dated cheque over a period of one year”. Must the department give 
permission to operate for a period of one year as a statutory measure?

Mr. Labarge: We have to operate for this temporary period on an order 
council.

ifl

Mr. Tardif: You have to?
Mr. Labarge: Yes.
Mr. Tardif: The order in council that applies to each condition separately 
Mr. Labarge : Each case?



June 2, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 537

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I would like to ask Mr. Henderson if he under­
stands this.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. McLean, there is a paragraph at the top of page 35 
where we say:

It was noted that the order in council referred to above also 
exempted the vessel in question from the provisions of Part XIII of the 
Act. Since the power of the Governor in Council in section 673 is 
restricted to ships of “any foreign country”, it seemed to us that the 
exemption could not apply to the vessel in question which is a foreign- 
built British ship.

Now, at all material times in our examination of this transaction this ship 
was a British registered ship, as defined in the Canada Shipping Act; it was 
registered in the British West Indies, it was owned by a Canadian corporation, 
domiciled and resident in Canada. The ship was, therefore, as I have said, in our 
view a British registered ship, and it was not a ship of any foreign registry. It 
was on that basis that we questioned the validity of the order in council as it 
^'as issued on that point. That is a point separate, and apart of course, from the 
fact that—

Mr. Tardif: What I am interested most in, Mr. Chairman, is that it appears 
*hat this fellow was penalized and it is not a fact that we penalized an official 
“at makes a mistake.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Tardif, this had to do with the issuance of the licence, 
he Customs Act is not only specific under section 22 in requiring the duties 

jhust be paid in full at the time goods enter Canada, but it also provides, and I 
han go on to quote the relevant section of the Customs Act.

, And then to further protect the revenue there are penalties provided to 
6 assessed against any collector or other officer who allows payment of 
ufy to be avoided or deferred.

Having accepted post dated cheques to pay for the duty, the first part of the 
•as circumvented and then it became, as Mr. Labarge said, necessary to 

voke the section which penalizes the officer and to take him off the hook, 
tc> Ch was afso done. By that time the collector having rendered himself liable 
° the penalty imposed, it was over $50,000, it had to be increased in accordance 
uh the provisions of the Customs Act.

The Chairman: I would like to ask Mr. Labarge why the owner of this ship 
am? n°t f°fd to go out and borrow $10,078, which was the duty payable; go out 
l a make his own financial arrangements and live within the law as laid down 

y the department?
Mr. Labarge: Well, this was exactly the kind of torture he went through, 

th one he bought a ship on which he put down all his money only to find 
; h was at a lower value than we would accept for customs; then he found 

s0t!! owned the ship and he had repairs to put on it so that he could earn 
tfe u,In0ney" Put it UP on the docks and again ran into considerable expense. 
He .n had no money at all left and made every effort possible to get funds. 
the P°inte<i out that the only way in which he could earn any revenue was by 
er deration of the ship and this involved the employment of himself and his 

VV’ and others as well.
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The Chairman: So with that in mind, as it says, special arrangements have 
been made in the department regarding payment of duty. And those arrange­
ments were made irrespective of the terms of section 235 (1).

Mr. Labarge: In the belief that we had authority.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Was this the collector’s fault? Did the collector 

not know that the man could run his boat for a year without paying the duty?
Mr. Labarge: The collector can do nothing about that himself, sir. It has to- 

be by an order in council.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Was this under a special order in council?
Mr. Labarge: Yes.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Well I cannot see where the department is at fault if if 

was under a special order in council.
Mr. Ballard: Are we not talking about two separate things here? First of 

all, the fact of the action of the collector, and then, second, is there not a 
distinction between a foreign ship and a Canadian built ship? I would like Mr- 
Henderson to go over that point again, if there is a distinction between these 
two.

Mr. Henderson: The intention of the department, Mr. Ballard, was t° 
provide for this ship to operate in Canada on coastwise trade in much the same 
way that owners of foreign ships are granted coastal privileges, from time t° 
time under section 673 of the Canada Shipping Act with payment of appropriate 
duty. In the case of this ship, for the reasons I quoted you, we take the positi°n 
that at all material times it was a foreign built ship of British registry.

Mr. Ballard : In that case it should not have been subjected to the 
regulations it was subjected to.

The Chairman: Why do you not call on Mr. Labarge? The question is, does 
it make any difference whether it is a Canadian built and owned versus 
foreign ship? Is that the question Mr. Ballard?

Mr. Ballard : That is right.
Mr. Henderson: May I ask Mr. Crowley if he could just explain this t0 

you?
Mr. H. G. Crowley: (Audit Director, Auditor General’s Office) ■ 

particular ship was foreign built British registered and as such, section 673 cou 
not be brought into play to apply to this particular ship. Now in connects
with section 22 of the Customs Act and Part XIII of the Canada Shipping Act
VV A HO. Odd vavaa V7-L UiC Vy LAO LWIIIO jTXV L Cl-Li VI X ÛU IVlli VX Hid Vy CIAACIVICT. w

these specifically prohibit any coasting licence to issue without the custo 
duties having been paid. There is nothing on either act to permit instalm6 
payments or deferred payments to take place and that is what happened here.

Then section 235 of the Customs Act specifically prohibits any custo ^ 
officer under threat of severe penalty to allow any coasting licence to be iss°
Now what happened here? The customs officer several times wrote to

of tms 
thedepartment wanting to know how he could issue this licence in view 

particular fact. In other words he wanted to know who was going to take . 
responsibility. As Mr. Labarge has stated Mr. Chairman the department s 
that they are taking responsibility as to how the duty will be paid and his
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was to issue the licence whenever the owner applied for it. The owner applied 
for the coasting licence, he was issued the licence without the customs 
collector knowing how the duty was being paid.

The order in council provided for under section 22 of the Financial 
Administration Act (not section 22 of the Customs Act) the remission to the 
collector of the penalty. The collector perhaps did not know this order in 
council existed. In other words the penalty which the customs collector 
automatically incurred by reason of section 235 of the Customs Act was now 
remitted under section 22. In other words his sin was forgiven. That is what 
happened in this instance.

Mr. Tardif : A sin he had not committed.
Mr. Crowley: That is right. Now the other part of the order in council says:

The board recommends that the provision of Part XIII of the Canada 
Shipping Act shall not apply to the use in the coasting trade by (the 
owner of) the American built El Amigo and the remission of penalty 
to which the collector of customs and excise who issued a coasting licence 
for the El Amigo is subjected by section 235 of the Customs Act in 
allowing the customs duty to be deferred on an instalment basis.

In other words the Act was broken and that was the first point.
Now, number two.

You cannot apply section 673 of the Canada Shipping Act to a 
foreign built British registered or Canadian registered vessel.

That section applies to foreign built foreign registered, and as Mr. Labarge 
as mentioned, there are occasions under another type of order in council on a 

^lie-sixtieth basis whereby an owner of a foreign regulation vessel can come in 
and perhaps run from port to port once or twice and he pays a certain 
amount of duty. Now, in this case Mr. Labarge was saying that you are 

retching it; you are taking the first instalment and you are saying that this is 
ne-sixtieth; the second instalment is two-sixtieths, and that sort of thing. But 
. Point is, that this particular transaction did not take place under the one- 
xtieth. It took place under this particular order in council.

Mr. Tardif: He probably did not know that all this was on it, and this was 
of his record. I am glad that this was brought out in this Committee 

^eause if ever this particular employee has trouble we can refer to the minutes 
today’s meeting, or the previous meeting where it is said that this man is 

remitted of sins that he has not committed. I think that if a man who is to 
Emitted of sin at least he should have the fun of committing it.

The Chairman: Mr. Ballard, if you are satisfied with the answer to your 
estion, then we will have—Mr. Labarge do you want to add anything further? 
n°t, we will proceed.

-Mr. Labarge: This is very complicated. I think we would be taking up a 
fiot^ ^he committee’s time. There is a difference of opinion here; this is
^ . a Canadian vessel, and so what else can it be? It is not a British built and 
^ ri^sh constructed vessel, and so the law has always been interpreted that such 

v®ssel must be foreign and it has been treated as a foreign vessel.
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Mr. Noble: Could I ask one question? Is the owner of this ship a Canadian 
citizen?

Mr. Labarge: Yes.
The Chairman: Is the boat still operating? 
Mr. Labarge: Yes.
The Chairman: And he is carrying on a good business?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Was the subcommittee made aware of all 

this information when they reached their decision?
Mr. Baldwin: Well, not all the details, for instance. We were aware of the 

fact that there had been what you might call these technical breaches of the 
legislation and that because of those technical breaches the official had become 
liable to a penalty, and after having become liable to a penalty then the order 
in council had been passed remitting the penalty. It was our view that the 
means by which the department was able to persuade one of its officials to 
become guilty of a technical breach of the act, thereby rendering himself liable 
to the penalty even though the penalty was later on to be remitted by an order 
in council, was not a good and desirable practice. This is the information °n 
which we reported.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : My question now to Mr. Labarge is: 
the department made any recommendations to the government for changes i 
the act to cover this situation, or is it desirable that the situation be left as it 
so that individuals must be put in the position of wrong doing technically 3 
least?

Mr. Labarge: We have a number of amendments, resolutions now, which 
cover that in other areas where we obviously have a deferment of the payment- 
This is covered clearly by the permit system and a full control. The essence 1 
think of what I was trying to say in connection with this case was that a whole 
bunch of documentation went forward, needlessly when I think a proper 
examination of our statute as it exists, and the authorities within it would have 
enabled us to do this had we gone about it the right way. I believe if we had 
handled this by a proper submission which would have produced a prop61" 
order in council we would not have had the same kind of treatment.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): How would you define a proper order 111 
council, Mr. Labarge?

Mr. Labarge: As I said, this would take up some time in debate and 
Howell could enlighten us on this because he is familiar with shipping. A s3j 
such as this is not a Canadian ship; it is not British registered and British bui ' 
So it falls into the no man’s land of foreign ships. Now, there would be 
technically there as to the words “of any foreign country”, but what do y°u 
with a Canadian owner of a foreign ship, leave him in this limbo. Now, 
interpretation has always been that he would be treated as though it were 
ship of a foreign country.

the
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : In your opinion, Mr. Labarge, can 

legislation be amended in some practical way to cover this point?
Mr. Labarge: I would like to look at it with a view to doing that, sir’ 

because I would not want to have this trouble again.
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Have any recommendations been made to 
date?

Mr. Labarge: Not that I am aware of.
The Chairman: Are we ready to proceed with the next one?
Mr. Bigg: If this official did the same thing again, then he would have to be 

subject to this penal clause and be remitted again, as it stands. Is that correct?
Mr. Labarge: I think we would work this under the section in the proper 

"'uy, under section 673, and we do not feel we would have had to go for the 
Waiver of the penalty.

Mr. Bigg: Did this official have any way of getting around this as the law 
stood at the time he did it?

Mr. Labarge: I think that what we would have done is to say, despite the 
Presentation of these cheques, tell the man that he can operate temporarily for 

time and then bring us in the amount of money.
Mr. Bigg: Who would tell him that?
Mr. Labarge: Under 673, order in council.
The Chairman: Just one short question and then we will proceed. You 

Poke about interpretation. That brings up the legal interpretation. Did you 
tain legal interpretation, Mr. Labarge, on this matter?

Mr. Labarge: For the way it was handled?
jy The Chairman: Yes. You had difficulty deciding just what should be done. 

1(t you consult legal advice?
Mr. Labarge: We did. We had legal advice on it.
The Chairman: Within your own office?
Mr. Labarge: Within the department.

g The Chairman: Did the Department of Justice, know about it? You did not 
beyond your own department?

Mr. Labarge: No; however all regulatory orders in council are checked by 
6 Department of Justice.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman?
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Noble?

o Mr. Noble: May I ask Mr. Labarge this question. This was a Canadian 
tty,)er> what prohibited this man from bringing this ship into Canadian regis-

Mr. Labarge: He had to pay for a coasting licence; he had to first pay the
lty.

h9(j Noble: Well, this way he would have to pay for a foreign ship but if he 
t*ght’S Danadian registry he would not have to pay this coasting licence; is this

Mr. Labarge : It is an importation.
Mr. Noble: Did he desire to bring it into Canadian registry?
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Mr. Labarge: No.
Mr. Noble: He did not? Did you talk with him?
The Chairman: Mr. Long? Or Mr. Henderson?
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, I would appreciate it if Mr. Long could say 

something on this case. The facts are as stated in my report, and as he wn 
explain to you they were confirmed as correct by the department.

Mr. G. R. Long (Assistant Auditor General, Auditor General’s Office) : ^eS' 
In Mr. Henderson’s absence I was the one who dealt with the subcommittee c>n 
this and I am sure the Committee must find the difference of opinion a litti 
embarrassing, as I do. I would first point out that our note states on page 6 

that this section 670 of the Canada Shipping Act specifically provides that a 
coasting licence may be issued to a foreign-built British ship only if the duty 
has been paid. We had a departmental document with us at the subcommity6 

which starts out, “this is a correct statement of fact.” After the meeting 
Baldwin decided that we perhaps did not need to have the department come 
the subcommittee. I suggested they may want to say something; that thy 
should be made aware of the committee’s report, or invited to come. w 
undertook to clear the report with the department, which we did. We advise 
them of the circumstances. As I say, we stated in the note that this could not ^ 
done under the act. This we understood the department to confirm as hem 
correct. ^

I would like to point out one other thing mentioned toward the bottom 
page 34. It refers to the imposing of a penalty on the collector and the 
remitting it. Mr. Labarge now says they perhaps did not need to do this. T 
fact is it was done and there is danger in such an action as we see it. We said ^ 
was irregular and undesirable. We said, “If it is not, then it would appear tb® 
any section of any act with respect to which there is a penalty within 1 

meaning of section 22 of the Financial Administration Act could be circumven 
ed simply by using the device of having a public officer deliberately contrav6 )( 
any such section and then remitting the penalty incurred by his unlawful ac ■ 
We regard it as very serious that a thing like this could be done.

Mr. Winch: It is very bad in principle.
Mr. Long: That is right, Mr. Winch. ^
The Chairman: Gentlemen, the subcommittee have one sentence in here^ 

follows: “We express the hope that the department will not again resort to 
an expedient”. Mr. Baldwin, do we leave that in and continue? ^

Mr. Baldwin: Well, I do not know; this will have to be the subject 
discussion when the report is being considered.

The Chairman: All right. Number 70.
70. Remission of duties on certain motor vehicles and parts.

22 (1) and 79 of the Customs Act, R.S., c. 58, as amended, 
follows: vy

22. (1) Unless the goods are to be warehoused in the raanoct ^ 
this Act provided, the importer shall, at the time of entry pay d aI1d 
or cause to be so paid, all duties upon all goods entered inwards, , 
the collector or other proper officer shall, immediately there

Sectio^
ad *5re;

V
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grant his warrant for the unlading of such goods, and grant a permit 
for the conveyance of such goods further into Canada, if so required 
by the importer.

79. No person shall make, nor shall any officer accept, any bond, 
note or other document for the purpose of avoiding or deferring the 
actual payment of duties legally accruing on goods imported into 
Canada, or arrange for deferring payment of such duties in any way, 
unless such goods are entered for warehouse, and duly deposited 
therein according to the laws and regulations governing the ware­
housing of such goods.
Order in Council P.C. 1963-1/1544 of October 22, 1963, passed 

pursuant to section 22 of the Financial Administration Act, remits all 
customs duties payable with respect to certain motor vehicles and motor 
vehicle parts to the extent by which the Canadian content value of 
vehicles and parts exported by the importer in three designated periods 
exceeds the Canadian content value exported during the base year 
November 1, 1961 to October 31, 1962.

In actual practice the Department generally refrains from exacting 
payment of duties at the time of importation and waits for a period of 
several months to one year or more until the extent to which the 
importer is able to comply with the export conditions as set out in the 
remission order is determined. To the extent that the importer cannot 
comply, he must pay the duties.

In effect, the Department is deferring payment of duty until such 
time as the amount, if any, which the Governor in Council has remitted 
is determined, and it is the Audit Office view that the Department lacks 
authority to do this because of the requirements of sections 22 (1) and 79 
of the Customs Act.

Mr. Henderson: This has to do with the remission of duties on certain 
°tor vehicles and parts. It will be recalled here that following the issuance of 
y 1964 report in which I had pointed out that the department lacked 

0{ tl0rity to defer payment of duty in these cases because of the requirements 
*he Customs Act, amendments to the Customs Act were introduced in the 

a^lSe in 1965, whereby statutory approval has since been given to this practice 
j the Department now has the authority to follow the procedure to which 

taken exception. I do not think we need to spend very much time on it.
The Chairman: It has since then been corrected.
^r- Baldwin: I wonder if I could make one comment and we will probably 

ji. e to this later. My comment is this : I do not know what section 22 of the 
ly ancial Administration Act was originally designed to cover and how narrow- 

should be regarded but as one reads the Auditor General’s reports year 
heet year one comes to the conclusion and this is not directed against the 

artment that this section is abused time and time and time again; I would 
Want to let this go past without making that comment.

Mi Chairman: Mr. Baldwin by that you mean we defer collecting duty 
2^giWe have no right to do it?
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Mr. Baldwin: No. It is an improper use made of the remission. Section 22 is 
used, abused, contorted and twisted in so many cases to provide for remission 
that I think it is just shocking. This is my own view and possibly sometime 
when the Financial Administration Act comes up it should be considered. This Is 
my opinion. «

The Chairman: Mr. Henderson.
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Baldwin you will recall and I think the members of 

the Committee too that it was as a result of the work of this Committee that the 
statement that appears in the public accounts on the remissions has been 
considerably improved by setting down the reasons for the various types 
remission. The statement in the public accounts is now quite illuminating and 1 
would invite members to study it.

Mr. Baldwin: The Department of National Revenue has given effect to this 
by amendments in several cases. I am not levelling any blame at them but I arn 
levelling it at the people who are responsible for the orders in council that do 
go through pertaining to remissions?

The Chairman: Number 71.
71. Refund of sales tax on materials used in construction of certai 

buildings. Section 47A of the Excise Tax Act, 1963, c. 12, reads a 
follows:

“Where materials have been purchased by or on behalf of
(a) a school, university or other similar educational institution f°^ 

use exclusively in the construction of a building for that institm 
tion, or

(b) any organization for use exclusively in the construction of ^ 
building for that organization that is to be used exclusively 0 
mainly as a public library operated by or on behalf of 
organization on a non-commercial basis,

and the tax imposed by Part VI has been paid in respect of thos® 
materials, the Minister may, upon application by such institution 
organization in such form as the Minister prescribes made to 
Minister within two years from the time the materials were PV 
chased, pay to such institution or organization an amount equal 
that tax.”
Because an actual tabulation of the sales tax paid on the many 

entering into the construction of a building is extremely difficult, it wa„ 
the opinion of the Department that the arrangements by which educ 
tional institutions could obtain a refund of sales tax must be simplified 

Accordingly Order in Council P.C. 1964-1/692 of May 12, \ ^ 
approved a formula for determining sales tax refundable on 
used exclusively in the construction of buildings for schools, universe ^ 
or other similar educational institutions or public libraries, to be use ^ 
persons entitled to a refund of sales tax pursuant to the provision5,^ 
section 47A as an alternative to the present standard refund c 
procedure. The formula is designed to determine the approximate ya^e 
of taxable material in a building and to estimate the amount of 
refund that may be claimed.

I
Î
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Section 47A directs the Minister to pay an amount equal to the tax 
that has been paid and there does not appear to be any authority in the 
Excise Tax Act to pay a refund based on an estimated taxable value of 
materials incorporated into a building.

Mr. Henderson: Refund of sales tax on materials used in construction of 
Certain buildings. This is a somewhat comparable situation where again I 
questioned the propriety of the department’s action here. However, I was able 
0 advise you on May 5 that this situation is the subject of budget resolution 15 

qùth respect to the Excise Tax Act to be found outlined on page 3399 of 
Hansard of March 29, 1966. If this resolution is approved it will provide proper 
authority for the procedure which I had criticized. So that has been taken 
eare 0f.

The Chairman: Paragraph Number 72.
72. Refunds of duties and taxes on estimated basis. In order that 

Canadian airlines may be in a tax position comparable to foreign airlines, 
the Governor in Council, under authority of section 22 of the Financial 
Administration Act, grants remission of duty, sales and excise taxes paid 
on parts, equipment and consumable maintenance stores for aircraft 
operating in international service.

The Department of National Revenue finds it administratively im­
practical in some cases to determine actual quantities to which remissions 
should apply and so relies on considered estimates in calculating the 
remissions to be granted.

A similar situation exists with respect to refunds to provincial 
governments of taxes paid indirectly. These too are estimated carefully 
for refund purposes in order to avoid excessive clerical costs.

If these practices, which are not now recognized by the taxing 
statutes, are to continue they should receive legislative sanction.

9 Mr. Henderson: Paragraph No. 72 deals with refunds of duties and taxes on 
Iç^timated basis. Again my observation here that the practices should receive 

bislative sanction has been recognized. This is also provided for in budget 
s°lution 15 that I referred to with respect to the Excise Tax Act which, if 

^Proved, will provide proper authority for the department to follow the 
ab Cec*ure 1 had criticized in this note; You may wish to ask the department 
U ?ut these. You have not yet in the House approved this budget resolution. If 

’ I can go on to 73, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: This means, Mr. Henderson, that the department are acting 

tlh°ut the proper authority from the House. The House has as yet not brought 
at about.

• ’ Henderson: That is right. Budget resolution 15 has been introduced
h it is approved will clothe them with the authority they require to do this 
thereby they meet the points I criticized.
The Chairman: I guess this problem is on our doorstep. We will have to 
eed a little faster, gentlemen, to get the legislation through.

9tlV ^INCH: The important question there, though, Mr. Chairman, is has 
department the right to take action which is not authorized by Parliament 

24291-2i
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because it contemplates that Parliament is going to take action to give them 
that authority. That is a very important principle.

The Chairman: That is quite right, Mr. Winch, and yet the department 
have to proceed; they have to carry on their operations and their business.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, they carry on their operations and their 
business according to the authority which is extant, not what they think they 
might get at the next session or next year.

The Chairman: They are remiss until the act is changed.
Mr. Winch: I think they are.
The Chairman: Mr. Labarge, what are your feelings on this?
Mr. Labarge: I think Mr. Winch is referring to those types of administra­

tive things as distinct from the fiscal, the budget proposals which are effectif 
immediately. These affect the intent of Parliament with respect to the appüca' 
tion of the fiscal law, so there is a close relationship to them. For a lot of the5 
you will find we obtained authorities which were deemed to be questional^

the
very

and it is not always a question of admission that they are illegal, but it is 
wisdom, as was suggested with respect to the last item, of making it clear in
law and this we have gone along with wholeheartedly and it has been 
helpful to have this. In most of these cases it is not that we have necessaP i 
breached the law in any way; there can be a difference of opinion; we hav" 
legal opinions on both sides and we feel that even if we are right we shou 
make it obvious that we are right.

The Chairman: Paragraph No. 73.
73. Refund of duty paid on goods diverted to use other than that 

which they were imported. In a number of cases the customs tar 
provides alternative rates of duty on certain goods, depending on the u
to which they are to be put when imported.

vhichNo specific authority is contained in the Customs Act under w- ^ 
the Department may grant refunds in cases where goods were en}'el^ie 
under an item of the tariff, upon payment of duty at the rate appÜca 
to such goods, and subsequently diverted to a use which would na 
entitled them to entry under a different tariff item had they then P 
imported. Nevertheless, the Department as a matter of equity ^ 
adopted a policy of making refunds in such cases, treating the oriëin 
payment as “duty paid in error”. j

It is the view of the Audit Office that if this policy is to be continue 
it should have legislative sanction.

Mr. Henderson: Refund of duty paid on goods diverted to use other tka^ 
that for which they were imported. Now, this note shows how as a matteI"ses, 
equity the department has adopted the policy of making refunds in these ca 
treating the original payments as duty paid in error. Section 43 of the Cus 
Act does confer wide authority on the customs appraiser and on the DeP 
Minister to redetermine tariff classifications and for refunds to be made on 
basis of such redetermination. However, I do not believe such authority ca^ei 
exercised with respect to the deliberate diversion of imported goods to use o^^ 
than that declared at the time of their entry simply on the ground that
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diversion should be regarded as a kind of error, which is why I say if this policy 
ls to continue it should receive legislative sanction. I do not know what further 
c°mments Mr. Labarge might have on this paragraph. There has been no action 
taken on this observation thus far.

Mr. Labarge: I think I would ask Mr. Hind, the Assistant Deputy Minister 
for customs if he would make a statement on this.

Mr. A. R. Hind (Assistant Deputy Minister Customs, Customs and Excise 
division) ; The legislation setting forth duties payable on goods imported into 
Canada is the Customs Tariff Act. This enactment contains several thousand of 
Provisions and it is the responsibility of the customs and excise division of the 
Apartment of National Revenue to classify imported goods and assign the duty 
Properly payable. Most of the items are not qualified as to the use to which the 
§°ods will be put after importation. However, scattered throughout the tariff is 
? substantial number of provisions which have become known as end use items, 
^hese are provisions which grant lower rates of duty to goods when used in a 
specified manner. Typical such items relate to mining, logging, agriculture, 
. shing, oil well operations, metallurgical operations, sawmill operations, fertil- 
1Zer manufacturers, and so on. Some of these items name the goods which are 
entitled to the preferred treatment. Others are general in their coverage and in 
ais connection some are restricted in their generality, while others are without 

^striction. In appropriate circumstances these end use items take precedence 
°Ver the general purpose provision for the goods. Thus a given article could 
'foe a number of rates of duty depending upon the use to which it will be put 
her importation. For example, pumps could be classified at 22£ per cent; most 
avOured nation tariff, when for general purpose use; at 15 per cent, when for
ertain metallurgical operations; at 12£ per cent, when for logging use; at 10 

Per cent, when for certain oil extraction operation; at 7£ per cent, when for 
c ncentrating or separating ores, metals or minerals and duty free when for 

hain farm uses and for fertilizer manufacture.
Were all goods imported by the end user there would be no problem as the 

tii S Wou-fo be entered under the appropriate end use item. However this is not 
6 Way business is done. Rather in the great majority of instances importations 

j 6 affected by resellers be they distributors, wholesalers or dealers. At time of 
Portation and placing into stock the use to which the article will be put is not 

^gVays known. Consequently the goods are cleared at the general purpose rate. 
a they are sold for use which permits of a lower rate the department accepts 
j farnending entry reclassifying them under the appropriate end use item and 
bn lLrt^s the overpayment of duty. If such a procedure were not followed the 
jj. efit concurred by parliament would not be realized to the full. To make 

Ximum use of the item in such circumstances the end user of the goods 
ufo become the importer much to his discomfort owing to the lack of 
P^ience jn importing delay in securing delivery and much to the annoyance 
ae reseller who would lose this business.

1Q An alternative would be to permit the reseller to import the goods at the 
''rest preferred rate and pay duty on those goods as they are sold for a use 

r6 1C.k reQuires a higher rate. This would be a dangerous practice and would
Whire

ueep an extensive and costly policing operation. The refund procedure has
in effect probably since the inception of end use items and it is felt to be a
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reasonable and practical way of giving effect to the provisions of the Customs 
Tariff Act. The department is of the view based upon the opinion of its solicitor 
that section 43 of the Customs Act gives the necessary legal coverage for this 
procedure. Section 43 (2) (a) states that and I quote:

A Dominion Customs Appraiser may redetermine the tariff clas­
sification or reappraise the value for duty of any goods made at the time 
of their entry
(b) in any other case where he deems it advisable within two years of 

the date of entry.
When the goods are sold by the importer for a preferred end use the 

appraiser redetermines the tariff classification from the general purpose use 0 
the preferred end use.

Again Section 43 (4) (d) stipulates that and I quote:
The Deputy Minister may redetermine the tariff classification °r 

reappraise the value for duty of any goods ,
(a) in any other case where he deems it advisable within two years ° 

the date of entry of those goods.
Thus the Deputy Minister also has a right to reclassify the goods on thel* 

sale for a preferred end use. These two subsections are followed by secti° 
43(5) (b) which reads as follows:

Where the tariff classification of goods has been redetermined or t*1® 
value for duty of goods has been reappraised under this section
(b) a refund shall be made of the whole or a part of any duties or taX® 

paid with respect to the goods in accordance with the re-determin 
tion or re-appraisal.

With authority therefore for the reclassifying of goods and for the refun 
of duties shown to be overpaid it is felt that the department has legal coverag 
for its current practice.

The Chairman: Thank you Mr. Hind. Are there any questions?
Mr. Ballard: To what extent does the department carry out an investi^ 

tion to determine the accuracy of reclassification claims? To what extent is

ut
investigation carried out?

Mr. Labarge: I just want to clarify this question, whether or not it is P 
to the end use.

Mr. Ballard: That is right. For example, motors are imported at the .j 
rate and then there are some motors diverted to farm use, some to 
exploration use, and a merchant or an importer makes a claim for so nan 
motors for farm use and so many motors for oil exploration. What check do j 

make on the claims for reclassification?
Mr. Hind: First of all, we must remember that when an amending entr5^e 

presented it is examined by the local port officer who has a knowledge of ^ 
individual who is going to use these goods. He knows the nature of the buso^ 
in which this person is employed and occupied. A second check is that in a 
cases we require end use certificates from the person who is asking f° 
recovery of the overpayment of duty.
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Thirdly, when the amending entry is passed, the importer takes a certificate 
to the effect that the goods in the new status will be used as required by the 
ltem, and if they are not put to such use, or if put for a time to such use, and 
then subsequently diverted, he undertakes to come back to the department and 
make an adjustment appropriately.

Fourthly, we have our investigational service, which periodically audits the 
hooks and records of companies to insure that the revenue is protected.

Mr. Ballard: It occurred to me that there is legislative sanction for this 
Procedure. Is it just the terminology of duty paid in error that you object to?

Mr. Henderson: No; we do not consider that there is legislative sanction for 
this procedure for the reasons which I have stated, Mr. Ballard. Mr. Hind in his 
statement referred to the fact that this has been the practice which has been 
going on for a long time. I can quote you a section from a letter by the deputy 
Minister of the department ten years ago in which he states that “as a matter of 
6clUity it has been our practice to permit importers to file claims for refund 
^here the circumstances are shown to have been as stated, considering such 
ysfunds as in the category of duty paid in error.” We have examined that. We 
^n°w that there is no specific authority contained in the Customs Act. My 
officers have looked into it; as in the case of the previous notes, I might add that

discussed this with my legal advisers who have stated to me that in their 
Vlew such refunds should have legislative sanction. So that the point we are 
faking is correct. My statement in the note at the conclusion “that if the policy 
ls to be continued it should have legislative sanction” will, I hope, commend 
ltself to the Committee.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): If we admit that the statement “duty paid in 
^r°r” has no legal sanction, could the duty be reclassified? That would answer 
'rr- Henderson’s problem, but apparently he does not agree with that. I mean if 
hey reclassify it, the duty would not be paid in error. It would be paid 

Properly in the first instance; and they then would reclassify it and say, “you 
.re Using it for a preferred use and therefore you are entitled to a refund.” If it 
.s a reclassification, as Mr. Hind has said in his memorandum, it is under the 
aw- That is the way I look at it.

Mr. Henderson: I would like to have a remark from Mr. Crowley on this, 
^r- Chairman.

Mr. Crowley: What Mr. Hind has said is in accordance with the act. The 
fi°iut that bothers us is where is it going to stop? In other words, you bring an 
article of goods in and clear it through the customs and it is properly appraised 

it is properly valued and then it goes out into the business stream. Now, if 
months later they come back and they want the goods reappraised because 

6 eud use is changing where are you going to end?
And in connection with section 43, the department finds it very difficult, I 

: ’Pk, to have their customs collectors apply section 43 because in their 
^“ruptiop to their port officers they say, “overpayment of duty or tax resulting 
^ the diversion of goods is not affected by section 43”. That is the section

has just been read to you. “But is to be dealt with under section 112.” 
section 112 simply relates to overpayment or underpayment or refunds.V,
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They do not specify any type of refunds. So, in other words, in order to make 
the clause operative, the department finds it cannot use section 43, they must 
use section 112,

Our point is we agree with the department that there is an element of 
debate there, an element of doubt.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): You say where will it end. Well, where will 
business go if you do not have these means whereby you can do what is in 
equity the thing that you want to do?

Mr. Crowley: In my opinion changes of that nature, diversions of that 
nature, Mr. Chairman, are not covered by the act.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : There is a difference of opinion there.
Mr. Tardif : Unfortunately the department is not allowed to do that. So»® 

businessmen who are importers who need goods for their customers would no 
have them if they had to wait until they were sold or that the customers worn 
not have the goods when they were required. If the department does make an 
occasional check on some of these importers, I do not see any danger 0 
anything being very wrong.

The Chairman : This is a very complicated legal matter and I do not thin^ 
we will solve it further this morning, but it is a recommendation we shorn 
make.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : In this case I would think that the department »uSj 
have some leeway, because I can see where an importer who is going to 
the implement that he is bringing in probably does not know at the time that 
is bringing it in whether he is going to sell it to a farmer or to someone els • 
Now, if a farmer comes and wants to buy a pump from him and he says, “we ’ 
these are duty free, you know, because I am buying it as a farmer.” The »3 
says, “well, I paid the full duty on it, 22J per cent. Unless I get that duty fr° 
you I cannot sell it”. So he goes to a man who has probably identically j 
same pump and has imported it for farm use. I think this has to be part of 
business as far as the department is concerned.

The Chairman: You are putting the practical application on that.
Mr. Henderson: We are not quarrelling with that, Mr. Muir, you under 

stand.

the
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): No.
Mr. Henderson: We do not quarrel with the financial side of it; , 

department’s administration of it has always been excellent from our stand­
point. It is purely the fact that we do not think section 43 covers it and give * g 
opinion that it should have legislation; much the same way that the previou 
ones have been—

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I am inclined to agree that rather than collected 1 
error it could be called a reclassification. In that case it would be perfectly leg3*'

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, does the reference to legislative sanch011 
relate to statutory amendments or to regulatory provisions?

Mr. Henderson: Section 43 of the Customs Act or whatever steps might ^ 
taken along those lines, action by Parliament.
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Mr. Schreyer: It could not be dealt with by regulation?
Mr. Henderson: It is being dealt with by regulation now, I presume you 

w°uld say, by the department’s own regulation.
Mr. Crowley: The term “legislative sanction” when we use it in our report 

^eans sanction by Parliament.
Mr. Schreyer: By statute, in other words?
The Chairman: Paragraph 74.

74. Possible loss of revenue when goods lose tax-exempt status. 
Equipment is sometimes imported to be leased to an institution which is 
exempt from duty and sales tax, with ownership remaining with the 
importer.

In such cases the Department requires that the importer be in 
possession of a lease commitment from a tax-exempt institution and that 
a copy of this be filed with the relative customs import entry. Entry is 
also contingent on the equipment being exported under customs supervi­
sion on expiration of the lease or duty being paid on an appraised value 
with allowance for depreciation. The Department permits the transfer of 
the equipment from one tax-exempt institution to another but if the 
equipment is warehoused it loses its exempt status and duty must be 
paid.

Similar situations exist where there is entitlement to make domestic 
purchases free of sales tax. Should any article so purchased be later 
transferred to an end use that is not exempt from tax, either the new 
purchaser or the vendor must report and pay the proper tax.

Having laid down the rules governing goods which lose their tax- 
exempt status, the Department placed on the owners the onus for 
reporting any duty or tax payable and no departmental control of 
non-tax paid equipment or goods was maintained. Consequently, it is 
possible for equipment or goods to lose tax-exempt status without this 
coming to the attention of the Department, in which case there would be 
a loss of revenue to the Crown.

, Mr. Henderson: This deals with possible loss of revenue when goods lose 
^-exempt status. In this case my officers and I felt that this matter should be 

out to t^ie House because with the onus being left on the owner or 
Porter, it is possible for equipment or goods of this type to lose their tax 
®fnpt status without this even coming to the attention of the department in 
lch case there would be a loss of revenue to the crown. It is also possible we 

*or ^e benefits accruing to public institutions here to be retained by 
leJ?°rters and others; that is to say without being passed on. This matter was 

°n May 5 so that you might question the department about it.
The Chairman: Any questions? Mr. Thomas?

jjr Thomas (Middlesex West): Do the department officials consider that 
t0 ctlcal legislation could be passed to cover these cases? Would it be practical 

c°ver this matter by legislation?
^r- Hind: We are of the view that our current procedure adequately 

°tects the revenue. I have already mentioned the four or five ways, the four or
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five checks, that we have in order to ensure that the goods are not diverted to 
some use that should require the payment of higher rates of duty. Speaking 
quickly, I am not sure that I could suggest at the moment any type of 
legislation that could protect the department. I do not know whether the 
Auditor General has given any thought to this or not. I think the Auditor 
General is suggesting that perhaps our follow-up is not adequate under this 
heading.

Mr. Henderson: It does raise some interesting questions. Mr. Hind lS 
perfectly right.

It is the policing action which takes place in the department which we are 
primarily driving at. We have a case in mind, I might ask Mr. Long to give it t° 
you. It shows you the type of questions which arise.

Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, this is a question on which I think the members 
of the Committee might be interested in hearing comments from the departmen- 
tal officials. It has to do with who benefits from the special provisions that are 
made, and this is of course where the administrative difficulty arises, for certain 
users of imported goods. As I understand it, mechanical equipment of a class Çr 
kind not made in Canada and for use in public hospitals or other institutions i* 
exempt from duty and sales tax. Presumably the intention is that the hospita 
or other institution be the beneficiary of this exemption, and I would like to ask 
the department if they do check to see that this is the case. An example that 1 
have in mind is, say, a photocopy machine as a piece of equipment which 
qualifies. Now, if the normal rental of that machine which we all have in °u^ 
departments is five cents a copy, does the department concern itself 
whether the hospital gets a lesser rate when the machine is in fact brought in 
free of duty and sales tax?

Mr. Labarge: I think we have plenty of evidence of fully checking on these 
things. Now, when we use such terms as “a possibility,” I do not know what *e 
can put in that ever removes all possibilities. But we do have a famous case 
which anybody from the Windsor area will recall where a hospital had been 
using television sets under exempt conditions so-called. These have turned 
in the homes of certain of the staff and this is the kind of investigation which lS 
going on.

We endeavour at the time a person imports to see that the importer has hj 
his possession certificates which bind these people: Number one, to the fact tha 
if they put it to any other use, or if they transfer it to anybody else who is 
entitled, that it loses its tax exemption. I think we are pretty much back 
what Mr. Hind was saying in one of the checks we had before, unless there » 
something Mr. Hind would like to add to this.

Mr. Tardif: The hospitals have a licence which they have to use when they 
import goods that they are going to get an exemption of tax on.

Mr. Long: This was not the point I was trying to make. There is 
question that when hospitals make their purchase they purchase tax exerï^ue 
When it is somebody else importing, something to be rented to a hospital, ^ 
depai tment do see that they have a lease agreement with the hospital- 
question was: Do they see that that lease agreement insures the hospital a leS . 
rental rate because this particular machine is tax exempt than any other us 
would pay when the machine is tax paid.
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Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, if you ever do business with hospitals you do 
n°t have to worry about the department. The hospitals look after that quite 
well themselves.

The Chairman: Paragraph 75.
Mr. Henderson: Loss on buildings—
The Chairman: Excuse me for just a moment, Mr. Henderson. There may 

"e a question we missed here.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : We understand from Mr. Long that a 

c°pying machine, for instance, can be imported under a lesser duty on the 
Srounds that they have a contract to supply hospitals with copying?

Mr. Long : They supply them on a rental basis.
Now, we in our office as other departments, pay five cents a copy. I am 

furious as to how you can reduce that rate by an amount to reflect the saving in 
uuty. My thinking is that this is a windfall to the owner of the copying machine, 
n°t to the hospital.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Might we have an explanation of where we 
Set the interpretation of the act, that for instance, a private individual or 
etlgineer who has a contract to supply copy to a hospital can import machinery 
°r equipment to do this copying work as if he were connected with the hospital?

Mr. Long: The Customs Tariff deals with equipment for use in hospitals. It 
°es not say anything about purchase by the hospital or rental by the hospital.

Mr. Tardif: Yes, Mr. Chairman. This is probably a case of the exception 
at proves the rule. Because I was a director of the Ottawa Civic Hospital for a 

^°°d period of time and I do not remember anything that we bought that we 
S°t on renting. Most of the equipment bought for the hospital was bought 
utside. This may be one of the exceptions. I do not imagine that would happen 

Very often.

: Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, could I ask a question of information. Is it your
ention as Chairman that this committee should adjourn so the old timers can 

tend the presentation of the portrait for the previous Speaker?
The Chairman: You are quite right, Mr. Winch.
Mr. Winch: I know some of us would like to go there.
The Chairman: As you know, at 12.30 p.m. there is to be an unveiling of a 

cture in the Railway Committee room of the Speaker Alan Macnaughton. I am 
s, re all members of the Committee would like to attend and we will have to 

°P at this particular section, section 74. I am sorry that I will not be able to be 
to GSent this afternoon, but I will check with Mr. Lefebvre, our Vice Chairman 
Jyj See if he would continue, if it is agreeable that we sit this afternoon, and if 
£> ' Levebvre is not available would it be the wish of the committee that Mr. 

'twin take the chair this afternoon?
Some hon. Members: Agreed.

0r, The Chairman: Are you agreed to sit at 3.30 p.m. this afternoon or after 
6rs of the day, in the same room?

will adjourn the meeting at this point.
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AFTERNOON SITTING

Thursday, June 2, 1966.

• (3.32 p.m.)

The Vice-Chairman (Mr. Lefebvre) : I will call the meeting to order.
We will proceed with paragraph 75 on page 37.

75. Loss on buildings abandoned. In paragraph 86 (11) of our 1961 
Report, reference was made to the construction of two houses at the 
customs port of Pigeon River, Ontario, in 1957 at a cost of $45,000. At that 
time one of the houses had not been occupied and the Department was 
paying the cost of fuel oil and electricity in addition to the régulai 
expenses of upkeep. Two other houses had been built for Customs-Excise 
officers at this port, one in 1950 at a cost of $16,000 and one in 1954 at a 
cost of $21,000. Two houses had also been built by the Department o 
Citizenship and Immigration in 1955 and 1956 at a cost of $50,000. 
dormitory and a warehouse erected in 1947 and 1951 respectively, c°s 
$11,000. The cost of these departmental buildings at the site of tae 
customs port thus amounted to $143,000, exclusive of the cost of land. 1 
the period when the houses were available for occupancy one had been 
vacant for seven months, one for twelve months, while the one men' 
tioned in the 1961 Report was occupied for only nine months in its sl5C 
years of existence.

In September 1963 a new bridge was constructed over the FiSe°n 
River and the customs port was moved to the new location eleven mu 
to the east. The question of moving the six houses was considered b 
because of the excessive cost of such an operation it was decided 
abandon the houses and their related buildings. Departmental offing 
now live in or near Fort William or Port Arthur and each receives ^ 
daily mileage allowance for commuting between his home and the port-"' 
distance of approximately 40 miles.

The houses were declared surplus in November 1963 and turned °v® 
to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation which has since disposed of th 
for $8,145 on the condition that they be removed for the site. The Depal 
ment has furnished us with the following reason for this stipulation:
(1) to have sold the buildings without such a requirement might 

led to their occupancy, thereby aggravating the problem of une 
trolled border crossing while the old bridge remained in place:

(2) the Ontario Department of Highways was unable to give any assu' 
beV ~ ------------------— O' ’ - ,J

ranee that the dead-end road leading to the old bridge site worn 
maintained;

(3) the possibility existed that the provincial government might inc 
the area in question in the development of a provincial park.
The land on which the buildings had stood was declared surplLlS 

Crown Assets Disposal Corporation in October 1964. ^
Before we begin I would like to welcome the new deputy ministe^g 

National Revenue, Mr. Labarge, who succeeded a man who I believe had 5
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40 years of service in the federal government. I would like to say, Mr. Labarge, 
that we are pleased to have you with us and we would like you to say a few 
^ords if yeu would at this time.

Mr. Labarge : Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for your welcome. May 
* say that we really welcome the opportunity to appear before this committee 
and we certainly hope to be as helpful as we possibly can. As you know, the 
subjects that arise here are as a result of a great deal of work done by the 
Auditor General’s staff on a continual day-to-day basis throughout the various 
departments. This has a very salutary effect on our entire staff, and we welcome 
aPy advice this committee may give from time to time on subjects brought 
forward by our Auditor General.

Mr. Chairman, I will ask Mr. Warren Langford the director general of 
administrative services, to speak on this.

The Vice-Chairman: Before you begin, sir. Mr. Hales, the committee 
chairman, left me a note. He called the department concerned, Crown Assets, 
and was given a few facts that he asked me to place before the committee for 
fPe information of the members.

Apparently there are still two of these homes in place, but the contract was 
Slgned that they be moved by May 15, 1964. The land has since been sold to the 
Province. There was a call for tender and advertised as such on November 29, 
^63, and also on December 6. There were altogether 16 bids on these homes. 
ut of a total of six homes four have been sold and removed by the persons 
,at bought them; two are still in place. I thought I would like to give this 
information to the members so they would be brought up to date on the latest 
evelopments with regard to item No. 75.

Mr. J. W. Langford (Director General of Administrative Services, Customs 
A1 cf Excise Division): Mr. Chairman, I think there is little doubt as to what the 
editor General has outlined in his report. The question at issue seems to be 

ç y the department saw fit to release the buildings to Crown Assets Disposal 
°rPoration for sale while still retaining the property; in other words, why they 
ere both not turned over to C.A.D.C. for disposal. Now, it should be explained 
at only part of this land is actually owned by the department, having been 

A^chased from the Ontario government for $122.10, and the other portion of 
e land was on lease from the Ontario government. So really, we were in a 

^°sition to offer for sale only a portion of the land which had cost us $122.10. 
°w, of course, when the new bridge was opened in 1963 we had considered the 

Action of the removal of these buildings to the new site which is eleven miles 
Hâtant, but the expenditure involved here would have been $40,000 and 
^reasury Board was not prepared to approve this expenditure. Moreover, we 
^ere not able to persuade the officers to take up residence at the new site 

cause most of them were in a position at that time to commute to and from 
while living in Fort William or Port Arthur. We held on to the land for 

k time after we had turned the buildings over to C.A.D.C. because the old 
lc*ge was still in place and while it was there it offered an open entry, if you 

i to Canada unless we were prepared to maintain people there to control 
6n'C*ei' cross^nSs which, of course, we were not prepared to do. The bridge was 

ahy demolished and our people, or course, were already engaged in operating 
banning the new site.
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Another reason for holding onto the land was the Ontario government’s 
desire, expressed at that time, to carry out a plan of converting this whole area 
into a park land.

The third reason was this. The Ontario Department of Highways had 
indicated to us that once this old bridge was out this was going to become a 
dead end area, and they were not prepared to maintain the highway down to the 
old site where people might live if they were permitted to buy these buildings. J 
think the view must be taken, in looking at the real value of this property down 
there, that there is a complete lack of services; there will be no community 
services whatsoever. It is a most isolated point and I think that this lack ol 
normal community amenities would be certainly reflected in any price that 
might be obtained for the buildings even if they were sold complete with the 
property.

With those few remarks, Mr. Chairman, I think there is little to be added to 
what already has been said.

The Vice-Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Langford.
Mr. Henderson: I think the price realized for the land when it was sold 

back by C.A.D.C. was the same price the department had paid for it. Is that no 
correct? They sold it back for $122.10 six years later.

Mr. Langford: I have no knowledge, sir, of the transactions between 
C.A.D.C. and the Ontario government in this connection.

Mr. Henderson: I have here an Order in Council issued on September 2> 
1965, selling back the 7.21 acres to Ontario for $122.10. So it was held durinS 
that period of time and sold back at the same price.

The Vice-Chairman: Are there any questions, gentlemen?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Well, have you any suggestions how tin® 

situation can be improved, or is it one of those things where a set 
circumstances developed and no one can do anything about it?

Mr. Labarge: Apparently it is a set of circumstances similar to those which
required these houses to be built because we had no place for the habitation 
the officers. That set of circumstances has now been pretty well removed 1 
these locations by the fact that communities have developed nearby and hou ^ 
have been built in those communities which did not exist before, and the r° 
communications now permit our officers to live in a place where there is 
school, water, and every other facility; and we have no intention of build1 
any houses unless we have a situation similar to the postwar shortages of hou 
and similar conditions.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): The houses are of practically no va^u 
where they are situated?

Mr. Labarge : That is right.
Mr. Langford : I might add, sir, if I may, that we have not built any h°ULi 

since 1963 and the department now has a firm policy of gradual withdra^ 
from the house owning and house renting business for the reasons the deP^.j 
minister has outlined, that the need no longer exists to the same extent as i*
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when we were in the house building business. Our policy now is to get out of it 
as soon as we can in keeping with our needs with regard to the housing of our 
staff.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Might I ask Mr. Chairman has the Auditor 
General any suggestions how further recovery could be made of this?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Thomas, it does not look as though there is an 
°Pportunity to effect any further recovery. The point is raised because of the 
SlZe of the loss that is being taken; it does cause one to wonder what judgment 
Was exercised when this substantial investment was made which has now 
^suited over a relatively short period of years into quite a sizable loss. That 
being the case why were they built in the first place?

Mr. Baldwin: Is there a liaison between the department, Mr. Labarge, and 
Various provincial governments with regard to changes in routes, construction of 
bridges and so on which might lead to repetition of this. I can see why it 
happened. If in 1957 there was any reason for the department to believe that 
jhe route may be changed by the construction of the new bridge then, obviously, 
here was error on the part of the department constructing it. If there was no 

knowledge on the part of the department and they had every reason to 
anticipate that this route would be continued, of course, this is a different thing. 
*his is over and done with. Now, how do you stand with the different 
Provinces? Do you have sufficient liaison with them so that you are advised? If 

can you improve this liaison so you will be advised well in advance when 
kere are changes of this kind?

Mr. Labarge: I would say the cooperation over these last years has been 
Excellent. I personally remember going down even before the plans on a 
highway from the United States up to Quebec City were on the drawing board; 
+hat is how soon we were informed of this, and the road was, in fact, designed 

one of these middle of the road stations. Unless my officers 
. —xx^x mation indicating that there are areas in which we can make

rther improvements, I would think my statement stands.

, sccommodate
have nthor-

ç Mr. Henderson: We will have to give consideration to another case, the 
°Ptts, Alberta, one in the 1965 report and not dissimilar to this, where 70 per 
eht of the cost is lost as a result of disposal of the properties.

T The Vice-Chairman: There is only one observation I wanted to make, Mr.
rge. In 1961 it was discovered that two houses were built at a cost of

^ >000 and one of them has never been occupied since its construction in 1957. 
°uld this be due to a decrease there in your staff, poor planning, or just what 
°uld it be? Why were these two homes constructed and one of them had never 
6en occupied.

^ Mr. Langford: I would only be hazarding a guess but we build a type of 
0fjTle’ which is a two or three bedroom home, which is expected to house an 
0^,Cer and his family. In this instance the house indeed was occupied by an 
at £6r’ kis wife and his children but he was subsequently transferred to the port 

^auit St. Marie and his successor at the port was a bachelor. Not wanting to 
arpPy this house by himself and pay the rent on it, he moved into a dormitory 

an8ement which we had at Pigeon River for single officers. This is the reason 
e house remained vacant for this extended period. This is the sort of
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unforeseen situation which I think the department has had to face over the years. 
It was a matter of trying to provide housing for the staff and you never know 
just who is going to succeed someone else.

The Vice-Chairman: There is one other observation I wanted to make. Mr- 
Langford, I believe you stated that there were no services there. There were no 
services there at the time of construction, so I would suggest that perhaps they 
were built there with this information available. But yet the employees were 
not asked to remain there because there were no services. It does not seem that 
things are jibing.

Mr. Langford : The point of my remarks, Mr. Chairman, was that because 
there were no services there—and this would be even an aggravated situation 
when our officers left there—there was no real prospect of realizing a profit or 
even a good sales price on these houses because it would seem that very fe* 
people would be interested in paying a reasonable sum for them in the light o 
the fact that they would be isolated in this area.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Could not the department send bache­
lors to posts of that kind where they could live in a shack, do a little hunting 
and fishing and maybe they would not require a $20,000 house.

Mr. Labarge: That might be if it was a military force we had and coul 
command that. As a matter of fact, there is a new changing going in with regar 
to a number of positions in our service where people are advised at the time 0 
their occupation that they may be required to move; if they do not then tn 
hinders their progress in the service. But this has never been a requiremen ■ 
Normally there has been some advancement, some attraction to the positi°n^ 
where junior officers would go on the line to be a little more senior. And that1 
about the only incentive there has been. And then, of course, as young coupi^ 
are prepared to go in the family multiplies and this incentive begins to dwind^ 
because they encounter the problems of schooling and so on. Even in the case
one we will come to soon, there was the problem of hauling water over a 
distance so that they could have something to drink that is potable, 
these were unusual circumstances where there was nothing in the area

long
I think
but the 

is
tingurgent need for customs service. Not just the location of the highway 

important in this, or the shipping or creating of a new highway, but the routi 
of traffic; you get considerable changes in the routing of traffic perhaps beca 
of the location of an inland warehouse or a business which begins to call 
demand of traffic into a particular area. You have these quick shifts. At 
time we did not have the extra accommodation in the Canadian commum 
around to be able to house the people anywhere else but here. It is much 1 ^ 
the situation we had with the veterans where we went into the building 
veterans’ homes. It seems to me that this is a straight economic thing. It lS^ 
question of judgment in the first instance. The judgment is based on the mL ^ 
The need, I think, must be sanely and wisely determined by the departmen • 
have every reason to believe that these were sane and sound judgments at ^ 
time. They filled the need. Now, many of us can build homes in certain P a $ 
and all of a sudden find that when we come to resell them they have fal 
value than we expect. The question follows, “Why did you build it?” But t ^
could be all kinds of reasons, health or something else. The question of a ie>
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here is very dependent on the market. I would be glad if it were possible to 
rePort profits to you on these sales, but this is not the kind of a situation where 
°ne can expect a capital gain. It just is not that kind of a place.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): It is not the kind of thing that is likely to 
°ccur again.

Mr. Langford : I would hope not, no.
Mr. Labarge: We do not foresee it happening again.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Do you think the requirement that these houses 

be moved as part of the sale is a sound decision? The reason given does not 
aPPeal to me as being 100 per cent sound. They were sold with the requirement 
‘hat they be moved from the site because the old bridge was still in place and 
be°ple might come across, I suppose, to evade payment of customs duties, and 
a° on. How much would it add to the risk having the houses there and people 
hving in them?

Mr. Labarge: The question of risk sometimes is quite important and I think
Langford will speak on that.
Mr. Langford : As long as the bridge was there, sir, we would have had 

0 maintain it and keep staff there if there was a community living in these 
o°Uses that we had given up or had sold.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : What about the sale price if you had left them 
here? You would not need a very large staff to control that, would you?

, Mr. Langford: Well, we would have to treat it as we would any other 
°rder point and probably maintain a minimum staff of three men for shift 

Proses.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): The cost of keeping one man there to 
atoh the area would far outweigh any interest earnings on the capital loss.

,, Mr. Cameron (High Park): I have one other series of questions. What did 
he person who bought them do with them? Did he move them and sell them, or 
0 y°u take any interest in them after you sold them?

. Mr. Labarge: Once we turn them over to C.A.D.C. that is the end of our 
totisaction.

Mr. Henderson: When the committee has C.S.D.C. officials before it, it 
. ahld be interesting to ask them where the goods go after they have been sold. 

ae department does not keep track after it has declared them surplus and they 
6 token over by the Disposal Corporation.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Might I ask Mr. Labarge if anyone in his 
Pertinent has inspected this area to see if the houses actually have beende;

^°Ved and if there is 
totry?

a possibility of using this as an unsupervised port of

Mr. Labarge: A non-supervised area?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Yes.
Mr. Labarge: It is not a port of entry because the bridge has been removed. 
The Vice-Chairman: Mr. Long you have an observation, I believe?

24291—3



560 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS June 2, 1966

Mr. Long: Well, I was going to mention to you that you had had 
information that the two houses were still there. There are the two points here. 
One is the building of the houses in the first place. This is the main highway 
from Fort William to Duluth. It is not a new development at all. The customs 
officers are now living in Fort William and are being paid a mileage allowance 
to commute to and from their work on the bridge. So far as the old bridge is 
concerned it is either closed or it is open. If the bridge is closed, what difference 
would it make whether a house happens to be near the end of it or whether itlS 
anywhere in that eleven miles between it and the new bridge. There was a road 
in there. Surely it would have been easier to have blocked that bridge effectively 
in some way so that a person could not cross it. So far as the use of the com- 
munity is concerned, of course, as Mr. Lefebvre says, there were no services 
when it was built up there. There was water supply for the houses which corn 
have served, I presume. I imagine the telephone and electric lines were in there 
for that eleven miles. But be that as it may, what could the department have l°st 
by declaring the land and the houses together. Perhaps they would not have 1° 
much more, but this way they made sure they did not get the maximum because 
requiring the houses to be moved certainly cuts down on what you get for them-

The Vice-Chairman : Would one of you gentlemen be able to provide the 
committee with an idea of how much it cost the buyers to move the homes?

Mr. Labarge: Well, I do not know whether we can obtain this from Cro^n 
Assets Disposal Corporation. I doubt it. We would have to go to the buyers 
ascertain their cost.

The Vice-Chairman: Because it says here that the thought of moving the111 
by the department was considered but because of the excessive costs of such a0 
operation it was decided to abandon the houses and their related building • 
Would you have the figures of the estimated cost of moving?

Mr. Labarge: It was $40,000.
The Vice-Chairman: Yes, $40,000.
Mr. Labarge: That is, to move them to the point eleven miles east, 

new site.
The Vice-Chairman: Forty thousand dollars to protect an investment 0 

$143,000, so we could still net $103,000.
Mr. Langford: I might add that only $93,000 of that was customs and exci^ 

property, in strict fact; the balance was citizenship and immigration. There * 
a $50,000 investment directly in those buildings at that port.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Well, could we assume, Mr. Chairman, 
at the site of the new bridge there still would be no schools or facilities 
education of children, doctor’s services and so on?

Mr. Langford: The officers, as I understand it, are now able to com11111 
over good roads and live in a well established community. ^

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): If the buildings had been moved to the Pg(j 
bridge site then, of course, I assume that the officers would have been expeC 
to live in them.
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Mr. Langford: They were asked whether they wished to live at the new 
Sl*e if the buildings were moved and they expressed a desire to live in the 
established communities of Port Arthur and Fort William.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): Should the guiding criterion be what they 
Want? Is not the guiding criterion to have the treasury of Canada as much 
^oney as it can?

Mr. Langford: I would not suggest that it should be a criterion but it 
Certainly is a matter for consideration, I think sir, when one keeps in mind the 
ls°lated conditions under which these men are working and the whole question 

1 Morale. We can hardly command them to live in one place or another.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : They may be better off at the old site.
Mr. Langford: Did you ask, were they any better off in the old site?
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Yes.
Mr. Langford: I do not think they were, 

j Mr. Cameron (High Park) : I am just trying to find out where the balance 
and where you could save some money.

. Mr. Langford: The only thing that could be said in respect of the relative 
hâtions between the old and new sites with regard to the staff itself is that in 

o e new site it is easier for them to commute to Fort William and Port Arthur 
atl it was in the old location.

Mr. Cameron (High Park): I think that sounds feasible.
g The Vice-Chairman: Shall we go on to the next item until such time as we

the Crown Assets officials here and find out some more? I will now call 
aragraph 76.

76. Drawback paid on goods destroyed after release from Customs. 
Order in Council P.C. 1961-1135 of August 9, 1961 established regulations 
governing drawbacks of customs duties, sales tax and excise taxes paid 
on goods imported and subsequently exported or destroyed.

We have been informed that the Order was passed in accordance 
with sections 275 and 277 of the Customs Act, R.S., c. 58, as amended. 
These sections are as follows:

“275. (1) The Governor in Council may, under regulations made 
by him for that purpose,
(a) allow, on the exportation of goods which have been imported 

into Canada and on which a duty of customs has been paid, a 
drawback equal to the duty so paid with such deduction there­
from as is provided in such regulations; and

(b) allow a drawback equal to the duty paid, with such deduction 
therefrom as is provided in such regulations, or a specific sum in 
lieu of such drawback, in respect of materials used in, wrought 
into or attached to goods exported, or in respect of materials 
(not to include fuel or plant equipment) consumed in the 
manufacture or production of any such goods.
(2) The period within which such drawback may be allowed, 

after the time when the duty was paid, shall be limited in such 
regulations.”
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“277. The Governor in Council may interpret, limit or extend the 
meaning of the conditions upon which it is provided in any Act 
imposing duties of Customs that any article may be imported free 
duty for special purposes, or for particular objects or interests; and 
may make regulations for declaring or defining what cases shah 
come within the conditions of such Act, and to what objects or 
interests of an analogous nature the same shall apply and extend, 
and may direct the payment or non-payment of duty in any such 
case, or the remission thereof by way of drawback, if such duty has 
been paid.”
The Customs Act makes no specific or general reference to imported 

goods destroyed in Canada but section 22 (6) of the Financial Admim3' 
tration Act as amended directs that:

“No tax paid to Her Majesty on any goods shall be remitted by 
reason only that after the payment of the tax and after release frond 
the control of customs or excise officers, the goods were lost 0 
destroyed.”

Because of this the Audit Office entertains doubt as to the validity 
section 3 (1) (a) (ii) of Order in Council P.C. 1961-1135 providing f° 
the payment of a drawback on goods “destroyed in Canada at t 
expense of the owner under Customs supervision”.

The case which attracted attention to this matter involved a re^unp 
of $2,525, representing a 90 per cent drawback of customs duty paid 
imported machinery which after duties were paid and after release L ^ 
Customs but before actual use, was destroyed by fire in the warehouse 
the importer. The goods were recognizable after the fire to the exte^ 
that the serial numbers could be deciphered but the machines were 
considered usable. Later they were completely destroyed by sleuS 
hammer under supervision of a Customs officer.

In our opinion it is questionable whether the Governor in Coun<^ 
under authority of the Customs Act may authorize drawback of all 
part of the duties paid on goods which are destroyed when section 22 1 
of the Financial Administration Act expressly forbids the Governor 
Council to remit the tax under the same circumstances.

Mr. Henderson: I would suggest that because we have a similar paragr3?^ 
in the 1965 Report, namely 94, that we might deal with both at this time, 0 
being a continuation of the other.

94. Drawback paid on goods destroyed after release from Custom' 
In the 1964 Report (paragraph 76) we questioned the right of j g 
Governor in Council to authorize under authority of the Customs Act 
drawback of all or part of the duties paid on goods which are destroy 
after release from Customs, when section 22(6) of the Financial A 
ministration Act expressly forbids the Governor in Council to remit 
tax under the same circumstances.

On the recommendation of the Department, the Governor in Co . - 
has since revoked the offending regulation but no steps have been 
to recover the amount of $2,525 which was remitted illegally.

il
take0
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Here, in paragraph 76 we questioned the right of the Governor in Council 
Under authority of the Customs Act to authorize a refund or to alter any 
customs duty paid on goods which are destroyed after release from customs.

Section 22(6) of the Financial Administration Act expressly forbids the 
Governor in Council to remit the tax under the same circumstances. As this 
Uote indicates, the case which attracted our attention involved a refund of 
$2,525 representing a 90 per cent drawback of customs duty paid on imported 
jUachinery, which after duties were paid and after release from customs but 
before actual use was destroyed by fire in the warehouse of the importer. The 
Soods were recognizable after the fire to the extent that the serial numbers 
c°uld be deciphered but the machines were not considered usable. Later they 
Were completely destroyed by sledge hammer under the supervision of a 
customs officer. Subsequent to our bringing this note to attention the depart­
ment recommended to the Treasury Board that this offending regulation be 
revoked and the Governor in Council took this action. However—and this is 
^fated in the 1965 note under paragraph 94—no steps were taken by the 
department to recover the amount of $2,525 which had consequently been 
Emitted illegally.

Mr. Hind: The account which Mr. Henderson has just given you is a true 
statement of what has transpired. But I think it must be recalled at this time 
bat at the time in question the department was operating under an order in 

c°uncil which was believed to be valid and legal. As is usual in such cases, the 
contents of the order had been approved by law officers of the crown. The 
^porter availed himself of the provisions of this order and complied with its 
Acquirements. Acting in good faith he permitted the destruction of the goods 
Under customs supervision and at his own expense. Following such destruction he 
'ccovered from the department 90 per cent of the duty paid which was in 
accordance with the terms of the order in council. This means that in addition 
0 suffering the loss of the goods he also absorbed 10 per cent of the duty paid, 
b all the circumstances it seems unreasonable and unfair at this late date to ask 
bo importer to rebate the $2,525 to the crown, the more so as at the time of 
cstruction it was presumably open to him under the law at that time to export 
b® goods and recover the 90 per cent of the duty that had been paid.

Mr. Bigg: Did you export the burnt engines or whatever it was.
Mr. Hind: No sir. Under the order in council at that time, provided the 

ebgines were destroyed under customs supervision, the department had the 
Authority to rebate 90 per cent of the duty that had been paid. The destroyed 
6bgines were not required to be exported.

Mr. Bigg: No, but it seems to me that what we are doing here is acting as 
‘bd of an insurance agency. This order is rebating him as if he was, you might 

under some sort of a government insurance plan where if he had a fire in 
.s Warehouse he did not have to pay a tax. This is a $2,500 grant to this firm, to 

intents and purposes. I could see some logic in it if he had to replace the 
0^chinery. Suppose he had bought new machinery and he had the misfortune 

having a fire, had to replace all the machinery and pay the tax again there 
ght be some principle in that, particularly if it was an important industry 
bich we needed in Canada—some new industry starting up and this was
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putting an unnatural burden on, as I said, a useful industry. But, I do not see 
that we have any right to allow this rebate purely on a fire underwriters—

Mr. Hind: I think it should be recalled that for a long time now we have 
had authority by order in council to rebate duties paid when goods are either 
exported from the country or in lieu of exportation are destroyed under 
customs supervision. This is a choice which is open to importers if they 6n 
themselves with goods on hand which are surplus to their requirements °r 
which are obsolete. We currently have order in council authority for this. It has 
not been challenged to date.

Mr. Bigg: Well, these are not the same circumstances. If they come to the 
customs department and said, “Look, there is a machine; will you please put tn 
axe to it.” I do not think that is the same as saying, “I just had a fire in J®* 
place and now I am moving around in the ashes and I find that I can identify 
old machine; now, let us go and put the hammer to that and get $2,500 bac 
from the government.” I really do not see it.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Hind, I think you stated that you considered that thlS 
was legally in order, that you checked with your legal officers.

Mr. Hind: No sir, I did not intend to convey that. I hope I did not say it
Mr. Henderson: In any event, you may recall this was one case in whic 

we questioned the right of the Governor in Council to authorize this remissio 
and I believe it was at my suggestion that the deputy minister asked the depm. 
attorney general for a legal opinion. You are familiar with what the depu 
attorney general said in that legal opinion which supported, of course, 
position that I took.

Mr. Hind: I think perhaps there may be a little misunderstanding here, ^ 
Henderson, and perhaps if I just read a couple of paragraphs it might becom6 
little clearer in the sense that I will use different wording.

This case involves goods which were intentionally destroyed under eus;torhs
thesupervision following which a drawback of a portion of a duty was repaid to 

importer under an order in council which was in general use at that time. In 
1964 report the Auditor General questioned the legality of the order in c°u^e(j 
in cases of this kind. As a result of these contentions the department arrang 
for the cancellation of the order and the substitution of a new order in cou ^ 
to take its place. It is assumed that the new order meets with the approva ^ 
the Auditor General. The only point still outstanding, as is mentions ^ 
paragraph 94 of the 1965 report, is the drawback payment which originally ê ^ 
rise to the question. The Auditor General points out that no steps have 
taken to recover this amount of $2,525 from the importer.

j Of) p61Now, I carry on from there to say that at the time we had rebated a j 
cent of the duty under an order in council which we felt was valid and 
We do not think now that the importer having complied with the terms 0 t0 
order at that time should be called upon at this late date to rebate the $2,5 
the crown. Just as a matter of equity, this is the point I am trying to make. ^

Mr. Henderson: From the standpoint of equity probably the 
might share that view. I felt, having established that it was being rem 
illegally, it was logical that they look for a refund.
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The Vice-Chairman: I was wondering if I could make one observation on 
this, Mr. Henderson? Is there no fire coverage insurance at all carried by the 
department on goods that belong to customers?

Mr. Hind: I do not think that this equipment was on customs’ premises.
The Vice-Chairman: These were engines, were they?
Mr. Hind: Yes sir.
The Vice-Chairman: Would the person who owned these engines be able to 

have insurance or would the people who owned the warehouse have insurance 
°n these goods normally speaking, I mean.

Mr. Hind: I am afraid I do not have that answer. I have been handed a 
document and this portion has been marked. We have a drawback branch which 
aodits these claims for the recovery of goods in such circumstances. During the 
audit of the claim the status of the goods from an insurance standpoint was 
ascertained and the claimant’s insurance company indicated that they had no 
financial interest in the drawback payment.

The Vice-Chairman: In other words, I tend to think that the person who 
aWned the engines should not be held liable for $2,500. I am thinking this way 

ecause it could happen to me or you, or anybody else; but perhaps the 
aePartment instead of refunding it should have gone after the insurance 
c°mpany so that the persons operating the warehouse would be responsible and 
d°t the department.

Mr. Long: Mr. Lefebvre, these were in the possession of the importer. He 
°uld have them covered by his own insurance.

The Vice-Chairman : Well, then, his insurance would not pay if there 
as destruction by fire?

Mr. Long: Oh, I think it would.
The Vice-Chairman: I think that is the root of the matter right there. Why 

d°uld the government pay out if he is covered by insurance?

. Mr. Long: These were in fact electric motors, I believe, with serial numbers 
011 them?

Mr. Hind: They were described as engines, sir; they could well be motors.
Mr. Long: It was only by accident that you could identify these; the serial 

thbers were still there. The fire actually destroyed them. If this had been 
ftiething that had melted and run together he would not have had a chance. I 

^uPpose some money was spent in taking a sledge hammer to them but they had 
c ei1 effectively destroyed before that. The F.A. act says the governor in council 

ntaot do what was done.
if The Vice-Chairman: Well, who did finally authorize that they be destroyed 

Nobody has the authority to do so?
There was an existing order in council for some time which 
good faith. Everybody acted on it in good faith as they did in 
while it was in existence. The Auditor General pointed out 

3until was invalid after this instance had come about; so, the 
u reverse it for the case that was brought to your attention; do

Mr. La
thnrybody
>Psands ( 
7 the ore 

estion Wc
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you reverse it for all cases prior to that, or do you feel that the fair thing is t° 
draw the line at the point where people henceforth are going to operate under a 
different order in council.

Mr. Bigg: I am not at all satisfied that that is the case. I think that what 
happened here was that when these machines were destroyed by fire they 
looked for every opportunity to recoup their financial loss and they thought 
they had a technical point by bringing in the customs officials and putting the 
hammer to something which was already effectively destroyed. I cannot take 
any other reading out of it but that.

Mr. Labarge: You take it as a single instance.
Mr. Bigg: Well, this is the only instance which you are talking about that I 

know of where there was a retainment made. Is that right?
Mr. Labarge : Oh no. This is quite a common thing.
Mr. Bigg: No, but under these circumstances. Do you mean to tell me that 

there are many cases where a man’s power plant is destroyed, say, and then 
they go in with the customs man and say well, we will put the hammer on it in 
order to make it technically possible to give him a rebate? I think this is a veil 
isolated case. And where there is a bona fide case of hauling in the inspect^ 
and saying here is the machinery we bought, it would be cheaper to destroy 1 
by putting the hammer to it and get back our tax and not be in compétitif 
with Canadian manufacturers and that sort of thing. I presume that is what t 
tax is for or else it would be tax free. If this was farm machinery there won 
be no problem at all because it probably would be tax free. But I imagine if th^ 
machinery was in competition with business somewhere it would be unfair 
other businesses to allow a tax rebate of this type by what I think is a devio 
plan to really put the hammer on it after it has already been destroyed and s 
now we can recoup from the government. Quite apart from giving him reba j 
no matter how often this act has been used to help a man in bona fide case?’te 
think that we are paying a premium for skullduggery. I do not know any P01^ 
word for it. I would not say that the department should go ahead and keep 
doing that.

ueeflMr. Hind: Do you know, Mr. Bigg, that these machines had never 
used. They had not been sold as yet.

Mr. Bigg: That is not the point. What I do not like is the idea of pretendi^ 
to be destroying something which is already destroyed in order to get a e 
rebate. Unless it was arson, there was no intention on the owner of { 
machines to destroy them, and I think the Auditor General is quite right 
this is $2,500 which is properly owing to the Crown.

Mr. Henderson: This also tends, Mr. Bigg, to be an attraction to imp0l^ai 
who, having brought in some machinery for a special purpose, that sp ^ 
purpose having been served, no longer have need of that equipment 
therefore would like to have it destroyed and to recapture the duty. The 
between what constituted use and so forth can be extremely narrow. We 
noticed several cases along these lines and I am glad to hear that you tak 
position you do because it is something we feel must be watched. ^

Mr. Bigg: I think it could be abused and abused again, and if we sancti°n 
this it would set a precedent.
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The Vice-Chairman: I think your point is well taken, Mr. Bigg.
Mr. Bigg: I would certainly say that if you think the department were a 

Party to this in some way, being a little bit lax in the interpretation of the 
regulations, and if you do not like to recover this again from the company, I 
would certainly put up a stop sign and say this can in no way be interpreted as 
a precedent. Also, when there are fires we do not want them coming along and 
Pretending to destroy the equipment and saying they want to recover under this 
section of the act. My view is if you want legislation to clarify this point 
Perhaps we could bring it up in our recommendation, but I do not like it.

Mr. Labarge: I continue out loud perhaps indirectly questioning my own 
officers, but it seems to me that this man had the right even after the fire to 
export and claim drawback under the regulations as they existed.

Mr. Bigg: A burnt out machine?
Mr. Labarge: Yes.
Mr. Bigg: Why?
Mr. Labarge: To get the drawback.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : Would the reason be because it had never been 

in use?

Mr. Labarge: The circumstances.
Mr. Cameron (High Park) : If it had been used one day he was out of luck.

The Chairman: I do not know but I cannot see the difference between 
importing a machine or a car. If you buy, say, a big imported car and you pay 
'fS.OOO or $6,000 for it, which includes all the import taxes and everything. If 
y°u drive it off the lot and across the street, if you happen to live there and it 

Urns, without even a half mile on it, there is no chance of getting any tax back. 
1 You have not covered it sufficiently with insurance, that is just too bad. So I 

CaHnot see the difference between that case and this case here.

. Mr. Labarge: I would be inclined to agree. I think that is a good
lustration.

The Vice-Chairman: Are there any more questions on this item?
Mr. Bigg: I do not think that the intention of the lawmakers was that the 

Uchinery had to be used and you had to have a profit out of it before the tax is 
°rfeited to the crown forever. It may have been, but I do not think so. If it is 

S° I think we can clarify that and say it is all right. But it would mean that
^dierever a machine was not used under these circumstances he is entitled to 
the

feb

rebate of the tax. But, I would be a little bit afraid.
Mr. Cameron (High Park): Going one step further, following Mr. Le- 

Vre’s illustration, why could not the person who bought this automobile then 
Urn it to the source that it came from and claim the refund on the basis of 

hat you have said about this particular—
k Mr. Labarge: In this case I am also advised that there is a distinction; 
etWeen a user and a dealer.
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Mr. Cameron (High Park): You said if he had not used it, send it back. 
Well, Mr. Lefebvre used his car to drive only half a mile or maybe only across 
the street. Why cannot he send the remains back? What is the answer to it?

Mr. Labarge: Well, that would probably constitute use in Canada. You may 
be able to draw a line between those two cases.

Mr. Cameron (High Park) : A narrow line. 
Mr. Labarge: It is about half a mile.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, have the statute regulations 

been changed in regard to cases of this kind?
The Chairman: I think Mr. Long has something to add to this too before 

you speak, Mr. Thomas.
Mr. Long: I think the answer to that, Mr. Thomas, as we said in the note, is 

that the standing order has been eliminated. Mr. Crowley has it here.
Mr. Crowley: You see, what happened was that under the old order in 

council that Mr. Labarge mentioned that was done under section 275 of the 
Customs Act. The Auditor General, Mr. Henderson, pointed out that while they 
had authority to export they had no authority to destroy. The department, aS 
Mr. Henderson suggested, sent the order in council to the Department of Justice 
and they agreed with the Auditor General, as Mr. Labarge has mentioned, an 
they ruled the order in council ultra vires. In other words, there is nothing 10 
the Customs Act to permit refund on goods destroyed. So the department then 
revoked the offending order in council and passed two, one to legalize th® 
export under the Customs Act 275—in other words, it was a repetition—but tn^ 
other order that permitted goods to be destroyed and permit refunds, could n 
be passed under the Customs Act. They used section 22 of the Finand 
Administration Act, and this particular order in council now gives the 
authority to pay refunds. For instance, number (2) says, “The goods a.^ 
obsolete or surplus to requirements in Canada; the goods have not been used 
Canada for any purpose; the goods are exported to the country from which th 
were imported or destroyed in Canada at the expense of the owner un 
customs supervision.”

As the Auditor General mentioned, we have no authority under ^ 
Customs Act, so they have fallen back now and legalized it under section 2
the Financial Administration Act.

Mr Bigg: Suppose it all happened tomorrow and fire destroyed 
electrical equipment; do you think that you could get a refund under the 
it now reads?

act as

Mr. Long: Section 22 of the Financial Administration Act starts out: ^
The Governor in Council, on the recommendation of the T1"635^, 

Board, wherever he considers it in the public interest, may remit any 
fee or penalty.

But, subsection (6) says:
No tax paid to Her Majesty on any goods shall be remitted 

reason only that after the payment of the tax and after release froin 
control of customs or excise officers, the goods were lost or destroy60.
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Now this section has been in here for many years, and in their wisdom at that 
time they ruled out a rebate of tax for the reason only that the goods were 
destroyed.

Mr. Bigg: You still have not settled that item of $2,500.
Mr. Henderson: That is something you might want to consider. It seems 

rather hard lines to ask the chap to repay it provided henceforth that it is not
remitted.

Mr. Baldwin: I was looking at section 22.
Mr. Henderson: I am looking forward to a discussion with you on that Mr. 

Baldwin. We have our eye on that too.
The Chairman: The next item?
Mr. Henderson: The next paragraph 120 accounts receivable. I suggest 

We just leave that because the same paragraph will come up in the 1965 
report and we can cover both at the same time. So now we come to the 1965 
report and the first one is paragraph 90 on page 58.

The Vice-Chairman: We now will discuss paragraph 90 on page 58 of the 
1965 report.

90. Departmental practices which lack statutory sanction. In its 
Eighth Report 1964 the Public Accounts Committee recommended that 
four practices being followed by the Customs and Excise Division of the 
Department of National Revenue should receive statutory sanction if 
they are to be continued (see Appendix 1 item 37). These four practices 
concern:
(a) release of goods under customs collector’s permission;
(b) sales of goods unclaimed at Customs;
(c) duties and taxes on surplus United States Government property sold 

in Canada;and
(d) determination of “sale price” for sales tax purposes.

Three additional departmental practices which lack statutory sanc­
tion were noted in our 1964 Report, as follows:

paragraph 70—remission of duties on certain motor vehicles and 
parts;

paragraph 72—refunds of duties and taxes on estimated basis; and 
paragraph 73—refund of duty paid on goods diverted to use other 

than that for which they were imported.
There were no amendments to the Customs Act during the year and 

the seven departmental practices referred to above as lacking statutory 
sanction were continued throughout the year. However an amendment to 
the Customs Act in 1965-66 (1965, c.16) gave statutory sanction to items 
(a) and (c) above. The amendment also provided statutory sanction to 
the practice referred to in paragraph 70 of our 1964 Report dealing with 
“remission of duties on certain motor vehicles and parts”.

Mr. Henderson: This paragraph has to do with departmental practices 
j.^Ich lack statutory sanction. On page 58 you will notice the four practices

which this committee had a good deal to say about in its eighth report,
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1964. You will see (a) (b) (c) and (d). As you know amendments to the 
Customs Act had been made in 1965-66 which had given statutory sanction to 
(a) and (c) ; in other words two of these had been cleaned up. You had 
witnesses present in 1964 and so we have made some progress here. However I 
think the department may have some information to give us on (b); that is 
sales of goods unclaimed at customs. Perhaps Mr. Labarge would speak to that.

The Vice-Chairman : Do you have information on this Mr. Labarge?
Mr. Winch: If I have your permission I want to make a statement on this-
Mr. Henderson: You are speaking on (d) I think. That is the big one that is 

still outstanding, determination of “sale price” for sales tax purpose which 
still not remedied in any way.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, would you and the committee allow me to make 
a short statement on paragraph 90(d). I am most interested in this section and 
would like to draw to the attention of the committee that both the Auditor 
General and myself raised this matter on determination of sale price for sales 
tax purposes before our committee in 1964. At that time I did not question the 
intent of the policy of the department in what they were doing by regulation 
But I did question their authority for what they were doing because sir, as 
pointed out at that time, and I placed the evidence in detail before th 
committee in 1964, there were two court judgments and the courts of Cana 
said that the Department of Revenue did not have the power to do what they 
were doing by regulation with regard to the sales tax being charged to 
manufacturer who was selling directly to the user. Now, I do not want to 
into all that this afternoon, sir, but I would like, just very briefly, in order 
highlight it, to give you without the details one of those judgments which says;

Section 99 of the Act provides that the Minister of Finance or 
Minister of National Revenue may make such regulations as he dee ^ 
necessary or advisable for carrying out the provisions of this act. BiV 
was submitted, and I think properly, that this does not permit re2 
tions which would alter the basis upon which the per cent tax is to 
paid, namely sale price. No doubt the department found that hardsmP 
arose out of a strict adherence to the provision of the subsection to 
act. But if so that would be reason for altering or amending the act a 
not for bureaucratic dogmatism. ^

Now sir, at the 1964 meeting of this committee when this matter was raisej 
by the hon. gentleman and myself Mr. Sim, the deputy minister was before a ■ 
think, sir, my memory is completely correct when I say that Mr. Sim said 
the policy was good but he admitted that there was not statutory author ^ 
Now sir, that was in 1964. Now we have the report of the Auditor Genera ^ 
1965; we are now in June of 1966 and to the best of my knowledge, I stan , 
be corrected, in this period of two years there never has been any amen ^ 
legislation to correct the situation, to draw to the attention of this committee’^e 
draw to the attention of parliament, and yet two judges say they have no 
power to do it. Yet, two years later they are still doing it. Now, I want to ad 
that, and I completely agree with the purport, the intention of the departs 
that they have not got and they have never had the statutory authority 
action has been taken. But now, sir, in the past two years, in my estima , 
they are compounding illegality on illegality. Since this matter was ra
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before this committee in 1964, the department continues to issue not one but 
voluminous changes, varying changes, on the sales tax from manufacturer to a 
User without going through the straight wholesale or retail. Now, I could have 
brought many copies but I asked the department and they just gave me one 
c°Py. I want to show you what is happening. I have before me now circular ET 
°1, issued by the Department of National Revenue, excise department. This 
deals with the matter of furniture, changing the tax structure. Now, this was 
issued from Ottawa on the 17th of June, 1964.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to draw to your attention clause No. 12, a most 
Uitriguing clause, which says:

Computation of tax on the value determined by this instruction 
becomes effective only from the date its use is commenced and never 
with retroactive effect.

So here we have a tax regulation, a tax law, illegal though it is, going out to 
thousands across Canada and it says:

Computation of tax on the value determined by this instruction 
becomes effective—

Not when this regulation goes into effect, but—
—becomes effective only from the date its use is commenced and never 
with retroactive effect.

Mr. Chairman, what has happened? The interpretation which I have 
Received from accountants and legal authorities is that the tax payment is not 
rom—on this one itself—June 17, 1964 it is from the time the manufacturer 

discovered what the new tax rate was, and not to have any retroactive effect. 
^ Chairman, I have discovered the average manufacturer does not know 
ddything about this. So, what occurred, to my own knowledge was that wide 
jhvake chartered accountants some 18 months after this was issued discovered 
bat they had been paying a lot more than they should have to the Department 
1 National Revenue. Now it is my contention, Mr. Chairman, that in all 

Probability hundreds if not thousands of manufacturers and industrialists in 
anada have been paying more than they should have been paying to the 

i"ePartment of National Revenue. And, having paid it surely the Department of 
Rational Revenue, when they receive a payment more than should have been 
Paid, should have drawn it to the attention of the industry in Canada and 
Abated. To my knowledge, sir, that is not being done.
. Now, I have one more point sir. I do not want to hold you any longer, but I 

bik it is very important. One point more is, effective only from the date its 
is commenced and never with retroactive effect. Now that is definite; never 

ith retroactive effect. Now the retroactive effect can only mean from the time 
18 regulation came in on changing the sales tax, but it also means not 

proactive from the time that the accountant or the company catches up with it 
. iry to get back their overpayment for 18 months. They do not even follow 

eir own illegal operations on an illegal document which has no statutory 
e°t. I can prove it sir. I am most interested in this. I have spoken to three 
c°untants in Vancouver and in the past six months they have caught up with 

^*s- They have been paying a lot more than they should have been paying. 
s got into an argument with the Department of National Revenue and they 

lcl that they were entitled to get it retroactive to the time the order came out.
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This says not retroactive. The three companies that I know about had collected 
retroactive from the time that this went into effect. You add it up and it 
amounts to a few thousand dollars. If I know of three companies, God knows 
how much our manufacurers are being overcharged illegally without any 
notification, without any redress, unless they have got a clever accountant that 
can catch up with it.

Mr. Chairman, you see the point which I think is of the utmost importance. 
Two years ago it was admitted by the deputy minister that they had no statutory 
authority. No change had been made; they have continued now beyond what 
they were doing two years ago, including that most extraordinary clause 12 
which they themselves do not apply—they do not return money when they are 
getting more than they should because of the change, but also when they say d- 
is not retroactive. So when a clever accountant draws to their attention they do 
pay the retroactive money overpaid. Now, I think the situation is so extraordi­
nary I would like, and I know the committee would like to have an explanation 
from the officials of the department.

Mr. Labarge: Mr. Chairman, this is quite a big subject, as you can see. On 
the first point, about the law itself, it is true there have been cases that have 
gone as far as the Supreme Court and there have been varying judgements on 
the legality of this. There have been cases in which it is for and others in which 
it is against and the Supreme Court decision in the case of Laboratoire Marois 
was split; it was two to two and the fifth judge did not pronounce himself upQIJ 
it, and that, I think, was in 1955. We are not arguing against the desirability oI 
this being put into legislation; we never have. We have endeavoured to promote 
a change in the law at a time when the statute was practically immobilizea 
because of the royal commission which is looking into the whole tax structure 
and into this section, particularly in terms of the sales tax. Now, let me say tha 
I would be pleased, and I think practically everybody in the government worn 
be pleased, if the ingenuity of the royal commission is such as to find the km 
of specific legislation which would meet all the points which Mr. Winch has Put 
forward. Many people have said, just put in there that the minister shall hav 
the right to set values for sale price when the goods are sold at different leve 
than they are from the manufacturer. Well, that just means that we have ^ 
turn around and put out the same number of industrial circulars dealing vV1 
specific goods as we have in the past, and I would like to assure the commit*-6® 
that there is no group more ardent than ours with respect to the desire f°r^ 
change. Now, it is not just a change with respect to what we do and are able ^ 
do, but it must also contemplate a method of appeal, and this is one of the chi 
problems in this setting of a determined price or setting of values because it 1 
based on examination of a complete industry and the determination of 
margin between the different levels of sale. It is a very intricate and skilled J0^ 
and you can appreciate that everybody falls within the industry who ^ 
concerned. For him to make an appeal he must produce or have produced * 

the information relating to one of his competitors or all of his competitors^ 
show that there is inequity; this is the difficulty in trying to arrange an apP ^ 
at which somebody must give the confidential information of his own business* 
am just pointing this out as one of the areas of difficulty in drafting an aP^e g 
from this. The circular from date of use and never with retroactive effect
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seem to lend itself to interpreting it one way or the other. The retroactive effect 
ls normally back to the date beyond that of the circular date.

Mr. Winch: That is not what it says.
Mr. Labarge: I agree with this. This could be debated.
Now, as to the number of people affected, I am surprised that there should 

be in your minds so many who were not informed of this. I hope you are not 
speaking about people who never took out a licence with us; they must have or 
they would not be paying taxes to us. Once they are in our books they are the 
recipients by registered mail of all these directives. On top of that all the trade 
Oculars that they might be interested in. The Canadian Manufacturers As­
sociation and so on are all in possession of these, plus all our officers. Now, 
Mother thing is that they do not have to depend entirely on their own 
Accountants for fair treatment, and it is not infrequent that our auditors going 
ln and finding this kind of situation give them the same kind of advice and the 
same results as their own accountants.

Mr. Winch: I told you that I personally know of three manufacturers in 
^ritish Columbia. Now, one—and this amounted to a few thousand dollars—had 
been paying since this came into effect on June 17; it was an exhorbitant 
amount according to this regulation and his auditor only caught it some six 
months ago. So for 18 months they had been paying considerably more because 
he reduction was down to 33 per cent on the discount allowance. Are you 
eUing this committee that in a period of 18 months when this cheque came in 

°P the sales tax that you did not know that he was paying more than he should 
a^d did not notify them? What I am telling you about this one manufacturer 
also applies to the other two.

Mr. Labarge: No, there would be no way of knowing that because the 
ajmple return he makes is a self reporting indication of the amount of tax and 
he amount of sales he made. That is all. And this is audited. It is in his interest, 
i course, to give us the figures which to the best of his knowledge are correct. 
°W, I would say, since I do not want to overdo either hardness of heart or 
eeP in sympathy, that this man’s position normally in these curcumstances is 
at he has passed the tax on to the consumer, so any amount which he puts in 

fider the guise of tax or under the colour of tax to be paid to the revenue. 
°w, we have difficulty in letting people intentionally or otherwise pay us more 

o x and collect more tax in the hope that there will be a large refund coming to 
cm at the end. This difference is not really theirs. It has come out of the 

minary consumer.

aPd
Mr. Winch: What about the competitive position of one who knows this law 
one who does not.
Mr. Labakge: This may be in some cases but the competitive position soon 
eS them into us to see; if the competitive position is such that they are 

^uering this is one of the things that drives those who never got it before to 
■Now, I am not making excuses for the thing, but I just want to put it in a 
rtain perspective.

Mr. Winch: The other members may have some questions. I would like to 
* just what is your interpretation of your clause 12, and what are you going 
d° about it?
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Mr. Labarge: I have not got it. Mr. Mills, have you got clause 12?
Mr. Winch: Can you, sir, in any way at all interpret that differently than I?
Mr. Labarge: Well, shall we find out what the interpretation is that the 

department has been putting on it? Do you know, Mr. Mills?
Mr. A. P. Mills (Director, Excise Tax Administration, Customs and Excise 

Division, National Revenue Department): I am very much surprised to hear 
that we have given refunds. That is all I can say.

Mr. Winch: You have. I can assure you you have paid refunds.
Mr. Mills: I say I am very much surprised to hear this. I do not know of

any.
Mr. Winch: Well, I can assure you that I know of three personally and 1 

hope you are not going to go after them now and get that money back, 
otherwise I am going to be in trouble. So your interpretation of the word “use 
means at the time that you discover it?

Mr. Mills: That is right.
Mr. Winch: So there you are, sir. This now confirms what I told you.
Mr. Bigg: I was wondering what you meant by driving these people to 

them. Did you mean that they could just carry on for years paying this extra 
tax unless they find out that there is a reduction which they could apply for an 
get a ruling on. Is that correct?

Mr. Labarge: No. It was the question with regard to the competitor.
Mr. Bigg: Mr. Winch was saying that if one company knows this they ca^ 

afford to sell cheaper to the consumer and then the competitors ask themselve 
why he is doing that, so they run around and find out that he is saving money 
on his sales tax. Therefore they come to you and ask to have the same deal tha 
he has been having for 18 months perhaps, according to this, or more. So this 1 
not retroactive. You cannot say, I want the same deal that Smith got. So wn 
you are really saying to these fellows is, look to your accounting and make su^ 
that you start your reduction if possible immediately after the putting out 
this circular. Is that right?

Mr. Labarge: Yes.
Mr. Bigg: It is pretty difficult. I do not see how you can look into 

individual business arrangements of every firm. I think that the circular s^°u0f 
be clear as to what you mean by retroactive, whether it means from the date 
the issuing of the circular or from the date that he makes the application for 
reduced rate.

Mr. Winch: According to your friend here, it is from the date that b 
discovers it and makes application. It is not retroactive beyond that according 
your interpretation of it.

Mr. Labarge : That is right.
T d°Mr. Winch: Although you are doing it, if they get in touch with you- t 

not want to go back now on these people, but I assure you that I just do 
understand how you operate?
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Mr. Labarge: I always hesitate to talk about individual cases. 
Mr. Bigg: I can understand you do not want to.
Mr. Winch: I assure you I have definite information on that.
Mr. Labarge: I am not denying it and there may be certain circumstances 

ln there which justify a refund, such as a man not charging the rate but paying 
the rate to us. This makes a big difference because if he charges the rate to his 
customers and collects the tax it is ours, the government’s. But if he does not 
charge the rate but he pays more to us out of his pocket, then there is a 
different situation. He has overpaid his tax and there is a refund. So without 
sÇeing an individual case I would not want to pronounce myself in it under these 
circumstances.

Mr. Bigg: I would like to make a plea that we clarify the papers that go out 
s° that he knows how much to charge his customers and exactly where he 
stands legally so that he does not get into unnecessary law suits.

Mr. Labarge: I think that there is just that one sentence at issue there but, 
?s I say, we do everything possible to get these directives into his hands 
,y registered mail; we get receipt cards back; we have the auditors come in; we 
nave the publication in not perhaps enough journals and magazines 
associations; papers but we endeavour to get out to all these people.

and

Mr. Winch: Without mentioning names, I will just read this to you “As an 
accountant for an X manufacturing concern I disputed not getting the discount 

33è per cent on specially made furniture for the period between October 1, 
963 and July 1965. I was successful in my efforts; the discount was granted and 

a refund was made.”

Mr. “Y” of another firm, is a manufacturer of custom built furniture. When 
ne circular of September 5 came out he was required to pay the full 11 per 
etlt tax. Through a series of circumstances he did not start taking the 33i per 

Cent discount allowed by the June 17, 1964 circular. This situation is in the 
Process of being corrected and I have been advised that when he complies with 
retain procedural requirements he will obtain a full discount and refund for 
ae Whole period.

Those are just two, sir.
The Vice-Chairman : Maybe Mr. Henderson could add a few words?
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, I might just tell the members that this is a 

ubject on which my office has reported to the house, beginning with the year 
45, so it is not exactly a new development. The whole area was examined, you 

rtlay recall, by a sales tax committee convened in 1950 known as the Carter 
^mittee because the chairman was Mr. Kenneth LeM. Carter who is the 
Airman of the present Royal Commission on Taxation. Mr. Carter and his 

godâtes, in their report which I have here, in referring to this act, meaning 
e act in question, said:

The act does not appear to authorize the minister to vary actual 
selling prices or to impute wholesale prices when they do not exist. It is 
apparent that without such authority and general rules as to the deter­
mination of value there can be no useful right of appeal.

24291—4
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Since that time Mr. Carter himself has written several articles on this and 
undoubtedly will be making further reference to it; in fact, he mentioned to me 
that he would be doing so in the report that he is presently compiling. But we 
come right back to the point at which we started, namely the necessity, as we 
see it, for having some form of statutory approval. Mr. Labarge has referred to 
the difficulties in drafting it and I do not know whether any effort has been 
made or any study or thought given to the form which that drafting might take 
with a view to getting legislative approval. Would it be a proper question to ask 
Mr. Labarge whether any study group or committee within his department ha® 
in fact been wrestling with this problem with a view to coming up with 
something?

Mr. Labarge : Following the issuance of the Carter committee report, with
which I have had something to do because I travelled with the commission 
Australia to examine the wholesale level of tax, we organized ourselves in

to
the

department for a complete review of the valuation provisions as we had them kj 
our circulars and from this we began to try and work out the kind of law an 
the dimensions of this law which would be necessary to give effect to what we 
were doing and which generally is accepted as the fair and reasonable way 0 
making all the levels come down to the manufacturers’ level. This represented 
considerable task and at the conclusion of that we said here we have what wi 
have to be somehow or other authorized under the law. We reached that sta6e 
and then we said the next phase of this then is the question of the appeal, w 
kept bogging down each time that we got into this. I may say, although I c°u 
not pronounce myself in the same way as other people, that I and the otr>e^ 
members of my staff who went to meetings of associations, chambers 
commerce, and groups like that, had sessions for the purpose of bringing 
from them their feelings with respect to the attempts we were trying to mak 
in drafting and working out this idea.

Mr. Winch: I have just one more question. Could I ask the deputy mm'steI| 
whether any order in council has been passed under section 22 of the Financi'^ 
Administration Act to exempt him and his officials from imposing or change1 
taxation not authorized by statute, and if your colleague is correct, makd1 
refunds which I gather have been made illegally. What is the situation?

Mr. Labarge: I think if that had been the situation we would be ra^e 
depleted in the department so far as employees are concerned. It would not 
an attractive place to recruit staff. There was no order in council. The coming 
law is built up on practice, acceptable practice, and as we indicated last year, 
the very inception of this act, some member, the Hon. H. H. Stevens as 
subsequently became, said now you must make sure that you do not apply \ 0 
sales tax on the sales price of everybody selling goods; the manufacturer * 
sells to a wholesaler sells at a different price than what he sells to 
consumer. He proposed this amendment. The minister of the day, I believe 
was the hon. Mr. Fielding, said, we have this in sections such and such; we h ^ 
this in the law. And the whole House sat and examined that law and conce 
that they believed that he had it. I do not think that this was seriouS
questioned in the legal sense until 1955.

Mr. Winch: In view of the fact that two lower courts—one was in B11 
Columbia and I think one was in Ontario—have said you do not have

tish
the
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authority to issue these regulations, in view of the fact the Supreme Court split 
°u it, in view of the fact that the Auditor General said that you have not got 
the authority, on what basis is your department continuing, two years 
after it was drawn to the attention of this committee and officially, therefore, to 
Parliament, to operate by varying a taxation in this particular matter by 
regulation. Under what authority do you think you are doing it in view of all 
that background? I think that is a reasonable question, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Labarge: Well, it is a reasonable question. Perhaps I would look at it in 
a little different way and say that the law, as we have been interpreting it over 
the years, has established the operation of the tax at the manufacturers’ level.

Mr. Winch: Even although two courts have said you do not have that 
authority?

Mr. Labarge: Well, let us just say that we found ourselves in the situation 
°f agreeing to that. Let us say at that point we did.

Mr. Winch: I agree with your intent and procedure, but to me the important 
thing is operation according to statutory authority. That is the one point I am 
after.

Mr. Labarge: Well, we are not disagreeing at all. In fact we have main- 
alaed that we would like to see this; it is a question of how you put it in.

Mr. Bigg: If I could deal with that for a moment, it is a difficulty that you 
ave in all legislation. We passed, through parliament, the right to tax people, 

^ay> up to 11 per cent on certain commodities. Between that and collecting the 
ax there is a tremendous difficulty. So, although we have given the authority in 
lanket form we have tried to give safeguards as well by saying we must not 
ave deputy ministers running around allowing exemption on Cadillacs and not 

Ford cars, or something else like that, hatchets instead of fishing equip- 
^ent-—it is sort of a stop plan. But in between they start out, I suppose, and they 

0 things which they think are right until they are challenged in this manner. 
°W, our problem, I think, is that if there is any way we can help them by 

Ratifying the legislation and giving them full legal authority which cannot be 
challenged in the courts, let us do it. But I still think it would be a very, very 
implicated act where we can go into all the details and ramifications of 
^ministering something which affects every industry and every commodity 
S(^d in Canada.

Mr. Winch: That is my very point. Two years ago this committee went into 
. ls matter and said, do something about it to make it legal, statutory. And now 

1966 we find no action.
The Vice-Chairman: I do not think we will change the act this afternoon 

^ 've will have to put it in our recommendations again this year. I think we 
j^Ve time for at least one or two items before 5.30 p.m. Some of the members 
ave signified they would like to leave at 5.30 p.m.

^ Mr. Baldwin: I have one question before we leave. You may or may not 
QAVe the information now. In terms of total amounts, having in mind the total 

the sales tax which is collected, would you be in a position to furnish the 
^mittee with some indication as to the amount which is involved of sales tax
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which might well have been collected on a basis different from what was 
intended by the statute, if you took the strict interpretation of the statute.

Mr. Labarge: By this you would mean if we charged on everybodys’ selling 
price what would the revenue have been?

Mr. Baldwin: Well, what I am getting at is this. Obviously some of the 
sales tax you are now collecting on the rule of thumb method which you have 
felt you had to apply in order to make some sense out of it, is being collected on 
the basis which Mr. Winch suggested and which the committee has said in the 
past is not the proper rate. In other words, there has been a breach in the 
statute. Now, are you able to assess the total amount of all the sales tax that has 
been collected which has been improperly collected on that rate?

Mr. Bigg: I do not think they admit to any being improperly collected- 
They say they collect it in the best manner they can with the rather clumsy 
statute under which they operate.

Mr. Labarge: We feel that the whole objective and intent certainly has 
been observed from the beginning, and that is that there will be a tax paid °n 
the manufacturers’ selling price. Now the manufacturer does not always sell ou 
his door to the first level. Well, it is the ingenuity of the Canadian people a 
work, if you want to call it that, because what it amounts to is imposing an a 
valorem tax on goods and asking it to turn out in a specific term. If you pay taX 
on a television set which amounts to $25 because you bought it from 
wholesaler you are not going to have $35 when it is sold by the wholesaler; y°u 
are not going to have a $50 tax when the tax at the manufacturer’s level w'aS 
$25, and it is to maintain it at that level no matter where the tax is collect6 • 
Now, this is why I say Canadians seem to go in for a compromise between thlS 
on a practical, fair and reasonable basis.

Mr. Winch: That is not quite the situation. Let us take custom furnishing5' 
You allow 33i per cent below the price on which it is to be charged.

Mr. Labarge: To bring it down to the manufacturer’s level, because he haS 
it priced way up here. He is selling directly to the highest buyer.

Mr. Winch: So you allow 33J per cent.
Mr. Labarge: Downward. So he comes out at the same price as if he ^el 

a manufacturer selling to a wholesaler.
The Vice-Chairman: Well, to close this off we could put in the record^ 

page 216 of our report under item number 37, amendments to the Customs 
and the Excise Tax Act, “The Committee made the following recommendatm 
Item (d) determination of sale price for sales tax purposes—That an amendm6^ 
be made to the Excise Tax Act designed to give statutory sanction to 
existing scheme of valuation followed by the Department of National ^ev6jeSs 
in authorizing manufacturers by regulation ot compute the sales tax on 
than the actual price.” ,

Mr. Winch: That is exactly what I want, the statutory authority to do 
they are doing now.
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The Vice-Chairman: Could we move on to another item? The next item is 
item 91.

91. Settlement of sales tax on percentage of total sales. In previous 
Reports instances have been cited in which the Department of National 
Revenue has authorized the computation of sales tax on less than the 
actual sale price contrary to the provisions of the Excise Tax Act. The 
Public Accounts Committee in its Eighth Report 1964 (see Appendix 1, 
item 37) included the following recommendation with respect to this 
practice:

that an amendment be made to the Excise Tax Act designed to give 
statutory sanction to the existing scheme of valuation followed by 
the Department of National Revenue in authorizing manufacturers 
by regulation to compute the sales tax on less than the actual sale 
price.

During the year another method of assessing sales tax came to our 
attention which indicates that proposals designed to give statutory 
sanction to the collection of sales tax on other than the basis required by 
present legislation must be carefully examined if a loss of revenue is to 
be avoided.

In 1962 the Department became aware of an unsatisfactory situation 
with regard to exemption certificates covering tax-exempt sales of oil 
filters for internal combustion engines sold to farmers, loggers and 
fishermen. Following an investigation the Department ascertained that 
approximately 50% of the oil filters manufactured in Canada for use in 
internal combustion engines were used under tax-exempt conditions. It 
therefore ruled, contrary to the provisions of the Act, that henceforth the 
sales tax of 11% would be applied to only 50% of the total sales of each 
manufacturer on the understanding that exemption certificates would 
not be required nor would the Department consider any refund claims 
with respect to such filters.

Under this arrangement each manufacturer is expected to remit to 
the Receiver General 11% tax on only 50% of all his sales of filters to 
unlicensed dealers.

With effect from June 14, 1963, engines used in the logging industry 
were deleted from the schedule of exemptions. This, of course, reduced 
the number of oil filters used under tax-exempt conditions but, due to 
pressure of work, the Department had not yet been able to carry out the 
necessary investigation to determine a new percentage of sales on which 
the tax is to be applied.

This matter came to our attention when a routine Excise Tax audit 
resulted in an additional assessment of $3,605 which took into considera­
tion changes made in the Excise Tax Act in June 1963. This additional 
assessment was reduced by $3,193 because of the departmental ruling 
issued prior to the changes in the Excise Tax Act and which is still in 
effect.

st Mr. Henderson: This case is an example again of the importance of 
atutory sanction being given to the existing scheme of valuation followed by
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the department in authorizing manufacturers by regulation to compute the sales 
tax on less than the actual sale price. I would suggest to you that it points up 
why the present legislation should be carefully examined if a loss of revenue is 
to be avoided. This has to do with the oil filters and the averaging method, on 
which perhaps Mr. Labarge and Mr. Hind will have something to say.

Mr. Labarge: This has been adjusted but I think I will ask Mr. Bennett to 
give to you an explanation of the reason for this.

Mr. G. L. Bennett (Assistant Deputy Minister Excise, Customs and Excise 
Division, National Revenue Department) : Mr. Chairman, this matter has been 
adjusted by regulation effective the 1st of June of this year by requiring the 
manufacturers to pay tax on 70 per cent of their sale of oil filters for internal 
combustion engines without right of refund. The delay in bringing this matter 
to a conclusion results from many factors. First of all, and perhaps this is no 
excuse but it is a fact, that there was a tremendous increasing work loan 
following the budget of 1963 which forced us to establish a system of priorities 
in dealing with any changes. The investigation required to adjust the basis f°r 
tax on oil filters was placed in its proper position in this system and as a 
preliminary to the investigation a discussion with representatives of the indus­
try revealed that there was no general agreement among them and among the 
industry itself concerning this matter. Because of this disagreement numer­
ous difficulties presented themselves to us, not only during the investigation but
also during the discussions with the representatives of industry. When the 
investigation and these discussions had reached the stage where we could 
forward a new basis for tax, we considered it to be only right and proper to 
make this new basis effective on a future date in order to give these manufaC' 
turers time to adjust their prices and to have price-lists printed for distribution 
to their customers. To establish retroactive assessment based upon this investi­
gation in our opinion would be grossly unfair, and it was for this reason that 
the assessment referred to was adjusted.

The Vice-Chairman : Are there any questions on this?
Mr. Henderson: I would like to ask Mr. Long if he has anything to add t0 

this?
Mr. Long: The case mentioned in our report referred to the withdrawal ° 

an exemption which I believe was effective June 14, 1963. The fact that t 
percentage has now been changed as of yesterday means that there has be 
of course, the loss of the difference from June 14, 1963 to June 1, 1966.

There is one other question that I would like to ask and I think ^ 
committee might be interested in this. What is the purpose of an exemption 
any group for oil filters if a change in the percentage of tax—that is a change 
the percentage of exempt sales—results in the necessity for the manufacturers 
change their pricelists? These exemptions as we understand them are for cei 
persons. They might be farmers; they might be the logging industry> 
something like that. Now, the manufacturers supposedly are selling to tn 
classes tax exempt; they are selling to everyone else collecting the tax, but^e 
make things easier the department says it is 50-50 or 70-30; you just se^g 
your tax on that basis. Why should this affect the pricelists of the people- 
manufacturers or the wholesalers who are selling these filters?
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Mr. Labarge: Well, the 70 per cent means that there is that much of a tax 
increase in that portion which is so taxable.

Mr. Long: Is it not supposed to reflect that 70 per cent of his sales are 
taxable and 30 per cent are not taxable without affecting the sale price? They 
are all sold at the same price but 70 per cent tax is collected and 30 per cent 
is not collected.

Mr. Labarge : Well, he is the person who is liable to us for the tax. Now if I 
^ant to, I can pay the tax on any goods that I want to sell you so far as the law 
’s concerned. Whether I do it and go into bankruptcy, that is my business. That 
ls the way the law is.

Mr. Long: But is the effect of this not that an exemption meant for some 
Particular industry, if other pricelists are being changed, is actually being 
enjoyed by other than that industry? If the pricelist of a manufacturer, to let us 
Say the Canadian Tire Corporation, is raised because you have raised the 
Percentage from 50 to 70 you and I and everyone else buying oil filters at 
Canadian Tire Corporation are now going to pay more, meaning that we were 
benefiting in the past from an exemption that was for farmers or loggers.

Mr. Bigg: The farmer gets 100 per cent exemption.
Mr. Long: No. Canadian Tire Corporation theoretically sells some of their 

Iters to farmers but they do not give them any better price.

Mr. Winch: The farmer is paying you 15 per cent, is that not correct?
Mr. Long: Well, the tax is only being paid on 70 per cent of the total sales. 

herefore he is paying 70 per cent of 11 per cent as the rest of us are instead of 
einS exempt from the full tax.

, The Vice-Chairman: This is a tax on the manufacturer and so far as I 
now Canadian Tire Corporation does not manufacture very much. At least I 
°Pbt if they do. They buy from manufacturers under their own label.

Mr. Long: No, but the reason behind this is that a certain percentage of the 
b^nufacturer’s sales are tax exempt. It was based at 50%. Roughly half the 
Sales are tax exempt and they pay 11 per cent on just half their sales to 
Amplify administration. The exempt classes were reduced in 1963 so that it is 
n°t now 50 per cent; it is only 30 per cent.

Mr. Bigg: Because they were reporting a larger percentage of the oil filters. 
Mr. Long: No.
Mr. Bigg: They made this sort of a rough cutoff and said about half are 

anufacturers in Canada, therefore we will reduce your sales tax to 5| per
c®nt.

Mr. Long: All the manufacturers are in Canada but the exemption was 
^hdrawn from certain classes of users.

Mr. Bigg: Like the logging industry.
c, Mr. Long: Yes, like the loggers. It was withdrawn. So the percentage 

a^ged to 30 per cent instead of 50 per cent; but the department has taken 
yesterday to reflect that in the change in what the manufacturer now has 

pay. But, one of the reasons for the delay for the last month was so that they
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could change their pricelists. I cannot see how this could affect their pricelists 
unless it means that someone else is benefiting from exemptions provided for 
certain specific classes.

The Vice-Chairman: Probably a more fair way of doing it would be to got 
the total registration in Canada of vehicles used in farming and fishing and then 
you could get a percentage of the total vehicles in Canada. Then you would 
have a better idea of the percentage.

Mr. Bigg: But if you were advertising your prices surely if you changed the 
exemption from 50 to 30 there must be a change in your catalogue of what it15 
going to cost the people to buy your filters unless the manufacturer is going t° 
absorb the extra tax.

Mr. Long: You will have a price and charge sales tax where it applies and 
you do not charge it where it does not apply. So it should not change your sale 
price.

Mr. Bigg: I think it is as simple as saying they are putting out catalogues 
and have to change the sales price part of the catalogue unless they are going t0 
absorb the difference. Somebody has to pay this extra 20 per cent of the 11 Per 
cent.

The Vice-Chairman : They would have to charge it to more people.
Mr. Bigg: Some of these trade catalogues are this thick.
Mr. Long: Since 1963 that particular industry has been paying tax because 

in the budget that year the tax exemption was withdrawn but we have not been 
getting it from the manufacturers.

Mr. Bigg: But just because they made a sudden change in the regulation5 
they cannot possibly change every detail.

Mr. Long: The point here is that this tax is being collected on less than tin- 
full sale price on the over all. This is one of the difficulties in this kind of a 
arrangement.

Mr. Labarge : This is to provide for exemptions within those sales.
The Vice-Chairman: Well, gentlemen, it is 5.30; we cannot finish tW5 

department tonight so we will have to continue at our next meeting, I believe-
Mr. Henderson: Will that be next Tuesday, June 7.
The Vice-Chairman: Next Tuesday, June 7 at 3.30 p.m. in room 

according to the list here. Does that coincide with your schedule?
Mr. Labarge: Does anyone know when the Committee on Drugs an 

Pharmaceuticals is scheduled?
An hon. Member: It is on June 9.
The Vice-Chairman: Thank you, gentlemen. The meeting is adjourn6
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Tuesday, June 7, 1966. 
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The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 4.07 p.m. this day, the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Flemming, Hales, Leblanc 
(Laurier), Lefebvre, Noble, Stafford, Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), 
Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch (11).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Mr. G. R. 
Cong, Assistant Auditor General; Messrs. Crowley and Laroche of the Auditor 
General’s staff; Mr. R. C. Labarge, Deputy Minister of National Revenue; 
Messrs. J. G. Howell, A. R. Hind and G. L. Bennett, Assistant Deputy Ministers; 
and Messrs. Langford and Last of the Department of National Revenue.

The Chairman read into the record a letter sent by him on behalf of the 
Committee to the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario (See Evidence).

The Committee concluded the questioning of the representatives of the 
Auditor General and Department of National Revenu on items in the 1965 
report concerning Customs and Excise. The following paragraphs were covered

Paragraph 92—Refund of sales tax on material used in construction of 
Certain buildings.

Paragraph 93—Crown-owned houses located at Coutts, Alberta, declared 
!^rplus to requirements. (This item will be recalled when Crown Assets 
jAsposal Corporation and/or Treasury Board representatives appear before the
Committee. )
.. Paragraph 95—Commissions for issue of provincial hunting and fishing 
fences and permits.

Paragraph 96—Customs and Excise laboratory.
Paragraph 97—Part-time Customs and Excise Enforcement Officer. 
Paragraph 98—Sight entries.
Paragraph 99—Bonded warehouses.
Paragraph 100—Possible loss of excise tax.

3—Accounts receivable. (The Department is to provide addi- 
to the Committee. See Appendix 5)

Appendix 1—(9) Remission of Sales Tax on oleomargarine. (Follow-up 
ePort item 9)

The Chairman adjourned the meeting at 5.43 p.m. to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.

Paragraph 16 
l0r>al information
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Tuesday, June 7, 1966.
• (3.18 p.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum.
You will recall, two or three meetings ago, that Mr. Ballard moved and 

Mr. Baldwin seconded that this Committee go on record as acknowledging that 
the Auditor General’s office had been sanctioned to take on students in training 
t°r their degree work. I was instructed to express the appreciation of the 
Committee in this regard.

With your permission I would like to put on record the letter that was sent 
to Mr. Ross, President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario:

Dear Mr. Ross:
On Tuesday, May 31st, Mr. A. M. Henderson, the Auditor General, 

informed the Members of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts 
regarding the action of the Institute at its Annual Meeting in Windsor on 
Monday last at which time a by-law was passed to sanction the training 
of Institute students in the office of the Auditor General of Canada in 
Ottawa.

This action of the Institute in extending this privilege to the office of 
the Auditor General of Canada is greatly appreciated by Members of the 
Committee. Several of them expressed their pleasure at this meeting.

I should like to associate myself with these expressions and say to 
you and the Council that we regard this as a most constructive and 
helpful contribution towards strengthening the organization and work of 
this important officer of Parliament.

We are confident that the arrangements will work very smoothly and 
at all times conform to the high standards demanded by your Institute in 
the practice or your profession.

Yours sincerely,
A. D. Hales, Chairman, 

Public Accounts Committee.

I thought the members would like to know that your wishes had been 
Carried out in this regard.

The other announcement I would like to make is to request that you please 
sPeak into the microphone, because the transcription comes out rather blurred 
ütlless you do, and they are having a little trouble in the translation section.
. Mr. Henderson would you proceed with Paragraph 92 on page 60 of the 

Auditor General’ Report?

585
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92. Refund of sales tax on materials used in construction of certain 
buildings. In paragraph 71 of the 1964 Report attention was directed to section 
47a of the Excise Tax Act, 1963, c. 12, which reads as follows:

Where materials have been purchased by or on behalf of
(a) a school, university or other similar educational institution for use 

exclusively in the construction of a building for that institution, or
(b) any organization for use exclusively in the construction of a building 

for that organization that is to be used exclusively or mainly as a 
public library operated by or on behalf of that organization on 
a non-commercial basis,

and the tax imposed by Part VI has been paid in respect of those 
materials, the Minister may, upon application by such institution °r 
organization in such form as the Minister prescribes made to the Minister 
within two years from the time the materials were purchased, pay t0 
such institution or organization an amount equal to that tax.

In order to simplify the arrangements by which the refund could b® 
granted, an Order in Council was passed which established a formula désigné 
to determine the “approximate” value of taxable material in a building and t° 
“estimate” the amount of the refund that may be claimed. This formula con­
tinued to be the basis for refunds throughout the year under review.

Section 47A directs the Minister to pay an amount equal to the tax that has 
been paid and there does not appear to be any authority in the Excise Tax Ac 
to pay a refund based on an estimated taxable value of materials incorpora 
into a building.

ted

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General of Canada) : This paragraph dea 
with refund of sales tax on materials used in construction of certain building3' 
It will be seen here that Section 47 (a) of the Excise Tax Act is quite specific to-
directing the Minister to pay an amount equal to the tax that has been paid.

This situation is also the subject of budget resolution 15 with respect to the 
Excise Tax Act, outlined on page 3399 of Hansard of March 29, 1966.

If approved it will provide proper authority for the Department to foll0^
the procedure which I had criticized in this paragraph in my 1965 Report.

I do not know whether the Members will have any questions on th13’ 
Mr. Chairman. We might move to the next item.

Mr. Baldwin: The budget resolutions are not being debated today so
The Chairman: Number 93.
Mr. Henderson: This is the case of Crown-owned houses located at C°uttS’ 

Alberta, declared surplus to requirements.
Here is another case of buildings costing $61,000 in 1953 and being sold & 

1964-65 for $12,600 by Crown Assets. Three of the houses and lands ^ 
disposed of the note says that an offer of $2,000 for the fourth property had n^ 
been accepted at the time our report was written, but I am informed that it 
since been sold for $4,800. If this is the case then the property worth $61,000 
now been sold for $17,400, which means that the Crown has suffered a 
percent loss, or $43,600.
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Since there has been no reduction in the staff at the Port of Coutts I 
suggest that the loss of the size indicated here on properties built only twelve 
years ago should raise the question of why the houses were constructed in the 
first place.

The Chairman: Mr. Labarge, have you a member of your Department here, 
Who would speak to this?

Mr. Labarge : I think Mr. Langford could speak to this one.
Mr. Langford (Department of National Revenue): Mr. Chairman, the 

Auditor General has raised the question of the justification for the construction 
°f these houses in the first instance.

These houses were built in the early fifties, over a period beginning in 1951 
and ending in 1954, for a total of eighteen houses plus some other buildings. The 
reason they were built, of course, is that, while Coutts, Alberta is an important 
Point on the map from the standpoint of customs, or as a border crossing point, 

has literally nothing in the way of community life. There were absolutely no 
anienities there, or facilities for housing the customs officers whom it was 
hecessary to assign to this port in order to provide necessary customs services.

This situation has changed somewhat in the past few years. The highway 
between the border and Lethbridge has been greatly improved, and a nearby 
*°wn, namely, Milk River, which is some thirteen miles northwest of Coutts, is 
sPch that it can provide the kind of community living that is not available and 
Pever has been available at Coutts.

Most of the officers are owners of automobiles now, and they have found it 
Piore convenient and to their advantage to take up residence in such nearby 
Places as Milk River, rather than continue living in Coutts and occupying 
uepartment-owned residences. The simple result of this is that we have found it 
Pecessary, as these houses have become abandoned, so to speak, by our person­
al. to turn them over to Crown Assets for disposal.

In summary, they were built at a time when they were needed. There was 
a great volume of business coming through Coutts, particularly with the 
°Pening up and the expansion of the oil and gas fields in Alberta, and because 
| the development of inland highway warehouses which had the result of 

. ttracting considerably more truck traffic through Coutts than had been the case 
^ earlier years. There was a general upswing of customs business centred upon 
'-Putts, which made it necessary for us to staff accordingly and made it 
Necessary for us to provide suitable housing for our people in the absence of 
aPy housing in the normal way.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier): I wonder if the Auditor General got that explana- 
*°P before making his remarks. The explanation seems very clear.

Mr. Henderson: I am familiar with that, Mr. Leblanc. The essence of the 
gestion was that these houses were built twelve years ago and now, because 
bey elect to live thirteen miles away and presumably collect mileage coming to 
°rk, we have to sell the houses and take a loss of $43,600.

^ I should like to ask the witness a question: Was it not a fact that two of the 
°Uses were bought by your departmental employees? That is to say, when the 
r°Wn realized $12,600 for three houses, two of them were bought by your own 

6tPployees.
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Mr. Langford: I would have to check that, Mr. Chairman, I have no 
knowledge of that.

Mr. Labarge: What would that signify?
Mr. Henderson: It signifies a bargain and it is less costly, and therefore you 

balance that up against the inconvenience of living in Coutts. I was just asking 
the question: was is it not a fact that two of the houses were bought by the 
employees who had found it inconvenient to live there. One house was bought 
for $4,100 and the other for $4,200.

The Chairman : Is that a fact, Mr. Langford?
Mr. Langford: It seems to be.
Mr. Ballard : May I ask, Mr. Chairman, if these two departmental em­

ployees who bought were previously living at port Coutts, or were they at Mi 
River? I would be interested to find that out.

Mr. Langford: They would have been appointed. No, sir, I do not believe 
that they were living in Coutts at the time. They were appointed from various 
other offices in the Customs service. I would think they were in the genera 
area, however.

Mr. Winch: In other words, those who were previously on the staff at 
of Coutts were not satisfied and therefore it was necessary to take this loss, 
when you appoint some new people they do not take the same exceptions 
they are quite satisfied to buy houses and live in the Port of Coutts; is that it?

port
but
and

Mr. Langford: As I said, I will have to check into this question of the 
purchase of two houses, I believe it was?

Mr. Henderson: I have the name of the employees here and I would be g^ 
to show them to you and perhaps you could identify them as employees of y°ur 
Department or not.

The Chairman: Mr. Henderson, would you give the names of these 
employees?

Mr. Henderson: The first name is P. E. Kinakin, and the other is E- 
Thiessen.

Mr. Leblanc (Laurier) : Are they at Coutts?
Mr. Henderson: That is what I thought the Department might be able t° 

tell us.
Mr. Labarge: I am sorry. The names do not ring a bell with me, and ^ 

have not got the details. We will have to find out.
Mr. Winch: This is a paradoxical situation, whereby employees move out 

government houses and they are declared surplus to Crown Assets, but they a 
sold to other government employees working at identically the same place a 
price of $4,100. I think you will agree, sir, that is a rather paradoxical situati 
and requires a greater explanation than we have had so far.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, the question that comes to my mind is: Has 
Milk River developed to a point, in the years since these houses were built, ^ 
it was that much more attractive for these people to live at Milk River than
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}vas to stay where they were at Coutts? Has this town Milk River, just come 
mto being in the last ten years, or was it always at the same state of 
development as it is right now?

Mr. Langford: Our information is that the improvement in the living 
conditions at Milk River has taken place, for the most part, over the last eight 
to ten years. There has been generally an uplifting in the community life there, 
ln terms of schools, churches, hospitals provided, doctors available, stores, 
^ad so forth and so on.

Mr. Flemming : My question, Mr. Chairman, is this: Is it correct that 
Mileage is allowed to these people to commute back and forth from another 
Place after housing had been provided?

Mr. Labarge: Yes, they are allowed commuting for their cars. There are a 
°t of factors here which we cannot assess unless we are the individuals 

themselves.
I do not know anything about these two people, but I can well see how 

People transferring to these points—they are not on high salaries and they were 
even lower back in those days. There were not good roads. There is an economic 
rÇnt placed on these by the government and a man could, under these 
circumstances, find that, apart from the better conditions of a community called 
Milk River, he had higher rent to pay than he would at Milk River, but he could 
n°w travel by a car which he had been able to buy, and his family would be 
Centred in a place where they could live an ordinary communal life and to 
^hich he could travel back.

I went to that place and, frankly, I do not know how many of you have 
^°he that. The water was hauled in in tanks. Perhaps I could just tell you this 
dtle story which I think is an impressive incident. We were dining at the 
Elector’s place. Believe me, it was far from impressive. The Minister was there 
j*nd myself and one other officer. The dinner, to my surprise, was rather 
j*Uid-—soup and all these kinds of things, and refreshments before and after—to 
Pc point where just before leaving the Deputy said, “Would you show me 

Miere the boy’s room is”. The collector turned to me and said, “I have been 
Waiting for this all night.” He said, “It is out there across the field.”

This is just an illustration of the kind of difficulties in all weather, with no 
timing water or anything else.

When you get these people moved up, and supposing a fellow moves up 
tter these conditions and then all of a sudden he finds that it is not an 

®c°nomic rent that; he has got. His children may be grown up by this time. I do 
know what the circumstances are, but here is a house which is obviously, as 
say, offered at a bargain; there is no collusion between him and the 

UePartment. They did not get rid of the house so that he could get a bargain. It 
js °Pen to any citizen to bid on. He happens to be one of the people who is a 

more interested than the others because his job is there.
^ I do not see that this is not a completely human story. I do not think there 

aPything crooked or malicious about it, or that the thing has not been done in 
e Proper way, in the circumstances as they are.

''’as
Mr. Winch: One further question then. Water has to be brought in, and it 
all outside plumbing, from what you just told us now would you please,
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just for information, explain why there was more than one pump house there, 
and one pump house has now been abandoned. What was the pump house for?

Mr. Labaege: That is Pigeon River, I think, Mr. Winch.
Mr. Winch: Pardon?
Mr. Labaege: Is that Pigeon River?
Mr. Wtinch: Oh, no. This is Coutts. You not only abandoned houses and 

garages but you abandoned an additional pump house. That means you had more 
than one pump house. What were the pumps for?

Mr. Labaege: Well, in 1962 they put in a water system. It is in there noW, 
but it was not in the days I was speaking of.

Mr. Winch: You have had a water system since 1962. You have more than 
one pump house? Come, now, there must be two; so that is only four years ag6' 
Therefore, they had outside water; they had their pump. They had that 
modernization.

Mr. Labaege : I think they had gone by that time.
Mr. Winch: It says that one pumphouse was surplus. I imagine there must 

have been more than one pump house, because they would not leave a water 
system if there was no pump supplied.

Mr. Langfoed: The inference to be taken from that is that we had on6 
pump house, and we disposed of that one pump house when a general servie6 
was introduced in 1962.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Well, Mr. Chairman, I lived on the prairieS 
for a number of years and I can understand the problems that might arise in 3 
community like that where there is not a water supply, and possibly no wat61 
supply available.

The point I wish to raise is this: Has the staff increased? I will put m/ 
question this way: How many houses, or dwellings, were involved in thjS 
development? Sixty-one thousand, I would guess that $61,000 would meaTl 
anywhere from six to eight houses, or maybe ten if there is no running wat61"’ 
or maybe more.

Mr. Langfoed: Eighteen houses here were constructed from 1951 to 19^’ 
plus the pump house and the garages involved—two double garages; perhaps 
there may be more garages. We disposed of two double garages. But the tow 
number of houses constructed there between 1951 and 1954 was eight6611 
houses.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : That would be about $3,000 per house.
Mr. Henderson: Oh, no. If I may correct you, Mr. Thomas.
Do you have the cost of the eighteen houses?
These would include the ones for the Department of Immigration. We 

talking about only four houses here for $61,000, or about $15,000 each in ter#1 
of cost.

f tltfMr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Do we understand, then, that all oi 
houses were not sold.
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Mr. Henderson: I am commenting here only on the ones at the customs 
Port, that were sold for the Department of National Revenue. They sold four of 
them. They had some others there but we are just taking the case of these four.

Mr. Lefebvre: The $61,000 represents only the amount for the garages, 
houses and pump houses that were sold?

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
Mr. Lefebvre : It does not include any other buildings that are there.
Mr. Henderson: That is correct.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Well, can we have the total cost of the 

development—of the eighteen houses, plus the pump house and the other 
ancillaries?

Mr. Langford: I think we can give you that figure from our working 
Papers.

Mr. Flemming: Mr. Chairman, while we are waiting, I would like to ask 
Mr. Labarge, if this was not an unusual thing to do?

Mr. Labarge: It is unusual now. We do not do it now. The circumstances 
are different from those of the post-war period, where it was difficult to find 
atly expansion. The change in traffic and the increase in business, when 
everything is suddenly brought forward—these circumstances are not repeating 
hemselves nearly so much.

We have taken the strain off a lot of these border points by having these 
ltlland warehouses created, so that they simply follow through and close up and 
^ove on to their destination.

The Chairman: Have we an answer to your question, Mr. Thomas? 
Mr. Henderson: I think Mr. Long has the figure, Mr. Chairman.

* Mr. Long: The figures we have cover sixteen houses, and the total is 
M14,000. This covers the garages and the pump houses as well. It also includes 
s°Pie money that was paid by the Immigration Department.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Could I ask why some of the houses were 
is there any explanation why the Department should be selling some of 

6se houses and not all of them?
Mr. Langford: This has been a question of the gradual disposal of them. 

fee disposed of five in 1965, and five more are scheduled for disposal in the next 
^ months to a year—in this current year.

Mr. Lefebvre: To your employees again?
■jn . Mr. Langford : We have no knowledge about whom they may be sold to. 

ls Would be a question for C.A.D.C. to decide.
st Thomas (Middlesex West): May I ask, Mr. Chairman, what is the total 

a" employed at Coutts?
Mr. Langford: I will have to get that information, I am afraid.

Is, Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): In other words, the question would follow: 
dere accommodation there for all of the employees?

Mr. Langford: Oh, no.
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The Chairman: Would you have an approximate number on the staff 
there? Somebody in the Department must know.

Mr. Howell: The office is open twenty-four hours, with three shifts.

• (4.30 p.m.)
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Therefore, this community could not 

possibly accommodate them all. Is there any substantial difference between the 
situation at Coutts and the development at Pigeon River?

Mr. Howell: The situation, sir, is entirely the same. They were border 
ports isolated from any community whatsoever.

Coutts was a main route up into Calgary and Edmonton, and after 1950 the 
traffic there increased a tremendous amount due to the increase in the trucking 
industry and the opening of the oil wells.

Officers who worked on the border had come from communities at a 
distance to get down to work. In these days they were not supplied with cars 
and they did not have cars of their own, so the only alternative the Departure» 
had was to build for them there as well as at Pigeon, where the situation was 
relatively the same.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Would it be a reasonable assumption tha > 
due to the general increase in standards of living throughout the community 1 
that general area of western Alberta, people who, in 1950, 1952 and ’ 
following the war, might have been willing to live in non-modern homes, th 
they would no longer be willing to live in non-modern homes in that area, a 
is it possible to supply those homes economically with the conveniences of » 
such as running water?

Mr. Howell: I think the situation, Mr. Chairman, is that, follow!11® 
the war, a great many of our officers were returned veterans. They We 
not married at the time. When they took up duties down there tn 
probably had just been married a short time.

As families increased they had to educate them, and Coutts is not a P^e 
where you can educate your family. Therefore, being realistic about ^ 
whole situation, having obtained a better standard of living, and in 1X1 
cases now having acquired an automobile, they looked around to see wh® 
they could live better. They went to Milk River and to Lethbridge—P*a ^ 
of easy access. This is where they moved their families, so that they c°ugll 
have the better amenities of life, and where they could give their child1* 
better education; and they commuted.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : What are the circumstances under which ^ 
Department pays mileage? How far must the employee be located from hlS 1 
and under what circumstances can mileage be paid? .>

I can imagine that in the City of Windsor or Toronto, employees 1111 y 
easily live thirteen or fifteen or twenty-five miles from their job. Would 
receive mileage in the City of Toronto, for instance?

Mr. Howell: No; nor in Ottawa or in Montreal.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): But if they lived in Milk River, thk 

miles from the job, I understand that they might receive mileage?



June 7, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 593

Mr. Howell: I cannot be certain of that, sir.
The Chairman: Are there any further questions?
I would suggest that we ask the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation, when 

they are before us, to give us some further information on the disposal of these 
houses. I think they will have some answers that you may want to have.

I am just wondering when you employed people there, did you offer them 
these houses with a certain rent, and give them the option to take that house, or 
h they preferred to live in Milk River, they could; but if they did, they could 
t°ok after their own transportation? What sort of a proposition is made to your 
staff there?

Mr. Howell: I think, Mr. Chairman, I do not recall at the time exactly 
what transpired, but I do recall that at one stage there were surveys by 
treasury Board officials into the economic rent of all government housing 
deluding the armed forces and our own Department, and I know that following 
that survey there was a lot of dissatisfaction amongst our officers because their 
rent was too high for the salaries they were receiving.

This was a complaint time and time again, and it was following this stage 
that we started to get the people leaving the houses and moving into the nearby 
communities.

The Chairman: I wonder if Mr. Henderson or Mr. Long could tell the 
Committee what the Immigration Department are doing in this locality. Do they 
°wn houses, too?

Mr. Henderson: I think they own some of these houses. I have some notes 
hore, Mr. Chairman, which might shed some light on this, and give help to the 

epartment. This has to do with the houses that were built by the Department 
Customs and Excise at Coutts.

The Deputy Minister stated that “ .. . consideration should be given by Pub- 
lc Works to providing accommodation at Coutts for a minimum of twenty fami­

nes since the housing situation for most of the officers is quite desperate because 
cPtral Mortagage and Housing Corporation and other agencies are not inter­

red in financing houses for individuals at this location”. That was said in 1950.
In 1957, because of the expense the Department had gone to build homes at 

1118 location, they made it a condition of appointment and promotion that 
6thployees would rend accommodation from the Department unless they could 
®lVe some valid reason why they should not be required to do so.

This condition did not appear on appointment posters after 1961, but it did 
a^ect a later promotional competition. In August 1963, fifteen of the twenty-six 
6tPployees at this location owned or were building their own houses, thus 
k^sumably financial institutions were willing to grant loans.

In a letter in January 1964 the Department told the Treasury Board that 
ey had made a recent change in their Department’s policy in respect ofth.

Cfi
°Wn-owned houses whereby they no longer make the appointments to port 
étions conditional upon occupancy of Crown-owned residences.

. There does not seem to have been any apparent change in the size of Coutts 
it had a population of approximately 500 people in 1960, nor has there 

6eP any appreciable change in the number of customs and excise employees.
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Grain elevator company agents were renting more than three bedroom 
houses in Coutts for $45 per month and the R.C.M.P. rents a three bedroom 
house, including all facilities, for $70. Customs and excise comparative rentals 
for their older homes in $66.50 without utilities and $110 with all included.

A customs and excise employee is buying his own home at Lethbridge, 
which is a comparable home, for no more cost per month than charged by 
customs and excise to rent in this small village.

The sale of houses at this location has taken place because rentals charged 
have been too high to stop people from fulfilling their basic desire to own their 
own home, and was not because of any decrease in staff members or general 
town population resulting in general vacancy of houses.

Based on the prices realized on sale of three properties, the government 
might consider accepting a lower rate of rent, or some day all the houses may 
have to be sold through Crown Assets Corporation and rental accom­
modation may not be available for new appointees.

That, presumably, is the background as to why you are vacating the 
ownership of houses of which this is the first batch. Mr. Howell said five more 
had been sold in 1965, and he thought that some more were going to be on the 
market in 1966; so that they will be out of that investment position soon.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : On the basis of Mr. Henderson’s informa­
tion, Mr. Chairman, has the Department given any consideration to reducing 
rents to the levels which would be justified by the sale price of these homes?

Mr. Labarge: We have no authority. That is set by Treasury Board.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Has Treasury Board, Mr. Labarge, been 

approached?
Mr. Lab arge : They saw the furore when the rent went up and the people 

began this exodus. It was too high.
The idea was to have it brought down so that we could keep them there, 

but the economic rent was a general principle throughout the service, for 3 
Departments.

The Chairman: Treasury Board did not reduce the rent?
Mr. Labarge: No.
Mr. Langford: Despite all efforts to persuade Treasury Board to keep tbe^ 

stable or even reduce them because of the isolated conditions in which 
people were compelled to work and occupy these homes, we were unsuccess
in getting any reduction, or, indeed, in preventing any increase in the rent.

thatMr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Are we to understand, Mr. Chairman, 11 _ 
the people who fix these rentals, that is, Treasury Board, who are response 
for them, charge the same rental whether the home is in Coutts, Alberta °r 
Lethbridge, Alberta.

Mr. Labarge: It is the local economic rent in the nearest community- ThlS 
what they take.

Mr. Baldwin: The Treasury Board’s laudable desire to achieve a little 113 
revenue from raising the rents was defeated by the losses they sustained w 
the houses were sold.
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Mr. Winch: It seems rather extraordinary to have a situation where it is 
absolutely impossible to maintain a decent rent level, yet a person who cannot 
and will not pay that rent level can buy a house, or somebody else can, for 
$4,100—the same house which rents for $120 a month. To me that sounds stupid, 

a financial point of view.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Are the houses that are being sold, houses 

that are non-modern? Do you pick up certain houses, for instance, that cannot 
be serviced with water and sell those, or what houses are chosen for sale?

Mr. Langford: The question of what houses are put up for sale, sir, 
depends, of course, on those vacated by the officers. We did build a block, if you 
will, of eighteen houses, and we attempted to keep this as a cohesive little 
customs community. As one officer abandoned his house and moved elsewhere we 
closed ranks, so to speak, and asked someone who might be occupying the next 
bouse to take over that house in order to keep the group of houses together as 
customs residences.

The Chairman: Mr. Langford, may I interject? Did these officers who left, 
leave because the rent was too high on these houses?

Mr. Langford: Well, sir, there was a mixture of reasons.
The Chairman: Was not this primarily the reason, that the rent was too 

btgh for what they were getting?
Mr. Langford : Well, this was a great contribution to their decision.
The Chairman: Well, I would think that would be it. Did you, or the 

UePuty, or anybody in your Department, write to Treasury Board and ask them 
0 adjust these rents so that you could keep your staff there?

R Mr. Langford : Yes, sir. We are on record as having requested Treasury 
. °ard to keep the rents either at a reasonable fixed level, or to keep the 
deceases down because of the circumstances in which these officers were 
enquired to live, having in mind the lack of community life which was almost 
entirely nil.

The Chairman : If there are no further questions, we will move on.
We will have Treasury Board before the Committee, and if the Clerk will 

ake note of this we will discuss this with them when they are before us.
No. 94.

. Mr. Henderson: This has been dealt with, Mr. Chairman. We dealt with it
earlier.

The Chairman: Ninety-five.
95. Commissions for issue of provincial hunting and fishing licences and 

,ermits. Certain customs and immigration officers have been granted permissionby
ahci

their respective departments to issue provincial hunting and fishing licences
Permits when requested to do so by provincial governments and to retain as

fr'PiUneration any commissions paid to them.
} In British Columbia federal officers issued fish and game licences amount- 

2 to $250,000 in 1963. The commission on this amount was $25,000, some 
e Cers receiving over $400. At one port, where thirty federal officers are 
* Ployed, licences valued at $115,000 were issued, resulting in commissions of 
ni,500.
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Since these officers are members of the federal public service employed on 
a full-time basis, it would appear that commissions earned should be paid to the 
Crown.

Mr. Henderson: The facts given here are self-explanatory. This is 3 
practice which has existed for many years.

I do not know what questions the members might want to put to the 
witnesses on this matter.

As I say, these officers are members of the federal public service, employed 
on a full-time basis, and the question therefore arises whether the commissions 
earned should not have been returned to the Crown.

Mr. Lefebvre: What do the regulations provide for in a case like this, where 
federal employees are earning commissions by long duty?

The Chairman: Mr. Langford, are you in charge of this, or Mr. Howell?
Mr. Howell: The terms of employment of our officers do not include 

acceptance of fees, but this was done at the request of the provincial govern­
ment of British Columbia because our officers, at most of the larger border ports 
there, are on twenty-four hours duty, and they were very accessible to hunters 
and fishermen coming up from the United States. They made a special request 
to us to permit our officers to sell these permits.

About seven or eight years ago we looked into this very closely and We 
communicated with the B.C. authorities in Victoria on this point. They made 3 
special plea that we permit this, because they felt that our officers were giving 
great satisfaction in this respect. Because of the fact that they were alway8 
there, since they were on twenty-four hour shift, people did not have to go ^ 
distance to get them; and they were also sure that the people who were hunting 
really got their license at the time and were properly accounted for.

We have over the years co-operated with the provincial authorities becaus6 
they co-operate with us in a great many areas, such as in the licensing of mot°r 
vehicles which are brought across the border with American licence plates °n 
them. On things like this we co-operate and work together.

Therefore, for this and other reasons it has been a policy of the Departmeat 
for years to permit the officers to retain the fees at the request of the B- 
government.

The Chairman: Mr. Howell, I do not think the question is that it is not^ 
suitable place and handy and so on, but I think the question is: 
commissions be paid to civil servants, or should the commissions go to 
Crown? This is the point before the Committee, I think.

Mr. Labarge: Offhand, Mr. Chairman, I do not know of anything that bar
these people from being compensated in this way.

I do know, from a practical point of view, that the province would certain^ 
feel, as would our employees, that there is much more incentive to conce 
yourself about these things if you are getting something for so doing.

If I may, I will switch to another aspect of this which is my concern aS 
manager and an employer, and that is that I have other reasons for not being 
favour of this.
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One of them is that I ask myself, “Where does this thing end?” once you 
have created a precedent somewhere. There are all kinds of services that can be 
sought by people with whom we have good relations.

The second thing is, why should one group of employees be able, in the 
same number of hours, because of particular circumstances like this, to gain a 
higher income? These two things bring me to the point that I think this thing 
must be given thorough examination in the next year.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, here is another thing that could be looked at. 
This is during the hunting season and this would last what—two or three 
Months?

Mr. Labarge: This is maybe for eight months of the year, sir. You see there 
are hunting and fishing.

Mr. Ballard: For eight months of the year, you could almost hire one or 
lWo people for $11,500, which would provide jobs for two more people who 
w°uld be officially hired by the provincial government for this purpose.

Mr. Labarge : Yes. These are the alternatives I am going to suggest when 
and if I am told that this is the only way in which it can be done.

Taking your example, although they are hired for a full day they cannot 
Set around to all the cars that the others do. The officers do it by way of 
aaying, “Why are you visiting Canada?”, and the visitor says, “I am going hunt- 
ing.” “Well, you must get yourself a licence.” It is that simple.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): I come from a community where a lot of moose 
minting is done, and last fall one man sold $23,000 worth of moose hunting
lici
be

ences, and he did not go looking for anybody. They were looking for him,
cause you cannot hunt without a licence.

Mr. Labarge: I think this is a good suggestion.
The Chairman: Well, I think so, because in my community licences are sold 

y Private individuals who—
Mr. Winch: I think there is a little confusion here. You have to realise that 

his relates to a port of entry from the United States into Canada. It is only at 
ae Port of entry that this applies.

The Chairman: No, Mr. Winch.
Mr. Winch: In British Columbia?
The Chairman: Oh, well they can get a licence—
Mr. Winch: It is available only at the port of entry, is it not?
Mr. Labarge: Under these circumstances...
Mr. Winch: That is what I mean. It is only at the port of entry. I can tell 

°u this because I was for twenty years in the B.C. house and I can tell you all 
, b°ut this. The businessmen would just love you to take this out because all the 
ardware stores, sporting goods stores in the village only five miles away, or ten 

i 'Jes away—the first in line at the port of entry, you can get it; and they raise 
that they can be sold at the Customs House.

The Chairman: What is your recommendation, Mr. Winch?
Mr. Winch: Leave it as it is.

24573—2
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The Chairman: Thank you for your direct answer, Mr.Winch.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, as much as I think that there might be a little 

bit of moonlighting here on the part of federal civil servants, I think that a 
great deal of thought has been given to this aspect of licence-issuing by the 
provincial government. I think that this arrangement has been arrived at for 
the benefit of the tourists.

I can tell you from experience of going into a different country, or even a 
different province, that it is sometimes quite a problem to get a fishing °r 
hunting licence. I would say that this is probably a deal set up by the provincial 
government for the convenience of tourists.

This, quite frankly, is the most convenient way to handle it, and in spite of 
the fact that there may be some moonlighting involved in this, I would 
recommend also that they leave it as it is.

The Chairman: Are there other views on this?
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : I think it is a dangerous procedure. As has 

been pointed out, where does it end? If revenue officers are to be permitted to 
do this, then on what grounds can you refuse to permit full-time postal 
employees taking on second jobs? We know that the result of that sort of 
leniency is that people end up holding down more than one job, and they make 
the main job suffer.

I think it is a dangerous precedent. I think it should be looked at very 
carefully, and if an alternative could be arranged I think it should be arranged- 
I have no objection—under the special circumstances you can do anything, but-"

Mr. Winch: May I ask, Mr. Chairman, if Mr. Thomas is serious when he 
mentions the postal employees? I made a study of the postal employees in tn 
City of Vancouver and I had an enquiry sent to every employee employed in 
the B.C. penitentiary. The answer was that approximately sixty per cent—-m3, 
is, the actual employee himself and his wife—were having to work on account ° 
their economic situation. They had to have two jobs in order to have a dece 
standard of living.

The Chairman: May I answer Mr.Winch? This is not in a federal govein 
ment office. They did their work in some other place of business.

Mr. Winch: But you referred to moonlighting, and having a second j°k lS 
certainly moonlighting.

The Chairman: Well, I agree with you.
Mr. Winch: This is not. It is only in the process of their actual job that the^ 

can give extra service to people coming in. I think it is a good idea.
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Winch, could I ask if you have any objection to & 

federal government—in this case, Customs and Excise—receiving the ®° 
direct from B.C. and then looking after this?

Mr. Winch: Oh, no. It is the service that I want maintained.
Mr. Henderson: Yes; keep the service up but let the province of Brl 

Columbia pay the federal government, and, in return, leave it up f° 
administration of Customs and Excise to square things with their inspectors 
the extent they wish to reward good employees for extra service.

fish
the

to
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Mr. Winch: I want to make that clear sir. It is a service, and I will just 
add one word about why that is important. The customs office, shall we say, at a 
Port of entry—the entire tourist service is open twenty-four hours a day. Ten or 
fifteen miles miles away you could get it from a hardware store. They are open 
from nine o’clock in the morning till five or six at night. The tourist is coming 
in and he is stuck for a balance of time, where as under this system he can pay 
immediately as he comes in, and head for where he is going.

Mr. Henderson: I take it that you do agree that commissions like this should 
be paid to the Crown and not to the individual civil servant.

Mr. Winch: I have no objection to that. It is the maintenance of the service 
by these people that is of importance.

The Chairman: All right. We have had a good airing on this.
Mr. Noble, do you have another question?
Mr. Noble: I would like to ask if extra employees are needed to provide 

this service?
Mr. Langford: No, sir. The issuance of these permits is done at the time of 

the examination of the vehicle and fishing gear or the shooting gear carried by 
the tourist. The officer who examines these goods—and he may have to give 
customs permits for it, in addition—would issue the permit at the same time.

The Chairman: Number ninety-six.
Mr. Henderson: 96. Customs and Excise laboratory. The primary function 

°f the laboratory is to identify and classify by chemical or physical means 
various materials described in the Customs Tariff, the Excise Act and other Acts 
°f Parliament administered by the Department of National Revenue and to 
advise departmental officials on the drafting and enforcement of regulations 
where chemical or related scientific information is involved.

In 1964-65 the laboratory incurred costs of approximately $120,000 in 
ahalyzing some 9,700 samples of which more than 6,000 came from the Customs 
appraisers Branch. This number, however, does not include opinions given 
Verbally because of the need for quick decisions.

A number of the cases involved appeals against assessments of duties but in 
sUch cases the Department does not follow the usual practice of requiring that 

appeal be accompanied by a deposit, to be returned if the appeal is sustained, 
^ther cases for which no charge is made originate in requests from importers or 
^Porters through the Customs Appraisers Branch, a number of which result in 
^rect benefit to the importers or exporters.

Consideration should be given to the institution of appeal fees and to the 
^option of a tariff of fees to be charged for professional services rendered to 
■hiporters and exporters.

On this case the views of the witnesses on the possibility of fees being 
charged for these services would doubtless be of interest to the Committee. We 
^ake the proposition that this seems to be a case where consideration should 
.6 given to the institution of appeal fees and to the adoption of a tariff of fees 
0 be charged for these services rendered to importers and exporters.

I would like to know if this commends itself to the Committee.
Mr. Labarge: I think that we should get into perspective the prime purpose
the very reason for—the existence of this lab, which is for the Department’s

24573—21
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use. Whether the work is done directly at the request of the Department, or as 
the result of somebody’s submitting a case in appeal, the lab costs are still in the 
interests of the Department primarily since it is the appraiser’s job to deter­
mine; and no matter what we tell the other person as a result of the lab test, if 
we tell them it is such-and-such tariff item and falls under such-and-such 
category of goods, we are doing that as part of our job and responsibility. If he 
wanted to he would just send in the goods, and let us get the samples ourselves.

The Chairman: I think the Committee agree with that principle, but I 
think the question is: why have your own laboratory, and, secondly, this costs 
the taxpayers money and why is there not a charge made?

I would add one other question: Why could you not have this work done by 
one other department of government? I am thinking of inspection services, for 
instance, here in Ottawa.

Mr. Labarge: I think I will let Mr. Hind or Mr. Langford speak on this.
The Chairman: Mr. Langford, we have stated those three questions. Keep 

it straightforward. First, why have your own lab, when there are other lab5 
available in Ottawa.

Mr. Langford: I think the obvious reason for this is the convenience that it 
provides us in dealing with the samples of goods that are sent in for laboratory 
analysis with a view to tariff classification.

The Chairman: Where is your lab?
Mr. Langford: It is in the building adjoining the Connaught Building °n 

Sussex Street, just a stone’s throw away.
These technicians and chemists are a little more than merely chemists- 

They are people who have a pretty fair knowledge of the customs tariff and the 
ramifications of it. All of their analyses work is done in the full light of the 
tariff and in view of the needs of the appraisers’ branch, particularly in our 
Department.

I think it would create delays, and it would probably generate any number 
of questions—any number of working problems—if this laboratory were under 
someone else’s jurisdiction than our own.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, may I ask Mr. Langford: Do not America11 
exporters use the lab to test potential imports into Canada?

Mr. Langford: Mr. Hind can corroborate this, I think, that we do give thlS
sort of service to potential importers into Canada, because again, as Mr-
Labarge has correctly pointed out, this is by way of assisting us in our oW 
work. We have ultimately to classify these goods if they are going to b 
imported, and it follows that anything we can do to facilitate the determinati0 
of the tariff classification we should feel prepared to do. If this involve 
examination of a specimen or a sample of the goods that are to be imported 
feel that this is all in the interests of carrying out the work for which we ar 
being paid.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, we thought it a useful question to ral 
because, as you know, the Royal Commission on Government Organization m ^ 
“Make on Buy” volume advocated that all these cases might be examined wi 
view to charging fees for any public service which is a viable proposition.
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It interested me because the Department only recently, I believe, or a year 
or so ago started to charge distillers for the “strip” stamps which you supply; is 
that not a fact? You used to give them to them for nothing but now you charge 
for them. So they are collecting revenue from these stamps that go over the top 
of the bottles and that was a very useful exercise in the interests of increasing 
revenue, and, by the same token, this seemed to commend itself—

• (5.00 p.m.)
Mr. Flemming : That was not necessary. We had a monopoly on that 

business.
Mr. Ballard: I would like to follow the line of discussion on the original 

sampling, I guess you would call it. In the case of an appeal would there have 
been an initial sample and testing made?

Mr. Langford: There could have been, but not necessarily. The initial 
sample might follow together with the appeal at the time the appeal is made.

Mr. Ballard: How arbitrary is that?
Mr. Langford: A classification could have been made without a sample and 

then later the sample is submitted in connection with the appeal.
Mr. Ballard: Would there be any merit in charging a fee for the use of the 

tab in cases of appeal only?
Mr. Langford: We must remember that the appeal process is there for 

importers by matter of right under the law, and there is no provision in the law 
the assessment of a charge for the examination of any goods, or the analysis 

°f any goods that may arise out of the determination of the classification of 
these goods.

Mr. Ballard: Could you also give me an example of a case where the rate 
°f import duties would change as a rsult of the composition that you would 
Pick up in your lab?

Mr. Langford: I would ask Mr. Hind to reply to that.
Mr. Hind: We have a great many items in our tariff, particularly chemical 

ltems, where the rate of duty will be dependent upon the chemical composition 
the goods involved. It therefore becomes necessary for us to utilize the 

services of the laboratory to enable us to determine which particular item is the 
i)r°per one in that instance.

Mr. Ballard: In the case of patent medicines, and that sort of thing?
Mr. Hind: Not only that sir, but we have to determine, for example, 

Whether a given commodity is a single chemical substance or is a composition 
P^ade up of more than one substance.

We need the services of the lab to determine this for us. If it is a single 
hemical substance it could take one rate of duty; if it is a composite of several 
Pbstances then it would take a different rate of duty.

ç, Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, if I might just tell the members of the 
^0tnmittee, I have here a circular dated April 28, 1966, from the Treasury 
,,0ard to all departments. They touch on this very problem, and I might read 
, eir directive to all of the deputy heads. It is under the heading of 
Responsibility for Non-Tax Revenue”, and I quote:
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It should be departmental policy, wherever economically and ad­
ministratively feasible, to charge for all goods supplied or services 
rendered to the public, including those now supplied free, unless there 
are provisions for specific exemption.

I thought the Members would like to know of that recent promulgation.
The Chairman: I am afraid I am not convinced in my own mind that you 

need your own lab. I think—and I am expressing my own opinion and not 
that of the Committee—that there must be other labs available in Ottawa 
which could give you the same information that you require, without this 
duplication and overlapping of another lab. This is my own opinion, I may be 
wrong.

Mr. Ballard: I would like to put forward just the opposite opinion. I think 
that the lab is not being used for the public good; it is being used for the 
Department; and I think, therefore, that there should be no charge.

The Chairman: There is no reason why the taxpayer’s dollar should be 
used to set up another lab when there is a lab already in existence, which can 
perform the duties that this one is supposed to perform. That is my view.

Mr. Ballard: I would like to record the opposite view.
The Chairman: I think this matter of charging for professional services 

should be given consideration and the Committee can decide later on.
Mr. Labarge: I would just like to record that there was a time when we 

did not have a lab and there has been a time when the lab was over at National 
Research and we brought the lab back because the others were not practical 
in terms of service to the public, nor to ourselves.

I think there is a management decision there, on the value of sending 
these things out to where we have people into whose hands we can put the 
thing and say, “we want to know whether it is this, that or that, because these 
are the three categories they can come into.” This immediately eliminates a 
thousand and one analyses before the spectroscope and every other sort of 
thing. You come to the point, you get the job done, you send out a letter and 
you give service. The importation comes in, and the business is done li^6 
business.

The Chairman: How long have you had this lab, Mr. Labarge, on y°UI 
own premises?

Mr. Labarge: We have had it certainly over twenty years, as far as I aIfl 
concerned, or twenty-five years. There was a period of about five years whe» 
I believe it was at National Research, and there was a period when we did no 
have it. What was that period?

Mr. Bennett: Mr. Labarge, as I recall—and I am saying this, Mr. Chah' 
man, purely from memory—I think there were three to five years when this 
lab was under another authority, and it was at the request of the other author' 
ity that we took it back.

There was a good management reason, too, Mr. Chairman, for this. Thh 
lab does a special type of chemical analysis in accordance with the custody 
tariff. It is not a straight chemical analysis lab as you might find in a genera 
laboratory, or meet in some of the other general laboratories in Otta^
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They found that this was not a popular pocket of work, in the professional 
sense, within the greater laboratory context. It is a very special type of lab.

I think I can record that in the American scene it is also a very special 
lab, and they have always kept their customs chemical labs in the sense in 
Which they look after the tariff classification.

They do not do a complete analysis of everything. They analyze for the 
Purpose of the tariff. It is a special job, sir.

The Chairman: Mr. Thomas, did you have a question?
Mr. Thomas (.Middlesex West) : I have a question for Mr. Henderson, Mr. 

Chairman. Did he intend to raise in this report the economic usefulness of the 
lab, or was it just a question of whether charges should, or should not, be 
made?

Mr. Henderson: No; I am not raising the economic usefulness of the lab. It 
Is a lab which, within my knowledge, is much appreciated by exporters to 
Canada. The service is good and is very helpful to them.

We took a look at their costs and as I mentioned, under the heading of the 
Classco Commission’s recommendation, it is a worthy question, even as the 
Treasury Board itself has raised in this circular just last month.

I think the exchange of views here before the Committee and what the 
Departmental witnesses have had to say are very useful.

I suppose it is one of those things that the Committee will want to weigh up 
and decide whether there is a basis for recommending that something be done 
about this or not.

I take it that the Department has pretty well made up its mind that there is 
110 basis on which a fee could be charged. I take it that is your position?

Mr. Labarge: We do not think it is fair, when we are the principal users, 
and where there is a secondary user who turns out to be working in our 
interests by asking for a ruling.

Mr. Flemming : Mr. Chairman, I was just going to ask Mr. Labarge a 
question which he has just partially answered, and it is this: I assume you mean 
that you are user, that the government of Canada has this for its own 
convenience, very largely, and not only as the agents for importers but also for 
ibeir own definite convenience; is that right?

Mr. Labarge: Primarily, sir.
Mr. Flemming: And you feel that it would be difficult to justify a charge.
I think, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Labarge’s explanation is very good. I can 

See people importing something that is very important to them and where it is 
important to have genuinely quick service. They need something of this nature 
^here they can give it special attention. I know this Department does give 
kings special attention in times of need.

It seems to me that Mr. Labarge’s explanation in connection with this, of 
, e desire to co-operate with the general business of the country who have to 
iiUport something, has a good deal of merit.

The Chairman: All right. Mr. Long have you anything you want to say on 
ais matter?
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Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that the discussion so far has more 
or less assumed that whenever there is a test in the lab there is an importation.

It seems to me that there could be a potential exporter in the United States 
who just wants to find out what it would cost him to lay something down in 
Canada. I do not know why he should not be prepared to pay to find that out, 
rather than get a free service from Canadian customs. It could result, I would 
think, in no importation whatever.

Mr. Flemming: Mr. Chairman, I thought that it was done only when there 
was a genuine importation.

Mr. Labarge: Certainly, we do this to find out what the rate of duty is, and 
sometimes it becomes discouraging for the importer, and, therefore, discourag­
ing for the exporter.

We are talking about the number of ones that come in from the United 
States. I do not know but it seems to me that the amount of those would not be 
worth the cost of writing and distributing a regulation on fees.

Mr. Long: I have here an example of a letter coming in to the Department. 
“We would appreciate your replying by collect wire as to the proper tariff 
classification as importation of these oil trading chemicals is pending the ruling 
of same.”

Mr. Flemming: What is the co-operation of business?
The Chairman : I suppose there is the odd case where it could be conceiva­

ble that an exporter had some free chemical analysis given to him, but it might 
be in the minority.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, could I ask one question. Is there not business 
coming in to keep these facilities occupied, or is it just a part-time business, or 
what does it amount to anyway?

Mr. Labarge: This is a full-time lab, sir, and the staff is according to the 
business.

The Chairman: Roughly ten thousand samples, it says here. Are there any 
further questions? Number ninety-seven.

97. Part-time Customs and Excise Enforcement Officer. A Customs anC* 
Excise officer is usually a full-time employee of the Customs and Exci-56 
Division of the Department of National Revenue and his duties include the 
enforcement of the provisions of the various Acts administered by the Division.

At one small port on the border the sole representative of the Department 
is a Customs and Excise Enforcement officer who is employed on a part-tinie 
basis. This officer has extensive business interests in the area mostly catering to 
the travelling public. A departmental investigation based on complaints result6 
in this officer being severely reprimanded by the Department for failure to 
properly enforce the provisions of the Customs Act. There has been a notable 
improvement in the officer’s work, the files indicating an increase in the revenu6 
collections at this small port and in the issue of tourist exemptions, temporal 
admissions and automobile and pleasure craft permits. Increases have also takeo 
place in the number of general receipts issued covering abandonment 0 
alcoholic beverages and cigarettes.
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In our view there is a conflict of interest in this situation and as the 
importance of a border crossing point is not necessarily measured by the 
volume of traffic passing through it, it would be preferable were the interests of 
the Department looked after by a full-time customs officer who has no business 
interests of the Department looked after by a full-time customs officer who has 
no business interests in the area being served.

Mr. Henderson: Before speaking on this item, Mr. Chairman, may I ask Mr. 
Labarge if the man referred to in this paragraph is still in charge of this 
Sub-customs office?

Mr. Labarge : The answer is yes.
Mr. Henderson: I should tell the Committee that this sub-customs office, 

located on the Canada-United States border, for the past thirty years has been 
in full charge of a customs and excise enforcement officer whose salary at the 
Present time is $2,832 per annum because his services are required only on a 
Port-time basis. This officer succeeded his father who was superannuated about 
thirty years ago.

The officer with his family operate several businesses catering to the tourist 
trade. They own property on both sides of the border, including the Canadian 
Immigration Building. In the absence of the officer, members of his family act 
as Customs Officers.

Early in 1964, the R.C.M.P. carried out a search of premises occupied by 
Hiembers of his family, and the report includes the following information:

An outboard motorboat belonging to the brother of the officer was 
placed under customs detention as it had not been formally entered into 
Canada. An aluminum extension ladder was seized. The officer first 
claimed that this ladder had been bought in a Canadian hardware store 
but he later admitted, when a covering invoice was found, that it 
originated in the United States and that the ladder had been brought into 
Canada without the payment of duty and taxes.

Bait which is subject to duty at seventeen and a half percent had for 
at least for thirty years been transported across the border without 
formal customs entry. Large amounts of correspondence were being 
received by the officer’s family at a nearby United States post office, some 
of which was from mail order houses in different parts of the United 
States. This created the suspicion that goods ordered from these compa­
nies were being illegally entered but no actual proof of this was found. 
Finally, numerous receipts were found covering purchases by members 
of the family in the United States, and in this connection the reporting 
officer stated, and I quote: “I am quite certain that the records we now 
hold are no indication of the actual amount of goods brought into Canada 
by this family without being declared.”

The R.C.M.P. recommended that the officer and his brother be 
charged under the Customs Act. In June 1964, the officer was severely 
reprimanded by the Department for laxity in the application of the 
Customs and Excise Regulations, and a departmental report at that time 
stated and I quote: “The situation as it exists is not entirely satisfactory 
from the standpoint of customs and excise enforcement.”
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In July 1965, we asked if the Department planned to take any 
further remedial action. The Department conducted a further investiga­
tion, and on October 22, 1965 they advised us as follows: “I am pleased to 
advise you that the results of a recent investigation by our inspection 
branch indicated Mr. X has demonstrated a definite improvement in the 
discharge of his duties, and we shall continue to keep these operations 
under close scrutiny.

Accordingly, I do not propose taking any further action at this time.
Mr. Chairman, I have given these circumstances in some detail because the 

situations we always recommend—and I believe any Auditor would recommend 
trust, improperly uses his employers’ funds for his own purpose. In such 
situations we always recommend—and I believe in Auditor would recommend- 
—that if the person is not to be discharged he should at least be transferred t° 
work where he has no opportunity for further manipulation. In cases where this 
advice has not been followed, it has been our experience that a recurrence of the 
manipulations has invariably occurred.

The Chairman: Mr. Labarge, I think the Committee would like to kno'V 
why this man was not discharged, in view of the evidence presented.

Mr. Lefebvre: Where is this place?
The Chairman: Yes; and the location.
Mr. Labarge: It is Wolfe Island in the St. Lawrence.

entI myself have asked this question and have obtained, as of very rece 
times, an expose of some real outstanding difficulties, the solution of whic 
might again, at a future rate, re-appear in the Auditor General’s report vvi ^ 
the question : “Why did you buy this property, establish it there, and now sell 
at such a reduced price?”

This is a hereditary position, as far as I can find out, based on the fact tn 
the land where the ferry calls is completely owned by one family. There is ^ 
possibility of occupying that land, putting a building on it, or even a wharf, ^ 
far as I can get from our officers. To put a customs officer there in residence, 
will have to come from somewhere else.

If you move up to the other end, some distance off, the man continues to
j-x jr vet mu vc U.JL» uv liic v Li id cuu, ùuiuc u.io tanuc wax, une man w-ix v*»— , l

operate his ferry there unless you build a wharf at public expense and m 
that the ferry come up in that direction. ^

I have not yet explored the possibilities of expropriation of some of his ^ 
for this purpose—I do not know—but it is the extreme to which one would ha
t0 g0' T haVe

The other possibility is to put a fence around his 300 or 600 acres—i rg 
forgotten what—with only one “sortie” out of it, and put a customs officer th ^ 
It means that one has to get a residence, I am sure, for a person off the is^a°or 
and go into the possibility of this creation of a wharf somewhere e^se’oUr 
expropriation of the land, etc. This is something to which we are giving 
attention now.

Mr. Flemming: Is there much traffic? 
Mr. Labarge: There is not much traffic.
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The Chairman: This is a case where an individual has the Crown by the 
hair where it is short! I think Mr. Flemming’s question hit the nail on the 
head. Why not close it up altogether? Is it necessary to have this port?

Mr. Labarge : I do not think you can close it. We do not open ports actually. 
We go to where the traffic really is. You can close it off on the highway, but 
here you have a communication between an island of Canadians and one 
operator of a ferry. If you close that off and suggest they swim over, it is not 
S°ing to be popular.

The Chairman: May I ask, Mr. Labarge, on what authority the ferry 
operates? Does he require a licence from the province?

Mr. Labarge: Public Works.
The Chairman: From the federal Department of Public Works.
Could an arrangement not be reached with them?
Mr. Labarge: To cancel that?
The Chairman: In the national interest?
Mr. Labarge: This might be another alternative. But who would set up 

Another ferry? It might mean that the Canadian government would have to 
ouild a bridge, or run a ferry service itself.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West)): I know we have a good many thousand 
^Piles of boundary line between Canada and the United States, with at least a 
housand miles of it across the prairies where one can cross almost anywhere.

is it possible to control customs which is your only concern? How do you 
c°ntrol customs across that thousand miles of prairie boundary?
w Mr. Labarge : Back of the border there is a service operated by the 
^•C.M.P., and any person who has cut across, or taken a shortcut, is fined; and if 
116 has goods he is subject to terrific penalties.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Could not a customs house be set up or 
. °wn the river bank, a short distance from this island and the same law 
Pivoked with this particular operator, that he has to go through the customs 
^°rt of entry, or something like that?

Mr. Labarge: The difference is that you have an island out in the St. 
■Lawrence and there is a stretch on one side of the island from that Canadian 
s*aPd to the American side. You have this big no man’s land in which a lot of 
anadians are living, not just the people who come through.

What you are suggesting, in fact, is that every Canadian moving to another 
p°int in Canada be examined.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): What would be the dollar value at this 
Port?

Mr. Labarge: Mr. Langford, do you have any figures?
Mr. Langford: The dollar value is very low. We have a record here of what
call “small collections entries” for 1961-62 up to 1963-64, and they range 

etWeen $200 and $300.
This should not be taken as an indication that there is no business at this 

P°'Pt because there is important customs business in that we have a constant flow
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of United States tourists and users of pleasure craft and so on coming in to this 
point. If we were to decide to close up the office it would mean a great 
inconvenience to a number of these people.

Mr. Lefebvre: How do the Americans handle it on their side at this point?
Mr. Langford: My understanding is that this point is manned by a 

full-time officer at Cape Vincent; but I am not absolutely sure of this.
Mr. Lefebvre : For the same amount of business?
Mr. Langford: Well, it would be, roughly, because it is dependent largely 

on the ferry trips themselves, you see.
Mr. Lefebvre: Perhaps that is our solution.
The Chairman: No doubt the Department are keeping an eagle eye on this 

port.
Mr. Langford: Yes, sir. We are watching it very closely.
The Chairman: Now, gentlemen, we want to finish with National Revenue- 

We have only five points and we will go through them very, very quickly. I alT1 
sure you will be out of here in ten minutes—maybe fifteen at the most.

98. Sight entries. In certain cases when, due to lack of information °* 
documentation, it is not possible to prepare final customs entries covering 
imported goods at the time of their release from Customs, the collector 
accept what is known as a “sight entry” accompanied by a deposit of a surn 
money sufficient, in the judgment of the customs officer, to pay the duties. T 
importer is subsequently required to complete a “perfecting entry” within 
time limit set by the collector. This procedure is provided for by sections 24 an 
25 of the Customs Act, R.S., c. 58:

24. (1) If the importer of any goods, or the person authorized 
make the declaration required with regard to such goods, makes a 
subscribes a declaration before the collector or other proper officer, that 
cannot, for want of full information, make perfect entry thereof, a 
takes the oath in such cases provided, then the collector or officer m ^
cause such goods to be landed on a bill of sight for the packages beparcels thereof, by the best description that can be given, and to 
seen and examined by such person and at his expense, in the presence 0 
the collector or other proper officer, or of such other officer as 1 
appointed by the said collector or other proper officer, and to be deliver2 3 * * 6 
to such person, on his depositing in the hands of the collector or officer 3 
sum of money sufficient in the judgment of the collector or officer to Pajl 
the duties thereon.

(2) If the importer does not complete a perfect entry within the tin1® 
appointed by the collector, the money so deposited shall be taken an, 
held as duty accruing on such goods, and shall be dealt with a° 
accounted for accordingly.

(3) In all cases where such goods are purchased or consigned
sufficient invoice therefor as provided in section 26, shall be produc6
within the said time appointed by the collector, and in default thereof th
importer is liable to a penalty equal to the amount so deposited with t1 

collector recoverable in any court of competent jurisdiction.
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25. Such sight entry may be made as aforesaid and the goods may be 
delivered, if such importer or person as aforesaid makes oath or affirms 
that the invoice has not been and cannot be produced, and pays to the 
collector or proper officer aforesaid a sum of money sufficient in the judg­
ment of such collector or officer to pay the duties on such goods; and such 
sum shall then be held as duties.

The Act requires that when a perfect entry is not completed within the 
time set by the collector, the deposit shall be accounted for as duty accruing on 
the goods. In our opinion this precludes any amendment of the time set by the 
collector after the time has expired.

In practice, extensions beyond the period approved by the collector are 
°ften granted even without a request from the importer and refunds of deposits 
°r parts of deposits are made by the collector after expiry of the time limit. 
Penalties are rarely assessed against importers when documents are not pro­
duced in order to perfect the entry.

We are of the opinion that refunds after expiry of the time limit are illegal 
aud failure to assess penalty when an entry is not perfected may result in loss 
°f revenue as it is generally accepted that in such cases the deposit based on the 
°riginal appraiser’s estimate of the duties was insufficient to cover the duties.

Mr. Henderson: In our opinion, refunds of duty after expiry of the time 
hmit are illegal, and failure to assess penalties when an entry is not perfected 
Can result in loss of revenue.

Perhaps the witnesses would care to speak to that.
The Chairman: Mr. Hind, very briefly.
Mr. Hind: Sight entries are used where an importer does not have proper 

documentation available to effect the perfect entry of goods at customs.
In such circumstances, the procedure is established whereby the importer is 

Remitted to take delivery of the goods by depositing a sum of money sufficient 
0 Pay the duties thereon. In the absence of customs invoices, the importer 

Subscribes to a declaration on the sight entry to the effect that he cannot, for 
y'dut of full information, make a perfect entry. In general, information con­
tai:
in

Ued in commercial invoices, purchase orders or similar documents is utilized 
, Preparing the sight entry. A physical examination of the goods is also made 
y a customs officer.

Before delivery of the goods may be made, the customs appraiser or officer 
Solved is required to establish the amount of the deposit. The sum must be 
Efficient, in the officer’s judgment, to protect the revenue. At the same time a 
ate by which the entry must be perfected is appointed. In this regard, collectors 

authorize periods up to six months. Upon submission of proper customs 
|avoices within the appointed time, a perfect entry is presented. Any change in 

amount of duty is accounted for in the perfect entry, with adjustment made 
Necessary and the case is closed.

t Where an entry is not perfected within the time appointed, collectors are 
Squired to report the facts to headquarters. A complete review of the case is 
ep made by a dominion customs appraiser to ensure that when determining 
6 amount of the sight entry the port officer used the proper tariff, the correct
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rate of duty, and an acceptable value. If the deposit is considered sufficient and 
no further action is deemed necessary, the collector is authorized to permit the 
sight entry to stand.

The Auditor General’s report touches upon the matter of extensions of time 
for perfecting entries beyond the period by the collector. As indicated above, 
collectors are required to report the fact to the Department when an entry is 
not perfected.

Extensions have been granted where the circumstances have warranted 
such action. In some instances, foreign exporters, due to lack of experience m 
shipping to Canada, or because of language difficulties, do not supply proper 
invoices. In other cases, exporters are indifferent, or are negligent. This makes 
it difficult for the importer to obtain proper documents. Each case is dealt with 
on its own merits, bearing in mind the many contingencies which may arise- 
Where the delay is beyond the control of the importer, extensions in the time 
period for perfecting entries are regarded as appropriate.

In paragraph 2 of the Auditor General’s report it is contended that there 
should be no extension allowed for after the time period set by the collector has 
expired. In actual fact, there have been few such instances. However, with 
regard to the principle involved, the Department of Justice has been consulted 
and has expressed the opinion that the Deputy Minister of National Revenue 
can indeed authorize extensions either before the expiration of the time limit, or 
after its expiration.

The report states in Paragraph 3 that “In practice, extensions beyond the 
period approved by the collector are often granted even without a request fr0/11 
the importer, and refunds of deposits, or parts of deposits, are made by th 
collector after expiry of the time limit.” The main point involved in tm 
statement has already been explained. The new feature relates to the granting 
of an extension “without a request from the importer”. As already indicate < 
the Department of Justice considers that the Deputy Minister may author^ 
extensions. Whether these extensions are made at the request of the importer o 
not, does not seem to be material. However, it is understood that cases of th 
kind do not arise very often.

An example which might be cited involves the non-commercial imP01"^ 
making casual purchases, who is not familiar with customs procedure. In ^ 
second sentence in paragraph 3 the report states: “Penalties are rarely asseSS^e 
against the importer when documents are not produced in order to perfect 
entry.”

The Chairman: Mr. Hind, have you much more there?
Mr. Hind: No, I have not.
The Chairman: All right.
Mr. Hind: First of all, it should be stated that the Department of Justice & 

of the view that the penalty feature in section 24(3) of the Customs Act is ^ 
mandatory. While it has not been possible to ascertain from our files the f°rI^e 
reason for non-assessment of extra penalty, it should be remembered that 
deposit that it collected on the sight entry is in the nature of a penalty. t

Then, too, it may have been reasoned that in many instances the a®°u 
involved would not warrant legal action.
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The first part of Paragraph 4 states: “We are of the opinion that refunds 
after expiry of the time limit are illegal.” It is assumed that the author of the 
Report had in mind cases where extensions had been granted. If this is so, the 
Department has difficulty in accepting this position for, as previously men­
tioned, in the opinion of Justice the Deputy Minister has the right to authorize 
axtensions, both before and after the expiry of the original time limit.

The Chairman: Mr. Long, do you want to bring that into perspective in a 
few words?

Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, as far as I am aware we did not see in the 
Department’s files anything from Justice on this point. We were going by the 
Act which we quote—Section 24(2) of which I would draw the Members 
attention: “If the importer does not complete a perfect entry within the time 
appointed by the collector, the money so deposited shall be taken and held as 
duty accruing on such goods, and shall be dealt with and accounted for 
accordingly.” Our interpretation of that is that the collector sets the time, and 
as long as it is re-set within the time originally set, the time given to complete 
the entry has not expired.

Once it has expired it seems to us that the Act is quite clear. You take the 
deposit and that is it.

However, without seeing the opinion of Justice I cannot say any more
about it.

Mr. Lefebvre: Did you not receive any opinion from your advisors in that 
Aspect?

Mr. Long: We did not in this case.
The Chairman: Number ninety-nine, I think, we can take as having been 

dealt with, because the Department has informed the Auditor General that the 
regulations and procedures respecting customs bonded warehouses are under 
rsview and steps are being taken.

99. Bonded warehouses. The trend in the Customs and Excise Division of 
fhe Department of National Revenue is to effect speedier release of goods to 
lhiporters by deferring payment of duties at time of entry. Similarly, the 
requirement that a customs officer be present whenever goods are being released 
fr°m a bonded warehouse has been dispensed with by eliminating the dual lock 
Procedure, as recommended by the Royal Commission on Government Or­
ganization. These concessions benefit the importers but also involve a calculated 
risk in the collection of the revenue.

When the customs surcharge was imposed in 1962, a number of importers 
^ade use of bonded warehouses in order to delay payment of customs duty in 
be hope that by the time the goods were actually required, the surcharge might 
ave been removed. This increased use of such facilities inevitably involved the 

UePartment in additional supervision costs. It is not uncommon for goods to 
rehiain, with the approval of the Governor in Council, in customs bonded 
Warehouses for periods in excess of five years.
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In these days of rapid communication and transportation the need for 
bonded warehouses may not be as great as it once was. We asked the 
Department whether any consideration had been given to amending the Cus­
toms Act in order to eliminate customs bonded warehouses for storage of 
imported goods for lengthy periods of time without payment of duty and if ^ 
was in a position to establish whether the licence and special service fees 
collected from proprietors of warehouses were sufficient to meet the departmen­
tal costs of supervising and controlling these warehouses.

The Department was of the opinion that elimination of bonded warehouses 
could restrict current trade practices and large volume buying by importers. K 
also pointed out that the bonding of warehouse establishments allows an 
individual to operate a bonded warehouse in conjunction with a retail sales 
outlet permitting duty free merchandise to be sold for export.

The Department informed us that the regulations and procedures respect­
ing customs bonded warehouses are under review and that it proposed t0 
conduct an administrative cost analysis of warehousing operations in order to 
establish a new scale of licensing fees.

Mr. Henderson: I wonder if we might ask the Department, Mr. Chairman» 
if they have done anything further about this yet? Is it still under review, °r 
has the review been completed, or if not, when will it be completed?

Mr. Howell: You are referring now to what you mention in your Report• 
It is now in process; it is not really completed yet.

Mr. Henderson: We will be following that up, Mr. Chairman, and we wü1 
deal with it next year.

Mr. Howell: You are dealing, I assume, Mr. Henderson, with the chargeS 
in connection with warehouses and not with the need for warehouses?

Mr. Henderson: No. You said: “The regulations and procedures respectif 
customs bonded warehouses are under review and it is proposed to conduct an 
administrative cost analysis of warehousing operations in order to review the 
licensing fees”.

Mr. Howell: That is right. We are looking into this. But we are not lookin 
into the possibility of eliminating warehouses. That was my point, as y° 
suggested.

Mr. Henderson: You are doing what is stated in the last paragraph? 

Mr. Howell: That is right.

The Chairman: Number one hundred.
100. Possible loss of excise tax. The excise tax on automobiles was repea ^ 

on June 21, 1961 and tax paid on automobiles in dealers’ stocks on that day j 
refunded. In the fall of 1963 the accounting transactions of one dealer who ^ 
received a refund of tax amounting to $16,700 figured rather prominently 111
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court case in which it was disclosed that he had been in the habit of overstating 
car inventories in order to deceive the car manufacturer who financed the 
inventories.

Payment of the refund claim by the Department was based solely on 
figures supplied by the manufacturer and certified by the car dealer in question.

Although the Department took no action at the time these disclosures 
became public knowledge, it did review the file at our request during the year 
and came to the conclusion that there is a possibility that fifteen vehicles on 
Vffiich excise tax of $2,375 had been refunded were not actually in the inventory 
°n June 21, 1961, having been disposed of prior to that date. The Department 
explained that it would now be extremely difficult to establish definitely what 
vehicles were actually on hand on June 21, 1961 because the departmental 
°fficer who approved the claim is now deceased, the claimant’s franchise 
agreement with the automobile manufacturer has been cancelled, the records of 
the claimant, now in bankruptcy, are not readily available and, furthermore, 
are not considered accurate. No attempt has been made to effect recovery.

Mr. Henderson: This case was the Brockville automobile dealer’s case 
Vffiich received widespread publicity some years ago. It may interest the 
^embers to see how the ramifications of this spread into the Department of 
National Revenue and wound up in my Report.

Mr. Lefebvre: In view of what is stated in the last paragraph of number 
I cannot see what we can do by discussing this any further.

Mr. Henderson: Oh, no; it is closed, but it is a loss which I felt it was my 
huty to report, Mr. Lefebvre. That is the reason.

The Chairman: I would think, so that this would not happen again, that the 
apartment of National Revenue should, when they knew there was a court 
Case on this matter, have acted to get in on the situation sooner than they did. I 
*hink that is the moral in this, Mr. Labarge?

Mr. Labarge: There is nothing better than being sued when you have a 
pr°blem like this.

The Chairman: All right. We have one more now.

Mr. Henderson: We go now to page 115, paragraph 169, and here are set 
^°Wn the accounts receivable of the Department of National Revenue.

169. Accounts receivable—Department of National Revenue. It will be noted 
J-°hi the table in paragraph 168 that the accounts due to the Department of 

ational Revenue at the close of the year accounted for $235 million of the 
°verall total of $265 million owing to the Crown.

With the co-operation of the officials of the Customs and Excise Division
the Taxation Division of the Department of National Revenue, analyses 

Ve been prepared showing the nature and amounts of the unpaid accounts.
24573—3
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Customs and excise division—The following is a summary of the accounts 
receivable of this Division at March 31, 1965 compared with the preceding year:

Year ended March 31

1965 1964

Collectable—
Excise tax ....................................................
Customs seizures........................................
Duties and taxes on importations ..........
Investigations ..............................................
Salary overpayments ................................

.............$11,381,000

............ 531,000

............ 1,227,000
.......... 197,000

............ 2,000

$ 9,266,000 
197,000 
134,000 
22,000 

1,000

13,338,000 9,620,000

Uncollectable—
Excise tax ....................................................
Customs seizures ........................................

............ 1,022,000

............ 47,000
591,000

29,000
165,000

2,000
4,000

Duties and taxes on importations..........
Investigations ..............................................
Salary overpayments ................................
Sundry ........................................................

............ 166,000

............ 3,000

............ 4,000

1,242,000 791,000

$14,580,000 $10,411,000

In our 1964 Report we stated that the figures for that year did not include 
(a) certain sales tax assessments, (b) customs amending entries unpaid for 1®S® 
than six months, and (c) inactive accounts of the Investigations Branch. At 
March 31, 1965 these amounts have been included and account in large measure 
for the increase of $4.2 million shown in the above statement.

The Customs and Excise Division is preparing to extend the system 
accounts receivable control accounts to include all amounts receivable by the 
Department. As yet it is not possible to report upon the age of the accounts aS 
the records are maintained at the district level and the information has not been 
provided to head office. We understand that this information will be available at 
head office next year.

During the year 158 items amounting to $2,997 were written off with 
Executive approval under authority of section 23 of the Financial Administra­
tion Act.

As members know, the Department of National Revenue is divided into the 
two branches, income tax, and customs and excise division from which the 
witnesses come today. We can, therefore, only deal with the customs and excise 
division accounts receivable here.

This is the second year, I believe, in which these have been made available 
through the medium of my report. I am hoping that the Department themself5 
m due course will be the ones who will show how much is remaining unP*a 
rom their various charges, I also hope the income tax division will do likewise-

During the year the division was able to include the three classes °* 
accounts listed here and which were omitted from last year’s figures. It is als
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Planning to extend its control to include all accounts receivable by the 
Department, which we are very pleased to know.

However, we were not able to show the age of the accounts. It is quite 
important, in looking at unpaid accounts to know how old they are. Here we 
Were unable to show the age because the information was available only in the 
field offices and not in the head office. Time did not permit, before we went to 
Press, to obtain the information from the field offices, but I understand that that 
is going to be remedied this year. Am I correct in that?

Mr. Labarge: This is our objective.
Mr. Henderson: You see here set out the accounts which the Department 

considers collectable—$13 million, as compared to $9 million the year previous, 
and the majority is in excise tax. At the same time they are faced with an 
Uncollectable problem, and you see the size of that. It is interesting to see the 
total of the uncollectable in relation to the collectable.

In due course, when they find that they cannot collect they seek permission 
to write this off pursuant to Section 23 of the Financial Administration Act, and 
during the year here, as is stated, 156 items totalling around $3,000 were 
Written off.

All the rest of the accounts, Mr. Chairman, relate to the other branch of the 
department of National Revenue, which we should not discuss today with our 
Witnesses, but they will probably raise a lot of questions you may want to ask.

The Chairman: Mr. Labarge, would you yourself, or an official in the 
Pepartment, take, under the uncollectable items which this is what we are most 
interested in, the largest excise tax item that is uncollectable and give us all the 
Particulars about it—what it is, how it came about and why it is uncollectable; 
?nd take the largest one in duties and taxes on importation, and give the same 
^formation on why it is uncollectable?

Mr. Labarge: Mr. Bennett, do you have that?
Mr. Bennett: No; I have not got it in detail for the largest particular item,
Chairman, which before me here. I could not give you the detail of why it is 

^collectable without seeing the files.
The Chairman: Have you a list there of any of the uncollectable accounts?
Mr. Bennett: No; I have not a list before me here.
The Chairman: You knew this was going to be before the Committee.
Mr. Bennett: I am afraid we did not contemplate questions on it.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I wonder then if I might put a question. I 

Notice—
The Chairman: Before we leave that, will you provide the Committee with 

dat information in writing?

Mr. Bennett: As an Appendix to today’s proceedings, do you mean?
The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I was noticing in the column 1964 that the 

^collectable items amounted to $791,000. Further on in the narrative it says 
fiat during the year 156 items amounting to $2,997 were written off.
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If the items were uncollectable at the end of 1964, why was so little of it 
written off in the current year? Why was not the whole $791,000 written off?

Mr. Labarge: We must maintain these over a period of time, and keep 
trying at it. We sometimes even chase into graveyards to make sure the people 
are dead, you know, before we quit. We can only after five years in some cases, 
and ten years in others, go to council for the wiping out of them.

Mr. Ballard : Then this term “uncollectable” is really not entirely accurate, 
is it? There is the possibility of collecting some of it.

Mr. Labarge : Yes.
The Chairman: All right ; we will have that information forthcoming. Mr. 

Henderson wants to ask one question under the final item.
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, there is one outstanding point from the 

follow-up report with which Members are familiar. I think Mr. Baldwin will 
have a vivid recollection of this because it relates to Section 22 of the Financial 
Administration Act, having to do with the remission of sales tax on oleomarga- 
rine.

Our witnesses will recall that the Committee, in its fourth report, 1964, 
expressed concern at learning “. . .that the undertakings given in 1949, that the 
Government would submit to Parliament legislation designed to exempt oleo­
margarine sold in Newfoundland from federal sales tax in the same manner as 
basic food stuffs in other parts of Canada, are not being carried out. Instead the 
authority provided to the Executive by Section 22 of the Financial Admini®' 
tration Act, had been used to render a tax applicable elsewhere in Canada 
completely inoperative in one province.” The Committee went on to state that i 
did not consider that Section 22 of the Financial Administration Act should be 
used in this way.

This is one of the items in the follow-up report with respect to which there 
has been no action. It would seem to me proper to ask Mr. Labarge if he knows 
whether anything is contemplated to carry out the Committee’s directive on tms 
point.

Mr. Labarge: When there is a suitable opportunity, shall we say, this wi 
be taken care of. It falls into the area of the Excise Tax Act which is usually 
tied up with budgetary items, etc.

As you know, this varies according to the time; and I think this will be 
taken care of. I understand the terms with Newfoundland have been renewed a 
least to some extent, and this probably will bring it forward again.

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, have you any observations?
Mr. Baldwin : I wish I had remembered this at the time we were debating 

the Bill about the $8 million. I completely forgot about it.
It is always interesting to know that the Department intends that this 

done, and that Section 22 will be put to the use to which it should be put.
The Chairman : Gentlemen, in closing may I intimate that the next roee^g 

will be on Thursday, Room 208, at eleven a.m., and it will be with 
Department of National Defence. You have each been supplied with a Hst 
paragraphs.
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APPENDIX "I"
June 15th, 1966.

Alfred D. Hales, Esq., M.P.,
Chairman,
Standing Committee on Public Accounts.
Dear Mr. Hales,—

During the meeting of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts on June 
' th at which witnesses from this Department were present, a request was made 
f°r information with regard to the largest individual account categorized as 
Uncollectible as of March 31st, 1965, in the totals for excise tax and customs 
respectively. A question was also raised with respect to the purchase of two 
Crown-owned houses at Coutts, Alberta, by Customs and Excise officers.

The information requested is as follows:
(1) Uncollectible—Excise Tax—

The largest uncollectible account included in the total as shown is an 
amount of $46,961.05, which represents excise tax assessed under the 
Excise Tax Act plus penalty interest. This is a bankruptcy case which 
involved a proposal in bankruptcy dated November 17th, 1960. A claim 
was filed by the Department with the Trustee in the prescribed manner 
following an audit of the company’s records to the date of the proposal. A 
recovery of $1,000 was made from the proposal but the proposal was then 
annulled and the firm filed an authorized assignment in bankruptcy 
effective July 26th, 1961. Another audit of the company’s records to the 
date of the authorized assignment was made by the Department and a 
final claim in the amount of $46,961.05 was filed with the Trustee. The 
final statement by the Trustee in bankruptcy provided for no dividend 
for the Department and the Trustee was discharged.

In view of the fact that there is no possibility of recovery of all or 
part of this debt, it will be included in the Department’s submission to 
Treasury Board for consideration by the Standing Interdepartmental 
Committee on Uncollectible Debts during this fiscal year.
(2) Uncollectible—Duties and Taxes on Importations—

The largest individual account as of March 31st, 1965, in this 
category is one for $25,078.53. This case dates back to 1956 and results 
from an assessment of duty on textile goods, transshipped through and 
invoiced from England, which were properly dutiable under Most 
Favoured National Tariff rates rather than under British Preferential 
Tariff rates as entered. The importing company, which was without 
assets, discontinued operations early in 1959 and its charter was officially 
cancelled on April 12th, 1961. The case was submitted to Treasury Board 
for deletion in 1961 but at the meeting of the Standing Interdepartmental 
Committee on Uncollectible Debts in 1962 it was withdrawn to await the 
outcome of a U.S. Customs and Foreign Assets Control Branch investiga­
tion into the affairs of a Canadian firm of very similar name with the 
same principals. On March 3rd, 1966, this account was again submitted 
to Treasury Board for consideration by the Standing Interdepartmental
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Committee on Uncollectible Debts. The Department has not yet received 
a decision.
(3) Crown-owned Houses, Coutts, Alberta—

Consistent with Treasury Board policy as expressed in Treasury 
Board Minute 626000 of May 29th, 1964, reading in part:

“It has been noted that because of improved transportation 
facilities, employees are no longer required to live at sites where, 
many years ago, government housing was built. In such circum­
stances, these dwellings are now surplus to requirements and they 
should be disposed of since the Crown has no business in competing 
with private landlords in the rental business and the costs of 
administration and maintenance often exceed the low rentals collect­
ed”,

four houses at Coutts, Alberta, were declared surplus to Crown Assets 
Disposal Corporation after they become vacant. The Department has 
been informed that two of these houses were purchased by Customs 
officers in 1965; the other two were purchased by private individuals.

The two Customs officers concerned were appointed to the Port of 
Coutts in 1960 and had occupied other departmentally owned residences 
from 1960 to July 1965. After the houses had been declared surplus to 
Departmental requirements, Crown Assets Disposal Corporation had the 
responsibility to dispose of them and this Department had no further 
interest in their disposition.

Yours truly,
Raymond C. Labarge.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Thursday, June 9, 1966.
(19)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 11.09 a.m. this day, the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Bigg, Dionne, Flemming, 
Hales, Lebland (Laurier), Lefebvre, McLean (Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Noble, 
Thomas (Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch (14).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Mr. G. R 
Long, Assistant Auditor General; Messrs. Douglas, Hayes, Laroche and Rider of 
the Auditor General’s staff; Mr. E. B. Armstrong, Deputy Minister of National 
Defence; Brig. W. J. Lawson, Judge Advocate General; Lt. Col. England and 
Mr. Turner of the Department of National Defence; Mr. A. G. Bland, President, 
Defence Construction (1951) Limited.

The Chairman invited the Auditor General of Canada to inform the 
Committee of a correction concerning item 92 of his 1965 Report to the effect 
that no written legal opinion had been obtained with respect to sight entries. 
However, the Department of National Revenue has undertaken to obtain one for 
communication to the Committee at a later date.

The Chairman introduced the Deputy Minister of National Defence who, in 
turn, presented the members of his delegation to the Committee.

Questioning of the representatives of the Department of National Defence 
covered the following:

1964 Auditor General’s Report—
Paragraph 56—National Defence administrative regulations and practices.
Paragraph 60—Equipment disposed of in error.
Paragraph 61—Medical fees improperly retained by a Service medical 

officer.
Paragraph 62—Town of Oromocto, N.B. (This item was deferred for consid­

eration when the Department of Finance appears before the Committee.)
Paragraph 63—Military assistance to the United Nations and Indo-China 

Truce Commissions.
Paragraph 64—Pension awards at early age. (Considered together with 

Paragraph 84 of the 1965 Auditor General’s Report.)
The Committee decided that this type of information should be kept before 

it in the Auditor General’s reports until such time as the question of pensions 
has been cleared up through the Committee on the Public Service.

Paragraph 65—Discretionary awards of Service pensions (considered with 
Paragraph 85 of the 1965 Auditor General’s Report).

619
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Paragraph 66—Questionable pensionable service (also included paragraph 
86 of the 1965 Auditor General’s Report).

Paragraph 92(1)—Unpaid accounts carried forward to new fiscal year (also 
paragraph 140 of the 1965 Auditor General’s Report).

The departmental representatives were requested to provide the Committee 
with samples of such accounts for discussion at the afternoon sitting.

At 12.58 p.m., the Chairman adjourned the meeting to 3.30 p.m. this same
day.

AFTERNOON SITTING
(20)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 3.45 p.m. this day, the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Ballard, Bigg, Forbes, Hales, Leblanc (Laurier), 
Lefebvre, McLean (Charlotte), Muir (Lisgar), Stafford, Tardif, Thomas 
(Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West)—(12).

In attendance: (Same as at morning sitting).
The Deputy Minister of National Defence provided samples of accounts 

unpaid at the end of the fiscal year, as requested earlier in the day.
The Committee then turned its attention to Appendix 2—Non-productive 

payments—noted in the 1964 Auditor General’s Report. In particular:
Item 2—Expenditure on housing projects subsequently abandoned.
Item 3—Additional cost due to faulty specifications and drawings.
Item 4—Contract for magnetrons cancelled.
Item 5—Additional costs due to construction delays, Ottawa.
Item 6—Additional costs due to delays in construction of hangars at 

Greenwood, N.S. and Summerside, P.E.I.
Item 7—Additional costs resulting from construction delays, North Bay, Ont-
Item 8—Consultants’ fee in respect of abandoned work, Camp Wainwright, 

Alta.
Item 9—Cost of design of aircraft fuel storage facilities not proceeded with) 

Sydney, N.S.
The Committee thus concluded the review of the 1964 Auditor General s 

Report as it affects the Department of National Defence, with the exception 0 
items 3 and 4 of the non-productive payments.

The Clerk of the Committee was instructed to arrange for representatives 
of the Department of Defence Production to appear at the next meeting when 
the Department of National Defence returns for the 1965 Auditor Genera 
Report.

The meeting adjourned at 5.30 p.m. to the call of the Chair.

Édouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Thursday, June 9, 1966.
• (11.05 a.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, thank you for your promptness this morning 
and a full quorum. We are now ready to proceed.

If you will turn to your 1964 Auditor General’s Report, page 25—but, before 
Proceeding with paragraph 56 I am going to call on the Auditor General to 
make a correction concerning the last meeting. Mr. Henderson.

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General): At Tuesday’s meeting, Mr. 
Chairman, when we were discussing paragraph 98, having to do with “sight 
entries” in my 1965 report, Mr. A. R. Hind, the Assistant Deputy Minister of 
Customs, stated that the Department of Justice had confirmed that the proce­
dure followed by the department in granting an extension of time et cetera, 
Was in accordance with the provisions of the Customs Act.

It will be recalled that Mr. Long informed the Committee that, in our 
examination of the department’s files, we had not observed any opinion of the 
Department of Justice on file. Mr. Long stated in reply to, I think, a question 
from Mr. Leblanc, that section 24 of the Customs Act had appeared so clear to 
Us that we had not asked for an opinion on the point from our own legal 
advisors. We now find there was no written legal opinion. It appears to have 
been a verbal one given to two departmental appraisers when they visited the 
Department of Justice and discussed the audit note with its civil litigation 
section.

Mr. Labarge, the Deputy Minister, has kindly consented to secure a writ­
ten opinion from the Deputy Attorney General covering paragraph 98 and to 
furnish us with a copy.

The Chairman: We are pleased to have with us, as witnesses, this morning, 
Mr. Eldon Armstrong, Deputy Minister of National Defence. It is my pleasure to 
introduce Mr. Armstrong. I am sure the Committee is well acquainted with 
bina, as he has been here before and I would ask Mr. Armstrong if he would 
introduce his other witnesses.

Mr. E. B. Armstrong (Deputy Minister, Department of National Defence): 
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Immediately on my left is Mr. Bland, the president 
°f Defence Construction Limited and sitting to his left, Brigadier Lawson, who 
ls the Judge Advocate General, and the chairman of the Pension Board.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Armstrong.
Now, paragraph 56, Mr. Henderson:
56. National Defence administrative regulations and practices. The Public 

Accounts Committee in its Sixth Report 1964 expressed its pleasure that
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appropriate changes had been or were in the process of being made in each of 
the Armed Forces administrative regulations which had been commented on in 
our 1963 Report. The Committee requested the Auditor General to inform the 
House of Commons of any case where the changes appear to be inadequate or 
where abuse and waste of public funds develop (see Appendix 1, item 22). The 
following paragraphs give brief outlines of the matters which remained uncor­
rected during the year under review and of several similar matters coming to 
our attention during the year.

1. release from service through purchase.—In the 1963 Report (paragraph 
64 (2) ) it was noted that while the Air Force and the Navy required the 
payment of money for “other ranks” to obtain release on request, the Army had 
not done so since 1950. While the Department expected that the practice would 
be reinstituted with respect to the Army, orders giving effect to this have not 
yet been promulgated.

2. removal expenses—mobile homes.—In the 1963 Report (paragraph 
64 (3) ) it was observed that although new instructions were being issued to 
deal with the situation, it would seem appropriate that the regulations also be 
amended to include specific directions with respect to the movement of mobile 
homes and their contents. The new instructions referred to were issued in the 
fall of 1963 and the Department decided that a year’s experience would be 
required to assess their effectiveness. Based on experience gained in the trial 
period, new regulations are now being prepared.

3. excessive payments for travel on transfer—Servicemen are permitted 
by the regulations to use their personally-owned automobiles to transport 
themselves and their dependents to new places of duty and are entitled to claim 
mileage allowances to cover transportation, meals and accommodation expenses 
based on direct road mileage at various rates, formulated on the basis of a 
Service member travelling 300 miles per day. The regulations also provide 
reimbursement of the cost of meals and accommodation at destination during 
the period the serviceman is awaiting the arrival of his furniture and effects or 
while arranging permanent accommodation. In the course of audit it was noted 
that Service Orders presently permit the payment of both allowances in cases 
where moves of less than 300 miles are completed in one day. As a result, the 
entitlement for meals and accommodation is in effect duplicated and the cost 
becomes excessive. A restrictive instruction is now under consideration by the 
Department.

4. uneconomical mode of transportation—Under present regulations 
members on duty travel may at the discretion of the Commanding Officers use 
their motor cars for their own convenience. In the audit, instances were 
observed where two or more members of the same unit travelled to the same 
destination for the same purpose, each member being allowed to use his own cai 
and receive the applicable mileage allowance. For example, five Army members 
travelled singly from Calgary, Alberta, to Meaford, Ontario, and return, each 
using his motor car and claiming the mileage allowances provided for by 
the regulations. Had they travelled as a group by rail, a saving of some $4° 
would have been effected. When this matter was brought to the attention of the 
Department, instructions were issued to assist Commanding Officers to deter­
mine whether approval should be granted servicemen to use personally-owne 
motor cars for their own convenience on duty travel.
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Mr. Henderson: The Committee has already considered the nine para­
graphs shown here in my 1964 report, and I assume that members may not 
Want to dwell, at any length, on them except perhaps to ask the witnesses some 
questions. So, with your permission, I will refer briefly to each paragraph to 
remind those present about the subject matter.

Paragraph 56, in my 1964 report here, lists four matters which had 
remained uncorrected during 1963-64, and several similar matters which had 
come to our attention during that year.

As I mentioned to you on May 3 two of the four items included in this note 
have since been satisfactorily cleared up. The first is “Release from service 
through purchase” where, in April 1965, the acting chief of personnel directed 
that release by purchase be reinstituted in the Canadian army and I understand 
the practice is now uniform throughout the service.

Item No. 3 having to do with “Excessive payments for travel on transfer”; 
Under an order promulgated in December 1964, the entitlement to two allow­
ances simultaneously for meals and accommodation under the circumstances 
described in this note was removed.

This, therefore, leaves two items which, incidentally, are also dealt with 
Under the same heading in paragraph 73 of my 1965 report.

The first is item No. 2, “removal espenses—mobile homes,” with respect to 
which, I am informed, the new regulations have now been promulgated by 
Order in Council, but presumably, the witnesses will have more information, 
and Item No. 4, dealing with “uneconomical mode of transportation,” which 
does not yet appear to have been cleaned up.

The Chairman: Now, are there any questions? We will proceed to para­
graph 60. Mr. Bigg?

Mr. Bigg: I was wondering whether the regulations on moving service 
Personnel and mounted police now allow the serving member to take a cash 
grant of something like 75 per cent in lieu of the estimated cost of removal, in 
order that he can sell his household goods and make purchases at the other end.
* believe it would be a saving to both, in a great many cases. I know of a 
case—in fact several cases—where old pianos have been moved from Halifax to 
British Columbia. The piano is approximately the same value at both ends; the 
cost of transporting is, in some cases, more than the piano is worth.

The Chairman: Mr. Armstrong, would you like to make an observation?
Mr. Armstrong: Well, we have no provision of that kind in our regulations.

* do not myself recall that we have ever given it any consideration but we could 
certainly have a look at it.

Mr. Bigg: I have had this matter brought to my attention, both before 
becoming a Member and since, where both members of the armed forces and 
the R.C.M.P. would be very pleased to take, as I have said, a 75 per cent or 80 
Per cent cost of the estimated cost of moving. It would save both them and the 
government a considerable sum of money. I think, I would just say, Mr. 
Chairman, that perhaps in our report, we might give that some consideration.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Bigg, that might be a good suggestion.
60. Equipment disposed of in error. In April 1963 a unit of electronic 

aircraft navigational equipment, originally costing more than $9,000 and having
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an estimated replacement cost of $15,000, was returned for repairs to an Air 
Force supply section. Due to an error, the equipment, instead of being repaired, 
was declared as surplus to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation and was sold to 
a customer, together with other surplus materiel, at a scrap price of $20. The 
purchaser in turn sold the equipment for a nominal sum to an individual who, 
being aware of the actual value of the unit, refused to return it and be 
reasonably compensated.

A Board of Inquiry concluded that faulty procedures respecting the deter­
mination as to whether materiel should be declared surplus to Crown Assets 
Disposal Corporation contributed to the improper disposal and expressed appre­
hension that similar instances might have occurred. The Department has since 
revised its procedures.

Mr. Henderson: The case described here represented a straight mistake. I 
do not think any disciplinary action was taken by the department, which has 
since revised its procedures in order to prevent a case like this happening again- 
I do not believe it has yet been possible to secure the equipment from the 
purchaser, and it occurs to me that the equipment, might in fact, be obsolete 
today. I do not know whether the witnesses would have anything to add to that.

The Chairman: It has been more or less rectified so perhaps it would not 
occur again. So I think we could proceed.

Mr. Henderson: I do not think they got the equipment back, Mr. Chair­
man, if that is what you mean by rectification. They changed the procedures 
but I do not think the man has agreed to sell it to the department. There was 
a long delay on this.

Mr. Armstrong: If I might just comment, that is correct. We have not got 
the equipment back. As a matter of fact, as it has turned out, we have not 
bought any further equipment of this kind since this unfortunate incident 
happened. As the Auditor General surmises, there have been changes in the 
equipment and it now looks as though we will not require any more, and I do 
not think we would really be interested at this date in acquiring it back.

The Chairman: Has anybody any further questions? It says: “Due to an 
error.”

Mr. Leblanc: In the Auditor General’s report he said the department has 
now since revised its procedures so as to avoid future errors of that type. Now, 
could we have a brief summary of what the procedures are?

Mr. Henderson: Yes; I think an outline of that can be given. It is actually 
more in the realm of the relationship between the department, in reporting 
surplus requirements, and the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. Perhaps Mr- 
Armstrong or one of his associates could give the required explanation?

Mr. Armstrong: The problem that gave rise to this was shown from the 
unit as surplus; simple mechanical error. During the various steps taken in the 
department before a final declaration of surplus is made, as you will appreciate, 
there are a large number of items being declared surplus at various times, there 
was a failure to identify, through a catalogue number, precisely what this 
equipment was. It escaped the notice of those reviewing it that it was, in fact, a 
piece of equipment that should not be declared surplus. We have now intro-
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duced a checking system to ensure that items of this kind are precisely 
identified by catalogue number, and we believe they are adequate to prevent a 
future occurrence of this kind.

The Chairman: Mr. Armstrong, would the department like to get this piece 
of equipment back again?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, as I say, we would not, at the moment. We would 
have, had we been able to get it back at the time we discovered it had been 
disposed of in error, but now that a few years have elapsed, we no longer need 
it.

The Chairman: So you are satisfied to leave it in the hands of the customer 
who bought it through the Crown Assets Disposal Corporation.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I think at this point, that is probably the most 
economical thing to do.

Mr. Bigg: Well, as long as you make sure there was no collusion and that 
this was not declared in excess in order that some person connected with the 
armed forces could get this at a bargain rate for his own purposes. Was there a 
check made of that?

Mr. Armstrong: So far as we are aware, there was no collusion, and I do 
Rot think it likely there would be, because this is not a piece of equipment 
Which has any sales value in the commercial market.

The Chairman: Now, paragraph No. 61.
Mr. Henderson: I might mention, Mr. Chairman, for the information of Mr. 

Bigg, that the piece of equipment, according to our information, was offered to a 
number of prospective bidders and the Institute of Technology at Rimouski was 
the highest bidder. This was offered by Crown Assets Disposal Corporation.

Mr. Bigg: I was thinking that perhaps in terms of electronic equipment it 
nfight be done.

Mr. Henderson: Yes.
61. Medical fees improperly retained by a Service medical officer. Contrary 

to Service regulations and orders, an Air Force medical officer retained amounts 
received from the Group Surgical Medical Insurance Plan for medical treatment 
Provided to dependents of Service personnel in a Service hospital. In March 
1963 the officer was found guilty of conduct to the prejudice of good order and 
discipline and was reprimanded and fined $200, but no action was then taken to 
recover the amount improperly retained by him.

In October 1963 the officer was released from the Service at his own 
request, without restitution having been requested from him or made by him. 
In August 1964 the matter was referred to the Department of Justice which has 
demanded payment of $4,053 from the former officer.

Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 61 deals with “medical fees improperly retained 
by a service medical officer.” We discussed this case on May 3, and the facts 
Were gone over then, as several of the members here, who participated, will 
recall. Here cheques in payment of claims in respect of medical fees were made 
Payable to the air force medical officer. Although he was an employee of the 
Crown and in receipt of a salary, the officer cashed the cheques and kept the 
Pioney which clearly belonged to the Crown. The officer did this over a period
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of two years, 1961 and 1962. As I believe was brought out in the evidence on 
May 3, it was known, at the time, what was going on.

No recovery of this money was sought by the department when the officer 
was found guilty in March 1963, and he was then fined $200. Again, no recovery 
was sought when he asked and was given his discharge six months later, in 
October 1963.

My concern is that it took so long to effect recovery and then only $2,500 
was collected out of the $4,053 which the officer had kept. I would suggest that 
you may want to ask the witnesses the reasons for these delays. To me they 
demonstrate, as is stated in the note, a lack of effective administrative action.

Mr. Bigg: Is this man pensionable?
Mr. Armstrong : No; this man was not pensionable. He was one of the 

medical officers who had come in through the scheme whereby their tuition fees 
and so on are paid in the last couple of years. In fact, he had to pay a sum 
of approximately $3,000 to buy his way out of the force, because of that. 
Because he left before his commitment had been fulfilled. Do you follow me?

Mr. Bigg: Yes, sir. I was just thinking about the ease of which it could be 
recovered if he were in receipt of a considerable pension.

Mr. Armstrong: No; he was not. He had no pension. He paid $3,040 to the 
Crown on his release.

Mr. Bigg: For his education.
Mr. Armstrong: For his education.
The Chairman: Now, you will remember, when we were asking questions 

about this on May 3, we stipulated that the department officials would be here 
and you could proceed with your questions. I have forgotten just who those 
members were who wished to put questions, but I would like you to come forth 
with your questions now.

Mr. Baldwin: I was not one of those who asked questions, I do not think, 
at the time, but the question posed by Mr. Henderson is a very logical one-

Could Mr. Armstrong or someone else give any adequate explanation on 
why this course of conduct was followed, because of the lengthy period ot 
time without it being discovered. Is there any check now being made so that 
there cannot be repetition?

The Chairman: Mr. Baldwin, you are asking why no action was taken to 
recover the amount improperly retained?

Mr. Baldwin: Well, first, why was it not discovered and stopped?
Mr. Henderson: The point Mr. Baldwin is making, Mr. Chairman, is that, 

as stated here, in March 1963 the officer was found guilty of conduct to th 
prejudice of good order and he was reprimanded and fined $200. But they never 
asked him to pay back the $4,053. Six months later he was released from th 
service at his own request so they had another chance to ask him for the $4,0 
back but, apparently, the records do not indicate that they did. My question 15 ■ 
Why?

Mr. Armstrong: The reason for this was that at the time it was discovered 
that certain payments of this kind had been made, a total of I think five ha
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been paid to the officer in question. Subsequent to that, there was a lengthy 
investigation to determine the total amount that had been so paid, and it was 
not until some months later, when the investigation was completed, that the 
figure of $4,000 was arrived at. Consequently, it was August 1964 before we 
Were able to go to the Department of Justice and say: With respect to recovery 
action, here are all the details and the total sum is $4,053. So that the difficulty 
was that we did not have the complete story at the early date.

The Chairman : When you had the complete story, what steps did you take, 
Mr. Armstrong.

Mr. Armstrong: We referred it in August 1964 to the Department of Jus­
tice and they then pursued the case, with the lawyers of the doctor in question, 
who had then, of course, left the service, and the Department of Justice rec­
ommended, having regard to all the factors in the case, that it be settled out 
of court for a repayment of $2,500, and that was, in fact, done.

Mr. Bigg: Were there any mitigating circumstances such as that he did not 
know the exact terms of his employment? Was there any indication in any way 
that he thought he was accepting these fees in good faith?

Mr. Armstrong : Well, the officer himself did say that. There were written 
regulations on the subject, but he said he was not aware of them and, according 
to his statements, he was not, therefore, aware of the fact that he was doing 
anything he was forbidden to do.

Mr. Bigg: But he knew, when he was reprimanded.
Mr. Armstrong: Oh, yes, of course.
Mr. Bigg: He knew, when he was reprimanded, that there were a great 

many more cases than the five for which he was reprimanded.
Mr. Armstrong: He was charged in March 1963 of conduct to the preju­

dice of good order and discipline. In fact, there were a series of charges against 
him, and he was found guilty and reprimanded and fined $200.

Mr. Baldwin: Well, that then brings up a supplementary point, if he was 
charged in March 1963. By the way, did he plead guilty or was there an actual 
inquiry? Did he admit that he was responsible and guilty?

Mr. Henderson: He was fined $200.
Mr. Armstrong : He did not plead guilty but he was found guilty.
Mr. Baldwin: He was found guilty. All right; having been found guilty he 

must then, at least, by a quasi-judicial decision, have been aware of the fact 
that he was wrong in what he had done. Did he not, at that time, disclose the 
full amount or was he in March 1963 pressed to disclose the full amount which 
he had wrongly taken and, if so, why was he not then pressed for further 
Payments?

Mr. Armstrong : There was not, of course, agreement between the depart­
ment and the offender concerning the amount. I believe his lawyers contended 
that the amount was substantially less then we claimed and the final outcome, 
as I say, was a settlement for $2,500.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Could you tell us at what station this happened?
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Mr. Armstrong: It happened at Senneterre.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I beg your pardon?
Mr. Armstrong: Senneterre. It is in the province of Quebec.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): In the province of Quebec, yes. Where was this money 

that the doctor kept originally intended to go?
Mr. Armstrong: Well, this arose out of the doctor treating, on that station, 

dependants of members of the forces. The dependants were covered under the 
group surgical-medical plan and the bills for the doctor’s services were ren­
dered, in the doctor’s name, to the group surgical-medical plan and the cheques 
were paid to him. Now, under the procedures that should have been followed, 
they would have been rendered through the accounting office of the station and 
the payments would have been to the Receiver General.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Do you know of any reason why the group medical 
plan accepted these bills?

Mr. Armstrong : I do not think there really would be any reason to believe 
they would not accept them. The bills were submitted under the doctor’s name, 
not as a member of the force. They were legitimate bills for services rendered, 
so far as they were concerned, and I do not think one could have expected them 
to identify these as being incorrect, being unaware of the fact that he was a 
member of the service, and that the bills should have been rendered in a 
different way.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Do dependants, when receiving medical care, first have 
to get permission from someone on the military station before going to a 
doctor?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, normally, as you, I think, are probably aware, in the 
Canadian armed forces dependants are not entitled to medical care from service 
medical doctors or service facilities. There are certain exceptions to this, and 
these include dependants who are overseas with a serving member of the 
service overseas, and in a few isolated stations in Canada where there is not 
really any other adequate source of medical care.

There are records, of course, kept in the hospital or medical facility 
regarding the treatment given there, and the arrangements which apply in 
these cases, require the billings in respect of the dependants who are members 
of the government medical service plan, to which most married members of the 
forces subscribe, to be submitted through the accounting office, after which, 
payment is then made to the Receiver General and credited to the Crown.

Checks are made, through the audit systems, and there is a cross-check 
made against the records of treatment in the hospital. I think there is now 
reasonable enough security to suppose that this kind of thing would not recur- 
It is conceivable, I suppose, in any system, that something of this kind could be 
brought about, particularly if there happened to be collusion. In this case there 
was no collusion between the doctor and the patient, but we do have, I think, a 
reasonably adequate check on this now, to ensure that this would not happen.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Armstrong, you mentioned the figure of three thousand 
and some dollars, am I right in assuming that this officer bought this way out ° 
the service? If this was so, was this calculated on a mathematical basis or a 
formula of some kind?
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Mr. Armstrong : Yes, it is related to the doctor who, in this case, came 
under the plan for enrolment as a doctor, which involves the department paying 
his fees in the last two or three years of his course, and also paying him as a 
member of the force. Under the plan, a doctor is obliged to serve for a period 
which has varied a little but which was five years at this particular 
time. Now, if something occurs and it is agreed that he be released before that 
time, he is then obliged to pay back either all or a proportion of the amount 
expended by the department on him.

Mr. Ballard: Now, when in the normal course you discharge personnel, I 
imagine that you do make a calculation of any deficiencies they have in 
inventory—if they hold an inventory—or in equipment and that sort of thing, 
and make some effort to deduct this from their separation pay. Is that not 
correct?

Mr. Armstrong: That is correct, yes.
Mr. Ballard: Now, in this particular case, it was evident that there was 

some deficiency, even though the amount was not determinable at the time, but 
it was known that there was a deficiency. Was any effort made, at the time of 
his separation, to have the officer put up a bond or cash until the amount of the 
deficiency was determined?

Mr. Armstrong : Well, first of all, might I say that it was quite clear there 
were no assets, at the time of his separation, that we could collect any 
deficiency from and, as far as I am aware, there was no effort to make him put 
up a bond at that time. Quite frankly, I do not know how we could succeed in 
doing this. Perhaps the Judge Advocate General would like to comment on it.

Brigadier W. J. Lawson ( Judge Advocate General): Well, we could not see 
them telling an officer he could not be released unless he put up a bond, because 
he probably would not be a very satisfactory officer after that had occurred. 
And again, after reviewing the situation, and knowing the man was a medical 
doctor, we felt reasonably sure we could collect whatever he owed, in due 
course, once he got into private practice, as, in fact, we did collect the 
settlement the Department of Justice made.

Mr. Ballard: You asked the officer for $3,045 or something in that range, 
and I am just wondering what would have been the reaction had you said to 
him: “We know there is a certain deficiency and, as a result of your actions, we 
will require you to put up, say, $7,500 for your separation, and an adjustment 
will be made after we determine the amount of fees you have collected.”

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I am quite sure that, at that time, he would not have 
had the money. He was just going out of the service and was not in practice. He 
apparently managed to raise the $3,040, but I am quite sure that he could not 
raise any more at the time. I do not think he would have been a desirable officer 
to have kept against his will. The fact alone, that he committed these offences, 
Was enough, I would think, to make the service glad to be rid of him.

The Chairman: Could I interject, following Mr. Ballard’s question. Was 
any attempt to take an oath from this man. He owed the Crown money and 
What attempt was made by the department to have this man sign an oath that 
he was obligated to the Crown to make up the money that he took?
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Mr. Armstrong: There was no attempt made to have him sign an oath at 
that time. As I indicated earlier, the examination to get the total amount was 
still proceeding. Had we known, at the time we finished our examination, that 
there was $4,000 involved, and had said to him, as I presume we would, that we 
wished him to pay this back; I think the result would still have been the same 
and that he would have done what he did later, which was to get a lawyer.

The Chairman: Why did it take the department a year and a half to find 
this out? It would appear to me that the department took altogether too long to 
settle this case. It took from March 3 to August—a year and a half—during which 
time you just could not find out how much that man owed you.

Well, we will let Mr. Armstrong answer that, and then Mr. Bigg, Mr. Noble 
and Mr. Lefebvre.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, now, I do not know whether I can give you all the 
details of the investigation.

The Chairman: Well, we do not want a long answer, Mr. Armstrong, just a 
short reply.

Mr. Armstrong: Let me just give you this. The full investigation of the case 
involved a great deal of work on the part of the air force police. Eight reports 
on the case were submitted by them between December 20, 1962 and April 6, 
1964 and this investigation was completed on April 6, 1964. It was not until that 
time, the last police report having been received, that it was possible to 
determine the full amount involved.

The Chairman: It would appear that the police took too long. If I 6et 
into trouble, they get me a lot faster than that.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, it is conceivable. There were apparently 62 pay* 
ments involved and this is the time it took them to investigate.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, will you follow on?
Mr. Bigg: Was this man on a straight salary and did he have to do all this 

work, without any extra remuneration for looking after the families of the 
service personnel?

Mr. Armstrong: He was paid as a member of the service.
Mr. Bigg: A flat salary?
Mr. Armstrong: Yes; a flat salary.
Mr. Bigg: And he would not get a bonus from the Crown for attending t0 

these special cases?
Mr. Armstrong: No, he gets nothing for that.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I have an idea there might be another side to 

this story. I was wondering were other medical services readily available to tn 
service people’s dependents?

Mr. Armstrong: As I say, the only areas in which dependents are treated 
by the service are those where civilian services are not readily available, so 
think you can assume they are not.

Mr. Noble: Well, then, could any of the services rendered be classified 
emergency? There might have been somebody taken suddenly ill and they h 
to go to this fellow; they felt that they had to be handled quickly.
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Mr. Armstrong : Oh, I expect there could well be. I really do not know, but 
I assume that is quite possible.

Mr. Noble: Then I have a related question to the one Mr. Bigg asked. Is a 
service doctor under service employ 24 hours a day or would he have time to 
himself in which he might treat people, say, in his own home?

Mr. Armstrong : Well, a service doctor, like all service people, is essentially 
employed 24 hours a day. Now, obviously, they are not expected to work 24 
hours a day, but the regulations provide that he is not permitted to accept 
patients of this kind and charge fees for them.

Mr. Noble: Thank you.
Mr. Bigg: I am not quite finished with my own questioning. This is the 

point I am trying to get at; I wonder if this man was not fairly poorly paid for 
the service he gave and that he felt he had, as they say in law, “quantum 
meruit”, that he deserved more remuneration because he was doing a great deal 
more work than he was expected to under the terms of his reference. I think, in 
this case, perhaps the officers of the Crown were justified in allowing him to get 
off the technical hook, if he was working 20 hours a day when he might have 
been expected to do eight like any other civil servant.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I think you would have to ask the doctor the first 
Part of your question; I cannot really answer for his attitude. But I would say 
the officers of the Crown did not attempt to let him off the hook. The matter 
Was pursued.

Mr. Bigg: Well, I do not know who attempted it, but he got off.
Mr. Armstrong: Well, it depends on what you judge to be “off the hook”. 

He paid a $200 fine, he paid $3,040 to get out of the service, he paid $2,500 to 
settle the case, which, in the opinion of the legal officers of the Crown and in our 
own opinion, because we accepted it, in all the circumstances, was a reasonable 
settlement to make, rather than have the case go to court.

Mr. Lefebvre: My question, to the Deputy Minister, Mr. Chairman, is this: 
Did anybody try to ascertain whether this doctor tried to get out of the service 
before this was discovered, because it sounds to me, after the statement you 
made, as though he had no assets whatsoever. He knew it would cost him 
somewhere in the neighborhood of $3,000 to get out, plus maybe legal fees if he 
Was caught, and he used the government’s money to pay his lawyer and pay 
himself out of the service.

Mr. Armstrong: I do not know how you could arrive at that conclusion. 
He paid to get out of the service.

Mr. Lefebvre: Yes; but with money that he did not have the right to 
collect.

Mr. Armstrong: I see. I do not know the answer to your question of 
whether he had any idea, before that, of getting out of the service.

Mr. Lefebvre: But he had not signified his intentions prior to this inquiry?
Mr. Armstrong: No; not that I am aware of. But this would hardly be a 

Possible way to do it, I do not think.
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Mr. Lefebvre: If it was his only way out, and if he wanted to get out, 
because you said he had no assets whatsoever. Mr. Chairman, just a supple­
mentary. Is there any difference between this and the customs duty officers 
collecting money in government time, as when yesterday we discussed the 
subject of customs officers who were selling licences on government time?

Mr. Henderson: That was an arrangement of very long standing, openly 
done, and countenanced by the department. In the case of this officer, they 
found him guilty of misconduct and fined him.

I think, if I may say so, Mr. Chairman, that the real point of this case is 
was there or was there not, in the opinion of the Committee, any la_x 
administration in failing to nail this man while they still had him, even if i* 
meant signing a promissory note or giving an undertaking that he would be 
responsible.

As it was, you can only assume that he used the Crown’s own money to buy 
his dicharge because that apparently is where he got his $3,000. I think they did 
quite well in getting $2,500 at the end of the road, but they might have done a 
lot better if they had followed, what seems to me, the normal commercial 
prudence in going after it while they had the man there.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Is there any evidence that he used the 
money he had collected in this manner, to buy a discharge? Could he not have 
gone out and borrowed it from a finance company?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I do not think any of us know the source from which 
he got the $3,040.

Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, I am just a little alarmed at the slight air af 
blackmail; the fact that it might have cost the Crown some money to collect this 
money. I do not think we should allow the fact that we let this fellow off with a 
$2,500 payment, merely because we did not want the necessity of taking him t0 
court. We cannot win all our court cases but in a case like this where, in the 
light of what evidence we have, there was an open and flagrant attempt to bea 
the Crown, I do not see any extenuating circumstances due to his extra worh 
and so on. If there is no evidence to that, I think the Crown should have done as 
tjhe Auditor General says and protected our interests a little better, an 
certainly not allowed blackmail to interfere. It might cost you a lot of money t0 
collect in one case, but in the next ten cases, perhaps people would be a little 
more careful with the Crown’s money.

The Chairman: I think you summed that up fairly well, Mr. Bigg.
Mr. Armstrong: Could I comment on that. I would like to say that theia 

was no question of blackmail at all. This was a legal case. We had a suit again5 
the man; he had a lawyer defending his suit. It was discussed by the le^a 
officers of justice and his lawyer. As a consequence of that, the conclusion waS 
reached that a $2,500 settlement was a sensible arrangement to make in t*115 
case.

Mr. Bigg: I would not argue with the laws of the Crown or the presiding 
official. I will just go back to the old stand, then, and say that when we have 
person in this position I think we should take previous steps to protect t 
crown’s interest, short of a law suit.
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Mr. Armstrong: We would take the steps as soon as we could take them. 
Had we taken the steps, had it been possible if, in fact, we had had the 
information available to us earlier than April 1964, we certainly would have 
taken the steps.

I suggest to you, though, that the problems, in terms of how much would be 
collected, would essentially be the same. There was disagreement concerning 
the amount owed to the Crown and eventually it was settled for $2,500.

Mr. Bigg: But you knew that there was money owed to the crown?
Mr. Armstrong: Oh, yes.
The Chairman: Well, I think we will go on. Mr. Armstrong I do not think 

you have proven to the Committee—Mr. McLean, I am sorry, I forgot your name, 
I had it down.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): This doctor was supposed to serve the service 
Personnel. The dependants came in under separate provision. Could he refuse to 
serve these dependants? Could he refuse to get up in the middle of the night 
and go to them or anything like that? Was he forced to do it?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I would think he really could not refuse. No; in 
this particular case this was part of his duty. Would you like to comment on 
that, Brigadier Lawson?

Mr. Lawson: Well, he could not refuse. It was his duty to this work, it was 
Part of his duty.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): For all the dependants?
Mr. Lawson: On this particular station, yes.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : And he was on duty 24 hours?
Mr. Lawson: Yes, all officers are on duty 24 hours.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Another question, Mr. Chairman, would 

this officer, under the circumstances, come under military law or would he come 
Under civilian law? Or does he have a choice or did the Department of National 
Defence have a choice?

Mr. Lawson: As an officer he is, of course, subject to military law, but all 
°fficers are also subject to civil law. So he would be subject to both.

Mr. Bigg: Was he alone on this post; was he the only doctor available?
Mr. Armstrong: He was the only doctor on the station.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Might I ask of the Advocate General, 

Whether he is satisfied with the settlement?
Mr. Lawson: Yes; I think it is a very fair settlement. There is one thing 

which you perhaps have not considered. I understand 60 different dependants 
had been treated. Well now, if we had had to go to court, we would have had to 
call those dependants as witnesses. By this time, they were scattered all over 
Canada and overseas and the cost of proving our case would have been 
^amendons.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Then the officer agreed to pay the $2,500, 
116 Was willing to settle for that; the department were willing to settle for that.

24575—2
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Mr. Lawson: This was the advice of the law officers of the Crown that we 
should accept this and we took that advice.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): How many people would there be on this particular 
station?

Mr. Armstrong: I could not be absolutely precise on that. I think, if * f 
remember rightly, the establishment of a station of that kind is about 200.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : That is military personnel?
Mr. Armstrong: No, I think that would include some civilian personnel; 

mostly military.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : But that would not include dependants?
Mr. Armstrong: No; not including dependants.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : In other words, he would not be looking after as many 

people as an ordinary general practitioner?
Mr. Armstrong: Well, I am not an expert on this; my guess would be 

probably not—no.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Because the total of the dependents would not run 

much more than 1,000.
Mr. Armstrong: Yes; that would be about right. I am not sure of the 

average number of patients looked after by the average general practitioner u1 
Canada. I think it runs into a couple of thousand, does it not?

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I would believe any where from 2,000 to 5,000.
Mr. Armstrong: Two thousand to 5,000.
The Chairman: Mr. Lefebvre, and then we will move to the next section.
Mr. Lefebvre: Mr. Chairman, does anybody from the department her6 

know how close this base is to the town of Senneterre, and how many private 
doctors there are in the town of Senneterre?

Mr. Armstrong: I am afraid I do not have the answer to that.
Mr. Lefebvre: Because I do not think this place is as isolated as we hav6 

been led to believe.
The Chairman: Well, gentlemen, I think this has been an interesting 

discussion. I would say, and it will be up to the Committee when we write our 
report, that if there had not been the laxity in collecting the money, and if 1 
had not taken a year and a half to find out how much he owed, we would not b® 
in the position we are in. However, we each have had our say on it and we wn 
have to come to a conclusion the best we can.

All right, paragraph No. 62.
62. Town of Oromocto, N. B. In 1955 the Governor in Council approved a 

proposal by the Department of National Defence to establish the Town oI 
Oromocto, N.B., adjacent to Camp Gagetown. Subsequently in 1956 the Tow*1 
was incorporated by an Act of the Province which provided for an administra' 
tive board of seven commissioners, four appointed by the federal government 
and three by the Province. The object in establishing the Town was to provide 
municipal facilities to serve not only military personnel stationed at CamP

*
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Gagetown but a civilian population as well, in order to avoid the growth of a 
purely military community.

To implement the proposal, the Department turned over to the Town 
without charge roads and services already installed in the housing area together 
with a fringe area of land. This assistance was augmented by capital grants 
totalling $1,500,000 to enable the Town to further develop its roads and services 
for the purpose of attracting private sponsors for the various shopping, civic 
institutional and industrial areas. To complete the physical development of 
municipal works, the Crown provided capital assistance loans to the Town 
amounting in all to $4,450,000 over the years from 1957 to 1961.

In the beginning it was expected that the operating expenses of the Town 
would be financed mainly from grants in lieu of taxes on federal property and 
that this burden would shift gradually as civilian interests in the Town 
developed. The shift has not materialized with the result that annual operating 
grants provided by the Crown continue at a high level and it is now expected 
this condition will exist for many years to come.

The following table summarizes the capital grants, capital assistance loans 
and operating grants paid to the Town since its inception:

Capital
Capital assistance Operating

Year grants loans grants

1955- 56 ...................................................... $ 750,000 $ 50,000
1956- 57 ...................................................... 750,000 50,000
1957- 58 ...................................................... $ 1,500,000 350,000
1958- 59 ...................................................... 1,500,000 960,000
1959- 60 ...................................................... 1,000,000 1,656,000
1960- 61 ...................................................... 450,000 1,600,000
1961- 62 ...................................................... 1,529,000
1962- 63 ...................................................... 1,489,000
1963- 64 ...................................................... 1,800,000

$ 1,500,000 $ 4,450,000 $ 9,484,000

Repayments of the above capital assistance loans have totalled $735,000 to 
March 31, 1964 while interest amounting to $1,110,000 has been received to the 
same date. Funds for these payments have been provided out of the annual 
°perating grants provided by the Department of National Defence.

The Town’s operating costs for the calendar year 1963 amounted to 
$2,030,000 while its revenues totalled only $209,000. The Department of Na­
tional Defence owns 1,900 housing units representing about 90 per cent of the 
^alue of all property in the Town.

A substantial part (over 50 per cent) of the annual operating costs relates 
to expenditure for the operation of seven schools attended by dependents of 
servicemen occupying married quarters in the Town. The cost of operating the 
schools has been a matter of concern to the Department and Treasury Board for 
Some time. A study of this matter by Treasury Board staff disclosed that the cost 
Per pupil for 1962 in the Fredericton, N.B., school system was $205 compared 

24575—21
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with $304 per pupil at Oromocto. The Treasury Board has requested the 
Department to advise it as to the action proposed to reduce the excessive 
education costs.

The capital assistance loans referred to above have from year to year been 
classified as assets in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Exhibit 2). In both 
the 1959 and the 1962 Reports the Audit Office suggested that in view of the 
very small amount of revenue accruing to the Town (currently and in the 
foreseeable future) it seemed unrealistic to continue to treat the loans to the 
Town as an asset item for purposes of the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. 
The Public Accounts Committee, after reviewing this matter, recommended in 
its Sixth Report 1964 that the Department of Finance give consideration to 
writing off these loans to expense (see Appendix 1, item 25).

Mr. Henderson: This deals with the town of Oromocto in New Brunswick- 
In this note the table is given on the next page, which shows the capital grants, 
capital assistance loans and operating grants paid by the federal government to 
the town since its inception.

Our concern here—the matter was certainly reviewed by this Committee m 
1964, and our witness today, Mr. Armstrong, will recall this discussion—is that, in 
view of the very small amount of revenue currently accruing to the town and m 
the foreseeable future, it appears to us unrealistic to treat these loans to the 
town as an asset item for purposes of the statement of assets and liabilities of 
Canada. In its sixth report 1964, the Committee agreed with our position and 
asked the Department of Finance to give consideration to the writing off ol 
these loans.

In my follow-up report to you in 1966, I quoted from a letter written by 
the Minister of Finance on March 4, 1965, in which he said that a study was 
currently under way to determine how these loans, and indeed all assets such as 
these should be reflected in the accounts of Canada. I told you at the laS 
meeting that I had written to Mr. Bryce for further information and that we 
had had a brief discussion about it. He has since been good enough to write me 
a letter, part of which I should like to quote to this Committee. In doing s°’ 
perhaps Mr. Armstrong could add something to the information Mr. Bryce is 
furnishing us, because it throws an interesting light on it. Mr. Bryce writes, an 
I am quoting as follows:

In considering this matter account should be taken of course to tbÇ 
fact that the town of Oromocto is not in default either as to principal ox 
interest on its loan. Approximately 25 per cent of the town budget whic 
includes payment of interest and repayment of the principal on the ^°an 
is contributed by the province and by private taxpayers. If the loan we 
to be written off the federal government would therefore forgo the 25 Ve^ 
cent share of the semi-annual payments which is contributed by non 
federal sources. These other sources are not entitled to the benefits whic 
would follow from such a write-off.

Although the major portion of the payments on the outstanding 
capital assistance loans continues to be indirectly financed by the D® 
partment of National Defence through its operating grants, it is consi 
ered that the amounts of these grants can be more effectively control ® 
by continuing the present loan arrangement than a loan write-off. In I . 
way, the Department of National Defence exercises a stronger contr

C
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over the annual budget of the town, which is desirable in view of the 
large share of the town revenues contributed by the federal government.

In your 1964 and earlier reports you observe: “It seems unrealistic to 
treat the loans to the town as an asset item for purposes of the statement 
of assets and liabilities in view of the small amount of non-federal 
revenue accruing to the town.”

Although I believe these loans should not be written off, I agree that 
these transactions should be reflected more realistically in the financial 
statements of Canada. In future, they will be set out in the schedule to 
the statement of assets and liabilities under a special subheading “Re­
covery Likely To Require Parliamentary Appropriations,” which we have 
used in the 1965 public accounts in the case of Crown corporations.

I thought this information would be of interest to the Committee, par­
ticularly the reference in the last paragraph to creating an asset to be entitled 
“Recovery Likely To Require Parliamentary Appropriations” because, to say the 
least, it makes it a dubious asset.

Nevertheless, this treatment will be accorded to the loans from the town of 
Oromocto and they will go into that classification. I do not know whether Mr. 
Armstrong would have anything to add to this information. You are probably 
aware of the developments which Mr. Bryce has written about.

Mr. Armstrong: Yes; I was aware of them.
The Chairman: Any questions?
Mr. Flemming: Well, Mr. Chairman, my question would be: Do these loans 

include loans made some years ago to a development corporation in a town or 
are they loans directly to the town?

Mr. Henderson: I understand they are paid directly to the town, Mr. 
^lemming.

Mr. Flemming: Well, then, the question is: Are there loans in connection 
'vith the development of the town, shopping centre, and so on? I know that 
some loans were made to a corporation and I assume, then, that this is not a 
Part of the loans made to a corporation for those purposes.

Mr. Henderson: Our information is that it is not, unless Mr. Armstrong has 
Something to add to that.

Mr. Armstrong : No; I think that is right. The subject matter now being 
discussed refers to the town and not to the development corporation.

Mr. Flemming: I wonder if Mr. Armstrong would know, offhand, if the 
development corporations are meeting their obligations. My information from 
°utside sources is that they are, and I am just wondering.

Mr. Armstrong: Yes, they are. My recollection is that last year they 
showed a small profit of something in the order of $50,000.

Mr. Bigg: Is the town of Oromocto really anything other than a militaiy 
facility? Is this only a service town for the military camp, and would it fold up 
d the military camp folded up like that in Cold Lake in Alberta? Is it the same 
fype of town?
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Mr. Armstrong : Well, it is obviously predominantly military at the present 
time and, if the military camp were not there, there clearly would not be a very 
large town left.

Mr. Bigg: So, if this is an asset at all, it is purely contingent on the 
adjacent military camp remaining in full operation; is that correct?

Mr. Armstrong : That is correct. The hope is that the town will gradually 
develop industry and commercial enterprise that is not entirely dependent on 
the military, and this has slowly been evolving. At the present time 28 per cent 
of the revenue, including provincial grants, comes from sources other than 
federal.

Mr. Bigg: But 90 per cent of the housing is strictly owned by the 
Department of National Defence?

Mr. Armstrong: Yes; I think about 90 per cent; that is probably right.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar): The $304 per pupil; that is operating expense is it? 

There is no capital involved in that?
Mr. Armstrong : That would be operating expenditure.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : To what do you attribute the high cost per pupil?
Mr. Armstrong: Well, this has been pretty carefully examined. I think the 

cost now runs in the area of $200. This is net cost, that is, after receiving 
provincial grants, and so on. The cost is slightly higher than Fredericton for, I 
think, legitimate reasons. First, we do find it necessary to pay marginally higher 
salaries in Oromocto than are paid in Fredericton, in order to get teachers to 
that particular area. There has been, particularly at the high school level, some 
tendency towards a lower pupil population per class in the senior classes. 1 
think that is being gradually overcome. This causes the pupil cost to be 
somewhat higher, but it has been coming down since this report was written.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): By lowering the number in each class, you pay more 
teachers and you do not get any more provincial grants?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, if you only have 18 pupils in the class your cost is 
higher than if you have 30 or 35.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): No; but in seven schools, of course they would not all 
be high schools, would it be necessary to have just 18 pupils?

Mr. Armstrong: Oh, we do not. I am just suggesting that, in my analysis 
of this, this was one factor. In the senior classes at the time the pupil population 
tended to run a little lower per classroom than you might find ordinarily in a 
town like Fredericton.

Mr. Lefebvre: Could somebody tell us what is the population of this town?
Mr. Armstrong: It is approximately 15,000.
Mr. Lefebvre: Does this budget of $2,030,000 agree with the average for 3 

town of 15,000? Does it not seem rather high compared with other towns 
similar size?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I cannot really answer you; I suppose this depend5 
on the town. I do not think I can make a general statement on it.
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Mr. Lefebvre: Well, what I am getting at Mr. Armstrong, is that, as the 
major taxpayer there—I think we own 90 per cent of the value of all property in 
the town—is the Department of National Defence represented on the town 
council in this community?

Mr. Armstrong: Yes; the federal government has four members on the 
board of commissioners; it is a board of seven.

Mr. Lefebvre: Is it an elected town council?
Mr. Armstrong: No; it is not an elected council. It is an appointed council.
Mr. Lefebvre: I see. And have the books of this town ever been audited by 

the Department of National Defence? Are they satisfied that the $2 million 
budget is quite normal?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, we are satisfied that it is a proper budget, and the 
town’s books are audited by chartered accountants annually, and, as I say, we 
bave our own people on the board of commissioners.

Mr. Bigg: I am not quite clear why the item has been brought up for 
renewal.

Mr. Henderson: This assistance is being made in the form of loans, 
repayment of which is very dubious, and therefore the question arises, should 
they not be written off to budgetary expenditure by Canada rather than treated 
as assets? That was the point in which the Committee was interested.

Mr. Bigg: But it seems to me that it is a military expenditure rather than a 
realistic asset.

Mr. Henderson: Oh, yes, that is right. It might be more properly directed, 
aud no doubt will be discussed when Mr. Bryce is here, but Mr. Armstrong was 
good enough, at your last meeting, to put you completely in the picture 
regarding this and I wanted to bring you up to date on it.

Mr. Armstrong: Mr. Chairman, with respect to the last question, I think I 
bright add that the characteristics of this town are really quite different from 
those found in a normal town. The population, because it is predominantly 
Military, is a young population and therefore the proportion of school children 
is very high. So the schooling costs in this town run to more than half of that 
budget. So there are differences in the town.

There is a publication that was put out by, I think, the Economic Council 
f°r the Atlantic Provinces, and this describes the different characteristics of the 
toWn from that of a general town. If you are interested, you could get that and 
read it, because there are quite a few differences.

The Chairman: All right. This is a very interesting subject. I know that 
hew members on the Committee have not had the opportunity to learn more 
about this town of Oromocto and we are quite willing to have all these 
Questions answered in order to be familiar with it. I think you will have an 
°Pportunity to ask further questions when Mr. Bryce is here.

Mr. Ballard you had a question, and then Mr. Flemming.
Mr. Ballard : Well, Mr. Chairman, my point was partially covered, but I 

w°uld expect that the Auditor General has determined, to his satisfaction, that
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the military personnel occupying this town are not being given extra amenities 
in comparison with personnel in other P.M.Q.’s of similar stations.

The other thing is that I am still not satisfied, Mr. Henderson, with the 
method, or even the suggested method, of treating these expenditures on the 
financial statements of the town. I daresay that any moneys expended for the 
operation of the normal P.M.Q. area would be written off to expense on the 
national accounts. I can see no justification for trying to cloak these expendi­
tures, which they actually are—and really not loans—by calling them by any 
other name than a straight expenditure, and I think that either you or this 
Committee should go back to the treasury board and insist that these advances 
be written off to the normal expenses of running the military.

Mr. Henderson: If I may speak to that, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Ballard is 
saying exactly what we think. I have referred to the same problem in my 1965 
report dealing with loans that are made to certain Crown corporations repay­
ment of which is highly questionable. I would suggest that this be one of the 
subjects to be taken up and discussed with Mr. Bryce when he appears before 
the Committee on, I believe, June 17.

Mr. Flemming: Mr. Chairman, actually my question has been partially 
answered by Mr. Armstrong in connection with the cost of education of this 
town because as he says, these are younger people and they have larger 
families.

But, coming to the point the Auditor General has raised, I belong to the 
class of people which always knows that once you write off one of these bills, 
you have very little chance, if any, of ever recovering anything. I have a great 
reluctance to seeing things written off too quickly, but I think the Auditor 
General has made a good suggestion. When Mr. Bryce comes we will have an 
opportunity to discuss the matter further.

Mr. Armstrong: If I could comment on this, I seldomly have a different 
viewpoint than the Auditor General, but I do in this case. This particular 
enterprise is quite different from anything else we run in the Department of 
National Defence. Where we have a military camp, we set up married quarters; 
they are all part of the camp. They are paid for by the Department of National 
Defence and, of course, the cost of the quarters, and everything else that goes 
into it, is charged as an expenditure. But, in this case, the concept was different- 
The object was to establish a community in which the married families would 
be a part.

Now, it is true that that community is predominantly military. The hope Is 
that the community will grow; it has been growing gradually. As I say 28 Per 
cent of the revenue is now coming from non-department sources. It seems to me 
the essence of the problem is to treat it essentially as a municipality with the 
differences that have been necessary, in the sense of having an appointed 
council for the time being. Ultimately, one would hope that it would become ad 
elected council and it would be a regular municipality. If one accepts tha 
objective, then I think you really have to treat it in this way, rather than writ® 
the loans off, because this is part of the cost of the town, financed by the 
issuance of debentures and so on.

It is true that the repayment of these is 75 per cent out of federal revenue, 
at the moment, because only 28 per cent of the revenue comes from othe1
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sources. But, in terms of the objectives and of running the town, it seems to me 
this makes pretty good sense.

Mr. Lefebvre: The book says 90 per cent of the town is owned by the 
Department of National Defence. The Deputy Minister refers to 28 per cent 
being owned by other sources. Which is correct?

Mr. Armstrong: I think obviously there is a difference in times.
Mr. Lefebvre: It has changed that much?
Mr. Henderson: Yes; there is a difference in time. It is moving along in the 

direction they had hoped. I do not disagree with what Mr. Armstrong says, Mr. 
Chairman, but, however, writing it off “dead” on the books, does not necessarily 
extinguish it. I am referring more, as Mr. Ballard did, to the treatment; that is 
calling something an asset when it is not an asset.

Mr. McLean: (Charlotte): It has been said that you want invested interest 
to go in there, but the more the government has hanging over the head of 
someone going in there, they would not want to go in. You can take it that on 
the one hand; if you wrote this off, you would be enticing investments to go in 
there, but on the other, if this keeps rising all the time you are going to keep 
investment out.

Mr. Bigg: My suggestion is quite different. I would suggest we have a 
sliding scale of some kind. I imagine the businesses there, such as tailor shops, 
and so on, are quite lucrative. As their owners come to own more of the town 
and the assets of the town, they should take on an increasing amount of the 
cost. Perhaps they do this already; I do not know.

Mr. Henderson: Oromocto is developing along those lines, if I understand 
What Mr. Bryce writes and what Mr. Armstrong says.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, can we conclude this? Mr. Thomas, I am not 
doing you out of a question, am I?

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): May I make this suggestion, Mr. Chairman. 
In as much as Public Accounts Committee in 1964 recommended that these 
loans be written off, unless there is now some very valid reason for changing 
the opinion of the Committee, I think we should stay with what we have done 
before.

Mr. Bigg: As I understand it, you were not suggesting that the loans be 
Written off so much as that they be changed to a different category for 
Accounting purposes. Is this not so?

Mr. Henderson: We are speaking of the statement of assets and liabilities 
which is the Department of Finance’s statement. That is why I say I think we 
can finally dispose of this when Mr. Bryce is our witness.

The Chairman: Well, now, gentlemen, we are taking quite a bit of time 
here this morning. We have a lot of work with this department. I would ask you 
to have your questions short and the answers the same way so that we can 
Proceed a little faster if possible.

Now, paragraph 63.
63. Military assistance to the United Nations and Indo-China Truce 

Commissions. Canadian defence forces are presently engaged in peace-
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keeping operations for the United Nations in five countries. In this 
connection, the Department of National Defence has absorbed the initial 
cost of transporting equipment and personnel to the Middle East and the 
Congo, travel and removal expenses in Canada, normal pay and allow­
ances, clothing and personal equipment, etc., which at March 31, 1964 
totalled approximately $39 million. In turn, the United Nations accepted f 
the responsibility of reimbursing Canada for foreign and special allow­
ances of serving personnel, abnormal depreciation of equipment supplied 
by Canada and used by Canadian forces, the cost of operating special Air 
Force flights at the request of the United Nations, and items such as 
vehicles, ordnance stores, and medical supplies specifically ordered from 
Canada for the use of the United Nations forces. Total recoverable 
expenditures over the year have amounted to $23 million, of which 
$2,700,000 was outstanding at the fiscal year-end.

Canada also has military personnel serving with the Indo-China 
Truce Commissions in Vietnam and Laos. Expenditures relating to these 
operations are on a cost-sharing basis and by March 31, 1964 amounted 
to some $10,200,000, of which $8 million was absorbed by Canada and 
$2,200,000 classed as recoverable. Outstanding recoverable expenditures 
at the fiscal year-end amounted to $415,000.

Mr. Henderson: There is no point in discussing this, Mr. Chairman. It was 
talked about on May 5, when I gave certain information, so I suggest we move 
on to the next item.

The Chairman: All right. Now, paragraph 64.
64. Pension awards effective at early age. In our 1963 Report 

(paragraph 68) reference was made to the number of servicemen beinê 
retired at an early age with immediate annuities. It was stated that m 
such cases the amount of the annuities is not large due to the short 
periods of service, but the potential cost is substantial because of the 
relatively longer expectancy of life. The Department of National Defence 
had been considering the advisability of introducing deferred pensions 
similar to those available to civilian employees.

The Public Accounts Committee gave consideration to this problem 
and in its Sixth Report 1964 requested that it be kept informed as to the 
progress being made (see Appendix 1, item 28).

No change in this respect has yet been made in the Canadian Forces 
Superannuation Act and we noted that during the year under review 286 
immediate annuities, aggregating $342,000, were awarded by the Service 
Pension Board to retiring Service personnel ranging in age from 27 to 40 
years. About 57 % of these retirements were based on medical grounds, 
and in the majority of the other cases the normal pension based on years 
of service was reduced up to 30% because of the early age of retirement.

Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 64, “pension awards effective at early age.
Here, we might dispose, simultaneously of paragraph 64 and also paragraph 84 
of my 1965 report, which is on the same subject and which updates the subjec 
matter.

The Chairman: All right, then, we will also include paragraph 84 of t'ie 
1965 report.
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84. Pension awards effective at early age. In previous Reports 
reference was made to the number of servicemen being retired at early 
ages, in some instances under 30. Although the amounts of annuities are 
not large due to the short periods of service, the potential cost is 
substantial because of the relatively longer life expectancy. During the 
year, 391 servicemen aged 40 and under were retired with immediate 
annuities aggregating $472,000 annually. In 1963-64 there were 286 
servicemen in this category retired with immediate annuities and in 
1962-63 the number was 201.

The Department has been reviewing the existing provisions of the 
Canadian Forces Superannuation Act and has been considering the merits 
of providing deferred annuities similar to those available to civilian 
employees but does not contemplate proposing any changes until a more 
detailed study embracing the implications of the Canada Pension Plan 
has been completed. (See Appendix 1, item 20.)

Mr. Henderson: You will observe that we had 286 servicemen in this 
category who retired with immediate annuities in 1964 compared with 201 the 
year previous and when you look at paragraph 84 of my 1965 report you will 
see that the number has risen to 391. We have been waiting to see what action 
the department is going to take, and the latest available information I have on 
this point is in my 1966 follow-up report where I told you that I been advised 
on March 5, 1965, by the Minister of National Defence. I will quote what he 
Wrote me, which reads as follows:

No decision has been taken on possible amendments to the Canadian 
Forces Superannuation Act pending the completion of studies undertaken 
following the decision to integrate the forces, which will have a bearing 
on those decisions.

Perhaps Mr. Armstrong could explain that sentence.
Mr. Armstrong: What the Minister is referring to is this: When the decision 

to integrate the forces was taken in July 1964, shortly thereafter, studies were 
Put under way to deal with the whole field of military personnel policy because, 
While our arrangements were essentially the same as in the past, there were 
differences among the services.

The studies undertaken are now almost complete. However, it will, I think, 
take some considerable time to examine them and to come to conclusions, after 
Which decisions will be taken on what changes, if any, would be desirable in the 
Pension arrangements.

Mr. Henderson: May I ask the question whether any of these changes 
found their way into the Minister’s remarks in the House on Monday, when 
Sill No. C-193 was being discussed?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, there are some changes in Bill C-193. It deals prin­
cipally, of course, with the problems related to the integration of the Canada 
tension Plan. There are, I think, several other amendments to the Canadian 
forces Superannuation Act. These are not of the fundamental nature we are 
talking about when we are referring to the changes the Minister refers to in 
commenting on your observation in paragraph 64.

The Chairman: Any questions?
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Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I was wondering if the practice is to be continued of 
allowing servicemen under 40 to receive a pension? In consideration of the fact 
that you have a shortage of military personnel, and that you are finding it 
difficult to replace them by enlistment, why would you continue to offer 
pensions to men under 40?

Mr. Armstrong: The nature of military business is such that age is 
significant in certain military jobs, and people over a certain age are not 
suitable. The normal retirement ages now vary a little in the services; they run 
from 45, I think, to 55, depending on the rank. But, fundamentally, in those 
particular cases of retirement, say, under 40, those are situations where a man 
is retired because of some cause that makes him unsuitable for continued 
service. If he has had 10 years service in the regular forces and he is retired on 
an obligatory basis for medical reasons or some other reasons, other than 
misconduct, he is entitled, under the law, to a pension.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : A further question: How long does he have to be in the 
service before entitlement to a full pension?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, the maximum pension is based on 35 years’ service.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : He is paid pro rata.
Mr. Armstrong: Yes; it is two per cent per year of service based on a six 

year average of salary.
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Could the Deputy Minister advise us 

whether any progress is being made regarding the last paragraph of item 64, 
which reads as follows:

In considering this matter, the Public Accounts Committee noted 
that the department is endeavouring to achieve a system under which the 
entitlements to all pensions would be specific. If this were possible, it 
would eliminate the considerations of the Pension Board which is noW 
responsible for establishing—

The Chairman: Mr. Thomas, what book are you reading from?
Mr. Henderson: I think you are reading paragraph 65, and we are still on 

paragraph 64. We are coming to “discretionary awards.”
Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West) : Oh, I am sorry. I did not notice the change 

in the page. You are right.
The Chairman: Well, if there are no further questons we will proceed with 

paragraph 65 then.
IMr. Henderson: Well, just one point on paragraph 64, Mr. Chairman 

continue to furnish the House with this information because the Committee, ut 
its last session, requested me to keep it informed on the progress being made in 
the introduction of deferred pension benefits for servicemen retiring at these 
comparatively early ages.

I should like to know if it is the wish of the Committee that I continue to 
keep the House informed in this manner so that it comes up for future 
discussion later. The Deputy Minister explained the study that has been under 
way and there is a lot more to be done. We are not yet clear as to what the H°n' 
Mr. Benson was referring to when he spoke in the House on Monday when he
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said that some of these changes related to proposals of the public Accounts 
Committee. We have not been able to determine just what proposals they 
covered, but we shall be ascertaining that. So if it is your wish, I will continue 
to pursue this.

The Chairman: Is it the Committee’s wish, especially until this study is 
completed, at any rate?

Some hon. Members: Agreed.
The Chairman: Now, paragraph 65.

65. Discretionary awards of Service pensions. In our 1963 Report 
(paragraph 69) it was noted that in determining pension awards, every 
possible consideration is given to the welfare of the individual service­
man, and it is sometimes questionable whether a reasonable balance is 
struck between fairness to servicemen on the one hand and economy of 
public funds on the other.

In the year under review similar cases were noted of which the 
following are examples. In four instances servicemen were awarded full 
annuities on being retired compulsorily for medical unfitness. Information 
on the files indicated the reason given for retirement was of secondary 
importance to others, which, had they been recognized officially, would 
have resulted in the aggregate in a reduction in capitalized value of the 
annuities awarded of approximately $45,000. Each of the servicemen was 
28 years old and had served the minimum period of time to qualify for 
pension.

In one of these cases a medical release was recommended although 
in the opinion of the Medical Board the serviceman did not require 
hospitalization or active therapy in the immediate foreseeable future. 
Another serviceman was overweight, a condition that existed on enrol­
ment, and presumably lacked motivation to regain normal fitness. 
Another instance concerns an airman who was determined to leave the 
service on the completion of his current engagement in order to return to 
school. He had indicated his intention not to re-engage, but was granted 
a medical release apparently to prevent a possible re-engagement. The 
fourth case deals with a medical release following a long period of 
domestic trouble and eventual psychological disturbance. At the time of 
his release the serviceman was not incapacitated and the Audit office 
view is that he was actually released “to promote economy and efficien­
cy”.

In considering this matter, the Public Accounts Committee noted 
that the Department is endeavouring to achieve a system under which 
the entitlements to all pensions would be specific. If this were possible, it 
would eliminate the considerations of the Pension Board which is now 
responsible for establishing reasons for release. The Committee in its 
Sixth Report 1964 has asked to be kept informed of any action taken to 
revise the present system (see Appendix 1, item 29).

Mr. Henderson: Paragraph 65 on the next page, “discretionary awards of 
service pensions”, is based on the fact that we have had occasion to be critical of 
the considerations or the criteria employed by the service pension board when it
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is establishing reasons for release, and makes what are known as discretionary 
awards of service pensions.

You will see from this paragraph that we continue to note cases similar to 
those of other years. Reference is made in the second paragraph to four cases 
where servicemen were given full annuities on being retired compulsorily for 
reasons of medical unfitness, although the information on the files indicated that 
the reason given for retirement was of secondary importance to other reasons.

While we are dealing with this, you might like to look at paragraph 85 of 
the 1965 report, where we carry on with the same subject with more examples.

85. Discretionary awards of Service pensions. In our Reports for 1963 
and 1964 (paragraph 65) we noted that in determining pension awards 
every possible consideration is given to the welfare of the individual 
serviceman, and that it is sometimes questionable whether a reasonable 
balance is struck between fairness to the serviceman on the one hand and 
economy of public funds on the other. In the year under review similar 
cases were noted as follows:
1.

2.

In three instances servicemen with slightly more than the minimum 
period of service were awarded full pensions, being retired as 
medically unfit. Information on file indicated that this reason was of 
secondary importance and that, had the primary reasons been recog' 
nized, contributions amounting to some $11,000 would have been 
repaid instead of annuities having a present value of about $85,000 
being awarded. In addition, each of the servicemen received the 
special benefit paid to members released because of integration of 
the Forces. Pending release, the servicemen attended extensive 
courses in electronic data processing and programming and retired to 
continue in that field of employment in the public service and m 
industry. In each case the new employment was begun on the first 
day of terminal leave which was approximately three months before 
release date. Had the servicemen been granted voluntary releases, 
they would have received a return of pension contributions as noted 
above, with no entitlement to the special benefit.
Four servicemen were awarded full pensions, having been retired 
compulsorily as medically unfit, with annuities having a presen 
value of $129,000 and special benefits amounting to $14,260. The first> 
a serviceman 32 years of age with 13 years service, over-weight f°r 
four years, presumably was unable to regain normal fitness. In tiie 
second case, although the Service medical consultant did not consider 
that the officer’s condition warranted a release on medical ground , 
he felt that departure from the Service to satisfy his desire to return 
to farming together with adjustment of his marital problems worn 
bring rapid improvement. In the third case, the serviceman did n° 
require hospitalization and active therapy and it would appear tha 
the reason for the termination of engagement was unsatisfactory 
service. The fourth serviceman, aged 26 years, was released 3 
disabled after serving ten years although the real reason appeared to 
be that he was not advantageously employable due to restrict6 
learning ability and a desire to be released to accept civifi311
employment.

r
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3. Two servicemen of equivalent rank with comparable service and 
military records were retired with materially different benefits. In 
one case, an airman was recommended for release on medical 
grounds in spite of the fact that a personal assessment report at the 
same time recommended his promotion. He was awarded benefits 
having a present value of $22,000. In the other case, a leading 
seaman was considered disabled by the medical authorities, but the 
Service Pension Board determined release to be voluntary and he 
was given a return of contributions of $2,060.
The Department is endeavouring to achieve a system under which 

the entitlement to all pensions will be specific. If this were possible it 
would eliminate the considerations of the Pension Board which is now 
responsible for establishing reasons for release. However, no action has 
yet been taken to revise the present system as recommended by the 
Public Accounts Committee (see Appendix 1, item 21).

The Chairman: Now, how would it be if we discussed it now and then we 
will not discuss paragraph 85 when we are dealing with the 1965 report?

Mr. Henderson: I would just conclude, Mr Chairman, by saying that I 
have been trying to find out what the department was doing about this. The 
Minister of National Defence wrote to me, on March 5, 1965, particularly on this 
paragraph, and he gave me precisely the same explanation I quoted to you in 
respect of the previous paragraphs.

The Chairman: Would there be any questions directed to Brigadier Lawson 
of the Pension Board at this time by the members of the Committee?

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Well, Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to ask 
this question first: I would like to know whether or not the department is 
making any progress in this direction, and, in addition, to make the point that I 
think the pension should be specific. I do not think the matter of conduct should 
interfere with a man’s pension. I think that should be a matter of legal right 
and I do not think conduct should enter into it. If you serve so many years you 
should be entitled to a certain pension.

I think they have had the same trouble in industry, of pensions being 
contingent on good conduct, such as a man taking part in no strikes, and this 
sort of thing and, in the end it comes back to haunt them. They make one 
mistake and they do themselves out of a pension for life.

I would rather see all pensions put on a legal basis and have nothing to do 
With conduct. If a man is guilty of misconduct and he is let out of his job, I 
think he should take the pension to which he has contributed and to which he is 
Qualified, up to that time.

Mr. Bigg: While we are making suggestions to the Pension Board for 
improvement, there are certain rather strange anomalies in the Pension Act 
concerning the mounted police and the armed forces.

If you served in the mounted police, then went overseas in the army on 
active service, and returned to the mounted police after the war you would get 
entirely different treatment than if you did the reverse. If you left the army in 
1939 and went into the mounted police and then went back into the army after 
the war, you would get a full pension, but not the other way around.
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It is a very peculiar anomaly that one should suffer for going into active 
service. I would suggest that there be preferential treatment for active ser­
vice, but, as a matter of fact, this is not the case. There have been some 
adjustments made to this but they are not retroactive. Therefore, in some cases, 
some people are getting double the pension that other people are receiving for 
exactly the same service, and in my opinion, for less meritorious service.

That is quite apart from the point, also, that I think all pensions should be 
based to some extent, on the cost of living. Men who retired from the Mounted 
Police, say, in 1910, are getting along on perhaps $40 a month. The man with 
the same amount of service today may get $400 a month. It does not add up.

If this is a review of efforts to integrate all pensions from the Crown with 
the Canada Pension Plan, I think some of these anomalies could well be looked 
into right now and straighten the whole thing up across the board.

The Chairman: Mr. Lawson, do you have a brief observation you would 
like to make on this point?

Mr. Lawson: I have no observation to make, Mr. Chairman, on the 
suggestion that pensions should be increased to tie in with the cost of living, 
desirable as that suggestion might be.

On the other point, it is unfortunate; we make amendments from time to 
time but we cannot make them retroactive. There must be a cut-off date 
somewhere, and it is unfortunate that some people do not get the benefit of the 
amendments where others do. But this I think, is inevitable in all legislation.

Mr. Bigg: I think as legislators we could take a very hard look at this 
situation.

The Chairman: Mr. Bigg, I think the veterans committee will handle this 
case of pensions do you not think?

Mr. Henderson: Again, Mr. Chairman, this was a case where the commit­
tee took note, two years ago, that the Department of National Defence was 
making this study in an endeavour to achieve a system under which the 
entitlement to all pensions would be specific which, if this were possible, would 
eliminate the considerations of the Pension Board which is now responsible f°* 
establishing reasons for release. It requested me to advise it in due course o 
any action taken to revise the present system. I therefore take it you worn 
wish to have me continue to follow this and to keep the House advised.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, we did not get an answer to 
the question of whether or not the department were making progress in this 
direction and, if so, what progress they were making.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, on this subject, the comments that I made befor6 
really apply. We had proceeded with a study to see what administrative systeid 
we could introduce that would eliminate the necessity for the Pension Boar 
reviewing the cases, and in effect, determining the reason for retirement.

Now, this is obviously affected by the nature itself of your pension plan- 
When it became evident that we would have to review the whole of the pensi°n 
plan after we had determined what changes, if any, were desirable in *e 
personnel planning arrangements, following integration, we stopped the stu J 
there. We will take it up again when we look at the whole picture.
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Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): In connection with pensions, could we ask 
if the Deputy Minister has any comments to make on the desirability of 
retaining the provisions concerning conduct or misconduct?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I do not really have any comment on this. There are 
quite a number of considerations that enter into it. I have a personal sympathy 
with the kind of statement you made, that a pension ought not be related to 
conduct, but I think there are other factors which have to be taken into account, 
from a disciplinary point of view. If any change were made in this, I think it 
would have to be a change that applies across the board, not only to military 
forces, but in all of the pension plans applying to the public service.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : I was just wondering if the service pension board have 
some criteria that they apply to all cases across the board. Or do you look into 
each case on its own merit?

Mr. Lawson: Mr. Chairman, we examine some 6,500 cases a year. Most of 
these cases fall into clear cut categories and require very little attention. But 
each case that is not in one of those very clear cut categories, is looked at 
separately. We have certain well established principles that we apply in all 
cases, but there are always difficult borderline cases, of course. It is inevitable.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Does the Advocate General feel that tying 
pensions to conduct is a desirable feature?

Mr. Lawson: The only thing I can say in answer to that, Mr. Chairman, is 
that I am also Judge Advocate General as well as chairman of the Pension 
Board, and I think I can say, in all fairness, that we have the best disciplined 
armed forces of any country in the world. I feel that provisions of our Pension 
Act do have a real bearing on the very high standard of discipline we are able 
to maintain.

Mr. Bigg: On this point, Mr. Chairman, I hesitate to say that it was because 
of any punitive part of the pension scheme. I think it is because Canadians, 
generally, have in their character a very high standard of public service and 
also because the punitive part of any pension plan lands very heavily on 
dependents.

There are very few soldiers who worry too much about their own security, 
even in later life. But, when it affects the pension rights of their widows and 
families, about the only thing you could say that prevents them from suicide is 
because they have to stick around and make sure their dependents are not 
deserted. Many times I am afraid, in the armed services, a man’s own character 
Perhaps suffers somewhat, due to his service, and dependents who have stayed 
With him throughout his 20 or 25 years of active life are very, very seriously 
affected when he is cut off from pension rights.

If there is going to be an amendment at all, I would certainly say that a 
man’s widow or his children should not be affected by any faults of his. This 
may sound very gallant, but that is my opinion.

Mr. Lawson: On that point, Mr. Chairman, may I point out that the pen­
sions of widows and children are not affected by these punitive provisions, they 
get the full pension to which they would have been entitled.

24575—3
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Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Yes, but they are not entitled to it. All my cases 
must be borderline cases.

The Chairman: I think you have sympathy in that respect, Mr. McLean.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, would not these be rare exceptions? You would 

not have too many cases where you would have to apply regulations in respect f 
of conduct?

Mr. Lawson: Oh, these are exceptions. Yes; they are quite rare, very rare 
indeed. This happens only when a man is discharged for misconduct after he 
really misconducts himself, or when he is inefficient and does not try to do a 
job. These are exceptions.

The Chairman: Paragraph No. 66. Mr. Lefebvre, just before you leave, I 
will say that we will cover about two more then we will recess and meet at 3.30 
or after orders of the day, so that we can attempt to complete with the 
Department of National Defence.

All right; paragraph No. 66.
66. Questionable pensionable service. Under section 5 (b) (ii) of the 

Canadian Forces Superannuation Act, British Service members who, after 
a career in that Service, transfer to the Canadian Forces are permitted, on 
payment of contributions, to count full-time war and peace service in the 
United Kingdom Forces as pensionable on retirement from the Canadian 
Forces.

It is the practice to allow such members to include in their pensiona­
ble service time served as “boy” (under 18 years of age) in the United 
Kingdom Forces, although this type of service is not pensionable under 
British Service rules. In 11 of some 24 instances noted in the audit, 
pensionable service was increased by at least three years and the 
resulting pensions were materially increased as a consequence of includ­
ing “boy” service.

Mr. Henderson: Here we can take paragraph 66 of the 1964 report and also 
paragraph 86 of my 1965 report, and dispose of them both.

86. Questionable period of service included when determining Pen' 
sion benefit. During the year six cases were noted in which officers and 
men released on pension had been credited with service dating in one 
case from the age of nine and in five other cases from ages eleven an 
twelve.

File documentation in respect of the early service was fragmentary, 
statutory declarations being accepted. In response to an Audit 
query about the officer whose service began at age nine, departments 
officers replied that while enlistment at this age was contrary to regul3' 
tions, the officer had not been discharged as being under age an 
consequently they were satisfied that he had served. In addition, they 
noted that the review board had agreed that the time claimed was in faC 
valid and since the officer had elected to contribute to the Canadian 
Forces Superannuation Account he was eligible to count the service a 
pensionable.
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In our opinion the acceptance of such service for pension purposes is 
unrealistic and an abuse of the pension privilege.

In paragraph 66 we explain the practices that have been followed, of 
allowing members who transferred to the Canadian forces from the United 
Kingdom forces to include in their pensionable service, time served as a “boy”, 
that is under 18 years of age, although this type of service is not pensionable 
under British service rules.

In paragraph 86 of the 1965 report, that is the paragraph in which six cases 
are mentioned where officers and men released on pension had been credited 
with pensionable service dating, in one case, from the age of nine and in five 
other cases from the ages of eleven and twelve.

Members of the Committee may recall that these cases were discussed some 
months ago in the House, at which time the Minister of National Defence, when 
he was confirming the correctness of the facts I had given, provided the names 
of the pensioners concerned. As both are in a rather similar category, I thought 
you might want to consider them together.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, I would just like to say that I 
served in the armed forces when I was 11 and 12 years old.

Mr. Bigg: It is my understanding that the militia service is counted for at 
half rate. I do not know whether or not this is true, but I know that when we 
Were in the cadets at school, this was considered militia service and, in some 
cases, it was continuous on into the armed forces. It is the only way that I can 
explain this. Perhaps there is another explanation for it.

Mr. Armstrong: Half the militia service is counted, under the Pension 
Act which applied up until, I think, 1946 or 1947. Under the present act—the 
Canadian Forces Superannuation Act—one quarter of the time is counted.

Mr. Bigg: There was a provision, though, that employed service was—
Mr. Armstrong: Cadet service time is not counted, only militia service.
Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Mr. Chairman, were these service personnel able to 

Prove to the satisfaction of the pension board that they had served from the age 
°f nine?

Mr. Armstrong: I think I might ask the Judge Advocate General to give 
you the evidence that was available. They certainly did satisfy us that they in 
*act served, and that, of course, entitled them to count the service.

Mr. Lawson: In all these cases, Mr. Chairman, I have looked into the 
evidence available and in each case mentioned by the Auditor General there is 
yffiat I considered to be ample, and very clear evidence that these men did serve 
during the time they claimed.

The evidence is largely from the records of the militia units of which they 
°laimed to have served, or if these records were not available, we have 
statutory declarations from at least two officers of the unit. In every case, we 
have that type of evidence.

Mr. Bigg: At the age of nine? How could you serve at the age of nine?
Mr. Lawson: Well, at the time in question, 13 was the minimum age, but 

°Uce a man gets in and he serves, that service counts under the act. If you look
24575—3i
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at the terms of the act, you will see that there is no way we could exclude that 
service. The fact that he was under age does not exclude him counting that 
time.

Mr. Bigg: Oh, this is a case of a large boy of nine claiming he was 13, is it?
Mr. Lawson: In that particular case, yes. C
Mr. Bigg: Oh, I see.
Mr. Noble: Might I ask what would be the duties of a boy of 13 in the 

army?
Mr. Lawson: Well, of course, this is not so today. I am speaking, now, °f 

the period before the war.
Mr. Noble: But even at that time.
Mr. Lawson: A drummer boy, buglers, signallers, and so on.
Mr. Noble: Oh, I see.
Mr. Bigg: A drummer boy in the militia? 
The Chairman: I think probably he is right.
Mr. Bigg: I was in at the age of eight, myself.
The Chairman: There is a difference of opinion here between the Judge 

Advocate General’s report and what Mr. Henderson has said.
Mr. Henderson: I should like to comment on what the Judge Advocate 

General has said. The file documentation, as is stated in the note, was 
fragmentary, and that is doubtless why statutory declarations were accepted 
that they had indeed served from age nine. I do not think that the department 
was able to establish that they had in fact served. They accepted the statutory 
declarations. Is that not correct?

Mr. Lawson: It is true, Mr. Chairman. What happened at the beginning °f 
the war was that when these militia regiments were mobilized, it was a mad 
rush and many records were lost and there just are no records available. # 
there were records available, of course we would go to those records, but in 
cases where there are no records, then we will accept a statutory declaration by 
the man himself plus a declaration from the commanding officer of the unit, n 
he is still available—not dead. If he is not available then we require a statutory 
declaration from at least two officers of the unit who were serving at that time>
and who are prepared to swear that the man did serve.

Mr. Bigg: I can state from personal experience that it is possible that^ 
child of eight or nine can serve with a militia unit, because I did so myself 
Prince Albert, with the Prince Albert volunteers. It is too far back now 
remember distinctly, but we took some of our codes as boy signallers.

Mr. Armstrong: I gather that the Judge Advocate General gave y°u * , 
actual documentation on which, in some of these cases, the service was accep 
I imagine you have it there.

The Chairman: The one with respect to the boy who was nine? Is that th 
one that you are most interested in?
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Mr. Lawson: I have them all here but I do not have the ages. Oh, yes, 
regarding Wing Commander Taylor; I will just read the statement I have here, 
Mr. Chairman, if I may. It reads as follows:

With regard to the N.P.A.M. service from July 8, 1927 to June 14, 
1937, the R.C.A.F. pension section attempted from 1944 to 1949 to obtain 
verification of the service in question, and, after the best evidence which 
could be procured was obtained the matter was referred to the Judge 
Advocate General for an opinion as to whether the statutory declaration 
submitted by Wing Commander Taylor, together with supporting decla­
ration by Mr. Blower, formerly a major and company commander of the 
Battleford Light Infantry, and well acquainted with the Taylor family, 
constituted sufficient proof of the N.P.A.M. service for pension purposes. 
Both these statutory declarations are on file and attest the fact that Wing 
Commander Taylor enlisted in the Battleford Light Infantry in June 1927 
as a bugler.

Wing Commander Taylor’s statutory declaration states that he ob­
tained a discharge certificate from the Battleford Light Infantry for the 
purpose of enlisting in the R.C.A.F. in June 1937, but that this certificate 
has since been lost.

Mr. Blower’s statutory declaration states he was company com­
mander of the Battleford Light Infantry at the camp in Prince Albert, 
Saskatchewan, and that Walter G. Taylor was present during the full 
period, from July 8, 1927 and, to the best of his knowledge and belief, 
Taylor was a member of the same unit until he was discharged in June 
1937.

The Judge Advocate General expressed the opinion that the above 
statutory declarations could be accepted as evidence of service if there 
were no other departmental documents proving the same and, as a result, 
this service was included in the pensionable term.

Mr. Bigg: I only have one more observation to make and that is, I do know 
there were times when most units were paid according to the number of men on 
the payroll. They had a certain mess allowance and goodness knows what. It 
hiay well have been the practice to enlist boys, well knowing them to be under 
age, in order to keep up these rolls. But, to include this type of “Boy” service is, 
I think, really stretching the Pension Act and the concept of pensions.

Although I am not criticizing the acceptance of this statutory regulation, 
1 certainly think that we should be very alert not to have horses on the payroll 
°r boys attached to units merely for accounting purposes.

Mr. Lawson: May I say, Mr. Chairman, that today, of course, the minimum 
ehlistment age is 16 and that we do require birth certificates. In the old days 
birth certificates were not always available and certainly a different policy was 
*h force.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Brigadier Lawson if that 
statutory declaration was taken for the purpose of determining the pension 
status or was it taken for the purpose of establishing the amount of service.

Mr. Lawson: It is taken to prove the service but, of course, this has a 
^ajor effect on the pension status.
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Mr. Ballard: I think at one time, long service medals, for example, were 
granted as a result of so much service in the N.P.A.M. plus active service and 
some members of the service would obtain statutory declarations for this 
purpose. I was wondering if this particular one was initially obtained for the 
purpose of long service or was it obtained after the application for pension was 
made? f

Mr. Lawson: No; this would have been taken long before he became 
pensionable. This is elective service. When he elected, he would elect to count 
this service and, at that time we would try to obtain proof of the service so that 
his file would be complete, with the proof of service on it. This would be long 
before his retirement to pension, of course.

Mr. Bigg: I think that I would just like to add this; I am not against the 
principle of paying boys for their actual service, regardless of how young they 
were, providing they did it because, in both World War I and World War H> 
many teenage boys lied about their age. I would not have this technical fault 
negated by their active service overseas so we do not want to be too rigid in 
this matter and say we are going to stop a man’s pension because he was not in 
fact of the legitimate age of 16 or 18.

The Chairman : Any further questions? One item and then we will recess. 
Paragraph 92 which is on page 50. This has to do with “Unpaid accounts 

carried forward to a new fiscal year.” The first item has to do with the 
Department of National Defence.

92. Unpaid accounts carried forward to new fiscal year. Four in- 
stances were noted in which appropriations for 1963-64 were insufficient 
to meet accounts coming in course of payment in that year. In each 
instance Parliament had been asked for supplementary appropriations 
and these were granted by means of Supplementary Estimates (E)—the 
final supplementary estimates of the year. However, the appropriations 
requested were substantially less than the amounts required for payment 
of the accounts coming in course of payment at the end of the year. The 
departments concerned are:

2.

department of national defence.—Included in the 1963-64 Suppl6' 
mentary Estimates (E) was an amount of $13,653,000 (Vote 35e) f°r 
Operation and Maintenance, Royal Canadian Air Force. This amount 
was substantially short of the amount actually required and accounts 
amounting to more than $12 million had to be carried forward and 
paid out of funds appropriated for the year 1964-65. 
department of mines and technical surveys (Dominion Coal 
Board).—Although the 1963-64 Supplementary Estimates (E) includ' 
ed an additional amount of $3,914,600 (Vote 140e) for payments in 
connection with movements of coal, this proved to be substantially 
short of the amount required to meet claims that came in course °t 
payment to the close of the fiscal year. The result was that claim5 
amounting to $2,380,000 had to be carried forward to the fiscal yeaI
1964-65.

3. department of finance.—The 1963-64 Supplementary EstimataS 
(E) included an additional amount of $2,800,000 (Vote . ^ 
for payment of municipal grants. This amount was insufficl

»
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to cover the remaining grants which were approved for payment in 
the fiscal year 1963-64 and grants totalling $806,503 had to be 
carried forward for payment in 1964-65.

4. DEPARTMENT OF NATIONAL HEALTH AND WELFARE.---Included in the
1963-64 Supplementary Estimates (E) was an amount of 
$2,000,000 (Vote 25e) for the payment of hospital construction 
grants to the Provinces and Territories. This amount was insufficient 
to meet the remaining claims in the year under review, and claims 
totalling $458,000 had to be carried forward and paid out of funds 
appropriated for the year 1964-65.
Another charge properly applicable to the fiscal year under review 

but which has been carried forward as part of the current assets item 
“Departmental working capital advances and revolving funds” is a 
balance of $2,555,000, included in “Agricultural Commodities Stabiliza­
tion Account” balance of $63,954,000 (see paragraph 97). This is the 
amount by which the $122,235,000 provided by Appropriation Act, No. 2, 
1964, Department of Agriculture Vote 172e, the final supplementary 
estimates of the year, fell short of meeting the loss of $124,790,000 
(exclusive of administrative costs and the estimated cost of major 
services provided without charge by government departments) ex­
perienced by the Agricultural Stabilization Board during the year under 
review (see also paragraph 163).

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, the unpaid accounts carried forward to new 
fiscal years is a standard paragraph in each report so we might also deal with 
paragraph 92(1) of the 1964 report and paragraph 140 in the 1965 report.

140. Unpaid accounts carried forward to new fiscal year. Appro­
priations for the Department of National Defence for 1964-65 were 
insufficient to provide for all accounts coming due for payment in the 
course of the year, and accounts totalling $7,308,000 were held over to be 
paid out of 1965-66 funds, as follows:

Vote 15 Royal Canadian Navy ........................$ 1,932,000
Vote 20 Canadian Army .................................... 493,000
Vote 25 Royal Canadian Air Force ............... 4,694,000
Vote 35 Defence Research and Development 189,000

$ 7,308,000

Supplementary Estimates (D)—the final supplementary estimates of 
the year—included an amount of $7 million for the Canadian Army which 
was not quite sufficient to cover all outstanding accounts. No final 
supplementary estimates were requested for the other Services.

Funds provided by Vote 15 of the Department of Citizenship and 
Immigration for administration and operation of the Indian Affairs 
Branch were insufficient for payment of all accounts of the year, and 
accounts totalling $1,080,000 were held over for payment in 1965-66. No 
supplementary estimate was requested.

Another charge applicable to the year but which has been carried 
forward as part of the current assets item “Departmental working capital
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advances and revolving funds” is an amount of $1,318,000, included in 
the balance of $23,152,000 in the “Agricultural Commodities Stabilization 
Account” (see paragraph 171). This is the amount by which the $57,- 
118,000 provided by Appropriation Act No. 2, 1965, Department of 
Agriculture Vote 80d, the final Supplementary Estimates of the year, fell 
short of meeting the balance of the loss of $2,555,000 brought forward 
from the previous year and the loss of $55,881,000 (exclusive of the 
estimated cost of major services provided without charge by government 
departments) experienced by the Agricultural Stabilization Board during 
the year (see also paragraph 213).

Both these paragraphs contain items related to the Department of National 
Defence. You will see that in 1964 the item constitutes one of the four cases 
noted, in which appropriations for that year were insufficient to meet amounts 
coming in course of payment in that year.

Here we explain how an amount of $13,653,000 was included in the 1963-64 
supplementary estimates (E) for operation and maintenance of the Royal 
Canadian Air Force. This amount was substantially short of the amount actually 
required and accounts amounting to more than $12 million had to be carried 
forward and paid out of founds appropriated for the next year.

Again, in 1965, in paragraph 140, there are appropriations to the Depart­
ment of National Defence which were insufficient to provide for all accounts 
coming due for payment in the course of the year and you will see that accounts 
totalling $7,308,000 were held over to be paid out of the next year’s funds.

You did discuss these two paragraphs in relation to other cases on May 12, 
and there were some considerations given to the difficulties which can be in­
curred when estimating requirements of this size over a long period of time, 
and it certainly would have been a factor in these cases. Nevertheless, as was 
pointed out then, the incurring of such obligations is the equivalent of over­
spending of appropriations and therefore cannot be lightly dismissed.

You will recall that I was away during the period of that discussion, but 1 
have been most interested to note that the question was asked in the Commit­
tee, on May 12, whether it would not be informative to members of Parliament 
and the public, if in the Public Accounts of Canada there were included a 
listing by departments and appropriations of all amounts remaining unpaid at 
the year’s end for any reason whatsoever.

I think both Mr. Muir and Mr. Thomas endorsed this idea. The Chairman 
said that he thought this was a point well taken and that it might become a 
recommendation of the Committee. It seems to me that this could be very 
readily done, and it might be a very desirable procedure to follow.

The Chairman: Mr. Armstrong, you have heard this remark. We had 3 
little discussion on this. It could be a question of underestimating or overspend­
ing. Maybe you would like to enlarge on this.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, Mr. Chairman, in the Department of National 
Defence, of course, our obligations always exceed by a very large amount, our 
actual cash appropriations from year to year because we must obligate on 
contracts over a longer period of time.
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Obviously it is undesirable to have unpaid accounts at the end of the year, 
but occasionally we simply do not have our estimates so accurate. I suppose the 
one way we can ensure overcoming this would be to have a margin in the cash 
estimate, beyond which we think we are absolutely safe. It is very difficult to 
ensure absolute precision in these accounts.

Mr. Bigg: I do not know the history of this type of overexpenditure but if 
unexpected expenditures, such as snow removal in March, keep recurring, I 
wonder if the department could not budget for 13 appropriations instead of 12 
so that at the year’s end when this type of overexpenditure or underpayment 
occurs, we could at least keep our books straight by keeping some kind of 
reserve fund on hand for this type of emergency.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, if I may say so, what we have at this present 
moment, of course, is a consolidation of votes. For information, the votes are 
broken down by the same kind of detail but the actual appropriation is a single 
appropriation for the defence forces.

For example, in 1963-64, while these accounts went unpaid in one vote, we 
lapsed funds of about $34 million in other votes. Now, as it stands, we could 
simply transfer the money and pay these accounts, then we would not have 
unpaid bills.

Mr. Bigg: It is not then liable to recur after a few years?
Mr. Armstrong: Under the present system, it is most unlikely to happen.
Mr. Ballard: At that time, though, the votes were not transferable?
Mr. Armstrong: No; these were separate votes.
The Chairman: Do I understand that in 1963-64 the amount of $12 million 

Was for several accounts? Accounts amounting to more than $12 million had to 
be carried forward and paid out of funds appropriated for the year 1964-65. 
Was that $12 million for several accounts or was it for this particular one of 
operation and maintenance, Royal Canadian Air Force?

Mr. Armstrong: It would be several accounts, but under the operations and 
maintenance vote. If you mean individual accounts, yes.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, I think there is every reason to believe 
that you probably underestimate the first estimate, although I always thought 
the departments overestimated, but this clearly shows that you have not. But, in 
a supplementary estimate where it comes in later in the year, surely the 
department should have been able to bring their figures up to the point where 
they can fairly well estimate it almost to the dollar.

The Chairman: I think you are thinking the same as I am; why was there 
Hot a supplementary estimate to take care of this.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : That is right.
Mr. Armstrong: Well, there was a supplementary estimate, but unfortu­

nately it was not enough.
The Chairman: A misplacement.
Mr. Armstrong: That is right.
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Mr. Bigg: Could we have a little breakdown on what type of item this is? Is 
it snow removal and that type of thing, or not? Something unpredictable?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, this unfortunately just gives list of primaries which 
is not very helpful to you, but it covers a tremendous number of items.

Mr. Bigg: Are they very large items, like a million dollars?
Mr. Armstrong: Well, let us see, the largest item is a million dollars in the 

primary 44 which covers the operation of various contractual agreements such 
as the Mid Canada Line, for example, which is operated under contract. And 
there is a whole series of these things. From this statement, I cannot tell you 
the items precisely.

Mr. Bigg: Being under contract, you would think these would be the very 
ones on which an accurate estimate could be made.

The Chairman: Gentlemen, it is time to adjourn. This is a complicated 
subject. How would it be if Mr. Armstrong made a list of these things to satisfy 
the Committee? We could question this item the first thing after dinner. Maybe 
he could break them down so we could see why you missed out on those.

The meeting will be recessed until after Orders of the Day, when we will 
hope to conclude with the Department of National Defence. The meeting will be 
resumed in Room No. 209 across the way.

AFTERNOON SITTING 
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Monday, June 9, 1966.
• (3.30 p.m.)

The Chairman: Well, gentlemen, we will come to order. I know there are 
others on their way. We recessed at noon hour. Mr. Armstrong agreed to bring 
to the Committee’s attention some of those amounts that appeared in Item 
No. 1 which made it necessary for the department to have unpaid bills at the 
end of the year, and also fail to submit them in supplementary estimates. Mr- 
Armstrong, would you give us some of the larger items that make up this 
amount of $12,000,000?

Mr. Armstrong: Mr. Chairman, referring to the 1963-64 Report.
The Chairman: Gentlemen, we are on page 50 of the 1964 Report, page 50, 

Item 1.
1. department of national defence.—Included in the 1963-64 Suppl6' 

mentary Estimates (E) was an amount of $13,653,000 (Vote 35e) f°r 
Operation and Maintenance, Royal Canadian Air Force. This amount 
was substantially short of the amount actually required and accounts 
amounting to more than $12 million had to be carried forward and 
paid out of funds appropriated for the year 1964-65.

Mr. Arsmtrong: The situation in these circumstances is simply that when 
the funds are exhausted the Treasury, of course, are simply unable to pay any 
further accounts against the 1963-64 year. Therefore, the amount of money
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involved covers a very wide range of items. For the information of the 
Committee I could, perhaps, give you some idea by running down the list.

Salaries and wages, $105,819, Travel expenses, $147,375, Telephones, tele­
grams and other communications services, $402,831; Municipal and public 
utility services, $442,200; operation of establishments and provision of facilities 
by contract, $1,088,687; fuel for heating, cooking, power generating units, $446,- 
343; gasoline, oil and lubricants, $858,934; maintenance of spare parts for aircraft 
and engines, $520,857; spare parts for electronic and communication equipment 
$384,265; repair, overhaul and modification and conversion of equipment $6 - 
499,199.

Does that give you an idea? This covers really a whole range of the kind of 
expenditures and charge for this group.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Armstrong. Are there any questions? If not, 
I have one. Mr. Winch?

Mr. Winch: Well it seems that telephones and heating should be something 
which could be very readily estimated?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, as I am explaining, what happens here is that when 
we run out of money—we underestimated what we needed by the $12 million or 
whatever the figure was here—we simply then stop paying accounts. So those 
accounts remain unpaid and are charged to the new year.

Mr. Bigg: So you knew what you were going to have to pay, say, for the 
telephone; you knew it was going to be around $400,000 but you just did not 
have the money to cover it at all.

Mr. Armstrong: If you do not have the money bills are not paid.
Mr. Tardif: Do you mean that $12 million was underestimated?
Mr. Armstrong: Yes, that was the figure. That, incidentally, is a relatively 

small percentage of the bulk. I think it would run about 2 per cent.
The Chairman: Mr. Tardif, just to bring you up to date, when we recessed 

at noon, the Committee asked Mr. Armstrong to give us the larger items that 
would be made up of this $12 million of which they underestimated and, 
following Mr. Bigg’s question, all those first items are usual run-of-the-mill 
items and it would not be unusual to estimate them very closely, I would think. 
This one for repairs and modification of $6 million can you elaborate on that, 
because that is a tremendous amount of money, and you must have known that 
repairs or modifications were coming up and how is it that there was a big one 
of $6 million.

Mr. Armstrong: Well, this particular item covers the overhaul of aircraft 
and other equipment. Total expenditures in that area probably would have run, 
I think in 1963-64, in the area of $100 million. I have not got the figures before 
me, but they are very large. As I say, I think it is a little difficult in this 
particular area, to say that the underestimate was in relation to this, at it 
turned out to be the figure for bills that were not paid.

The Chairman: Why was not a big amount like this in your supplementary 
estimates?
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Mr. Armstrong: Well, I think it is a little hard to say. It was simply an 
underestimate of what we needed, that is all.

The Chairman: Even in the supplementary ?
Mr. Armstrong: We went for a supplementary estimate, as I recall, of $12 

million or $13 million. Yes, we got this supplementary estimate of $13,653,000 f 
and in the final analysis it has turned out to be short by $11,700,000.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : Mr. Chairman, that was the point I was trying to make 
this morning, that the underestimate was in the supplementary, and that that is 
a 50 per cent underestimate. It may be 2 per cent of the total estimate but when 
the supplementaries come in later—

Mr. Tardif: Do I understand there are $13,653,000 of supplementaries plus 
the $12 million or is that $12 million part of the $13,653,000?

The Chairman: Mr. Long, would you like to speak to this?
Mr. G. R. Long (Assistant Auditor General)): The $13 million was in the 

final supplementary estimates of the year. Looking at it now, that should have 
been $25 million.

Mr. Tardif : It is a little confusing because, in the report, it would seem that 
the $12 million was part of the $13,653,000 whereas it is, in fact, an addition to 
it. It is actually $25 million which should have been asked for in the supple­
mentary estimates.

(microphone dead—sound cut)
Mr. Lefebvre : I think the deputy minister’s reply to Mr. Tardif was 2 per 

cent. I think you meant around 50 per cent, did you not?
Mr. Armstrong: No, the reference was to the total vote, not to the 

supplementary estimate. The vote for operations and maintenance for the 
R.C.A.F. This was a supplementary estimate of $13 million for the original vote.

Mr. Tardif: Is not the supplementary estimate a review of the need for a 
year? Would you have $12 million and just not know it at that time?

Mr. Armstrong: The final supplementary estimate is normally calculated 
about February and it is a review, yes, there is no question about that. One 
would expect it to be known. I am not suggesting one should know it. We, f°r 
some reason or other, did not calculate it correctly.

Mr. Bigg: While we are still on this point Mr. Chairman, I understand that 
part of this is going to be rather embarrassing to the department. It will be taken 
up by the question of allowing a spill over from other unused budgetary 
estimates. I think there is some danger here, perhaps; the idea, I think, of all 
budgets is to make any department go carefully in its internal housekeeping.

Mr. Armstrong: In a sense, I suppose our problem was we were probably 
being too cautious here, in our internal housekeeping. We could have sought 
more money and been less cautious. Now, we were being very cautious and vve 
did not seek anough money and, consequently, there were unpaid bills at the 
end of the year.

Mr. Tardif: Does the Department of National Defence ever ask for m°re 
money?—(sound cut)—Does that ever happen?
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Mr. Armstrong: In this particular year, in other votes we lapsed $34 
million so that our total expenditures on defence in this year, although we 
needed a supplementary estimate in this particular vote, were less than we 
actually provided for in the main estimate.

Mr. Tardif: Then there was some money, of the original estimate, that was 
not spent.

Mr. Armstrong: That is right.
Mr. Tardif: And the supplementary estimate was necessary because it had 

to be earmarked for something?
Mr. Armstrong: Because it was required in a particular vote. We were not 

legally in a position to use the money in other votes to cover this particular 
vote. As you know you cannot transfer between parliamentary votes.

The Chairman: Shall we pass on?
Mr. Bigg: I am not quite finished either. I am a little bit worried that 

perhaps we have used what you might say a gimmick in order to do something 
which was actually illegal. If you overspend one estimate which is earmarked 
and also has the additional safeguard of having the supplementary estimates to 
cover it and then you still overspend, and make it up out of the general pot, I 
think that this makes for bad general housekeeping.

Mr. Armstrong: Perhaps I should explain further. There certainly would 
be nothing illegal about anything we do in this respect, but when we proceeded 
with the integration of the headquarters we then began to move the three 
services together in a great many areas. Heretofore, we have accounted 
parliamentary votes by service, showing an operating vote and a capital vote 
for each service. This was not practical when we changed over and, consequent­
ly, we moved into a single vote for the service as a whole. But, for information 
of the House, we continued, for the time being, to break it down by service. We 
will, I expect, in another year, change that to a more informative breakdown 
than we have now. But this is a transitional period.

Mr. Tardif : Gentlemen, this is a peculiar case. Would it be much trouble to 
add that the department, of its original estimates, had not spent so many 
dollars, because otherwise this would lead you to believe that the department 
spent $25 million more than they originally expected. We were told that the 
main estimates were not all spent that year.

Mr. Long: I do not think that it was meant to be inferred that the main 
estimates were not all spent. These are the air force estimates which we are 
talking about. There were amounts which lapsed, I believe, in army and navy. 
In those days there were separate appropriations. As a matter of fact, there 
were two appropriations, I think, for each service. The subcommittee of the 
Public Accounts Committee considered last year, a new form of estimates, and 
now there is only one estimate for the three services. Therefore, before there 
will be an amount unpaid, all money for all services will have to be exhausted 
at the year end.

In our paragraph 51 in our 1965 report we mention how this revised vote 
pattern was applied. Actually, it was varied slightly from what the subcommit­
tee recommended. But this is what Mr. Armstrong means when Mr. Bigg is
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concerned about having something to put in here. It means that the three 
appropriations will be in one part. You therefore have less chance of having an 
overspending of money.

The Chairman: I think the committee would be very happy if, at the end of 
the year, not only national defence, but all departments, made a list of unpaid 
accounts, to appear in the public accounts book in each department. This would 
overcome the whole problem.

Mr. Tardif: Do you mean unpaid accounts or unspent amounts?

The Chairman: Unpaid accounts. Would this involve much work, Mr. 
Henderson?

Mr. Henderson: It would not overcome the problem exactly, Mr. Chairman, 
but such a disclosure would act as a good break, and should not involve very 
much work. The figures are known, anyway. They could just be put in and go 
in the public accounts and when you look at a department you see them. If that 
compounds itself to you, it could be the subject of a recommendation.

The Chairman: We will make a note of that and discuss it later. Just one 
other question. Concerning repairs and maintenance, if you did not have the 
money set aside to do them, is there any possibility of putting off this work 
until more estimates are made?

Mr. Armstrong: Well you see, what happens here is that these are all 
fairly long-term contracts. We have to plan these a long time in advance and 
our problem, in terms of the year to year cash, is to make an estimate of how 
many of the bills come due in that particular period. It is conceivable that one 
can go wrong. It is obviously a disadvantage to the department not to pay $11 
million worth of bills because we have to charge them to the next year and save 
it somewhere else.

Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, I think I have had some of my alarm allayed here. 
I thought, when you said “telephone account $400,000”, that this was an 
underestimate of your telephone account and not that the whole telephone 
account had remained unpaid, because there was an over-all discrepancy of 2 
per cent in your whole expenditure. I thought you meant that when you ran out 
of money the whole telephone account was left unpaid, and it looks enormous. 
Actually, you have only overspent your telephone account 2 per cent which in 
this case would be a few thousand dollars rather than $400,000.

Mr. Armstrong: It represented a fairly small proportion of that communi­
cations account, which covers a lot of fairly expensive communications.

• (4:00 p.m.)
The Chairman: I do not want to cut you off on anything, but we have a lot 

of work here to do. Page 168 of 1964, and we are on the non-productive items, 
number 2.

2. EXPENDITURES ON HOUSING PROJECTS SUBSEQUENTLY ABANDONED.—In 
1961 the Treasury Board approved in principle a proposal to enter 
into a bulk leasing arrangement with a contractor for the provision 
and operation of 50 housing units for occupancy by married Army 
personnel at Carp, Ont. The location was subsequently changed to 
Almonte, Ont. Treasury Board authority was sought to pay a utility 
allowance of $20 per month to each of the eventual tenants. HoW-



June 9, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 663

ever, the Board did not approve this proposal and in May 1963 the 
project was abandoned. In the meantime, $12,391 had been expend­
ed for purchase of land and $6,627 for costs of survey, soil investiga­
tions, and services and heating design. The land in question has since 
been turned over to Central Mortgage and Housing Corporation for 
disposal.
Similar authority was obtained in 1961 for 15 rental housing units at 
Perth, Ont. The necessary land was purchased at a cost of $7,432. 
Subsequently, when it developed that no acceptable proposal from 
entrepreneurs could be obtained except at rentals above those for 
accommodation already available in the area, the project was aban­
doned. Additional costs relating to site survey, consultant services 
and plans amounting to $381 were also absorbed. Central Mortgage 
and Housing Corporation has been asked to dispose of the land.
In 1962 the Treasury Board approved in principle a proposal to 
proceed with the development of a rental housing project of 80 units 
on a bulk lease basis at Red Deer, Alta., for occupancy by Army 
personnel. In 1963 the project was abandoned. However, expendi­
ture had been incurred for a land option, site survey and design of 
services amounting to $10,257.

Mr. Henderson: Item 2 has to do with expenditures on housing projects 
and this note, as you see, recites three leasing arrangements planned in Carp, 
Ontario, Perth, Ontario, and Red Deer, Alberta. In the case of the first two, 
something like $27,000 was spent for the purchase of land and on surveys, soil 
investigations, and so on. After they were abandoned, the land was turned over, 
in both cases, to Central Mortgage for disposal.

The third case in Red Deer, however, a similar project of 80 units, was 
abandoned a year after it was started. The expenditure incurred for a land 
option, site survey and design of services amounted to something over $10,000. 
That is the third case, Mr. Chairman. Now if the members have any questions?

The Chairman: Are there any questions from the members?
Mr. Tardif: Are the reasons given for abandoning this project?
Mr. Henderson: Non-productive expenditure.
Mr. Tardif : No, but are the reasons not given?
Mr. Armstrong: The reasons for abandoning the project at Perth and at 

Almonte were that when we sought proposals and ascertained the rents that 
Would be chargeable on the best kind of arrangement we could make, we came 
to the conclusion it would not be an advantageous proposition and, consequent­
ly, we dropped the two projects. C.M.H.C. act as our agents in this respect, both 
in acquiring the land and disposing of it, and they have been asked to dispose of 
it. They have not yet disposed of it but, in due course, they will do so and, I 
Would hope, recover a good part of this cost.

Mr. Tardif: Was it not possible, at the start, to realize this would not be 
the proper place for a housing project; before the expenditure was made?

Mr. Armstrong: It was not so much the question of price, it was the 
Question of how much rent would have to be paid.
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Mr. Tardif: Do you not figure how much rent there is going to be in 
revenue before the project is decided?

Mr. Armstrong: We estimated what we expected to get in the way of rent 
before we decided, yes. This turned out to be higher than we expected.

I should mention that with regard to Red Deer, the reason was different. 
Housing at an air force station at Penhold became available and it was not 
necessary to proceed with the planned housing project at Red Deer.

The Chairman: Number 3.
3. ADDITIONAL COST DUE TO FAULTY SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS.—-In 

April 1957 a contract for the production in Canada of 7,500 signal 
flares for the Royal Canadian Air Force at a firm price of $54,304 
was awarded by the Department of Defence Production.
Subsequent to the start of production, the contractor and the 
R.C.A.F. design authority began to find inaccuracies and conflicts in 
the drawings and specfications and as production progressed some 24 
design changes were required. Later it was determined that the 
drawings and specifications which had originated in the United 
States had never been used for production.
The cumulative effect of the design changes increased the cost and 
extended the period of production during which the product became 
obsolete for operational use.
In May 1963 the contract was terminated by reducing the quantity 
from 7,500 to 4,920 flares. The cost of the numerous design changes 
with attendant delays resulted in payment to the contractor oi 
$28,868 more than the initial firm price for $7,500 flares.

Mr. Henderson: This is a case where, after the start of production, 
inaccuracies and conflicts showed up in the drawings and specifications, to the 
point where some 24 design changes were required. The cumulative cost of 
these resulted in the payment of over $28,000 having to be made to the 
contractor in excess of the initial firm price which had been established for the 
order in the first place.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, may I again ask and I will probably get the 
same answer: What happened to the individual responsible for having drawn up 
improper specifications and drawings?

Mr. Armstrong: No individual drew up improper specifications or draW'
ings.

Mr. Tardif: There must have been somebody, Mr. Chairman, in that 
department who was responsible. Let us say there were 15 draftsmen, then there 
must be a chief of that department.

Mr. Armstrong: In this particular case the signal flares, of this type, had 
been bought in the United States, where they were made. The Department 
Defence Production thought it would be advisable to endeavour to establish 
Canadian source. The Department of National Defence asked the U.S. Navy, 
those specifications. They had the specifications for the production of the artic 
we had been getting prior to that, and the contract was let on the basis of thos 
specifications.



June 9, 1966 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 665

Now, the problem really arises out of changes that were necessary to 
adjust to the Canadian components and Canadian manufacturing methods in 
this particular area, and this gave rise, as the Auditor General has pointed out, 
to very considerable difficulties and, in fact, a really satisfactory flare was never 
produced. The 4,920 flares that were produced were used. In the meantime, 
before the contract was completed, a simpler and better flare became available 
and the contract was cancelled. But, essentially, it was the effort to establish a 
Canadian manufacturing source which gave rise to the problems.

Mr. Tardif: Can another price asked for in these particular cases be dealt 
with by the Department of Defence Production?

Mr. Armstrong : I beg your pardon?
Mr. Tardif : The prices, for instance, or the policy you wish to establish as a 

source of supply for this type of material in Canada, is that done by the 
Department of Defence Production?

Mr. Armstrong: Yes.
Mr. Tardif: Why is it then, Mr. Chairman, that they are not always 

consistent? I know of four or five cases where orders from Defence Production 
for the armed services, were given to other countries, either the United States 
or England, at an increased cost of about 8 per cent, 9 per cent or 10 per cent, 
thereby forcing local manufacturers in Canada to discontinue production.

The Chairman: I think the question before the Committee and what we 
would like to know, Mr. Armstrong, is why were not all these particulars 
assimilated, then co-ordinated, and then a decision made on whether it would 
be better to buy in the United States or Canada, what kind of a flare to buy, and 
then proceed to buy them. But it would appear, from your explanation, that you 
made up your mind to buy some flares and went off at different tangents; then 
you found you were on the wrong track and that you had cost the Canadian 
taxpayer $28,000 for changing your mind. Now, this is the sort of thing the 
Committee wants to know.

Mr. Armstrong: Mr. Chairman, the flare we were buying was the same 
flare we had bought before, as I say, from a U.S. source. Defence Production, of 
course, had bought through that source. The decision was not to change the 
flares—it was the same flare—but to produce it in Canada.

The Chairman: Well then, why was this not decided before you bought 
them?

Mr. Armstrong : Why was not—which?
The Chairman: Why did you not decide in the first place where you were 

going to buy them—either in Canada or the United States?
Mr. Armstrong : Well, the decision was to make them in Canada.
Mr. Henderson: Well, Mr. Chairman, we might be able to throw some light 

on this. I have here the submission to the Treasury Board covering the payment 
requested to the company domiciled in Canada which manufactured the flares. It 
states, among other things, that it was discovered that the drawings and 
specifications of United States origin have never even been used in production, 
that there had been extensive revision in the United States along the same lines

24575—4
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as that represented by the foregoing 24 design changes. The cumulative effect of 
all the changes had increased the cost by the figure indicated, of $28,000, and 
extended the time of production to such an extent that the product had become 
obsolescent to the R.C.A.F.

The notes we have on this state that some of the material specified in this 
United States Navy drawing had ceased to be available as much as 13 years i 
prior to this date, so that, the specifications might have been pretty ancient.

Mr. Armstrong : So far as we in the Department of National Defence are 
concerned, we are not responsible for the placing of the contract. We are 
responsible for placing the order, and for stating what we want. We were 
satisfied with the flares we were getting.

In the course of this contract which ran from 1957 until, I think, 1961 or 
1962, it is true that another flare was produced and became available which was 
a better flare than this one, and a less expensive one. In fact the Department of 
National Defence, as early as 1960, because of the very considerable difficulties 
in this contract in getting satisfactory production, suggested that we cancel the 
whole thing. But there was the desire to get some suitable production going in 
Canada and it was continued for a little while longer.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, did I hear correctly, then, that some of the 
components of this particular flare had not been available for 13 years? Did I 
hear that correctly?

Mr. Henderson: It seems that part of the drawings had ceased to be 
available for as long as 13 years before.

Mr. Tardif : Was the head of the department who decided to make the 
changes on these flares a member of the armed services or was he a civilian?

Mr. Henderson: I think, as Mr. Armstrong said, it would be the Depart­
ment of Defence Production, would that not be right?

Mr. Armstrong: He did not decide to make any changes. When it was 
decided to manufacture this in Canada, we did not have a specification for the 
flare. We got this from the United States Navy, who were the service in the 
United States who had this specification, which they had been using, and we 
used that specification.

The Chairman : Now, here is the point. In this specification you got from 
the United States, were there items specified in there that had been out of use 
or unavailable for the last 13 years?

Mr. Armstrong: Well that I do not know, quite frankly. I see the Auditor 
General says that, from the report.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, is it possible to find who was responsible for 
suggesting that the changes be made in this? Somebody must have been 
responsible for having done that.

Mr. Armstrong: I do not know what you mean by this, but as the 
production got started the contractor himself asked for changes, and one would-" 
perhaps,—expect this to happen—to fit in with his Canadian components, mate­
rials and manufacturing processes.
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Mr. Tardif: I know that I am being repetitious and I know I will probably 
end up by not getting the answer, anyhow, but what I would like to know is if 
somebody said “yes, do change”; even if the contractor suggested that in order 
to make this in Canada it would be necessary to make this and that change. 
Somebody had to say “yes we will.” I would like to know who said that. I 
would also like to know what the status of this particular individual was at that 
time; I would like to know what his status is now.

Mr. Armstrong : I really cannot answer that offhand. I know that at least 
two of the people involved in this have since retired because of this, but I could 
not tell you more, specifically in answer to your question, without checking it 
further.

The Chairman: Just before I ask Mr. Bigg, have you anyone here from the 
Department of Defence Production?

Mr. Armstrong: I do not have anyone from the Department of Defence 
Production, no.

Mr. Bigg: Do I understand that the R.C.A.F. are in close co-operation with 
these people and that from time to time they send these flares out for test 
purposes, and so forth, and when they find them not operational they come back 
with suggested changes; is that sound?

Mr. Armstrong: Yes, these are inspected.
Mr. Bigg: They are tried out periodically.
Mr. Armstrong : In May 1960, after this contract had proceeded for a little 

While, our inspection services in the Department of National Defence, because of 
the problems associated with getting an unsatisfactory article, suggested the 
best thing to do was to cancel the contract. But, as I say, in order to try a little 
harder to get this Canadian production going, it was not cancelled at this time, 
and it went on until the latter part of 1961.

Mr. Bigg: I do not know how complicated these flares are, but most army 
flares are not an extremely complicated machine. Were these people who said 
they could produce this flare not capable of producing what you might say 
almost any flare without tremendous added expense? Or did they have to 
retool? $28,000 is a considerable expenditure for minor changes of shape, colour, 
at cetera.

Mr. Armstrong: I do not know how much of the contract was involved in 
assessing tools. I do not have that breakdown. I do have a 1961 figure showing 
an increase, of $21,000 in the contract, based on the rise in labour costs. You see, 
the contract went over a long period of time. By that time it had been going for 
four years and, because of increased labour costs during that period, there was 
an increase in the contract of $21,000.

Mr. Bigg: This $21,000 is a very large percentage of $28,000 and it seems to 
hie that what we are getting here is a little double talk; that these design 
changes were not, then, the major cause of it at all. It could be, perhaps, a 
Question of this company having found out that, because of increased labour 
costs, they could not produce the flare for the contract price and so using this 
device of talking about changes in design they absorbed $21,000 of labour costs.

24575—41
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Mr. Armstrong: Well, you should appreciate the fact that the contract was 
eventually cancelled. So that it was awarded at $54,000 and eventually in­
creased by, I think, $28,000. It was for 7,500 flares, but only about 5,000 were 
actually completed. I think we estimated that if we had completed the contract 
which, to us would not have made sense, it would have cost us $95,000.

Mr. Tardif: Just a short remark. I do not think this applies here, because it 
was definitely stated that this was a firm price. A firm price does not go up 
because of this or that reason.

The Chairman: Mr. Long, I think, might throw a little more light on this. 
Mr. McLean first, though.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): On these original plans for the flares obtained 
from the United States Navy, there were 24 changes, did I understand, Mr- 
Henderson? Were the plans that we got, obtained after or before the 24 
changes?

Mr. Armstrong: We made the 24 changes.
Mr. Henderson: We have just been reading a little more closely the 

submission to the Treasury Board by the Department of Defence Production 
and there is another paragraph which I did not cover before, Mr. McLean. Will 
you just speak to that, Mr. Long?

Mr. Long: Mr. Chairman, the trouble here was that they got hold of some 
plans that apparently would not produce what they wanted and it turned out 
that there had been changes in the United States but nothing from those plans 
had ever been produced before they brought them in.

The explanation to Treasury Board, I think, covers it quite clearly. These 
were not changes being suggested by the air force; these were changes being 
suggested by the contractor to try and produce what they wanted. So subse­
quent to the start of production the contractor and the design authority began 
to discover inaccuracies and conflicts within the stipulated design drawings and 
specifications, and corrective measures were instituted by design change proce­
dure. These were minor in the beginning and were of such a nature that the 
contractor and the Royal Canadian Air Force were hopeful that a satisfactory 
product would be forthcoming. However, as the program progressed, problem5 
became more serious and a total of 24 design changes were, in the end, 
required. The contractor did not request additional costs for each of these 
changes as they occurred, in the belief that each one was the last and that, 
individually, they would not amount to too much.

The Chairman: Now Mr. McLean, you have some questions?
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): What I was trying to get at, is that when we got 

the original plans we proceeded on the original plans and there were already 
changes in those plans. Did we have the changes when we got the plans?

Mr. Long: It is stated here that subsequently it was discovered that the 
drawings and specifications of United States origin had never been used f°r 
production; that there had been extensive revision, in the United States, alonj’ 
the same lines as that represented by the foregoing 24 design changes. They ha 
the same trouble with them but apparently had not solved the problems.
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Mr. McLean (Charlotte) : How could we get the original flare and use it, if 
it had never been produced in the United States?

Mr. Long: That is a good question.
The Chairman : There are a lot of questions to be answered on this one, I 

think. We will hear from Mr. Armstrong meanwhile, but I think we will have 
to have the Department of Defence Production here before we can settle this. 
There are other items where the Department of Defence Production will be 
required and we may defer these until Mr. Armstrong brings a Defence 
Production official with him at our next meeting.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Mr. Chairman, I would think, from the look of this, 
that actually they were trying to produce an experimental model. The American 
navy had never used the drawings because, subsequently, they too had to 
re-design. I think the fault lies with the person who was sold the bill of goods 
by the navy in the first place, and then had to pay for the experimenting to 
make it work.

The Chairman: In other words, why did we not benefit by their mistakes.
Mr. Tardif : Mr. Chairman, the $21,000 is not what is worrying me, 

Particularly, as I fully realize that the Auditor General cannot look at every 
item in every department; he must pick one here and there. But how many 
items are there, in the same class as this one, that are not reported to by the 
Auditor General, and how much does that come to, in dollars and cents?

The Chairman: Well, Mr. Armstrong, do you want to proceed further, or 
Would you rather wait until you have a Department of Defence Production 
representative here?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I do not think I can add very much to what I have 
said. I think there is some obvious difference of view between technical experts 
in this field. Our own technical experts were of the opinion, first of all, that the 
specification that was received from the U.S. Navy was the specification that we 
had, on which flares we had got earlier in the 1950s, I think about 1952, had 
been the basis of their manufacture. After this affair had gone on, they were 
themselves of the opinion—that is our own technical people—that had these 
specifications been rigidly adhered to throughout, they probably would have 
Produced a satisfactory flare. But there are a variety of complicated reasons 
Why they were not adhered to.

The Chairman: Well, I think we had better leave it at this point. It has not 
been proven to the Committee that the department was at fault here. We will 
leave it at that.

Mr. Armstrong: Mr. Chairman, would you wish me to get in touch with 
department of Defence Production or do you wish to do that?

The Chairman: Well, we would like somebody from the department 
because there are going to be some other matters coming up here. You would 
know best, I think, who would come from that department. You are dealing 
'with them all the time.

Mr. Armstrong : I would be glad to do it if you would like me to, so long as 
1 Understand that that is what you expect.
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Mr. Tardif: Would it not be less embarrassing to Mr. Armstrong if the 
request came from the Committee to the Department of Defence Production?

The Chairman: We will likely send it to the deputy minister. Thank you, 
Mr. Tardif.

Well, then, we will skip number 4 and go on to number 5 which has to do 
with the defence construction.

5. ADDITIONAL COSTS DUE TO CONSTRUCTION DELAYS, OTTAWA.---In July
1961 Defence Construction (1951) Limited awarded a firm price 
contract in the amount of $179,000, later amended to $194,312, for 
the construction of a biological evaluation building for the Defence 
Research Board at Shirley Bay. The contract was to be completed by 
the end of November 1961. However, the building was not taken 
over until May 1962.
During the course of the contract, the work was delayed mainly 
because of (a) a temporary lack of electrical power, (b) experi­
ments with specified materials which proved to be unsatisfactory, (c) 
the requirement for all shop drawings to be handled twice, once by 
Defence Construction (1951) Limited engineering services and once 
by the consultant, and (d) certain design changes made during the 
progress of the work. The contractor claimed for additional costs 
incurred as a result of the above delays and was paid $8,042 in 
March 1964.

Mr. Henderson: Number 5 has to do with construction delays in Ottawa 
and here it is recited how $8,042 was paid to the contractor for additional costs 
involved in the construction of the biological evaluation building for Defence 
Research Board at Shirley Bay.

The Chairman: Any questions from the Committee?
Mr. Tardif: Well, Mr. Chairman, the same questions apply to this as apply 

to many of the other items that were drawn to our attention by the Auditor 
General; experimenting with specified material. Who does the experimenting- 
Who takes the responsibility that we should do some experimenting?

I think, in cases like this, Mr. Chairman, it would be wise to put the 
contractor’s name, so that we know who did it, because there are some 
contractors in this town and all over Canada who have a faculty for finding out 
what would result in extras or what has been forgotten by the architect, or by 
the engineer on some of these jobs. Some of them are pretty smart and some of 
them do that regularly. So the original quotation by some of these firms 15 
never realistic.

Mr. Henderson: Well, Mr. Tardif, I am in the hands of the Committee. They 
have specified that non-productive expenses be listed. If you want names added, 
that is fine. But I have never placed names in my report.

Mr. Tardif: I do not think it is necessary to do it, but sometimes I would be 
curious to know. This original contract of $179,000, before it gets started 
apparently it is $194,312, and it is stated in your report there, and I am sure 1*- 
is right, that there was experimenting with specified materials which eventually 
proved to be unsatisfactory. The architect or engineer on this job who lS
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responsible for drawing up specifications, if he wants to experiment, should not 
experiment at the cost of the taxpayers of Canada.

The Chairman: Mr. Tardif, how would you like to follow your questioning 
by directing to Mr. Bland, president of Defence Construction (1951) Limited, 
these items listed (a) a temporary lack of electrical power, and so on and have 
Mr. Bland explain to us why this lack of power, and whose responsibility it was, 
and cover each of those (a), (b), (c) and (d) in that order.

Mr. Bland, number (a).

Mr. Henderson: Perhaps Mr. Bland would give you the name of the 
contractor, if you still wish it. We have it here.

The Chairman: All right, the name of the contractor.
Mr. A. G. Bland (President and. General Manager, Defence Construction 

(1951 ) Limited): The contractor’s name is L. D. Zuccarini Ltd.—Landino Zuc- 
carini, an Italian Canadian.

Mr. Tardif: I do not really care what his status is. I know some contractors 
who have the faculty of finding extras and I was wondering whether he was one 
of them. This new Canadian I do not know.

The Chairman: Regarding the lack of electrical power, Mr. Bland, whose 
responsibility would this be?

Mr. Bland: All these things we paid for would, in our view, be the 
responsibility of the Crown. What happened with respect to the lack of 
electrical power was that there was a fire in a substation of the Defence 
Research Board facility at Shirley Bay. The electrical subcontractor had in­
stalled a breaker which was used as a replacement for one destroyed in the fire 
in order to maintain services for the buildings at Shirley Bay. The replacement 
for the breaker, the borrowed breaker, was two months in being delivered and, 
as a result the heavy mechanical installations in the building were unable to be 
tested by the contractor and the work was delayed. We assessed the cost of the 
delay to the contractor at, in round figures, $1,800, and he was paid this amount 
under item (a).

Mr. Tardif: Did this happen after the job was started?
Mr. Bland: Yes.
The Chairman: Was the fire in a Crown-owned building?
Mr. Bland: Yes, therefore there would be no insurance to cover it.
The Chairman: No. (b) experiments with specified materials which proved 

to be unsatisfactory.
Mr. Bland: Well, (b), this building is a laboratory for experimenting with 

small animals used by the Defence Research Board. There was a requirement 
for a plastic wall coating in some of the rooms of the building. This is an 
Unusual requirement and a product called Situflex or an equal, was specified. 
The contractor applied through the proper channels for an equivalent certificate 
covering a product called Ev-roc. The specification required that these be 
applied and the tests be run and that the tests be accepted. Our engineer ruled 
that the tests should be run before the product was applied, which I think was a
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reasonable thing, and there was some considerable testing before a product was 
found that would meet the requirements of the Defence Research Board. During 
this period, a portion of the building was held up and we paid for this delay. A 
product was found, which was a modification of the Ev-roc product.

The Chairman: Who specified this material; did your officials in your 
department draw up the specification?

Mr. Bland: This job was designed by a consulting engineer under the 
briefing of the department’s engineers.

The Chairman: And the persons who specified the materials, did they not 
find out whether or not these materials are available and suitable before you 
proceed with the building?
• (4.30 p.m.)

Mr. Bland: I would have to speculate on this but I would suspect that they 
would do research on the type of material that the Defence Research Board 
finds it wanted and would assume, from the trade literature that was available 
on the Situflex material, that it was the appropriate material. It was found in 
fact, under experiment, not to be absolutely appropriate.

The Chairman: Would we be unfair in saying that your department did 
not work closely enough with your consultant and were lax in checking the 
specified materials?

Mr. Armstrong: I think, if I understand this rightly, that concerning the 
material that was specified, the contractor sought the “or equal” clause for 
substitute material, is this right? And there is an equivalent standards board for 
this purpose that examines the material and either agrees that it may be 
substituted or not, and I take it, in this case, the equivalent standards board 
regarded the material as being equivalent but, in the subsequent testing, it was 
found to be not entirely satisfactory.

The Chairman: Should not all of this have been done before the building 
was started?

Mr. Bland: I think that is a fair observation. I think it is also recognized 
that in the building industry tests are not run on every material for every 
application before the building is constructed.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, the responsibility for proving that the material 
that is going to be the equivalent is up to the specification, is the responsibility 
of the supplier, not the responsibility of the department, and if the supplier 
cannot convince the board responsible for making the final decision that his 
material is equal to or can do the job, normally he is the fellow who loses.

The Chairman: In other words the Committee feels that (b) did not 
constitute grounds on which the contractor should have been awarded extra 
money. Are we fair?

Mr. McLean (Charlotte)): How much did it amount to for this particular 
item?

Mr. Bland: It was $1,600 in round figures.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): The manufacturer might not be willing to g° 

ahead and approve that material for just $1,600 for a particular purpose.
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The Chairman : I think principle, though, Mr. McLean, appears so many 
times in these specifications and it is always the Crown that pays the bill in the 
end. I think it is the Committee’s responsibility to try and see if specifications, 
and of the right kind, called for by departments are available on the market 
and that all this is arranged before the building is commenced. This is only a 
small amount, I agree, it is only $1,600. But the principle keeps appearing from 
one place to another, in our report.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, but the department engineer will 
not accept the material.

Mr. Bland: I just want to say that I do not believe it would be equitable to 
hold the contractor responsible for the cost of the delay which arose out of this 
experimentation. I think it is fair to say that a product, in fact, had to be 
developed to meet the requirements of the scientists and it is perhaps fair to say 
that a product did not exist on the market that would meet their requirements. 
Certainly the product proposed and approved by the department on the basis of 
material given by the supplier, did not meet the requirements of the scientists.

Mr. Tardif: What, Mr. Chairman, were the requirements of the scientists? 
Did they require something that was not actually necessary?

Mr. Bland: I could not comment on that.
Mr. Armstrong: The problem, without being able to comment on it in 

detail, was to get a surface that was satisfactory in terms of minimizing 
biological contamination because of the work that was being done in that 
building, and it required a rather special material for this purpose.

Mr. Bigg: Well, as I understand it, the contractor wanted to substitute, 
probably to get a cheaper material in order to keep within his contract, and he 
used the facilities of the Defence Research Board to assist him in this. And then 
he claimed that because they were slow, they held him up on putting in 
material on the job. Is that correct?

Mr. Armstrong: I do not think one can come to that conclusion because, as 
I say, in these construction projects materials are specified very often as a 
particular trade material. In order to provide for competition and for other 
suppliers to supply their materials, there is always an “or equivalent” clause so 
that the contractor or supplier can submit his material to be given an 
equivalent standing. It is then examined and if it is regarded as being 
equivalent it is designated as having an equivalent standard and may be used.

Mr. Bigg: Well, as I was saying, had the contractor gone ahead and 
supplied the original material, there would have been no delay. If he had just 
said, “Well, I will put in that rather extensive wall cover,” or whatever it is, 
there would have been no delay, but he thought that he could materially reduce 
the cost of putting on this equipment and he allowed the Defence Research 
Board to do the experimenting with acids and so forth, for animal excreta and 
so on, and turn up with a negative result until the building was held up.

Mr. Bland: The fact is that when his substitute was tested and found not 
adequate, he then supplied the originally specified material for testing and it, 
too, was found inadequate.

Mr. Bigg: It was found inadequate too?
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Mr. Bland: Correct. Then there was a special material developed for this 
particular application.

Mr. Bigg: You mean it was in the original specifications and not on behalf 
of the contract?

Mr. Bland: It was in the original, it was in the approval of the equivalent, 
which went through a recognized departmental channel. It was in the depart­
mental approval of the equivalent that the contractor proposed.

The Chairman: Well, I think we come back to the point that Defence 
Construction are responsible to see that the specifications are right before you 
proceed with the job. We have heard the evidence on both sides. We will 
proceed with the next one.

And now (c) the requirement for all shop drawings to be handled twice, 
once by Defence Construction (1951) Limited engineering services and once by 
the consultant. Now, why was this necessary? I think we should have the name 
of the consultant who drew these plans, too.

Mr. Bland: I would have to get that, I do not have it available.
Mr. Tardif : We would also, Mr. Chairman, have to know whether some 

authority in the department told the consultant “I do not want it this way, you 
change it.” When somebody does that, then, of course, the consultant is not 
going to pay for it.

The Chairman: Well, we will deal with the shop drawings, Mr. Bland.
Mr. Bland: We have the name of the consultants if you wish them.
Mr. Henderson: Our note here indicates all shop drawings for this complex 

structure had to be approved by the consultants, Creaghan Archibald. This 
involved double handling of the drawings by DCL engineering services and the 
consultants. This delayed work two weeks.

Mr. Armstrong : Not a very long delay.
Mr. Bland: Mr. Chairman, what happened in this respect was that our 

engineers and technicians were under a very heavy load of shop drawing 
submissions from construction across the country during this particular sum­
mer. We had two possible solutions; one was to attempt to engage additional 
staff to handle this; the other was to farm the work out to consultants.

In this case a decision was made to have the consultants do the shop 
drawing checking, but this was done after the job was under way and there 
were some drawings that were processed to us and then to the consultant, 
because the new arrangement had not been commenced from the initiation of 
the job.

The Chairman: Do I understand you had a consultant for the whole job and 
then you had a subconsultant for the shop drawings?

Mr. Bland: No, one and the same. But we normally handle the checking of 
straightforward shop drawings ourselves.

Mr. Bigg: Was there only one copy of these drawings, was that the 
problem?
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Mr. Bland: No. The problem was that we probably had, during this 
particular construction season, many thousands of submissions for approval and 
these are done by a group in our head office in Ottawa. We attempted to hire 
people, we could not get adequate talent to handle this load. We therefore 
farmed some of it out to consultants and chose this path for this particular 
contract.

I am not happy with the manner in which they were handled and we 
accepted the fact that we had delayed the contractor because of the delay in 
approving of some essential shop drawings.

The Chairman: Any questions on that part? As there are no questions we 
will go on with (d), certain design changes made during the progress of the 
work. Mr. Bland, why were these necessary? They were required?

Mr. Tardif: Were the designs asked for or requested by the scientists? 
Was that plan not submitted to the scientists before the building commenced, in 
the process of planning or preparing this building? Are those plans not 
submitted to these scientists that are going to work in it eventually?

Mr. Bland: Correct.
Mr. Tardif: Do you mean, then, that this is a change of mind after they had 

been shown the plans and had been consulted about it?
Mr. Bland: That is correct.
Mr. Bigg: Was there a change of personnel amongst the scientists? Perhaps 

that had something to do with it
Mr. Bland : I cannot answer that, although sometimes in seeing something 

in fact, rather than on plans, it presses home that it is not satisfactory. I could 
not say whether or not some developments, technologically, promoted some of 
the changes.

The Chairman: Is everyone satisfied? All right. Number 6. Defence Con­
struction.

6. ADDITIONAL COSTS DUE TO DELAYS IN CONSTRUCTION OF HANGARS AT
greenwood, n.s. and summerside, p.e.i.—Contracts were awarded 
to the same construction firm by Defence Production (1951) Lim­
ited in February and March 1959 to construct one anti-corrosion 
hangar and one readiness hangar at RCAF Station, Greenwood, N.S., 
and a standard maritime readiness hangar and standard maritime 
anti-corrosion hangar, at RCAF Station, Summerside, P.E.I., at firm 
prices as amended of $837,839 and $829,000 respectively.

Immediately after the award of contracts, a number of modifica­
tions to the structural steel design were proposed by the steel 
fabricator. These modifications which were finally accepted required 
lengthy consideration. As a result, the first submission of erection 
diagrams, scheduled for approval by March 20, 1959, was not made 
until April 10, 1959. The manner in which shop drawings were dealt 
with by the contractor, Defence Construction (1951) Limited, and 
the consultant gave rise to further delays. As a result, final approval 
was not given to the steel fabricator until June 11, 1959. The 
commencement of the erection of the first hangar at Greenwood was
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thus delayed two months. The second hangar at Greenwood and the 
two at Summerside were delayed up to three months because of the 
disruption of fabricating schedules. The contractor was forced into 
winter work and additional costs of $36,733 and $32,087 were claimed. 
The claims were negotiated and settlements of $17,870 and $15,360 
were paid to the contractor.

Mr. Henderson: These additional costs arose where contractors were forced 
into winter work due to circumstances which they both claimed were beyond 
their control. They claimed in both cases some $68,820 which, after negotiation, 
was settled for rather less than half or $33,230. The details are given at the top 
of page 170, as you see.

The Chairman: This was caused by delays. Mr. Bland, could you give us a 
brief explanation of the delays; what caused them?

Mr. Bland: Mr. Chairman, the delays were caused as a result of a serious 
question raised by the fabricator of the structural steel frame of these hangars. 
All four frames were identical for the four hangars involved in the two 
contracts, two each. The structural steel subcontractor in reviewing the plans 
and specifications and preparing fabrication drawings at that stage, had serious 
misgivings about some of the details of the design and he raised these with the 
designer. Now, in an attempt to be brief, the nub of the thing was that he raised 
the point and he had a right to a prompt reply.

The Chairman: Excuse me. Did he raise this before or after the contract 
had been awarded?

Mr. Bland: After the contract was awarded.
The Chairman: After the contract was awarded.
Mr. Bland: That is correct.
The Chairman: This is very important.
Mr. Tardif: What worries me in this, Mr. Chairman, is that it was 

immediately after the award of the contract.
The Chairman: So he accepted the contract and you accepted to let it to 

him?
Mr. Bland: Yes, that is correct. Bearing in mind that one does not produce 

fabrication drawings until one has the contract, and that in bidding the job, the 
man would take off the quantity of steel involved and estimate his cost from 
quantities, when he got into the detail layout and fabrication drawings he was 
disturbed about certain features of the design, and he made these points known 
to the designer and to the owner.

The Chairman: Before he accepted?
Mr. Armstrong: Not before he accepted the contract, but after.
Mr. Bland: No; immediately after.
The Chairman: Well, would it not be his responsibility? Why should the 

Crown pay him $32,000 when he made the mistake and accepted the contract.
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Mr. Bland: I do not think he made a mistake. He proposed some changes 
which were ultimately settled and the department was faced with the situation 
where two professional opinions differed. It was quite a serious matter and the 
contractor’s expertise indicated that they were not at all satisfied concerning the 
safety of the building if the original design was followed. Ultimately, it was 
agreed that the revisions would be accepted, but it was never proven to our 
satisfaction that the original design would not have worked. It was proven that 
there was a probable gain from the substitution, in terms of safety.

The Chairman: You did not obtain this professional advice beforehand. 
You had a difference of opinion of professional advice.

Mr. Bland: We had a designer who designed the building and the contract 
was awarded on the basis of this design. When the structural steel subcontractor 
went into details he became concerned about certain features of the design. A 
discussion—a professional discussion if you like—ensued regarding the adequacy 
of the design and it was ultimately decided that the suggestions of the 
contractor’s professionals should be followed. We did not conserve the decisions 
made, with adequate promptness. The contractor claimed this delay through the 
entire schedule behind, and forced him into the completion of the buildings 
under winter conditions.

The Chairman: Who would recommend this payment to Treasury Board?
Mr. Bland: Defence Construction recommended it to Treasury Board and it 

was accepted.
The Chairman: You would have to recommend that yourself?
Mr. Bland: That is correct.
Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, the original steelwork on that was designed, I 

presume, by a consultant engineer?
Mr. Bland: Yes.
Mr. Tardif : I also presume that he was paid full tariff for that. Was he also 

paid tariff on the extras?
Mr. Bland: I would have to check that, Mr. Tardif.
Mr. Tardif : I wish you would, because I am undecided whether I should 

make a doctor, an architect, or an engineer out of my son. With the information 
I have, so far, he is going to be an engineer because there he can get paid for 
mistakes.

Mr. Bland: Yes, that is right.
The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Lefebvre?
Mr. Lefebvre: There is another phrase in there, on page 170 which says:

Further delays were caused by the manner in which shop drawings 
were dealt with by the contractor, Defence Construction (1951) Limited, 
and the consultant.

In what way did this manner differ from the usual manner and why was it 
different?
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Mr. Bland: The basic delay here was one in our own offices in which the 
drawings were not handled expeditiously; they were not directed to the 
consultant promptly on their receipt by us.

Mr. Bigg: Is this the same kind of a bottleneck as in the previous example?
Mr. Bland: Correct.
Mr. Lefebvre: Has anything been done to change this bottleneck? Or is that 

occurring in other jobs also?
Mr. Bland: We have not had the volume to contend with what we had in 

these particular years but we certainly have modified the system of handling 
shop drawings coming in and going out.

The Chairman: Can you not in the department protect yourself from these 
delays, if they are bound to happen with your contractors, and give yourself 
enough time or preparation of these drawings so that you do not get caught for 
these charges for delays?

Mr. Bland: Mr. Chairman, I think that the preferable solution is to handle 
them expeditiously.

Mr. Bigg: They have not even got the staff. If there is an actual bottleneck 
and a number of people watching, we do not want carelessness in these defence 
contracts.

Mr. Bland : It is a question of planning, and staff. We do have the ability to 
hire the staff if the staff is available on the market.

Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I am not too concerned over the items that we 
have discussed here. As a matter of fact, I am quite satisfied with the 
explanations that have been given and I can quite see how they would arise in 
the normal course of construction.

The only thing that does concern me, though, is whether there is a tough 
enough stand taken by the department when they are negotiating settlements 
with the contractors. I think this is the key to the whole thing; the fact, for 
example, that drawings had to be remade or that a contractor suggested a 
change in structure. I think that these are things which we want to occur 
because it usually results in a better type of construction. What I am concerned 
about, however, is whether from the government’s point of view or from 
Defence Construction’s point of view the department is being tough enough to 
get the best type of settlement with a contractor that it is possible to get. I 
think the rest of it is quite normal.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, in this, as in many other cases we have 
reviewed before, there is a lack of planning, because everybody in Canada 
knows when we are going to have winter and approximately when it is going to 
start. Therefore, if a job is properly planned, we should not have to pay extra for 
winter work.

Mr. Bland: Yes.
Mr. Ballard: This is precisely the point. For example, we were talking a 

moment ago about design on steelwork. Now, there can quite easily be a 
difference of opinion between professional men on the type of design required 
in a building and it is also possible for a steel fabricator to be in a position to
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give better advice on design than, say, two professional men and I think it can 
quite often result in a saving, it can quite often result in better construction, to 
get this information before construction starts.

The Chairman : Before the contract is let.
Mr. Ballard: No, you cannot turn around then and blame an architect for 

drawing up an incorrect set of plans, because his plans are not incorrect. The 
new information quite often gives you a better set of plans than you had 
originally. Neither plan need be incorrect; one might be better than the other.

I think it is incumbent upon the Defence Construction people to test these 
things and come up with what they consider to be the best solution. If this does 
cost a little extra, well, it probably pays off in the long run. But again, we get 
back to the point, are they tough enough in making the best settlement they can 
with the contractor? I think that Mr. Bland should comment on this.

The Chairman: First we will have Mr. Tardif and then Mr. Bland.
Mr. Tardif: Just to keep records straight, engineers consult regularly with 

steel fabricators before they make plans of this type. What normally happens in 
a case like this is that another steel fabricator, who wants to get his material 
used, will come to the contractor and say that with this design he can save so 
much money, and it will be just as strong. It very often happens like that, 
because the engineers consult with steel fabricators constantly. As a matter of 
fact most of the plans that are made for the steel set-up are made by steel 
fabricators, not by the engineers.

Mr. Bland: I would like to deal with the point about the toughness of the 
company in negotiating with contractors in cases of extras. This, obviously, has 
to be a matter of judgment, but I think it is fair to say that our philosophy has 
been that we want to be fair and reasonable. That can include toughness, but it 
should not include an arbitrary approach.

We feel that if we demonstrate, and I think we have done this over the 
years, that we are prepared to listen to a reasonable case from the contractor 
and analyse it in depth and detail and treat him fairly, that the original bids to 
us for the department will not include contingencies to cover arbitrary deci­
sions. Now, as I say, it is a matter of judgment, and of the fact that we are very 
conscious of the importance of our judgment being good. We have had some 
considerable experience in this. Mr. Tarifs points are well taken. Many steel 
designs are developed by fabricators. In this particular case, from my reading of 
the files, it is my belief that the point raised in connection with both designs 
being acceptable is a fair one, but that the design used was the best design 
under the circumstances.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I would agree with that Mr. Bland, but I am wondering 
why perhaps this could not have been thrashed out before the building started. 
It is like a starting to build a $20,000 house, and his wife coming along every 
second day and wanting it changed so that instead of it costing $20,000 it costs 
$30,000. I see not only—

Mr. Tardif: If a man lets his wife do that, he deserves it. We will have to 
prevent the Department of National Defence or Defence Production from 
allowing wives loose around the place.
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Mr. Muir (Lisgar) : What I see in the various departments that this 
Committee has before it is that this has become too much of a rule, the idea that 
we will go ahead with the building but we will make changes. We are learning 
that this is costing the taxpayer quite a lot of money. Although it does not seem 
to be much in each contract, added together it runs into millions of dollars.

The Chairman : I think, Mr. Muir, this will certainly be one of the 
recommendations of the Committee.

Number 7.
7 . ADDITIONAL COSTS RESULTING FROM CONSTRUCTION DELAYS, NORTH BAY, 

ont.—In 1959 a contract was awarded by Defence Construction 
(1951) Limited for the construction of a communications installation 
at North Bay, Ont. The final cost of the project, amounting to 
$17,668,360, included $149,883 paid to the contractor in the year 
under review in compensation for additional costs and interest 
arising from the prolongation of the contract and from carrying out 
the work as directed by the Crown. The prolongation of the work 
was primarily the result of (a) the time required to make a policy 
decision whether to cancel or complete the project, (b) the com­
plexity of the project which caused difficulties in scheduling sub­
contract work, and (c) delay in providing the contractor with 
working construction drawings.

Mr. Henderson: This contract involved the construction of the communica­
tions installation at North Bay and, as stated, its final cost included approxi­
mately $150,000 paid to the contractor as compensation for additional costs and 
interest arising from the prolongation of the contract and from carrying out the 
work as directed by the Crown.

It will be see that this arose largely because of (a) the time it took to reach 
a policy decision whether to cancel or to complete the project, (b) the com­
plexity of the project which, in turn, caused difficulties in scheduling sub-con­
tract work, and (c) delay on the part of the Crown in providing the contractor 
with working construction drawings.

The Chairman: Mr. Bland, would you take number (a) first and let the 
Committee know something about policy decision and what was the delay there-

Mr. Armstrong: Perhaps I should deal with (a) the time required to make 
a policy decision whether to cancel or complete the project. This particular 
construction project was to develop a combat centre at North Bay. It was one ot 
nine that were being built for the North American Air Defence Command. The 
other eight were in the United States and the original plan for the combat 
centre called for hardening the centre and also the computer—this was a highly 
computerized installation—would be transistorized.

The Canadian contract was drawn upon that basis and, subsequent to that, 
the United States, in re-assessing their requirements in this respect, decided not 
to go ahead with the transistorized computer installations—they were developing 
it—and consequently because the requirements for space became considerably 
different from a non-computerized one, they decided also to build them above 
ground and not to harden them. By this time, we had already dug the hole to 
put in the building we intended to construct and there a considerable period ot
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time was spent in resolving the question of whether it was advantageous to 
proceed with the installation underground and install the non-transistorized 
computer in it or to go ahead with an above ground installation. We finally 
concluded that it was, on the whole, cheaper to proceed with the installation 
because of the work that had already been done, but this did cause some delay 
in getting a policy decision on what course of action should be followed.

Mr. Tardif: Mr. Chairman, if it requires a decision to find out whether a 
job should be cancelled or carried on with; it cannot be a very important 
project; if it does not appear to make any difference whether it is cancelled or 
completed.

Mr. Armstrong: I think there is a misunderstanding there. I did not .say a 
decision to cancel but a decision on what kind of a structure to provide. As I 
explained, we had started out with the expectation of having an underground 
facility in which a transistorized computer would be installed. This aspect of it, 
which was dependant on the United States, went by the boards. We then had to 
decide whether it would be wiser to complete the construction with the 
underground facility or to abandon the work we had then done and put in an 
above ground facility. That took some time to make a decision. It was not a 
question of cancelling the project.

Mr. Tardif: Then the wording on this, or maybe I understand this 
improperly, I do not know, which reads: “the time required to make a policy 
decision whether to cancel of complete the project” means that the time spent 
in making decisions cost, on this particular contract, $149,883.
• (5.00 p.m.)

Mr. Henderson: We might have said that the reason the work was delayed 
was because of four factors, (a), (b), (c) and (d); and they each required a 
policy decision.

Mr. Tardif: On whether to cancel or continue the project.
Mr. Henderson: No, that was the nature of the policy decision they had to 

make, but it was the time it took them to make it that was one of the factors in 
the delay.

Mr. Tardif: I am only going to say this and then I will stop, because I am 
not getting to first base, anyhow. If there was a reason for making a decision 
between cancelling or completing a project, then it cannot be all that impor­
tant, because the wording in this particular clause of yours here, makes it 
evident that it could have been either cancelled or completed.

Mr. Armstrong: I think this is probably a misunderstanding in words, if I 
may say so. It was not a question of cancelling the project, it was a question of 
whether the original contract and the underground facility would be cancelled 
and an above ground installation built.

Mr. Tardif: Then that explains it.
Mr. Armstrong: It is just a play on the word, I think.
Mr. Bigg: Then there were also delays in the stages of which this was being 

completed. You were awaiting policy decisions, both in the defence and 
international areas, on just exactly what the final project would be. Is that it?

24575—5
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Mr. Armstrong: Well, there was a period of some uncertainty, particularly 
with regard to the question of proceeding with the transistorized computer, and 
so on. As you know, there were other developments at the time which were all 
reviewed and, consequently, there were a few delays involved in this.

The Chairman: Why did we not get the policy decision first before we 
decided to spend any money?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, when we started on this, there was a policy decision. 
It was changed in the course of it.

Mr. Lefebvre: Because there was a new defence minister after 1958?
Mr. Armstrong: This had nothing whatsoever to do with the defence 

minister.
Mr. Lefebvre: Well, where is policy decided?
Mr. Armstrong: I am sorry, I do not seem to be making this clear. As I 

explained these centres were part of the North American Air Defence Command 
set-up. One of them was in Canada; eight of them were in the United States. 
The development of the equipment to be included in them was being done in 
the United States. The United States decided, during the course of this, after we 
had started our plans and let a contract for the underground facility, not to go 
ahead with that particular development. This, at the same time, resulted in 
their decision not to harden these in the United States, but to put them above 
ground.

Mr. Tardif : What was their decision? What was that?
Mr. Armstrong: Harden them. But had we not been where we were we, I 

am sure, would have done the same thing. But we already had a hole in the 
ground and were quite a considerable way towards putting this underground 
and we decided, after studying the matter, that it was more economical to g° 
ahead with what we had already started than to change, at that point.

Mr. Tardif: Is that, Mr. Chairman, what comes from not really providing 
the contractor with working drawings?

Mr. Bland: I think it might clarify the situation, Mr. Chairman, if I ex­
plained that this facility was considered sufficiently urgent that it was con­
structed as drawings were prepared. The old style was the cost plus fixed fee 
approach. The cost plus fixed fee approach was not used on this job. A tender 
was called to create the hole in the ground. The cavern at North Bay. It was 
agreed, at that time, that that contractor—the mining contractor if y°u 
wish—would be the management contractor for the building and the trades. 
Over the months, design progressed in an organized fashion so that, when the 
excavation was coming to completion, the outline of the structure had been 
determined and steel was ordered. A structural steel fabrication contract was 
let. There were 19 separate subcontracts called by our company and assigned to 
the original prime contractor. This total cost aggregated over $17 million. The 
$150,000, if you will permit me to generalize, was payment for prolongations 
that arose out of what I feel was a modest lack of flow in this rather gigantic 
program, and I think was really a very small price to pay to get this job, when 
we got it.
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Mr. Muir (Lisgar): I was just wondering, now that we spent almost $18 
million on it, is it any use to us?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, we are using it and we consider it a useful defence 
installation.

Mr. Tardif: Was this a total Canadian expenditure or did the United States 
pay part of this?

Mr. Armstrong: The $18 million was a Canadian expenditure but there 
was a much larger companion American expenditure for the equipment in the 
structure in the facility.

The Chairman: I think you have answered the next one, the delay in 
providing the contractor with the working construction drawings. I presume 
that has been answered too, with the complexity, unless there are any other 
questions?

Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman with regard to all these non-productive items, it 
seems to me that most preparations for war could be called non-productive, in 
that sense. I think that perhaps we are only concerned here with unnecessary 
additional expenses which we did not foresee. Is that not correct?

Mr. Henderson: That depends on the Committee’s definition of a non-pro­
ductive expenditure, Mr. Bigg. If you can produce a better one than we have 
today, I would like to hear it.

The Chairman: Number 8.
8. consultants’ fee in respect of abandoned work, camp wain- 

wright, alta.—Defence Construction (1951) Limited entered into a 
contract in 1951 with a firm of consulting engineers for the prepara­
tion of contract drawings and specifications and for supervision of 
construction of water supply, sewerage system and additional serv­
ices for Wainwright Military Camp. The construction work was 
planned in three stages. Stage I was completed and the consultant 
was paid for services rendered in accordance with the contract. Due 
to a change in military requirements Stages II and III were not 
proceeded with; however, certain work related to these stages had 
already been carried out by the consultants and in the year under 
review $49,299 was paid in respect of this work.

Mr. Bigg: Only one definition seems to fit the whole problem.
Mr. Tardif: This is different from most of the clauses that were drawn to 

our attention today. In most cases the contractor gets extra because the working 
drawings are not available. In this case, the engineer gets an extra because the 
working drawings were available.

The Chairman: Why did he get the money?
Mr. Tardif: Well because he has it planned so much in advance that he 

insisted on getting paid $49,299. This actually is the engineer, Mr. Chairman, 
whom we should hire for cases like the one which preceded this one, where we 
had to pay $149,000 because the drawings were not ready. This fellow appar­
ently had his drawings long ahead of time.

24575—
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Mr. Henderson: I cannot dispute that. I think Mr. Armstrong or Mr. Bland 
can answer that one.

Mr. Armstrong: We are dealing now with paragraph 8?
The Chairman: That is right.
Mr. Henderson: This was where Stages II and III were not proceeded with.
Mr. Armstrong: This, I suppose, arises out of a decision by the department 

in 1951. It was planned, at the time of the Korean war, to expand the use of the 
Wainwright Military Camp and, in order to do this, it was necessary to provide 
additional water and sewage and other services. It was decided to do it in three 
stages, I, II and III. The design work was let for it and carried out and the man 
was paid. Then the department decided not to go further than they had in 
respect to the expansion of Wainwright. We have the plans but we have not 
used the ones for the second and third stages.

Mr. Bigg: I would understand this more readily, Mr. Chairman, if this was 
wartime, and plans were made to expand that camp and there was urgency for 
getting it done as soon as possible. But this was not wartime.

Mr. Armstrong : It was.
Mr. Bigg: What—1951?
Mr. Armstrong: The Korean war was on.
Mr. Bigg: Then the war folded up and so did their plans.
The Chairman: I think we should clear it up a little here. The contract was 

let in 1951 and this is coming to our attention in the Auditor General’s report in 
1964.1 just cannot tie this together, some way or another.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, this is because the final payment was made 
during the fiscal year you are examining. In fact the Treasury Board submission 
here, to pay them, is, I see, dated March, 1964. Would that be right?

Mr. Bigg: When was the end of stage I; what, roughly, was the time—1963 
perhaps?

Mr. Henderson: We would have to take a few moments to study this, Mr. 
Bigg, if you want to carry on discussing this.

Mr. Bigg: No, it is not important.
Mr. Lefebvre: Mr. Chairman, something else should be made clear. Does 

the $49,299 pertain only to stages II and III and, if so, why is not stage I 
included in this?

Mr. Henderson: Stage I was completed, and paid for.
Mr. Lefebvre: Yes, but stage I covers the money we paid?
Mr. Henderson: That is right. But he had the plans ready for stages II and 

III so they had to be bought.
The Chairman: But I still do not know why we are talking about some­

things which occurred in 1951. Mr. Bland, can you fill us in on this?
Mr. Bland: We had a rather long drawn out negotiation with the consultant. 

That is the answer.
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The Chairman: There is no doubt about that,
Mr. Bland : He wanted a little more than we gave him; perhaps we were 

too tough.
The Chairman: Do you mean that you kept this discussion going for that 

many years?
Mr. Bland: We had great difficulty in keeping it going.
The Chairman: How many years? Since 1951?
Mr. Bland: Virtually, 1951, that is right.
The Chairman: Well, this contractor must not need money very badly, if he 

can wait 15 years for his money.
Mr. Bland: I said to the deputy that it would probably clinch Mr. Tardif’s 

decision to have his boy become an engineer.
Mr. Henderson: I should say that the consulting engineers were asking for 

quite a bit more than they were actually paid. This figure of $49,299 represents 
a negotiated settlement by Mr. Bland and his associates.

Mr. Bigg: When did they first ask for this, according to your records?
Mr. Henderson: Oh, this goes back to 1961, 1958, 1956; this is an office 

memorandum I have on the various steps.
Mr. Bigg: They did not sleep on their right the whole 15 years.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I assume now that it was so, but I would 

just like to ask Mr. Bland if the $49,000 is in accordance with, or less than, the 
normal scale of fees charged by consulting engineers for this type of work, for 
the amount of work they had done?

Mr. Bland: I would say it was in accordance with. There was some 
completed work and the difficulty was to establish a fair price for the 
uncompleted work.

Mr. Ballard: Do consulting engineers have a scale of fees the same as 
architects?

Mr. Bland: Yes they have. Not the same scale, but they have a scale.
Mr. Tardif: It is based on a tariff, an accepted tariff?
Mr. Bland: This is correct.
Mr. Bigg: Are these plans of any use? Could these plans be used, shall we 

say, for completing stages II and III somewhere to date? Would there be any of 
the $49,000 which you could say was in investment in the future?

Mr. Bland: I am not showing you a practical answer, Mr. Bigg. Hypo­
thetically, yes. But I do not know what has happened at Camp Wainwright 
since 1951.

The Chairman: In 1951 your department asked these consultants to draw 
up plans for this sewerage water work, et cetera, in three stages, I, II and III. 
Number one stage was completed when?

Mr. Bland: I think it was completed in 1951, do you have that detail?
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The Chairman : Well, we will assume it was completed then, for the time 
being.

Mr. Bland: Well, the note I have does not give the date, Mr. Chairman. It 
says stage I was completed and the consultant was paid for services rendered in 
accordance with the contract for this completed stage I.

The Chairman: And you have the amount for stage I?
Mr. Bland: I think it was in the order of $10,000; I think perhaps the 

Auditor General will have that.
The Chairman: Then you kept the drawings or he kept those drawings for 

stages II and III.
Mr. Bland: Stages II and III were not proceeded with. However, certain 

work related to these stages had already been carried out by the consultants 
and in the year under review $49,299 was paid.

The Chairman : When did you credit Belyea for his fees for stages II and
III?

Mr. Bland: I do not have this in my working papers. I might be able to 
locate it in my briefcase.

The Chairman: But you would render an account to Department of 
Defence Production.

Mr. Bland : Defence Construction Limited.
The Chairman: Let us follow this step by step now.
Mr. Henderson: I can tell you that, I think, 1956 it appears to have 

crystallized here.
The Chairman: He rendered an account. And you would carry this as an 

unpaid account in Department of Defence Production since 1956?
Mr. Bland: We would carry it, that is correct.
The Chairman : As an unpaid account?
Mr. Bland : I do not know that we would call it an unpaid account.
Mr. Tardif : I think you call it an account in negotiation, do you not?
The Chairman: Well, you received plans for stages II and III.
Mr. Bland : No, we did not receive plans.
The Chairman: Well he had them.
Mr. Bland: No he did not have them.
Mr. Bigg: What did he do to earn $49,000 if he did not draw plans? Just 

keep on staff doing nothing, or some like that?
The Chairman: I understand this consultant prepared all the stages I, H 

and III at once. He used stage I but never used stages II and III.
Mr. Bland: No, I do not think your understanding is correct, Mr. Chairman-
The Chairman: Well now, you correct me. I want to know why something 

since 1951 to 1966 has not been settled either as an unpaid account, or paid, or 
why the Auditor General has not found it before now.
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Mr. Bland: I can answer that question very easily. The answer to that 
question was that we could not get the consultant to come to our offices to 
negotiate. He claimed X, we were not prepared to pay X and we could not get 
him to sit down with us to negotiate, until the year under review.

The Chairman: Negotiate for what? Stages II and III?
Mr. Bland: That is correct.
The Chairman: He drew the plans for these stages?
Mr. Bland: No, no. The point is that he completed the plans for stage I and 

he had done certain work related to stages II and III but had not completed the 
design. I will have to get the records to list the work that had been done. But 
this is what the argument was about; what was the value of the work he had 
done on stages II and III before they were cancelled.

The Chairman: When did he bill you then for his work for stages II and
III.

Mr. Bland: 1956.
The Chairman: He submitted a bill.
Mr. Bland: This is my understanding from the Auditor General’s record.
Mr. Long: There are some schedules attached to that Treasury Board 

submission, Mr. Bland, at the back which you might be able to interpret. There 
are some listings there of various amounts.

Mr. Henderson: There was a total payment made to him of nearly $60,000 
of which $49,299 is considered to be the non-productive expenditure portion. A 
description of this relates that the big money in it is electrical distribution 
stages II and III, sewage connections stages II and III, $6,000 and $8,000; water 
distribution stages II and III, $10,000; terraces, drainage, roads, stages II and III 
$17,200; siting counter survey and layout site plan stages II and III, $3,000; and 
it was determined by us, with the departmental officials, that the figure given in 
the note was the non-productive part.

I would like to add, Mr. Chairman, in answer to the question you raised on 
why I should not have brought this to your attention before, as an unpaid bill, 
that we do not bring matters under current negotiation with the department, or 
that are in an unpaid status like this, into our reports. We are dealing with 
these items strictly on the basis of the year in which the final settlement 
happens to be made. That can be varied, but you see we could embarrass a 
department by bringing up cases on which they are negotiating. I think it is 
better to leave it on the present method.

Mr. Bigg: I would just like to know what was the original contract: Did he 
contract to do all three stages?

Mr. Bland : Yes.
Mr. Bigg: On the original contract?
Mr. Bland: That is right.
Mr. Bigg: And was he expected to go ahead with stages II and III without 

further orders?
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Mr. Bland : The original contract had an estimated value of $323,000. He 
had completed stage I when the decision was reached to cancel the job.

Mr. Bigg: Was there no escape clause? Was there no cancellation clause that 
he would be given certain out-of-pocket expenses on the second and third 
stages of this project?

Mr. Bland : This is what happened in fact. He was paid what was calculated 
to be a reasonable tariff for the work done and the results produced, although 
not complete on stages II and III.

Mr. Bigg: Was there nothing in the contract which stated what kind of a 
percentage basis this would be on?

Mr. Bland: Yes, yes. But it was a question of determining the value of the 
proportion of work completed. The materials turned over to the department 
were not complete plans and specifications; I know from one case where no 
specification was provided. So the total fee that would have accrued to the 
consultant had he completed this, was reduced by an amount which was 
negotiated between the consultant and ourselves.

Mr. Bigg: And you are happy that he got a quantum meruit, as they say in 
law, that he got what was coming to him?

Mr. Bland: Yes.
Mr. Tardif: What was the tariff on that, on the complete job? If it was a 

$183,000 job—
Mr. Bland: $323,000.
Mr. Tardif: Oh excuse me. I understood $183,000.
The Chairman: Well, Mr. Bland, I do not know just how to explain this, but 

the term “sloppy bookkeeping” I, think, would possibly fit in here some place. I 
just cannot imagine this having been let go for so long. And you say this man 
would not come in and sit down and talk it over with you?

Mr. Bland: That is correct. What can you do about a man who will not 
come in and sit down and talk it over with you?

The Chairman: I would not pay him in the end.
Mr. Bland: You would not?
Mr. Forbes: It appears to me that this is a case where the department 

saved a considerable sum of money by prolonging the payment until this man 
was willing to sit down and negotiate. This is one item we have got where they 
saved some money. I think that is commendable.

The Chairman: They got interest on the money.
Mr. Forbes: That is it.
Mr. Tardif: What did he figure the tariff on the job? Because I think the 

tariff in engineering is 6 per cent or 6J per cent.
Mr. Bland: This is an example quoted from this paper: for design of a 

sewage system including a sewage treatment plant, a fee for plans and 
specifications calculated at 2.7 per cent and bills of material at .3 per cent, for a
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total of 3 per cent of construction costs. Each item of the development at 
Wainwright was negotiated on a percentage fee.

Mr. Bigg: How much did he bill you for, when you first sat down? You paid 
him $49,000 was it?

Mr. Bland : This indicates that his bill was $73,200, in round figures.
Mr. Bigg: That is what he billed you for, is it?
Mr. Bland : Correct.
The Chairman: All right. We will proceed.
Mr. Henderson: There is one more non-productive item in 1964, Mr. 

Chairman. You might like to just finish that up.
The Chairman: Number 9.

9. COST OF DESIGN OF AIRCRAFT FUEL STORAGE FACILITIES NOT PROCEEDED 
with, Sydney, n.s.—By agreement dated January 12, 1962 an 
engineering firm was engaged by Defence Construction, (1951) 
Limited to design aircraft fuel storage facilities for the Navy at 
Sydney, N.S. Construction of the project was deferred indefi­
nitely, and since all design services were completed the firm 
was paid $25,353, including a fee of $19,500 for the design and 
preparation of working plans and specifications representing 3 
per cent of the estimated construction cost of $650,000.

Mr. Henderson: Number 9.
The Chairman: Before we proceed with that, could we have the consult­

ant’s name on this number 8 case?
Mr. Bland: Ripley.
Mr. Henderson: Ripley and Associates. Consultants.
The Chairman: Are they in business today?
Mr. Bland: Yes, as far as I know.
The Chairman: All right, we can proceed with number 9.
Mr. Henderson: Number 9 is a case of construction of a project having 

been deferred indefinitely, with the engineering firm being paid $25,353 includ­
ing a 3 per cent fee on what the construction would have cost if it had been 
proceeded with.

Mr. Tardif: What was the status of the chap who decided that this was 
necessary and what is his status now for finding out that it was not? You know, 
I would like to get answers to those questions, Mr. Chairman. I am not asking 
them just because they sound humorous because they are actually not. I am 
suspicious that this fellow, probably when he decided that, was a captain, and 
ended up by being a brigadier general. Maybe he was a major or a rear 
admiral, or something.

The Chairman: Would you direct your question to Mr. Armstrong for the 
person’s name and what you want to know?
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Mr. Tardif: I would like to know this because this happens repeatedly, Mr. 
Chairman. Before you decide that a job of $650,000 is necessary, there must be 
some consulting with the people who are going to use this facility. Then, all of a 
sudden, you find out that it is not any more, but where and who is the chap 
responsible for making that decision?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, if I have to answer the question I am not sure I 
can specify individual names in the case. This construction proposal at Sydney 
was designed to provide an alternate base on the east coast to Halifax. That was 
the object, to provide for some dispersal. When you ask how did this get 
approved, my recollection is that this particular plan and policy was discussed 
by the naval board at that time and, I believe, subsequently by the Chiefs of 
Staffs Committee and subsequently approved by the department. As a conse­
quence, it was decided that the plan go ahead. The original estimated cost of 
building these particular storage facilities—this was in 1961 I think—was about 
$400,000. When it was designed the consultant estimated the cost at $640,000. 
Tenders were actually called for the project in the early part of 1963, and the 
cost of the lowest tender was $899,500. As a consequence of that, there was a 
further examination of policy on whether, in fact, that kind of expenditure was 
justified, and the decision was taken not to go ahead with it.

Mr. Tardif: The price went up from an estimated $400,000 to an actual 
$800,000 and some odd within one year?

Mr. Armstrong: No, that was not one year. The estimate I mentioned was 
in 1961 and the low tender, when the tenders were called, was May, 1963, and 
at that time the actual lowest tender received was $899,500.

Mr. Tardif : But that is double the original estimate.
Mr. Armstrong: Yes it is.
Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Mr. Chairman, are not some of these things 

caused by planning too far in advance and then something happens in the 
meantime?

Mr. Armstrong : Well, I suppose you are in something of a dilemma. It 
seems to me the chances of spending money unwisely are greatest if you do 
your planning on a short term basis. In other words, you do need to do your 
planning on a long term basis. Now, doing it on that basis obviously you also 
have to be prepared to make some changes as conditions change.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Some of these things, it seems to me, are due to 
long term planning.

Mr. Armstrong: I am suggesting to you, sir, that in the defence business 
the greatest dangers of wasting money are short term planning because then 
your plans never fit together. You must do this on a reasonably long term 
planning basis.

Mr. McLean (Charlotte): Well, then you will admit that we are going to 
run into this sort of thing all the time?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I am prepared to admit that it probably will not be 
the last time because I think you would also agree that it makes sense if you 
decide not to go ahead with it, to save the amount of money you otherwise 
would spend.
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• (5.30 p.m.)
The Chairman: Well, gentlemen, that concludes the 1964 Auditor General’s 

remarks on national defence. It is 5.30 p.m. Would you agree for a fifteen 
minute break and then start on the 1965 report or what is your wish?

Mr. Tardif: If it is necessary for the witnesses to come back again, I would 
say we adjourn.

The Chairman: So we will then take that suggestion. I am sorry to have to 
ask you to come back again, Mr. Armstrong, on Tuesday, at 3.30 p.m. and we 
will ask to have somebody from Department of Defence Production and we will 
arrange to invite them.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
Tuesday, June 14, 1966.

(21)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 3.50 p.m. this day, the 
Chairman, Mr. A. D. Hales, presiding.

Members present: Messrs. Baldwin, Ballard, Bigg, Forbes, Gendron, Hales, 
Leblanc (Laurier), Lefebvre, Muir (Lisgar), Noble, Schryer, Stafford, Thomas, 
( Maisonneuve-Rosemont), Thomas (Middlesex West), Winch (15).

In attendance: Mr. A. M. Henderson, Auditor General of Canada; Mr. G. R. 
Long, Assistant Auditor General; Messrs. Douglas, Laroche, Rider and Hayes of 
the Auditor General’s staff; Mr. E. B. Armstrong, Deputy Minister of National 
Defence; Brig. L. W. Lawson, Judge Advocate General; Lt.-Col. England and 
Mr. Turner of the Department of National Defence; Mr. G. W. Hunter, Deputy 
Minister of Defence Production; Messrs. Comach, Smith, Radley, Andrews and 
Loveridge of the Department of Defence Production; Mr. A. G. Bland, Presi­
dent, Defence Construction (1951) Limited.

The Chairman voiced a welcome to a group of West Indies governmental 
representatives who are taking a Public Administration course at a local 
university.

Messrs. Henderson and Bland gave the Committee additional information 
with respect to previously covered items.

The Chairman, after introducing the Deputy Minister of Defence Produc­
tion, opened the meeting to the questioning of the representatives of this 
department, the Auditor General and National Defence. The items covered 
were:

(1) Appendix 2(3) 1964 Auditor General’s Report—Additional cost due to 
faulty specifications and drawings.

(2) Appendix 2(4) 1964 Auditor General’s Report—Contract for magne­
trons cancelled.

(3) 1965 Auditor General’s Report:
(i) Paragraph 75—Bobcat Program for development of army vehi­

cles.
(ii) Paragraph 77—Bomb Toss Computer.
(iii) Paragraph 83-—Electrical relays found unsuitable.

The questioning of the witnesses continuing at 5.25 p.m., the Chairman 
adjourned the meeting to the call of the Chair.

Edouard Thomas,
Clerk of the Committee.

24577—H
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EVIDENCE
(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus)

Tuesday, June 14, 1966.
• (3.51 p.m.)

The Chairman: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. I would like to bring to the 
attention of the committee that we have in our audience today some students of 
the public administration course at Carleton University. As I understand it, 
these students are deputy and assistant deputy ministers in their own right in 
the countries from which they come, chiefly in the West Indies. We are happy to 
have you as our audience in the Committee on Public Accounts. At the close of 
the meeting if there are any questions you would like to ask of members or of 
the Auditor General or your Chairman, we will be glad to stay for a few 
minutes.

You will recall, gentlemen, that I wrote on your behalf to Mr. Ross, the 
President of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, expressing our great 
interest and appreciation for recognizing the Auditor General’s office as a centre 
of training for students in their C.A. degree work. We have an acknowledge­
ment from Mr. Ross, the President, which I would like to read into the record. 
It is addressed to your Chairman.

Dear Mr. Hales,
It was very kind of you to write me concerning the new status of the 

Auditor General’s office in the Institute. We too are pleased at the 
development. Mr. Henderson has been known to many of us for a good 
many years and we have a great respect for his professional standards 
and capacity.

As I am sure you know, a careful examination was made of the 
practices in his office and the proposal approved by the membership was 
based on the unanimous recommendation of the investigating committee.

Yours very truly,
J. A. ROSS,

President.
I will file this with our Clerk.
There are one or two follow-ups from our last meeting. I think the Auditor 

General, Mr. Henderson, will commence with that. Then I think Mr. Bland has 
an answer which we requested.

Mr. A. M. Henderson (Auditor General of Canada): The first item, Mr. 
Chairman, which I would like to bring to the attention of the members is that at 
the May 31st meeting of the committee when Paragraph 122 entitled “Con­
tinuing federal assistance to interprovincial ferry services” of my 1965 Report 
was under discussion, I undertook in response to a question from Mr. Tardif to
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ascertain and report to the Committee on the nature of the commitment given 
to private interests, on which basis they in turn undertook substantial commit­
ments related to the acquisition of a ferry vessel for the Matane-Godbout 
service and for the construction of the Godbout terminal.

I can advise the committee that the commitment given b'y the federal 
government was that it would construct the ferry landing at Matane, provided 
that the ferry company supplied the ferry vessel; and constructed the landing 
at Godbout and did not request a federal operating subsidy. The ferry company 
did supply the ferry vessel at a cost, I believe, of about $400,000. I think that 
furnishes the information which was requested.

Mr. Winch: I have one question. The ferry company supplied the vessel, 
but is my memory correct that it received over a million dollars from the 
federal government for the purchase of the vessel?

Mr. Henderson: I believe, Mr. Winch, that is another ferry, if I may be 
permitted to say so. I believe you are thinking of the one on which the duty was 
remitted, that is the ferry acquired from Mackinac.

Mr. Winch: That is not the same?
Mr. Henderson: I understand it is a different ferry. I am glad you raised 

this though, because I believe that point came up at the last meeting, but it 
remains our understanding it is a different ferry.

Mr. Winch: Unfortunately, I was not at the last meeting.
Mr. Henderson: I believe in this case they supplied the vessel, and that the 

cost was in the order of $400,000. It is a different vessel.
Mr. Winch: Has any subsidy been paid at all on this?
Mr. Henderson: I understand not.
Mr. Ballard: I missed the import of the answer given by Mr. Henderson. 

Did he say the ferry landings at both terminals were built by the federal 
government?

Mr. Henderson: No. Just the ferry landing at Matane. They were to 
construct the ferry landing at Matane providing the ferry company supplied the 
vessel, constructed the landing at Godbout, and did not ask for a federal 
subsidy-

Mr. Bigg: I was wondering how people could give commitments which the 
treasury board reluctantly approved of. How is it that an official can give a 
commitment to a private company such as that and put the treasury board in a 
spot? Is there not a stricter type of procedure where he has to act within his 
authority? I am talking about the second last paragraph on page 77.

Mr. Henderson: That is perfectly right, Mr. Bigg. It has happened before 
and I suppose it will happen again that some official, in this case, it would 
presumably have been from the Department of Public Works, or possibly the 
Department of Transport, would give an assurance that a proposition like this 
would commend itself to the treasury board, and that might turn out to be 
construed as a commitment.

Mr. Bigg: $172,000 is a large sum of money to be “reluctantly paying” and 1 
think, just as a warning from the committee, that this matter should be looked 
into very carefully.
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The Chairman: Your observations will be noted in the report which we 
make, Mr. Bigg.

Mr. Henderson: I have nothing more to add to that.
The Chairman: I think Mr. Bland has an answer which was asked for the 

other day, and then we will proceed with our new business.
Mr. A. G. Bland (President and General Manager, Defence Construction 

(1951) Limited): Mr. Chairman, I was asked if the consulting engineer who 
prepared the design for the hangars which were constructed at Summerside and 
Greenwood was paid a fee for the daily costs which were paid to the con­
tractors. The answer is, no he was not.

The Chairman: Now, gentlemen, if you will turn to the Auditor General’s 
1964 Report at page 169, item 3, you will recall that at our last meeting we 
discussed this matter of the purchase of signal flares for the Royal Canadian Air 
Force. The committee asked many questions concerning this matter, and some 
of these questions could not be answered by the Department of National 
Defence, but it was felt that it related more to the Department of Defence 
Production.

We have invited Mr. Hunter, Deputy Minister of Defence Production, to be 
with us, and you are now at liberty to direct any questions that you wish to 
him, or to ask any other questions concerning this purchase of signal flares for 
the R.C.A.F.

Mr. Winch: I think what we have in mind here is why there is approxi­
mately $29,000 more than the initial—and I am going by the Report of the 
Auditor General—firm price for 7,500 flares; why a $29,000 expenditure above an 
initial firm price? I think that is the answer I would like to get from Mr. 
Hunter.

The Chairman: Mr. Hunter, I am sure you would like to make some 
observations.

Mr. G. W. Hunter (Deputy Minister of Defence Production): Mr. Chair­
man, I have a short statement if I might read it. I think it would be helpful 
because it tells the whole story- It is about one page.

The Chairman: All right. In view of the fact that there are several at the 
back of the room, would you just talk as loudly as you can so they can all hear.

Mr. Hunter: The distress signal in question was of United States Navy 
design. United States drawings and specifications provided to the Department of 
Defence Production through the Department of National Defence were under­
stood to be those which governed manufacture of the signal flares which we had 
previously imported from thee United States. Consequently, there was no 
concern at the time regarding the producibility of the flares in question in 
Canada in accordance with the specifications which we were provided.

By July, 1957 when preliminary production had commenced, inaccuracies 
and conflicts within the United States drawings and specifications were discov­
ered, and it gradually became evident that design changes must have been 
authorized to the United States manufacturer, and that the United States 
drawings had not been corrected to remove the inaccuracies. Some components,
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if made strictly to the drawings, could not be assembled, or would not function 
properly after assembly. The testing of initial production samples confirmed 
that specified performance was unattainable from the specified materials and 
manufacturing process.

It is to be noted that almost all ammunition and similar military stores 
used by Canadian defence forces are either of United States or British design. 
Experience has demonstrated that design changes originating in these countries 
at that time were very slow in reaching Canadian design authorities. Tight 
United States security regulations delayed the processing of technical informa­
tion to other countries, and made it very difficult for Canadian design authori­
ties to obtain up to date technical information on manufacturing design 
drawings.

The contractor encountered unforeseen difficulties in procurement of some 
materials required in very small quantities. For example, a cellulose nitric 
plastic was obtainable only in bulk quantity of 300 pounds, whereas the 
contractor needed only four and a half pounds for the entire contract. There 
were several such materials and the difficulty resulted in extensive lost time 
due to the necessity for the government inspection testing of substitute mate­
rials.

By early 1962 the contractor had lost over 530 working days due to the 
processing of some 27 design changes and the associated testing of materials and 
components. One item of material, it was discovered, had not been manufac­
tured in the United States since 1944. This was a firecracker fuse specified by 
United States manufacture type number. The total cost of this fuse was 
insignificant, and the Canadian contractor had not been concerned at the time of 
his making a quotation as he was accustomed to using firecracker fuses in his 
commercial operation.

In August of 1961 the contractor submitted a request for consideration of 
out of pocket additional costs. The Audit Services branch conducted an audit 
and in its report dated April 12th, 1962 it was disclosed that allowable costs 
totalled $72,651.58, sales tax and profit extra, for the production of 4,920 already 
completed signals.

Pursuant to treasury board minute 610280, dated April 26, 1963, the 
contract was amended to reduce the quantity to 4,920 signals already delivered, 
and establish a final price based on the audited cost plus a reduced fee based at 
4J per cent of the estimated cost of production, exclusive of any contractor’s 
development costs.

That is the end of my statement, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Winch: May I say that I think we have just listened to a rather 

amazing statement by Mr. Hunter, and because his statement was written, this 
committee naturally has a number of questions to ask.

First of all, can we find out why, in view of Mr. Hunter’s statement, and 1 
think I have it correctly, there was “tight” information by the United States 
that certain information was not available. Second, why was it that in April, 
1957, the Department of Defence Production let a contract for flares on which, 
because of a tight United States security, you did not have all the information; 
and also your statement that one of the materials involved had not been
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produced in the United States since 1944. You had a contract for Canada in 1957 
on material not available in the United States since 1944. Can you give this 
committee some information on how you operate?

Mr. Hunter: With respect to the question of “tight” information, I did not 
mean that the information to our design authorities was difficult to get. There 
has been some inference from the story I read in the paper on the earlier 
discussion of this item that possibly the French production or the Canadian 
contractor should have been quite aware of all the materials which would be an 
item of relatively new ammunition.

Mr. Winch: Do you not give him specifications?
Mr. Hunter: Yes, we do, sir, but the question was whether we should have 

known or the contractor should have known that these did include certain 
materials that might have been out of production.

Mr. Winch: Is it not your responsibility when you let the contract as to 
whether or not these things are available or in production?

Mr. Hunter: I would say, sir, that it is the responsibility of the Department 
of Defence Production and the design authority which is the Department of 
National Defence. This was a store that had never been made in Canada. That 
was my reason for mentioning the fact that it was not generally known to 
everybody, to all contractors who might bid on this, whether all of these items 
were available. They were told that this item was in production in United 
States, which it was. They properly had assumed that these were the latest 
drawings. As it turned out, and as I told you, they were not. But this was one 
case in, I hope to say, more than a thousand; it is one of two cases, frankly—the 
other case is the next item—that we have been given drawings which were 
improper or were not the latest version, and really led us to any substantial 
expenditures as a result of mistakes.

Mr. Winch: On what possible reasonable basis could the Department of 
National Defence issue specifications for a contract on something which was out 
of production in 1944?

Mr. E. B. Armstrong (Deputy Minister of Department of National De­
fence): It was our responsibility to issue the specifications and, as Mr. Hunter 
has pointed out, this type of store which had been acquired before for the 
R.C.A.F. had been purchased from United States sources. When tenders were 
called for in Canada the only specifications available to us were the United 
States specifications. We asked the department of the United States Navy for the 
military specifications for the article, and we were supplied. As it turned out, as 
Mr. Hunter has pointed out, there were some amendments to that specification 
that for one reason or another were omitted when it was supplied to us.

Secondly, as I understand the situation, the manufacture in Canada, and as 
Mr. Hunter I think pointed out in his statement, involved the substitution of 
materials which had been used in the United States design. This in itself caused 
problems in terms of the specification which involved some modifications to it. 
As a consequence of all of these factors, there were, I think, if I remember 
rightly, 26 design changes, and of those twenty-six there was only one change 
which really originated by the design authority, that is the R.CA.F., and it cost,
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if I remember rightly, $1,800. This accounts for $1,800 in the change of price; 
the other came about through the process which Mr. Hunter and I have 
described.

Mr. Winch: I am not too much concerned about an expenditure of only 
$28,000. There is a very important matter of principle here, and the principle is 
that when you wanted to let this contract in 1957, you had to get the 
specifications from the United States, our compatriots, and they gave you 
specifications of 1944 when they stopped production on one item. In 1957 you 
received that.

Mr. Armstrong: I do not think it is correct to deduce that they gave us 
specifications of 1944. They gave us their military specifications for this item. 
Inadvertently, or for one reason or another, some of the design changes made in 
that military specification were not included in the specifications we received. 
Ultimately, some changes had to be made.

Mr. Winch: Does this happen very often?
Mr. Armstrong: Not very often.
Mr. Bigg: It seems to me that what happened is something like this. You 

tried to get exactly the same fuse; I suppose they were obsolete in the United 
States by the time we bought them, and you asked them for the plans of this 
thing and they just made a mistake in giving you the plans for Mark I instead 
of Mark VII. It seems a simple thing to have gone back to the United States and 
said, “You made an error, please give us the plans for your Mark VII”. Then if 
there were minor changes to be made, all right.

I notice another discrepancy, namely we ended up with 5,000 fuses instead 
of 7,500, and apparently you paid them $28,000 more than the initial firm price 
for the full 7,500, which makes it roughly double, you have doubled the 
contract.

The Chairman: Please direct your questions to the officials, Mr. Bigg.
Mr. Bigg: Who was responsible for not making a rapid check with the 

United States authorities to get plans for the new fuse, instead of blaming the 
R.C.A.F., the Defence Production, and so on. Who was responsible for not 
checking right away?

The Chairman: All right. Your question is, whose responsibility was it for 
checking designs? Well, I suppose the designs came from the Department of 
National Defence and were turned over to Defence Production.

Mr. Armstrong: The design authority is a Department of National Defence; 
in this case the R.C.A.F.

The Chairman: Now, I think that answers your question. Please try and be 
brief and to the point. The question was, whose responsibility was it to check 
the designs. The answer is the R.C.A.F.

Mr. Bigg: I have a supplementary question which is right in line. Have any 
steps been taken to streamline this procedure so that we do not have five years 
of confusion?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, that is a rather difficult question to answer. As Mr. 
Hunter pointed out, he only knows of two instances of this kind. The specifica-
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tion which was provided turned out not to be the fully amended specification. 
As I recall, I think this was ascertained within a relatively short time after the 
contract was awarded. There were considerable difficulties even after that in 
producing this store for a variety of other reasons.

Mr. Bigg: It was not the flares that cost all this money then?
Mr. Armstrong: No, I do not think so.
The Chairman : I recognize Mr. Ballard, and then Mr. Henderson has an 

observation.
Mr. Ballard: Mr. Chairman, I think the place where the error was 

made—and I received this impression from Mr. Henderson’s report where he said 
it was later determined that the drawings and specifications which had originat­
ed in the United States had never been used for production—is not in the fact 
that the contract was awarded for something for which the prototype had not 
been built, nor the fact that there had been any experience from previous pro­
duction. In other words, they let a contract for a large job without having any 
end proof that the object would work. I am wondering if this is the usual 
procedure in the Department of Defence Production?

The Chairman: I believe Mr. Henderson has an observation here.
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Ballard’s statement is correct and in 

accordance with the facts. Mr. Hunter mentioned that this payment of $28,868 
had been authorized by order in council 610280 which is correct, and that is 
dated May 9, 1963 and is signed by the Minister of Defence Production. I have 
here the request to the treasury board for this order in council, and I think it 
sums up very precisely what happened.

At the time of the tender and the award it was understood that the store 
had been manufactured in the United States, to the specifications and drawings 
provided. Consequently, there was no reason for concern over the producibility 
of the store or the appropriateness of the fixed price.

Subsequent to the start of production, the contractor and the design 
authorities began to discover inaccuracies and conflicts within the stipulated 
design drawings and specifications, and corrective measures were instituted by 
design change procedure. These were minor in the beginning and were of such a 
nature that the contractor and the Royal Canadian Air Force were hopeful that 
a satisfactory product would be forthcoming. However, as the program 
progressed problems became more serious and a total of 24 design changes were 
in the end required. The contractor did not request additional costs for each of 
these changes as they occurred, in the belief that each one was the last, and that 
individually they would not amount to too much.

Subsequent to this period, it was discovered that the drawings and 
specifications, which were of United States origin, had never been used for 
production, that there had been extensive revision in the United States along 
the same lines as that represented by the foregoing 24 design changes. The 
upshot of this total explanation is that we were only able to get 4,920 flares and 
it cost us $28,000 more money.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Of the 4,920 flares which were finally produced, were 
they operational and were they ever used?



702 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS June 14, 1966

Mr. Armstrong : The flares which were finally produced were used in the 
service for training purposes.

The Chairman: Are they still in use?
Mr. Armstrong : I could not tell you whether they have all been used 

offhand, but I think probably some of them are still in use.
Mr. Winch: We now have, from the reading of that order in council, what I 

think is an extraordinary situation to which this committee is entitled to an 
answer. I have to speak, sir, from memory, but, Mr. Henderson, I believe you 
read from the order in council to the effect that the plans and specifications 
were received from the United States on an item which had never been in 
production.

Mr. Henderson: It was discovered, and I am reading, Mr. Winch, from the—
Mr. Winch: The order in council?
Mr. Henderson: —request to the treasury board for the order in council; 

that is the document giving them the reasons why the minister wanted it.
It was discovered that the drawings and specifications which were of 

United States origin had never been used for production. That there had 
been extensive revision in the United States along the same lines as that 
represented by the foregoing 24 design changes.

In other words, they had had an experience similar to our own.
Mr. Winch: Then, Mr. Chairman, I have this point to make for the benefit 

of the deputy minister, which I think is a logical one. This is a contract for 
signal flares. There are twenty-four design changes when we start going into 
production, and the basis upon which the extra payment was made is on the 
request from the Minister of Defence Production, but this had never gone into 
production in the United States. Is this the usual procedure and practice of the 
Department of Defence Production with respect to something which has never 
gone into production? Apparently you have a contract on something which the 
United States has never put into production. I think this is a matter of major 
importance, sir, to our committee, and I hope the deputy minister can give us an 
explanation.

The Chairman: I think in fairness to Mr. Hunter, I should say at this point 
that he was not deputy minister of the Department when this happened. 
However, I know he is now responsible for the operation of the Department, 
and can, no doubt, speak on this subject.

Mr. Winch: I am not casting aspersions, sir. As a member of this 
committee, I am seeking information.

The Chairman: That is quite right, Mr. Winch. I did not say that you did 
not have the right, but I just wanted you to know that Mr. Hunter was not 
deputy at that time.

Mr. Hunter: I was assistant deputy. However, I think, as the Auditor 
General has said, these drawings were never used to produce this article. It 
seems obvious to me that these were a very early set of drawings which were 
handed over to our design authority by mistake. They were a very early set and
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there had been, in fact, 24 amendments to those drawings to the point where the 
current production in the United States was using an amended drawing. There 
is no doubt about it that this was an error; we were given the wrong set of 
drawings, but this does not happen very often. The reason I mentioned that 
perhaps my department or the four or five contractors who were given the 
drawings to bid on would not have known that this was out of date was because 
of tight security regulations. They would have every right to expect that these 
were the latest drawings and we accepted them in good faith on the basis they 
were.

The only other thing I can say is that I have made inquiries since our last 
meeting to see if this was an occurrence which happens very often. I find that 
the two contracts, this one and the one for magnetrons which follows this item, 
are the only two of any substance which any of my people recall, or that I 
myself recall.

Mr. Thomas (Middlesex West): Mr. Chairman, I think most of my ques­
tions have been answered. It seems to me that since this happened back in 
April, 1957 and since there have been a number of ministers of not only defence, 
but of defence production, and there have been a number of changes in the 
department, I would like to ask the Auditor General one question. I know he 
has to report these unusual occurrences but is there anything, in his opinion, 
which we can do now other than make the inquiries we have made?

Mr. Henderson: I think, Mr. Thomas, that you have elicited sufficient 
information to be able to reach your own conclusions when it comes to framing 
your recommendations on these type of cases. The deputy minister has ex­
plained that this was a case where they were inadvertently in receipt of the 
wrong specifications or plans and, after all, mistakes like this occur. It is too bad 
that we have to go over a list such as this at each of our meetings, but it is a 
fact of life that we do have to deal with them. It seems to me that you will want 
to draw your conclusions across the wide range of all of the cases which you 
have examined.

You have had a different set of facts in each case. However, in running 
through the cases I believe there has been a certain similarity of cause, if I can 
put it that way. I do not know whether you will agree with this, but I think that 
is the responsibility of the committee to determine when it frames its recom­
mendations.

The Chairman: Just two questions, one by Mr. Noble and one by Mr. 
Schreyer, and then we will come back to Mr. Winch.

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I would just like to ask Mr. Henderson if there 
is any good reason why this was not brought before the committee at an earlier 
date. It seems to me that this happened back in 1957 and now this is 1966.

Mr. Henderson: Mr. Noble, the answer to that is very simple, I report on 
the basis of the year in which the money is paid, and this was paid May 11, 1963 
which was in the 1963-64 year and we are looking at the 1963-64 report. I think 
there is a good case for tackling these things earlier and perhaps on a more 
preventative basis, but at the speed, if I may say, at which we have been 
operating that has not always been possible.
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Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I would simply ask Mr. Hunter if, arising out 
of this incident, any changes in procedure have been made or could be made in 
his estimation to take care of this or prevent it?

Mr. Hunter: Mr. Chairman, this would be one example which would be a 
lesson, I suppose, to both the design authority and ourselves on ammunition 
whereby when we found one small error we probably would assume that there 
could be others. Mr. Andrews, who is with me, is chief of the ammunition 
branch, and I am sure this would be the kind of thing which would suggest to 
him that if it happened again we would probably go back and perhaps make a 
closer check after we had found one or two errors. This, unfortunately, was a 
combination of the contractor not telling us, hoping that each one he found was 
the last one, and another combination. I would say one thing we learned was to 
check them more closely.

Mr. Winch: I do not want to carry this on, but I just want to say that this 
is a very important matter because Mr. Hunter has said three times, with 
regard to this item itself, that it was a matter of “tight” United States security. 
So here we have a question which involves flares, “tight” American security, 
plans supplied to us, and when we go into production they do not work. First of 
all, I hope we can be assured that there is now some kind of a check on plans 
and specifications, especially if they have not gone to production, before we 
start spending Canadian taxpayers’ money.

Mr. Henderson: That is right.
The Chairman : Well, I think we have discussed this item fairly thoroughly. 

We have heard both sides of the question, and I think what is before the 
committee to decide when we write our report is why did the Department of 
National Defence, the Department of Defence Production and the contractor not 
check the specifications more closely, and proceed with the manufacturing 
before these specifications were put into production.

I think the second question the committee will have to decide is this: Is the 
Department—and I am referring to defence production—tough enough on these 
contractors when they come for drawbacks and consideration for delays, etc. 
Those are questions the committee will have to discuss. We have heard both 
sides.

We will now go on to item No. 4, namely the magnetrons, which is a similar 
case. Mr. Henderson has a brief introduction, and then we will hear from Mr. 
Hunter.

Mr. Henderson: In this case, the air force refused to accept any more than 
432 units out of a contract for 630 magnetron units being purchased from the 
manufacturer. The manufacturer claimed that as he had manufactured, or 
partly manufactured, a total of 630 in accordance with the specifications, he 
should be paid the full ceiling price, and this is what was done.

Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, before Mr. Hunter gives his information will he 
fully explain why the air force refused further delivery?

Mr. Hunter: When the magnetrons in question were ordered from the 
Canadian Marconi Company the standard procedure for military electronic 
parts known as “mil specs” was followed. This procedure has been established
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because this class of item is normally purchased for use in a variety of 
equipment. The Department of National Defence subjected a batch of magne­
trons to qualification tests, including tests in operational type equipment. The 
results were completely satisfactory.

The Company then produced and delivered magnetrons with the Depart­
ment of National Defence inspection services certifying that they all met fully 
the requirements of the pertinent military specifications which constituted the 
contractual requirements. When it was found that the magnetrons were giving a 
very short life in R.C.A.F. operational use, deliveries were stopped and a 
thorough investigation made. It showed that the U.S.A.F. magnetron specifica­
tions included tolerances in one test wider than would ensure satisfactory 
operation in the radar for which these particular magnetrons were being 
bought. The radar was of United States design and was obtained from the 
United States. The possibility of this trouble may not have been discovered by 
the United States Air Force at this time, and was not known to the R.C.A.F. 
design authority; in other words, it had not been reported to them.

When all the facts of the situation had been examined it was the opinion of 
the Department of Justice that the Company was not at fault and, consequently, 
they were paid for the work they had done.

Mr. Winch: I think we will all agree, after listening to Mr. Hunter, that the 
contractor was not at fault, but somebody was definitely at fault for the 
specifications and in the awarding of the contract because the item was not able 
to do the job for which it was being purchased.

Therefore, we come back to magnetrons, which are very expensive, being 
purchased for a specific job, and obviously not capable of doing that job. So we 
come back now almost to what we had before, that is the Department of 
National Defence and the Department of Defence Production spending the 
taxpayer’s money for equipment which will not meet the requirements of the 
job. On what basis then do you lay down your specifications, and then it does 
not work?

Mr. Hunter: Well, sir, these magnetrons were manufactured for a variety 
of equipments; one happened to be this radar, but the same magnetron could be 
used for a number of other equipments; perhaps other radars and other 
electronic equipment. The test from the design authority, which was the 
R.C.A.F., received from the United States authorities was one which covered the 
whole range of what they felt would cover every one of the uses of this 
particular magnetron. As it turned out, the MG-2 fire control, for which we 
were using these magnetrons, after a number of hours of service—and it may 
have been that we discovered it before the Americans—it was just one shade in 
the testing of this tolerance band scope in which this magnetron failed.

• (4.30 p.m.)
Mr. Winch: Mr. Chairman, I think that backs up my statement now, 

namely that we, because of the United States having certain specifications or a 
certain type of equipment, seem to automatically accept their specifications and 
then let the contracts in Canada. This is the second item now which conclusively 
proves it does not do the job. It seems to me that there is an attitude, if I gather 
correctly, and I apologize if I am wrong, that you automatically accept any
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decision, any specification, from the United States. Yet we now have a second 
example that the equipment is useless. I say it must have been useless because 
the air force refused to accept delivery after 432 units had been received.

Mr. Armstrong: I think there is one point which you should be aware of, 
Mr. Winch. These magnetrons which were used in the MG-2 fire control system 
on the CF-100 interceptor had been bought in the United States to the 
specification that they were manufactured to in Canada. However, the produc­
tion in Canada, as Mr. Hunter has pointed out, failed when they were used in 
the MG-2 fire control system which is where they were needed. The specifica­
tion is the same specification that was used for the manufacture of this 
particular magnetron which was used for the same purpose successfully from 
United States production.

Mr. Winch: But not successfully in Canada in the way you used them.
Mr. Armstrong: They were used for the same purpose in some cases.
Mr. Winch: But they failed?
Mr. Armstrong: The Canadian manufactured magnetron failed.
Mr. Winch: I think the committee then would like to know why it failed, 

what was wrong? Was it your department, sir, or was it defence production?
The Chairman: The question is why they worked in the United States but 

they did not work in Canada?
Mr. E. O. Smith (Control Systems, Department of Defence Production): 

Well, sir, I think the answer to that is that the specification in one respect had a 
somewhat wide tolerance which would not be obvious unless you had been 
involved in the design of the equipment. In the United States the magnetrons 
were being made to one end of this tolerance which we were not to know, and 
we evidently made them to the other side of the tolerance. This was just critical 
enough that the United States magnetrons operated in this equipment and the 
Canadian made magnetrons did not.

Mr. Winch: My question is, why did you not know of your particular 
situation to make whatever adjustments were required so that it would work?

Mr. Chairman: Would secrecy be involved in this in any way?
Mr. Smith: No, sir. I think the fact that it could occur was not known in 

the United States or in Canada. When it was discovered, a rather large number 
of magnetrons had already been made and delivered.

Mr. Schreyer: I believe Mr. Hunter said this piece of equipment did have a 
variety of purposes or uses, and that it did not work in this particular use. My 
question is, was delivery accepted for other purposes in which case this would 
not have been a completely non-productive payment? Perhaps this should be 
directed to Mr. Henderson. Was delivery taken in any case by the department, 
if not by the air force?

Mr. Armstrong: As far as Canada was concerned, we only required this 
magnetron for the one purpose, namely in the MG-2 fire control system of the 
CF-100 interceptor. The article manufactured in Canada did not work, at least 
it had a very short life once it was put into use.
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Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, having paid for possession of this piece of 
equipment, was possession actually taken even after finding out that it was not 
particularly suitable for this purpose, or was it left in possession of the 
contractor?

The Chairman: I think the answer, Mr. Schreyer, is that 432 units were 
received, but the contractor was paid for 630 units. Possibly you would like to 
know why he was paid for 432 when the contract called for 630.

Mr. Winch: Also sir, as to whether the difference was turned over to Crown 
Assets Disposal Corporation, or was it left in the hands of the contractor?

Mr. Hunter : Sir, these would have been all paid for because the contractor 
had followed the military specifications; this was the specification which we 
gave him and on which our inspection authority tested it. This was the 
specification I mentioned which would cover a range and a number of equip­
ments which used it, but would have a short life in this particular use of the 
MG-2 fire control. As far as I know, these would all have been either used or 
declared surplus by the Department of National Defence, if they found they 
could not use them.

Mr. Winch: Would Mr. Hunter please explain this a bit further :
After 432 units had been received and accepted, the air force refused 

further deliveries. The contractor having manufactured or partly manu­
factured the 630 units in accordance with the specifications, claimed and 
was paid the full ceiling price.

What I would like to know is, having paid the full ceiling price, did you 
receive the 630 units and, if not able to use them, were they turned over to 
crown assets or were they left in the hands of the contractor? I know something 
about electronics, and the contractor could sell or adapt this type of article very 
beneficially.

Mr. Hunter: Sir, I am advised that they would all have to be received 
before any payment could be made.

The Chairman: The 632?
Mr. Hunter: That is what my officials tell me.
The Chairman: The 632 units were manufactured and received by the 

department.
Mr. Winch: What happened to them? Were they turned over to crown 

assets or are they still in storage?
Mr. Henderson: I have some information on that, Mr. Chairman.
The contract was for the production, as stated here, of 630 magnetron units 

at a price of $454,545. The Canadian manufacturer completed and delivered 432 
magnetrons before production was stopped when the air force refused further 
deliveries. The remaining 198 in a semi-finished state were declared surplus to 
Crown Assets Disposal at an estimated value of $190,000. The crown assets’ 
declaration number is 9310. We do not have any information as to what crown 
assets secured for them. That information should be obtained, but we do not 
have it here. That is the declaration number.

Mr. Winch: Did you say $190,000?
24577—2
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Mr. Henderson: They had an estimated value of $190,000 at the time they 
were declared surplus which was on Declaration Form 9310. So it becomes a 
question of looking at that form to see what they realized for them on sale. The 
Department then turned around and paid the contractor the full ceiling price 
for the 630.

The point I would like to ask Mr. Hunter, here, Mr. Chairman, is whether 
he was not of the opinion that the specifications had been at fault, and that the 
responsibility lay with the design authority? That would be the Department of 
National Defence- Did you not believe that the specifications might have been at 
fault and that it was the responsibility of the Department of National Defence?

Mr. Hunter: As far as I was concerned, these were done to a military 
specification. We were advised by the users in the United States; they used to 
have to pass the information over to us. They used this same fire control and 
since they had not advised us that they had any trouble with it, we could only 
assume that it was all right. Perhaps they had not subjected it to the same use 
as we did. I would assume that our design authority would pass this information 
back because there is certainly no intentional holding back of information that I 
would be aware of.

Mr. Henderson: It is my information that the Department of National 
Defence went to the Department of Justice to try to secure recovery from the 
manufacturer. Is that right?

Mr. Armstrong: The problem of settlement with the contractor in a case 
like this is a matter for the Department of Defence Production. I think it was 
the Department of Defence Production that went to the Department of Justice; 
I am not sure. In any event, the Department of Justice was asked for an opinion 
as to whether the contractor could be held responsible, and in their opinion he 
could not.

Mr. Bigg: As I understand it, had these units been completed in the United 
States—I do not know what the exact technical problem was, whether it was 
thickness of metal or what it happened to be—they would have been satisfactory.

I do not think the manufacturer is at fault if they, shall we say, put in a 
half inch of lead instead of an inch when the United States were using an 
inch—somebody thought they would save on metal—and they certainly produced 
according to the contract. However, if we failed by trying to chisel on the 
contract, that is because we made it cheaper and it did not work, then I think 
we should place the blame on the designers.

Mr. Armstrong: I do not think there was any question of so-called 
chiselling on the contract. As I said earlier, the specification was one on which 
production had been manufactured in the United States. The magnetrons were 
used for the same purpose in Canada.

Mr. Bigg: Was that the same specification?
Mr. Armstrong: The same specifications, as I understand it. The prototype 

production from the Canadian manufacturer was tested on mock-up arrange­
ments and worked satisfactorily. However, when the magnetrons were actually 
put in use in the fire control system in the CF-100 aircraft they did not work 
satisfactorily.
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Mr. Bigg: Is it too much to ask the United States specifically what went 
wrong?

Mr. Winch: Would our friend tell us why, on the same specifications, it 
works on the same job in the United States, but yet it does not work in 
Canada?

Mr. Armstrong: Well, I gather, and I am not a technical expert on this 
subject, that in this specification there is a certain tolerance, I am not sure of 
the technical name for this, and apparently, depending on whether you are at a 
given point in this tolerance within a given area, it works satisfactorily in the 
MG-2 fire control system. However, there are other points in the tolerance 
where it does not work satisfactorily. In the United States production, using the 
same tolerance, the same specifications, apparently the magnetrons were manu­
factured in such a way that the area of this tolerance that worked in the MG-2 
fire control system was met, but in the case of the Canadian manufacturer 
apparently they were at a slightly different area of the tolerance and it did not 
work.

Mr. Bigg: Do you mean in the machine, or in the metal?
Mr. Armstrong: Perhaps we could get the production officer to explain the 

technical aspects because I am afraid I am not an expert in this department.
Mr. Winch: I understand our fire control is under specification of the 

United States.
Mr. Armstrong: That is right.
Mr. Winch: If our fire control is under United States specifications, why 

does it work there and not here?
Mr. Armstrong: The MG-2 fire control system, as is used in the CF-100, is 

in fact a United States system.
Mr. Winch: Well, why does it not work in Canada?
Mr. Armstrong: Well, that is what I am endeavouring to explain, but I am 

not being very successful.
The Chairman: I believe you wanted Mr. Smith to answer it.
Mr. Bigg: If you are talking about tolerance, it usually means cut to within 

so many thousandths of an inch with certain lubrications, and if they were not 
cut to that exact specification they would rattle apart or wear out too fast or 
jam. If these specifications called for one ten thousandths of an inch instead of 
one thousandths of an inch, they would have trouvle with them. Somebody 
boo-booed, that is all.

The Chairman: I will recognize Mr. Muir, then Mr. Noble, and then I think 
we will come back to Mr. Smith.

Mr. Muir (Lisgar): Well, my question is very brief too, and it is on the 
tolerance. In the specifications you received from the United States, does it not 
state the tolerance that they would be using so that it could be machined, or 
whatever tolerance means, to the same degree in Canada?

24577—2J
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Mr. Smith: Well, sir, I think I would have to start by explaining that in 
electronic devices of this type, the specification is not a manufacturing specifica­
tion as it is with mechanical devices. What the specification does is to present a 
series of tests whch the article had to meet and the manufacturer, whether he 
is in the United States or Canada, sets up his own design, using his own factory 
technique. This is the standard practice. The magnetron is a very elaborate 
device involving both chemistry and engineering.

This particular magnetron design did not give a very good life and 
Canadian Marconi tried, within the specification, to establish their chemistry to 
give the best life they could, and within this tolerance, which in fact was on a 
test condition, not on a mechanical dimension at all, they chose a position which 
they thought would give the best performance. This was where we ran into 
trouble because there was no knowledge that where you set the test within this 
tolerance would affect its performance in the MG-2 radar.

Mr. Muir: Well, that is fine. Thank you.
Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I am wondering why a test was not made of 

some of the first production to find out whether it was going to be all right 
before they went ahead and spent approximately half a million dollars and then 
found out after they spent the money that they were no good. In private 
business you first take some samples and try them to see if they work before 
you spend the money. Secondly, I would like to know from Mr. Henderson if 
this value of $190,000 was for the whole 620 units or just for the 198 which 
were not completed.

Mr. Henderson: Just for 198.
Mr. Noble: Just for the 198?
Mr. Henderson: That is not necessarily the price which was realized by 

Crown Assets. We shall have to find that out, but I do not think it would be that 
figure.

Mr. Noble: Well, Mr. Chairman, I would like to have some explanation 
from someone about this testing. I think that when you are spending the kind of 
money, you should make some tests.

The Chairman: It sounds like a good question. Mr. Hunter?
Mr. Hunter: Sir, these were tested very thoroughly by the Department of 

National Defence, and on first operation they were found to meet all the tests- It 
was only later in the usage life in the MG-2 fire control that they were found to 
fail. When they were manufactured, tested and given, what was considered I 
assume by the inspection people, a reasonable test, they did in fact meet the 
specifications in all of the tests. That is why production continued, and it was 
only when they were found to fail, possibly when they got the aircraft in use 
overseas—I do not know where the site of the failures was—

Mr. Schreyer: Did they all fail? It seems obvious and essential to our 
questioning to know the definition of the term or concept of “tolerance”. It 
would seem that many of us were thinking of tolerance in terms of mechanical 
dimension and measurement, when in fact it does not mean that at all. It seems 
rather to have something to do with durability and performability under
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different conditions of use, and so on. I do not know that we are so technically 
efficient in this committee to follow it up.

The Chairman: Following Mr. Noble’s question of why this test was not 
made before the contract was let and we were advised that it was taken, I 
believe it would appear to the committee, and they will have to decide this 
later, that the Department had a pretty good case against the company, but they 
did not press the case. I suppose we leave it at that point unless the 
departments concerned want to elaborate on that. I think you have said what 
you had to say on it, but that would appear to be the question we will have to 
settle in the committee, namely whether you had a good case against the 
company and, secondly, if so, why did you not press the case against the 
company rather than give in?

Mr. Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, I just have one question to direct to Mr. 
Henderson. The price of the contract is $721 per unit. Now if we turn over to 
Crown Assets 198 units, the price would be $143,000. I am just wondering how 
they arrive at the price of $190,000 when they assessed the magnetrons turned 
over to Crown Assets?

Mr. Henderson: Well, these were not finished, Mr. Leblanc; they were 
partly finished or semi-finished. I cannot answer that question precisely for you 
as this is the figure used by the Department.

Mr. Leblanc : It is more than the cost of the contract. So I would imagine if 
they were not finished completely they would turn them over to Crown Assets 
at the lesser price.

Mr. Henderson: I was reading from a departmental document in my 
working papers at the time.

The Chairman: All right. I think we will leave this item if the committee is 
agreed.

While the Defence Production officials are here we would like to deal with 
those paragraphs in which they are involved, and I think we should go to the 
Auditor General’s Report 1965, page 50, paragraph 77, the Bomb Toss Com­
puter. These are technical items and we are doing our best to follow the 
technicalities. Perhaps we are just a little ahead of ourselves. We have 
paragraph 75, the Bobcat program for development of army vehicles, page 46, 
which reads as follows:

75. Bobcat Program for development of army vehicles. On November 
19, 1964 the Special Committee of the House of Commons on Defence met 
with officials of the Department of Defence Production to discuss among 
other matters a statement furnished by the Department to the Committee 
concerning the Bobcat Development Program. The text of the discussion 
and statement will be found in Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence No. 
21 of this Committee.

The final settlement of the Bobcat Development Program during the 
past year brought its total cost to $9,252,908. The program was a failure. 
No serviceable vehicles were produced and the Government has since 
entered into a contract for the supply of 961 United States vehicles at an 
estimated cost of $32 million.



PUBLIC ACCOUNTS June 14, 1966

The history of the Bobcat Development Program starts ten years ago 
when a contract was placed in 1954 for the development of a mild steel 
prototype of an infantry carrier to replace World War II Universal 
Carriers which were rapidly becoming obsolete. The vehicle was deliv­
ered to the Army in the fall of 1956 and cost $1,010,856.

When the project was reviewed in 1956 it was decided to develop a 
family of light tracked armoured vehicles known as the Bobcat, for use 
as personnel, field artillery, infantry weapons and cargo carriers, all 
having the same basic tracked chassis. About the same time the United 
States Army which had knowledge of this proposal decided to produce its 
own armoured personnel carrier with essentially the same main charac­
teristics as the Canadian vehicle. However, the U.S. Army did not 
propose to meet its several requirements with a common chassis as in the 
Bobcat family.

The Bobcat Program called for development in three phases. The 
contract for the first phase covering the development and supply of three 
light tracked chassis at an estimated cost of $1 million was approved by 
the Treasury Board in November 1956. The contract was dated January 
2, 1957 but on March 29, 1957 it was amended to provide for the supply 
of the three chassis complete with bodies. This significant change in the 
contract was not approved by the Treasury Board until November 1957 
when an additional $250,000 was provided for the project. Further 
amounts of $350,000, $200,000 and $165,000 were approved by the 
Treasury Board in June 1958, October 1958 and April 1959 to cover 
estimated addidional costs. There was usually a lapse of about five 
months between the receipt of the contractor’s request for additional 
funds and its processing through the Departments of Defence Production 
and National Defence before submission to the Treasury Board. The 
vehicles were delivered to the Army in October 1958, but it was not until 
April 1959 that sufficient funds were provided to finalize the contract at a 
total cost of $1,933,670.

In June 1958 the Chiefs of Staff proposed the initiation of the second 
phase of the development program for the production of six hard steel 
pilot models including production drawings at an estimated cost of 
$1,310,000. This was later submitted to the Minister of National Defence 
for his approval and to the Treasury Board. This submission and an 
alternative proposal by the contractor to telescope the development and 
pre-production stages into a production order contract were considered 
by the Treasury Board on January 23, 1959. However, the Board 
recommended to Cabinet on January 27, 1959 that there should be no 
departure from the present concept of the orderly development of the 
Bobcat vehicle including the procurement of a further six pilot models.

The Treasury Board on April 24, 1959 authorized entry into a 
contract for the assessment of engineering tests on the three existing 
prototypes which, notwithstanding its previous recommendation to 
Cabinet, included the production of one armoured hull of a personnel 
carrier, the design and manufacture of an unarmoured load carrier body, 
provision of special parts, tools, test rigs and instrumentation, reports, 
specifications and literature, and provided $452,000 to initiate the pro-
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ject. In June 1959 the contractor advised that a study of the work 
required by the Army indicated that funding would have to be increased 
by $804,000. On October 29, 1959 the Treasury Board authorized the 
amount required and made provision for the contract to be amended to 
include the production of one armoured vehicle complete with armoured 
hull, a modified version of the prototype design steering and suspension 
units, the engineering and production of one vehicle set Timken plane­
tary final drives including the drawings, specifications and spares neces­
sary to support vehicle tests, and to provide such tooling, test rigs, and 
instrumentation as may be required. These amendments were incorporat­
ed into the contact on November 13, 1959. In January 1960 the contractor 
informed the Department of Defence Production that an additional 
$644,000 would be required to complete the contract. This amount was 
provided by the Treasury Board in June 1960, by which time the Board 
had authorized expenditures of $1.9 million. The armoured personnel 
carrier was delivered to the Army in October 1960 and was found to be 
2,000 pounds overweight and in need of product improvement before it 
could be accepted for field use. About the same time the contractor 
explained that funds originally intended to complete drawings and 
specifications had been used to cover additional changes in the scope of 
the actual development work as it progressed, and that a further $75,000 
was required to complete drawings and specifications, which was ap­
proved by the Treasury Board on October 28, 1960. The final cost of the 
work under this contract totalled $1,972,692, bringing expenditure on the 
program to this date up to $4,917,218.

On February 11, 1961 the Cabinet authorized the procurement of 500 
Bobcats at an estimated cost of $25 million on the following basis:

(a) a pilot production run of 20 vehicles to be carried out at this time at 
an estimated cost of $3.7 million (included in the above total) to 
cover the vehicles, tooling and other related costs; and

(b) on completion of the pilot production, tenders to be invited for the 
remaining vehicles on a firm fixed price.
By this time the U.S. Army had its armoured personnel carriers in 

service, whereas the Department of National Defence was not yet in a 
position to go into full scale production because only one vehicle had 
been delivered which was overweight, required further product improve­
ment and had not been proven operationally.

When the Treasury Board authorized the contract referred to under 
(a) above, the view was expressed that a tight control over specifications 
governing work under the contract should be maintained at all times. For 
this purpose the Board requested that an interdepartmental committee 
continue to screen all proposals involving product improvement before 
approval was sought to amend the provisions of the contract, and that a 
member of the Treasury Board staff participate in the work of the 
committee so that the financial implications of product improvement 
would be kept constantly to the fore. The interdepartmental committee 
was formed on April 10, 1961 from which date it held regular monthly 
meetings.
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The contract for the pilot production run, dated April 13, 1961, 
provided separate estimates of expenditure under each of the following 
headings: product improvement, production tooling, plant rearrangement, 
and vehicle production, with the aggregate liability of the Crown under 
the contract being limited to $3.7 million. The contract also provided that 
the contractor was to advise the Minister well in advance if any of the 
estimated expenditures were likely to be exceeded, and unless such new 
estimates of expenditure were approved by the Minister any expendi­
tures incurred by the contractor causing the original estimates to be 
exceeded were not to be reimbursed to the contractor, but at no time 
were the new estimates to increase the liability of the Crown beyond the 
ceiling price of $3.7 million.

The contractor’s progress report, giving the financial position of the 
contract at Deember 31, 1962, submitted to the interdepartmental 
committee, revealed that expenditures under two headings of the con­
tract had been exceeded. A subsequent report giving the financial 
position at March 31, 1963 revealed over-expenditures under all headings 
of the contract except for plant rearrangement. In August 1963 the 
contractor indicated unwillingness to continue the contract unless addi­
tional funds were provided by the Crown. In September 1963 the 
interdepartmental committee reported the position to the Treasury Board
at which time the contractor's reported costs to July 26, 1963 were
follows:

Contractor’s Excess of
Estimated reported cost over

expenditure costs estimate

Product improvement .............................$ 1,096,516 $ 1,238,328 $ 141,812
Production tooling .... ............................. 520,570 621,996 101,426
Plant rearrangement .. ............................. 32,636 32,285 (351)
Vehicle production ................................. 2,050,278 2,848,430 798,152

$ 3,700,000 $ 4,741,039 $ 1,041,039

The contract was terminated in December 1963. In February 1964 
the contractor informed the Department of Defence Production that, 
after making an allowance of some $42,000 for post-termination costs, the 
total costs had exceeded the payments received from the Crown by about 
$1,636,000. The contractor proposed that the excess costs should be 
shared equally with the Crown on the grounds that “the full implications 
of the proposed improvements were not appreciated when the contract 
was let and accordingly there was a considerable under-assessment of the y 
effort required and costs involved. The original armoured prototype, on 
which the concept of the contract was based certainly did not measure 
up to the specifications written for and applied to the new vehicles” and 
experience had shown that, instead of a product improvement program,
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this phase of the work involved a redesign of about 90% of the machine. 
The contractor made formal claim for reimbursement of $799,612 addi­
tional costs and was prepared to absorb all post-termination costs 
including those involved in the scrapping of the vehicles.

Notwithstanding the fact that the Crown had no legal obligation to pay 
the contractor’s claim (a position which the contractor himself acknowl­
edged) the Department considered that there had been a change in the 
scope of the work and recommended to the Treasury Board that the 
claim be settled and this was negotiated and paid in an amount of 
$735,621 in April 1964. In the opinion of the Audit Office this constituted 
an ex gratia payment which should have been disclosed as such in the 
Public Accounts.

Non-productive expenditure of public funds of this magnitude 
should be subjected to the most searching inquiry to determine how it 
might have been minimized or contained. Officials of the Department of 
Defence Production told the Special Committee on Defence that while it 
was difficult to determine precisely all the factors which resulted in the 
termination of the Bobcat Development Program, it could be said with 
some certainty that the following were contributing factors:

1. The scope of the program was not adequately defined at the early 
stages of the program and consequently the program was inade­
quately financed. The necessity of re-funding and re-approval at 
various stages throughout the program resulted in lengthy delays.

2. The design requirements for the Bobcat were altered a number of 
times over the course of the program which necessitated changes in 
the development of the vehicle although this is not abnormal in a 
development program and was probably not a major consideration 
in the ultimate lack of success.

3. Similar developments were undertaken in the United Kingdom and 
in the United States and at the time of cancellation of the Bobcat 
fully operational vehicles were available from the United States at 
considerably less than the projected cost of the Bobcat and with 
much earlier delivery for Canadian Army use. The United States 
vehicle had by that time also been adopted by a number of other 
NATO countries.

Mr. Henderson: Although this has been looked at before, there is a short 
statement I would like to make.

The Bobcat program was discussed in the defence committee of the House 
in November, 1964. This is a program which first got underway twelve years 
ago. Its cost since is over $9£ million and the amount has been non-productive; 
no serviceable vehicles were produced and the program was a failure.

At about the time this was discussed in the special committee of the 
House on defence in November, 1964 the final payment was made on the 
contract, and because it came in at that date it appears in my 1964 report. 
This was a payment of $735,621. It is mentioned at the end of this lengthy 
note.
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In our view the facts clearly indicate that this payment constituted an 
ex gratia payment and, therefore, it should have been disclosed as such in 
the Public Accounts. It was not treated that way. As you know, there are 
requirements that ex gratia payments be listed separately in the Public 
Accounts.

I wish to mention this, Mr. Chairman, because that explanation was not 
given before the defence committee. However, explanations were given before 
the defence committee, and you will find them at the top of page 50 which 
I thought this committee would be very interested in because they sum up 
what caused this failure. This was where the Department of Defence Produc­
tion told the committee that “while it was difficult to determine precisely 
all the factors which resulted in the termination of the Bobcat Development 
Program, it could be said with some certainty that the following were con­
tributing factors.”

I think the reasons they have advanced there are frank and are par­
ticularly useful to this committee in trying to put its finger on what causes 
non-productive expenditures, particularly of this magnitude. I believe you 
will agree with me that $9J million is fairly substantial by any standards. I do 
not know that I need to dwell on these three reasons, Mr. Chairman; they are 
known to a number of the members. There may be some questions you would 
wish to direct to Mr. Hunter. This has become history now, I suppose.

The Chairman: I would just like to ask one question here for clarification. 
This $9£ million which the Auditor General refers to, is this over and above the 
appropriation that we passed in the House now under the Department of 
Industry, previously the Department of Defence Production? I think it is 
an amount of $25 million for technological advancement and development of 
army, navy, and air force equipment.

Mr. Hunter: Sir, this all took place before that Vote was first introduced 
to this Department. I think it was development money of the Department of 
National Defence.

Mr. Bigg: I would like to make a short gratuitous statement here. I think 
Canada has a very severe Arctic condition. We were experimenting here, and 
I might say under great pressure, expecting invasion from the northern parts. 
We cannot always rely on the United States equipment and so on. They made 
experiments in the Arctic and they did find out very valuable information in the 
production of track vehicles and so forth. I think we have to pay for experi­
ments.

Mr. Henderson: May I answer that, Mr. Bigg? In the second paragraph 
I point out that while no serviceable vehicles were produced from this par­
ticular program—and there was a very genuine effort to make them in 
Canada—the government has since entered into a contract for the supply of 
960 United States vehicles of somewhat similar design at an estimated cost of 
$32 million. So we have gone and bought American equipment after all.

Mr. Bigg: But we do not like to be a satellite in every—
Mr. Henderson: I agree with that.
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Mr. Bigg: There is advantage in allowing the United States to do all our 
experiments. However, you can see what happens when security is tested; they 
do not give us their latest equipment in a great many cases. If we can do a little 
experimenting on our own we might find ourselves in dispute at times with the 
Americans. We are very much behind in any matters of defence, and I would 
suggest that we have to pay something for growing up and for experimenting. 
This is a rather sad case because I think it is a very expensive program, but I 
think in principle I would have to go along with the defence department in 
encouraging its experiments. The Arrow aeroplane was another sad case.

The Chairman: In other words, Mr. Bigg, it is rather expensive to buy 
clothes for a growing child but it has to be clothed?

Mr. Bigg: It has to grow up someday.
The Chairman: This, as Mr. Henderson has said, was discussed quite 

thoroughly in defence committee. Is there anything you want to say, Mr. 
Hunter, at this stage? I think we are prepared to move on to the next item.

Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I have one very brief question. I would ask 
Mr. Henderson if he distinguishes here between non-productive payment and ex 
gratia payment. I take it that you do?

Mr. Henderson: An ex gratia payment is one, as you know, which it is felt 
is desirable to be paid but for which there is not necessarily a legal obligation to 
pay. It has always been a requirement that ex gratia payments, wherever they 
are made by public funds, shall be listed in the Public Accounts in order that 
members of the House .may see them and know the reasons. In my opinion this 
payment fell into that category- I do not know whether Mr. Hunter shares my 
opinion on this, but I think he knows why we hold this view. The $9 million was 
non-productive because there was no value received. There was experience 
received, but I mean there were no vehicles produced.

• (5.00 p.m.)
Mr. Schreyer: Well, of this amount though, you classify less than $799,000 

as ex gratia.
Mr. Henderson: This was the final settlement payment made to the 

Canadian manufacturer during the 1965 fiscal year which was why it did not 
come into the Report until that year. And that final payment was, by our 
standards and judgment, ex gratia; it did not have to be paid. The manufactur­
er had already received something over $8 million, but they paid it for what, 
undoubtedly, from their point of view, were sound reasons. I would have no 
quarrel with that, but it fell into the ex gratia class, and I think that wound up 
the total obligation they felt they owed the manufacturer.

Mr. Noble: May I ask Mr. Henderson who the firm was that did this work?
Mr. Henderson: I have no objection to submit the name, but I just do not 

seem to have it to hand. I am advised that Canadian Car in Montreal was the 
original firm, then Avro and Hawker Siddeley.

Mr. Bigg: The Defence Department did a lot of experimenting for them?
Mr. Henderson: Considerable, yes. This went on for twelve years, you know.
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The Chairman: The next paragraph is No. 77 the Bomb Toss Computer:
77. Bomb Toss Computer. In order to meet the requirements of 

existing bombing techniques, a Bomb Toss Computer was selected in
1959 for installation in the new CF-104 aircraft, the first of which was 
scheduled for delivery March 1961. A contract with a Canadian manufac­
turer for work preliminary to the production of the Bomb Toss Computer 
in Canada was completed at a cost of $332,000.

On May 25, 1960, although the drawings for the Computer were still 
in preparation, a contract was entered into with the same manufacturer 
for the purchase of production inventory material for the manufacture of 
the first 50 units. The estimated cost of this material was $885,000.

In the meantime there was a trend developing away from the 
technique requiring the use of the Bomb Toss Computer and in August
1960 it became known that another type of weapon would very likely 
become available which would not require the use of this Computer.

In September 1960 the contract was extended to cover the procure­
ment of production inventory material for an additional 188 units at a 
cost estimated at $3,481,000. The reasons given to the Treasury Board for 
the need to extend the contract at this particular time were that there 
was a very tight delivery requirement to meet the aircraft delivery 
schedule and that cost savings and a higher Canadian labour and 
material content would be achieved by purchasing production and spares 
support inventory concurrently.

In November 1960 it became necessary to equip the CF-104 aircraft 
with Dual Timers for the delivery of a new type of weapon. These Dual 
Timers, two of which were required in each aircraft, were being pro­
duced in the United States.

At this time it was considered that the Dual Timer did not duplicate 
the service provided by any of the other weapons systems, nor did it 
detract from the original purpose or operational value of the existing 
systems. It was therefore decided that the CF-104 was to be equipped 
with the two weapons delivery devices.

In February 1961 the contract for the Computer was amended to 
reduce the purchase of production inventory material from that re­
quired for 238 units to that required for 168 units, and at the same time 
the contract was further amended to include the purchase of 35 complet­
ed units on a cost plus ceiling price basis from the Canadian manufactur­
er, and a further 35 completed units at a lot price from the Canadian 
manufacturer’s associated company in the United States.

In June 1961 the Royal Canadian Air Force discontinued pilot 
training for the type of weapon the Bomb Toss Computer was designed 
to deliver, a decision which cast further doubt on the future of the 
Computer. Nevertheless, it was decided that “the Computer be left in the 
aircraft to give flexibility of weapon employment for the future”, and in 
September 1961 the contract for the Computer was further amended to 
provide for the manufacture of 168 additional Computers at a unit price 
of $21,933.
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This last amendment increased the amount of the contract to $5,- 
931,000 covering the following:

Purchase of 35 complete units from the Canadian cons tractor on a
cost plus ceiling basis which averaged $28,500 per unit...........$ 999,000

Purchase of 35 complete units manufactured by the United States 
associate of the Canadian manufacturer at a lot price which
averaged $30,300 per unit ................................................................... 1,061,000

Purchase of 168 units from the Canadian manufacturer at a price
of $21,933 per unit .................................................................................. 3,685,000

Qualification, sample testing and modification kits ............................ 186,000

$ 5,931^000

Although deliveries under the contract are complete, the contract has not 
yet been fully settled and changes may occur in the above figures.

By July 1962 it was concluded that the Bomb Toss Computer had 
severe limitations and would require extensive modifications if it were to 
be used. It was also found that the Dual Timers, which cost approxi­
mately $1,400 per aircraft compared with $21,900 per aircraft for the 
Computer, could provide an accuracy at least as good as that which could 
be obtained by the Bomb Toss Computer. In January 1963 it was decided 
to remove the Bomb Toss Computers from all aircraft and to place them 
in long term storage, and in April 1964 it was decided to dispose of the 
Computers together with all tooling, test equipment and spares.

Other contracts were involved in the Bomb Toss Computer program, 
the overall cost of which was $7,210,000 as follows:

Preliminary work ............................................................................................ $ 332,000
Acquisition of 238 units—detailed above ............................................... 5,931,000
Tooling and special production test equipment..................................... 229,000
Support spares ................................................................................................... 718,000

$ 7,210,000

Mr. Henderson: I regret to tell you that this is another large non-produc­
tive payment. The overall cost of this one exceeded $7 million.

The principal item had to do with the acquisition of 138 units which, as the 
tabulation on page 51 shows, cost nearly $6 million to purchase. You will see 
that in January, 1963 the Bomb Toss Computers were removed from all aircraft 
and were placed in long term storage, and in April, 1964 it was decided to 
dispose of the computers together with all tooling, test equipment and spares.

The Chairman: I think the committee would like an explanation of why we 
get into these situations. I realize war and preparation for war is an expensive 
business, but are we taking all the necessary precautions? Would you like to 
comment, Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Hunter?
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Mr. Armstrong: Well, if I might comment first. I suppose, to put this in 
very simple terms, this particular piece of equipment simply became obsolete 
before it was ever put into use. The Bomb Toss Computer which we are 
discussing is a particular system to deliver a nuclear weapon which would be 
employed with the 104 aircraft in Europe. This was one of the systems, it was 
believed, would be used when the aircraft was put into production. Conse­
quently, contracts were entered into to produce this particular system.

Before the aircraft was completed, and before it was put into use, another 
system called the—and it is referred to in the Auditor General’s report—Dual 
Timer, which was another method of delivering the bomb, was developed and 
came into use, and the Bomb Toss Computer was gone. That is about the size of 
it.

Mr. Schreyer : I would ask Mr. Hunter if it is not a fact that the problem of 
spending large amounts of money on defence devices, which become obsolete 
before they are ready for mass scale production is not one facing defence 
production departments throughout the world?

Mr. Hunter: That might be a fair statement, Mr. Schreyer, but as far as 
defence production is concerned, we really take our orders from the military 
who keep themselves abreast of what is the newest, certainly in this part, of 
military equipment. Whether this was a case of where someone might have 
foreseen they were going to have another one, I really could not say.

The Chairman: It comes right back to policy decisions really.
Mr. Armstrong: I think one point which you should bear in mind in 

considering an item of this kind—it is true that it is a very expensive item; it is 
$7 million—is that it is a very vital piece of equipment in the use of the aircraft. 
When you consider the cost of the aircraft, the cost of educating people who can 
fly them, train them, and so on, it is a relatively small amount percentagewise.

As you develop an aircraft of this kind, it is absolutely essential to have a 
fire control system, or a bomb control system in it, when you put it into 
operation. The Bomb Toss Computer was believed to be, as I say, at the time the 
aircraft was going into production the system which would be used. As it turned 
out, before the end of that production, and before the aircraft actually got into 
use, another more advantageous system was available, and it was used.

The Chairman: The next item is on page 54, paragraph 83.
83. Electrical relays found unsuitable. In 1958 a contract was awarded 

to a United States firm for the supply of 3,400 electrical relays for the 
Royal Canadian Air Force at a cost of $75,000. When put into service the 
relays were found to be unsatisfactory and some 3,100 were returned to 
the supplier for correction. Tests made on reworked relays disclosed that 
they were unsatisfactory and could not be successfully adapted to their 
intended use. It was subsequently learned that in attempting to produce 
a better product, the supplier had deviated from the configuration of the 
eight original prototype relays that had met all the Air Force require­
ments and on the strength of which the contract had been awarded.

In 1961 the supplier was requested to make a financial statement but 
he contended that while he was prepared to continue to assist in resolving 
the problem of putting the relays into effective use, he was under no
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obligation to refund the purchase price. Legal action against the company 
was not taken as the eight original prototype relays had all been lost or 
discarded and thus there was no evidence to support the case.

Some 3,000 relays in the hands of the supplied were subsequently 
reported to Crown Assets Disposal Corporation for disposal and they 
were purchased by the supplier for a negotiated price of $610.

Mr. Henderson: This is a case where 3,400 electrical relays were purchased 
from a United States .supplier at a cost of $75,000, following which 3,100 had to 
be returned for correction. Even after this, they were still unsatisfactory and 
could not be used. While they were still in the hands of the supplier who had 
refused to make any kind of financial adjustment, these relays were reported to 
Crown Assets Disposal Corporation for disposal, and the original United States 
supplier purchased the lot from them for $610.

Mr. Hunter: As far as defence production is concerned, we received an 
advice from the R.C.A.F. that the Sigma relay was an acceptable item as a result 
of the testing of eight sample relays. “Sigma” was the company name for 
proprietory design. The Department of Defence Production placed contracts 
with Sigma for 300 and 3,100, or a total of 3,400.

By the time the Department of National Defence advised us of the 
epidemic of failures, all relays had been received and paid for. Arrangements 
were made to rework certain batches, but they were still not satisfactory. Our 
legal branch attempted to obtain redress from Sigma but to no avail. No legal 
action could be taken as the only evidence namely the eight relays previously 
tested, were no longer available, having been disposed of by some means. I am 
not sure exactly how this was done.

The Chairman: Are there any questions?
Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, I think it is sort of ironic, if not insulting, 

that Crown Assets Disposal Corporation arranged for the disposal of these units 
back to the original supplier who had made the error. I understand this is not a 
matter for the defence production officials, but the fee is almost insulting, a 
figure of $600 as compared to the $75,000.

The Chairman: It would appear that you gave the contract to a company 
which was not too reliable; I do not even know who it was. You returned them 
to the supplier for correction, but he failed to correct them. Were you dealing 
with a reliable firm?

Mr. Hunter: We believed them to be reliable, Mr. Chairman, I will ask my 
officials.

The Chairman: Is this a United States firm?
Mr. Hunter: Yes, it is.
Mr. Bigg: The word “unsatisfactory” is used here rather than “faulty”. Is 

this another case where we, in fact, ordered the wrong design for certain uses 
and we found that it was not operationally effective?

Mr. S. I. Comach (Deputy Director, Electronics and Electrical Branch, 
Department of Defence Production): The first eight which were tested were
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quite satisfactory. Whether the company changed something in the relays 
afterwards, because this is their own design, we do not know, but when these 
relays were bought a.s a result and put into service there was a high failure 
epidemic and they had to be removed from service. We went back to them, 
asked them to repair them; they tried and they were still not satisfactory, so we # 
had to go somewhere else to buy relays which met the requirements.

The Chairman: If they were not satisfactory, why did you pay them?
Mr. Comach: They were all paid for by the time this was known. At the 

time this error was known the relays had been received and paid for.
The Chairman: Could I ask a blunt question? If you were running your 

own business, would you run it that way?
Mr. Comach: Well, we did not know these relays would fail at the time 

they were paid for.
Mr. Schreyer: Mr. Chairman, what was the time lapse between payment 

and the discovery of the rash of failures or outbreak of failures of this article?
Mr. Comach: I cannot answer that question.
The Chairman: Would you like to have them find the answer to that for 

you? They can give you that, I am sure.
Mr. Bigg: I do not quite understand the second last paragraph of this where 

it says these original relays had all been lost or discarded; those are the ones 
that worked satisfactorily, apparently, and some of them wore out. However, 
this does not seem to be any excuse for the failure of the ones that subsequently 
did not stand up to the service test. I can understand how the eight got into the 
air, but I do not know why we did not use them, in other words.

Mr. Comach: I think the answer to that is that the reference to these eight 
was to show that this was the only evidence we had that these relays were 
satisfactory.

Mr. Bigg: But they were changed?
Mr. Comach: Then there was a change.
Mr. Bigg: Surely there is some guarantee. Is there no guarantee from the 

producer that they will in fact have a certain life? If I buy a light which is 
guaranteed to last ten hours but it does not last that long, I will take it back to 
the Safeway store and get my money back. The fact that eight of them did last 
for ten hours is no excuse for 3,000 others not lasting. Perhaps that example is 
oversimplified.

Mr. Comach: All of this is referred to our legal people, and they advised 
that there could be no redress because we could not prove anything. Since the 
eight relays that we originally worked on were discarded, thrown away, or lost, 
there was no evidence we could use on which to back our claim. ^

Mr. Schreyer: I would like to ask Mr. Hunter if it is the general practice to 
make payment in full to the supplier at the time of delivery, or is there a part 
payment, and a holdback for a period of time while the product is being used or 
proved?
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Mr. Hunter: This varies with certain items, Mr. Chairman, I would not like 
to try and say which items we do have a warranty on and which we do not. I 
am thinking of shipbuilding at the moment, we have a warranty as to 
workmanship and materials against failure of workmanship and materials.

However, in connection with these complicated electronic devices, I do not 
believe-—and Mr. Comach confirms this—that when they have been tested by the 
military specifications test which are given to them, that they are accepted at 
that point. There would be times, I am sure, in cases of failure where we would 
go back and attempt to get the company to correct it. If we are successful, fine; 
otherwise it is governed by the legal contract we have with them. If we did not 
have a warranty that they would last for say a year or two years or so many 
hours, then we would have no case. I am told we did not have such a warranty 
in this case.

The Chairman: Mr. Schreyer, does that answer your question? I think your 
question is the same that is running through my mind. You paid for these 
things before you put them into service. Is that right?

Mr. Comach: They were paid for on delivery.
The Chairman : They were paid for on delivery before you put them into 

service.
Mr. Comach: That is right.
The Chairman: Then you put them into service and they were not 

satisfactory?
Mr. Comach: Yes.
The Chairman: Then you had no redress. I do not buy a car like that.
Mr. Noble: That is right; I was just going to mention that. When you buy a 

car and you take it home and find something wrong with it, you take it back to 
the manufacturer and he will fix it up.

The Chairman: Why, certainly.
Mr. Henderson: Mr. Chairman, I would like to take the liberty at this point 

of just reading to you, without divulging the name or anything, the legal 
opinion which was rendered to the Department on this case with regard to 
having recourse. I have my own views on it; I think it would be very helpful to 
have yours. This is after considering the correspondence with the manufacturer 
and the circumstances of the case, and quite properly, as the Deputy Minister 
says, it was referred to their legal advisor who stated:

I have your memorandum concerning our case against this compa­
ny. It is apparent that the company will not go any further in making 
good the relays it supplied under the above contract. The only remedy 
left to us would therefore be to bring an action against the company in 
the Massachusetts courts. This would be an expensive and time-consum­
ing operation and one where the chances of success would be small. Our 
case would have to be based on the proposition that the relays supplied 
were of a different quality from the eight sample relays given to the 
R-C.A.F. for testing. As apparently these test relays were all lost or

24577—3
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discarded, we would have no evidence to support our case. In the 
circumstances, therefore, I do not think we would be justified in pro­
ceeding further with this claim.

Mr. Bigg: I cannot agree with that. I think it is a very dangerous precedent 
to let them get away with it just because they say you cannot prove your case. 
One would never go to court if there was not some doubt about the case, and 
for that matter there would not be anything for lawyers to do. I think it is up to 
our lawyers, in some cases at least, to make a test case and press it.

The Chairman: I think Mr. Schreyer’s point about a holdback in a case like 
this, with a company outside of the country and so on, is well taken. This way 
of conducting arrangements does not seem like good business to me. I have not 
been convinced that it was. I do not know about the rest of the members.

Mr. Henderson: The fact that they could go in there and buy the whole lot 
back for $600 from our own Crown Assets Disposal Corporation indicates that 
they were right on the beam, would it not?

Mr. Noble: Mr. Chairman, I think they are taking the Canadian govern­
ment for Santa Claus from what I have heard here this afternoon.

Mr. Leblanc: On the other hand, the department is not involved in 
anything because they got their legal advice from their own advisers who said it 
was useless to carry on in proceeding against the firm- So the defence 
production and national defence are not at fault there because before they let 
the case go they consulted their legal advisers.

Mr. Bigg: Well, then I suggest they use their legal advisers ahead of time to 
draw up a contract which will stand up in the courts.

The Chairman: That is pretty good advice.
Mr. Schreyer: I have one final question. I would ask Mr. Hunter if there 

has been any change in the purchasing and payment policy by the department, 
or is anything contemplated in order to prevent a recurrence of something like 
this.

Mr. Hunter: Well, Mr. Schreyer, this is an unusual case in that it is a 
United States supplier. Most of our buying is done in Canada from people with 
whom we do a continuous business, and it would certainly be in their interest to 
stand behind a case such as this. As far as I know, this may have been the only 
time we dealt with the Sigma Company, and they were not too worried about 
any future business with us.

The Chairman: You have not done any business with them since?
Mr. Hunter: No, we have not.
Mr. Bigg: You sold them back their stuff for $610.
The Chairman : Well, I would have thrown it in the river before I would 

have given it to them after the way they treated you-
Mr. Hunter: They had been making an attempt to satisfy us. An attempt 

was made to remedy them, but when they reached a point where they could 
not, a deal was made with them. They were in their hands.
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Mr. Bigg: The 3,100 were still in their hands and we allowed them to sort 
of keep them for $600; represented by that little paper entry through Crown 
Assets.

Mr. Hunter: I am not sure of all the details, but I could get them for you.
Mr. Henderson: That I believe is what happened, Mr. Bigg.
The Chairman: Well, Mr. Schreyer’s question was, has your system of 

payment and holdback been changed so that this will not happen again. I did 
not get the complete answer.

Mr. Hunter: I do not recall any specific change, but I will certainly look 
into how firms, who are more or less outside of our control as defence contracts, 
are dealt with, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: I think that completes the paragraph concerning the 
department of defence production. We have about five or ten minutes and then 
we will adjourn.

Mr. Henderson: I would like to mention for the information of the 
committee that there are two paragraphs in my 1965 Report which we shall be 
coming to, but I recognizee that this meeting has been covering the department 
of national defence items, and therefore you may not be sufficiently familiar 
with them. The first item is the disposal of the surplus plant:

59. Disposal of surplus plant. In March 1964 the Minister of Defence 
Production was authorized to solicit and negotiate bids for the sale of 
three plants operated by Canadian Arsenals Limited. Bids were invited 
for each of the plants, the prospective purchaser being required to 
demonstrate a capability to manage manufacturing facilities involving 
military equipment, state his intention to retain the defined military 
explosive manufacturing capabilities and indicate his proposed use of the 
remaining plant capacity. Only the DeSalaberry plant was sold.

Only one bid was received for this plant which is located on 1,094 
acres fronting on the St. Lawrence River near Valleyfield, Que. The 
original cost of the plant’s land, buildings, machinery and equipment was 
$18,210,0000. Over the past six years its operations have resulted in losses 
averaging $1.5 million annually, exclusive of any charge for depreciation 
of its buildings and equipment, and departmental officials estimated that 
future operating losses would be about $1 million annually.

In May 1964 an independent appraiser advised Crown Assets Dis­
posal Corporation that a fair market value of the property, exclusive of 
machinery and equipment, would be $6,492,000, subject to the qualifica­
tion that if any use of the property, other than the use to which it is now 
put, were to be contemplated by a purchaser, then the value would be 
but a fraction of the figure mentioned because most of the buildings are 
one-purpose structures. At the same time machinery and equipment in 
the plant were separately evaluated on an estimated recovery basis by 
officials of Canadian Arsenals Limited, Department of Defence Produc­
tion and Crown Assets Disposal Corporation at $1,405,000. This placed 
the total appraised fair market value of the land, buildings, machinery 
and equipment at $7,897,000.
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The company that had submitted the bid planned to use the facilities 
for manufacturing propellants and military high explosives and to deve­
lop suitable propellants for commercial ammunition. The company also 
proposed to investigate the commercial application of that part of the 
facilities designed for the production of nitrocellulose and nitric acid but 
did not contemplate that its foreseeable production would ever fully 
utilize the plant capacity available.

Taking into consideration the appraiser’s qualification in valuing the 
property, the fact that the company could not utilize the full plant 
capacity and that a major portion of the plant could not be commercially 
utilized without substantial conversion, it was concluded that the fair 
market value of the land, buildings, machinery and equipment should be 
reduced from $7,987,000 to $4,137,000.

The company offered to purchase the land, buildings, machinery and 
equipment for $1 million and to pay $757,000 for the active inventory on 
the premises. It also indicated that, as a condition of sale, it was prepared 
to retain the skills and capabilities of the plant to produce defence 
supplies for a period of ten years without cost to the Crown and to retain 
itmes of equipment and special tooling essential to such production and 
to accord first priority to defence contracts. The company’s offer was 
accepted and the sale completed on this basis on March 31,1965.

If you wish a witness, Mr. Hunter is your Deputy Minister on that subject.
The next item is paragraph 60 which is the fefence production revolving 

fund :
60. Defence Production Revolving Fund. Section 16 of the De­

fence Production Act, R.S., c.62, established the Defence Production 
Revolving Fund in an amount not to exceed $100 million for the 
purpose of acquiring, storing, maintaining, and transporting stocks of 
materials or defence supplies, and providing working capital loans 
and advances to persons engaged in defence work. The section 
provides that no amount may be credited to the revolving fund to 
reimburse the fund for any loss sustained except pursuant to an 
appropriation by Parliament for that purpose. However, the Act is 
silent with respect to the treatment of any surplus.

The Financial Administration Act requires a surplus in a re­
volving fund to be “transferred from the revolving fund as revenue” 
and it also includes a provision similar to that appearing in the 
Defence Production Act that “no amount may be credited to the 
revolving fund to meet the deficiency except with the authority of 
Parliament”. These directions with regard to treatment of surpluses 
and deficits seem to us to clearly indicate that Parliament wishes to 
be made aware of losses sustained through the operations of revolv­
ing funds and does not intend that any such losses be absorbed by a 
previously accumulated surplus.

In 1956 there was a surplus of $470,000 in the Defence Produc­
tion Revolving Fund and the Auditor General’s Report for that 
year drew attention to this surplus because it was believed to be
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the intent of Parliament that all revolving funds surrender surpluses 
at each year-end.

No action was taken with regard to the surplus reported in 1956 
and by March 31, 1965 there was an accumulated surplus of $1,818,- 
000 in the Defence Production Revolving Fund comprising:

Interest received under aircraft sales contracts.................................$ 1,111,000
Interest received on working capital advances ............................. 14,000
Net profit on strategic material inventory transactions:

Disposal completed ......................................................................... 730,000
In process of disposal..................................................................... 1,000

1,856,000
Less: Warehousing and other expenses relating to inventories still

on hand ............................................................................................ 38,000

$ 1,818,000

In the absence of specific provisions in the Defence Production 
Act with respect to the treatment of surplus, departmental officers 
have taken the view that surplus, whether derived from interest 
earned or profit on a strategic material inventory that has been 
completely disposed of, should be retained in the Fund as protection 
against possible losses on future transactions.

We do not agree with this view. If income of the type above is to 
be left at the discretion of the department in a revolving fund to 
cover possible future losses in that fund, parliamentary control of 
public money is weakened because losses which should come under 
parliamentary scrutiny would not be adequately disclosed. Moreover, 
unless a surplus is transferred from a revolving fund to the Con­
solidated Revenue Fund, budgetary revenues are understated.

In the normal course, Mr. Chairman, we would handle these two para­
graphs as we go through the 1965 Report. It could be that a witness is not 
necessary. I just thought I should mention those two paragraphs. You might 
care to leave them for now because we will pick them up as we go through the 
1965 Report, but they concern this department.

The Chairman: Just before we adjourn, I first of all want to thank the 
witnesses who have been with us for the last two meetings. Unfortunately, we 
have not finished all the Department of National Defence paragraphs. We will 
have to let you know at a later date, Mr. Armstrong, when these will come up 
again as we have a schedule drawn up which calls for the Department of 
Finance here on Thursday at 11.00 a.m. All of the members of the committee 
have been supplied with a list of the paragraphs which we will be dealing with 
under the Department of Finance. I hope you will refer to that list and do as 
much homework on these paragraphs as possible to be ready for Thursday, and 
have your questions at hand for the Department of Finance.

Mr. Bigg: Mr. Chairman, with respect to paragraph 59, I wonder if 
somebody can tell us the profits of this company over the last twenty-five years. 
I think these facts would be relevant.
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The Chairman: What page are you on?
Mr. Bigg: Page 31. It says that this company lost $1.5 million annually in 

the last six years. I would like to know what the gross take was over the last 
thirty years.

Mr. Henderson: This was a crown company which was losing money, and 
this is averaged at the rate of $1£ million over the past six years.

Mr. Bigg: Oh, it was a crown company?
Mr. Henderson: Yes, Canadian Arsenals. This is crown property. The real 

point of this question, Mr. Bigg, is the fact that there is over 1,000 acres of very 
valuable real estate.

Mr. Bigg: I have another point. I can see that this is one of these 
plants getting ready for the next war, and so on. Is there a clause in the 
agreement stating it must be ready to be turned back into a war plant?

Mr. Henderson: That was one of the conditions, but the title rests now in 
the purchaser.

The Chairman: If there are no further questions, the meeting is adjourned.
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